#### INDEX OF DOCUMENTATION

- Attachment 1: Supporting information
- Attachment 2: Sinosteel proof of ownership for M51/869
- Attachment 3: Letter of consent for M51/869
- Attachment 4: Aerial photograph of proposed site layout

## ATTACHMENT 1 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

### ATTACHMENT 2 SINOSTEEL PROOF OF OWNERSHIP FOR M51/869

## ATTACHMENT 3 LETTER OF CONSENT FOR M51/869

## ATTACHMENT 4 AERIAL IMAGE OF THE SITE



# BEEBYN-W11 IRON ORE PROJECT CLEARING PERMIT APPLICATION SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Tenements: M51/869

Revision: 1 Date: 27 September 2024



Prepared by Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd for: **Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd** Level 33, 1 Spring Street Perth, WA 6000

Contact: Goran Seat

Email: goran@fenixresources.com.au

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

1		OVERVIE	W	5
2		MINE AC	TIVITY DETAILS	7
3		BASELINE	E ENVIRONMENTAL DATA	
	3.1	IBRA 7	Biogeographic subregions	
	3.2	Landso	cape	
	3.3	Biolog	ical surveys	
	3.4	Native	flora	
		3.4.1	Vegetation	17
	3.5	Signifi	cant vegetation and ecological systems	23
	3.6	Introd	uced flora	23
	3.7	Fauna	and habitat	24
	3.8	Introd	uced fauna	
	3.9	Short-	range endemics and subterranean fauna	35
	3.1	0 Hydro	logy	
		3.10.1	Surface water	
		3.10.2	Groundwater	41
		3.10.3	Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems	
		3.10.4	Pit lake formation	
4		IMPACTS	AND MANAGEMENT	
	4.1	Impac	t to conservation significant flora	
		4.1.1	Management actions	
	4.2	Impac	t to conservation significant vegetation and ecological systems	
		4.2.1	Management actions	45
	4.3	Introd	uced flora species	45
		4.3.1	Management actions	45
	4.4	Impac	t to conservation significant fauna or their habitat	45
		4.4.1	Management actions	
5		ASSESSIV	IENT AGAINST THE 10 CLEARING PRINCIPLES	
6.0	)	REFEREN	ICES	50

#### TABLES

Table 2.1: Current and proposed mine activity and areas of disturbance.	7
Table 3.1: Flora and fauna surveys in and around Weld Range.	11
Table 3.2: Floristic communities of the Weld Range, as identified by DEC in 2005	12
Table 3.3: Conservation significant flora recorded and potentially occurring in the project area	13
Table 3.4: Priority species records within proposed infrastructure envelope.	17
Table 3.5: Vegetation types identified in the project area.	18
Table 3.6: Proportion of project area in PEC (excluding existing disturbance).	23
Table 3.7: Weed species recorded and potentially occurring in the project area	24
Table 3.8: Conservation significant fauna likelihood of occurrence	27
Table 3.9: Fauna habitat recorded in the study area.	31
Table 3.10: Adopted design flows from HECRAS modelling.	
Table 3.11: Laboratory analysis of water samples from the project area.	41
Table 3.12: Pit recharge water balance.	43
Table 4.1: Impact to PEC vegetation	44

#### **FIGURES**

Figure 1.1: Beebyn-W11 Iron Ore Project regional location and transport route	6
Figure 2.1: Beebyn-W11 Project Disturbance Envelope	8
Figure 2.2: Proposed site layout	9
Figure 3.1: Priority flora records within 30 km of the project area	14
Figure 3.2: Priority flora within the proposed Beebyn-W11 area.	15
Figure 3.3: Priority flora within the proposed Beebyn-W11 infrastructure area	16
Figure 3.4: Vegetation types associated with the project area – map 1 of 3	20
Figure 3.5: Vegetation types associated with the project area – map 2 of 3	21
Figure 3.6: Vegetation types associated with the project area – map 3 of 3	22
Figure 3.7: Database search records of conservation significant fauna within 30 km of the project area	28
Figure 3.8: Possible extinct malleefowl mounds recorded in the project area.	29
Figure 3.9: Recorded Idiosoma clypeatum locations in the Beebyn-W11 project area.	30
Figure 3.10: Fauna habitat in the project area – map 1 of 3	32
Figure 3.11: Fauna habitat in the project area – map 2 of 3	33
Figure 3.12: Fauna habitat in the project area – map 3 of 3	34
Figure 3.13: Surface water catchments of the infrastructure area.	
Figure 3.14: Beebyn-W11 project flood risk (infrastructure area) for a 1 in 100-year AEP	39
Figure 3.15: Surface water catchments of the haul road area	40

#### **APPENDICES** (Provided as a separate document)

Appendix 1: Flora and Fauna Reports

- 1a: Weld Range Flora and Vegetation Assessment ecologia Environment 2010
- 1b: Beebyn Flora, Vegetation and Fauna Assessment APM 2024
- 1c: Iron Ridge Biological Survey 2019 ecologia Environment 2020
- 1d: Status review of Idiosoma clypeatum Biologic Environmental Survey 2019
- 1e: Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey Biologic Environmental Survey 2012
- 1f: W11 Targeted Biological Survey Ecotec 2024
- 1g: Review of Cethegus species limits and SRE status Invertebrate Solutions 2024

Appendix 2: Iron Ridge Stygofauna Assessment - ecologia Environment 2020

Appendix 3: Hydrogeology and Hydrology Assessment - Pentium Water 2024

#### **1 OVERVIEW**

Fenix Resources Ltd is proposing to develop the Beebyn-W11 Iron Ore Project (the Project), approximately 600 km north-east of Perth and 85 km south-west of Meekatharra in the Mid-West Region of Western Australia (Figure 1.1). Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd (Fenix Beebyn) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Fenix Resources Pty Ltd.

Fenix Beebyn has signed a binding agreement with Sinosteel Midwest Corporation (SMC) securing the exclusive right to mine and export up to 10 million dry metric tonnes of iron ore from the high-grade Beebyn-W11 iron ore deposit in the Weld Range (refer ASX announcement dated 3 October 2023).

Fenix already owns and operates the Iron Ridge Project, approximately 20 km to the west of the Beebyn-W11 deposit. The project is located on an existing mining lease – M51/869 – held by Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd (SMC). Development of the Project will be undertaken by Fenix under an agreement with SMC. Miscellaneous Licence L20/92 (assessment pending), to be held by Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd, will connect the Beebyn-W11 project to the Iron Ridge Project. It should be noted that baseline environmental data for the project includes details of L20/92 for project context, however, the Clearing Permit application only relates to the disturbance on M51/869.

The project is expected to produce approximately 3.9 million tonnes (Mt) of high-grade iron ore over a four year mine life, with ore being crushed on site using a semi-mobile crushing plant, then trucked to Geraldton for export to overseas customers.

An expected 13.7 Mt of waste rock will be produced over the life of the operation, with some being used for construction of pads and road surfaces, and the remainder deposited into a waste dump adjacent to the pit on M51/869.

The workforce will operate on a fly-in, fly-out (FIFO) roster and will be accommodated at Fenix's existing Iron Ridge facility, approximately 20 km to the west of the proposed Beebyn-W11 mine site.

Fenix Beebyn lodged a Mining Proposal and Mine Closure Plan in May 2024 detailing the proposed project. The Mining Proposal and Mine Closure is currently under assessment by DEMIRS.

A Works Approval application was lodged in May 2024 for the prescribed activities Category 5 (crushing and screening) and Category 6 (mine dewatering) and is currently under assessment by DWER.



Figure 1.1: Beebyn-W11 Iron Ore Project regional location and transport route.

#### 2 MINE ACTIVITY DETAILS

Clearing will be undertaken for a variety of Key Mining Activities and Other Mine Activities, as defined by DEMIRS (2023). Table 2.1, from the project Mining Proposal submitted in May 2024, provides details of the current and proposed mine activity types at the Beebyn-W11 Project.

Figure 2.1 provides the Disturbance Envelope for the project and all disturbance will occur within the defined Disturbance Envelope. Figure 2.2 provides the proposed site layout.

#### Table 2.1: Current and proposed mine activity and areas of disturbance.

Tenement: M51/869	Tenement: M51/869					
Activity Category	Activity Reference	Proposed area (Ha)	Current Approved Area (Ha)	Total Area (Ha) (proposed + current approved)		
Key Mine Activities						
Waste dump or overburden stockpile (class 1)	Waste dump	68.0	0	68.0		
Mining void (depth greater than 5m – below groundwater)	Open pit	15.0	0	15.0		
Plant site	Crushing and screening	2.8	0	2.8		
Run of mine pad	ROM	6.5	0	6.5		
	Key Mine Activity Total Area	92.3	0	92.3		
Other Mine Activities						
Diversion channel or drain	Diversion channel or drain					
Low-grade ore stockpile (class 2)	Low grade stockpile					
Dam - fresh water	Water storage dam					
Workshop	Magazine					
Borrow pit or shallow surface excavation Borrow pit			ind			
Laydown or hardstand area	Laydown, parking areas		Footprints not requ	meu		
Transport or infrastructure corridor	Haul and access roads					
Topsoil stockpile	Topsoil stockpiles					
Land that is cleared of vegetation (other cleared land)	Abandonment bund					
Land that is cleared of vegetation (other cleared land)	Miscellaneous historic disturbance		-			
C	Other Mine Activity Total Area	135.3	0	135.3		
	Total Tenement Activity Area	227.6	0	227.6		



Figure 2.1: Beebyn-W11 Project Disturbance Envelope.



Figure 2.2: Proposed site layout.

#### **3 BASELINE ENVIRONMENTAL DATA**

#### 3.1 IBRA 7 Biogeographic subregions

The Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia (IBRA) classifies the Australian continent into regions or bioregions on the basis of similar geology, landform, vegetation, fauna and climate characteristics. The project area is situated within the Murchison Region according to IBRA 7, which is further divided into two subregions: Eastern Murchison and Western Murchison (DAWE 2019). The study area is situated within the Western Murchison subregion (MUR2).

The West Murchison subregion is in the northern end of the Yilgarn Craton, which experiences an arid climate with bimodal rainfall that usually falls in the winter months. The Western Murchison subregion is characterised by Mulga low woodlands on outcrop and fine textured Quaternary alluvial and eluvial surfaces mantling granitic and greenstone strata (Desmond et al. 2001). Quaternary plains contain hummock grasslands, saltbush shrublands on calcareous soils and Halosarcia low shrublands on saline alluvia.

#### 3.2 Landscape

The Beebyn-W11 Project is located within the Murchison Bioregion of the Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation of Australia (IBRA) and is situated in the Western Murchison subregion (MUR2), close to the boundary of the Eastern Murchison subregion (MUR1).

The MUR2 subregion is described by Desmond et. al. (in DAWE 2019) as follows:

"Mulga low woodlands, often rich in ephemerals (usually with bunch grasses), on outcrop and fine textured Quaternary alluvial and eluvial surfaces (extensive hardpan wash plains that dominate and characterise the subregion) mantling granitic and greenstone strata of the northern part of the Yilgarn Craton. Surfaces associated with the occluded drainage occur throughout with hummock grasslands on Quaternary sandplains, saltbush shrublands on calcareous soils and Halosarcia low shrublands on saline alluvia. Contains the headwaters of the Murchison and Wooramel Rivers, which drain the subregion westwards to the coast. Arid climate with bimodal rainfall that usually falls in winter. The subregional area is 7,847,996 ha." (DAWE 2019).

Laterite or silcrete mesas are usually found at the top of the landscape in areas of granitic basement. These mesas have lateritic breakaways, kaolinised footslopes (often saline) and are surrounded by gently sloping plains. There are also some low hills, domes and tor fields of granite, gneiss and quartz found in upper parts of the landscape. The bulk of the terrain consists of gently undulating wash plains and sandplains sitting below the mesas and hills. Although wash plains are most common in the north-west, they occur throughout the province with the exception of its eastern margin. These wash plains consist of very gently inclined alluvial surfaces that carry sheet flows. Typically, an almost continuous cemented layer of red-brown hardpan has formed in these deposits. There are often small sandy banks and groves across the wash plains and gravelly mantles are sometimes present. Narrow saline drainage tracts may also be found (Tille 2006).

Soils on the plains are typically red loamy earths and red-brown hardpan shallow loams. Red sandy soils are found along the significant drainage channels. Shallow loams and sands and stony soils are found on the hills and mesas with sandy soils more common on granitic hills. Salt lake soils are found on the valley floors (Tille 2006).

#### 3.3 Biological surveys

Flora and fauna surveys have been completed in and around the project area and the wider Weld Range. The project area and surrounds have been quite extensively covered by prior biological surveys.

A summary of the surveys relevant to the project are presented in Table 3.1. More details are provided in the following sections.

#### Table 3.1: Flora and fauna surveys in and around Weld Range.

Survey type and location.	Year	Consultants
Flora and vegetation survey - Weld Range Iron Ore; Atlas Iron	2008	Woodman Environmental
Flora and Vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: The Weld Range	2008	Department of Conservation (DEC)
Targeted Shield-backed trapdoor spider, SRE Invertebrate and vertebrate fauna survey	2009	Bamford Consulting Ecologists
Weld Range Level 1 Targeted Fauna Survey; Atlas Iron Ltd	2009	Biologic
Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment Unpublished Report for Sinosteel-Midwest Corporation	2009	ecologia
Weld Range Vertebrate Fauna Assessment. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel-Midwest Management	2009	ecologia
SRE Invertebrate habitat survey; Atlas Weld Range Project	2011	Biologic
Weld Range DSO Project, Local and Regional Significant Flora Assessment 2012; Atlas Iron Ltd	2012	Woodman Environmental
Weld Range DSO Project, Flora and Vegetation Assessment; Atlas Iron Ltd	2012	Woodman Environmental
Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey 2012; Atlas Iron Ltd	2012	Biologic
Idiosoma nigrum Status Review	2019	Biologic
Iron Ridge Flora and Fauna Reconnaissance Survey	2019	ecologia
Iron Ridge Biological Survey 2019	2019	ecologia
Micromyrtus placoides Targeted Survey	2020	ecologia
Beebyn 11 Weld Range Flora and Fauna Survey	2023	Animal Plant Mineral (APM)
Beebyn W11 Targeted Biological Survey	2024	Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd

The BIF ranges of the Mid West and Goldfields regions are generally considered to have significant biodiversity value because of their unique geology, soils and relative isolation. The values of the ranges are related to the presence of endemic plant species, threatened and restricted plant species, highly restricted and distinct plant communities and ecological communities. The ranges also exhibit very distinct features in their regional landscape and in many cases possess outstanding landscape values. They also have fauna conservation values although these are less well documented than for flora. There are, however, differences between the various BIF ranges in terms of their biodiversity conservation and mineral prospectively/resource values.

The Midwest BIF ranges are considered to be under represented in the State's reserve system (Department of Environment and Conservation [DEC] 2007) however, in the report *Banded Ironstone Formation Ranges of the Midwest and Goldfields - Interim Status Report - Biodiversity Values and Conservation Requirements* by DEC (now DBCA), the Weld Range was described as being a "lower biodiversity value site, although still providing refugial habitats with localised species and vegetation communities" (DEC 2007).

The Beebyn-W11 Project partly coincides with the Priority 1 Priority Ecological Community (PEC) "Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)" and the 500 m administrative buffer that surrounds it. Rather

than being defined by a specific plant community, the extent of the Weld Range PEC has been determined on the basis of its extent over the banded iron formation of the Weld Range (*ecologia* 2020a).

A survey of the flora and floristic communities of the Weld Range was undertaken by DEC in 2005 (Markey and Dillon 2008). A total of 239 taxa (species, subspecies and varieties) and five hybrids of vascular plants were collected and identified from within the survey area. Of these, 229 taxa were native and 10 species were introduced. Eight priority species were located in this survey, six of these being new records for the Weld Range.

Eight floristic community types (six types, two of these subdivided into two subtypes each) were identified and described for the Weld Range.There did not appear to be any restricted communities within the landform, but some of these communities may be geographically restricted to the Weld Range (Markey and Dillon 2008).

Table 3.2 lists the floristic communities identified during the DEC survey of Weld Range (Markey and Dillon 2008).

Reference	Description
Community 1a:	Dominated by <i>Acacia aneura, Acacia ramulosa</i> and/or <i>Acacia</i> sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) over sparse shrub cover of <i>Eremophila</i> spp., mainly on mid-upper slopes.
Community 1b:	Open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura, Acacia</i> sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and <i>Grevillea berryana</i> over shrub cover of <i>Eremophila</i> spp. on gentle-moderates slopes.
Community 2:	Open Shrubland of Acacia cf. aneura var. microcarpa and/or Acacia cf. aneura var. aneura, over Thryptomene decussata, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei and Eremophila spp. on BIF on moderate-steep slopes.
Community 3:	Depauperate Shrubland dominated by Acacia aneura on scree slopes.
Community 4:	Open Shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> with <i>Acacia pruinocarpa</i> over shrublands of <i>Philotheca brucei</i> var. <i>brucei</i> and <i>Eremophila</i> spp. on steep rocky hillslopes.
Community 5a:	Open Shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>Acacia ramulosa</i> with emergent <i>Acacia pruinosa</i> , mainly on lower slopes and outwash areas.
Community 5b:	Open Shrubland of Acacia aneura or Acacia effusifolia over Senna spp. and Tribulus suberosus on lower slopes.
Community 6:	Sparse Shrubland of Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia aneura and Acacia speckii over Shrubland of Eremophila macmilliana, Eremophila mackinleyi subsp. spathulate and Senna spp. on dolerite

Table 3.2: Floristic communities of the Weld Range, as identified by DEC in 2005.

Knowledge of the faunal biodiversity significance of the BIF environments is incomplete, however current knowledge indicates that these isolated areas provide important refuges for fauna. Nineteen vertebrate fauna and one invertebrate species of conservation significance were identified from Threatened and Priority Fauna database searches within 100 km of the project area, predominately recorded within the Weld Range.

#### 3.4 Native flora

Database searches indicated that a total of 28 conservation significant flora taxa have been recorded within a 30 km area around the project site. No Threatened flora species have been recorded in the area. Figure 3.1 provides the recorded locations of Priority listed flora within a 30 km radius of the project.

Ecologia Environment Pty Ltd (*ecologia*) were commissioned by Sinosteel to carry out a Level 2 flora and vegetation survey of the project area and surrounds over four surveys between 2006 and 2009 (*ecologia* 2010b); as well as a targeted conservation significant flora survey of a number of proposed exploration drill lines in the area. The surveys recorded 393 vascular flora taxa from 57 families and 140 genera within the Beebyn-W11 area and surrounding region; including six introduced species and 24 Priority listed flora species. No Threatened species were recorded. The *ecologia* report is included in Appendix 1.

Animal Plant Mineral Pty Ltd (APM) undertook a detailed flora and vegetation survey of the proposed Beebyn-W11 area during 2023 (APM 2024), recording 77 vascular flora taxa from 21 families and 40 genera. The reduction in taxa recorded when compared to the earlier surveys is primarily due to the region having been in drought conditions for several years and the prevalence of goats, which have had a significant impact on the vegetation.

No Threatened species were recorded; however, a single potential record of the Priority 3 listed species *Hibiscus krichauffianus* was recorded. Insufficient material was available to definitively determine the species, due to seasonal conditions. *Hibiscus krichauffianus* is common in the central parts of Australia and the Queensland mid coast. The nearest known record is approximately 250 km south west of the project area, with most records in WA from the Pilbara. The species has not previously been recorded in the Murchison Region (APM 2024).

Ecotec undertook a vegetation and targeted conservation significant flora survey of the project area in August 2024 (Ecotec 2024). No Threatened species were recorded, however five Priority listed flora species were recorded. The Ecotec report is included in Appendix 1.

Table 3.3 provides a summary of the conservation significant flora recorded during survey work, as well as those species considered to be possible inhabitants of the immediate project area. Except for *Acacia dilloniorum*, all taxa listed have distributions extending over 100 km, consistent with observations by Markey and Dillon (2008) that most species are not endemic to the Weld Ranges (*ecologia* 2010b). Species that were considered as unlikely to occur following the survey are not included in this summary table. Full discussion is included in the APM report (APM 2024), provided in Appendix 1.

The distribution of Priority species recorded in the Ecotec (2024) survey in relation to the proposed development infrastructure is shown on Figure 3.2 and Figure 3.3.

Species	Conservation Status	Likelihood of occurrence	
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	Possible – suitable habitat exists in the project area, no known records in immediate vicinity.	
Beyeria lapidicola	P1	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b, Ecotec 2024)	
Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	P1	Recorded (Ecotec 2024)	
Stenanthemum mediale	P1	Recorded (Ecotec 2024)	
Acacia burrowsiana	Р3	Possible – suitable habitat exists in the project area	
Hemigenia virescens	P3	Possible - suitable habitat exists in the project area, no known records in immediate vicinity.	
Hibiscus ?krichauffianus	Р3	Recorded (APM 2024)	
Homalocalyx echinulatus	Р3	Possible - suitable habitat exists in the project area, previous records in immediate vicinity ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)	
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	Recorded (Ecotec 2024)	
Prostanthera petrophila	Р3	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b, Ecotec 2024)	
Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94)	P3	Possible - suitable habitat exists in the project area, no known records in immediate vicinity	
Verticordia jamiesonii	P3	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b, Ecotec 2024)	
Acacia speckii	P4	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b, Ecotec 2024)	
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)	
Grevillea inconspicua	Ρ4	Possible - suitable habitat exists in the project area, no known records in immediate vicinity.	

Table 3.3: Conservation significant flora recorded and potentially occurring in the project area.







Figure 3.2: Priority flora within the proposed Beebyn-W11 area.



Figure 3.3: Priority flora within the proposed Beebyn-W11 infrastructure area.

Following the survey undertaken by Ecotec (2024), individuals of three of the Priority species recorded will be impacted by the proposed development (Figure 3.3). Table 3.4 lists the Priority species and the number of individuals to be impacted.

No *Hibiscus ?krichauffianus* individuals were recorded in the project area during the Ecotec (2024) survey. It is likely that the individuals of this species previously recorded by APM have since senesced or were misidentified due to lack of reproductive material present at the time of the APM survey. Prior to the Ecotec survey in August 2024, the project area had received average rainfall for the year, with the flora in good condition and many species reproductive (flowering, fruiting) and therefore more easily identifiable (Ecotec 2024).

Table 2.4. Duiauitu				
Table 5.4. Priority	y species records	within proposet	a minastructure envelope	٠

Taxon	Known number of individuals at Weld Range	Individuals recorded within proposed disturbance footprint	
Priority 1			
Stenanthemum mediale	186 ( <i>ecologia</i> 2012) 250 (Ecotec 2024)	4	
Priority 3			
Prostanthera petrophila	2,184 ( <i>ecologia</i> 2012) 108 (Ecotec 2024)	17	
Priority 4			
Acacia speckii	1,193 ( <i>ecologia</i> 2012) 51 (Ecotec 2024)	25	

#### 3.4.1 Vegetation

The 2024 Ecotec survey recorded 16 vegetation types within the project area, which generally corresponded with the floristic communities described by Markey and Dillon (2008). The vegetation types described in the Ecotec report are listed in Table 3.5 and have been recorded over the length of the Weld Range in the DEC survey (Markey and Dillon 2008). Figure 3.4 to Figure 3.6 show the distribution of vegetation types within the project area.

Vegetation condition ranged from 'Very Good' to 'Completely Degraded'. Most of the disturbance was a result of moderate to heavy grazing impact from goats and euro, and historically heavy grazing by sheep that has degraded the land and made it compacted and susceptible to sheet erosion. Historical pastoral grazing has also resulted in the loss of palatable shrubs, grasses and forbs, and a low recruitment of perennial species.

Further detail can be found in the Ecotec report, included in Appendix 1.

#### Table 3.5: Vegetation types identified in the project area.

Vegetation Code	Description	Area of Development Envelope (ha)	Area of Disturbance Footprint (ha)
1	Acacia pruinocarpa open woodland or isolated trees over Acacia aptaneura, A. caesaneura, A. craspedocarpa tall sparse shrubland over Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Acacia tetragonophylla, Rhagodia eremaea, Teucrium teucriiflorum sparse shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Menkea villosula, Goodenia tenuiloba low sparse to open shrubland; understory denser under pockets of trees. Not representative of PEC.	71.4	48.4
2	Acacia pruinocarpa mostly absent; Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Acacia sp. Weld Range occasional Acacia incurvaneura, A. pteraneura, Acacia aptaneura, Grevillea berryana tall open shrubland over A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, E. glutinosa, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii sparse shrubland over Eragrostis eriopoda, Ptilotus aervoides, Erodium cygnorum, low sparse tussock grassland. Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 3 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)		30.0
3	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. rhodophloia isolated tall shrubs over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous open shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, Goodenia tenuiloba Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 5 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	62.2	45.4
4	Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura isolated trees over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Dodonaea pachyneura, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Prostanthera petrophila, Tribulus suberosus open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya, Stylidium longibracteatum, Goodenia tenuiloba, Hysterobaeckea occlusa low open shrubland/ low open forbland. Representative of PEC – aligns with Communities 1b and 2 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	8.4	5.7
5	Acacia incurvaneura low open woodland/ tall sparse shrubland over Acacia sp. Weld Range, Eremophila macmillaniana tall sparse shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana, Senna glaucifolia, Ptilotus rotundifolius open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. macmillaniana, Hibiscus sturtii low sparse shrubland over Maireana melanocoma, Ptilotus aervoides, Goodenia tenuiloba low sparse chenopod shrubland. Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 5 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	46.3	29.5
6	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. fuscaneura low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Psydrax latifolia tall open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. xsturtii, S. glutinosa subsp. xluerssenii shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, Tetragonia cristata, Isoetopsis graminifolia, Menkea villosula, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi low forbland. Not representative of PEC.	60.1	24.3
7	Acacia incurvaneura, A. sp. Weld Range, A. speckii tall sparse shrubland over Ptilotus rotundifolius, Eremophila fraseri, E. latrobei, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii sparse shrubland over Sida ectogama, Ptilotus aervoides, P. schwartzii, Erodium cygnorum low sparse shrubland. Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 6 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	37.5	3.7
8	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa tall open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa, Eremophila latrobei, Scaevola spinescens, Senna glaucifolia, sparse shrubland over Eremophila latrobei, Stenanthemum mediale, Sida ectogama, Micromyrtus sulphurea low sparse	16.7	1.8

FENIX

Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd

Vegetation Code	Description	Area of Development Envelope (ha)	Area of Disturbance Footprint (ha)
	shrubland.		
-	Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 2 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)		
9	Acacia pruinocarpa low woodland/ Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa tall open shrubland over Eremophila simulans, E. georgei, E. forrestii open shrubland patches in tall open shrubland of Acacia incurvaneura and A. ramulosa. Not representative of PEC.	231.0	66.3
10	Acacia incurvaneura, A. caesaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Grevillea berryana, low open woodland/ tall open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Acacia spp. open shrubland over Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. simulans subsp. simulans, Sida ectogama, S. sp. Golden calyces glabrous, Ptilotus schwartzii, Eragrostis eriopoda low sparse shrubland. Not representative of PEC.	129.5	9.1
11	Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura open forest over Glycine canescens, Santalum spicatum, Psydrax latifolia vineland/ Acacia ramulosa, Glycine canescens, Psydrax latifolia, Eremophila forrestii var. hastieana open shrubland over Sida ectogama, Ptilotus obovatus, Rhagodia eremaea low shrubland. Not representative of PEC.	11.3	1.6
12	Acacia incurvaneura, A. caesaneura, A. pruinocarpa low woodland/A. tetragonophylla, A. craspedocarpa, Psydrax latifolia tall open shrubland/Eremophila forrestii var. forrestii or var. hastieana, A. ramulosa, Eremophila georgei shrubland/Sida ectogama, Cheilanthes sieberi low shrubland. Not representative of PEC.	89.2	6.6
13	Acacia pruinocarpa low isolated trees over Acacia incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla tall sparse shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. incurvaneura, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. georgei open shrubland over Eremophila georgei, E. foliosissima, Ptilotus schwartzii, Stenopetalum filifolium, Menkea villosula, Isoetopsis graminifolia low open forbland Not representative of PEC.	410.3	33.7
14	Acacia aptaneura, A. grasbyi low open woodland over Eremophila pantonii, Acacia aptaneura, Senna glaucifolia sparse shrubland over Maireana thesioides, M. triptera, Senna glaucifolia low open chenopod shrubland. Not representative of PEC.	9.4	0.7
15	Acacia aneura, A. sp. Weld Range tall isolated shrubs over Eremophila macmillaniana, Acacia sp. Weld Range, Acacia speckii sparse shrubland over Cephalipterum drummondii, Sida ectogama, Aristida contorta low sparse forbland. Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 6 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	43.5	3.5
16	Acacia pteraneura, A. fuscaneura tall open shrubland over Acacia fuscaneura, Grevillea deflexa, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri sparse shrubland over Calytrix desolata, Grevillea deflexa low sparse shrubland over Calytrix desolata, Grevillea low sparse shrubland over Calytrix desolata, Grevillea low sparse shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus low sparse tussock grassland. Not representative of PEC.	24.2	2.2
CL	Cleared areas	20.9	8.8
	Total	1,309.2	321.4



Figure 3.4: Vegetation types associated with the project area – map 1 of 3.

```
FENIX
Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd
```



Figure 3.5: Vegetation types associated with the project area – map 2 of 3.



Figure 3.6: Vegetation types associated with the project area – map 3 of 3.

#### 3.5 Significant vegetation and ecological systems

No State (DBCA) or Commonwealth (EPBC Act) listed Threatened Ecological Communities (TECs) occur within the project area.

The project area partly coincides with the Priority 1 Priority Ecological Community (PEC) Weld Range Vegetation Complexes (banded ironstone formation). Figure 3.4 to Figure 3.6 show the PEC boundary and vegetation in relation to the proposed project layout. The PEC boundary defined by DBCA includes a 500 m "administrative buffer", which includes some vegetation types that do not align with the PEC description. The Weld Range PEC occupies an area of 20,073 ha, with the project area (excluding existing exploration disturbance) coinciding with less than 1.3% of this area.

Vegetation types 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8 and 15, as identified by Ecotec (2024) correspond to the PEC as delineated by DBCA (2019), with 116.1 ha of disturbance proposed for the project occurring within the PEC, inclusive of the buffer zone (Table 3.6).

Vegetation Code	Disturbance Envelope in PEC (ha)
2	30.0
3	45.4
4	5.7
5	29.5
7	3.7
8	1.8
15	-
Total	116.1

## Table 3.6: Proportion of project area inPEC (excluding existing disturbance).

#### 3.6 Introduced flora

The desktop survey identified nine introduced (weed) species as potentially occurring within a 30km radius of the project area. No introduced flora were recorded in the project area during the survey by APM (2024); however, Ecotec (2024) recorded one during the August survey (*Oxalis ?corniculata*). Additionally, *ecologia* (2010b) recorded five introduced (weed) species in the surrounding area and Ecotec (2021 and 2022) recorded eight weed species at the nearby Iron Ridge project. None of the weed species are listed as Weeds of National Significance. While not previously recorded in the Beebyn-W11 project area, *Rumex vesicarius* is listed as a Declared Pest on the Western Australian Organism List (Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development [DPIRD] 2024) and has been recorded at the Iron Ridge project (Ecotec 2022).

Table 3.7 lists the weed species known from the surrounding area.

Scientific name	Common name	Known occurrence	
Lysimachia arvensis	Pimpernel	Iron Ridge (Ecotec 2022)	
Brassica napus	Canola	Iron Ridge (Ecotec 2022)	
Cenchrus ciliaris	Buffel grass	Surrounding area ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)	
Centaurea melitensis	Maltese cockspur	Iron Ridge (Ecotec 2022)	
Cuscuta epithymum	Lesser Dodder	Surrounding area ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)	
Cuscuta planiflora	Small seeded dodder	Iron Ridge (Ecotec 2021)	
Oxalis ?corniculata	Yellow wood sorrel	Project area (Ecotec 2024)	
Portulaca oleracea	Purslane	Surrounding area ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)	
Rostraria pumila	Rough cats' tail	Iron Ridge (Ecotec 2021)	
Rumex vesicarius	Ruby dock	Iron Ridge (Ecotec 2022)	
Solanum nigrum	Black berry nightshade	Surrounding area ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)	
Sonchus asper	Rough sow thistle	Iron Ridge (Ecotec 2022)	
Sonchus oleraceus	Common sow thistle	Iron Ridge (Ecotec 2022), surrounding area ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)	

Table 3.7: Weed	I species recorded	and potentially	occurring in the	project area.
-----------------	--------------------	-----------------	------------------	---------------

#### 3.7 Fauna and habitat

*ecologia* (2010a) undertook a Level 2 vertebrate survey of the project area and surrounds over four site visits between 2006 and 2007; recording 148 vertebrate species in and around the project area, including 80 bird species, 44 reptiles, 23 mammals (17 native and six introduced) and one amphibian.

Twenty vertebrate fauna species and two invertebrate species of conservation significance were identified from database searches of a 30 km radius from the study area including seven mammals, 11 birds and two reptiles (APM 2024). Species listed as Marine or species not known to inhabit terrestrial environments are considered very unlikely to inhabit the project area and have been excluded from further discussion. Table 3.8 provides a summary of those conservation significant species occurring or likely to occur within the Project area. Previously recorded locations of conservation significant fauna are presented in Figure 3.7.

At the Weld Range, the long-tailed dunnart has been recorded on exposed rock and stony soils with hummock grasses and shrubs, flat-topped hills, lateritic plateaus, sandstone ranges and breakaways, generally with a vegetation of sparse mulga over spinifex (*ecologia* 2009a). Within the project area, APM (2024) found suitable habitat exists in the Banded Ironstone and Drainage Line habitats.

Old, inactive malleefowl mounds have been recorded in the project area; however, mounds may last decades after abandonment and the presence of inactive mounds is not a reliable indication of current presence. The species is not expected to be a resident at Weld Range but may persist in surrounding areas of unburnt habitat (APM 2024).

The project area is on the northernmost extent of malleefowl distribution at this longitude in WA, and the closest records are over 50 km to the south. A sandy substrate and abundance of leaf litter are clear requirements for the construction of the birds' incubator-nests (Benshemesh 2007, in APM 2024). Soils in the disturbance footprint have a reasonably high clay content and litter was sparse to absent, except in the narrow Drainage Lines. The quality of the habitat for foraging and nest building are generally low, except in small patches of higher quality habitat in or

near the larger drainage features low in the plains (APM 2024). The Drainage Line habitat represents a small portion of the total project disturbance area (<15%).

Ecotec undertook a habitat and targeted conservation significant fauna survey of the project area in August 2024. Nine possible extinct (long unused and unlikely to be used again, low and flat profile without a peak or crater) malleefowl mounds were recorded during the survey (Figure 3.8). While it is considered reasonably likely that the structures observed are long-extinct mounds, it is possible that some are former rabbit warrens or even geologic formations. If they were constructed by malleefowl they have not been used for decades (Ecotec 2024).

The project area is likely to have supported malleefowl in the past but is now at the northern extent of the species' range. Suitable habitat requirements include dense vegetation with abundant leaf litter, which is used to fill the mounds to incubate the eggs as it composts. The survey area now lacks much of the understorey biomass that was once present (as a result of grazing on the pastoral station) and is therefore lacking in leaf litter, food resources and cover provided by denser vegetation. It was concluded that malleefowl are unlikely to occur in the project area (Ecotec 2024).

The project area contains some large trees that may be suitable for development of hollows by the Southern whiteface (a bird listed as Vulnerable); however, the area is previously disturbed with grazing impacts from both the Beebyn Station and feral goats, and historic clearing for mining exploration. The understory is sparse and the litter layer sparse to absent, but thicker in narrow bands around the drainage lines. Due to the poor condition of the understory, the area is unlikely to host habitat critical to the survival of the Southern whiteface (APM 2024).

Suitable foraging habitat for the grey falcon is present within the area, however no suitable nesting habitat is present and preferred nesting habitat is not available in the surrounding local area. Known records are more than 50 km away and whilst the grey falcon may occasionally visit the locality, it is unlikely to provide an important habitat for this species (APM 2024).

The Western spiny-tailed skink typically resides in family groups in coarse woody debris, such as fallen log piles (Bradley et. al 2022) or, in inland areas, burrows under boulders and exfoliated sheets of granite (*ecologia* 2010; Ecotec 2024). This species is generally easy to detect as the animals use a communal latrine which persists for many months even when the animals are concealed or absent. The species was not recorded in the project area during the recent fauna surveys (APM 2024; Ecotec 2024).

The West Coast mulga slider has been recorded in Weld Range including locations close to the project area; however, APM (2024) found the habitats within the project area were generally of poor quality. Leaf litter is scarce within the project area and soils are degraded and likely poor for burrowing. Higher quality microhabitats occur in the Drainage Line habitat however, soils may be too stony to be suitable.

ecologia conducted a targeted *Idiosoma nigrum* survey at Weld Range (ecologia 2009b), which included a collection of detailed data on the spider's demography, population structure and habitat preference. A total of 76 ha was surveyed for *Idiosoma nigrum*, with 1,708 burrows found, all within the boundaries of drainage lines and underneath Acacia vegetation, predominately on the southern face of hill slopes. Within the Beebyn-W11 project area, 393 burrows were recorded, with an estimated population size of 274 ± 197 individuals (*ecologia* 2009b).

Biologic Environmental Survey Pty Ltd (Biologic) undertook a status review of the species in April 2019 and confirmed that the trapdoor spider found in the Weld Range area is now regarded as *Idiosoma clypeatum*, a Priority 3 species under the WA Biodiversity Conservation Act (Biologic 2019). The letter report provided by Biologic is included in Appendix 1.

Intensive targeted surveys have previously been conducted throughout the Weld Range when the northern shieldbacked trapdoor spider was regarded as *I. nigrum* and listed as a Vulnerable species under the *WA Wildlife Conservation Act 1950.* Over 1800 trapdoor burrows have been identified from database searches, the majority of which are from within the Weld Range. Biologic (2012) estimated the population size of *I. clypeatum* across the Weld Range to be more than 14,000 individuals. The Biologic report is included in Appendix 1.

Ecotec (2024) found that shield-back trapdoor spider burrows in this region are associated with drainage lines and denser stands of Acacia where the soil has a higher moisture content. The amount and type of leaf litter present appears to be an important factor. Typically, burrows are located beneath Acacia trees and shrubs in areas where there is evidence of surface water sheet flow or in denser vegetation adjacent to ephemeral drainage.

Ecotec undertook searches of the main areas of Drainage Line habitat, which is present from the western end of the W11 infrastructure area and along the haul road route. Eleven active and five abandoned *Idiosoma clypeatum* burrows were recorded during the survey. None were located within the proposed disturbance footprint.

Several previous records (as identified by Ecologia (2009b)) within the proposed footprint and associated mainly with south-facing slopes were investigated by Ecotec during the 2024 survey. No evidence of trapdoor burrows was located at the time of the survey. Shield-back trapdoor spider burrows are very difficult to find and it is highly likely that many more burrows are present in suitable habitat across the project area. There is abundant suitable habitat in the surrounding region and *I. clypeatum* is known to be widespread across the Murchison and Yalgoo bioregions (Ecotec 2024).

The location of recorded *I. clypeatum* burrows in relation to the proposed disturbance is presented in Figure 3.9. The proposed Beebyn-W11 project avoids disturbance to all known burrows (as recorded by Ecotec 2024). The Ecotec report is included in Appendix 1.

#### Table 3.8: Conservation significant fauna likelihood of occurrence.

Common name	Scientific name	EPBC status	WA status	Comments	Likelihood of occurrence
Mammals					
Bilby	Macrotis lagotis	VU	VU	The local record has a low level of certainty and was recorded in 1984.	Unlikely
Black-flanked rock-wallaby	Petrogale lateralis lateralis	EN	EN	Historical local record is a fossilised specimen	Unlikely
Brush-tailed mulgara	Dasycercus blythi		P4	Historical local record is a fossilised specimen	Unlikely
Ghost bat	Macroderma gigas	VU	VU	Historical local record is a fossilised specimen	Unlikely
Gould's mouse	Pseudomys gouldii	VU	VU	Historical local record is a fossilised specimen	Unlikely
Greater stick-nest rat	Leporillus conditor	VU	CD	Historical local record is a fossilised specimen	Unlikely
Long-tailed dunnart	Antechinomys longicaudata		P4	Suitable habitat present in the BIF	Recorded
Birds					
Curlew sandpiper	Calidris ferruginea	CR, MI	CR	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Fork-tailed swift	Apus pacificus	MI	IA	All habitats suitable, predominantly a coastal non-breeding visitor to Australia. Project area is outside of likely habitat range.	Unlikely
Grey falcon	Falco hypoleucos	VU	VU	Suitable foraging habitat present. No suitable nesting habitat.	Possible
Grey wagtail	Motacilla cinerea	МІ	МІ	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Malleefowl	Leipoa ocellata	VU	VU	Inactive mounds have been recorded	Possible
Night parrot	Pezoporus occidentalis	EN	CR	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Pectoral sandpiper	Calidris melanotos	MI	IA	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Peregrine falcon	Falco peregrinus		OS	Foraging habitat present	Possible
Sharp-tailed sandpiper	Calidris acuminata	VU, MI	IA	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Southern whiteface	Aphelocephala leucopsis	VU	-	All habitats suitable, project area unlikely to host habitat critical to survival.	Possible
Yellow wagtail	Motacilla flava	МІ	МІ	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Reptiles					
West coast mulga slider	Lerista eupoda		P1	Suitable habitat is present in the Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope habitat.	Possible
Western spiny-tailed skink	Egernia stokesii badia	EN	VU	No granite outcrops are present but suitable habitat may be present in the BIF outcrops	Possible
Invertebrate					
Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider	Idiosoma clypeatum		P3	Recorded within the study area, then identified as <i>I. nigrum</i>	Recorded
Shield-backed trapdoor spider	Idiosoma nigrum	VU	EN	All specimens in the Murchison region determined to be <i>I. clypeatum</i>	Unlikely





Figure 3.7: Database search records of conservation significant fauna within 30 km of the project area.

FENIX

Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd



Figure 3.8: Possible extinct malleefowl mounds recorded in the project area.

Beebyn-W11 Project Clearing Permit Application Supporting Information September 2024



Figure 3.9: Recorded Idiosoma clypeatum locations in the Beebyn-W11 project area.
APM (2024) identified four main habitat types in the project area, described in described in Table 3.9 and shown on Figure 3.10. The habitat types are similar to those identified at the nearby Iron Ridge project (*ecologia* 2020a, Appendix 1). Approximately 122 ha were not covered in the survey undertaken by APM and was assessed by Ecotec in a follow-up survey (Ecotec 2024). The Ecotec survey confirmed the habitat aligned with *Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope* and *Acacia Sand Plain*.

Habitat type	Development Envelope (ha)	Disturbance Envelope (ha)	Beebyn-W11 impact to local area (%)
Acacia Sand Plains	709.1	105.7	14.9
Rocky ridge or outcrop	118.2	41.4	35.0
Drainage Line	160.7	32.6	20.3
Acacia (Mulga) on Hill Slope	300.3	132.9	44.3
Disturbed	20.9	8.8	-
Total	1,309.2	321.4	-

	Table 3	3.9: Fau	na habitat	recorded	in the	study area
--	---------	----------	------------	----------	--------	------------

Acacia Sand Plains habitat occurs predominantly on the lower slopes of the study area, where the haul road is proposed to be developed. Associated soils include sandy to lightly rocky clay loam. The project will result in localised impact to this habitat.

*Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope* habitat is dominated by *Acacia pruinocarpa* trees and *Acacia aneura* shrublands over on sandy or stony clay loam on hill slopes and is the most widespread habitat present in the area. This habitat type provides suitable substrates, vegetation and habitat to support the Priority 3 (BC Act) northern shield-backed trapdoor spider. This habitat is considered widespread in the Weld Range area. Most disturbance associated with the project will occur in this habitat type; therefore, impact to a localised area will result from the proposed development.

Drainage Line habitat provides suitable habitat for the west coast mulga slider. Known from the arid interior of the Midwest of WA and endemic to the Murchison bioregion, this species has previously been recorded within Weld Range in leaf litter fringing drainage lines. A limited extent of this habitat exists around the project area and the project will result in localised impact to this habitat.

*Rocky ridge or outcrop* habitat occurs in a small portion in the north of the project area and is the least widespread habitat present in the area. The long-tailed dunnart has been recorded from widely scattered localities in the arid zone where it inhabits rugged, rocky areas, such as this habitat type. It typically occurs on plateaus near breakaways and scree slopes, and on rugged boulder-strewn scree slopes. Widely separated populations occur in the Pilbara, Murchison, Gibson Desert, southern Carnarvon Basin and in the Western MacDonnell Ranges (Northern Territory). The species was once considered rare but has recently been shown to be relatively common and widespread within rocky habitats, especially banded iron formation ranges within the Midwest. A limited extent of this habitat exists around the project area and the project will result in localised impact to this habitat.

### 3.8 Introduced fauna

Seven species of introduced mammal have previously been recorded around the project area. These include the dog, European red fox, feral cat, rabbit, house mouse, goat and cow. Goats, both feral and raised as pastoral stock, are known to generate high grazing pressure on the native vegetation of parts of the Weld Range.



Figure 3.10: Fauna habitat in the project area – map 1 of 3.



Figure 3.11: Fauna habitat in the project area – map 2 of 3.



Figure 3.12: Fauna habitat in the project area – map 3 of 3.

### 3.9 Short-range endemics and subterranean fauna

Short-range endemics (SREs) are those fauna that have a naturally small range of less than 10,000 km<sup>2</sup>. In addition, these species possess similar ecological traits including poor powers of dispersal, confinement to specialised often discontinuous habitats, slow growth and low fecundity (*ecologia* 2020b).

A potential SRE from a species complex *Cethegus* 'fugax'(curtain web spider) was identified during the *ecologia* survey (2010a). The geographic distribution of *Cethegus* fugax complex extends from the sub coastal areas along the Nullabor Plain to south-western Australia and near the coast as far north as Geraldton. Both morphological and genetic studies confirmed that *Cethegus* at Weld Range belonged to a new, undescribed species. Aerial dispersal may possibly enable *Cethegus* to escape disturbance on a very local scale (i.e. < 1km) but it does not function as a long - distance vector (*ecologia* 2010a). It is found in shaded microhabitats, mostly associated with vegetated areas on southern slopes (*ecologia* 2009c).

Three records of *Cethegus* 'fugax' were recorded in the project area, to the west of the proposed laydown area and outside the disturbance footprint. An additional 33 records occur further to the west of the Beebyn-W11 project area (*ecologia* 2010a). Impact to this species as a result of project implementation is expected to be negligible.

Invertebrate Solutions (2024) undertook a desktop review of *Cethegus* fugax distribution and species limit to determine the potential for this species to be SRE. Since the ecologia (2010a) survey, *C. fugax* has been recorded much further north than Geraldton and are known to occur throughout the Mid-West, with populations known from both Weld Range and Robinson Range (Invertebrate Solutions 2024).

Review of genetic data and analysis found the population of Mid-West *C. 'fugax'* show some genetic structuring by geographical location; however, the assertion that these represents distinct subspecies is not supported by the data, as the analysis shows weak support for most of the clades and no morphological differences were evident. It is to be expected that some genetic structuring over the wide geographical distances between population in the Mid-West would be present, and a similar pattern of genetic structuring was found with the widespread *Idiosoma clypeatum* (Rix et al. 2018) occurring throughout the Mid-West (including Weld Range and Jack Hills) when the genus was revised. *Idiosoma clypeatum* shows similar clumped distributions around Weld Range and Jack Hills with similar levels of genetic structuring to that seen in C. 'fugax – Mid west' and was ultimately described as a single widespread species due to the similar morphological characters of the populations and the genetic distances being below interspecific variation (Invertebrate Solutions 2024).

Invertebrate Solutions found that the genetic and morphologic data obtained by *ecologia* support the existence of an undescribed species of *Cethegus* in the Mid-West, however the species is widespread, and based upon current records is not considered to be an SRE. The Invertebrate Solutions report is included in Appendix 1.

In 2009 *ecologia* conducted a baseline stygofauna survey at Weld Range and surrounding pastoral land, which included sampling 84 drill holes (26 at Beebyn-W11, 40 at Madoonga and 18 at the surrounding pastoral land outside the proposed area of impact), laboratory identifications and reporting, interpretation of the potential impacts and an associated risk assessment of the various project components on stygofauna communities or species (*ecologia* 2010a and 2020b).

No stygobitic species or communities were identified during the stygofauna survey within the Beebyn-W11 impact area or in the regional pastoral bores, although stygophylic representatives of two crustacean orders (Ostracoda and Copepoda) and one annelid sub-class were recorded from nine pastoral wells. One stygobitic copepod from the order Calanoida found in a troglofauna trap at Madoonga suggests that stygofauna may be present in the wider area, though this was not able to be confirmed by stygofauna sampling in nearby bores. The stygophilic copepod found in regional bores, *Mesocyclops brooksi*, is known from both surface waters and ground waters, and it is widespread in Western Australia. The ostracods, *Cypridopsis vidua* and *Sarscypridopsis oschracea* are often found in wells in arid Western Australia but are typically surface species inhabiting open freshwater bodies in southern Western Australia. The results of the 2009 survey suggest that the groundwater habitat in and around the Beebyn impact area is depauperate of true stygofauna and therefore no risk assessment or management recommendations were necessary (*ecologia* 2010a and 2020b).

The *ecologia* stygofauna report is included in Appendix 2.

Ecologia also conducted a two phase troglofauna study of the project area and surrounds in 2007 and 2008,

sampling 143 bore holes (50 at Beebyn-W11, 51 at Madoonga and 42 outside the then proposed area of impact).

A single centipede specimen (likely from the Cryptopidae family) was collected from a single bore within the Beebyn-W11 area. Cryptopids have been collected elsewhere in Western Australia; however, no records exist near Weld Range or other ranges in the Midwest region (*ecologia* 2011). The presence of this species was not confirmed elsewhere in the survey despite a comprehensive number of bores being sampled. Furthermore, no other troglobitic species were found in the survey area.

Examination of the bore hole with the troglofauna record showed that the hole contained at least two geological strata with voids suitable for troglofauna habitation. The most common stratum was dolerite, and this habitat has been classified as 'suitable' due to its common fractures. The other stratum was Banded Iron Formation (BIF), which showed some degree of porosity but was mostly located below the water table and thus its use for troglofauna was assessed as not suitable. The suitable troglobitic habitat (dolerite) is widespread throughout the range. Additionally, both dolerite and BIF strata are continuous to the west from the project area and also occur in the Wilgie Mia Aboriginal Reserve. Impact on the potential troglofauna habitat at Weld Range as a result of the Beebyn-W11 project is expected to be low.

### 3.10 Hydrology

### 3.10.1 Surface water

Weld Range rises above the centre of a drainage basin that is surrounded in the north by topographically higher flat - topped breakaways. The main drainage lines converge at the southeastern part of the basin on its western path to form the Sanford River, a tributary of the Murchison River. The major drainage line (Berhing Creek) drains through the Weld Range to the west of the proposed project area (*ecologia* 2010a).

Rainwater falling in the area drains quickly off the Weld Range ridges through narrow channels which widen substantially as the water drains onto the flatter areas, in some cases forming pans. In the flatter areas the flow of water can become ambiguous with streams dividing, in some cases the divisions flow in quite different directions. The bed conditions of the main channels of all watercourses comprise of coarse sand, rocks and cobbles; whilst the banks comprise silty sand which is easily eroded.

Pentium Water Pty Ltd (Pentium) was commissioned by Fenix to undertake a surface water assessment of the potential impact of flood flows on the mining area and to determine any bunding and drainage requirements for the mining area and infrastructure (Pentium 2024).

The infrastructure area lies on the southern end of one major catchment (Beebyn Creek) with an area of approximately 225 km<sup>2</sup> (Figure 3.13). The ephemeral watercourse draining this catchment area flows south through Beebyn Gap (Pentium 2024).

Detailed flood flows using the HECRAS model found the Beebyn Creek comprised one main channel running south past the proposed Beebyn-W11 infrastructure. Critical duration for the Beebyn Creek was 36 hours (Pentium 2024). The estimated 20, 50 and 100 year average recurrence interval (ARI) design peak flows are shown in Table 3.10.

ARI (years)	Adopted design flows (m <sup>3</sup> /sec)
20	150
50	235
100	312

Table 3.10: Adopted design	flows from HECRAS modelling.
----------------------------	------------------------------

Analysis of the impact of a 1% AEP rainfall event found that Beebyn Creek floods to about 1m deep as it flows past the Beebyn-W11 project site but does not impact mine infrastructure. The 1% AEP flood extent encroaches to within approximately 170m of the pit and waste dump (Figure 3.14).

The mine generally lies near the top of a ridge, and catchments and surface water flows impacting site infrastructure are relatively small. A standard pit bund will be sufficient to prevent surface water flows from entering the pit (Pentium 2024).

Minor flow paths run through the site and the proposed pit, waste dump and plant boundaries; therefore, these areas will require drainage management to prevent ponding. The diversion channel and bunds required are all minor. Ponding against the northern side of the waste dump may occur, depending on the development and configuration of the waste dump, and in the operational phase, will evaporate and infiltrate in situ (Pentium Water 2024). Provision has been made for a diversion channel in this area if required.

The borrow pit was included in the mine design after the surface water assessment was completed. The borrow pit lies outside any catchment flow paths and will not impact surface water flows or require surface water management infrastructure.

Several flow paths cross the proposed road route (Figure 3.15), with a 1% AEP peak flow ranging from 0.7 (CS\_08) to 28 m<sup>3</sup>/s (CS\_04). Fenix is currently undertaking a lidar survey to accurately design the road and waterway, however, due to the short life of mine and relatively small catchments, Pentium (2024) concluded that floodways (with culverts if required) would be suitable. The length of floodways may be determined by the selected design flood event and permissible water depth of road trains.

The Pentium report is included in Appendix 3.



Figure 3.13: Surface water catchments of the infrastructure area.



Figure 3.14: Beebyn-W11 project flood risk (infrastructure area) for a 1 in 100-year AEP.

FENIX Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd



Figure 3.15: Surface water catchments of the haul road area.

### 3.10.2 Groundwater

The Weld Range is located in the East Murchison groundwater management unit. The groundwater in this area is characterised by fractured-rock and palaeochannel aquifers, alluvium and localised calcrete aquifers. Groundwater from fractured-rock aquifers can vary widely in terms of quality and quantity. At Weld Range, groundwater occurs at relatively shallow depths (typically 5 - 50 m below ground level (bgl)) beneath the alluvial plain and occurs within the bedrock sequence that forms Weld Range. The groundwater is fresh to slightly brackish in the BIF and shallow alluvial aquifers and is highly saline in alluvium and the palaeochannel aquifer west and south of the project area (ecologia 2010a).

The main aquifers in the region are alluvium and colluvium with a tertiary palaeochannel passing through the Weld Range. The Banded Iron Formation (BIF) strata which include the Beebyn-Beebyn-W11 deposit are commonly fractured, jointed and vuggy, and constitute aquifers of moderate to high permeability. The granitic and greenstone basement rocks (other than BIF) are generally of low permeability, including the dolerite associated with the BIF. The groundwater is recharged by the infiltration of rainfall and streamflow following high rainfall events. Groundwater flows in a north to southeast direction through the Weld Range and discharges into Lake Austin or a smaller temporary lake to the north.

Existing groundwater extraction in the area consists of water for domestic use and stock watering at homesteads and on stations, and dewatering associated with the Iron Ridge project to the west. The nearest recorded wells are Wilgie Mia and Yallon Wells, approximately 5 km to the south and south-south-east respectively.

The three bores constructed for water abstraction encountered the water table between 29.6 m (hole ID  $B_WB2_01$ ) and 49.7 m (hole ID  $B_WB2_02$ ). The water level in the project area was found to be around 480 m RL, with salinity of 690 – 1,400 mg/L TDS and neutral to slightly alkaline pH between 7.6 and 8.6. Table 3.11 summarises the water quality.

The Pentium report is included in Appendix 3.

Analyte	Unit	B_LTM_03	B_LTM_04	B_WB2_01	B_WB2_02	Livestock drinking water trigger value
Date Sampled		15/7/2019	16/7/2019	17/7/2009	18/7/2019	
Acidity	рН	7.8	7.6	8.6	7.6	
Electrical Conductivity @ 25°C	μS/cm	1200	1400	2300	1600	
Total Dissolved Solids @180°C	mg/L	690	830	1400	950	4000
Total Hardness as CaCO <sub>3</sub>	mg/L	250	330	500	310	
Carbonate, CO₃	mg/L	<1	<1	14	<1	
Bicarbonate, HCO <sub>3</sub>	mg/L	290	370	380	370	
Chloride, Cl	mg/L	180	220	450	260	
Sulphate, SO <sub>4</sub>	mg/L	88	130	190	160	1000
Nitrate, NO <sub>3</sub>	mg/L	55	28	<0.2	14	
Sodium, Na	mg/L	170	180	190	230	
Potassium, K	mg/L	11	14	180	12	
Calcium, Ca	mg/L	37	45	50	39	1000
Magnesium, Mg	mg/L	38	54	92	52	Not toxic
Soluble Iron, Fe	mg/L	<0.02	<0.02	<0.02	<0.02	
Fluoride, F	mg/L	0.4	0.3	0.5	0.3	
Free Cyanide	mg/L	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01	

### Table 3.11: Laboratory analysis of water samples from the project area.

### FENIX

Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd

Analyte	Unit	B_LTM_03	B_LTM_04	B_WB2_01	B_WB2_02	Livestock drinking water trigger value
Aluminium, Al	mg/L	<0.02	<0.02	<0.02	<0.02	0.04
Arsenic, As	mg/L	0.005	<0.002	0.24	<0.002	
Manganese, Mn	mg/L	0.007	0.007	0.074	0.29	Not toxic
Lead, Pb	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	
Cadmium, Cd	mg/L	<0.001	<0.001	<0.001	<0.001	
Copper, Cu	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	
Antimony, Sb	mg/L	<0.0005	<0.0005	0.05	<0.05	
Mercury, Hg	mg/L	<0.05	<0.05			
Silver, Ag	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	
Boron, B	mg/L	1	0.9	0.7	1.2	
Barium, Ba	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	0.02	<0.01	
Beryllium, Be,	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	
Cobalt, Co	mg/L	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01	
Chromium, Cr	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	
Molybdenum, Mo	mg/L	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01	
Nickel, Ni	mg/L	0.007	0.005	0.06	0.008	

### 3.10.3 Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems

No Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems (GDE's) have been identified within the project area and no vegetation considered to be groundwater dependent has been recorded in the various surveys completed (APM 2024, *ecologia* 2010a). Phreatophytic vegetation types were recorded by *ecologia* (2010a) approximately 10 km north east and 20 km south west of the proposed project, outside the disturbance area and extent of predicted drawdown associated with the proposal.

### 3.10.4 Pit lake formation

Once mining is completed, the water level in the pit will rapidly rise for the first five years, followed by a slower recovery over time until a balance is established between the groundwater inflows plus rainfall accumulation and evaporation losses. The pit will extend down from ground levels of approximately 520 m AHD to a base elevation of 395 m AHD, 125 m below the average natural ground level.

The water recharge predicted post mining is given in Table 3.12. The water level in the pit lake will rise up to approximately 466 m RL post mining. It is predicted that a rapid recovery of the water table will occur in the first five years and then plateau after this time.

Groundwater modelling indicates that the pit will function as a sink, with groundwater flowing towards it. Therefore, there would be no flow from the pit lake to groundwater and so there is no potential for groundwater contamination.

The concentration of solutes within the pit lakes will increase over time due to high evaporation and low precipitation in the area. The salinity of the pit water would gradually increase from about 900 mg/L TDS when the pit first begins to fill with water, to about 12,000 mg/L TDS 100 years after the end of mining (Pentium 2024).

The Pentium report is included in Appendix 3.

Time post mining (yr)	Pit lake water level (m RL)
1	419
2	428
5	443
10	454
25	463
100	466

### Table 3.12: Pit recharge water balance.

### 4 IMPACTS AND MANAGEMENT

### 4.1 Impact to conservation significant flora

Nine Priority listed flora species have been recorded in and around the project area. Based on the survey by Ecotec (2024), individuals from three of the Priority species recorded will be impacted by the proposed development. Impact to these species from the proposed development is expected to be minimal, with four individuals of *Stenanthemum mediale*, 17 individuals of *Prostanthera petrophila* and 25 individuals of *Acacia speckii* occurring within the proposed disturbance footprint.

Impact to each species is minimal and most records of conservation significant flora occur to the west of the project area. All species are widespread and well represented in the Weld Range and surrounding area.

#### 4.1.1 Management actions

To minimise potential impacts to Priority flora species, Fenix will:

- implement a Site Disturbance Permit system with strict survey controls and requiring sign off by the Registered Manager prior to clearing commencing.
- clearly delineate areas to be cleared using survey pegs and coloured flagging tape and record ("pick up") cleared areas on completion.
- maintain records of clearing undertaken.
- provide information to site personnel by way of an induction and specific training where necessary to identify conservation significant species and highlight the importance of clearing protocols.

### 4.2 Impact to conservation significant vegetation and ecological systems

No State (BC Act) or Commonwealth (EPBC Act) listed Threatened Ecological Communities (TECs) occur within the project area. A portion of the Beebyn-W11 Project area coincides with the Priority 1 PEC Weld Range Vegetation Complexes (banded ironstone formation) (*ecologia* 2020a). Ecotec (2024) determined that vegetation units 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8 and 15 correspond to the PEC as delineated by DBCA (2019) (refer to Section 3.5).

The Priority 1 PEC Weld Range Vegetation Complexes (banded ironstone formation) occupies an area of 20,318 ha.

Table 4.1 summarises the significance of each of the vegetation types in the project area that are associated with the PEC and the planned area of disturbance to each. The area of project disturbance (excluding existing disturbance in the area) to vegetation associated with the Weld Range PEC equates to less than 0.6% of the PEC (20,318 ha) and is therefore not considered to be a significant impact.

Vegetation Code	Disturbance Envelope in PEC (ha)
2	30.0
3	45.4
4	5.7
5	29.5
7	3.7
8	1.8
15	-

### Table 4.1: Impact to PEC vegetation.

Vegetation	Disturbance Envelope
Code	in PEC (ha)
Total	116.1

### 4.2.1 Management actions

To minimise further impact to vegetation associated with the Weld Range PEC, Fenix will:

- implement a Site Disturbance Permit system with strict survey controls and requiring sign off by the Registered Manager prior to clearing commencing.
- clearly delineate areas to be cleared using survey pegs and coloured flagging tape and record ("pick up") cleared areas on completion.
- maintain records of clearing undertaken.
- provide information to site personnel by way of an induction and specific training where necessary to identify conservation significant vegetation and highlight the importance of clearing protocols.
- a targeted survey will be undertaken in late July 2024 to confirm the location and numbers of conservation significant flora.

### 4.3 Introduced flora species

The vegetation in the vicinity of the Beebyn-W11 Project is in good condition. Minor occurrences of existing weed species have been recorded in the area (refer to 3.6).

Weed seeds can be transported in soil and vegetative material attached to the machinery and equipment. Weeds can be introduced to site via machinery and equipment that has come from weed infested areas without being cleaned.

### 4.3.1 Management actions

To minimise the potential for new (and potentially invasive) weed species to be introduced to the site, Fenix will require that:

- machinery and equipment is thoroughly cleaned prior to being mobilised to site.
- contractors provide a weed hygiene certificate for each item of machinery bought to site.
- machinery and equipment that arrives on site will be inspected. Machinery that does not meet the hygiene requirements will require removal and additional cleaning in an appropriate location.

The potential spread of weed species and establishment of new weed populations will be minimised by:

- regular monitoring of disturbed areas and road verges to identify weeds
- identifying weeds species, abundance and cover during rehabilitation monitoring
- control of weed outbreaks using herbicide or manual removal
- preventing stock access to rehabilitated areas
- educating site personnel by way of the site induction.

### 4.4 Impact to conservation significant fauna or their habitat

Clearing of vegetation for development of project infrastructure will remove a portion of habitat types suitable for a number of Priority fauna species.

The proposed site layout avoids impact to known locations of *Idiosoma clypeatum* (P3). The species is widespread in the surrounding region.

Disturbance to some suitable habitat in the project area for *Lerista eupoda* (P1) will occur where creek crossings are constructed for access roads. There is a limited extent of habitat (Drainage line) within the project area suitable for *Lerista eupoda* (P1) (refer to Figure 3.10 - Figure 3.12).

A limited extent of habitat (Rocky ridge or outcrop) potentially suitable for *Antechinomys longicaudata* (P4) exists around the project area and additional habitat occurs across the Weld Range.

There is no suitable habitat (granite outcropping) in the project area for the western spiny-tailed skink.

### 4.4.1 Management actions

To minimise further impact to fauna habitat, Fenix will:

- ensure clearing is undertaken in accordance with the approved Clearing Permit
- implement a Site Disturbance Permit system with strict survey controls and requiring sign off by the Registered Manager prior to clearing commencing
- undertake clearing in a progressive manner and kept to the minimum required for the project
- clearly delineate areas to be cleared using survey pegs and coloured flagging tape and record ("pick up") cleared areas on completion
- maintain records of clearing undertaken
- provide information to site personnel by way of an induction and specific training where necessary to identify conservation significant fauna and highlight the importance of clearing protocols.

### 5 ASSESSMENT AGAINST THE 10 CLEARING PRINCIPLES

### (1) Native vegetation should not be cleared if it comprises a high level of biological diversity.

The survey of the project area by APM (2024) recorded 77 vascular plant taxa from 21 families and 40 genera. The survey prior (*ecologia* 2010b) recorded 393 vascular flora taxa from 57 families and 140 genera within the Beebyn-W11 area and surrounding region; including six introduced species and 24 Priority listed flora species.

The 2024 Ecotec survey recorded 16 vegetation types within the project area, which generally corresponded with the floristic communities described by Markey and Dillon (2008) and have been recorded over the length of the Weld Range in the DEC survey (Markey and Dillon 2008).

The Priority 1 Weld Range PEC occurs within the area.

While BIF ranges in general are considered to have significant biodiversity value because of their unique geology, soils and relative isolation, the Weld Range was described as being a "lower biodiversity value site, although still providing refugial habitats with localised species and vegetation communities" (DEC 2007).

Less than 0.6% of vegetation associated with the Weld Range PEC will be impacted by the development.

Clearing of native vegetation within the area is not considered to be at variance to this principle.

# (2) Native vegetation should not be cleared if it comprises the whole or a part of, or is necessary for the maintenance of, a significant habitat for fauna indigenous to Western Australia.

Although areas of suitable habitat for several species of conservation-significant fauna occurs within the project area, the area is not considered to provide habitat necessary for the survival of these species. The fauna habitat to be impacted by the project is represented in the surrounding area and accounts for a very small proportion of available habitat.

The proposed site layout avoids impact to known locations of *Idiosoma clypeatum* (P3). The species is widespread in the surrounding region (refer to Figure 3.8).

There is a limited extent of habitat (Drainage line) outside the project area suitable for *Lerista eupoda* (P1) (refer to Figure 3.10) and disturbance will occur where creek crossings are constructed for access roads.

A limited extent of habitat (Rocky ridge or outcrop) potentially suitable for *Antechinomys longicaudata* (P4) exists around the project area and additional habitat occurs across the Weld Range.

Clearing of native vegetation within the area is not considered to be at variance to this principle.

### (3) Native vegetation should not be cleared if it includes, or is necessary for the continued existence of, rare flora.

The area does not coincide with any previously recorded Rare flora taxa, and no Rare flora species are listed as potentially occurring in the area. Accordingly, the area is not considered necessary for the continued existence of Rare flora.

Nine Priority listed flora species have been recorded in and around the project area. Based on the survey by Ecotec (2024), individuals from three of the Priority species recorded will be impacted by the proposed development. Impact to these species from the proposed development is expected to be minimal, with four individuals of *Stenanthemum mediale*, 17 individuals of *Prostanthera petrophila* and 25 individuals of *Acacia speckii* occurring within the proposed disturbance footprint. Impact to each species is minimal and most records of conservation significant flora occur to the west of the project area (Figure 3.2). All species are widespread and well represented in the Weld Range and surrounding area.

Clearing of native vegetation within the area is not considered to be at variance to this principle.

# (4) Native vegetation should not be cleared if it comprises the whole or a part of, or is necessary for the maintenance of, a threatened ecological community.

The project area does not coincide with any Threatened Ecological Communities listed under the *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999* (C'th). Accordingly, the area is not considered necessary for the maintenance of a Threatened Ecological Community.

Development of the project will result in impact to less than 0.6% of vegetation associated with the Priority 1 Priority Ecological Community "Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)".

Clearing of native vegetation within the area is not considered to be at variance to this principle.

# (5) Native vegetation should not be cleared if it is significant as a remnant of native vegetation in an area that has been extensively cleared.

The project area supports 16 distinct vegetation types, none of which have been extensively cleared nor can be considered remnant vegetation.

Clearing of native vegetation within the area is not considered to be at variance to this principle.

## (6) Native vegetation should not be cleared if it is growing in, or in association with, an environment associated with a watercourse or wetland.

The project area does not contain native vegetation that is within or associated with any significant watercourse or wetland. The nearest significant surface water feature is Lake Austin, more than 50 km from the site.

Several minor ephemeral drainage lines pass through the area. The project has been designed to avoid these in the majority. Road crossings will be required at several locations but disturbance to vegetation will be minimal.

Clearing of native vegetation within the area is not considered to be at variance to this principle.

# (7) Native vegetation should not be cleared if the clearing of the vegetation is likely to cause appreciable land degradation.

None of the vegetation in the area is associated with land that is recognised as being particularly susceptible to land degradation. Appropriate surface water drainage and containment around cleared areas will minimise the potential for surface water erosion. Land degradation resulting from clearing of vegetation is considered unlikely.

Clearing of native vegetation within the area is not considered to be at variance to this principle.

# (8) Native vegetation should not be cleared if the clearing of the vegetation is likely to have an impact on the environmental values of any adjacent or nearby conservation area.

The project area partly coincides with Priority 1 PEC "Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)". Approximately 116.1 ha (excluding existing disturbance in the area) of disturbance proposed for the project will occur within the PEC, inclusive of the buffer zone. This equates to less than 0.6% of the buffered Weld Range PEC (20,318 ha).

Clearing of native vegetation within the area is not considered to be at variance to this principle.

# (9) Native vegetation should not be cleared if the clearing of the vegetation is likely to cause deterioration in the quality of surface or underground water.

The project has been designed to minimise impact to a number of small ephemeral drainage lines. Drainage and containment structures incorporated into the development areas will ensure surface water runoff is controlled and

minimise the potential for contaminants and sediment to enter the surface water system.

Clearing of vegetation is not anticipated to have any impact on the groundwater system. Clearing of native vegetation within the area is not considered to be at variance to this principle.

# (10) Native vegetation should not be cleared if the clearing of the vegetation is likely to cause, or exacerbate, the incidence or intensity of flooding.

The project area is elevated with surface water runoff flowing generally in a southerly direction. Runoff from cleared areas will be directed toward the perimeter where appropriate drainage and containment structures will be in place. Flooding of the area is considered very unlikely.

Clearing of native vegetation within the area is not considered to be at variance to this principle.

Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd

### 6.0 **REFERENCES**

**APM. 2024.** *Beebyn 11 Weld Range Biologic Survey*. Unpublished report prepared for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation, February 2024.

**Biologic Environmental. 2012.** *Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum survey.* Unpublished report prepared for Atlas Iron Ltd.

**Biologic Environmental. 2019.** *Idiosoma Review*. Unpublished memo report prepared for Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd on behalf of Fenix Resources.

 
 Department of Agriculture, Water and Environment. 2019. Rangelands 2008 – Taking the Pulse; Murchison

 Bioregion.
 https://www.environment.gov.au/system/files/resources/a8015c25-4aa2-4833-ad9ce98d09e2ab52/files/bioregion-murchison.pdf

**Department of Environment and Conservation (DEC). 2007.** Banded Ironstone Formation Ranges of the Midwest and Goldfields - Interim Status Report - Biodiversity Values and Conservation Requirements. September 2007.

**Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety. 2023**. *Statutory Guidelines for Mining Proposals*. Government of Western Australia, March 2023.

**Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development. 2024**. *Western Australian Organism List (WAOL)* [online] Available at: <u>https://www.agric.wa.gov.au/bam/western-australian-organism-list-waol</u> [Accessed 20 March 2024].

*ecologia* Environment. 2020a. Iron Ridge Biological Survey 2019. Unpublished report prepared for Fenix Resources, March 2020.

*ecologia* Environment. 2020b. Iron Ridge Stygofauna Assessment. Unpublished memo report prepared for Fenix Resources, April 2020.

ecologia Environment. 2020c. *Micromyrtus placoides (Priority 3) Impact Assessment, Iron Ridge.* Unpublished memo report prepared for Fenix Resources, April 2020.

*ecologia* Environment. 2012. *Weld Range Iron Ore Project Rare Flora Management Plan*. Appendix G of Public Environmental Review. [online]. <u>https://www.epa.wa.gov.au/proposals/weld-range-iron-ore-project</u> [Accessed February 2024].

*ecologia* Environment. 2011. *Weld Range Iron Ore Project Troglofauna Assessment*. Unpublished report prepared for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation, March 2012.

*ecologia* Environment. 2010a. *Weld Range Iron Ore Project Public Environmental Review*. [online]. Available at: <u>https://www.epa.wa.gov.au/proposals/weld-range-iron-ore-project</u> [Accessed February 2024].

*ecologia* Environment. 2010b. *Weld Range Flora and Vegetation Assessment*. Unpublished report prepared for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation, June 2010.

*ecologia* Environment. 2009a. *Weld Range EIA Flora Report*. Technical Appendix to Weld Range PER, Sinosteel Midwest Corporation, June 2010.

*ecologia* Environment. 2009b. *The Shield-back spider Idiosoma nigrum Survey at Weld Range*. Technical Appendix to Weld Range PER, Sinosteel Midwest Corporation, June 2010.

**Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd. 2024.** *W11 Targeted Biological Survey*. Unpublished report prepared for Fenix Resources Ltd, September 2024.

**Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd. 2022.** *Iron Ridge Project Weed Inspection, August 2022.* Unpublished memo prepared for Fenix Resources Ltd, August 2022.

**Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd. 2021.** Iron Ridge Project Stage 2 Mining Proposal. [online] Available at: https://minedex.dmirs.wa.gov.au/Web/environment-registrations/details/96462 [Accessed February 2024].

**Invertebrate Solutions. 2024.** *Review of Cethegus species limits and SRE status in Western Australia*. Unpublished memo prepared for Fenix Resources Ltd, August 2024.

Markey, A. S. and Dillon, S. J. 2008. Flora and vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Weld Range. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.

**Pentium Water. 2024.** *Fenix Resources Beebyn-W11 Deposit. Hydrogeology and Hydrology Assessment*. Rev0. Unpublished memo prepared for Fenix Resources Ltd, 9 May 2024.

**Tille, Peter J. 2006**. *Soil-Landscapes of Western Australia's Rangelands and Arid Interior*. Resource Management Technical Reports. Department of Agriculture and Food.



## **BEEBYN-W11 PROJECT**

# CLEARING PERMIT APPLICATION SUPPORTING INFORMATION

# **APPENDICES**

Date: September 2024



Prepared by Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd for: Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd Level 33, 1 Spring Street Perth, WA 6000

Contact: Goran Seat

Email: goran@fenixresources.com.au

# Appendix 1

### Flora and Fauna Reports

1a: Flora and Vegetation Assessment – ecologia 2010
1b: Flora, Vegetation and Fauna Assessment – APM 2024
1c: Iron Ridge Biological Survey– ecologia Environment 2020
1d: Status review of Idiosoma clypeatum – Biologic Environmental Survey 2019
1e: Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey – Biologic Environmental Survey 2012
1f: W11 Targeted Biological Survey – Ecotec 2024
1g: Review of Cethegus species limits and SRE status – Invertebrate Solutions 2024



Providing sustainable environmental strategies, management and monitoring solutions to industry and government.





## SINOSTEEL MIDWEST CORPORATION LTD. WELD RANGE FLORA AND VEGETATION ASSESSMENT

This page has been left blank intentionally

WELD RANGE VEGETATION AND FLORA ASSESSMENT





This page has been left blank intentionally.





	Document Status					
		Approved for Issue				
Rev	Author	Reviewer/s	Date	Name	Distributed To	Date
1	Melissa Hay Amy Capobianco Scott Hitchcock Zoe Benham	Christina Cox	26 Mar 2009	C. Cox	Wayne Ennor Sue Osbourne (DEC)	30 March 2009
2	Scott Hitchcock Zoe Benham Christina Cox Rochelle Haycock	Christina Cox	12 Nov 2009	C. Cox	Wayne Ennor, SMC	12 Nov 2009
3	Carol Macpherson	Rebecca Gabbitus	11 June 2010	Carol Macpherson	Wayne Ennor, SMC	25 June 2010

*ecologia* Environment (2010). Reproduction of this report in whole or in part by electronic, mechanical or chemical means including photocopying, recording or by any information storage and retrieval system, in any language, is strictly prohibited without the express approval of Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited and/or *ecologia* Environment.

### **Restrictions on Use**

This report has been prepared specifically for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited. Neither the report nor its contents may be referred to or quoted in any statement, study, report, application, prospectus, loan, or other agreement document, without the express approval of Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited and/or *ecologia* Environment.

ecologia Environment 1025 Wellington Street WEST PERTH WA 6005 Phone: 08 9322 1944 Fax: 08 9322 1599 Email: <u>admin@ecologia.com.au</u>





### TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	INTRODUCTION1
1.1	PROJECT BACKGROUND1
1.2	LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK5
1.3	SURVEY OBJECTIVES
2	EXISTING ENVIRONMENT7
2.1	CLIMATE7
2.2	GEOLOGY AND LAND SYSTEMS9
2.3	HYDROGEOLOGY17
2.4	GROUNDWATER DEPENDENT ECOSYSTEMS17
2.5	BIOGEOGRAPHIC REGION19
2.6	PREVIOUS BIOLOGICAL SURVEYS19
2.7	LANDUSE HISTORY
3	METHODOLOGY21
3.1	GUIDING PRINCIPLES21
3.2	SURVEY METHODS
3.3	DETAILED FLORISTIC SURVEY METHODS
4	VEGETATION
4.1	REGIONAL VEGETATION
4.2	PREVIOUS DOCUMENTATION OF THE VEGETATION OF THE WELD RANGE
4.3	VEGETATION COMMUNITIES IDENTIFIED WITHIN STUDY AREA DURING THE CURRENT SURVEY
4.4	VEGETATION CONDITION
4.5	ECOLOGICAL COMMUNITIES OF CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE WITHIN THE STUDY AREA.53
5	FLORA
5.1	FLORISTIC INVENTORY
5.2	FLORISTIC DIVERSITY RELATIVE TO OTHER SURVEYS WITHIN THE MURCHISON BIOREGION 57
5.3	SAMPLING ADEQUACY





5.4	FLORA OF CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE
5.5	RANGE EXTENSIONS74
5.6	INTRODUCED FLORA SPECIES75
6	CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE
6.1	CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE OF VEGETATION WITHIN THE STUDY AREA77
6.2	CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE OF FLORA WITHIN THE STUDY AREA
7	ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS OF THE PROJECT91
7.1	DIRECT LOSS OF VEGETATION AND FLORA91
7.2	INDIRECT IMPACTS TO VEGETATION AND FLORA
8	RECOMMENDATIONS
8.1	DESIGN LEVEL
8.2	MANAGEMENT LEVEL
9	STUDY TEAM
10	REFERENCES

### TABLES

Table 2-1 – Climatic Averages for Meekatharra Airport Weather Station8
Table 2-2 – Climatic Averages for Meekatharra Airport Weather Station (BOM, 2009)         8
Table 2-3 – Summary of Land Systems Occurring within the Weld Range Project Area (From Curry et al. 1994).
Table 3-1 – Vegetation Condition Scale (BushForever, 2000 after Trudgen, 1991)
Table 3-2 – Limitations of the Flora and Vegetation Survey       31
Table 4-1 – Summary of Beard's Vegetation Units Located Within the Study Area.
Table 4-2 – Weld Range Vegetation Communities Described by the DEC (Markey & Dillon, 2008)37
Table 4-3 – Assessement of Vegetation Condition of Quadrats    38
Table 4-4 – Vegetation Communities of the Study Area41
Table 5-1 – Taxonomic Composition of the Weld Range Flora57
Table 5-2 – Comparison of Florisitic Diversity from Surveys Conducted at Weld Range and Jack Hills .58
Table 5-3 – Taxa of Conservation Significance Recorded in the Study Area         61





Table 5-4 – Characteristics of Priority Taxa Recorded at Weld Range       62
Table 5-5 – Characteristics of Taxa of Potential Conservation Significance Recorded at Weld Range73
Table 5-6 – Taxa for which the Weld Range Records Represent an Extension of Known Distribution74
Table 6-1 – Proportion Of Each Vegetation Type Mapped By Ecologia Within The Study Area78
Table 6-2 Land Systems of the Weld Range Study Area.    79
Table 6-3 Beard Vegetation Units Within the Weld Range Study Area.       81
Table 6-4 – Comparison of Vegetation Communities Described by DEC at BIF Ranges North of Mt.         Magnet.         83
Table 6-5 – Area of Community Types Mapped in the Study Area85
Table 6-6 – Number of Plants Assumed for Records Where Only Descriptions or % Cover Available87
Table 6-7 – Conservation Significant Flora Recorded Within the Study Area (All Data Sources)
Table 7-1 – Proposed Infrastructure Clearance Areas
Table 7-2 Estimated Impacts of Clearing to Land Systems within the Study Area
Table 7-3 Estimated Impacts to Beard Vegetation Communities of Infrastructure Footprint Options         within the Study Area
Table 7-4 Estimated Impacts to ecologia Community Types within the Study Area of InfrastructureFootprint Options
Table 7-5 – Overall Impact to the Vegetation of the PEC99
Table 7-6– Estimated Impact from the Three Infrastructure Options to Vegetations Communities of the Weld Range PEC.101
Table 7-7 – Estimated Impacts to Priority Flora within the Study Area of Infrastructure Footprint         Options       104

### **FIGURES**

igure 1-1 – Location of the SMC Weld Range Iron Ore Project	2
Figure 1-2 – Three Potential Infrastructure Footprint Options	3
-igure 2-1 – Summary of Climatic Data for Meekatharra Airport (Source, BOM, 2009)	7
Figure 2-2 – The Three Major Landscape Units Comprising the Weld Land System (source: Curry et al. 1994)1	, 0
-igure 2-3 – Land Systems of the Weld Range Project Area and Surrounds	1
-igure 2-4 – The Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Western Australia (IBRA)	Э
Figure 3-1 – Distribution of Quadrats Surveyed within the Study Area2	7
Figure 3-2 – Location of Transects Surveyed within the Study Area	Э



中钢澳洲中西矿业公司

Figure 4-1 – Beard's Vegetation Units in the Weld Range Study Area	35
Figure 4-2 – Vegetation Communities Mapped within the Study Area.	39
Figure 4-3 – Location of the Weld Range PEC relative to the Study Area	55
Figure 5-1 –Species Accumulation Curve for the Weld Range Survey (Average Randomise quadrats)	ed, 258
Figure 7-1 – Distribution of <i>Beyeria lapidicola</i> within the Infrastructure Options	107
Figure 7-2 – Distribution of <i>Eremophila rhegos</i> within the Infrastructure Options	109
Figure 7-3 – Distribution of <i>Euphorbia sarcostemoides</i> within the Infrastructure Options	111
Figure 7-4 – Distribution of <i>Goodenia lyrata</i> within the Infrastructure Options	113
Figure 7-5 – Distribution of <i>Sauropus</i> sp. Woogorong (M. Officer sn.n. 10/8/94) with Infrastructure Options	nin the 115
Figure 7-6 – Distribution of <i>Stenanthemum patens</i> within the Infrastructure Options	117
Figure 7-7 – Distribution of <i>Acacia ?burrowsiana</i> within the Infrastructure Options	119
Figure 7-8 – Distribution of <i>Acacia speckii</i> within the Infrastructure Options	121
Figure 7-9 – Distribution of <i>Calytrix erosipetala</i> within the Infrastructure Options	123
Figure 7-10 – Distribution of <i>Dodonaea amplisemina</i> within the Infrastructure Options	125
Figure 7-11 – Distribution of <i>Eremophila arachnoides</i> subsp. <i>arachnoides</i> within the Infrast Options	ructure 127
Figure 7-12 – Distribution of <i>Grevillea stenostachya</i> within the Infrastructure Options	129
Figure 7-13 – Distribution of <i>Hemigenia tysonii</i> within the Infrastructure Options	131
Figure 7-14 – Distribution of <i>Homocalyx echinulatus</i> within the Infrastructure Options	133
Figure 7-15 – Distribution of Indigofera gilesii subsp. gilesii within the Infrastructure Options	135
Figure 7-16 – Distribution of <i>Micromyrtus placoides</i> within the Infrastructure Options	137
Figure 7-17 – Distribution of <i>Mirbelia ?stipitata</i> within the Infrastructure Options	139
Figure 7-18 – Distribution of <i>Phyllanthus baeckenoides</i> within the Infrastructure Options	141
Figure 7-19 – Distribution of <i>Prostanthera ferricola</i> within the Infrastructure Options	143
Figure 7-20 – Distribution of <i>Prostanthera petrophila</i> within the Infrastructure Options	145
Figure 7-21 – Distribution of <i>Ptilotus beardii</i> within the Infrastructure Options	147
Figure 7-22 – Distribution of <i>Ptilotus luteolus</i> within the Infrastructure Options	149
Figure 7-23 – Distribution of <i>Tecticornia cymbiformis</i> within the Infrastructure Options	151
Figure 7-24 – Distribution of Verticordia jamesii within the Infrastructure Options	153



Figure 7-25	<ul> <li>Distribution of <i>Baeckea</i> sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738) within the Infrastructur Options</li></ul>	e 5
Figure 7-26	– Distribution of <i>Goodenia berringbinensis</i> within the Infrastructure Options	7
Figure 7-27	– Distribution of <i>Grevillea inconspicua</i> within the Infrastructure Options	9
Figure 7-28	– Distribution of Acacis sp. nov. (aff. Kochii) within the Infrastructure Options	1
Figure 7-27	– Distribution of <i>Hemigenia</i> sp. nov. (aff. <i>exilis</i> ) within the Infrastructure Options 16.	3

### **APPENDICES**

Appendix A	summary of targeted flora Surveys by ecologia at Weld Range
Appendix B	2010 DEC database search 189
Appendix C	coordinates and vegetation condition assessment of quadrats 195
Appendix D	National Vegetation Inventory System (NVIS) Vegetation Classifications
Appendix E	Site descriptions for phases 1,2 and 3 207
Appendix F	Dendogram of multvariate analysis 209
Appendix G	Species by site matrix 213
Appendix H	Vegetation maps at higher resolution 215
Appendix I	Explanation of Conservation Codes 227
Appendix J	Species List
Appendix K	Priority Flora and Species of Interest Locations 245
Appendix L	Voucher Specimens lodged with the WA herbarium 259
Appendix M	Explanation of Declared Plant Codes 261
Appendix N	DEC Vegetation Communities Described for Selected BIF Ranges Lying North of Mount Magnet





### ACRONYMS

List all acronyms used in the report here. Format alphabetically as follows:

- **DEC** Department of Environment and Conservation
- **EPA** Environmental Protection Authority
- **EPBC** Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1950





This page has been left blank intentionally.





### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

### Background

Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd (SMC) is currently assessing the viability of the Weld Range Mining Proposal.

The Weld Range is located approximately 70 km south-west of Meekatharra and 80 km north-west of Cue. It is part of a series of greenstone ridges that forms the northerly extent of the Yilgarn Craton.

As part of the project feasibility studies, and to facilitate the environmental legal approvals processes, an assessment of the vegetation and flora of the Weld Range was undertaken. The purpose of this assessment was to provide information on the conservation significance of the vegetation and flora of the project area as part of the public environmental review (PER) process for the project. An assessment of the vegetation and flora of the Weld Range is presented in this report.

#### Methods

The main fieldwork component of the vegetation and flora survey was conducted in November 2006 (spring), April 2007 (autumn) and May 2008 (winter). These field surveys involved both quadratbased and opportunistic floristic sampling. Targeted threatened flora surveys were undertaken in addition to the quadrat-based surveys.

The data matrix detailing the presence / absence of species and their abundance in the quadrats surveyed was analyzed using multivariate statistics. The analysis resulted in a classification of the vegetation communities present at Weld Range; these vegetation communities were mapped at a scale of 1: 15,000. Voucher specimens of each vascular flora species were collected and identified using current literature, with reference to the WA Herbarium collection. Documented voucher specimens of all flora of conservation significance will be lodged with the WA Herbarium.

Flora surveys undertaken as part of the environmental impact assessment (EIA) process are required to address the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) Position Statement No. 3: *Terrestrial Biological Surveys as an Element of Biodiversity Protection* and Guidance Statement No. 51: *Terrestrial Flora and Vegetation Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment in Western Australia.* Table S.1 below lists requirements detailed in these statements and outlines the compliance of this survey to these guidelines.




Requirement	EPA Statement	Relevance to Project	Project Compliance
Impact on Biodiversity	Position Statement No. 3	Where impact on biodiversity cannot be avoided, the proponent must demonstrate that the impact will not result in unacceptable loss.	The Study Area of 51,557 ha encompasses sections of Madoonga, Beebyn and Glen Stations, all of which have been stocked with sheep or cattle for many years. Feral goat numbers have also increased over the past decade. The vegetation of the much of the area, particularly on the plains and lower slopes has been affected by grazing. A number of small mines (including the oldest known ochre mine) have been worked in the area in the past, and small scale exploration activities have been undertaken at Weld Range (particularly on the western section) for approximately $10 - 20$ years. For the past three years SMC has been carrying out exploration activities on its tenements at Weld Range.
			Based on the three infrastructure options indicated in the report (and the area of each vegetation community mapped within SMC's project area) the reduction of area of vegetation communities mapped at Weld Range will be:
			• 14 % to Community types 1 and 2 (mapped as a single unit) and considered of conservation significance due to their apparent restricted distribution regionally, with 12.5% impact to the area of this unit within the PEC;
			• 77% and 39% to Community sub-types 5b and 7b respectively, both of which are encompass small areas in the Study Area;
			• 29% to Community 6a;
			• Less than 20% for all other community types mapped.
			Twenty-seven priority flora species have been recorded in the study area (25 during the current survey) including six P1 taxa. Potential impacts to these species have been calculated based on the information collected during these surveys and data previously available from the DEC. Estimates of impact are likely ot overestimate the proportion of locations and plants insidet the Study Area and areas of impact due the much greater intensity of survey. The taxon which would be most affected by Option 1, the preferred option, is <i>Micromyrtus placoides</i> (P3), followed by <i>Beyeria lapidicola</i> (P1) which will have 44.4% and 41.7% respectively of all locations impacted. <i>Eremophila rhegos</i> (P1) and <i>Goodenia lyrata</i> (P1) will also be impacted by 33% and 30% respectively. The impacts of Option 2 are identical for these species, as all of the impacted locations lie within the pits and dumps which are company to both. The Base Case option would have significantly more

# • Table S. 1 - Conformance of Project to Relevant EPA Statements





### Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd

Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Requirement	EPA Statement	Relevance to Project	Project Compliance
			impact, with 80% of all known locations of <i>Homalocalyx echinulatus</i> impacted, and <i>Beyeria lapidicola, Eremophila rhegos, Goodenia lyrata, Sauropus</i> sp. <i>Woolgorong</i> (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94), <i>Hemigenia tysonii</i> and <i>Micromyrtus placoides</i> also impacted by between 30 and 41%.
State, National and International Agreements, Legislation and Policy on Biodiversity	Position Statement No. 3	Information gathered for environmental impact assessment in Western Australia is to address State, national and international agreements, legislation and policy in regard to biodiversity conservation.	Impacts to species and communities listed under relevant legislature and to the general vegetation of the project area are addressed in Section 6 of this report. Relevance of the information gathered to the <i>Environmental Protection Act 1986, Wildlife Conservation Act 1950</i> and <i>Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999</i> is discussed in Sections 1.2, 1.3 and 5.
EPA Standards, Requirements and Protocols	Position Statement No. 3	The quality of information and scope of field surveys is to meet the standards, requirements and protocols as determined and published by the EPA.	The current survey conforms to a Level 2 vegetation and flora survey, comprising a reconnaissance survey, a comprehensive three phase botanical survey and mapping of the vegetation of the area, as per EPA Guidance Statement 51.
Biodiversity Conservation and Ecological Function Values	Position Statement No. 3	Sufficient information is to be provided to address biodiversity conservation and ecological function values.	The value of the vegetation communities and conservation significant flora taxa occurring in the project area is discussed in a bioregional context in Section 6. Impacts to biodiversity and ecological function are discussed in Section 7.
State Biological Databases	Position Statement No. 3	Terrestrial biological surveys will be made publicly available and will contribute to the bank of data available for the region.	Voucher specimens for all priority flora species collected during the survey will be lodged at the WA Herbarium. Information collated from this survey will be included in public documents available for use by others.
Sampling Design and Intensity at Two Levels – Regional and Area Specific	Guidance Statement No. 51	Sites to be assessed at an appropriate level.	Data was collected on an area specific level. Sites were established mostly on SMC's lease at Weld Range and were concentrated on habitats to be impacted by the project footprint.
			Regional data is available from the DEC surveys carried out on a number of BIF ranges of the Yilgarn Craton.
Landform – Scale, Rarity, Heterogeneity	Guidance Statement No. 51	Sites are to be established in representative landforms of the project area.	Vegetation communities occurring on the different landforms of the area were ground truthed in the field, and sites were assessed based on their representation on those landforms. Multiple sites were assessed on these landforms.
Habitat – Scale, Rarity, Heterogeneity	Guidance Statement No. 51	Sites are to be established in representative habitats of the project area.	Sites were selected from aerial photography before going to the field while ground-truthing of the vegetation communities occurring in the different habitats of the project area took place during the survey. Multiple sites were assessed in





### Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd

Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Requirement	EPA Statement	Relevance to Project	Project Compliance
			each habitat.
Vegetation Structure, Diversity and Seasonality	Guidance Statement No. 51	Sufficient information is to be provided in the report on vegetation structure, diversity and seasonality.	The report details the results of a vegetation mapping exercise carried out over the Weld Range. Multivariate analysis was carried out on the data collected from 239 quadrats assessed at Weld Range. Following analysis the structure of the vegetation communities occurring at Weld Range was described and the main communities were mapped.
			The vegetation was surveyed over three phases – each phase at a different time of year (spring, autumn and winter). Diversity and seasonality of the vegetation are reflected in the species lists produced for each phase of the survey. Additional information was available from sites assessed in June 2009 within a potential rail corridor at Weld Range.
Potential for Conservation Significant Flora to occur, Based on Habitat Analysis	Guidance Statement No. 51	Sufficient information is to be provided to indicate the potential for significant flora to occur based on habitats in the area.	A list of the 27 conservation significant taxa recorded (to date) at Weld Range is provided in 5.4.3. Since July 2006 <i>ecologia</i> has carried out in excess of 20 surveys associated with SMC's exploration programme at Weld Range (Appendix A). Twenty-five priority flora taxa have been recorded during these surveys. Database searches produced a list of conservation significant taxa that could potentially occur at Weld Range. A list of these taxa is included in Appendix B, and the table includes a comment on the likelihood of each species occurring in the habitats of the Weld Range.
Results Including Species/Area Curves, Species and Ecosystem diversity and Heterogeneity	Guidance Statement No. 51	Adequate information is to be provided in the report to comply with this requirement.	Species / area curves are included in Section 5.3. Details on the flora of the project area are included in this report and comparisons with the flora of other ranges in the region are also included in Section 6.1.2.4. A vegetation map and detailed vegetation descriptions are provided for the project area.
Information on Adjacent Areas – Previous Surveys and Herbarium Records	Guidance Statement No. 51	Information is to be included in the report on the results of other surveys in the area and region.	Information was requested from relevant government databases and was collated from reports available on other vegetation surveys undertaken in the vicinity of Weld Range.
			A review of data collected by the DEC on selected BIF ranges in the region is included in this report.

# Vegetation

Seven main vegetation communities, incorporating 17 sub-communities were identified:

- 1a Acacia aneura low open woodland over *Acacia* sp. Weld Range, *A. ramulosa* var. *linophylla* and *Thryptomene decussata* open mid shrubland over mixed *Eremophila* spp. low shrubland.
- 1b *Acacia aneura* low open woodland over *Acacia cockertoniana* open mid shrubland over mixed mid shrubland over *Ptilotus obovatus* low shrubland.
- 2a Scattered *Acacia pruinocarpa* trees over *A. aneura* mid sparse shrubland / scattered shrubs over *Ptilotus obovatus* low shrubland with *Cymbopogon ambiguus* tussock grasses.
- 2b *Acacia aneura* sparse shrubland over mixed sparse mid shrubland over *Micromyrtus sulphurea* and *Ptilotus obovatus* low open shrubland.
- 3a +/- Corymbia lenziana scattered medium trees over Acacia. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura sparse tall shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. open mid shrubland over scattered low shrubs of Ptilotus obovatus over mixed open tussock grassland.
- 3b +/- Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over A. aneura woodland over A. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. closed shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.
- 3c Scattered *Eucalyptus* mallees / trees over *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla* open shrubland over *Rhagodia eremaea, Eremophila forrestii* subsp. *forrestii* shrubland over *Ptilotus obovatus* open low shrubland.
- 3d *Acacia aneura* and *A. cockertoniana* open moderate shrubland over *Eremophila simulans* subsp. *simulans* and *Aluta aspera* subsp. *hesperia* low open shrubland.
- 4a Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. aneura var. microcarpa open tall shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and mixed Senna spp. open mid shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.
- 4b Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia speckii (Priority 3) shrubland over mixed Senna spp. sparse shrubland over Grevillea inconspicua (Priority 4) and Dodonaea amplisemina (Priority 3) open shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus sparse tussock grassland.
- 5a *Acacia craspedocarpa* open tall shrubland over *Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum* and *Ptilotus obovatus* low shrubland over mixed low tussock grassland.
- 5b +/- *Grevillea striata* low isolated trees over *Acacia craspedocarpa* and *A. aneura* tall open shrubland over *Scaevola spinescens* sparse mid shrubland over *Austrostipa elegantissima* and *Eriachne flaccida* low open tussock grassland.
- 6a Scattered *Acacia* spp. shrubs over mixed *Senna* spp. open mid shrubland over *Ptilotus obovatus* sparse shrubland over mixed *Maireana* spp. chenopod shrubland.

- 6b Scattered mixed Acacia spp. over Rhagodia eremaea and Scaevola spinescens sparse mid to low shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georgei and Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland.
- 6c *Eremophila maculata* subsp. *brevifolia* low open shrubland over *Sclerolaena diacantha* low chenopod shrubland over *Enneapogon cylindricus* low tussock grassland.
- 7a *Melaleuca stereophloia* and *Cratystylis subspinescens* low shrubland over *Tecticornia* spp. low samphire shrubland over *Frankenia laxiflora* low shrubland.
- 7b *Eucalyptus carnei* and *Eucalyptus trivalva* woodland over *Cratystylis subspinescens* and *Muehlenbeckia florulenta* low sparse shrubland over mixed low tussock grasses.

Units 1 and 2 were combined for the purposes of mapping their distribution, as the distinctions in vegetation composition visible at ground level could not be reliably discriminated on the aerial photography.

# Vegetation of Conservation Significance

Searches of government databases indicate that no threatened ecological communities occur at Weld Range. However, the Priority 1 priority ecological community (PEC) "Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)" has been listed and incorporates much of the vegetation within the Study Area.

### Flora

A total of 393 taxa resulted from the combined records of all surveys within the Study Area, including species, subspecies, varieties, forms and affinities. Of this total, six were naturalised alien flora.

### Flora of Conservation Significance

One nationally-listed threatened flora species have been recorded within the Murchison bioregion; *Conospermum toddii* but was not recorded within the Study Area.

Two State-listed DRF species occur in the Murchison; *Conospermum toddii* and *Eremophila rostrata* subsp. *rostrata* but were not recorded within the Study Area.

One hundred and fifty declared rare or priority flora species are listed by the DEC as occurring in the Murchison botanical region.

To date, 27 priority taxa have been recorded within the Study Area, twenty-five of which were recorded during the surveys detailed in this report. In addition two potentially new, undescribed taxa were recorded during the survey.

Seventeen taxa, seven of which have Priority status, have range extensions of greater than 150 kilometres from the previously lodged records. The relatively large number of Priority taxa and range extensions is considered a product of two factors:





- the sporadic history of collection in the vicinity of the Study Area, resulting in an incomplete knowledge of the distributions of many taxa; and in at some instances; and
- specific requirements of some taxa for habitats which are genuinely restricted in the bioregion, resulting in restricted or disjunct distribution.

### Naturalised Alien Taxa (Weeds)

Six alien taxa were recorded during the Weld Range survey; \**Anagallis arvensis*, \**Cenchrus ciliaris*, \**Cuscuta epithymum*, \**Portulaca oleracea*, \**Solanum nigrum* and \**Sonchus oleraceus*. None of these species are classified as Weeds of National Significance (WONS) or Declared Weeds under State listings. \**Cenchrus ciliaris* is rated as a weed of high impact, whilst \**Anagallis arvensis*, \**Solanum nigrum* and \**Sonchus oleraceus* have been rated as of moderate impact by the Environmental Weed Strategy of WA.





This page has been left blank intentionally.





# 1 INTRODUCTION

# 1.1 PROJECT BACKGROUND

Sinosteel Midwest Corporation (SMC) is proposing to develop a new iron ore mine (the Project) at Weld Range, located approximately 600 km north-north-east of Perth and 85 km southwest of Meekatharra. The tenements that form the basis for the Project cover a series of hills that rise approximately 250 m above the surrounding plains. The range is some 3 km wide, extends for up to 60 km in length from southwest to the northeast, and consists of a series of parallel ridges with deep incised valleys.

To facilitate the environmental legal approvals process, an assessment of the vegetation and flora of the proposed project area was required. SMC commissioned ecologia Environment (ecologia) to undertake a baseline survey of the vegetation and flora of its tenements at Weld Range. The results of this assessment are presented in this report, the purpose of which is to provide botanical information as part of the public environmental review (PER) process for the project.

Sites were surveyed within the following tenements, covering an area of 26,784 ha at Weld Range:

E20/0450, E20/0459, E20/0457, E20/0208, E20/0595, E20/0402, E20/0474, E20/0476, E20/0633, E51/0981, E51/0907, M20/0403, M20/0311 and TR70/3902.

Sites were concentrated in those areas to be directly impacted by the Project. However the vegetation of a larger area (the Study Area) of 51,557 ha encompassing the above leases and some portions of surrounding leases was mapped (Figure 1.1).

SMC has considered three potential infrastructure footprint options; BFS Base Case option, BFS Option 1 and BFS Option 2, with Option 1 being the preferred option (Figure 1.2).







Figure 1.1 – Location of the SMC Weld Range Iron Ore Project







This page has been left blank intentionally.





### 1.2 LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK

Federal and State legislation applicable to the conservation of native flora and fauna includes, but is not limited to, the *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act)*, the *Wildlife Conservation Act 1950 (WC Act)*, and the *Environmental Protection Act 1986 (EP Act)*. Section 4a of the *EP Act 1986* requires that developments take into account the following principles applicable to native flora and fauna.

### The Precautionary Principle

Where there are threats of serious or irreversible damage, lack of full scientific certainty should not be used as a reason for postponing measures to prevent environmental degradation.

# The Principles of Intergenerational Equity

The present generation should ensure that the health, diversity and productivity of the environment is maintained or enhanced for the benefit of future generations.

# The Principle of Conservation of Biological Diversity and Ecological Integrity

Conservation of biological diversity and ecological integrity should be a fundamental consideration.

Furthermore, biological surveys undertaken as part of the environmental impact assessment (EIA) process are required to address the Environmental Protection Authority's (EPA's) Position Statement No. 3: *Terrestrial Biological Surveys as an Element of Biodiversity Protection* (EPA, 2002), Guidance Statement No. 51: *Terrestrial Flora and Vegetation Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment in Western Australia* (EPA, 2004a), and Guidance Statement No. 56: *Terrestrial Fauna Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment in Western Australia* (EPA, 2004a).

Native flora and fauna in Western Australia are protected at a federal level under the *EPBC Act* and at a State level under the *WC Act*.

The *EPBC Act* was developed to provide for the protection of the environment, especially those aspects of the environment that are matters of national environmental significance, to promote ecologically sustainable development through the conservation and ecologically sustainable use of natural resources, and to promote the conservation of biodiversity. The *EPBC Act* includes provisions to protect native species (and in particular to prevent the extinction and promote the recovery of threatened species) and to ensure the conservation of migratory species. In addition to the principles outlined in Section 4a of the *EP Act*, Section 3a of the *EPBC Act* includes a principle of ecologically sustainable development dictating that decision-making processes should effectively integrate both long-term and short-term economic, environmental, social and equitable considerations.

The *WC Act* was developed to provide for the conservation and protection of wildlife in Western Australia. Under Section 14 of this Act, all fauna and flora within Western Australia are protected; however the Minister may, via a notice published in the Government Gazette, declare a list of flora taxa identified as likely to become extinct, or as rare, or otherwise in need of special protection. The current listing was gazetted on the 23<sup>rd</sup> February 2010.



# 1.3 SURVEY OBJECTIVES

The EPA's objectives with regards to the management of native flora and vegetation are to:

- Avoid adverse impacts on biological diversity comprising the different plants and animals and the ecosystems they form, at the levels of genetic, species and ecosystem diversity.
- Maintain the abundance, species diversity, geographic distribution and productivity of vegetation communities.
- Protect declared rare flora consistent with the provisions of the WC Act 1950.
- Protect other flora species of conservation significance.

The primary objective of this survey was to provide sufficient information to the EPA to assess the impact of the project on the vegetation and flora of the area, thereby ensuring that these objectives will be upheld.

Specifically, this survey was to satisfy the requirements documented in EPA's Guidance Statement 51 and Position Statement No. 3, thus providing:

- a review of background information (including literature and database searches);
- an inventory of vegetation types and flora species occurring in the Study Area, incorporating recent published and unpublished records;
- an inventory of species of biological and conservation significance recorded or likely to occur within the project area and surrounds;
- a map and detailed description of vegetation types occurring in the Study Area;
- a description of the characteristics of the vegetation types;
- an appraisal of the current knowledge base for the area, including a review of previous surveys conducted in the area relevant to the current study;
- a review of regional and biogeographical significance, including the conservation status of species recorded in the project area; and
- a risk assessment to determine likely impacts of threatening processes on vegetation and flora within the Study Area.





# 2 EXISTING ENVIRONMENT

# 2.1 CLIMATE

The closest Bureau of Meteorology (BOM) weather reading station is at Meekatharra Airport approximately 70 km north-east of Weld Range. The local climate is dry with hot summers and mild winters and is strongly influenced by a band of high pressure known as the sub tropical ridge. The ridge is located to the south–east for most of the year, occasionally moving close enough to allow cold fronts to pass over the area, bringing little, if any rain. The reliable rainfall periods are associated with the tropical cloud bands during May to July (BOM, May 2009) (Figure 2.1).

Annual rainfall at Meekatharra is variable and an average of 237 mm falls over an average of 46 days. According to the BOM rainfall map of Western Australia, the Weld Range falls between the 200 mm and 175 mm rainfall isohyets and, as a result falls within the desert bioclimatic region that receives both summer and winter rainfall (Beard, 1976).



# Figure 2.1 – Summary of Climatic Data for Meekatharra Airport (Source, BOM, 2009).

The most reliable rainfall period occurs during winter from May to July. June is the wettest winter month, with an average of 31 mm falling on six rainfall days. A second period of rainfall period occurs from January to March, associated with thunderstorms that infrequently produce heavy, localised falls during these hotter months. February is the wettest summer month, with an average of 36 mm of rain falling over four rain days.

The hottest month is January with an average maximum temperature of 38.3°C (Table 2-1); hot, dry north-east to north-west winds often result in temperatures above 41°C. July temperatures range from an average maximum of 19°C to an average minimum of 7.4°C; overnight, the temperature may drop below 5°C (BOM, May 2009).

Humidity in this area is low, with the average morning relative humidity reaching 63% in June and the average afternoon relative humidity dropping below 17% in November and December. Evaporation greatly exceeds precipitation, with the average daily evaporation rate as high as 16.2 mm per day in January, and dropping to 3.8 mm per day in June.



		•											
Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Annual	Years
Mean	Mean maximum temperature (°C)												
38.3	36.6	34.3	29.1	23.7	19.6	19	21.3	25.6	29.5	33.2	36.4	28.9	1950 - 2009
Mean	Mean minimum temperature (°C)												
24.3	23.7	21.3	17	12.1	8.7	7.4	8.5	11.5	15	18.6	22	15.8	1950 -2009
Mean	9 am rela	ative hu	ımidity (	%)									
30	37	38	45	52	63	61	51	40	33	29	28	42	1950 - 2009
Mean	3 pm rel	ative hu	ımidity (	%)									
18	24	23	28	34	41	38	30	22	17	16	16	25	1950 - 2009
Mean	rainfall (	mm)											
27.5	35.9	28.6	20.9	23.9	31	22.1	11.4	4.6	6.4	11.6	12.2	236.2	1944 - 2009
Highes	t month	ly rainfa	all (mm)										
135.4	174.2	259	159.2	96	186.6	165.7	56.2	40.8	61.8	113.2	91.4	573.2	1944 - 2009
Mean	number	of rain (	days										
4.2	4.5	4.2	4.3	4.5	5.8	5.6	3.6	1.9	1.7	2.4	3	45.7	1944 - 2009
Mean	number	of days	of rain ≥	2 1 mm									
2.7	3.2	2.7	2.6	2.8	3.6	3.7	2.1	0.8	1	1.5	1.9	28.6	1944 - 2009
Mean	evapora	tion (m	m)										
16.2	14.2	11.9	8.2	5.5	3.8	3.9	5.4	8.1	11.1	13.5	15.1	9.7	1967 - 2009

### Table 2-1 – Climatic Averages for Meekatharra Airport Weather Station.

BOM Station - 'Meekatharra Airport' [007045], accessed 19 May 2009. Location: 26.61 °S 118.54 °E, elevation: 517 m.

Rainfall in the four months preceding the first phase (November 2006) of the Weld Range survey was 49.6 mm, 5.1 mm above the long-term average for those months (Table 2.2). During 2006, 80% more rain than the long-term average was recorded. Rainfall in the four months preceding the second phase survey (April 2007) was 66.2 mm, 38.4 mm less than the long-term average for those same four months (104.2 mm). Rainfall in the four months preceding the third phase survey (July 2008) was 84 mm, 20.4 mm less than the long-term average for those same four months preceding the rail corridor survey (June 2009) was 26.4 mm, 82.5 mm below the long-term average for those four months.

Table 2-2 – Climatic Averages for Meekatharra Airport Weather Station (	BOM. 200	9)
	2011, 200	~,

	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Annual
2006	86.8	85.8	138	26.4	1.8	0.8	3.6	0.8	8.4	36.8	7.2	28.6	425
2007	23.8	13.8	0	24.8	9.2	2.6	21.6	0.8	1.2	1.2	1	19	119
2008	5.4	128	57.2	13.8	2.2	10.8	16.8	17.6	0	6.2	29.8	14.8	302.2
2009	28.8	11.8	2.6	10.0	2.0	18.6	18.2	4.2	3.0	3.4	12.4	4.0	119.0





Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec	Annual
Average Annual Rainfall (mm)**	27.1	35.3	28.1	20.7	23.2	30.8	22.0	11.3	4.6	6.3	11.6	12.1	236.9

BOM Station - 'Meekatharra Airport' [007045], June 2010 Location: 26.61 °S 118.54 °E, elevation: 517m. \*\*Average annual rainfall records from 1944 to 2009.

# 2.2 GEOLOGY AND LAND SYSTEMS

### 2.2.1 Geology

The Weld Range is located at the northern extent of the Yilgarn Craton, the sediments of which are derived from either the erosion of the Archaean bedrock, or the reworking of the older pre-existing sediments. They are highly variable in origin, composition and thickness, predominantly characterised by shallow, sandy and infertile soils underlain by a red-brown siliceous hardpan (Anand & Paine, 2002).

The landscape is gently undulating, composed of Archaean rocks, predominantly granite with north to north-west trending belts of greenstone rocks. These greenstone rocks form hill ranges that are separated widely by the very flat plains derived from colluvium and alluvium. The topography of this area results from a complex history of extensive weathering, affecting most of the geological provinces across it. The depth of weathering on the mantle is highly variable, and it can be up to approximately 150 m in depth (Anand & Paine, 2002).

The greenstone belts of the Weld Range exhibit banded ironstone formations (BIF) over strike lengths of 40 - 50 km. BIF and related rocks are comprised of silica, hematite, magnetite and iron silicates, with the majority of BIF in the Weld Range being of the jaspilite type. Jaspilite consists of red chert bands in conjunction with white and/or black bands; fine hematite dust gives the red colouration. The informally named Madoonga, Lulworth and Wilgie Mia beds represent the three laterally persistent units of jaspilite at the Weld Range (from north to south). The Weld Range jaspilite has a grain size of 10 - 30 µm and contains 20 - 60% magnetite (Elias, 1982).

Dolerite intrudes into the BIF with minimal disruption to bedding, and exists as multiple sheets which range from less than 50 m to exceeding 150 m in outcrop width. Approximately 90% of the thickness of the sequence at Weld Range is attributed to dolerite.

Large amounts of iron ore occur at Weld Range, formed by supergene enrichment of BIF during the Tertiary lateritization period. Ochre also exists in the jaspilites of the range (Elias, 1982).

# 2.2.2 Land Systems

Curry et al. (1994) undertook a regional inventory of the Murchison River catchment and surrounds to document the land systems present in the area and the condition of each. The survey area covered 88,360 km2, and spanned between Meekatharra and Mount Magnet in the east, to the catchments of the Greenough and Wooramel Rivers in the west.

The Weld Range Project is primarily located on the Weld land system (350 km2), described as rugged ranges and ridges of mainly Archaean metamorphosed sedimentary rocks supporting Acacia species shrublands (Curry et al., 1994). It is composed of three major landscape units (Figure 2.2):





- 1. *Mountain ranges, peaks and summits* characterised by ridges forming steep rocky outcrops of ironstone and jaspilite. These have soils described as skeletal lithosols confined to pockets of dark red loamy or clayey sands, with infrequent clay subsoils less than 50 cm deep, overlying parent material.
- 2. *Footslopes and interfluves* characterised by broad concave inclines generally covered by dense quartz or ironstone mantles. The soils are described as reddish-brown or dark red shallow earths less than 50 cm deep.
- 3. Valley floors occurring between ridges with creek channels dissecting into the bedrock with soils described as red earthy sands overlying metamorphic rock fragments less than 50 cm deep (Curry *et al.*, 1994).



# Figure 2.2 – The Three Major Landscape Units Comprising the Weld Land System (source: Curry et al., 1994).

Most of the surrounding area within the Project lies within the Yarrameedie, Violet and Jundee land systems, with smaller areas of the Sherwood, Mileura, Norie, Cunyu, Kalli, Gabanintha, Breberle, Koonmarra, Waguin, Wiluna, Yandil and Yanganoo land systems (Figure 2.3) also present. These land systems and their associated land types are described in Table 2-3.







This page has been left blank intentionally.





Land System (Total Area in Murchison)	Land Type	Description				
Weld		Rugged ranges and ridges of mainly Archaean metamorphosed sedimentary rocks; supports Acacia				
(350 km <sup>2</sup> )		species shrublands; major system of Weld Range and Jack Hills.				
Norie	1: Dough Hills with Acacia and shrublands					
(1321 km²)	1. Kough milis with <i>Acucia</i> spp. shrubianus	Granite hills with extensive and extensive for helds, supporting Acacia species shrublands.				
Gabanintha		Ridges, hills and footslopes of various metamorphosed volcanic rocks (greenstones), supporting sparse				
(962 km²)		Acacia species and other mainly non-halophytic shrublands.				
Wiluna	2: Hills and plains with mulga, snakewood-	Low greenstone hills with occasional lateritic breakaways and broad stony slopes, lower saline stony				
(1294 km <sup>2</sup> )	halophytic shrublands	plains and broad drainage tracts; supports sparse mulga shrublands with patches of halophytic shrubs.				
Yarrameedie	3. Low hills and quartz strewn plains with	Undulating stony interfluves, drainage floors and pediment (foothill) plains below major ranges of crystalline rocks (mainly Weld Land System) supporting sparse mulga shrublands.				
(519 km <sup>2</sup> )	mulga shrublands					
Sherwood	4: Breakaways, stony plains and sandy	Extensive, gently sloping stony and sandy plains on granite and gneiss below saline footslopes of				
(4839 km²)	surfaced plains on granite with mulga and halophytic shrublands	lateritised breakaway and outcrops of weathered rock; mainly supports scattered mulga shrublands with understorey of non-halophytic shrubs.				
Violet	7: Irregular plains on laterite and parent rock	Gently undulating gravely plains on greenstone, laterite and hardpan, with low stony rises and minor				
(1078 km <sup>2</sup> )	with mulga and halophytic shrublands	saline plains; supports mulga and bowgada-dominated shrublands, with dense mulga groves and patchy halophytic shrublands.				
Kalli (6097 km <sup>2</sup> )	10: Sandplains and drainage floors with grassy and halophytic shrublands	Elevated, gently undulating red sandplains edged by stripped surfaces on laterite and granite; tall Acacia species shrublands and understorey of wanderrie grasses.				

# Table 2-3 – Summary of Land Systems Occurring within the Weld Range Project Area (From Curry et al. 1994).





### Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd

Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Land System (Total Area in Murchison)	Land Type	Description				
Jundee (1346 km <sup>2</sup> )		Hardpan wash plains with variable dark gravely mantling and weakly groved vegetation; minor sandy banks; supports scattered mulga shrublands.				
Yanganoo (12,433 km²)	14: Wash plains on hardpan with mulga shrublands	Almost flat hardpan wash, with or without small wanderrie banks and showing variable development of weak groving; supports mulga shrublands.				
Yandil (3402 km <sup>2</sup> )		Flat hardpan wash plains, with occasional wanderrie banks and groves; supports mulga shrublands.				
Cunyu (1083 km²)		Calcreted drainage on hardpan, alluvial plains with raised calcrete platforms dissected by major flow zones and channels, supporting variable non-halophytic shrublands and shrubby grasslands.				
Mileura (1007 km <sup>2</sup> )	15: Calcreted river plains with grassy shrublands.	Saline and non-saline calcreted river plains, with clayey flood plains interrupted by raised calcrete platforms supporting diverse and very variable tall shrublands, mixed halophytic shrublands and shrubby grasslands.				
Breberle (115 km²)	16: Sandplains and drainage floors with acacia and halophytic shrublands	Level saline drainage plains adjacent to ephemeral lakes, claypans and swampy drainage foci with sandy margins and occasional sand dunes; supports tall acacia shrublands and other fringing shrublands with zonations of perennial grasses and halophytes.				
Koonmarra (5335 km²)	17: Stony plains with <i>Acacia</i> spp. shrublands	Quartz-strewn stony plains and low rises with outcropping granite, gneiss and schists; supports scattered mulga and other mainly non-saline shrubs.				





### Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd

Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Land System (Total Area in Murchison)	Land Type	Description				
Waguin (748 km²)	7: Mesas, breakaways and stony plains with acacia or eucalypt woodlands and halophytic shrubs.	Sandplains and stripped granite or laterite surfaces with low fringing breakaways and lower plains; supports bowgada and mulga shrublands with wanderrie grasses and minor mixed halophytes.				





This page has been left blank intentionally.

# 2.3 HYDROGEOLOGY

Drainage in the project area occurs within the upper Murchison River Catchment, part of the drainage basin of the Murchison River. Water flows northwards and is ephemeral. Most of the drainage runs towards the Indian Ocean, with a small part draining inland towards the salt lakes of the area.

As the rainfall and associated surface water have erratic seasonal distributions the dominant land uses, mining and pastoralism, are dependent on the extensive shallow aquifers found in the area. The area contains a variety of Precambrian bedrock aquifers ranging from granite to metamorphic and sedimentary rocks, overlain by alluvium and calcrete.

Groundwater salinity decreases northwards towards the Gascoyne area and ranges from hypersaline in the upper parts of the Yarra Yarra and Murchison catchments, to fresh – brackish conditions in the Gascoyne catchment (Department of Fisheries, 2004).

The following aquifer types are found within the Murchison:

- Alluvium aquifer; alluvial sediments lie along the main river valleys of the Yilgarn Craton, overlying calcrete, palaeochannels and fractured rock. It is not known as a major aquifer source, but is utilised by wells and bores for stock and mining. Groundwater salinity ranges from fresh on the valley sides and increases towards the centre.
- Calcrete aquifer; calcrete is a chemically precipitated limestone contained by the alluvium, close to the centres of the valleys. Calcrete aquifers have the most potential for shallow, large supplies of brackish to saline groundwater in the Murchison catchment.
- Palaeochannel aquifer; palaeochannels are the basal infilling of ancient river valleys. One major palaeochannel aquifer occurs at Windimurra in the Murchison, and it is used for mining. The groundwater salinity is generally high.
- Fractured rock aquifer; this includes a variety of metamorphic and igneous rocks. Fractured rock aquifers are the main source of water for mining in the Murchison, with groundwater salinity ranging from brackish to hypersaline.

# 2.4 GROUNDWATER DEPENDENT ECOSYSTEMS

Groundwater dependent ecosystems (GDEs) are defined as "ecosystems that must have access to groundwater to maintain their ecological structure and function" (Murray et al., 2006) or "ecosystems that are dependent on groundwater for their existence and health" (National Water Commission, 2006).

The extent to which ecosystems are dependent on groundwater is classified into five categories: ecosystems entirely dependent on groundwater; ecosystems highly dependent on groundwater; ecosystems with proportional dependence on groundwater; ecosystems which may only use groundwater opportunistically or to a very limited extent; and ecosystems with no apparent dependence on groundwater (Hatton and Evans, 1998). The dependency of ecosystems on groundwater is based on groundwater flow or flux, level, pressure and quality. The ecosystem response to alterations in these groundwater parameters is variable (Sinclair Knight Merz Pty Ltd, 2001).



Less than 1% of the land area of Australia is represented by ecosystems that are entirely dependent on groundwater, and similarly for ecosystems highly dependent on groundwater. Less than 5% of the land area is associated with ecosystems that are proportionally dependent on groundwater (Hatton and Evans, 1998). These ecosystems represent a small but unique and important part of the Australian environment (Hatton and Evans, 1998; Sinclair Knight Merz Pty Ltd, 2001).

Examples of Australian GDEs that are entirely dependent on groundwater include riparian (streamside) vegetation in the central Australian arid zone and arid zone calcrete aquifer ecosystems of central Western Australia (Sinclair Knight Merz Pty Ltd, 2001).

There is a range of wetland and riparian ecosystems in Australia that initially appear to be groundwater dependent, but prove not to be. Examples of this include intermittent and episodic wetlands and lakes of the arid zone and of the Western Australian sandplain and Yilgarn Plateau (Sinclair Knight Merz Pty Ltd, 2001).

Currently, six distinct types of GDEs are recognized in Australia: terrestrial vegetation, river base flow systems; aquifer and cave ecosystems; wetlands; terrestrial fauna; and estuarine and near-shore marine ecosystems (Sinclair Knight Merz Pty Ltd, 2001).

Terrestrial vegetation GDEs do not rely on surface water to survive, but depend seasonally or episodically on groundwater that would be locally recharged in the wet season. These terrestrial vegetation GDEs are influenced by groundwater level, flux and quality (Sinclair Knight Merz Pty Ltd, 2001).

The determination of environmental water requirements of GDEs is associated with the following factors: the nature of ecosystem dependency on groundwater; the water requirements of the ecosystem; the groundwater regime that will meet the requirements of the ecosystem; and impacts of change in groundwater regime on ecological processes (Sinclair Knight Merz Pty Ltd, 2001). Sustainable borefield developments require an understanding of the use of ecosystem groundwater requirements and adaptability (Eamus and Froend, 2006).

Phreatophytes (deep-rooted plants that can access the water table) show seasonal variability in both the quantity of groundwater used and the relative importance of groundwater as a water source. Phreatophytes utilise groundwater the most during the driest season of the year, when alternative sources of water become exhausted and transpiration is highest (Eamus and Froend, 2006). With regard to borefield operations, the timing and modification of abstraction and the magnitude and rate of drawdown affects the risk to GDEs. For example, the risk to GDEs may be lowered considerably by avoiding periods of peak environmental demand and allowing adaptation of dependent biota to a lower water table. Information concerning the process of adaptation to changes in groundwater availability is limited (Eamus and Froend, 2006).

The maintenance of GDEs is directly related to the maintenance of specific ecosystem processes such as: flowering, seed set and germination; growth and persistence; seedling establishment and recruitment to reproductive age; mortality; and nutrient cycling (Eamus *et al.*, 2006). A GDE may experience a decline in the functioning of the ecosystem following the extraction of groundwater, as opposed to a total collapse of the ecosystem (Murray *et al.*, 2006).

In March 2009, the National Water Commission (2009) initiated a project that seeks to identify major GDEs across Australia, in order to produce a national comprehensive geographic database inventory (an "atlas") of GDEs.



# 2.5 BIOGEOGRAPHIC REGION

The Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia (IBRA) categorises the Australian continent into regions of similar geology, landform, vegetation, fauna and climate. The Weld Range lies within the Western Murchison sub-region (MUR2) (Figure 2.4) in the Eremaean botanical province of the arid zone of Western Australia (Environment Australia, 2007). The MUR2 is described as:

" Mulga low woodlands, rich in ephemerals (usually with bunched grasses), on outcrop and fine-textured Quaternary alluvial and eluvial surfaces. Quaternary alluvial and eluvial surfaces (extensive hardpan wash plains dominate and characterise the subregion) mantling granitic and greenstone rocks outcrops in the northern part of the Yilgarn Craton. Surfaces associated with the occluded drainage systems occur throughout with hummock grasslands on Quaternary sandplains, saltbush shrublands on calcareous soils and Halosarcia low shrublands on saline alluvia." (Desmond *et al.*, 2001).



Figure 2.4 – The Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Western Australia (IBRA).

# 2.6 PREVIOUS BIOLOGICAL SURVEYS

Vegetation communities and land systems of the Weld Range were described by Speck and Mabbut *et al* (1963) respectively as part of a regional survey of the Wiluna to Meekatharra area.





The vegetation communities of the area were mapped by Beard (1976) in his regional survey of the Murchison at a scale of 1: 1 000 000, describing the region as providing optimum conditions for the presence of mulga (*Acacia aneura*) woodlands.

A finer-scale survey of the vegetation was undertaken by Curry *et al.* (1994), using the land systems of Mabbut *et al* as part of their regional survey of rangelands within the Murchison River Catchment. The vegetation communities of the greenstone ranges of Weld Range (the Weld land system) were surveyed between 1985 and 1988 and were reported to be dominated by *Acacia* species and rocky hill mixed shrublands, stony mulga mixed shrublands, and creekline shrublands.

A survey of the vegetation communities and flora of the Weld Range was conducted by the DEC in late August 2005 (Markey & Dillon, 2008). The aim of the survey was to resolve floristic communities within the Weld Range at a finer scale than had been attained by the regional surveys. Fifty-two quadrats were established at the Range, and 239 taxa were collected. Of these taxa, eight were identified as priority flora and six were new records for the Weld Range.

From July 2006 to July 2009 *ecologia* conducted 26 flora surveys at Weld Range for various programme of works applications. The results of these surveys are summarised in Appendix A.

# 2.7 LANDUSE HISTORY

Much of the Murchison area was vacant crown land until the 1900s. A rapid expansion of pastoral leases occurred over the following three decades (Curry *et al.* 1994). The Murchison pastoral areas are still active and primarily run sheep and cattle. Large numbers of feral goats are also caught and exported to supplement station incomes. Meekatharra is a major service centre for the pastoral industry and mining exploration in the Murchison region of Western Australia.

The first discovery of gold in the Murchison occurred in July, 1890 (Edwards, 1994). Gold was found at Nannine in 1891 and soon afterwards at Garden Gully and Meekatharra, leading to the establishment of thriving mining centres (Elias, 1982). Meekatharra was first settled in 1894. The 'Meekatharra' 90N gold mine gave the name to the town, when gold was found in 1896. This early success was short-lived and it wasn't until a second gold discovery was made in 1899 that the town's survival was ensured. The Meekatharra State Battery commenced operations in 1901, and closed down in 1987. Meekatharra became a railhead in 1910, forming an important part of the pastoral industry. Cattle arrived at the stockyards from the Pilbara and Kimberley regions, and the shipment of wool was facilitated by the rail line, which subsequently closed down in 1978 (Edwards, 1994).

Gold and iron ore mining became established at Weld Range in the early 20<sup>th</sup> century. The potential for iron ore mining at Weld Range has been recognised for over 100 years and modern exploration efforts started in 1959. The resources region in the Midwest has developed into a major contributor in this area, and in 2004 provided 7% (or \$1.9 billion) of the state revenue (The Chambers of Minerals and Energy, 2006).

A deposit of red ochre at Wilgie Mia, an ochre mine on the Weld Range, has been used by Aboriginals for over 1000 years while Europeans started red ochre production from the area in 1945 (Elias, 1982).





# 3 METHODOLOGY

# 3.1 GUIDING PRINCIPLES

The survey methods adopted by *ecologia* were formulated using:

- The Western Australian EPA's position paper on terrestrial biological surveys as an element of biodiversity protection (EPA, 2002);
- The EPA's guidance statement on terrestrial flora and vegetation surveys for environmental impact assessment (EPA, 2004a); and
- Consultation with regional Department of Environment and Conservation (DEC) and other relevant government officers.

The Weld Range and other Banded Iron Formation Ranges are important landforms in the Murchison region. Although representing a very small proportion of the total area of the Murchison bioregion, their unique geology, soils and relative isolation has produced distinctive vegetation communities, many of which have restricted distributions in the region. Many of the BIF ranges support threatened, and in some instances locally endemic, species. As a consequence they are considered to have very significant biodiversity values and a multiphase Level 2 floristic survey consistent was considered appropriate within the current Project area. The survey combined the following methodological approaches:

- *Background research:* to gather background information on the footprint or target area (i.e. search of literature, data and map-based information).
- *Reconnaissance:* to verify the accuracy of the background information, further delineate and characterise the flora and range of vegetation units present in the footprint and to identify potential impacts.
- *Detailed survey:* to enhance the level of knowledge of the flora and vegetation at the local scale and its local context or significance (if the broader scale is well known).

Level 2 surveys require one or more visits to the target area in the main flowering season and visits in other seasons. Replication of plots in each vegetation unit is required to thoroughly sample the flora and all the vegetation units over their full extent in the target area, to enable maps of these vegetation units to be produced at an appropriate scale. An assessment of vegetation condition are also required.

# 3.2 SURVEY METHODS

# 3.2.1 Database Searches

A search of the following databases were undertaken in July 2006 prior to commencing the first survey and again in June 2010, to determine species of conservation significance previously recorded in the vicinity of the Project area:

- DEC Threatened (Declared Rare) Flora Database (DEFL);
- DEC Declared Rare and Priority Flora List;



- DEC Western Australian Herbarium Specimen Database (WAHERB);
- DEC Threatened Ecological Community Database; and
- the Department of the Environment and Water Resources Protected Matters Database.

Details of the 2010 search are included in Table B.1, Appendix B.

### 3.2.2 Survey Timing and Objectives

The vegetation and flora of the Weld Range project area were surveyed over fifty three person days over three phases:

- 3<sup>rd</sup> to the 12<sup>th</sup> of November, 2006 (spring phase);
- 14<sup>th</sup> to the 21<sup>st</sup> of April 2007 (autumn phase); and
- 3<sup>rd</sup> to the 10<sup>th</sup> of July 2008 (winter phase).

In addition a linear rail corridor survey at Weld Range was conducted in June 2009, a portion of which occurred within the current Study Area. The species collected during this survey were also added to the overall species list for the Project. An additional three person survey days were spent within the Study Area during this survey.

The objectives of these surveys were to provide:

- an inventory of vascular plant species;
- a description and mapping of plant communities;
- a review of plant species considered to be rare and endangered, or geographically restricted, which are known to, or may occur, within the project area;
- an inventory of exotic plants, including declared weeds; and
- a review of the significance of the plant communities within a local, regional, and state context.

### 3.3 DETAILED FLORISTIC SURVEY METHODS

The three-phase survey involved a combination of sampling within bounded quadrats and a series of linked field traverses. Linked traverses are more time efficient than bounded quadrats to maximise the sampling of the entire area and thus the probability of locating flora of potential significance. However quadrats were utilized to characterise the vegetation units and to facilitate multivariate analysis of the vegetation. Both methods contributed to the delineation of small scale vegetation units and to a comprehensive floristic inventory of the survey area.

### 3.3.1 Quadrat based surveys

To ensure that all floristic communities and habitats present within the survey area were represented in the data collected, sampling sites were selected using aerial photography, topographical features and field observations. The number of sites established was determined by the size and the heterogeneity of the study area. Two-hundred and thirty-nine quadrats were



established during the three phase survey over the project area. One hundred and three quadrats were assessed during Phase 1, with 72 additional quadrats assessed and 37 Phase 1 quadrats reassessed during Phase 2, and a further 64 quadrats during Phase 3. Information from an additional 19 sites within the project area assessed during a rail corridor survey was also used to further refine vegetation boundaries; however data collected during this survey were not included within the statistical analysis. The location of quadrats is detailed in Figure 3.1. The coordinates of quadrats are listed in listed in Appendix C.

Quadrats measured 20 m x 20 m (400  $m^2$ ) or an equivalent area when sites were located in drainage lines or irregularly shaped patches of vegetation. The following parameters were recorded at each quadrat:

- location details, including GPS co-ordinates;
- site parameters such as topography, soils, and surface lithology;
- structural information describing the vegetation unit, including the height, cover, form and dominant species within each stratum;
- maximum height and foliage projective cover for each species within the site, including introduced species;
- vegetation condition; and
- the estimated time since the last fire at each site.

Plant specimens were collected for later identification and verification. Nomenclature and taxonomy follow the conventions currently adopted by the Western Australian Herbarium (2010).

Vegetation type, life-form strata and percentage cover for each stratum were recorded using the National Vegetation Information System (NVIS) vegetation classifications (Appendix D). Site descriptions are included as Appendix E.

### 3.3.2 Transect based surveys

Surveys targeting taxa of conservation significance previously recorded during the quadrat-based surveys were conducted between May 2008 and August 2009. In total 1053 transects over 94 person days were conducted inside and outside proposed areas of infrastructure. Because the proposed infrastructure areas are large (approximately 4500 ha including buffer zones) they could not be systematically grid searched and therefore sub-plots of each area were surveyed.

Transects surveying a 10 m width were walked and the locations and abundance of all Priority taxa observed were recorded using a handheld GPS. The spacing between transects varied to some degree but the majority of transects were separated by 100 m. Transect length was determined by the dimensions of each habitat occurring in a particular search polygon. The number of transects walked in each habitat depended on the total area of that habitat and on the typical densities of Priority taxa occurring within them.

Individual coordinates and the exact number of plants present were recorded for isolated or small clusters of plants. Boundary waypoints were recorded for large populations and of the number of plants present within those boundaries was estimated. The vegetation community, habitat and orientation relative to the ranges at which each cluster was located were noted. Any plants observed between transects or outside the boundaries of grids searched were recorded as opportunistic collections, and the number of plants and locations similarly recorded.



The transects were located such that the range of topography and vegetation types present within the proposed infrastructure areas were represented and is illustrated relative to the land systems present in Figure 3.2.

An additional 34 transects were surveyed within the Wilgie Mia Reserve in September 2008 subsequent to permission being granted by the Wajarri Community. Priority flora locations and vegetation structure were recorded, and collections were made of any taxa not previously recorded during surveys within the Study Area. Specimens of known and suspected conservation significant flora species recorded during the threatened flora surveys were collected for verification by an experienced taxonomist.

# 3.3.3 Vegetation Condition

Vegetation condition was assessed at all quadrats using the rankings based on criteria described in Table 3-1.

Vegetation condition	Criteria
Excellent	Pristine or nearly so, no obvious sign of damage caused by European man
Very good	Some relatively slight signs of damage caused by the activies of European man. E.g. damage to tree trunks by repeated fires, the presence of some relatively non-aggressive weeds or occasional vehicle tracks.
Good	More obvious signs of damage caused by the activities of European man, including some obvious impact to vegetation structure such as caused by low levels of grazing or by selective logging. Weeds as above, possibly plus some more aggressive ones
Poor	Still retains basic vegetation structure or ability to regenerate it after very obvious impacts of European man such as grazing or partial clearing or very frequent fires. Presence of some more aggressive weeds.
Very poor	Severely impacted by grazing, fire, clearing or a combination of these activities. Scope for some regeneration but not to a state approaching good condition without intensive management. Usually with a number of weeds species including aggressive species.
Completely Degraded	Areas that are completely or almost completely without native vegetation e.g. areas that are cleared or parkland cleared with their flora comprising weed or crop species with isolated native trees or shrubs.

Table 2.4 Magatatian Canditian Caala	/Duch Famouran	2000 - 4	T
Table 3-1 – Vegetation Condition Scale	(BusnForever.	. Zuuu atter	Trudgen, 1991)
	(Dubin 010101)		

# 3.3.4 Vegetation Mapping

Vegetation mapping is the delineation of plant communities based on distinctive characteristics that these communities share such as the vegetation structure, dominant species and species composition. A combination of multivariate analysis of species composition of quadrats and ground truthing was employed to define communities. This method provides an objective means of defining vegetation communities and provides insight into the hierarchical relationship between communities based on the degree of similarity in species composition and abundance. The boundaries of communities were then estrapolated to the entire Study Area based on their appearance in 1:15,000 aerial imagery.

The species by site matrix utilized in the statistical analysis included perennial taxa identified to species level. Annuals and singletons (species occurring at only one quadrat) were removed from the species list. All *Acacia aneura* varieties were grouped as *Acacia aneura* and *Solanum ashbyae* and *S. lasiophyllum* were combined into a single entity, *Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum* given the



difficulty in reliably discriminating non-reproductive specimens of these taxa. This treatment follows that utilized by Markey and Dillon (2008) in their analyis of DEC quadrats located on Weld Range.

Multivariate analysis of the site by species matrix (present/absent data) was performed using the complete linkage algorithms in PATN<sup>TM</sup>. The data from quadrats surveyed by the DEC in 2005 survey at Weld Range were compared with that collected by ecologia. This analysis was useful in providing a means of objectively comparing patterns observed in the data collected by the DEC and ecologia.

Multivariate analysis of the species matrix data collected at quadrats during ecologia's three-phase survey were also analysed using the multivariate programme SYSTAT<sup>™</sup>. Both present/absent and cover-weighted matrices were analysed using Pearson complete linkage algorithms. to produce dendrograms showing similarities between sites. The DEC data was omitted from this analysis as cover-weighted rankings were not available.

A combination of aerial photography and topographic maps was used to interpret the vegetation patterns of the Study Area. Due to the size of the Study Area, the mapping was constrained by the number of quadrats surveyed and was supplemented by habitat and vegetation descriptions collected during the transect-based surveys and during the survey of the rail corridor.





This page has been left blank intentionally.









Quadrats Surveyed Across the Weld Range Project Area Figure: 3.1 Project ID: 722 Drawn: SH Date: 06/11/2009

*Coordinate System* Name: GDA 1994 MGA Zone 50 Projection: Transverse Mercator Datum: GDA 1994

Unique Map ID: S060

A3



This page has been left blank intentionally.




This page has been left blank intentionally.



## 3.3.5 Survey Limitations and Constraints

奥洲中西矿业公司

SINOSTEEL MIDWEST CORPORATION LIMITED

SINDSTEEL

According to the EPA Guidance Statement for Terrestrial Flora and Vegetation Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment in Western Australia (EPA, 2004a), flora and vegetation surveys may be limited by a number of factors. These factors and their relevance to the current survey are detailed in Table 3.1.

Limitation	Relevance to current survey				
	A number of other botanical surveys associated with mining activities have been completed in the surrounding area and in the Western Murchison region generally which were accessible. In particular:				
Sources of information and availability of	• The DEC surveyed 52 bounded quadrats at Weld Range in August 2005. The DEC has described the floristic communities at the Weld Range and at other BIF ranges of the Yilgarn Craton.				
contextual information (i.e. pre-existing background versus new material)	• More than 20 targeted flora surveys have been carried out by <i>ecologia</i> within the Study Area and some nearby leases.				
	• In June 2009 the Weld Range section of a linear rail corridor was surveyed for OPR (ecologia 2010i). SMC and OPR agreed to share relevant data in this area hence data collected has been used to verify the vegetation mapping and to supplement the species inventory.				
The scope (i.e. what life forms were sampled)	The vascular flora and vegetation of the Study Area was sampled during spring, autumn and winter.				
Proportion of flora collected and identified (based on sampling, timing and intensity)	Over the three phases of the survey (and including the additional rail corridor sites) approximately 3,500 plant specimens were collected within the Study Area, and 393 taxa (including species, subspecies, varieties, forms and affinities) were identified. Based on species accumulation analysis it is estimated that 93% of the species potentially present were recorded. 4 taxa were identified to genus level only				
	Forty-four annual or weakly perennial species were recorded during Phase 1 of the survey, 12 during Phase 2, 27 during Phase 3 and 7 during the rail corridor survey.				
Completeness and further work which might be needed (e.g. was the relevant area fully surveyed)	The Study Area encompassed 51,557 ha, approximately twice the area within the SMC Project, allowing the vegetation mapped to be viewed in a broader local context. Survey intensity was greatest in areas of proposed infructure, however as the locations of some structures were unknown at the time of survey, supplementary surveys will be required to identify and mark populations of priority flora in some areas areas.				
Mapping reliability	Aerial imagery at a scale of 1:15,000 was used to select sites to be sampled during the survey and to produce a digitised map of the vegetation associations occurring in the study area. The distribution of quadrats within the Study Area was concentrated in the areas of proposed infrastructure and along the BIF range, therefore a greater degree of extrapolation was required at the boundaries of the survey area. However the number of quadrats (239 plus an additional 19 from the OPR rail corridor is considered to have provided adequate data fro this purpose.				
Timing/weather/season/cycle	Rainfall in the four months preceding each phase relative to the long term average (LTA) for these months was as follows: Phase 1, Nov. 2006: 49.6 mm, 5.1 mm > LTA				
	Phase 2, Apr. 2007: 66.2 mm, 38.4 mm < LTA Phase 3, Jul 2008 (Table 2.2), 84.0 mm, 20.4 mm < LTA				

Table 3-2 – Limitations of the Flora and Vegetation Survey



Limitation	Relevance to current survey			
	Rail Corridor, Jun. 2009: 26.4 mm, 82.5 mm < LTA.			
	Annual rainfall during 2006 was 56.4% greater than the LTA annual rainfall.			
	It is considered that, although rainfall was significantly below the LTA during the 2007 Autumn survey, the survey timing was adequate given the higher than average rainfall during 2006.			
Disturbances (e.g. fire, flood, accidental human intervention)	Isolated, small pockets of burnt vegetation are present across the Study Area. Due to their small size and broad distribution, they did not impact survey adequacy.			
Intensity (in retrospect, was the intensity	In total 56 person days (53 during Phases 1 to 3 and a further 3 during the rail corridor) have been expended on the quadrat based survey. A further 94 days were expended during transect based surveys.			
adequate?)	The survey is considered adequate in intensity and will add significantly to the existing knowledge on the vegetation and flora of the project area.			
Resources	The number of personnel employed and the physical resources available to facilitate the survey were adequate. The survey effort was not impeded by a lack of resouces.			
Access problems	Access was reasonable to most of the survey area. A relatively small area toward the centre of the range proved difficult to access during each phase of the survey as higher than average rainfall in 2006 had washed out many of the pastoral and old exploration tracks providing access to this area. However this area was surveyed by within the transect based surveys and the data collected used to supplement the vegetation mapping.			
Experience levels (e.g. degree of expertise in plant identification to taxon level)	The field botanists have conducted numerous surveys in the Murchison biogeographic region. Plant specimens were collected from all quadrat assessed to ensure taxonomic accruacy. The two taxonomists responsible for identifying the specimens collected during the three phases and additional rail corridor surveys each have more than 10 years of experience in plant taxonomy. <i>ecologia's</i> Principal Botanist has more than 19 years of experience in vegetation mapping and supervised data analysis and interpretation prior to production of the vegetation map.			





# 4 VEGETATION

## 4.1 REGIONAL VEGETATION

The Weld Range project area is situated within the Murchison botanical district of the Eremaean botanical province. The boundaries of this province approximate the geological boundaries of the Yilgarn Block, which forms the nucleus of the West Australian Shield (Beard, 1976). The region is well known for the dominance of mulga (*Acacia aneura*) woodlands, and the extensive flats and plains provide optimum conditions for the occurrence of these woodlands (Beard, 1976). The Murchison botanical district is divided into two subregions, and the Weld Range falls within the boundaries of the upper or Western Murchison subregion (MUR2). Data recorded from flora surveys and opportunistic collections in the region indicate that the Murchison bioregion encompasses a rich flora with at least 2,210 known species (Western Australian Herbarium, 2010).

Mulga shrublands make up the vast majority of vegetation types encountered in the Murchison region. On the more favorable soils (plains and valleys) *Acacia aneura* generally grows in the form of a tree with a single erect trunk and forms low woodlands. On less favorable soils, such as those present on hill slopes and ridges, it takes the form of a shrub producing shrublands/scrublands (Beard, 1976). As a result, the bulk of landscapes are dominated by mixed shrubland/scrubland, with few or no trees or perennial grasses, randomly scattered or loosely aggregated shrubs, with large areas of bare ground with exposed shallow red soils between them (Curry et al., 1994).

## 4.2 PREVIOUS DOCUMENTATION OF THE VEGETATION OF THE WELD RANGE

The vegetation of the Weld Range has been mapped on a broad scale (1:1,000 000) by Speck (1963) and Beard (1976). Beard classified the vegetation of the Study Area into seven main types as described in Table 4.1 below and shown in Figure 4.1.

Vegetation Code	Vegetation Description
a <sub>1</sub> S <sub>i</sub>	Acacia aneura (mulga) scrub.
a <sup>1</sup> <sub>14</sub> Si	Acacia aneura and Acacia quadrimarginea scrub.
a 1 Li	Acacia aneura low woodland.
a <sup>1</sup> <sub>9</sub> Li	Acacia aneura, Acacia ramulosa and Acacia linophylla (now Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla) low woodland.
a <sup>1</sup> <sub>17</sub> Li	Acacia aneura and Acacia grasbyi low woodland.
a 9 Si	Acacia ramulosa and Acacia linophylla (now Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla) scrub.





This page has been left blank intentionally.







This page has been left blank intentionally.



More recently the DEC (Markey & Dillon, 2008) surveyed the Weld Range and documented six main vegetation communities and four sub-communities occurring on the hills, footslopes and outwash plains (Table 4.4)

Table 4-2 – Weld Range Vegetation Communities Described by the DEC (Markey & Dillon	,
2008).	

Community Type	Landform Description	Vegetation Description	Characteristic Species
1a	Moderate hill slopes, very rocky terrain and outcrops of BIF.	Acacia aneura, A. ramulosa and / or Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey and S. Dillon 2994), over sparse Eremophila species.	Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Santalum spicatum.
1b	Rocky, gentle to moderate inclines.	Open to sparse shrubland of Acacia aneura (var. microphylla, aneura and argentea), Acacia sp. Weld Range and Grevillea berryana, over Eremophila spp. low shrubs.	Prostanthera petrophila & Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi.
2	Massive rocky outcrops of BIF, moderate to steep hill slopes.	Sparse to open shrubland of Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and / or A. aneura var. aneura, over mid stratum shrub layer of Thryptomene decussata, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, and Eremophila species.	Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Dodonaea pachyneura and Stylidium longibracteatum.
3	Mid and low to moderate hillslopes. Loose ironstone gravel and scree.	Open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> over isolated <i>Solanum ashbyae</i> and <i>Tribulus suberosus</i> low shrubs.	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. pseudovellea.
4	Steep rocky hillslopes with relatively high levels of exposed bedrock.	Open shrubs of Acacia aneura and emergent trees of Acacia pruinocarpa, over Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei and Eremophila species.	Abutilon oxycarpum, Dodonaea pachyneura and Enneapogon caerulescens – all characteristic of fractured rocky substrates.
5a	Moderately inclined lower hillslopes and outwash plains.	Isolated emergent trees of Acacia pruinocarpa over Acacia aneura / Acacia ramulosa, over an open mid-stratum of shrubs.	No significant indicator species. Distinguished from community type 5B by Acacia aneura var. major, Sida excedentifolia and Acacia pruinocarpa.
5b	Moderately inclined lower hillslopes and outwash plains.	Sparse to open Acacia shrubland (A. aneura cf. var. tenuis or aneura and / or Acacia effusifolia), over sparse Senna species and Tribulus suberosus low shrubs.	Acacia aneura var. tenuis, Senna glaucifolia and Hibiscus sturtii.
6	Associated with dolerite substrates.	Open shrubland of <i>Acacia</i> sp. Weld Range (A. Markey and S. Dillon 2994), <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>Acacia speckii</i> , over sparse mid stratum of <i>Eremophila macmillaniana</i> , <i>Eremophila</i> <i>mackinlayi</i> subsp. <i>spathulata</i> and <i>Heliotropium</i> <i>ovalifolium</i> .	Senna spp. and Eremophila macmillaniana.



# 4.3 VEGETATION COMMUNITIES IDENTIFIED WITHIN THE STUDY AREA DURING THE CURRENT SURVEY

The vegetation within the study area was mapped at a scale of 1:15,000 using aerial photography, ground truthing and multivariate analysis of the floristic composition and vegetation structure of quadrats (Figure 4.2). Not all vegetation communities visible at ground level and evident within the multivariate analysis could be reliably discriminated using aerial photography. In particular vegetation communities 1a and 1b, and 2a and 2b could not be distinguished and have been mapped as a single unit, 1 and 2.

Seven major vegetation communities, and 16 sub-communities, as identified by the multivariate analysis are described in Table 4.5. The dendrogram resulting from this analysis is shown in Appendix F and the site by species matrix used to conduct the analysis is included as Appendix G.

Higher resolution vegetation maps of the whole area are included as Appendix H (Figures H.1 to H.5).

## 4.4 VEGETATION CONDITION

As detailed in Table 4-3, the condition of vegetation within bounded quadrats ranged from very good to poor, with the majority of quadrats assessed as in good condition.

Vegetation Condition	Proportion of Quadrats (%)
Excellent	0
Very Good	14
Good	77
Poor	9
Very Poor	0
Degraded	

### Table 4-3 – Assessment of Vegetation Condition of Quadrats

Vegetation condition at sites on the flat sand plains of the survey area ranged from good to poor, with most damage due to extensive grazing by feral goats and livestock across these areas of the pastoral lease. There was no evidence of cattle grazing at sites located higher in the landscape, but some evidence of grazing by goats.

Vegetation across the Study Area, particularly on the rocky ironstone ridges, had been disturbed by tracks and clearing for exploration activities.

Weed abundance is generally low across the lease. Most weeds are recorded on sites lower in the landscape where most grazing is more prevalent.







This page has been left blank intentionally.



## Table 4-4 – Vegetation Communities of the Study Area.

Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph
1 Acacia aneura low woodland over n	nixed open shrubs			
These woodlands are widely distributed across the banded ironstone formation (BIF) ranges of the survey area, generally covering the mid and upper slopes. The overstorey is dominated by an open to moderately dense stratum of mixed <i>Acacia aneura</i> varieties The mid stratum consists of open to moderately dense mixed shrub species with the Priority 3 taxon <i>Prostanthera petrophila</i> occasionally occurring as a co-dominant. <i>Allocasuarina acutivalvis</i> subsp. <i>acutivalvis</i> was recorded at three locations within this community type. It occurred as a dominant overstorey shrub to the west of the range and also around the centre of the range on higher, steep relief hills. Ground cover is often dominated by annual herbs and <i>Cheilanthes</i> spp. in favourable seasons and scattered <i>Eriachne pulchella</i> subsp. <i>pulchella</i> tussock grasses.				
1aAcacia aneura low open woodland over A. sp. Weld Range, A. ramulosa var. linophylla and Thryptomene decussata open mid shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. low shrubland.Micromyrtus placoides, Prostanthera petrophila (Priority 3) and Beyeria lapidicola (Priority 2) were recorded mostly in this community, on prominent BIF outcroppings.Mean species richness = 13 ± 3.52 (n = 20).	Acacia aneura var. aneura, A. aneura var. microcarpa, A. sp. Weld Range, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Thryptomene decussata, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. glutinosa, E. georgei.	BIF mid to upper slopes and outcropping.	10a, 11, 12, 23, 30, 69, 71, 89, 108, 117, 151, 153, 156, 158, 165, 171, 175, 177, 183 and BPW09.	





Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph
<ul> <li><b>1b</b> Acacia aneura low open woodland over A. cockertoniana open mid shrubland over mixed mid shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> low shrubland.</li> <li>Goodenia lyrata (Priority 1) and Hemigenia tysonii (Priority 3) occurred within this community on the rocky BIF slopes to the west of the lease.</li> <li>Mean species richness = 14 ± 2.89 (n = 16).</li> </ul>	Acacia aneura var. aneura, A. aneura var. microcarpa, A. cockertoniana, Thryptomene decussata, Eremophila glutinosa, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. georgei, Ptilotus obovatus.	BIF upper slopes and outcropping.	7, 27, 52, 97, 128, 132, 133, 150, 152, BPW01, BPW03, BPW04, BPW05, BPW06, BPW13 and HR05.	

#### 2 Acacia aneura sparse shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland

This community is predominantly restricted to ridge tops and the upper slopes of higher elevation BIF ridges. Scattered *Acacia pruinocarpa* trees occasionally occurred in the overstorey. The upper stratum is dominated by sparse *Acacia aneura* shrubs with mixed mid stratum shrubs. The lower stratum was dominated by open to moderately dense *Ptilotus obovatus* over sparse mixed tussock grasses. Two sub-communities resulted from the statistical analysis, however as their boundaries could not be consistently differentiated on the aerial imagery they could not be mapped separately.





Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph
<ul> <li>Scattered Acacia pruinocarpa trees over A. aneura mid sparse shrubland / scattered shrubs over Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland with Cymbopogon ambiguus tussock grasses.</li> <li>Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (Priority 1) and Prostanthera petrophila (Priority 3) were both recorded within this community.</li> <li>Mean species richness = 11 ± 3.30 (n = 18).</li> </ul>	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, A. pruinocarpa, A. aneura var. aneura, A. aneura var. tenuis, Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum, Ptilotus obovatus, Thryptomene decussata, Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Cymbopogon ambiguus.	Ridge tops of BIF ranges.	37, 51, 67, 118, 124, 126, 127, 139, 140, 143, 146, 154, 157, 159, 163, 176, 178 and 179.	
2bAcacia aneura sparse shrubland over mixed sparse mid shrubland over Micromyrtus sulphurea and Ptilotus obovatus low open shrubland.Prostanthera petrophila (Priority 3) and Baeckea sp. Melita Station (Priority 4) were commonly recorded within this community.Mean species richness = 17 ± 3.86 (n = 14).	Acacia aneura var. aneura, A. aneura var. microcarpa, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila glutinosa, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, Thryptomene decussata, Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum, Ptilotus schwartzii, P. obovatus var. obovatus, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Micromyrtus sulphurea.	Mid to upper slopes and broad ridge tops of BIF ranges and ridge tops of breakaways.	4a, 8, 10, 26, 48, 68, 70, 109, 110, 111, 144, 168, 180 and BPE03.	





Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph		
3 Acacia spp. shrubland over open mi	3 Acacia spp. shrubland over open mixed shrub species and tussock grasses					
This was the most widespread community occurring across sand plains and minor drainage areas associated with outwash plains and on the footslopes of hills. The upper stratum is characterised by moderately tall <i>Acacia</i> spp. shrubs occasionally with scattered <i>A. pruinocarpa</i> or <i>Corymbia lenziana</i> trees. The mid stratum is dominated by a diverse array of <i>Eremophila</i> species. The lower stratum consists predominantly of sparse to open shrubs with mixed tussock grasses. An isolated patch of Community 3a was recorded to the north of the ranges with <i>Triodia shinzii</i> occurring as a dominant in the lower stratum. This was not recorded at any other location and appeared to be restricted to an isolated area of yellow sand plain. Four sub-communities were differentiated by the statistical analysis and these are described below. Sub-communities 3a and 3b, have similar floristic assemblages, however, plant densities differ significantly.						
<ul> <li>3a +/- Corymbia lenziana scattered medium trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura sparse tall shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. open mid shrubland over scattered low shrubs of Ptilotus obovatus over mixed open tussock grassland.</li> <li>No priority species were recorded within this community.</li> <li>Mean species richness = 16 ± 3.42 (n = 8).</li> </ul>	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. aneura var. aneura, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. granitica, E. foliosissima, E. simulans subsp. simulans, Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum, Ptilotus obovatus, Monachather paradoxus, Eragrostis eriopoda.	Sandy outwash and gravelly plains and footslopes of BIF ranges.	1, 17, 55, 56, 98, 147, BPE06 and HR13.			





Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph
<ul> <li>3b +/- Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over A. aneura woodland over A. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. closed shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.</li> <li>Isolated individuals of Grevillea stenostachya (Priority 3) were commonly recorded within this community.</li> <li>Mean species richness = 17 ± 5.26 (n = 59).</li> </ul>	Acacia aneura var. aneura, A. aneura var. microcarpa, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. spectabilis subsp. brevis, Ptilotus obovatus, Eragrostis eriopoda.	Drainage lines and low lying areas on sandy and outwash plains.	3, 4, 5, 6, 13, 14, 15, 16, 18, 22, 28, 32, 34, 35, 36, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42, 49, 50, 53, 54, 59, 60, 66, 72, 77, 82, 83, 84, 86, 102, 141, 142, 145, 156a, 172, BPC03, BPC07, BPE02, BPE12, BPE14a, HR01, HR02, HR09, HR11, HR14, HR15, HR16, HR18, HR19, HR21 HR23a, HR23b, HR25, HR26 and HR27.	
<b>3c</b> Scattered <i>Eucalyptus</i> mallees / trees over <i>Acacia ramulosa</i> var. <i>linophylla</i> open shrubland over <i>Rhagodia eremaea</i> , <i>Eremophila forrestii</i> subsp. <i>forrestii</i> shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> open low shrubland. No priority flora taxa were associated in this community. Mean species richness = 19 ± 1.26 (n = 4).	Corymbia lenziana, Eucalyptus striaticalyx subsp. striaticalyx, Enchylaena tomentosa, Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. spectabilis subsp. brevis, Rhagodia eremaea, Ptilotus obovatus, Monachather paradoxus.	Sandy plains.	33, 85, BPW02, and HR10.	





Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph
3dAcacia aneura and A.cockertoniana open moderate shrubland overEremophila simulans subsp. simulans and Alutaaspera subsp. hesperia low open shrubland.Hemigenia tysonii (Priority 3) commonlyoccurred within this community, often as a co-dominant within the lower stratum.Mean species richness = 9 ± 2.65 (n = 5).	Acacia aneura var. aneura, A. cockertoniana, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia.	Gravelly plains and low hills.	BPW07, BPW08, BPW10, HR03 and HR07.	

#### 4 Acacia sp. Weld Range shrubland over mixed open shrubs

This community was widely distributed across the lease occurring predominantly on scree slopes of granite and dolerite and along minor and major drainage lines. Acacia sp. Weld Range is the dominant overstorey shrub with a mixed mid shrub layer of *Eremophila* and *Senna* spp. over a lower stratum of a diverse range of shrubs. Two sub-communities resulted from the statistical analysis and these are described below.





Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph
4aAcacia sp. Weld Range and A.aneura var. microcarpa open tall shrublandover Eremophila macmillaniana and mixedSenna spp. open mid shrubland over Ptilotusobovatus open low shrubland.Acacia speckii (Priority 3) was commonlyrecorded within this community, as wasDodonaea amplisemina (Priority 3) Ptilotusastrolasius var. luteolus (Priority 1) within thenorth- eastern extent of the lease. Thecurrently undescribed species, Acacia sp. nov.(aff. kochii) and Hemigenia sp. nov. (aff. exilis),were recorded within this community bothinside the lease, and within Wilgie Mia duringthe threatened flora surveys.Mean species richness = 15 ± 3.75 (n = 23).	Acacia sp. Weld Range, A. aneura var. microcarpa, A. speckii, Eremophila macmillaniana, E. mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, S. glaucifolia, Ptilotus obovatus.	Undulating scree plains and mid to low slopes of granite and dolerite.	29, 75, 76, 78, 79, 80, 81, 94, 95, 101, 104, 129, 130, 134, 135, 137, 160, 161, 166, 170, 174, 182 and HR29.	
4bAcacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia speckii (Priority 3) shrubland over mixed Senna spp. sparse shrubland over Grevillea inconspicua (Priority 4) and Dodonaea amplisemina (Priority 3) open shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus sparse tussock grassland.The priority species Acacia speckii (Priority 3), Grevillea inconspicua (Priority 4), and Dodonaea amplisemina (Priority 3) were recorded consistently within this community. Stenanthemum patens (Priority 1) was recorded at two sites within this community.Mean species richness = 17 ± 5.77 (n = 10).	Acacia sp. Weld Range, A. speckii, A. tetragonophylla, Senna sp. Meekatharra, S. artemisioides subsp. helmsii, S. glaucifolia, Eremophila macmillaniana, E. exilifolia, Grevillea inconspicua, Dodonaea amplisemina, Cymbopogon ambiguus.	Minor drainage areas, creek lines and midslope of low dolerite and granite hills.	125, 136, 162, 167, 169, 181, BPE01, BPE07, HR04 and HR28.	





Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph		
5 Acacia craspedocarpa open shrubland over open low shrubs						
This association occurred predominantly on and around salt affected, low lying and riparian areas. The upper stratum is dominated by Acacia craspedocarpa and A. tetragonophylla tall shrubs. The lower stratum is dominated by mixed low shrubs. Open to moderately dense tussock grasses dominate the ground cover with scattered mixed herb species. This community was often heavily grazed by cattle. Two sub-communities were differentiated within this community.						
<ul> <li>5a Acacia craspedocarpa open tall shrubland over Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum and Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland over mixed low tussock grassland.</li> <li>The priority species Acacia speckii (Priority 3) and Grevillea inconspicua (Priority 4) were recorded within this community.</li> <li>Mean species richness = 16 ± 5.56 (n = 33).</li> </ul>	Acacia aneura var. aneura, A. tetragonophylla, A. craspedocarpa, Eremophila foliosissima, Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum, Ptilotus obovatus, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Aristida contorta, Eragrostis dielsii subsp. dielsii.	Ridge tops and upper slopes of BIF ridges, low lying semi-saline flats, riparian areas and ironstone scree flat plains.	2, 19, 24, 25, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 57, 65, 87, 88, 88a, 90, 92, 96, 100, 114, 115, 116, 122, 123, 131, 138, 148, 149, 164, 173, BPE14b, BPE16, HR06 and HR12.			





Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph
<ul> <li><b>5b</b> +/- Grevillea striata low isolated trees over Acacia craspedocarpa and A. aneura tall open shrubland over Scaevola spinescens sparse mid shrubland over Austrostipa elegantissima and Eriachne flaccida low open tussock grassland.</li> <li>The priority species Goodenia lyrata (priority 1) and G. berringbinensis (Priority 3) were recorded within this community.</li> <li>Mean species richness = 16 ± 3.61 (n = 3).</li> </ul>	Grevillea striata, Acacia craspedocarpa, Scaevola spinescens, Austrostipa elegantissima, Acacia tetragonophylla, Grevillea nematophylla subsp. supralunar.	Flat plain adjoining seasonally inundated wetland.	63, 64 and MWD01.	

### 6 Mixed open chenopod shrubland

This association occurs predominantly adjacent to seasonally inundated salt lakes and saline affected drainage lines as well as on undulating plains with a surface layer of gypsum or calcrete stones and pebbles. The upper stratum is dominated by *Acacia* spp. shrubs with the mid stratum dominated by mixed *Senna* spp. shrubs over sparse low shrubs. Low chenopods often dominate the ground layer. Three sub-communities were differentiated within this community.





Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph
<ul> <li>6a Scattered Acacia spp. shrubs over mixed Senna spp. open mid shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus sparse shrubland over mixed Maireana spp. chenopod shrubland.</li> <li>The priority species Ptilotus beardii (Priority 3) was commonly recorded within this community.</li> <li>Mean species richness = 20 ± 4.43 (n = 8).</li> </ul>	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, A. craspedocarpa, A. tetragonophylla, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, S. artemisioides subsp. filifolia, S. glaucifolia, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georgei, Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum.	Mainly occurring in and around seasonally inundated areas and salt affected drainage lines	91, 93, 99, 103, BPE05, HR17, HR30 and MWD02.	
<ul> <li>6b Scattered mixed Acacia spp. over Rhagodia eremaea and Scaevola spinescens sparse mid to low shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georgei and Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland.</li> <li>No priority species were recorded within this community type.</li> <li>Mean species richness = 13 ± 3.12 (n = 8).</li> </ul>	Acacia aneura var. tenuis, A. burkittii, Scaevola spinescens, Ptilotus obovatus, Ptilotus exaltatus, Maireana georgei.	Undulating plains with a surface layer of gypsum and calcrete.	BPC01, BPC02, BPC04, BPC08, BPC09, BPC10, BPE08 and BPE09.	





Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph
<b>6c</b> Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia low open shrubland over Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland over Enneapogon cylindricus low tussock grassland. No priority species were recorded within this community. Mean species richness = 6.0 ± 1.0 (n = 3).	Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia, Sclerolaena diacantha, Enneapogon cylindricus.	Seasonally inundated salt pan.	BPC05, BPC06 and BPE15.	
7 Halophytic shrubland				
This community is the most distinctive in the dat was characterised by halophytic shrubs over mix	a analysis and separated at the highest leve ed tussock grasses. A subset of this commu	I in the dendrogram. nity is dominated by E	It occurred in and Eucalyptus spp. ove	around saline claypans and seasonally inundated wetlands. It er shrub species. Two sub-units occur within this community.
7aMelaleuca stereophloia and Cratystylis subspinescens low shrubland over Tecticornia spp. low samphire shrubland over Frankenia laxiflora low shrubland.The priority species Goodenia lyrata (Priority 1) and Tecticornia cymbiformis (Priority 3) were recorded within this community.Mean species richness = 18 ± 2.08 (n = 3).	Melaleuca stereophloia, Cratystylis subspinescens, Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra, Frankenia laxiflora, Scaevola spinescens, Leptomeria preissiana, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Tecticornia doleiformis, Tecticornia indica subsp. leiostachya, Atriplex vesicaria.	Seasonally inundated claypan.	62, 120 and 121.	





Vegetation Community and Description	Associated Species	Habitat	Quadrats Surveyed in Vegetation Community	Photograph
<b>7b</b> Eucalyptus carnei and Eucalyptus trivalva woodland over Cratystylis subspinescens and Muehlenbeckia florulenta low sparse shrubland over mixed low tussock grasses.No priority species were recorded within this community.Mean species richness = 19 ± 2.89 (n = 3).	Eucalyptus trivalva, E. carnei, Cratystylis subspinescens, Muehlenbeckia florulenta, Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra, Scaevola spinescens, Leptomeria preissiana, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Tecticornia doleiformis, Tecticornia indica subsp. leiostachya.	Occurring as a band across a seasonally inundated wetland.	58, 61 and 119.	



## 4.5 ECOLOGICAL COMMUNITIES OF CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE WITHIN THE STUDY AREA

Ecological communities are naturally occurring biological assemblages found in a particular type of habitat. At a national level, flora and threatened ecological communities (TECs) are protected under the EPBC Act. TECs are listed as Critically Endangered, Endangered or Vulnerable (refer to Table I.1, Appendix I for category definitions). The Department of the Environment and Water Resources does not currently list any TECs as occurring within the Weld Range survey area.

The Western Australian DEC maintains a list of TECs that are Presumed Totally Destroyed, Critically Endangered, Endangered or Vulnerable. No State-listed TECs occur within or near to the project area.

Potential TECs that do not meet survey criteria, or that are not adequately defined, are added to a list of priority ecological communities (PECs). Communities are placed in this category while consideration can be given to their declaration as TECs. PECs are classified into one of five possible priority ranks based on frequency of ecological community occurrence and known threatening processes (refer to Table I.2, Appendix I for category definitions).

One Priority 1 PEC occurs in the vicinity of the Study Area; "Weld Range vegetation complexes (Banded Ironstone Formation) (BIF)". A significant proportion of the Study Areas lies within the currently defined boundaries of this PEC (Figure 4.3). The Priority 1 PEC ranking at Weld Range has been assigned on the basis that it represents a rare vegetation complex that is considered currently under threat of mining (DEC, 2008).

The current PEC boundary is based on information that was available at the time the Weld Range vegetation complexes (BIF) PEC was listed and is approximate, based on geology and vegetation layers available in GIS databases. It is possible the boundary will be reviewed as more data in relation to the vegetation of the BIF Ranges and surrounding plains becomes available.





This page has been left blank intentionally.







This page has been left blank intentionally.



## 5 FLORA

## 5.1 FLORISTIC INVENTORY

A total of 393 taxa (including species, subspecies, varieties, forms and affinities) were recorded within the Study Area. Four taxa were could not be beyond genus level only due to insufficient reproductive material. Six naturalised alien flora taxa were located during the survey. A complete list of the flora recorded is included as Table J.1, Appendix J.

The taxonomic composition of the flora is summarised in Table 5-1.

	Phase 1	Phase 2	Phase 3	Rail Corridor	Combined
Date surveyed	Nov-06	Apr-07	Jul-08	Jun-09	
Number quadrats surveyed	103	109 (including 37 RPT)	64	19	258
Number taxa recorded	260	188	195	74	393
Number families	43	38	41	17	57
Number genera	107	72	82	28	140
Number annual taxa (%)	44 (16.9)	12 (6.4)	27 (13.9)	7 (9.6)	77 (19.6)
Number perennial taxa (%)	216 (83.1)	176 (93.6)	167 (86.1)	67 (90.5)	315 (80.4)

Table 5-1 – Taxonomic Composition of the Weld Range Flora.

It can be seen that the highest proportion of annual taxa was recorded during the Phase 1 survey, in which rainfall in the four months was significantly higher than the long term average.

The families represented by the greatest number of taxa in the combined species list were Mimosaceae (43 taxa), Myoporaceae (41 taxa), Chenopodiaceae (38 taxa), Poaceae (31 taxa), and Asteraceae (26 taxa). Genera represented by the greatest number of taxa were *Acacia* (43 taxa), *Eremophila* (41 taxa), *Senna* (17 taxa), *Ptilotus* and *Maireana* (15 taxa each). This pattern of dominance is consistent to that described by Beard (1976) within the Murchison botanical district, reflecting the dominance of shrublands dominated and *Acacia* and *Eremophila* species, and the abundance of saline loams on the plains which support many species of Chenopodiaceae.

Species richness per unit area was observed to be greatest at quadrats located in areas of higher water availability: creek beds and banks, gentle slopes; and was lowest on steeper slopes, rocky crests or midslopes, and saline pans and associated drainage lines.

# 5.2 FLORISTIC DIVERSITY RELATIVE TO OTHER SURVEYS WITHIN THE MURCHISON BIOREGION

The number of species, families and dominant families / genera recorded during this survey can be compared with information recorded during other surveys conducted at Weld Range and Jack Hills Table 5-2.





Although the density of quadrats/unit area and land systems present vary between surveys, broad comparisons of floristic composition are possible.

Table 5-2 – Comparison of Florisitic Diversity from Surveys Conducted at Weld Range and Jack
Hills

Survey	ecologia Weld Range	DEC Weld Range	DEC Jack Hills	Mattiske Jack Hills
Date of survey	November 2006 April 2007 July 2008 June 2009	August 2005	August 2005	October 2004 June 2005 October 2005
Survey intensity	258 x 400 m <sup>2</sup> quadrats Includes 19 quadrats within the Study Area from the OPR rail corridor survey	52 x 400 m <sup>2</sup> quadrats surveyed	50 x 400 m <sup>2</sup> quadrats surveyed	122 x 400 m <sup>2</sup> quadrats Includes 4 quadrats established on Mount Gould / Robinson Ranges.
Total number taxa recorded	393	244	209	211
Total number families recorded	57	50	43	36
Dominant families (no taxa recorded)	Mimosaceae (43) Myoporaceae (41) Chenopodiaceae (38) Poaceae (31) Asteraceae (26)	Asteraceae (46) Poaceae (22) Mimosaceae (13) Myoporaceae(12) Amaranthaceae (11) Chenopodiaceae (11)	Asteraceae (41) Poaceae (17) Mimosaceae (16) Malvaceae (12) Myoporaceae (12)	Mimosaceae (35) Myoporaceae (22) Poaceae (18) Chenopodiaceae (16) Asteraceae (15)
Dominant genera (no taxa recorded)	Acacia (43) Eremophila (41) Senna (17) Ptilotus (15) Maireana (15)	Acacia (13) Eremophila (12) Ptilotus (10) Rhodanthe (8) Senna (7)	Not specified in report	Not specified in report
Source	Current report	(Markey & Dillon, 2008)	(Meissner & Caruso, DRAFT 2008)	(Mattiske, 2005)

It can be seen that the pattern of dominance of the families Mimosaceae, Myoporaceae, Chenopodiaceae, Poaceae and Asteraceae is common to all the surveys. Asteraceae (primarily ephemeral daisies) was the most speciosa family in both DEC surveys, reflecting the high rainfall in 2005 which preceded these surveys. Fifty two percent of the total number of taxa recorded during the DEC survey of Weld range were classified as annuals, compared with 16.8% in the current survey.

## 5.3 SAMPLING ADEQUACY

Species accumulation curves provide a theoretical basis for understanding the relationship between sampling effort and the accumulation of species, and hence provide a means of estimating species richness and assessing survey adequacy. As sampling effort increases (i.e. the number of quadrats surveyed increases), the rate at which new species are recorded decreases and ultimately becomes asymptotic. This asymptote provides an estimate of the total number of species that might be expected from a particular survey area.





Flora sampling adequacy was estimated using species accumulation curve analysis (Colwell, 2006) and extrapolation of the curve to the asymptote using Michaelis-Menten modelling (Figure 5.1).



# Figure 5.1 – Species Accumulation Curve for the Weld Range Survey (Average Randomised, 258 quadrats)

Using this analysis, the incidence-based coverage estimator of species richness (ICE Mean, Chao 2 Mean) was determined as 424. With a total of 344 taxa recorded from the 258 quadrats surveyed (three phases plus rail corridor), this suggests that approximately 81% of the flora species potentially present within the study area were recorded during the quadrat-based component of the survey. A further 48 species were recorded opportunistically during transects, or 92% of the total number of species estimated to be present.

# 5.4 FLORA OF CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE

# 5.4.1 Flora Species Protected by Commonwealth and State Acts

## 5.4.1.1 Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999

Flora species are protected at a national level under the Commonwealth *EPBC Act*. This Act protects species that are considered Critically Endangered, Endangered, Vulnerable, Conservation Dependent, Extinct or Extinct in the Wild (refer to Table I.3, Appendix I for category definitions). One species listed under this Act as Endangered, *Conospermum toddii* (Approved Conservation Advice for *Conospermum toddii*, 2008), is known from two collections in the Murchison region.

Conospermum toddii was not recorded during the current survey.

## 5.4.1.2 Wildlife Conservation Act 1950

Under the Western Australian Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice of the *WC Act*, the Minister for the Environment may declare species of protected flora to be declared rare flora (DRF) if they are





considered to be in danger of extinction, rare or otherwise in need of special protection. These taxa are legally protected and removal or impact to their surroundings cannot be conducted without ministerial approval obtained specifically on each occasion for each population.

Currently, two DRF taxa are protected by the *WC Act* and are listed as occurring in the Murchison, *Conospermum toddii* and *Eremophila rostrata* subsp. *rostrata* (Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2008(2)).

Neither *Eremophila rostrata* subsp. *rostrata* nor *Conospermum toddii* were recorded during the current survey

## 5.4.2 Priority Flora

The DEC maintains a list of priority flora species, which may be rare or threatened but for which there are insufficient records to accurately determine the status, or which are regarded as rare but not currently threatened. These species are assigned to one of four priority categories (Atkins, 2010), as defined in Table I.4, Appendix I. Currently, 150 rare and priority flora taxa are listed as occurring in the Murchison (Western Australian Herbarium, June 2010).

To date, 27 flora taxa of conservation significance have been recorded during surveys carried out at the Weld Range by the DEC and *ecologia*, 25 of which were recorded during the current survey. Table 5-3 summarises the distribution of these taxa. Their morphology, habitat preferences and distribution at Weld Range are summarised in Table 5-4, their locations in Appendix K and details of Voucher specimens and Declared Rare Forms in Appendix L

Populations are defined as disjunct in Table 5-3 if separated by at least 100 km from all other known occurrences. A disjunct record may simply reflect a lack of available data, due to a low level of investigation in the region or a low number of lodgements at the WA Herbarium. However it may also indicate a population that is genuinely isolated as a result of habitat specificity for the BIF landform that is isolated within the landscape. On the basis of current records, eight of the Weld Range Priority taxa populations appear to be disjunct.

All Priority taxa currently recorded at Weld Range have distributions extending over at least 100 km, consistent with the observation by Markey and Dillon (2008) that there do not appear to be any species that are endemic to the Weld Ranges.

## 5.4.3 Taxa of Potential Conservation Significance

Two previously undescribed taxa were also recorded during the current survey. Given their status as undescribed taxa, there is insufficient information available to determine their conservation status. These taxa may be listed as Priority species in the future. Their morphology, habitat preferences and distribution at Weld Range are summarised in Table 5-5.





	Conserv.	Origin of r Weld	ecord(s) at Range	Distribution	
Taxon	Status	ecologia	DEC Database	Weld Range disjunct	range >100 km
Beyeria lapidicola (formerly sp. Murchison)	P1	✓	✓	✓	✓
Eremophila rhegos	P1		✓	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	P1	✓		$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
Goodenia lyrata	P1	✓		~	✓
Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94)	P1	✓	✓	✓	✓
Stenanthemum patens	P1	✓	✓	√	✓
Acacia ?burrowsiana	Р3	✓	✓		✓
Acacia speckii	Р3	✓	✓		✓
Calytrix erosipetala	Р3	✓			✓
Dodonaea amplisemina	P3	✓	✓		✓
Eremophila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides	Р3	✓			✓
Grevillea stenostachya	P3	✓	✓		~
Hemigenia tysonii	Р3	✓			✓
Homalocalyx echinulatus	P3	✓	✓		✓
Indigofera gilesii subsp. gilesii Peter G.Wilson & Rowe	Р3	~		~	~
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	✓	✓		✓
Mirbelia ?stipitata	Р3	✓		✓	✓
Phyllanthus baeckeoides	Р3		✓	✓	✓
Prostanthera ferricola	P3	✓	✓		✓
Prostanthera petrophila	Р3	✓	✓		✓
Ptilotus beardii	Р3	✓	✓		✓
Ptilotus luteolus	Р3	✓			✓
Tecticornia cymbiformis	P3	✓		~	✓
Verticordia jamiesonii	Р3	✓	✓		✓
Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738)	P4	✓	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$
Goodenia berringbinensis	P4	✓			✓
Grevillea inconspicua	P4	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$		$\checkmark$

## Table 5-3 – Taxa of Conservation Significance Recorded in the Study Area





Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

## Table 5-4 – Characteristics of Priority Taxa Recorded at Weld Range

Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Beyeria lapidicola (EUPHORBIACEAE)	P1	Much branched shrub to 1.6 m. Stems and leaves resinous and sticky, branches pale, yellow-green becoming grey or black. Leaves narrow oblong, 5-20 mm x 1-3 mm, three ribs on under surface, hairy between the ribs, and a tip that is a blunt callus. Flowers are small and green.	Banded ironstone ridges and slopes	1&2, 3a, 3b, 3d, 4a	Scattered distribution bounded by Meekatharra, Wiluna, Menzies.	Ida Valley - Mt Forrest Cons. Park	2	
Eremophila rhegos (MYOPORACEAE)	P1	Erect shrub 1.5 m tall. Flowers deep lilac, tube white, purple spotted in tube below the upper and lower lips.	Skeletal brown stony loams over granite, dolerite	1&2	Three locations Weld Range, Coombarra, Waldburg Stn.	No	0	Teremophila rhegos       Teremophila shegos





Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Euphorbia sarcostemmoides (EUPHORBIACEAE)	P1	Upright, often leafless, semi- succulent herb 0.4 - 1 m (2). Stems light green, with blue- grey waxy light coating. Stems exude white sap. Rarely present leaves narrow, lanceolate, opposite, held horizontally. Flowers terminal, green.	Sandstone ridges, quartzite hills	5b	Robinson Ranges, Mt Augustus Station.	No	1	
Goodenia lyrata	P1	Prostrate herb to 0.5 m length. Basal leaves lyrate (triangular with one or two points at right angles to the leaf stalk), to 2.5 cm long; stem leaves always smaller than the basal leaves and similarly shaped. Yellow flowers occurring in August.	Mulga woodlands, red sandy loam	1&2, 3a, 3b, 5a, 5b, 7a	Newman, Laverton, West Angelas.	No	4	





Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94) (EUPHORBIACEAE)	P1	Low shrub 0.3 - 1 m high. Leaves obovate with a notched tip, light to medium green in colour, approx. 0.5-2 cm long and 0.2-0.8 cm wide. Tiny yellow flowers June	Slopes of Banded Ironstone outcrop	1&2, 4a, 4b	Weld Range, Woolgorong Hstd., Pinegrove Hstd.	No		
Stenanthemum patens (RHAMNACEAE)	P1	Small, widely spreading shrub with spiny branchlets to 0.6 m. Leaves small, round to heart-shaped, hairs both surfaces. Flowers small, hairy tubular flowers primarily Aug Sept. Easily confused with the more common <i>S. petraeum</i> , which has hairs only on the under surface of the leaf.	Rocky hillsides	1&2, 4a, 4b	Weld Range, Marshall Pool, Mt. Clifford, Leinster			





Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Acacia ?burrowsiana (MIMOSACEAE)	P3	Spreading shrub or tree to 5 m, main trunks and branches often slightly contorted. Phyllodes narrowly linear - linear oblanceolate - linear elliptic, narrowing towards base, 7-13 cm long, often held erect on the plant. Inflorescences simple, spikes interrupted 10 – 20 mm.	Red-brown loams, calcrete, laterite, quartz. Flats adj. to drainage, crests of low rises, breakaways.	3b, 5a	Lorna Glen Cons. Park, Cue, Sandstone, Mt. Magnet	Lorna Glen Cons. Park,	1	
Acacia speckii (MIMOSACEAE)	P3	Bushy, rounded shrub or gnarled tree, 1.5 m- 3.0 m. Bark igrey and fissured on the main branches. Phyllodes light green, rigid and erect, circular in cross- section, with a hardened, brown tip. Pod light brown, narrow and compressed between each seed.	Rocky soils over granite, basalt or dolerite. Rocky hills or rises	1&2, 3a, 3b, 4a, 5a	Weld Range, Mt. Magnet, Meekatharra, Yalgoo		26	




Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Calytrix erosipetala (MYRTACEAE)	Ρ3	Low shrub 0.3 m - 0.7 m. Leaves erect to spreading, obovate in outline, club shaped). White or pink flowers Sept Oct.	Rocky sandstone or granite breakaways	6a, 6b	Yakabindie Station, Mt Mason, Booylgoo Range, Windimurra Hstd	*	1	
Dodonaea amplisemina (SAPINDACEAE)	Р3	Multi-stemmed open shrub, branchlets sometimes spiny. Leaves linear or narrow spear shaped, blunt tips, often clumped together. Flowers inconspicuous. Mature fruits pink-brown with four incurving horns, Aug. – Oct.	Red-brown sandy clay soils over basalt or banded ironstone	1&2, 3a, 3b, 4a, 4b, 5a, 7a, 7b	Scattered populations Robinson Ranges -south Paynes Find. Mt Magnet, Weld Range, Cue,Buddadoo Range.		17	
Eremophila arachnoides subsp. Arachnoids (MYOPORACEAE)	Ρ3	Open shrub to 3.5 m. Stems and leaves whiteish-green appearance (due to a covering of microscopic white scales), stems pustulate. Lleaves linear, upright with hooked tip. Flowers white to mauve, the inside of the corella yellow or purple spotted.	Shallow Ioams over Iimestone	1&2, 3a, 3b, 4a	Jilyili Hills, Yarrabubba Hstd., Lake Mason Hstd.		2	





Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Grevillea stenostachya (PROTEACEAE)	Ρ3	Dense, spiky shrub 0.6 m to 1.5 m. Leaves dissected into a number of segments, each segment terminating in a sharp tip. Flowers greenish/creamy yellow colour on a cylindrical inflorescence, July – Sept.	Red sand, sandy loam	3a, 3b, 3c, 4b, 6b	Toolonga N. R., Woolgorong Station, Carnarvon, Belele Station	Toolonga N. R.,	5	
Hemigenia tysonii (LAMIACEAE)	P3	Dense, finely-branched bush to 0.6 m. Leaves grey-green in colour, stiff, 4-7 mm long and 1-3 mm wide,arranged opposite one another or occasionally grouped on the stem. Flowers purple/light pink, with white spots inside, May to Dec.	Red sand, sandy clay and lateritic sand on flats, sand dunes and hills	1&2, 3a, 3b, 3d, 4a, 5, 6a	Mi Hale, Noonie Hills, Muggon Station, between Murchison Roadhouse and Meekatharra		8	
Homalocalyx echinulatus (MYRTACEAE)	P3	Shrub 0.45 - 1.0 m. Bark old branches stringy, fibrous. Leaves closely spaced, covering surface branchlets, oblong - spoon shaped, 1-2.5 mm long, two rows of dark glands on the under surface. Flowers pink, terminal, surrounded by small papery bracts. Jun - Sept.	Laterite. Breakaways, sandstone hills	3a,3b, 4b, 5a	Weld Range, Wiluna West BIF Range, Jack Hills, Mt. Hale		2	





Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Indigofera gilesii subsp. gilesii (FABACEAE)	P3	Upright erect single stemmed shrub 1.5 m high. Bark dull, grey, fairly smooth. Leaflets grey-green above and below. Flowers purple/pink. Keel dull light red with white base and brown hairy tip. May-Aug.	Pebbly loams and hill slopes amongst boulders & outcrops	4a	Jinayri, Fortescue Botanical District, Hamersley Ranges, Mooloogool Homestead, Ophthalmia Range	Karinjini N. P., *	1	
Micromyrtus placoides (MYRTACEAE)	Р3	Rounded shrub 0.5 m - 2.5 m. Leaves broad obovate to almost circular, usually concentrated at the tips of branches. Flowers white, often reflexed on stalks July- Sept.	Brown loam, dolerite, ironstone or granite, outcrops above breakaways and steep slopes	1&2, 3a, 3b, 4b, 5a, 7b	Weld Range, Tallering Peak, Mt. Narryer and Cue		7	
Mirbelia ?stipitata (FABACEAE)	P3	Spiny shrub 0.5 - 1 m. Leafless, small brown bracts at the bases of the spinescent branchlets. Pink pea flowers borne along these spiny branchlets Aug	Red sandy loam	3b, 4a, 4b, 5a	Sandstone, Cue-Sandstone Road, Bandya Hstd.		5	





Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Phyllanthus baeckeoides (EUPHORBIACEAE)	Ρ3	Shrub 1-1.7 m high. Flowers small, white to cream. March Fruit green	Red lateritic & sandy clay soils. Granite outcrops	DEC record	Sandstone, Laverton, Leinster, Windimurra Station		0	Not available
Prostanthera ferricola (LAMIACEAE)	P3	Erect, openly branched shrub 0.3 - 1 m in. Densely hairy branches, leaves flat, green to pale green, often whorled around stem, strongly aromatic when crushed. Flowers purple/mauve, hairy July - Sept.	Red-brown skeletal sandy loam on BIF, laterite, basalt or quartz.	4a	Jack Hills, Wiluna West Range, Moolagool Stn.	*	1	
Prostanthera petrophila (LAMIACEAE)	P3	Spreading shrub 0.6 - 2 m. Young stems covered in white-grey hairs. Leaves opposite and elliptic. Flowers white with purple to violet striations August.	Lateritic soils.	1&2, 3a, 3b, 4a, 4b, 5a, 5b, 7a, 7b	Weld Range, Woolgorong Hstd., Mt. Barloweerie, Cue		21	





Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Ptilotus beardii (AMARANTHACEAE)	P3	Many-branched, rigid shrub 0.15- 0.5 m . Leaves often clustered along the stem, small, linear, acute. Flowers pale pink/red. Inflorescences terminal, open,spherical to cylindrical. Aug. – Oc.	Clayey soils. Saline flats, low breakaways	1&2, 3a, 3b, 4b, 5a, 6a	Weld Range, Muggon Stn., Crystal Hill, Mt Narryer Hstd.		5	
Ptilotus luteolus (AMARANTHACEAE)	P3	Low, spreading shrub 0.15 - 0.7 m. Stems yellow, leaves grey-yellow, oblong. Flowers lemon to greenish-yellow, bract bases often purplish; Inflorescence ovate - shortly cylindrical, MarOct.	Gravelly slopes down from Banded Ironstone outcrop	1&2, 3a, 4a, 4b	Thomas River, Neds Creek, Wiluna, Wiluna Murchison Roadhouse Mt. Magnet, Meekatharra		5	
Tecticornia cymbiformis (CHENOPODIACEAE)	P3	Low, erect shrub to 0.5 m. Fleshy stem is cylindrical, oval or circular in cross- section, dull green, or dull to bright red. Terminal, fertile tips have broad, boat shaped bracts with tips that flare outwards.	Saline areas along floodplains or creeklines	5a, 5b, 7a	Lake Aneen, Yuin Hstd., Polelle Stn		2	





Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Verticordia jamiesonii (Мүктасеае)	Ρ3	Small, irregularly branched, rounded shrub to 60 cm more commonly to 20 cm. Leaves very small, crowded on short, lateral branchlets. Flowers creamish-white turning to pink with maturity. Flower buds are shiny, pale to bright red. Sept- Oct.	Sandy clay soils. Lateritic breakaways	3b	Mt Hale, Noonie Hills, Cue, Yalgoo, Sth Warburton	* Class A Reserve 40787	1	
Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738) (MYRTACEAE)	P4	Upright shrub 2 - 2.5 m. Leaves terete, 3-5 mm, hooked at tip. Older stems retain persistent leaf bases creating a white corky-like scar. Flowers white/pale pink terminal; Sept. to Oct.	Dark red rocky soil over ironstone. Mulga shrubland	1&2, 3a, 3b, 4a, 4b	Scattered distribution bounded by Weld Range, Robinson Range, Wiluna and Leonora	Wanjarri N. R., Ida Valley – Mt Forrest Cons. Pk	6	
Goodenia berringbinensis (Goodeniaceae)	P4	Prostrate to ascending herb to 0.3 m. Basal leaves spoon-shaped to 6 cm, stem leaves to 3 cm long. Flowers yellow; Oct.	Red sandy loam. Along watercourses	5b	Noonie Hills, Killara Stn., Nallan Lake and Belele Stn.		2	





Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Locations During Current Survey	Photograph
Grevillea inconspicua (PROTEAE)	Ρ4	Intricately branched, untidy, spreading shrub 0.6 - 2 m. Leaves linear, deflexed, flat, silvery green with hardened tip. Flowers white to pink June- Aug.	Greenstonelo am gravel drainage lines, rocky outcrops, creeklines	3a, 3b, 4a, 5a	Weld Range, Sandstone, Cue, Wanjarie, Mt Magnet, Booylgoo Range	Wanjarri N. R.	9	





Taxon	Cons. Status	Characteristics	Habitat Preference (FloraBase)	Ecologia Vegetation Units in which Recorded	Distribution	Records in Cons. Estate	Number Location During Current Survey	Photograph
Hemigenia sp. nov. (aff. exilis) (LAMIACEAE)	-	Open spreading shrub to 1m. Branches divaricate, leaves mainly at tips of branchlets. Leaves opposite, linear- elliptic. Flowers pale mauve/white with pale purple markings, singly below the current season's leaves; Sept.	Mid - lower slopes, surface layer of stones, small boulders& gravel. Granite and dolerite.		Weld Range. Related to <i>Hemigenia</i> <i>exilis</i> which occurs Agnew - Sandstone – Leonora		3	Not available.
Acacia sp. nov. (aff. kochii) (MIMOSACEAE)	-	Low, multi-stemmed shrub to 1.25 m, often >1 m wide. Main branches smooth, charcoal grey, branchlets red ending with a spine.Phyllodes elliptic, 1-6 mm long, usually steely blue with needle sharp apex off- set from the mid vein. Inflorescence globular, bright yellow; Sept. Pod sausage shaped, red-brown, faint waxy blue glaze.	Foot slopes of dolerite hills, undulating plains.		Sth Madoonga Hstd., Wilgie Mia Reserve.	Wilgie Mia Reserve	2	

## Table 5-5 – Characteristics of Taxa of Potential Conservation Significance Recorded at Weld Range

\* = Indicates species with records at the DEC owned Doolgunna, Mooloogool or Woolgorong Stations.



#### 5.5 RANGE EXTENSIONS

Based on records lodged at the Western Australian Herbarium (2010), there are a seventeen range extensions of greater than 150 km of common and Priority taxa occurring within the Study Area, as detailed in Table 5-6. These range extensions are likely to be a reflection of two factors:

- the sporadic history of collection in the vicinity of the Study Area, resulting in an incomplete knowledge of the distributions of many taxa; and in at some instances; and
- specific requirements of some taxa for habitats which are genuinely restricted in the bioregion, resulting in restricted or disjunct distribution.

# Table 5-6 – Taxa for which the Weld Range Records Represent an Extension of Known Distribution.

Taxon	Conserv. Status	Extent of Range Extension				
Indigofera gilesii subsp. gilesii	Р3	Approximately 150 km south west of the closest collection record at Glengarry Range ( 5 miles SE of Mooloogool Homestead).				
Phyllanthus baeckeoides	Р3	Approximately 170 km from the closest collection record to northwest at Windimurra Station and more than 400 km to the southeast at Laverton, Leinster.				
Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94)	P1	Approximately 200 km east of the closest collection record at Woolgorong Station.				
Beyeria lapidicola	P1	Approximately 200 km west of the closest collection record at Lakeway Station (30 km southwest of Wiluna)				
Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	P1	Approximately 150 km south west from the closest collection record at Mt. Padbury Station, Robinson Range				
Goodenia lyrata	P1	More than 400 km from the closest collections to northeast near Newman and to southeast near Laverton.				
Stenanthemum patens	P1	Approximately 230 km from the closest collections to southeast at Windimurra Homestead. 80.7 km SE of Mount Magnet				
Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94)	P1	Approximately 200 km from the closest collection record at Woolgorong				
Trichodesma zeylanicum var. zeylanicum	None	Approximately 300 km north-east from the closest collection record at Jeffries Rocks (east of Galena) (Geraldton Sandplains region).				
Amyema maidenii	None	Approximately 210 km south-east from the closest collection record at Gascoyne River (Gascoyne region).				
Sclerolaena uniflora	None	Approximately 350 km north-east from the closest collection record at Three Springs (Avon Wheatbelt region).				
Eucalyptus socialis subsp. eucentrica	None	Approximately 260 km south-west from the closest collection record at Gascoyne River (Gascoyne region).				
Eriachne lanata	None	Approximately 430 km south-west from the closest collection record at Hamersley Ranges (Pilbara region).				
Triodia schinzii	None	Approximately 170 km north north-west from the closest collection record at Cashmere Downs Station (Murchison region).				



Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Taxon	Conserv. Status	Extent of Range Extension				
Micromyrtus racemosa var. racemosa	None	Approximately 280 km from the closest collection record at White Well (Murchison region).				
Drosera macrantha subsp. eremaea	None	Approximately 155 km north from the closest collection record at Mount Magnet (Murchison region).				
Abutilon leucopetalum	None	Approximately 280 km south-west from the closest collection record at the Hamersley Ranges (Pilbara region).				

## 5.6 INTRODUCED FLORA SPECIES

The Australian Weed Strategy (2007) defines a weed as "a plant which has, or has the potential to have, a detrimental effect on economic, social or conservation values". Weeds that have proliferated in bushland without direct human intervention or assistance are also referred to as naturalized alien species.

## 5.6.1 Weeds of National Significance

At a national level there are twenty weed species listed as Weeds of National Significance (WONS). *The Commonwealth National Weeds Strategy: A Strategic Approach to Weed Problems of National Significance* describes broad goals and objectives to manage these species. There were no weed species listed as WONS recorded within the Study Area

#### 5.6.2 Declared Plants

Weeds that are, or have the potential to become, a threat to agriculture may be formally declared under the *Agriculture and Related Resources Protection Act 1976* (*ARRP Act*). Declared Plants under this Act are listed with Standard Control Codes that outline the requirements for control. Five Priority groupings exist (P1, P2, P3, P4 or P5), and more than one Priority may be placed on a weed species. Weeds may also be prioritised differently in different agricultural regions. Eighty three Declared Plants are listed as occurring in the Murchison region of Western Australia under the ARRP Act. Landholders having declared weeds on their property are obliged to control them at their own expense, and are encouraged to follow the Standard Control Codes. Details of these codes are included in Appendix M. Information regarding the current status of Declared Plants is listed at the Department of Agriculture and Food website:

#### http://agspsrv95.agric.wa.gov.au/dps/version02/01 plantsearch.asp.

No Declared Plants (weeds) were recorded during the Weld Range survey.

## 5.6.3 Environmental Weeds within the Study Area

Currently, 106 weed species are known to occur in the Murchison region of Western Australia (Western Australian Herbarium, October 2009). Six environmental weed species were recorded during the Weld Range survey: \**Anagallis arvensis;* \**Cenchrus ciliaris;* \**Cuscuta epithymum;* \**Portulaca oleracea;* \**Solanum nigrum;* and \**Sonchus oleraceus.* 

These weed species have a scattered distribution on the plains within the Study Area, generally at low abundance, recorded either as "less than 10 plants" or as percentaage cover of 2-10%. Brief descriptions of each weed species are provided below.





\*Anagallis arvensis (PRIMULACEAE) (Pimpernell) is a decumbent annual herb growing to 40 cm in height. Flower colour varies from cream to scarlet and they are produced between February and December. This species is commonly recorded on disturbed areas from the Shark Bay to Esperance and inland areas between (Hussey et al, 2007; Western Australian Herbarium, 2009).

\*Cenchrus ciliaris (POACEAE) (Buffel grass) is a tufted, perennial grass growing to 1 m in height. It was widely planted in pastoral regions as a pasture grass, and has since become a widespread weed of roadsides, creeklines, river edges and most vegetation types from Shark Bay to the Pilbara and adjacent desert (Hussey et al, 2007; Western Australian Herbarium, 2009).

\**Cuscuta epithymum* (CUSCUTACEAE) (Lesser Dodder) is a twining, annual, parasitic herb or climber (no image available). White flowers occur in small clusters and are produced from August to December. This species often occurs in sandy soils over limestone or granite, from Kalbarri to Busselton (Hussey et al., 2007; Western Australian Herbarium, 2009).

\*Portulaca oleracea (PORTULACACEAE) (Pigweed or Purslane) is a prostrate, succulent annual herb that grows up to 0.2 m in height. The leaves are shiny and spoon-shaped, and yellow flowers are produced from April to May. The entire plant becomes reddish in colour when subjected to water stress. This common and widespread species grows in clay loam and sand, often inhabiting disturbed sites. It is considered a native in the majority of Western Australia, however is probably introduced to the south-west (Hussey et al., 2007; Western Australian Herbarium, 2009).

\*Solanum nigrum (SOLANACEAE) (Black berry nightshade) is an erect perennial/annual herb or shrub reaching 1 m in height. It has broad, alternate concolorous leaves. It produces white flowers between April and October and dull black to purple globular berries. This species is thought to be native to central and southern Europe. It is recorded in all Australian states in disturbed woodlands, drainage areas and regions of high rainfall (Hussey et al., 2007; Western Australian Herbarium, 2009).

\*Sonchus oleraceus (ASTERACEAE) (Common Sowthistle) is an erect annual or short-lived perennial herb that grows up to 1.5 m in height. The generally flaccid leaves are slightly prickly or not prickly at all. Yellow flowers are produced from January to December. This species is native to Eurasia and North Africa, and is widespread on roadsides, gardens, market gardens and wasteland in all parts of Western Australia (Hussey et al., 2007; Western Australian Herbarium, 2009).





# 6 CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of the flora of the project area has been assessed at four spatial scales; national, State, regional and local.

National significance refers to those features of the environment which are recognised under legislation as being of importance to the Australian community. Flora species and TECs listed under the *EPBC Act* are regarded as nationally significant.

State significance refers to those features of the environment that are recognised under State legislation as being of importance to the Western Australian community, in particular, species scheduled / listed as rare flora under the *WC Act*.

Regional significance addresses the representation of species and habitats at a biogeographic regional level. Species or habitat types that are endemic to the Murchison bioregion and whose distributions are limited or unknown are considered regionally significant.

Vegetation and flora species are of local significance when their presence is confined to a specialised habitat that is uncommon in the local area and whose disturbance or removal may lead to localised extinction.

#### 6.1 CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE OF VEGETATION WITHIN THE STUDY AREA

## 6.1.1 Vegetation of National Significance

No vegetation communities recognised under the EPBC Act were recorded in the Study Area

#### 6.1.2 Vegetation of State Significance

The Priority 1 State-listed PEC "Weld Range vegetation complexes (Banded Ironstone Formations)" occurs in the Study Area. Although not protected by current State legislation, the vegetation within these boundaries is potentially is of State significance. The criteria for a Priority 1 listing is;

"Ecological communities with apparently few, small occurrences, all or most not actively managed for conservation (e.g. within agricultural or pastoral lands, urban areas, active mineral leases) and for which current threats exist. Communities may be included if they are comparatively well-known from one or more localities but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements, and/or are not well defined, and appear to be under immediate threat from known threatening processes across their range."

The total area of each community type mapped by ecologia which lies within the PEC is detailed in Table 6.1. As not all of the area within the PEC lies within the study area, the total area of each community type within the PEC could not be accuratately determined. An estimate of the area has been made, based on the assumption that the proportion of each community type that occurs in the areas mapped by ecologia is identical in those areas outside the study area. This assumption is likely to be less correct for types more typical of the surrounding plains, since the majority of the PEC occurs on the BIF ridgeline. Eighty percent of the area within the Study Area of Community types 1 and 2 lies within the PEC and on this basis these community types are considered of conservation significance.

Some of the communities occurring within the PEC, particularly on the lower slopes and adjacent plains, are not uncommon within the broader area and hence may not meet the Priority 1 criteria.





Integration of vegetation mapping of the BIF ranges and surrounding plains throughout the Murchison region is required to further define and evaluate the regional significance of the ecological communities present within the PEC.

Mapped Vegetation Community	Total Area Withn Study Area (ha)	Area Study Area Within PEC (ha)	Proportio n of Study Area Within PEC (%)	*Estimate d Area Within PEC (ha)
1 and 2: Acacia aneura low woodland over mixed open shrubs	1695	1360	80.2	1821
<b>3a:</b> +/- <i>Corymbia lenziana</i> scattered medium trees over <i>Acacia. ramulosa</i> var. <i>linophylla</i> and <i>A. aneura</i> sparse tall shrubland over mixed <i>Eremophila</i> spp. open mid shrubland over scattered low shrubs of <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> over mixed open tussock grassland.	16779	462	2.8	4042
<b>3b:</b> +/- Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over A. aneura woodland over A. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. closed shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.	8085	666	8.2	2947
<b>3c:</b> Scattered <i>Eucalyptus</i> mallees / trees over <i>Acacia ramulosa</i> var. <i>linophylla</i> open shrubland over <i>Rhagodia eremaea, Eremophila forrestii</i> subsp. <i>forrestii</i> shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> open low shrubland.	1624	0	0.0	24
<b>3d:</b> Acacia aneura and A. cockertoniana open moderate shrubland over Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans and Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low open shrubland.	476	0	0.0	0
4a: Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. aneura var. microcarpa open tall shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and mixed Senna spp. open mid shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.	8412	3225	38.3	8260
4b: Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. speckii (P3) shrubland over mixed Senna spp. sparse shrubland over Grevillea inconspicua (P4) and Dodonaea amplisemina (P3) open shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus sparse tussock grassland.	952	473	49.7	879
<b>5a:</b> Acacia craspedocarpa open tall shrubland over Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum and Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland over mixed low tussock grassland.	9324	461	4.9	1894
<b>5b:</b> +/- Grevillea striata low isolated trees over Acacia craspedocarpa and A. aneura tall open shrubland over Scaevola spinescens sparse mid shrubland over Austrostipa elegantissima and Eriachne flaccida low open tussock grassland.	56	0	0.0	0
<b>6a:</b> Scattered <i>Acacia</i> spp. shrubs over mixed <i>Senna</i> spp. open mid shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> sparse shrubland over mixed <i>Maireana</i> spp. chenopod shrubland.	1014	24	2.3	440
<b>6b:</b> Scattered mixed Acacia spp. over Rhagodia eremaea and Scaevola spinescens sparse mid to low shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georgei and Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland.	2430	1	0.0	1
<b>6c:</b> Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia low open shrubland over Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland over Enneapogon cylindricus low tussock grassland.	37	0	0.0	0
<b>7a:</b> Melaleuca stereophloia and Cratystylis subspinescens low shrubland over <i>Tecticornia</i> spp. low samphire shrubland over <i>Frankenia laxiflora</i> low shrubland.	635	0	0.0	1
<b>7b:</b> Eucalyptus carnei and E. trivalva woodland over Cratystylis subspinescens and Muehlenbeckia florulenta low sparse shrubland over	14	0	0.0	0

# Table 6.1 – Proportion Of Each Vegetation Type Mapped By Ecologia Within The Study Area



mixed low tussock grasses.

## 6.1.2.1 Vegetation of Regional Significance

Regional conservation significance of the vegetation of the Weld Range has been assessed based upon three sources of information: land systems of the survey area, Beard's vegetation mapping of the Murchison and the DEC's surveys of BIF ranges of the Yilgarn Craton.

## 6.1.2.2 Land Systems Mapping Analysis

Sixteen land systems are represented within the Weld Range Study Area (Curry *et al*, 1994). The area of each land system in WA and the Murchison River Catchment Area are detailed (the Murchison) in Table 6-2. Eleven of the 16 land systems occur within two of SMC's infrastructure footprint options and 12 in the third.

Two land systems occurring within the Study Area are considered of potential conservation significance on the basis of being highly restricted in absolute area (<1% of the total Murchison) and either wholly or largely confined to the Murchison: the Breberle and Weld.

The Breberle land system (11,482 ha) is almost complety confined to the Murchison (97%) with a scattered distribution, the majority of which occurs much further to the west. It occurs in level saline drainage plains adjacent to ephermeral lakes, claypans and areas of swampy drainage with sandy margins. It supports tall acacia chrublands and other fringing shrublands gradating to perennial grasses and halophytes with increasing salinity. Only 4% of transects assessed in the Murchison Catchment Area Rangeland survey were in good condition, with 55% assessed as in poor condition.

This unit is not present within the footprint options for the Project.

The Weld land system (37,235 ha) is wholly confined to the Murchison, almost exclusively at Jack Hills and Weld Range. It occurs on rugged ranges and ridges and supports acacia shrublands. The majority of areas assessing the Murchison Rangeland survey were in good (59%) or fair (36%) condition, attributed to the lack of accessibility of the vegetation to stock.

Approximately 3% of the entire occurrence of the Weld land system occurs within the footprint options for the Project.

Land System Total Area in WA (ha)		Total Area in the Murchison* (ha)	% Total Area in WA Within Murchison*	% Total Area of Murchison*	% in Good Condition
Breberle	11,482	11,188	97	0.13	4
Cunyu	329,933	290,394	88	1.26	12
Gabanintha	251,455	165,109	66	1.12	22
Jundee	660,224	585,378	89	1.57	16
Kalli	1,115,901	853,590	76	7.10	40
Koonmarra	569,874	543,173	95	6.21	10
Mileura	261,223	206,496	79	1.17	31
Norie	211,177	157,182	74	1.54	31
	/=				
Sherwood	1,579,691	1,505,851	95	5.63	25

#### Table 6-2: Land Systems of the Weld Range Study Area.



Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Land System	Total Area in WA (ha)	Total Area in the Murchison* (ha)	% Total Area in WA Within Murchison*	% Total Area of Murchison*	% in Good Condition
Violet	584,096	546,126	93	1.26	25
Waguin	317,146	245,497	77	6	22
Weld	37,235	37,235	100	0.41	59
Wiluna	258,978	252,598	98	1.51	25
Yandil	494,525	465,955	94	3.96	8
Yanganoo	2,019,907	1,967,111	97	14.48	20
Yarrameedie	68,324	44,169	65	0.60	22

\* Murchison defined as the Murchison River Catchment, and area of 88,360 km2 extending from the Innouendy and Mt Gould stations in the north, to Bullardoo and Wondinong in the south and to Pollele and Muggon in the east and west respectively (Curry *et al*, 1994)



Indicates land systems whitch occur with the proposed footprint options of the Project.

## 6.1.2.3 Beard Mapping Analysis

The survey area lies within the Austin Botanical District of Beard's Murchison Region. At a scale of 1:1000000 Beard (1976) mapped seven communities within the Weld Range project area (Figure 4.1). The total area of these units mapped in WA and within the Murchison bioregions is detailed in Table 6-3. Their level of significance based on total extent and degree of regional endemism is as follows:

• Unit; a<sub>1</sub><sup>17</sup> Li, *Acacia aneura* and *Acacia grasby*i low woodland, is both highly restricted, with a total area in WA of only 3,255 ha, and wholly confined to the Murchison bioregion. It is considered of high regional conservation significance due to its restricted area and regional endemism. A single polygon of this unit has been mapped at the eastern boundary of the Study Area (Figure 4.1), outside the proposed areas of any of the proposed footprints.

During the current survey, this area was mapped as Community 4; *Acacia* sp. Weld Range shrubland over mixed open shrubs. *Acacia grasbyi* did not occur as a dominant species in any community types described in the current survey howevr *Acacia aneura* is a dominant species in the upper strata of Community 4.

• Unit; a<sub>1</sub><sup>9</sup>Li, Acacia aneura, Acacia ramulosa and Acacia linophylla (now Acacia ramulosa var. *linophylla*) low woodland is also relatively restricted (total area of occurrence 94,031 ha) but is not confined to the Murchison bioregion (54%). Due to the relatively small area, both within WA and the Murchison, this unit is regarded as of moderate regional significance. A single polygon of this unit occurs within the Study Area to the north of the Weld Range and portions of it are encompassed in each of the footprint options.

Within the current survey Community 3: *Acacia* spp. shrubland over open mixed shrub species and tussock grasses was mapped in areas corresponding to this unit, predominantly as subcommunities 3a and 3b, both of which have Acacia *aneura* and *A. ramulosa* var. *linophylla* as dominants in the upper strata.



Two other Beard units present within the Study Area are largely confined to the Murchison bioregion but occur across larger areas. These units are considered of some regional significance given their high degree of endemism, but are likely to be less threatened given their broader occurrence:

• Unit a<sub>1</sub><sup>8</sup>Srk<sub>1</sub><sup>2</sup>Ci, *Acacia aneura* and *Acacia sclerosperma* lightly wooded succulent steppe, with *Atriplex* (saltbush) and *Maireana* (bluebush) species. A total of 199,534 ha is mapped across WA, 93% of which is broadly distributed across the Murchison bioregion. Two polygons of this unit are mapped within the Study Area however only a small proportion lies within the footprint options.

The areas in which this unit occurs within the Study Area were primarily mapped as Community 6, Mixed open chenopod shrubland; and Community 7, Halophytic shrubland. *Acacia sclerosperma* was not dominant in either of these communities in the current survey, but is a widely distributed species in the Study Area. T

• Unit a<sub>1</sub><sup>14</sup>Si, *Acacia aneura* and *Acacia quadrimarginea* scrub. A total of 448,700 ha is mapped across WA, 78% of which is widely distributed within the Murchison bioregion. The tendency of this unit to occur on stony ridges means that it is more likely to occur in area of mineral exploration. Two polygons of this unit occur along the stony ridges and footslopes to the south of the ridgline, partially overlapping with areas of proposed pits and dumps.

The areas in which this unit occurs within the Study Area were primarily mapped as Community 1, *Acacia aneura* low woodland over mixed open shrubs; and Community 4, *Acacia* sp. Weld Range shrubland over mixed open shrubs. *Acacia quadrimarginea* was not identified from any of the specimens collected during the surveys. However, *Acacia* sp. Weld Range, a recently identified taxon that is morphologically similar to *A. quadrimarginea* is dominant within Community 4.

No other Beard units mapped within the Study Area are considered of regional conservation significance given the much larger areas they encompass and their broader distribution across multiple bioregions.

Vegetation Unit Code	Vegetation Description	Total Area of Unit in WA (ha)	Area of Unit in the Murchison (ha)	% Within Murchison
a 1 <sup>17</sup> Li	<i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>Acacia grasbyi</i> low woodland.	3255	3255	100
a 1 <sup>9</sup> Li	Acacia aneura, Acacia ramulosa and Acacia linophylla (now Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla) low woodland.	94,031	50,965	54
$a_1^8$ Srk $1^2$ Ci	Acacia aneura and Acacia sclerosperma lightly wooded succulent steppe, with Atriplex (saltbush) and Maireana (bluebush) species.	199,534	185,622	93
a 1 <sup>14</sup> Si	<i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>Acacia quadrimarginea</i> scrub.	448,700	339,907	76
a <sub>1</sub> Li	Acacia aneura low woodland.	24,751,239	12,452,151	50
a 1 Si	Acacia aneura (mulga) scrub.	6,666,951	1,149,610	17

# Table 6-3: Beard Vegetation Units Within the Weld Range Study Area.



Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

a 9 Si	Acacia ramulosa and Acacia linophylla (now Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla) scrub.	1,331,779	390,207	29

## 6.1.2.4 Vegetation of the BIF Ranges of the Yilgarn Craton

Since 2005 the DEC has conducted more than 20 botanical surveys of the BIF ranges of the Yilgarn Craton. The characteristics of vegetation described at 11 of the BIF ranges surveyed by the DEC are summarised in Table 6-4. These 11 ranges are located to the north of Mount Magnet. The vegetation described at ranges south of Mount Magnet tends to diverge increasingly and has been excluded from these comparisons.

When comparing the characteristics of communities, it is important to remember that the studies by the DEC were restricted to the BIF ranges themselves and unlike the current survey did not include significant areas of adjacent plains. Combined multivariate analysis of the 52 DEC Weld quadrats and the 259 ecologia Weld quadrats (the latter including surrounding plains) resulted in a shift in community groupings for the DEC data. Nevertheless the DEC data provides a means of comparing the composition of the BIF Range vegetation communities at a much finer scale regionally. The vegetation descriptions present at each point on the Ranges (e.g. crest, midslope, rocky outcrop, lower slope) are summarised in Appendix N. There are some limitations to this classification, as there is variation between the landforms present at each range, and some variation in the methods of describing vegetation communities in different surveys.

The DEC reported that the *Triodia melvillei* communities present at Jack Hills, Robinson Range and Mount Gould are restricted and of conservation significance. Communities including *T. melvillei* also occur at Joyners Find Hills (Community 2) and Lee Steere Range (Community 4) but have not been described as restricted communities. Isolated populations of *T. melvillei* have been located by *ecologia* at Weld Range – a very small population on a low hill of the Range and a few populations on the sandy flats to the north of the Range. There has been anecdotal evidence that more populations of this spinifex occur in the northern areas, however, *ecologia* has also collected *Triodia schinzii* from the flats to the north of the Range.

It appears that *T. melvillei* is at the southern boundary of its distribution on these more northern BIF ranges of the Yilgarn Craton. FloraBase records (October, 2009) indicate that *T. melvillei* has been recorded further south of these four ranges and further survey work might reveal more populations on other high ranges to the south of Weld Range. During a recent survey of SMC's tenements at Jack Hills (ecologia, 2010j) many large populations of *T. melvillei* were located in areas away from Mounts Hale and Matthew and on non-BIF hills. Small, isolated populations of *T. melvillei* were also located at Robinson Range in lower lying areas than the populations recorded on Mount Fraser. In summary it appears that there is further regional comparison of these communities necessary to determine the regional significance of the *T. melvillei* communities.

Three of the 11 ranges listed in the table (Weld Range, Jack Hills and Robinson Ranges with Mount Gould), are thought to have communities endemic to the range (Table 6-4). Two of these ranges; Jack Hills and Robinson Ranges / Mount Gould, have communities thought to be restricted within that range (Government of Western Australia, 2007).





Table 6-4 – Comparison of Vegetation Communities Described by DEC at BIF Ranges North of
Mt. Magnet.

Banded Ironstone Formation (BIF)	Number of Communities	Community Endemic to Range?	Restricted Distribution within Range?	Source
Weld Range	8	Yes	No	Markey & Dillon, 2008
Jack Hills	6	Yes	Yes	Meissner & Caruso, DRAFT 2008
Robinson Ranges and Mount Gould	7	Yes	Yes	Meissner <i>et al.,</i> DRAFT 2007
Western Narryer Terrane	4	No	No	Meissner & Owen, Draft 2008
Barloweerie and Twin Peaks Greenstone Belts	3	No?	No	Meissner & Wright, DRAFT 2008a
Montague Range Zone of Gum Creek Greenstone Belt	6	No	No	Thompson & Sheehy, Draft 2009a
Lake Mason Zone of Gum Creek Greenstone Belt	6	No	No	Thompson & Sheehy, Draft 2009b
Joyners Find Hills	6	No	No	Markey & Dillon, Draft 2007a
Lee Steere Range	5	No	No	Thompson & Sheehy, Draft 2009c
Perseverence Greenstone Belt	4	No	No	Meissner & Wright, Draft 2009b
Booylgoo Range	6	Possibly	No	Markey & Dillon, Draft 2007b

Jack Hills is approximately 100 km north, Robinson Range approximately 150 km north-east and Mount Gould approximately 130 km north-west of Weld Range. The vegetation communities described by the DEC at these ranges have some structural similarities with those described at Weld Range but tend to differ in species composition, as described below.

ecologia mapped the flat plains of Weld Range as dominated by Community 3, broadly described as *Acacia* spp. shrubland over mixed shrub species and tussock grasses. The dominant *Acacia* species was *Acacia* ramulosa var. *linophylla* and the dominant shrub species was *Eremophila* forrestii subsp. forrestii. At Jack Hills the DEC described a fairly species poor community of open woodlands of *A. aneura* cf. var. *aneura* over shrublands of *Eremophila* species dominated by *Eremophila* macmillaniana is described as occurring on outwash plains. No similar community is described by the DEC at Robinson Range/Mount Gould.

*ecologia's* Community 4 appears to be unique to Weld Range when compared with the vegetation of Jack Hills and Robinson Ranges and Mount Gould. The dominant species in this community are *Acacia* sp. Weld Range and *Acacia speckii* (Priority 3) over *Eremophila macmillaniana* shrubs. No similar community has been described on any other range surveyed. Community 4 was recorded predominantly on dolerite substrates across the Weld Range.

The communities occurring on the BIF ridges at Weld Range were dominated by Acacia aneura species woodlands and shrublands, along with Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. cockertoniana and





Acacia sp. Weld Range tall shrubs and *Eremophila* spp. lower shrubs (Communities 1 and 2 and associated sub-communities). Similar ridges at Jack Hills were dominated by Acacia species not recorded at Weld Range such as Acacia citrinoviridis and A. sp. Jack Hills with *Eremophila* margarethae as the dominant lower shrub species.

The communities recorded by DEC on BIF ridges at Robinson Range and Mount Gould were also dominated by *Acacia aneura* varieties with *A. citrinoviridis* and resemble the vegetation communities recorded by the DEC at Jack Hills rather than those at Weld Range.

Those communities located on the flat saline plains of Weld Range (Communities 5, 6 and 7) were not recorded at Jack Hills or Robinson Range and Mount Gould. However, the majority of the DEC's survey sites at Jack Hills, Robinson Range and Mount Gould were located on BIF ridges and associated landforms. Similar communities may exist in these habitats at these ranges beyond the area of survey.

In summary the regional comparison suggests that Community Types 1, 2 and 4 described in the current survey, although locally widespread, may be endemic to the Weld Range and hence of regional significance.

# 6.1.3 Vegetation of Local Significance.

Table 6-5 details the total area of each community type mapped by *ecologia* within the Study Area. Several community types; 3d, 5b, 6c and 7b, each account for less the 1% of the total area. Community 1 and 2 is a composite of four subtypes which could not be discriminated in aerial photography and hence could not be individually mapped despite segregating as distinct subtypes during multivariate analysis. Since the total area of the composite is 3.29%, it is likely that at least some of the subtypes also encompass less than 1% of the Study Area. These community subtypes are potentially of local significance if species are confined to them and hence are likely to become locally scarce if they are destroyed. Communities 1 and 2, 4b, 6a, 7a and 7b are all locally restricted and support species that appear largely or wholly locally restricted in distribution. Communities 1 and 2 and 4b in particular support Priority taxa that are restricted to this habitat.





# Table 6-5 – Area of Community Types Mapped in the Study Area

Vegetation Community	Area Mapped in Study Area (ha)	% of Stud y Area	Species with > 80% Records Locally Restricted To Community Type
1 and 2: Acacia aneura low woodland over mixed open shrubs	1695	3.29	Acacia coolgardiensis subsp. effuse, Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila compacta subsp. fecunda, Hakea recurva subsp. arida, <b>Micromyrtus placoides</b> , Micromyrtus sulphurea, Olearia plucheacea, Olearia stuartii, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Stenanthemum petraeum, Thryptomene decussata
<b>3a:</b> +/- Corymbia lenziana scattered medium trees over Acacia. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura sparse tall shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. open mid shrubland over scattered low shrubs of Ptilotus obovatus over mixed open tussock grassland.	16779	32.56	No species
<b>3b:</b> +/- Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over A. aneura woodland over A. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. closed shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.	8085	15.69	Acacia cuthbertsonii subsp. cuthbertsonii, Sida fibulifera, Sida sp. Golden calyces pubescent (G.J. Leach 1966)
<b>3c:</b> Scattered <i>Eucalyptus</i> mallees / trees over <i>Acacia ramulosa</i> var. <i>linophylla</i> open shrubland over <i>Rhagodia eremaea, Eremophila forrestii</i> subsp. <i>forrestii</i> shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> open low shrubland.	1624	3.15	Corymbia lenziana, Eucalyptus socialis subsp. eucentrica
<b>3d:</b> Acacia aneura and A. cockertoniana open moderate shrubland over Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans and Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low open shrubland.	476	0.92	No species
<b>4a:</b> Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. aneura var. microcarpa open tall shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and mixed Senna spp. open mid shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.	8412	16.32	Ptilotus luteolus
<b>4b:</b> Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. speckii <b>(P3)</b> shrubland over mixed Senna spp. sparse shrubland over Grevillea inconspicua <b>(P4)</b> and Dodonaea amplisemina <b>(P3)</b> open shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus sparse tussock grassland.	952	1.85	Chorizema genistoides, <b>Stenanthemum patens</b>
<b>5a:</b> Acacia craspedocarpa open tall shrubland over Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum and Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland over mixed low tussock grassland.	9324	18.09	Eragrostis australasica, Eucalyptus lucasii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. filiformis, Eremophila galeata





Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Vegetation Community	Area Mapped in Study Area (ha)	% of Stud Y Area	Species with > 80% Records Locally Restricted To Community Type
<b>5b:</b> +/- <i>Grevillea striata</i> low isolated trees over <i>Acacia craspedocarpa</i> and <i>A. aneura</i> tall open shrubland over <i>Scaevola spinescens</i> sparse mid shrubland over <i>Austrostipa elegantissima</i> and <i>Eriachne flaccida</i> low open tussock grassland.	56	0.11	No species
<b>6a:</b> Scattered Acacia spp. shrubs over mixed Senna spp. open mid shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus sparse shrubland over mixed Maireana spp. chenopod shrubland.	1014	1.97	Maireana carnosa, Maireana thesioides
<b>6b:</b> Scattered mixed Acacia spp. over Rhagodia eremaea and Scaevola spinescens sparse mid to low shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georgei</i> and <i>Sclerolaena diacantha</i> low chenopod shrubland.	2430	4.72	Eucalyptus striaticalyx subsp. striaticalyx, Exocarpos aphyllus
<b>6c:</b> Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia low open shrubland over Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland over Enneapogon cylindricus low tussock grassland.	37	0.07	No species
<b>7a:</b> <i>Melaleuca stereophloia</i> and <i>Cratystylis subspinescens</i> low shrubland over <i>Tecticornia</i> spp. low samphire shrubland over <i>Frankenia laxiflora</i> low shrubland.	635	1.23	Atriplex bunburyana, Atriplex nummularia, Atriplex vesicaria, Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra, Eremophila pantonii, Frankenia laxiflora, Halosarcia doleiformis, Halosarcia indica subsp. leiostachya, Muehlenbeckia florulenta
<b>7b:</b> Eucalyptus carnei and E. trivalva woodland over Cratystylis subspinescens and Muehlenbeckia florulenta low sparse shrubland over mixed low tussock grasses.	14	0.03	Halosarcia indica subsp. leiostachya
Total	51533	100.0	

Species in **bold** are Priority listed.



#### 6.2 CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE OF FLORA WITHIN THE STUDY AREA

#### 6.2.1 Flora of National Significance.

No taxa listed under the *EPBC Act* and hence of national significance have been recorded within the Study Area.

#### 6.2.2 Flora of State Significance.

No taxa listed under the as Declared Rare Flora have been recorded within the Study Area. Twenty five Priority Flora taxa were recorded by *ecologia* during the current survey within the Study Area. An additional two Priority taxa were recorded in the Study Area by other sources as detailed in Table 5-3, making a total of 27 conservation significant flora taxa recorded in the Study Area.

The total abundance of each species was estimated by examining the collections notes of records from the DEC, combined with the data from surveys by *ecologia* for which accurate plant counts were available. DEC records vary considerably in the amount of detail available, ranging from accurate counts; to broad abundance descriptions; to no detail. Where multiple records at the same location were available, the highest numeric estimate was applied. Where descriptions of abundance only were available, numbers were inferred according to the assumptions detailed in Table 6-6. Where no estimate of abundance was available, it was assumed only one plant was present. The latter assumption is likely to be an underestimate in many instances, and hence the final estimates of total abundance of each species are likely to be very conservative.

The number of plants present at each location was counted during the ecologia transect-based surveys, however in most instances estimates of percentage cover only were available for collections from quadrats. The number of plants assumed from these cover estimates is detailed below.

Abundance Description or Percentage Cover	No. of Plants Assumed
no indication	1
very rare	1
several	3
infrequent, uncommon, scarce, one small group, a few scattered	5
occasional, moderately common, locally frequent, very localised	10
common here, locally common, locally frequent, locally abundant	20
frequent, common, plentiful, abundant, dominant	50
>2% cover	5
2-10% cover	10
10-30% cover	20

Table 6-6 – Number of Plants Assumed for Records Where Only Descriptions or % Cover Available





Table 6-7 summarises the known distribution and abundance of these species from all sources, including DEC records. The numbers of loci (clusters of plants separated by more than 500m from each other) are detailed. It can be seen that that the records within the Study Area represent more than 50% of all locations recorded to date for 8 species, and more than 50% of all known plants for 12 species. However it is likely that proportion of both locations and abundance within the Study Area is likely to have been significantly overestimated due to the much greater intensity of searching for these taxa which has occurred during threatened flora transects. The numbers of plants outside the survey area is also likely to have been underestimated because many previous records lack any detail of abundance, and hence a single plant has been recorded at these locations.

Rank	Species	Total No. <sup>*</sup> Loci	Estimate of Total No. Plants	No. *Loci Recorded Within the Study Area	% All <sup>\$</sup> Loci Within Study Area	No Plants Recorded Within Study Area	% All Estimated Plants Within Study Area
P1	Beyeria lapidicola	12	80	8	66.7	53	66.3
P1	Eremophila rhegos	3	58	1	33.3	3	5.2
P1	Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	4	12	1	25.0	1	8.3
P1	Goodenia lyrata	10	35	3	30.0	20	57.1
P1	Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94)	10	61	8	80.0	50	82.0
P1	Stenanthemum patens	8	186	3	37.5	34	18.3
Р3	Acacia burrowsiana	14	4354	1	7.1	9	0.2
Р3	Acacia speckii	97	1098	81	83.5	853	77.7
Р3	Calytrix erosipetala	35	2053	1	2.9	20	1.0
Р3	Dodonaea amplisemina	67	790	47	70.1	603	76.3
Р3	Eremophila arachnoides Chinnock subsp. arachnoides	11	205	2	18.2	30	14.6
Р3	Grevillea stenostachya	91	971	66	72.5	918	94.5
P3	Hemigenia tysonii	80	6616	67	83.8	6374	96.3
Р3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	30	1050	12	40.0	845	80.5
P3	Micromyrtus placoides	45	2160	43	95.6	2126	98.4
Р3	Mirbelia ?stipitata	4	7	1	25.0	5	71.4
Р3	Phyllanthus baeckeoides	15	1309	1	6.7	5	0.4
Р3	Prostanthera ferricola	14	672	1	7.1	14	2.1
Р3	Prostanthera petrophila	95	2141	83	87.4	2084	97.3
Р3	Ptilotus beardii	38	2804	11	28.9	1906	68.0

## Table 6-7 – Conservation Significant Flora Recorded Within the Study Area (All Data Sources)





Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Rank	< Species		Estimate of Total No. Plants	No. <sup>*</sup> Loci Recorded Within the Study Area	% All <sup>\$</sup> Loci Within Study Area	No Plants Recorded Within Study Area	% All Estimated Plants Within Study Area
Р3	Ptilotus luteolus	15	533	5	33.3	68	12.8
P3	Tecticornia cymbiformis	7	69	1	14.3	14	20.3
Р3	Verticordia jamiesonii	22	483	1	4.5	1	0.2
P4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	57	2626	14	24.6	666	25.4
P4	Goodenia berringbinensis	18	33546	1	5.6	30	0.1
P4	Grevillea inconspicua	62	2320	16	25.8	264	11.4



Taxa with greate than 50% of loci within the study area

Taxa with greate than 50% of estimated plants within the study area





This page has been left blank intentionally.





# 7 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS OF THE PROJECT

Impacts associated with construction may include:

- Clearing of vegetation leading to loss or fragmentation of habitats;
- Increased weed propagation;
- Direct loss of populations of plant taxa of conservation significance resulting in reduced viability of taxa regionally;
- Impact to the Weld Range PEC;
- Erosion;
- Changes to surface water flows with resultant deleterious effect on vegetation particularly adapted to surface water harvesting such as Mulga;
- Increased potential for fires;
- Alteration to groundwater levels, with resultant damage to phreatophytic vegetation;
- Increased dust levels, with resultant plant deaths;
- Increased salinity of soils if saline water is used for dust suppression.

#### 7.1 DIRECT LOSS OF VEGETATION AND FLORA

The most substantial environmental impacts arising from the proposed works at Weld Range will result from the clearing of native vegetation. Approximately 3,533 ha, including a 100 m buffer will be cleared or disturbed during construction, as detailed in Table 7.1.

Weld Range Project	Approximate Area (ha)
Beebyn Pit and Waste Dumps	1097
Madoonga Pit and Waste Dumps	714.5
Central Processing Facility – Plant and Infrastructure	351
Evaporation Pond	600
Tailings Dam	46.5
Accommodation Village	20
Airstrip	55
Access Tracks and Haul Roads	549
Total	3,533 ha

## Table 7.1 – Proposed Infrastructure Clearance Areas

Clearing of significant areas of vegetation is an unavoidable impact from the development of a mine and associated infrastructure. However the impact can be minimised by considering the distribution



of vegetation and flora species of conservation significance during the design stage and locating infrastructure to avoid areas of higher significance whenever possible.

## 7.1.1 Impact to Vegetation from Clearing

Tables 7.2, 7.3 and 7.4 show the areas of vegetation within each land system, Beard vegetation unit and ecologia community type respectively that would be cleared under each of three proposed infrastructure options.

At the land system level, the greatest impact, irrespective of the infrastructure option selected, is to the Weld land system (3.1%) and the next greatest impact is to the Yarrameedie land system (Table 7-2), with 2.4%, 1.0% and 1.6% of the total area within the Murchison from Base Case, Option 1 and 2 respectively. Impacts to the remaining land system are less than 0.5%. At this scale the impacts of clearing are not considered significant.

At the level of resolution (1:1,000,000) of Beard's vegetation mapping the greatest impact is to Beard's *Acacia aneura*, *Acacia ramulosa* and *Acacia linophylla* (now *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla*) low woodland  $(a_1^9 Li)$  community (Table 7-3). This community is mapped over a relatively small area in Western Australia (94,031 ha), 54% of which is within the Murchison region, and hence could be considered relatively vulnerable. However the potential impacts predicted from each option are low. A loss of 1.4%, 1.1% or 1.7% of the total occurrence within the Murchison would result from the Base Case, Option 1 and Option 2 infrastructure options respectively.

With the exception of Unit  $a_1^{17}$  Li, which is not directly impacted by any of the infrastructure options, the remaining Beard units occurring in the project area occur over large areas of the Murchison and in some instances Western Australia, hence the impact from the proposed infrastructure clearing is minimal (less than 0.2%) irrespective of the footprint option selected.

At the finer scale of resolution of vegetation communities of the current survey, the greatest estimated potential impact to the vegetation communities is to Community 5b (77% by each option). The impact is results from clearing of the Madoonga waste dump which is common to all. Only one small area (56 ha) of this community type was identified elsewhere, close to Madoonga homestead. Much of this area is degraded sue to historical use as a dump for station refuse and grazing.

The estimated impact to the locally restricted Sub-community (7b) of the halophytic shrubland community 7 is also relatively high (39%) for all infrastructure footprint options. This community is considered locally significant, as it occurs on a seasonally inundated salt pan which provides a refuge to threatened fauna species. This community will be impacted by the proposed Madoonga waste dump. This community extends to the north beyond the boundaries of the Study Area however even allowing for this larger area, it remains locally restricted.

Potential impacts to Community 6a, which encompasses 1014 ha on the saline flats and drainage areas of the Study Area, are 34.2%, 30.3% and 28.9% from Option 2, Base Case and footprint Option 1 respectively. The Priority three species *Ptilotus beardii* was commonly within this community.

Communities 1 and 2 have been identified as of state conservation significance due to their restricted occurrence outside the area identified as a PEC and of local significance due to the high number of taxa which were locally restricted to them. These communities predominantly occur on BIF ridges and outcrops and cover approximately 1, 695 ha of the area mapped. The Priority 3 species *Prostanthera petrophila* commonly occurred in this community as did the geographically restricted





taxon *Acacia* sp. Weld Range. Approximately 13.8% would be impacted by all three of the potential infrastructure footprint options. This community will be impacted by the proposed Madoonga and Beebyn pits and associated infrastructure such as tracks and crushing facilities and by the central processing plant under the Base Case.

The impacts to Community 4, which is also considered to be locally and possibly regionally significant, due to the high numbers of conservation significant flora recorded within it, is low. Community 4a was mapped over a large area of the lease (8,412 ha) and the calculated impacts to the community from the three footprint options are 3.5% from the Base Case footprint and 3.3% from footprint Options 1 and 2. The Priority 3 taxa *Acacia speckii* and *Dodonaea amplisemina* along with the Priority 1 taxon *Ptilotus astrolasius* var. *luteolus* were commonly recorded within this sub-community. The undescribed taxa *Acacia* sp. nov. (aff. Kochii) and *Hemigenia* sp. nov. (aff exilis) were also recorded within this sub-community. Community 4b was mapped over a smaller area (952 ha) of which 3.1% will be impacted by the Base Case Option and 2.0% by footprint Options 1 and 2.

This page has been left blank intentionally.









Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

_	_	_	BFS Base Case			BFS Option 1			BFS Option 2		
Land System	Total Area of Land System in WA (ha)	Total area in Murchison (ha)	Area (ha)	Potential Impact to Area Within WA (%)	Potential Impact to Area Within Murchison (%)	Area (ha)	Potential Impact to Area Within WA (%)	Potential Impact to Area Within Murchison (%)	Area (ha)	Potential Impact to Area Within WA (%)	Potential Impact to Area Within Murchison (%)
Breberle	11,482	11,188	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000
Cunyu	329,933	290,394	16	0.005	0.006	16	0.005	0.005	16	0.005	0.005
Gabanintha	251, 455	165,109	165	0.066	0.100	29	0.012	0.018	29	0.012	0.018
Jundee	660,224	585,378	153	0.023	0.026	185	0.028	0.032	185	0.028	0.032
Kalli	1,115,901	853,590	605	0.054	0.071	1298	0.116	0.152	891	0.080	0.104
Koonmarra	569,874	543,173	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000
Mileura	261,223	206,496	141	0.054	0.068	141	0.054	0.068	141	0.054	0.068
Norie	211,177	157,182	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000
Sherwood	1,579,691	1,505,851	367	0.023	0.024	280	0.018	0.019	432	0.027	0.029
Violet	584,096	546,126	669	0.115	0.123	671	0.115	0.123	671	0.115	0.123
Waguin	317,146	245,497	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000	163	0.052	0.067
Weld	37,235	37,235	1153	3.098	3.098	1160	3.116	3.116	1160	3.116	3.116
Wiluna	258,978	252,598	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000
Yandil	494,525	465,955	7	0.001	0.001	7	0.001	0.001	7	0.001	0.001
Yanganoo	2,019,907	1,967,111	165	0.008	0.008	165	0.008	0.008	165	0.008	0.008
Yarrameedie	68,324	44,169	1078	1.577	2.440	714	1.046	1.617	714	1.046	1.617

# Table 7-2 Estimated Impacts of Clearing to Land Systems within the Study Area





# Table 7-3 Estimated Impacts to Beard Vegetation Communities of Infrastructure Footprint Options within the Study Area

				BFS Base Case				BFS Option 1	L	BFS Option 2			
Beard Unit	Vegetation Description	Area in WA (ha)	Area in Murchiso n Bioregion (ha)	Area in BFS Base Case (ha)	Impact to Area Within WA (%)	Impact to Area Within Murch. (%)	Area in BFS Opt 1 (ha)	Impact to Area Within WA (%)	Impact to Area Within Murch. (%)	Area in BFS Opt 2 (ha)	Impact to Area Within WA (%)	Impact to Area Within Murch. (%)	
a 1 <sup>14</sup> Si	Acacia aneura and Acacia quadrimarginea scrub.	448,700	339,907	553	0.123	0.163	564	0.126	0.166	564	0.126	0.166	
a <sub>1</sub> <sup>8</sup> Srk <sub>1</sub> <sup>2</sup> Ci	Acacia aneura and Acacia sclerosperma lightly wooded succulent steppe, with Atriplex (saltbush) and Maireana (bluebush) species.	199,534	185,622	229	0.115	0.123	167	0.084	0.090	167	0.084	0.090	
a <sub>1</sub> <sup>9</sup> Li	Acacia aneura, Acacia ramulosa and Acacia linophylla (now Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla) low woodland.	94,031	50,965	729	0.775	1.430	582	0.619	1.141	881	0.937	1.729	
a <sub>1</sub> Li	<i>Acacia aneura</i> low woodland.	24,751,239	12,452,15 1	2837	0.011	0.023	2856	0.012	0.023	2882	0.012	0.023	
a <sub>1</sub> Si	<i>Acacia aneura</i> (mulga) scrub.	6,666,951	1,149,610	153	0.002	0.013	1	0.000	0.000	82	0.001	0.007	
a9 Si	Acacia ramulosa and Acacia linophylla (now Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla) scrub.	1,331,779	390,207	19	0.001	0.005	498	0.037	0.128	0	0	0	
a1 <sup>17</sup> Li	Acacia aneura and Acacia grasbyi low woodland.	3255	3255	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000	0	0.000	0.000	





# Table 7-4 Estimated Impacts to ecologia Community Types within the Study Area of Infrastructure Footprint Options.

			Base Case	BFS O	ption 1	BFS Option 2	
Mapped Vegetation Community	Total Area Within Study Area (ha)	Area Impacted (ha)	% Within Study Area	Area Impacted (ha)	% Within Study Area	Area Impacted (ha)	% Within Study Area
1 and 2: Acacia aneura low woodland over mixed open shrubs	1695	236	13.93	234	13.82	234	13.82
<b>3a:</b> +/- Corymbia lenziana scattered medium trees over Acacia. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura sparse tall shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. open mid shrubland over scattered low shrubs of Ptilotus obovatus over mixed open tussock grassland.	16779	1278	7.62	1626	9.69	1362	8.12
<b>3b:</b> +/- Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over A. aneura woodland over A. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. closed shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.	8085	1465	18.12	1185	14.66	1597	19.75
<b>3c:</b> Scattered <i>Eucalyptus</i> mallees / trees over <i>Acacia ramulosa</i> var. <i>linophylla</i> open shrubland over <i>Rhagodia eremaea, Eremophila forrestii</i> subsp. <i>forrestii</i> shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> open low shrubland.	1624	175	10.78	35	2.17	17	1.03
<b>3d:</b> Acacia aneura and A. cockertoniana open moderate shrubland over <i>Eremophila simulans</i> subsp. <i>simulans</i> and <i>Aluta aspera</i> subsp. <i>hesperia</i> low open shrubland.	476	91	19.14	0	0.00	0	0.00
<b>4a:</b> Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. aneura var. microcarpa open tall shrubland over <i>Eremophila macmillaniana</i> and mixed <i>Senna</i> spp. open mid shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> open low shrubland.	8412	297	3.53	277	3.29	277	3.29
<b>4b:</b> Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. speckii <b>(P3)</b> shrubland over mixed Senna spp. sparse shrubland over Grevillea inconspicua <b>(P4)</b> and Dodonaea amplisemina <b>(P3)</b> open shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus sparse tussock grassland.	952	32	3.33	19	1.99	19	1.99





		BFS Base Case		BFS Option 1		BFS Option 2	
Mapped Vegetation Community	Total Area Within Study Area (ha)	Area Impacted (ha)	% Within Study Area	Area Impacted (ha)	% Within Study Area	Area Impacted (ha)	% Within Study Area
<b>5a:</b> Acacia craspedocarpa open tall shrubland over Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum and Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland over mixed low tussock grassland.	9324	478	5.12	406	4.35	551	5.91
<b>5b:</b> +/- <i>Grevillea striata</i> low isolated trees over <i>Acacia craspedocarpa</i> and <i>A. aneura</i> tall open shrubland over <i>Scaevola spinescens</i> sparse mid shrubland over <i>Austrostipa elegantissima</i> and <i>Eriachne flaccida</i> low open tussock grassland.	56	43	76.66	43	76.66	43	76.66
<b>6a:</b> Scattered <i>Acacia</i> spp. shrubs over mixed <i>Senna</i> spp. open mid shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> sparse shrubland over mixed <i>Maireana</i> spp. chenopod shrubland.	1014	307	30.30	293	28.93	347	34.21
<b>6b:</b> Scattered mixed Acacia spp. over Rhagodia eremaea and Scaevola spinescens sparse mid to low shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georgei and Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland.	2430	35	1.42	466	19.20	45	1.85
<b>6c:</b> Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia low open shrubland over Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland over Enneapogon cylindricus low tussock grassland.	37	0	0.00	0	0.00	0	0.00
<b>7a:</b> <i>Melaleuca stereophloia</i> and <i>Cratystylis subspinescens</i> low shrubland over <i>Tecticornia</i> spp. low samphire shrubland over <i>Frankenia laxiflora</i> low shrubland.	635	41	6.41	41	6.41	41	6.41
<b>7b:</b> <i>Eucalyptus carnei</i> and <i>E. trivalva</i> woodland over <i>Cratystylis subspinescens</i> and <i>Muehlenbeckia florulenta</i> low sparse shrubland over mixed low tussock grasses.	14	5	38.82	5	38.82	5	38.82



# 7.1.2 Clearing Impacts to the PEC

Using the DEC's currently defined PEC boundary the overall impact to the vegetation of the PEC (from each of the infrastructure options) has been estimated (Table 7.5).

Area of PEC (ha)	Infrastructure Option	Area of PEC to be Impacted (ha)	Impact to PEC (%)		
	Base Case	1,660	8.17		
20,311	Option 1	1,623	7.99		
	Option 2	1,623	7.99		

Table 7.5 – Overall Impact to the Vegetation of the PEC

The impact to the vegetation of the PEC as a whole is relatively low (less than 10%), as much of the proposed infrastructure occurs outside the PEC boundary (*ecologia*, 2009d).

The area of each community type mapped by ecologia within the PEC within each of the proposed infrastructure options is detailed in Table 7.6. Impact to Communities 1 and 2, identified as of conservation significance due to their restricted occurrence outside the Study Area, is 12.5% irrespective of which option is considered. This impact is considered the most significant by virtue of this restricted distribution.

A relatively high proportion (45%) of the area of Community sub-type 3c within the PEC will be impacted by all options. However this sub-type is much more abundant within the study area outside the PEC boundaries and is therefore not considered significant.

The second highest impact would be to Sub-community 6a where 20.5% would be affected by the Base Case option and 19.2% by Options 1 and 2. This community occurs on the seasonally inundated washout plains and saline drainage systems of the PEC. Again this percentage impact reflects the relatively small area of this community occurs within the current PEC boundary and a larger area has been mapped in the greater Project area.





This page has been left blank intentionally.





# Table 7.6 – Estimated Impact from the Three Infrastructure Options to Vegetations Communities of the Weld Range PEC.

Mapped Vegetation Community	Total Area Within Study Area (ha)	*Estimate d Area Within PEC (ha)	Area Within Base Case Footprint (ha)	% Area within PEC	Area within Option 1 Footprint (ha)	% Area within PEC	Area Within Option 2 Footprint (ha)	% Area within PEC
1 and 2: Acacia aneura low woodland over mixed open shrubs	1695	1821	227	12.5	228	12.5	228	12.5
<b>3a:</b> +/- Corymbia lenziana scattered medium trees over Acacia. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura sparse tall shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. open mid shrubland over scattered low shrubs of Ptilotus obovatus over mixed open tussock grassland.	16779	4042	512	12.7	507	12.5	507	12.5
<b>3b:</b> +/- Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over A. aneura woodland over A. ramulosa var. <i>linophylla</i> and A. aneura shrubland over mixed <i>Eremophila</i> spp. closed shrubland over <i>Ptilotus</i> obovatus open low shrubland.	8085	2947	538	18.3	530	18.0	530	18.0
<b>3c:</b> Scattered <i>Eucalyptus</i> mallees / trees over <i>Acacia ramulosa</i> var. <i>linophylla</i> open shrubland over <i>Rhagodia eremaea, Eremophila forrestii</i> subsp. <i>forrestii</i> shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> open low shrubland.	1624	24	11	45.8	11	45.8	11	45.8
<b>3d:</b> Acacia aneura and A. cockertoniana open moderate shrubland over Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans and Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low open shrubland.	476	0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0
4a: Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. aneura var. microcarpa open tall shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and mixed Senna spp. open mid shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.	8412	8260	194	2.3	182	2.2	182	2.2
4b: Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. speckii (P3) shrubland over mixed Senna spp. sparse shrubland over Grevillea inconspicua (P4) and Dodonaea amplisemina (P3) open shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus sparse tussock grassland.	952	879	16	1.8	11	1.3	11	1.3
<b>5a:</b> Acacia craspedocarpa open tall shrubland over Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum and Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland over mixed low tussock grassland.	9324	1894	71	3.7	71	3.7	71	3.7
<b>5b:</b> +/- <i>Grevillea striata</i> low isolated trees over <i>Acacia craspedocarpa</i> and <i>A. aneura</i> tall open shrubland over <i>Scaevola spinescens</i> sparse mid shrubland over <i>Austrostipa elegantissima</i> and <i>Eriachne flaccida</i> low open tussock grassland.	56	0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0




## Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd

Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Mapped Vegetation Community	Total Area Within Study Area (ha)	*Estimate d Area Within PEC (ha)	Area Within Base Case Footprint (ha)	% Area within PEC	Area within Option 1 Footprint (ha)	% Area within PEC	Area Within Option 2 Footprint (ha)	% Area within PEC
<b>6a:</b> Scattered <i>Acacia</i> spp. shrubs over mixed <i>Senna</i> spp. open mid shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> sparse shrubland over mixed <i>Maireana</i> spp. chenopod shrubland.	1014	440	90	20.5	85	19.3	85	<b>19.3</b>
<b>6b:</b> Scattered mixed <i>Acacia</i> spp. over <i>Rhagodia eremaea</i> and <i>Scaevola spinescens</i> sparse mid to low shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georgei</i> and <i>Sclerolaena diacantha</i> low chenopod shrubland.	2430	1	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0
<b>6c:</b> Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia low open shrubland over Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland over Enneapogon cylindricus low tussock grassland.	37	0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0
<b>7a:</b> <i>Melaleuca stereophloia</i> and <i>Cratystylis subspinescens</i> low shrubland over <i>Tecticornia</i> spp. low samphire shrubland over <i>Frankenia laxiflora</i> low shrubland.	635	1	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0
<b>7b:</b> Eucalyptus carnei and E. trivalva woodland over Cratystylis subspinescens and Muehlenbeckia florulenta low sparse shrubland over mixed low tussock grasses.	14	0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0

Area mapped in PEC = area of each vegetation community mapped within the boundary of the PEC plus a fractional sum for the unmapped areas. The fractional sum equals the proportion of each mapped vegetation community in the mapped area multiplied by the area of the PEC that has not been mapped.



## 7.1.3 Impact to Priority Flora from Clearing

The estimated numbers of Priority taxa and the number of loci (defined to be the number of records of a taxon at least 500 metres distant from all other records) which are located within the clearance footprint for each option are detailed in Table 7.7. The distribution of each Priority and Species of Interest taxon relative to the infrastructure option is illustrated in Figures 7.1 to 7.29. Although a relatively high proportion of all records lie within the study area, the impact to most taxa due to the Option 1, the preferred option, is relatively low.

The taxon which would be most affected by Option 1, the preferred option, is *Micromyrtus placoides*, followed by *Beyeria lapidicola* which will have 44.4% and 41.7% respectively of all locations impacted. *Eremophila rhegos* and *Goodenia lyrata* will also be impacted by 33% and 30% respectively. The impacts of Option 2 are identical for these species, as all impacted locations lie within the pits and dumps which are common to both. The Base Case option would have significantly more impact, with 80% of all known locations of *Homalocalyx echinulatus* impacted, and *Beyeria lapidicola, Eremophila rhegos, Goodenia lyrata, Sauropus* sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94), *Hemigenia tysonii* and *Micromyrtus placoides* also impacted by between 30 and 41%.

This page has been left blank intentionally.









			BFS Base Case			BFS Option 1				BFS Option 2				
Taxon	Total No Locations separated by >500 m	Estimated Total No. Plants	Total No Loci separated by >500 m	% Total	Estimated Total No. Plants	% Total	Total No Loci separated by >500 m	% Total	Estimated Total No. Plants	% Total	Total No Loci separated by >500 m	% Total	Estimated Total No. Plants	% Total
Beyeria lapidicola (P1)	12	80	5	41.7	19	23.8	5	41.7	19	23.8	5	41.7	19	23.8
Eremophila rhegos (P1)	3	58	1	33.3	3	5.2	1	33.3	3	5.2	1	33.3	3	5.2
Euphorbia sarcostemmoides (P1)	4	12	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0
Goodenia lyrata (P1)	10	35	3	30.0	25	71.4	3	30.0	25	71.4	3	30.0	25	71.4
Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94) (P1)	10	61	4	40.0	30	49.2	1	10.0	1	1.6	1	10.0	1	1.6
Stenanthemum patens (P1)	8	186	1	12.5	20	10.8	1	12.5	20	10.8	1	12.5	20	10.8
Acacia burrowsiana (P3)	14	4354	0	0.0	0	0.0	1	7.1	9	0.2	1	7.1	9	0.2
Acacia speckii (P3)	97	1098	25	25.8	326	29.7	18	18.6	200	18.2	18	18.6	200	18.2
Calytrix erosipetala (P3)	35	2053	1	2.9	20	1.0	1	2.9	20	1.0	1	2.9	20	1.0
Dodonaea amplisemina	67	790	11	16.4	323	<b>40.9</b>	12	17.9	183	23.2	12	17.9	183	23.2
Eremophila arachnoides Chinnock subsp. Arachnoids (P3)	11	205	1	9.1	20	9.8	1	9.1	20	9.8	1	9.1	20	9.8
Grevillea stenostachya (P3)	91	971	2	2.2	510	52.5	6	6.6	205	21.1	7	7.7	396	40.8
Hemigenia tysonii (P3)	80	6616	32	40.0	2074	31.3	9	11.3	410	6.2	10	12.5	2783	42.1
Homalocalyx echinulatus (P3)	30	1050	24	80.0	438	41.7	6	20.0	438	41.7	6	20.0	438	41.7
Micromyrtus placoides (P3)	45	2160	16	35.6	545	25.2	20	44.4	532	24.6	20	44.4	532	24.6
Mirbelia stipitata (P3)	4	7	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0
Phyllanthus baeckeoides (P3)	15	1309	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0
Prostanthera ferricola (P3)	14	672	1	7.1	14	2.1	1	7.1	14	2.1	1	7.1	14	2.1
Prostanthera petrophila (P3)	95	2141	25	26.3	556	26.0	25	26.3	435	20.3	25	26.3	491	22.9
Ptilotus beardii (P3)	38	2804	9	23.7	1669	59.5	3	7.9	836	29.8	4	10.5	960	34.2
Ptilotus luteolus (P3)	15	533	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0	0	0.0
Tecticornia cymbiformis (P3)	7	69	0	0.0	14	20.3	1	14.3	14	20.3	1	14.3	14	20.3
Verticordia jamiesonii (P3)	22	483	1	4.5	1	0.2	1	4.5	1	0.2	1	4.5	1	0.2

## Table 7.7 – Estimated Impacts to Priority Flora within the Study Area of Infrastructure Footprint Options





_			BFS Base Case			BFS Option 1				BFS Option 2				
Taxon	Total No Locations separated by >500 m	Estimated Total No. Plants	Total No Loci separated by >500 m	% Total	Estimated Total No. Plants	% Total	Total No Loci separated by >500 m	% Total	Estimated Total No. Plants	% Total	Total No Loci separated by >500 m	% Total	Estimated Total No. Plants	% Total
Baeckea sp. Melita Station (P4)	57	2626	4	7.0	100	3.8	4	7.0	100	3.8	4	7.0	100	3.8
Goodenia berringbinensis (P4)	18	33546	5	27.8	40	0.1	2	11.1	40	0.1	2	11.1	40	0.1
Grevillea inconspicua (P4)	62	2320	6	9.7	110	4.7	6	9.7	82	3.5	6	9.7	82	3.5

Taxa for which > 50% total no of loci or plants are impacted by one or more options

Taxa for which > 30% total number of loci or plants are impacted by one or more options













This page has been left blank intentionally.

110







This page has been left blank intentionally.







This page has been left blank intentionally.

114

























This page has been left blank intentionally.















_	550000	560000	570000	580000	590000
7040000	+ Legend	+		+	
	Fremonhila arachnoides subsp. ar	achoindes (ecologia)			合于化生产化人
	Study Area				· 17.00
	BES Base Case				
	BFS Option 1	and a start			
	BFS Option 2				
	Pits & Dumps				A STREET
30000		+			+
702000				+ 0 L Absolu	+ 4 8 Kilometres te Scale - 1:185,000
	O	👃 中钢澳洲中西矿业公司	Location of <i>Eremophila arachnoides</i> subsp. <i>arachnoides</i> (P3)	Figure: 7.11 Project ID: 722	Drawn: CJM Date: 19/06/10
		SINUSTEL SINOSTEEL MIDWEST CORPORATION LIMITED	within the Study Area	Coordinate System Name: GDA 1994 MGA Zone 50 Projection: Transverse Mercator Datum: GDA 1994	Unique Map ID: S142


















































July 2010

This page has been left blank intentionally.































ecologia

































### 7.2.1 Damage to Vegetation from Dust

EL MIDWEST CORPORATION LIMITED

Excessive dust can impact plants by clogging stomata. This can affect respiration and transpiration and lead to localised deaths. Excessive dust is most likely to occur at the edges of tracks and at the boundaries of pits and waste dumps. Dust suppression by watering tracks under dry conditions or periods of heavy traffic can reduce this impact, however the water used must not be excessively saline or incremental salinisation of the surrounding soil may occur.

### 7.2.2 Accidental Bushfires

Fires are a frequent occurrence in the arid zones of Australia. Ground truthing and examination of the aerial photography of the Weld Range area indicates that the area has not been frequently burnt in recent times. Spot fires are known to occur during the summer months predominantly through lightning strike.

Although the native flora is adapted and in many instances dependent upon fire for activation of seed germination, too frequent or too hot bushfires can result in detrimental changes to the composition and diversity of the vegetation causing local extinctions of vulnerable species.

The risk of fire as a result of mining activities can be minimised by implementing fire protocols such as; the appropriate isolation of flammable compounds such as hydrocarbons and explosives, localised clearing around working plant, and enforcement of appropriate smoking practices (e.g. no uncontrolled discarding of cigarette buts). Additional tracks in the area as a result of mining may act as a fire break and may help to prevent the spread of small fires once started.

### 7.2.3 Introduction of Weed Species

To date, few weeds have been recorded at Weld Range. The six weed species recorded during the surveys were all present in low numbers. Increased vehicle movements, combined with increased ground disturbance and disposal of water from drilling and dust suppression operations, will provide an opportunity for additional species to become established unless weed hygiene procedures are implemented.

### 7.2.4 Erosion and Compaction due to Off-Road Driving

Many of the landforms at Weld Range are susceptible to damage from off-road driving. The vegetation of the extensive sand plains and clay pans, which are flat and relatively sparsely vegetated, facilitate off-road driving. Soil compaction can make it difficult for plants to re-establish in these areas. The risk of damage to the vegetation can be avoided by implementing and maintaining a strict ban on off-road driving.

### 7.2.5 Effects of Saline Water used in Construction and Operation

The use of saline water in dust suppression along haul roads is common practice at mine sites across Western Australia (Bertuch *et al*, 2004). Salts in the water help to bind the soil and further reduce the dust particles released into the environment from vehicle movement.





Salts tend to accumulate on or near the soil surface in arid environments due to reduced annual rainfall regularly leeching the salts away (Bertuch *et al*, 2004). These concentrated salts can then be distributed into the environment during rainfall events and lead to localised impacts to vegetation adjacent to the haul road and access tracks. Drainage culverts and naturally occurring drainage lines along the access tracks distribute the saline water away and extend the range of the impact.

High concentrations of salts affect plants by reducing the amount of water taken up by the root system. This can lead to severe stress and eventually death. Localised plant deaths and changes in vegetation community structures could potentially occur with the use of saline water for dust suppression and salt tolerant and halophytic (salt loving) species could replace the less salt tolerant species.

Regional modelling of groundwater levels and sampling the water at a number of bores at and in the vicinity of Weld Range (SRK Consulting, 2010) suggest that regional groundwater is fresh (TDS<500 mg/L) to marginal (500 to 1,500 mg/L). However, the salinity at one borehole located in the proposed Madoonga pit area was very high, 46,000 mg/L (SRK, 2008). Discharge of water of this salinity into the surrounding environment would have detrimental effects on the vegetation.

Regular testing of the ground water extracted and used on the operational areas will reduce the potential for saline water to be released into the surrounding environment. As many plant species are damaged by saline water, the release of saline water into the environment must be tightly managed to ensure damage to vegetation does not occur.

The need for dust suppression must be counterbalanced with the risk of saline scalds if non-saline water is not available in sufficient quantities.

## 7.2.6 Effects of Groundwater Discharge

Saline and fresh water produced by dewatering activities at Beebyn and Madoonga will be piped to an evaporation pond located in the west of the Study Area directly north of the range. Because the evaporation pond location was not determined during the period of survey, an additional survey to assess the distribution of Priority flora within the area of evaporation and the pipeline will be conducted.

### 7.2.7 Effects from Altered Surface Water Flow

Most of the vegetation of the project area utilises surface water for all of its water needs. Mulga (*Acacia aneura*) is particularly dependent on surface water harvesting and susceptible to alterations to flow regimes by infrastructure. As mulga is a common component of much of the vegetation within the Study Area, drainage and water flow will need to be managed to maintain surface water flow to minimise the effects.

### 7.2.8 Effects on Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems

Alterations to groundwater levels resulting from bore field pumping can affect phreatophytic vegetation that occurs in the zone of drawdown. The effects depend on the timing, magnitude and rate of drawdown. Pumping of water for the proposed works will need to be managed appropriately so that the phreatophytic vegetation of the project area is not irreversibly affected by changes in groundwater levels.





Current modelling indicates that decreases of between 5 m and 125 m to current groundwater levels could occur over the nine years modelled for the life of the mines at Madoonga and Beebyn. The drawdown contours indicate that decreases could occur in the vicinity of the saline claypans and seasonally inundated zones at Modoonga, the location at which potentially phreatophytic vegetation is present.

The vegetation in this area is dominated by Unit 7a, *Melaleuca stereophloia* and *Cratystylis subspinescens* shrubland over *Tecticornia* spp/*Frankenia laxiflora* low shrubland, with smaller areas of Unit 7b, *Eucalyptus carnei* and *E. trivalvis* woodland over *Cratystylis subspinescens* and *Muehlenbeckia florulenta* low sparse shrubland and mixed tussock grasses. Within the study area these units are restricted to this location.

The degree to which the species present at this location are dependent upon groundwater is unclear; to establish the degree of dependence will require knowledge of the depth to which each species' roots extend and probably some measurement of seasonal variation in transpiration rates. However it is reasonable to assume that if a species is restricted to environments where groundwater is more readily accessible, there may be some dependence. Both *E. carnie* and *E. trivalvis* have been recorded regionally from a range of non-riparian habitats and do not appear to be obligate phreatophytes, although this does not preclude the fact that they may be seasonally phreatophytic at this location. *Melaleuca stereophloia* is much more consistently located on saline flats and lakes, although there are some records from hill slopes. This species may be more susceptible to a decreased water table, particularly if it occurs at a rapid rate such that it cannot adapt by developing a deeper root system. Other shrub species present are likely to have shallower root system and thus be dependent on surface fed water.

Another potential effect of a decreasing water table could be an increasing level of salinity in the soil in the capillary zone above the water table. Species which are accessing water from this zone may be adversely affected by the increasing salinity which inhibits effective water uptake. At present there is insufficient information available regarding the tolerance of the species present to changes in salinity, and the likelihood and extent of such changes.

Current modelling of drawdown cones indicates that the boundary of the drawdown cone, where decreases in the water table are likely to be range from 16 to 26 m, encompasses approximately 15-25% of the main zone of inundation of this unit. A further 5-15% lies between decreases of 26 and 36 m, and less than 5% between decreases of 36 and 46 m.

The risk to GDEs may be lowered considerably by avoiding periods of peak environmental demand and allowing adaptation of dependent biota to a lower water table. If the annual decline in groundwater level can be restricted to the maximum rate of downward growth of the roots of those plants dependent on groundwater, they may still be able to access the water in the capillary fringe above the water table as the water table drops.







# 8 **RECOMMENDATIONS**

Detailed recommendations are listed under two categories; management level and design level. Recommendations at the design level present strategies that will mitigate impacts to the environment inherent in the design of proposed developments. The second level of recommendation is aimed at management strategies designed to minimise possible impacts to the functioning and quality of the biological environment by proposed developments, and to preserve existing conservation values. In order to reduce the impacts to vegetation and flora from mining activities at Weld Range, the following recommendations should be included in management plans for the project area.

### 8.1 DESIGN LEVEL

### **RECOMMENDATION 1**

Vegetation clearing and earth works should be carried out at an appropriate time of year to minimise deterioration in surface water flow and / or, appropriate soil stabilisation methods should be used in areas where increased sedimentation could be expected. Drains and culverts should be incorporated into infrastructure crossing minor and major drainage lines to maintain seasonal flow regimes.

### **RECOMMENDATION 2**

The preferred mine infrastructure footprint option should be selected to minimise impact to the conservation significant vegetation and flora species of the project area.

### **RECOMMENDATION 3**

Access tracks leading to the Option 1 infrastructure area have not been surveyed for conservation significant flora. Targeted flora surveys of these tracks should be undertaken and every effort should be made to ensure that final alignments should minimise impacts to the priority flora of the area.

#### **RECOMMENDATION 4**

Vegetation clearing should be minimised and kept to that which is absolutely necessary. Whenever possible, areas with large populations of multiple priority flora species should be avoided. Environmental personnel should be present when vegetation is cleared in areas where priority flora species are known to occur, especially Priority 1 and 2 species, to ensure that impacts to priority flora are minimised.

### **RECOMMENDATION 5**

The height of stockpiles of soil and cleared vegetation should be minimised. Multiple smaller stockpiles, dispersed at regular intervals along the edges of cleared areas, are preferable to a single, large stockpile. Lower stockpiles allow greater retention of biological activity within the soil (bacteria, fungi and lichens), which improves seed germination rates when the soil is reused.





#### **RECOMMENDATION 6**

Disturbance to vegetation associated with drainage lines and seasonally inundated low lying areas should be avoided or minimised whenever possible. Removing vegetation associated with drainage lines can lead to accelerated soil erosion or the alteration of surface water flow. Impacts to the vegetation of the halophytic shrubland (Community 7) to the west of Madoonga homestead should be avoided. This community has a restricted distribution within SMC's lease at Weld Range and is potentially a significant habitat for migratory fauna of the area.

#### **RECOMMENDATION 7**

Potentially groundwater dependent ecosystems should be identified in the project area. A baseline and long-term monitoring programme should be initiated to document any effects on groundwater dependent ecosystems resulting from groundwater extraction in the project area. Pumping of water for the proposed works will need to be managed appropriately so that any phreatophytic vegetation in the project area is not irreversibly affected by changes in groundwater levels.

#### 8.2 MANAGEMENT LEVEL

#### **RECOMMENDATION 8**

Existing environmental procedures should be implemented for staff and contractors. These should include, but not be limited to, managing the risk of fire, the spread of weeds, and encouraging general environmental impact awareness.

#### **RECOMMENDATION 9**

A handbook containing photographs of conservation significant and weed species of Weld Range should be provided to all staff involved in vegetation clearing, prior to clearing. This will reduce the likelihood that these species are inadvertently cleared, or in the case of weed species, spread as a result of ground disturbance.

#### **RECOMMENDATION 10**

Topsoil stockpiles and areas of rehabilitation should be monitored periodically. Particular attention should be paid to weed species. If population densities or distribution of any weed species is seen to be increasing, eradication procedures should be implemented.

### **RECOMMENDATION 11**

The minimum amount of topsoil possible should be removed when clearing vegetation for shortterm structures. Minimal topsoil disturbance will encourage natural regeneration due to retention of the seed store and microbiological activity, which is largely confined to the topsoil. Achieving minimum disturbance will also discourage weeds and other species which proliferate following disturbance.

#### **RECOMMENDATION 12**







Areas that have been impacted by earthworks but are not needed for long-term infrastructure should be rehabilitated as soon as practicable after completion of works. This will promote soil stabilisation by plant roots and help to discourage weed proliferation in these areas. Stockpiled topsoil should be used in rehabilitation works as soon as after removal as possible as the seed stored in the soil will be viable.

#### **RECOMMENDATION 13**

Off road driving should be limited to reduce impact to vegetation in general and conservation significant flora in particular, and also to reduce areas of soil compaction.

#### **RECOMMENDATION 14**

Further surveys should be undertaken to determine the population extent, distribution and taxonomy of the two taxa of interest; *Acacia* sp. nov. (aff. *kochii*) and *Hemigenia* sp. nov. (aff. *exilis*). Currently the only records for these taxa are from Weld Range and additional reproductive material is required to assist in their taxonomic description.









# 9 STUDY TEAM

The Weld Range vegetation and flora assessment described in this document was planned, coordinated and executed by:



1025 Wellington St

#### WEST PERTH WA 6005

Project Staff			
Carol Macpherson	BSc. (Hons)	Principal Botanist	
Christina Cox	PhD	Manager Botany	
Scott Hitchcock	BSc.	Senior Botanist	
Zoe Benham	BSc. (Hons)	Botanist	
Melissa Hay	BSc. (Hons)	Botanist	
Rochelle Haycock	BSc.	Botanist	
Jeremy Naaykens	BSc.	Botanist	
Amy Capobianco	BSc. (Hons)	Botanist	
Joshua Gilovitz	BSc. (Hons)	Botanist	
Rebecca Graham	BSc. (Hons)	Botanist	
Cate Tauss	BSc.	Plant Taxonomist	
Peter Jobson	MSc.	Plant Taxonomist	

Licences - "Licence to take flora for scientific purposes"			
The flora and vegetation surveys described in this report were conducted under the authorisation of the following licences issued by the Department of Environment and Conservation:			
	Permit Number	Valid Until	
	SL007531	10th May, 2007	
Scott Hitchcock	SL007816	30th April, 2008	
	SL008095	30th April, 2009	
Leven Marchan	SL007508	2nd April, 2007	
Jeremy Naaykens	SL007795	30th April, 2008	




Licences - "Licence to take flora for scientific purposes"							
Amy Capobianco	SL007796	30th April, 2008					
Joshua Gilovitz	SL008094	30th April 2009					
Rochelle Haycock	SL008171	30 <sup>th</sup> April, 2009					
Melissa Hay	SL008100	30 <sup>th</sup> April, 2009					
Rebecca Graham	SL007797	30 <sup>th</sup> April, 2009					
Christina Cox	SL008096	30 <sup>th</sup> April, 2009					

Acknowledgements: *ecologia* acknowledges the Wajarri community for allowing and supervising access to the Wilgie Mia Reserve.



### **10 REFERENCES**

- Anand, R.R & Paine, M. (2002). Regolith geology of the Yilgarn Craton, Western Australia; implications for exploration. *Australian Journal of Earth Sciences*. Vol. 49(1). Pg 3.
- Approved Conservation Advice for *Conospermum toddii* (2008). s226B of the *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999*. Approved by the Minister/Delegate of the Minister on 16/12/2008.
- Atkins, K.J. (2010). *Declared Rare and Priority Flora List*. Department of Environment and Conservation, Perth, Western Australia. October, 2010.
- Australian Weed Strategy (2007). A National Strategy for Weed Management in Australia. Commonwealth of Australia. Canberra.
- Beard, J.S. (1976). Vegetation Survey of Western Australia Murchison. Explanatory Notes and Map Sheet 5, 1:1,000,000 series. Vegetation Survey of Western Australia. University of Western Australia Press, Nedlands.
- Bertuch, M. & van Etten, E. (2004). Mulga (*Acacia aneura*) death adjacent to haul roads in the northern Goldfields, Western Australia. Proceedings of the Australian Rangeland Society 13<sup>th</sup> Biennial Conference "Living in the Outback"(pp. 99-106). Alice Springs Australian Rangeland Society, Alice Springs.

Bureau of Meteorology (2009). Accessed from: http://www.bom.gov.au/climate. Accessed June 2010.

Bush Forever (2000). Bush Forever Volume Two – Policies, Principles and Processes. December 2000.

- Colwell, R. K. (2006). EstimateS: Statistical estimation of species richness and shared species from samples. User's Guide and Application, Version 8.0.0.
- Curry, P. J., Payne, A. L., Leighton, K. A., Henning, P., & Blood, D. A. (1994). An inventory and condition survey of the Murchison River catchment, Western Australia, Technical Bulletin No.84. Department of Agriculture Western Australia.
- Department of Environment and Conservation (2008). Priority Ecological Communities for Western Australia, Department of Environment and Conservation.
- Department of Fisheries (2004). Aquaculture Groundwater Resource Atlas Gascoyne Murchison. www.fish.wa.gov.au.
- Department of the Environment, Water, Heritage and the Arts (2009). Website [online] available: <u>http://www.environment.gov.au</u>
- Desmond, A., Cowan, M. & Chant, A. (2001). Murchison 2 (MUR2 Western Murchison subregion). IN: A Biodiversity Audit of Western Australia's 53 Biogeographical Subregions in 2002. The Department of Conservation and Land Management.





- Eamus, D. and Froend, R. (2006). Groundwater-dependent ecosystems: the where, what and why of GDEs. Australian Journal of Botany, Special Issue: Groundwater-Dependent Ecosystems, Volume 54 (2), 91-96.
- Eamus, D., Froend, R., Loomes, R., Hose, G. and Murray, B. (2006). A functional methodology for determining the groundwater regime needed to maintain the health of groundwater-dependent vegetation. Australian Journal of Botany, Special Issue: Groundwater-Dependent Ecosystems, Volume 54 (2), 97 114.
- ecologia Environment (2006a). Weld Range Proposed New Campsite Option B and G Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2006b). Weld Range Proposed New Campsite Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2006c). Weld Range HHJV Infill Drill Pads POW. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2006d). Weld Range Rare and Priority Flora Survey TR 70/3902, E 20/208 and M 20/311. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2007a). Weld Range Tenement No. E51/907, Lens W41 Targeted Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Management.
- ecologia Environment (2007b). Weld Range E 51/907, Lens W33 Targeted Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2007c). Sinosteel Midwest Management Pty Ltd Weld Range Tenement E51/907 Lens W42 (North and South) - Targeted Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2007d). Sinosteel Midwest Management Pty Ltd Weld Range E51/907, Lenses W35 & W36 Targeted Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2007e). Weld Range Tenement No. E51/907, Lens W43 & the CID Area Targeted Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2007f). Weld Range E51/907, Lenses W38, W39 & W40 Targeted Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2007g). Weld Range Tenement No. E51/907, Lens W34 Targeted Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2007h). Sinosteel Midwest Management Pty Ltd 2nd Pass Metallurgical Programme; Beebyn (W9 – W11) and Madoonga (W14). Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.





- ecologia Environment (2008a). Weld Range W6 (E20/641): Priority Flora Impact Assessment Report. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2008b). Weld Range W6 and W20 (E20/641) Rare and Priority Flora Surveys. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2008c). Sinosteel Midwest Management Ltd Weld Range Tenement E51/907 (W30 & 31, W33-W35, W38 & 39, W41-W43, W45 & Limestone Well) Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2008d). Crosslands Resources Ltd Weld Range Tenements E20/552 and E20/557: Targeted rare and priority flora survey. Unpublished survey for Crosslands Resources Ltd.
- *ecologia* Environment (2009a). Weld Range Between Beebyn and W45 Polygon (E51/907) Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2009b). Weld Range Gravel Pits Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2009c). Weld Range W15 pad enlargements and new pads. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2009d). Weld Range Polygon south of Beebyn (TR 70/3902) Rare and Priority Flora survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2009e). Weld Range Extension Areas Between W30 and W45 (E20/641) and E51/907) Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2009f). Weld Range Proposed Hydrological Bores Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2009g). Weld Range Madoonga Infill Area (TR70/3902) Rare and Priority Flora Survey. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited.
- ecologia Environment (2010a). OPR rail development. Vegetation and flora assessment. Unpublished Report for Oakajee Port and Rail.
- Edwards, H. (1994). Meekatharra the gold beyond the rivers. Swanbourne, Western Australia.
- Elias, M. (1982). Belele Western Australia 1:250 000 Geological Series Explanatory Notes. Geological Survey of Western Australia . Department of Mines Western Australia. Perth Western Australia.
- Environment Australia (2007). Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia (IBRA) Available at <a href="http://www.environment.gov.au/parks/nrs/ibra/index.html">http://www.environment.gov.au/parks/nrs/ibra/index.html</a>
- Environmental Protection Authority (2002). Terrestrial Biological Surveys as an Element of Biodiversity Protection. Position Statement No. 3. Western Australia.





Environmental Protection Authority (2004a). Terrestrial Flora and Vegetation Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment in Western Australia. Guidance Statement No. 51. Western Australia.

Environmental Protection Authority (2004b). Terrestrial Fauna Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment in Western Australia. Guidance Statement No. 56. Western Australia.

George, E. A. (2002). Verticordia: the turner of hearts. UWA Press, Crawley, W.A.

- Government of Western Australia (2007). Strategic Review of the Conservation and Resource Values of the Banded Iron Formation of the Yilgarn Craton. Department of Environment and Conservation and Department of Industry and Resources.
- Hatton, T. and Evans, R. (1998). Dependence of ecosystems on groundwater and its significance to Australia. Occasional Paper No. 12/98. Land and Water Resources Research and Development Corporation, Canberra. August 1998.
- Heddle, E.M., Loneragan O. W. & Havel, J. J. (1980). Vegetation complexes of the Darling System, Western Australia. IN: Atlas of natural resources of the Darling System, Western Australia. Chapter 3. Department of Environment and Conservation Perth.
- Hussey, B. M. J., Keighery, G. J., Dodd, J., Lloyd, S. G. & Cousens, R. D. (2007). Western Weeds second edition. A guide to the weeds of Western Australia. The Weeds Society of WA Inc., Victoria Park, Western Australia.
- Mabbutt, J.A., Speck, N.H., Wright, R.L, Litchfield, W. H., Sofoulis, J, Wilcox, D.G (1963) Land systems of the Wiluna-Meekatharra area. In: *Lands of the Wiluna-Meekatharra area, Western Australia*, 1958. Land Research Series 7, CSIRO, Melbourne
- Markey, A.S. & Dillon, S.J. (DRAFT 2007a). Flora and vegetation of the Banded Iron Formations of the Yilgarn Craton: Joyners Find Hills. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.
- Markey, A.S. & Dillon, S.J. (DRAFT 2007b). Flora and vegetation of the Banded Iron Formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Booylgoo Range. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.
- Markey, A. S. & Dillon, S. J. (2008). Flora and vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Weld Range. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.
- Mattiske Consulting Pty Ltd (2005). Flora and vegetation on the Jack Hills Project Area. Unpublished report for Murchison Metals Ltd. November 2005.
- Meissner, R., Owen, G. & Bayliss, B. (DRAFT 2007). Flora and vegetation of the banded iron formation of the Yilgarn Craton: Robinson Ranges and Mount Gould. Science Division, Department of Environment and Conservation. Wanneroo, Western Australia.





- Meissner, R. & Caruso, Y. (DRAFT 2008). Flora and vegetation of banded iron formations of theYilgarn Craton: Jack Hills. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.
- Meissner, R. & Owen, G. (DRAFT 2008). Flora and vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: western Narryer Terrane. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.
- Meissner, R & Wright, J. (2008a). Flora and vegetation of banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: Barloweerie and Twin Peaks greenstone belts. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.
- Meissner, R. & Wright, J. (2008b). Flora and vegetation of banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: Perserverance greenstone belt. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.
- Murray, B. R., Hose, G. C., Eamus, D. and Licari, D. (2006). Valuation of groundwater-dependent ecosystems: a functional methodology incorporating ecosystem services. Australian Journal of Botany, Special Issue: Groundwater-Dependent Ecosystems, Volume 54 (2), 221-229.
- National Water Commission (2006). Australian Water Resources 2005. A baseline assessment of water resources for the National Water Initiative. Level 1 Assessment. Australian Government National Water Commission, Canberra. October 2006.
- National Water Commission (2009). Atlas of groundwater-dependent ecosystems. Australian Government National Water Commission. Available at: <u>http://www.nwc.gov.au/www/html/1054-atlas-of-groundwater-dependent-ecosystems-.asp</u>
- Sinclair Knight Merz Pty Ltd (2001). Environmental water requirements to maintain groundwater dependent ecosystems. Environmental Flows Initiative Technical Report, Report Number 2. Environment Australia, Canberra. November 2001.
- Speck (1963). The vegetation of the Wiluna-Meekatharra area. IN: Mabbutt *et al., General report on lands of the Wiluna-Meekatharra area of Western Australia 1958.* CSIRO Land Research Series 7. Melbourne.
- SRK Consulting (2008). Pre-Feasibility Study Weld Range Iron Ore Project Hydrogeological Investigation and Modelling. Unpublished report for Sinosteel Midwest Management Pty. Ltd. October 2008.

The Chambers of Minerals and Energy (2006). Our Resource Regions. Western Australia.

- Thompson, W.A. & Sheehy, N.B. (DRAFT 2009a). Flora and vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Montague Range Zone of the Gum Creek Greenstone Belt. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.
- Thompson, W.A. & Sheehy, N.B. (DRAFT 2009b). Flora and vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Lake Mason Zone of the Gum Creek Greenstone Belt. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.





- Thompson, W.A. & Sheehy, N.B. (DRAFT 2009c). Flora and vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Lee Steere Range. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.
- Trudgen, M.E. (1991). Vegetation Condition Scale. In: National Trust (WA) 1993 Urban Bushland Policy. National Trust of Australia (WA). Wildflower Society of Western Australia (Inc.) and the Tree Society (Inc.), Perth, Western Australia.
- Western Australian Herbarium, (2010). FloraBase. Department of Conservation and Land Management. <u>www.florabase.wa.gov.au</u>
- *Wildlife Conservation Act 1950.* Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2008(2), Western Australian Government Gazette, August 2008.





## **APPENDIX A**

# SUMMARY OF TARGETED FLORA SURVEYS BY ECOLOGIA AT WELD RANGE





This page has been left blank intentionally.





Location	Date of Survey	Survey Details	No. of Species	DRF/Priority Flora Recorded	Status	Reference
W40 to W36 polygon in Tenement E51/0907	July 2009	Targeted rare flora grid search survey of an approximately 1 km <sup>2</sup> area.	73	Euphorbia sarcostemmoides Acacia speckii Dodonaea amplisemina Indigofera gilesii subsp. gilesii Micromyrtus placoides Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738)	P1 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P4	(ecologia, 2009,h)
W9,W10 and W11 deposits in Tenement TR70/3902	March & April 2009	Targeted rare flora grid search survey of an approximately 0.029 km <sup>2</sup> area.	85	Prostanthera petrophila Acacia speckii	P1 P3	(ecologia, 2009,h)
Campsite Extension in Tenement M 20/0402	March 2009	Targeted rare flora grid search survey of an approximately 0.559 km <sup>2</sup> area.	66	Acacia speckii	P3	(ecologia, 2009,h)
Gravel pits	March 2009	Targeted rare flora grid search survey of an approximately 0.559 km <sup>2</sup> area.		Hemigenia tysonii Grevillea stenostachya	P3 P3	(ecologia, 2009,h)
A polygon in the area between Beebyn and W45 to the east (Tenement E51/907).	November 2008	Targeted rare flora grid search survey of an approximately 2.5 km <sup>2</sup> area.	89	Eremophila ?obliquisepala Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus Acacia speckii Dodonaea amplisemina Micromyrtus placoides Prostanthera petrophila Baeckea sp. Melita Station	P1 P1 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P4	( <i>ecologia</i> , 2009a)
Gravel Pit extension at the eastern end of the lease.	November 2008	Targeted rare flora survey of approximately 30-40 m width beyond two existing gravel pits.	0	Hemigenia tysonii	Р3	( <i>ecologia,</i> 2009b)
W15 pad enlargements and additional new pads.	November 2008	Targeted rare flora survey of 10 m extensions to three existing drillpads and two new 30 m by 30 m drill pad areas (approximately 0.003 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	0	No DRF or priority flora recorded.		(ecologia, 2009c)
Polygon South of W12 at Beebyn at the eastern extent of the lease.	October 2008	Targeted rare flora grid search survey covering an area of 0.62 km <sup>2</sup> .	70	Acacia speckii Grevillea stenostachya	P3 P3	( <i>ecologia,</i> 2009d)





Location	Date of Survey	Survey Details	No. of Species	DRF/Priority Flora Recorded	Status	Reference
Extension areas between W30 to W45 (Tenements E20/641 and E51/907).	October 2008	Targeted rare flora survey over an area of approximately 1.7 km <sup>2</sup> .	93	Sauropus sp. Woolgorong Beyeria lapidicola Acacia speckii Dodonaea amplisemina Grevillea stenostachya Hemigenia tysonii Homalocalyx echinulatus Micromyrtus placoides Prostanthera petrophila Baeckea sp. Melita Station Eremophila aff. gracillima	P1 P2 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P4 SOI	( <i>ecologia</i> , 2009e)
Hydrological bores –HYM_202 - HYM_204.	September 2008	Targeted rare flora survey of three proposed drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.05 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	47	Hemigenia tysonii	Ρ3	( <i>ecologia,</i> 2009f)
Madoonga Infill.	September 2008	Targeted rare flora grid search survey of approximately 1.3 km <sup>2</sup> .	96	Acacia speckii Hemigenia tysonii Homalocalyx echinulatus Micromyrtus placoides Prostanthera petrophila	P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3	(ecologia, 2009g)
Lens W6 (tenement E20/641) extension of drill pads.	September 2008	Priority flora impacts survey associated with the enlargement of 10 existing drill pads by approximately 10 m.	0	<i>Micromyrtus placoides Prostanthera petrophila Baeckea</i> sp. Melita Station	P3 P3 P4	( <i>ecologia,</i> 2008a)
Lenses W6 and W20 (Tenement E20/641).	March 2008	Targeted rare flora grid search survey over approximately 1.4 km <sup>2</sup> .	87	Eremophila gracillima Acacia speckii Dodonaea amplisemina Grevillea stenostachya Homalocalyx echinulatus Micromyrtus placoides Prostanthera petrophila Grevillea inconspicua	P1 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P4	( <i>ecologia,</i> 2008b)





Location	Date of Survey	Survey Details	No. of Species	DRF/Priority Flora Recorded	Status	Reference
Weld Range Tenement E51/907 (W30 & 31, W33-W35, W38 & 39, W41- W43, W45 & Limestone Well).	March 2008	Targeted rare flora grid search survey with a combined approximate area of 4.6 km <sup>2</sup> .	105	Euphorbia sarcostemmoides Sauropus sp. Woolgorong Acacia speckii Dodonaea amplisemina Hemigenia tysonii Homalocalyx echinulatus Micromyrtus placoides Prostanthera petrophila Baeckea sp. Melita Station	P1 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P3 P4	( <i>ecologia</i> , 2008c)
Weld Range Tenement No. E51/907, Lens W41.	April 2007	Targeted rare flora survey of six proposed drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.02 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	16	No DRF or Priority Flora recorded.		( <i>ecologia</i> , 2007a)
Weld Range E 51/907, (W33 &W42 north and south)	April 2007	Targeted rare flora survey of 35 proposed drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.12 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	31	Acacia speckii Baeckea sp. Melita Station Prostanthera petrophila	P3 P4 P3	( <i>ecologia</i> , 2007b and 2007c)
Weld Range E51/907, Lenses W35 & W36.	April 2007	Targeted rare flora survey of 39 drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.1 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	36	Dodonaea amplisemina Baeckea sp. Melita Station	P3 P4	( <i>ecologia</i> , 2007d)
Weld Range Tenement No. E51/907, Lens W43 (encompassing lenses W43, W43 North and W43 Far North) and a Channel Iron Deposit (CID) area (located between lenses W43 and W43 north.	April 2007	Targeted rare flora survey of 22 drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.10 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	49	Acacia speckii Dodonaea amplisemina Baeckea sp. Melita Station Grevillea inconspicua	P3 P3 P4 P4	( <i>ecologia</i> , 2007e)
Weld Range E51/907, Lenses W38, W39 & W40.	March 2007	Targeted rare flora survey of 43 drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.08 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	49	<i>Dodonaea amplisemina Baeckea</i> sp. Melita Station	P3 P4	(ecologia, 2007f)





Location	Date of Survey	Survey Details	No. of Species	DRF/Priority Flora Recorded	Status	Reference
Weld Range Tenement No. E51/907, Lens W34.	March 2007	Targeted rare flora survey of 19 drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.08 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	49	Acacia speckii Baeckea sp. Melita Station	P3 P4	(ecologia, 2007g)
Second pass metallurgical exploration drilling programme at Beebyn and Madoonga (tenement number TR 70/3902) at Weld Range W9, W11 and W14.	February 2007	Targeted rare flora survey of 31 drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.05 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	51	Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	( <i>ecologia,</i> 2007h)
Weld Range Proposed Campsite Option B and G on tenement TR 70/3902 or M 20/0402.	October 2006	Targeted rare flora survey of a proposed exploration camp site (option B) and proposed access track (approximately 0.008 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	21	Hemigenia tysonii Micromyrtus placoides	P3 P3	( <i>ecologia</i> , 2006a)
		Targeted rare flora survey of a proposed exploration camp site (option G) and proposed access track (approximately 0.04 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	18	No DRF or Priority Flora recorded.		
Weld Range Proposed Campsite on tenement TR 70/3902.	September 2006	Targeted rare flora survey of a proposed exploration camp site (option A) and proposed access track (approximately 0.04 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	46	Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	( <i>ecologia</i> , 2006b)
Hampton Hill Joint Venture tenements, infill drill pads between W15, W27, W16, W19, and W28.	September 2006	Targeted rare flora survey of 14 infill drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.01 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	91	Micromyrtus placoides Prostanthera petrophila	P3 P3	( <i>ecologia</i> , 2006c)
Weld Range Rare and Priority Flora Survey – TR 70/3902, E 20/208 and M 20/31.	July 2006	Targeted rare flora survey of 57 drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.07 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).	154	Beyeria lapidicola Micromyrtus placoides Prostanthera petrophila Verticordia jamiesonii	P2 P3 P3 P3	( <i>ecologia</i> , 2006d)





Location	Date of Survey	Survey Details	No. of Species	DRF/Priority Flora Recorded	Status	Reference
		Targeted rare flora survey of 16 drill pads and associated access tracks (approximately 0.03 km <sup>2</sup> surveyed).		Micromyrtus placoides Prostanthera petrophila	РЗ РЗ	





This page has been left blank intentionally.





## APPENDIX B 2010 DEC DATABASE SEARCH





This page has been left blank intentionally.





Species	Family	Status	Nearest Named Locations	Habitat (WA Herbarium, 2009)	Likelihood of Occurrence at Weld Range
Acacia burrowsiana	Fabaceae	Р3	Along Beebyn-Karbar Road NW of Cue	Low stony rise with skeletal soils and quartz, ironstone and schistose rubble on surface, adjacent to Sapphire flats.	Recorded
Acacia speckii	Fabaceae	Р3	Weld Range, on Madoonga Station and Telstra tower	Moderately inclined midslope of banded ironstone and basalt with red soils	Recorded
Baeckea sp. Melita Station	Myrtaceae	AYRTACEAE P4 Weld Range, NW of Cue Mid rocky slopes and ironstone breakaways. Red/brown soils over ironstone.		Recorded	
Beyeria lapidicola	EUPHORBIACEAE	P1	Weld Range	Plain with a currently dry creek bed. Red-orange sandy clay, fine gravel. Ferrous. No evidence of fire. Good condition. Old track runs through centre of site.	Recorded
Calytrix erosipetala	MYRTACEAE	Р3	East of Hillview Homestead	Breakaway weathered granite	Recorded
Dodonaea amplisemina	SAPINDACEAE	Р3	Weld Range, on Madoonga Station.	Moderately inclined hillcrest of basalt and some banded ironstone. Slightly rocky basalt outcrop with red soils.	Recorded
Eremophila arachnoides subsp. Arachnoides	SCROPHULARIACEA E	Р3	South of Yarrabubba State	On shallow brown loams over limestone	Recorded
Eremophila rhegos	SCROPHULARIACEA E	P1	Weld Range	High hill. Brown loam and rocks over dolerite, quartz and ironstone.	Recorded
Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	EUPHORBIACEAE	P1	Robinson Range, survey site ROBI28	Gently inclined lower slope of banded ironstone with red brown shallow sandy loam soils	Recorded
Goodenia berringbinensis	GOODENIACEAE	P4	Bed of Berringbine Creek, Belele Station	Red sandy loam.	Recorded





Species	Family	Status	Nearest Named Locations	Nearest Named Locations Habitat (WA Herbarium, 2009)	
Goodenia lyrata	GOODENIACEAE	P1	West of Laverton	Red sandy loam, near claypan.	Recorded
Grevillea inconspicua	PROTEACEAE	P4	Weld Range, SE of Madoonga Homestead	Red loam/clay soil. Population on greenstone outcrop.	Recorded
Grevillea stenostachya	PROTEACEAE	Р3	Belele Station, near Lalgaroo paddock	Red sandy loam.	Recorded
Hemigenia tysonii	LAMIACEAE	Р3	Near Government Well on Coodardy Station, Cue	Sand.	Recorded
Homalocalyx echinulatus	MYRTACEAE	Р3	Weld Range	Brown loam and rock fragments, ironstone/dolerite.	Recorded
Indigofera gilesii subsp. gilesii	FABACEAE	Р3	Glengarry Range, SE of Mooloogool Homestead		Recorded
Micromyrtus placoides	MYRTACEAE	P3	Weld Range slopes below Telecom tower	Brown loam over dolerite & ironstone.	Recorded
Mirbelia stipitata	FABACEAE	Р3	Along Cue-Sandstone Road	Base of granite rock. Rangeland. Brown dry loam.	Recorded
Phyllanthus baeckeoides	PHYLLANTHACEAE	Р3	Weld Range on Glen Station	Gently inclined lower hillslope to flat of banded ironstone. Very slightly rocky banded ironstone outcrop with red brown soils	Recorded
Prostanthera ferricola	LAMIACEAE	Р3	Weld Range, on Madoonga Station.	Steep midslope of banded ironstone and basalt. Slightly rocky banded ironstone and basalt outcrop with red soils.	Recorded
Prostanthera petrophila	LAMIACEAE	Р3	Weld Range	Brown loam with dolerite quartz and ironstone blocks.	Recorded
Ptilotus beardii	AMARANTHACEAE	P3	Weld Range	Red orange sandy clay.	Recorded
Ptilotus luteolus	AMARANTHACEAE	P3	South of Meekatharra on Gabanantha Road	Hillslope.	Recorded





Species	Family	Status	Nearest Named Locations	Habitat	Likelihood of Occurrence at
				(WA Herbarium, 2009)	Weld Range
Sauropus sp. Woolgorong	PHYLLANTHACEAE	P1	Weld Range on Glen Station	Moderately inclined upper hillslope of banded ironstone, quartz and chert. Very rocky banded ironstone, quartz and chert outcrop with red brown soils.	Recorded
Stenanthemum patens	RHAMNACEAE	P1	North of Mount Clifford	Rocky hillside.	Recorded
Tecticornia cymbiformis	CHENOPODIACEAE	Р3	Lake Anneen	Gently sloping dune before lake floodplain. Red-brown sandy clay.	Recorded
Verticordia jamiesonii	MYRTACEAE	P3	Along Kalli Road	Breakaway, dry red yellow sandy clay over pale red sandstone.	Not recorded





This page has been left blank intentionally.





## APPENDIX C COORDINATES AND VEGETATION CONDITION ASSESSMENT OF QUADRATS





This page intentionally left blank.





Site	Phase	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Vegetation Condition
1	Phase 1&2	542005	7014892	Good
2	Phase 1&2	542124	7014740	Good
3	Phase 1	542684	7014676	Good
4	Phase 1	542975	7014538	Good
4a	Phase 2	547554	7014897	Good
5	Phase 1&2	545195	7016854	Good
6	Phase 1&2	544107	7016163	Good
7	Phase 1	547224	7014931	Poor
8	Phase 1	547559	7014896	Excellent
10	Phase 1	547755	7014970	Good
10a	Phase 2	547792	7014738	Good
11	Phase 1&2	547091	7015942	Poor
12	Phase 1	548350	7015087	Good
13	Phase 1	547503	7016136	Good
14	Phase 1	547824	7016428	Good
15	Phase 1&2	547381	7016821	Good
16	Phase 1	548863	7016361	Good
17	Phase 1&2	549879	7017173	Good
18	Phase 1	550527	7017872	Poor
19	Phase 1	551133	7018310	Good
22	Phase 1	569663	7027652	Excellent
23	Phase 1	572647	7026444	Poor
24	Phase 1	571858	7027290	Good
25	Phase 1	572027	7027663	Good
26	Phase 1	573297	7026981	Good
27	Phase 1	574151	7027062	Good
28	Phase 1	573935	7026087	Good
29	Phase 1	574397	7025516	Excellent
30	Phase 1	572381	7026342	Excellent
32	Phase 1	576110	7027945	Good



C

SINDSTEEL

#### Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd

Site	Phase	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Vegetation Condition
33	Phase 1	576975	7027507	Good
34	Phase 1	577572	7028469	Good
35	Phase 1&2	578440	7028713	Good
36	Phase 1	578288	7029509	Good
37	Phase 1	578433	7029011	Good
38	Phase 1	579045	7028527	Good
39	Phase 1&2	580031	7028802	Good
40	Phase 1	580038	7029085	Good
41	Phase 1&2	580346	7028437	Good
42	Phase 1	581164	7028342	Poor
43	Phase 1&2	581737	7030291	Good
44	Phase 1	582477	7030165	Good
45	Phase 1	582532	7029890	Good
46	Phase 1	583721	7029312	Poor
47	Phase 1	584163	7028555	Good
48	Phase 1	581863	7027164	Excellent
49	Phase 1	580134	7025220	Good
50	Phase 1&2	579888	7025313	Good
51	Phase 1&2	578958	7025464	Poor
52	Phase 1	578405	7024722	Good
53	Phase 1&2	576712	7024043	Good
54	Phase 1&2	576285	7024058	Good
55	Phase 1	576512	7023213	Good
56	Phase 1&2	576624	7022957	Good
57	Phase 1	555361	7018447	Good
58	Phase 1&2	556310	7018553	Poor
59	Phase 1	555937	7016482	Good
60	Phase 1	556788	7016839	Poor
61	Phase 1&2	557351	7018302	Good
62	Phase 1&2	558160	7019242	Good
63	Phase 1	558753	7019308	Good



SINDSTEEL

Site	Phase	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Vegetation Condition
64	Phase 1	558818	7019727	Poor
65	Phase 1	560117	7020303	Good
66	Phase 1	560739	7020177	Poor
67	Phase 1&2	560339	7018774	Good
68	Phase 1	561487	7019282	Excellent
69	Phase 1	562050	7019840	Good
70	Phase 1	563095	7019945	Excellent
71	Phase 1&2	564211	7020601	Good
72	Phase 1	565375	7021598	Good
75	Phase 1	558361	7016368	Good
76	Phase 1	558871	7016000	Excellent
77	Phase 1&2	560388	7016711	Poor
78	Phase 1&2	560836	7016798	Good
79	Phase 1&2	561440	7016893	Good
80	Phase 1	561967	7017599	Good
81	Phase 1&2	563937	7018085	Good
82	Phase 1	565129	7018605	Good
83	Phase 1	566032	7018945	Good
84	Phase 1&2	584124	7031028	Poor
85	Phase 1&2	584862	7031416	Excellent
86	Phase 1	585304	7031787	Good
87	Phase 1	585580	7030838	Good
88	Phase 1&2	585763	7031188	Good
88a	Phase 2	579048	7028520	Good
89	Phase 1	586478	7031056	Excellent
90	Phase 1	585997	7032081	Excellent
91	Phase 1	585672	7033112	Good
92	Phase 1&2	586292	7033420	Good
93	Phase 1	586714	7035414	Good
94	Phase 1&2	587032	7035055	Good
95	Phase 1&2	587295	7034769	Poor



SINDSTEEL

Site	Phase	Easting (mE) Northing (mN)		Vegetation Condition	
96	Phase 1	588225	7035560	Good	
97	Phase 1	588203	7035871	Poor	
98	Phase 1&2	588797	7035953	Good	
99	Phase 1&2	588798	7036525	Good	
100	Phase 1&2	588158	7037131	Good	
101	Phase 1&2	588450	7038104	Good	
102	Phase 1&2	589312	7038142	Good	
103	Phase 1	588444	7038690	Good	
104	Phase 1	588554	7038981	Good	
108	Phase 1&2	562128	7019503	Good	
109	Phase 1	581786	7026819	Good	
110	Phase 1	548351	7015088	Good	
111	Phase 1	549405	7015196	Good	
114	Phase 1	563731	7020476	Good	
115	Phase 2	541455	7014385	Good	
116	Phase 2	544412	7016905	Good	
117	Phase 2	546935	7015506	Good	
118	Phase 2	547723	7014961	Good	
119	Phase 2	557394	7018295	Good	
120	Phase 2	558093	7018841	Good	
121	Phase 2	558037	7019505	Good	
122	Phase 2	580322	7030811	Excellent	
123	Phase 2	581695	7030171	Good	
124	Phase 2	589437	7037259	Good	
125	Phase 2	589791	7037197	Good	
126	Phase 2	589471	7037203	Excellent	
127	Phase 2	589282	7036626	Good	
128	Phase 2	589342	7036616	Excellent	
129	Phase 2	589461	7036537	Good	
130	Phase 2	589858	7037769	Good	
131	Phase 2	587069	7034505	Good	



C

SINOSTEEL

Site	Phase	Easting (mE) Northing (mN)		Vegetation Condition
132	Phase 2	587781	7034353	Good
133	Phase 2	587937	7034213	Excellent
134	Phase 2	588151	7033952	Good
135	Phase 2	588502	7033622	Poor
136	Phase 2	587841	7033527	Good
137	Phase 2	588342	7034114	Excellent
138	Phase 2	582918	7027232	Good
139	Phase 2	583009	7027197	Good
140	Phase 2	582941	7027205	Good
141	Phase 2	582035	7027062	Good
142	Phase 2	581892	7027044	Good
143	Phase 2	581922	7026918	Good
144	Phase 2	580319	7026328	Good
145	Phase 2	575112	7027432	Good
146	Phase 2	580290	7026302	Good
147	Phase 2	579052	7025125	Good
148	Phase 2	573853	7027002	Excellent
149	Phase 2	573904	7027138	Good
150	Phase 2	573767	7027087	Good
151	Phase 2	573424	7027308	Excellent
152	Phase 2	573471	7027246	Good
153	Phase 2	574031	7027464	Good
154	Phase 2	555848	7017032	Poor
156	Phase 2	555918	7016947	Good
156a	Phase 2	555945	7016882	Good
157	Phase 2	555667	7016771	Good
158	Phase 2	555416	7016811	Good
159	Phase 2	555419	7016931	Poor
160	Phase 2	563572	7018064	Good
161	Phase 2	564239	7018334	Good
162	Phase 2	563264	7018400	Good



<

SINOSTEEL

#### Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd

Site	Phase	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Vegetation Condition	
163	Phase 2	564463	7019090	Good	
164	Phase 2	563797	7018544	Good	
165	Phase 2	562938	7019075	Good	
166	Phase 2	563695	7019052	Good	
167	Phase 2	564390	7019704	Good	
168	Phase 2	562094	7019416	Good	
169	Phase 2	562005	7019220	Excellent	
170	Phase 2	563054	7019695	Good	
171	Phase 2	562929	7019904	Good	
172	Phase 2	562971	7019839	Good	
173	Phase 2	563088	7020263	Good	
174	Phase 2	563915	7019886	Good	
175	Phase 2	578375	7028962	Good	
176	Phase 2	579697	7029433	Good	
177	Phase 2	551827	7015815	Good	
178	Phase 2	552257	7015792	Good	
179	Phase 2	551354	7015776	Good	
180	Phase 2	552434	7015962	Good	
181	Phase 2	550940	7015223	Good	
182	Phase 2	559931	7017810	Good	
183	Phase 2	559418	7018409	Poor	
BPC01	Phase 3	581233	7031767	Good	
BPC02	Phase 3	581030	7031651	Good	
BPC03	Phase 3	580844	7031891	Good	
BPC04	Phase 3	579977	7031713	Good	
BPC05	Phase 3	579814	7031869	Good	
BPC06	Phase 3	578651	7032379	Poor	
BPC07	Phase 3	577958	7032287	Good	
BPC08	Phase 3	577662	7032721	Good	
BPC09	Phase 3	579024	7032277	Poor	
BPC10	Phase 3	579391	7031751	Good	



SINDSTEEL

1					
Site Phase		Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Vegetation Condition	
BPE01	Phase 3	586684	7034277	Good	
BPE02	Phase 3	585309	7032299	Good	
BPE03	Phase 3	585158	7033155	Good	
BPE05	Phase 3	585487	7034280	Good	
BPE06	Phase 3	585632	7033848	Poor	
BPE07	Phase 3	586389	7034215	Good	
BPE08	Phase 3	585343	7033633	Good	
BPE09	Phase 3	585363	7033496	Good	
BPE12	Phase 3	504022	7033223	Good	
BPE14a	Phase 3	585451	7032503	Good	
BPE14b	Phase 3	585471	7033373	Good	
BPE15	Phase 3	585376	7032971	Good	
BPE16	Phase 3	585521	7033373	Good	
BPW01	Phase 3	577071	7032746	Good	
BPW02	Phase 3	577059	7033032	Good	
BPW03	Phase 3	576626	7032346	Good	
BPW04	Phase 3	573114	7032129	Good	
BPW05	Phase 3	573610	7032003	Good	
BPW06	Phase 3	575851	7032724	Excellent	
BPW07	Phase 3	575210	7032660	Good	
BPW08	Phase 3	574389	7032529	Excellent	
BPW09	Phase 3	574188	7032469	Excellent	
BPW10	Phase 3	574714	7032500	Excellent	
BPW13	Phase 3	573979	7032615	Good	
HR01	Phase 3	563716	7022514	Excellent	
HR02	Phase 3	504383	7022943	Excellent	
HR03	Phase 3	565967 7024046		Excellent	
HR04	Phase 3	571730	7027665	Excellent	
HR05	Phase 3	571137	7027349	Excellent	
HR06	Phase 3	567092	7024711	Excellent	
HR07	Phase 3	566302	7024279	Excellent	



SINDSTEEL

Site	Phase	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Vegetation Condition	
HR09	Phase 3	574743 7028902		Good	
HR10	Phase 3	575069 7029011		Good	
HR11	Phase 3	561103	7020074	Good	
HR12	Phase 3	561671	7020815	Good	
HR13	Phase 3	562739	7021607	Good	
HR14	Phase 3	571935	7027743	Good	
HR15	Phase 3	572353	7027955	Good	
HR16	Phase 3	576016	7029468	Good	
HR17	Phase 3	576849	7029667	Good	
HR18	Phase 3	577286	7029627	Excellent	
HR19	Phase 3	577838	7029714	Good	
HR20	Phase 3	578621	7029801	Good	
HR21	Phase 3	579184	7029888	Excellent	
HR23a	Phase 3	580496	7029551	Good	
HR23b	Phase 3	580171	7029992	Excellent	
HR25	Phase 3	580826 7029203		Good	
HR26	Phase 3	570579	7027118	Good	
HR27	Phase 3	570335	7026986	Good	
HR28	Phase 3	570265	7026936	Good	
HR29	Phase 3	569789	7026655	Excellent	
HR30	Phase 3	569357	7026385	Good	
MWD01	Phase 3	558832	7019504	Good	
MWD02	Phase 3	558804	7019050	Good	
R02	Rail	563317	7025414	Poor	
R04	Rail	563415	7026464	Good	
R05	Rail	563231	7030325	Good	
R06	Rail	563479	7027637	Good	
R07	Rail	565650	7026510	Good	
R08	Rail	567491	7027591	Good	
R09	Rail	565553	7028994	Good	
R10	Rail	566320	7030900	Good	



Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Site	Phase	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Vegetation Condition
R11	Rail	568802	7032751	Good
R12	Rail	571003	7034390	Excellent
R13	Rail	571424	7031721	Good
R14	Rail	575257	7031712	Good
R17	Rail	569879	7034562	Good
R18	Rail	569647	7034092	Good
R19	Rail	568182	7029128	Good
R20	Rail	575266	7030644	Good
R21	Rail	573856	7030371	Good
R22	Rail	578561	7031062	Good
R23	Rail	569438	7031261	Excellent

KEY: MWD = Madoonga Waste Dump; HR = Haul Road;

中钢澳洲中西矿业公司 SINOSTEEL MIDWEST CORPORATION LIMITED

SINDSTEEL

BPW = Borrow Pit West;

BPC = Borrow Pit Centre;

BPE = Borrow Pit East;

R = Rail Corridor.





This page intentionally left blank.





## APPENDIX D NATIONAL VEGETATION INVENTORY SYSTEM (NVIS) VEGETATION CLASSIFICATIONS





This page intentionally left blank.



中钢澳洲中西矿业公司 SINGSTEEL SINGSTEEL MIDWEST CORPORATION LIMITED

Growth Form	Height (m)	Structural Formation Classes					
Foliage cover and rank*		70-100% (5)	30-70% (4)	10-30% (3)	<10% (2)	0-5% (1)	≈ 0% (N)
TREE	<10,10-30, >30	closed forest	open forest	woodland	isolated clumps of trees	isolated trees	isolated clumps of trees
TREE MALLEE	<3, <10, 10-30	closed mallee forest	open mallee forest	mallee woodland	isolated clumps of mallee trees	isolated mallee trees	isolated clumps of mallee trees
SHRUB	<1,1-2,>2	closed shrubland	shrubland	open shrubland	isolated clumps of shrubs	isolated shrubs	isolated clumps of shrubs
MALLEE SHRUB	<3, <10, 10-30	closed mallee shrubland	mallee shrubland	open mallee shrubland	isolated clumps of mallee shrubs	isolated mallee shrubs	isolated clumps of mallee shrubs
HEATH SHRUB	<1,1-2,>2	closed heathland	heathland	open heathland	isolated clumps of heath shrubs	isolated heath shrubs	isolated clumps of heath shrubs
CHENOPOD SHRUB	<1,1-2,>2	closed chenopod shrubland	chenopod shrubland	open chenopod shrubland	isolated clumps of chenopod shrubs	isolated chenopod shrubs	isolated clumps of chenopod shrubs
SAMPHIRE SHRUB	<0.5,>0.5	closed samphire shrubland	samphire shrubland	open samphire shrubland	isolated clumps of samphire shrubs	isolated samphire shrubs	isolated clumps of samphire shrubs
HUMMOCK GRASS	<2,>2	closed hummock grassland	hummock grassland	open hummock grassland	isolated clumps of hummock grasses	isolated hummock grasses	isolated clumps of hummock grasses
TUSSOCK GRASS	<0.5,>0.5	closed tussock grassland	tussock grassland	open tussock grassland	isolated clumps of tussock grasses	isolated tussock grasses	isolated clumps of tussock grasses
SEDGE	<0.5,>0.5	closed sedgeland	sedgeland	open sedgeland	isolated clumps of sedges	isolated sedges	isolated clumps of sedges
RUSH	<0.5,>0.5	closed rushland	rushland	open rushland	isolated clumps of rushes	isolated rushes	isolated clumps of rushes




This page intentionally left blank.





# APPENDIX E SITE DESCRIPTIONS FOR PHASES 1,2 AND 3





This page has been left blank intentionally.





# Phase 1

722 WRE Site 01

Described by	JN	Date:	9/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50 54	42023	mE	7014919	mN			
Habitat	Lakeside vegeta	ation or	n a gentle slo	pe.				
Soil	Red-orange sar	ıdy clay	with a hard	surface crust and lo	ose soil.			
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia aneura v ramulosa var. shrubland over multiflorus very on a gentle slop	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii ssp. forrestii low open shrubland over Calocephalus multiflorus very open herbs over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Lakeside vegetation on a gentle slope						
Veg Condition	Good, with graz	zing by	hard hoofed.					
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf litte	r and w	vood litter ur	nder shrubs.				
Species List:								
Stratum	Cover	Specie	es within eac	ch stratum				
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacio	<i>a aneura</i> var.	aneura				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacio Acacio	a ?cockerton a tetragonop	iana, Acacia miny hylla	ıra, Acaci	a ramulosa var. linophylla,		
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacio	a tetragonop	hylla, Eremophila f	orrestii			
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Chenc Eremo Sparto	ppodium ga pphila gra pthamnella t	udichaudianum, nitica, Eremophi eucriiflora	Dianella la punio	revoluta var. divaricata, cea, Senna glaucifolia,		
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Mona lasiop	chather pai hyllum	radoxus, Ptilotus	obovatus	var. obovatus, Solanum		
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristic Eragro	la contorta, ostis lanipes	Aristida holathera	var. hold	nthera, Eragrostis cumingii,		

Herbs2 - 10%Alternantheradenticulata,Calocephalusmultiflorus,Euphorbiadrummondii, Gnephosis tenuissima





Described by	JN	Date:	9/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	542124	mE	7014727	mN		
Habitat	Lakeside vegetation on a gentle slope						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with a surface crust.						
Rock Type							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open forest over Acacia tetragonophylla high open shrubland over Melaleuca stereophloia low shrubland to open shrubland over Calocephalus multiflorus open herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Lakeside vegetation on a gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good with grazing by hard hoofed.						
Fire Age	>5 yrs						
Notes	Moderate to sparse leaf litter and sparse wood litter under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. aneura				
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. major, Acacia minyura				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Melaleuca stereophloia				
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila fraseri				
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana planifolia, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis dielsii, Eragrostis leptocarpa, Eriachne flaccida, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella				
Climbers	< 2%	Lysiana murrayi				
Herbs	10 - 30%	Alternanthera denticulata, Calocephalus multiflorus				





Described by		Date:	9/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	542684	mE	7014676	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain.							
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sand with loose surface soil.						
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia pruin over Acacia Eremophila scattered sh herbs over M	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees and Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura var aneura high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii low open shrubland to shrubland and Solanum lasiophyllum low scattered shrubs over Marsdenia australis climbers over Ptilotus polystachyus very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus and Eragrostis lanipes tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good with g	razing by ł	hard hoofed					
Fire Age	None evider	nt						
Notes	Sparse leaf a	and wood	litter under sh	rubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa			
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Rhagodia eremaea			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila granitica			
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Eragrostis lanipes, Monachather paradoxus			
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis			
Herbs	2 - 10%	Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus, Ptilotus polystachyus, Sida fibulifera			





Described by	SH	Date:	9/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	542975	mE	7014538	mN				
Habitat	Flat plain.								
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay with loose soil surface.							
Rock Type									
Vegetation	Acacia aneu Acacia aneu Eremophila polystachyus grassland. Fl	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Solanum lasiophyllum low scattered shrubs over Ptilotus polystachyus var. polystachyus open herbs over Monachather paradoxus tussock grassland. Flat plain.							
Veg Condition	Good with g	Good with grazing by hard hoofed.							
Fire Age	None evider	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf litter and moderate wood litter under shrubs.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Psydrax rigidula, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Spartothamnella teucriiflora
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis lanipes, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	10 - 30%	Ptilotus polystachyus var. polystachyus, Sida fibulifera, Swainsona sp.





Described by	JN	Date:	9/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	545193	mE	7016850	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy loam with a surface crust and fine to coarse gravel.					
Rock Type	Non-banded ferrous and quartz.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea low woodland over Acacia aneura var. fuliginea and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii low open shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat plain.					
Veg Condition	Good with grazing by hard hoofed and tracks.					
Fire Age	None evident.					
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood li	itter under shrubs.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia quadrimarginea, Psydrax suaveolens, Santalum spicatum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii, Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida ammophila, Spartothamnella teucriiflora					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii					
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella, Monachather paradoxus					
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis					
Herbs	< 2%	Calandrinia ?translucens					





Described by	SH	Date:	9/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	544103	mE	7016171	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain.					
Soil	Red-orange sa	andy clay	with a cracked	clay, fine gravel a	and loose	soil surface layer.
Rock Type	Few, compose	ed of non	-banded ferrou	is, granite and qu	artz.	
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. intermedia and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high open shrubland over Acacia aneura var. intermedia and Eremophila forrestii open shrubland over and Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Eremophila forrestii and Ptilotus schwartzii low open shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers over Calandrinia sp. Scattered herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland.					
Veg Condition	Good conditio	on, grazeo	d by hard hoofe	ed.		
Fire Age	None evident.					
Notes						
Species List:						
Stratum	Cover	Species	s within each st	ratum		
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia	aneura var. and	eura, Acacia pruin	ocarpa	
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	<i>Acacia</i> Weld R	<i>aneura</i> var. <i>int</i> ange (A. Marke	ermedia, Acacia y & S. Dillon 2994	ramulosa ŀ)	var. <i>linophylla, Acacia</i> sp
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia	craspedocarpa,	Eremophila geor	gei	
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia	tetragonophyll	a, Eremophila fori	restii, Spa	rtothamnella teucriiflora
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremop Ptilotus	ohila jucunda, sschwartzii	<i>Maireana</i> sp.,	Ptilotus	obovatus var. obovatus
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida	i contorta, Eria	chne pulchella sub	osp. <i>pulch</i>	ella
Climbers	< 2%	Marsde	enia australis			

Herbs < 2% Calandrinia sp. The Pink Hills (F. Obbens FO 19/06)



Described by	SH	Date:	9/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	547224	mE	7014931	mN		
Habitat	Gentle hill slope.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with continuous stones and plates/boulders at surface.						
Rock Type	BIF, non-band	ded ferrou	IS.				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla scattered shrubs to high open shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Solanum lasiophyllum low open heath over Sida excedentifolia open herbs over Cymbopogon ambiguous. Open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed by hard hoof.						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate leaf and sparse wood litter under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia				
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei				
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila compacta, Olearia plucheacea, Psydrax suaveolens, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925), Solanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus				
Herbs	10 - 30%	Amaranthus sp., Phyllanthus erwinii				





Described by	JN	Date:	9/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	547559	mE	7014896	mN				
Habitat	Steep to mo	Steep to moderate hill crest.							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust and coarse gravel, and many stones, boulders and plates at surface								
Rock Type	Non-banded	ferrous.							
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered low trees over Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa high open shrubland over Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalis open shrubland over Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei and Eremophila glutinosa low shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba scattered herbs over Eriachne mucronata (desert form) very open tussock grassland. Steep to moderate hill crest.								
Veg Condition	Excellent, gr	Excellent, grazed by hard hoofed.							
Fire Age	Non evident.								
Notes	Sparse leaf a	Sparse leaf and wood litter under shrubs.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia sibirica, Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Micromyrtus sulphurea, Scaevola spinescens
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia grasbyi, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Rhagodia eremaea
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana sp., Olearia stuartii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum ellipticum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Austrostipa scabra, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eriachne mucronata (desert form)
Herbs	< 2%	Goodenia tenuiloba, Olearia plucheacea



Described by	JN	Date:	9/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	547755	mE	7014970	mN			
Habitat	Ridge Crest w	ith mode	rate slope.					
Soil	Red-orange sa and rock	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust, gravel/pebbles, continuous stones/boulders and rock						
Rock Type	BIF							
Vegetation	Acacia minyu linophylla ope subsp. fecund scattered her with moderat	Acacia minyura high shrubland to scattered low trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Philotheca brucei subsp. brevifolia, Eremophila compacta subsp. fecunda and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Sida chrysocalyx scattered herbs over Thyridolepis multiculmis very open tussock grassland. Ridge Crest with moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	by hard l	noofed.					
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf an	d wood l	litter mainly und	ler shrubs.				
Species List:								
Stratum	Cover	Species	s within each st	ratum				
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia	minyura, Psydro	ax latifolia				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	<i>Acacia</i> Markey	<i>ramulosa</i> var. <i>lı</i> / & S. Dillon 299	inophylla, Acacia 4)	sibirica	, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A.		
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremop	ohila georgei					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Dodono fecundo Philoth	aea pachyneura a, Eremophila eca brucei subsi	, Eremophila ?ge glutinosa, Erer o. brevifolia, Pros	orgei, E nophila tanther	remophila compacta subsp. latrobei subsp. latrobei, a petrophila		
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	<i>Ptilotus</i> Foote 3	s obovatus var. 32), Solanum asl	obovatus, Sida hbyae	sp. gol	den calyces glabrous (H.N.		

**Tussock grasses** 2 - 10% *Thyridolepis multiculmis* 





Described by	SH	Date:	8/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	547084	mE	7015943	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust and much coarse gravel/pebbles.						
Rock Type	Granite						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees to scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. fuliginea and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Solanum lasiophyllum low scattered shrubs over Goodenia tenuiloba open herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazing by hard hoofed.						
Fire Age	None evident	Ι.					
Notes	Sparse leaf and wood litter under shrubs.						

## Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia citrinoviridis
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	<i>Eremophila georgei, Eremophila jucunda</i> subsp. <i>jucunda, Sida</i> sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis sp.
Herbs	10 - 30%	Goodenia tenuiloba, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus

222





Described by	SH	Date:	9/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	548350	mE	7015087	mN				
Habitat	Flat hill crest	Flat hill crest.							
Soil	Red-orange at surface.	Red-orange sandy slay with coarse gravel/pebbles and many stones/boulders and plates at surface.							
Rock Type	BIF, non-ban	derd ferro	ous, granite and quart						
Vegetation	Acacia aneu scattered tre high shrubla and Eremop herbs over M	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa scattered low trees to scattered trees over Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata open shrubland over Micromyrtus placoides and Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba. Open herbs over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Good								
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf and moderate wood litter under shrubs. <i>Micromyrtus placoides</i> population of ~40 on BIF.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Grevillea berryana					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Psydrax rigidula					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Micromyrtus placoides, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum ashbyae					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monachather paradoxus					
Herbs	10 - 30%	Goodenia tenuiloba					





Described by	SH	Date:	8/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	547503	mE	7016136	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain.							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay and clay, with loose surface soil.							
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia sibirio high open sl over Eremop low scattered tussock grass	Acacia sibirica scattered low trees over Acacia sibirica and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high open shrubland over Eremophila georgei and Eremophila forrestii open shrubland over Eremophila georgei, Eremophila forrestiiover and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low scattered shrubs over Calandrinia ?translucens scattered herbs over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Flat plain.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazin	g by hard	hoofed.					
Fire Age	>5 yrs							
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood l	litter under sh	rubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia sibirica, Psydrax suaveolens					
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sibirica					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila compacta					
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Senna glaucifolia					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila jucunda, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida ? calyxhymenia, Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum, Thryptomene decussata					
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella					
Herbs	< 2%	Calandrinia ?translucens					





Described by	JN	Date:	8/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	547824	mE	7016428	mN			
Habitat	Undulating plain with gentle slope.							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust.							
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open scrub over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Eremophila forrestii shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Aristida contorta closed tussock grassland. Undulating plain with gentle slope.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.							
Fire Age	>5 yrs							
Notes	Moderate leaf and wood litter under shrubs.							

### Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia sibirica
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila forrestii
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila ?georgei, Eremophila fraseri, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26), Sida calyxhymenia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida fibulifera, Sida spodochroma, Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	> 70%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis pergracilis

#### 722 WRE Site 15





Described by		Date:	8/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	547370	mE	7016820	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust, gravel/pebbles and many stones/boulders.						
Rock Type	Non-banded	ferrous.					
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Scaevola spinescens, Eremophila forrestii shrubs and Acacia aneura var. aneura low open shrubland over Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella open tussock grassland. Flat plain.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by goats, with tracks.						
Fire Age	None evident.						
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood li	tter under shrubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Chenopodium gaudichaudianum				
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, Scaevola spinescens, Sida calyxhymenia, Spartothamnella teucriiflora				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sclerolaena eriacantha, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella, Monachather paradoxus				
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis				
Herbs	< 2%	Bulbostylis barbata				





Described by		Date:	8/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	548863	mE	7016361	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain.							
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay and clay with loose surface soil.						
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia anuera var aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Ptilotus schwartzii low open shrubland over Ptilotus polystachyus open herbs over Monachather paradoxus open tussock grassland. Flat plain.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	l by hard l	noofed.					
Fire Age	None eviden	t.						
Notes	Moderate lea	af and spa	rse plant litter ເ	under shrubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila spuria, Ptilotus polystachyus, Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus, Ptilotus schwartzii





Described by	JN	Date:	8/11/2006	Ту	/pe:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	549879	mE	7017184		mN			
Habitat	Undulating plain with gentle slope.								
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust and loose surface soil.								
Rock Type	Few, non-banded ferrous rocks.								
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. ?intermedia scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. ?intermedia and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila granitica, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Solanum lasiophyllum low shrubland over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Undulating plain with gentle slope.								
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.								
Fire Age	>5 yrs								
Notes	Sparse wood and leaf litte under shrubs.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. ?intermedia, Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia cockertoniana, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila granitica, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	<i>Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila simulans</i> subsp. <i>simulans, Sida</i> sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena densiflora, Sclerolaena uniflora, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Thyridolepis multiculmis





Described by	SH	Date:	8/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	550527	mE	7017872	mN				
Habitat	Flat plain.	Flat plain.							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with loose surface soil.								
Rock Type	Nil								
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. intermedia and Acacia craspedocarpa low open woodland to open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Ptilotus polystachyus herbs over Aristida contorta open hummock grassland. Flat plain.								
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed by goats.								
Fire Age	None evident.								
Notes	Moderate leaf and sparse wood litter under shrubs.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia						
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Eremophila forrestii						
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Solanum ashbyae						
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Maireana ?villosa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida fibulifera						
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta						
Herbs	30 - 70%	Ptilotus polystachyus						



Described by	JN	Date:	8/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	551133	mE	7018310	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain.					
Soil	Red-orange clay, with cracked clay and crust at surface, and continuous surface plates/boulders.					
Rock Type	BIF, non-ban	ded iron.				
Vegetation	Acacia anuera var. fuliginea scattered low trees over Acacia anuera var. fuliginea and Acacia craspedocarpa high shrubland over Acacia anuera var. fuliginea and Eremophila fraseri open shrubland over Eremophila fraseri and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat plain.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.					
Fire Age	None evident.					
Notes	Leaf and wood litter mainly under shrubs.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia sibirica					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila fraseri, Eremophila georgei, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Abutilon macrum, Eremophila glutinosa, Spartothamnella teucriiflora					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Maireana triptera, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus					
Climbers	< 2%	Rhyncharrhena linearis					





Described by	JN	Date:	7/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	569663	mE	7027652	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain.							
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust, fine gravel and few coarse gravel/pebbles.						
Rock Type	BIF							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. intermedia low open woodland to scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Flat plain.							
Veg Condition	Excellent, gra	azed by ha	rd hoofed.					
Fire Age	>5 yrs							
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood l	itter under shrubs.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax suaveolens						
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila clarkei, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila georgei						
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Senna glaucifolia, Senna stricta, Spartothamnella teucriiflora						
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum lasiophyllum						
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta						
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis						
Herbs	< 2%	Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus						





Described by	SH	Date:	7/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	572647	mE	7026444	mN				
Habitat	Gentle hill sl	Gentle hill slope.							
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay, with many stones/boulders at surface.							
Rock Type	BIF, non-ban	BIF, non-banded ferrous							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Prostanthera petrophila open shrubland over Micromyrtus placoides and Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low open heath over Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi very open herbs over Austrostipa scabra scattered tussock grasses. Gentle hill slope.								
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed	Poor, grazed by hard hoofed.							
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident.							
Notes	Moderate le	af and spa	rse wood litter	under shrubs.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura						
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei ms (glaucous variant), Thryptomene decussata						
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila georgei, Prostanthera petrophila, Solanum ashbyae						
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Micromyrtus placoides						
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Austrostipa scabra, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella						
Herbs	2 - 10%	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Erymophyllum ramosum, Goodenia tenuiloba, Podolepis lessonii						





Described by	JN	Date:	7/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	571858	mE	7027290	mN			
Habitat	Undulating p	lain with g	gentle slope.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with surface crust and common coarse gravel and stones.							
Rock Type	BIF non-banded ferrous.							
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over Acacia aneura low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Acacia aneura shrubland over Eremophila forrestii low shrubland over Sida chrysocalyx very open herbs over Eragrostis eriopoda scattered tussock grasses. Undulating plain with gentle slope.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.							
Fire Age	None evident.							
Notes	Moderate to sparse leaf and wood litter.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax rigidula						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, Senna glaucifolia						
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila ?jucunda, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum, Spartothamnella teucriiflora						
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum						
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eragrostis eriopoda						





Described by	SH	Date:	7/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	572027	mE	7027663	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with loose soil at surface.						
Rock Type	Nil						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered low trees to scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. fuliginea and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open scrub over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii open shrubland over Eremophila granitica and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Ptilotus polystachyus open herbs over Eriachne helmsii very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.						
Fire Age	None evident	t.					
Notes	Moderate wo	ood and le	af litter under shrubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax rigidula, Santalum acuminatum						
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia rhodophloia						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila granitica, Senna stricta						
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Abutilon macrum, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii						
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum						
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eriachne helmsii						
Herbs	10 - 30%	Ptilotus polystachyus						



Described by	SH	Date:	7/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	573297	mE	7026981	mN		
Habitat	Gentle hill slo	pe.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with continuous coarse gravel/pebbles and rocks/boulders at surface.						
Rock Type	BIF, non-band	ded ferrou	is, granite.				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia cockertoniana high shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei open shrubland over Micromyrtus sulphurea and Dodonaea pachyneura low scattered shrubs over Goodenia tenuiloba open herbs over Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella scattered tussock grasses. Gentle hill slope, BIF, non-banded ferrous, granite.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	by hard h	oofed.				
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate wood and sparse leaf litter under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Grevillea berryana						
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia cockertoniana						
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia exocarpoides, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Senna sp. Meekatharra(E. Bailey 1-26), Solanum ashbyae, Thryptomene decussata						
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Dodonaea pachyneura, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Stenanthemum petraeum						
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella						
Herbs	10 - 30%	Goodenia tenuiloba. Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus						





Described by	SH	Date:	7/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	574151	mE	7027062	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with continuous surface plates/boulders						
Rock Type	BIF, ?calcrite and ?granite						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia cockertoniana and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Acacia cockertoniana and Thryptomene decussata shrubland over Thryptomene decussata and Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei shrubs low open shrubland over Ptilotus schwartzii very open herbs over Grass sp. scattered tussock grasses.						
Veg Condition	Good, with grazing by hard hoofed.						
Fire Age	None Evident	t					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter and w	ood litter under shruk	os.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia cockertoniana, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia exocarpoides, Eremophila forrestii, Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharra(E. Bailey 1-26)					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Dodonaea rigida, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Hemigenia tysonii, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida calyxhymenia, Stenanthemum petraeum					
Tussock grasses	< 2%	POACEAE sp., Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus					





Described by	JN	Date:	7/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	573935	mE	7026087	mN				
Habitat	Small, gentle to moderate hill slope.								
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with fine gravel and few surface stones/boulders at surface.								
Rock Type	Non-banded	ferrous, fe	errous laterite						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland to woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila georgei low open heath to shrubland. Small, gentle to moderate hill slope.								
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.								
Fire Age	None evident								
Notes	Moderate wood and leaf litter under shrubs.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees 10 - 30m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura					
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax suaveolens					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ?cockertoniana, Acacia grasbyi, Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla, Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila sp.					
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila simulans subsp. Simulans, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana georgei, Maireana sp., Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena eriacantha, Sida ? Calyxhymenia, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eragrostis eriopoda					
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis, Marsdenia australis					





Described by	JN	Date:	7/11/2006	5	Ту	vpe: (	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	574397	mE		7025	516 r	mΝ	
Habitat	Hill slope/cre	st with m	oderate slop	be.				
Soil	Red orange sandy clay/clay, with surface crust and continuous surface-level plates/stones/boulders.							
Rock Type	BIF, non-band	ded ferrou	us, granite.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia sp. Weld Range high shrubland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia speckii open heath over Senna glaucifolia, Eremophila georgei and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers over Austrostipa scabra very open tussock grassland. Hill slope/crest with moderate slope, BIF, non-banded ferrous, granite.							
Veg Condition	Excellent, grazed by hard hoofed.							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf and moderate to sparse wood litter under shrubs.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura						
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia speckii, Eremophila georgei, Senna glaucifolia						
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. Latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus						
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum						
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Austrostipa scabra						
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis						



Described by	JN	Date:	7/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20								
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range												
MGA Zone	50	572381	mE	7026342	mN									
Habitat	Moderate to	Moderate to steep hill slope.												
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay/clay, with surface crust, continuous stones/boulders and surface- level plates.													
Rock Type	BIF, non-ban	ded ferro	us.											
Vegetation	Acacia aneur var. aneura a open heath.	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland to low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Prostanthera petrophila shrubland over Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low open heath. Moderate to steep hill slope.												
Veg Condition	Excellent, gra	Excellent, grazed by hard hoofed.												
Fire Age	>5 yrs													
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd moder	ate to sparse w	vood litter mainly	under shr	Sparse leaf and moderate to sparse wood litter mainly under shrubs.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia pruinocarpa, Grevillea berryana						
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia exocarpoides, Acacia rhodophloia, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila georgei, Prostanthera petrophila, Thryptomene decussata						
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila ?margarethae, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Micromyrtus placoides, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Psydrax rigidula, Senna glaucifolia						
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii						





Described by	SH	Date:	6/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	576110	mE	7027945	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain, wit	th wash-ou	ıt.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay/clay with loose surface soil.							
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia aneura var argentea woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open scrub over Eremophila clarkei and Eremophila forrestii low open shrubland to shrubland over Sida chrysocalyx very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus scattered tussock grasses. Flat plain, with wash-out.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	l by hard h	oofed.					
Fire Age	None evident	t						
Notes	Moderate lea	af and pler	itiful wood litter unde	er shrubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. argentea, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa						
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans						
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila clarkei, Eremophila forrestii						
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Maireana sp., Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum lasiophyllum						
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Monachather paradoxus						
Herbs	2 - 10%	Myriocephalus guerinae, Ptilotus polystachyus						



Described by		Date:	6/11/2006	5	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	576975	mE	7	7027507	mN	
Habitat	Undulating p	lain with ${ m g}$	gentle slope				
Soil	Red-orange stones/bould	sandy o ers.	clay, with	surface o	crust, fin	e to c	coarse gravel, common
Rock Type	BIF, non-band	ded ferro	us.				
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia pruinocarpa scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia aneura var. intermedia open shrubland to open scrub over Eremophila forestii low open shrubland over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland. Undulating plain with gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	by hard l	noofed, with	n tracks.			
Fire Age	>5 yrs						
Notes	Sparse wood	and leaf l	itter under	shrubs.			

Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Corymbia lenziana
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Psydrax latifolia
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila clarkei
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila ?georgei, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila simulans subsp. Simulans, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis





Described by		Date:	6/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20				
Location	Weld Range									
MGA Zone	50 57	7572	mE	7028469	mN					
Habitat	Flat plain with v	vash ou	ıt.							
Soil	Red-orange san	ed-orange sandy clay, with loose surface soil.								
Rock Type										
Vegetation	Acacia cuthbertsonii and Acacia pruinocarpa woodland over Acacia cuthbertsonii and Acacia aneura var. intermedia low open forest over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Abutilon macrum very open herbs over Austrostipa scabra open tussock grassland.									
Veg Condition	Good.									
Fire Age	None evident									
Notes	Moderate leaf a	ind wo	od litter has been was	hed and de	eposited against shrub	s.				
Species List:										
Stratum	Cover	Speci	es within each stratu	m						
Trees < 10m	30 - 70%	Acaci cuthb	a aneura var. aneu ertsonii, Acacia pruine	ıra, Acacia ocarpa, Psy	aneura var. interm vdrax latifolia	redia, Acacia				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acaci	a ramulosa var. linopl	hylla						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Chen	opodium gaudichaudi	anum, Erer	nophila clarkei					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Abuti arten	lon macrum, Eremop nisioides subsp. helms	hila foliosi ii, Senna st	ssima, Eremophila fo ricta, Spartothamnella	rrestii, Senna ı teucriiflora				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Maire Sida f	ana sp., Prostanther ïbulifera, Solanum elli	a petrophil ipticum, So	a, Ptilotus obovatus v Ianum lasiophyllum	ar. obovatus,				
Tussock grasses	<b>10 - 30%</b>	Austr	ostipa scabra, Monac	hather pare	adoxus					
Climbers	< 2%	Mars	denia australis							
Herbs	2 - 10%	Eupho	orbia boophthona							





Described by		Date:	6/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20				
Location	Weld Range									
MGA Zone	50	578426	mE	7028712	mN					
Habitat	Undulating p	lain with g	gentle slope.							
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust.								
Rock Type										
Vegetation	Acacia aneur aneura and Eremophila polystachyus Undulating p	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland to open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila granitica and Eremophila foliosissima low shrubland over Ptilotus polystachyus very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus. Open tussock grassland. Undulating plain with gentle slope.								
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	l by hard l	noofed, with tr	racks.						
Fire Age	>5 yrs									
Notes	Moderate to	sparse lea	af and wood lit	tter under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax suaveolens						
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Grevillea nematophylla subsp. supraplana						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila granitica						
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Abutilon macrum, Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Eremophila foliosissima, Eremophila forrestii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus						
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana villosa, Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida fibulifera, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum						
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Monachather paradoxus						
Herbs	10 - 30%	Ptilotus polystachyus						





Described by		Date:	6/11/2006	Type:	Q 20x20		
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	578288	mE	7029509	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange sa	andy clay	with loose sur	face soil.			
Rock Type							
Vegetation	Acacia aneur ramulosa var. Eremophila f polystachyus tussock grassl	a var. <i>ii linophy.</i> o <i>rrestii</i> and <i>Sid</i> a and.	ntermedia scat Ila high shrubla and <i>Solanum</i> fibulifera very	ttered low trees and over <i>Eremop</i> <i>lasiophyllum</i> low open herbs over <i>l</i>	to scattered trees over Acacia hila forrestii open shrubland over scattered shrubs over Ptilotus Monachather paradoxus very open		
Veg Condition							
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse wood and lead litter under shrubs.						
Species List:							
Stratum	Cover	Species	s within each s	tratum			
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia	aneura var. int	ermedia, Psydrax	latifolia		
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia	<i>ramulosa</i> var. I	inophylla			
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Chenop	oodium gaudich	naudianum, Eremo	phila forrestii, Eremophila spuria		
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Aristido Solanui	a holathera va m lasiophyllum	r. holathera, Gre	villea inconspicua, Sida fibulifera,		
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monac	hather parado>	kus			
Climbers	< 2%	Rhynch	arrhena lineari	s			
Herbs	2 - 10%	Cuscuto	a epithymum, P	Ptilotus obovatus v	ar. obovatus, Ptilotus polystachyus		



Described by		Date:	6/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	578433	mE	7029011	mN			
Habitat	Gentle hill slope/crest.							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with continuous surface-level plates/boulders.							
Rock Type	BIF, non-banded ferrous.							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia aff. quadrimarginea low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Thryptomene decussata scattered tall shrubs over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei open shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba very open herbs over Eriachne mucronata (desert form) open tussock grassland. Gentle hill slope/crest.							
Veg Condition	Good.							
Fire Age	None evident	t.						
Notes	Moderate lea found on BIF.	af and sp	arse wood litter und	ler shrubs.	6 Prostanthera petro	ophila plants		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aff. quadrimarginea, Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea petiolaris, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Solanum ashbyae
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Grevillea berryana, Prostanthera petrophila, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94), Sida fibulifera, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Eriachne mucronata (desert form), Eriachne pulchella
Herbs	2 - 10%	Goodenia tenuiloba




Described by		Date:	6/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	579045	mE	7028527	mN		
Habitat	Drainage are	Drainage area with gentle slope and no distinct channels.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay/clay, with surface crust and loose soil.						
Rock Type							
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered tall trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland to open forest over Acacia linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila georgei shrubland over Eremophila forestii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Glycine canescens climbers and Sida fibulifera open herbs over Thyridolepis multiculmis very open tussock grassland. Drainage area with gentle slope and no distinct channels.						
Veg Condition	Good.						
Fire Age	>5 yrs						
Notes	Moderate leaf and wood litter under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa					
Trees < 10m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Psydrax latifolia					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Eremophila clarkei, Eremophila clarkei, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Abutilon macrum, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Spartothamnella teucriiflora					
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Hibiscus burtonii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna sp. Meekatharra(E. Bailey 1-26), Sida fibulifera, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Thyridolepis multiculmis					
Climbers	< 2%	Glycine canescens					
Herbs	< 2%	Oxalis perennans					



Described by		Date:	6/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	580021	mE	7028822	mN		
Habitat	Undulating plain.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with surface crust, and common coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders.						
Rock Type	BIF, non-banded ferrous.						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Acacia aneura var. aneura low open shrubland and Maireana sp. low shrubland over Sida fibulifera very open herbs over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Undulating plain.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.						
Fire Age	None evident.						
Notes	Sparse leaf ar	nd wood l	itter under shrubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila clarkei
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Spartothamnella teucriiflora
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana sp., Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida fibulifera, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus
Climbers	2 - 10%	Duperreya commixta



Described by		Date:	6/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	580038	mE	7029085	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust and scattered fine gravel.						
Rock Type	BIF.						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia aneura var. intermedia low woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat plain.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.						
Fire Age	None evident.						
Notes	Sparse wood and leaf litter under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Eremophila clarkei, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Abutilon macrum, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Spartothamnella teucriiflora
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Eremophila georgei, Hibiscus burtonii, Maireana georgei, Maireana tomentosa, Maireana triptera, Maireana villosa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	2 - 10%	Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus





Described by		Date:	6/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	580335	mE	7028443	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain.					
Soil	Red-orange s surface.	andy clay	y, with much	fine gravel, loose	soil and coarse gr	avel/pebbles at
Rock Type	BIF, non-band	led ferro	us, granite, qu	artz.		
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii low open shrubland to shrubland over Ptilotus schwartzii very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus open tussock grassland. Flat plain, BIF, non-banded ferrous, granite, quartz.					
Veg Condition	Good.	Good.				
Fire Age	None evident.					
Notes	Sparse wood and leaf litter mainly under shrubs.					
Species List:						
Stratum	Cover	Species	s within each s	stratum		
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia berryar	aneura var. na	aneura, Acacia	aneura var. interr	nedia, Grevillea
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia	<i>ramulosa</i> var.	linophylla		
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremop	ohila forrestii			
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremop	ohila georgei			
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	<i>Ptilotus</i> sp. golo	s <i>schwartzii, S</i> den calyces gla	<i>ida</i> sp. dark green abrous (H.N. Foote	fruits (S. van Leeu 32) <i>, Solanum lasiop</i>	wen 2260), Sida ohyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Monac	hather parado	oxus		
Herbs	2 - 10%	Ptilotus	s polystachyus			



Described by		Date:	6/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	581164	mE	7028342	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain and creek bank.							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay/clay with loose surface soil.							
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland to woodland over Acacia sibirica and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open scrub over Eremophila forrestii shrubs and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open heath over Eremophila forrestii and Ptilotus obovatus var obovatus low shrubland over Abutilon otocarpum open herbs over Eragrostis dielsii and Aristida contorta closed tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed by hard hoofed.							
Fire Age	None evident.							
Notes	Moderate leaf and wood litter under shrubs.							

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Trees 10 - 30m	10 - 30%	Brachychiton gregorii			
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Brachychiton gregorii			
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia ?cockertoniana, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sibirica			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Eremophila forrestii			
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Abutilon otocarpum, Eremophila ?georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Grevillea deflexa			
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Abutilon sp., Eremophila georgei, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Sida fibulifera, Solanum lasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	> 70%	Aristida contorta, Austrostipa scabra, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eragrostis dielsii			
Herbs	10 - 30%	Calandrinia ?translucens, Lobelia heterophylla, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus			

#### 722 WRE Site 43



Described by		Date:	4/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50 5	81723	mE	7030241	mN	
Habitat	Undulating plai	n with ${ m g}$	gentle slope.			
Soil	Brown loam/cla	ay loam	with hummu	s and loose soil at	surface. I	Few rocks.
Rock Type	Sparse calcrete	parse calcrete.				
Vegetation	Eucalyptus lucc low shrubland over Ptilotus grassland. Und	Eucalyptus lucasii low open forest to woodland over Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia ow shrubland to open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus herbs over Austrostipa scabra open tussock grassland. Undulating plain with gentle slope.				
Veg Condition	Excellent, graze	ed by ha	rd hoofed.			
Fire Age	>5 yrs					
Notes	Widespread an	d plenti	iful leaf and w	ood litter.		
Species List:						
Stratum	Cover	Specie	es within each	n stratum		
Trees < 10m	30 - 70%	Eucaly	ptus lucasii			
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Eremo	ophila longifol	ia		
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Pimele filifolie	ea microceph a	ala subsp. micro	cephala,	Senna artemisioides subsp.
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	<i>Abutil</i> sp., Pt	on macrum, C ilotus obovati	Chenopodium gau us var. obovatus	dichaudia	num, Hibiscus sp., Maireana
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Dissoc lasiop	carpus parac hyllum	loxus, Ptilotus	obovatus	var. obovatus, Solanum

- **Tussock grasses** 10 30% Austrostipa scabra, Enneapogon caerulescens
- Climbers < 2% Marsdenia australis
- Herbs 30 70% Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus, Zygophyllum eremaeum





Described by		Date:	4/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	582477	mE	7030165	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with cracked clay surface and loose soil.					
Rock Type							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia tetragonophylla and Eremophila galeata high open shrubland over Eremophila galeata open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low scattered shrubs over Ptilotus aervoides open herbs over Eragrostis pergracilis and Aristida contorta tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	l by hard l	noofed.				
Fire Age	None evident.						
Notes	Sparse wood	and leaf l	itter under shr	ubs.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila galeata
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Chenopodium gaudichaudianum
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila oldfieldii subsp. angustifolia, Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens, Eragrostis pergracilis
Herbs	10 - 30%	Euphorbia sp., Ptilotus aervoides





Described by		Date:	4/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	582532	mE	7029890	mN			
Habitat	Crest of a sm	all gently	sloped hill (moun	d).				
Soil	Yellow/orange sandy clay/cloay loam, with surface crust, fine gravel and common coarse							
Rock Type	gravel/pebbles and small rocks.							
Vegetation	BIF, calcrete, granite.							
Veg Condition	Acacia burkittii high shrubland over Eremophila falcata and Acacia burkittii shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia low open shrubland over Austrostipa scabra tussock grassland. Crest of a small gently sloped hill (mound), BIF, calcrete, granite.							
Fire Age	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.							
Notes	None eviden	t.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia burkittii					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	<i>Eremophila falcata, Senna artemisioides</i> subsp. <i>filifolia, Senna</i> sp. Meekatharra(E. Bailey 1-26)					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila fraseri, Eremophila subfloccosa subsp. lanata, Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Scaevola tomentosa, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Austrostipa scabra					





Described by		Date:	5/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	583721	mE	7029312	mN				
Habitat	Flat plain with minor channel.								
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with cracked clay surface and loose soil.								
Rock Type									
Vegetation	Acacia sibirica scattered low trees over Acacia tetragonophylla and Eremophila galeata open to high open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low scattered shrubs over Ptilotus aervoides very open herbs over Aristida contorta tussock grassland.								
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed by hard hoofed.								
Fire Age	None evident.								
Notes	Negligable leaf and sparse wood litter under shubs.								

### Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sibirica, Acacia sibirica
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila galeata, Rhagodia eremaea
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Abutilon macrum
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis leptocarpa
Herbs	2 - 10%	Ptilotus aervoides, Streptoglossa cylindriceps
Epiphytes	< 2%	Amyema fitzgeraldii

722 WRE Site 47





Described by		Date:	5/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20				
Location	Weld Range									
MGA Zone	50	584163	mE	7028555	mN					
Habitat	Undulating p	lain with o	complex minor c	hannels on a ger	ntle slope.					
Soil	Red-orange sand/sandy clay, with a surface crust, fine gravel, loose soil and coarse pebbles/gravel.									
Rock Type	Non-banded	Non-banded ferrous. Few.								
Vegetation	Acacia aneur shrubland to low scattere herbs over minor chann	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland to woodland over Acacia tetragonophylla open shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila fraseri and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low scattered shrubs over Duperreya sericea climbers over Abutilon macrum very open herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Undulating plain with complex minor channels on a gentle slope.								
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	d by hard l	noofed.							
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident.								
Notes	Moderate le	af and wo	od litter under sl	hrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Eremophila longifolia
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Leptomeria preissiana
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Abutilon macrum, Alternanthera denticulata, Eremophila fraseri, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Maireana sp., Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eragrostis australasica
Climbers	2 - 10%	Amyema fitzgeraldii, Duperreya sericea, Glycine canescens, Glycine sp.
Herbs	2 - 10%	Parietaria cardiostegia



Described by		Date:	5/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	581863	mE	7027164	mN			
Habitat	Small hill cres	st.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with surface crust, and continuous coarse gravel/pebbles, stones and surface							
Rock Type	plates/boulders at surface.							
Vegetation	Non-banded ferrous.							
Veg Condition	Acacia aneura var. aneura shrubland to high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata low shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba scattered herbs over Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella very open tussock grassland. Small hill crest.							
Fire Age	Excellent, grazed by hard hoofed.							
Notes	>5 yrs							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia rhodophloia					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila georgei, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Senna sp. Meekatharra(E. Bailey 1-26)					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum ashbyae, Stenanthemum petraeum, Thryptomene decussata					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella, Monachather paradoxus					
Herbs	< 2%	Goodenia tenuiloba					





Described by		Date:	5/11/200	6	Type:	Q	20x20				
Location	Weld Range										
MGA Zone	50	580134	mE		7025220	mN					
Habitat	Flat plain.										
Soil	Red-orange sa	Red-orange sandy clay with loose surface soil.									
Rock Type											
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla scattered low trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Rhyncharrhena linearis climbers over Sida fibulifera very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland. Flat plain.										
Veg Condition	Good.										
Fire Age	None evident.										
Notes	Sparse leaf an	d wood l	litter mainly	y under shru	ubs.						
Species List:											
Stratum	Cover	Specie	es within ea	ach stratum	1						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacio latifol	a aneura ia	var. <i>aneur</i> o	a, Acacia	ramι	ılosa var. linophylla, Psydrax				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacio	a ramulosa	var. linophy	ılla						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Eremo	ophila clark	ei							
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Abutil forres	on oxycarp tii, Eremop	oum subsp. hila forresti	prostratu i, Eremopl	m, Ere hila sir	emophila exilifolia, Eremophila nulans subsp. simulans				
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	<i>Eremo</i> var. <i>o</i> fruits	ophila mach bovatus, So (S. van Leei	kinlayi subs clerolaena ( uwen 2260)	p. spathul convexula, , Solanum	ata, N Sida lasiop	1aireana sp., Ptilotus obovatus fibulifera, Sida sp. dark green ohyllum				
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Cymb parad	opogon d oxus	ambiguus,	Enneapo	gon	caerulescens, Monachather				
Climbers	< 2%	Rhync	harrhena li	nearis							

#### 722 WRE Site 50





Described by		Date:	5/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	579893	mE	7025318	mN				
Habitat	Lower gentle	Lower gentle hill slope.							
Soil	Orange sand	Orange sandy clay with surface crust and common fine to coarse gravel/pebbles.							
Rock Type	BIF.	BIF.							
Vegetation	<i>Grevillea berryana</i> scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. <i>intermedi</i> a low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. <i>intermedi</i> a open scrub over Acacia ramulosa var. <i>linophylla</i> and <i>Grevillea berryana</i> shrubland over <i>Eremophila forrestii</i> low shrubland over <i>Sida chrysocalyx</i> very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus scattered tussock grasses. Lower gentle hill slope.								
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.								
Fire Age	>5 yrs								
Notes	Sparse leaf and moderate wood litter under shrubs.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Grevillea berryana						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	remophila forrestii, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans						
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila jucunda, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna glaucifolia						
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum						
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus						



Described by		Date:	5/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	578949	mE	7025479	mN			
Habitat	Tall ridge cre	st with ste	ep slope.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with continuous coarse gravel, rocks/boulders and surface level plates.							
Rock Type	BIF							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland to scattered low trees over Thryptomene decussata shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Thryptomene decussata low open heath over Austrostipa scabra very open tussock grassland. Tall ridge crest with steep slope.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.							
Fire Age	>5 yrs							
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood l	itter under shrubs.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei					
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Austrostipa scabra, Eriachne helmsii					





Described by	SH	Date:	5/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	578405	mE	7024722	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with cracked clay surface and many surface stones/boulders.						
Rock Type	BIF, non-banded ferrous						
Vegetation	Acacia cockertoniana and Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high open shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Eremophila georgei low scattered shrubs to scattered shrubs over Eremophila jucunda low scattered shrubs over Ptilotus schwartzii scattered herbs over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Flat plain.						
Veg Condition	Good.						
Fire Age	None evident	Ī					
Notes	Sparse leaf an	nd modera	ate wood litter under	shrubs.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia cockertoniana, Grevillea berryana						
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia cockertoniana, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei						
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila georgei						
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila jucunda, Ptilotus schwartzii						
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta						
Herbs	< 2%	Calandrinia ?translucens, Myriocephalus guerinae						





Described by	JN	Date:	5/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	576712	mE	7024044	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy plain, with surface crust and loose soil. Common coarse gravel and boulders are found at surface.					
Rock Type	BIF, non-banded ferrous.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland to scattered low trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Acacia aneura var. aneura low open shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat plain.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.					
Fire Age	None evident	t.				
Notes						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Psydrax latifolia						
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla						
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei						
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila jucunda, Maireana georgei, Maireana sp., Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum						
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus						
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis						
Herbs	< 2%	Myriocephalus guerinae						





Described by	JN	Date:	5/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	576288	mE	7024069	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain.					
Soil	Red-orange s	sandy clay	, with surface crust.			
Rock Type						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea open forest over Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii open heath over Eremophila forrestii and Eremophila foliosissima low shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers and Sida fibulifera open herbs over Monachather paradoxus open tussock grassland. Flat plain.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	d by hard h	noofed, with tracks.			
Fire Age	>5 yrs					
Notes	Moderate w	ood and le	af litter under shrubs			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia pruinocarpa
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia minyura, Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Eremophila clarkei, Eremophila clarkei, Eremophila forrestii, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila foliosissima, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila georgei, Maireana sp., Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida fibulifera, Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Monachather paradoxus, Thyridolepis multiculmis
Climbers	2 - 10%	Marsdenia australis
Herbs	10 - 30%	Lobelia heterophylla, Ptilotus polystachyus var. polystachyus





Described by	SH	Date:	5/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	576512	mE	7023213	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain					
Soil						
Rock Type						
Vegetation	Grevillea berryana scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia aneura var. fuliginea high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii scattered shrubs over Eremophila forrestii , Eremophila foliosissima, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland.					
Veg Condition						
Fire Age						

Notes

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Grevillea berryana, Psydrax rigidula, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila foliosissima, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus





Described by	SH	Date:	5/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	576631	mE	7022957	mN				
Habitat	Minor chann	Minor channel surrounded by relatively bare clay pan.							
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay, with surface crust and loose soil							
Rock Type									
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Grevillea berryana scattered low trees to scattered trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa open scrub over Eremophila forrestii shrubland over Eremophila foliosissima low shrubland over Ptilotus schwartzii very open herbs over Thyridolepis multiculmis very open tussock grassland. Minor channel surrounded by relatively bare clay pan.								
Veg Condition	Good								
Fire Age	None eviden	it.							
Notes	Moderate le	af and spa	rse wood litter under	r shrubs.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Grevillea berryana, Psydrax suaveolens					
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia minyura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila clarkei, Eremophila forrestii					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila foliosissima					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila ?jucunda, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Thyridolepis multiculmis					
Herbs	2 - 10%	Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata					





Described by	JN	Date:	10/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	555361	mE	7018447	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain.							
Soil	Red-orange	sandy clay	with surface c	rust, fine gravel ar	nd loose soil.			
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland to scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open scrub over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia craspedocarpa open shrubland over Eremophila punicea low shrubland over Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus scattered herbs over Eragrostis pergracilis open tussock grassland. Flat plain.							
Veg Condition	Good, graze	d by hard l	hoofed, with tr	acks.				
Fire Age	>5 yrs							
Notes	Sparse leaf a	ind moder	ate wood litter	r under shrubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura				
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura				
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Rhagodia eremaea				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila punicea, Maireana lobiflora, Senna stricta, Spartothamnella teucriiflora				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila falcata, Eremophila latrobei subsp. filiformis, Ptilotus gaudichaudii var. gaudichaudii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena densiflora, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis pergracilis				
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis				
Herbs	< 2%	Calandrinia translucens, Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus				





Described by	SH	Date:	10/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	556308	mE	7018551	mN	
Habitat	Salt pan					
Soil	Red-orange s	sandy clay	with loose soil at su	urface.		
Rock Type						
Vegetation	Cratystylis subspinescens high shrubland over Melaleuca stereophloia and Cratystylis subspinescens low open shrubland to shrubland over Halosarcia indica subsp. leiostachya and Frankenia laxiflora low shrubland over Podolepis capillaris very open herbs over Eragrostis pergracilis open tussock grassland. Salt pan.					
Veg Condition	Good.	Good.				
Fire Age	None eviden	t.				
Notes	Sparse wood	l and leaf l	itter under shrubs.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Leptomeria preissiana, Melaleuca stereophloia
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Cratystylis subspinescens, Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra, Eremophila glabra subsp. tomentosa, Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia, Muehlenbeckia florulenta
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Atriplex sp., Atriplex vesicaria, Eremophila georgei
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Frankenia laxiflora, Podolepis capillaris, Pterocaulon sphacelatum, Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus, Tecticornia doleiformis, Tecticornia indica subsp. leiostachya
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Eragrostis pergracilis



Described by		Date:	10/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Rang	e					
MGA Zone	50	555937	mE	7016482	mN		
Habitat	Creek bank	and bed wi	ith gentle slope.				
Soil	Red-orange gravel/peb	e sand/sand bles, stones	dy clay with sur and surface level	face crust an plates/boulde	d loos rs.	e soil. Continuous coarse	
Rock Type	BIF, non-ba	nded ferro	us.				
Vegetation	Acacia ane over Acaci Meekathar Eremophila scattered h and bed wi	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland to woodland over Acacia sibirica low woodland over Acacia sibirica and Acacia sp. Weld Range high open shrubland over Senna sp. Meekatharra and Eremophila georgei open shrubland over Senna sp. Meekatharra, Eremophila forrestii and Calytrix desolata low open shrubland over Pluchea dentex scattered herbs over Cymbopogon ambiguus very open tussock grassland. Creek bank and bed with gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Good, graz	ed by hard l	hoofed				
Fire Age	?						
Notes	Sparse leaf	and moder	ate wood litter ma	ainly under shr	ubs.		
Species List:							
Stratum	Cover	Species w	ithin each stratum	1			
Trace 10 20m							
Trees 10 - 30m	10 - 30%	Acacia ane	eura var. aneura, G	Grevillea berryd	ana		
Trees 10 - 30m	10 - 30% 10 - 30%	Acacia ane Acacia ane 2994), Gre	eura var. aneura, G eura var. aneura, A evillea berryana	Grevillea berryo Acacia sibirica	ana , Acacio	a sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. D	
Trees 10 - 30m Trees < 10m Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30% 10 - 30% 2 - 10%	Acacia ane Acacia ane 2994), Gre Acacia ran	eura var. aneura, G eura var. aneura, A evillea berryana nulosa var. linophy	Grevillea berryo Acacia sibirica vlla	ana , Acacio	a sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. D	
Trees 10 - 30m Trees < 10m Shrubs > 2m Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30% 10 - 30% 2 - 10% 2 - 10%	Acacia and Acacia and 2994), Gre Acacia ran Eremophil Bailey 1-20	eura var. aneura, G eura var. aneura, d evillea berryana nulosa var. linophy la exilifolia, Erema la macmillaniana, s 6)	Grevillea berryo Acacia sibirica vlla ophila forrest Senna artemis	ana , Acacio ii, Eren ioides s	a sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. D nophila georgei, Eremophila glutin subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharr	
Trees 10 - 30m Trees < 10m Shrubs > 2m Shrubs 1 - 2m Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30% 10 - 30% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10%	Acacia and Acacia and 2994), Gre Acacia ran Eremophil Eremophil Bailey 1-20 Calytrix da Senna arte	eura var. aneura, G eura var. aneura, A evillea berryana nulosa var. linophy la exilifolia, Erem la macmillaniana, S 6) esolata, Ptilotus c emisioides subsp. x	Grevillea berryo Acacia sibirica Vlla ophila forrest Senna artemis obovatus var.	ana , Acacio ii, Eren ioides s obovat , Sparto	a sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. D nophila georgei, Eremophila glutin subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharr sus, Senna artemisioides subsp. filif othamnella teucriiflora	
Trees 10 - 30m Trees < 10m Shrubs > 2m Shrubs 1 - 2m Shrubs < 1m Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30% 10 - 30% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10%	Acacia and Acacia and 2994), Gre Acacia ran Eremophil Bailey 1-20 Calytrix de Senna arte Ptilotus ob	eura var. aneura, G eura var. aneura, G evillea berryana nulosa var. linophy la exilifolia, Erem la macmillaniana, G 6) esolata, Ptilotus c emisioides subsp. x	Grevillea berryo Acacia sibirica Vlla ophila forrest Senna artemis obovatus var. artemisioides tus, Solanum l	ana , Acacio ii, Eren ioides s obovat , Sparto asiophy	a sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. D nophila georgei, Eremophila glutin subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharr sus, Senna artemisioides subsp. filif othamnella teucriiflora	
Trees 10 - 30m Trees < 10m Shrubs > 2m Shrubs 1 - 2m Shrubs < 1m Shrubs < 0.5m Tussock grasses	10 - 30% 10 - 30% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10%	Acacia and Acacia and 2994), Gre Acacia ran Eremophil Bailey 1-20 Calytrix de Senna arte Ptilotus ob Aristida co	eura var. aneura, G eura var. aneura, A evillea berryana nulosa var. linophy la exilifolia, Erem la macmillaniana, S 6) esolata, Ptilotus o emisioides subsp. x povatus var. obova	Grevillea berryo Acacia sibirica Illa ophila forrest Senna artemis obovatus var. cartemisioides tus, Solanum l a scabra, Cymi	ana , Acacio ii, Eren ioides s obovat , Sparto asiophy bopogo	a sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. D nophila georgei, Eremophila glutin subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharr sus, Senna artemisioides subsp. filif othamnella teucriiflora /llum	
Trees 10 - 30m Trees < 10m Shrubs > 2m Shrubs 1 - 2m Shrubs < 1m Shrubs < 0.5m Tussock grasses Climbers	10 - 30% 10 - 30% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% < 2%	Acacia and Acacia and 2994), Gre Acacia ran Eremophil Bailey 1-20 Calytrix de Senna arte Ptilotus ob Aristida co Duperreya	eura var. aneura, G eura var. aneura, G evillea berryana nulosa var. linophy la exilifolia, Erem la macmillaniana, 5 6) esolata, Ptilotus o emisioides subsp. x povatus var. obova potorta, Austrostip	Grevillea berryo Acacia sibirica Vlla ophila forrest Senna artemis obovatus var. cartemisioides tus, Solanum l a scabra, Cymu ia australis	ana , Acacio ii, Eren ioides s obovat , Sparto asiophy bopogo	a sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. D nophila georgei, Eremophila glutin subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharn sus, Senna artemisioides subsp. filif othamnella teucriiflora yllum on ambiguus, Monachather paradoxu	





Described by	JN	Date:	10/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	556788	mE	7016839	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain, ap	proximate	ely 30m to the south-	west of a cr	eek bed.	
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay/clay, with loose soil at surface.				
Rock Type						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura and Hakea lorea subsp. lorea scattered trees over Hakea lorea subsp. lorea low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Eremophila forrestii high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii, Senna sp. Meekatharra and Senna artemisioides subsp. sturtii open heath over Senna artemisioides subsp. sturtii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Solanum lasiophyllum low shrubland over Glycine canescens climbers over Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum very open herbs over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Flat plain, approximately 30m to the south-west of a creek bed.					
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed	by hard h	oofed.			
Fire Age	None eviden	t.				
Notes	Moderate lea	af and spa	rse wood litter unde	r shrubs.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Hakea lorea subsp. lorea			
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura, Acacia craspedocarpa, Hakea lorea subsp. Lorea			
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila macmillaniana, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia			
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila granitica, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii, Senna sp. Meekatharra(E. Bailey 1-26)			
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna sp. Meekatharrax artemisiodes subsp. x sturtii, Solanum lasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eragrostis lanipes			
Climbers	< 2%	Glycine canescens			



Described by	JN	Date:	10/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	557395	mE	7018295	mN	
Habitat	Flat flood plai	in.				
Soil	Orange sandy	/ clay with	surface crust, loose s	oil and coa	rse gravel.	
Rock Type	Non-banded	ferrous, ca	alcrete.			
Vegetation	Pittosporum angustifolium scattered low trees to scattered trees over Melaleuca stereophloia scattered tall shrubs over Cratystylis subspinescens and Melaleuca stereophloia shrubland over Melaleuca stereophloia, Cratystylis subspinescens, Halosarcia indica subsp. leiostachya and Frankenia laxiflora low open heath over Sonchus oleraceus scattered herbs over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Flat flood plain.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.					
Fire Age	None evident.					
Notes	Sparse wood	and leaf li	tter under shrubs.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Pittosporum angustifolium
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Cratystylis subspinescens, Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra, Leptomeria preissiana, Melaleuca stereophloia, Muehlenbeckia florulenta
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Atriplex nummularia, Frankenia laxiflora, Maireana sp.3, Tecticornia indica subsp. leiostachya
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Atriplex bunburyana, Frankenia laxiflora, Lawrencia chrysoderma, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena patenticuspis, Sida fibulifera
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis dielsii
Herbs	< 2%	Brachyscome ciliaris var. ciliaris, Centaurium clementii, Cullen cinereum, Sonchus oleraceus, Swainsona laciniata





Described by	SH	Date:	10/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	558162	mE	7019250	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain. ?Se	eep samph	nire flat.			
Soil	Red-orange a	nd white	sandy clays and clays.	Cracked cl	ay and loose soil at su	rface.
Rock Type						
Vegetation	<i>Eucalyptus gypsophil</i> a low woodland to woodland over <i>Cratystylis subspinescens</i> shrubland to scattered tall shrubs over <i>Lawrencia chrysoderma</i> , <i>Cratystylis subspinescens</i> and <i>Atriplex bunburyan</i> a low shrubland over <i>Angianthus</i> tomentosus open herbs over <i>Eragrostis dielsii</i> tussock grassland. Flat plain. ?Seep samphire flat.					
Veg Condition	Good.					
Fire Age	>5 yrs					
Notes	Sparse leaf ar	nd wood li	tter under trees.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Trees 10 - 30m	10 - 30%	Eucalyptus carnei			
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	ucalyptus carnei			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Cratystylis subspinescens, Eremophila pantonii, Leptomeria preissiana, Scaevola spinescens,Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia			
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glabra subsp. tomentosa, Pittosporum angustifolium			
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Atriplex bunburyana, Atriplex vesicaria, Frankenia laxiflora, Lawrencia chrysoderma, Pittosporum angustifolium, Tecticornia doleiformis, Zygophyllum aurantiacum			
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Eragrostis dielsii			
Herbs	10 - 30%	Angianthus tomentosus, Goodenia lyrata, Minuria cunninghamii, Rhodanthe humboldtiana			





Described by	JN	Date:	10/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	558753	mE	7019308	mN			
Habitat	Flat flood pla	ain area, s	easonally inundated.					
Soil	Red-orange	sandy clay	, with surface crust.					
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia aneu over Acacia stereophloia shrubland o open tussoci	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea and Grevillea striata low open woodland to open woodland over Acacia craspedocarpa and Acacia tetragonophylla high shrubland over Melaleuca stereophloia shrubland over Melaleuca stereophloia and Scaevola spinescens low open shrubland over Goodenia sp. Weld Range open herbs over Eragrostis pergracilis very open tussock grassland. Flat flood plain area, seasonally inundated.						
Veg Condition	Good, graze	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.						
Fire Age	None evider	it.						
Notes	Moderate w	ood and le	eaf litter under shrubs	i.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees 10 - 30m	2 - 10%	Grevillea striata				
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Grevillea striata				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila longifolia, Grevillea nematophylla subsp. supraplana, Melaleuca stereophloia				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus, Senna stricta				
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia, Scaevola spinescens				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Alternanthera denticulata				
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eragrostis pergracilis, Eriachne flaccida				
Climbers	< 2%	Lysiana murrayi				
Herbs	10 - 30%	Bergia perennis subsp. exigua, Calocephalus multiflorus, Goodenia berringbinensis, Goodenia tenuiloba, Marsilea sp.				





722	WRF	Site	64
122	<b>AAI/</b>	JILL	

Described by	SH	Date:	10/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	558818	mE	7019727	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay.					
Rock Type							
Vegetation	<i>Grevillea striata</i> and <i>Acacia ramulosa</i> var. <i>ramulosa</i> low open woodland to scattered trees over <i>Grevillea nem</i> atophylla subsp. <i>supraplana</i> and <i>Acacia tetragonophylla</i> high open shrubland over <i>Scaevola</i> spinescens open shrubland over <i>Ptilotus divaricatus</i> var. <i>divaricatus</i> low shrubland over <i>Calocephalus multiflorus</i> herbs over <i>Eriachne flaccida</i> open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks. Large quantities of litter scattered around due to proximity to dump.						
Fire Age	?						
Notes	Plentiful leaf litter and moderate wood litter under shrubs.						
Species List:							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Grevillea striata
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Eremophila longifolia, Grevillea striata
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia victoriae, Grevillea nematophylla subsp. supraplana, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Scaevola spinescens
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Austrostipa elegantissima, Eriachne flaccida
Climbers	< 2%	Amyema fitzgeraldii
Herbs	< 2%	Alternanthera denticulata, Calocephalus multiflorus



Described by	JN	Date:	12/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	560117	mE	7020303	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain.							
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with surface crust, fine gravel and loose soil.						
Rock Type	Non-banded	Non-banded ferrous.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland to scattered trees over Acacia craspedocarpa and Acacia aneura var. aneura open shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila oppositifolia subsp. angustifolia low shrubland over Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella open tussock grassland. Flat plain.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.							
Fire Age	None-evident.							
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd moder	ate wood litter	under shrubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Chenopodium gaudichaudianum
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. filiformis, Eremophila oppositifolia subsp. angustifolia, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana melanocoma, Maireana sp.2, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella
Climbers	< 2%	Lysiana murrayi
Herbs	< 2%	Bergia perennis subsp. exigua, Goodenia tenuiloba, Schoenia cassiniana





Described by	SH	Date:	12/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	560739	mE	7020177	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange sa	andy clay	, with loose surfac	e soil and anin	nal excrement.		
Rock Type							
Vegetation	Acacia aneur ramulosa var. Senna artemi obovatus and climbers over and Monacha	Acacia aneura var. intermedia low open woodland to open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla scattered shrubs to open scrub over Eremophila glutinosa and Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii low open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Solanum lasiophyllum low scattered shrubs over Marsdenia australis climbers over Ptilotus polystachyus var. polystachyus open herbs over Aristida contorta and Monachather paradoxus open tussock grassland.					
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed b	by hard h	oofed.				
Fire Age	None evident.	None evident.					
Notes	Sparse leaf ar grazed by goa	Sparse leaf and moderate wood litter mainly under shrubs. The area has been heavily grazed by goats, which were not disturbed by human proximity.					
Species List:							
Stratum	Cover	Species	within each strat	um			
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia	aneura var. interm	nedia			
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia	murrayana, Acacic	a <i>ramulosa</i> var	. linophylla, Rhagodi	a eremaea	
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremop artemis	phila forrestii, Pt Fioides subsp. helm	tilotus polysta Isii	achyus var. polysta	achyus, Senna	
Chauba d O Far	< <b>3</b> 0/	<b>F m a m a m a m</b>	hila alutinana C-l	ana la aia - bi			

- Shrubs < 0.5m</th>< 2%</th>Eremophila glutinosa, Solanum lasiophyllum
- **Tussock grasses**10 30%Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus
- Climbers < 2% Lysiana murrayi, Marsdenia australis
- Herbs 10 30% Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus



Described by	SH	Date:	12/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	560339	mE	7018774	mN		
Habitat	Moderate hill slope.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with continuous stones and surface level plates/boulders.						
Rock Type	Non-banded	ferrous					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland over Thryptomene decussata and Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Eremophila compacta open shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Solanum lasiophyllum low open shrubland over Sida chrysocalyx very open herbs over Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella very open tussock grassland. Moderate hill slope.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse wood and leaf litter under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila compacta
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella
Herbs	2 - 10%	Cheilanthes lasiophylla



Described by	JN	Date:	12/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	561487	mE	7019282	mN		
Habitat	Steep hill slop	be.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust, and continuous coarse gravel, surface level plates and						
Rock Type	boulders.	boulders.					
Vegetation	BIF.						
Veg Condition	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia aneura var. intermedia high shrubland to scattered low trees over Thryptomene decussata and Acacia sibirica shrubland over Thryptomene decussata and Eremophila compacta low shrubland over Sida sp. Excedentifolia very open herbs over Eriachne helmsii scattered tussock grasses. Steep hill slope.						
Fire Age	Excellent, grazed by hard hoofed.						
Notes	None evident	None evident					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia sibirica					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila compacta, Eremophila glutinosa					
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne helmsii, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella, Monachather paradoxus					
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)					





Described by	SH	Date:	12/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	562050	mE	7019840	mN		
Habitat	Minor channel, washout from hill.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with fine to coarse gravel and continuous surface boulders.						
Rock Type	Non-banded ferrous, ?calcrete and granite.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia rhodophloia and Thryptomene decussata scattered tall shrubs over Baeckea sp. Melita Station and Acacia rhodophloia scattered shrubs over Micromyrtus placoides, Baeckea sp. Melita Station and Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba scattered herbs over Grass sp. scattered tussock grasses.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.						
Fire Age	None evident.						
Notes	Sparse leaf and wood litter under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia sibirica, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738), Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Micromyrtus placoides, Philotheca brucei subsp. brevifolia, Prostanthera petrophila
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Hemigenia tysonii, Stenanthemum petraeum
Tussock grasses	< 2%	POACEAE sp.
Herbs	< 2%	Goodenia tenuiloba



Described by	JN	Date:	12/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	563095	mE	7019945	mN	
Habitat	Hills lope and	crest wit	n a moderate slope.			
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust, and continuous coarse gravel, stones/boulders and					
Rock Type	surface level plates.					
Vegetation	BIF, non-banded ferrous.					
Veg Condition	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia aneura high shrubland over Acacia aneura and Thryptomene decussata shrubland over Thryptomene decussata, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei low shrubland over Sida sp. Excedentifolia scattered herbs over Monochathe sp very open tussock grassland.					
Fire Age	Excellent, grazed by hard hoofed.					
Notes	None evident.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Psydrax rigidula, Santalum spicatum
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila glutinosa, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925), Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	< 2%	Goodenia tenuiloba, Monachather paradoxus



Described by	SH	Date:	12/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	564237	mE	7020615	mN	
Habitat	Moderate hill slope.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with stones and continuous surface-level plates/boulders.					
Rock Type	BIF, non-banded ferrous.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland over Thryptomene decussata high open shrubland over Eremophila glutinosa open heath over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Sida excedentifolia low open shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba open herbs over Eragrostis eriopoda scattered tussock grasses.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.					
Fire Age	None evident.					
Notes	SE face 140°. Approximately 80 Prostanthera petrophila on SE face, around 40 of those inside the quadrat. Numbers reduce after the BIF outcrop.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia minyura, Grevillea berryana, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila glutinosa, Prostanthera petrophila
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eragrostis eriopoda
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis
Herbs	10 - 30%	Goodenia tenuiloba



Described by	JN	Date:	12/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	565375	mE	7021598	mN		
Habitat	Undulating p	Undulating plain with gentle slope.					
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust and fine gravel.					
Rock Type	Non-banded	Non-banded ferrous.					
Vegetation	Grevillea berryana scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Eremophila forrestii shrubland over Eremophila forrestii, Solanum lasiophyllum and Eremophila margarethae low shrubland over Sida chrysocalyx very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland. Undulating plain with gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good, graze	d by hard	hoofed, tracks.				
Fire Age	None evider	nt.					
Notes	Sparse wood	d and leaf	litter under shru	ubs.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Grevillea berryana			
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Grevillea berryana			
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila granitica			
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa, Mirbelia rhagodioides			
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila margarethae, Hibiscus burtonii, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum lasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus			





Described by	SH	Date:	10/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	558361	mE	7016368	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain, including culvert drain.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with loose soil and common coarse gravel/pebbles.					
Rock Type	BIF, non-banded ferrous and quartz.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Senna glaucifolia high open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Senna glaucifolia open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii, Senna glaucifolia and Ptilotus schwartzii low scattered shrubs over Ptilotus polystachyus very open herbs over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Flat plain, including culvert drain.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.					
Fire Age	None evident.					
Notes	Sparse leaf and wood litter mainly under shrubs.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura				
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Eremophila forrestii, Senna glaucifolia				
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Maireana sp., Solanum ashbyae, Tribulus suberosus				
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila margarethae, Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida spodochroma				
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta				
Herbs	2 - 10%	Ptilotus polystachyus				


Described by	JN	Date:	10/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	558871	mE	7016000	mN			
Habitat	Moderate hill slope.							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with surface crust, and continuous srones/boulders and surface-level plates.							
Rock Type	Non-banded	ferrous.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland to open scrub over Eremophila macmillaniana low shrubland to shrubland over Sida atrovirens scattered herbs over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Moderate hill slope.							
Veg Condition	Excellent, grazed by hard hoofed.							
Fire Age	None-evident.							
Notes	Sparse leaf and moderate wood litter under shrubs.							

Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Psydrax latifolia
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia craspedocarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila macmillaniana
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Calytrix desolata, Eremophila glutinosa, Senna sp. Meekatharra(E. Bailey 1- 26), Tribulus suberosus
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Abutilon macrum, Abutilon otocarpum, Ptilotus helipteroides var. helipteroides, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta

722 WRE Site 77





Described by	SH	Date:	11/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	560383	mE	7016704	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain, cre	ek bed an	d bank.					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with loose soil and coarse gravel/pebbles continuous at surface.							
Rock Type	Non-banded f	errous, g	ranite, quartz.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia aneura var. intermedia woodland to low open forest over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii and Senna sp. Meekatharra low open shrubland to shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers over Abutilon macrum and Sida fibulifera open herbs over Aristida contorta and Austrostipa scabra open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.							
Fire Age	None evident.							
Notes	Sparse leaf and moderate wood litter under shrubs.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Psydrax latifolia					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Abutilon macrum, Eremophila georgei, Senna artemisioides subsp. oligophylla x helmsii, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Acacia exocarpoides, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila sp., Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida fibulifera, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Austrostipa scabra, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon sp.					
Climbers	2 - 10%	Marsdenia australis					
Herbs	10 - 30%	Trichodesma zeylanicum var. zeylanicum					



Described by	JN	Date:	11/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	560839	mE	7016798	mN				
Habitat	Hill slope and crest with moderate to gentle slope.								
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust, and continuous stones/boulders and surface-level plates.								
Rock Type	Non-banded	ferrous.							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia sp. Weld Range high shrubland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Eremophila glutinosa shrubland over Eremophila glutinosa and Eremophila exilifolia low shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Hill slope and crest with moderate to gentle slope.								
Veg Condition	Excellent, grazed by hard hoofed.								
Fire Age	>5 yrs								
Notes	Sparse leaf and moderate wood litter under shrubs.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia speckii, Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila glutinosa, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Heliotropium ovalifolium, Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta





Described by	SH	Date:	11/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	561459	mE	7016891	mN			
Habitat	Hill slope/cres	t facing	north.					
Soil	Red-orange sa	indy clay	with continuous s	surface stones/	boulders and	surface-level plates.		
Rock Type	BIF, non-band	ed ferro	us.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia longispinea high shrubland over Eremophila glutinosa and Eremophila macmillaniana open shrubland over Eremophila glutinosa and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Ptilotus helipteroides var. helipteroides and Goodenia tenuiloba open herbs over Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella and Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Hill slope/crest facing north.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	by hard	hoofed.					
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf litt	er and n	noderate wood litt	ter under shrul	DS.			
Species List:								
Stratum	Cover	Species	s within each strat	tum				
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia 2994),	aneura var. aneu Psydrax rigidula	<i>ra, Acacia</i> sp. '	Weld Range (	A. Markey & S. Dillon		
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia	longispinea					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremo	ohila macmillaniar	na				
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremo <sub>l</sub> artemi	ohila glutinosa, sioides subsp. heln	Eremophila nsii	<i>latrobei</i> sub	ısp. latrobei, Senna		
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotu: Ptilotu: spodoc	s helipteroides va s schwartzii, Sida : hroma, Solanum le	r. <i>helipteroide</i> : sp. dark green asiophyllum, Ti	s, Ptilotus obo fruits (S. van ribulus subero	ovatus var. obovatus, Leeuwen 2260), Sida Isus		
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristide	a contorta, Enneap	ogon sp., Eriad	chne pulchella	r subsp. <i>pulchella</i>		

Herbs 10 - 30% Goodenia tenuiloba



Described by	JN	Date:	11/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	561967	mE	7017599	mN				
Habitat	Moderate hill	slope.							
Soil	Red-orange sa level plates.	andy clay	with surface crust,	amd contini	uous stones/boulders	and surface-			
Rock Type	Non-banded f	errous.							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Eremophila macmillaniana shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and Dodonaea sp. Ninghan low shrubland over Sida atrovirens scattered herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Moderate hill slope.								
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.								
Fire Age	None evident.								
Notes									
Species List:									
Stratum	Cover	Species	within each stratur	n					
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	<i>Acacia</i> 2994)	aneura var. aneura,	Acacia sp.	Weld Range (A. Marke	ey & S. Dillon			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia	speckii, Eremophila i	macmillania	na				
		Cumbo	nogon amhiguus	Framonhila	forractii Eramonhil	la alutinosa			

Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila glutinosa,Shrubs < 1m</th>10 - 30%Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Senna artemisioides subsp.<br/>helmsii, Senna glaucifolia

Shrubs < 0.5m</th>Dodonaea amplisemina, Halgania cyanea var. Allambi Stn (B.W. Strong<br/>676), Heliotropium ovalifolium, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp.<br/>dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum lasiophyllum

Tussock grasses 10 - 30% Aristida contorta





Described by	SH	Date:	11/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	563953	mE	7018088	mN				
Habitat	Lower gentle	hill slope	and gully sides.						
Soil	Red-orange sa	andy clay	/clay, with coarse	e gravel/pebbles	and stones/	/boulders at surface.			
Rock Type									
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland to scattered trees over Acacia sp. Weld Range high shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii open heath over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Eremophila glutinosa and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Ptilotus helipteroides var. helipteroides open herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland.								
Veg Condition									
Fire Age									
Notes									
Species List:									
Stratum	Cover	Species	s within each stra	atum					
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia	aneura var. aneu	ra, Brachychitor	n gregorii				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	<i>Acacia</i> 2994)	aneura var. aneu	ura, Acacia sp. V	Weld Range	(A. Markey & S. Dillon			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Senna d	artemisioides sub	sp. <i>helmsii</i>					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	<i>Eremoµ</i> Meeka	ohila georgei, Ere tharra(E. Bailey 1	mophila glutino -26), Solanum a	sa, Eremophi shbyae, Tribi	ila glutinosa, Senna sp. ulus suberosus			
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Abutilo ovalifo fruits (S	n otocarpum, Ab lium, Indigofera r 5. van Leeuwen 2	utilon oxycarpu nonophylla, Ma 260)	m subsp. pro ireana georg	ostratum, Heliotropium Jei, Sida sp. dark green			
Tussock grasses	<b>10 - 30%</b>	Aristida	a contorta, Cymbo	opogon ambigu	us, Enneapog	<i>jon</i> sp.			
Climbers	< 2%	Glycine	canescens, Mars	denia australis					
Herbs	10 - 30%	Ptilotus	s helipteroides va	r. helipteroides,	Ptilotus obov	vatus var. obovatus			



Described by	JN	Date:	11/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	565129	mE	7018605	mN				
Habitat	Creek bed a	nd bank w	ith gentle slope.						
Soil	Red-orange stones/boul	sandy ders.	clay with loos	e soil, and	continuous	coarse gravel and			
Rock Type	BIF, non-bar	nded ferro	us						
Vegetation	Acacia aneu aneura and and Acacia Senna arten Abutilon sp. bed and bar	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Grevillea berryana low woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia sp. Weld Range high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia sp. Weld Range shrubland over Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata and Senna artemisioides subsp. sturtii low shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers over Abutilon sp. scattered herbs over Cymbopogon ambiguus open tussock grassland. Creek bed and bank with gentle slope.							
Veg Condition	Good, graze	d by goats	, with tracks.						
Fire Age	None evider	nt.							
Notes	Moderate to	o sparse le	af and wood litte	r mainly under	shrubs.				
Species List:									
Stratum	Cover	Species v	within each strat	um					
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia a berryana	neura var. aneuro 1, Psydrax latifolia	a, Acacia sp. V a, Psydrax rigid	Veld Range ( <i>ula, Psydra</i> x	A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Gr suaveolens, Santalum spicatum			
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia te	etragonophylla, A	cacia ramuloso	a var. linophy	ılla			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia to subsp. fil	etragonophylla, E lifolia, Senna arte	Fremophila phy misioides subs	vllopoda, Rh p. helmsii	agodia eremaea, Senna artemis			
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremoph artemisio	ila forrestii, Erem pides subsp. x stu	nophila george rtii, Sida ? caly	i, Eremophilo xhymenia	a mackinlayi subsp. spathulata,			
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Abutilon sp. dark	<i>oxycarpum</i> subs <sub>i</sub> green fruits (S. va	p. <i>prostratum,</i> In Leeuwen 22	Abutilon sp., 60), Solanum	, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatu Iasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida Enneapo	contorta, Aust gon caerulescens	rostipa scabr	a, Cymbopo	ogon ambiguus, Digitaria br			
Climbers	< 2%	Glycine c	anescens, Marsd	enia australis					
Herbs	< 2%	Duperrey	va sericea, Trichoo	desma zeylania	cum				





Described by	SH	Date:	11/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	566032	mE	7018945	mN				
Habitat	Lower hill slo	Lower hill slope.							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with common coarse gravel and rocks/boulders.								
Rock Type	BIF, non-ban	ded ferro	JS.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila glutinosa and Eremophila forrestii scattered shrubs and low scattered shrubs over Sida excedentifolia low open heath over Goodenia tenuiloba open herbs over Monachather paradoxus scattered tussock grasses. Lower hill slope.								
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.								
Fire Age	None evident.								
Notes	Moderate leaf and wood litter mainly under shrubs.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, Maireana villosa
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Hibiscus burtonii, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925), Solanum lasiophyllum, Tribulus suberosus
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	10 - 30%	Goodenia tenuiloba





Described by	SH	Date:	4/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	584122	mE	7031020	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain.					
Soil	Red-orange sa	indy clay	with loose soi	l at surface.		
Rock Type						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura aneura var. Eremophila fo obovatus low and Ptilotus p lanicaulis oper	i var. an intermed prrestii I scattere polystach n tussocl	eura low oper dia and Acac ow open shr d shrubs over yus scattered c grassland. Fla	n woodland over <i>J</i> <i>ia ramulos</i> a var. rubland to shrubl <i>Marsdeni</i> a a <i>ustral</i> herbs over <i>M</i> ona at plain.	Acacia aneura linophylla hig and over Ptile lis climbers ove achather parade	var. aneura, Acacia gh shrubland over otus obovatus var. er Rhodanthe citrina oxus and Eragrostis
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	by hard l	noofed.			
Fire Age	None evident.					
Notes	Moderate leaf	f and spa	rse wood litte	r under shrubs.		
Species List:						
Stratum	Cover	Species	s within each s	tratum		
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia	<i>aneura</i> var. <i>an</i>	eura, Acacia pruin	ocarpa	
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia	aneura var. int	termedia, Acacia ro	amulosa var. lir	ıophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremop	ohila granitica			
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremop	ohila forrestii			
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Abutilo Solanui	n macrum, H m centrale, Sol	lemigenia tysonii, Ianum lasiophyllun	Ptilotus obov 1	atus var. obovatus,
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida	a contorta, Era	grostis lanipes, Mo	onachather par	adoxus
Climbers	< 2%	Marsde	enia australis			
Herbs	< 2%	Ptilotus	s polystachyus,	Rhodanthe citring	1	





722	WRE	Site	85
-----	-----	------	----

SH	Date:	4/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Weld Range							
50	584851	mE	7031422	mN			
Flat plain and	?sump.						
Red-orange/b	rown sai	ndy clay, with lo	ose soil at surfac	e.			
Corymbia lenz trees over Acc Eremophila g Eremophila fo shrubland ove Eragrostis lani	iana sca acia min ranitica prrestii er Marso caulis op	ttered tall trees yura and Acacic and Senna art low open shru denia australis pen tussock gras	s over Acacia ram a ramulosa var. lin emisioides subsp Ibland and Ptilo climbers over An ssland. Flat plain a	nulosa var. ran nophylla high o. x artemision tus obovatus butilon macru and ?sump.	nulosa scattered low open shrubland over ides shrubland over var. obovatus low um open herbs over		
Good.							
None evident.							
Plentiful leaf a	ind mod	erate wood litte	er under shrubs.				
Cover	Species	s within each st	ratum				
< 2%	Acacia Psydra:	minyura, Aca x rigidula	cia ramulosa va	ar. <i>ramulosa,</i>	Corymbia lenziana,		
10 - 30%	Acacia artemis	ramulosa var. sioides subsp. fi	linophylla, Acac lifolia, Solanum a	ia ramulosa N shbyae	var. ramulosa, Senna		
2 - 10%	Abutilo eremae	n macrum, Ere ea, Senna artem	emophila forresti nisioides subsp. x d	ii, Eremophila artemisioides	granitica, Rhagodia		
10 - 30%	Ptilotus Spartos	s obovatus var. thamnella teucr	obovatus, Sclero iiflora	laena densiflo.	ra, Solanum centrale,		
10 - 30%	Eragros	stis lanipes, Thy	ridolepis multicul	mis			
< 2%	Marsde	enia australis					
	SH Weld Range 50 Flat plain and Red-orange/b <i>Corymbia lenz</i> trees over Acc <i>Eremophila fo</i> shrubland ove <i>Eragrostis lani</i> Good. None evident. Plentiful leaf a <b>Cover</b> < 2% 10 - 30% 2 - 10% 10 - 30% 10 - 30% < 2%	SHDate:Weld Range50584851Flat plain and ?sump.Red-orange/brown sarCorymbia lenziana sca trees over Acacia mime Eremophila granitica Eragrostis lanicaulis opGood.None evident.Plentiful leaf and modecoverSpecies Acacia artemis2 - 10%Acacia artemis10 - 30%Acacia cremos10 - 30%Eragrost10 - 30%Eragrost2 - 10%Marsde Sparton10 - 30%Eragrost2 - 2%Marsde	SHDate:4/11/2006Weld Range50584851Flat plain and ?sump.Red-orange/brown sandy clay, with locCorymbia lenziana scattered tall treestrees over Acacia minyura and AcaciaEremophila granitica and Senna artEremophila forrestiiIow open shrushrubland over Marsdenia australisEragrostis lanicaulis open tussock grassGood.None evident.Plentiful leaf and moderate wood litted< 2%Acacia minyura, AcaPsydrax rigidula10 - 30%Acacia ramulosa var.10 - 30%Eragrostis lanipes, Thy< 2%Marsdenia australis	SH       Date: 4/11/2006       Type:         Weld Range       50       584851 mE       7031422         Flat plain and ?sump.       Red-orange/brown sandy clay, with loose soil at surface         Corymbia lenziana scattered tall trees over Acacia rame trees over Acacia minyura and Acacia ramulosa var. line tremophila granitica and Senna artemisioides subsp.       Fiermophila granitica and Senna artemisioides subsp.         Eremophila forrestii       low open shrubland and Ptilo shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers over Acacia rame treagrostis lanicaulis open tussock grassland. Flat plain a Good.         None evident.       Plentiful leaf and moderate wood litter under shrubs.         Cover       Species within each stratum         < 2%       Acacia minyura, Acacia ramulosa var. Psydrax rigidula         10 - 30%       Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Solanum a         2 - 10%       Abutilon macrum, Eremophila forresti eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. x. di antemisioides subsp. x. d	SH       Date: 4/11/2006       Type: Q         Weld Range       50       584851 mE       7031422 mN         Flat plain and ?sump.       Red-orange/brown sandy clay, with loose soil at surface.         Corymbia lenziana scattered tall trees over Acacia ramulosa var. rar         trees over Acacia minyura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high         Eremophila granitica and Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisio         Eremophila forrestii       low open shrubland and Ptilotus obovatus         shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers over Abutilon macru         Eragrostis lanicaulis open tussock grassland. Flat plain and ?sump.         Good.         None evident.         Plentiful leaf and moderate wood litter under shrubs.         Cover       Species within each stratum         < 2%       Acacia minyura, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Psydrax rigidula         10 - 30%       Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia ramulosa var artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Solanum ashbyae         2 - 10%       Abutilon macrum, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides         10 - 30%       Prilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena densifio Spartothamnella teucriiflora         10 - 30%       Eragrostis lanipes, Thyridolepis multiculmis         < 2%       Marsdenia australis		







Described by	SH	Date:	11/11/2006	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	585304	mE	7031787	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain.							
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay with loose surface soil.						
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia aneu and Acacia r and Eremop Aristida hola Flat plain.	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees and scattered trees over Acacia minyura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Eremophila granitica shrubland over Eremophila granitica low open shrubland over Aristida holathera var. holathera and Thyridolepis multiculmis open tussock grassland. Flat plain.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	d by hard l	noofed.					
Fire Age	None eviden	it.						
Notes	Moderate le	af and wo	od litter mainly	/ under shrubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia minyura						
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila granitica, Solanum ashbyae						
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila ?georgei						
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, Sida fibulifera						
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida holathera var. holathera, Eriachne helmsii, Iseilema nembranaceum, Thyridolepis multiculmis						
Herbs	< 2%	Myriocephalus auerinae						





Described by	SH	Date:	4/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	585580	mE	7030838	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange s	andy clay	with loose soil at surf	ace.			
Rock Type							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia sibirica low open woodland to woodland over Acacia craspedocarpa and Acacia tetragonophylla high open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla scattered shrubs over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Glycine canescens climbers over Abutilon macrum open herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat plain.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	l by hard h	oofed.				
Fire Age	None eviden	t.					
Notes	Moderate lea	af and woo	od litter under shrubs				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sibirica					
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia burkittii, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Acacia tetragonophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Eremophila forrestii					
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Abutilon macrum, Eremophila ?forrestii, Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila georgei, Grevillea deflexa					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta					
Climbers	2 - 10%	Glycine canescens					
Herbs	10 - 30%	Lobelia heterophylla, Vittadinia ?sulcata					



Described by	JN	Date:	4/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	585763	mE	7031188	mN			
Habitat	Gently slope	d undulati	ing plain, adjao	cent to a drainage	complex.			
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust, loose soil and fine gravel.						
Rock Type	Granite. Few	Granite. Few.						
Vegetation	Acacia sibiri woodland ov shrubland c obovatus lo undulating p	Acacia sibirica open woodland over Acacia sibirica and Acacia craspedocarpa low woodland over Acacia sibirica and Acacia tetragonophylla open shrubland to high open shrubland over Acacia sibirica, Acacia tetragonophylla and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Gently sloped undulating plain, adjacent to a drainage complex, Granite.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	d by hard l	noofed, with t	racks.				
Fire Age	None eviden	t.						
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood	litter under sh	rubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	2 - 10%	Acacia sibirica
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia burkittii
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Acacia sibirica
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens





Described by	JN	Date:	4/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	586478	mE	7031056	mN	
Habitat	Hill crest with	n gentle slo	ope.			
Soil	Red-orange s	andy clay,	clay, with surface cr	ust and con	tinuous coarse gravel/	pebbles,
Rock Type	stones/bould	lers and su	Irface-level plates.			
Vegetation	BIF					
Veg Condition	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over <i>Thryptomene decussata</i> low shrubland to shrubland over <i>Sida excedentifolia</i> scattered herbs. Hill crest with gentle slope.					
Fire Age	Thryptomene decussata low shrubland to shrubland over Sida excedentifolia scattered herbs.					
Notes	Hill crest with	n gentle slo	ope.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Psydrax rigidula
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia rhodophloia, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Grevillea berryana, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila jucunda, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925), Solanum lasiophyllum





Described by	JN	Date:	4/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	585997	mE	7032081	mN				
Habitat	Wide flat drai	Wide flat drainage complex with gentle slope.							
Soil	Red-orange s	and/sandy	r clay with surface cru	ıst, loose so	oil and many stones/be	oulders.			
Rock Type	BIF, non-band	ded ferrou	IS.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia burkittii low woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia tetragonophylla high shrubland over Acacia jamesiana open shrubland over Calytrix desolata and Grevillea deflexa low open shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Wide flat drainage complex with gentle slope.								
Veg Condition	Excellent, grazed by hard hoofed.								
Fire Age	None evident								
Notes	Sparse leaf ar	nd sparse	to moderate wood lit	ter under t	rees.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia burkittii
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Acacia sibirica, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia speckii, Acacia tetragonophylla, Calytrix desolata
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia sibirica, Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila forrestii, Grevillea deflexa, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Sida calyxhymenia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila fraseri, Mirbelia ?stipitata, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella





Described by	SH	Date:	4/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	585672	mE	7033112	mN			
Habitat	Flat plain.							
Soil	Red-orange c	lay, with c	racked surface and lo	ose soil.				
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia tetragonophylla and Acacia craspedocarpa scattered shrubs to scattered tall shrubs over Senna sp. Meekatharra, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Ptilotus beardii low shrubland over Maireana georgei open herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat plain.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	by hard h	oofed.					
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf ar	nd wood li	tter under shrubs.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila georgei
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	<i>Eremophila latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei, Maireana villosa, Senna</i> sp. Meekatharra(E. Bailey 1-26)
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana georgei, Maireana sp., Ptilotus beardii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta
Herbs	10 - 30%	Pogonolepis stricta, Pogonolepis stricta, Portulaca oleracea, Ptilotus aervoides

JN	Date:	4/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Weld Range							
50	586292	mE	7033420	mN			
Creek bed an	id bank wi	th gentle slope.					
Red-orange s	and/sand	y clay, with surface	crust and loc	ose soil.			
Claystone. Fe	ew.						
Acacia sibirica low woodland to open woodland over Acacia tetragonophylla and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Acacia tetragonophylla open shrubland over Prostanthera althoferi and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Duperreya sericea climbers over Abutilon macrum very open herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Creek bed and bank with gentle slope.							
Good, grazed	l by hard h	oofed, with tracks					
>5 yrs	>5 yrs						
Sparse to mo bed.	oderate lea	af and wood litter s	pread on ban	ks. No vegetation gro	wth on creek		
	JN Weld Range 50 Creek bed an Red-orange s Claystone. Fe Acacia sibirio ramulosa var Prostanthera Duperreya se open tussock Good, grazed >5 yrs Sparse to mo bed.	JN Date: Weld Range 50 586292 Creek bed and bank wir Red-orange sand/sande Claystone. Few. Acacia sibirica low woo ramulosa var. linophylic Prostanthera althoferi Duperreya sericea clima open tussock grassland Good, grazed by hard h >5 yrs Sparse to moderate lea	JN Date: 4/11/2006 Weld Range 50 586292 mE Creek bed and bank with gentle slope. Red-orange sand/sandy clay, with surface Claystone. Few. Acacia sibirica low woodland to open woo ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland ov Prostanthera althoferi and Ptilotus obov Duperreya sericea climbers over Abutilon open tussock grassland. Creek bed and ba Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks. >5 yrs Sparse to moderate leaf and wood litter s bed.	JNDate:4/11/2006Type:Weld Range50586292mE703342050586292mE7033420Creek bed and bank with gentle slope.Red-orange sand/sandy clay, with surface crust and loodClaystone. Few.Acacia sibirica low woodland to open woodland over A cacia tet Prostanthera althoferi and Ptilotus obovatus var. ob Duperreya sericea climbers over Abutilon macrum very open tussock grassland. Creek bed and bank with gentleGood, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.>5 yrsSparse to moderate leaf and wood litter spread on ban bed.	JN Date: 4/11/2006 Type: Q   Weld Range   50 586292 mE 7033420 mN   Creek bed and bank with gentle slope.   Red-orange sand/sandy clay, with surface crust and loose soil.   Claystone. Few.   Acacia sibirica low woodland to open woodland over Acacia tetragonophylla open sh Prostanthera althoferi and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open sh Duperreya sericea climbers over Abutilon macrum very open herbs over Ariss open tussock grassland. Creek bed and bank with gentle slope.   Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.   >5 yrs   Sparse to moderate leaf and wood litter spread on banks. No vegetation groubed.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	2 - 10%	Acacia sibirica
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Santalum spicatum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila fraseri, Ere georgei, Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx, Prostanthera albiflora, Rhagodia er
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Abutilon macrum, Eremophila fraseri, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila mackinlay spathulata, Eremophila macmillaniana, Grevillea inconspicua, Prostanthera a Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Mee (E. Bailey 1-26), Sida calyxhymenia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Abutilon macrum, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eremophila exilifolia
Climbers	2 - 10%	Duperreya sericea
Herbs	2 - 10%	Pluchea dentex, Podolepis capillaris



Described by	JN	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	586714	mE	7035414	mN			
Habitat	Undulating p	lain, with	minor channel and ge	entle slope.				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sand/sandy clay with loose soil and many surface-level plates/boulders.						
Rock Type	Granite							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland to low open woodland over Acacia craspedocarpa shrubland over Senna sp. Meekatharra, Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx, Sida calyxhymenia and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Undulating plain, with minor channel and gentle slope, Granite.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	by hard h	noofed, with tracks					
Fire Age	1-5 yrs							
Notes	Sparse wood	and leaf l	itter under shrubs.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia craspedocarpa				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx, Scaevola spinescens, Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila fraseri, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Scaevola spinescens, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26), Sida calyxhymenia, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Frankenia setosa, Maireana carnosa, Maireana glomerifolia, Maireana trichoptera, Ptilotus beardii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Austrostipa elegantissima, Enneapogon caerulescens				



Described by	JN	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	587028	mE	7035053	mN	
Habitat	Small granite	hill crest	with gentle slope.			
Soil	Red-orange plates/boulde	sandy cla ers.	ay with surface cru	st, fine gi	ravel and common s	surface-level
Rock Type	Granite					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia sp. Weld Range open shrubland to high open shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Indigofera monophylla low shrubland over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Small granite hill crest with gentle slope, Granite.					
Veg Condition	Excellent, gra	ized by ha	rd hoofed.			
Fire Age	>5 yrs					
Notes	Moderate wo	ood and sp	oarse leaf litter under	shrubs.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	<i>Eremophila forrestii, Senna glaucifolia, Sida</i> sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum, Indigofera monophylla, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens
Herbs	< 2%	Cheilanthes lasiophylla





Described by	SH	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	587291	mE	7034764	mN	
Habitat	Flat plain.					
Soil	Red-orange s	and, with	fine to coarse gravel a	and many s	urface level plates/bo	ulders
Rock Type	Granite, quar	tz.				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia rhodophloia high open shrubland over Senna glaucifolia open shrubland over Eremophila exilifolia and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat plain, Granite, quartz.					
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed by hard hoofed.					
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood li	tter under shrubs.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Abutilon macrum, Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila forrestii, Indigofera monophylla, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Abutilon macrum, Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum, Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens
Herbs	< 2%	Cheilanthes lasiophylla, Goodenia tenuiloba



Described by	SH	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	588225	mE	7035560	mN				
Habitat	Creek bed an	Creek bed and bank.							
Soil	Red-orange s	andy clay	/clay, with continu	ious coarse gra	avel and stones/bould	ers.			
Rock Type	BIF, non-band	ded ferrou	JS.						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia quadrimarginea and Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. sturtii low open shrubland to open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Grevillea inconspicua low shrubland over Abutilon macrum herbs over Cymbopogon ambiguus very open tussock grassland. Creek bed and bank.								
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	by hard h	noofed.						
Fire Age	None evident								
Notes	Plentiful woo	d and lea	f litter widespread						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Eremophila longifolia, Psyc rigidula, Santalum spicatum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia quadrimarginea
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia tetragonophylla, Senna artemisioides subsp. x stu Solanum ashbyae
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Abutilon macrum, Eremophila macmillaniana, Eremophila spathulata, Grev inconspicua, Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides, Senna glaucifolia, . calyxhymenia
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Eremophila exilifolia, Euphorbia boophthona, Hibiscus burtonii, Ptilotus obovatus obovatus, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eriachne pulchella
Climbers	30 - 70%	Glycine canescens, Marsdenia australis
Herbs	30 - 70%	Cheilanthes lasiophylla, Pluchea dentex, Trichodesma zeylanicum var. zeylanicum





Described by	SH	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	588203	mE	7035871	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with loose soil and common coarse gravel at surface.						
Rock Type	Non-banded	ferrous					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered tall shrubs over Ptilotus rotundifolius scattered shrubs over Eremophila spathulata, Sclerolaena uniflora and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Calandrinia transluscens scattered herbs over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Flat plain.						
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed by hard hoofed.						
Fire Age	None eviden	t.					
Notes	Sparse leaf and moderate wood litter under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Solanum ashbyae
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila spathulata
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii, Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena uniflora
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta
Herbs	< 2%	Calandrinia translucens





Described by	SH	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	588807	mE	7035944	mN			
Habitat	Lower hill slope.							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with common surface stones/boulders.							
Rock Type	NIF, non-ban	ded ferrou	IS.					
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa high shrubland to low woodland over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii and Senna glaucifolia open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii, Dodonaea petiolaris and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba herbs over Enneapogon caerulescens scattered tussock grasses. Lower hill slope.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.							
Fire Age	Non-evident							
Notes	Sparse wood and leaf litter mainly under shrubs.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia, Solanum ashbyae, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila forrestii
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea petiolaris, Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Enneapogon caerulescens
Herbs	30 - 70%	Goodenia tenuiloba, Hibiscus sp., Ptilotus roei, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)



Described by	JN	Date:	3/11/200	06	Type:	Q			20x20
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	588795	mE		7036524	mN			
Habitat	Small gently s	sloped hill	crest/slop	e.					
Soil	Red-orange stones/bould	sandy c ers at	lay/clay v	with surfac	e crust,	coarse	gravel	and	continuous
Rock Type	surface.								
Vegetation	BIF, non-band	ded ferrou	IS.						
Veg Condition	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland to low open woodland over Acacia tetragonophylla open shrubland over Senna sp. Meekatharra and Maireana triptera low shrubland over Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus very open herbs over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Small gently sloped hill crest/slope.								
Fire Age	Excellent, gra	ized by ha	rd hoofed.						
Notes	>5 yrs								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Senna stricta
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Eremophila phyllopoda subsp. phyllopoda, Eremophila spathulata, Maireana melanocoma, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharra(E. Bailey 1-26)
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana georgei, Maireana triptera, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena eriacantha, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens
Herbs	2 - 10%	Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus



Described by	JN	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range								
MGA Zone	50	588177	mE	7037086	mN				
Habitat	Creek bed an	ıd banks o	n a moderate to gei	ntle slope.					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sand/sandy clay with loose surface soil.							
Rock Type	Non-banded	Non-banded ferrous, granite. Few.							
Vegetation	Acacia ramu Acacia burkit over Eremop shrubland ov Eragrostis ke gentle slope,	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa and Acacia burkittii low woodland to open forest over Acacia burkittii high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii open shrubland over Eremophila margarethae, Sida calyxhymenia and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Duperreya commixta climbers over Abutilon macrum open herbs over Eragrostis kennedyae open tussock grassland. Creek bed and banks on a moderate to gentle slope, Non-banded ferrous, granite.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	l by hard l	noofed, with tracks.						
Fire Age	None eviden	t.							
Notes	Moderate lea	af and wo	od litter widespread	l.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees 10 - 30m	30 - 70%	Acacia burkittii				
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia burkittii, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax rigidula				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Acacia tetragonop				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila forrestii subsp. fo Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx, artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Abutilon macrum, Eremophila margarethae, Maireana ?villosa, Prosta albiflora, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida calyxhymenia				
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Enneapogon caerulescens, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum ellip Solanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eragrostis australasica, Eragrostis kennedyae				
Climbers	< 2%	Duperreya commixta				
Herbs	10 - 30%	Cheilanthes lasiophylla, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Lobelia heterophylla				





Described by	JN	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	588431	mE	7038080	mN				
Habitat	Undulating pl	lain with g	entle slope.						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with surface crust, loose soil, coarse gravel and many surface-level plates.								
Rock Type	Granite.								
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland to low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range open shrubland over Eremophila spathulata and Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii low shrubland over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Undulating plain with gentle slope, Granite.								
Veg Condition	Excellent, wit	h tracks,							
Fire Age	>5 yrs								
Notes	Sparse leaf ar	nd wood li	tter under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila spathulata				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia speckii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Indigofera brevidens, Maireana melanocoma, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum, Euphorbia boophthona, Grevillea deflexa, Hibiscus coatesii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatusSolanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus,				





Described by	SH	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	589305	mE	7038158	mN		
Habitat	Foot slope.	Foot slope.					
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay with much coarse gravel/pebbles					
Rock Type	BIF, non-ban	ded ferro	us, granite.				
Vegetation	Acacia pruin over Acacia aneura var. a Acacia ram chrysocalyx scattered tus	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered tall trees and Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia minyura low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia minyura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open scrub over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Senna glaucifolia and Sida chrysocalyx low scattered shrubs over Goodenia tenuiloba herbs over Aristida contorta scattered tussock grasses. Footslope, BIF, non-banded ferrous, granite.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	d by hard l	hoofed, with tracks.				
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident.					
Notes	Moderate le	af and spa	rse wood litter unde	r shrubs.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia minyura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila glutinosa
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, Euphorbia boophthona, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta
Herbs	30 - 70%	Goodenia tenuiloba



Described by	SH	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range							
MGA Zone	50	588444	mE	7038690	mN			
Habitat	Undulating plain.							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with much coarse gravel at surface.							
Rock Type	BIF, granite, o	BIF, granite, quartz.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees to scattered trees over Acacia sclerosperma subsp. sclerosperma scattered tall shrubs over Eremophila fraseri and Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii open shrubland over Eremophila exilifolia and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Maireana triptera very open herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Undulating plain, BIF, granite, quartz.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.							
Fire Age	None evident.							
Notes	Sparse leaf ar	nd wood li	Sparse leaf and wood litter mainly under shrubs.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia sclerosperma subsp. sclerosperma
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila fraseri, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26), Solanum ashbyae
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila exilifolia, Maidenia sp., Maireana georgei
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila phyllopoda subsp. phyllopoda, Eremophila spathulata, Maireana triptera, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens



Described by	JN	Date:	3/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	588554	mE	7038981	mN	
Habitat	Undulating p	lain with g	entle slope.			
Soil	Red-orange stones/bould	Red-orange sandy clay, with loose surface soil, and continuous coarse gravel and stones/boulders.				
Rock Type	Non-banded	ferrous.				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura open shrubland to high open shrubland over Acacia jamesiana open shrubland over Senna glaucifolia and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Undulating plain with gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.					
Fire Age	>5 yrs	>5 yrs				
Notes	Sparse wood	and leaf li	itter under shru	ıbs.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia speckii, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila fraseri, Eremophila spathulata, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila exilifolia, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta



Described by	JN	Date:	11/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	562128	mE	7019499	mN	
Habitat	Moderate to	steep slop	ed hill crest.			
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with surface crust and continuous stones/boulders and surface-level plates.					
Rock Type	BIF.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Thryptomene decussata and Eremophila glutinosa low shrubland over Sida excedentifolia very open herbs. Moderate to steep sloped hill crest.					
Veg Condition	Excellent, grazed by hard hoofed.					
Fire Age	None evident	•				
Notes	Sparse leaf ar	nd wood li	tter mainly under shr	ubs.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Grevillea berryana
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia rhodophloia, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Dodonaea petiolaris, Eremophila compacta subsp. fecunda, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Prostanthera petrophila
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Monachather paradoxus



Described by	SH	Date:	5/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range						
MGA Zone	50	581786	mE	7026819	mN		
Habitat	Gentle hill slo	ре					
Soil	Red-orange sa	andy clay	with continuous	stones/boulder	s and surfa	ce-level plates.	
Rock Type	BIF, non-band	ed ferro	us.				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura aneura, Acaci glutinosa and Ptilotus obova subsp. sieberi dominii scatte	acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland to scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. neura, Acacia sibirica and Acacia rhodophloia high open shrubland over Eremophila lutinosa and Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low shrubland to open heath over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low scattered shrubs over Sida sp. and Cheilanthes sieberi ubsp. sieberi scattered herbs over Cymbopogon ambiguus and Eriachne pulchella subsp. dominii scattered tussock grasses.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	by hard l	hoofed, with trac	ks.			
Fire Age	?						
Notes	Sparse wood	and leaf	litter mainly unde	er shrubs.			
Species List:							
Stratum	Cover	Species	s within each stra	atum			
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia	aneura var. aneu	ıra, Santalum sp	icatum		
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia	rhodophloia, Aca	icia sibirica			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia ashbya	speckii, Eremo e	phila glutinosc	a, Scaevolo	a spinescens, Solanum	
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremoµ Thrypto	ohila latrobei su omene decussata	bsp. <i>latrobei, P</i>	hilotheca k	brucei subsp. brevifolia,	
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Dodono petropi 2260)	aea pachyneura, hila, Sida calyxhy	Harnieria kemp menia, Sida sp.	<i>eana</i> subsp dark greer	b. <i>muelleri, Prostanthera</i> n fruits (S. van Leeuwen	
Tussock grasses	s < 2%	Cymbo domini	pogon ambiguus i	s, Eriachne mud	cronata, Er	iachne pulchella subsp.	
Herbs	< 2%	<i>Cheilar</i> dark gr	n <i>thes sieberi</i> subs een fruits (S. van	p. <i>sieberi, Ptilot</i> Leeuwen 2260)	us obovatu	s var. <i>obovatus, Sida</i> sp.	



Described by	SH	Date:	9/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	548351	mE	7015088	mN		
Habitat	Gentle hill slo	Gentle hill slope and crest					
Soil	Red-orange s plates.	Red-orange sandy clay, with continuous coarse gravel, stones/boulders and surface level plates.					
Rock Type	BIF, non-banded ferrous.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia sibirica high open shrubland over Thryptomene decussata shrubland over Calytrix desolata and Micromyrtus sulphurea low shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba herbs over Monachather paradoxus scattered tussock grasses. Gentle hill slope and crest.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazed	by hard h	oofed.				
Fire Age	None evident.						
Notes	Sparse wood	and leaf li	tter under shrubs.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia sibirica, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738), Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila georgei, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Prostanthera petrophila
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Calytrix desolata, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Micromyrtus placoides, Monachather paradoxus, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne helmsii, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella
Herbs	30 - 70%	Goodenia tenuiloba, Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)



Described by	JN	Date:	9/11/2006	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range					
MGA Zone	50	549405	mE	7015196	mN	
Habitat	Moderate hil	l slope.				
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with surface crust, and continuous coarse gravel, stones/boulders and					
Rock Type	surface-level plates.					
Vegetation	BIF					
Veg Condition	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata and Eremophila georgei shrubland over Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Micromyrtus sulphurae and Eremophila georgei low shrubland over Austrostipa scabra scattered tussock grasses. Moderate hill slope.					
Fire Age	Good, grazed by hard hoofed, with tracks.					
Notes	None evident.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia rhodophloia
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Hakea recurva subsp. arida, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Calytrix desolata, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Micromyrtus placoides, Scaevola spinescens
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Prostanthera petrophila, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Austrostipa scabra, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	< 2%	Olearia humilis



Described by	SH	Date:	12/	11/2006		Type:	Q		20x20	
Location	Weld Range									
MGA Zone	50	563731	mE		702	0476	mN			
Habitat	Gully sides wi	ith minor	chan	nel.						
Soil	Red-orange stones/bould	sandy ers at sui	clay, rface.	with fine	gravel	and	continuous	coarse	gravel	and
Rock Type	BIF, non-band	ded ferro	us, gr	anite, quar	z					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland to open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and Scaevola spinescens shrubland over Eremophila exilifolia, Senna glaucifolia and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba very open herbs over Grass sp. Scattered tussock grasses.									
Veg Condition	Good, grazed by hard hoofed.									
Fire Age	None evident.									
Notes	Sparse leaf ar	nd moder	ate v	vood litter u	inder shru	ubs.				

### Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ?ligulata, Acacia sibirica, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila macmillaniana
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila exilifolia, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Philotheca brucei subsp. brevifolia, Scaevola spinescens, Tribulus suberosus
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna glaucifolia, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Cymbopogon ambiguus
Herbs	2 - 10%	Goodenia tenuiloba

# Phase 2



Described by	AC	Date:	15/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	HHJV							
MGA Zone	50	542005	mE	7014892	mN			
Habitat	Flat/plain, ı	negligible sl	ope, next to o	dry lake				
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sand, loose soil						
Rock Type	Few quartz rocks							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii scattered shrubs over Aristida holathera and Monachather paradoxus tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Good; animals tracks							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Negligible wood litter.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila forrestii, Melaleuca stereophloia					
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Ptilotus polystachyus					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Aristida holathera var. holathera, Monachather paradoxus, POACEAE sp.					
Climbers	< 2%	Cuscuta epithymum					
Herbs	< 2%	Dianella revoluta var. divaricata, Gnephosis tenuissima, Wahlenbergia sp.					





Described by	JN	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV, Lake						
MGA Zone	50	542124	mE	7014740	50		
Habitat	Flat/plain, la	keside, ne	gligible slope				
Soil	Yellow-orang	Yellow-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust, fine gravel, and loose soil					
Rock Type	Nil						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland over Acacia tetragonophylla high open shrubland over Melaleuca stereophloia low open shrubland to open shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat/plain, lakeside.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None eviden	t					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Spar	se wood lit	ter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia craspedocarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Melaleuca stereophloia
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Rhagodia eremaea
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis dielsii
Climbers	< 2%	Lysiana ? murrayi


### 722 WRE Site 4a

Described by	AC	Date:	15/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	547554	mE	7014897	mN		
Habitat	Midslope to	Midslope to ridgetop, moderate slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust.					
Rock Type	Many BIF coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders.						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia aneura var ?microcarpa high open shrubland over Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Olearia stuartii and Eremophila ?glut low shrubland.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazing by hard-hooved animals						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

#### Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var ? microcarpa, Acacia pruinocarpa, Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia sibirica, Eremophila glutinosa, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Acacia grasbyi, Dodonaea pachyneura, Olearia stuartii, Solanum Iasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eriachne mucronata (typical form), Monachather paradoxus				
Herbs	< 2%	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi				

#### 722 WRE Site 05



Described by	SH	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	545195	mE	7016854	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	gligible sl	ope				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sand and sandy clay, with fine gravel and loose soil					
Rock Type	Common ferrous, granite, and quartz fine gravel.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low open shrubland to open shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat/plain.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Psydrax suaveolens, Santalum lanceolatum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Rhagodia eremaea, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila georgei
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus schwartzii
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta



Described by	JN	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	HHJV, near ro	oad to lake	2			
MGA Zone	50	544107	mE	7016163	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	gligible slo	ope			
Soil	Red-orange s	andy clay,	, with a surface crust a	and fine gra	avel	
Rock Type	Few to comm	non ferrou	s and quartz coarse g	ravel/pebb	les and stones/boulde	rs
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland to low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura var. aneura shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii and Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda low open shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat/plain.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	Old (>5 yrs)					
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia craspedocarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Spartothamnella teucriiflora
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus





#### 722 WRE Site 10a

Described by	SH	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	547792	mE	7014738	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain an	d footslop	e, negligible slope				
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay, with loose soil.					
Rock Type	Common fer	rous and §	granite stones.				
Vegetation	Acacia aneu shrubland ov Aristida cont	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low open shrubland to shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Flat/plain and footslope, granite stones.					
Veg Condition	Good	Good					
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia grasbyi
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Beyeria sp. Murchison (B. Jeanes s.n. 7/7/2005), Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila simulans
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum, Thryptomene decussata
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta
Herbs	< 2%	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi



Described by	SH	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	547091	mE	7015942	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain to f	footslope.					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sand to sandy clay					
Rock Type	Many granite and quartz coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland to high open shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Flat/plain to footslope.						
Veg Condition	Poor; grazing by hard hooved animals						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila glutinosa
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum centrale, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)



Described by	AC	Date:	15/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	547381	mE	7016821	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	Flat/plain, negligible slope					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, surface crust						
Rock Type	Many ferrous and quartz coarse gravel/pebbles						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland. Flat/plain.						
Veg Condition	Good, signs of grazing by hard hooved animals						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila georgei, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)				
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Acacia ?quadrimarginea, Maireana ? tomentosa, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Monachather paradoxus				





Described by	JN	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	HHJV					
MGA Zone	50	549879	mE	7017173	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	gligible sl	ope			
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland. Flat/plain.					
Veg Condition	Good; grazing by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	none evident					
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sibirica				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii				
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila hughesii subsp. hughesii, Eremophila simulans, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna glaucifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum				





Described by	SH	Date:	21/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	Beebyn							
MGA Zone	50	578440	mE	7028713	mN			
Habitat	Flat/plain, no	Flat/plain, negligible slope						
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange clay loam, with a surface crust						
Rock Type	Nil	Nil						
Vegetation	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa and Acacia quadrimarginea shrubland over Monachather paradoxus tussock grassland. Flat/plain.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazin	Good, grazing by hard hooved animals						
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate wood litter.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Grevillea berryana
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia quadrimarginea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila ?clarkei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Rhagodia eremaea
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Monachather paradoxus





Described by	SH	Date:	21/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location							
MGA Zone	50	580031	mE	7028802	mN		
Habitat	Plain/flat, n	egligible sl	оре				
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay, with loose soil					
Rock Type	Common no	on-banded	ferrous and g	ranite coarse grave	el/pebbles		
Vegetation	Acacia prui shrubland c var. obovat contorta sca	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Ptilotus schwartzii very open herbs over Aristida contorta scattered tussock grasses. Plain/Flat.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazi	Good, grazing by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None evide	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Negligble wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa					
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia tetragonophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Psydrax latifolia					
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila clarkei, Eremophila georgei					
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens					
Herbs	10 - 30%	Ptilotus schwartzii					





Described by	JN	Date:	21/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Plain behind	Beebyn					
MGA Zone	50	580346	mE	7028437	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, n	Flat/plain, negligible slope					
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust and fine gravel.					
Rock Type	Common ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low shrubland over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland. Flat/plain.						
Veg Condition	Good	Good					
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Grevillea berryana
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus schwartzii
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monachather paradoxus



Described by	AC	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Beebyn						
MGA Zone	50	581737	mE	7030291	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	egligible sl	ope.				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust.					
Rock Type	Few calcrete						
Vegetation	Eucalyptus lucasii woodland over Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia and Eucalyptus lucasii high open shrubland over Eucalyptus lucasii (emergent) scattered shrubs over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Ptilotus polystachyus low shrubland and Salsola australis low scattered shrubs. Flat/plain.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazing by hard hooved animals						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees 10 - 30m	10 - 30%	Eucalyptus lucasii					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Eucalyptus lucasii					
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila longifolia, Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus polystachyus, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Salsola australis, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Eragrostis australasica					
Herbs	< 2%	Maireana sp.					



Described by	JN	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Beebyn, sout	hern side,	lower footslopes				
MGA Zone	50	579888	mE	7025313	mN		
Habitat	Footslope, ge	Footslope, gentle slope					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay with a surface crust						
Rock Type	Common BIF	and ferro	us coarse gravel and p	ebbles.			
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low shrubland over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland. Footslope, gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	Old (>5 years)						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, mainl	y under shrubs. Mode	erate to spa	arse wood litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Grevillea berryana
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monachather paradoxus



Described by	SH	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20			
Location	Beebyn								
MGA Zone	50	578958	mE	7025464	mN				
Habitat	Moderate slo	pe, midslo	ope.						
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay							
Rock Type	Continuous B	Continuous BIF and ferrous stones and boulders							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata open heath over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open heath over Aristida holathera var. holathera open tussock grassland. Moderate slope, midslope.								
Veg Condition	Poor; track a	Poor; track and proposed drillpad							
Fire Age	None evident								
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, mainl	y under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila glutinosa, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Aristida holathera var. holathera
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Stylidium longibracteatum



Described by	JN	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Western Beel	byn				
MGA Zone	50	576712	mE	7024043	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	gligible slo	ope			
Soil	Red-orange s	andy clay,	with a surface crust a	and some f	ine gravel	
Rock Type	Many BIF and	l ferrous c	oarse gravel, pebbles	, stones, ar	nd boulders.	
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland to low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Acacia aneura var. aneura low open shrubland over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland. Flat/plain.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	Old (>5 yrs)					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, mainl	y under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii				
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila georgei, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii				
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens, Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus				



Described by	AC	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Beebyn					
MGA Zone	50	576285	mE	7024058	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	egligible sl	ope			
Soil	Red-orange o	clay, with a	a surface crust			
Rock Type	Common fer	rous coars	e gravel/pebbles.			
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia craspedocarpa open scrub over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Eremophila foliosissima low open shrubland over Monachather paradoxus and Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Flat/plain.					
Veg Condition	Good; grazin	Good; grazing by hard hooved animals				
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident				
Notes	Plentiful wide	espread le	af litter. Moderate w	ood litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila ?clarkei, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila foliosissima, Eremophila georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus					
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis					



Described by	SH	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Beebyn Soutl	า				
MGA Zone	50	576624	mE	7022957	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	gligble slo	pe			
Soil	Red-orange s	andy clay,	with loose soil			
Rock Type	Common BIF,	, ferrous a	nd quartz coarse grav	el and peb	bles.	
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii and Eremophila foliosissima low open heath over Marsdenia australis climbers over Eragrostis eriopoda very open tussock grassland. Flat/plain.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, mainl	y under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.	

### Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia craspedocarpa, Grevillea berryana				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila ?clarkei				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii				
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Eremophila foliosissima, Psydrax rigidula, Psydrax suaveolens, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eragrostis eriopoda				
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis				
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)				

722 WRE Site 58





Described by	SH	Date:	15/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20
Location	HHJV					
MGA Zone	50	556310	mE	7018553	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	gligible slo	ope			
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sand to sandy clay, clay, with a surface crust and loose soil				
Rock Type	Few granite a	ind BIF roo	cks			
Vegetation	Melaleuca stereophloia scattered tall shrubs over Cratystylis subspinescens shrubland over Melaleuca stereophloia, Cratystylis subspinescens and Halosarcia indica subsp. bidens low open heath. Flat/plain.					
Veg Condition	Degraded; he	Degraded; heavy grazing				
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, mainl	y undre shrubs. Spars	se wood litt	er.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Melaleuca stereophloia
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Cratystylis subspinescens, Eremophila sp., Leptomeria preissiana
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Frankenia sp., Muehlenbeckia florulenta
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Atriplex ?vesicaria, Atriplex bunburyana, Dissocarpus paradoxus, Maireana georgei, Maireana melanocoma, Melaleuca stereophloia, Sclerolaena fusiformis, Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens





Described by	AC	Date:	15/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	557351	mE	7018302	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, flo	odplain, r	negligible slope.				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Nil	Nil					
Vegetation	Melaleuca stereophloia and Cratystylis subspinescens shrubland over Halosarcia indica subsp. bidens low shrubland. Flat/plain, floodplain.						
Veg Condition	Good; grazin	Good; grazing by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Moderate lea	Noderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Cratystylis subspinescens, Melaleuca stereophloia, Muehlenbeckia florulenta, Pittosporum angustifolium				
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Atriplex bunburyana, Frankenia laxiflora, Maireana sp., Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens, Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens				
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis pergracilis				
Herbs	< 2%	Hibiscus burtonii				



Described by	SH	Date:	15/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Madoonga						
MGA Zone	50	558160	mE	7019242	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	Flat/plain, negligible slope.					
Soil	Red-orange and white sandy clay, with a surface crust						
Rock Type	Few calcrete						
Vegetation	<i>Eucalyptus gypsophila</i> low open woodland <i>to</i> open woodland over <i>Cratystylis subspinescens</i> shrubland over <i>Lawrencia chrysoderma</i> and <i>Frankenia</i> ? <i>laxiflora</i> low shrubland over <i>Eragrostis pergracilis</i> open tussock grassland. Flat/plain.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None eviden	t					
Notes	Moderate lea	af litter, m	ainly under sh	rubs. Moderate w	ood litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees 10 - 30m	2 - 10%	Eucalyptus carnei, Eucalyptus gypsophila, Eucalyptus trivalva				
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Eucalyptus carnei, Eucalyptus gypsophila, Eucalyptus trivalva				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Cratystylis subspinescens, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila pantonii, Leptomeria preissiana, Pittosporum angustifolium, Scaevola spinescens, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Zygophyllum eremaeum				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Atriplex nummularia, Frankenia laxiflora, Tecticornia cymbiformis				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Frankenia ?laxiflora, Lawrencia chrysoderma, Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens				
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Eragrostis pergracilis				





Described by	AC	Date:	21/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	W14							
MGA Zone	50	560374	mE	7018601	mN			
Habitat	North-east fa	North-east facing midslope, moderate slope.						
Soil	Orange to brown clay loam.							
Rock Type	Common BIF stones/boulders							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Solanum lasiophyllum and Eremophila latrobei low open shrubland over Sida excedentifolia open herbs. North-east facing midslope, moderate slope.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazing by hard hooved animals							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Plentiful leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate wood litter.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m		Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs < 1m		Eremophila latrobei, Solanum lasiophyllum
Shrubs < 0.5m		Ptilotus schwartzii
Tussock grasses		Cymbopogon ambiguus, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs		Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)





Described by	SH	Date:	20/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location							
MGA Zone	50	564211	mE	7020601	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop, ge	ntle to ne	gligible slope				
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay					
Rock Type	Continuous to many BIF and granite stones and boulders						
Vegetation	<i>Grevillea berryana</i> low open woodland over <i>Acacia aneura</i> var. <i>aneura</i> and <i>Grevillea berryana</i> open <i>scrub</i> over <i>Thryptomene decussata</i> open shrubland over <i>Eremophila glutinosa</i> and <i>Eremophila latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> low shrubland over <i>Sida excedentifolia</i> very open herbs. Ridgetop, gentle to negligible slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia minyura, Grevillea berryana				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia sibirica, Thryptomene decussata				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa, Prostanthera petrophila				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila margarethae, Ptilotus schwartzii				
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta				
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)				



Described by	SH	Date:	20/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	East of camp						
MGA Zone	50	560388	mE	7016711	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	gligible slo	ope				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with some loose soil					
Rock Type	Common ferrous and quartz coarse gravel and pebbles.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Senna glaucifolia and Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii open shrubland over Senna glaucifolia, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers over Aristida contorta and Cymbopogon ambiguus open tussock grassland. Flat/plain.						
Veg Condition	Poor, evidence of goats						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, mainl	y under shrubs. Mode	erate wood	litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Rhagodia eremaea, Scaevola spinescens, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Maireana sp., Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis





Described by	JN	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Ridge behind	camp					
MGA Zone	50	560836	mE	7016798	mN		
Habitat	Gentle to mo	Gentle to moderate slope, ridgetop					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust						
Rock Type	Continuous ferrous stones/boulders and surface level plates						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia sp. Weld Range shrubland to high shrubland over <i>Eremophila glutinosa</i> low shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Gentle to moderate slope, ridgetop.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	Old (>5 years)						
Notes	Sparse leaf li	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila glutinosa, Mirbelia ?stipitata, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia, Tribulus suberosus
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Heliotropium sp., Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta





Described by	AC	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	W14					
MGA Zone	50	561440	mE	7016893	mN	
Habitat	Ridgetop, ge	Ridgetop, gentle slope				
Soil	Red-orange	clay, with	a surface crust			
Rock Type	Many BIF stones and boulders					
Vegetation	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana open shrubland over Eremophila glutinosa and Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii low shrubland and Solanum lasiophyllum low scattered shrubs over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Ridgetop, gentle slope.					
Veg Condition						

Fire Age

Notes

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Eremophila macmillaniana, Senna glaucifolia					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila latrobei, Solanum lasiophyllum, Tribulus suberosus					
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus					
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)					



Described by	AC	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	W14							
MGA Zone	50	563937	mE	7018085	mN			
Habitat	Moderate slope, midslope							
Soil	Red clay							
Rock Type	Mnay BIF coarse gravel/pebbles and stones							
Vegetation	Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open heath over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Moderate slope, midslope.							
Veg Condition	Good							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate wood litter.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Eremophila exilifolia, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna glaucifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum, Tribulus suberosus
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus



Described by	SH	Date:	17/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range I	North					
MGA Zone	50	584124	mE	7031028	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	gligible slo	ope				
Soil	Red-orange sand to sandy clay, with loose soil						
Rock Type	Nil						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia aneura var. fuliginea high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low shrubland over Aristida sp. open tussock grassland. Flat/plain.						
Veg Condition	SH, Flat/plain.						
Fire Age	Poor						
Notes	None evident						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila jucunda, Hemigenia tysonii, Solanum ferocissimum, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida sp., Eragrostis lanipes





Described by	JN	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld North							
MGA Zone	50	584862	mE	7031416	mN			
Habitat	Flat/plain, negligible slope.							
Soil	Red-orange sand to sandy clay, with loose soil.							
Rock Type	Nil							
Vegetation	Corymbia lenziana open woodland to scattered tall trees over Acacia aneura var. intermedia low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila hughesii subsp. hughesii and Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low shrubland to shrubland over Eremophila hughesii subsp. hughesii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland. Flat/plain.							
Veg Condition	Excellent							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs and trees - plentiful under Corymbia sp.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Corymbia lenziana
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa,Corymbia lenziana, Psydrax rigidula
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila hughesii subsp. hughesii, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Senna ?glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum





Described by	SH	Date:	21/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	Beebyn North	1						
MGA Zone	50	579048	mE	7028520	mN			
Habitat	Flat/plain, neg	gligible sl	ope, possible so	oak				
Soil	Red-orange sa	andy clay	to clay, with lo	ose soil and no ro	ocks			
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia aneura var. aneura open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Psydrax latifolia low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers over Abutilon sp. and Sida fibulifera very open herbs. Flat/plain, possible soak.							
Veg Condition	Good, grazing	; by hard	hooved animals	5				
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Moderate wid	lespread	leaf litter. Mod	erate wood litter				
Species List:								
Stratum	Cover	Specie	s within each st	ratum				
Trees 10 - 30m	2 - 10%	Acacia	aneura var. ane	eura, Acacia crasp	edocarpa,	, Acacia pruinocarpa		
Trees < 10m	30 - 70%	Acacia Psydra	aneura var. a x latifolia	neura, Acacia cr	aspedoca	rpa, Acacia pruinocarpa,		
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia	<i>ramulosa</i> var. li	inophylla				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremoj george	ohila ?clarkei, i, Eremophila gi	Eremophila forr Tesii subsp. variat	estii subs pilis, Rhag	sp. forrestii, Eremophila odia eremaea		
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremo	ohila glutinosa					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotu	s obovatus var.	obovatus, Solanu	m lasiophy	yllum		
Tussock grasses	<b>s</b> < 2%	Aristide	a contorta, Arist	ida holathera var	. holather	a		
Climbers	< 2%	Marsde	enia australis					
Herbs	2 - 10%	Abutilo	n sp., Sida fibul	ifera				





# 722 WRE Site 88a

Described by	AC	Date:	17/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20			
Location	Weld Range	North							
MGA Zone	50	585765	mE	7031197	mN				
Habitat	Flat/plain, c	Flat/plain, creek bed and bank, gentle slope.							
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sand with a surface crust and some loose soil							
Rock Type	Few ferrous	and quart	z stones.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sibirica and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Solanum lasiophyllum low scattered shrubs over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Flat/plain, creek bed and bank, gentle slope.								
Veg Condition	Good; graziı	Good; grazing by hard hooved animals							
Fire Age	None evider	None evident							
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sibirica
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia burkittii, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila platycalyx
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Hakea preissii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus polystachyus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens
Climbers	< 2%	Duperreya commixta





Described by	AC	Date:	16/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range No	orth						
MGA Zone								
Habitat	Flat/plain, creek bed.							
Soil	Red-orange sand, with loose soil and some fine gravel.							
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla and Acacia aneura open scrub over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Enneapogon caerulescens and Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Flat/plain, creek bed.							
Veg Condition								
Fire Age								
Notes								

#### Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Welc Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia tetragonophylla, Santalun spicatum						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Eremophila aff. georgei, Eremophila platycalyx, Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii						
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Grevillea inconspicua, Prostanthera petrophila, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus						
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Mirbelia ?stipitata, Solanum lasiophyllum						
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens, Eragrostis sp.						
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp.						

#### 722 WRE Site 94



Described by	AC	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range I	North					
MGA Zone	50	587032	mE	7035055	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ge	ntle slope					
Soil	Orange sandy	y clay					
Rock Type	Common gra	nite stone	s/boulders and surfac	e level plat	tes		
Vegetation	Acacia sp. Weld Range high shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii and Senna glaucifolia shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland and Eremophila platycalyx low scattered shrubs over Cymbopogon ambiguus and Enneapogon caerulescens open tussock grassland. Flat/plain, gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Acacia minyura, Eremophila platycalyx
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens





Described by	SH	Date:	17/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20		
Location	Weld Range	North Eas	t					
MGA Zone	50	587295	mE	7034769	mN			
Habitat	Flat/plain, w	ith a mino	r channel and	d possible granite se	oak. Negl	igible slope		
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sand						
Rock Type								
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia rhodophloia high open shrubland over Eremophila exilifolia scattered shrubs over Eremophila exilifolia and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus very open tussock grassland. Flat/plain, with a minor channel and possible granite soak.							
Veg Condition	Good							
Fire Age	None eviden	t						
Notes								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia sibirica, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii				
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila exilifolia, Hakea lorea, Senna glaucifolia				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens				



Described by	SH	Date:	16/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range	North East	t				
MGA Zone	50	588797	mE	7035953	mN		
Habitat	Footslope, ne	egligible sl	оре				
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Many ferrou	s pieces of	fine gravel and coars	e gravel/pe	bbles.		
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii and Senna glaucifolia open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland. Footslope.						
Veg Condition							
Fire Age							
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa						
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia						
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Dodonaea petiolaris, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila spathulata, Solanum lasiophyllum						
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Maireana georgei, Maireana triptera, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus						



Described by	JN	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20						
Location	Weld North											
MGA Zone	50	588798	mE	7036525	mN							
Habitat	Footslope, ge	entle slope	2									
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust.											
Rock Type	Continuous ferrous and quartz coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders, and surface level plates.											
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia tetragonophylla high open shrubland over Acacia tetragonophylla scattered shrubs over Senna sp. Meekatharra and Maireana georgei low shrubland. Footslope, gentle slope.											
Veg Condition	Good											
Fire Age	Old (>5 years)											
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	tter (main	ly under shrubs). Spai	rse wood li	tter.	Sparse leaf litter (mainly under shrubs). Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila spathulata, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana georgei, Maireana triptera, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus



Described by	AC	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range	North					
MGA Zone	50	588158	mE	7037131	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ge	ntle slope					
Soil	Orange to brown clay loam, with a surface crust and some fine gravel.						
Rock Type	Common ferr	ous and q	uartz fine gravel.				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia aneura var. intermedia low woodland over Acacia tetragonophylla and Acacia sclerosperma subsp. sclerosperma high open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Senna sp. 1 shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia sclerosperma subsp. sclerosperma, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila compacta subsp. compacta, Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila galeata, Eremophila platycalyx, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus polystachyus, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Sida ectogama
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Maireana triptera, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta



Described by	AC	Date:	16/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range	North					
MGA Zone	50	588450	mE	7038104	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	gligible slo	ope.				
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with fine gravel and loose soil						
Rock Type	Many ferrous, granite, and quartz coarse gravel and pebbles.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Eremophila spathulata open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Solanum lasiophyllum low scattered shrubs over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Flat/plain.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila spathulata, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii					
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Grevillea extorris, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus					


Described by	SH	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range I	North East	t				
MGA Zone	50	589312	mE	7038142	mN		
Habitat	Footslope, ne	egligible sl	ope				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with fine gravel					
Rock Type	Many ferrous	s and gran	ite coarse gravel/peb	bles			
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia minyura high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans and Ptilotus schwartzii low open shrubland over Sida excedentifolia very open herbs, Footslope.						
Veg Condition	Good; track at edge of quadrat						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia minyura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Grevillea berryana, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum lasiophyllum



Described by	AC	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	W14					
MGA Zone	50	562128	mE	7019503	mN	
Habitat	Ridgetop, mo	derate slo	ope			
Soil	Red-orange s	andy clay				
Rock Type	Common BIF	stones an	d boulders			
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia and Thryptomene decussata open heath Sida excedentifolia and Ptilotus schwartzii scattered herbs over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland. Ridgetop, moderate slope.					
Veg Condition	Good, grazing by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, main	y under shrubs. Mode	erate wood	litter.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia rhodophloia, Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Grevillea berryana, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei, Prostanthera petrophila
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	< 2%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)





Described by	SH	Date:	15/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Lakeside						
MGA Zone	50	541455	mE	7014385	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, la	ke bank					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sand to sandy clay, with loose soil.					
Rock Type	Nil						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura low open woodland over Melaleuca stereophloia high open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii shrubland over Eremophila forrestii and Solanum lasiophyllum low open shrubland over Eragrostis lanipes and Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Flat/plain, lake bank.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura			
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia murrayana, Acacia sibirica			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila compacta subsp. compacta, Eremophila forrestii, Melaleuca stereophloia			
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eragrostis lanipes, Monachather paradoxus, POACEAE sp.			



Described by	AC	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	544412	mE	7016905	mN		
Habitat	Flat plain, ne	gligible slo	ope				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with loose soil					
Rock Type	Common qua	artz stone:	5				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Eremophila galeata and Acacia tetragonophylla scattered shrubs over Eriachne helmsii tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good, kangaroo track through site						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Negligible lea	Negligible leaf litter. Moderate wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. conifera, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila galeata
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Sida ectogama
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila punicea, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida holathera, Eriachne pulchella, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	< 2%	Dianella revoluta var. divaricata





Described by	JN	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Near W17						
MGA Zone	50	546935	mE	7015506	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, mi	Midslope, minor crest, gentle slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland to scattered low trees over Acacia grasbyi open shrubland over Acacia grasbyi and Ptilotus beardii low shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Midslope, minor crest, gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good	Good					
Fire Age	Old (>5 years)						
Notes	Sparse leaf li	tter, mian	ly under shrubs. Mode	erate to spa	arse wood litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Hakea recurva
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia grasbyi
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea adenophora, Eremophila glutinosa, Senna sp. Austin (A. Strid 20210), Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Maireana glomerifolia, Ptilotus beardii
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne mucronata



Described by	JN	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	HHJV					
MGA Zone	50	547723	mE	7014961	mN	
Habitat	Ridgetop, mo	derate slo	ppe			
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders, and surface level plates					
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland to scattered trees over Acacia craspedocarpa and Acacia aneura var. fuliginea high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata shrubland over Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Ridgetop, moderate slope.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, mainl	y under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia sibirica
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Solanum ashbyae, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei, Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Olearia plucheacea, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Prostanthera petrophila
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta
Climbers	< 2%	Duperreya commixta
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)





Described by	JN	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Samphire pla	in					
MGA Zone	50	557394	mE	7018295	mN		
Habitat	Undulating p	Undulating plain; isolated patch of woodland in a samphire plain.					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with loose soil					
Rock Type							
Vegetation	Pittosporum angustifolium low open woodland to scattered trees over Leptomeria preissiana high open shrubland over Cratystylis subspinescens and Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia shrubland over Atriplex cephalantha, Scaevola spinescens, Halosarcia indica subsp. bidens and Frankenia laxiflora low shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Undulating plain; isolated patch of woodland in a samphire plain.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate lea	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Pittosporum angustifolium, Santalum spicatum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia victoriae, Leptomeria preissiana, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Atriplex cephalantha, Cratystylis subspinescens, Eremophila subfloccosa subsp. lanata, Melaleuca stereophloia, Scaevola spinescens
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra, Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Frankenia laxiflora, Podolepis capillaris
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens



Described by	AC	Date:	15/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Madoonga						
MGA Zone	50	558093	mE	7018841	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	-lat/plain, negligible slope					
Soil	Orange clay v	Orange clay with a surface crust.					
Rock Type	Nil						
Vegetation	<i>Eucalyptus carnei</i> woodland over <i>Eremophila pantonii</i> scattered shrubs over <i>Atriplex</i> sp. and <i>Tecticornia cymbiformis</i> low open shrubland over <i>Eragrostis pergracilis</i> open tussock grassland. Flat/plain.						
Veg Condition	Good; grazin	Good; grazing by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate widespread leaf litter. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	10 - 30%	Eucalyptus carnei, Eucalyptus carnei
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Eucalyptus carnei, Eucalyptus carnei
Mallee tree	< 2%	Eucalyptus trivalva
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia victoriae, Eremophila pantonii
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia exocarpoides, Acacia tetragonophylla, Atriplex sp., Cratystylis subspinescens, Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra, Eremophila subfloccosa subsp. lanata, Scaevola spinescens
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Frankenia laxiflora, Melaleuca stereophloia, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum, Tecticornia cymbiformis, Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Eragrostis pergracilis, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	< 2%	Calocephalus multiflorus, Centaurium sp.



Described by	JN	Date:	15/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Ex's near sa	mphire					
MGA Zone	50	558037	mE	7019505	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, e	-lat/plain, edges of samphire plain, negligible slope					
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange to brown sandy clay, with a surface crust and some loose soil					
Rock Type	Nil	Nil					
Vegetation	<i>Eucalyptus</i> mallee fore shrubland <i>laxiflora</i> low samphire p	<i>Eucalyptus trivalva</i> low open woodland to woodland over <i>Eucalyptus trivalva</i> low open mallee forest over <i>Exocarpos aphyllus</i> scattered tall shrubs over <i>Acacia victoriae</i> open shrubland over <i>Eremophila glabra</i> subsp. <i>glabra, Scaevola spinescens</i> and <i>Frankenia laxiflora</i> low shrubland over <i>Aristida contorta</i> open tussock grassland. Flat/plain, edges of samphire plain.					
Veg Condition	Good	Good					
Fire Age	None evide	None evident					
Notes	Moderate l	eaf litter, m	Noderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs and trees. Moderate wood litter.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	10 - 30%	Eucalyptus carnei, Eucalyptus trivalva
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Eucalyptus carnei, Eucalyptus trivalva
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia murrayana, Acacia victoriae, Exocarpos aphyllus
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra, Eremophila subfloccosa subsp. lanata, Scaevola spinescens, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Atriplex nummularia, Cratystylis subspinescens, Lawrencia chrysoderma, Melaleuca stereophloia, Muehlenbeckia florulenta, Tecticornia sp.
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Frankenia laxiflora
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta



Described by	JN	Date:	16/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range	North					
MGA Zone	50	580322	mE	7030811	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain to	Flat/plain to undulating plain, with a negligible slope.					
Soil	Brown loam,	Brown loam, with loose soil					
Rock Type	Nil						
Vegetation	Eucalyptus lucasii low woodland to open forest over Eucalyptus lucasii (saplings) low open mallee woodland over Acacia tetragonophylla high open shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia open shrubland over Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala, Abutilon oxycarpum and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Duperreya commixta climbers. Flat/plain to undulating plain.						
Veg Condition	Excellent						
Fire Age	Old (>5 yrs)						
Notes	Plentiful, wid	Plentiful, widespread leaf litter. Plentiful wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees 10 - 30m	30 - 70%	Eucalyptus lucasii				
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Eucalyptus lucasii				
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia tetragonophylla				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Eremophila longifolia, Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala, Pittosporum angustifolium, Santalum lanceolatum, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)				
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila subfloccosa subsp. Ianata, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus				
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Enneapogon caerulescens, Eragrostis australasica, POACEAE sp.				
Climbers	10 - 30%	Duperreya commixta				





Described by	SH	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld North					
MGA Zone	50	581695	mE	7030171	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, ne	gligible slo	ope			
Soil	Brown sand t	Brown sand to sandy clay, with loose soil				
Rock Type	Few granite and quartz stones.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura low open woodland over Eucalyptus lucasii low mallee woodland over Sida calyxhymenia open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus low open heath over Ptilotus polystachyus open herbs. Flat/plain.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Plentiful wide	Plentiful widespread leaf litter. Moderate wood litter.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Psydrax latifolia					
Mallee tree	10 - 30%	Eucalyptus lucasii					
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia aneura					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia tetragonophylla					
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Eremophila galeata, Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Rhagodia eremaea, Sida calyxhymenia, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Eremophila foliosissima, Maireana ?georgei, Spartothamnella teucriiflora					
Herbs	10 - 30%	Abutilon ?oxycarpum, Ptilotus polystachyus					



Described by	SH	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range I	North East	:			
MGA Zone	50	589437	mE	7037259	mN	
Habitat	Midslope, no	rth west f	acing, gentle slope.			
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay				
Rock Type	Continuous BIF, grantie, quartz, and ferrous stones/boulders and surface level plates					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Thryptomene decussata high open shrubland over Eremophila margarethae low scattered shrubs and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba open herbs over Eriachne pulchella very open tussock grassland. Midslope, north west facing, gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Grevillea berryana
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Psydrax rigidula, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne pulchella
Herbs	10 - 30%	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Goodenia tenuiloba



Described by	JN	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld North					
MGA Zone	50	589791	mE	7037197	mN	
Habitat	Midslope, hi	Aidslope, hill crest on side of range, south east facing gentle slope.				
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust and fine gravel				
Rock Type	Continuous	Continuous to many ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders.				
Vegetation	Acacia aneu aneura var. macmillania helmsii and i	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Eremophila macmillaniana shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana, Senna artemisioides subsp helmsii and Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus low open shrubland.				
Veg Condition	Good	Good				
Fire Age	None evider	nt				
Notes	Sparse leaf li	itter, main	lly under shrubs. Mo	derate to sp	arse wood litter.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila macmillaniana
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia speckii, Acacia tetragonophylla, Calytrix desolata, Eremophila macmillaniana, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia speckii, Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila macmillaniana, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Mirbelia ?stipitata, Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii



Described by	AC	Date:	15/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range I	North				
MGA Zone	50	589471	mE	7037203	mN	
Habitat	Ridgetop, ger	Ridgetop, gentle slope (slopes down, south to north).				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay				
Rock Type	Many BIF coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders and surface level plates.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Thryptomene decussata high open shrubland over Thryptomene decussata and Baeckea sp. Melita Station open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Goodenia sp. very open herbs over Eriachne helmsii scattered tussock grasses. Ridgetop, gentle slope (slopes down, south to north).					
Veg Condition	Excellent					
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	parse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Negligible wood litter.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738), Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila glutinosa, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eriachne helmsii
Herbs	2 - 10%	Goodenia sp., Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N Foote 32)



Described by	SH	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range	North East	t				
MGA Zone	50	589282	mE	7036626	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, no	Midslope, north-west facing, moderate slope.					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay					
Rock Type	Continuous E	Continuous BIF and ferrous stones/boulders and surface-level plates.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Eremophila margarethae scattered shrubs over Eremophila margarethae and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Marsdenia australis climbers. Midslope, north-west facing, moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf li	sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum lasiophyllum
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis
Herbs	< 2%	Cheilanthes lasiophylla



Described by	AC	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range I	North				
MGA Zone	50	589342	mE	7036616	mN	
Habitat	Midslope, ea	st south e	ast facing, steep slope			
Soil	Red-orange c	Red-orange clay				
Rock Type	Continuous stones/boulders and surface-level plates, BIF.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Thryptomene decussata high shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open heath and Solanum ashbyae low scattered shrubs over Goodenia sp. and Sida ?chrysocalyx very open herbs. Midslope, east south east facing, steep slope.					
Veg Condition	Excellent					
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Hibiscus ?burtonii, Solanum ashbyae, Tribulus suberosus
Herbs	2 - 10%	Cheilanthes sieberi, Goodenia sp., Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)



Described by	JN	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld North,	south-eas	t face of range				
MGA Zone	50	589461	mE	7036537	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, m	Vidslope, moderate south-east facing slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Conintuous E	Conintuous BIF and ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana, Dodonaea sp. Ninghan and Eremophila exilifolia low shrubland. Midslope, moderate south-east facing slope.						
Veg Condition	Good	Good					
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	parse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate to sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila macmillaniana
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila exilifolia, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus





Described by	JN	Date:	16/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20					
Location	Weld Range I	North									
MGA Zone	50	589858	mE	7037769	mN						
Habitat	Midslope to r	Midslope to ridgetop, gentle slope									
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust									
Rock Type	Continuous ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders, and surface level plates.										
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia sp. Weld Range high open shrubland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia speckii shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana, Eremophila exilifolia and Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus low open shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Midslope to ridgetop, gentle slope.										
Veg Condition	Good										
Fire Age	Old (>5 years	Old (>5 years)									
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, main	ly under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.	parse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii, Grevillea berryana
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila macmillaniana
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila exilifolia, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta





Described by	JN	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range	North				
MGA Zone	50	587069	mE	7034505	mN	
Habitat	Undulating p	Undulating plain, small granite dome crest. Gentle slope.				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust				
Rock Type	Many granite	Many granite pieces of fine gravel and stones/boulders.				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range open shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Solanum lasiophyllum low shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus very open tussock grassland. Undulating plain, small granite dome crest. Gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Good	Good				
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident				
Notes	Moderate to	sparse wo	ood litter. Sparse leaf	litter, main	ly under shrubs.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Santalum spicatum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila exilifolia
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens



Described by	AC	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range	North				
MGA Zone	50	587781	mE	7034353	mN	
Habitat	Rocky scree	Rocky scree footslope, north-west side of ridge, gentle slope.				
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange clay, with a surface crust				
Rock Type	Many BIF, ai	Many BIF, and a few quartz, coarse gravel and pebbles.				
Vegetation	Acacia ramu (emergent), latrobei sub excedentifol scree footslo	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura high shrubland over Acacia aneura (emergent), Eremophila spathulata and Ptilotus rotundifolius shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Solanum lasiophyllum low scattered shrubs over Sida excedentifolia scattered herbs over Aristida contorta scattered tussock grasses. Rocky scree footslope, north-west side of ridge, gentle slope.				
Veg Condition	Good	Good				
Fire Age	None evider	None evident				
Notes	Sparse leaf I	itter, main	ly under shrubs. Negl	igible wood	l litter.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila spathulata, Psydrax suaveolens, Ptilotus rotundifolius
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Senna glaucifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)



Described by	JN	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range I	North					
MGA Zone	50	587937	mE	7034213	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop, gei	Ridgetop, gentle slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous BIF and ferrous coarse gravel, pebbles, stones, and boulders.						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura open shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila spathulata low shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba very open herbs. Ridgetop, gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Excellent	Excellent					
Fire Age	Old (>5 years	Old (>5 years)					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	parse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax suaveolens				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila spathulata				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Senna glaucifolia				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii				
Herbs	2 - 10%	Goodenia tenuiloba				



Described by	SH	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Weld Range I	North-Eas	t				
MGA Zone	50	588151	mE	7033952	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, so gentle slope.	Midslope, south-west facing, minor drainage channel just below site, gully sides with a gentle slope.					
Soil	Red-orange c	Red-orange clay					
Rock Type	Continuous f	Continuous ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles, and stones/boulders.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range high shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana open shrubland over Eremophila exilifolia and Dodonaea sp. Ninghan low shrubland over Enneapogon caerulescens and Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Midslope, south-west facing, minor drainage channel just below site, gully sides with a gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Mode	erate wood	litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila macmillaniana
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila exilifolia, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida ectogama
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)



Described by	SH	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range I	North East	:			
MGA Zone	50	588502	mE	7033622	mN	
Habitat	Midslope, ge	ntle slope	, noth-west facing.			
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay				
Rock Type	Continuous, f	Continuous, ferrous, granite, and quartz				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura and Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Eremophila macmillaniana low scattered shrubs to scattered tall shrubs over Euphorbia boophthona scattered herbs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Midslope, gentle slope, noth-west facing.					
Veg Condition	Poor; heavily grazed by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None evident	None evident				
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	tter, minal	y under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura, Grevillea berryana
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Eremophila macmillaniana
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila exilifolia, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta
Herbs	< 2%	Euphorbia boophthona, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)



Described by	JN	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range I	North				
MGA Zone	50	587841	mE	7033527	mN	
Habitat	Ridgetop, gei	ntle slope				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay with a surface crust				
Rock Type	Continuous t	Continuous to many ferrous coarse gravel, pebbles, stones, and boulders				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia sp. Weld Range shrubland to high open shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana, Eremophila exilifolia, Ptilotus rotundifolius and Dodonaea sp. Ninghan low shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Ridgetop, gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Good	Good				
Fire Age	None evident	None evident				
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila macmillaniana			
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila exilifolia, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna artemisioides subsp. oligophylla			
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Grevillea inconspicua, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta			



Described by	AC	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Weld Range	North				
MGA Zone	50	588342	mE	7034114	mN	
Habitat	Ridgetop, ge	ntle slope				
Soil	Red-orange o	Red-orange clay, with a surface crust				
Rock Type	Many BIF coa	Many BIF coarse gravel, pebbles, and stones.				
Vegetation	Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia speckii shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus low open shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Ridgetop, gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Excellent	Excellent				
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii			
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila macmillaniana			
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Solanum lasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus			



Described by	SH	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Beebyn Nortl	h East					
MGA Zone	50	582918	mE	7027232	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, no	Midslope, north face. Moderate slope.					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay					
Rock Type	Continuous f	errous sto	nes/boulders and sur	face-level p	plates.		
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered tall shrubs to scattered low trees over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus and Enneapogon caerulescens very open tussock grassland. Midslope, north face. Moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila galeata, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26), Solanum lasiophyllum
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila macmillaniana, Hibiscus burtonii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Tribulus suberosus
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens



Described by	JN	Date:	17/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	South-facing	slope, Be	ebyn east				
MGA Zone	50	583009	mE	7027197	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, m	Midslope, moderate slope.					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous E	Continuous BIF and ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders.					
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland to low woodland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Thryptomene decussata open heath over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open heath. Midslope, moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good	Good					
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Moo	derate to sp	arse wood litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Dodonaea petiolaris, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Olearia stuartii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum



Described by	AC	Date:	17/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Beebyn						
MGA Zone	50	582941	mE	7027205	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop, mo	Ridgetop, moderate to gentle slope.					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust.					
Rock Type	Many BIF coa	Many BIF coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders					
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered tall shrubs over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open heath. Ridgetop, moderate to gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good; grazin	Good; grazing by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None evident	None evident					
Notes	Moderate lea	Aoderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Eremophila ?georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Dodonaea ?pachyneura, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Senna glaucifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Cymbopogon ambiguus



Described by	SH	Date:	18/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Beebyn						
MGA Zone	50	582035	mE	7027062	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, n	Flat/plain, negligible slope					
Soil	Red orange	Red orange hard clay pan					
Rock Type	Few ferrous pebbles						
Vegetation	Grevillea berryana low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. intermedia and Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla scattered shrubs over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii and Eremophila georgei low shrubland over Maireana georgeii very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus very open tussoc grassland.						
Veg Condition							

U

Fire Age

Notes

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Grevillea berryana, Psydrax latifolia
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla, Chenopodium gaudichaudianum, Eremophila georgei, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	2 - 10%	Hibiscus burtonii, Maireana georgei



Described by	AC	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Beebyn					
MGA Zone	50	581892	mE	7027044	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain to t	footslope,	gentle slope			
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust				
Rock Type	Many BIF coa	Many BIF coarse gravel, pebbles and stones				
Vegetation	<i>Grevillea berryana</i> and <i>Acacia aneura</i> var. <i>aneura</i> high shrubland over <i>Eremophila georgei</i> and <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> var. <i>obovatus</i> low shrubland and <i>Solanum lasiophyllum</i> low scattered shrubs over <i>Ptilotus schwartzii</i> scattered herbs over <i>Aristida contorta</i> very open tussock grassland. Flat/plain <i>to</i> footslope, gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Good	Good				
Fire Age	None evident	None evident				
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, mainl	y under shrubs. Mode	erate wood	litter.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Grevillea berryana					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Psydrax latifolia					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Maireana georgei, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus					
Herbs	< 2%	Cheilanthes sieberi, Ptilotus schwartzii					



Described by	JN	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Beebyn						
MGA Zone	50	581922	mE	7026918	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop, gei	Ridgetop, gentle slope.					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous ferrous and BIF stones, boulders, and surface-level plates						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland to scattered low trees over Thryptomene decussata shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Thryptomene decussata and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland. Ridgetop, gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good	Good					
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse to neg	parse to negligible leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia rhodophloia					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus					
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Monachather paradoxus					



Described by	SH	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Beebyn						
MGA Zone	50	580319	mE	7026328	mN		
Habitat	Moderate slo	pe, north	facing midslope.				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay					
Rock Type	Continuous B	Continuous BIF and ferrous stones, boulders, and surface-level plates.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Eremophila margarethae low shrubland and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low scattered shrubs. Moderate slope, north facing midslope.						
Veg Condition	Good	Good					
Fire Age	none evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Thryptomene decussata			
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila margarethae			
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum ellipticum, Solanum lasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta			





Described by	JN	Date:	18/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20
Location	Beebyn centre	- footslo	ope northern face			
MGA Zone						
Habitat	Moderate to gentle slope, footslope					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Many BIF and f	errous	coarse gravel, pebbles, s	tones, a	nd boulders	
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland to low open woodland over Acacia ramuloso var. linophylla shrubland over Eremophila forest ssp forest low shrubland over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	Old (>5 yrs)					
Notes	Sparse leaf litte	er, main	ly under shrubs. Modera	ite wood	d litter.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Grevillea berryana
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. Forrestii, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. Forrestii, Ptilotus schwartzii, Senna glaucifolia, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum ashbyae, Solanum ellipticum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monachather paradoxus



Described by	AC	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Beebyn						
MGA Zone	50	580290	mE	7026302	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop, gei	ntle slope					
Soil	Red-orange o	Red-orange clay					
Rock Type	Many BIF sto	Many BIF stones/boulders and surface-level plates					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata open shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Solanum lasiophyllum and Tribulus suberosus low scattered shrubs over Monachather paradoxus scattered tussock grasses. Ridgetop, gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good; grazin	Good; grazing by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Spars	se wood litt	er.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Dodonaea ?petiolaris, Maireana georgei, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26), Solanum lasiophyllum, Tribulus suberosus
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Cymbopogon ambiguus, Monachather paradoxus



Described by	AC	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Beebyn					
MGA Zone	50	579052	mE	7025125	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, ge	entle slope				
Soil	Red-orange	clay loam,	with a surface crust			
Rock Type	Common BIF	Common BIF coarse gravel and pebbles				
Vegetation	Grevillea berryana scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Senna artemisioides subsp. sturtii and Eremophila ?clarkei open heath over Acacia aneura var. aneura (emergent) low open shrubland. Flat/plain, gentle slope.					
Veg Condition						

Fire Age

Notes

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Grevillea berryana
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Psydrax latifolia
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila ?clarkei, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Eremophila latrobei, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila glutinosa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii



Described by	AC	Date:	18/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20
Location	Beebyn nortl	nwest				
MGA Zone	50	573853	mE	7027002	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, wi	ith a mino	r drainage chan	nel and a gentle	slope.	
Soil	Red clay, wit	h a surfac	e crust and fine	gravel		
Rock Type	Many, ferrou	Many, ferrous				
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia exocarpoides open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland and Solanum lasiophyllum low scattered shrubs. Flat/plain, with a minor drainage channel and a gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Excellent	Excellent				
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident				
Notes	Moderate lea	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa, Santalum acuminatum					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia exocarpoides, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Scaevola spinescens					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Maireana ? tomentosa, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Climbers	< 2%	Lysiana ? murrayi					


Described by	JN	Date:	18/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Down on flat	s, below b	oreakaway behin	d Beebyn			
MGA Zone	50	573904	mE	7027138	mN		
Habitat	Drainage bas	Drainage basin below breakaway					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust						
Rock Type	Continuous to many ferrous coarse gravel and pebbles, stones and boulders.						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa low woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia sibirica shrubland over Acacia exocarpoides and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia pruinocarpa				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia sibirica, Acacia tetragonophylla				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia exocarpoides, Dodonaea viscosa, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, Grevillea stenostachya				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea viscosa, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Stenanthemum petraeum				



Described by	SH	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Beebyn North	า				
MGA Zone	50	573767	mE	7027087	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, bro	eakaway o	drainage area, negligil	ole slope		
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sand, with fine gravel				
Rock Type	Many granite and quartz coarse gravel, pebbles, and surface level plates					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia coolgardiensis subsp. effusa high open shrubland over Acacia exocarpoides shrubland over Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei and Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii low shrubland. Flat/plain, breakaway drainage area.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, main	ly under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Psydrax latifolia
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia effusifolia, Acacia minyura, Grevillea berryana, Hakea recurva subsp. arida
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia exocarpoides, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea viscosa subsp. angustissima, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii





Described by	AC	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	North West o	of Beebyn				
MGA Zone	50	573424	mE	7027308	mN	
Habitat	Ridgetop, ge	ntle slope				
Soil						
Rock Type						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata and Eremophila glutinosa shrubland over Eremophila latrobei and Stenanthemum petraeum low shrubland over Sida excedentifolia and Ptilotus schwartzii scattered herbs over Monachather paradoxus scattered tussock grasses. Ridgetop, gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Excellent					
Fire Age	None eviden	t				
Notes						

#### Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia exocarpoides, Eremophila latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Prostanthera petrophila, Stenanthemum petraeum
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	< 2%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)

722 WRE Site 152





Described by	SH	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Beebyn Nort	h				
MGA Zone	50	573471	mE	7027246	mN	
Habitat	Midslope, mi	nor chanr	nel, with a gentle slo	ре		
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay				
Rock Type	Many BIF coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia coolgardiensis subsp. effusa open shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low open heath over Senna glaucifolia low open shrubland over Sida ?chrysocalyx very open herbs. Midslope, minor channel, with a gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident				
Notes	Sparse leaf li	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Spa	rse wood lit	ter.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Grevillea berryana, Psydrax latifolia					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia effusifolia, Acacia exocarpoides, Eremophila ?georgei, Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea viscosa subsp. angustissima, Ptilotus schwartzii, Senna glaucifolia					
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)					



Described by	SH	Date:	18/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Footslopes o	Footslopes of range near breakaway behind Beebyn					
MGA Zone	50	574031	mE	7027464	mN		
Habitat	Moderate to	Voderate to gentle slope, midslope.					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous E	Continuous BIF coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland to scattered low trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low open heath. Moderate to gentle slope, midslope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	Old (>5 years	Old (>5 years)					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	oarse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia rhodophloia					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Homalocalyx echinulatus					



Described by	SH	Date:	19/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	HHJV East					
MGA Zone	50	555848	mE	7017032	mN	
Habitat	Ridgetop, neg	gligible slo	ре			
Soil	Red-orange s	andy clay				
Rock Type	Many BIF and jasperlite stones and boulders					
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Acacia sibirica open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open heath and Solanum lasiophyllum low open shrubland over Sida excedentifolia very open herbs. Ridgetop.					
Veg Condition	Poor; grazing by hard hooved animals and adjacent clearing					
Fire Age	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, mainl:	y under shrubs. Mode	erate wood	litter.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sibirica
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Eremophila margarethae, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)



Described by	JN	Date:	19/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Midslope we	Midslope west of W14 range					
MGA Zone	50	555918	mE	7016947	mN		
Habitat	Steep to mod	lerate slo	pe, midslope.				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous BIF and ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders, and surface level plates.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low woodland to scattered trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila ?georgei and Ptilotus schwartzii low shrubland. Steep to moderate slope, midslope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	Old (>5 years	Dld (>5 years)					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Mod	erate wood	litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila ?georgei, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Grevillea berryana
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum



## 722 WRE Site 156a

Described by	AC	Date:	19/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	555945	mE	7016882	mN		
Habitat	Footslope, m	Footslope, moderate slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay					
Rock Type	Many BIF and ferrous coarse gravel and pebbles.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura open scrub Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low shrubland over Monachather paradoxus and Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Footslope, moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good; goat ti	Good; goat tracks through site					
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Moderate lea	af litter, m	ainly under shrubs. N	loderate w	ood litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus



Described by	AC	Date:	19/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	555667	mE	7016771	mN		
Habitat	Footslope, m	noderate s	lope				
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange clay					
Rock Type	Common BIF	Common BIF coarse gravel and pebbles					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Grevillea berryana low shrubland to high shrubland over Sida excedentifolia scattered herbs. Footslope, moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good; grazin	Good; grazing by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Moderate le	Noderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Grevillea berryana, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)					



Described by	JN	Date:	19/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Midslope of	Aidslope of range west of W14					
MGA Zone	50	555416	mE	7016811	50		
Habitat	Midslope, m	oderate sl	ope.				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous plates	Continuous BIF and ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders and surface-level plates					
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland to low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Thryptomene decussata shrubland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Eremophila ?georgei low shrubland. Midslope, moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	Old (>5 years	5)					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	tter, main	ly under shru	bs. Moderate wood	d litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Grevillea berryana
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia minyura x ayersiana
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. Forrestii, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila forrestii subsp. Forrestii, Eremophila ?georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila simulans
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. Forrestii, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum lasiophyllum



Described by	SH	Date:	19/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV East						
MGA Zone	50	555419	mE	7016931	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop, ne	Ridgetop, negligible slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay					
Rock Type	Continuous t	Continuous to many BIF stones and boulders.					
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered low trees over Acacia minyura x ayersiana high shrubland over Acacia sibirica open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Solanum lasiophyllum low shrubland over Sida excedentifolia very open herbs. Ridgetop.						
Veg Condition	Poor; grazing	Poor; grazing by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	tter, main	ly under shrubs. S	parse wood lit	ter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia minyura x ayersiana
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sibirica, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila margarethae
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)



Described by	SH	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	West of Site	West of Site 81					
MGA Zone	50	563572	mE	7018064	mN		
Habitat	South-east fa	cing mids	lope, gentle slope.				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with loose soil					
Rock Type	Many ferrous	s coarse gi	ravel, pebbles, stones	, and bould	lers.		
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia speckii high shrubland over Senna glaucifolia low open shrubland to shrubland over Maireana georgei low open heath over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Southeast facing midslope, gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, main	ly under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia grasbyi, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides, Eremophila glutinosa, Hakea preissii, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Solanum lasiophyllum
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Maireana georgei, Psydrax rigidula, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena sp., Tribulus suberosus
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)



Described by	JN	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Ridge crest b	Ridge crest behind 10 point turn gully					
MGA Zone	50	564239	mE	7018334	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop/hill	crest, ger	ntle slope				
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, surface crust						
Rock Type	Continuous BIF and ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders						
Vegetation	Acacia sp. Weld Range high shrubland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata low shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Ridgetop/hill crest, gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	Old (>5 years)						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.		

#### Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Eremophila phyllopoda subsp. phyllopoda, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia, Tribulus suberosus				
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum				
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens				

## 722 WRE Site 162



Described by	SH	Date:	20/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	Midslope, n	Midslope, negligible slope					
MGA Zone	50	563264	mE	7018400	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, n	egligible sl	ope				
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sand to sandy clay, with loose soil					
Rock Type	Common gra	anite and o	quartz coarse	gravel, pebbles, sto	ones, and boulders.		
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura scattered low trees over Acacia sp. Weld Range high shrubland over Senna glaucifolia shrubland over Grevillea inconspicua, Dodonaea sp. Ninghan and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Midslope.						
Veg Condition	Good	Good					
Fire Age	None evider	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf l	itter, main	ly under shrul	os. Sparse wood lit	ter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Grevillea inconspicua, Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides, Senna glaucifolia					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila glutinosa, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Tribulus suberosus					
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus					
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus					
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)					



Described by	JN	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Hill behind 1	0 point tu	rn gully			
MGA Zone	50	564463	mE	7019090	mN	
Habitat	Midslope on	small hill	before main r	ange, moderate to	gentle slope.	
Soil	Red-orange t	Red-orange to yellow sandy clay, with a surface crust and some fine gravel.				
Rock Type	Common ferrous and laterite like coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia grasbyi high shrubland over Acacia grasbyi and Acacia tetragonophylla shrubland over Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Eremophila glutinosa and Sida ? Calyxhymenia low shrubland. Midslope on small hill before main range, moderate to gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Good	Good				
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident				
Notes	Sparse to neg	gligible lea	af litter, mainl	y under shrubs. Me	oderate to sparse woo	d litter.

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia grasbyi, Acacia tetragonophylla			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa, Grevillea berryana			
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida ectogama, Spartothamnella teucriiflora			
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Solanum lasiophyllum			





Described by	AC	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	W14						
MGA Zone	50	563797	mE	7018544	mN		
Habitat	Upper slope,	Upper slope, almost ridgetop, moderate slope.					
Soil	Red clay, with a surface crust						
Rock Type	Continuous fo	errous sto	nes and boulders				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and Acacia speckii shrubland over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Upper slope, almost ridgetop, moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazing by hard hooved animals.						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate lea	af litter, m	ainly under shrubs. M	oderate wo	ood litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia speckii, Eremophila macmillaniana, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens
Herbs	< 2%	Cheilanthes lasiophylla, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)





Described by	SH	Date:	20/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	West of Telst	West of Telstra tower					
MGA Zone	50	562938	mE	7019075	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop, ne	Ridgetop, negligible slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with fine gravel					
Rock Type	Many BIF and ferrous coarse gravel, pebbles, stones, and boulders.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata open shrubland over Eremophila glutinosa and Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low shrubland over Sida excedentifolia and Ptilotus schwartzii very open herbs. Ridgetop.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf li	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia exocarpoides, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa, Prostanthera petrophila
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)



Described by	AC	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	W14					
MGA Zone	50	563695	mE	7019052	mN	
Habitat	Footslope, m	oderate sl	оре			
Soil	Red clay					
Rock Type	Many BIF sto	nes, bould	lers, and surface level	plates		
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland and Tribulus suberosus low scattered shrubs over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Footslope, moderate slope.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	None evident	None evident				
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, mainl	y under shrubs. Spars	e wood litt	er.	

#### Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii					
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila latrobei, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Tribulus suberosus					
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens					
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis					
Herbs	< 2%	Cheilanthes lasiophylla					

722 WRE Site 167





Described by	JN	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location							
MGA Zone	50	564390	mE	7019704	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, ste	Midslope, steep to moderate slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders and surface-level plates						
Vegetation	Acacia sp. Weld Range shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata low shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland. Midslope, steep to moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good	Good					
Fire Age	None evident	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	ter, main	ly under shrubs. Mod	erate wood	litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila georgei
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Abutilon otocarpum, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii, Mirbelia ?stipitata, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Heliotropium sp., Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Stenanthemum patens
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta



Described by	SH	Date:	20/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	W14						
MGA Zone	50	562094	mE	7019416	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, mo	Midslope, moderate slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay					
Rock Type	Continuous BIF, ferrous and granite stones, boulders, and surface-level plates.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura open scrub over Eremophila glutinosa shrubland over Dodonaea pachyneura and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low scattered shrubs over Aristida holathera scattered tussock grasses. Midslope, moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate lea	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. fuliginea
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia exocarpoides, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila glutinosa, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Prostanthera petrophila, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila margarethae
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta, Aristida holathera



Described by	JN	Date:	21/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	North face of	ridge op	oosite W14				
MGA Zone	50	562005	mE	7019220	mN		
Habitat	Steep to mod	lerate mio	dslope.				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous I plates.	Continuous BIF and ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders and surface level plates.					
Vegetation	Acacia sp. Weld Range high shrubland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Eremophila macmillaniana shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and Calytrix desolata low shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Steep to moderate midslope.						
Veg Condition	Excellent						
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident					
Notes	Sparse leaf li	tter, main	ly under shrub	s. Moderate wood	d litter.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Calytrix desolata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia quadrimarginea, Dodonaea petiolaris, Eremophila macmillaniana, Grevillea inconspicua, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia, Stenanthemum patens
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Heliotropium sp., Prostanthera ferricola, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta



Described by	JN	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	Gully betwee	n W14 rid	geline and Ridge behi	ind camp			
MGA Zone	50	563054	mE	7019695	mN		
Habitat	Creek bank a	Creek bank and creek bed, gentle slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with loose soil					
Rock Type	Many BIF and	l ferrous o	coarse gravel, pebbles	, stones, bo	oulders, and surface le	vel plates.	
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Acacia sp. Weld Range shrubland over Eremophila exilifolia and Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata low shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus open tussock grassland. Creek bank and creek bed, gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	Old (>5 years)						
Notes	Moderate to	Noderate to sparse leaf litter. Moderate wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila georgei, Grevillea inconspicua
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Eremophila macmillaniana, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Prostanthera petrophila, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna artemisioides subsp. oligophylla, Sida calyxhymenia
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Heliotropium sp., Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Cymbopogon ambiguus



Described by	SH	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	W14 East						
MGA Zone	50	562929	mE	7019904	mN		
Habitat	Footslope, ne	Footslope, negligible slope (scree)					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay					
Rock Type	Many BIF coarse gravel, pebbles, and stones and boulders.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata open shrubland over Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low shrubland over Sida excedentifolia very open herbs. Footslope, negligible slope (scree).						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Dodonaea petiolaris
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Solanum lasiophyllum
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)



Described by	AC	Date:	20/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	W14						
MGA Zone	50	562971	mE	7019839	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop, gei	ntle slope					
Soil	Red-orange o	lay, with a	a surface crust				
Rock Type	Stones/bould	Stones/boulders					
Vegetation	Many BIF and	Many BIF and ferrous stones / boulders					
Veg Condition	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Thryptomene decussata shrubland over Eremophila latrobei low shrubland. Ridgetop, gentle slope.						
Fire Age	Good, grazin	Good, grazing by hard hooved animals					
Notes	None eviden	t					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia grasbyi, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eriachne helmsii, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	< 2%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)





Described by	AC	Date:	20/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location							
MGA Zone	50	563088	mE	7020263	mN		
Habitat	Moderate slo	ope, foots	lope				
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange clay					
Rock Type	Many ferrou	s coarse g	ravel / pebble	25.			
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Baeckea sp. Melita Station shrubland over Micromyrtus placoides low shrubland over Eriachne helmsii very open tussock grassland. Moderate slope, footslope.						
Veg Condition	Good, goat track through site						
Fire Age	none eviden	none evident					
Notes	Negligible leaf litter. Moderate wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738), Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Micromyrtus placoides
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Psydrax latifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eriachne helmsii



Described by	JN	Date:	20/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Midslope on	ridge besi	de W14 ridge			
MGA Zone	50	563915	mE	7019886	mN	
Habitat	Moderate to gentle slope on foot to midslope					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Continuous ferrous and BIF coarse gravel, pebbles, stones, and boulders					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Eremophila macmillaniana shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana low oper shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Moderate to gentle slope on foot to midslope.					

**Veg Condition** 

Fire Age

Notes

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Psydrax latifolia
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila macmillaniana
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia sibirica, Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta



Described by	JN	Date:	21/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Ridge behind	Beebyn				
MGA Zone	50	578375	mE	7028962	mN	
Habitat	Ridgetop, gei	ntle slope				
Soil	Red-orange s	andy clay,	, with a surface crust			
Rock Type	Continuous patches of BIF coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders, and surface-leve plates.					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland to low open woodland over Thryptomene decussata and Acacia aneura var. aneura shrubland over Eremophila glutinosa and Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low shrubland. Ridgetop, gentle slope.					
Veg Condition	Good					
Fire Age	Old (>5 yrs)	Old (>5 yrs)				
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	tter, main	ly under shrubs. Mode	erate wood	l litter.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Thryptomene decussata			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Prostanthera petrophila			
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia grasbyi, Acacia minyura, Eremophila glutinosa			
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus ?schwartzii, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum lasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne mucronata			





Described by	JN	Date:	21/04/07	Туре:	Q	20x20	
Location	North of Bee	byn					
MGA Zone	50	579697	mE	7029433	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop and	Ridgetop and upper slope, moderate slope					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust					
Rock Type	Common BIF	stones/b	oulders				
Vegetation	Thryptomene decussata shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Eriachne helmsii very open tussock grassland. Ridgetop and upper slope, moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazin	Good, grazing by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea viscosa subsp. angustissima, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Prostanthera petrophila, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila latrobei, Micromyrtus sulphurea
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eriachne helmsii
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)



Described by	JN	Date:	21/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20
Location	Range toward	ds W17				
MGA Zone	50	551827	mE	7015815	mN	
Habitat	Midslope to r	ridgetop, r	moderate to gentle slo	opes		
Soil	Yellow sandy	Yellow sandy clay, with a surface crust				
Rock Type	Continuous to	o many Bl	F and ferrous coarse §	gravel/pebb	oles, stones/boulders.	
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland to high shrubland over Acacia aneura var. aneura, Eremophila glutinosa and Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low open shrubland. Midslope to ridgetop, moderate to gentle slopes.					
Veg Condition	Good, heavily grazed					
Fire Age	Old (>5 years)					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	parse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. major, Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum lasiophyllum



Described by	AC	Date:	21/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	552257	mE	7015792	mN		
Habitat	Creekbed, fo	Creekbed, footslope and minor drainage channel. Gentle slope.					
Soil	Orange sandy clay						
Rock Type							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia grasbyi high shrubland over Eremophila georgei shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Eriachne helmsii very open tussock grassland. Creekbed, footslope and minor drainage channel. Gentle slope.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazing by hard hooved animals						
Fire Age	None evident	t					
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia grasbyi
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila georgei, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eriachne helmsii





Described by	JN	Date:	21/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	HHJV							
MGA Zone	50	551354	mE	7015776	mN			
Habitat	Steep to mod	Steep to moderate midslope						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust							
Rock Type	Continuous BIF stones/boulders and surface level plates							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland to scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. aneura and Thryptomene decussata shrubland over Thryptomene decussata and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland. Steep to moderate midslope.							
Veg Condition	Good							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	Sparse leaf litter, minaly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Thryptomene decussata
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32), Solanum lasiophyllum



Described by	AC	Date:	21/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	HHJV						
MGA Zone	50	552434	mE	7015962	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, mo	oderate sl	ope				
Soil	Red-orange clay, surface crust						
Rock Type	Many ferrous coarse gravel/pebbles and stones.						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia sp. Weld Range high shrubland over Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila glutinosa and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Sida excedentifolia very open herbs. Midslope, moderate slope.						
Veg Condition	Good, grazing by hard hooved animals						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila glutinosa, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus					
Herbs	2 - 10%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)					



Described by	SH	Date:	21/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	W17 (track u	W17 (track up)						
MGA Zone	50	550940	mE	7015223	mN			
Habitat	Footslope, ne	Footslope, negligible slope						
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sand, with loose soil						
Rock Type	Many granite and quartz coarse gravel/pebbles and stones/boulders.							
Vegetation	Acacia sp. Weld Range high open shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. sturtii shrubland over Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata and Dodonaea sp. Ninghan low shrubland over Aristida contorta tussock grassland. Footslope.							
Veg Condition	Good							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	Sparse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia speckii
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila glutinosa, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia, Stenanthemum patens
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens



Described by	JN	Date:	21/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20		
Location	Midslope ridge opposite W14 towards main road							
MGA Zone	50	559931	mE	7017810	mN			
Habitat	Midslope, mo	Midslope, moderate slope						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay, with a surface crust							
Rock Type	Continuous BIF as coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulder, and surface level plates							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland to low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range shrubland over Senna glaucifolia low shrubland over Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland. Midslope, moderate slope.							
Veg Condition	Good							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	parse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Moderate wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Psydrax latifolia
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila macmillaniana, Hemigenia sp. nov (aff. exilis), Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta



Described by	SH	Date:	21/04/07	Type:	Q	20x20	
Location	W14						
MGA Zone	50	559418	mE	7018409	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, ge	ntle north	-facing slope.				
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sand to sandy clay					
Rock Type	Continuous E	Continuous BIF, ferrous and quartz stones/boulders and surface level plates					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura open shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low open shrubland over Ptilotus schwartzii very open herbs over Aristida contorta scattered tussock grasses. Midslope, gentle north-facing slope.						
Veg Condition	Poor, grazed	Poor, grazed by hard hooved animals					
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf li	parse leaf litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse wood litter.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Grevillea berryana					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum					
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Aristida contorta					





# **Phase 3 Burrow Pits**

## 722 WRE Site BPC01

Described by	CG	Date:	09/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20
Location	BPC East						
MGA Zone	50	581233	mE		7031767	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay					
Rock Type	Surface crust	t					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. conifera low woodland over Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus low open heath over Aristida contorta closed tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (gr	Excellent (grazing)					
Fire Age	None eviden	t					
Notes	Neg leaf litte	er, sparse v	vood litter.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. conifera, Eremophila longifolia
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia victoriae, Grevillea striata, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	> 70%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon cylindricus, Enneapogon cylindricus




Described by	CG	Date:	09/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	BPC East						
MGA Zone	50	581030	mE		7031651	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange/brown sand						
Rock Type	Surface crust, loose soil, coarse gravel/pebbles						
Vegetation	Mixed Acacia spp. high open shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris and Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland over Enneapogon cylindricus) open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Neg leaf and wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Acacia victoriae
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Acacia victoriae, Eremophila falcata, Eremophila glabra subsp. tomentosa, Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala, Rhagodia eremaea, Scaevola spinescens, Senna artemisioides subsp. Petiolaris
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia murrayana, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Senna artemisioides subsp. Petiolaris
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon cylindricus
Sedges	< 2%	Austrostipa elegantissima
Climbers	< 2%	CONVOLVULACEAE sp.
Herbs	< 2%	Maireana appressa, Ptilotus exaltatus





Described by	CG	Date:	09/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Burrow Pit C						
MGA Zone	50	580844	mE		7031891	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel						
Vegetation	Mixed Acacia spp. high shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris low scattered shrubs over Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland over Aristida contorta and Monochatne paridoxus open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf and wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. conifera
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia burkittii, Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon cylindricus, Monachather paradoxus





Described by	CG	Date:	09/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20
Location	Burrow Pit C						
MGA Zone	50	579977	mE		7031713	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange/brown sand						
Rock Type	Surface crust	, fine grav	el, coarse grav	vel/pebb	oles		
Vegetation	Acacia burkittii open scrub over Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland over Enneapogon cylindricus scattered tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Neg leaf litter, sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia burkittii
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Scaevola spinescens
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Enneapogon cylindricus
Herbs	< 2%	Ptilotus exaltatus





Described by	CG	Date:	09/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20	
Location	Burrow Pit C							
MGA Zone	50	579814	mE		7031869	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, dr	Flat/plain, dry lake bed						
Soil	Red-orange/brown sandy clay							
Rock Type	Cracked clay, surface crust, fine gravel, coarse gravel/pebbles							
Vegetation	<i>Eremophila maculata</i> subsp. <i>brevifolia</i> low open heath over <i>Enneapogon cylindricus</i> very open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Neg leaf and wood litter.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia, Sclerolaena diacantha
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Enneapogon cylindricus
Herbs	< 2%	Lawrencia densiflora, Streptoglossa liatroides





Described by	SH	Date:	09/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Beebyru Nort	th					
MGA Zone	50	578651	mE		7032379	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, calcrete pan (seasonally inundated) gilgai						
Soil	Orange clay						
Rock Type	Cracked clay, surface crust, coarse gravel/pebbles						
Vegetation	<i>Eremophila maculata</i> subsp. <i>brevifolia</i> and <i>Sclerolaena diacantha</i> low shrubland over <i>Lawrencia densiflora</i> very open herbs over <i>Enneapogon</i> sp. and <i>Eragrostis dielsii</i> very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Poor (heavily grazed, trampled - cows)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Neg leaf and wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia			
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Sclerolaena diacantha, Sclerolaena diacantha			
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Enneapogon cylindricus, Enneapogon sp., Eragrostis dielsii, Sporobolus australasicus			
Herbs	2 - 10%	Lawrencia densiflora, Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus			





Described by	SH	Date:	09/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Beebyru Nor	th					
MGA Zone	50	577958	mE		7032287	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange hard clay						
Rock Type	Solid clay (10%), fine gravel (80%), coarse gravel/pebbles (10%)						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura high open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus schwartzii and Ptilotus obovatus var obovatus and Solanum ashbyae low open shrubland over Eriachne pulchella subsp. dominii and Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (old drill lines adjacent, grazing track)						
Fire Age	None evident	t					
Notes	Mod leaf litte	er, sparse v	wood litter, m	ainly un	der shrubs		

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. major
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Rhagodia eremaea
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Enchylaena tomentosa, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne pulchella subsp. dominii, Monachather paradoxus

#### 722 WRE Site BPC08





Described by	SH	Date:	09/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location	Beebyru No	rth						
MGA Zone	50	577662	mE	703	32721	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain	Flat/plain						
Soil	Orange sand	Orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (	Fine gravel (40%), loose soil (20%), coarse gravel/pebbles (40%)						
Vegetation	<i>Eucalyptus striaticalyx</i> scattered trees over <i>Eremophila falcata</i> open shrubland to high open shrubland over <i>Senna stricta</i> low open shrubland over <i>Ptilotus exaltatus</i> var. <i>exaltatus</i> very open herbs over <i>Enneapogon caerulescens</i> open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Good (graziı	Good (grazing, trampling)						
Fire Age	None evider	None evident						
Notes	Mod leaf litter, sparse wood litter, mainly under shrubs.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	< 2%	Eucalyptus striaticalyx
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila falcata
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aff. oswaldii, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila falcata
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Eremophila falcata, Senna stricta
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena diacantha, Sclerolaena diacantha, Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Enneapogon caerulescens
Herbs	2 - 10%	Lawrencia densiflora, Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus





Described by	SH	Date:	09/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Burrow Pit C						
MGA Zone	50	579024	mE		7032277	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, riparian far BPC6						
Soil	Orange sand/sandy clay						
Rock Type	Cracked clay	(5%) <i>,</i> fine	gravel (60%),	loose so	oil (10%), co	oarse gravel/peb	bles (25%)
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia burkittii and Acacia victoriae open shrubland over Scaevola spinescens and Senna stricta low open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Enneapogon caerulescens and Eragrostis setifolia open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Poor (heavily trampled)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, neg wood litter, mainly under shrubs						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia burkittii, Acacia tetragonophylla, Acacia victoriae					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Rhagodia eremaea, Scaevola spinescens, Senna stricta					
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena diacantha, Solanum ashbyae					
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens, Eragrostis setifolia					
Herbs	< 2%	Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus, Sclerolaena diacantha					





Described by	SH	Date:	09/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20
Location	Burrow Pit C						
MGA Zone	50	579391	mE		7031751	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, slight calcrete mound						
Soil	Orange clay/sandy clay						
Rock Type	Loose soil (5%), coarse gravel/pebbles (5%), stones (90%)						
Vegetation	Acacia burkittii high shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Enneapogon caerulescens open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse wood and leaf litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia burkittii				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Grevillea berryana				
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Exocarpos aphyllus, Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Sida ectogama				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Enchylaena tomentosa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Senna stricta, Solanum ashbyae				
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon caerulescens				
Herbs	< 2%	Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus				





Described by	CG	Date:	07/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20	
Location	Burrow Pit Ea	ast						
MGA Zone	50	586684	mE		7034277	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, creek bed, creek bank							
Soil	Red-orange sand/sandy clay							
Rock Type	Surface crust, loose soil, stones/boulders							
Vegetation	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and Acacia tetragonophylla open scrub over Eremophila fraseri subsp. parva medium shrubland over Enneapogon cylindricus and Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing disturbance)							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf litter mainly under shrubs, neg wood litter							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila fraseri subsp. Parva
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila fraseri subsp. Parva, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon cylindricus





Described by	SH	Date:	07/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Limestone Bo	ore					
MGA Zone	50	585309	mE		7032299	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, low lying Mulga						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Loose soil (95	5%), coarse	e gravel/pebbl	es (5%)			
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura and Acacia aneura var. intermedia low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura var. aneura high shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii sometimes with Eremophila georgei open heath over Monachather paradoxus open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (minimal grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate leaf and wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. argentea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Eremophila clarkei, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Hibiscus coatesii, Maireana villosa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida cardiophylla, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Eriachne lanata, Monachather paradoxus





Described by	CG	Date:	07/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20	
Location	Plateau							
MGA Zone	50	585158	mE		7033155	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, ri	Flat/plain, ridgetop, plateau above breakaway						
Soil	White/orang	White/orange sand						
Rock Type	Surface crus level plates	Surface crust, fine gravel, loose soil, coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders, surface level plates						
Vegetation	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa and Acacia burkittii shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low open shrubland over Calytrix erosipetala low shrubland over Tripogon loliiformis very open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Excellent (gr	Excellent (grazing disturbance)						
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Neg leaf and wood litter.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia burkittii, Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Eremophila glutinosa			
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei			
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Calytrix erosipetala, Enchylaena tomentosa, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum ashbyae			
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monachather paradoxus, Tripogon Ioliiformis			





Described by	SH	Date:	07/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Burrow Pit Ea	st					
MGA Zone	50	585487	mE		7034280	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Sandy clay (60%)						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (4	0%)					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura low open woodland over Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26) and Senna glaucifolia low open shrubland to shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good						
Fire Age	Not speciifed						
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood li	tter.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia cockertoniana, Acacia tetragonophylla, Senna glaucifolia, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26), Sida ectogama
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Maireana georgei, Maireana villosa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella





Described by	SH	Date:	07/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location	Limestone Bo	ore						
MGA Zone	50	585632	mE		7033848	mN		
Habitat	Granite dome	e, base of:	see notes					
Soil	Orange clay	Orange clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (8	80%), loose	e soil (20%)					
Vegetation	Acacia rhodophloia shrubland to high shrubland over Prostanthera albiflora low open shrubland over Drosera macrantha subsp. eremaea open herbs over Tripogon loliiformis, Eragrostis tenellula and Aristida contorta tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Poor (siginificant grazing)							
Fire Age	Old >5 yrs							
Notes	Moderate leaf and wood litter mainly under shrubs. This quad incorporates the veg type at the base of a large Granite dome.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia rhodophloia
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia rhodophloia, Psydrax rigidula
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Prostanthera albiflora
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Rulingia luteiflora, Sida cardiophylla, Solanum ellipticum
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis cumingii, Eragrostis tenellula, Tripogon Ioliiformis
Herbs	10 - 30%	Drosera macrantha subsp. eremaea





Described by	SH	Date:	07/07/08	Type:	(	Q	20x20	
Location	Limestone B	ore						
MGA Zone	50	586389	mE		7034215		5	0
Habitat	Small, low g	Small, low granite outcrop (see notes*)						
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange clay						
Rock Type	Loose soil (1	Loose soil (10%), stones/boulders (90%)						
Vegetation	Acacia ramu speckii high low open sh shrubland ov	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla low open woodland over Acacia citrinoviridis and Acacia speckii high shrubland over Eremophila exilifolia and Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii low open shrubland to open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low open shrubland over Enneapogon cylindricus very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (grazir	ng disturba	ince)					
Fire Age	None evider	nt						
Notes	Sparse leaf and wood litter mainly under shrubs. Medium sized granite rocks forming a linear mound approx 40 m wide by 700 m long.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia citrinoviridis, Acacia speckii
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia citrinoviridis, Eremophila exilifolia, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Hibiscus coatesii, Indigofera monophylla, Maireana convexa, Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon cylindricus
Herbs	< 2%	Cheilanthes lasiophylla, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)





Described by	CG	Date:	07/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Burrow Pit Ea	ast					
MGA Zone	50	585343	mE		7033633	mN	
Habitat	Gully sides, breakaway, moderate slope						
Soil	Red-orange sand						
Rock Type	Surface crust	, stones/b	oulders, surfa	ce level	plates		
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia burkittii high open shrubland over Acacia craspedocarpa open shrubland over Acacia craspedocarpa and Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low open heath and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing disturbance)						
Fire Age	None evident	t					
Notes							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia burkittii
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aulacophylla, Acacia craspedocarpa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. Latrobei, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Scaevola spinescens
Shrubs < 1m	30 - 70%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. Latrobei, Sida ectogama
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus





Described by	CG	Date:	07/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location	Borrow Pit Ea	ast						
MGA Zone	50	585363	mE		7033496	mN		
Habitat	Breakaway, r	Breakaway, moderate slope						
Soil	White sand							
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel, coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders, surface level plates							
Vegetation	Dodonaea pachyneura and Acacia aneura var. microcarpa high open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and mixed Chenopodiaceae low open heath.							
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Neg leaf and	wood litte	er.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Rhagodia eremaea, Scaevola spinescens
Shrubs < 0.5m	30 - 70%	Atriplex semilunaris, Maireana platycarpa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sclerolaena diacantha, Sclerolaena diacantha, Sclerolaena eriacantha, Sida ectogama
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Enneapogon cylindricus
Herbs	< 2%	Amaranthus mitchellii





Described by	CG	Date:	07/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Mulga						
MGA Zone	50	504022	mE		7033223	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel, coarse gravel/pebbles						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa low woodland over Acacia aneura var. microcarpa open shrubland to high open shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. open shrubland over Ptilotus schwartzii low scattered shrubs over Eragrostis eriopoda very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing disturbance)						
Fire Age	None eviden	t					
Notes	Moderate lea	af litter ma	inly under shr	ubs, ne	g wood litt	er.	

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. Latrobei
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus schwartzii
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eragrostis eriopoda





# 722 WRE Site BPE14a

Described by	SH	Date:	07/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Limestone Bo	ore					
MGA Zone	50	585451	mE		7032503	mN	
Habitat	Undulating plain, granite, low relief						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (9	0%), coars	se gravel/pebb	oles (5%	), surface l	evel plates (5%)	
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Thryptomene decussata low shrubland and Thryptomene decussata, Pluchea ? dentex and Micromyrtus sulphurea low open shrubland over Eriachne lanata very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (minimal grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, neg wood litter mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Pluchea ? dentex, Solanum ashbyae, Thryptomene decussata
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne lanata





### 722 WRE Site BPE14b

Described by	CG	Date:	07/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20
Location	Riparian						
MGA Zone	50	585471	mE		7033373	mN	
Habitat	Lake bank (ri	Lake bank (riparian), base of granite outcrop, gentle slope					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders						
Vegetation	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla low woodland over Acacia craspedocarpa high open shrubland over Aristida contorta and Tripogon loliiformis open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Neg leaf litter, sparse wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia craspedocarpa
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Sida ectogama
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Tripogon Ioliiformis





Described by	SH	Date:	07/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20	
Location	Limestone Bo	ore						
MGA Zone	50	585376	mE		7032971	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, sa	Flat/plain, salt lake						
Soil	Orange clay							
Rock Type	Salt surface crust (90%), fine gravel (10%)							
Vegetation	Maireana glomerifolia low shrubland over mixed Chenopodiaceae open herbs over numerous Enneapogon cylindricus and Aristida contorta tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Good (some grazing)							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Neg leaf and wood litter mainly under shrubs.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Atriplex semilunaris, Maireana glomerifolia
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon cylindricus
Herbs	10 - 30%	Maireana appressa, Sclerolaena diacantha, Sclerolaena diacantha





Described by	SH	Date:	07/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location	Limestone B	ore						
MGA Zone	50	585521	mE		7033373	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, g	Flat/plain, granite outcrop						
Soil	Orange sand	Orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (	Fine gravel (30%), coarse gravel/pebbles (20%), stones/boulders (50%)						
Vegetation	Acacia ram platycalyx lo and Solanur over Cymbo	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla low woodland over Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx low open shrubland to open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Solanum ashbyae low open shrubland over Abutilon oxycarpum very open herbs over Cymbopogon ambiguus open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (some	Good (some grazing by roos)						
Fire Age	None evider	None evident						
Notes	Neg leaf litte	Neg leaf litter, sparse wood litter mainly under shrubs.						

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Santalum spicatum				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx				
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Solanum ashbyae, Solanum ellipticum				
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon caerulescens				
Herbs	2 - 10%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Amaranthus mitchellii, Boerhavia ?coccinea, Cheilanthes lasiophylla, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Phyllanthus erwinii				

722 WRE Site BPW01





Described by	SH	Date:	09/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location	Borrow Pit \	Nest						
MGA Zone	50	577071	mE	70	32746	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop, lo	Ridgetop, low relief ridge						
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Loose soil (1	Loose soil (10%), coarse gravel/pebbles (90%)						
Vegetation	Acacia cock Eremophila shrubland c Eragrostis e	Acacia cockertoniana open shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila georgei and Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low open shrubland and Hemigenia tysonii low shrubland over Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260) very open herbs over Eragrostis eriopoda scattered tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (old d	Good (old drill lines adjacent)						
Fire Age	None evide	None evident						
Notes	Moderate le	Moderate leaf litter, sparse wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Grevillea berryana			
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia cockertoniana			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia cockertoniana, Dodonaea rigida			
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Acacia cockertoniana, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna glaucifolia			
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Hemigenia tysonii, Solanum ashbyae			
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eragrostis eriopoda			
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)			





Described by	SH	Date:	09/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Borrow Pit W	/est					
MGA Zone	50	577059	mE		7033032	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (10%), loose soil (90%)						
Vegetation	Eucalyptus socialis subsp. eucentrica open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura low low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Rhagodia eremaea low open shrubland and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260) very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (little grazing)						
Fire Age	Not specified						
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, sparse wood litter, under EUC.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees 10 - 30m	2 - 10%	Eucalyptus socialis subsp. eucentrica
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. major, Dodonaea pachyneura
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Enchylaena tomentosa, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Eriachne lanata, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)





Described by	SH	Date:	09/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20		
Location	Borrow Pit W	/est							
MGA Zone	50	576626	mE	70	32346	mN			
Habitat	Midslope, lov	Midslope, low relief, gentle slope							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay								
Rock Type	Fine gravel (10%), coarse gravel/pebbles (80%), stones/boulders (10%)								
Vegetation	<i>Grevillea berryana</i> scattered low trees over <i>Acacia aneura</i> var. <i>aneura</i> and <i>Acacia cockertoniana</i> high open shrubland over <i>Senna glaucifolia, Thryptomene decussata, Eremophila latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> and <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> var. <i>obovatus</i> low open shrubland over <i>Sida</i> sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260) very open herbs over <i>Monachather paradoxus</i> very open tussock grassland.								
Veg Condition	Good								
Fire Age	None evident								
Notes	Sparse leaf and wood litter, mainly under shrubs.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Grevillea berryana					
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia cockertoniana					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna glaucifolia, Thryptomene decussata					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monachather paradoxus					
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)					





Described by	SH	Date:	10/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20		
Location	Borrow Pit V	Vest							
MGA Zone	50	573114	mE	703	32129	mN			
Habitat	Upperslope,	Upperslope, low relief ridge							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay								
Rock Type	Loose soil (1	0%), coars	e gravel/pebb	les (10%), s	tones/b	oulders (80%)			
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over Acacia cockertoniana and Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) open shrubland to high shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila glutinosa and Ptilotus schwartzii low open shrubland over Sida cardiophylla very open herbs.								
Veg Condition	Good (old drill line adjacent, 80 m away to the north)								
Fire Age	None evident								
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, moderate wood litter, mainly under shrubs.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Grevillea berryana					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia cockertoniana					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea rigida, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna glaucifolia					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus schwartzii					
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis					
Herbs	2 - 10%	Sida cardiophylla					





Described by	SH	Date:	10/07/08	Туре:	Q	20x20			
Location	Burrow Pit V	Vest							
MGA Zone	50	573610	mE	7032003	mN				
Habitat	Gully base, n	Gully base, minor channel							
Soil	Clay (colour not specified)								
Rock Type	Fine gravel (	50%), loos	e soil (10%), c	oarse gravel/pebb	es (30%), stones	/boulders (10%)			
Vegetation	Acacia cockertoniana and Acacia pruinocarpa open woodland over Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia cockertoniana and Acacia pruinocarpa low woodland over Acacia cockertoniana and Psydrax latifolia open scrub over Eremophila georgei low open shrubland and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland.								
Veg Condition	Good								
Fire Age	None evident								
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, wood litter (??), base of trees/rocks where water has deposited them.								

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia aneura var. major, Santalum spicatum					
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia cockertoniana, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Senna glaucifolia, Senna stricta, Solanum ashbyae					
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus					
Climbers	< 2%	Duperreya commixta					
Herbs	< 2%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Sida cardiophylla, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)					



Described by	CG	Date:	09/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Burrow Pit W	/est					
MGA Zone	50	575851	mE		7032724	mN	
Habitat	Ridgetop (slight)						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, stones/boulders						
Vegetation	Acacia cockertoniana and Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) open scrub.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, sparse wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. aneura, Acacia cockertoniana, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Dodonaea rigida, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei





Described by	CG	Date:	09/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20		
Location	Burrow Pit W	/est							
MGA Zone	50	575210	mE		7032660	mN			
Habitat	Flat/plain	Flat/plain							
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay								
Rock Type	Surface crust	t, fine grav	el, coarse grav	/el/pebb	oles, stones	/boulders			
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. aneura low open woodland over mixed Acacia spp. scattered tall shrubs over Thryptomene decusatta and Prostanthera petrophila open shrubland over Thryptomene decusatta low open shrubland over Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low shrubland over Eragrostis setifolia scattered tussock grassland.								
Veg Condition	Good (tracks, grazing)								
Fire Age	None evident								
Notes	Sparse leaf and wood litter, mainly under shrubs.								

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia aneura var. intermedia				
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia cockertoniana				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila glutinosa, Thryptomene decussata				
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Prostanthera petrophila, Thryptomene decussata				
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Sida cardiophylla				
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eragrostis setifolia				

722 WRE Site BPW08





Described by	CG	Date:	10/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location	Borrow Pit V	West						
MGA Zone	50	574389	mE	70	32529	mN		
Habitat	Ridgetop, sł	Ridgetop, shallow plateau						
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crus	Surface crust, fine gravel, coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders						
Vegetation	Acacia cockertoniana and Acacia aneura var. microcarpa high open shrubland over Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia and Hemigenia tysonii low closed heath.							
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf	Sparse leaf litter, neg wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia cockertoniana					
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans					
Shrubs < 0.5m	> 70%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Hemigenia tysonii					





Described by	CG	Date:	10/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Burrow Pit W	/est					
MGA Zone	50	574188	mE		7032469	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust	, fine grav	el				
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and Acacia cockertoniana low woodland over Acacia aneura var. microcarpa scattered tall shrubs over mixed Eremophila spp. shrubland over Eragrostis setifolia scattered tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	tter, neg w	vood litter, ma	inly und	der shrubs.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia cockertoniana
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. Latrobei, Eremophila simulans subsp. Simulans
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eragrostis setifolia





Described by	CG	Date:	10/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Burrow Pit W	/est					
MGA Zone	50	574714	mE		7032500	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust	, fine grav	el				
Vegetation	Acacia cockertoniana and Acacia cockertoniana high shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. shrubland over Sida cardiophylla low scattered shrubs.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Mod leaf and	l wood litt	er, mainly und	ler shru	bs.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia cockertoniana, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, Prostanthera petrophila
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Sida cardiophylla
Herbs	< 2%	Goodenia berardiana





Described by	SH	Date:	10/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location	Borrow Pit W	/est						
MGA Zone	50	573979	mE		7032615	mN		
Habitat	Midslope, ve	Midslope, very low relief						
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (6	Fine gravel (60%), loose soil (10%), coarse gravel/pebbles (30%)						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered low trees over Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and Acacia cockertoniana high open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna glaucifolia and Ptilotus schwartzii low open shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Good (old dr	ill lines all	over)					
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf and wood litter, mainly under shrubs.							

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia cockertoniana, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella, Monachather paradoxus, Tripogon Ioliiformis
Herbs	2 - 10%	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Goodenia tenuiloba

# Phase 3 Haul Road



# 722 WRE Site HR01

Described by	CG	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location							
MGA Zone	50	563716	mE		7022514	mN	
Habitat	Plain/flat, mi	Plain/flat, minor channel					
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. intermedia low open forest over Solanum ashbyae low open shrubland over Aristida contorta and Eragrostis eriopoda tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf and wood litter mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax rigidula				
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla				
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila granitica				
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Maireana planifolia, Maireana platycarpa, Ptilotus obovatus, Solanum ashbyae				
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus				
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis				





# 722 WRE Site HR02

Described by	CG	Date:	03/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20
Location							
MGA Zone	50	504383	mE		7022943	mN	
Habitat	Plain/flat, cre	Plain/flat, creek bed, creek bank					
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay					
Rock Type	Surface crust	, fine grav	el, loose soil, c	coarse g	ravel/pebb	les	
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. major and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla low open forest over Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella and Aristida contorta open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, neg wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. major, Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia craspedocarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Mirbelia rhagodioides
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila georgei
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne lanata, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella





### 722 WRE Site HR03

Described by	CG	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location								
MGA Zone	50	565967	mE		7024046	mN		
Habitat	Plain/flat							
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crus	t						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. intermedia and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla low open forest over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open scrub over Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans open heath over Ptilotus schwartzii low scattered shrubs over Eriachne lanata very open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)							
Fire Age	None evident							
Notes	Sparse leaf li	itter, neg v	wood litter, ma	ainly un	der shrubs.			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, Grevillea stenostachya					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Ptilotus schwartzii					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eriachne Ianata					




Described by	CG	Date:	03/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20
Location							
MGA Zone	50	571730	mE		7027665	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, creek bed, creek bank						
Soil	Red-orange sand/sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel, coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders						
Vegetation	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) high shrubland over Various Senna spp. scattered shrubs over Calytrix desolata low shrubland over Duperreya commixta climbers over Cymbopogon ambiguus very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Neg leaf and wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Grevillea berryana, Santalum spicatum						
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia tetragonophylla						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Eremophila exilifolia, Grevillea inconspicua, Grevillea stenostachya, Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii, Rulingia luteiflora, Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris, Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii, Senna glaucifolia						
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Calytrix desolata, Chorizema genistoides, Dodonaea amplisemina, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Heliotropium ovalifolium						
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Indigofera monophylla						
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Cymbopogon ambiguus						
Climbers	2 - 10%	Duperreya commixta						





Described by	CG	Date:	04/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location							
MGA Zone	50	571137	mE		7027349	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, creek bed						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel, loose soil, stones/boulders						
Vegetation	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Grevillea berryana and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open scrub over mixed Eremophila spp. shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba scattered herbs over Eragrostis eriopoda and Eriachne lanata scattered tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, neg wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. major, Acacia cockertoniana, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Grevillea berryana, Santalum spicatum
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne lanata
Herbs	< 2%	Goodenia tenuiloba





Described by	CG	Date:	04/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20
Location							
MGA Zone	50	567092	mE		7024711	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Yellow sand						
Rock Type	Surface crust, coarse gravel/pebbles, stones/boulders						
Vegetation	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla scattered low trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Ptilotus beardii and Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Neg leaf and wood litter.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. argentea, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia grasbyi, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Rhagodia eremaea
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Ptilotus beardii, Ptilotus obovatus, Sida ectogama, Solanum lasiophyllum





Described by	CG	Date:	04/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location							
MGA Zone	50	566302	mE		7024279	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, floodplain, creek bed						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel, loose soil, coarse gravel/pebbles						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa low woodland over, Eremophila serrulata and Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans open scrub over Dodonaea petiolaris and Eremophila forrestii shrubland over Harnieria kempeana low open shrubland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, neg wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Dodonaea petiolaris, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea petiolaris, Eremophila forrestii, Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila serrulata, Grevillea stenostachya
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Hibiscus burtonii, Maireana platycarpa, Sida cardiophylla, Sida cardiophylla, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)





Described by	SH	Date:	04/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road Ce	ntre					
MGA Zone	50	574743	mE		7028902	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sand/sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (1%), loose soil (99%)						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Eremophila granitica low open shrubland and Eremophila granitica and Solanum ashbyae low shrubland over Monachather paradoxus and Aristida holathera var. holathera very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Not specified						
Fire Age	Not specified						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, widespread - wood litter not specified.						

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia pruinocarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia murrayana, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila granitica, Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala, Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Dodonaea petiolaris, Eremophila granitica, Ptilotus obovatus, Solanum ashbyae, Solanum ferocissimum
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida holathera var. holathera, Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	< 2%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)

#### 722 WRE Site HR10





Described by	SH	Date:	04/07/08	Туре:	Q	20x20			
Location	Haul Road E	ast							
MGA Zone	50	575069	mE	7029011	mN				
Habitat	Flat/plain	Flat/plain							
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sand/sandy clay							
Rock Type	Loose soil	Loose soil							
Vegetation	Corymbia la woodland o linophylla s Ptilotus obo oxycarpum v	Corymbia lenziana open woodland over Acacia aneura var. microcarpa low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. intermedia high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Eremophila granitica, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus obovatus and Solanum ashbyae low shrubland over Sida ectogama and Abutilon oxycarpum very open herbs over Monachather paradoxus open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Not specifie	Not specified							
Fire Age	Not specified								
Notes	Plentiful lea	f litter and	sparse wood	litter mainly unde	er shrubs (under (	Corymbias).			

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Trees 10 - 30m	2 - 10%	Corymbia lenziana				
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Psydrax atifolia				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. intermedia				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla				
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila granitica, Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna glaucifolia, Senna sp. Austin (A. Strid 20210)				
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Ptilotus obovatus, Solanum ashbyae, Solanum ferocissimum				
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Monachather paradoxus				
Herbs	2 - 10%	Ptilotus ?clementii, Sida ectogama, Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)				





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road W	est					
MGA Zone	50	561103	mE		7020074	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, minor channel						
Soil	Red-orange sand/sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (80%), loose soil (10%), coarse gravel/pebbles (5%), stones/boulders (5%)						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and Acacia aneura var. major high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia aneura var. major, Dodonaea petiolaris and Solanum ashbyae low open shrubland over Sida cardiophylla very open herbs over Eriachne lanata and Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (grazing)						
Fire Age	Old (>5 yrs)						
Notes	Moderate leaf litter and sparse wood litter mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia pruinocarpa					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. major, Acacia aneura var. microcarpa					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia rhodophloia, Rhagodia eremaea					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Senna glaucifolia					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea petiolaris, Eremophila granitica, Ptilotus obovatus, Sida cardiophylla, Solanum ashbyae					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eriachne lanata, Monachather paradoxus					
Herbs	2 - 10%	Swainsona affinis					





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20	
Location	Haul Road W	est						
MGA Zone	50	561671	mE		7020815	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay							
Rock Type	Fine gravel (2	20%), loose	e soil (10%), co	oarse gra	avel/pebbl	es (70%)		
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and Acacia aneura var. major open shrubland to high open shrubland over Solanum ashbyae and Ptilotus obovatus low open shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Good (grazing)							
Fire Age	Old (>5 yrs)							
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood li	tter - widespr	ead.				

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax rigidula
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. major, Acacia aneura var. microcarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Maireana villosa, Ptilotus obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei, Sida cardiophylla, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella
Herbs	< 2%	Goodenia tenuiloba, Ptilotus roei, Sida ectogama
Sedges	< 2%	Cyperus squarrosus

722 WRE Site HR13





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location	Haul Road							
MGA Zone	50	562739	mE		7021607	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, m	Flat/plain, minor channel						
Soil	Red-orange sand/sandy clay							
Rock Type	Fine gravel (10%), loose soil (70%), coarse gravel/pebbles (20%)							
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and Acacia aneura var. microcarpa high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla (juvenile) and Acacia aneura var. microcarpa (juvenile) low shrubland and Solanum ashbyae low open shrubland over Aristida contorta) open tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Good (grazing)							
Fire Age	Old (>5 yrs)							
Notes	Moderate leaf litter, sparse wood litter, mainly under shrubs.							

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Psydrax suaveolens
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia aneura var. microcarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia, Eremophila granitica, Psydrax rigidula, Ptilotus obovatus, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon cylindricus, Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella
Herbs	< 2%	Haloragis trigonocarpa





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road W	est					
MGA Zone	50	571935	mE		7027743	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (10%), loose soil (60%), coarse gravel/pebbles (30%)						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and Acacia aneura var. intermedia high shrubland overEremophila forrestii subsp. forresti and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (grazing, tracks)						
Fire Age	Not specified						
Notes	Moderate lea	af litter, sp	arse wood litt	er, maii	nly under sl	hrubs. Mulga bai	nd - patchy

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax rigidula
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. intermedia, Acacia aneura var. microcarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila glutinosa, Grevillea stenostachya, Senna glaucifolia, Spartothamnella teucriiflora
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Enchylaena tomentosa, Eremophila granitica, Ptilotus obovatus, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Enneapogon cylindricus, Eriachne lanata, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella, Monachather paradoxus





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road W	est					
MGA Zone	50	572353	mE		7027955	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, minor channel						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fien gravel (80%), loose soil (5%), coarse gravel/pebbles (15%)						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa low open woodland over Acacia aneura var. argentea and Acacia aneura var. microcarpa high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla shrubland over Dodonaea petiolaris low open shrubland and Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri low shrubland over Sida cardiophylla and Goodenia tenuiloba open herbs over Aristida contorta, Eriachne lanata and Monachather paradoxus open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (limited	d grazing)					
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, moderate wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum						
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Grevillea berryana, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax rigidula						
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. argentea						
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S Dillon 2994), Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Senna glaucifolia						
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Dodonaea petiolaris, Eremophila glutinosa, Sen artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Solanum ashbyae						
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila granitica, Harnieri kempeana subsp. muelleri, Sida cardiophylla, Sida cardiophylla						
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne lanata, Monachather paradoxus						
Herbs	10 - 30%	Convolvulaceae sp, Goodenia tenuiloba, Hibiscus burtonii, Sida ectogam Synaptantha tillaeacea var. tillaeacea						

472

#### 722 WRE Site HR16



gia



Described by	SH	Date:	05/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road Ea	st					
MGA Zone	50	576016	mE		7029468	mN	
Habitat	Fla/plain						
Soil	Red-orange clay						
Rock Type	Compacted clay (60%), fine gravel (35%), coarse gravel/pebbles (5%)						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa scattered low trees over Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and Acacia aneura var. intermedia high open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba scattered herbs over Monachather paradoxus and Eragrostis eriopoda very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (some	grazing)					
Fire Age	Old (>5 yrs)						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, moderate wood litter, mainly under shrubs. Sparse Mulga between dense Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla patches.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa					
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. intermedia					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, Psydrax suaveolens					
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Enchylaena tomentosa, Hibiscus coatesii, Maireana villosa, Sida cardiophylla, Solanum ashbyae					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne lanata, Eriachne mucronata, Monachather paradoxus					
Herbs	< 2%	Goodenia tenuiloba, Sida ectogama					





Described by	SH	Date:	05/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road Ea	st					
MGA Zone	50	576849	mE		7029667	mN	
Habitat	Undulating p	lain, very l	ow relief hill				
Soil	Red-orange compacted clay						
Rock Type	Compacted clay (5%), fine gravel (95%)						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa high open shrubland to scattered low trees over Thryptomene decussata and Acacia aneura var. microcarpa shrubland over Thryptomene decussata and Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei low open shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba very open herbs over Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella and Aristida contorta very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (little grazing, old tracks)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Neg leaf litte	r, sparse v	vood litter, ma	inly und	der shrubs.		

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum		
Trees < 10m	< 2%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa		
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Thryptomene decussata		
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Thryptomene decussata		
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Maireana georgei, Maireana thesioides, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei, Sida ectogama, Solanum ashbyae		
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon cylindricus, Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella, Monachather paradoxus		
Herbs	2 - 10%	Goodenia tenuiloba		





Described by	CG	Date:	04/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road W	est					
MGA Zone	50	577286	mE		7029627	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust	, fine grav	el				
Vegetation	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura var. microcarpa open scrub over Eremophila forrestii shrubland over Solanum ashbyae, Sida cardiophylla and Hibiscus burtonii low open shrubland over Monachather paradoxus and Eriachne lanata very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident	t					
Notes	Sparse leaf lit	tter, neg w	vood litter, ma	inly und	der shrubs.		

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila forrestii, Rhagodia eremaea
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Hibiscus burtonii, Sida cardiophylla, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Enneapogon cylindricus, Eriachne lanata, Monachather paradoxus

#### 722 WRE Site HR19



Described by	CG	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road Ea	ist					
MGA Zone	50	577838	mE		7029714	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa high shrubland over Aristida contorta open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Leaf litter/wood litter not specified. Open Mulga.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Grevillea berryana			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans			
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Eremophila clarkei, Maireana villosa, Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei, Solanum ashbyae			
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus			





Described by	CG	Date:	04/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road W	est					
MGA Zone	50	578621	mE		7029801	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel, coarse gravel/pebbles						
Vegetation	Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei, Solanum ashbyae and Maireana villosa low scattered shrubs over Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella and Aristida contorta tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (tracks, grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Neg leaf and wood litter. Very open grass/shrub land.						

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Maireana villosa, Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella
Herbs	< 2%	Trianthema oxycalyptra var. oxycalyptra

# 722 WRE Site HR21



Described by	CG	Date:	04/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20
Location	Creekline						
MGA Zone	50	579184	mE		7029888	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain, m	inor chann	el				
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel						
Vegetation	Acacia cuthbertsonii subsp. cuthbertsonii and Psydrax latifolia low open forest over Eremophila clarkei and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open scrub over Eremophila clarkei shrubland over Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32) and Solanum lasiophyllum open herbs over Monachather paradoxus and Eriachne lanata very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Plentiful leaf litter, moderate wood litter, mainly under shrubs. Dense creekline.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum			
Trees < 10m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia cuthbertsonii subsp. cuthbertsoni Psydrax latifolia			
Shrubs > 2m	30 - 70%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla			
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Eremophila clarkei			
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus, Spartothamnella teucriiflora			
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Hibiscus coatesii, Maireana villosa, Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), Solanum ferocissimum, Solanum lasiophyllum			
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eriachne lanata, Monachather paradoxus			
Climbers	< 2%	Marsdenia australis			
Herbs	10 - 30%	Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)			





## 722 WRE Site HR23a

Described by	CG	Date:	05/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20
Location							
MGA Zone	50	580496	mE		7029551	mN	
Habitat	Plain/flat						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel						
Vegetation	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla low open woodland over Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda open scrub over Eriachne lanata open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Mod leaf litter, neg wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

# Species List:

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
Shrubs 1 - 2m	30 - 70%	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Solanum ashbyae
Shrubs < 0.5m	< 2%	Maireana platycarpa
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne lanata

#### 722 WRE Site HR23b





Described by	CG	Date:	05/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location								
MGA Zone	50	580171	mE		7029992	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain							
Soil	Red-orange s	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel, coarse gravel/pebbles							
Vegetation	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla scattered tall shrubs over Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei low open shrubland over Aristida contorta, Monachather paradoxus and Eragrostis eriopoda tussock grassland.							
Veg Condition	Excellent (grazing)							
Fire Age	None eviden	t						
Notes	Neg leaf and	wood litte	er.					

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia tetragonophylla
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila forrestii
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	, Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei
Tussock grasses	30 - 70%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road W	6					
MGA Zone	50	580826	mE		7029203	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Surface crust, fine gravel, coarse gravel/pebbles						
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii and Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus and Maireana platycarpa low shrubland over Monachather paradoxus very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf litter, neg woodl litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum				
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla				
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris				
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Maireana platycarpa, Maireana villosa, Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus				
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Monachather paradoxus				
Herbs	< 2%	Ptilotus roei				





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location							
MGA Zone	50	570579	mE		7027118	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Loose soil (50%), coarse gravel/pebbles (50%)						
Vegetation	Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia aneura var. major low open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura var. major high shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii shrubland over Eremophila georgei and Solanum ashbyae low open shrubland over Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus and Eriachne lanata very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (some grazing - litter - corrugated iron)						
Fire Age	Old (>5 yrs)						
Notes	Mod leaf litter, sparse wood llitter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. major, Acacia pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia, Psydrax rigidula, Psydrax suaveolens, Santalum leptocladum					
Shrubs > 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. major, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii					
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila granitica, Senna glaucifolia, Spartothamnella teucriiflora					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Abutilon oxycarpum, Enchylaena tomentosa, Maireana villosa, Ptilotus obovatus, Solanum ashbyae					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne lanata, Monachather paradoxus					
Herbs	< 2%	Goodenia tenuiloba, Sida ectogama					





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location							
MGA Zone	50	570335	mE		7026986	mN	
Habitat	Flat/plain						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Loose soil (1	Loose soil (10%), coarse gravel/pebbles (90%) scree					
Vegetation	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa high open shrubland over Acacia aneura var. microcarpa open shrubland over Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei low open shrubland over Goodenia tenuiloba very open herbs over Aristida contorta and Eragrostis eriopoda very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition							
Fire Age							
Notes	Leaf/wood li	tter not sp	pecified.				

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifolia
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Ptilotus rotundifolius, Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus
Herbs	2 - 10%	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Goodenia tenuiloba, Goodenia tenuiloba





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20	
Location	Haul Road W	/ of W6						
MGA Zone	50	570265	mE		7026936	mN		
Habitat	Flat/plain, m	Flat/plain, minor channel						
Soil	Red-orange	Red-orange sand/sandy clay						
Rock Type	Fine gravel (4	Fine gravel (40%), loose soil (10%), coarse gravel/pebbles (50%)						
Vegetation	Acacia aneu Markey & S. over Calytrix low open sh open herbs c	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) open scrub over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open heath over Calytrix desolata low shrubland over Eremophila exilifolia and Grevillea inconspicua low open shrubland over Duperreya commixta climbers over Goodenia tenuiloba very open herbs over Cymbopogon ambiguus very open tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Good (some	grazing)						
Fire Age	None eviden	None evident						
Notes	Mod leaf litt	er, sparse	wood litter, m	nainly ur	nder shrubs			

Cover	Species within each stratum				
2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Psydrax latifo Santalum spicatum				
30 - 70%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)				
30 - 70%	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia speckii, Acacia tetragonophylla, Acacia Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Eremophila exilifolia				
10 - 30%	Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila phyllopoda sub phyllopoda, Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii, Pimelea microcephala sub microcephala, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna glaucifo Spartothamnella teucriiflora				
2 - 10%	Amyema maidenii, Chorizema genistoides, Dodonaea amplisemina, Grevili inconspicua, Indigofera monophylla, Ptilotus obovatus				
2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Cymbopogon ambiguus, Eragrostis eriopoda, Eriachne pulche subsp. pulchella				
2 - 10%	Duperreya commixta				
2 - 10%	Goodenia tenuiloba, Haloragis trigonocarpa, Ptilotus helipteroides, Sida ectogamo				
	Cover 2 - 10% 30 - 70% 30 - 70% 10 - 30% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10% 2 - 10%				





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20
Location	Haul Road Ce	ntre					
MGA Zone	50	569789	mE		7026655	mN	
Habitat	Footslope, low relief hill, gentle slope						
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay						
Rock Type	Coarse grave	l/pebbles	(60%), stones/	boulde	rs (40%), sc	ree	
Vegetation	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) high open shrubland over Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila macmillaniana and Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii low shrubland and Ptilotus obovatus low open shrubland over numerous Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella and Aristida contorta tussock grassland.						
Veg Condition	Excellent (No grazing)						
Fire Age	None evident						
Notes	Sparse leaf and wood litter, mainly under shrubs.						

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum					
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)					
Shrubs 1 - 2m	< 2%	Calytrix desolata, Eremophila macmillaniana					
Shrubs < 1m	10 - 30%	Calytrix desolata, Eremophila exilifolia, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii, Senna glaucifolia					
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Dodonaea amplisemina, Ptilotus obovatus, Solanum ashbyae					
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Enneapogon cylindricus, Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella					
Herbs	< 2%	Sida ectogama					





Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Type:		Q	20x20								
Location	Madoonga W	VD													
MGA Zone	50	569357	mE		7026385	mN									
Habitat	Undulating p	lain, low r	elief scree slop	ре											
Soil	Red-orange sandy clay														
Rock Type	Coarse gravel/pebbles (90%), stones/boulders (10%)														
Vegetation	Acacia aneur angustifolia Strid 20210) tenuiloba ve tussock grass	ra var. mia high open low open ry open h sland.	rocarpa low c shrubland ove shrubland ar erbs over Erc	open wo er Acaci nd Mair agrostis	oodland ov a grasbyi sl eana georg eriopodai	er Eremophila o hrubland over Se geii low shrubla and Aristida co	ppositifolia subsp. enna sp. Austin (A. nd over <i>Goodenia</i> ntorta) very open								
Veg Condition	Good (minim	al grazing	)												
Fire Age	None eviden	t													
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood l	itter, mainly u	nder sh	rubs.										

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	2 - 10%	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Eremophila oppositifolia subsp. angustifolia
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia grasbyi, Acacia tetragonophylla, Eremophila oppositifolia subsp. angustifolia, Senna sp. Austin (A. Strid 20210)
Shrubs < 1m	2 - 10%	Eremophila macmillaniana, Maireana thesioides, Salsola tragus, Scaevola spinescens, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Senna sp. Austin (A. Strid 20210), Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26), Senna stricta
Shrubs < 0.5m	10 - 30%	Eremophila exilifolia, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Maireana convexa, Maireana georgei, Ptilotus obovatus, Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei, Sclerolaena diacantha, Sida ectogama, Solanum ashbyae
Tussock grasses	2 - 10%	Aristida contorta, Eragrostis eriopoda
Herbs	2 - 10%	Goodenia tenuiloba





## 722 WRE Site MWD01

Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20								
Location	HR Cent														
MGA Zone	50	558832	mE		7019504	50									
Habitat	Flat/plain, flo	odplain, w	vetland-ish												
Soil	Red-orange clay/sandy clay														
Rock Type	Cracked clay, surface crust														
Vegetation	Grevillea stric open shrubla 8158) and Ma tussock grass	ata and Ad Ind over Pl arsilea dru Iland.	cacia aneura v eplidium sp. C ummondii herb	ar. <i>coni</i> Evol. F os over	ifera low w il. Fauna Ar Eragrostis :	oodland over Sc id Aust. (N.T. Bu sp. and Eriachne	aevola spinescens Irbidge & A. Kanis Phelmsii scattered								
Veg Condition	Good (tracks,	, grazing, v	veeds)												
Fire Age	None evident	t													
Notes	Moderate lea	af and woo	od litter mainly	under	shrubs.										

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Trees < 10m	10 - 30%	Acacia aneura var. conifera, Grevillea striata, Santalum spicatum
Shrubs > 2m	< 2%	Acacia craspedocarpa, Senna glutinosa subsp. chatelainiana
Shrubs 1 - 2m	2 - 10%	Scaevola spinescens
Tussock grasses	< 2%	Eragrostis sp., Eriachne helmsii
Climbers	< 2%	Lysiana murrayi
Herbs	30 - 70%	Centipeda thespidioides, Marsilea drummondii, Peplidium sp. C Evol. Fl. Fauna Arid Aust. (N.T. Burbidge & A. Kanis 8158)
Sedges	< 2%	Austrostipa elegantissima



# 722 WRE Site MWD02

Described by	SH	Date:	03/07/08	Туре:		Q	20x20								
Location	Madoonga W	/D													
MGA Zone	50	558804	mE		7019050	mN									
Habitat	Flat/plain, se	asonally ir	nundated wet	and											
Soil	Orange clay														
Rock Type	Cracked clay (10%), fine gravel (10%), coarse gravel/pebbles (80%)														
Vegetation	Melaleuca s arachnoides over Zygoph grassland.	tereophloi shrubland yllum ? ei	ia high open over Senna st remaeum ope	shrub r <i>icta</i> ar n herbs	land over Id <i>Sclerolae</i> 5 over <i>Enn</i> o	Eremophila ar ena densiflora lo eapogon cylindr	achnoides subsp. w open shrubland icus open tussock								
Veg Condition	Good (some	grazing fro	om cows)												
Fire Age	None evident	t													
Notes	Sparse leaf a	nd wood li	itter mainly un	der shr	ubs.										

Stratum	Cover	Species within each stratum
Shrubs > 2m	2 - 10%	Acacia burkittii
Shrubs 1 - 2m	10 - 30%	Acacia tetragonophylla, Acacia victoriae, Eremophila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides, Hakea preissii, Melaleuca stereophloia, Senna glutinosa subsp. x luerssenii
Shrubs < 1m	< 2%	Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia, Lycium australe, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna glaucifolia,
Shrubs < 0.5m	2 - 10%	Lawrencia chrysoderma, Maireana carnosa, Maireana lobiflora, Maireana triptera, Ptilotus obovatus, Sclerolaena densiflora, Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26), Senna stricta, Solanum ashbyae, Zygophyllum aurantiacum
Tussock grasses	10 - 30%	Enneapogon cylindricus, Eragrostis dielsii
Herbs	10 - 30%	Boerhavia coccinea, Goodenia berardiana, Ptilotus exaltatus, Ptilotus helipteroides, Schoenia cassiniana, Zygophyllum ? eremaeum





# APPENDIX F DENDOGRAM OF MULTVARIATE ANALYSIS





This page has been left blank intentionally.







This page has been left blank intentionally.





# APPENDIX G SPECIES BY SITE MATRIX





This page has been left blank intentionally.





NAME	WREIA01	WREIA02	WREIA03	WREIA04	WREIA05	WREIA06	WREIA07	WREIA08 WREIA10	WREIA100	WREIA101	WREIA102	WREIA103	WREIA104	WREIA108	WREIA105 WREIA11	WREIA110	WREIA111	WREIA114	WREIA12	WREIA13	WREIA14 WREIA15	WREIA16	WREIA17	WREIA18	WREIA19 WREIA22	WREIA23	WREIA24	WREIA25	WREIA26 WRFIA27	WREIA28	WREIA29	WREIA30	WREIA32	WREIA33	WREIA34 WREIA35	WREIA36	WREIA37	WREIA38	WREIA39	WREIA40	WREIA41 WREIA42	WREIA43
Abutilon macrum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	3	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1 0	0	0	1	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 2	2 1	0	0	2	0	2	) O	2
Abutilon otocarpum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 3	0
Abutilon oxycarpum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia aff. oswaldii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia aff. quadrimarginea	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	2	0	0	0	0 C	0
Acacia aneura var. aneura	3	4	1	2	3	1 (	0.1	0 0	2	3	3	1	2	3 3	2 3	1	3	2	1	0 0	0.1 3	3	1	1	1 2	2	3	4	2 2	4	3	3	3	3 2	2 3	0	2	4	3	3	2 3	0
Acacia aneura var. argentea	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	3	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia aneura var. conifera	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 C	0
Acacia aneura var. fuliginea	0	1	0	0	3	0	0	0 0	2	0	0	0	0.1	0 0	) 3	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	1	0	0	2 0	0	2	4	0 0	2	0	2	0	0 0	) 2	0	0	0.1	0	0	<u>)</u> 0	0
Acacia burkittii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	4	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia cockertoniana	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0	3 3	1	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 1	0
Acacia effusifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	<b>)</b> 0	0
Acacia craspedocarpa	0	0.1	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	2	2 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	2	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia cuthbertsonii subsp. cuthbertsonii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 3	3 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia exocarpoides	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1 2	0	0	1	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia grasbyi	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia minyura	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 3	0	0	2	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia murrayana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia pruinocarpa	0	0	0.1	0	0 0	0.1 (	0.1	1 0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	2 2	0	0	1	0 0	0	1	1	0 1	2	0	0.1	0	1 0	.1 1	0	0	2	2	3	J 0	0
Acacia quadrimarginea	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	2	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	2	0	3	3	3	2	2	0 2	0	0	3	0	0	2 (	3 3	0	0	0	3	2	4 2	3	3	3 (	0.1 2	2	0	3	0 3	3	1	2	4	3 3	3 3	3	0	3	2	3	2 3	0
Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	2 0	4	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	2	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0	2	2 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia rhodophloia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1 0	0	1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	2	0 0	0	0	1	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia sibirica	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 1	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 0	2	0	1	0	1	2 0	0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 4	0
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 1	0	2	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	2	0	0 0.1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	4	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	J 0	0
Acacia speckii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0	0	1	0 0	.1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	3	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	) ()	0
Acacia tetragonophylla	1	2	0	0	0 (	0.1	0	0 0	1	1	0	0	1	0 (	0 0	0	0	0.1	0	0 (	0.1 0.1	0	1	0.1	2 0	0	0	0.1	0 0	2	0	0	0	0.1 (	0 0	0	0	0	1	0	) ()	0
Acacia victoriae	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	) O	0
Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	) O	0
Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	3 (	0 0	0	0	0	2	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	4	0	0	0.1 0	0	0	4	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	) O	0
Atriplex bunburyana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	<u>)</u>	0
Atriplex nummularia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	<u>)</u>	0
Atriplex semilunaris	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	<u>)</u>	0
Atriplex vesicaria	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	<u>)</u> 0	0
Austrostipa elegantissima	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	) 0	0
Austrostipa scabra	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0	0 0	0	2	0	0	0 3	3 0	0	0	0	0	0	) 1	3
Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0.1	. 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	) 0	0
Bergia perennis subsp. exigua	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	) 0	0
Brachychiton gregorii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	) 0.1	0
Calytrix desolata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	3	1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()	0	0	0	0	0	<u> </u>	0
Cheilanthes lasiophyllä	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	<u> </u>	0
Chenanadium anudiahaudianum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	2	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0			0	0	1	1	1		1
Cherizoma ganistoidas	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0.1	0 1	0	0	0		1	0	0	0	0.0		0.1	0	1	1	1		1
Chonzenna genistolaes	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0		0
Corymbia lenziana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0.1 (		0	0	0	0	0	<u> </u>	0
Crutystylis subspiriescens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0 0	1	1	0	0	0			0	0	01	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0		0
Cymbopogon umbiguus	1	0	0	0	0	0 1	0.1		1	1	0	0	0	0 0	.1 0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0		0
Dadangag gmplicaming	1	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0		0
	0	0	0	0		0	2			0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0	0			0	0 1	0			0	0	0	0	0		0
	0		U	0	0	0	2	1 2	0	0	0	0	0			0.1	2		0	0		0	0	0		0	0	0	I U.		0	0.1	0			0	0	0	0	0		
Dodonaca rigida	0	0	U		0	0	0		0	0	U	0	0	T (		0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0			0	2	0	0	0		0
Dodonaga viseoga suban angustistist	0	0	U		0	0	0			0	U	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0		0
Dunorroug commiste	0	0	U		0	0	0		0	0	U	0	0			0	0	U	0	0		0	0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0			0	U	0		0		
Enchylagna tomontosa	0	0	U	0		0	0		2	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0.1	0		0
Enchyluenu tomentosa	0	0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	2	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0		- U - n
Enneapogon caerulescens	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	υΙΟ	2	0	U	2	U	U   I	0 ן נ	0	U	U	U	U	υ   Ο	U	U	U	0 0	0	U	U	υ   Ο	U	U	U	U	υ (	0 ן נ	0	U	U	U	U	JU	2

# Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment





NAME	WREIA01	WREIA02	WREIA03 WREIA04	W/RFIAOS	WREIA06	WREIA07	WREIA08	WREIA10	WREIA101 WREIA101	WREIA102	WREIA103 WREIA104	WREIA108	WREIA109	WREIA11	WREIA110	WREIA11	WREIA12	WREIA13	WREIA14	WREIA15 WREIA16	WREIA17	WREIA18	WREIA19 WREIA22	WREIA23	WREIA24	WREIA25 WREIA26	WREIA27	WREIA28	WREIA29 WREIA30	WREIA32	WREIA33	WREIA34	WREIA35	WREIA36 WREIA37	WREIA38	WREIA39	WREIA40	WREIA41 WREIA42	WREIA43
Enneapogon cylindricus	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eragrostis australasica	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	1 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eragrostis eriopoda	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	2	0 0	0	1	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0	0 0	0
Eraarostis setifolia	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila clarkei	0	0	0 0			0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0		0	0	0 1	0	0		0	0		2	1	1	0			0.1	1		0
Eremonhila compacta subsp. compacta	0	0				0.1	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0		0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0			0.1	0		0
Eremophila compacta subsp. compacta	0	0	0 0			0.1	0	2		0	0 0	1	0	0					0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0		0
Eremonhila compacta subsp. Jecanaa	0	0	0 0			0	0	5		0		1	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0		0
	0	0	0 0	0		0	0	0		0	2 0.1	0	0	0		0 3	0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila falcata	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila foliosissima	0	0	0 0	0		0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	1	3	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila forrestii	0	0	0 0	0	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	3	0.1	3 2	2	2 2	0	0	0	2 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	) 2	3	2 3	3	2	0 4	0	4	0 0	2	1	0 0	3	2	2	1	2 0	3	0	3	3 4	0
Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri	0	0.1	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	2 0.1	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila galeata	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila georgei	0	0	0 0.1	1   1	0.1	L 0	0	1 0	0 1	0	0 0	0	0	0.1	1 3	3   0	0	) 2	1	1 0	0	0	1 1	1	0	0 1	2	4	2 1	0	1	0	0	0 0	3	1	0.1	2 1	0
Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila glabra subsp. tomentosa	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila glutinosa	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	3	1	0 0	1	0 0	3	4	1	0 2	2 0	1	. 0	1	0 0	0	0 (	0.1 0	0	0	0 2	0	0	1 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0 1	0
Eremophila granitica	1	0 (	0.1 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	3	0	0 0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	2	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0.1	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0 0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila latrobei subsp. filiformis	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	3	1	2	1 0.1	0	0.1 0	1	1	0.1	2 1	1 0	2	0	1	0 0	0	0 (	0.1 0	1	0	0 2	1	2	2 1	0	0	0	0	0 2	0	0.1	1	0 0.1	
Eremophila lonaifolia	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1
Eremophila mackinlavi subsp. spathulata	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	$\frac{1}{2}$	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	0.1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0	0 0.1	
Eremophila macmillaniana	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0		0 0 1 3	0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila maculata subsp. hrevifolia	0	0	0 0			0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0		0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0			0	0		0
Eremophila margarethae	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0			0	0		0
Eremophila oppositifolia subsp. angustifolia	0	0	0 0			0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0			0	0		
Eremophila pantonii	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila pullonada subar, abullarada	0	0	0 0			0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila phyliopoda subsp. phyliopoda	0	0	0 0			0	0			0	0.1 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0		0
Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx	0	0	0 0	0		0	0	0	2 0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila punicea	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans	0	0	0 0	0	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0.1 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0.1	. 1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila spathulata	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 3	0	0.1 1	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila spuria	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0.	1 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila subfloccosa subsp. lanata	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne flaccida	0	1	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne helmsii	0	0	0 0	0	0   0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	2 0	0   0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne lanata	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne mucronata	0	0	0 0	0	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	1	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus carnei	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalvptus lucasii	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	4
Eucalvatus socialis subsp. eucentrica	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus striaticalyx	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	$\frac{1}{2}$	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus trivalva	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Euclyptus triverva	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0.1	0 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	01	0	0 0		0	0		0
Expression beophylicity	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0.1	0 0	0	0	0					0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0.1	0			0	0		0
Exocurpos uprivitus	0	0	0 0			0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Chucina canascans	0	0				0						0	0	0			0		0	0 0		0	0 0	0			0	0		0	0	0	0			0	0		0
Given the constant of the cons	U	U				0	0			U	0 0	0	U	U			0		U	0 0	0	0	0 0	0		0 0	U			0	U	U	0			0	U		0
Grevillea berryana	0	0	0 0	0	0 1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	1	0	0	U (	0 0	1	. 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	U 1	0	0	U 1	0	0	U	0	0 0.	1 0	0	0	1 0	0
Grevillea deflexa	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 1	0
Grevillea inconspicua	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Grevillea nematophylla subsp. supraplana	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Grevillea stenostachya	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Grevillea striata	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0   0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0   0	0   0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0

# Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment





NAME	WREIA01	WREIA02	WREIA03	WKEIAU4	WREIA05 WREIA06	WREIA07	WREIA08	WREIA10	WREIA101	WREIA102	WREIA103	WREIA108	WREIA109	WREIA11	WREIA110	WREIA114 WREIA114	WREIA12	WREIA13	WREIA14	WREIA15 WREIA16	WREIA17	WREIA18	WREIA19 WREIA22	WREIA23	WREIA24	WREIA25 WREIA26	WREIA27	WREIA28	WREIA30	WREIA32	WREIA33	WREIA35	WREIA36	WREIA37	WREIA38 WREIA39	WREIA40	WREIA41 WREIA42	WREIA43
Hakea preissii	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Hakea recurva subsp. arida	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 1	1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Tecticornia doleiformis	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Tecticornia indica subsp. leiostachya	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	1	0	0 1	1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Heliotropium ovalifolium	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Hemigenia tysonii	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	1	0 0	) ()	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Hibiscus burtonii	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	.1 0	1	0 0	0
Hibiscus coatesii	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	1	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Indigofera monophylla	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Lawrencia chrysoderma	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Lawrencia densiflora	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Leptomeria preissiana	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Maireana appressa	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Maireana carnosa	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Maireana aeoraei	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0.1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	1 0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	1 (	) 0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	1	0 0	0
Maireana alomerifolia	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Maireana lobiflora	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Maireana melanocoma	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Maireana nlanifolia	0	01	0 0	0		0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	$\frac{1}{2}$	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0		0	0 0	0
Maireana platycarna	0	0	0 0			0	0	0 0		0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0		0			0	0		0	0 0	0
Maireana thesioides	0	0	0 0	0		0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0		0			0	0		0	0 0	0
Maireana tomentosa	0	0	0 0			0	0	0 0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0		0			0	0		1	0 0	0
Maireana trintera	0	0				0	0			0	2 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	$\frac{0}{11}$	0	0		0			0			0	0		1	0 0	0
Maireana villosa	0	0				0	0	0 1		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0 0	0	0		0			0		) 0 ) 3	0	0		1		
Melaleuca stereophloia	0	3				0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0			0		) 0	0	0		0		
Micromyrtus placoides	0	0				0	0			0	0 0	0	0			1 0	2	0	0	0 0	0	0		1	0		0			0			0	0		0		
Micromyrtus placolaes	0	0				0	1			0	0 0	0	0		2 2	2 2	0	0	0	0 0	0	0		4	0		0			0			0	0		0		
Micholia rhagodioides	0	0				0	1			0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 2	0			0			0	0		0		
Minbella Magoaloldes	2	0		4		0	0			0	0 0	1	0	0	1 1		1	0	0	1 2	0	0		0	0		0			1		$\frac{1}{2}$	2	0		1	2 0	
Muchlanbackia florulanta	2	0	4 4	+ 0		0	0			0	0 0	1	0	0			0	0	0	1 3	0	0	0 0	0	0		0			1			2	0		1		
Ologria plushagaag	0	0				0.1	1			0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0			0			0	0		0		0
Olearia stuartii	0	0				0.1	1			0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0			0			0	0		0		0
Diedrid Studrili Dhilothaca brucci cubco, brovifolia	0	0				0	2	2 0		0	0 0	0	2	0			1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0			0			0	0		0		
Philotheca brucei subsp. brevijolia	0	0				0	2	<u> </u>		0	0 0	0	2	0				0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0			0			0	2		0		0
Principed brucer subsp. brucer	0	0				0	3			0	0 0	0	0	0	0 3		0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0			0			0	2		0		0
Pinieleu microcephala subsp. microcephala	0	0				0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0			0			0	0		0		0.1
Pittosporum angustijoilum Diushan dantau	0	0				0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0			0			0	0		0		0
Proched dentex	0	0				0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0			0			0	0		0		0
Prostanthera altheferi suber altheferi	0	0				0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0			0			0	0		0		0
Prostantnera althojeri subsp. althojeri	0	0				0	0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0			0			0	0		0		0
Prostantnera petropnila Develuen latifalia	0	0	0 0			0	0	2 (		0	0 0	1	0.1	0	1 0.	.1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	2	0	0 0	0		3	0	0 0.	1 0	0	1		0	0 0	0
Psydrax latifolia Developmentation	0	0				0.1	0	0.1 0.	1 0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0.1	0	1	0 0	0	0.1 (		0	1 0.		0.1	0		0.1	0 0	0
Psyarax rigiaula	0	0	0 0	.1		0	0	0 1		0	0 0	0	0	0		0 1	0.1		0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	1 0	0	0 0	0.1	0			0	0		0	0 0	0
Psydrax suaveolens	0	0	0 0	.1 0	0.1 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0 0.1	0	0	0 0	0	0.1 (	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Ptilotus luteolus	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0 0	0
Ptilotus beardii	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus	0	0	0 0	U	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	<u>ז ס</u>	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	U 0	0	0	υ 0	0	0 (	) () )	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	U 0	0	0 0	0
Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus	0	0	0 (	U	0 0	0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus	1	1	0.1 (	U	1 0.1	1 4	1	3 3	3 1	0	1 2	0	0.1	0.1	1 (	) 2	0	1	2	1 0	3	2	2 3	0	1	2 0.1	0.1	2 2	2 1	0.1	1 2	2 2	0.1	3	3 2	3	0 0.1	1 3
Ptilotus rotundifolius	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Ptilotus schwartzii	0	0	0 (	0	1   1	0	0	0 0	0 0	2	0 1	1	0	0	2 2	2 0	0.1	1 0	0.1	1 2	0	0	0 1	0	1	0 2	2	0 1	1 1	0	1 0	0 (	0	0	0 1	0	2 0	0
Rhagodia eremaea	0	0	1 0	.1	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Santalum acuminatum	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0.1 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Santalum spicatum	0	0	0 (	0 0	0.1 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0.1	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0
Scaevola spinescens	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	2	0 0	0   0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0	0 0.	.1  3	0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0

# Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment




NAME	WREIA01	WREIA02	WREIA03	WREIA04	WREIA05 WREIA06	WREIA07	WREIA08	WREIA10	WREIA100	WREIA101	WREIA102	WREIALUS	WREIA10	WREIA109	WREIA11	WREIA110	WREIA111	WREIA114	WREIA12	WREIA13	WREIA14	WREIA15	WREIA16	WREIA1/ WREIA18	WREIA19	WREIA22	WREIA23	WREIA24	WREIA25	WREIA26	WREIA27	WIRFIA79	WREIA30	WREIA32	WREIA33	WREIA34	WREIA35	WREIA36	WREIA37	WREIA38	WREIA39	WKEIA4U	WREIA42	WREIA43
Sclerolaena densiflora	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	0 (	0 (	0
Sclerolaena diacantha	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	0 (	) O	0
Sclerolaena eriacantha	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 2	2 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	0 (	) O	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia	0	0	0 0	.1	0 0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0 (	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	) O	2
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	3	0	2 :	1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	2	0	1 (	) ()	) 0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	) O	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. oligophylla	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	) O	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	0 (	) O	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	) O	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0 (	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0 0	) ()	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	) O	0
Senna glaucifolia	0.1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0 2	2 0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	1	0	1	0	0	0 0	) 2	. 0.1	1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	) O	0
Senna sp. Austin (A. Strid 20210)	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	J (	0 (	0
Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 (	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	2 0	) 1	0	0	0	0	1 (	).1 (	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	0.1	0 /	J (	0 (	0
Senna stricta	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0.1	0	0	0.1	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0 /	J (	0 (	0
Sida calyxhymenia	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0 0	0 C	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	1 2	2 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	J (	0 (	0
Sida cardiophylla	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	) O	0
Sida ectogama	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	J (	0 (	0
Sida fibulifera	0	0	2	2	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0 0	0 1	. 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	2	1	2	2	3	2 /	J (	) 1	0
Sida sp. dark green fruit (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	J (	0 (	0
Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)	0	0	0	0	0 0	3	0	1	0	0	1	0 0	) 2	0	2	3	0	0	2	0	0	0	1 (	0 0	) 0	0	0	2	0	0	0 0	) ()	0 (	2	0	0	0.1	0	1	0	0 (	J 1	1 0	0
Sida sp. Golden calyces pubescent (G.J. Leach 1966)	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	) (	0 (	0
Sida spodochroma	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	J (	0 (	0
Solanum ashbyae	1	1	1	1	0 0	3	0	1	1	1	1 0	.1 1	1 0	0.1	1 1	0	1	0	0.1	1	1	1	1 2	2 0.	1 1	1	0.1	1	0.1	0.1	0 1	. 1	. 0	1	1	2	2	1 (	0.1	1	1	2 0.	.1 1	1
Solanum centrale	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	<u>ວ</u> ເ	0 נ	0
Solanum ellipticum	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0	1	0	0	0 (	0 C	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0.1	0 0	0.1 (	0 0	) 0	0	0	1	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0.1	1	0	0	0	0 /	<u>ວ</u> (	0 נ	0
Solanum ferocissimum	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	) (	0 (	0
Spartothamnella teucriiflora	1	0	0 0	.1	1 1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0 0	0 0	)   1	0.1	0	1	0	0	0 0	) 0	0 0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	1	1 '	1 (	0 (	0
Stenanthemum patens	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	J (	0 (	0
Stenanthemum petraeum	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	1	1 (	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	<u>ວ</u> (	0 נ	0
Thryptomene decussata	0	0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 3	1	0	3	3	0	2	0.1	0	0	0 (	0 0	) 0	0	1	0	0	2	3 (	) 0	0.1	1 0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0 (	ວ (	) 0	0
Tribulus suberosus	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 /	<b>р</b> (	) 0	0
Zygophyllum aurantiacum	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	<b>ე (</b>	) 0	0





NAME	WREIA44	WREIA45	WREIA46	WREIA47	WREIA48	WREIA49	WREIA50	WREIA51 WREIA52	WREIA53	WREIA54	WREIA55	WREIA56	WREIA57	WREIA58	WREIA59		WREIA62	WREIA63	WREIA64	WREIA65	WREIA66	WREIA67 WREIA68	WREIA69	WREIA70	WREIA71	WREIA72	WREIA75	WREIA70	WREIA78	WREIA79	WREIA80	WREIA82	WREIA83	WREIA84	WREIA85	WREIA86	WREIA87	WREIA88	WREIA09	WREIA91	WREIA92	WREIA95 WREIA94
Abutilon macrum	0	0	1	2	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	L 3	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0.1	3	0	0.1	0 0	0 (	0	2 /	0 0
Abutilon otocarpum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	.1 0	0	0	0 0.	.1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 /	0 0
Abutilon oxycarpum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 /	0 0
Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 2	2 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 1	l 1	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 /	0 1
Acacia aff. oswaldii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 /	0 0
Acacia aff. quadrimarginea	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 /	0 0
Acacia aneura var. aneura	1	0	1	4	1	2	2	3 1	3	3	2	1	3	0	3 1		0 0	2	0	3	0	3 3	0.1	1 2	3	3	1 4	1 3	2	3	3 1	L 3	3	2	0	0.1	2	1 3	3 3	1	1	3 1
Acacia aneura var. argentea	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0 /	0 0
Acacia aneura var. conifera	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0 0
Acacia aneura var. fuliginea	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0 0	2	2	2	0	2	0	0 0		0 0	2	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	1 (	0 0	0	0	1 0
Acacia burkittii	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	1	2 (	) 3	0	0	0 0
Acacia cockertoniana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0
Acacia effusifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0	0 0
Acacia craspedocarna	1	0	01	2	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0 0	1 (		3	1	3	0		0	0	0	0	0 -		0	0	0 0	$\frac{1}{2}$	0	0	0	0	2	3 (	$\frac{1}{2}$	1	2	3 0
Acacia cuthbertsonii subsp. cuthbertsonii	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0
Acacia exocarnoides	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0		0		0	0	0 0	$\frac{1}{100}$	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0		0 0
Acacia arashvi	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0		0	0		) 0.1	0	0			0	0	0	0	0			0		
Acacia minyura	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	2	0	2	0	0				0	0	0	0		0		2	0			0	0			0	0	2	2	0			0		
Acacia murravana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	1		0		0	0			0	0			0	0	2 0	0	0			0		
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 0	0	2	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0			1 0	0	0			0	0			0	1	0	0	0			0		
Acacia pranocarpa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	2	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0		0	0			0	0			0	1	0	0	0			0		
	0	0	0	0	0	2	2		2	2	0	0	2	0				0	0	0	0		0		0	4			0	0			2	2	2	0				0		
Acacia ramulosa var. Imophylia	0	0	0	0	0	2	3	0 2	2	3	0	4	3	0				0	2	0	4		0		0	4	2 (	) 3	0	0			3	3	3	3	2			0	2 1	<u> </u>
Acacia ramuiosa var. ramuiosa	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	4	0	0				0	2	0	0		0		0	0			0	0	0 0		0	0	1	0	0			0		J 0
Acacia rhoaophiola	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	1 0	0	0			0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0	.1 0	0	0 0	J 0
Acacia sibirica	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 (			0	0	0	0	0 2	1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0	0	1	1 (	0.1	. 0	3 (	<u> </u>
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	).1 (	) 1	4	3	3 3	3 3	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()	0	0 (	<u>)</u> 3
Acacia speckii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	2	0	2 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) 2	0	0 (	<u> </u>
Acacia tetragonophylla	2	0	2	3	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0 0.	1 (	0 0	2	0.1	1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0	0	2	0 (	) 2	1	3 1	1 1
Acacia victoriae	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0 0	<u> </u>
Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	<u>)</u> 0
Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	3	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0 (	<u> </u>
Atriplex bunburyana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	)   1	. 2	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	J 0
Atriplex nummularia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	)   1	. 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0 (	J 0
Atriplex semilunaris	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0 C
Atriplex vesicaria	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0 0	) (	) 3	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0 C
Austrostipa elegantissima	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	2	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	1 0
Austrostipa scabra	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 0	)   (	0   0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 3	0	0	0 0	)   1	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0 /	0 C
Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 /	0 0
Bergia perennis subsp. exigua	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	1	0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 /	0 0
Brachychiton gregorii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0.	.1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0 /	0 0
Calytrix desolata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	.1 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 2	0	0 /	0 0
Cheilanthes lasiophylla	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 /	0 1
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	1	0	0 (	) ()	0	0	0 0	0 (	2	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0 /	0 0
Chenopodium gaudichaudianum	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 1	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 /	0 0
Chorizema genistoides	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 /	0 0
Corymbia lenziana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	1	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0 /	0 0
Cratystylis subspinescens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0 0	) 4	3	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0 /	0 0
Cymbopogon ambiguus	0	0	0	1	0 0	0.1	0	1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 0.	1 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	.1 0	0	1	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0	1 1	L 3	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	1	0 2
Dianella revoluta var. divaricata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()	0	0	0 0
Dodonaea amplisemina	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	1	0	2 0	) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0
Dodonaea pachyneura	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0 1	0	2	0	0		) 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0		0 0
Dodonaea petiolaris	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0		0	0			0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0		0 0
Dodonaea riaida	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0		0	0			0	0			0	0	0	0	0			0		
Dodonaea viscosa subsp. anaustissima	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0		0	0			0	0			0	0	0	0	0			0		
Dunerreva commixta	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0		0	0			0	0			0	0	0	0	0			0		
Enchulagna tomentosa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0		0	0			0	0			0	0	0	0	0			0		
Encirgiaena coordocons	0	0	0	0	0	2	0		0	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0		0	0			0	0				0	0	0	0			0		J U 1 1
Lineupoyon cuerulescens	<u>۲</u>	U	U	U	U	2	U	υU	U	U	U	U	U	U	υl	ν   (	<u> </u>	U	0	U	υļ	υlυ	U	U	U	υ		0 ן נ	U	U	υl	0 ן נ	U	U	U	U	U	т (	0 ע	U	U	<u>1   1</u>





NAME	WREIA44	WREIA45	WREIA46 WREIA47	W/RFIA48	WREIA49	WREIA50	WREIA51	WREIA52	WREIA53 WREIA54	WREIA55	WREIA56 WREIA57	WREIA58	WREIA59	WREIA60	WREIA61 WREIA62	WREIA63	WREIA64	WREIA65	WREIA66	WREIA67 WREIA68	WREIA69	WREIA70	WREIA71 WREIA72	WREIA75	WREIA76	WREIA77 WREIA78	WREIA79	WREIA80	WREIA81 WREIA82	WREIA83	WREIA84	WREIA85	WKEIA80 W/REIA87	WREIA87 WREIA88	WREIA89	WREIA90	WREIA91	WREIA92 WREIA93	WREIA94
Enneapogon cylindricus	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eragrostis australasica	0	0	0 1	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eragrostis eriopoda	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	1	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	0.1 1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eragrostis setifolia	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides	0	0	0 0	0	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila clarkei	0	0	0 0		) 1	0	0	0	0 2	0	1 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0 (			0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila compacta subsp. compacta	0	0	0 0		$\frac{1}{1}$	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	2 3	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila compacta subsp. compacta	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0				0	0	0		0
Eremophila evilifelia	0	0	0 0				0	0		0	0 0	0	1	0		0	0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0				0	1	0		0
Eremophila exilipolia	0	1	0 0				0	0		0	0 01	0	1	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0				0	1	0		0
Eremophila jaicata	0	1	0 0			0	0	0		0	2 0.1	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0				0	0	0		0
	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0 3	1	3 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila forrestii	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	0	0	0 0	0	) 2	1	0.1	1 0	0.1 4	2	4 0	0	2	4	0 0	0	0	1	0.1	0 0	0	0	0 3	2	0 0	0.1 1	0	1	0 1	2	3	2 (	0 1	1 1	0.1	0.1	0	2 0	1
Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri	0	1	0 2	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0.1	0	1 1	0
Eremophila galeata	2	0	2 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila georgei	0	0	0 0	1	L 0	0	0	1 0	0.1 3	0	0 1	1	2	0.1	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	1 1	0	0	1   1	0	0	0 (	0 0.	.1 0	0	0	0.1	1 0	0
Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila glabra subsp. tomentosa	0	0	0 0		0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0	0 1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila glutinosa	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	1	0.1	0 0	0	0	0	2	0 1	0	1	3 1	0	0.1	0 3	3	1	2 0	1	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila granitica	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	1	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0.1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	2	3 3	3 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	1	0	1	1 0	2	1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila latrobei subsp. filiformis	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0.1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	0	0	0 0	2	2 0	2	2	2	1 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	2 0	0.1	3	2 0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0 0	1	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	2	0	0.1	0 1	0
Eremophila longifolia	0	0	0 1	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1	1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila mackinlavi subsp. spathulata	0	0	0 0	0	) 0.1	1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0 3	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	1 0	0
Eremonhila macmillaniana	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0.1	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	4	0 0	2	3	0 0	0	0	0 (		) 0	0	0	0	1 0	0
Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	01	0	0		1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila margarethae	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0.1	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 1	01	0		0	0		0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila oppositifolia subsp. angustifolia	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	2	0		0	0	0 0	0.1	0		0	0		0	0				0	0	0		0
Eremophila pantonii	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0				0	0	0		0
Eremophila phillonoda subsp. phillonoda	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0				0	0	0		0
Eremophila platuachy, subsp. phyliopoud	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0				0	0	0	$\frac{0}{1}$ 0	2
Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0				0	0	0	1 5	2
Eremophila punicea	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 3	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0				0	0	0		0
Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans	0	0	0 0				0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0.1	0	0 0	.1 (		0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila spathulata	0	0	0 0	0	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila spuria	0	0	0 0	0	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (		) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila subfloccosa subsp. lanata	0	1	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne flaccida	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1	3	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne helmsii	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	2	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 2	2 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne lanata	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne mucronata	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus carnei	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 3	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus lucasii	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus socialis subsp. eucentrica	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus striaticalyx	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus trivalva	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 3	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Euphorbia boophthona	0	0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Exocarpos aphyllus	0	0	0 0		) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (		) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0
Frankenia laxiflora	0	0	0 0		) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	3	0	0	3 3	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0 0		) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Glycine canescens	0	0	0 1			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	01		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0		$\frac{5}{1}$	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0
Grevillea herryana	0	0	0 0			2	0	01		1	1 0	0	1	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	1 1	0	0		0	0	<u>, 1</u>	0	0				2	0	0		0
Grevillea defleva	0	0				0	0	0.1		0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0				2	2	0		0
Crowilleg inconspicus	0	0				0	0			0		0	0	0		0	0	0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0		0	0				0	4	0		
Grevillea nomatonhulla suber surralare	0	0				0				0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0		0				0			0		0	0				0	0		<u>, 1</u> 0	0
Grevillen eten estad	0	0	0 0			0	0	0		0	0 0	0	U	0		2	2	0	0		0			0	0		0	0		0	U				0	U	0		0
Grevillea stenostacnya	0	0	0 0			0	0	U		U	0 0	0	U	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	U	0 0	U	U		0	0		0	U				0	U	U		0
Grevillea striata	0	U	υ 0		0   0	0	0	U	0 0	0	0 0	0	U	0	υ Ο	2	1	0	0	0 0	0	U	0 0	0	U	0 0	0	U	0 0	0	U	0   (	υΟ	0 ן נ	0	U	U	0 0	0





NAME	WREIA44	WREIA45	WREIA46	WREIA47	WREIA48	WREIA49	WREIADU	WREIA51 WREIA52	WREIA53	WREIA54	<b>WREIA55</b>	WREIA56	W/BELASS	WREIA59	WREIA60	WREIA61	WREIA62	WREIA63	WREIA64 WRFIA65	WREIA66	WREIA67	WREIA68	WREIA69	WREIA70 WREIA71	WREIA72	<b>WREIA75</b>	WREIA76	WREIA// WREIA78	WREIA79	WREIA80	WREIA81 WREIA82	WREIA83	WREIA84	WREIA85	WREIA86	WREIA87	WREIA88 WRFIA89	WREIA90	WREIA91	WREIA92 WREIA93	WREIA94
Hakea preissii	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Hakea recurva subsp. arida	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Tecticornia doleiformis	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	2	0	0	0	3	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Tecticornia indica subsp. leiostachya	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	3	0	0	4	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	2	1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Heliotronium ovalifolium	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 2	0	2	1 0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Hemiaenia tysonii	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1		0	0	0		0	0		0	01	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Hibiscus hurtonii	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0		1	0	0		0	0		1	0.1	0	0	0 0		0	0		0
Hibiscus partesii	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0				0	0	0	0			0	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0			0	0		
Hibiscus courcin	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0				0	0	0	0			0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0		0	0		
Indiaofara mononhulla	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0				0	0	0	0			0	0	0			0	0		0	0	1 0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0		2
	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0				0	1	2	0	0 0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0		0	0		2
	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0				0	1	3	0	0 0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0		0	0		
Lawrencia densifiora	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0 0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0
Leptomeria preissiana	0	0	U	U	U				0	U	U	0 0	1		0		1	U	0 0		0	U	0		0	U	U		U	U		0	0	U	U	0		0	0	0 0	0
iviaireana appressa	0	0	0	U	U	0 0	J	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	U	U 0	0	0	U	0	0 0	0	0	U	0 0	0	U	0	0	0	0	U	0 0	0 0	0	0	U 0	0
Maireana carnosa	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	J	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	υ 0	0	0	υ 0	0	0	0	0	0	υ 0	0	0	0 2	0
Maireana georgei	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	D	0 0	1	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0	0 0	0	0 0	.1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	3	0 0	0
Maireana glomerifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 1	0
Maireana lobiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Maireana melanocoma	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Maireana planifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Maireana platycarpa	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Maireana thesioides	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Maireana tomentosa	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Maireana triptera	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
, Maireana villosa	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0
Melaleuca stereophloia	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	3	0	0	3	0	3	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Micromyrtus placoides	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1		0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Micromyrtus sulphurea	0	0	0	0	2				0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0		0
Michelia rhaaodioides	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0				0	0	0	0			0	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0			0	0		
Monachathar naradovus	0	0	0	0 0	0 1	2 1	1		2	2	2				0	0	0	0		2	0	1	0	2 0		0	0		0	0		1	2	0	0	0		0	0		
Muchlanhackia flagulanta	0	0	0	0	0.1	2 1			2	3	2				0	2	0	0	0 0		0	1	0	2 0		0	0		0	0		1	3	0	0	0		0	0		0
	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0		0.		0	5	0	0			0	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0			0	0		
	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0		0	0		
Oleana stuartii Dhilathaan huuni an huu ifalin	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0		0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0		0
Philotheca brucel subsp. brevijolia	0	0	0	0	0				0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1		0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0
Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei	0	0	0	0	2	0 (	0	1 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0 2	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala	0	1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Pittosporum angustifolium	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	1	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Pluchea dentex	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	) 1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	1 0	0
Prostanthera albiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	1 0	0
Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	2 0	0
Prostanthera petrophila	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1	0 1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Psydrax latifolia	0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1 (	0	0 0	0.1	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0.1 0	.1 0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Psydrax rigidula	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	).1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 1	0	0	0.1	0	0	0 0.	1 0	0	0 0	0
Psydrax suaveolens	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0.1	1 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0.	1 0	0	0	0	0 0.1	1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0.1	1 0.1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Ptilotus luteolus	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Ptilotus beardii	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	3	0 2	0
Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus	0.1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0	0	2	3 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0
Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0
Ptilotus ohovatus var ohovatus	1	1	01	01	01	3 0	- -	3 0	0	1	01	0 1			2	1	0	0	0 1		1 1	2	0		0	1	1	$\frac{3}{2}$ 1	2	1 0		0	1	2	0	2	3 0	1	2	2 1	2
Dtilotus rotundifolius	0	0	0.1	0.1	0.1				0	0	0.1				0	0	0	0				0	0			-	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0		
Ptilotus schwartzii	0	0	0	0	1		1		1	0	2	2 0			0	0	0	0			2	0	0			1	0		1	0		1	0	0	0			0	0		
Phagodia aramaga	0	0	0	0	1		-		1	0	2	2 0			0	0		0				0	0			1	0		1	0		1	0	1	0	0		0	0		
Kiluyoula eremaea	0	U	T	0	0				0	0	U				0	0	0	0		0.1		0			U	U	0		0	0		0	0	1	0			U	0		0
Santaium acuminatum	0	U	U	0	0	0 (	J		0	0	U	0 (	0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0			U	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0
Santalum spicatum	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	J	υ 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0	υ 0	0	0	U 1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	1 0	0
Scaevola spinescens	0	0	0	0	0	0   0	J	υ   Ο	0	0	0	0   0		0   0	0	0	2	2	2 0	0   0	0	0	0	υ   Ο	0	0	0	U   O	0	0	U   O	0	0	0	0	0	U   O	0	0	0 1	0





NAME	WREIA44	WREIA45	WREIA46	WREIA47	WREIA48	WREIA49	WREIA50	WREIA51	WREIA52	WREIA53	WREIA54	<b>WREIA55</b>	WREIA56	WREIA57	WREIA58	WREIA59	WREIA60	WREIA61	WREIA62	WREIA63	WREIA64	WREIA65	WREIA66	WREIA67	WREIA68	WREIA69	WREIA70	WREIA71	WREIA72	WREIA75	WREIA76	WREIA77	WREIA78	WKEIA/9		WIRFIA82	VVINE 1083	VVINEIA00	WKEIA04 MRFIA85	WREIA86	WREIA87	WREIA88	WREIA89	WREIA90	WREIA91	WREIA92	WREIA93	WREIA94
Sclerolaena densiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	) (	) (	) (	л <u>с</u>	) (	) 2	. 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sclerolaena diacantha	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	) (	) (	) (	) (	) (	) C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sclerolaena eriacantha	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	<i>i</i> (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	) (	) (	) 1	. (	) (	) 2	. 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	3	2	1 2	2 4	1	. (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0.1	1 0	1	1	3
Senna artemisioides subsp. oligophylla	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	<i>i</i> (	) (	) 3	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	) (	) (	) 2	. (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna glaucifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	2	) (	. (	) (	<i>i</i> (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Senna sp. Austin (A. Strid 20210)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)	0	1	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	2	0	) (	) 0.	1 0	<i>i</i> (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	2	2	3	0
Senna stricta	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida calyxhymenia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	) (	) (	) 1	. (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	1	0	1	2	0
Sida cardiophylla	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida ectogama	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	i (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida fibulifera	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0 0	) (	) (	i (	) (	) O	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida sp. dark green fruit (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	i (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2	0	1	2	2	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	1 4	1 (	) 0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Sida sp. Golden calyces pubescent (G.J. Leach 1966)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	i (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida spodochroma	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	2 (	) (	) (	i (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Solanum ashbyae	1	1	1	1	1	2	1	1	0	1	1	1	0	1	0	1	2	0	0	0	0	1	2	1	1	0	1	0	2	0.1	1	1	1	2 2	0.	1 1	. 2	2 1	1 0.	1 0.1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
Solanum centrale	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	1 0	) 1	1 2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Solanum ellipticum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	1 0	) (	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Solanum ferocissimum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	i (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Spartothamnella teucriiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	i (	) (	) 1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Stenanthemum patens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	i (	) (	) O	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Stenanthemum petraeum	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	i (	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Thryptomene decussata	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	3	1	3	2	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	1 (	) (	) 0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0
Tribulus suberosus	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	2 (	) 1	0	0.	.1 (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Zygophyllum aurantiacum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	) C	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0





NAME	WREIA95	WREIA96	WREIA97	WREIA98		WRE2115	WRE2116	WRE2117	WRE2118	WRE2119	WRE2120	WRE2121	WKE2122	WRE2123	WRE2124 WRE2125	WRE2126	WRE2127	WRE2128	WRE2129	WRE2130	WRE2131 WRE2132	WRE2133	WRE2134	WRE2135	WRE2136 WRE2137	WRE2138	WRE2139	WRE2140	WRE2141 WRE2142	WRE2143	WRE2144	WRE2145	WRE2146	WRE2147	WRE2140	WRE2150	WRE2151	WRE2152	WRE2153	WRE2154	WRE2156 WRE2156	WRE2157
Abutilon macrum	1	4	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Abutilon otocarpum	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Abutilon oxycarpum	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum	1	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia aff. oswaldii	0	0	0	0 0		0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia aff. quadrimarginea	0	0	0	0 0		0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia aneura var. aneura	2	2	1	0 1	L	2 0	2	1	2	0	0	0	1	0	2 2	2	2	3	2	2	0 0	) 4	2	2	1 0	1	4	1	2 3	3	1	4	3	3 3	3 3	2	3	3	3	3	4 4	3
Acacia aneura var. argentea	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia aneura var. conifera	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0.1	1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia aneura var. fuliginea	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	2	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 2	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia burkittii	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia cockertoniana	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia effusifolia	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 2	0	2	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia craspedocarpa	0	0	0	0 0		) 1	0.1	1 0	2	0	0	0 0	0 (	0.1 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia cuthbertsonii subsp. cuthbertsonii	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia exocarpoides	0	0	0	0 0		) 0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 2	2 3	3	0.1	1	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia grasbyi	0	0	0	0 0			0	3	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia minvura	0	0	0	0 0		) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0.1	1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia murravana	0	0	0	0 0		) 1	0	0	0	0	0	1 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	) ()	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia pruinocarpa	0	2	0	1 0		) 0	0	0	2	0	0	0 0	0	1 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 2	0	0	0 0	0.1	1	2	0 0	1	0	0	0	0.1 3	3 3	1	1	0	0	2	0 0	0
Acacia auadrimarainea	0	3	0	0 0		$\frac{1}{2}$	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0		0	0	0	0 0	0
Acacia ramulosa var linonhylla	01	0	0	0 0		3 0	0	1	2	0	0	0 0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 3		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1 1	2	0	3	3	3 1	1 0		1 0	0	2	01	0 0	01
Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa	0.1	2	0	3 0			0	0	0	0	0		0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0				0	0	0.1	0 0	0.1
Acacia rhodophloja	3	01	0	0 0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	2	0	0	0	0 0				0	2	0	0 0	0
	0	0.1	0				1 0	0	1	0	0		0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0		ן א ר א			0	0	2		0
Acacia sp. Weld Bange (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	1	0	0			2 0		0	0	0	0		0		0 3	0	0	0	3	3	3 0	) 1	3	0	3 3	0	0	0		0	0	2	0					0	0	0	0 1	0
Acacia speckii	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0		0		0 1	0	0	0	1	2	3 0		2	0	2 3	0	0	0		0	0	2	0					0	0	0		0
Acacia tetragononhylla	0	01	01	0 2			1	0	0	1	01	1	2 (			0	0	0	0	0	1 0		0	0	2 5	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	5 0 1 1	0		0	0	0	0 0	0
	0	0.1	0.1	0 2			0	0	0	1	1	2 0		0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Allocasuaring acutivaluis subsp. acutivaluis	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0	2 1				0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Aluta aspera subsp. besperia	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0					0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0					0	0	0	2 2	0
Atrialay hunhuruana	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0		0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0					0	4	0	<u> </u>	0
Atriplex bulburyunu	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0		0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Attriplex numinulunu	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0		0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0					0	0	0	0 0	0
Attriplex semilaria	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0					0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0					0	0	0	0 0	0
Autiplex vesiculu	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0					0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Austrostipa ccabra	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0		0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0					0	0	0	0 0	0
Austrostipu scubru	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0		0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Baeckea Sp. Menta Station (H. Pringle 2738)	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0					2	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Bergia perennis subsp. exigua	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0		0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Brachychilon gregorii	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0		0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Caly(1)X desoluta	0	2	0				0	0	0	0	0		0			0	1	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Cheilanthes lasiophylla	1	2	0				0	0	0	0	0		0			0	1	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Chenana diana and ishara diana a	0	0	0			0 1.	0	0	0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0					0	0	0		0
Cheniopoalum gauaicnauaianum	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0.1 0	0	0	0	0	0 0				0	0	0	0 0	0
Chorizema genistoides	0	0	0				0	0	0	0	0		0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0				0	0	0	0 0	0
Corymbia lenziana	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Cratystylis subspinescens	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	3	0	0 0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Cymbopogon ambiguus	0.1	2	0	0 0		) 1	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	2 0.1	1 0	0	0	0 0.1	. 2	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0	0.1	0 0	) ()	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Dianella revoluta var. divaricata	0	0	U			<u>v 0</u>	0.1		0	0	U	0 0	U	0 0		0	0	0	0	U	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	U	U	0 0	<u>ן ר</u>			0	U	U	0 0	0
Dodonaea amplisemina	0	0	0	0 0		<u>ן ר</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	U	0 0		0	0	0	2	1	0 0	0	2	0	2 1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	<u>ן 0</u>	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Dodonaea pachyneura	0	0	0	0 0		) O	0	0	1	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0	0	0 0	) ()	0 0	0	0	0	0	1 0	0
Dodonaea petiolaris	0	0	0	2 0		) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Dodonaea rigida	0	0	0	0 0		0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Dodonaea viscosa subsp. angustissima	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 1	. 0.1	1 0	0.1	0	0	0 0	0
Duperreya commixta	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	3	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Enchylaena tomentosa	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Enneapogon caerulescens	2	0	0	1 1		0   0	0	0	0	1	0	0 2	2	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0	1   0	)   0	2	0	0 0	2	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0





NAME	WREIA95	WREIA96	WREIA97	WREIA99	WRE210a	WRE2115	WRE2116	WRE2117	WRE2118 WRE2119	WRE2120	WRE2121 WRE2122	WRE2123	WRE2124	WRE2125	WRE2126	WRE2128	WRE2129	WRE2130	WRE2131	WRE2132 WRE2133	WRE2134	WRE2135	WRE2136 WRE2137	WRE2138	WRE2139	WRE2140 WRE2141	WRE2142	WRE2143	WRE2144 WRE2145	WRE2146	WRE2147	WRE2148	WRE2149	WRE2150 WRE2151	WRE2152	WRE2153	WRE2154	WRE2156 WRE2156	WRE2157
Enneapogon cylindricus	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eragrostis australasica	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 1	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eragrostis eriopoda	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eraarostis setifolia	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila clarkei	0	0			0		0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	1	0			0	0	0		0
Eremonhila compacta subsp. compacta	0	0			0		0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	-	0			0	0	0		0
Eremophila compacta subsp. compacta	0	0				0.1	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0		0
Eremonhila compacta subsp. jecanaa	0	2					0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			2	0	1	0 0	2	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0		0
	2	2	0 0		0	0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	1			2	2	1	0 0	3	1	2 0.1	0	0		0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila faicata	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila foliosissima	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	2	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila forrestii	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	1	0	0 1	0	3	3	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 3	0	0	0 3	0	3	0	0	1 0	0	1	0	0 0	0
Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila galeata	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	1	0	0 0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila georgei	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0.1	L 0	0	0	0 0	)   0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	2	0 3	3	0	0 0	3	0	0	0	1 0	1	0	0	3 0	0.1
Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 2	1	2 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila glabra subsp. tomentosa	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila glutinosa	0	0	0 0	) 0	0.1	1 0	0	1	1 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0 1	0	1	0	0 0	0 3	1	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila granitica	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	0	0	0 0	) 0	0.1	1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0	1 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila latrobei subsp. filiformis	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	0	0	0.1 0	) 0	0.3	1 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	1	1	1 3	3 1	0	0	0	1 1	0	0	0 0	3	3	1 0.1	0	4	0 2	3	0	0	0 0	0.1 2	4	1	0	1 0	0
Eremophila lonaifolia	0	0.1	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 1	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila mackinlavi subsp. spathulata	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila macmillaniana	0	1	0 0		0	0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	2			2	3	0	0 0	2	3	3 2	01	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremonhila maculata subsp. brevifalia	0	0			0		0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0.1	0		0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0		0
Eremophila margarethae	0	0			0		0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0	3 0	0	0	0			0	0	01		0
Eremophila oppositifolia subsp. angustifolia	0	0			0		0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0.1		0
Eremophila pantonii	0	0			0		0	0		1	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila pullonada subar, abullanada	0	0					0	0		1	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0		0
Eremophila phyliopoda subsp. phyliopoda	0	0				0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx	0	0			0	0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	2	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila punicea	0	0	0 0		0	0	1	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila spathulata	0	0.1	1 0	) 1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	2 3	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila spuria	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eremophila subfloccosa subsp. lanata	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0.1	1 1	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne flaccida	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne helmsii	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne lanata	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne mucronata	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	1	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus carnei	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0 0	3	3 0	0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus lucasii	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 4	3	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus socialis subsp. eucentrica	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus striaticalyx	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Eucalyptus trivalva	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0 0	3	3 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Euphorbia boophthona	0	0.1	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Exocarpos aphyllus	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Frankenia laxiflora	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 2	1	2 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Glycine canescens	0		0 0		0	n	0	0		0	0 0	n	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0	0			n	0	0	0 0	0
Grevillea herryana	0	0				0	0	0		0		0	01	0			0	2	0		0	01	0 0	0	0	0 2	2	0	0 2	0	1	0			1	0	0	2 0	2
Grevillea defleva	0	0		, 0			0	0		0		0	0.1	0			0	2	0		0	0.1		0	0		0	0		0	0	0			1	0	0	2 0	0
Gravillag inconspicus	0						0			0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0		0
Grevillea nomatonhulla suber successioner	0	4					0	0		0	0 0		0	0				0	0				0.1 0	0	0			0		0	0	0			0	0	0	0 0	
Grevillea stopostachuz	0						0	0		0	0 0	0	0					U	0		0		0 0	0	0		0	0		0	0				0	U	0		
Grevillea stenostacnya	0	U	0 0		0	0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	U			0	0	U	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	U		0	0		0	U	0 0	0.1 0		0	0	U	0 0	0
Grevillea striata	0	U	0 0	v   0	0	0	0	0	υΙΟ	0	U   0	0	0	U	υΙΟ	1   U	0	0	0	υ   Ο	0	0	0 0	0	U	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	U	0	υι	0 0	0	0	U	0 0	U





NAME	WREIA95	WREIA96	WREIA97	WKEIA98 WREIA99		WRE2115	WRE2116	WRE2117	WRE2118 WRE2119	WRE2120	WRE2121	WRE2122	WRE2124	WRE2125	WRE2126	WRE2127	WRE2128	WRE2129 WRE2130	WRE2131	WRE2132	WRE2133	WRE2134	WRE2135	WRE2137	WRE2138	WRE2139 WRE2140	WRE2141	WRE2142	WRE2143 WRE7144	WRE2145	WRE2146	WRE2147	WRE2148	WRE2149	WREZI5U WRE2151	WRE2152	WRE2153	WRE2154	WRE2156	WRE2157
Hakea preissii	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 C	) 0
Hakea recurva subsp. arida	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 0	0	1	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	.1 0	0	0	0	0 C	) 0
Tecticornia doleiformis	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens	0	0	0 (	0 0		0 0	0	0	0 2	0.1	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 C	) 0
Tecticornia indica subsp. leiostachya	0	0	0 (	0 0		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 C	) O
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	0	0	0 (	o c		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 C	0 0
Heliotropium ovalifolium	0	0	0 (	o c		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
Hemiaenia tysonii	0	0	0 0	o (		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Hibiscus burtonii	0	1	0 (	0 0		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Hibiscus coatesii	0	0	0 (	0 0		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii	0.1	0	0.1 (			0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	2 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Indiaofera monophylla	2	0	0 (			0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	$\frac{1}{2}$	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Lawrencia chrysoderma	0	0	0 (			0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	$\frac{1}{2}$	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Lawrencia densiflora	0	0	0 0				0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0			0	0	0 0	
Lentomeria preissiana	0	0	0 0				0	0	0 3	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0			0	0	0 0	
Maireana annressa	0	0	0 0				0	0	0 0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0			0	0	0 0	
Maireana carnosa	0	0	0 0				0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0	0 0	<u> </u>			0			
Maireana aeoraei	0	0	1			1 0	0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0		2	01		0	01	0	0	$\frac{1}{1}$			0	0		
Maireana alomerifolia	0	0	0 0				0	1	0 0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0		0	0.1		0	0.1	0	0 (				0			
Maireana Johiflora	0	0					0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0					0			
Maireana melanocoma	0	0			$\frac{1}{1}$		0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0					0			
Maireana planifolia	0	0					0	0	0 0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0					0		0 0	
Maireana platucarna	0	0					0	0	0 0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0					0			
Maireana thosioides	0	0					0	0		0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0					0			
Maireana tomontosa	0	0					0	0	0 0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0		0	0		0	0	0					0			
Maireana trintora	0	0					0	0	0 0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0		0.1 (				0			
Maireana triptera	0	0					0	0	0 0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0 0		0			
Malalaura staroonblaia	0	0					0	0	0 0	01	1			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0					0			
Melaleuca stereophiola	0	0					0	0	0 2	0.1	1			0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			<u> </u>		0		0 0	
Micromyrtus placolaes	0	0	0 0			0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		5 0	0	0	0	0 0	
Micromyrtus sulphured	0	0	0 0			0 0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		5 0	0	0	0	0 0	
Mirbella rhagodioides	0	0	0 0				0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0		1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		$\frac{1}{2}$	0	0	0	0 0	
Monachather paradoxus	0	0	0 0			) 1	2	0	0 0	1	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	2	1	1 0	2	1	0	0 0		$\frac{J}{2}$	0	0	0	0 2	. 0
Muehlenbeckia florulenta	0	0	0 0			) ()	0	0	0 0	0	1	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1 0
Olearia plucheacea	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	) ()	0	0	1 0	0	0	0 (	) ()	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1 0
Olearia stuartii	0	0	0 (			) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	) ()	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()	0	0	1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1 0
Philotheca brucei subsp. brevifolia	0	0	0 0			) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (		$\frac{0}{0}$	0	0	0	0 0	1 0
Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 (	0	0	2 0	0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	2 0.	1 0	0	1 0	0	0.1	0	0 (	0 3	3 0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1
Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	2 (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1 0
Pittosporum angustifolium	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	) ()	0	0	0 3	0	0	1 (	) ()	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1 0
Pluchea dentex	0	1	0 (	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Prostanthera albiflora	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1 0
Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0.	.1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1 0
Prostanthera petrophila	0	0	0 (			0 0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 2	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Psydrax latifolia	0	0	0 (			0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	.1 0	0	0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0.1	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0.1	0 0	0	0	0.1	0 (	0 0	.1 0.1	1 0.1	. 0	0	0 0	) 0
Psydrax rigidula	0	1	0 (	0 0		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	) 1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Psydrax suaveolens	0	0	0.1 (	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0.1	0.1	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0.1	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0.	1 0
Ptilotus luteolus	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	1	0	0	0	2 2	0	0	0 0	0.1 (	0 0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Ptilotus beardii	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 0	0	2	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus	0	0	0 0			0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 3	3 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1 0
Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	<i>i</i> 0
Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus	2	3	2	2 1	L 🗋	1 1	1	0	3 0	0	0	2 4	1 3	1	3	3	4	0 0	2	0	1	2 0.	.1 1	0	3	4 4	1	2	3 1	0	3	1	3	2	1 0	0	0	4	2 0	0.1
Ptilotus rotundifolius	0	1	1 (	0 1	L (	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	1	0	0	0	1 0	0	2	0.1	0 0	3 3	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Ptilotus schwartzii	0	0	0 (	0 0		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0.1	0	0	0 0	0	0	1	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	1	1	0 0.	1 1	0	0.1	0	1 0	.1 1	2	0	0	2 0	0
Rhagodia eremaea	0	0	0 (	0 0		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 2	2 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 C	) 0
Santalum acuminatum	0	0	0 (	0 0		0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 C	) 0
Santalum spicatum	0	0.1	0 (	0 0		0 0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 C	) 0
Scaevola spinescens	0	0	0 (	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0 3	0.1	2	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1 (	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0





NAME	WREIA95	WREIA96	WREIA97	WREIA98	WREIA99	WRE210a	WRE2115	WRE2116	WRE2117	WRE2118	WRE2119	WRE2120	WRE2121	WRE2122	WRE2123	WRE2124	WRE2125	WRE2126	WRE2127	WRE2128	WRE2129	WRE2130	WRE2131	WRE2132	WRE2133	WRE2134	WRE2135	WRE2136	WRE2137	WRE2138	WRE2139	WRE2140	WREZ141	WINE2143	WIRE21AA	WINE2145	AVDED146	VVREZITU	WNR214/	WRE2149	W/RF2150	WRE2151	WRE2152	W/RF2153	WIRE2154	WRF2156	WRE2156	WRE2157
Sclerolaena densiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) O	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Sclerolaena diacantha	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	) O	0	<i>i</i> 0	0
Sclerolaena eriacantha	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	) (	) (	) (	) ()	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	) 0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 (	0.1	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	1	0	0	2	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	2	0.1	0	0	0 0	).1 (	) (	0	) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	) 0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. oligophylla	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0 (	) (	0	) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	) 0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) /	1 0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Senna glaucifolia	2	1	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	1	0.1	0.1	0	0	0	0 0	).1	1 (	) (		) 0.	1 (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0.1	1 0	i 2	. 0	) O	0	<i>i</i> 0	0
Senna sp. Austin (A. Strid 20210)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	) 0	0	0	0
Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	J 0.	.1 (	) O	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Senna stricta	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Sida calyxhymenia	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Sida cardiophylla	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Sida ectogama	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) O	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Sida fibulifera	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) O	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Sida sp. dark green fruit (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) (	) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	) 1	. (	) (	0 נ	0	0	1	. 2	. 0	1 2	0	0	1
Sida sp. Golden calyces pubescent (G.J. Leach 1966)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	0 נ	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0
Sida spodochroma	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) (	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Solanum ashbyae	1	0.1	0.1	0.1	1	0.1	2	0.1	0	1	0 0	0.1	0	1 0	).1	0	0 0	).1	1	1	0	0	2	1	0	0	0.1	1	0.1	1	1 0	).1	1 1	0.	1 0.	1 2	1	1 (	) 1	. 0	0	0	0	0	1 2	1	. 1	0.1
Solanum centrale	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	) (	) (	) (	0 נ	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Solanum ellipticum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0.	1 0.	1 (	) (	0 נ	0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Solanum ferocissimum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) O	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Spartothamnella teucriiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) O	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Stenanthemum patens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (		) (	) (	) (	) O	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Stenanthemum petraeum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	) (	) (	) (	0 נ	0.1	1 0	3	, 0	0	0 1	0	0	0
Thryptomene decussata	0	0	0	0.1	0	0.1	0	0	1	3	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	2	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0 0	) 4	0.	1 0	) 2	2 (	0 נ	0	0	3	, 1	. 0	) 0	2	. 0	0
Tribulus suberosus	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0 0	) 0		) (	1 1	1 (	0 נ	0	0	, 0	, 0	0	) 0	0	1 0	0
Zygophyllum aurantiacum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	) (	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	) 0	0	0	0





NAME	WRE2158	WRE2159	WRE2160	WRE2161		WRE2164	WRE2165	WRE2166	WRE2167	WRE2168	WRE2169 WRE2170	WRE2171	WRE2172	WRE2173	WRE2174	WRE2175	WRE2176 WRF2177	WRE2178	WRE2179	WRE2180	WRE2181 WRE2182	WRE2183	HR01	HR02	HR03 HR04	HR05	HR06	HR07	HR09	HR11 HR11	HR12	HR13	HR14	HR15 UB16	HK16	HR1/ HR18	HR19	HR21	HR23a	HR23b	HR26
Abutilon macrum	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0
Abutilon otocarpum	0	0	0	0 0	)   (	0 0	0	0	1	0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()
Abutilon oxycarpum	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 2	2 0	0	0	1	1 (	0	0 0	0	0.1	0	0 (	) 1
Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0
Acacia aff. oswaldii	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) O
Acacia aff. quadrimarginea	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	) ()
Acacia aneura var. aneura	4	1	2	1 1	L   3	3 3	3	3	0	4	0 2	3	3	2	3	3	0 3	3 3	3	3	0 3	0	3	3 3	3 0	0.1	l 0.1	3	2	3 3	2	3	3	3 2	2	1 1	3	2	0	0 7	3 3
Acacia aneura var. argentea	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0.1	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	3 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) O
Acacia aneura var. conifera	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0
Acacia aneura var. fuliginea	0	0	0	0 0	)   (	0 0	0	0	0	2	0   0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()
Acacia burkittii	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()
Acacia cockertoniana	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0.1	1 0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()
Acacia effusifolia	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()
Acacia craspedocarpa	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	1	0.1 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()
Acacia cuthbertsonii subsp. cuthbertsonii	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	2	0	0 (	) ()
Acacia exocarpoides	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	1	0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()
Acacia grasbyi	0	0	0.1	0 0	) 3	3 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0	0 0	).1	0 0	) 3	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	2	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()
Acacia minyura	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	).1	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	) 0
Acacia murrayana	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0.1 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0
Acacia pruinocarpa	2	0.1	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0.1	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0 0	1	0	0	2 (	) 1	2	0	2	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) 2
Acacia quadrimarginea	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0 0	.1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	0	0	1	2 0	) (	) 0	1	1	0	0	0 2	0.1	0	0	3	2	0 4	1 0	0	0	0 0	0	1	1 4	4 2	2	1	0	3 3	3 3	0	3	3	3 2	2	0 4	0	2	2	1	2 3
Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0
Acacia rhodophloia	0	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	1	0	0	0 (	) 1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0
Acacia sibirica	0	2	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	0	0	3	3 3	3 (	) 0	0	1	4	0	3 3	0	0	0	3	2	0 0	) 2	0	3	2 3	0	0	0 (	) 3	3	0	0	0 (	0 (	0	0	0	2 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0
Acacia speckii	0	0	2	2 2		) 3	0	0	2	0	$\frac{2}{2}$ 1	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	2 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Acacia tetragonophylia	1	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0			. 0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0		. 0	0	0	0 0		1	0.1	0			$\frac{1}{0}$	0	0	0	0.1 0	0
	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0				0	0			0	0	0				0	0	0		
Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0 0		0	0	0				0	0	0		0
Aluta aspera subsp. nesperia	1	0	0				0	0	0	0		4	1	0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0.0			0	0			0	0.1	0					0	0		
Atriplex bumbulyunu	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0				0	0			0	0	0					0	0		
Attriplex numinuland	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0				0	0			0	0	0					0	0		
Attiplex seminaria	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0			0	0		0	0				0	0			0	0	0					0	0		
Austrostina elegantissima	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0				0	0			0	0	0				0	0	0		
Austrostipa scabra	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0			0	0		0	0				0	0			0	0	0					0			
Racked sn Melita Station (H. Dringle 2738)	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	2	0	0			0	0		0	0				0	0			0	0	0					0	0		
Beraia nerennis subsn exigua	0	0	0				0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0			0	0			0	0	0					0			
Brachychiton areaorii	0	0	0	0 0			0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	$\frac{1}{2}$		0	0	0 0		0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0	0	
Calvtrix desolata	0	0	0	0 0		) 0	0	0	0	0	3 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	) 3	0	0	0	0 (	$\frac{1}{2}$	0	0	0		0	0 0	0	0	0	0	$\frac{1}{2}$
Cheilanthes lasiophylla	0	0	0	0 0		0.1	. 0	0.1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	0	0	0	0 0		) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Chenopodium gaudichaudianum	0	0	0	0 0		) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 C
Chorizema genistoides	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	) 2	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 C
Corymbia lenziana	0	0	0	0 0		) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	0 C
Cratystylis subspinescens	0	0	0	0 0		) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	0 C
Cymbopogon ambiguus	0	0	0	0 2	2 (	) 1	0	0	0	0	0 3	0	0	0	0	0	1 0	) 1	0	0.1 (	0.1 0	0	0	0 (	) 2	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	0 C
Dianella revoluta var. divaricata	0	0	0	0 0	) (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	) O
Dodonaea amplisemina	0	0	0	0.1 2	2 (	) 0	0	0	0	0	1 2	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0 (	) 1	. 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	) O
Dodonaea pachyneura	0	0	0	0 0		0 (	0	0	0	2	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	3	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	) O
Dodonaea petiolaris	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	1 0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	2 (	0.1 (	) 2	0	0	0	2 (	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	) O
Dodonaea rigida	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	) O
Dodonaea viscosa subsp. angustissima	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	2 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	) O
Duperreya commixta	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	) O
Enchylaena tomentosa	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0.1	0 0	.1	0 0	0	0	0	0	) 0.1
Enneapogon caerulescens	0	0	2	1 0	) (	) 1	0	1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	) 0





NAME	WRE2158	WRE2159	WRE2160 WRE2161	WRE2162	WRE2163	WRE2164	WRE2165	WRE2167	WRE2168	WRE2169	WRE2170	WRE2172	WRE2173	WRE2174	WRE2175	WRE2176	WRE2177 WPE2178	WRE2179	WRE2180	WRE2181	WKEZ182 M/RF2183	HR01	HR02	HR03 HR04	HRO5	HR06	HR07 HR09	HR10	HR11	HR12	HR13	HR14 HR15	HR16	HR17	HR18	HR19 HR21	HR23a	HR23b	HR25	HR26
Enneapogon cylindricus	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1	0.1 0	0	0.1	0.1	0 0	/ 0	0	0	0
Eragrostis australasica	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	/ 0	0	0	0
Eragrostis eriopoda	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1	0 0	0   0	0 0	0	0	0   0	2	1	0 0	1	0	0 0.1	0	0	1	2	0 0	2	1	0	0 0	1 3	1	0	2
Eragrostis setifolia	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0
Eremophila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	<i>i</i> 0	0	0	0
Eremophila clarkei	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1 3	, 0	0	0	0
Eremophila compacta subsp. compacta	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0	0	0
Eremophila compacta subsp. fecunda	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0
Eremophila exilifolia	0	0	0 1	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	3 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0
Eremophila falcata	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0
Eremophila foliosissima	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0
Eremophila forrestii	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 3	3 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	1 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	2	0	2 1	3	0	0	1	3 2	3	0	3	0 0	0 0	0	2	3
Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0
Eremophila galeata	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	$\frac{1}{0}$	0	0	0
Eremophila georgei	3	0	0 0	0	1	0	0 0	) 2	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 3	3 0	0.1	0		0	1	0 0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	1 0.1	1	0	0	0 0	$\overline{)}$	0	0	2
Eremophila alabra subsp. alabra	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0
Fremophila alabra subsp. tomentosa	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0		) 0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0
Eremophila alutinosa	0	0	$\frac{1}{1}$ 1	3	3	0	3 0	) 0	3	0	0 0	0	0	0	3	0	2 0	1 0	3	1		n n	0	0 0	01	0	1 0	0	0	0	0	0.1 1	0	0	0	0 0	<u>, 1 n</u>	0	0	0
Eremophila granitica	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	) 0	0	0		01	0	0 0	0	0	0 3	3		0	1	1 1	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	1
Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	0	0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	0	0			0	0		0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	01	0		1 3	0		0
Eremophila latrohei subsp. jucunau	0	0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0			0		0
Eremophila latrobei subsp. Jiljonnis	2	0		0	2	0	2 0		0	0	1 0	1 3	0	0	2			$\frac{1}{1}$	0	0		0	01	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0 0			0	0	0
Eremophila longifolia	0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0 0			0	0		0	0.1	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0
Eremophila mackinlavi subsp. spathulata	0	0		2	0	0			0	0	3 0	0	0	0	0				0	2		0	0	0 1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0
Eremophila macmillaniana	0	0		0	0	3		) 4	0	2	2 0	0	0	2	0				0	0		0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0
Eremophila maculata subsp. bravifalia	0	0		0	0	3			0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0
Eremophila margarethae	0	1		0	0	0			2	0		0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0
Eremophila oppositifolia subsp. angustifolia	0	0		0	0	0			2	0		0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0
Eremophila pantonii	0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0		0
Eremophila pullonada suben abullanada	0	0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0				0	0
Eremophila platucalux subsp. platucalux	0	0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0
Eremophila punisoa	0	0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0
Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans	0	0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	2 0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	01	0	0	1 0			0	0
Eremophila sinularis subsp. sinularis	0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	3 0	0	0	3 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0				0	0
Eremophila sputitulata	0	0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0
Eremophila subflococca, subsp. Japata	0	0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0			0	0	0
Eremophila subjioccosa subsp. ianata	0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0
	0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	2	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0
Eriachne lenete	0	0		0	0	0			0	0		1	2	0	0	2 1			0	0		0	1	0 0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0
Eriachne ianata	0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0				0	0		0	1	2 0	1	0	0 0	0	2	0	0	1 3	1	0	1	0 1		0	0	2
Eriachne mucronata	0	0		0	0	0			0	0		0	0	0	1				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0 0		0	0	0
Eriachne puichella subsp. puichella	0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0				0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0
Eucalyptus carnel	0	0		0	0	0			0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0
Eucalyptus Iucasii	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0
Eucalyptus socialis subsp. eucentrica	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0			0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0
Eucalyptus striaticalyx	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0
Eucalyptus trivalva	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0
Euphorbia boophthona	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0
Exocarpos aphyllus	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0		) () )	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0
Frankenia laxiflora	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	, 0	0	0	0
Glycine canescens	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	) ()	0	0		0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0
Grevillea berryana	2	0	0 0	0	1	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0.	1 0	0	0 0.	1 1	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0.1	0	0	0	1 0	0	0	0	0
Grevillea deflexa	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	, 0	0	0	0
Grevillea inconspicua	0	0	0 0	2	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0.1	2 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 2	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0
Grevillea nematophylla subsp. supraplana	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0
Grevillea stenostachya	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	1 0.1	1 0	0	0.1 0	0	0	0	0	0.1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0
Grevillea striata	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0   0	0	0	0   0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0





NAME	WRE2158	WRE2159	WRE2160	TOTZIUM	WRE2162 WRE2163	WRE2164	WRE2165	WRE2166	WRE2167 WRE2168	WRE2169	WRE2170 WRE2171	WRE2172	WRE2173	WRE2174	WRE2175	WREZ170 WRE2177	WRE2178	WRE2179	WRE2180	WRE2181 WRE2182	WRE2183	HR01	HR02 HR03	HR04	HR05	HR06 HR07	HR09	HR10	HR11 HR12	HR13	HR14	HR15	HK16	HK1/ HR18	HR19	HR21	HR23a	HR23b HR75	HR26
Hakea preissii	0	0	1 (	)   (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()
Hakea recurva subsp. arida	0	0	0 0	)   (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()
Tecticornia doleiformis	0	0	0 0	)   (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0
Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Tecticornia indica subsp. leiostachya	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	2	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0.1 0	0	0	0 2	0	0	0 0	0	0	3 (	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Heliotropium ovalifolium	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Hemigenia tysonii	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 C	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Hibiscus burtonii	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0 0	0	0	1 (	0 /	0 1	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Hibiscus coatesii	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	1 /	0 0	0	1	0	0 0	0 (
Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	2 0	0	0 0	0	0	1	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Indigofera monophylla	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Lawrencia chrysoderma	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Lawrencia densiflora	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) O
Leptomeria preissiana	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Maireana appressa	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Maireana carnosa	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Maireana georgei	0	0	4 1	L   (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0 (	0.1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 0	.1 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Maireana glomerifolia	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Maireana lobiflora	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Maireana melanocoma	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Maireana planifolia	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Maireana platycarpa	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 1	0 0	0	0	1	0 1	. 0
Maireana thesioides	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	.1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
Maireana tomentosa	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
Maireana triptera	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
, Maireana villosa	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0.1	. 0	0	0 0	).1 /	0 0	1	2	0	0 0.	.1 1
Melaleuca stereophloia	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
Micromyrtus placoides	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	3	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
Micromyrtus sulphurea	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 1	1 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
Mirbelia rhagodioides	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	2 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0.1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
Monachather paradoxus	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0 0	2	3	2 0	0	1	3	2 0	.1 2	0.1	1	0	3 2	2 2
Muehlenbeckia florulenta	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
Olearia plucheacea	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
Olearia stuartii	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0
Philotheca brucei subsp. brevifolia	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei	0	0	0 (		0 2	0	0	0	0 2	0	1 0	0	0	0	0 2	2 0	1	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	1	0.1	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Pittosporum angustifolium	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Pluchea dentex	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Prostanthera albiflora	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Prostanthera petrophila	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	2	0	0 1	0	1 0	0	0	0	2 2	2 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Psydrax latifolia	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0.1	1	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 1	0	1	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0	1	1 (	0 (	0 0	0	2	0	0 0	) 1
Psydrax rigidula	0	0	0.1 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0.1	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0.1	0.1	0.1	1 (	0 /	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 1
Psydrax suaveolens	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0.1	0	0 0	).1 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 1
Ptilotus luteolus	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Ptilotus beardii	0	0	0 (	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus	0	0	0 (		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus	0	0	0 (	)   (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus	2	3	1 2	2 4	4 1	1	0	3	1 2	1	1 0	0	0	0	1 3	3 0	3	2	2	1 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	1 1	0	3	1 2	2	3	0 0	0 0	.1 0	0	2	0	0 1	2
Ptilotus rotundifolius	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) O
Ptilotus schwartzii	2	0	0 0		0 0	0	2	1	0 2	0	0 0	0.1	0	0	1 (	0 0	0	0	0.1	0 1	2	0	0 1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 1	0	0	0 0	0	2 0	0.1	0	0	2 0	0 (
Rhagodia eremaea	0	0	0 1		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0.1 0	1	1	1 0	1	0	0 0	0 1	0 0.1	L 0	0	0	0 0	0 (
Santalum acuminatum	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) O
Santalum spicatum	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	1	0.1	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0 1	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) O
Scaevola spinescens	0	0	0 0		0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0
																											_		-										





NAME	WRE2158	WRE2159	WRE2160	WRE2161	WRE2162	WRE2163	WRE2164	WRE2165	WRE2166	WRE2167	WRE2168	WRE2169	WRE2170	WRE2171	WRE2172	WRE2173	WRE2174	WRE2175	WRE2176	WRE2177	WRE2178	WRE2179	WRE2180	WRE2181	WRE2182	WRE2183	HR01	HR02	HR03	HK04	HROG	HR07	HR09	HR10	HR11	HR12	HR13	HR14	HR15	HR16	HR17	HR18	HR19	HR21	HR23a	HR23b	HR25	HR26
Sclerolaena densiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sclerolaena diacantha	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sclerolaena eriacantha	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	0	0	0.1	3	2	0	0	0	1	1	0	2	2	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	1	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	1	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. oligophylla	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	.1 (	) (	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	.1 (	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	1 (	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna glaucifolia	0	0	3	1	3	0	1	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	3	0	0	0	0	1 2	2 0	0	0	1	1	0	1	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1
Senna sp. Austin (A. Strid 20210)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna stricta	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida calyxhymenia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida cardiophylla	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	2	0	0	2	0.1	0	0	2	0.1	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida ectogama	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0   0	0 0.	1 0	0	2	0	0.1	0	0	1	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1
Sida fibulifera	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0   0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida sp. dark green fruit (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0   0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida sp. Golden calyces pubescent (G.J. Leach 1966)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0
Sida spodochroma	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Solanum ashbyae	1	2	0.1	2	0	0.1	1	1	1	0	0	0	1	0.1	1	0.1	1	1	0	1	1	1	1	0	1	0.1	2	0	0	0 0	1 0.	1 0	3	3	2	2	2	2	2	1	0.1	1	1	1	0.1	0	0	2
Solanum centrale	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Solanum ellipticum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Solanum ferocissimum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0   0	0   0	0	1	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Spartothamnella teucriiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0   0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0.1
Stenanthemum patens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Stenanthemum petraeum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Thryptomene decussata	3	1	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	1	0	0	2	3	1	0	2	3	0	1	3	1	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Tribulus suberosus	0	0	1	1	0.1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Zygophyllum aurantiacum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0





NAME	HR27	HR28	HR29	HR30	MWD01	MWD02	BPC01	BPC02	BPC03	BPC04	BPC05	BPC06	BPC07	BPC08	BPC09	BPC10	BPE01	BPE02	BPE03	BPE05	BPE06	BPE07	BPE09	BPE12	BPE14a	BPE14b	BPE15	BPE16	BPW01	BPW02	BPW03	BPW04	BPW05	BPW06	BPW07	BPW08	BPW09	BPW10 BPW13
Abutilon macrum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Abutilon otocarpum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Abutilon oxycarpum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0 0
Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia aff. oswaldii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia aff. auadrimarainea	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia aneura var. aneura	2	2	0	2	3	0	3	0	2	0	0	0	2	0	2	0	0	3	0	0	0	0 2	1	3	1	0	0	0	0.1	2	2	2	3	1	2	1	3	0 0
Acacia aneura var. argenteg	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia aneura var. conifera	0	0	0	0	3	0	3	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia aneura var. fuliginea	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia burkittii	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	2	4	0	0	0	0	2	3	0	0	2	0	0	0 2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia cockertoniana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	2	3	3	4	1	2	3	3 2
Acacia effusifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia craspedocarpa	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0 2	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia cuthbertsonii subsp. cuthbertsonii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia exocarpoides	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia arashvi	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia minyura	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia murrayana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	01	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia pruipocarna	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	2	01	0	0	0	01	1	0	0	0 2		0	2	0	0	0	0	01	0	0	2		0	0	0	0 1
Acacia guadrimarainea	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0		0	0	0	0 0
Acacia ramulosa var linonhylla	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	1	01	0	0	3	3	0	0	0	2 0		2	2	3	0	3	0	3	0	0	0		0	0	3	3 0
Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0 0		1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0 0
Acacia rhodophloia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0 0
Acacia sibirica	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia spinica Acacia sp. Weld Bange (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	0	1	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	0	1	0	0	0	0 2
Acacia speckii	0	- 1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3 (		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Acacia specifi Acacia tetragononhylla	0	2	0	1	0	01	01	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	01	0	2	0	0	0 1	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
	0	0	0	0	0	1	0.1	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0.1	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Allocasuaring acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Alluta aspera subsp. hesperia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		2	4	0	0 0
Atrinley hunhurvana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0 0
Atriplex pumpularia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0 0
Atriplex semiluparis	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		2	0	0	0	01	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0 0
Atriplex vesicaria	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0 0
Austrostina elegantissima	0	0	0	0	01	0	0	01	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Austrostina scabra	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Bergia perennis subsp. evigua	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0 0
Brachychiton areaorii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0 0
Calutrix desolata	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Cheilanthes lasionhylla	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 (		0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Cheilanthes sieheri, subsp. sieheri	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 (		0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 1
Chenopodium aaudichaudianum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Chorizema aenistoides	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Corymbia lenziana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Cratystylis subsninescens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Cymbopogon ambiguus	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1 (		0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Dianella revoluta var. divaricata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	)   0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Dodongeg ampliseming	0	1	01	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0		0	0	0	0	0	0	n	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Dodonaca nachyneura	0	1	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		2	0	0	0	0	0	0	01	01	0	0		0	0		0 0
Dodongeg netiolaris	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Dodonaea riaida	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		) 0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	1	0	2	0	0	0	
Dodonaea viscosa subsp. anaustissima	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	<u> </u>	0	<u>د</u>	0	0	0	
Duperreva commixta	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	01	0	0	0		
Enchylaena tomentosa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0	0 4	01	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	
Energingen caprulascons	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	2	2	0		0.1	0	0			0	0	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Lineupoyon cuerulescens	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	3	3	3	U	U	U	U	U	υl	, 0	0		U	U	۷ ا	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	U	0 0





NAME	HR27	HR28	HR29	HR30	MWD01	MWD02	BPC01	BPC02	BPC03	BPC04		BPCUB	BPCU/	BPCU8	BPC09	BPE01	RDE02	BPE03	<b>BPE05</b>	BPE06	BPE07	BPE08	BPE09	BPE12 BDE143	BPE14b	BPE15	BPE16	BPW01	BPW02	BPW03	BPW04	BPW05	BPW06	BPW07	BPW08	BPW09	BPW10 BPW13
Enneapogon cylindricus	0	0	1	0	0	3	0.1	3	1	1 2	2 0	.1 (	) (	0 0	0 0	) 1	0	) 0	0	0	2	0	1	0 0	) 0	0.2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eragrostis australasica	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	) (	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eragrostis eriopoda	2	1	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 2	1	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	2 0.	1 0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eragrostis setifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	) (	0	2 (	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0.1	0 0
Eremophila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0		0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila clarkei	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0 0		0	0 0	0 0	1	LO	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila compacta subsp. compacta	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0		0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila compacta subsp. fecunda	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0 0		0	0 0	0 0	C	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila exilifolia	0	2	3	1	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	) (	0 0	0 0	) 1	0	) 0	0	0	2	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Fremophila falcata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0 0	) (	0 0	)	2 1	0 0	0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Fremophila foliosissima	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0					0 0		$\frac{1}{2}$	0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Fremonhila forrestii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0				)			$\frac{1}{2}$	0		0	0	0	0	0	1 (		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 0
Fremonhila forrestii subsp. forrestii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0				2 1		0 0	$\frac{1}{2}$	4	1 0	0	1	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	2	1	1	01	1	01	0	0	3	0 2
Eremonhila fraseri subsp. fraseri	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0										0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0 0
Eremonhila galeata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0										0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0 0
Eremonhila georgei	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0										01	0.1	0	0	0			0	0	2	0	0	01	2	0	0		0	
Fremophila alabra subsp. alabra	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0				$\frac{1}{2}$						0.1	0.1	0	0	0		, <u> </u>	0	0	<u>د</u>	0	0	0.1	<u>د</u>	0	0	0	0	
Fremonhila alabra subsp. glubiu	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0										0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Fremonhila alutinosa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0											0	0	0	0	0		, <u> </u>	0	0	1	0	01	2	01	0	01	0	2	
Eremophila granitica	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0											0	0	0	0	0			0	0	1	0	0.1	2	0.1	0	0.1		2	
Eremophila jugunda subsp. jugunda	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0										01	0	0	0	0		1 0	0	0	0	0	01	0	0	1	0	1	0	$\frac{0}{0}$ $\frac{1}{1}$
Eremophila Jacanda Subsp. Jacanda	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0										0.1	0	0	0	0	0 0.		0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	1	0			
Eremophila latrobel subsp. Jilijormis	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0											0	0	0	0	0			0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	
Eremophila latrobel subsp. latrobel	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0.1 0					0.1 0.	.1 0			0.1	0	0	3	2	2 0.	1 0	0	0	0.1	0.1	2	2	0.1	1	2	0	2	0 2
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0							0 1			0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0							0 0	0	) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila macmillaniana	0	0	3	1	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (				0 (	) ()	0	) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0			2 (		0 0	0.1 (	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila margarethae	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0							0 0	0	) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0 0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila oppositifolia subsp. angustifolia	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	) (	0 0	0 0	) ()	0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila pantonii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	) (	0 0	0 0	) ()	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila phyllopoda subsp. phyllopoda	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	) (	0 0	0 0	) ()	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	) (	0 (	0 0	) 0.1	1 0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0.1	0 0	) 0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila punicea	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) (	0 (	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	C	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (		0	0 0	0 0	C	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	2	1 0
Eremophila spathulata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (		0	0 0	0 0	C	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila spuria	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (		0	0 0	0 0	C	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eremophila subfloccosa subsp. lanata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (		0	0 0	0 0	C	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eriachne flaccida	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eriachne helmsii	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eriachne lanata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0.	.1 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 2	2 0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eriachne mucronata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 (	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	)   C	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	1	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 2
Eucalyptus carnei	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0   0	)   C	0   0	0   0	0   0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eucalyptus lucasii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	)   (	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eucalyptus socialis subsp. eucentrica	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0   0	)   C	0   0	0   0	0   0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0   0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eucalyptus striaticalyx	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	) i	1	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Eucalyptus trivalva	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	) (	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Euphorbia boophthona	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	) (	0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Exocarpos aphyllus	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	) (	0	0 0.	.1 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Frankenia laxiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	0 0	0	) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Glycine canescens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	o l i	0 0	0 0	0 0	0	0 (	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Grevillea berryana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0		0 0	0 1	1 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	1	0	1	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Grevillea deflexa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0	2	0	0 0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Grevillea inconspicua	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (	0 0		0 0	0 0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Grevillea nematophylla subsp. supraplana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) (			0	0 0	0 0		) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Grevillea stenostachva	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0				0		) 0		) ()	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
Grevillea striata	0	0	0	0	2	0	0.1	0	0	0 0			) (	0	0 0	0 0	0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	) 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0
		-	-	-		-			1			`			_ <b>`</b>		ľ		, <sup>,</sup>	1 -	-	-	-	`	1			-	-	-	-	-	-	-			





NAME	HR27	HR28	HR29	HR30	MWD01	MWD02	BPC01	BPC02	BPC03	BPC04	<b>BPC05</b>	BPC06	BPC07	BPC08	BPC09	BPC10	BPE01	BPE02	BPE03	<b>BPE05</b>	BPE06	BPE07	BPE08	BPE09	BPE12	BPE14a BPE14b	BPE15	BPE16	BPW01	BPW02	BPW03	BPW04	BPW05	BPW06	BPW07	BPW08	BPW09	BPW10	BPW13
Hakea preissii	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Hakea recurva subsp. arida	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Tecticornia doleiformis	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Tecticornia indica subsp. leiostachya	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Heliotropium ovalifolium	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Hemiaenia tysonii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0
Hibiscus burtonii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Hibiscus coatesii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Indiaofera mononhylla	0	01	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	a	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Lawrencia chrysoderma	0	0	0	0	0	01	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Lawrencia densiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	01	2	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Lentomeria preissiana	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Maireana annressa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Maireana carnosa	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		2 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
Maireana aeoraei	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	- 0 - 0	0		0
Maireana alomerifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0		2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Maireana lohiflora	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
Maireana melanocoma	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Maireana platycarpa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Maireana thesiolaes	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Maireana tomentosa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Maireana triptera	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Maireana villosa	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Melaleuca stereophloia	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Micromyrtus placoides	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Micromyrtus sulphurea	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Mirbelia rhagodioides	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Monachather paradoxus	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	3	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	3	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
Muehlenbeckia florulenta	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Olearia plucheacea	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Olearia stuartii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Philotheca brucei subsp. brevifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Pittosporum angustifolium	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Pluchea dentex	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Prostanthera albiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Prostanthera petrophila	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	1	0
Psydrax latifolia	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0
Psydrax rigidula	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0   0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Psydrax suaveolens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 (	J.1
Ptilotus luteolus	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ptilotus beardii	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0.1	0	0.1	0	2	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus	0	2	2	1	0	0	4	3	3	3	0	0	2	1	3	2	1	1	0.1	2	0	2	3	3	0	0 1	0	2	0	3	2	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ptilotus rotundifolius	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ptilotus schwartzii	2	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0 0	0	0	0	2	1	2	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	2
Rhaqodia eremaea	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	1	0.1	0	0	0	0	0.1	0 0	).1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0 0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Santalum acuminatum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Santalum spicatum	0	0.1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Scaevola spinescens	0	0	0	1	2	0	0	01	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0.1	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	L Č	Ĭ	Ĭ	-	-	, č	Ĭ			÷.+	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-·	-	- 0	Ĭ	, č	-		-	, č	Ĭ	Ĭ	Ĭ				-





NAME	HR27	HR28	HR29	HR30	MWD01	MWD02	BPC01	BPC02	BPC03	BPC04	BPC05	BPC06	BPC07	BPC08	BPC09	BPC10	BPE01	BPE02	BPE03	<b>BPE05</b>	BPE06	BPE07	BPE08	BPE09	BPE12	BPE14a	BPE14b	BPE15	BPE16	BPW01	BPW02	BPW03	BPW04	BPW05	BPW06	BPW07	BPW08	BPW09	BPW10	BPW13
Sclerolaena densiflora	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sclerolaena diacantha	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	2	0	1	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sclerolaena eriacantha	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	0.1	1	3	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	1	0	0	2	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. oligophylla	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	3	1	2	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna glaucifolia	0.1	2	1	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	2	0.1	0.1	0.1	0	0	0	0	2
Senna sp. Austin (A. Strid 20210)	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)	0	0	0	1	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Senna stricta	0	0	0	1	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	2	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida calyxhymenia	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida cardiophylla	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	1	0	0.1	0	0	1	0
Sida ectogama	0	1	0.1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	1	0	0	3	0.1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida fibulifera	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida sp. dark green fruit (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	2	2	2	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida sp. Golden calyces pubescent (G.J. Leach 1966)	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Sida spodochroma	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Solanum ashbyae	2	0	1	1	0	2	0.1	0	0	0.1	0	0	2	1	1	1	0	1	0.1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	1	0	2	0.1	1	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0.1
Solanum centrale	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Solanum ellipticum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Solanum ferocissimum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Spartothamnella teucriiflora	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Stenanthemum patens	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Stenanthemum petraeum	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Thryptomene decussata	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0
Tribulus suberosus	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Zygophyllum aurantiacum	0	0	0	0	0	0.1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0





# APPENDIX H VEGETATION MAPS AT HIGHER RESOLUTION



Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment



1 and 2	Acacia aneura low woodland over mixed open shrubs.
3а	+/- Corymbia lenziana scattered medium trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and Acacia aneura sparse shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. open shrubland over scattered low shrubs of Ptilotus obovatus over open tussock grasses.
3b	+/- Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over A. aneura woodland over A. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. closed shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.
3c	Scattered Eucalyptus mallees / trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Rhagodia eremaea, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.
3d	Acacia aneura and Acacia cockertoniana open tall shrubland over Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans and Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia low open shrubland.
4a	Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. aneura var. microcarpa open tall shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and mixed Senna spp. open mid shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.
4Б	Acacia sp. Weld Range and Acacia speckii shrubland over mixed Senna spp. sparse shrubland over Grevillea inconspicua and Dodonaea amplisemina open shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus sparse tussock grassland.
5a	Acacia craspedocarpa tall shrubland over Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum and Ptilotus obovatus low shrubland over mixed low tussock grassland.
5b	+/- Grevillea striata low isolated trees over Acacia craspedocarpa and A. aneura tall open shrubland over Scaevola spinescens sparse mid shrubland over Austrostipa elegantissima and Eriachne flaccida low open tussock grassland.
6a	Scattered Acacia shrubs over mixed Senna spp. open mid shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus sparse shrubland over mixed Maireana spp. chenopod shrubla
6b	Scattered mixed Acacia spp. over Rhagodia eremaea and Scaevola spinescens sparse mid to low shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georg and Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland.
6c	Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia low open shrubland over Sclerolaena diacantha low chenopod shrubland over Enneapogon cylindricus low tussock grassland.
7a	Melaleuca stereophloia and Cratystylis subspinescens low shrubland over Tecticornia spp. low samphire shrubland over Frankenia laxiflora low shrubland.
7b	Eucalyptus carnei and Eucalyptus trivalva woodland over Cratystylis subspinescens and Muehlenbeckia florulenta low sparse shrubland over mixed low tussock grasses.
 Map Vie	wer mixed low tussock grasses.

• Figure G.1: Legend for Vegetation Communities.















This page intentionally left blank.











000 I	
1	
ł	
2	
+	
155	
	3 5 1
1 200	
2M	2
	-C.R.
JA A	TIM
+	
D	theme
	20001
To	
2/2	N my K
re: G.4	Drawn: SG
ect ID: 722	Date: 04/11/09
ate System GDA 1994 MGA Zone 50 on: Trapsverse Mercetor	Unique Map ID: S058
GDA 1994	A3













## APPENDIX I EXPLANATION OF CONSERVATION CODES





).
•

Code	Definition
PD: Presumed Totally Destroyed	An ecological community that has been adequately searched for but for which no representative occurrences have been located. The community has been found to be totally destroyed or so extensively modified throughout its range that no occurrence of it is likely to recover its species composition and/or structure in the foreseeable future. An ecological community will be listed as presumed totally destroyed if there are no recent records of the community being extant and one of two conditions (A or B) apply.
CR: Critically Endangered	An ecological community that has been adequately surveyed and found to have been subject to a major contraction in area and/or that was originally of limited distribution and is facing severe modification or destruction throughout its range in the immediate future, or is already severely degraded throughout its range but capable of being substantially restored or rehabilitated. An ecological community will be listed as <i>Critically Endangered</i> when it has been adequately surveyed and is found to be facing an extremely high risk of total destruction in the immediate future. This is determined on the basis of the best available information and by it meeting one or more of three criteria (not included here).
EN: Endangered	An ecological community that has been adequately surveyed and found to have been subject to a major contraction in area and/or was originally of limited distribution and is in danger of significant modification throughout its range or severe modification or destruction over most of its range in the near future. An ecological community will be listed as <i>Endangered</i> when it has been adequately surveyed and is not Critically Endangered but is facing a very high risk of total destruction in the near future. This is determined on the basis of the best available information and by it meeting one or more of three criteria (not included here).
VU: Vulnerable	An ecological community that has been adequately surveyed and is found to be declining and/or has declined in distribution and/or condition and whose ultimate security has not yet been assured and/or a community that is still widespread but is believed likely to move into a category of higher threat in the near future if threatening processes continue or begin operating throughout its range. An ecological community will be listed as <i>Vulnerable</i> when it has been adequately surveyed and is not Critically Endangered or Endangered but is facing a high risk of total destruction or significant modification in the medium to long-term future. This is determined on the basis of the best available information and by it meeting one or more of three criteria (not included here).



Table H.2:	Explanation of Codes for Priority Ecological Communities (PEC).
------------	---

Code	Definition
P1: Priority One	Ecological communities with apparently few, small occurrences, all or most not actively managed for conservation (e.g. within agricultural or pastoral lands, urban areas, active mineral leases) and for which current threats exist. Communities may be included if they are comparatively well-known from one or more localities but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements, and/or are not well defined, and appear to be under immediate threat from known threatening processes across their range.
P2: Priority Two	Communities that are known from few small occurrences, all or most of which are actively managed for conservation (e.g. within national parks, conservation parks, nature reserves, State forest, unallocated Crown land, water reserves, etc.) and not under imminent threat of destruction or degradation. Communities may be included if they are comparatively well known from one or more localities but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements, and/or are not well defined, and appear to be under threat from known threatening processes.
	(i) Communities that are known from several to many occurrences, a significant number or area of which are not under threat of habitat destruction or degradation or:
	(ii) Communities known from a few widespread occurrences, which are either large or within significant remaining areas of habitat in which other occurrences may occur, much of it not under imminent threat, or;
P3: Priority Three	(iii) Communities made up of large, and/or widespread occurrences, that may or not be represented in the reserve system, but are under threat of modification across much of their range from processes such as grazing by domestic and/or feral stock, and inappropriate fire regimes.
	Communities may be included if they are comparatively well known from several localities but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and/or are not well defined, and known threatening processes exist that could affect them.
	Ecological communities that are adequately known, <i>Rare</i> but not threatened or meet criteria for <i>Near Threatened</i> , or that have been recently removed from the threatened list. These communities require regular monitoring.
P4: Priority Four	(a) <i>Rare</i> . Ecological communities known from few occurrences that are considered to have been adequately surveyed, or for which sufficient knowledge is available, and that are considered not currently threatened or in need of special protection, but could be if present circumstances change. These communities are usually represented on conservation lands.
	(b) <i>Near Threatened</i> . Ecological communities that are considered to have been adequately surveyed and that do not qualify for <i>Conservation Dependent</i> , but that are close to qualifying for <i>Vulnerable</i> .
	(c) Ecological communities that have been removed from the list of threatened communities during the past five years.
P5: Priority Five	Ecological communities that are not threatened but are subject to a specific conservation program, the cessation of which would result in the community becoming threatened within five years.



## **Table H.3:**Explanation of Codes for Flora Protected under the Commonwealth EPBC Act.

Conservation Category	Definition
Extinct	A species is extinct if there is no reasonable doubt that the last member of the species has died.
Extinct in the wild	A species is categorised as extinct in the wild if it is only known to survive in cultivation, in captivity or as a naturalised population well outside its past range; or if it has not been recorded in its known/expected habitat, at appropriate seasons, anywhere in its past range, despite exhaustive surveys over a time frame appropriate to its life cycle and form.
Critically Endangered	The species is facing an extremely high risk of extinction in the wild in the immediate future.
Endangered	The species is likely to become extinct unless the circumstances and factors threatening its abundance, survival or evolutionary development cease to operate; or its numbers have been reduced to such a critical level, or its habitats have been so drastically reduced, that it is in immediate danger of extinction.
Vulnerable	Within the next 25 years, the species is likely to become endangered unless the circumstances and factors threatening its abundance, survival or evolutionary development cease to operate.
Conservation Dependent	The species is the focus of a specific conservation program, the cessation of which would result in the species becoming vulnerable, endangered or critically endangered within a period of five years.

#### **Table H.4:**Definition of Declared Rare and Priority Flora Categories.

Code	Definition
DRF	Declared Rare Flora-Extant Taxa. Taxa which have been adequately searched for and are deemed to be in the wild either rare, in danger of extinction, or otherwise in need of special protection, and have been gazetted as such.
P1: Priority One	Poorly Known Taxa. Taxa which are known from one or a few (generally <5) populations which are under threat, either due to small population size, or being on lands under immediate threat, e.g. road verges, urban areas, farmland, active mineral leases, etc., or the plants are under threat, e.g. from disease, grazing by feral animals, etc. May include taxa with threatened populations on protected lands. Such taxa are under consideration for declaration as 'rare flora', but are in urgent need of further survey.
P2: Priority Two	Poorly Known Taxa. Taxa which are known from one or a few (generally <5) populations, at least some of which are not believed to be under immediate threat (i.e. not currently endangered). Such taxa are under consideration for declaration as 'rare flora', but are in urgent need of further survey.
P3: Priority Three	Poorly Known Taxa. Taxa which are known from several populations, and the taxa are not believed to be under immediate threat (i.e. not currently endangered), either due to the number of known populations (generally >5), or known populations being large, and either widespread or protected. Such taxa are under consideration for declaration as 'rare flora' but are in need of further survey.
P4: Priority Four	Rare Taxa. Taxa which are considered to have been adequately surveyed and which, whilst being rare (in Australia), are not currently threatened by any identifiable factors. These taxa require monitoring every 5-10 years.

Atkins, K.J., Declared Rare and Priority Flora List, Oct. 2010, DEC.





# APPENDIX J SPECIES LIST



Family	Species	P1	P2	P3	R	TFS
Acanthaceae	Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	x	x	х		x
Adiantaceae	Cheilanthes lasiophylla	x	х	х		
	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	x	х	х		
Aizoaceae	Trianthema oxycalyptra var. oxycalyptra			х		
Amaranthaceae	Alternanthera denticulata	x		x		x
	Amaranthus cuspidifolius	x		х		
	Ptilotus ?clementii			х		
	Ptilotus aervoides	х				
	원 Ptilotus luteolus (P1)		х			x
	원 Ptilotus beardii (P3)	x	х	х	х	x
	Ptilotus divaricatus var. divaricatus	х	х			
	Ptilotus exaltatus var. exaltatus	х		x		
	Ptilotus gaudichaudii var. gaudichaudii	x				x
	Ptilotus gomphrenoides					x
	Ptilotus helipteroides var. helipteroides	х		х		
	Ptilotus obovatus	х	х	x	x	x
	Ptilotus polystachyus var. polystachyus	х	х			
	Ptilotus roei	х		х		x
	Ptilotus rotundifolius	x	х	х		x
	Ptilotus schwartzii var. georgei			x		x
	Ptilotus schwartzii var. schwartzii	x	х		х	x
Asclepiadaceae	Marsdenia australis	х	x	х	х	x
	Rhyncharrhena linearis	x				
Asparagaceae	Thysanotus manglesianus	х	х			
Asteraceae	Angianthus tomentosus	x				
	Brachyscome ciliaris var. ciliaris	х				
	Calocephalus multiflorus	x	x			
	Centipeda thespidioides			х		
	Cratystylis subspinescens	x	x	x		
	Erymophyllum ramosum	x				





Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

Family	Species	P1	P2	P3	R	TFS
	Gnephosis tenuissima	x	x			
	Minuria cunninghamii	x				
	Myriocephalus guerinae	x				
	Olearia humilis	x				
	Olearia plucheacea	x	x			
	Olearia stuartii	x	x			
	Pluchea dentex	x		x		
	Podolepis capillaris	x	x		x	
	Podolepis lessonii	x				
	Pogonolepis stricta	x				
	Pterocaulon sphacelatum	x				
	Rhodanthe citrina	x				
Asteraceae	Rhodanthe humboldtiana	x				
	Rhodanthe sterilescens			x		
	Schoenia cassiniana	x		x		x
	*Sonchus oleraceus	x				
	Streptoglossa cylindriceps	x				
	Streptoglossa liatroides			x		
	Vittadinia ?sulcata	x				
	Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	x				
Boraginaceae	Halgania cyanea var. Allambi Stn (B.W. Strong 676)	x				x
	Heliotropium inexplicitum		x			
	Heliotropium ovalifolium	x		x		x
	Heliotropium pachyphyllum					x
	Trichodesma zeylanicum var. zeylanicum	x				
Brassicaceae	Lepidium phlebopetalum					x
	Lepidium platypetalum	x				
Caesalpiniaceae	Senna artemisioides subsp. artemisioides	x		x		
	Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia	х	x			x
	Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	x	x	x		x
	Senna artemisioides subsp. oligophylla		x			




#### Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd

Family	Species	P1	P2	P3	R	TFS
	Senna artemisioides subsp. oligophylla x helmsii	х				
	Senna artemisioides subsp. petiolaris	х		х		x
	<i>Senna artemisioides</i> subsp. <i>sturtii</i> x <i>Senna</i> sp. Meekatharra					x
	Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides	х	x	x		
	Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii	х	х	х		x
	Senna charlesiana				х	
	Senna glaucifolia	х	x	x	x	x
	Senna glutinosa subsp. chatelainiana			х		x
	Senna glutinosa subsp. x luerssenii			x	х	
	Senna sp. Austin (A. Strid 20210)		x	х		x
	Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)	х	x	x	х	x
	Senna sp. Meekatharra x artemisioides subsp. x sturtii	x				
	Senna stricta	х		х		
Campanulaceae	Wahlenbergia tumidifructa		x	х		
Casuarinaceae	Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis	х	x			
Chenopodiaceae	Atriplex bunburyana	х	x			
	Atriplex cephalantha		x			
	Atriplex nummularia	x	x			
	Atriplex semilunaris			х		
	Atriplex vesicaria	х	x			
	Chenopodium gaudichaudianum	х	х			
	Dissocarpus paradoxus	х	x	x		
Chenopodiaceae	Enchylaena tomentosa var. tomentosa			х	х	
	Maireana appressa			х		
	Maireana carnosa	х		х		
	Maireana convexa			х		
	Maireana georgei	x	x	x		x
	Maireana glomerifolia	х	х	х		
	Maireana lobiflora	x		x		
	Maireana melanocoma	x	x			





Family	Species	P1	P2	P3	R	TFS
	Maireana planifolia	x		x		x
	Maireana platycarpa			x	x	
	Maireana pyramidata			x		
	Maireana thesioides			x		
	Maireana tomentosa	x	x		x	x
	Maireana trichoptera	x				
	Maireana triptera	x	x	x		x
	Maireana villosa	x		x	x	x
	Rhagodia eremaea	x	x	x	x	x
	Salsola australis		x			
	Salsola tragus			x		
	Sclerolaena convexula	x				
	Sclerolaena densiflora	x		x	x	
	Sclerolaena diacantha			x	x	
	Sclerolaena eriacantha	x		x		
	Sclerolaena fusiformis		x			
	Sclerolaena patenticuspis	x				
	Sclerolaena uniflora	x				
	ि Tecticornia cymbiformis (P3)		x			
	Tecticornia doleiformis	x				
	Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens		x			
	Tecticornia indica subsp. leiostachya	x				
Chloanthaceae	Spartothamnella teucriiflora	x	x	x	x	
Colchicaceae	Wurmbea densiflora				x	x
Convolvulaceae	Duperreya commixta	x	x	x		
	Duperreya sericea	x				
Cuscutaceae	*Cuscuta epithymum	x	х			
Cyperaceae	Bulbostylis barbata	x				
	Cyperus iria			x		x
	Cyperus squarrosus			х		
Droseraceae	Drosera macrantha subsp. eremaea			x		





Family	Species	P1	P2	Р3	R	TFS
Elatinaceae	Bergia perennis subsp. exigua	x				
Euphorbiaceae	ि Beyeria lapidicola (P1)		x	x		
	Euphorbia boophthona	x	x			
	Euphorbia drummondii	x				
Euphorbiaceae	ਿ Euphorbia sarcostemmoides (P1)					x
	Phyllanthus erwinii	x		х		
	P∂ Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94) (P1)	x				x
Frankeniaceae	Frankenia cinerea					
	Frankenia fecunda					x
	Frankenia laxiflora	x	x	x		
	Frankenia setosa	x				
Gentianaceae	Centaurium clementii	x	x			
	Centaurium spicatum		x			
Geraniaceae	Erodium cygnorum				х	
Goodeniaceae	Goodenia berardiana			x		x
	रि Goodenia berringbinensis (P4)	x		x		
	रि Goodenia lyrata (P1)	x		x		x
	Goodenia tenuiloba	x	x	x		x
	Goodenia triodiophila					x
	Lobelia heterophylla	x				
	Scaevola spinescens	x	x	х		x
	Scaevola tomentosa	x				
Gyrostemonaceae	Codonocarpus cotinifolius			х		
Haloragaceae	Haloragis odontocarpa forma rugosa					x
	Haloragis trigonocarpa			х		
Lamiaceae	ि Hemigenia sp. nov. (aff. exilis) (SOI)		x			
	ि Hemigenia tysonii (P3)	x	х	х		x
	Prostanthera albiflora	x	x	x		
	Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi	x	x			x
	ि Prostanthera ferricola (P3)		х			
	ि Prostanthera petrophila (P3)	x	x	x		x





Family	Species	P1	P2	Р3	R	TFS
	Prostanthera wilkieana					x
Lobeliaceae	Lotus australis					x
Loranthaceae	Amyema fitzgeraldii	x				
	Amyema maidenii			x		
	Lysiana murrayi	x	x	x		
Malvaceae	Abutilon cryptopetalum				x	
	Abutilon leucopetalum					x
	Abutilon macrum	x				
	Abutilon otocarpum	x	x			
	Abutilon oxycarpum		x	x	x	x
	Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. prostratum	x				
	Hibiscus burtonii	x	x	x	x	x
	Hibiscus coatesii	x		x	x	
	Hibiscus garneri			x		
	Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii	x	x	x		x
	Lawrencia chrysoderma	x	x			
Malvaceae	Lawrencia densiflora			х		x
	Sida ammophila	x				
	Sida calyxhymenia	x	x			
	Sida cardiophylla			x		x
	Sida ectogama		x	х	х	x
	Sida fibulifera	x	x		x	
	Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	x	x	x	x	x
	Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)	x				
	Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)	x	x	x	x	x
	Sida sp. Pindar (A. Mitchell 3585)					x
	Sida spodochroma	x				
Marsileaceae	Marsilea drummondii			x		
Mimosaceae	🔁 Acacia ?burrowsiana (P3)			x		
	Acacia aff. Oswaldii			x		
	Acacia aff. Quadrimarginea	x	x			





Family	Species	P1	P2	Р3	R	TFS
	Acacia aneura var. aneura	x	x	x	x	x
	Acacia aneura var. argentea	x		x		x
	Acacia aneura var. conifera		x	x	x	x
	Acacia aneura var. fuliginea	x	x		x	
	Acacia aneura var. intermedia	x	x	x	x	
	Acacia aneura var. macrocarpa					x
	Acacia aneura var. major	x	x	x	x	
	Acacia aneura var. microcarpa		x	x	x	
	Acacia aneura var. tenuis					x
	Acacia aulacophylla			x		
	Acacia ayersiana					x
	Acacia burkittii	x	x	x		
	Acacia citrinoviridis	x		x		
	Acacia cockertoniana	x	x	x		x
	Acacia craspedocarpa	x	x	x	x	x
	Acacia craspedocarpa x aneura				x	
	Acacia cuthbertsonii subsp. Cuthbertsonii	x		x		x
	Acacia effusifolia		x			
	Acacia exocarpoides	x	x			x
	Acacia grasbyi	x	x	х		x
	Acacia kempeana					x
	Acacia ligulata	x				
	Acacia longispinea	x				
	Acacia masliniana					x
	Acacia minyura	x	x			x
	Acacia minyura x ayersiana		x			
	Acacia murrayana	x	x	x	x	x
Mimosaceae	Acacia paraneura				x	x
	Acacia pruinocarpa	x	x	x	x	x
	Acacia quadrimarginea	x	x			
	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	x	x	x	x	x





Family	Species	P1	P2	Р3	R	TFS
	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa	x	x	х		x
	Acacia rhodophloia	x	x	x		x
	Acacia sclerosperma subsp. Sclerosperma	x	x	х		
	Acacia sibirica	x	x			
	ि Acacia sp. Nov. (aff kochii) SOI					x
	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	x	x	x		x
	ि Acacia speckii (P3)	х	x	х		x
	Acacia tetragonophylla	x	x	x	x	x
	Acacia victoriae	x	x	х		
Myoporaceae	Eremophila aff. Georgei	x	x			
	ि Eremophila arachnoids subsp. arachnoids (P3)		x	x		
	Eremophila clarkei	x	x	x	x	x
	Eremophila compacta subsp. Compacta	x	x			
	Eremophila compacta subsp. Fecunda	x				
	Eremophila exilifolia	x	x	x		x
	Eremophila falcata	x		x		
	Eremophila foliosissima	x	x		x	
	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	x	x	x	x	x
	Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri			x	x	
	Eremophila fraseri subsp. parva	x		x		x
	Eremophila galeata	x	х		x	
	Eremophila georgei	x	x	x	x	x
	Eremophila gibsonii				x	
	Eremophila gilesii subsp. gilesii			x		
	Eremophila gilesii subsp. variabilis		x	х		x
	Eremophila glabra subsp. glabra	x	х			
	Eremophila glabra subsp. tomentosa	x		x		
	Eremophila glutinosa	x	x	x	x	x
	Eremophila granitica	x		х		
	Eremophila hughesii subsp. hughesii		x		x	x
	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	x	x	x	x	x





Family	Species	P1	P2	P3	R	TFS
	Eremophila latrobei subsp. filiformis	x				
	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	x	x	x	х	x
	Eremophila longifolia	x	x	x		
	Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata	x	x	x		
	Eremophila macmillaniana	x	x	x		x
	Eremophila maculata subsp. brevifolia	x		x		
	Eremophila margarethae	x	x			
Myoporaceae	Eremophila oldfieldii subsp. angustifolia	x				
	Eremophila oppositifolia subsp. angustifolia	x		x		
	Eremophila pantonii	x	x			
	Eremophila pendulina					x
	Eremophila phyllopoda subsp. phyllopoda	x	x	x		
	Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx	x	x	x		
	Eremophila punicea	x	x		х	
	Eremophila serrulata			x	х	
	Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans	x	x	x	x	x
	Eremophila spathulata	x	x			
	Eremophila spuria	x			х	
	Eremophila subfloccosa subsp. lanata	x	x			
Myrtaceae	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia	x	x	x		x
	D Baeckea sp. Melita Station (H. Pringle 2738) (P3)	x	x			x
	Calytrix desolata	x	x	x		x
	🔁 Calytrix erosipetala (P3)			x		
	Corymbia lenziana	x	x	x	x	x
	Eucalyptus carnei	x	x			
	Eucalyptus gypsophila		x			
	Eucalyptus leptopoda subsp. elevata					x
	Eucalyptus lucasii	x	x			
	Eucalyptus oleosa subsp. oleosa					x
	Eucalyptus socialis subsp. eucentrica			x		
	Eucalyptus striaticalyx			x		





Family	Species	P1	P2	P3	R	TFS
	Eucalyptus trivalva	x	x			x
	ि Homalocalyx echinulatus (P3)	x	x			x
	Melaleuca stereophloia	x	x	x		x
	P: Micromyrtus placoides (P3)	x	x			x
	Micromyrtus racemosa var. racemosa					
	Micromyrtus sulphurea	x	x	x		x
	Thryptomene costata					x
	Thryptomene decussata	х	x	x		x
	ि Verticordia jamiesonii (P3)					x
Nyctaginaceae	Boerhavia coccinea			x		
	Nicotiana occidentalis subsp. obliqua					x
Oxalidaceae	Oxalis perennans	x				
Fabaceae	Chorizema genistoides			x		x
	Cullen cinereum	x				x
	Glycine canescens	x				
	Indigofera brevidens	х				
	Indigofera gilesii subsp. gilesii					x
	Indigofera monophylla	x		x		x
	ि Mirbelia ?stipitata (P3)	х	x			
	Mirbelia rhagodioides	х		x		x
Papillionaceae	Swainsona affinis			х		
	Swainsona laciniata	х				
Phormiaceae	Dianella revoluta var. divaricata	х	x			
Pittosporaceae	Pittosporum angustifolium	x	x	х		
Poaceae	*Cenchrus ciliaris					x
	Aristida contorta	x	x	х	x	x
	Aristida holathera var. holathera	x	x	x	x	
	Austrostipa elegantissima	х		x		
	Austrostipa scabra	x				
	Cymbopogon ambiguus	x	х	x		
	Digitaria brownii	x				





Family	Species	P1	P2	P3	R	TFS
	Enneapogon caerulescens	x	x		x	
	Enneapogon cylindricus	x		x		
	Eragrostis australasica	x	x		x	
	Eragrostis cumingii	x		x		
	Eragrostis dielsii	x	x	x		
	Eragrostis eriopoda	x	x	x	x	x
	Eragrostis kennedyae	x				
	Eragrostis lanipes	x	x			x
	Eragrostis leptocarpa	x				
	Eragrostis pergracilis	x	x			
	Eragrostis setifolia			x		x
	Eragrostis tenellula			x		
	Eriachne flaccida	x				
	Eriachne helmsii	x	x	x	x	x
	Eriachne lanata			x		
	Eriachne mucronata	x	x	x		x
	Eriachne pulchella subsp. dominii	x		x		
	Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella	x	x	x		
	Iseilema membranaceum	x				
	Monachather paradoxus	x	x	x	x	x
	Sporobolus australasicus			x		
	Thyridolepis multiculmis	x			x	x
	Triodia melvillei					x
	Triodia schinzii					x
	Tripogon loliiformis			x		
Polygonaceae	Muehlenbeckia florulenta	x	x			
Portulacaceae	*Portulaca oleracea	x				
	Calandrinia sp. The Pink Hills (F. Obbens FO 19/06)	x				
	Calandrinia translucens	x				
Primulaceae	*Anagallis arvensis					x
Proteaceae	Grevillea berryana	x	x	x		x





Family	Species	P1	P2	Р3	R	TFS
	Grevillea deflexa	x		x		x
Proteaceae	Grevillea eriostachya					x
	Grevillea extorris		x			
	Grevillea inconspicua (P4)	x	x	x		x
	Grevillea nematophylla subsp. supraplana	x			х	x
	ि Grevillea stenostachya (P3)	x	x	х	х	x
	Grevillea striata	x		x		
	Hakea lorea subsp. lorea	x	x			
	Hakea preissii		x	x	x	x
	Hakea recurva subsp. arida	x	x			
Rhamnaceae	P: Stenanthemum patens (P1)		x			
	Stenanthemum petraeum	x	x	x		x
Rubiaceae	Psydrax latifolia	x	x	x	x	x
	Psydrax rigidula	x	x	x	x	x
	Psydrax suaveolens	x	x	x	x	x
	Synaptantha tillaeacea var. tillaeacea			x		
Rutaceae	Philotheca brucei subsp. brevifolia	x				
	Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei	x	x	x		x
	Philotheca sericea					x
Santalaceae	Exocarpos aphyllus		x	x		x
	Leptomeria preissiana	x	x			
	Santalum acuminatum	x	x			x
	Santalum lanceolatum		x			
	Santalum spicatum	x	x	x		x
Sapindaceae	Dodonaea adenophora		х			
	ि Dodonaea amplisemina (P3)	x	x	x		x
	Dodonaea microzyga var. acrolobata		x			x
	Dodonaea pachyneura	x	x	x		x
	Dodonaea petiolaris	x	x	x		x
	Dodonaea rigida	x		x		x
	Dodonaea viscosa subsp. angustissima		x			





Family	Species	P1	P2	P3	R	TFS
	Dodonaea viscosa subsp. mucronata		x			
	Dodonaea viscosa subsp. spatulata					x
Scrophulariaceae	Peplidium sp. C Evol. Fl. Fauna Arid Aust. (N.T. Burbidge & A. Kanis 8158)			x		x
	Stemodia florulenta					x
	Stemodia viscosa		x			
Solanaceae	*Solanum nigrum					x
	Lycium australe			х		
	Solanum ashbyae	х	x	х		
	Solanum centrale	х	x			
	Solanum ellipticum	x	x	x	x	x
	Solanum ferocissimum		х	x		
	Solanum lachnophyllum					x
	Solanum lasiophyllum	х	x	х	х	x
Sterculiaceae	Brachychiton gregorii	х				x
	Keraudrenia velutina subsp. elliptica					x
	Rulingia luteiflora			x		
Stylidiaceae	Stylidium longibracteatum		х			x
Thymelaeaceae	Pimelea microcephala subsp. microcephala	х	x	х		x
	Pimelea trichostachya					x
Urticaceae	Parietaria cardiostegia	х				
Zygophyllaceae	Tribulus suberosus	x	x			x
	Zygophyllum aurantiacum	х		х		
	Zygophyllum eremaeum	x	x	x		

Key:

Po **bold font** indicates priority flora species (where P1, P2, P3, P4 = priority rank) **Bold font** plus **SOI** indicates species of interest

- $\circ \quad \ \ * \mbox{ bold font}$  indicates introduced / weed species
- $\circ \quad \ \ \text{Header row:} \\$
- P1 = phase 1, P2 = phase 2, and P3 = phase 3 surveys;
- $\circ$  R = rail corridor survey; and
- TFS = threatened flora survey





### **APPENDIX K**

## PRIORITY FLORA AND SPECIES OF INTEREST LOCATIONS





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
1	Acacia ?burrowsiana	567084	7024726	3 phase
1	Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	575500	7027147	TFS
1	Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	575531	7027235	TFS
1	Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	587183	7033246	TFS
1	Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	582053	7029809	TFS
1	Goodenia lyrata	558162	7019250	3 phase
1	Goodenia lyrata	567084	7024726	3 phase
1	Goodenia lyrata	589471	7037203	3 phase
1	Goodenia lyrata	558712	7019585	TFS
1	Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus	588151	7033952	3 phase
1	Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus	588342	7034114	3 phase
1	Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus	589461	7036537	3 phase
1	Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus	589791	7037197	TFS
1	Ptilotus astrolasius var. luteolus	589858	7037769	TFS
1	Stenanthemum patens	550940	7015223	3 phase
1	Stenanthemum patens	562005	7019220	3 phase
1	Stenanthemum patens	564390	7019704	3 phase
1	Stenanthemum patens	561759	7018922	TFS
2	Beyeria lapidicola	547792	7014738	3 phase
2	Beyeria lapidicola	560531	7019104	TFS
2	Beyeria lapidicola	560587	7019462	TFS
2	Beyeria lapidicola	560950	7019723	TFS
2	Beyeria lapidicola	561117	7019765	TFS
2	Beyeria lapidicola	561460	7020313	TFS
2	Beyeria lapidicola	581417	7026880	TFS
2	Beyeria lapidicola	582628	7027320	TFS
2	Beyeria lapidicola	573604	7032170	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	550940	7015223	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	560836	7016798	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	563054	7019695	3 phase





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
3	Acacia speckii	563264	7018400	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	563572	7018064	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	563797	7018544	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	564239	7018334	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	564390	7019704	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	570265	7026936	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	574397	7025516	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	587069	7034505	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	588151	7033952	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	588342	7034114	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	589461	7036537	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	589858	7037769	3 phase
3	Acacia speckii	558735	7017685	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561319	7018699	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561400	7018812	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561509	7018970	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561569	7018879	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561632	7018846	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561679	7018889	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561754	7019035	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561847	7019155	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561898	7019125	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561944	7019142	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	561953	7019275	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	562018	7019293	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	562093	7019330	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	562125	7019257	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	562213	7019279	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	562390	7019403	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	562493	7019440	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	562680	7019456	TFS





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
3	Acacia speckii	562857	7019609	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	570078	7022147	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	572303	7024012	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	577123	7025472	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	577241	7025506	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	577339	7025505	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	577372	7025476	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	577416	7025521	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	577553	7025405	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	577828	7025640	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	577941	7025554	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	578079	7025460	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	578275	7025532	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	578411	7025590	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	578503	7025440	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	578605	7025579	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	578993	7025556	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	579112	7025609	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	581198	7026759	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	581403	7026754	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	581492	7026870	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	581492	7026870	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	581492	7026870	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	582529	7026981	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	582547	7027157	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	582642	7027158	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	582735	7027237	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	581786	7026819	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	585997	7032081	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	586389	7034215	TFS
3	Acacia speckii	589791	7037197	TFS





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
3	Calytrix erosipetala	585158	7033155	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	550940	7015223	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	560839	7016798	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	562005	7019220	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	563054	7019695	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	563264	7018400	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	564239	7018334	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	565757	7018550	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	587841	7033527	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	588151	7033952	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	589791	7037197	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	589858	7037769	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	570265	7026936	3 phase
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	558401 7019440		TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	558772 7019874		TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	561172 7018782		TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	561302	7018709	TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	561509	7018970	TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	561601	7018904	TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	561701	7019159	TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	561831	7019081	TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	561922	7019264	TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	562249	7019285	TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	562448	7021001	TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	562734	7020471	TFS
3	Dodonaea amplisemina	570103	7022057	TFS
3	Eremophila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides	558804	7019050	3 phase
3	Eremophila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides	563572	7018064	3 phase
3	Grevillea stenostachya	573904	7027138	3 phase
3	Grevillea stenostachya	566320	7030900	Rail
3	Grevillea stenostachya	571424	7031721	Rail





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
3	Grevillea stenostachya	569879	7034562	Rail
3	Grevillea stenostachya	560636	7019323	TFS
3	Grevillea stenostachya	566302	7024279	TFS
3	Grevillea stenostachya	571730	7027665	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	562050	7019840	3 phase
3	Hemigenia tysonii	574122	7031020	3 phase
3	Hemigenia tysonii	556658	7017299	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	558681	7018213	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	558760	7018308	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	559017	7018309	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	559573	7018687	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	559626	7019260	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	559703	7018751	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	560167	7019292	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	560308	7019342	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	560411	7019210	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	560518	7019494	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	560606	7019506	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	560714	7019388	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	561096 7019606		TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	561625	7019347	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	562872	7020537	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	564121	7021780	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	564217	7021913	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	564414	7021188	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	565276	7023383	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	566373	7024109	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	566437	7023961	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	566541	7024516	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	566733	7024348	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	567257	7025769	TFS





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
3	Hemigenia tysonii	567393	7025639	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	567516	7025512	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	568242	7024243	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	568349	7024996	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	568488	7024911	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	568634	7024944	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	568768	7024189	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	568955	7024054	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	569165	7024299	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	569477	7024901	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	570400	7025736	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	570545	7025764	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	570639	7025602	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	570769 7030069		TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	570901 7029822		TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	571091 7029068		TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	571244	7027859	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	571382	7028067	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	571831	7026291	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	571971	7026386	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	574282	7034219	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	574352	7034021	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	567777	7025547	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	574389	7032529	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	577071	7032746	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	584122	7031020	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	569161	7026298	TFS
3	Hemigenia tysonii	561838	7021123	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	574031	7027464	3 phase
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	578730	7028969	3 phase
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	558760	7018308	TFS





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	558824	7018217	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	559017	7018309	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	559116	7018358	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	559217	7018376	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	559583	7018695	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	560740	7019401	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	561548	7019762	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	561749	7019907	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	562048	7019703	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	562145	7019776	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	564402	7020695	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	568392	7023727	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	570316	7025461	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	570425 7025563		TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	570653 7025609		TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	570876	7025846	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	570912	7025882	TFS
3	Homalocalyx echinulatus	577608	7025164	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	548350	7015087	3 phase
3	Micromyrtus placoides	549405	7015196	3 phase
3	Micromyrtus placoides	563088	7020263	3 phase
3	Micromyrtus placoides	572647	7026444	3 phase
3	Micromyrtus placoides	558760	7018308	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	559289	7018149	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	559453	7018211	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	561016	7019768	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	561117	7019765	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	561490	7019622	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	561548	7019762	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	561705	7019845	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	561776	7019082	TFS





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
3	Micromyrtus placoides	561880	7020167	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	562021 7019899		TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	562189	7020355	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	562197	7020219	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	562454	7020176	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	562621	7020437	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	562821	7020611	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	577367	7025296	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	577608	7025164	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	578509	7025277	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	579367	7025667	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	579995	7026062	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	580167	7026185	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	580264	7026142	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	581064	7026834	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	581287	7027128	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	581461	7026889	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	581596	7026721	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	581755	7026819	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	581838 7026865		TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	581977	7027079	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	582023	7026950	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	582147	7026843	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	582744	7027252	TFS
3	Micromyrtus placoides	582914	7027228	TFS
3	Mirbelia ?stipitata	560836	7016798	3 phase
3	Mirbelia ?stipitata	564390	7019704	3 phase
3	Mirbelia ?stipitata	585997	7032081	3 phase
3	Mirbelia ?stipitata	586292	7033420	3 phase
3	Mirbelia ?stipitata	589791	7037197	3 phase
3	Prostanthera ferricola	532005	7019220	3 phase





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	547755	7014970	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	548351	7015088	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	549405	7015196	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	562050	7019840	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	562938	7019075	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	563054	7019695	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	564237	7020615	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	572647	7026444	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	577572	7028469	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	581786	7026819	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	586292	7033420	3 phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	557184	7017425	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	558101	7018013	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	558207 7019345		TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	558478 7018528		TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	558644	7018636	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	558848	7019954	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	558933	7018351	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	559057	7020001	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	559104 7019859		TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	559448	7018831	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	559536	7018674	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	559767	7019203	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	559970	7019254	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	560161	7019333	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	560636	7019323	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	560930	7018974	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	560948	7019284	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	561441	7019119	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	561609	7019234	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	561831	7019011	TFS





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
3	Prostanthera petrophila	562287	7021192	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	563939 7020413		TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	564418	7020755	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	568353	7023394	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	568363	7023401	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	568647	7030695	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	568724	7024883	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	569729	7024895	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	569863	7024863	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	569990	7022223	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	570335	7025481	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	570464	7025588	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	570571	7025509	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	570716	7026524	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	572978	7022947	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	573103	7023026	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	576940	7025166	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	577757	7025301	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	579914 7026097		TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	580112 7026083		TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	580419	7026204	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	581064	7026834	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	582755	7027101	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	582855	7027120	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	583592	7027761	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	583848	7027638	TFS
3	Prostanthera petrophila	583956	7027660	TFS
3	Ptilotus beardii	546935	7015506	3 phase
3	Ptilotus beardii	585672	7033112	3 phase
3	Ptilotus beardii	586714	7035414	3 phase
3	Ptilotus beardii	567491	7027591	Rail





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
3	Ptilotus beardii	567092	7024711	TFS
3	Ptilotus beardii	587785	7036179	TFS
3	Tecticornia cymbiformis	558093	7018841	3 phase
3	Tecticornia cymbiformis	558160	7019242	3 phase
3	Verticordia jamiesonii	581918	7026848	TFS
3	Verticordia jamiesonii	581945	7026861	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	548351	7015088	3 phase
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	563088	7020263	3 phase
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	573975	7027033	3 phase
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	561940	7019839	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	562021	7019899	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	562117	7019984	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	562241	7020245	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	562592	7020430	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	562792	7020487	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	562818	7020495	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	577371	7025263	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	577409	7025262	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	577537 7025295		TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	577917	7025362	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	578429	7025292	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	579183	7025537	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	579222	7025547	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	583848	7027638	TFS
4	Baeckea sp. Melita Station	583956	7027660	TFS
4	Goodenia berringbinensis	558712	7019585	TFS
4	Goodenia berringbinensis	558753	7019308	TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	562005	7019220	3 phase
4	Grevillea inconspicua	563054	7019695	3 phase
4	Grevillea inconspicua	563264	7018400	3 phase
4	Grevillea inconspicua	578288	7029509	3 phase





Priority	Species	Easting (mE)	Northing (mN)	Phase
4	Grevillea inconspicua	587841	7033527	3 phase
4	Grevillea inconspicua	588225	7035560	3 phase
4	Grevillea inconspicua	561445	7018951	TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	561766	7019078	TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	561832	7019153	TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	561921	7019142	TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	562437	7019414	TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	562621	7020437	TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	562749	7019509	TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	562803	7019561	TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	570193 7021897		TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	570265 7026936		TFS
4	Grevillea inconspicua	571730 7027665		TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	559507	7019357	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	559650	7017115	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	560411	7019210	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	560436	7019236	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	561545	7018794	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	561549	7018868	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	561599	7018842	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	561632	7018846	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	561679	7018889	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	561710	7018900	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	561755	7018960	TFS
SOI	Acacia sp. Nov. (aff. kochii)	568817	7022763	TFS
SOI	Hemigenia sp. nov. (aff. exilis)	559931	7017810	TFS
SOI	Hemigenia sp. nov. (aff. exilis)	564207	7018599	TFS
SOI	Hemigenia sp. nov. (aff. exilis)	573642	3642 7027151	

Note:

Datum = WGS84, Zone = 50J.

P1, P2, P3, P4 = Priority flora taxa, SOI = species of interest.





This page has been left blank intentionally.





## APPENDIX L VOUCHER SPECIMENS LODGED WITH THE WA HERBARIUM

(included as a separate PDF)





This page has been left blank intentionally.



Department of Environment and	d Conservation	R A	REF	LOR	ARE	PORT	FORM	
TAXON: Acacia b. DRF	<i>urrowsiana</i> Maslin Prio	D rity Species: P	EFL POPUL I Partia	ATION	No.:	I Survey 🗹	New Population	
FROM: Joshua Gi	ilovitz 722ph3-CG-0	9 (ecologia Ei	nvironment)	TITLE	: Botanist	SURVEY	DATE: 04/07/2008	
<b>REGION: Murchi</b>	son	DISTRICT	":		S	HIRE:		
LOCATION: Weld	Range, proposed H	laul Road						
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 567084 mE, 7	024726 mN						
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-C	ompatible	(e.g. WGS8	34) ☑ Unkr	nown 🗆 None 🗆	
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private		Gravel Re	s. MRD	Rail Reserve	
	National Park	<b>D</b> P	astoral Lease		Gravel R	es. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire 🗖	
	State Forest		UCL		Other Sh	nire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD 🗖	
	Water Reserve		Other 🗹	S	pecify: Min	ing Lease		
	Landowner/manage	r present during	g inspection:					
PLEASE NOTE: O	pportunistic collect	ion therefore	certain infor	mation u	navailable			
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Clif	f 🗖	Slop	e 🗖	Valley 🗖	Swamp	
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakawa	y 🗖	Low Plain	1 🗆	Gully 🗖	Riverbank 🗖	
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dun	e 🗖	Fla	t 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖	
	Firebreak 🗖	Othe	r 🗖 Specify					
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite		Limestone	Other:		
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗖	Fluviati	le Gravel		Concretionary G	ravel 🗖	
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗖	Loan	n 🗖	Clay		Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖	
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Brown		Yellow		White 🗖	Grey 🗖	
SOIL CONDITION	N: Moist 🗆	Inundated	d 🗖 Dry		Saline 🗆	Other:		_
No. of PLANTS:	Mature:S	eedlings:	Dead:	t plants)	Actual 🗖 I	Estimate 🗖 🔒	Area Occupied:	
REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observat CONDITION OF F	STATE: Clonal f Native bees ions: POPULATION:	Flower bu	nade to coun d ☑ Flow ney bees □ Modera	ver 🗆 Ir Oth	nmat. fruit er insects Poor	Fruit C O Birds	ld Fruit  Vegetativ Mammals Comment:	ve 🗹
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMMEI	EATS: Fireb Disease □ Pr Not known I Not Required □ KERS: Not NTS (include action	reaks	Aining 🗹 ing 🗖 Ot 19 Present f :	Recreat her Summer quired Rec	ion	oadworks 🛛 umn 🗇 Wir lace/Repair 🗇 Replace 🗍	Grazing ☑ Weed nter □ Spring □ Reposition □	s 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Joshua Gilo	MEN: Region Map D Regional Off ovitz 722ph3-CG-09	al Herb. 🗖 Mudmap 🗖 fice 🗇 🛛 D ( <i>ecologia</i> Env	District Her Illustrat District Office ironment)	b. 🗆 ion 🗖	WA Herb. Photo Other 🗖 Date: 25/0	<ul> <li>☑ Other □</li> <li>□ Field N Specify:</li> <li>2/2009</li> </ul>	Notes 🗖	
	NOTE: Map	or further inform	mation may be	attached o	r given on the	back of this form.		



# RARE FLORA REPORT FORM

FROM: Scott Hitel	Ran	Barlow ge Extension ☑	Partia	DEFL POPULA	TION No.:	New Population
L LLOITER DEDES FRIER	hcock 722ph3-SH-	25 (ecologia Env	ironment)	TITLE: Botani	st SURVEY	DATE: 04/07/2008
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	son	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range, proposed	Haul Road				
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 570265 mE,	7026936 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	ompatible (e.g. WG	S84) 🗹 Unkno	wn 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private	Gravel	Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Parl	D Pas	storal Lease	☑ Gravel	Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire 🗖
	State Fores		UCL	Other	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	e 🗖 🛛 Otl	ner 🗹	Specify: M	ining Lease	
	Landowner/manage	er present during	inspection: f	כי		
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff		Slope 🗖	Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway		Low Plain	Gully 🗖	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Flat/Plain 🗹	Drainage line	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other	☑ Specify	: Minor channel		
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite	Limestor	e 🛛 Other: Fer	rous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder		Gravel 🗹	Pebl	oles 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand Z	Loam		Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange	R	Yellow 🗖	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist 🗖	Inundated	Dry	□ Saline □	Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P	Mature: if unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bee: ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings: , or no attempt m Flower bud :  Hone Healthy D	Dead: ade to count	Actual plants) er 🗹 Immat. frui Other insects e 🔲 Poor 🗆	Estimate  A L Fruit Old Birds Disturbed	rea Occupied: I Fruit □ Vegetative □ □ Mammals □ Comment:
POTENTIAL THD	EATS: Firel	oreaks 🗖 Mi	ning 🗹	Recreation 🗖		
Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: 1 ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	Disease	rescribed Burning Burnt in 1 Fenced Required taken/required):_	g 🗖 Ot 9 Re Present 🕻	her Commer Summer A equired R Required C	Roadworks 🗆 C nt: Autumn 🗖 Wint eplace/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗖	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ er □ Spring □ Reposition □

NOTE: Map or further information may be attached or given on the back of this form.

Department of Environment and Conservation
Department of Environment and Conservation

# RARE FLORA REPORT FORM

TAXON: Acacia af	f. oswaldii Spec	cies of Interest 🗹	DEFI Partia	POPUI	LATION N	No.: ull Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Scott Hitch	cock 722ph3-SH-	09 (ecologia Envir	onment)	TITL	E: Botanis	t SURVEY DA	TE: 09/07/2008
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	on	DISTRICT:				SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range						
GPS LOCATION: 5	50J - 579008 mE.	7032190 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	ompatible	(e.g. WG	<b>S84</b> ) ☑ Unkr	nown 🛛 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserv	ve 🗖	Private		Gravel I	Res. MRD 🗖	Rail Reserve
	National Par	rk 🗖 🛛 Pasto	oral Lease	$\square$	Gravel	Res. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fore	st 🗖	UCL		Other	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD 🗖
	Water Reserv	ve 🗖 Othe	r 🗹	5	specify: Mi	ining Lease	
	Landowner/manag	ger present during in	spection: [				
PLEASE NOTE: O	pportunistic colle	ction therefore cer	tain inform	nation u	navailable	1	
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff [		Slop	e 🗖	Valley 🗆	Swamp
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway f	3	Low Plai	n 🗖	Gully 🗖	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	3	Fla	nt 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other [	Specify	:			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite		Limeston	e 🗖 Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder	Fluviatil	e Gravel		Concretionary G	ravel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗖	Loam C	3	Clay		Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Brown D	3	Yellow	0	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist 🗖	Inundated	Dry		Saline 🗖	Other:	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF PO	Mature: f unable to observ STATE: Clona Native bea ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings: e, or no attempt mad l	Dead: _ de to count Flow bees Moderat	plants) er 🗆 Iı Otł e 🗖	Actual 🗖 mmat. fruit ner insects Poor 🗖	Estimate  Fruit  O Fruit  O Birds Disturbed	Area Occupied: Id Fruit 🗹 Vegetative 🗖 🗍 Mammals 🗖 Comment:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fire Disease Not known lot Required ERS: No TS (include action	breaks  Min Prescribed Burning Burnt in 19 Fenced  Fenced  t Required  taken/required):	ing 🗹 🗖 Ot Re Present 🖸	Recreat her Summer quired Re	ion 🗆 Commen 🔲 A J Ro quired 🗖	Roadworks 🛛 t: utumn 🗇 Win eplace/Repair 🗇 Replace 🗇	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 nter 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED:	MEN: Regi	onal Herb. 🗖 D Mudmap 🗖	istrict Hert Illustrat	o. 🗆	WA Herb Photo	, ☑ Other □ o □ Field N	Notes 🗖
COPY SENT TO:	Regional C	office 🗖 Distr	rict Office		Other 🗆	Specify:	
Signed: Scott Hitchco	ock 722ph3-SH-0	9 (ecologia Enviro	nment) ion may be i	attached o	Date: 26	/02/2009 he back of this form.	TRU MA COM



R.S.Cowan & Pric o 722ph2-A4 ge 588342 mE, D84 ature Reserv National Parl State Fores Vater Reserv Nater Reserv owner/manag getop atter com com terop Ridge state Fores Vater Reserv owner/manag getop atter com state Fores Vater Reserv owner/manag getop atter com state Fores Vater Reserv owner/manag	& Maslin prity Species: P. C-03 (ecologia I DISTRICT 7034114 mN GDA94 e k present during Clift Breakaway Sand Dun Othe Granite Stones Loan Orang Inundated w open shrubland	GE Castor: GE Pastor: Dther g insp ff □ ty □	DEFLI Partial onment) DA94-Com Private ( al Lease I UCL ( Dection: L Specify: Coarse Dolerite ( Coarse Dry ( Veld Rang r Aristida	npatible (e.g. M TITLE: ) TITLE: ) Gra Gra Gra Gra Gra Gra Specify Slope Slope ow Plain Flat Lime e Gravel Clay Yellow Saline ge and <i>Acacia</i> S	N No.: Full Survey Botanist SHIRE: WGS84) Ø vel Res. MRD vel Res. Shire her Shire Res : Mining Lea V Drainay stone □ Pe Whi = □ Oth speckii shrubla	Valley Gully Gully Gully Cother: BII Peterst ite her:	New Population DATE: 17/04/2007 Own None Rail Reserve Rd. Verge Shire Rd. Verge MRD Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge F obles Gravel Grey
o 722ph2-A4 ge 588342 mE, D84 ature Reserv National Parl State Fores Vater Reserv owner/manag getop atterop Ridge state Fores Vater Reserv owner/manag getop atterop Ridge state Fores Vater Reserv owner/manag getop atter atter State Fores Vater Reserv owner/manag getop atter atter State Fores Vater Reserv owner/manag	C-03 (ecologia ) DISTRICT 7034114 mN GDA94 e k f g f c f f b f f f f f f f f f f f f f	Envir F: GI Pastor: Dther g insp ff ue cr g m ue ff ff ue ff ue ff ue ff ue ff ue ff ue ff ue ff ue ff ue ff ue ff ue ue ue ue ue ue ue ue	OA94-Com Private ( al Lease I UCL ( Dection: □ L Specify: Coarse Dolerite ( Coarse Dry ( Veld Rang r Aristida	TITLE: )  npatible (e.g. \ Gra	Botanist SHIRE: WGS84) 🗹 vel Res. MRD vel Res. Shire her Shire Res : Mining Lea Mining Lea Drainag stone 🗆 Pe Whi c 🗖 Otl speckii shrubla	SURVEY Unkn Unkn Unkn Se Se Valley Gully Gully Gully Gully Gulle BI Pet tat	own □ None □ Rail Reserve □ Rd. Verge Shire □ Rd. Verge MRD □ Swamp □ Riverbank □ Lake Edge □ F obles ☑ Gravel □ Grey □
ge 588342 mE, D84 ature Reserv. National Parl State Fores Vater Reserv. owner/manag getop getop terop Ridge oreak rite Sand Red Moist FICATION ( <i>c. luteolus</i> low:	DISTRICT 7034114 mN GDA94 e k f k f g f g f g f g f g f g	GE Pastora Other g insp ff g insp g insp insp g insp insp g insp insp insp g insp insp insp insp insp insp insp insp	DA94-Con Private ( al Lease E UCL ( Dection: L Specify: Dolerite [ Coarse Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	npatible (e.g. N Gra Gra Gra Ot Specify Slope Slope ow Plain Flat Lime e Gravel Clay Yellow Saline ge and Acacia s	SHIRE: WGS84) 🗹 vel Res. MRD wel Res. Shire her Shire Res Mining Lea Drainag stone 🗖 Pe Whi c 🗖 Oth speckii shrubla	Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn	own D None Rail Reserve Rail Reserve Rd. Verge Shire Rd. Verge MRD Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge F bbles M Gravel Grey D
ge 588342 mE, D84 ature Reservent National Parl State Fores Vater Reservent where Reservent Reser	7034114 mN GDA94 e k b c c c c c c c c c c	GI Pastora Other g insp ff uy uy usp usp usp usp vsp V	DA94-Con Private ( al Lease I UCL ( Z ection: □ L Specify: Coarse Coarse Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	npatible (e.g. N Gra Gra Gra D Ot Specify Slope ow Plain Flat Clay Clay Yellow Saline e and <i>Acacia</i> s	WGS84) 🗹 vel Res. MRD ivel Res. Shire her Shire Res : Mining Lea Mining Lea Drainag stone 🗆 Pe Whi : 🗖 Otl speckii shrubla	Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn	own D None Rail Reserve Rail Reserve Rd. Verge Shire Rd. Verge MRD Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge
588342 mE, D84 □ ature Reservent National Part State Fores Vater Reservent where Reservent Reserven	7034114 mN GDA94 e k b c c c c c c c c c c	GI Pastora Other g insp ff ue er ff ise er ff ise ff ise ff ise ff isp ff i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	DA94-Con Private ( al Lease E UCL ( Dection: □ L Specify: Coars Dolerite ( Coars Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	npatible (e.g. V Gra Gra Gra Ot Specify Slope ow Plain Flat Clay Yellow Saline ge and <i>Acacia</i> s	WGS84) 🗹 vel Res. MRD ivel Res. Shire ther Shire Res Mining Lea Drainag stone 🗖 Pe Whi c 🗖 Otl speckii shrubla	Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn	own D None Rail Reserve Rail Reserve Rd. Verge Shire Rd. Verge MRD Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge F bles Gravel Gravel Grey D
D84 ature Reserve National Parl State Fores Vater Reserve owner/manag getop getop Ridge boreak rite Sand Red Moist FICATION ( C. luteolus low	GDA94 e k b e c e c c f f f f f f f f f f	GI Pastori Other g insp ff ue ff u t u f u u u u u u u u u	DA94-Con Private ( al Lease E UCL ( Dection: L Specify: Dolerite ( Coarse Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	npatible (e.g. N Gra Gra Gra D Ot Specify Slope Slope ow Plain Flat Lime e Gravel Clay Yellow Saline ge and <i>Acacia</i> s	WGS84) 🗹 vel Res. MRD ivel Res. Shire her Shire Res Mining Lea Drainag stone 🗆 Pe Whi c 🗖 Ott speckii shrubla	Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn Unkn	own D None Rail Reserve Rail Reserve Rd. Verge Shire Rd. Verge MRD Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge F Sbles Gravel Gravel Grey D
ature Reserv National Parl State Fores Vater Reserv owner/manag getop 🛛 terop 🗍 Ridge 🗍 Ridge 🗍 Sand 🗍 Red 🖾 Moist 📮 FICATION ( :	e  k k P st e Clif Breakawa Sand Dun Othe Granite Granite Clif Loan Orang Inundated (Muir's): Acacia w open shrubland	Pastor: Dther g insp ff up in in in in in in in in	Private ( al Lease E UCL ( Dection: L Specify: Coarse Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	Gra Gra Gra Gra Specify Slope □ ow Plain □ Flat □ Clay ☑ Yellow □ Saline e and Acacia s	vel Res. MRD wel Res. Shire her Shire Res : Mining Lea Mining Lea Drainag stone Pe Whi c Ott speckii shrubla	<pre>&gt; □ &gt; □</pre>	Rail Reserve Rd. Verge Shire Rd. Verge MRD Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge F obles Gravel Grey
National Parl State Fores Water Reserve owner/manag getop 🗹 terop 🗆 Ridge 🗆 oreak 🖨 rite 🗖 Sand 📮 Red 🖾 Moist 📮 FICATION ( luteolus low	k  P  K	Dastor: Dther g insp ff u u cr ff u cr ff u cr ff u cr u	al Lease E UCL [ Dection: L Specify: Coarse Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	<ul> <li>☑ Gra</li> <li>☑ Ot Specify</li> <li>Slope □</li> <li>ow Plain □</li> <li>Flat □</li> <li>□ Lime</li> <li>e Gravel ☑</li> <li>Clay ☑</li> <li>Yellow □</li> <li>□ Saline</li> <li>ge and Acacia set</li> </ul>	ivel Res. Shire her Shire Res. Mining Lea Drainag stone Pe Whi c Oth speckii shrubla	e e se Valley Gully geline Other: BI Peb eat ite her:	Rd. Verge Shire Rd. Verge MRD Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge F obles Gravel Grey
State Fores Water Reserve owner/manag getop  Getop  Ridge  Getop  Getop  Sand  Getop  Red  Getop  FICATION ( Concerning C	st e e r present during Clif Breakawa Sand Dun Othe Granite Stones Loan Orang Inundate (Muir's): Acacia w open shrublan	Dther g insp ff uy ue ur ue cr ue ue ue ue ue ue ue ue ue ue	UCL [ Dection: L Specify: Coarse Coarse Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	<ul> <li>☐ Ot Specify</li> <li>Slope □</li> <li>ow Plain □</li> <li>Flat □</li> <li>☐ Lime</li> <li>e Gravel ☑</li> <li>Clay ☑</li> <li>Yellow □</li> <li>☐ Saline</li> <li>ge and Acacia set</li> </ul>	her Shire Res Mining Lea Drainag stone Pe Whi c Oth speckii shrubla	se Valley Gully geline Other: BI Pet rat her:	Rd. Verge MRD
Water Reserve owner/manag getop 🗹 terop 🗆 Ridge 🗆 oreak 🖨 rite 🗖 Sand 🗖 Red 🗹 Moist 🖨 FICATION ( c. luteolus low :	e 🔲 O er present during Clif Breakawa Sand Dun Othe Granite 🗖 Stones 🗹 Loan Orang Inundate (Muir's): Acacia w open shrublan	Other g insp ff uy ue ue cr cr cr cr cr cr cr cr cr cr	☑ ection: □ L Specify: Dolerite [ Coarse Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	Slope Slope ow Plain Flat Lime e Gravel Clay Yellow Saline e and <i>Acacia</i> s	: Mining Lea Draina stone Pe Whi c Oth speckii shrubla	se Valley  Gully  Gully  Gully  Geline  Vector	Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge F obles Gravel Grey
owner/manag getop 🗹 tcrop 🗆 Ridge 🗆 oreak 🗆 rite 🗖 Sand 🗖 Red 🗹 Moist 📮 FICATION ( c. luteolus low :	er present during Clif Breakawa Sand Dun Othe Granite Granite Loan Orang Inundate (Muir's): Acacia w open shrublan	g insp ff uy ue er ff er ff ff for for for for for for	ection: L Specify: Dolerite Coars Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	Slope ow Plain Flat Lime e Gravel Clay Yellow Saline te and Acacia s	Drainag stone	Valley Gully geline Other: BII Peb eat ite her:	Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge F obles Gravel Grey Grey
getop 🗹 terop 🗆 Ridge 🗆 oreak 🗖 rite 🗍 Sand 🗖 Red 🗹 Moist 📮 FICATION ( c. luteolus low :	Clif Breakawa Sand Dun Othe Granite Stones Loan Orang Inundated (Muir's): <i>Acacia</i> w open shrubland	ff iy ie ie ie ie ie ie ie ie	L Specify: Dolerite I Coars Dry I Veld Rang r Aristida	Slope ow Plain Flat Lime e Gravel Clay Yellow Saline e and Acacia s	Draina stone Pe Whi c Oth speckii shrubla	Valley  Gully  Gully  Gully  Gully  Gully  Petropy  Gulter:  Gulte	Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge F obles Gravel Grey
Ridge  Ri	Breakawa Sand Dun Othe Granite Stones Loan Orang Inundate (Muir's): <i>Acacia</i> w open shrublan	iy ine ine ine ine ine ine ine ine	L Specify: Dolerite C Coars Dry C Dry C Veld Rang r Aristida	ow Plain Flat Flat Lime e Gravel Clay Yellow Saline ge and Acacia s	Drainay stone 🗆 Pe Whi e 🗖 Otl speckii shrubla	Gully geline Other: BI Peb eat ite her:	Riverbank Lake Edge F obles Gravel Grey Grey
Ridge	Sand Dun Othe Granite Stones Loan Orang Inundated (Muir's): <i>Acacia</i> w open shrubland	ne 🗆 er 🗇 m 🗖 ge 🗹 d 🗇 v sp. V d over	Specify: Dolerite ( Coarse Dry ( Veld Rang r Aristida	Flat  Flat  Lime e Gravel  Flat Clay  Flat Saline ge and Acacia s	Drainag stone 🗆 Pe Whi e 🗖 Otl speckii shrubla	geline  Other: BI Pet cat  her:	Lake Edge □ F obles ☑ Gravel □ Grey □
oreak rite Sand Red Moist FICATION ( <i>c. luteolus</i> low:	Othe Granite Stones Loan Orang Inundate (Muir's): <i>Acacia</i> w open shrubland	er 🗆 I ge 🗹 d 🗖 v sp. V d over	Specify: Dolerite Coars Dry Coars Dry C	□ Lime e Gravel ☑ Clay ☑ Yellow □ □ Saline ge and Acacia s	stone □ Pe Whi e □ Otl speckii shrubla	Other: BI Peb eat ite her:	F obles ⊠ Gravel □ Grey □
rite Sand Sand Red Moist FICATION ( Luteolus low	Granite □ Stones ☑ Loan Orang Inundate (Muir's): <i>Acacia</i> w open shrublan	n 🗖 ge 🗹 d 🗖 v sp. V d over	Dolerite [ Coars Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	☐ Lime e Gravel ☑ Clay ☑ Yellow ☐ ☐ Saline ge and <i>Acacia</i> s	stone □ Pe Whi ::: □ Otl speckii shrubla	Other: BI Peb eat 🗖 ite 🗖 her:	F obles ⊠ Gravel □ Grey □
Sand Sand Red Moist FICATION ( <i>c. luteolus</i> low	Stones 🗹 Loan Orang Inundate (Muir's): <i>Acacia</i> w open shrublan	n □ ge ☑ d □ a sp. V d over	Coarse Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	e Gravel 🗹 Clay 🗹 Yellow 🗖 🗇 Saline e and Acacia s	Pe Whi ≇ <b>□</b> Otl speckii shrubla	Peb eat	obles ⊠ Gravel □ Grey □
Sand Red Moist FICATION (	Loan Orang Inundate (Muir's): <i>Acacia</i> w open shrublan	m 🗆 ge 🗹 ed 🗖 a sp. V ed over	Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	Clay 🗹 Yellow 🗖 🚽 Saline ge and <i>Acacia</i> s	Pe Whi e <b>□</b> Otl speckii shrubla	eat 🗆 ite 🗖 her:	Gravel □ Grey □
Red ☑ Moist □ FICATION ( c. luteolus lov :	Orang Inundate (Muir's): <i>Acacia</i> w open shrublan	d □ d □ sp. V d over	Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	Yellow 🗖 🚽 Saline ge and Acacia s	Whi Dtl <i>speckii</i> shrubla	ite 🗖	Grey 🗖
Moist D FICATION ( luteolus lov .:	Inundated (Muir's): <i>Acacia</i> w open shrubland	d 🗖 a sp. V d over	Dry [ Veld Rang r Aristida	Saline	e 🗖 Otl speckii shrubla	her:	
FICATION (	(Muir's): Acacia w open shrublan	sp. V	veld Rang	e and Acacia s	speckii shrubla		
E: Clonal Native bee	e, or no attempt Flower bu s Hor Healthy	made ad 🗖 ney be	to count p Flower ees 🗖 Moderate	olants) Dimmat. Other inse Other Poor	fruit 🗆 Frui ects 🗇 Dist	it 🗖 Ol Birds urbed 🗖	ld Fruit  Vegetat Mammals Comment:
: Firel ase I F Not known quired I No nclude action	breaks  Merescribed Burni Merescribed Burni Fenced t Required  taken/required)	Mining ing [ 19_ P ):	g ☑ I Othe _ S Req resent □	Recreation er Com ummer uired Required	Roadwor ment: Autumn D Replace/Re Re	ks 🗆 Win pair 🗖 pplace 🗖	Grazing ☑ Wee ter □ Spring □ Reposition □
Regio	onal Herb. 🗆 Mudmap 🗖 ffice 🗖 🛛 E	Dist Distric	rict Herb. Illustratio t Office [ nment]	WA I WA I O T O T O T O T O T O T O T O T O T O	Herb. ☑ Photo □ er □ Spec :: 26/02/2009	Other 🗖 Field N cify:	lotes 🗖
	: Fire ase 1 Not known quired 1 No nclude action Regional O	: Firebreaks I M ase I Prescribed Burn Not known I Burnt in quired I Fenced Not Required I nclude action taken/required Regional Herb. I Tap I Mudmap I Regional Office I I 722ph2-AC-03 (ecologia E	<ul> <li>Firebreaks  Mining ase  Prescribed Burning </li> <li>Not known  Burnt in 19</li> <li>quired  Fenced </li> <li>Required  P</li> <li>Not Required  P</li> <li>nclude action taken/required):</li> <li>Regional Herb.  Dist</li> <li>Mudmap  D</li> <li>Regional Office  Distric</li> <li>722ph2-AC-03 (ecologia Environ</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Firebreaks  Mining  C</li> <li>ase  Prescribed Burning  Other Not known  E Burnt in 19 Sequired  Fenced  Required  Required  Present  nclude action taken/required):</li> <li>Regional Herb.  District Herb.</li> <li>Mudmap  Illustration Regional Office  District Office  722ph2-AC-03 (ecologia Environment)</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Firebreaks  Mining  Recreation </li> <li>ase  Prescribed Burning  Other  Com Not known  Burnt in 19 Summer </li> <li>quired  Fenced  Required </li> <li>Required  Present  Required </li> <li>not Required  Present  Required </li> <li>nclude action taken/required):</li> <li></li></ul>	<ul> <li>Firebreaks Mining Recreation Roadwor ase Prescribed Burning Other Comment:</li> <li>Not known Burnt in 19 Summer Autumn curved</li> <li>Fenced Required Required Replace/Re</li> <li>Not Required Present Required Replace/Re</li> <li>nclude action taken/required):</li> <li>Regional Herb. District Herb. WA Herb. Mathematical Spectrum</li> <li>Mudmap Hillustration Photo Regional Office District Office Other Spectrum</li> <li>722ph2-AC-03 (ecologia Environment)</li> </ul>	:       Firebreaks       Mining       Recreation       Roadworks         ase       Prescribed Burning       Other       Comment:         Not known       Burnt in 19       Summer       Autumn       Win         squired       Fenced       Required       Replace/Repair       Image: Summer       Autumn       Win         squired       Fenced       Required       Replace/Repair       Image: Summer       Replace/Repair       Image: Summer       Image: Summer       Replace/Repair       Image: Summer       Image:



#### KARE FLOKA KEPOKI FOKM

TAXON: Acacia sp DRF	eckii R.S.Cowan & Prio	& Maslin prity Species: P3	Partia	DEFL POPULA al Survey D	ATION No.: Full Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Scott Hitch	cock 722ph2-SH-	1 (ecologia Enviro	nment)	TITLE: Botan	ist SURVE	Y DATE: 20/04/2007
<b>REGION:</b> Murchi	son DISTR	ICT:		SHIRE:		
LOCATION: Weld	l Range					
CPS LOCATION.	501 563572 mF	7018064 mN				
CPS DATUM:	AGD84	GDA94 T	DA94-C	ompatible (e.g. WC	(\$84) 🕅 🛛 Unk	nown 🗖 None 🗖
LAND STATUS.	Notura Pacaru		Drivata	Gravel		Rail Pasarya
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve	a Dest	r il vaic	Gravel	Res Shire	Rd Verge Shire
	State Fores		UCL	□ Other	Shire Res.	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	e 🗖 Other		Specify: M	lining Lease	
	Landowner/manage	er present during ins	spection:		0	
LANDFORM:	Hillton 🗖	Cliff 🗖		Midslope 2	Valley [	Swamp
Lini (bi onini	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway		Low Plain	Gully	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	0	Flat 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Other 🗆	Specify	1.		in the second
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite	□ Limesto	ne 🗖 Other: F	errous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Stones/Boulders		Gravel 🗹	P	ebbles 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand Z	Loam 🗆	1	Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange 🗹	1	Yellow 🗖	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist 🗖	Inundated 🗆	Dry	□ Saline □	Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P	Mature: if unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bee: ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings: , or no attempt mad I Flower bud I s I Honey b Healthy I	Dead: e to coun Flow bees D Modera	Actual t plants) fer I Immat. frui Other insects te I Poor I	Estimate it  Fruit  Fruit  Gruit  Gruit	Area Occupied: Dld Fruit 🗆 Vegetative 🗹 s 🗇 Mammals 🗇 Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARH OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Firel Disease ☐ F Not known Not Required ☐ KERS: Not NTS (include action	oreaks  Minin rescribed Burning Burnt in 19_ Fenced  Required  taken/required):	ng 🗹 🗖 Ot Re Present f	Recreation her Comme Summer / cquired F Required C	Roadworks 🗆 nt: Autumn 🗇 Wi Replace/Repair 🗇 Replace 🗆	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ inter □ Spring □ I Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitche	MEN: Regio Map 🗖 Regional Of cock 722ph2-SH-1	nal Herb. 🗖 Dis Mudmap 🗖 fice 🗖 Distr I ( <i>ecologia</i> Environ	strict Herl Illustrat ict Office ument)	b.  WA Her ion  Pho Other Date: 2	b. ☑ Other □ to □ Field □ Specify: 6/02/2009	Notes
Please	NOTE: Maj return completed form	<i>v or further information</i> to Director General,	on may be DEC, Loc	attached or given on ked Bag 104, BENTI	the back of this form .EY DELIVERY CE	NTRE WA 6983

RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH



#### KARE FLORA REPORT FORM

FROM: Scott Hitch	Pri	ority Species: P3	B Part	ial Survey	Full Survey	New Population
	cock 722ph3-SH-	07 (ecologia En	vironment)	TITLE: Bota	anist SURV	EY DATE: 04/07/2008
<b>REGION: Murchis</b>	on	DISTRICT			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range, proposed	Haul Road				
<b>GPS LOCATION: 5</b>	50J – 570265 mE,	7026936 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-0	Compatible (e.g. V	VGS84) ☑ U	nknown 🗖 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve	e 🗖	Privat	te 🗖 Grav	el Res. MRD 🗖	Rail Reserve 🗖
	National Parl	k 🗖 🛛 P	astoral Leas	e 🗹 Grav	vel Res. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fores	at 🗖	UC	L 🗖 🛛 Oth	ner Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	e 🗖 🛛 0	ther 🗹	Specify:	Mining Lease	
	Landowner/manag	er present during	g inspection			
LANDFORM: Mine	or Channel	Clif	f 🗆	Slope 🗖	Valley	Swamp
	Outcrop	Breakaway		Low Plain	Gully	□ Riverbank □
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Flat Plain Ø	Drainageline	□ Lake Edge □
	Firebreak	Other		fy:		
ROCK TVPF	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerit		tone 🗖 Other	
ROCK FORM	Sheet	Boulder	Dolente	Gravel 🗹	tone D Other.	Pebbles 🕅
SOIL TYPE.	Sand M	Loan			Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:		Orange	2	Vellow 🗖	White	Grav T
SOIL CONDITION	Moist	Inundated			Other:	Grey D
Viarkey & S. Dillon 2 Eremophila exilifolia open herbs over Cvm.	and Grevillea inco	ver Acacia ramu onspicua low ope verv open tusso	en shrublanc ck grasslanc	lophylla open heat dover Duperreya d d	h over Calytrix des commixta climbers	<i>olata</i> low shrubland over over <i>Goodenia tenuiloba</i> very
ASSOCIATED SPE	CIES:					-
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO	CIES: Mature: f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings: , or no attempt r G Flower but s G Hon Healthy G	Dead: nade to cou d ☑ Flo ey bees □ Moder	Actual nt plants) wer D Immat. fr Other insec ate D Poor	Estimate      Estimate      Fruit      Bin      Disturbed	Area Occupied: Old Fruit D Vegetative B rds D Mammals D Comment:
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatic CONDITION OF PO POTENTIAL THRE Salinity □ FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	CIES: Mature: f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: DPULATION:  DPULATION:  Disease □ P Not known ot Required □ ERS: Not TS (include action	Seedlings: e, or no attempt r G Flower bud s G Hon Healthy G Prescribed Burnin G Burnt in Fenced ( Required G taken/required):	Dead: nade to courd d I Flo ey bees I Moder Moder	Actual nt plants) wer I Immat. fr Other insec ate Poor ate Poor Recreation I Comm Summer I cequired I Required	Estimate      Estimate      Fruit      Bin      Disturbed      Roadworks      Roadworks      Replace/Repair      Replace	Area Occupied: Old Fruit D Vegetative B rds D Mammals D Comment: Grazing Ø Weeds D Winter D Spring D Reposition D
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatic CONDITION OF PO POTENTIAL THRE Salinity □ FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN' VOUCHER SPECIM ATTACHED:	CIES:	Seedlings: e, or no attempt r G Flower bud s G Hon Healthy G Dreaks G M Prescribed Burnin G Burnt in Fenced ( Required G taken/required): nal Herb. G	Dead: made to courd d D Florey bees D Moder Moder Inning D ng D C 19 R Present District Her Illustra	Actual nt plants) wer I Immat. fr Other insec ate Poor Recreation I Other Comm Summer I cequired I Required I WA Hattion I Plants	Estimate  Cuit  Fruit  Fruit  Bin  Disturbed  Roadworks  Roadworks  Replace/Repair  Replace  replace  Replace  Fiel  Cutor  Cu	Area Occupied: Old Fruit D Vegetative B rds Mammals D Comment: Grazing Weeds D Winter Spring D Reposition D
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatic CONDITION OF PO POTENTIAL THRE Salinity □ FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN' VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Sinced, Sect 10: 1	CIES: Mature: f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: DPULATION: CATS: Firet Disease □ P Not known ot Required □ ERS: Not TS (include action Map □ Regional Of Regional Of	Seedlings: e, or no attempt r G Flower bud s G Hon Healthy G Prescribed Burnin Merescribed Burnin Fenced ( Required G taken/required): nal Herb. G Mudmap G fice G Di	Dead: made to courd d D Flo ey bees D Moder Inning D ng D C 19 R Present District Her Illustra istrict Office	Actual nt plants) wer Immat. fr Other insec ate Poor Recreation I Common Summer C Common Summer C Required I Required I WA Here tion Pressor	Estimate  Estimate  Estimate  Fruit  Fruit Fruit  Fruit Fru	Area Occupied: Old Fruit D Vegetative B rds D Mammals D Comment: Grazing Ø Weeds D Winter D Spring D Reposition D d Notes D
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatic CONDITION OF PO POTENTIAL THRE Salinity □ FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK DTHER COMMENT VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO; Signed: Scott Hitchco	CIES: Mature: f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: DPULATION: CATS: Firet Disease □ P Not known ot Required □ ERS: Not TS (include action Map □ Regional Of pck 722ph3-SH-07	Seedlings: e, or no attempt r G Flower bud s G Hon Healthy G Dreaks G M Prescribed Burnin G Burnt in Fenced 1 Required G taken/required): nal Herb. G Mudmap G fice G Di <i>(ecologia</i> Envi	Dead: nade to courd d I Florey ey bees I Moder Inning I C 19 R Present District Her Illustra istrict Office ronment)	Actual nt plants) wer I Immat. fr Other insec ate Poor Recreation I Other Comm Summer C cequired I Required I WA Hattion Press Poor Date:	Estimate □ ruit □ Fruit □ cts □ Bin Disturbed Roadworks □ Roadworks □ nent: Autumn □ W Replace/Repair □ Replace erb. ☑ Other noto □ Fiel Specify: _ 25/02/2009	Area Occupied: Old Fruit D Vegetative E rds D Mammals D Comment: Grazing Ø Weeds D Winter Spring D Reposition D
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatic CONDITION OF PO POTENTIAL THRE Salinity □ FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK DTHER COMMENT VOUCHER SPECIM ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitchco	CIES: Mature: f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:  CATS: Firet Disease □ P Not known ot Required □ ERS: Not TS (include action  Map □ Regional Of pck 722ph3-SH-07 NOTE: Mar	Seedlings: e, or no attempt r G Flower bud s G Hon Healthy G Prescribed Burnin Merescribed Burnin Fenced 10 Required G taken/required): nal Herb. G Mudmap G fice G Di <i>(ecologia</i> Envi <i>co or further inform</i>	Dead: made to cound d I Flo ey bees I Moder Inning I C 19 C 19 R Present District Her Illustra istrict Office ronment) mation may be	Actual nt plants) wer I Immat. fr Other insec ate Poor Recreation D Definer Comm Summer D Comme Summer Market rb. WA Harket rb. WA Harket we WA Harket tion Present Pate: Patter Actual	Estimate  uit  Fruit  Estimate  uit  Fruit  Bin Disturbed Roadworks  Noto  Fiel Specify: 25/02/2009 on the back of this for	Area Occupied: Old Fruit D Vegetative E rds D Mammals D Comment: Grazing Ø Weeds D Winter D Spring D Reposition D d Notes D

TAXON: Acacia sp DRF	eckii R.S.Cowan & Pric	& Maslin rity Species: P3	DEFL Partia	POPULATION	No.: Full Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Joshua Gil	ovitz 722ph3-CG-	)3 (ecologia Envi	ronment)	TITLE: Botan	ist SURVEY DAT	E: 04/07/2008
<b>REGION:</b> Murchise	on	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range, proposed	Haul Road				
<b>GPS LOCATION: 5</b>	0J - 567863 mE, 7	025267 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	mpatible (e.g. W	GS84) 🗹 Unkn	own 🗆 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private	Grave	Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Park	D Pas	toral Lease	🗹 Grave	el Res. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire 🗖
	State Forest		UCL	□ Othe	er Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	Oth Oth	er 🗹	Specify: M	Mining Lease	
	Landowner/manage	r present during in	spection: [			
PLEASE NOTE: Of	oportunistic collec	tion therefore cer	tain infor	nation unavailab	ble	
LANDFORM:	Hillton 🗖	Cliff	7	Slope 🗖	Valley 🗖	Swamp
	Outerop 🗖	Breakaway	7	Low Plain	Gully	Riverbank 🗖
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Flat 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other	J Specify		Stating States =	
POCK TVPF	Laterite 🗖	Granite 🗖	Dolerite	□ Limest	one 🗖 Other:	
ROCK FORM	Sheet	Boulder	Fluviatil	e Gravel 🗖	Concretionary Gr	avel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	Loam		Clay 🗖	Peat	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Brown	7	Yellow	White	Grev 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	Moist	Inundated	Drv	Saline D	D Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF POL	Mature:S f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings: , or no attempt ma Flower bud f Healthy	Dead: de to count Flow bees Moderat	Actual plants) er I Immat. fru Other insect e Poor I	Estimate  A  A  A  A  A  A  A  A  A  A  A  A  A	d Fruit  Vegetative  Mammals Comment:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fireb Disease  P Not known lot Required  D ERS: Not TS (include action	reaks  Mir rescribed Burning Burnt in 19 Fenced  Required  taken/required):	ing ☑ □ Ot Re Present □	Recreation her Comm Summer quired Required	Roadworks 🗆 ent: Autumn 🗆 Wim Replace/Repair 🗖 ] Replace 🗖	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ ter □ Spring □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECIA ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Joshua Gilov	MEN: Region Map Regional Of /itz 722ph3-CG-03	nal Herb.	Vistrict Herl Illustrat rict Office onment)	<ul> <li>WA He</li> <li>WA He</li> <li>Photocome</li> <li>Other</li> <li>Date: 1</li> </ul>	erb. 2 Other oto Specify: 25/02/2009	otes 🗖
Please r	eturn completed form	to Director Genera	, DEC, Loci	ced Bag 104, BENT	LEY DELIVERY CEN	FRE WA 6983

RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH

Associated Species	Coordinates	Nearest Named Location	Determinavit	Date	Collector	Species
Acacia aneura var. microcarpa, Acacia sp. Weld Range, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Calytrix desolata, Eremophila exilifolia, Grevillea inconspicua, Duperreya commixta, Goodenia tenuiloba, Cymbopogon ambiguus.	570265 mE, 7026936 mN (Zone = 50J, Datum = WGS84)	Weld Range, proposed Haul Road	Peter Jobson	04/07/2008	Scott Hitchcock 722ph3-SH-28 (ecologia Environment)	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)



## RARE FLORA REPORT FORM

TAXON: Baeckea	sp. Melita Station ( Pric	H. Pringle 2738) brity Species: P3	DI Partial Sur	EFL POPULA	TION No.:	New Population
FROM: Amy Capo	bianco 722ph2-AC	-01 (ecologia Envi	ronment)	TITLE: Botan	ist SURV	EY DATE: 20/04/2007
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	son	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Web	l Range					
GPS LOCATION:	50J – 563088 mE, 7	7020263 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖 🛛 G	DA94-Compa	tible (e.g. WGS	584) 🗹 U	nknown 🗖 🛛 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private 🗖	Gravel F	Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Park	D Pastor	al Lease 🗹	Gravel I	Res. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Forest		UCL	Other S	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	D Other	Ø	Specify: Mi	ning Lease	
	Landowner/manage	r present during insp	pection:			
LANDFORM:	Footslope 🗹	Cliff 🗖		Slope	Valley	Swamp
	Outcrop	Breakaway	Low	Plain	Gully	
	Ridge <b>T</b>	Sand Dune		Flat 🗖	Drainageline	
	Firebreak	Other 🗖	Specify:		Strain Strain	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite	Dolerite <b>П</b>	Limeston	Other	Ferrous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder	1	Gravel 🗹		Pebbles 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗖	Loam 🗖	(	lav 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange 🗹	Yel	low 🗖	White	Grev 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist	Inundated 🗖	Dry 🗖	Saline 🗖	Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P	Mature: S if unable to observe. STATE: Clonal I Native bees ons: OPULATION:	ieedlings: or no attempt made Flower bud Honey b Healthy	Dead: to count plan Flower 🗆 ees 🗇 Moderate 🗖	Actual C ts) Immat. fruit Other insects Poor C	Estimate 🗖 Fruit 🗖 Bir Disturbed	Area Occupied: Old Fruit  Vegetative ds  Mammals Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: 1 ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fireb Disease  P Not known I Not Required  C KERS: Not KTS (include action	reaks  Minin rescribed Burning	g 🗹 Rec Other 1 Sumi Require Present 🗆	creation Comment ner Au d Required C	Roadworks 🗖 t: itumn 🗖 V place/Repair 🗖 Replace	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 Vinter 🗆 Spring 🗖 I Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI	MEN: Region Map D Regional Of	nal Herb. 🗖 Disi Mudmap 🗖 Distric	Illustration	WA Herb	☐ Other ☐ Fiel Specify:	□ d Notes □
	Regional Of	Distin	on on the La	Other D	speeny.	
Signed: Amy Capob	ianco 722ph2-AC-0 NOTE: Map	01 (ecologia Enviro	nment) n may be attack	Date: 26/	02/2009 ne back of this for	m.
Department of Environment an	d Conservation	RAR	E FLO	RAR	EPORT F	ORM
---	---	---	--	--	---------------------------------------	------------------------------------
TAXON: Baeckea	r sp. Melita Station (H Priorit	. Pringle 2738) by Species: P3	DE Partial Surve	FL POPULA	TION No.:	ew Population
FROM: Jeremy N	aaykens 722ph2-JN-0	2 (ecologia Env	ironment) T	ITLE: Botan	ist SURVEY DA	ATE: 18/04/2007
<b>REGION: Murchi</b>	son	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: We	ld Range					
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 573888 mE, 702	27108 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖 🛛 GI	DA94 🗖 🛛 🔾	GDA94-Compatil	le (e.g. WGS	(S84) 🗹 Unknow	n 🗖 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve	1	Private 🗖	Gravel R		Pail Pasama
	National Park	D Pasto	oral Lease 🗹	Gravel I	Res Shire	Rd Verge Shire
	State Forest	]	UCL	Other S	Shire Res.	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	D Other	r 🗹	Specify: Mi	ning Lease	tu. reige mito 🖬
	Landowner/manager p	present during ins	spection:		8	
PLEASE NOTE: C	Opportunistic collectio	n therefore cert	ain information	unavailable		
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff 🗖	I SI	one 🗖	Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway	Low Pl	ain 🗖	Gully	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		lat 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Other	Specify:		Drainagenne 🖸	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗖 🛛 🔾	iranite 🗖	Dolerite	Limestone	Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖 🛛 B	oulder 🗖	Fluviatile Grave		Concretionary Grave	
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗖	Loam 🗖	Cla	y 🗖	Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Brown	Yello	v 🗖	White	Grev
SOIL CONDITION	N: Moist 🗖	Inundated 🗖	Dry 🗖	Saline 🗖	Other:	
No. of PLANTS:	Mature: See	dlings:	Dead:	Actual 🗖	Estimate 🗖 Area	Occupied:
CONDITION OF P	TATE: Clonal Native bees OPULATION:	no attempt made Flower bud 🗖 Honey b Healthy 🗖	e to count plants) Flower 🗆 bees 🗇 C Moderate 🗖	Immat. fruit f ther insects f Poor 🗖	Fruit D Old F Birds D	ruit  Vegetative  Mammals Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Firebrea Disease D Prese Not known D Not Required C KERS: Not Rec NTS (include action take	ks D Minin cribed Burning D Burnt in 19_ Fenced D quired D F en/required):	g Ø Recre ☐ Other ☐ _ Summe Required Present ☐ R	ation	Roadworks	zing 🗹 Weeds 🗆
VOUCHER SPECI	MEN: Regional	Herb. 🗖 Dist	trict Herb. 🗖	WA Herb.	☑ Other □	
ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	Map 🗇 Mu Regional Office	idmap 🗖 🔲 Distric	Illustration 🗖	Photo Other 🗖	Field Notes Specify:	
Signed: Jeremy Naa	ykens 722ph2-JN-02 (a	ecologia Enviro	nment)	D	Date: 26/02/2009	
Please r	NOTE: Map or , return completed form to I	<i>further information</i> Director General, D	n may be attached DEC, Locked Bag 1	or given on the 04. BENTLEY	back of this form. DELIVERY CENTRE	WA 6983



TAXON: Baeckea	sp. Melita Station Pri	(H. Pringle 2738) ority Species: P3	D Partial Su	EFL POPULA	TION No.:	New Population
FROM: Scott Hite	hcock 722ph1-SH-	13 (ecologia Environ	ment) T	ITLE: Botanist	SURVEY	DATE: 09/11/2006
<b>REGION:</b> Murchi	son	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Web	d Range					
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 548351 mE,	7015088 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖 🛛 GE	A94-Compa	tible (e.g. WGS	584) 🗹 Unkn	own 🗆 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserv	e 🗖	Private 🗖	Gravel R	les. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Par	k 🗖 Pastora	al Lease 🗹	Gravel I	Res. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fores	it 🗖	UCL 🗖	Other S	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserv	e 🗖 Other	M	Specify: Mi	ning Lease	
	Landowner/manag	er present during insp	ection: 🗖			
LANDFORM:	Hill crest 🗹	Cliff 🗖	Hill	slope 🗹	Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway	Low	Plain 🗖	Gully 🗖	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Flat 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other 🗖	Specify:			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖 🛛 🛛	olerite 🗖	Limestone	• D Other: BI	F, non-banded Ferrous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗹	Stones/Bould	ers 🗹	Coarse Grav	vel 🗹	
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗹	Loam 🗖	(	Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange 🗹	Ye	llow 🗖	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	N: Moist 🗖	Inundated 🗖	Dry 🗖	Saline 🗖	Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observat	Mature: if unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bee	Seedlings: e, or no attempt made I Flower bud I s I Honey be	Dead: to count plar Flower 🗆 es 🗖	Actual tts) Immat. fruit Other insects	Estimate  A Fruit  O O Birds	Area Occupied: d Fruit 🗆 Vegetative 🗹 🗖 Mammals 🗖
CONDITION OF F	POPULATION:	Healthy 🗖	Moderate 🗖	Poor 🗖	Disturbed 🗖	Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMME	EATS: Fire Disease I I Not known Not Required I KERS: No NTS (include action	oreaks D Mining Prescribed Burning D Burnt in 19 Fenced D t Required D Pr taken/required):	g ☑ Re Other Sum Requir resent □	creation  Comment mer  Au ed  Required	Roadworks 🗆 t: utumn 🗇 Win place/Repair 🗇 Replace 🗖	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ ter □ Spring □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	MEN: Regio Map 🗖 Regional O	nal Herb. 🗖 Distr Mudmap 🗖 ffice 🗖 District	ict Herb.	WA Herb.	<ul> <li>☑ Other □</li> <li>□ Field N Specify:</li> </ul>	lotes 🗖
Signed: Scott Hitch	cock 722ph1-SH-1	3 (ecologia Environn	nent)	Date: 26/	02/2009	
	NOTE: Ma	n or further information	may be attac	hed or given on th	e back of this form	

NOTE: Map or further information may be attached or given on the back of this form.

Please return completed form to Director General, DEC, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983

	Department of Environment and	Conservation
CRN AUX		

TAXON: Baeckea	sp. Melita Station Prio	(H. Pringle 2738) prity Species: P3	Partial	DEFL POP Survey □	ULATION No.: Full Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Scott Hitel	hcock 722ph1-SH-I	2 (ecologia Envir	onment)	TITLE: Bo	tanist SUR	VEY DATE: 12/11/2006
<b>REGION:</b> Murchi	son	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Web	d Range					
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 562050 mE,	7019840 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Cor	npatible (e.g.	WGS84) ☑ U	Jnknown 🗖 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private	Gr	avel Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Parl	Pas	toral Lease	S Gr	avel Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fores	t 🗖	UCL.	<b>7</b> 0	ther Shire Res.	Rd Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	Oth	er 🕅	Specif	v Mining Lease	
	Landowner/manage	er present during i	spection:	Speen	j. orning Deuse	
	Landownen/manage	er present during i				
LANDFORM:	Hilltop	Cliff		Slope []	Valley	Swamp 🗆
	Outcrop 🗆	Breakaway		ow Plain	Gully	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	□ Minor	Channel M	Drainageline	□ Lake Edge □
	Firebreak	Other	□ Specify:			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗹	Dolerite 1	Lim	estone 🗖 Other	: Ferrous, ?Calcrete
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗹	Fine	Gravel 🗹	Coars	se Gravel 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand Z	Loam		Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange	2	Yellow 🗆	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	N: Moist	Inundated	Dry 1	J Salir	ne 🗖 Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P	Mature: if unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings: , or no attempt ma Flower bud f s Honey Healthy	Dead: de to count p Flower bees	Actua blants) r 🗖 Immat. Other ins	I 🗆 Estimate 🗆 fruit 🗆 Fruit 🗆 sects 🗖 B r 🗊 Disturbed	Area Occupied: Old Fruit   Vegetative irds   Mammals
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARE OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fireh Disease □ P Not known Not Required □ KERS: Not NTS (include action	oreaks  Mir Prescribed Burning Burnt in 19 Fenced  Required  taken/required):	ing ☑ □ Oth S Req Present □	Recreation er Cor ummer uired Required	I Roadworks □ nment: Autumn □ Replace/Repair 1 d □ Replace	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 Winter 🗆 Spring 🗆 🗋 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitch	MEN: Regio Map 🗇 Regional Of	nal Herb. 🗆 D Mudmap 🗆 fice 🗖 Dist	istrict Herb. Illustratic rict Office [	WA WA Oth	Herb. 🗹 Other Photo 🗆 Fie her 🗖 Specify: Date: 26/02/20	Id Notes
Signed, scort finem	NOTE: Maj	v or further informa	tion may be at	tached or give	n on the back of this fo	rm.

Department of Environment and	Conservation	RARE	FLOR	RA RE.	PORTI	FORM
TAXON: Beyeria I DRF	apidicola Halford a Pric	& R.J.F.Hend. brity Species: P2	Partial Survey	DEFL POP	ULATION No.: Survey	New Population
FROM: Scott Hite	ncock /22pn3-SH-	DISTRICT.	nent) IIIL	E. Botanist	SURVET DA	TE: 10/07/2008
LOCATION: Wel	son d Range, proposed	Borrow Pits		50		
CPS LOCATION.	50.1 - 573604 mF	7032170 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 GD GD/	94-Compatible	e (e.g. WGS84	) 🗹 Unkno	wn 🗆 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private	Gravel Res.	MRD 🗖	Rail Reserve
	National Parl	Pastoral	Lease 🗹	Gravel Res.	Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fores	t 🗖	UCL	Other Shir	e Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	e 🗖 Other 🗹	1 5	Specify: Minin	g Lease	
	Landowner/manage	er present during inspec	ction: 🗖			
PLEASE NOTE: O	pportunistic collec	tion therefore certain	information u	navailable		
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff 🗖	Slop	e 🗖	Valley 🗖	Swamp
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway 🗖	Low Plai	in 🗖	Gully 🗖	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	Fla	at 🗖 🛛 Di	rainage line 🗹	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak 🗖	Other 🗖 S	pecify:			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖 Do	lerite	Limestone	Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗖 🛛 Fl	uviatile Gravel	<b>D</b> C	oncretionary Gra	vel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗖	Loam 🗖	Clay		Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Brown	Yellow		White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	N: Moist 🗖	Inundated 🗖	Dry 🗖	Saline 🗖	Other:	
ASSOCIATED SPI	Mature:	Seedlings: I	Dead:	Actual 🗖 Esi	timate 🗖 Ar	ea Occupied:
(Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observations of F	if unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	, or no attempt made to Flower bud Honey been Healthy M	count plants) Flower	mmat. fruit 🗆 her insects 🗖 Poor 🗖	Fruit D Old Birds Disturbed	Fruit  Vegetative  Mammals Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI	EATS: Fireb Disease D P Not known Not Required D KERS: Not	oreaks  Mining rescribed Burning Burnt in 19 Fenced Required Pre	<ul> <li>Recreat</li> <li>Other</li> <li>Summer</li> <li>Required</li> <li>sent</li> <li>Re</li> </ul>	tion 🗆 Roa Comment: 🔲 Autur ] Repla quired 🗖	idworks 🗆 G nn 🗆 Winte ce/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗖	razing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 r 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI	MEN: Regio	nal Herb. 🗖 🛛 Distric	et Herb. 🗖	WA Herb. 🗹	f Other 🗖	
ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	Map 🗖 Regional Of	Mudmap 🗖 II fice 🗇 District (	lustration 🗖 Office 🗖	Photo 🗖 Other 🗖	Field No Specify:	tes 🗖
Signed: Scott Hitch	cock 722ph3-SH-05	( <i>ecologia</i> Environme	nt)	Date: 25/02/	2009	
	NOTE: Map	o or further information n	nay be attached o	r given on the b	ack of this form.	101 Mill Street

	Department of Environment and	Conservation
1000	and a difference which	

TAXON: Beyeria I	<i>apidicola</i> Halford Pr	& R.J.F.Hend. iority Species: P2	Partia	DEFL d Survey		TION No.:	New Population
FROM: Scott Hite	hcock 722ph2-SH	-22 (ecologia Env	ironment)	TITL	E:Botanist	SURVEY DA	TE: 15/04/2007
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	on	DISTRICT:				SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Wel	d Range						
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 547792 mE,	7014738 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	ompatible	(e.g. WGS	(84) ☑ Unki	nown 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS	Nature Reserv	e T	Private	п	Gravel R	es MRD	Rail Reserve
DATE STATUS.	National Par	k 🗖 🛛 Pas	storal Lease	M	Gravel F	Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fore	st 🗖	UCL	ā	Other S	Shire Res	Rd Verge MRD
	Water Reserv		ner 🗹	S	necify Mi	ning Lease	na myrnia B
	Landowner/manag	er present during	inspection:	7	prendy and	ing sense	
LANDEODM.		our present during		Econolism	17	Veller 7	Summer D
LANDFORM:	Нипор 🗆	Chin		Footstop			Swamp 🗆
	Outcrop 🗋	Breakaway		Low Plan		Gully D	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗆	Sand Dune		Flat/Plan	1 12	Drainageline	Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Other	D Specify		-	1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗖	Granite 🗹	Dolerite		Limestone	e 🗖 Other: Fe	errous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗖	Fluviatil	e Gravel		Concretionary G	iravel 🗆
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗹	Loam		Clay	$\mathbf{\nabla}$	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange	$\square$	Yellow		White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	N: Moist 🗖	Inundated	D Dry		Saline 🗖	Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observat CONDITION OF I	Mature: if unable to observ STATE: Clonal Native bee ions: POPULATION:	Seedlings: e, or no attempt m l	Dead: ade to count	t plants) er 🗹 In Oth te 🗖	Actual  http://www.actual.com/actual/	Estimate   Fruit   O  Fruit  O  D  Disturbed	Area Occupied: Id Fruit   Vegetative Mammals Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMME	EATS: Fire Disease □ Not known Not Required □ KERS: No NTS (include action	breaks	ning 🗹 g 🗖 Ot 9 Present 🛙	Recreat her Summer equired Rec	ion 🗆 🗌 Comment 🗆 Au I Re quired 🗖	Roadworks 🗖 ttumn 🗖 Win place/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗖	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ nter □ Spring □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECI	MEN: Regi	onal Herb. 🗖 🛛 I	District Herl	o. 🗖	WA Herb.	☑ Other □	
ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	Map 🗖 Regional O	Mudmap 🗖 ffice 🗖 Dis	Illustrat trict Office	ion 🗆	Photo Other	□ Field M Specify:	Notes 🗖
Signed: Scott Hitch	cock 722ph2-SH-2	2 ( <i>ecologia</i> Envir	onment)			Date: 05/03/2009	
Please RECORDS:	NOTE: Ma return completed for PLEASE FORWAR	np or further informa m to Director Genera RD TO ADMINIST	ttion may be al, DEC, Loci RATIVE OF	attached of ked Bag 10 FICER, F	r given on th 4, BENTLE LORA, SPI	e back of this form. Y DELIVERY CEN ECIES AND COM	NTRE WA 6983 MUNITIES BRANCH

Department of Environment and	Conservation	RAR	E FLO	RA RE	PORT F	ORM
TAXON: Calytrix e DRF □ FROM: Joshua Gil REGION: Murchis LOCATION: Weld	<i>rosipetala</i> Craven Prio ovitz 722ph3-CG- on Range, proposed	rity Species: P3 3 ( <i>ecologia</i> Enviror DISTRICT: Borrow Pits East	DEFL POPU Partial Surve ament) TIT	LATION No.: y	Survey 🗹 N SURVEY D HIRE:	ew Population □ ATE: 07/07/2008
GPS LOCATION: GPS DATUM:	50J – 585158 mE, 7 AGD84 □	033155 mN GDA94 □ GE	0A94-Compatib	le (e.g. WGS84	) 🗖 Unknow	vn 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve National Park State Forest Water Reserve Landowner/manage	Pastora Pastora Other r present during insp	Private  Pri	Gravel Res Gravel Res Other Shi Specify: Minin	. MRD □ s. Shire □ re Res. □ ng Lease	Rail Reserve □ Rd. Verge Shire □ Rd. Verge MRD □
LANDFORM:	Ridgetop ☑ Outcrop □ Ridge □ Firebreak □	Cliff Breakaway Sand Dune Other	Slo Low Pl F Specify	ope 🗆 ain 🗖 Tat 🗆 I y: Plateau aboy	Valley 🗖 Gully 🗖 Drainageline 🗖 re breakaway	Swamp 🗖 Riverbank 🗖 Lake Edge 🗖
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗹 🛛 🛛	Dolerite	Limestone	D Other:	
<b>ROCK FORM:</b>	Sheet 🗹	Stones/Boulders		Gravel 🗹	Pebbl	es 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗹	Loam 🗖	Cla	уП	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Orange 🗹	Yellov Drv 🗖	v □ Saline □	White 🗹 Other:	Grey 🗖
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF Polling	Mature: S f unable to observe, STATE: Clonal f Native bees ons: OPULATION:	eedlings: or no attempt made I Flower bud I Honey be Healthy I	Dead: to count plants) Flower □ es □ C Moderate □	Actual 🗆 Es Immat. fruit 🗆 other insects 🖨 Poor 🗖	stimate  Are Fruit  Old  Birds  Disturbed	a Occupied: Fruit 🗇 Vegetative 🗹 Mammals 🗇 Comment:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fireb Disease  Pr Not known E Not Required ERS: Not TS (include action 1	reaks D Mining rescribed Burning D Burnt in 19 Fenced D Required D P raken/required):	d Recre Other □ Summe Required resent □ R	ation 🗆 Ro Comment:_ r 🗆 Autu I Repla Required I	adworks 🗍 Gr mn 🗇 Winter ace/Repair 🗇 Replace 🗇	azing 🗹 Weeds 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI	MEN: Regior	al Herb. 🗖 🛛 Distr	rict Herb. 🗖	WA Herb.	Dither 🗖	
ATTACHED: COPV SENT TO:	Map	Mudmap	Illustration	Photo D	Field Note	es 🗆
Signed: Joshua Gilov	vitz 722ph3-CG-13	(ecologia Environn	nent)	Date: 03/03	/2009	
Please r RECORDS: F	NOTE: Map eturn completed form PLEASE FORWARE	or further information to Director General, D TO ADMINISTRAT	may be attached EC, Locked Bag IVE OFFICER.	or given on the b 104, BENTLEY FLORA, SPEC	oack of this form. DELIVERY CENTR IES AND COMMU	E WA 6983 NITIES BRANCH

TAXON: Dodonaea	amplisemina K. Pri	A.Sheph. & Rye ority Species: P3	Partia	DEFI	Full Survey	New Population
FROM: Scott Hitch	cock 722nh1-SH	-16 (ecologia Env	ironment)	TITLE: Botar	ist SURVEY D	ATE: 11/11/2006
REGION: Murchiso	n	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range	District				
<b>GPS LOCATION: 5</b>	0J – 565758 mE	,7018550 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	ompatible (e.g. W	GS84) ☑ Unkr	nown 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reser National Pa State Fore Water Reser Landowner/mana	ve 🗆 rk 🗇 Pa est 🗇 ve 🗇 Ot ger present during	Private storal Lease UCL her Ø inspection: 1	Grave Grave Grave Othe Specify:	el Res. MRD  el Res. Shire  r Shire Res.  Mining Lease	Rail Reserve □ Rd. Verge Shire □ Rd. Verge MRD □
PLEASE NOTE: Op	portunistic colle	ection therefore co	ertain infor	mation unavailal	ble	
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗆 Outcrop 🗖 Ridge 🗖 Firebreak 🗖	Cliff Breakaway Sand Dune Other	□ □ □ □ Specify	Slope 🗖 Low Plain 🗖 Flat 🗖	Valley □ Gully □ Drainageline □	Swamp 🗖 Riverbank 🗖 Lake Edge 🗖
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite	□ Limest	one 🗖 Other:	
<b>ROCK FORM:</b>	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗖.	Fluviatil	e Gravel 🗖	Concretionary G	ravel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	Loam		Clay 🗖	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗆	Brown		Yellow 🗖	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION:	Moist 🗆	Inundated	D Dry	Saline I	Other:	
VEGETATION CLA ASSOCIATED SPEC	ASSIFICATION CIES:	(Muir's):		<u>4</u>		
No. of PLANTS: 1 (Leave blank it REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO	Mature: f unable to observ TATE: Clona Native be ns: DPULATION:	Seedlings: ve, or no attempt m l	Dead: ade to count	Actual ( plants) er I Immat. fr Other insec	Estimate  Karlender  Estimate  Fruit  O  Estimate  Disturbed	Area Occupied: Id Fruit 🗹 Vegetative 🗹 D Mammals 🗖 Comment:
POTENTIAL THRE Salinity D FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	CATS: Fin Disease Not known ot Required ERS: N TS (include actio	ebreaks  Mi Prescribed Burnin Burnt in 1 Fenced tot Required n taken/required):	ning 🗹 g 🔲 Ot 9 J Re Present [	Recreation her Comm Summer quired Required 1	Roadworks 🗆 nent: Autumn 🗆 Wir Replace/Repair 🗖 🗌 Replace 🗊	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 nter 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	1EN: Regi Map □ Regional (	onal Herb. 🗖 Mudmap 🗖 Dffice 🗍 Di	District Herl Illustrat strict Office	o.   WA Ho ion Ph Other	erb. 🗹 Other 🗖 noto 🗖 Field M 🗍 Specify:	Notes 🗖
Signed: Scott Hitchco	ock 722ph1-SH-	16 (ecologia Envir	conment)	Date:	26/02/2009	

88.425

NOTE: Map or further information may be attached or given on the back of this form.



TAXON: Dodonae DRF	a amplisemina	K.A.Sheph. & Rye Priority Species: P3	DEFL Partia	POPULA'	TION No. J Ful	: I Survey ☑	New Population	
FROM: Joshua Gi	lovitz 722ph3-	CG-06 (ecologia Envi	ironment)	TITLE:	Botanist	SURV	EY DATE: 03/07/2008	
<b>REGION: Murchis</b>	ion	DISTRICT:			S	HIRE:		
LOCATION: Wel	d Range, prop	osed Haul Road						
GPS Location: 50J	- 571730 mE,	7027665 mN						
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	ompatible (e	e.g. WGS8	34) ☑ Un	known 🗖 None 🗖	
LAND STATUS:	Nature Re	serve 🗖	Private		Gravel Re	S MRD	Rail Reserve	
Line Strices	National	Park 🗖 Pas	toral Lease	Ø	Gravel R	es. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire	
	State F	Forest	UCL	0	Other SI	nire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD	
	Water Re	serve 🗖 Oth	er 🗹	Spe	ecify: Min	ing Lease		
	Landowner/ma	anager present during i	nspection:			B		
I ANDEODM: Crow	k had/hank	Cliff		Slone	-	Valley	Swamn 🗖	
LANDFORMI: CIER	Outeron D	Proglaway		Low Plain		Gully	Swamp     Biverbank	
		Sand Duna		Elot Dlain		Drainagaling		
	Firebreak	Other	Specifi	, riat riam	E1	Dramagenne		
DOCUMUNT		Ouler	- specify		ture .		DIE Example	_
ROCK TYPE:		Granite	Dolerite		Innestone	D Other:	BIF, Ferrous	
KOCK FORM:	Sheet []	Stones/Boulder		Gravel	1	Peobles I		
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	☑ Loam		Clay M			Gravel D	
SOIL COLOUK:	Red	☑ Orange				white	Grey D	
(Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observat CONDITION OF F	if unable to obs <b>STATE:</b> CI Native ions: POPULATION	serve, or no attempt ma onal  Flower bud bees  Honey I: Healthy	ide to count Flow bees Moderat	t plants) ver 🗖 Imm Other te 🔲 – F	nat. fruit 🛛 r insects 🖸 Poor 🗖	D Fruit D D Bird	Old Fruit  Vegetativ ds Mammals Comment:	ve 🗹
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMME	EATS: Disease Not kno Not Required ( KERS: NTS (include ac	Firebreaks  Min Prescribed Burning own  Burnt in 19 Fenced  Not Required  ction taken/required):_	ning 🗹 G Ot Market Present 1	Recreatio her	n 🗆 R Comment: I Aut Rep ired 🗖	oadworks 🗆 umn 🔲 W lace/Repair 🗖 Replace (	Grazing 🗹 Weed /inter 🗆 Spring 🗖 🗋 Reposition 🗖	s 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	MEN: R Map D Region	Regional Herb.	District Herl Illustrat	b. 🗆 V	VA Herb. Photo Other	<ul> <li>Other 1</li> <li>Other 5</li> <li>Field Specify:</li> </ul>	I Notes	
Signed: Joshua Gilo	ovitz 722ph3-C	G-06 (ecologia Envir	onment)	Date: 25/	/02/2009	-1.eeu)		
Please RECORDS:	NOTE return completed PLEASE FORV	: Map or further informa I form to Director Genera VARD TO ADMINISTI	tion may be l, DEC, Loc RATIVE OF	attached or g ked Bag 104, F <b>FICER, FL</b>	given on the BENTLEY ORA, SPE	back of this for DELIVERY CI CIES AND CO	n. ENTRE WA 6983 MMUNITIES BRANCH	

Department of Environment and	Conservation	RARE	FLORA	REPORT	FORM
TAXON: Dodonae	a amplisemina K.A.She Priority	eph. & Rye Species: P3	DEFL POPU Partial Survey	LATION No.: Full Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Scott Hite	hcock 722ph3-SH-03 (e	ecologia Environmo	ent) TITLE: Bota	Inist SURVEY	DATE: 04/07/2008
REGION: Murchis	son l	DISTRICT:		SHIRE:	
LOCATION: weld	Range, proposed Hau	Road			
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 570265 mE, 7026	936 mN			
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖 GD.	A94 🗖 GDA9	4-Compatible (e.g. V	VGS84) ☑ U	nknown 🗆 🛛 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve	Pr	vate 🗖 Grav	el Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Park	Pastoral L	ease 🗹 Grav	vel Res. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Forest		UCL 🗖 Oth	her Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	Other 🗹	Specify:	Mining Lease	
	Landowner/manager pro	esent during inspect	ion: 🗖		
LANDFORM: Min	or Channel	Cliff 🗖	Slope 🗖	Valley	Swamp
	Outcrop	Breakaway	Low Plain	Gully	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	Flat Plain 🗹	Drainageline	□ Lake Edge □
	Firebreak	Other 🗖 Sp	ecify:	0	
ROCK TVPE	Laterite 🗖 Gr	anite 🗖 🛛 Dole	rite 🗖 Limes	stone 🗖 Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet D Bo	ulder	Gravel 🗹	ione La contri	Pebbles 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 2	Loam 🗖	Clay Z	Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange 🗹	Yellow 🗖	White	Grev 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	I: Moist	Inundated	Dry 🗖 Saline	Other:	
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P	CIES:	lings: De no attempt made to o Flower bud D Honey bees lealthy D Mo	ead: Actual count plants) Flower 🗖 Immat. f Other inse derate 🗖 Poor	Estimate     Estimate     Fruit     Fruit     Bir     Disturbed	Area Occupied: Old Fruit   Vegetative ds   Mammals Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: P ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Firebreak Disease □ Prescr Not known ☑ Not Required □ KERS: Not Req MTS (include action take	is D Mining D ribed Burning D Burnt in 19 Fenced D Juired D Preso n/required):	I Recreation □ Other □ Com Summer □ Required □ ent □ Required	Roadworks ment: Autumn Replace/Repair Replace	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 Vinter 🗆 Spring 🗖 I Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	MEN: Regional F Map 🗖 Mu Regional Office	Herb. 🛛 District dmap 🗖 Illu 🗖 District O	Herb.  WA H stration  P ffice  Othe	lerb. ☑ Other hoto □ Fiel r □ Specify:	d Notes
Claured Court Pro-		desta Parte	0 D.	25/02/2000	
Signed: Scott Hitche	соск /22pn3-SH-03 (есс	ologia Environmen	Date:	25/02/2009	
Please	NOTE: Map or f return completed form to E	further information ma Director General, DEC	y be attached or given Locked Bag 104, BEN	on the back of this for TLEY DELIVERY C	m. ENTRE WA 6983



TAXON: Drosera	macrantha sub	osp. eremaea N.G Range Extension	Marchant &	Lowrie I	DEFL POP	ULATION No	
FROM: Scott Hite	chcock 722ph3	-SH-21(ecologia	Environment		Full S	urvey 🗹	New Population
<b>REGION: Murchs</b>	sion	DISTRI	CT.	) IIILE: E	Botanist	SURVEY	DATE: 07/07/2008
LOCATION: Wel	d Range prop	DISTRI	C1:		SHI	RE:	
	a range, prop	osed Borrow Fits	East				
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 585632 r	nE, 7033848 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-	Compatible (e.	9. WGS84)		
LAND STATUS:	Nature Re:	serve	Priva		Francel Days A		own 🛛 None 🗆
	National	Park	Pastoral Leas		Gravel Res. N		Rail Reserve 🗖
	State F	orest 🗖	UC		Other Shine	shire D	Rd. Verge Shire
	Water Res	serve	Other M	Spec	if Mining	Res.	Rd. Verge MRD
	Landowner/ma	nager present dur	ing inspection		uy. winning	Lease	
LANDFORM:	Hillton 🗖	C	lier 🗖				
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakau		Slope		Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Du	ine 🗖	Low Plain	1.1.1	Gully 🗖	Riverbank
	Firebreak	Otl	ner 🗹 Creati		Dra	inageline 🗖	Lake Edge 🗖
ROCK TYPE-	Laterite 🗖	C i F	ici 🖬 opecii	y; base of Gra	inite dome		
ROCK FORM:	Sheet C	Granite M	Dolerite	D Lin	nestone 🗖	Other: Qua	irtz
SOIL TYPE:	Sneet D	Boulder []	Fi	ne Gravel 🗹	Cor	cretionary Gra	vel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red		im 🗍	Clay 🗹		Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL CONDITION.	Moist	Oran	ge 🗹	Yellow 🗖	1	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
No. of PLANTS: N (Leave blank if REPRODUCTIVE S' POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF PO	Aature: unable to obser TATE: Clon Native bo ns: PULATION:	Seedlings: rve, or no attempt al Flower bu ees Hos Healthy	Dead: made to coun id D Flow ney bees D Moderat	Actua plants) er 🗹 Immat. Other ins	I I Estim fruit I F sects I	ate	ea Occupied: Fruit 🗖 Vegetative 🗖 Mammals 🗖
			Moderal			isturbed 🔲	Comment:
POTENTIAL THREA Salinity I I FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: No ROADSIDE MARKE OTHER COMMENT:	ATS: Fir Disease Not known t Required RS: No S (include actio	ebreaks  Prescribed Burni Fenced Neguired  n taken/required)	fining 🗹 ng 🔲 Otl 19 🗆 Red Present 🗖	Recreation ler Com Summer juired Required	Roadwa iment: Autumn Replace/R	orks 🗖 Gr Winter Cepair 🗖 Replace 🗇	azing ☑ Weeds □ □ Spring □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECIME ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitchcock	Map □ Regional O \$ 722ph3-SH-2	onal Herb. 🗖 Mudmap 🗖 Office 🗇 Di I <i>(ecologia</i> Envir	District Herb. Illustratic strict Office [ onment)	WA H	lerb. ☑ hoto □ r □ Spe	Other 🗖 Field Note: cify:	s 🗖

NOTE: Map or further information may be attached or given on the back of this form.



TAXON: Eremoph	hila arachnoides C	hinnock subsp. arachnoides	DEFL POPULA	ATION No.:	
FROM: Scott Hite	Pr cheock 722nh2-SH	ority Species: P3 Part	ial Survey 🗖 🛛 F	Full Survey	New Population
REGION: Murchi	son	DISTRICT:	ITTLE: Botanis	SURVEY DAT	E: 20/04/2007
LOCATION: Wel	d Range	DISTRICT.		SHIRE:	
CRELOCUTION					
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 563572 mE,	7018064 mN			
GPS DATUM:	AGD84	GDA94 GDA94-C	Compatible (e.g. WG	S84) 🗖 Unkno	wn 🗖 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserv	e 🗖 Private	e 🗖 Gravel	Res. MRD 🗖	Rail Reserve
	National Par	k 🗆 Pastoral Lease	e 🗹 Gravel	Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fores	UCI UCI	D Other	Shire Res.	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserv	e □ Other 🗹	Specify: M	ining Lease	
a construction	Landowner/manag	er present during inspection:			
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff 🗖	Midslope 🗹	Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway 🗖	Low Plain	Gully 🗖	Riverbank 🗖
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	Flat 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak 🗖	Other 🗖 Specify	y:		
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗖	Granite 🗖 Dolerite	Limeston	e 🗖 Other: Ferr	ous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Stones/Boulders D	Coarse Gravel	Pebbles 🗹	
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗹	Loam 🗖	Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange 🗹	Yellow 🗖	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	l: Moist 🗖	Inundated 🗖 Dry	□ Saline □	Other:	
(Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF POLICY	if unable to observe STATE: Clonal   Native bees ons: OPULATION:	or no attempt made to count Flower bud Flow Honey bees	t plants) er 🗆 Immat. fruit Other insects	Fruit      Old     Birds	Fruit  Vegetative  Mammals
		modelal Modelal		Disturbed 🗋	Comment:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity □ FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fireb Disease  Pr Not known E lot Required  D ERS: Not TS (include action t	reaks  Mining  Ot Prescribed Burning  Ot Burnt in 19 Fenced  Required  Present  aken/required):	Recreation  I her  Comment Summer  Au quired  Re Re Re	Roadworks 🗖 Gra : itumn 🗇 Winter place/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗇	nzing ☑ Weeds □ □ Spring □ Reposition □
OUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	1EN: Region Map 🗖	al Herb. 🗇 District Herb Mudmap 🗇 Illustrati	. 🛛 WA Herb.	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field Note</li> </ul>	es 🗖
Signad: South Hist	Regional OII	District Office	U Other D	Specify:	
igned: Scott Hitcheo	ек /22рh2-SH-19	(ecologia Environment)	Date: 03/0	03/2009	
Please re	NOTE: Map	or further information may be a to Director General, DEC, Lock	ttached or given on the ed Bag 104, BENTLEY	e back of this form. Y DELIVERY CENTRI	E WA 6983



TAXON: Eriachne	<i>anata</i> Lazaride R	s ange Extension ☑	DEF Parti	L POPULA	TION No.:	Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Scott Hitch	cock 722ph3-SI	H-24 (ecologia Env	ironment)	TITLE	Botanist	SURVE	Y DATE: 07/07/2008
<b>REGION:</b> Murchise	on	DISTRICT:			S	HIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range, propose	ed Borrow Pits Ea	st				
GPS LOCATION: 5	0J – 585451 mI	E, 7032503 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-C	ompatible	(e.g. WGS8-	4) 🗹 Unk	nown 🗆 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserved National Part State For Water Reserved Landowner/man	rve  Pa ark  Pa rest  O rve  O to the object of the object	Private storal Lease UCI her 2 inspection:	e 🗆 e 🗹 . 🗆 Sp	Gravel Res Gravel Re Other Sh becify: Mini	s. MRD  s. Shire  s. Shire  s. Shire  s.  s.  s.  s.  s.  s.  s.  s.  s.  s.	Rail Reserve □ Rd. Verge Shire □ Rd. Verge MRD □
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff		Slope	0	Valley [	Swamp
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway	🗖 Undu	lating Plain	$\square$	Gully [	Riverbank
	Ridge □ Firebreak □	Sand Dune Other	□ □ Specif	Flat v:		Drainageline	Lake Edge
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗹	Dolerite		Limestone	Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗹	Boulders		(	Gravel 🗹	F	ebbles 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 5	Z Loam		Clay	1	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red E	• Orange	$\square$	Yellow 1		White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION:	Moist C	Inundated	D Dry		Saline 🗖	Other:	
(Leave blank if (Leave blank if REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO	i unable to obser TATE: Clon Native bo ns: DPULATION:	ve, or no attempt m al  Flower bud ees  Hone Healthy	Dead:	A t plants) ver I Im Othe te I	mat. fruit r insects Poor	Fruit () Bird Disturbed ()	Area Occupied:         Dld Fruit □       Vegetative ☑         s □       Mammals □         I       Comment:
POTENTIAL THRE Salinity □ FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	ATS: Fin Disease □ Not known ot Required □ ERS: N TS (include action	rebreaks  M Prescribed Burnin M Burnt in 1 Fenced lot Required on taken/required):	ining 🗹 g 🗇 O 9 J R Present	Recreati ther Summer ( equired Req	on 🛛 Ro Comment: ] Autu Repl uired 🗍	oadworks □ umn □ W ace/Repair □ Replace □	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 inter 🗆 Spring 🗖 I Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitcher	IEN: Reg Map 🗖 Regional	ional Herb. 🗖 Mudmap 🗖 Office 🗐 Di	District Her Illustra strict Office	b. 🗆 tion 🗖	WA Herb. 1 Photo 1 Other 🗖	☑ Other □ □ Field Specify:	Notes 🗖
Signed, ocore fritelite	NOTE: A	lap or further inform	ation may be	attached or	given on the	back of this form	APPER AVA 2003

Department of Environment and	I Conservation	RAR	RE FLOR	A REPOR	T FORM
TAXON: Euphorb DRF FROM: Melissa H REGION: Murchis LOCATION: Web	<i>ia sarcostemmoides</i> Priority ay MH-956-01 ( <i>ecolog</i> son d Range.	y Species: P1 gia Environmer DISTRICT:	DEFL POPUL Partial Survey nt) TITLE: Botan	ATION No.: Full Survey hist SURVEY D. SHIRE:	New Population D ATE: 10/07/2008
CPS LOCATION.	501 592053 mE 702	0900 mN			
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 G		GDA94-Compatible	(e.g. WGS84)	Unknown
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve	1	Private	Gravel Res MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Park	D Paste	oral Lease	Gravel Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Forest	3	UCL	Other Shire Res.	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	J Othe	er 🗹 Sj	pecify: Mining Lease	
	Landowner/manager p	present during in	spection:		
PLEASE NOTE: O	pportunistic collectio	n therefore cer	tain information ur	navailable	
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff C	Slope	valle	y 🗖 🛛 Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop	Breakaway	Low Plain	Gull	y 🗆 Riverbank 🗆
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	J Flat	Drainagelin	e 🗆 🛛 Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other [	J Specify:	State State State	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗹 G	iranite 🗖	Dolerite	Limestone 🗆 Othe	er:
ROCK FORM:	Sheet D Bo	oulder	Fluviatile Gravel	Concretiona	ary Gravel
SOIL TYPE:	Sand D	Loam M	L Clay	Peat L	J Gravel ₪
SOIL CONDITION	Moist	Inundated		Saline C Other:	
grasses ASSOCIATED SPH	ECIES:				
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P	Mature: Seed if unable to observe, or STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	dlings: no attempt mad Flower bud I Honey Healthy	Dead: A de to count plants) Flower 🗹 Im bees 🗆 Othe Moderate 🗖	ctual 🗆 Estimate 🗆 mat. fruit 🗆 Fruit 🗆 er insects 🗆 E Poor 🗖 Disturbe	Area Occupied: Old Fruit   Vegetative Birds   Mammals d   Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARE OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Firebrea Disease D Preso Not known D Not Required C KERS: Not Re VTS (include action tak	ks D Mini cribed Burning Burnt in 19 Fenced D quired D en/required):	ing 🗹 Recreation Other 🗆 Summer 1 Required 🗆 Present 🗊 Req	on 🗍 Roadworks 🗋 Comment: Autumn 🗖 Replace/Repair uired 🗖 Replace	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ Winter □ Spring □ □ e □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Melissa Hay	MEN: Regional Map 🗖 Ma Regional Office MH-956-01 (ecologia	Herb. 🗖 Di udmap 🗖 : 🗖 Distr r Environment)	strict Herb.  Illustration ict Office Date: 19	WA Herb. 🗹 Othe Photo 🗆 Fi Other 🗖 Specify: 0/10/2009	r 🗆 eld Notes 🗖

NOTE: Map or further information may be attached or given on the back of this form,



TAXON: Eucalypta	us socialis subsp. e Ran	ucentrica (L.A.S	S.Johnson & Partia	K.D.Hil	l) D.Nicolle	DEFL PO Il Survey ☑	PULATIO New P	N No.:
FROM: Scott Hite	hcock 722ph3-SH-	26 ( <i>ecologia</i> En	vironment)	TITLI	E: Botanist	SUR	VEY DATE	: 09/07/2008
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	son	DISTRICT				SHIRE:		
LOCATION: Web	I Range							
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 577619 mE,	7033024 mN						
GPS DATUM:	AGD84	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	ompatible	(e.g. WGS	84) 🗹 🛛	Jnknown 🗖	None 🗖
LAND STATUS	Nature Reserve		Private		Gravel R	es MRD	R	ail Reserve
LAND STATUS.	National Parl		astoral Lease	M	Gravel R	les Shire	Rd V	lerge Shire
	State Fores		LICI		Other S	hire Res	Rd V	erge MRD
	Water Reserve		ther 🗹	9	necify: Mi	ning Lease	itu. v	erge mite B
	Landowner/manage	er present during	inspection:		peeny. min	ing Lease		
PLEASE NOTE: O	nantunistia collec	tion therefore	mspection.	mation u	navailabla			
FLEASE NOTE: 0	pportunistic conec	tion therefore c	ertain mior	mation u	-		<u> </u>	1.000
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff		Slop	e 🗆	Valley		Swamp 🗆
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway		Low Plai	n 🗆	Gully		Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Fla	it 🗖	Drainageline		Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Other	D Specify		00.00			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗖	Granite 🗖	Dolerite		Limestone	□ Other	t	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗖	Fluviatil	le Gravel		Concretional	y Gravel 🗆	
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗖	Loam		Clay		Peat 🗖		Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Brown		Yellow		White 🗆		Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	l: Moist 🗖	Inundated	Dry		Saline 🗖	Other:		
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P	Mature: if unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings: e, or no attempt r I Flower but s I Hon Healthy I	Dead: nade to count d 🗹 Flow ey bees 🗆 Moderat	t plants) er 🗆 Ir Oth	Actual  mmat. fruit  mer insects Poor	Estimate  Fruit  B Disturbed	Area Oc Old Fruit irds D Co	cupied:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: 1 ROADSIDE MARE OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Firet Disease  P Not known Not Required KERS: Not NTS (include action	preaks  Morescribed Burnin Burnt in Fenced Required taken/required):	lining 🗹 ng 🗖 Ot 19 7 Re Present 1	Recreat her Summer equired Re	ion 🗆 I Comment 🔲 Au J Re quired 🗖	Roadworks tumn place/Repair Replace	Grazing Winter 🗆 🗆	Weeds □ Spring □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitcho	MEN: Regio Map Regional Of cock 722ph3-SH-20 NOTE: Maj	nal Herb. Mudmap ffice <i>D</i> 5 (ecologia Envi 5 or further inform	District Herl Illustrat istrict Office <b>ronment)</b> nation may be	b.  ion  ion  attached o	WA Herb. Photo Other 🗖 I r given on th	<ul> <li>☑ Other</li> <li>□ Fie</li> <li>Specify: _</li> <li>Date: 03/03/20</li> <li>the back of this form</li> </ul>	ld Notes 09 1771	
Please RECORDS:	return completed form	to Director Gene D TO ADMINIS	ral, DEC, Loci FRATIVE OF	ked Bag 10 FFICER, F	)4. BENTLE F <b>LORA, SPI</b>	Y DELIVERY	CENTRE W. Ommuniti	A 6983 ES BRANCH

Department of Environment and	Conservation	I	RARE	FLOI	RARE	EPORT	FO	R M
TAXON: Grevillea	<i>inconspicua</i> Die P	ls riority Specie	DEFL POP s: P4 Pa	ULATION rtial Survey	No.:	l Survey 🗹	New P	Population
FROM: Scott Hitch	hcock 722ph3-SI	H-01 (ecologi	a Environmen	t) TITL	E: Botanist	SURVEY	DATE: 0	4/07/2008
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	on	DISTR	ICT:		5	SHIRE:		
LOCATION: Weld	Range, propose	d Haul Road						
GPS LOCATION:	50J – 570265 mH	E, 7026936 m	N					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94	-Compatibl	e (e.g. WGS8	84) ፼ U	nknown 🗆	None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserved National Participation State For	ark	Priv Pastoral Le	ate □ ase ☑	Gravel Re Gravel Re Other St	es. MRD	Rd. V Rd. V	ail Reserve  Verge Shire  Verge MRD
	Water Reser	rve 🗖	Other 🕅		Specify: Min	ing Lease	itu. v	eige mich in
	Landowner/mana	nger present d	uring inspectio	n: 🗖	opeeny. min	ing Lease		
LANDEODM. M.	an Channal I	Ser present a	cliff <b>T</b>	Sla		Valley	-	Summer T
LANDFORM: MIN	Outeron <b>I</b>	Brank		Low Pla	in <b>D</b>	Gully	-	Biverbank
		Sand	away 🗆 Dune 🗖	Elat Pla		Drainageline		Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Sanu (	Other 🗖 Spe	ifv.		Dramagenne	L)	Lake Luge
POCK TYPE.		Cronita (		ito. 🗖	Limactona	Otham		
ROCK FORM	Sheet	Boulder (		Grave		D Otter.	Pebbles P	1
SOIL TYPE	Sand F		oam 🗖	Clay		Peat 🗖	r cooles E	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red F	d Or	ange 🗹	Yellow	ā	White		Grev
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist	J Inun	dated 🗖 🛛 I	Dry D	Saline 🗖	Other:		0.0, 2
Eremophila exilifolia open herbs over Cym ASSOCIATED SPE	and Grevillea in bopogon ambigu CCIES:	conspicua lov us very open	v open shrubla tussock grassla	nd over <i>Duj</i> nd.	perreya comm	nixta climbers	over Goode	enia tenuiloba very
(Leave blank)	if unable to obser	ve, or no atter	npt made to co	unt plants)	Actual D 1		Area Oc	
REPRODUCTIVE : POLLINATORS: Other observation	STATE: Clona Native be	al 🗆 Flowe ees 🗖	Honey bees	ower 🗆	Immat. fruit	D Fruit 🗆 D Bin	Old Fruit rds 🗖	□ Vegetative ⊠ Mammals □
CONDITION OF P	OPULATION:	Healthy	□ Mod	erate 🗖	Poor 🗖	Disturbed	Co	mment:
POTENTIAL THR	EATS: Fin	ebreaks	Mining 🗹	Recrea	ation 🗖 R	oadworks 🗖	Grazing	g 🗹 Weeds 🗖
FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK	Not known Not Required D XERS: N	n ☑ Burr Fend lot Required □	t in 19 ced	Summer Required 1 t 🗖 R	Aut Aut Rep	lace/Repair C Replace	Winter 🗆 J	Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
OTHER COMMEN	TS (include action	on taken/requi	red):					
VOUCHER SPECI	MEN: Reg	ional Herb. 🕻	District F	lerb. 🗖	WA Herb.	☑ Other		
ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	Map 🗖 Regional	Mudmap Office 🗖	District Off	tration 🗆	Photo Other	G Fiel Specify: _	ld Notes 🗖	<u>¢</u>

Signed: Scott Hitchcock 722ph3-SH-01 (ecologia Environment) Date: 25/02/2009

NOTE: Map or further information may be attached or given on the back of this form.

Department of Environment and	Conservation
	autoni fasteri

	Price Price	DEF ority Species: P4	L POPULA Partial S	TION No.: Survey 🗇 🛛 🛛 🗍	Full Survey 🗹	New Population	
FROM: Joshua Gil	ovitz 722ph3-CG-	10 (ecologia Envi	ronment)	TITLE: Botanis	st SURVI	EY DATE: 03/07/2008	
REGION: Murchise	n	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:		
LOCATION: Weld	Range, proposed	Haul Road					
GPS Location: 50J -	- 571730 mE, 7027	665 mN	OD LOL C				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84	GDA94 LL C	JDA94-Com	patible (e.g. wG	(584)⊠ Un	known 🗆 None 🗆	
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private	Gravel	Res. MRD	Rail Reserve	
	National Park	a Past	oral Lease	Gravel	Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire	
	State Fores	t 🗖	UCL E	1 Other	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD 🗖	
	Water Reserve	c □ Othe	er 🗹	Specify: M	ining Lease		
	Landowner/manage	er present during in	spection: 🗖				
LANDFORM: Creel	k bed/bank	Cliff C		Slope	Valley (	Swamp	
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway	Lc	w Plain	Gully 1	Riverbank	
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	J F	at Plain 🗹	Drainageline 1	□ Lake Edge □	
	Firebreak	Other	Specify:				
DOCK TYPE.	Latarita	Granita 🗖	Dolarita	Limestor	o Other	RIF Forrous	
ROCK FORM	Sheet <b>I</b>	Stance/Dauldara				Dahhlas 🗹	
KOCK FORM:	Sneet	Stones/Bounders			Deat T	Convol T	
SOIL TIPE;		Comment E			Peat D		
SOIL COLOUK:	Red M	Unange E			white D	Grey L	
grassiand. ASSOCIATED SPE	CIES:						
grassiand. ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO	CIES:S Mature:S f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings:	Dead: de to count p Flower bees Moderate	Actual Cants) Cants) Conter insects Conter Canada Poor Canada Poor	Estimate t Fruit Bird Disturbed 1	Area Occupied: Old Fruit   Vegetativ ds   Mammals	e 🗹
grassiand. ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO POTENTIAL THRE Salinity □ FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	CIES:S funable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION: EATS: Firet Disease □ P Not known fot Required □ ERS: Not TS (include action	Seedlings:	Dead: de to count p ] Flower bees Moderate Moderate I Othe Su Requ Present	Actual ants) Actual ants) Immat. frui Other insects Poor A Recreation Recreatio Recreation Recreation Recreation Recreati	Estimate t Fruit Bird Disturbed f Roadworks nt: wutumn W eplace/Repair Replace f	Area Occupied: Old Fruit D Vegetativ ds D Mammals D Comment: Grazing D Weeds /inter D Spring D Reposition D	e 🗹

Ø	Department of Environment and Conservation
---	---

TAXON: Grevilled	<i>inconspicua</i> Diels Pri	ority Species: P4	DEFL Partial	POPULATION N Survey	lo.: ull Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Scott Hite	hcock 722ph1-SH-	15 (ecologia Enviro	onment)	TITLE: Botan	ist SURVEY D	ATE: 03/11/2006
<b>REGION:</b> Murchi	son	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Wel	d Range					
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 588225 mE,	7035560 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖 🛛 G	DA94-Co	mpatible (e.g. WG	S84) 🗹 Unkno	own 🗆 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private	Gravel ]	Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Parl	c 🗖 Pastor	ral Lease	Gravel	Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fores	t 🗖	UCL	Other	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	e 🗖 Other	$\square$	Specify: M	ining Lease	
	Landowner/manag	er present during ins	pection:	F.		
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff 🗖		Slope 🗖	Valley 🗖	Swamp
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway	L	ow Plain	Gully	Creek bed/bank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Flat	Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak 🗖	Other	Specify:		3	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite	Dolerite	Limeston	e 🗖 Other: BIE	non-banded Ferrous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Stones/Bould	lers 🗹	Coarse Gr	avel 🗹	, non bunded rerrous
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗹	Loam 🗖		Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange 🗹		Yellow	White 🗖	Grev 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	I: Moist 🗖	Inundated 🗖	Dry	□ Saline □	Other:	,
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P	Mature: S if unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings:, or no attempt made Flower bud Honey be Healthy	Dead: to count p Flower ees □ Moderate	Actual Collants) Collants) Collants Immat. fruit Other insects Collary Poor Collary	Estimate  AI Fruit  Old Birds Disturbed	rea Occupied:   Fruit 🗹 Vegetative 🗹 ] Mammals 🗖 Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fireb Disease P Not known I Not Required C KERS: Not ITS (include action	reaks D Mining rescribed Burning D D Burnt in 19 Fenced D Required D P taken/required):	g 🗹 D Othe S Req resent 🗖	Recreation er Comment ummer An uired Re Required C	Roadworks 🗖 G t: utumn 🗇 Winte place/Repair 🗇 Replace 🗇	irazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 er 🗆 Spring 🗆 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	MEN: Regior Map 🗖 Regional Off	al Herb. 🗖 Distr Mudmap 🗖 ice 🗖 Distric	rict Herb. Illustratio t Office	<ul> <li>WA Herb.</li> <li>n </li> <li>Photo</li> <li>Other </li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field No Specify:</li> </ul>	tes 🗖
Signed: Scott Hitche	ock 722ph1-SH-15 NOTE: Map	(ecologia Environn	nent) 1 may he ati	Date: 26/	02/2009 te back of this form.	

	Department of Environment and Conservation	
--	---	--

TAXON: Goodeni DRF	<i>a berringbinensis</i> C Pric	arolin ority Species: P4	DEFL I Partial	POPULATION Survey	No.: Full Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Jeremy N	aaykens 722ph1-JN	-01 (ecologia Ei	nvironment)	TITLE: Botan	ist SURVE	Y DATE: 10/11/2006
<b>REGION: Murchi</b>	son	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Web	l Range					
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 558753 mE,	7019308 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Cor	npatible (e.g. W	GS84) 🗹 Unk	nown 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private	Grave	I Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Park	D Pa	storal Lease l	☑ Grave	l Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire 🗖
	State Forest		UCL 1	D Othe	r Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	Otl	her 🗹	Specify: N	Aining Lease	
	Landowner/manage	er present during	inspection:			
LANDFORM:	Floodplain 2	Cliff		Slope	Valley	Swamp
and the second second	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway		ow Plain	Gully	Riverbank 🗖
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Flat 🗹	Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other	□ Specify:		0	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite 1	Limesto	one 🗖 Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder	Fluviatile	Gravel 🗖	Concretionary C	Gravel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗹	Loam		Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange	$\square$	Yellow 🗖	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	N: Moist 🗖	Inundated 🗖	Dry 🗖 Sa	aline 🗖 Oth	er:	
ASSOCIATED SP No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS:	ECIES:S if unable to observe. STATE: Clonal   Native bees	Geedlings: , or no attempt m Flower bud Hone	Dead: ade to count p Flower y bees 🗖	Actual Dants) Dants fru Other insect	〕 Estimate □ it □ Fruit □ 0 s □ Birds	Area Occupied: Id Fruit   Vegetative
Other observat	ions: POPULATION:	Healthy 🗖	Moderate	Poor	Disturbed	Comment:
POTENTIAL THE Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MAR OTHER COMME	EATS: Fireb Disease D P Not known B Not Required D KERS: Not NTS (include action	reaks  Mi rescribed Burning Burnt in 1 <sup>1</sup> Fenced  Required  taken/required):_	ning 🗹 g 🔲 Otho 9 S J Req Present 🗍	Recreation r Comme ummer uired Required	Roadworks 🗆 ent: Autumn 🗇 Wi Replace/Repair 🗇 I Replace 🗇	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗖 nter 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECT ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	MEN: Region Map 🗇 Regional Of	nal Herb. 🗖 – I Mudmap 🗖 fice 🗖 – Dis	District Herb. Illustratio	WA Her WA Her N Pho Other	rb. 🗹 Other 🗆 oto 🗆 Field I	Notes 🗖
Signed: Jeremy Na:	iykens 722ph1-JN-0 NOTE: Map	)1 (ecologia Env	<b>ironment)</b> ntion may be at	Date: 2	5/02/2009 I the back of this form.	

Department of Environment and	Conservation	RA	RE	FLOR	RARI	EPORT I	FORM
TAXON: Goodenia DRF □ FROM: Joshua Gile REGION: Murchise	<i>berringbinensis</i> F ovitz 722ph3-C on	Carolin Priority Species: P4 G-14 ( <i>ecologia</i> Env DISTRICT:	lironm	DEFL Partial Survey ent) TITLI	POPULA' Fu E: Botanist	TION No.: Il Survey Ø SURVEY SHIRE:	New Population □ DATE: 10/07/2008
LOCATION: Weld	Range, Madoo	nga Waste Dumps					
GPS LOCATION: 5 GPS DATUM:	0J – 558712 ml AGD84 □	E, 7019585 mN GDA94 🗖	GDAS	94-Compatible	e (e.g. WGS	84) 🗹 Unkno	wn 🗇 None 🗇
LAND STATUS:	Nature Rese National P State For Water Rese Landowner/man	rve D ark D Pa rest D rve D Ot ager present during	Pr storal L her 🗹 inspect	ivate D Lease Ø UCL D S ion: D	Gravel R Gravel F Other S Specify: Min	Res. MRD  Res. Shire  Shire  hire Res.  hing Lease	Rail Reserve
PLEASE NOTE: Op	portunistic col	ection therefore c	ertain i	nformation u	navailable		
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗆 Outcrop 🗖 Ridge 🗖 Firebreak 🗖	Cliff Breakaway Sand Dune Other	□ □ □ □ Sp	Slop Low Plai Fla ecify:	n 🗆 nt 🗆	Valley D Gully D Drainageline D	Swamp □ Riverbank □ Lake Edge □
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗖	Granite 🗖	Dole	erite 🗖	Limestone	Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗖	Flu	viatile Gravel		Concretionary Gra	ivel 🗆
SOIL TYPE:	Sand D	J Loam		Clay		Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red D	Brown		Yellow	C Selies C	White	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION:	IVIOISL	J Inundated		Dry 🗅	Same	Other.	
ASSOCIATED SPE	CIES:	Seedlings:	De	ead.	Actual 🗖	Estimate 🗖 🛛 🗛	rea Occupied:
(Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO	funable to obser TATE: Clon Native b ns: DPULATION:	ve, or no attempt m al I Flower bud ees I Hone Healthy I	ey bees	count plants) Flower 🗹 II 🔲 Oth	mmat. fruit l ner insects l Poor 🗖	<ul> <li>Fruit </li> <li>Fruit </li> <li>Old</li> <li>Birds </li> <li>Disturbed </li> </ul>	Fruit C Vegetative C Mammals C Comment:
POTENTIAL THRE Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	ATS: Fi Disease Not know ot Required ERS: N TS (include action	rebreaks  M Prescribed Burnin M Burnt in I Fenced C lot Required  on taken/required):	ning 🖬 g 🗖 9 J Prese	Recreat Other Summer Required ent Required	tion  Comment Comment Au Re quired	Roadworks  G tumn  Winte place/Repair  Replace	irazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 er 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED:	1EN: Reg Map □	ional Herb. 🗖 Mudmap 🗖	District Illu	Herb. 🗖	WA Herb. Photo	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field No</li> </ul>	otes 🗖
COPY SENT TO:	Regional	Office 🗖 Di	strict O	ffice 🗆	Other 🗖	Specify:	
Signed: Joshua Gilov	itz 722ph3-CG	-14 (ecologia Envi	ronmen	it)	Date: 05/	03/2009	
Please re RECORDS: P	NOTE: M eturn completed fo LEASE FORWA	<i>dap or further inform</i> orm to Director Gener <b>RD TO ADMINIST</b>	ation me al, DEC <b>RATIV</b>	ty be attached o , Locked Bag 1( E OFFICER, H	or given on th 04, BENTLE FLORA, SPI	e back of this form. Y DELIVERY CENT ECIES AND COMM	RE WA 6983 UNITIES BRANCH

	Department of Environment and	Conservation	
300	Environment and	Conservation	

#### KAKE FLOKA KEPOKI FOKM

TAXON: Goodenia DRF □ FROM: Joshua Gil	<i>lyrata</i> Carolin Pric ovitz 722ph3-CG-	ority Species: P1 12 ( <i>ecologia</i> Env	DEFL Partia ironment)	POPUL Il Survey TITI	ATION No	o.: Ill Survey 🗹 st SURVEY	New Population
<b>REGION: Murchise</b>	on and a second s	DISTRICT:				SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range, Madoong	a Waste Dumps					
GPS LOCATION: 5	50J – 558712 mE.	7019585 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	ompatible	e (e.g. WGS	584) ☑ Unkn	own 🛛 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private		Gravel R	les. MRD	Rail Reserve
Linite officient	National Park	D Pas	storal Lease		Gravel I	Res. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fores		UCL		Other S	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	• 🗖 🛛 Otl	ner 🗹	5	Specify: Mi	ning Lease	and the second second second
	Landowner/manage	er present during	inspection: I	-			
PLEASE NOTE: O	portunistic collec	tion therefore ce	rtain infor	mation u	navailable		
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff		Slop	e 🗆	Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway		Low Plai	n 🗖	Gully 🗖	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Fla	at 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other	□ Specify	c			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite		Limestone	• 🗖 Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder	Fluviatil	e Gravel		Concretionary G	ravel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗖	Loam		Clay		Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Brown		Yellow		White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist 🗖	Inundated	Dry		Saline 🗖	Other:	
ASSOCIATED SPE	CIES:						
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF PO	Mature: S f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings:, or no attempt m Flower bud Hone Healthy	Dead: ade to count D Flow y bees D Moderat	t plants) fer 🗹 In Oth	Actual mmat. fruit her insects Poor	Estimate  A Fruit  OI Birds Disturbed	Area Occupied: d Fruit
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fireb Disease  P Not known lot Required  D ERS: Not TS (include action	reaks  Mirescribed Burning Burnt in 19 Fenced  Required  taken/required):	ning 🗹 g 🗍 Ot 9 I Re Present [	Recreat her Summer equired Re	tion Comment Au Re quired	Roadworks 🗖 t: utumn 🗇 Win place/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗇	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 ter 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Joshua Gilov	MEN: Region Map 🗖 Regional Of vitz 722ph3-CG-12 NOTE: May	nal Herb.  I I Mudmap  I fice  Dis (ecologia Envir	District Herl Illustrat strict Office onment) ution may be	o.	WA Herb. Photo Other 🗖 Date: 03/	D Other □ D Field N Specify: 03/2009 the back of this form.	lotes 🗖
Please r RECORDS: F	eturn completed form PLEASE FORWARI	to Director Genera D TO ADMINIST	il, DEC, Loci RATIVE OF	ked Bag 1 FICER, I	04, BENTLE F <b>LORA, SP</b> I	Y DELIVERY CEN ECIES AND COMM	TRE WA 6983 JUNITIES BRANCH

TAXON: Grevillea stenos DRF FROM: Scott Hitchcock REGION: Murchison LOCATION: Weld Ran GPS LOCATION: 50J – GPS DATUM: AG LAND STATUS: AG LAND STATUS: A Land LANDFORM: H Ou Fire ROCK TYPE: Latu ROCK FORM: S SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASSI Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	stachya C.A.G Prio 722ph3-SH-0 ge, proposed D 571935 mE, 7 6D84 Nature Reserve National Park State Forest Water Reserve lowner/manage dilltop Ridge erite Sand Red Moist IFICATION ( nedia high shruw w shrubland ov S: able to observe	Gardner prity Species: D2 (ecologia II DISTRIC Haul Road 7027743 mN GDA94 C C Breakaw Sand Du Ot Granite Boulder Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acac ubland over E yer Aristida co	P3 Environ CT: GI Pastor Other ing insp liff □ vay □ liff □	DEFI Parti nment) DA94-C Privato al Leaso UCI Ø section: Specif Dolerite Dr inocarpo hila forto open tu	ompatible TITLI ompatible D Slop Low Plai Flat Plai Y: Clay Yellow y D row oper restii subs ssock gras	ATION No.: Full Full E: Botanist Si Gravel Res Gravel Res Gravel Res Other Shi Specify: Minin De Limestone Saline Saline n woodland or p. forrestii and Ssland.	Survey 🗹 SURVEY DA HIRE:	New Population ATE: 03/07/2008 Nome Rail Reserve Rail Reserve Rd. Verge Shire Rd. Verge MRD Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge Gravel Gravel Gravel Gravel Grey Ta var. microcarpa and sa var. linophylla shrubland
FROM: Scott Hitchcock REGION: Murchison LOCATION: Weld Ran GPS LOCATION: 50J – GPS DATUM: AG LAND STATUS: AG LAND STATUS: A Land LANDFORM: H Ou Fire ROCK TYPE: Latu ROCK FORM: S SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CO	a 722ph3-SH-0 age, proposed 1 571935 mE, 7 5D84 □ Nature Reserve National Park State Forest Water Reserve lowner/manage Hilltop □ Ridge □ ebreak □ ebreak □ sand ☑ Red ☑ Moist □ IFICATION ( nedia high shrw w shrubland ov S: able to observe	D2 (ecologia I DISTRIC Haul Road 7027743 mN GDA94 C C C Breakaw Sand Du Ot Granite Boulder Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acac ubland over E rer Aristida co	Environ CT: GI Pastor Other ing insp liff □ vay □ line □ her □ ling her □ ling her □ ling her □ ling her □ ling her □	nment) DA94-C Private al Lease UCI Dection: Specif Dolerite Dr inocarpo hila forto open tu	TITLI ompatible c c c c c c c c c c c c c	E: Botanist	SURVEY DA HIRE:	ATE: 03/07/2008
REGION: Murchison LOCATION: Weld Ran GPS LOCATION: 50J – GPS DATUM: AG LAND STATUS: M Land LANDFORM: H Ou Fire ROCK TYPE: Lat ROCK FORM: S SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASSI Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	ge, proposed D 571935 mE, 7 GD84 □ Nature Reserve National Park State Forest Water Reserve downer/manage Hilltop □ Ridge □ ebreak □ sand ☑ Red ☑ Moist □ IFICATION ( nedia high shruw w shrubland ov S:S	DISTRIC Haul Road 7027743 mN GDA94 C	GI Pastor Other ing insp liff way ane her liff her liff dam cia prui Cremopiontorta	DA94-C Private al Lease UCI Doection: Specif Dolerite Dolerite	ompatible	SI (e.g. WGS8- Gravel Res Gravel Res Other Sh Specify: Minit De Limestone Saline Saline n woodland ov p. forrestii and Ssland.	AIRE: 4)  Unkn s. MRD s. Shire ire Res. ng Lease Valley Gully Drainageline Peat Peat Peat White Other: <u>Fe</u> Peat Ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	own   None   Rail Reserve   Rd. Verge Shire   Rd. Verge MRD   Swamp   Riverbank   Lake Edge   Gravel   Gravel   Grey
LOCATION: Weld Ran GPS LOCATION: 50J – GPS DATUM: AG LAND STATUS: A Land LANDFORM: H Ou Fire ROCK TYPE: Latu ROCK FORM: S SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOU	ge, proposed 1 571935 mE, 7 5D84 □ Nature Reserve National Park State Forest Water Reserve lowner/manage filltop □ Ridge □ ebreak □ ebreak □ Sheet □ Sheet □ Sheet □ FICATION ( nedia high shrw w shrubland ov S: able to observe	Haul Road	GI Pastor Other ing insp liff vay her her ne ted cia prui cremopiontorta	DA94-C Private uCI Dection: Specif Dolerite Dr inocarpo hila form open tu	ompatible	Gravel Res Gravel Res Gravel Re Other Shi Specify: Minin the □ In □ Limestone ☑ Saline □ N woodland ov p. forrestii and ssland.	4) 🗹 Unkn s. MRD 🗍 s. Shire 📄 ire Res. 📄 ng Lease Valley 📄 Gully 🗇 Drainageline 🗐 Other: Fe Pelt Peat 🗍 White 📄 Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	own D None C Rail Reserve C Rd. Verge Shire C Rd. Verge MRD C Swamp C Riverbank C Lake Edge C Gravel C Gravel C Grey C
GPS LOCATION: 50J – GPS DATUM: AG LAND STATUS: A Land LANDFORM: H Ou Fire ROCK TYPE: Latu ROCK FORM: S SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASSI Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	571935 mE, 7 iD84 □ Nature Reserve National Park State Forest Water Reserve lowner/manage dilltop □ Ridge □ ebreak □ sheet □ Sand ☑ Red ☑ Moist □ IFICATION ( nedia high shrw w shrubland ov S:S	GDA94 G GDA94 G C C C Breakaw Sand Du Ot Granite G Boulder G Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acac ubland over E ver Aristida co	GI Pastor Other ing insp liff vay her her nge ted cia prui cremopiontorta	DA94-C Private al Lease UCI Dection: Specif Dolerite Dolerite	ompatible	c (e.g. WGS84 Gravel Res Gravel Res Other Shi Specify: Minin De □ In □ Limestone ☑ Saline □ Saline □ n woodland ov p. forrestii ano ssland.	4) 🗹 Unkn s. MRD 🗍 s. Shire 🗍 ire Res. 🗍 ng Lease Valley 🗍 Gully 🗍 Drainageline 🗍 Other: Fe Peat 🗍 White 🗍 Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	own D None C Rail Reserve C Rd. Verge Shire C Rd. Verge MRD C Swamp C Riverbank C Lake Edge C Gravel C Gravel C Grey C
GPS DATUM: AG LAND STATUS: A Land LANDFORM: A Given Status: A Given Status: A Given Status: A Given Status ROCK TYPE: Late ROCK FORM: S SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR:	GD84 □ Nature Reserve National Park State Forest Water Reserve downer/manage filltop □ Ridge □ ebreak □ erite □ Sheet □ Sand ☑ Red ☑ Moist □ IFICATION ( nedia high shru w shrubland ov S:S	GDA94 GDA94	GI Pastor Other ing insp liff une her pam nge dited cia prui ciremopiontorta	DA94-C Private al Lease UCI Dection: Specif Dolerite Dolerite	ompatible	e (e.g. WGS84 Gravel Res Gravel Re Other Shi Specify: Minin on I in I Limestone I Saline I solution solution Saline I n woodland ov p. <i>forrestii</i> and ssland.	4) 🗹 Unkn s. MRD 🗍 s. Shire 🗍 ire Res. 🗍 ng Lease Valley 🗍 Gully 🗍 Drainageline 🗍 Other: Fe Peat 🗍 White 🗍 Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	own D None C Rail Reserve C Rail Reserve C Rail Reserve C Rd. Verge Shire C Rd. Verge MRD C Swamp C Riverbank C Lake Edge C C Ravel C Gravel C Gravel C Grey C C Grey C C Grey C C C Ravel C Grey C C C Ravel
LAND STATUS: Land LANDFORM: H Ou Fire ROCK TYPE: Lat ROCK FORM: S SOIL TYPE: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASSI Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	Nature Reserve National Park State Forest Water Reserve downer/manage Hilltop Ridge erite Sheet Sand Red Moist IFICATION ( media high shruw w shrubland ov S: Sable to observe	E D C Er present dur C Breakaw Sand Du Ot Granite D Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acac ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	Pastor Other ing insp liff vay her her lime her lim	Private al Lease UCI Dection: Specif Dolerite Dr. inocarpo hila form open tu	E Slop Slop Low Plai Flat Plai y: Gravel Clay Yellow y a low oper estii subs ssock gras	Gravel Res Gravel Res Other Shi Specify: Minin the Im I Limestone Saline Saline n woodland ov p. forrestii and ssland.	s. MRD s. Shire ire Res. ng Lease Valley Gully Drainageline Other: Fe Peat Peat White Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Rail Reserve Rd. Verge Shire Rd. Verge MRD Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge Gravel Gravel Grey a var. <i>microcarpa</i> and sa var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
Land LANDFORM: H Ou Fire ROCK TYPE: Lat ROCK FORM: S SOIL TYPE: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASSI Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	National Park State Forest Water Reserve downer/manage filltop □ Ridge □ ebreak □ erite □ Sheet □ Sand ☑ Red ☑ Moist □ IFICATION ( nedia high shruw w shrubland ov S:S	t 🗖 t 🗖 t 🗖 t 🗖 t 🗖 t 🗖 t 🗖 t 🗖	Pastor Other ing insp liff une her her nge nge cia prui cremopiontorta	al Lease UCI Dection: Specif Dolerite Dolerite Dr inocarpo hila forn open tu	E	Gravel Re Other Shi Specify: Minis ee in Limestone Saline Saline n woodland ov p. <i>forrestii</i> and ssland.	s. Shire ire Res. ng Lease Valley Gully Drainageline Other: Fe Peat Peat White Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Rd. Verge Shire Rd. Verge MRD Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge Gravel Gravel Grey a var. microcarpa and sa var. linophylla shrubland
Land LANDFORM: I Ou Fire ROCK TYPE: Late ROCK FORM: S SOIL TYPE: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL	State Forest Water Reserve lowner/manage dilltop □ Ridge □ ebreak □ erite □ Sheet □ Sand ☑ Red ☑ Moist □ IFICATION ( media high shrow w shrubland ov S:S able to observe	t 🔲 er present dur C Breakaw Sand Du Ot Granite 🗇 Boulder 🗇 Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acac ubland over E ver Aristida co	Other ing insp liff vay her her life h	UCI Dection: Specif Dolerite Dr inocarp hila form open tu	Slop Slop Low Plai Flat Plai y: Gravel Clay Yellow y a low oper <i>estii</i> subs ssock gras	Other Shi Specify: Minis on in Limestone Saline Saline n woodland or p. <i>forrestii</i> and ssland.	ire Res. ng Lease Valley Gully Drainageline Other: Fe Pel Peat White Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Rd. Verge MRD □ Swamp □ Riverbank □ Lake Edge □ Gravel □ Grey □ Grey □ Grey □
Land LANDFORM: I O I O I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	Water Reserve downer/manage filltop □ kidge □ kidge □ ebreak □ erite □ Sheet □ Sand ☑ Red ☑ Moist □ IFICATION ( nedia high shruw w shrubland ov S: able to observe	er present dur C Breakaw Sand Du Ot Granite Boulder Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acac ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	Other ing insp liff vay ane her her liff ane ther liff ane cia prui ciremopro- ontorta	Specif Specif Dolerite Dolerite hila fort open tu	Slop Slop Low Plai Flat Plai g: Gravel Clay Yellow y I a low oper <i>restii</i> subs ssock gras	Specify: Minis e in Limestone Saline saline solution <i>forrestii</i> and solution Salind.	ng Lease Valley □ Gully □ Drainageline □ Other: Fe Peat □ White □ Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge Crrous bbles Gravel Grey Grey Crey Crey Surver and Sa var. <i>microcarpa</i> and Sa var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
Land LANDFORM: F O I O I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	lowner/manage filltop □ Ridge □ ebreak □ ebreak □ sheet □ Sand ☑ Red ☑ Moist □ IFICATION ( media high shrowshrubland ov S:S: ure:S	er present dur C Breakaw Sand Du Ot Granite Boulder Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acac ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	ing insp inf liff vay une her her lift her lift une ther lift	Specif Dolerite Dr <i>inocarp</i> <i>hila fort</i> open tu	□ Slop Low Plai Flat Plai y: Gravel Clay Yellow y □ r low oper restii subs ssock gras	Limestone	Valley Gully Drainageline Other: Fe Peat Peat White Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge Gravel Gravel Grey Grey a var. <i>microcarpa</i> and sa var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
LANDFORM: F On Fire ROCK TYPE: Late ROCK FORM: S SOIL TYPE: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASS Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	iilltop       □         utcrop       □         Ridge       □         ebreak       □         erite       □         erite       □         Sand       ☑         Red       ☑         Moist       □         IFICATION (         media       high shrup         S:          ure:          able to observe	C Breakaw Sand Du Ot Granite Boulder Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acad ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	liff vay une her line nge nge ited cia prui cremopiontorta	Specif Dolerite Dr. <i>inocarpo</i> <i>hila fori</i> open tu	Slop Low Plai Flat Plai gravel Clay Yellow y I r low oper restii subs ssock gras	Limestone Limestone Saline saline p. <i>forrestii</i> and ssland.	Valley Gully Drainageline Other: Fe Peat Peat White Other: Ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Swamp Riverbank Lake Edge Gravel Gravel Grey Grey a var. <i>microcarpa</i> and sa var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
Or Fire ROCK TYPE: Late ROCK FORM: S SOIL TYPE: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASS! Acacia aneura var. intermover Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Mate (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	utcrop Ridge Ridge ebreak erite Sand Red Moist IFICATION ( media high shruw shrubland ov S: S: Since able to observe	Breakaw Sand Du Ot Granite Boulder Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acac ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	vay une her her une her une	Specif Dolerite Dr inocarpo hila fori open tu	Low Plai Flat Plai y: Gravel Clay Yellow y r low oper <i>restii</i> subs ssock gras	Limestone	Gully □ Drainageline □ Other: Fe Peat □ White □ Other: Ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Riverbank Lake Edge srrous bbles Gravel Grey Grey avar. <i>microcarpa</i> and <i>sa</i> var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
Fire ROCK TYPE: Lat ROCK FORM: S SOIL TYPE: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASS Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if und REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	Ridge  Ri	Sand Du Ot Granite Boulder Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acad ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	ane	Specif Dolerite Dr inocarpo hila forn open tu	Flat Plai Gravel Clay Yellow y r low oper restii subs ssock gras	Limestone	Drainageline  Drainageline  Other: Fe Peat  Peat  White  Other: Ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Lake Edge 🗖
Fire ROCK TYPE: Lat ROCK FORM: S SOIL TYPE: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASS Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	ebreak   erite Sand Sand Sand Moist IFICATION (  nedia high shruw shrubland ov S: ure: able to observe	Ot Granite Boulder Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acac ubland over ver Aristida co Seedlings:	her am ige ited <i>icia prui</i> <i>icia prui</i>	Specif Dolerite Dr <i>nocarpo</i> <i>hila forr</i> open tu	y: Gravel Clay Yellow y a low oper <i>restii</i> subs ssock gras	Limestone	Other: Fe     Peat     Peat     White     Other:  ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Gravel Gravel Grey Grey a var. <i>microcarpa</i> and sa var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
ROCK TYPE: Lat ROCK FORM: S SOIL TYPE: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASS Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	erite  Sheet  Sheet  Sand  Sheet  Sand  Sheet  Moist  IFICATION ( <i>nedia</i> high shrows shrubland ov S:	Granite Boulder Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acad ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	aam 🗖 age 🗹 tted 🗖 cia prui Cremopiontorta	Doleríte Dr inocarpo hila fort open tu	Gravel Clay Yellow y D r low oper restii subs ssock gras	Limestone	Other: Fe Peat Peat White Other: Other: Ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Gravel Gravel Grey Grey avar. <i>microcarpa</i> and <i>sa</i> var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
ROCK FORM: S SOIL TYPE: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASS Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	Sheet  Sand  Sand  Sector Red  Sector Noist  Sector Noist  Sector Noise	Boulder Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acad ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	aam 🗖 age 🗹 tted 🗖 Cremopiontorta	Dr nocarpa hila forn open tu	Gravel Clay Yellow y 🗖 a low oper <i>restii</i> subs ssock gras	☑ ☑ Saline □ n woodland ov p. <i>forrestii</i> and ssland.	Peat Peat White Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	bbles ☑ Gravel □ Grey □ a var. <i>microcarpa</i> and sa var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
SOIL TYPE: SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASS Acacia aneura var. interm over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	Sand 🗹 Red 🗹 Moist 🗇 IFICATION ( <i>nedia</i> high shrows shrubland ov S:S ure:S	Lo Oran Inunda Muir's): Acac ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	am 🗆 ge 🗹 tted 🗖 cia prul cremoplo ontorta	Dr inocarpo hila fori open tu	Clay Yellow y 🗖 a low oper restii subs ssock gras	☑ Saline □ n woodland ov p. <i>forrestii</i> and ssland.	Peat 🗖 White 🗖 Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Gravel Grey Grey a var. <i>microcarpa</i> and sa var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
SOIL COLOUR: SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASS Acacia aneura var. intermover Ptilotus obovatus lov ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if und REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	Red ☑ Moist □ IFICATION ( media high shru w shrubland ov S: ure: able to observe	Oran Inunda Muir's): Acad ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	nge 🗹 nted 🗖 cia prui Eremoph ontorta	Dr nocarpo hila fori open tu	Yellow y a low oper restii subs ssock gras	Saline Sa	White D Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	Grey □ a var. <i>microcarpa</i> and sa var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
SOIL CONDITION: VEGETATION CLASS Acacia aneura var. intermover over Ptilotus obovatus low ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	Moist IFICATION ( media high shruw w shrubland ov S: ure: able to observe	Inunda Muir's): Acad ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	ted 🗖 cia prui Eremopi ontorta	Dr inocarpo hila forn open tu	y D a low oper <i>restii</i> subs ssock gras	Saline 🗖 n woodland ov p. <i>forrestii</i> and ssland.	Other: ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	a var. <i>microcarpa</i> and sa var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
VEGETATION CLASS Acacia aneura var. intern over Ptilotus obovatus lov ASSOCIATED SPECIE No. of PLANTS: Matu (Leave blank if una REPRODUCTIVE STA POLLINATORS: Other observations: CONDITION OF POPU	IFICATION ( media high shru w shrubland ov S: ure: able to observe	Muir's): Acad ubland over E ver Aristida co Seedlings:	cia prui Eremopi ontorta	inocarpo hila fori open tu	a low oper <i>estii</i> subs ssock gras	n woodland ov p. <i>forrestii</i> and ssland.	ver Acacia aneur d Acacia ramulos	<i>a</i> var. <i>microcarpa</i> and sa var. <i>linophylla</i> shrubland
POTENTIAL THREAT	TE: Clonal Native bees	<ul> <li>or no attemp</li> <li>Flower</li> <li>Honey b</li> <li>Healthy f</li> </ul>	pt made bud 🗆 bees 🗖	e to cou Flo Other i Moder	nt plants) wer  Insects	mmat. fruit Birds Poor	☐ Fruit ☐ Ol ]Mammals □ Disturbed □	d Fruit 🗖 Vegetative 🗹 Comment:
Salinity D Dis FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: Not F ROADSIDE MARKER: OTHER COMMENTS	'S: Firel sease □ F Not known Required □ S: No (include action	breaks Prescribed Bu Burnt Fence t Required t taken/require	Minir rning f in 19_ ed 🗖 ed):	ng 🗹 T ( F Present	Recrea Other Summer Required Required R	ation 🗆 R Comment: O Aut Rep equired D	oadworks 🗆 tumn 🗆 Win olace/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗖	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 nter 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIMEN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	N: Regio Map 🗆 Regional O	onal Herb. 🗆 Mudmap 🛙	Dis Distri	strict He Illustr	ation	WA Herb. Photo Other 🗖	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field</li> <li>Specify:</li> </ul>	Notes 🗖
Signed: Scott Hitchcock	722ph3-SH-0	2 (ecologia E	Inviron	nment)	Date:	25/02/2009		
Please retur RECORDS: PLE	NOTE: Ma	np or further in m to Director C RD TO ADMI	formatio General, NISTRA	on may l DEC, Lo ATIVE (	e attached ocked Bag DFFICER,	or given on the 104, BENTLE <sup>Y</sup> FLORA, SPE	e back of this form. Y DELIVERY CEI ECIES AND COM	NTRE WA 6983 IMUNITIES BRANCH

	envolucinga c.A.	Jardner	DEFI	L POPULA	ATION No.:		
DRF 🗖	Pric	ority Species: P3	Parti	al Survey	D Full	Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Joshua Gilo	vitz 722ph3-CG-	05 ( <i>ecologia</i> Env	ironment)	TITLE	: Botanist	SURVEY	DATE: 03/07/2008
REGION: Murchisor	1	DISTRICT:			S	HIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld I	Range, proposed	Haul Road					
GPS LOCATION: 50	J – 565967 mE, 7	7024046 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-C	ompatible (	e.g. WGS8-	4) 🗹 Unkno	own 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private		Gravel Res	. MRD	Rail Reserve 🗖
	National Park	D Pa	storal Lease		Gravel Re	s. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire 🗖
	State Forest		UCL		Other Shi	ire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	O Otl	her 🗹	Sp	ecify: Mini	ng Lease	
L	andowner/manage	r present during	inspection:				
ANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff		Slope		Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway		Low Plain		Gully	Riverbank 🗖
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Flat Plain		Drainageline 🗖	Lake Edge 🗖
I	Firebreak 🗖	Other	□ Specify	/:			
ROCK TYPE: 1	Laterite 🗖	Granite 🗖	Dolerite		Limestone [	Other:	
OCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗖	Fluviatil	le Gravel		Concretionary Gra	avel 🗖
OIL TYPE:	Sand 🗹	Loam		Clay E	Z	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
OIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange	M	Yellow C	3	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
OIL CONDITION:	Moist 🗖	Inundated	D Dry	0 5	Saline 🗖	Other:	
tcacia ramulosa var. In hrubs over Eriachne Id ASSOCIATED SPEC Io. of PLANTS: M	inophylla open scr anata very open tu IES:S	ub over <i>Eremopi</i> ssock grassland.	neura var. i hila simular Dead:	ntermedia a as subsp. sin	and Acacia i mulans open	timate D An	<i>pphylla</i> low open fores <i>tus schwartzii</i> low scat rea Occupied:
Icacia ramulosa var. In hrubs over Eriachne Id ASSOCIATED SPEC No. of PLANTS: M (Leave blank if the REPRODUCTIVE ST POLLINATORS:	inophylla open scr anata very open tu IES: S ature: S unable to observe, `ATE: Clonal C Native bees	eedlings: or no attempt ma Flower bud Hone	Dead: Dead: ade to count Flow y bees	Action of the second se	and Acacia i mulans open ctual  Es mat. fruit  rinsects	stimate  Fruit  Old Birds	<i>pphylla</i> low open fores <i>tus schwartzii</i> low scat rea Occupied: I Fruit □ Vegetativ □ Mammals □
cacia ramulosa var. In hrubs over Eriachne Id SSOCIATED SPEC to. of PLANTS: M (Leave blank if the EPRODUCTIVE ST OLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF POI	inophylla open scr anata very open tu IES:S ature:S unable to observe, `ATE: Clonal C Native bees s: PULATION:	eedlings: or no attempt ma Flower bud Healthy	neura var. i hila simular Dead: _ ade to count G Flow y bees G Moderat	Action of the second se	and Acacia i mulans open etual  Es mat. fruit  Finsects  Poor  Poor	stimate  Fruit  Old Birds	rea Occupied: I Fruit   Vegetativ Mammals   Comment:
Acacia ramulosa var. In hrubs over Eriachne Id ASSOCIATED SPEC No. of PLANTS: M (Leave blank if the COLLINATORS: Other observation) CONDITION OF POI CONDITION	inophylla open scr anata very open tu IES:S unable to observe, `ATE: Clonal C Native bees s: PULATION: Disease □ Pr Not known E t Required □ RS: Not I S (include action t	eedlings: or no attempt ma	Dead: Dead: Dead: Dead: Dead: Dead: Flow y bees □ Moderat ing ☑ Re Present □	Action of the second se	and Acacia i mulans open ctual  Es mat. fruit  rinsects  Poor  Poor  Roi Comment: Autua Repla iired	adworks Carling adworks Carling Generation Generation Control Carling Control Carling	<pre>pphylla low open fores tus schwartzii low scat rea Occupied: I Fruit □ Vegetativ □ Mammals □ Comment: Grazing ☑ Weeds er □ Spring □ Reposition □</pre>
Acacia ramulosa var. In hrubs over Eriachne Ia ASSOCIATED SPEC No. of PLANTS: M (Leave blank if the REPRODUCTIVE ST POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF POI POTENTIAL THREA Salinity C TRE HISTORY: TRE HISTORY: TRE HISTORY: TRE NOT CONDITION OF MARKED OTHER COMMENTS OUCHER SPECIMI	inophylla open scr anata very open tu IES:S ature:S ature:S ature:S ature:S ATE: Clonal D Native bees s: PULATION: Disease □ Pr Not known E Required □ RS: Not I S (include action t	eedlings: or no attempt ma	Dead: Dead: ade to count Dead: ade to count Flow y bees Moderat ing Count Present District Herb	Act plants) rer I Imi Othe rer I Imi Othe rer I Imi Othe Recreation her I Imi Othe Recreation her I Imi Othe Recreation her I Imi Othe Ner I Imi Othe Recreation her I Imi Othe Ner Imi Othe Ner I Imi Othe Ner Imi	and Acacia i mulans open ctual  Es mat. fruit Finsects Poor Roi Comment: Autua Repla iired VA Herb.	adworks  Generation Ge	<i>pphylla</i> low open fores <i>tus schwartzii</i> low scat rea Occupied: I Fruit □ Vegetativ □ Mammals □ Comment: irazing Ø Weeds er □ Spring □ Reposition □
Acacia ramulosa var. In hrubs over Eriachne Ia ASSOCIATED SPEC No. of PLANTS: M (Leave blank if the REPRODUCTIVE ST POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF POI OTENTIAL THREA Salinity I E IRE HISTORY: ENCING: Not COADSIDE MARKED OTHER COMMENTS OUCHER SPECIMI TTACHED: OPY SENT TO:	inophylla open scr anata very open tu IES:S ature:S ature:S mable to observe, "ATE: Clonal D Native bees s: PULATION:  ATS: Firebr Disease D Pr Not known E Required D RS: Not I S (include action t  EN: Region Map D Regional Offi	eedlings: or no attempt ma	Dead: Dead: ade to count Dead: ade to count Flow y bees Moderat ing Moderat ing Present District Herb Illustrati trict Office	Action of the second se	and Acacia i mulans open ctual  Es mat. fruit  Finsects  Poor  Ro. Comment: Autun Repla ired  VA Herb.  Photo  Other  Other	adworks  Gomn  Winte  Keplace  Gomn  Fruit  Keplace  Kepcify:	<pre>pphylla low open fores tus schwartzii low scat rea Occupied: I Fruit □ Vegetativ □ Mammals □ Comment: irazing Ø Weeds er □ Spring □ Reposition □ </pre>
Associa ramulosa var. In hrubs over Eriachne Id Associated Spec No. of PLANTS: M (Leave blank if u EPRODUCTIVE ST 'OLLINATORS: Other observation: ONDITION OF POI OULINATORS: OTENTIAL THREA Salinity □ E IRE HISTORY: ENCING: Not OADSIDE MARKE THER COMMENTS 'THER COMMENTS OUCHER SPECIMI TTACHED: OPY SENT TO: gned: Joshua Gilovit	inophylla open scr anata very open tu IES:S ature:S unable to observe, `ATE: Clonal C Native bees s: PULATION: Disease □ Pr Not known E Required □ RS: Not I S (include action t  EN: Regional Office Ragional Office tz 722ph3-CG-05	eedlings:	Dead: De	Action of the secret of the se	and Acacia i mulans open ctual  Es mat. fruit  Finsects Poor Poor Roi Comment: Autua Repla Lired VA Herb. Photo Other Date: 25/02/	adworks  Generation Content  Content C	<pre>pphylla low open fores tus schwartzii low scat rea Occupied: I Fruit □ Vegetativ □ Mammals □ Comment: Grazing Ø Weeds er □ Spring □ Reposition □ </pre>



TAXON: Grevilled	a stenostachya (	C.A.Gardner Priority Species: P3	DEFL P Partial		No.: Full Survey 🗹	New Populatio	on 🗖
FROM: Joshua G	ilovitz 722ph3-	CG-02 (ecologia Envi	ronment)	TITLE: Botani	ist SURV	EY DATE: 04/0	7/2008
<b>REGION: Murchi</b>	son	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:		
LOCATION: We	d Range, propo	osed Haul Road					
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 566302 m	nE, 7024279 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Com	patible (e.g. WC	S84) ☑ U	nknown 🗖 🛛 N	one 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Res	serve 🗆	Private	Gravel	Res. MRD 🗖	Rail Rese	erve 🗖
	National	Park 🗖 Past	toral Lease	d Gravel	Res. Shire	Rd. Verge S	hire 🗖
	State F	orest	UCLE	D Other	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge M	RD 🗆
	Water Res	serve 🗆 Othe	er ⊠	Specify: M	lining Lease		
	Landowner/ma	nager present during in	spection:				
LANDFORM:	Floodplain 🗹	Creek bed I	<u>ସ</u>	Slope 🗖	Valley	□ Swa	amp 🗖
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway [		ow Plain 🗖	Gully	C Riverb	ank 🗖
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	<b>J</b> F	lat Plain 🗹	Drainageline	□ Lake E	dge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other [	Specify:				
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗖	Granite 🗹	Dolerite	J Limestor	ne 🗖 Other:	Ferrous	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗖	C	Gravel 🗹	Pebbles 🗹		
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	☑ Loam [		Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Grav	el 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red	☑ Orange	র া	ellow	White 🗖	Gre	ey 🗖
SOIL CONDITIO	N: Moist	Inundated [	Dry D	Saline	Other:		
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observat	Mature: if unable to obs STATE: Clo Native ions:	Seedlings: erve, or no attempt ma onal □ Flower bud 0 bees □ Honey	Dead: de to count p Flower bees	Actual lants) Immat. frui Other insects	Estimate 🗆 t 🔲 Fruit 🗇 🗇 Bin	Area Occupied: Old Fruit 🗆 V rds 🗖 Mamn	egetative ☑ nals □
CONDITION OF	POPULATION	: Healthy 🗖	Moderate	Poor	Disturbed	Comment:	
POTENTIAL THF Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MAR OTHER COMME	REATS: I Disease Not kno Not Required KERS: NTS (include ac	Firebreaks  Min Prescribed Burning wn  Burnt in 19 Fenced  Not Required  tion taken/required):	ing ☑ U □ Othe Su Requ Present □	Recreation r Comme immer A ired Required C	Roadworks nt:	Grazing 🗹 Winter 🗖 Spr J 🗆 Reposit	Weeds
VOUCHER SPEC	IMEN: Ro Map Regions	egional Herb. 🗖 D Mudmap 🗖	istrict Herb. Illustration	WA Her	b. 🗹 Other	d Notes	
Signed: Joehun Cil	witz 722nb3 C	C 02 (acologia Enviro	nment)	Doto: 24	5/02/2000		
orginea, australa Glio	The respins-Co	G-02 (ecologia Enviro	initient)	Date. 2:	00414007		
	NOTE	Man as further informat	and the second second	. I. I was been as	1 1 1 1 1 1 1		

	Department of Environment and	Conservation
--	----------------------------------	--------------

TAXON: Grevillea s	<i>tenostachya</i> C.A. Pri	Gardner ority Species: P3	DEFL Partia	POPULATIO	N No.: Full Survey ☑	New Population
FROM: Joshua Gild	witz 722ph3-CG	-04 (ecologia Envir	conment)	TITLE: Bot	anist SURV	EY DATE: 03/07/2008
<b>REGION: Murchiso</b>	n	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range, proposed	Haul Road				
GPS Location: 50J -	571730 mE, 702	7665 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖 🛛	GDA94-Co	ompatible (e.g.	WGS84) 🗹 Un	known 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserv	e 🗖	Private	Gra Gra	ivel Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Par	k 🗖 🛛 Past	oral Lease	🗹 Gr	avel Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fores	at 🗖	UCL		ther Shire Res.	Rd Verge MRD
	Water Reserv	e 🗖 Othe	r 🗹	Specify	" Mining Lease	nui teige ninus es
1	andowner/manae	er present during in	spection:	артен,		
LINDFORM		or present during in	-	-	N/11	-
LANDFORM: Creek	bed/bank	Chff L	1	Slope 🗆	Valley	Swamp
	Outcrop 🗆	Breakaway		Low Plain	Gully	□ Riverbank □
	Ridge 🗆	Sand Dune	]	Flat Plain M	Drainageline	□ Lake Edge □
	Firebreak	Other	J Specify	:		
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite	🗖 Lime	estone 🛛 Other:	BIF, Ferrous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Stones/Boulde	rs 🗹	Gravel 🗹	Pebbles E	1
SOIL TYPE:	Sand Z	Loam E	1	Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange E	Z	Yellow 🗖	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION:	Moist 🗖	Inundated	Drv	□ Salin	e 🗖 Other:	
(Leave blank if REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO	unable to observe TATE: Clonal Native bee ns: PPULATION:	e, or no attempt mad Flower bud s Honey Healthy	de to count J Flow bees D Moderat	plants) er 🗆 Immat. Other ins e 🔲 Poor	fruit  Fr	Old Fruit  Vegetative  Mammals Comment:
POTENTIAL THRE Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARKI OTHER COMMEN	ATS: Fire Disease ☐ I Not known ot Required ☐ ERS: No FS (include action	breaks  Mini Prescribed Burning Burnt in 19 Fenced  tRequired  taken/required):	ng 🗹 🗖 Oti Re Present 🕻	Recreation her Con Summer quired Required	Roadworks 🗆 nment: Autumn 🗆 W Replace/Repair 🗖 🔲 Replace f	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 'inter 🗆 Spring 🗖 ] Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIM	IEN: Regio	nal Herb. 🗇 Di Mudmap 🗖	strict Herb Illustrati	. D WA	Herb. 🗹 Other 🛙 Photo 🗖 Field	Notes
COPY SENT TO:	Regional O	Distr	ict Office	U Oth	er 🗆 Specify:	
Signed: Joshua Gilov	itz 722ph3-CG-0	4 ( <i>ecologia</i> Enviro	nment)	Date: 25/02/2	2009	
Please re	NOTE: Ma turn completed form	p or further information to Director General.	on may be a DEC, Lock	attached or given ed Bag 104, BEI	on the back of this form NTLEY DELIVERY CE	NTRE WA 6983

Department of Environment and	Conservation	RARE	FLOR	A REP	ORT F	ORM
TAXON: Hemigeni DRF	a sp. nov (aff. <i>exilis</i> ) Species of I	D nterest: ☑ F	EFL POPULA	TION No.: J Full Su	rvey 🗹 No	w Population
FROM: Jeremy Na	aykens 722ph2-JN-10 (e	<i>cologia</i> Environm	ent) TITLE:	Botanist	SURVEY D.	ATE: 21/04/2007
<b>REGION: Murchis</b>	son D	ISTRICT:		SHII	RE:	
LOCATION: Weld	I Range					
GPS LOCATION:	50J – 559931 mE, 70178	10 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖 GDA	94 🗖 GDA9	4-Compatible (	e.g. WGS84)	☑ Unknow	n 🗖 None 🗖
LAND STATUS	Nature Reserve	Pri	vate 🗖	Gravel Res N		Rail Reserve
LAND STATUS.	National Park	Pastoral L	ease 🗹	Gravel Res. S	Shire 🗖 🛛	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Forest	l ustorur E	JCL	Other Shire	Res. 🗖 🛛	d. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	Other 🗹	Sp	ecify: Mining	Lease	an renge made in
	Landowner/manager pres	ent during inspecti	on: 🗖	een ja anna h		
LANDFORM.	Hillton 🗖	Cliff <b>T</b>	Midslone	N	Valley 🗖	Swamn 🗖
LANDFORM:		Preakaway	Low Plain		Gully D	Riverbank
		Sand Dune	Eow riam Flat	D Dr	ainageline	Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Other D Sn	ria			Lake Luge D
DOCK TUBE					Other DIE	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite D Gra				Other: BIF	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet M	Stones/Boulders		arse Gravel M	Peoble	s 🗠
SOIL TYPE:	Sand M		Clay E		Peat	Graver D
SOIL COLOUR:	Red M	Orange 🗹	Yellow L		white 🔟	Grey D
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P	Mature: Seedli if unable to observe, or no STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION: He	ngs: De o attempt made to c Flower bud □ I Honey bees althy □ Mo	ad: Ad count plants) Flower 🗹 Imi D Othe derate 🗖	ctual  Estin mat. fruit r insects Poor	mate  Area Fruit  Old F Birds  Disturbed	i Occupied: ruit
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Firebreaks Disease D Prescri Not known Ø Not Required C KERS: Not Requ	☐ Mining ☑ bed Burning ☐ Burnt in 19 Fenced ☐ ired ☐ Prese /required):	I Recreation Other □ Summer □ Required □ ent □ Requ	on 🗆 Road Comment: J Autumi Replace uired 🗖	works 🛛 Gra n 🗍 Winter e/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗊	Izing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 Spring 🗆 Reposition
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Jeremy Naa	MEN: Regional He Map 🗖 Mud Regional Office f ykens 722ph2-JN-10 (ec NOTE: Map or fu	erb.  District map District District Of Ologia Environme other information ma	Herb.  He	WA Herb. Photo Other Date: 03/03/20 given on the bac	Other 🗖 Field Note Specify: 009 sk of this form.	s 🗆
RECORDS:	return completed form to Dia PLEASE FORWARD TO	ector General, DEC,	Locked Bag 104 E OFFICER, FL	, BENILEY DE ORA, SPECIE	SLIVERY CENTRI	S WA 6983 NITIES BRANCH



TAXON: Homaloca DRF	<i>lyx echinulatus</i> C Pri	raven ority Species: P3	DEFL POPU Partial Surve	JLATION No	n.: Ill Survey ☑ N	New Population
FROM: Jeremy Naa	ykens 722ph1-JN	-05 (ecologia En	vironment) TI	<b>FLE:</b> Botanis	st SURVEY DAT	TE: 07/11/2006
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	on	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range					
GPS LOCATION: 5	0J - 578730 mE.	7028969 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Compatil	ble (e.g. WGS	(84) 🗹 Unknow	wn 🗆 None 🗖
LAND STATUS	Nature Reserv	e 🗖	Private 🗖	Gravel R	Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
LAND STATES.	National Par	k □ Pa	storal Lease	Gravel I	Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fores	st 🗖	UCL	Other S	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserv	e 🗖 🛛 Ot	her 🗹	Specify: Mi	ning Lease	
	Landowner/manag	er present during	inspection: 🗖			
PLEASE NOTE: O	oportunistic colle	ction therefore co	ertain information	unavailable		
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff	SI SI	ope	Valley D	Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway	Low P	lain 🗖	Gully 🗖	Riverbank 🗖
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	0	Flat 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other	□ Specify:			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite	Limestone	e 🗖 Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗖	Fluviatile Grav	el 🗖	Concretionary Grav	vel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗖	Loam	Cla	ay 🗖	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Brown	□ Yello	w 🗖	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist 🗖	Inundated	Dry D	Saline 🗖	Other:	
No. of PLANTS:	Mature:	Seedlings:	Dead:	_Actual	Estimate 🗖 Ar	ea Occupied:
(Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation	f unable to observ STATE: Clonal Native bee	e, or no attempt m Flower bud S Hone	ade to count plants     Flower      vy bees	i) Immat. fruit Other insects	<ul> <li>Fruit <a>Old</a></li> <li>Birds <a>Old</a></li> </ul>	Fruit 🗆 Vegetative 🗹 Mammals 🗖
CONDITION OF P	OPULATION:	Healthy 🗖	Moderate 🗖	Poor 🗖	Disturbed 🗖	Comment:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fire Disease Not known lot Required ERS: No TS (include action	breaks  Mi Prescribed Burnin  Burnt in 1 Fenced  traced  trace	ining 🗹 Recr g 🗆 Other 🗖 9Summ ] Required Present 🗖	eation Commen er A Required Required	Roadworks	razing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 r 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Jeremy Naa	MEN: Regio Map 🗖 Regional C ykens 722ph1-JN	onal Herb. □ Mudmap □ office □ Di -05 ( <i>ecologia</i> Env	District Herb. Illustration strict Office /ironment)	WA Herb Photo Other	. ☑ Other □ □ Field No □ Specify: /02/2009	tes 🗖
Please	NOTE: Ma eturn completed for	up or further inform m to Director Gener	ation may be attache al. DEC. Locked Bas	d or given on the 104, BENTLI	he back of this form. EY DELIVERY CENTI	RE WA 6983

Department of Environment and Conservation	
---	--

T TAXON: Hemige	enia tysonii F.Mue Pri	II. DE prity Species: P3	FL POPUI Parti	ATION N al Survey	io.:	Ill Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Joshua Gil	ovitz 722ph3-CG-	11 (ecologia Env	ironment)	TITLE	Botanis	t SURVEY	Y DATE: 04/07/2008
<b>REGION:</b> Murchise	on	DISTRICT:				SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range, proposed	Haul Road					
GPS LOCATION:	50J – 567777 mE.	7025547 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94	GDA94-C	ompatible	e.g. WGS	84) 🗹 Unki	nown
LAND STATUS	Natura Pacara		Drivote		Gravel P		Pail Pacarija
LAND STATUS.	Nature Reserv	n Pa	Flivau storal Lease		Gravel	Res. MRD	Rd Varge Shire
	State Foras		Storar Lease		Other	Shira Das	Rd. Verge Shire D
	Water Recent		her 🕅	S.	ould a	ning Losso	Ku. Verge MIKD D
	Landowner/manag	ar present during	inspection:	<b>п</b>	ceny. win	ing Lease	
PLEASE NOTE: O	portunistic colleg	tion therefore a	inspection.	mation un	availabla		
TLEASE NOTE. O	ppor tunistic conec	tion therefore co		mation un			-
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff		Slope		Valley 🗆	Swamp 🗆
	Outcrop	Breakaway		Low Plain		Gully 🗆	Riverbank
	Ridge	Sand Dune		Flat		Drainageline	Lake Edge
State State	Firebreak	Other	L Specing	/:		9 337	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite	Dolerite		Limestone	e 🛛 Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗆	Boulder 🗆	Fluviati	le Gravel (		Concretionary G	ravel
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗆	Loam		Clay [		Peat 🗆	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗆	Brown		Yellow [		White 🗆	Grey 🗆
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist 🗆	Inundated	D Dry		Saline 🗆	Other:	
VEGETATION CL. ASSOCIATED SPE	ASSIFICATION ( CIES:	Muir's):					
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO	Mature: f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings: , or no attempt m Flower bud S Hone Healthy	Dead: ade to coun Flow y bees Modera	A t plants) /er I Im Othe te I	ctual  mat. fruit r insects Poor	Estimate  Fruit  O Fruit  O D D isturbed  O	Area Occupied: ld Fruit
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Firel Disease I P Not known lot Required I ERS: Not TS (include action	oreaks  Mi rescribed Burnin; Burnt in 1 Fenced Required taken/required):_	ning 🗹 g 🔲 Ot 9 J Re Present f	Recreation ther Summer equired Req	on  Comment Comment Au Re uired	Roadworks 🗆 :: itumn 🗖 Wir place/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗇	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 nter 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	MEN: Regio Map 🗖 Regional Of	nal Herb. 🗖 🚽 Mudmap 🗖 fice 🗖 Dis	District Her Illustrat strict Office	b. 🗆 ion 🗆	WA Herb. Photo Other 🗖	<ul> <li>☑ Other □</li> <li>□ Field N Specify:</li> </ul>	Notes
Signed: Joshua Gilov	itz 722ph3-CG-11	(ecologia Envir	onment)	÷.	Date: 25/	02/2009	
Please r RECORDS: F	NOTE: Maj eturn completed form	o or further information to Director Generation	ation may be al, DEC, Loc <b>RATIVE OI</b>	attached or ked Bag 104 FFICER, FI	given on th , BENTLE , ORA, SPI	e back of this form. Y DELIVERY CEN ECIES AND COMM	TRE WA 6983 MUNITIES BRANCH

TAXON: Hemigenia tysonii F.Muell.       DEFL POPULATION No.:         DRF I       Priority Species: P3       Partial Survey I       Full Survey I       New Population	
FROM: Scott Hitchcock 722ph3-SH-04 ( <i>ecologia</i> Environment) TITLE: Botanist SURVEY DATE: 04/07/2008	4
REGION: Murchison DISTRICT: SHIRE:	<u></u>
LOCATION: Weld Range	
GPS LOCATION: 50J – 569161 mE, 7026298 mN	
GPS DATUM: AGD84 □ GDA94 □ GDA94 □ GDA94-Compatible (e.g. wGS84) ⊠ Unknown □ Not	ie 🗆
LAND STATUS: Nature Reserve D Private D Gravel Res. MRD D Rail Reserve	
State Forest	
Water Reserve  Other  Other  Specify: Mining Lease	
Landowner/manager present during inspection:	
PLEASE NOTE: Opportunistic collection therefore certain information unavailable	
LANDEODM: Hillion C Cliff C Slong Vallay C Swan	
Outcrop D Breakaway D Lindulating Plain M Gully D Riverbar	μ η Π
Ridge Sand Dune Flat Drainageline Lake Edu	ve 🗖
Firebreak C Other C Specify:	,
ROCK TYPE: Laterite  Granite  Dolerite  Limestone  Other: Ferrous	
ROCK FORM: Sheet B Boulder Fluviatile Gravel Concretionary Gravel	
SOIL TYPE: Sand Loam Clay Peat Gravel	
SOIL COLOUR: Red D Brown D Yellow D White D Grey	
SOIL CONDITION: Moist D Inundated Dry D Saline Other:	
VEGETATION CLASSIFICATION (Muir's):	
ASSOCIATED SPECIES:	
No. of PLANTS: Mature: Seedlings: Dead: Actual 🗖 Estimate 🗖 Area Occupied:	
(Leave blank if unable to observe, or no attempt made to count plants) <b>REPRODUCTIVE STATE:</b> Clonal  Elower bud  Flower  Immat fruit  Fruit  Old Fruit  Ve	etative M
POLLINATORS: Native bees I Honey bees I Other insects I Birds I Mamma	ls 🗖
Other observations:	
CONDITION OF POPULATION: Healthy Moderate Poor Disturbed Comment:	
POTENTIAL THREATS: Firebreaks I Mining I Recreation Roadworks Grazing I Graz	Weeds 🗆
FIRE HISTORY: Not known 🗹 Burnt in 19 Summer 🗆 Autumn 🗆 Winter 🗆 Sprir	g 🗖
FENCING: Not Required 🗆 Fenced 🗆 Required 🗖 Replace/Repair 🗆	0
ROADSIDE MARKERS: Not Required D Present D Required D Replace D Reposition	n 🗆
OTHER COMMENTS (include action taken/required):	
VOUCHER SPECIMEN. Regional Harb D District Harb D WA Harb D Other D	
VOUCHER SPECIMEN: Regional Herb. D District Herb. D WA Herb. D Other D	
ATTACHED:       Map       Mudmap       Illustration       Photo       Field Notes         COPY SENT TO:       Regional Office       District Office       Other       Specify:	
Signed: Scott Hitchcock 722ph3-SH-04 (ecologia Environment) Date: 25/02/2009	
NOTE: Map or jurther information may be attached or given on the back of this form.	
RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER. FLORA SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES REAN	СН
	222.

DDF -	Dei-	ity Spaciae, D2	Parti	al Survey	<b>1</b> Ful	Survey	New Population
	Prior	Ry Species. F5	ironment)	TITLE	Botanist	SURVEY D	ATE: 09/07/2008
ROM: Scott Hitch	соск /22рп5-5п-00	DISTRICT:	in on intentry			SHIRE:	
REGION: Murchis	Damas anonorod F	DISTRICT.	et				
JOCATION: weld	Kange, proposed b	Jorrow rits we	31				
<b>GPS LOCATION: 5</b>	50J - 577071 mE, 70	032746 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖 🛛 🤇	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-C	ompatible	(e.g. WGS	84) ☑ Unk	known 🗖 None 🗆
AND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Private		Gravel R	es. MRD 🗖	Rail Reserve
	National Park	D Pa	storal Lease		Gravel R	es. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Forest		UCL		Other S	hire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	Ot Ot	her 🗹	S	pecify: Mir	ing Lease	
	Landowner/manager	r present during	inspection:				
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff		Slop	e 🗖	Valley 🗆	Swamp
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway		Low Plain	n 🗖	Gully [	Riverbank
	Ridgetop 🗹	Sand Dune		Fla	it 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge L
	Firebreak 🗖	Other	□ Specif	y:			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗖	Granite 🗖	Dolerite		Limestone	Other: F	Ferrous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder 🗖		Gravel	N	Pebbles 🗹	
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗹	Loam		Clay		Peat 🗆	Gravel 🛛
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange		Yellow		White D	Grey L
SOIL CONDITION	i: Moist 🗖	Inundated	D Dr	y 🗖	Saline 🗆	Other:	
ASSOCIATED SPH No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank	subsp. <i>forrestii</i> low open herbs over <i>Era</i> ECIES:S Mature:S if unable to observe,	open shrubland agrostis eriopod Seedlings: , or no attempt n	and <i>Hemige</i> a scattered Dead: Dead:	enia tysoni tussock gra nt plants)	Actual	Estimate	Area Occupied:
ASSOCIATED SPH No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS:	subsp. forrestii low open herbs over Era ECIES: Mature: S if unable to observe, STATE: Clonal I Native bees	Seedlings: or no attempt n Flower buck I Hon	Dead: Dead: Dead: Dead: Dead: Dead: Dead: Dead: Dead: Dead:	nia tysoni tussock gra nt plants) wer 🗖 In Otl	Actual mmat. fruit	Estimate 🗆	Area Occupied: Old Fruit 🗖 Vegeta ds 🗖 Mammals 1
ASSOCIATED SPH No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observation	subsp. forrestii low open herbs over Era ECIES:S if unable to observe, STATE: Clonal f Native bees ons:	Seedlings: or no attempt n Flower buck Healthy	and Hemiga a scattered Dead: nade to coun d   Flo ey bees	nt plants) wer 🗆 In Otl	Actual mmat. fruit poor Poor	Estimate  Fruit  Bird Disturbed	Area Occupied: Old Fruit   Vegeta ds   Mammals
ASSOCIATED SPH No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati	subsp. forrestii low open herbs over Era ECIES:S if unable to observe, STATE: Clonal f Native bees ons: OPULATION:	open shrubland agrostis eriopod Seedlings: , or no attempt n G Flower buc Healthy G	and Hemige a scattered Dead: nade to cound d D Flo ey bees D Moder	nia tysoni tussock gra nt plants) wer 🗆 In Oth ate 🗖	Actual mmat. fruit Poor Poor	Estimate Fruit Bird	Area Occupied: Old Fruit   Vegeta ds   Mammals Comment:
ASSOCIATED SPH No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF F POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMME	subsp. forrestii low open herbs over Era ECIES:	open shrubland agrostis eriopod Seedlings:	and Hemige a scattered Dead: nade to cound I D Flo ey bees D Moder	enia tysoni tussock gra nt plants) wer 🗆 In Oth ate 🗖 Recrea Dther 🖨 Summer Required I 🗐 Re	i low shrub assland. Actual mmat. fruit her insects Poor Commen A Commen A Re equired	Estimate Estimate Fruit Disturbed Roadworks t: utumn Weplace/Repair Replace [	Area Occupied: Old Fruit □ Vegeta ds □ Mammals □ □ Comment: Grazing ☑ We /inter □ Spring □ □ Reposition □
ASSOCIATED SPH No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF F POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMME VOUCHER SPEC ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitch	subsp. forrestii low open herbs over Era ECIES:	open shrubland agrostis eriopod Seedlings: or no attempt n	and Hemiga a scattered Dead: nade to count i D Flor ey bees D Moder Moder Inning M ng D (1 19 Present District He Illustr District Office ironment)	enia tysoni tussock gra nt plants) wer 🗆 In Otl ate 🗆 Recrea Dther 🗖 Summer Required C 📄 Re erb. 🗖 ation 🗖 re	V low shrub assland. Actual mmat. fruit her insects Poor Commen Commen A Commen A Re equired WA Hert Other Date: 25	Estimate Fruit Fruit Estimate Estima	Area Occupied: Old Fruit □ Vegeta ds □ Mammals □ □ Comment: Grazing ☑ We /inter □ Spring □ □ Reposition □ □ Reposition □
ASSOCIATED SPH No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMME VOUCHER SPEC ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitch	subsp. forrestii low open herbs over Era ECIES:	open shrubland agrostis eriopod Seedlings: , or no attempt n Flower buc Flower buc Healthy Healthy Healthy Mudmap ffice Seedlings: Hon Healthy Mudmap Mudmap Secologia Env	and Hemiga a scattered Dead: nade to cound I D Flo ey bees D Moder Moder Inning D ng D O 19 District He District He District Offic ironment)	enia tysoni tussock gra nt plants) wer In Otl ate I Recrea Dther I Summer Required I I Re erb. I ation I ce I	V low shrub assland. Actual mmat. fruit her insects Poor Commen A Commen A Recuired WA Herb Other Date: 25	Estimate Fruit Fruit Estimate Estima	Area Occupied: Old Fruit □ Vegeta ds □ Mammals □ □ Comment: Grazing ☑ We /inter □ Spring □ □ Reposition 1 □ Reposition 1
ASSOCIATED SPH No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF F POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMME VOUCHER SPEC ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitch	subsp. forrestii low open herbs over Era ECIES:	Seedlings: or no attempt n	and Hemige a scattered Dead: nade to count i D Flor ey bees D Moder inning M ng D C 19 Present District He Illustr District Office ironment) mation may l	enia tysoni tussock gra nt plants) wer I In Otl ate I Recrea Dther I Summer Required I Summer Conter I Summer Required I conter I summer Required I summer R	V low shrub assland. Actual mmat. fruit her insects Poor Commen A Commen A Commen A Re equired WA Hert Other Date: 25 or given on 1	Estimate Fruit Fruit Estimate Fruit Estimate	Area Occupied: Old Fruit □ Vegeta ds □ Mammals □ □ Comment: Grazing ☑ We /inter □ Spring □ □ Reposition □ □ Reposition □ □ Reposition □



TAXON: Micromyr	tus placoides l	Rye Priority Species	DEFL POPU	LATION No.: tial Survey	Full Survey	☑ New	Population
FROM: Jeremy Na	aykens 722ph	1-JN-06 (ecolog	ia Environme	nt) TITLE:Be	otanist SUR	VEY DATE:	07/11/2006
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	on	DISTRI	CT:		SHIRE:		
LOCATION: Weld	Range						
GPS LOCATION: 5	50J - 572381 r	nE, 7026342 mN	i.				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-	Compatible (e.g	. WGS84) 🗹	Unknown	□ None □
LAND STATUS:	Nature Rea	serve 🗖	Priva	te 🗖 🛛 G	ravel Res. MRD		Rail Reserve
	National	Park 🗖	Pastoral Lea	se 🗹 G	iravel Res. Shire	D Rd	Verge Shire 🗖
	State F	orest 🗖	UC		Other Shire Res.	🗖 Rd.	Verge MRD
	Water Rea	serve 🗖	Other 2	Speci	fy: Mining Leas	se	
	Landowner/ma	inager present du	ring inspection	: 🗖			
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	(	Cliff 🗖	Hill slope	V	alley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop 🗖	Breaka	way 🗖	Low Plain	(	Gully 🗖	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand D	une 🗖	Flat 🗖	Drainag	eline 🗖	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak 🗖	0	ther 🗖 Speci	fy:			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗆	Dolerit	e 🗖 Lin	nestone 🗖 🛛	Other: BIF, nor	-banded Ferrous
<b>ROCK FORM:</b>	Sheet 🗹	Stones	/Boulders 🗹	Fluviatile (	Gravel 🗖	Concretionar	y Gravel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand		oam 🗖	Clay 🗹	Pea	at 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red	Ø Ora	nge 🗹	Yellow 🗖	Whit	te 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist	Inundation	ated 🗖 Di	ry 🗖 🛛 Sali	ne 🗖 🛛 Oth	er:	
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF PO	CIES: Mature: f unable to obs STATE: Clo Native ons: OPULATION	Seedlings: erve, or no attem mal □ Flower bees □ F : Healthy	Dead pt made to cou bud D Flo loney bees D Moder	Actu int plants) wer I Immat Other in rate I Poo	al 🛛 Estimate t. fruit 🗇 Fruit nsects 🗖 or 🔲 Distu	<ul> <li>Area O</li> <li>Old Frui</li> <li>Birds </li> <li>urbed </li> <li>C</li> </ul>	occupied: it □ Vegetative ☑ Mammals □ Comment:
POTENTIAL THRE Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: I Disease I Not kno lot Required I ERS: TS (include ac	Firebreaks Prescribed Bu wn Burnt Fence Not Required tion taken/require	Mining 🗹 urning 🗖 ( in 19 ed 🗇 I Present ed):	Recreation f Other Co Summer C Required C Required	Roadwork mment: Autumn Replace/Rep ed Rep	Winter 🗆 Winter 🗆 pair 🗆 place	ng 🗹 Weeds 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Jaramy Nagy	MEN: R Map 🗖 Regiona	egional Herb. 🗖 Mudmap 🕻 il Office 🗖	District He J Illustr District Offic	erb.  WA ation  Ot	Herb. ☑ ( Photo □ her □ Spect	Dther 🗖 Field Notes 1 ify:	3
organou, oci enty riady	Morrs	Man on footbor in	formation new b	a attached or obs	en on the back of	his famos	

NOTE: Map or further information may be attached or given on the back of this form. Please return completed form to Director General, DEC, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983



TAXON: Microm	yrtus placoides	Rye Priority Species: P1	DEFL PO Partial Su	PULATION No	o.: Ill Survey ☑	New Population
FROM: Scott Hit	chcock 722ph1-	-SH-18 (ecologia Env	ironment) T	ITLE: Botanist	SURVEY DAT	E: 09/11/2006
<b>REGION: Murchi</b>	son	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: We	ld Range					
GPS LOCATION:	: 50J - 548351 r	mE, 7015088 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Comp	atible (e.g. WGS	584) 🗹 Unkne	own 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Re	serve	Private	Gravel F	Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National	Park 🗖 Pas	storal Lease	Gravel I	Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State F	Forest	UCL	Other S	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Re	serve 🗖 Otl	ner 🗹	Specify: Mi	ning Lease	
	Landowner/ma	anager present during	inspection:	1	0	
LANDFORM.	Hill crest	Cliff	п на	slope 🕅	Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
LANDFORM:	Outeron D	Preakaway		Plain	Gully I	Riverbank
		Sond Duna		Flat	Drainageline	
	Finahaash 🗖	Sand Dune	Constitut	Flat D	Drainagetine	
	Firebreak	Other	Specify:			3.5.5.16.62
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite	Limestone	e 🖸 Other: BII	F, non-banded Ferrous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗹	Stones/	Boulders 🗹	Coars	e Gravel 🗹	
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	☑ Loam		Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red	☑ Orange	☑ Ye	llow 🗖	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITIO	N: Moist	Inundated	Dry D	Saline 🗖	Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observal CONDITION OF	Mature: if unable to obs STATE: Clo Native tions: POPULATION	Seedlings: serve, or no attempt m onal	Dead: ade to count pla Flower y bees Moderate	Actual C nts) Immat. fruit Other insects Poor C	Estimate A	rea Occupied: d Fruit   Vegetative   Mammals  Comment:
POTENTIAL THE Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MAR OTHER COMME	REATS: Disease D Not kno Not Required C KERS: NTS (include ac	Firebreaks  Mi Prescribed Burning Wyn  Burnt in 19 Fenced  Not Required  ction taken/required):_	ning 🗹 Re g 🗖 Other 9 Sun 1 Requir Present 🗖	ecreation Comment mer Au red Re Required	Roadworks 🗆 ( t: utumn 🗆 Wint place/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗖	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 er 🗆 Spring 🗆 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPEC ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitch	IMEN: R Map Regiona cock 722ph1-S <i>NOTE</i> .	egional Herb.  Mudmap al Office H-18 (ecologia Envir Map or further informa	District Herb.	WA Herb. WA Herb. Photo Other Date: 26/		otes 🗖
Please RECORDS:	return completed	form to Director Genera VARD TO ADMINIST	I, DEC, Locked I RATIVE OFFIC	ag 104, BENTLE ER, FLORA, SP	Y DELIVERY CENT	TRE WA 6983 IUNITIES BRANCH



TAXON: Micromyra DRF	tus placoides	<b>Rye</b> Priority Spe	cies: P1	DEFL Partia	POPULAT	FION No.: Full S	urvey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Amy Capo	bianco 722ph	2-AC-02 (eco	ologia Env	ironment	) TITLE	: Botanist	SURVE	Y DATE: 20/04/2007
<b>REGION: Murchise</b>	on	DIS	TRICT:			SH	IRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range							
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 563088	mE, 7020263	mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94		GDA94-Co	ompatible (e.	.g. WGS84)	🗹 Unk	nown 🗆 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Re	eserve		Private		Gravel Res.	MRD 🗖	Rail Reserve
	Nationa	l Park 🗖	Past	oral Lease		Gravel Res.	Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State ]	Forest		UCL		Other Shire	Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Re	eserve	Othe	r 🗹	Spee	cify: Mining	Lease	0
	Landowner/m	anager presen	t during in	spection:	2			
LANDFORM:	Hilltop		Cliff [	1	Footslope B	ব	Valley [	Swamp
	Outcrop	Bre	akaway [	1	Low Plain	7	Gully	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗆	Sar	nd Dune	1	Flat C	D	rainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	b. The second	Other [	J Specify	:		0	6
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granit	e 🗖	Dolerite		imestone	Other: F	errous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖		Boulder	]	Coarse G	ravel 🗹	P	ebbles 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand		Loam C	3	Clay 🗹		Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red		Orange E	Z	Yellow 🗖		White 🗖	Grev 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist		undated	Dry	□ Sa	line 🗖	Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF Pol	Mature: f unable to ob STATE: Cl Native ons: OPULATION	Seedlings serve, or no a onal  Flc bees Healt	s: ttempt mac ower bud [ Honey hy []	Dead: _ de to count Flow bees Moderat	Act plants) er 🗆 Imm Other e 🔲 Pe	at. fruit insects oor	imate 🗖 Fruit 🗖 – C Birds Disturbed 🗖	Area Occupied: Old Fruit   Vegetative Mammals Comment:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Disease Not know tot Required ERS: TS (include a	Firebreaks Prescribed own I B F Not Require ction taken/red	Mini d Burning urnt in 19 enced d d d quired):	ng 🗹 🗖 Ot Re Present 🕻	Recreation her	omment: Autum Replac red	dworks 🗆 m 🗆 Wi e/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗖	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 nter 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Amy Capobi	MEN: F Map Region Sanco 722ph2-	Regional Herb Mudma al Office 🗖 -AC-02 (ecolo	. 🗆 Di p 🗖 Distr <i>ogia</i> Envir	strict Herb Illustrati ict Office onment)	0. 🗆 W ion 🗖 O C E	A Herb. Photo Dther Date: 26/02/2	Other Field Specify: 2009	Notes 🗖
Please r	NOTE eturn completed	.: Map or furthe	e <i>r informati</i> tor General.	on may be a DEC, Lock	attached or gi ted Bag 104, l	iven on the ba BENTLEY D	ck of this form ELIVERY CEI	NTRE WA 6983



TAXON: Micromyr DRF	tus placoides	<b>Rye</b> Priority Specie	es: P1	DEFL F Partial	POPUL Survey	ATION No	.: Il Survey ☑	New Popul	ation 🗖
FROM: Scott Hitch	cock 722ph1-	SH-17 (ecologi	a Environ	ment)	TITL	E: Botanis	t SURVE	Y DATE: 12	2/11/2006
<b>REGION: Murchis</b>	on	DIST	RICT:				SHIRE:		
LOCATION: Weld	Range								
GPS LOCATION: 5	50J - 562050 r	nE, 7019840 n	nN						
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94	GE GE	A94-Con	patible	(e.g. WGS	84) 🗹 Unk	nown 🗖	None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Re	serve		Private		Gravel R	es. MRD	Rail R	leserve
	National	Park	Pastora	al Lease	2	Gravel R	es. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verg	e Shire 🗖
	State F	orest		UCL C	7	Other S	hire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge	MRD
	Water Re	serve	Other	M	S	pecify: Min	ing Lease		
	Landowner/ma	anager present	during insp	ection:			8		
ANDEODM	Hillton 🗖	unger present			Slop		Vallay	1	
LANDFORM:		Dress		1	Siop			Dia di Dia	swamp
		Brea		Minor	ow Plan		Duraina calina C	I KIV	
		Sand	Dune D	Minor	channe		Drainagenne L	Lak	e Edge
	Firebreak		Other 🛛	Specify:	_		4		
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗖	Granite		Dolerite		Limestone	Other: F	errous, ?Cal	crete
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Bo	ulder 🗹		Fine G	ravel 🗹	Coarse (	Gravel 🗹	
SOIL TYPE:	Sand		Loam 🗖		Clay	M	Peat 🗖	G	ravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red	<b>⊠</b> 0	range 🗹		Yellow		White 🗖		Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist	🗆 Inur	ndated 🗖	Dry D		Saline 🗖	Other:		
(Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF Pol	f unable to obs STATE: Clo Native ons: OPULATION	serve, or no atte onal D Flow bees D	empt made er bud 🛛 Honey be	to count p Flower res 🗖 Moderate	olants) Ir Oth	nmat. fruit [ ner insects [ Poor 🗖	☐ Fruit ☐ ( ☐ Bird: ☐ Disturbed ☐	Dld Fruit 🗆 s 🗇 Ma	Vegetative 🗹 ammals 🗖 ent:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity 🗖 FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Disease Not kno lot Required ERS: TS (include ac	Firebreaks Prescribed wn 2 Bu Bu Fer Not Required tion taken/requ	Mining Burning D rnt in 19 nced D D Pr nired):	g 🗹 Othe Si Requ resent 🗖	Recreat er 🗖 ummer uired 🗖 Rec	ion 🗆 F Comment 🔲 Au J Rej quired 🗖	Roadworks 🗆 tumn 🗇 Wi blace/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗆	Grazing ☑ inter □ I Rep	Weeds  Spring  osition
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO;	MEN: R Map 🗖 Regiona	egional Herb. Mudmap al Office 🗖	<ul> <li>District</li> </ul>	rict Herb. Illustratio t Office	n 0	WA Herb. Photo Other	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field</li> <li>Specify:</li> </ul>	Notes 🗖	
Signed: Scott Hitchc	ock 722ph1-S	H-17 (ecologia	Environm	nent)		Date: 26/0	2/2009		
Please r	NOTE, eturn completed	Map or further	<i>information</i> General, D	<i>may be att</i> EC, Locke	<i>tached o</i> d Bag 10	r given on th	e back of this form. Y DELIVERY CE	NTRE WA 69	83

	Department of Environment and	Conservation
--	----------------------------------	--------------

TAXON: Mirbelia DRF	<i>stipitata</i> Cris?	p & J.M.Ta Priority Sp	ylor ecies: P3	DEFI Partia	POPUL	ATION N	lo.: Full Survey	Ø	New Population
FROM: Jeremy Na	aykens 722pl	11-JN-08 (ed	cologia Env	ironment	) TI	TLE: Bota	inist S	SURVEY	DATE: 04/11/2006
<b>REGION: Murchise</b>	on	DI	STRICT:				SHIRE:		
LOCATION: Weld	Range								
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 585997	mE, 703208	1 mN						
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA9	4 🗖 🔹 🤇	GDA94-C	ompatible	(e.g. WG	S84) 🗖	Unkn	own 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Re	serve		Private		Gravel	Res. MRD		Rail Reserve
	National	Park	Past	oral Lease	Ø	Gravel	Res. Shire		Rd. Verge Shire
	State I	Forest		UCL		Other	Shire Res.		Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Re	serve	Othe	r 🗹	S	specify: M	ining Lease	e	
	Landowner/m	anager prese	nt during in	spection:					
LANDFORM.	Hillton 🗖	5 1	Cliff C	1	Slon		V		Swamp 🗖
LANDFORM.		R	reakaway [	1	Low Plai		0		Biverbank
		D S	and Dune		LOW Fian		Drainage	line 🗹	
	Firebrack G		Other	J I Specifi	L IS	11 🔟	Dramage	line 🗹	Lake Edge
2001				a specify			4		
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Gran	ite 🗆	Dolerite		Limestor	ne 🗆 C	other: BII	F, non-banded Ferrous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Stones/	Boulders <b>E</b>	1	Fluviatile	Gravel	1	Concret	ionary Gravel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	Ø	Loam [	]	Clay		Pea	t 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red	$\square$	Orange E	đ	Yellow		White	e 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist		nundated	Dry		Saline 🗖	Othe	er:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF Policy	Mature: f unable to ob: STATE: Cl Native ons: OPULATION	Seedling serve, or no onal F bees F : Hea	gs: attempt mac lower bud □ Honey Ithy □	Dead: de to count Flow bees	t plants) er 🗆 In Oth	Actual nmat. fruit ner insects Poor	Estimate Estimate Distur	A   A   A   A   A   A   A   A	rea Occupied: d Fruit □ Vegetative ☑ □ Mammals □ Comment:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Disease Not kno lot Required ERS: TS (include ac	Firebreaks Prescribe own 🗹 1 Not Requir ction taken/r	☐ Mini ed Burning Burnt in 19 Fenced ☐ ed ☐ equired):	ng 🗹 🗆 Ot Re Present 🕻	Recreat her Summer quired Re	ion 🗆 Commer 🔲 A J R quired 🗖	Roadworks nt: utumn	wint Wint air D lace D	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 eer 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Jeremy Naay	MEN: R Map Region /kens 722ph I- NOTE	Legional Her Mudm al Office □ -JN-08 (eco	b. 🗆 Di ap 🗖 Distr <i>logia</i> Envir her informati	strict Herl Illustrat ict Office onment) on may be	o. □ ion □ □	WA Herb Phot Other [ r given on 1	<ul> <li>D. ☑ O</li> <li>o □</li> <li>D Specif</li> <li>Date: 03/0.</li> <li>Che back of the</li> </ul>	ther Field N fy: 3/2009 uis form.	otes 🗖
Please r RECORDS: F	eturn completed	form to Dire	ctor General. DMINISTR	DEC, Lock	ked Bag 10 FICER, F	4, BENTL	EY DELIVE	RY CENT	TRE WA 6983 IUNITIES BRANCH

Department of Environment and	Conservation	RARE F	LORA RE	PORT FO	ORM
TAXON: <i>Ptilotus a</i> . DRF FROM: Scott Hitel REGION: Murchis LOCATION: Weld	strolasius var. luteolus Ben Priority Spec acock 722ph2-SH-14 (ecolo on DIST Range	& H.Eichler ies: P1 Partia gia Environment) 'RICT:	DEFL PO al Survey 🗆 Full TITLE: Botanist S	PULATION No.: Survey ☑ Nev SURVEY DATE: HIRE:	v Population
THE LOCATION	COL 599151 mE 7033057	mN			
PS LOCATION: :	$AGD84 \square GDA94$	GDA94-C	ompatible (e.g. WGS8	(4) 🗹 Unknown	□ None □
AND STATUS:	National Park State Forest Water Reserve	Private Pastoral Lease UCL Other 🗹	Gravel Re Gravel Re Gravel Re Gravel Re Gravel Re Other Sh Specify: Min	es. MRD 🗖 es. Shire 🗖 R nire Res. 🗇 Ro ing Lease	Rail Reserve 🗖 d. Verge Shire 🗖 d. Verge MRD 🗖
	Landowner/manager presen	during inspection:		Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖 Outcrop 🗖 Bre Ridge 🗖 Sar Firebreak 🗖	Cliff 🗖 akaway 🗖 nd Dune 🗖 Other 🗖 Specif	Midslope M Low Plain D Flat D y:	Gully ☑ Gully ☑	Riverbank □ Lake Edge □
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗖 Granit	e 🗖 Dolerite	□ Limestone	□ Other: Ferrou	15
ROCK FORM:	Sheet  Stones	Boulders 🗹	Coarse Gravel 🗹	Pebble	s 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗖	Loam 🗖	Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange 🗹	Yellow 🗆	White	Grey 🗆
SOIL CONDITION	i: Moist 🗖 lin	undated D Dr	y 🗖 🛛 Saline 🗖	Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observat	Mature: Seedling if unable to observe, or no a STATE: Clonal D Flo Native bees D ions:	s: Dead: ttempt made to cou ower bud	Actual 🗖 nt plants) wer 🗹 Immat. fruit f Other insects f	Estimate Area	a Occupied: ruit □ Vegetative □ Mammals □
CONDITION OF	POPULATION: Heal	thy 🗖 Moder	rate 🗆 Poor 🗆	Disturbed	Comment:
POTENTIAL THE Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MAR OTHER COMME	REATS: Firebreaks Disease □ Prescribe Not known ☑ F Not Required □ KERS: Not Requir NTS (include action taken/r	☐ Mining ☑ d Burning □ G Burnt in 19 Fenced □ I ed □ Present equired):	Recreation I I Other I Comment Summer I Au Required I Re I Required I	Roadworks	azing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPEC	IMEN: Regional Her	b. 🗖 District H	erb. 🗖 🛛 WA Herb	. 🗹 Other 🗖	
ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	Map  Mudm Regional Office	ap 🗖 Illust District Offi	ration 🗆 Photo ce 🗆 Other 🗆	Field Note Specify:	es 🗖
Signed: Scott Hite	hcock 722ph2-SH-14 (ecolo	gia Environment)	Date: 26	/02/2009	
Pleas	NOTE: Map or furt e return completed form to Dire : PLEASE FORWARD TO A	her information may ector General, DEC, L DMINISTRATIVE	be attached or given on t ocked Bag 104, BENTLI OFFICER, FLORA, SP	he back of this form. EY DELIVERY CENTR PECIES AND COMMU	E WA 6983 INITIES BRANCH



TAXON: Ptilotus I	peardii Benl	ority Spacias: D2	DEFI	POPUI	LATION N	0.:	
FROM: Scott Lite	hood: 722ab1 SU	23 (confering From	Partia	a Survey		ull Survey M	New Population
PECION: Munchi	псоск /22рп1-5н	-25 (ecologia Envi	(ronment)		LE: Botanis	at SURVEY	Y DATE; 03/11/2006
LOCATION: MUTCH	son L Danas	DISTRICT:				SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range						
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 587785 mE,	7036179 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	ompatible	e (e.g. WGS	584) 🗹 Unkr	None D
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserv	e 🗖	Private		Gravel F	les MRD	Rail Pacarya
	National Par	k 🗖 🛛 Pas	toral Lease	M	Gravel I	Res Shire	Rd Verge Shire
	State Fores	st 🗆	UCL		Other S	Shire Res	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserv	e 🗖 🛛 Oth	er 🗹	-	Specify: Mi	ning Lease	nui veige inno D
	Landowner/manag	er present during in	nspection: (	3	4		
PLEASE NOTE: O	pportunistic collec	ction therefore cer	rtain infor	mation u	navailable		
LANDFORM:	Hillton 🗖	Cliff	-	Slor	e T	Valley 🗖	Sugara T
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway	7	Low Plai	in <b>A</b>	Gully	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune 1	7	Fl	at 🗖	Drainageline	Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Other (	□ Specify	:		Brunagenne D	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite		Limestor	Other	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet	Boulder	Fluviatil	e Gravel		Concretionary Co	raval 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	Loam f		Clay		Peat	Group C
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Brown	7	Vellow	n	White	Graver 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist 🗖	Inundated (	Drv		Saline 🗖	Other:	Grey L
VECETATION CL	ASSIEICATION			-	Sume Er	other.	
VEGETATION CL.	ASSIFICATION (	Muirs):					
(Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio	f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees	, or no attempt mac Flower bud C Honey	de to count Flowe	plants) er 🗹 Ir Oth	nmat. fruit l	Estimate ☐ A ☐ Fruit ☐ OI ☐ Birds	d Fruit  Vegetative Mammals
CONDITION OF P	OPULATION:	Healthy 🗖	Moderate	• 🗖	Poor 🗖	Disturbed 🗖	Comment:
POTENTIAL THRE Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fireb Disease □ P Not known 1 ot Required □ ERS: Not TS (include action	reaks D Mini rescribed Burning D Burnt in 19 Fenced D Required D taken/required):	ing 🗹 Oth Rec Present 🗆	Recreat ler Summer quired Rec	ion	Roadworks  tumn  Wint blace/Repair  Replace	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ er □ Spring □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitchco	1EN: Region Map □ Regional Off ock 722ph1-SH-23 NOTE Meet	nal Herb. 🗆 Di Mudmap 🗖 fice 🗐 Distr ( <i>ecologia</i> Environ	strict Herb. Illustratio ict Office   iment)		WA Herb. Photo Other 🗖 Date: 05/0	<ul> <li>☑ Other □</li> <li>□ Field No Specify:</li> <li>3/2009</li> </ul>	otes 🗆
Please re RECORDS: P	turn completed form	to Director General, TO ADMINISTR	DEC, Locke	d Bag 10 ICER, F	4, BENTLEY	DELIVERY CENT	RE WA 6983 UNITIES BRANCH
	Department of Environment and Conservation						
--	---	--					
--	---	--					

DRI	Pri	ority Species: P3	Partia	l Survey 🗖	Full Survey	Ø No	ew Population
FROM: Joshua Gil	lovitz 722ph3-CG	-01 (ecologia Env	ironment)	TITLE: Bot	anist S	SURVEY D	ATE: 04/07/2008
<b>REGION: Murchise</b>	on	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:		
LOCATION: Weld	Range, proposed	Haul Road					
GPS LOCATION: :	50J – 567092 mE,	7024711 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	ompatible (e.g.	WGS84) ⊠	Unknow	n 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserv	e 🗖	Private	Gra Gra	avel Res. MRD		Rail Reserve
	National Par	k 🗖 🛛 Pas	toral Lease	☑ Gr	avel Res. Shire		Rd. Verge Shire 🗖
	State Fores	st 🗖	UCL		ther Shire Res.	D P	Rd. Verge MRD 🗖
	Water Reserv	e 🗖 🛛 Oth	ier 🗹	Specify	y: Mining Leas	ie	
	Landowner/manag	ger present during i	nspection: [				
ANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff		Slope 🗖	V	alley 🗖	Swamp
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway		Low Plain 🗖	(	Gully 🗖	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Flat Plain 🗹	Drainag	eline 🗖	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other	□ Specify	:			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗹	Dolerite	□ Lime	estone 🗖 🛛 🤇	Other: Ferro	us
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Stones/Boulders	$\square$	Gravel 🗹		Pebble	s 🗹
OIL TYPE:	Sand 1	Loam		Clay 🗖	Pea	at 🗖	Gravel
OIL COLOUR:	Red 🗖	Brown		Yellow Z	Whit	te 🗖	Grey 🗖
OIL CONDITION	i: Moist 🗖	Inundated	Dry	🗖 Salin	e 🗖 🛛 Oth	er:	
SSOCIATED SPE to. of PLANTS: (Leave blank	Mature:	Seedlings:	Dead:	low shrubland Actua plants)	I 🗖 Estimate	□ Area	a Occupied:
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE : POLLINATORS: Other observation	Mature: if unable to observ STATE: Clonal Native bee ons:	Seedlings: e, or no attempt ma [ ] Flower bud es ] Honey	Dead: ade to count □ Flow y bees □	low shrubland Actua plants) er 🗖 Immat. Other ins	I 🗆 Estimate fruit 🗆 Fruit sects 🗅	<ul> <li>Area</li> <li>Old F</li> <li>Birds I</li> </ul>	a Occupied: ruit 🗖 Vegetative Mammals 🗖
ASSOCIATED SPE (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE - OLLINATORS: Other observations) CONDITION OF P	Mature: if unable to observ STATE: Clonal Native bee ons:	Seedlings: e, or no attempt ma G Flower bud es G Honey Healthy G	Dead: _ ade to count □ Flow y bees □ Moderat	e C Poor	I 🗆 Estimate fruit 🗆 Fruit sects 🗖 r 🔲 Distu	<ul> <li>Area</li> <li>Old F</li> <li>Birds I</li> <li>urbed I</li> </ul>	a Occupied: ruit 🗖 Vegetative Mammals 🗖 Comment:
SSOCIATED SPE (Leave blank (Leave blank EPRODUCTIVE OLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P OTENTIAL THR Salinity TRE HISTORY: ENCING: N COADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	Mature: Mature: if unable to observ STATE: Clonal Native bee ons: OPULATION: EATS: Fire Disease □ Not known Not Required □ KERS: No XTS (include action	Seedlings: e, or no attempt ma G Flower bud es G Honey Healthy G Ebreaks Min Prescribed Burning G Burnt in 19 Fenced G ot Required G n taken/required):	Dead: ade to count de to count Flow y bees d Moderat Moderat g d Otl Present d	low shrublandActua .plants) er □ Immat. Other ins e □ Poor Recreation □ her □ Con Summer □ quired □ ] Requirec	I I Estimate fruit I Fruit sects I Distu r I Distu I Roadwork nment: Autumn I Replace/Rep I Replace/Rep	Area     Old F     Birds      rbed     Gra      Winter     pair	a Occupied: Truit □ Vegetative Mammals □ Comment: azing Ø Weeds □ Spring □ Reposition □
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	Mature:	Seedlings: e, or no attempt ma G Flower bud es G Honey Healthy G Burnt in 19 Fenced G ot Required G n taken/required): onal Herb. G E	Dead: ade to count Flow y bees Moderat  g Oth  Present District Herb	Actua plants) er Immat. Other ins e Poor Recreation I her Con Summer I quired I Requirec	I  Estimate fruit  Fruit ects I Roadwork ment: Autumn Replace/Rep I Rep	Area     Old F     Birds     Dide     Winter     winter     pair     Didec	a Occupied: Truit □ Vegetative Mammals □ Comment: azing Ø Weeds □ Spring □ Reposition □
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	Mature: Mature: if unable to observ STATE: Clonal Native bee ons: OPULATION: POPULATION: EATS: Fire Disease □ Not known Not Required □ KERS: No VTS (include action MEN: Regional O	Seedlings: e, or no attempt ma G Flower bud es G Honey Healthy G Burnt in 19 Fenced G ot Required G n taken/required): onal Herb. G I Mudmap G Office G Dis	Dead: ade to count Flow y bees Moderat  g Oth  g Oth  Present District Herb  Illustrati trict Office	Actua plants) er D Immat. Other ins e Poor Recreation D her Con Summer D quired D Requirec	I  Estimate fruit  Fruit fruit  Fruit fruit  Fruit Fru	Area     Old F     Birds     Dide     Winter     winter     pair     Didec     Field Note     ify:	a Occupied: ruit □ Vegetative Mammals □ Comment: azing Ø Weeds □ Spring □ Reposition □ 
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF P POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: NOADSIDE MARK DTHER COMMEN OUCHER SPECI THER COMMEN COPY SENT TO: Signed: Joshua Gilo	Mature:	Seedlings: e, or no attempt ma breaks □ Honey Healthy □ Healthy □ Hea	Dead: ade to count □ Flow y bees □ Moderat  g □ Otl 9 I Re Present □  District Herb Illustrati trict Office onment)	Actua plants) er Dimmat. Other ins e Poor Recreation D her Con Summer D quired D Required WA	I I Estimate fruit I Fruit fruit I Fruit fruit I Fruit fruit I Fruit r I Distu I Roadwork nment: Autumn I Replace/Rep I Replace/Rep I Replace/Rep I Replace Rep I Replace Rep I Spec Date: 25/0	Area     Old F     Birds      rbed      winter     bair     olace      Tield Note     ify:	a Occupied: ruit □ Vegetative Mammals □ Comment: azing Ø Weeds □ Spring □ Reposition □ *s □

	Department of Environment and	Conservation
--	----------------------------------	--------------

FROM: Lonomy No	Pi	riority Species: P3	Partial	Survey	Full Survey	2 2	New Population
r KOMI: Jeremy Na	aykens 722ph2	IN-09 (ecologia Env	ironment)	TITLE: Bo	tanist S	URVEY	DATE: 21/04/2007
<b>REGION:</b> Murchise	n	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:		
LOCATION: Weld	Range						
GPS LOCATION: 5	0J – 562005 mE	, 7019220 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖 🛛 🔾	GDA94-Cor	mpatible (e.g. V	₩GS84) 🗹	Unkn	own 🗆 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reser	ve 🗆	Private	Grav	vel Res. MRD		Rail Reserve
	National Pa	rk 🗖 Pasto	oral Lease	🗹 Gra	vel Res. Shire		Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fore	est 🗖	UCL	O Ot	her Shire Res.		Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reser	ve 🗖 Othe	r 🗹	Specify	Mining Lease	2	
	Landowner/mana	ger present during in	spection:	1			
LANDFORM:	Hillton 🗖	Cliff	1	Midslope 🗹	Va	alley 🗖	Swamp
	Outcrop	Breakaway	1 L	ow Plain	G	ully D	Riverbank 🗖
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	1	Flat 🗖	Drainage	line 🗖	Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Other	Specify:				
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite	Dolerite	Lime	stone 🗖 🛛 O	ther: BI	F. Ferrous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗹	Stones/Boulder		Coarse Gra	vel 🗹	Pet	bles 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand P	Loam	1	Clay 🗹	Pea	t 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange	1	Yellow 🗖	White		Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist 🗆	Inundated	Drv	Saline	Othe	er:	
ASSOCIATED SPE	CIES:	Seedlings:	Dead*	Actual	Estimate		area Occunied:
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO	CIES: Mature: f unable to observ STATE: Clona Native be ons: OPULATION:	Seedlings: ve, or no attempt mad al D Flower bud D ees D Honey Healthy D	Dead: le to count   Flowe bees □ Moderate	Actual plants) r 🗹 Immat. t Other inse e 🗖 Poor	Estimate     Fruit     Fruit     Disture	<ul> <li>A</li> <li>OI</li> <li>Birds</li> </ul>	Area Occupied: d Fruit
ASSOCIATED SPE No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	CIES: Mature: f unable to observ STATE: Clona Native be ons: OPULATION: DISEASE Not known lot Required ERS: N TS (include action	Seedlings: ve, or no attempt maching l □ Flower bud □ eves □ Honey Healthy □ ebreaks □ Mini Prescribed Burning n ☑ Burnt in 19 Fenced □ ot Required □ on taken/required):	_ Dead: le to count j Flowe bees □ Moderate ng ☑ □ Oth S Rec Present □	Actual plants) r 🛛 Immat. t Other inse e 🔲 Poor Recreation 🗇 er 🔲 Com summer 🗇 puired 🗇 Required	Estimate      Fruit     Fruit     Control      Roadworks      Ment:     Replace/Reps      Rep	C O D Birds Tbed C S Win air Lace C	Area Occupied: d Fruit □ Vegetative □ □ Mammals □ Comment: Grazing ☑ Weeds □ ter □ Spring □ Reposition □

Please return completed form to Director General, DEC, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH



#### KAKE FLOKA KEPOKI FORM

TAXON: Prostanth	era petrophila B.	J.Conn		DEFL PO	OPULAT	ION No.:	In Developing C
DRF 🗖	Pr	iority Species: P	I Part	al Survey	Full	Survey M I	New Population D
FROM: Jeremy Na:	aykens 722ph1-J	N-04 (ecologia E	Invironment	i) IIILE:	Botanist	SURVET I	DATE: 07/11/2000
<b>REGION: Murchis</b>	on	DISTRICT				HIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range						
GPS LOCATION:	50J – 572381 mE	, 7026342 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-0	Compatible (e	.g. WGS8	4) 🗹 Unkno	wn 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reser	ve 🗆	Privat	e 🗖	Gravel Re	s. MRD 🗖	Rail Reserve
	National Pa	rk 🗖 🛛 I	Pastoral Leas	e 🗹	Gravel Re	es. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fore	est 🗖	UC		Other Sh	ire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reser	ve 🗆 🛛	Other 🗹	Spe	cify: Mini	ing Lease	
	Landowner/mana	ger present durin	g inspection:				
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cli	ff 🗖	Hill slope	$\square$	Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakawa	y 🗖	Low Plain		Gully	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dun	ie 🗖	Flat		Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Othe	er 🗖 Speci	fy:			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite	Dolerite		imestone	Other: BIF	, non-banded Ferrous
ROCK FORM	Sheet M	Stones/I	Boulders 🗹	Fluvia	atile Grave	Con	cretionary Gravel
SOIL TYPE	Sand P	1 Loa	m 🗖	Clay 🗹	1	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR.	Red P	1 Orang	e 🗹	Yellow 🗆	1	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	Moist	I Inundate	d 🗖 Dr	V D S	aline 🗖	Other:	
REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF F	STATE: Clone Native be ons: OPULATION:	al 🗍 Flower b ees 🔲 Ho Healthy 🗖	ud 🗍 Flo oney bees 🗖 Moder	wer Imm Other	nat. fruit C r insects C Poor D	D Fruit D Old D Birds D Disturbed D	l Fruit □ Vegetative ☑ □ Mammals □ Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMME!	EATS: Fin Disease Not known Not Required KERS: N NTS (include action	rebreaks Prescribed Burn n Burnt in Fenced lot Required on taken/required	Mining 🗹 ning 🗇 ( n 19) Present ():	Recreatio Other  Summer  Required  Requi	n 🗆 R Comment: J Au Rep uired 🗖	toadworks	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ er □ Spring □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECT ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	MEN: Reg Map Regional	gional Herb. 🗍 Mudmap 🗖 Office 🗖	District He Illustu District Offic	erb.  V ration  C to the set of t	WA Herb. Photo Other 🗖 Date: 26/	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field No</li> <li>Specify:</li> <li>2/2009</li> </ul>	otes 🗖
ngheur bereinig Mar	NOTE: 1	Map or further info	rmation may l	be attached or a	given on th	e back of this form. Y DELIVERY CENT	FRE WA 6983

Please return completed form to Director General, DEC, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH

TAXON: Prostant	hera petrophila	B.J.Conn Priority Species: P1	DEFI Parti	L POPULA al Survey	TION No.	o.: Ill Survey ☑	New Population
FROM: Joshua Gi	ilovitz 722ph3-C	G-08 (ecologia Env	vironment)	TITLE	: Botanis	t SURVEY	DATE: 09/07/2008
<b>REGION: Murchis</b>	son	DISTRICT:				SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Wel	d Range, propos	sed Borrow Pits Wo	est				
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 575210 m	E, 7032660 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-C	ompatible	(e.g. WGS	(84) ☑ Unkn	own 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Res	erve	Private		Gravel R	es. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National I	Park 🗖 🛛 Pa	storal Lease		Gravel F	Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire 🗖
	State Fo	orest	UCL		Other S	shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Res	erve 🗖 Ot	her 🗹	Sp	ecify: Mi	ning Lease	
	Landowner/mar	nager present during	inspection:				
LANDFORM:	Hillton 🗖	Cliff		Slope		Valley 🗖	Swamp
	Outcrop	Breakaway		Low Plain		Gully 🗖	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Flat Plain	M	Drainageline	Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Other	Specify	v:		Second Se	
ROCK TVPE-		Granite 🗖	Dolerite		Limestone	Other: Fe	rrous
ROCK FORM	Sheet	Stones/Boulders		Gravel M	annestone	Pebbles M	1.043
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	I Loam	Π.	Clay I	ব	Peat	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red	Orange	M	Yellow (	7	White	Grev T
SOIL CONDITION	V: Moist	Inundated	Drv		Saline 🗖	Other:	
(Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati	if unable to obse <b>STATE:</b> Clor Native b ions: POPULATION:	erve, or no attempt m nal	Ade to count Flow bees T Modera	t plants) /er 🗖 Im Othe te 🗖	mat. fruit er insects Poor 🗖	Fruit OI Birds Disturbed O	d Fruit  Vegetative Mammals Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity 🗇 FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMMEN	EATS: F Disease Not know Not Required KERS: 1 NTS (include act	irebreaks  Mi Prescribed Burnin, Vn  Burnt in 1 Fenced  Not Required  ion taken/required):	ning 🗹 g 🔲 Ot 9 J Re Present f	Recreation ther Summer equired Req	on  Comment Comment Au Re uired	Roadworks :	Grazing ☑ Weeds ter □ Spring □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Joshua Gilo	MEN: Re Map 🗖 Regional vitz 722ph3-CG	gional Herb. Mudmap Office  Dis G-08 (ecologia Envir	District Herl Illustrat strict Office ronment)	b. 🗆 ion 🗇	WA Herb. Photo Other D Date: 25/	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field N</li> <li>Specify:</li> </ul>	otes 🗖
Please	NOTE: . return completed f	Map or further information of the formation of the format	<i>ation may be</i> al, DEC, Loc	<i>attached or</i> ked Bag 104	given on th , BENTLE	e back of this form. Y DELIVERY CENT	TRE WA 6983
RECORDS:	PLEASE FORW	ARD TO ADMINIST	RATIVE OF	FICER, FI	ORA, SPI	CIES AND COMM	<b>IUNITIES BRANCH</b>



TAXON: Prostanth	era petrophila	B.J.Conn Priority Species: P	DEFL 1 Partia	POPULA al Survey	ATION No	Il Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Joshua Gil	lovitz 722ph3-0	CG-07 (ecologia E	vironment)	TITLE	: Botanist	SURVEY	DATE: 10/07/2008
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	ion	DISTRICT	1			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range, propo	sed Borrow Pits					
GPS LOCATION:	50J – 574714 n	nE, 7032500 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-Co	ompatible	(e.g. WGS	84) 🗹 Unkn	own 🛛 None 🗖
LAND STATUS	Nature Res	erve 🗖	Private	, ,	Gravel R	es MRD	Rail Reserve
LAND STATUS.	National	Park 🗖 🛛 P	astoral Lease	M	Gravel R	es Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State F	orest $\square$	UCL		Other S	hire Res.	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Res	erve 🗖 🛛 🤇	)ther	S	pecify: Mir	ing Lease	nui reigenne B
	Landowner/ma	nager present durin	g inspection:		seeny. min	ing Lease	
LANDFORM.	Lillton <b>T</b>	Clip	Ŧ <b>ヿ</b>	Slone		Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
LANDFORM:		Deeskourg		Law Dlair			Biverbank C
		Sand Dun		Elat Dlair		Drainagalina	Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Sand Dun	r 🗖 Snarifi	Flat Flatt			Lake Edge D
DOCK TYPE.		Creatite 2	Delemite		Limestone	C Other	
ROCK FORM	Shoat	Bauldar	Doterne	L Graval		Concretionery G	raval 🗖
SOLL TVDE.	Sheet D		гш • П	Clay		Peat	Gravel
SOIL TIPE:	Bad			Vallow		White <b>I</b>	Grev D
SOIL COLOUR.	· Moist				Saline 🗖	Other:	Oldy L
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF P	Mature: if unable to obs STATE: Clo Native ons: OPULATION	Seedlings: erve, or no attempt onal I Flower bu bees I Hor : Healthy I	Dead: made to count d D Flow ney bees D Moderat	A t plants) er I In Oth	Actual 🗖 umat. fruit f er insects f Poor 🗖	Estimate  A Fruit  O D Fruit  Disturbed	Area Occupied: d Fruit
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Firebrea Disease Not know Not Required CERS: NTS (include ac	iks  Mining Prescribed Burni wn  Burnt in Fenced Not Required  tion taken/required)	g 🗹 Recr ng 🗖 Ot 19 Present 🖸	reation her Summer equired Rec	Road Comment Au Rep uired	works 🛛 Gra tumn 🗇 Win place/Repair 🗇 Replace 🗇	zing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 ter 🗆 Spring 🗅 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECH ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Joshua Gilo	MEN: Ro Map 🗖 Regiona vitz 722ph3-C0	egional Herb. 🗖 Mudmap 🗖 I Office 🗖 🛛 🖸 G-07 ( <i>ecologia</i> Env	District Herl Illustrat District Office <b>ironment)</b>	o. 🗆 ion 🗆	WA Herb. Photo Other 🗖 Date: 25/0	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field N</li> <li>Specify:</li> <li>02/2009</li> </ul>	lotes 🗖
	MOTE	Man or further infor	nation mariba	attached o	aiven on th	a back of this form	
Please	return completed	form to Director Gen	eral, DEC. Loci	ked Bag 10	4, BENTLE	Y DELIVERY CEN	TRE WA 6983
( tease )	an have	and a second second	and a series and a	0.9			

RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH



TAXON: Prostantl	iera petrophila	B.J.Conn Priority Spe	cies: P1		Parti	DE al Surv		LATION Full Surv	No.:	New Popu	lation
FROM: Scott Hite	heock 722ph2-	SH-10 (ecol	ogia En	viro	nment)	TIT	LE: Botar	nist	SURVE	Y DATE: 2	0/04/2007
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	son	DIS	TRICT	:				SHIR	E:		
LOCATION: Weld	I Range										
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 562094 r	nE, 7019416	mN								
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94		GI	DA94-C	ompati	ble (e o W	CS84) 🕅	Link		None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Re	serve 🗖			Private		Crow	1 Dec MI			
	National	Park	P	istor	allease	N N	Grave	Dag Ch		Rail F	ceserve
	State F	orest	1.	iston	LICI		Othe	el Kes. Sn		Rd. Verg	e Shire
	Water Res	serve П	0	her	M		Specify: M	Mining L	08.	Rd. Verge	e MRD
	Landowner/ma	nager presen	t during	insp	ection.		speeny. I	vining L	case		
LANDFORM	Midslone 1	anger presen	Cliff		cetton.		-				1.
LINDI ORM.	Outeron 🗖	Duc	cim			SI	ope		Valley 🗆	1	Swamp 🗖
		Sor	akaway	-		LOW P			Gully 🗆	Riv	erbank
	Firebreak	Sal	Other	-	Caral C		Flat 🔟	Drain	ageline 🗆	Lak	e Edge 🗖
DOCK TYPE			Other	Ц	specify						
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite		1	Dolerite		Limesto	one 🗖	Other: BI	F, Ferrous	
KOCK FORM:	Sheet M	Stones/Bo	ulders <b>b</b>	٥		Fluviat	ile Gravel		Conci	etionary Gra	vel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	M	Loam			Cla	у 🗹	1	Peat 🗖	G	ravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red	M (	Drange			Yello	w 🗖	W	hite 🗖		Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	Moist		indated		Dry		Saline 🗆	<b>)</b> C	ther:		
No. of PLANTS: M (Leave blank if REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PC	Mature:	Seedlings erve, or no att nal Flow bees Health	tempt m wer bud Hone	ade t ade t y bee	Dead: _ to count Flow es □	plants) er 🗖 O	Actual Immat. fruither insects	Estimat it D Fru s D Dis	te 🗆 A uit 🗖 Ol Birds turbed 🗖	Area Occupie ld Fruit 🗖 🔲 Mar Commei	rd: Vegetative ☑ nmals □ nt:
POTENTIAL THRE Salinity 🗖 FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: NG ROADSIDE MARKH OTHER COMMENT	ATS: Fi Disease Not know ot Required CRS: S (include acti	irebreaks Prescribed m 2 Bu Fe Not Required on taken/requ	Min Burning rnt in 19 nced 🗖 aired):_	ning D Pre	Ø Oth Rec esent □	Recrea ler 🗖 Summer quired I R	ation Comme A R equired C	Roadwor nt: Autumn E ceplace/Re Ro	rks 🗆 🖉 I Win epair 🗖 eplace 🗖	Grazing 🗹 ter 🗋 S Repo	Weeds
VOUCHER SPECIM ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO;	EN: Reg Map 🗆 Regional	ional Herb. Mudmap Office 🗖	D D Dist	istrio II rict (	ct Herb. Iustratic Office [	0 01 0	WA Hert Phot Other	o. ☑ o □ J Spec	Other 🗖 Field No cify:	otes 🗖	
Signed: Scott Hitchcoo	k 722ph2-SH-	10 (ecologia	Enviro	nme	ent)		Date: 26	/02/2009			
Please ret	NOTE: M urn completed fo	<i>fap or further</i> rm to Director	<i>informat</i> General	ion n . DEC	nay be al C. Locke	<i>tached</i> d Bag 1	or given on t 04, BENTLI	he back of EY DELIV	this form. ERY CENT	RE WA 698.	3

RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH

Department of Environment and	Conservation	RARE	FLORA	REPORT	FORM
TAXON: Sauropus DRF FROM: Scott Hitel	sp. Woolgorong (1 Pric wock 722ph1-SH-2	M. Officer s.n. 10/8/9- ority Species: P1 0 ( <i>ecologia</i> Environm	4) DEFL POPU Partial Survey 🗇 tent) TITLE: Bota	JLATION No.: Full Survey 🗹 nist SURVEY DATE	New Population □ :: 06/11/2006
LOCATION: Weld	son I Range	DISTRICT:		SHIRE:	
GPS LOCATION:	50J – 578433 mE.	7029011 mN			
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖 GDA	94-Compatible (e.g. V	WGS84) 🗹 Unkno	wn 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve	D P	rivate 🗖 Grav	vel Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Park	D Pastoral	Lease 🗹 Grav	vel Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Forest		UCL 🗖 Oth	her Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	Other 🗹	Specify:	Mining Lease	
	Landowner/manage	r present during inspec	tion: 🗖		
LANDFORM:	Hill crest 🗹	Cliff 🗖	Hill slope 🗹	Valley 🗖	Swamp 🗖
	Outcrop	Breakaway 🗖	Low Plain	Gully 🗖	Riverbank 🗖
	Ridge	Sand Dune	Flat 🗖	Drainageline 🗖	Lake Edge 🗖
DOCUTURE	Firebreak	Other LI S	pecify:		
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite D Do	lerite  Limes	stone D Other: BIF	, non-banded Ferrous
SOIL TYPE	Sneet M	Boulder M FI		Concretionary Gra	
SOIL COLOUR:		Orange 🗹	Vallaw 🗖	Peat	Gravel D
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist	Inundated	Dry C Saline	Other:	Grey L
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS:	Mature: S f unable to observe, STATE: Clonal f Native bees	eedlings: D or no attempt made to ] Flower bud D Honey bees	ead: Actual count plants) Flower 🗖 Immat. fi Other insec	Estimate Ai  Label{eq:action} Estimate Content Estimate	rea Occupied: Fruit
Other observatio		Harkke <b>7</b> M			
	OF ULATION:	Healthy D M	oderate 🗆 Poor	Disturbed	Comment:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fireba Disease  Pr Not known E lot Required  D ERS: Not TS (include action t	reaks D Mining I rescribed Burning D Burnt in 19 Fenced D Required D Pres aken/required):	<ul> <li>Recreation</li> <li>Other</li> <li>Common</li> <li>Summer</li> <li>Required</li> <li>Required</li> <li>Required</li> </ul>	Roadworks 🛛 G nent: Autumn 🗍 Winte Replace/Repair 🗇 🔲 Replace 🗆	razing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 er 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIM ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Scott Hitchco	MEN: Region Map 🗖 Regional Off pock 722ph1-SH-20	al Herb.  Distric Mudmap II ice District C (ecologia Environme)	t Herb.  WA H ustration  Pf office  Other other Date:	erb. 🗹 Other 🗖 noto 🗇 Field No r 🗆 Specify: 03/03/2009	tes 🗖
	NOTE: Map	or further information m	av be attached or given a	on the back of this form	

Please return completed form to Director General, DEC, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH

	Department of Environment and	Conservation
18 M 193		

TAXON: Stenanth	<i>emum patens</i> F	Rye Priority Species:	DEF P1 Par	L POPULATION	No.: Full Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Jeremy N	aaykens 722ph	2-JN-07 (ecologic	a Environmen	nt) TITLE: Bota	nist SURV	EY DATE: 20/04/2007
<b>REGION: Murchi</b>	son	DISTRIC	СТ:		SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range					
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 562005 I	mE, 7019220 mN			÷	
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-	Compatible (e.g. W	GS84) 🗖 Un	known 🛛 🛛 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Re	serve	Priva	te 🗖 Grave	el Res. MRD 🗖	Rail Reserve
	National	Park	Pastoral Leas	e 🗹 Grave	el Res. Shire 🗖	Rd. Verge Shire 🗖
	State F	Forest	UC	L 🗖 Othe	er Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Re	serve 🗖	Other 🗹	Specify: I	Mining Lease	
	Landowner/ma	anager present dur	ing inspection	: 🗖		
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	C	liff 🗖	Midslope 🗹	Valley	Swamp
	Outcrop 🗖	Breakay	vay 🗖	Low Plain	Gully	C Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand D	une 🗖	Flat 🗖	Drainageline	□ Lake Edge □
	Firebreak	Ot	her 🗖 Speci	fy:		
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🗖	Granite 🗖	Dolerit	e 🗖 Limest	one 🗖 Other:	BIF, Ferrous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗹	. Stones/B	oulders 🗹	Coarse Gr	ravel 🗹 🛛	Pebbles 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	☑ Lo	am 🗖	Clay 🗹	Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red	Ø Ora	nge 🗹	Yellow 🗖	White 🗖	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	N: Moist	🗇 Inunda	ted 🗖 Di	y 🗖 🛛 Saline 🕻	Other:	
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observat CONDITION OF I	Mature: if unable to obs STATE: Cla Native ions: POPULATION	Seedlings: serve, or no attemp onal	Dead ot made to cou bud D Flo foney bees D Moder	Actual f nt plants) wer 🗹 Immat. fr Other insec	Estimate  ts  Disturbed	Area Occupied: Old Fruit
POTENTIAL THR Salinity 🗇 FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMME	EATS: Disease Not kno Not Required f KERS: NTS (include ac	Firebreaks □ Prescribed Bu own ☑ Burnt □ Fence Not Required □ ction taken/require	Mining 🗹 ming 🗖 ( in 19) d 🗖 1 Present ed):	Recreation 🗆 Dther 🗖 Comm Summer 🗖 Required 🗖 🔲 Required f	Roadworks nent: Autumn Replace/Repair Replace 1	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ Vinter □ Spring □ □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPEC ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Jeremy Na:	IMEN: R Map D Region aykens 722ph2	Regional Herb. Mudmap al Office JN-07 ( <i>ecologia</i>	District He Illustr District Offic Environment	erb.  WA He ation  Ph re  Other ) Date:	erb. 🗹 Other 1 oto 🗆 Field 🗆 Specify: 03/03/2009	□ d Notes □
Diama	NOTE	Map or further inj	ormation may b	e attached or given o beked Bag 104 BENJ	on the back of this for	m. ENTRE WA 6083

RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH



TAXON: Sclerolad	ena uniflora R.Br. Rai	ige Extension	DEFL Partial	POPULATION Survey	N No.: Full Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Jeremy Na	aykens 722ph1-JN	-11 (ecologia Envi	ronment)	TITLE: Bota	nist SURV	EY DATE: 08/11/2006
<b>REGION: Murchi</b>	ison	DISTRICT:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Wel	d Range					
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 549879 mE,	7017184 mN				
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖 🛛 G	DA94-Cor	npatible (e.g. V	VGS84) ☑ U	nknown 🗆 None 🗖
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserv	e 🗖	Private	J Grav	el Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Par	k 🗖 Pasto	oral Lease	☑ Grav	vel Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Fores	at 🗖	UCL	D Oth	ner Shire Res.	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserv	e 🗖 Other	r 🗹	Specify:	Mining Lease	
	Landowner/manag	er present during ins	spection:			
LANDFORM:	Hillton 🗖	Cliff 🗖		Slope 🗖	Valley	Swamp
and a state	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaway	Undulat	ing Plain	Gully	Riverbank
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune	1	Flat 🗖	Drainageline	
	Firebreak	Other 🗖	Specify:			
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Dolerite	1 Limes	tone 🗖 Other:	non-banded Ferrous
ROCK FORM:	Sheet	Rocks M	Fluviatile	Gravel	Concretionary	Gravel
SOIL TYPE:	Sand M	Loam 🗖		Clay M	Peat	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red M	Orange 🗹	1	Yellow	White	Grev 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	N: Moist	Inundated 🗆	Drv [	J Saline	Other:	Sity B
No. of PLANTS: (Leave blank REPRODUCTIVE POLLINATORS: Other observati CONDITION OF F	Mature: if unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bee ions: POPULATION:	Seedlings: c, or no attempt made I Flower bud I s I Honey b Healthy I	Dead: e to count p Flower bees D Moderate	Actual Dants) Diants fi Other insec	Estimate  ruit Fruit  Fruit  Bir  Disturbed	Area Occupied: Old Fruit  Vegetative ds  Mammals Comment:
POTENTIAL THR Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: ROADSIDE MARI OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Firel Disease  F Not known Not Required  C KERS: Not NTS (include action	oreaks D Minir Prescribed Burning ( Burnt in 19_ Fenced D Required C taken/required):	ng 🗹 Otho S Req Present 🗖	Recreation er Comm ummer uired Required	Roadworks  nent: Autumn  V Replace/Repair  Replace	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 Vinter 🗆 Spring 🗆 🗆 Reposition 🗆
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	MEN: Regio Map 🗖 Regional O	nal Herb. 🗖 Dis Mudmap 🗖	strict Herb. Illustratio	□ WAH n □ Pf □ Other	erb. 🗹 Other noto 🗖 Field	d Notes
	- Stonar O			Guid	- shoond -	0
Signed: Jeremy Naa	NOTE: Maj	11 (ecologia Enviro	onment)	tached or given o	Date: 03/03/200	9 m.

Please return completed form to Director General, DEC, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH



TAXON: Tecticorn	ia cymbiformis	K.A.Sheph. & P. Priority Species: I	aul G.Wilso P3 Pa	n rtial Survey	DEFL PO	OPULATION No. Il Survey 🗹	New Population
FROM: Amy Capo	bianco 722ph2	2-AC-04 (ecologia	Environm	ent) TITL	E: Botanist	SURVEY	DATE: 15/04/2007
<b>REGION:</b> Murchis	on	DISTRIC	T:			SHIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range						
GPS LOCATION:	50J - 558093 n	nE, 7018841 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94	-Compatible	e (e.g. WGS	84) 🗹 Unkno	own 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Res	serve 🗖	Priv	ate 🗖	Gravel R	es. MRD	Rail Reserve
Linip Stirres.	National	Park	Pastoral Lea	ase 🗹	Gravel R	es. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State F	orest	U	CL 🗖	Other S	hire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Res	serve	Other 🗹	5	Specify: Mir	ing Lease	
	Landowner/ma	nager present duri	ng inspectio	n: 🗖			
LANDFORM:	Hillton 🗖	CI	iff 🗖	Slor	e 🗖	Valley 🗖	Swamp
Linibion	Outcrop 🗖	Breakaw	av 🗖	Low Plai	in 🗖	Gully	Riverbank 🗖
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Du	ne 🗖	Flat/Pla	in 🗹	Drainageline	Lake Edge
	Firebreak	Oth	er 🗖 Spec	cify:		5	0
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗖	Doler	ite 🗖	Limestone	Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet 🗖	Boulder	Fluvi	atile Gravel		Concretionary Gra	avel 🗖
SOIL TYPE:	Sand	Loa	um 🗖	Clay		Peat 🗖	Gravel 🗖
SOIL COLOUR:	Red	Orans	e 🗹	Yellow		White	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist	Inundat	ed 🗖 🛛	Dry 🗖	Saline 🗖	Other:	
(Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE : POLLINATORS: Other observation	f unable to obs <b>STATE:</b> Clo Native ons:	erve, or no attemp onal I Flower b bees I Ho	t made to co oud  Fl oney bees	ount plants) lower 🗖 1 J Ot	mmat. fruit ( her insects (	Fruit  Old Birds	d Fruit □ Vegetative Ø □ Mammals □
CONDITION OF P	OPULATION	Healthy	Mode	erate	Poor 🗆	Disturbed 🗋	Comment:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: I Disease Not kno Jot Required ERS: TS (include ac	Firebreaks Prescribed Burn wn 2 Burnt i Fencec Not Required tion taken/required	Mining 🗹 ning 🗖 n 19 l 🗖 Presen l):	Recrea Other Summer Required t Required Re	tion I F Comment I Au Rej equired I	Roadworks  () () () () () () () () () () () () ()	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ er □ Spring □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECH ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO: Signed: Amy Canob	MEN: Ro Map 🗆 Regiona	egional Herb. Mudmap al Office AC-04 (ecologia I	District F Illus District Off	tration	WA Herb. Photo Other	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field No</li> <li>Specify:</li> </ul>	otes 🗖
	NOTE:	Map or further info	rmation may	be attached of	or given on th	e back of this form.	

Please return completed form to Director General, DEC, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH

Department of Environment and	Conservation	RAR	E FLC	RA R	EPORT	FORM
TAXON: Triodia sc DRF FROM: Melissa Hay REGION: Murchiso LOCATION: Weld	<i>hinzii</i> (Henrard) La Rang y 906-MH-01 ( <i>ecole</i> on Range	zarides e Extension Ø ogia Environment DISTRICT: _	DEFL POF Partial Sur ) TITLE: Bo	PULATION N vey 🗆 Fu tanist	o.: Ill Survey 🗹 SURVEY DATE: SHIRE:	New Population  11/11/2006
	Be					
GPS LOCATION: 5	50J – 580188 mE, 7	034566 mN	a			
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗆 🥠	GDA94 □ G	DA94-Compat	ible (e.g. WG	S84) ⊠ Unkno	own 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve National Park State Forest Water Reserve	Pasto     Pasto     Other	Private ral Lease UCL UCL spection:	Gravel I Gravel I Other S Specify: Mi	Res. MRD  Res. Shire  Shire Res.  fining Lease	Rail Reserve □ Rd. Verge Shire □ Rd. Verge MRD □
LANDFORM	Hillton <b>T</b>		precion. IS	lone 🗖	Vallay 🗖	Summe T
LANDFORM:		Breakaway 🗖	Low	Dlain $\square$		Biverbank
	Ridge	Sand Dune	Flat/	Plain 🗹	Drainageline	Lake Edge
DO OL TUDD	Firebreak		Specify:		-	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite		Dolerite	Limeston	e 🛛 Other:	
ROCK FORM:	Sheet D	Boulder D	Coa	rse Gravel	Peb	bles D
SOIL TYPE:	Sand M		Vall	lay 🗹	Peat D	Gravel 🗆
SOIL COLOUK:	Moist C		Dev 🗖	Salina 🗖	Other	Grey D
(Leave blank i (Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observatio CONDITION OF PO	f unable to observe, STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: DPULATION:	or no attempt mad Flower bud Honey b Healthy	Dead: e to count plant Flower pees Moderate	Actual s) Immat. fruit Other insects Poor	Estimate D A	rea Occupied: I Fruit □ Vegetative ☑ □ Mammals □ Comment:
POTENTIAL THRE Salinity 🗖 FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Firebr Disease  Pro Not known ot Required ERS: Not I TS (include action ta	eaks   Minin escribed Burning Burnt in 19 Fenced Required aken/required):	ng 🗹 Rec Other 🗆 Sumn Required Present 🗖	reation  Commen T Commen her  Au Au Au Au Required  C	Roadworks  Contribution Contrib	Grazing ☑ Weeds □ er □ Spring □ Reposition □
VOUCHER SPECIN ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	MEN: Regiona Map □ 1 Regional Offi	al Herb. 🗖 Dis Mudmap 🗖 ce 🗍 Distrie	trict Herb. Illustration ct Office	WA Herb Photo Other	Defined the Definition of the	otes 🗖
Signed: Melissa Hay	906-MH-01 (ecolog NOTE: Map	via Environment) or further information	Dat m may be attach	e: 19/10/2009 ed or given on th	ie back of this form.	RE WA 6083

RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH



TAXON: Trichodes	ma zeylanicum (Bu Rang	e Extension ☑	nr. <i>zeylanic</i> Part	um ial Survey	DEFL PO	PULATION No. Survey	New Population
FROM: Scott Hitch	cock 722ph1-SH-2	7 ( <i>ecologia</i> Env	ironment)	TITL	E: Botanist	SURVEY	DATE: 11/11/2006
REGION: Murchise	n	DISTRICT		1010	S	HIRE:	
LOCATION: Weld	Range	DISTRICT					
GPS LOCATION: 5	50J – 560383 mE, 7	016704 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-0	Compatible	e (e.g. WGS8	4) 🗹 Unkn	own 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Reserve		Privat	e 🗖	Gravel Re	s. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National Park	D Pa	astoral Leas	e 🗹	Gravel Re	s. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State Forest		UC		Other Sh	ire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Reserve	<b>D</b> 0	ther 🗹	5	Specify: Mini	ng Lease	
	Landowner/manage	r present during	inspection				
LANDFORM:	Hilltop 🗖	Cliff		Slor	e 🗖	Valley	Swamp
	Outcrop	Breakaway		Low Pla	in 🗖	Gully	Riverbank 🗖
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dune		Flat/Pla	in 🗹	Drainageline	Lake Edge 🗖
	Firebreak	Other	🗹 Speci	fy: Creek	bed and banl	k	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite	Granite 🗹	Dolerit		Limestone	Other: no	n-banded Ferrous, quartz
ROCK FORM:	Sheet	Boulder		Coarse	Gravel 🗹	Pet	obles 🗹
SOIL TYPE:	Sand 🗹	Loam		Clay	$\square$	Peat 🗖	Gravel
SOIL COLOUR:	Red 🗹	Orange		Yellow		White	Grey 🗖
SOIL CONDITION	: Moist 🗖	Inundated	D Dr	y 🗖	Saline 🗖	Other:	
(Leave blank i REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF Pol	f unable to observe STATE: Clonal Native bees ons: OPULATION:	or no attempt r Flower but Hon Healthy	nade to cou 1	nt plants) wer 🗖 I Ot ate 🗖	mmat. fruit her insects Poor	Fruit D O Birds Disturbed D	ld Fruit □ Vegetative ☑ □ Mammals □ Comment:
POTENTIAL THRI Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: N ROADSIDE MARK OTHER COMMEN	EATS: Fireb Disease □ P Not known I Jot Required □ ERS: Not TS (include action	reaks  Mrescribed Burnir Mrescribed Burnir Fenced Required  taken/required):	ining 🗹 ng 🗖 ( 19 Present	Recrea Dther Summer Required [ Required [	tion	oadworks 🗆 umn 🗇 Win lace/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗖	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗖 ter 🗖 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECI ATTACHED; COPY SENT TO:	MEN: Region Map 🗖	nal Herb. 🗖 Mudmap 🗖	District He Illustr	rb.	WA Herb. Photo	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field N</li> <li>Specify:</li> </ul>	lotes 🗖
COLL SENT TO:	Regional Of		istrict Offic			2/2000	
Signed: Scott Hitche	ock 722ph1-SH-27	(ecologia Envi	ronment)		Date: 03/0.	5/2009	
Please r RECORDS: I	NOTE: Maj eturn completed form PLEASE FORWARI	or further inform to Director Gene <b>D TO ADMINIS</b>	tation may b ral, DEC, Lo FRATIVE (	e attached o ocked Bag 1 OFFICER,	or given on the 04, BENTLEY FLORA, SPEC	back of this form. DELIVERY CEN CIES AND COMM	TRE WA 6983 MUNITIES BRANCH



### KAKE FLOKA KEPOKI FORM

TAXON: Verticordi	a jamiesonii	DEFL PC Priority Species: I	OPULATION Part	No.:	<b>T</b> F		New Population
FROM: Jeremy Na	avkens JN-70	2-13 (ecologia Env	ironment)	TITL	E. Botanis	t SURVEY	/ DATE: 20/07/2006
<b>REGION:</b> Murchise	on	DISTRIC	T:		L. Dotums	SHIRE:	DATE. 20/0//2000
LOCATION: Weld	Range						
GPS LOCATION: 5	0J – 581946 n	nE, 7026862 mN					
GPS DATUM:	AGD84 🗖	GDA94 🗖	GDA94-0	Compatible	e (e.g. WG	<b>S84)</b> Ø Unkr	iown 🗆 None 🗆
LAND STATUS:	Nature Res	serve	Privat	e 🗖	Gravel I	Res. MRD	Rail Reserve
	National	Park	Pastoral Leas	e 🗹	Gravel	Res. Shire	Rd. Verge Shire
	State F	orest	UCI		Other	Shire Res. 🗖	Rd. Verge MRD
	Water Res	erve 🗖	Other 🗹	S	pecify: Mi	ning Lease	ital (tigt inite) B
	andowner/ma	nager present durin	inspection:	0		ing sense	
LANDFORM:	Hillton 🗖	Cli	ff 🗖	Slon	e 🕅	Valley 🗖	Swamn 🗖
		Breakawa		Low Plai		Gully I	Riverbank C
	Ridge 🗖	Sand Dur		Flat/Plain		Drainageline	
	Firebreak	Othe	er 🗖 Specif	v.		Dramagenne 🗅	
ROCK TYPE:	Laterite 🕅	Granite 🗖	Dolerite		Limeston	Other:	Famalia
ROCK FORM	Sheet	Boulder	Fluviati	le Gravel		Concretionery C	ravel
SOIL TYPE:	Sand			Clay		Post C	Canal T
SOIL COLOUR:	Red			Vellow		White <b>T</b>	
SOIL CONDITION.	Moist		d 🗖 Dra		Salina 🗖	Other:	Grey D
No. of PLANTS: M (Leave blank if REPRODUCTIVE S POLLINATORS: Other observation CONDITION OF PC	Mature: unable to obse TATE: Clo Native ns: PULATION:	Seedlings: erve, or no attempt nal Flower bu bees Hou Healthy	Dead: made to cour id D Flow ney bees D Modera	A tt plants) ver □ In Oth te □	Actual nmat. fruit er insects Poor	Estimate  A Fruit  OI Birds Disturbed	Area Occupied: d Fruit
POTENTIAL THRE Salinity FIRE HISTORY: FENCING: NG ROADSIDE MARKI OTHER COMMENT	ATS: F Disease Not know ot Required CRS: (include act	irebreaks  Prescribed Burni vn  Burnt in Fenced Not Required  ion taken/required)	Aining 🗹 ing 🗖 O 19 Present 1 :	Recreati ther Summer equired Rec	ion 🗆 Commen Commen Au Re puired 🗖	Roadworks 🗖 🕂 t: utumn 🗇 Wint place/Repair 🗖 Replace 🗖	Grazing 🗹 Weeds 🗆 ter 🗆 Spring 🗖 Reposition 🗖
VOUCHER SPECIM ATTACHED: COPY SENT TO:	EN: Re Map 🗆 Regional	gional Herb. 🗖 Mudmap 🗖 Office 🗖 🛛 D	District Her Illustrat Vistrict Office	b. 🗆 ion 🗆	WA Herb. Photo Other 🗖	<ul> <li>Other</li> <li>Field N Specify:</li> </ul>	otes 🗖
Signed: Jeremy Naayl	kens JN-702-1	3 (ecologia Enviro	onment)	attached or	Date: 19/	10/2009 e back of this form	

Please return completed form to Director General, DEC, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983

RECORDS: PLEASE FORWARD TO ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER, FLORA, SPECIES AND COMMUNITIES BRANCH



## APPENDIX M EXPLANATION OF DECLARED PLANT CODES



Priority	Requirements
P1 Prohibits movement	The movement of plants or their seeds is prohibited within the State. This prohibits the movement of contaminated machinery and produce, including livestock and fodder.
P2 Aims to eradicate infestation	Treat all plants to destroy and prevent propagation each year until no plants remain. The infested area must be managed in such a way that prevents the spread of seed or plant parts on or in livestock, fodder, grain, vehicles and/or machinery.
P3 Aims to control infestation by reducing area and/or density of	The infested area must be managed in such a way that prevents the spread of seed or plant parts within and from the property, on or in livestock, fodder, grain, vehicles and/or machinery.
infestation	Treat to destroy and prevent seed set for all plants:
	• Within 100 metres inside of the boundaries of the infestation.
	• Within 50 metres of roads and high-water marks on waterways.
	• Within 50 metres of sheds, stock yards and houses.
	Treatment must be done prior to seed set each year.
	Of the remaining infested area:
	• Where plant density is 1-10 per hectare, treat 100% of infestation.
	• Where plant density is 11-100 per hectare, treat 50% of infestation.
	• Where plant density is 101-1000 per hectare, treat 10% of infestation.
	Properties with less than two hectares of infestation must treat the entire infestation.
	Additional areas may be ordered to be treated.
P4 Aims to prevent infestation spreading beyond existing	The infested area must be managed in such a way that prevents the spread of seed or plant parts within and from the property, on or in livestock, fodder, grain, vehicles and/or machinery.
boundaries of infestation	Treat to destroy and prevent seed set for all plants:
	• Within 100 metres inside of the boundaries of the infested property.
	• Within 50 metres of roads and high-water marks on waterways.
	• Within 50 metres of sheds, stock yards and houses.
	Treatment must be done prior to seed set each year. Properties with less than two hectares of infestation must treat the entire infestation.
	Additional areas may be ordered to be treated.
	Special considerations:
	In the case of P4 infestations where they continue across property boundaries, there is no requirement to treat the relevant part of the property boundaries as long as the boundaries of the infestation as a whole are treated. There must be agreement between neighbours in relation to the treatment of these areas.
Р5	Infestations on public lands must be controlled.





## APPENDIX N DEC VEGETATION COMMUNITIES DESCRIBED FOR SELECTED BIF RANGES LYING NORTH OF MOUNT MAGNET





This page has been left blank intentionally.







Range	Landform Code	Associated Landforms	Vegetation Description	Veg Type
WNT	BIF	Ironstone hills.	Sparse to open woodlands and shrublands of Acacia aneura and other Acacia spp. (A. citrinoviridis, A. tetragonophylla, A. quadrimarginea, A. pruinocarpa, A. demissa and A. rhodophloia), Hake preissii, Grevillea berryana and Eremophila macmillaniana over sparse to open shrublands of Eremophila spp. (E. phyllopoda, E. spathulata, E. glutinosa, E. jucunda subsp. jucunda, E. latrobei subp. latrobei and E. galeata), Senna spp. (S. artemisioides subsp. petiolaris, S. artemisioides subsp. helmsii, S. sp. Meekatharra and S. glaucifolia), Acacia craspedocarpa and Dodonaea viscosa subsp. mucronata over isolated grasslands of Cymbopogon ambiguus.	4
PERS	BIF	Crests and slopes of BIF and iron rich chert, or on basalt and felsic rocks.	Open to sparse shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>A. quadrimarginea</i> over isolated to sparse shrubland of <i>Eremophila</i> spp. ( <i>E. latrobei, E. foliosissima</i> and <i>E. galeata</i> ) and <i>Thryptomene decussata</i> over isolated to sparse shrubland of <i>P. schwartzi</i> .	2
PERS	BIF	Crests and slopes of BIF and iron rich chert.	Open to sparse shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> , <i>Grevillea berryana</i> , and <i>Acacia</i> spp. ( <i>A. quadrimarginea</i> , <i>A. tetragonophylla</i> and <i>Acacia</i> cf. <i>resinimarginea</i> ) over open to sparse shrubland of <i>Scaevola spinescens</i> and <i>Eremophila latrobei</i> and <i>Senna</i> sp. Meekatharra over isolated to sparse shrublands of <i>Ptilotus</i> spp. ( <i>P. obovatus</i> and <i>P. schwartzii</i> ) and <i>Maireana georgii</i> .	3
WR	BIFMID	<ul> <li>1a) Moderate hill slopes, very rocky terrain and outcrops of BIF.</li> <li>1b) Rocky, gentle to moderate inclines.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>1a) Acacia aneura, A. ramulosa and / or Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey and S. Dillon 2994), over sparse <i>Eremophila</i> spp.</li> <li>1b) Open to sparse shrubland of Acacia aneura (var. microphylla, aneura and argentea), Acacia sp. Weld Range &amp; Grevillea berryana, over Eremophila spp. low shrubs.</li> </ul>	1a and 1b
LEEST	BIFMID	Mid-slopes of BIF with a gentle to moderate gradient.	Tall open <i>Acacia</i> shrubland, particularly <i>Acacia quadrimarginea</i> , over sparse to open mid-stratum of <i>Eremophila margarethae</i> and <i>Senna glaucifolia</i> shrubs with open hummock grasslands of <i>Triodia</i> <i>melvillei</i> .	1
WR	BIFOUT	Massive rocky outcrops of BIF, moderate to steep hill slopes.	Sparse to open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> var. <i>microcarpa</i> and / or A. <i>aneura</i> var. <i>aneura</i> , over mid stratum shrub layer of <i>Thryptomene decussata</i> , <i>Philotheca brucei</i> subsp. <i>brucei</i> , and <i>Eremophila</i> spp.	2
JFH	BIFOUT	Midslope quadrats on south- eastern ridge of massive, haematite enriched outcrops.	Acacia aneura cf. var. microcarpa and occasional Acacia pruinocarpa over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Dodonaea petiolaris, Eremophila flabellata, Sida sp. (Markey and Dillon 4126) and, less frequently, Ptilotus rootundifolius, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri.	6
MR	CRELOW	Crests to the lower slopes of the range.	Tall shrubs of Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and A. quadrimarginea, mid-stratum shrubs Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. jucunda and sparse Ptilotus schwartzii.	4





JH	CREMID	Along the entire range mainly on crests and midslopes.	Woodlands and shrublands of <i>A. aneura</i> cf. var. <i>aneura</i> or <i>A. aneura</i> cf. var. <i>tenuis</i> occasionally associated with <i>A. rhodophloia</i> woodlands over shrublands of <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> and <i>Dodonaea petiolaris</i> .	2
JH	CREMID	On crests and midslopes of rocky outcrops on the entire range.	Open woodlands, woodlands and shrublands of <i>A. aneura</i> cf. var. <i>aneura</i> and <i>A. citrinoviridis</i> over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> .	3
LEEST	CREMID	Midslopes to crests with coarse weathered ironstone fragments.	Open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> var. <i>microcarpa</i> over <i>Eremophila latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> with sparse cover of <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> , <i>P. schwartzii</i> and <i>Tribulus suberosus</i> .	2
PERS	CREMID	Crests and midslopes of ultramafic and metabasalt derived hills.	Open to sparse shrubland of <i>Acacia</i> cf. <i>resinimarginea</i> and <i>A. grasbyi</i> over open to sparse shrubland of <i>Senna</i> spp. (S. <i>artemisioides</i> subsp. <i>helmsii</i> and <i>Senna</i> sp. Meekatharra) over isolated to open shrubland of <i>Cheilanthes sieberi</i> subsp. <i>sieberi</i> , <i>Calytrix desolata</i> or <i>Harnieria kempeana</i> subsp. <i>muelleri</i> .	1
RR&MG	CRESLOPE	Slopes and crests of banded ironstone on Robinson Range.	Open to sparse shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> over open to isolated shrubland of <i>Aluta maisonneuvei</i> subsp. <i>auriculata, Eremophila</i> spp. ( <i>E. punctata, E. exilifolia, E. jucunda</i> subsp. <i>jucunda, E. spectabilis</i> subsp. <i>spectabilis</i> and <i>E. forrestii</i> subsp. <i>forrestii</i> ) over forbland and grassland of <i>Eriachne pulchella, Paspalidium basicladum, Pitlotus polystachyus</i> and <i>Sida chrysocalyx</i> .	4
RR&MG	CRESLOPE	Crests and slopes with slightly rocky to very rocky outcrops on Robinson Range.	Open to sparse shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> , <i>A. citrinoviridis</i> , <i>Corymbia ferriticola</i> subsp. <i>ferriticola</i> over <i>Eremophila</i> spp. ( <i>E. latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> , <i>E. exilifolia</i> , <i>E. punctata</i> , <i>E. jucunda</i> subsp. <i>jucunda</i> , <i>E. pendulina</i> and <i>E. forrestii</i> subsp. <i>forrestii</i> ), <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> , <i>P. schwartzii</i> , <i>Sida chrysocalyx</i> over grasslands of <i>Paspalidium basicladum</i> and <i>Eriachne pulchella</i> .	5
RR&MG	CRESLOPE	Rocky to slightly rocky crests and midslopes of banded ironstone on the Robinson Range.	Open to sparse shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> , <i>A. citrinoviridis</i> over open to sparse shrubland of <i>Eremophila</i> spp. ( <i>E. latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> , <i>E. exilifolia</i> and <i>E. jucunda</i> subsp. <i>jucunda</i> ), <i>Senna glaucifolia</i> and <i>Sida chrysocalyx</i> over grassland of <i>Eriachne pulchella</i> and <i>Paspalidium basicladum</i> .	6
WNT	CRESLOPE	Upper slopes and crests with low cover of rock outcrop.	Open shrublands of <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>Grevillea berryana</i> over shrublands of <i>Eremophila latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> and <i>E. glutinosa</i> over sparse grassland of <i>Monachather paradoxus</i> .	2
WNT	CRESLOPE	Slopes and summits of laterised ironstone breakaways.	Sparse to open woodlands and shrublands of <i>Acacia aneura</i> , <i>A. citrinoviridis</i> and <i>A. pruinocarpa</i> over sparse to open shrublands of <i>Eremophila phyllopoda</i> , <i>Dodonaea viscosa</i> subsp. <i>mucronata</i> , <i>Micromyrtus sulphurea</i> , <i>Calytrix erosipetala</i> , <i>Philotheca citrina</i> , <i>P. brucei</i> subsp. <i>cinerea</i> , <i>Eremophila georgei</i> , <i>Thryptomene decussata</i> and <i>Ptilotus</i> obovatus.	3





B&TP	CRESLOPE	Crest and upper slopes of both ranges	Isolated to sparse shrublands of <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>A. ramulosa</i> over open to sparse shrublands of <i>Thryptomene decussata, Eremophila latrobei, E. glutinosa</i> and <i>A. scleroclada</i> over open to sparse shrublands and grasslands of <i>Sida</i> sp. Golden calyces glabrous, <i>Ptilotus obovatus, P. schwartzii, Eriachne pulchella</i> and <i>Aristida contorta.</i>	1
MR	CRESLOPE	Upper portion of the lanscape.	Tall open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> over sparse shrubs of <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> , <i>Scaevola spinescens, Lepidium platypetalum</i> and <i>Maireana triptera</i> .	1
LAKMA	CRESLOPE	Upper slopes and rocky crests.	Tall shrubs of Acacia aneura var. microcarpa over mid-stratum of Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei with sparse cover of Ptilotus schwartzii.	2
JFH	CRESLOPE	Crests and steeper upper slopes.	Sparse open tall shrubland of Acacia aneura var. cf. microcarpa, Grevillea berryana, and (less commonly, Acacia aneura cf. var argentea, Acacia quadrimarginea) over mid story shrub stratum of Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Prostanthera campbellii (occasionally Dodonaea petiolaris and Baeckea sp. Melita Station, Eremophila punctata and E. flabellata), over common sub shrubs Ptilotus obovatus, Sida chrysocalyx, Sida excedentifolia, the perennial herb, Ptilotus schwartzii, the geophyte, Cheilanthes brownii, and the perannial grasses, Eriachne helmsii, E. mucronata and Monachather paradoxus.	1
LEEST	CRESLOPE	Crests and upper slopes of ironstone formations.	Sparse tall shrubs of Acacia aneura var. microcarpa and A. citrinoviridis over isolated to sparse shrubland of Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. margarethae with isoloated Ptilotus schwartzii.	3
BOO	CRESLOPE	<ul> <li>1a) Gentle to moderately steep</li> <li>hill slopes and crests of BIF.</li> <li>1b) Gently to moderately</li> <li>inclined mid-upper hill slopes</li> <li>and crests of weathered BIF.</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>1a) Tall open to sparse Acacia aneura shrubland where A. aneura cf. microcarpa is a significant indicator species, and often with additional Acacia spp. such as A. quadrimarginea or A. thoma. The sparse midstratum consists of various shrubs, including Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Solanum ashbyae and Sida chrysocalyx. Other common sub-shrubs include Ptilotus schwartzii which co-occurs with perennial grasses such as Cymbopogon ambiguus and Eriachne helmsii.</li> <li>1b) Acacia aneura cf. microcarpa and Thryptomene decussata tall open - sparse shrubland, less frequently with Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa as a co-dominant, over sparse mid-stratum shrubs including Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Solanum ashbyae and Eriachne helmsii.</li> <li>1b) Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa as a co-dominant, over sparse mid-stratum shrubs including Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Solanum ashbyae and Eremophila georgii, Dodonaea rigida and Sida chrysocalyx, Dodonaea petolaris, Ptilotus obovatus, Cheilanthes sieberi, Ptilotus schwartzii and less frequently, Scaevola spinescens. The perennial grass Thyridolepis multiculmis is an indicator species in the ground layer.</li> </ul>	1a and 1b
воо	CRESLOPE	Steeper, rocky crests and upper slopes of BIF.	Sparse shrublands of Acacia aneura and Thryptomene decussata over mid-stratum shrubs of Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Prostanthera campbellii, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Eremophila georgei, Olearia humilis, Sida chrysocalyx and Dodonaea petiolaris over a ground layer that includes Cheilanthes brownii and perennial grasses such as Eragrostis lacunaria.	2
MR	CREST	South, south east facing crest.	Open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>A. rhodophloia</i> over sparse shrubs of <i>Eremophila forrestii</i> and <i>E. punctata</i> with isolated <i>E. jucunda</i> .	2





WR	DOLER	Associated with dolerite substrates	Open shrubland of <i>Acacia</i> sp. Weld Range (A. Markey and S. Dillon 2994), <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>Acacia speckii</i> , over sparse mid stratum of <i>Eremophila macmillaniana</i> , <i>Eremophila mackinlayi</i> subsp. <i>spathulata</i> and <i>Heliotropium ovalifolium</i>	6
воо	GULLIES	Downslope from outcropping ridges of BIF in shallow gullies where there was some influence of associated ulramafics, mafics, cherts, shale and other metasediments.	Tall shrublands of Acacia aneura and A. ramulosa var. ramulosa, over various shrubs, including Grevillea inconspicua, Senna manicula, and Eremophila platycalyx subsp. platycalyx.	6
B&TP	LATBREAK	Laterite breakaways surrounding Mount Barloweerie.	Open to sparse shrublands of <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>A. aulacophylla</i> over open to sparse shrublands of <i>Philotheca sericea</i> over sparse shrublands and forblands of <i>Ptilotus schwartzii</i> and <i>Stylidium longibracteatum</i> .	3
RR&MG	LOW	Lower slopes of Robinson Range and Mount Gould	Open to sparse shrublands of <i>Acacia aneura</i> over open to isolated shrublands of <i>Eremophila</i> spp. ( <i>E. latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> , <i>E. jucunda</i> subsp. <i>jucunda</i> , <i>E. forrestii</i> subsp. <i>forrestii</i> ), <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> and <i>P. polystachyus</i> over forbland and grassland of <i>Dysphania rhadinostachya</i> , <i>Aristida contorta</i> , <i>Eriachne pulchella</i> and <i>Goodenia tenuiloba</i> .	1
RR&MG	LOW	Simple and lower slopes of Robinson Range.	Sparse shrubland and woodlands of Acacia aneura and A. pruinocarpa over shrubland of A. aneura (juvenile), A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila fraseri, E. spectabilis subsp. spectabilis and Senna glaucifolia over forbland and grassland of Ptilotus polystachyus, Eriachne pulchella and Paspalidium basicladum.	3
B&TP	LOW	Lower slopes and footslopes of the Twin Peaks greenstone belt.	Open to sparse shrublands of <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>A. ramulosa</i> over open to sparse shrublands of <i>A. tetragonophylla</i> , <i>Senna artemisioides</i> subsp. <i>helmsii</i> , <i>Senna</i> sp. Meekatharra, <i>Eremophila</i> spp. ( <i>E. macmillaniana</i> , <i>E. simulans</i> and <i>E. glutinosa</i> ) over mid-dense to open forbland and grassland of <i>Ptilotus</i> obovatus, Aristida contorta and Eriachne pulchella.	2
JH	LOWCREEK	Along the entire range but mainly on creeklines and lower slopes.	Open woodlands and woodlands of <i>Acacia</i> spp. (dominants – <i>Acacia aneura</i> cf. var. <i>aneura</i> , A. <i>ramulosa</i> var. <i>linophylla, A. rhodophloia</i> ) over shrublands of <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> or <i>Eremophila</i> spp.	1





WR	LOWOUT	5a) Moderately inclined lower hillslopes and outwash plains. 5b) Moderately inclined lower hillslopes and outwash plains.	<ul> <li>5a) Isolated emergent trees of Acacia pruinocarpa over Acacia aneura / Acacia ramulosa, over an open mid-stratum of shrubs.</li> <li>5b) Sparse to open Acacia spp. shrubland (A. aneura cf. var. tenuis or aneura and / or Acacia effusifolia), over sparse Senna spp. and Tribulus suberosus low shrubs.</li> </ul>	5a and 5b
JH	LOWOUT	Colluvial outwashes and a low crest.	Open woodlands, woodlands and isolated trees of <i>A. aneura</i> cf. var. <i>aneura</i> over shrublands of <i>Eremophila</i> spp.	5
LEEST	LOWPED	Mid to lower slopes and pediments; occasionally further upslope.	Tall to sparse open shrublands of <i>Acacia aneura</i> var. <i>microcarpa</i> with sparse mid-stratum of <i>Eremophila latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> over isolated hummock grassland of <i>Triodia melvillei</i> and isolated grasses of <i>Eragrostis eriopoda</i> complex.	4
JFH	LOWPED	Pediments, lower slopes and slightly low outcrops of weathered BIF and other metasediments, quartz and ultramafic lithologies, usually obscured by colluvium.	Acacia aneura (notably A. aneura var. cf. tenuis), and less frequently Acacia balsamea and A. cuthbertsonii subsp. cuthbertsonii tall open shrublands over shrubs suuch as Scaevola spinescens, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Eremophila flabellata, over sparse low shrubs such as Maireana convexa, M. georgei, Ptilotus obovatus and less frequently Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda and Sida sp. unisexual.	3
JFH	LOWPEDPLAIN	Lower slopes, pediments and valley flats	Tall shrubland or open tall shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> (often var. cf. <i>microcarpa</i> and occasionally var. cf. <i>tenuis</i> ), often with a canopy of <i>A. pruinocarpa</i> , over a typical mid stratum of <i>Eremophila forrestii</i> , <i>E. latrobei</i> , <i>Senna</i> spp., <i>Rhagodia eremaea</i> , <i>Eremophila flabellata</i> , <i>Sida</i> sp. unisexual and <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> , usually over <i>P. schwartzii</i> , <i>Sida excedentifolia</i> and the perennial grass <i>Monachather paradoxa</i> .	5
воо	LOWPEDPLAIN	Lower slopes, pediments, valley flats or plains adjacent to BIF landforms.	Shrublands of Acacia aneura (var. cf. microcarpa and var. cf. tenuis) often with A. ramulosa var. ramulosa as co-dominant, over a shrub stratum of Senna spp. (particularly S. glaucifolia), Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Solanum lasiophyllum, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophila galeata, Ptilotus obovatus and P. schwartzii.	3
LAKMA	LOWPLAIN	Lower slopes to outwash plains.	Open shrubland of Acacia aneura over sparse to open shrubs of Eremophila galeata, Ptilotus obovatus and Solanum lasiophyllum.	6
LEEST	LOWPLAIN	Lower footslopes and adjacent colluvium.	Sparse shrubland of <i>Acacia tetragonophylla</i> with isolated shrubs of <i>Eremophila latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> and <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> . Other taxa in this community include sparse or open woodlands of <i>A. pruinocarpa</i> and isolated <i>Rhagodia eremaea</i> .	5



BOO	LOWULTBAS	Mafic bedrock and colluvium in the basalt hills adjacent to the BIF ridges.	Tall, sparse-open shrublands of <i>Acacia xanthocarpa</i> and <i>A. ramulosa</i> subsp. <i>ramulosa</i> over a sparse shrub layer which includes, to varying degrees, <i>Dodonaea rigida, Eremophila exilifolia, Senna manicula, Eremophila granitica, E. forrestii, Grevillea inconspicua, Solanum ashbyae</i> and <i>Cheilanthes lasiphylla</i> .	5
PERS	LOWULTBAS	Lower slopes and colluvium derived from metabasalt and ultramafic rocks.	Open to sparse Acacia aneura and Acacia spp. (A. pruinocarpa, A. kempeana and A. grasbyi) over open to sparse shrublands of Sida ectogama, S. sp. Meekatharra and Eremophila pantonii over open to sparse shrubland of Maireana georgei and M. triptera.	4
WR	MIDLOW	Mid and low to moderate hillslopes. Loose ironstone gravel and scree.	Open shrubland of Acacia aneura over isolated Solanum ashbyae and Tribulus suberosus low shrubs.	3
WNT	MIDLOW	Lower slopes and midslope	Open shrublands of Acacia aneura over shrublands of Eremophila phyllopoda.	1
MR	MIDLOW	Mid to lower slopes, pediments and colluvial plains adjacent to the range.	Sparse to open tall shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> var. <i>microcarpa</i> over open shrubland of <i>Eremophila latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> and <i>E. jucunda</i> .	6
LAKMA	MIDLOW	Mid to lower slopes, with more gentle slopes than other communities.	Tall shrubs of <i>Acacia aneura</i> var. <i>microcarpa</i> and the ubiquitous shrub species <i>Eremophila latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> in the mid-stratum.	3
LAKMA	MIDPED	Mid slopes and pediments	Open shrubland of Acacia burkittii and A. xanthocarpa over sparse shrubland of Grevillea inconspicua, Prostanthera althoferi, Ptilotus obovatus and Senna aretemisioides subsp. x artemisioides with isolated cover of the perennial grass Austrostipa elegantissima.	4
JH	OUTCREST	Colluvial outwash and small ironstone crest.	Isolated trees of Acacia stowardii or woodlands of A. aneura cf. var. tenuis, A. stowardii and A. kempeana over sparse shrublands.	4
LAKMA	OUTCREST	From crests to the colluvial outwash plains.	Open shrubland of Senna sp. Meekatharra over isolated shrubs of Scaevola spinescens and Ptilotus obovatus.	5
MR	PEDIMENT	Steeper upper slopes to the pediments at the base of the range.	Sparse to open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> var. <i>microcarpa</i> over isolated <i>Eremophila latrobe</i> i subsp. <i>latrobei</i> and <i>Psydrax suaveolens</i> with isolated <i>Sida</i> sp. golden calyces glabrous.	3





воо	PEDIMENT	Pediments of valley flats at the base of the range.	Tall, sparse to open shrublands of Acacia aneura, A. ramulosa var. ramulosa and A. craspedocarpa, with isolated trees of Brachychiton gregorii, over a sparse or open shrubland of Solanum lasiophyllum, Senna glaucifolia, Senna sp. Meekatharra, S artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Eremophila galeata and Ptilotus obovatus over perennial grasses such as Enneapogon caerulescens and Monachather paradoxus.	4
MR	PLAIN	On an east, north east flat.	Open tall shrubland of Acacia aneura with isolated mallees of Eucalyptus lucasii over isolated shrubland of Eremophila galeata, E. jucunda and Sida ectogama.	5
LAKMA	PLAIN	Outwash plains away from footslopes.	Sparse tall shrubland of Acacia aneura var. microcarpa with open mid-stratum of Eremophila forrestii and Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa over sparse cover of grasses including Austrostipa elegantissima, Aristida sp. and Eragrostis eriopoda.	1
JFH	PLAIN	Outwash plains	Tall open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>A. tetragonophylla</i> , occasionally with isolated emergent trees of <i>A. pruinocarpa</i> , over a mosaic of shrubland and chenopods. The shrubland is dominated by <i>Sida</i> sp. unisexual, <i>Rhagodia eremaea</i> , <i>Eremophila flabellata</i> , <i>E. galeata</i> and <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> which then grades into more open low chenopod shrubland an succulent geophytes, which is dominated by <i>Halosarcia, Maireana</i> and <i>Sclerolaena</i> .	4
JFH	RIDGEPED	Flat summit surfaces on ridge tops, and on the undulating pediments and valley floors off the main ridges.	Sparse open shrublands of emergent tall shrubs of <i>Acacia aneura</i> var. cf. <i>microcarpa, Acacia aneura</i> var. cf. <i>aneura, Grevillea berryana</i> and <i>Acacia rhodophloia</i> (less frequently <i>Acacia quadrimarginea</i> ), over mid shrub stratum of <i>Eremophila punctata, E. latrobei</i> subsp. <i>latrobei</i> . <i>E. jucunda</i> subsp. <i>jucunda</i> (less commonly, <i>E. forrestii</i> ), sub shrubs <i>Ptilotus obovatus, Sida chrysocalyx,</i> (less commonly <i>Ptilotus schwartzii</i> ) and <i>Monachather paradoxus.</i> Hummocks - open grasslands of <i>Triodia melvillei</i> are a distinctive layer in this community type. Where <i>T. melvillei</i> is absent or of low abundance, low shrubs such as <i>Homalocalyx echinulatus, Eremophila forrestii</i> and <i>E. jucunda</i> are far more conspicuous, as are perennial grasses such as <i>Thyridolepis multiculmis.</i>	2
WR	STEEP	Steep rocky hillslopes with relatively high levels of exposed bedrock	Open shrubs of <i>Acacia aneura</i> and emergent trees of <i>Acacia pruinocarpa</i> , over <i>Philotheca brucei</i> subsp. <i>brucei</i> and <i>Eremophila</i> spp.	4
JH	STEEP	<b>Restricted</b> to the slopes of Mounts Matthew and Hale.	Shrubland of <i>Acacia</i> sp. Jack Hills, <i>Philotheca brucei</i> subsp. <i>cinerea</i> , <i>Eremophila</i> spp. over hummock grasslands of <i>Triodia melvillei</i> . Isolated trees of <i>A. citrinoviridis</i> , <i>A. pruinocarpa</i> and <i>Grevillea berryana</i> are occasionally present.	6
RR&MG	STEEP	<b>Restricted</b> to upper slopes and crests of Mount Gould	Isolated shrubland of Acacia aneura or Grevillea berryana over sparse to open shrubland of Philotheca brucei subsp. cinerea, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei over hummock grassland of Triodia melvillei.	2





Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment

		Destricted to unusual states and	Sparse to open shrubland of Acacia aneura and A. citrinoviridis over sparse to open shrubland of	
RR&MG	Restricted to upper slopes and crest of Mount Fraser.	Philotheca brucei subsp. cinerea, Eremophila pendulina, Prostanthera ferricola, Pityrodia iphthima over shrubland and hummock grassland of Triodia melvillei, Amphipogon sericeus and Ptilotus obovatus.	7	

This page has been left blank intentionally.





# Beebyn 11

Weld Range Biological Survey Murchison, Western Australia

Prepared for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited by Animal Plant Mineral Pty Ltd.



February 2024

## **DOCUMENT REVISION HISTORY AND STATUS**

Revision	Date Issued	Reviewed by	Approved by	Date Reviewed/Approved
0	07/02/2024	Ecotec on behalf of SMC		
1	10/04/2024	Ecotec on behalf of SMC		

10/04/2024
Dr Eleanor Hoy
Dr Mitchell Ladyman
Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited
Beebyn 11 - Weld Range Biological Survey
1
SMC002



Animal Plant Mineral Pty Ltd ABN 86 886 455 949 Tel (08) 6296 5155 Fax (08) 6296 5199 PO Box 410, Bassendean WA 6934 www.animalplantmineral.com.au

## **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

Animal Plant Mineral Pty Ltd (**APM**) was commissioned by Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited (**SMC**) to undertake a Detailed flora and vegetation and Basic terrestrial fauna survey for a section of the Weld Range Iron Ore Project, located 72 kilometres (**km**) west southwest of Meekatharra and 60 km northwest of Cue in the Midwest region of Western Australia. The area under investigation is referred to herein as Beebyn 11 or as the Survey Area. The Survey Area totals 1056 hectares (**ha**) and is within Mining Lease (**ML**) 51/869.

The field survey was conducted between the 15<sup>th</sup> and 17<sup>th</sup> of November 2023. Winter rainfall in the season preceding the survey was below average, however annual rainfall was above average, with high falls in March and April 2023. The low rainfall preceding survey and the survey timing was a minor constraint to the completeness of the flora survey.

The flora and vegetation of the Weld Range have been well surveyed with studies conducted by Markey and Dillon (2008) and Ecologia (2009a) across the range.

Three vegetation types are described for the Survey Area. Vegetation of conservation significance was recorded as vegetation that occurs within the Weld Range Priority Ecological Community (**PEC**), excluding Disturbed areas, which totals 201 ha or 1.0% of the Weld Range PEC. The current extent of regional vegetation units present in the Survey Area is close to pre-European extent. Vegetation is in Good condition with the main disturbances being high intensity grazing leading to soil degradation and vegetation clearing for station roads and mining exploration activities. Completely Degraded areas comprise 31 ha or 3% of the Survey Area.

No Threatened (**T**) flora was recorded in the Survey Area or is known to occur in the local area. One specimen that may be a Priority (**P**) species *Hibiscus* ?*krichauffianus* was recorded but insufficient material was available to definitively determine the species. If confirmed, this would represent a significant range extension for the poorly known species. An additional three species were determined as present based upon historic survey records and 11 assessed as Likely to occur based upon the proximity of known locations and the availability of suitable habitat. Targeted search for these species would be required to determine the currency and abundance of presence within the Survey Area. Periods of fertility for these species, and therefore suitable timing for targeted search is in winter and early spring.

No Declared weeds or Weeds of National Significance were recorded or are known to occur in the local area.

Four fauna habitats are described for the Survey Area. Acacia Sand Plain is the most common habitat present covering 500 ha (47%) of the Survey Area. Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope is the next most common covering 333 ha (32%) of the Survey Area. Drainage Line and Banded Ironstone Ridge habitats are also present which cover 186 ha (18%) and 6 ha (0.6%) of the Survey Area respectively.

The literature review identified 22 species of conservation significant fauna that were assessed for likelihood of occurrence within the Survey Area. Of these, one is present, four are likely to occur and four are possibly occurring, with the remainder considered unlikely to occur due to lack of suitable habitat and/or age of record.

Conservation significant fauna that have previously been recorded within the Survey Area are:

• Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider (P3) is known to occur in the Weld Range, including within the Survey Area. Suitable habitat occurs in the Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope habitat.

Conservation significant fauna that were assessed as Likely to occur include:

- Southern whiteface has recently been listed as T under the Commonwealth Environmental Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act) but remains unlisted under Western Australian (WA) legislation. The species has been recorded commonly in the Weld Range and surrounding local habitats. It is unknown whether the sedentary species occurs within the Survey Area and the habitats are of poor quality due to a degraded understory and litter layer. Confirmation of species presence through targeted survey is required to unequivocally determine the presence of critical habitat;
- The Fork-tailed swift is a Migratory (**Mi**) species and due to the proximity of local records and the broad use of habitats, is considered likely to occur. The species rarely comes to land however and the Survey Area is not expected to be important habitat for the species;
- The West Coast mulga slider has been recorded in the Weld Range including in locations close to the Survey Area. The fossorial species is most likely to be found in areas where litter is prevalent and whilst the Survey Area is likely to be within the species broader area of occupation, the habitats within the Survey Area are generally of poor quality. Leaf litter is scarce within the Survey Area, and soils are degraded and likely poor for burrowing. Higher quality microhabitats occur in the Drainage Line habitat however soils may be too stony to be suitable.
- The Long-tailed dunnart is known from the Weld Range recorded on exposed rock and stony soils with hummock grasses and shrubs, flat-topped hills, lateritic plateaus, sandstone ranges and breakaways, generally with a vegetation of sparse mulga over spinifex Ecologia (2009b). In the Survey Area, suitable habitat is in the Banded Ironstone Ridge habitats, and rocky Drainage Lines between ridges.

Conservation significant fauna assessed as Possibly occurring include Grey falcon (T), Western spinytailed skink (T), Malleefowl (T) and Peregrine falcon (other specially protected).

## **CONTENTS**

1		
- 11	Project and Location	q
1.1	Scope of Work	11
1.2	L Elora and Vegetation	11
1.2	2 Terrestrial Fauna	11
2	Background and Supporting Information	
2.1	Relevant Legislation and Guidance	
2.1.	1 Commonwealth Government EPBC Act	
2.1.2	2 Western Australia BC Act	
2.1.3	3 Western Australia Priority species and communities	
2.1.4	4 BAM Act	
2.1.	5 Weeds of National Significance	
2.1.0	6 Guidelines	
2.2	Land Use	13
2.3	Climate	14
2.4	Biogeographic Regionalisation	15
2.5	Land Systems, Geology and Soils	15
2.6	Regional Vegetation	
2.7	Environmentally Significant Areas	20
2.7.3	1 Conservation Estate	20
2.7.2	2 Environmentally Sensitive Areas	20
3	Methodology	21
3.1	Desktop Study	21
3.1.3	1 Database Searches	21
3.1.2	2 Literature Review	22
3.1.3	3 Likelihood of Occurrence	24
3.2	Field Survey	24
3.2.3	1 Survey Personnel and Timing and Conditions	24
3.2.2	2 Flora and Vegetation	24
3.2.3	3 Fauna	27
3.2.4	4 Constraints	27
4	Flora and Vegetation Results	29

4.	1	Desktop Study	29
	4.1.1	Significant Flora	29
	4.1.2	Significant Vegetation	33
	4.1.3	Introduced Flora Species	40
4.2	2	Field Survey	40
	4.2.1	Flora	40
	4.2.2	Vegetation Types	41
	4.2.3	Vegetation Condition	47
	4.2.4	Significant Flora	49
	4.2.5	Significant Vegetation	51
	4.2.6	Introduced Flora	51
5		Terrestrial Vertebrate Fauna Results	52
5.	1	Desktop Study	52
	5.1.1	Significant Fauna	52
	5.1.2	Introduced Fauna	52
5.2	2	Field Survey	56
	5.2.1	Fauna Habitats	56
	5.2.2	Conservation Significant Fauna	60
6		Conclusions	64
6.	1	Flora	64
6.2	2	Flora of Conservation Significance	64
6.3	3	Introduced Flora	64
6.4	6.4 Vegetation of Conservation Significance		64
6.	5	Fauna of Conservation Significance	65
7		References	67
Ap	pend	ices	71

### **F**IGURES

Figure 1-1. Project Location	10
Figure 2-1. Temperature and rainfall averages for Meekatharra Airport weather station	14
Figure 2-2. Land Systems	17
Figure 2-3. Pre-European Vegetation	19
Figure 3-1. Flora Survey Sites	25
Figure 4-1. Threatened and Priority Flora Records	30
Figure 4-2. Threatened and Priority Ecological Communities	34
Figure 4-3. Vegetation Types	42
Figure 4-4. Vegetation Condition	48
Figure 5-1. Significant Fauna Database Records	53
Figure 5-2. Fauna Habitats	59

## TABLES

Table 2-1. Land Systems	15
Table 2-2 Pre-European Beard Vegetation Associations	
Table 3-1. Database Searches	21
Table 3-2. Weld Range biological surveys and reports	23
Table 3-3. Likelihood of occurrence criteria	24
Table 3-4. Parameters recorded at each Detailed site	26
Table 3-5. Vegetation Condition Scale	27
Table 3-6. Survey Constraints	28
Table 4-1. Threatened and Priority Flora Likelihood of Occurrence	31
Table 4-2. Characteristics of vegetation described for the Weld Range	35
Table 4-3. Introduced Flora Records within 30 km of the Survey Area	40
Table 4-4. Vegetation Types	41
Table 4-5. Vegetation condition within the Survey Area	47
Table 4-6. Known periods of fertility	49
Table 4-7. Proportion of Survey Area in PEC	51
Table 5-1. Significant fauna database records and likelihood of occurrence	54
Table 5-2. Fauna Habitats within the Survey Area	56

## **PLATES**

Plate 4-1. 2a BIF Outcrops	43
Plate 4-2. 3b Sandy outwash plains	46

### **APPENDICES**

Appendix A: Conservation and Declared Categories Appendix B: PMST Search Results Appendix C: Detailed flora and vegetation survey sites Appendix D: Species by Site Matrix – Flora Appendix E: Fauna Likelihood of Occurrence Assessment – Fauna

## **PROJECT TERMS**

Abbreviation	Meaning
The Project	Beebyn 11 deposit at the Weld Range Iron Ore Project
Survey Area	The 1056 ha area that is the subject of this survey, also called Beebyn 11 and is a section of the Weld Range Project.

## **UNITS OF MEASURE**

Unit	Measure
%	Percentage
°C	Degrees Celsius
ha	Hectare
km	Kilometre
m	Metre
mm	Millimetre

### LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

Abbreviation	Meaning
APM	Animal Plant Mineral Pty Ltd
BAM Act	Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Act 2007
BC Act	Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016
BIF	Banded Iron Formation
ВоМ	Bureau of Meteorology
CD	Conservation Dependent
DBCA	Department of Biological Conservation and Attractions
DCCEEW	Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water
DEE	Department of Energy and the Environment
DWER	Department of Water and Environment Regulation
DPIRD	Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development
EN	Endangered
EPA	Environmental Protection Authority
EPBC Act	Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999
ESA	Environmentally Sensitive Areas
GDE	Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems

Abbreviation	Meaning	
GPS	Global Positioning System	
IBRA	Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia	
IBSA	Index of Biodiversity Surveys for Assessment	
MI	Migratory	
MNES	Matters of National Environmental Significance	
NDVI	Normalised Difference Vegetation Index	
OS	Other Specifically Protected	
PEC	Priority Ecological Community	
Р	Priority	
PMST	Protected Matters Search Tool	
SMC	Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited	
TEC	Threatened Ecological Community	
Т	Threatened	
VU	Vulnerable	
WA	Western Australia	
WONS	Weeds of National Significance	

## **1 INTRODUCTION**

### **1.1 PROJECT AND LOCATION**

Animal Plant Mineral Pty Ltd (**APM**) was commissioned by Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited (**SMC**) to undertake a Detailed flora and vegetation and Basic terrestrial fauna survey for the Beebyn 11 deposit within the Weld Range Iron Ore Project, located 72 kilometres (**km**) west southwest of Meekatharra and 60 km northwest of Cue in the Midwest region of Western Australia (**WA**). The area under investigation is referred to herein as Beebyn 11 or as the Survey Area. The Survey Area totals 1056 hectares (**ha**) and occurs partially within M 51/869 (Figure 1-1).



Author: VM Approved: EH Date: 26/03/2024		LOCALITY
Project Location	Legend Survey Area Tenement M51/869-1 Main Roads	Western Australia
Prepared for: Figure 1-1		• Weld Range
Scale: 200,000 A4 A Coordinate System: GDA 2020 Coordinate Transverse Mercator Coordinate System: Transverse Mercator Coordinate System: Coordinate System:		Perth
# **1.2 SCOPE OF WORK**

The scope of work includes a Detailed flora and vegetation and Basic terrestrial fauna survey. Survey data accompanies this report in a format suitable for submission to the Index of Biodiversity Surveys for Assessment (**IBSA**) online portal.

# 1.2.1 Flora and Vegetation

The flora and vegetation survey was conducted in accordance with the Environmental Protection Authority's (**EPA**) *Technical Guidance – Terrestrial Flora and Vegetation Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment* (2016) at a Detailed level of assessment. The aims of the desktop study were to:

The all is of the desktop study were to.

- Establish vegetation associations previously determined for the site;
- Identify threatened (T) and priority (P) flora and ecological communities (PECs and TECs) previously recorded on site;
- Identify weed species previously determined as present on site, in particular any Declared weeds; and
- Identify potentially suitable habitat for conservation significant flora known from the region, using publicly available regional datasets such as geological, land system, surface water and Groundwater Dependent Ecosystems (**GDE**) mapping products.

The aims of the field survey were to:

- Describe and map the vegetation types present and provide comparisons to locally described types;
- Compile an inventory of flora taxa encountered; and
- Identify conservation significant features of the flora and vegetation.

## 1.2.2 Terrestrial Fauna

The scope of work was to conduct a basic terrestrial fauna survey in accordance with the EPA's fauna guidelines: *Technical Guidance – Terrestrial Vertebrate Fauna Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment* (2020).

The aims of the desktop study were to:

- Identify T and P Fauna species previously determined as present on-site;
- Identify habitat types previously determined as present on-site regarded as suitable for T and P fauna; and
- Identify introduced species previously determined as present on-site.

The aims of the field survey were to describe habitat availability for Conservation Significant fauna and the quality or condition of available habitats.

# 2 BACKGROUND AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION

# 2.1 RELEVANT LEGISLATION AND GUIDANCE

## 2.1.1 Commonwealth Government EPBC Act

The Commonwealth *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999* (**EPBC Act**) is administered by the Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water (**DCCEEW**). It provides a legal framework to protect and manage nationally and internationally important flora, fauna, ecological communities and heritage places, defined in the EPBC Act as Matters of National Environmental Significance (**MNES**).

If a project has the potential to significantly impact on MNES it is to be referred to the DCCEEW for determination on whether the matter is a 'controlled action' and therefore requiring assessment.

The EPBC Act provides for the identification and listing of species under several categories listed in Appendix A. The EPBC Act also provides for the development of conservation advice and recovery plans, development of a register of critical habitat, recognition of key threatening processes and the development of threat abatement plans.

# 2.1.2 Western Australia BC Act

The *Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016* (**BC Act**) provides a statutory basis for the listing of T species, specially protected species, extinct species, TECs, collapsed ecological communities, critical habitat and key threatening processes in WA. The BC Act provides for the listing of T flora and fauna species and ecological communities under specified conservation categories listed in Appendix A. Species and communities listed under the BC Act are protected and require authorisation by the Minister to take or disturb.

Species may also be listed as being of special conservation interest if they have a naturally low population, restricted natural range, are subject to or recovering from a significant population decline or reduction of range or are of special interest to science. Species of special conservation interest, migratory species and species subject to international agreements are known as Specially Protected Species in the BC Act.

## 2.1.3 Western Australia Priority species and communities

Flora and fauna species and communities are listed by the Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions (**DBCA**) as P when they are considered to have a greater level of significance than other native species and communities. This generally occurs where populations are geographically restricted or threatened by local processes, or where there is insufficient information to formally assign them to T species and communities categories. Whilst P species and communities are not specifically listed in the BC Act, all flora and fauna are protected in WA following the provisions in Part 10 of the BC Act. This protection applies even when a species is not listed as T or specially protected. The categories covering P species and communities are listed in Appendix A.

#### 2.1.4 BAM Act

Plants may be 'Declared' by the Agriculture Protection Board under the *Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Act 2007* (WA) (**BAM Act**). Declared Plants are gazetted under three categories (C1-C3) which define the action required. Details of the definitions of these categories are provided in Appendix A. A declaration may apply to the whole State, to districts, individual properties or even to single paddocks. If a plant is 'Declared', landholders are obliged to control that plant on their properties.

#### 2.1.5 Weeds of National Significance

The DCCEEW, along with the State and Territory governments, has endorsed 32 Weeds of National Significance (**WONS**). Four major criteria were used in determining WONS:

- The invasiveness of a weed species;
- A weed's impact;
- The potential for spread of a weed; and
- Socio-economic and environmental values.

Each WONS has a national strategy and a national coordinator, responsible for implementing the strategy. WONS are regarded as the worst weeds in Australia because of their invasiveness, potential for spread, and economic and environmental impacts (DAWE 2020).

#### 2.1.6 Guidelines

The terrestrial biological assessment was conducted in accordance with the above Commonwealth and State legislation, as well as EPA requirements for environmental surveys as outlined below:

- *Technical Guidance: Terrestrial Vertebrate Fauna Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment* (EPA 2020); and
- *Technical Guidance Flora and Vegetation Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment* (EPA 2016).

Relevant guidance for the preparation of spatial datasets to accompany this report are:

- Guidelines for biological survey and mapped data (Department of the Environment and Energy (**DEE**) 2018); and
- Instructions for the preparation of data packages for IBSA (EPA 2021).

# 2.2 LAND USE

The Survey Area lies within the Beebyn pastoral lease (N049894).

Active mining operations occur within the Fenix Iron Ridge Project, with the main mining and processing area 16 km to the southwest.

Exploration activity occurs at Mount Ridley's Weld Range West Project Madoonga and Wilgie Mia Formations 40 km to the southwest.

The Wilgie Mia Aboriginal Ochre Mine lies north of the road alignment included in the Survey Area. A 2000 ha area including the Ochre Mine was included on the National Heritage List on the 24 February 2011.

# **2.3 CLIMATE**

The Weld Range is in the Midwest Region of WA, approximately 72 km west south-west of Meekatharra. The region experiences hot, dry summers and mild winters. Rainfall occurs predominantly between January and July. The nearest Bureau of Meteorology (**BoM**) weather station with a long historical record is at Meekatharra Airport (BoM Site Number: 007045), approximately 77 km east northeast of the Survey Area. Meekatharra Airport has recorded rainfall from 1944 (80 years), and temperature from 1950 (74 years). The average climate data recorded for the region over these periods is shown in Figure 2-1. Monthly mean maximum temperature ranges from 38.4°C in January to 19.3°C in July. Monthly mean rainfall ranges from 36.1 mm in February to 4.9 mm in September, with a mean annual rainfall of 233.8 mm (BoM 2023).



Figure 2-1. Temperature and rainfall averages for Meekatharra Airport weather station (Station No. 007045) (BoM 2023)

# 2.4 **BIOGEOGRAPHIC REGIONALISATION**

The Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia (**IBRA**, version 7) classifies the Australian continent into regions (bioregions) of similar geology, landform, vegetation, fauna, and climate characteristics (Thackway and Cresswell 1995). The mapping completed by Beard (1975) provides the basis for the IBRA bioregions. IBRA mapping (Version 7), places the Project within the Murchison Bioregion.

The Murchison Bioregion has low hills and mesas separated by flat colluvium and alluvial plains. Vegetation is predominantly low mulga woodlands. Other vegetation types include saltbush shrubland on calcareous soils, saline areas with samphire, and hummock grassland on red sandplain (Bastin *et al.* 2008).

The Murchison Bioregion is further subdivided into the Eastern Murchison (MUR1) and Western Murchison (MUR2) Sub-regions. The Project lies entirely within the Western Murchison Sub-region of the Murchison Bioregion.

The Western Murchison is the Murchison Terrains part of the Yilgarn Craton, and contains the headwaters of the Murchison and Wooramel Rivers, which drain the subregion westwards to the coast. The region is made up of mulga low woodlands (usually with bunch grasses and often rich in ephemerals) on outcrop, and fine textured Quaternary alluvial and eluvial surfaces (extensive hardpan washplains that dominate and characterise the subregion) mantling granitic and greenstone strata. Surfaces associated with the occluded drainage occur throughout, with hummock grasslands on Quaternary sandplains, saltbush shrublands on calcareous soils and halosarcia low shrublands on saline alluvia.

# 2.5 LAND SYSTEMS, GEOLOGY AND SOILS

Land Systems of the Murchison region are described by Curry *et al.* (1994). Mapping of Land Systems is available from Department of Primary Industry and Regional Development (**DPIRD**, 2022). The Survey Area falls within five soil landscape systems, as listed in Table 2-1 and illustrated in Figure 2-2.

Land System	Geology	Description
Jundee	Cemented Quaternary alluvium derived mainly from greenstone	Hardpan plains with variable gravelly mantles and minor sandy banks supporting weakly groved mulga shrublands.
Violet	Archaean greenstone, Upper Proterozoic basalt, Tertiary laterite and veneers of Quaternary alluvium and colluvium.	Gently undulating gravelly plains on greenstone, laterite and hardpan, with low stony rises and minor saline plains; supporting groved mulga and bowgada shrublands and occasionally chenopod shrublands.
Weld	Archaean metamorphic rocks, mainly metasedimentary types; hematitic jaspilite, banded ironstone with quartzite wacke and schistose hornblende.	Rugged ranges and ridges of banded ironstone and quartzite, supporting acacia shrublands.

Table 2-1. Land Systems

Wiluna	Archaean amphibolite, basalt and schistose rocks with Tertiary laterite capping; Quaternary colluvium on slopes and Quaternary alluvium on lowlands.	Low greenstone hills with occasional lateritic breakaways and broad stony slopes, lower saline stony plains and broad drainage tracts; supporting sparse mulga and other acacia shrublands with patches of halophytic shrubs.
Yarrameedie	Archaean metamorphic rocks with Quaternary colluvium	Undulating stony interfluves, drainage floors and pediment (foothill) plains below major ranges of crystalline rocks (mainly Weld land system) supporting sparse mulga shrublands.

The topography of the area is dominated by the Weld Range – a long band of steep ridges that run southwest to northeast and extend for 60 km and are 3-5 km wide. The range rises up to 250 metres ( $\mathbf{m}$ ) above the surrounding plains. The slope angles around the Weld Range vary from less than 5% to greater than 90%. Away from the ridges the topography is very flat.

There are some deeply incised valleys with drainage channels within Weld Range, however the land to the north has only a few well-defined channels and is characterised by numerous mud flats and salt pans.

The Weld Range greenstone belt is predominantly composed of metabasites showing mainly doleritic and minor basaltic and gabbroic textures (Duuring *et al.* 2012). Exposures of these lithologies occur between the ridges which are defined by weathered, steeply dipping beds of resistant banded iron formation (**BIF**) which form less than 10% of the thickness of the sequence. Poorly exposed, very fine-grained clastic metasediments are only a very minor part of the sequence. Metamorphism is relatively low grade, varying from lowermost greenschist facies in the north to approximately greenschist-amphibolite transition facies in the south.

High grade iron mineralisation in the Weld Range area occurs as a series of outcrops of massive goethite-haematite lodes.

Geomorphology of the Weld Land System is of erosional surfaces; mountain ranges of strike belts and ridges with peaks 200 m or more above the new plateau plains; lower, rounded hill spurs flanking major ranges; steep hillslopes with extensive loose mantling and rock outcrop; lateritised ridges with caves; valley floors and undulating interfluves often intensely dissected by narrow rectangular drainage tracts with incised channels; sheds most colluvium and drainage to pediment Yarrameedie land system.

Geomorphology of the Violet system is of erosional surfaces; remnants of old plateau as gravelly sand plains above gently undulating outcrops of laterite and weathered greenstones; broad, lower stony plains on greenstone or red-brown hardpan, often densely mantled by pebbles of mixed lithology and with sluggish, occasionally channelled, drainage floors; relief mostly < 10 m.

Soil landscapes are mapped by Tille (2006) with the Survey Area occurring in the Upper Murchinson zone. These soils are described as hardpan wash plains (with stony plains, sandplains, hills and mesas) on granite and gneiss of the Yilgarn Craton (Narryer Terrane and Murchison Domain). Red-brown hardpan shallow loams and Red shallow loams with Red loamy earths and Red deep and some Red shallow sands and Red deep sandy duplexes. Vegetation is of Mulga shrublands (with some halophytic shrublands).



# Legend

Land Systems

Jundee Land System

Violet Land System

Weld Land System

Wiluna Land System

Yarrameedie Land System



# Land Systems

Figure: **2-2** 





# 2.6 **REGIONAL VEGETATION**

Vegetation communities and land systems of the Weld Range were described by Speck and Mabbut *et al.* (1963) respectively as part of a regional survey of the Wiluna to Meekatharra area.

The vegetation communities of the area were mapped by Beard (1976) in his regional survey of the Murchison at a scale of 1: 1 000 000, describing the region as providing optimum conditions for the presence of mulga (*Acacia aneura*) woodlands. The Survey Area is located within the Murchison Botanical District of the Eremaean Botanical Province and contains two pre-European Beard vegetation associations of the Upper Murchison System as shown in Figure 2-3 (DPIRD 2019). The remaining extent of these vegetation associations is outlined in the most recent DBCA Statewide Vegetation Statistics table dated 2018 and summarised in Table 2-2 below.

Unit	Vegetation Description	Pre-European Extent (ha)	Current Extent (ha)	Pre-European Extent Remaining (%)	Current Extent within DBCA Managed Lands (%)
18	Low woodland, open low woodland or sparse woodland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> (Mulga) and associated species.	19,890,667	19,842,830	99.76	2.13
202	Scrub, open scrub or sparse scrub of Acacia spp. Melaleuca spp.	448,529	448,344	99.96	0.39

#### Table 2-2 Pre-European Beard Vegetation Associations

Beard vegetation associations that occur within the Survey Area have over 99% pre-European Vegetation extent remaining.

A finer-scale survey of the vegetation was undertaken by Curry *et al.* (1994), using the land systems of Mabbut *et al.* as part of their regional survey of rangelands within the Murchison River Catchment. The vegetation communities of the greenstone ranges of Weld Range (the Weld Land System) were surveyed between 1985 and 1988 and were reported to be dominated by Acacia species and rocky hill mixed shrublands, stony mulga mixed shrublands, and creekline shrublands.



# Legend

Survey Area

Pre-European Beard Vegetation Associations

8 15 48

Scale: 1: 60,000 @ 2 km A3 Coordinate System: GDA 2020 MGA Zone 50 Projection: Transverse Mercator Author: VM Approved: EH Date: 26/03/2024

# Pre-European **Beard Vegetation** Associations







# **2.7 SIGNIFICANT AREAS**

#### 2.7.1 Conservation Estate

The Western Australian Conservation Estate includes land and waters vested in the Conservation and Parks Commission under the *Conservation and Land Management Act 1984*. The Conservation Estate is managed by the Parks and Wildlife Service of DBCA to protect WA's biodiversity, and includes National Parks, Nature Reserves, Conservation Reserves, and other areas managed primarily for biodiversity conservation (DEE 2016).

A search of the Collaborative Australian Protected Area Database returned no conservation estates located within 50 km of the Survey Area. The nearest gazetted terrestrial conservation estate is Lakeside National Park and Lakeside Conservation Park 82 km and 75 km south of the Survey Area respectively.

#### 2.7.2 Environmentally Sensitive Areas

Environmentally Sensitive Areas (**ESA**) are areas that are defined by the Department of Water and Environment Regulation (**DWER**) (2019) as:

- A declared World Heritage property as defined in s.13 of the EPBC Act;
- An area that is included on the Register of the National Estate, because of its natural heritage value under the *Australian Heritage Council Act 2003*,
- A defined wetland and the area within 50 m of the wetland;
- The area covered by vegetation within 50 m of T flora, to the extent to which the vegetation is continuous with the vegetation in which the T flora is located;
- The area covered by a TEC;
- A Bush Forever site;
- Areas covered by the Gnangara Mound Crown Land Policy and Western Swamp Tortoise Policy;
- Areas covered by lakes, wetlands, and fringing vegetation of the Swan Coastal Plain Lakes Policy, including Southwest Agricultural Zone Wetlands Policy and Swan and Canning Rivers Policy; and
- Protected wetlands as defined in the *Environmental Protection (Southwest Agricultural Zone Wetlands) Policy 1998*.

Environmentally Sensitive Areas are available on the DWER (2021) clearing regulations spatial layer. There are no ESAs within the Survey Area.

The Australian Wetlands Database includes nationally significant wetlands (as listed in the directory of important wetlands), wetlands listed under the Ramsar convention, wetlands that are representative, rare or unique, or wetlands that are considered of international importance (DEE 2021). The nearest wetlands listed in the Directory of Important Wetlands to the Survey Area is Lake Annean, 35 km east. Lake Annean is a large saline brackish lake and marsh with numerous islands and peninsulas which is a significant breeding area for gull-billed terns and whiskered terns and other waterbirds.

#### 2.7.3 National Heritage List

Wilgie Mia, a 2000 ha area immediately north of the road alignment, is listed under the EPBC Act as a National Heritage Place.

# 3 METHODOLOGY

# 3.1 DESKTOP STUDY

The desktop study provides background information on the known attributes of flora, vegetation, and fauna of the Survey Area, and in the local surrounding area.

## 3.1.1 Database Searches

A search for EPBC Act MNES was undertaken using the DCCEEW Protected Matters Search Tool (**PMST**). The PMST identifies EPBC listed flora and fauna species and communities based on predicted distributions of the species and/or their habitat, in conjunction with species records. The PMST may predict the occurrence of a species or community in an area where there are no documented records, or documented records are historic. For this search, the Survey Area was imported into the PMST viewer as the feature area and a buffer of 30 km applied. The conservation codes are described in Appendix A. The results of the PMST search are included in Appendix B.

The DBCA maintains databases for records of T and P species and communities. A request was made for a search of DBCA databases for T and P flora and fauna and the presence of TECs or PECs. A 30 km buffer was applied to the search results.

Flora and Fauna Inventory, including records for Introduced flora and fauna from within 30 km, were obtained from the Dandjoo Biodiversity Data Repository hosted by the DBCA Biodiversity Office (DBCA 2023a).

Table 3-1. Database Searches						
Attribute	Search Area	Database	Location			
Threatened and Priority	30 km radius	DBCA	Figure 4-2; Section 4.1.1			
Ecological Communities	30 km radius	PMST	Appendix B			
Significant Communities	Feature Area	GDE Atlas	Section 4.1.2			
Threatened Flora	30 km radius	DBCA	Figure 4-1; Section 4.1.1			
	30 km radius	PMST	Appendix B			
Introduced Flora	30 km radius	Dandjoo	Section 4.1.3			
	30 km radius	DBCA	Figure 5-1; Section 5.1.1			
	30 km radius	PMST	Appendix B			
Introduced Fauna	30 km radius	Dandjoo	Section 5.1.2			

Table 3-1 lists the database searches conducted for the desktop study.

#### 3.1.2 Literature Review

The Weld Range Project has been assessed by the EPA at the level of Public Environmental Review. A Scoping Document was agreed on the 4<sup>th</sup> November 2008, the EPA report on Assessment published on the 18<sup>th</sup> June 2012 and the project approved through Ministerial Statement 908 on 29<sup>th</sup> August 2012.

The project as approved in 2012 had a land disturbance area of 3589 ha, so baseline studies performed for the Project included the extent of tenement M 51/869-I and a much larger surrounding area, covering 53 km length of the Weld Range at up to 15 km width. Within this area flora, vegetation and fauna surveys were conducted to describe baseline conditions.

Table 3-2 describes the studies and reports generated for the Weld Range Project, and a summary of the findings.

Reference	Description	Outcomes
Markey and Dillon 2008	Conducted in late August 2005. Flora and vegetation survey with assessment of distribution in relation to environmental factors.	Eight floristic community types (six types, two of these subdivided into two subtypes each) were identified and described for the Weld Range, with the primary division in the classification separating a dolerite-associated floristic community from those on BIF. Floristic communities occurring on BIF were found to be associated with topographic relief, underlying geology and soil chemistry. There did not appear to be any restricted communities within the landform, but some communities may be geographically restricted to the Weld Range, and all communities on the Weld Range are closely associated with topography and substrate.
Ecologia (2009a)	<ul> <li>Summarises the 22 flora surveys conducted in three seasons:</li> <li>Spring phase – November 2006;</li> <li>Autumn phase – April 2007; and</li> <li>Winter phases – July 2008 and June 2009</li> </ul>	Quadrat based survey established 239 sites and transect based survey conducted 1053 traverses. Resulted in the description of 17 vegetation types and mapping of 14 units as units 1a, 1b, 2a and 2b were unable to be clearly distinguished on the ground or on aerial imagery. Vegetation was primarily in Good condition (77%), with 14% in Very Good condition and 9% in Poor condition. Disturbances were heavy grazing pressure by livestock and feral goats, clearing for pastoral and mining exploration activity, and low weeds. 25 Conservation significant flora.
Ecologia (2009b)	<ul> <li>Level 2 Survey conducted in four phases:</li> <li>Spring – September 2006</li> <li>Autumn – March 2007</li> <li>Autumn – April 2007</li> <li>Spring – September 2007</li> <li>Infrastructure area Level 1 survey:</li> <li>September 2008</li> <li>August 2009</li> </ul>	Total survey effort consisted of 231 person days. Ten main fauna habitats were identified within the Project area. These include acacia sandplain, banded ironstone ridge, drainage lines, eucalypt sandplain, granite outcrops, lateritic breakaway, mulga drainage line, mulga woodland on hill slopes, rocky rise (ironstone) and rocky rise (quartz). Seven additional habitats of low spatial extent were also described as large rocky breakaway, massive breakaway complex, chenopod floodplain, dense eucalypt woodland, mulga woodlands and soft wandrie country, limestone bore and spinifex.
Ecologia (2009c)	Summarises studies conducted for Short Range Endemic ( <b>SRE</b> ) and T and P invertebrates. Madoonga, Beebyn and Hampton Hill were surveyed from August 2006 to November 2006, while Weld Range North was surveyed five months later from April 2007 to August 2007.	Systematic pitfall trapping and opportunistic foraging at 29 sites at Weld Range South and a further 15 sites were selected at Weld Range North (i.e. total 44 sites).

# Table 3-2. Weld Range biological surveys and reports

#### 3.1.3 Likelihood of Occurrence

Threatened and Priority flora, fauna and communities returned from the database searches and literature review were assessed for their likelihood of occurrence within the Survey Area using the likelihood of occurrence criteria listed in Table 3-3.

Likelihood of occurrence	Criteria
Procent	Identified from database records or field survey as occurring within the Survey Area,
Flesent	and conditions are remain suitable for persistence.
	Suitable habitat is present in the Survey Area and the species has previously been
Сікеју	recorded within 15 km within recent times.
Possible	Suitable habitat is present within the Survey Area and the species has previously been
rossible	recorded between 15 – 30 km of the Survey Area
Unlikoly	No suitable habitat is present in the Survey Area, or records are historic and the
Officery	species is no longer considered to occur in the region.

#### Table 3-3. Likelihood of occurrence criteria

# 3.2 FIELD SURVEY

## 3.2.1 Survey Personnel and Timing and Conditions

The survey was carried out from the 15<sup>th</sup> to 17<sup>th</sup> of November by Dr Eleanor Hoy with the assistance of a field technician. Dr Hoy has 15 years industry experience and is the Biological Sciences Manager at APM.

The total annual rainfall prior to survey (1<sup>st</sup> January 2023 to 15<sup>th</sup> November 2023) averaged at 213.8 mm compared to the long-term average of 206.4 mm (BoM 2023). This is due to a very large rainfall in March 2023, with a monthly total of 124.4 mm. Winter and spring rainfall was very low with 14.2 mm falling between May and October, compared to a long-term average of 91.5 mm for the same period.

The Survey Area is within the Eremaean botanical province. Recommended timing for flora and vegetation survey is 6-8 weeks post wet season (March – June) for Primary survey, and a Dry season survey (after winter rainfall if available) for Supplementary survey (EPA 2016). The timing of the field survey is outside of the period recommended for flora and vegetation survey in the region.

Due to the large rainfall in March, survey conditions were good. The Normalised Difference Vegetation Index (**NDVI**) for Beebyn Station, which shows how green the property is at any given time, is reported by DPIRD (2023a). In November 2023 the value was near to the 90<sup>th</sup> percentile for the property. Whilst soils were dry, the vegetation was in good condition, and annual/herbaceous flora contributed 29% of the total species richness.

## 3.2.2 Flora and Vegetation

A Detailed survey was conducted for flora and vegetation. Vegetation was sampled using 16 quadrats of 20 x 20 m (Figure 3-1). Quadrats are vegetation survey plots which are accurately measured out as 20 x 20 m (or an area equivalent to 2500 m<sup>2</sup>) and marked at each corner using a handheld Global Positioning System (**GPS**) unit.



# Legend



• Flora quadrats



# Flora Survey Sites

Figure: 3-1





Field data at each survey site was recorded on a pro-forma data sheet and included the parameters listed in Table 3-4. The attributes of Detailed survey sites are provided in Appendix C.

Variable	Parameters
Collection attributes	Personnel/recorder; date, quadrat dimensions and marking method, site code and georeferenced photographs of the quadrat.
Physical features	Landform, slope, aspect, soil attributes, ground surface cover, litter, rock type and physical attributes.
Location	Coordinates recorded using a hand-held GPS (Garmin) to accuracy approximately $\pm$ 5 m.
Vegetation	Dominant growth form, height, cover, and species for the three traditional strata (upper, mid and ground) compatible with NVIS Level V (ESCAVI 2003).
Vegetation condition	Vegetation condition was assessed using the condition rating scale devised by Trudgen (1988).
Disturbance	Level and nature of disturbances ( <i>e.g.</i> weed presence, fire, and time since last fire, impacts from grazing, vegetation clearing, erosion).
Flora	List of all species within the quadrat including weeds and listing species average height and cover.

Table 3-4. Parameters recorded at each Detailed site

A flora inventory was compiled from taxa listed in Detailed survey sites and from opportunistic floristic collections throughout the Survey Area, with at least one collection made for every taxon encountered. Specimens were identified by an experienced botanical taxonomist in the Western Australia Herbarium (**WAH**) using published reference material. The nomenclature applied is consistent with Florabase (WAH 1998-).

The conservation status of all recorded flora was determined from the T and P Flora List (DBCA 2023c), and the EPBC Act List of T Flora (DCCEEW 2023a). The Western Australian Organisms List database was consulted to determine if any are BAM Act Declared Plants (DPIRD 2023b), and the Weeds of National Significance list to determine any WONS (DAWE 2020).

The vegetation types were described based on their structure and species composition, as defined by quadrat data, and field observations. Vegetation was mapped in the field using handheld GPS units and aerial photographs, then digitised using GIS software. Vegetation is described at the association level (ESCAVI 2003) and referred to as Vegetation Types (EPA 2016).

Vegetation Condition was assigned using the scale developed for the Eremaean and Northern Botanical Provinces adapted from Trudgen (1988) as recommended in EPA (2016). Table 3-5 lists the six potential categories.

Vegetation Condition	Eremaean and Northern Botanical Provinces adapted from Trudgen (1988)
Excellent	Pristine or nearly so, no obvious signs of damage caused by human activities since European settlement
Very Good	Some relatively slight signs of damage caused by human activities since European settlement. For example, some signs of damage to tree trunks caused by repeated fire, the presence of some relatively non-aggressive weeds, or occasional vehicle tracks.
Good	More obvious signs of damage caused by human activity since European settlement, including some obvious impact on the vegetation structure such as that caused by low levels of grazing or slightly aggressive weeds.
Poor	Still retains basic vegetation structure or ability to regenerate it after very obvious impacts of human activities since European settlement, such as grazing, partial clearing, frequent fires or aggressive weeds.
Degraded	Severely impacted by grazing, very frequent fires, clearing or a combination of these activities. Scope for some regeneration but not to a state approaching good condition without intensive management. Usually with a number of weed species present including very aggressive species.
Completely Degraded	Areas that are completely or almost completely without native species in the structure of their vegetation; <i>i.e.</i> areas that are cleared or 'parkland cleared' with their flora comprising weed or crop species with isolated native trees or shrubs

#### Table 3-5. Vegetation Condition Scale

Data analysis was applied through the preparation of a species by site matrix using the complete suite of species recorded. The Primer 7 (Clarke and Gorley, 2015), software was used to perform floristic composition vegetation classification. Two transformation types were applied, a presence/absence and a square root transformation applied to the projected foliage cover value. Resemblance matrices were constructed for each transformed data set using the Bray Curtis similarity measure. Cluster analysis was performed for each transformed data set using group averages. The SIMPROF routine was used to test the hypothesis that the species and/or abundances are different at each group of sites using 999 permutations and a significance level of 5%.

The analysis applying the square root transformation was found to be more consistent with the previous survey conducted by Ecologia (2009a) where the main vegetation community was subdivided into subcommunities based upon vegetation density.

The completeness of the survey was tested using a species accumulation curve and applying the Michaelis-Menton model to estimate the species richness of the Survey Area.

## 3.2.3 Fauna

Fauna habitat assessments were performed at flora quadrat locations. Descriptive data was recorded including soil type, landform, presence of microhabitats, disturbances and images were recorded.

## 3.2.4 Constraints

Several limitations may arise during field survey EPA (2016). These potential survey limitations are listed below in Table 3-6 with comments on the constraint to the outcomes of the survey.

	Table 3-6. Survey Constraints
Factor	Impact of survey outcomes
	Moderate constraint.
Access problems	A 5 km section (25%) of the Access Road is not along existing tracks and was not visited. This area has not previously been surveyed.
Experience levels	Not a constraint.
	The personnel were suitably qualified.
	Not a constraint.
Scope: Flora and vegetation	Survey was carried out at a Detailed level of assessment. No Targeted searches for conservation significant flora were conducted.
	Not a constraint.
Scope: Fauna	The survey was carried out at a Basic level of assessment. With the large survey effort conducted in 2007/08 this level of assessment is suitable to assess habitat availability and quality and inform any requirements for further Targeted survey.
	Minor constraint.
Timing, weather, season, cycle	The Survey Area is within the Eremaean Botanical district. Rainfall in the calendar year prior to survey was average, however winter and spring rainfall was below average. The Flora and Vegetation survey was conducted outside of the recommended survey period (EPA 2016). The large rainfall in March was sufficient to provide stored soil water into the late spring as seen by NDVI values near the 90 <sup>th</sup> percentile (DPIRD 2023a).
	Not a constraint.
Sources of information	Previous biological reports and database records are available for the locality and region.
	Minor constraint.
Completeness: Elora and vogotation	Due to low rainfall preceding the survey, the presence of annual species was restricted to areas receiving runoff and/or with higher moisture retention, and modelling indicated the survey captured 77% of the species richness of the area. Nine specimens were unable to be identified to species level, including one specimen that may constitute a significant range extension for a P3 species.
completeness. Fiora and vegetation	Compared to previous survey conducted by Markey and Dillon (2008) the richness per quadrat was lower than expected, however it was within the range recorded by Ecologia (2009a) for the same vegetation types. Annual/herbaceous species contributed 29% of the total species richness and the NDVI was in the 90 <sup>th</sup> percentile for the property.
	No species of conservation significant flora that have been previously recorded or are considered likely to occur are annual/herbaceous species.
Completeness: Fauna	Not a constraint.
	The scope was completed.

# 4 FLORA AND VEGETATION RESULTS

# 4.1 DESKTOP STUDY

## 4.1.1 Significant Flora

No T Flora listed under the BC Act and/or EPBC Act have been previously recorded within the Survey Area, or within 30 km. No T species were returned from the PMST or literature review.

The DBCA database contained two P species that have previously been recorded in the Survey Area. The P3 *Prostanthera petrophila* and P4 *Dodonaea amplisemina* have been recorded within the Fenix Access Road. Additionally, five P1, seventeen P3, and four P4 species have records within 30 km of the Survey Area.

The Literature review identified one additional P species occurring within the Survey Area – *Acacia speckii* (P4); and seven additional P species that have been recorded at the Weld Range. These are *Indigofera gilesii* P3, *Euphorbia sarcostemmoides* P1, *Goodenia lyrata* P3, *Eremophila arachnoides* subsp. *Arachnoides* P3, *Mirbelia stipitata* P3, *Ptilotus luteolus* P3, and *Tecticornia cymbiformis* P3.

P flora returned from the DBCA database with records within 30 km of the Survey Area are shown in Figure 4-1. Records identified in the literature review are also shown.

An assessment of the likelihood of occurrence of these 34 species within the Survey Area was performed using the criteria listed in Table 3-3. The results of the assessment are listed in Table 4-1.



# Legend

Survey Area

Priority 1

- $\star$  Acacia dilloniorum
- Beyeria lapidicola  $\star$
- Eremophila rhegos
- ★ Euphorbia sarcostemmoides
- Stenanthemum mediale  $\star$
- $\star$ Stenanthemum patens

Priority 3

- + Acacia burrowsiana
- Acacia speckii
- Calytrix verruculosa +
- Drosera eremaea
- Eremophila fasciata +
- Eremophila shonae subsp. diffusa +
- Eremophila simulans subsp. megacalyx +
- Hemigenia tysonii
- Hemigenia virescens
- Homalocalyx echinulatus
- Lysiandra baeckeoides
- Micromyrtus placoides
- Petrophile pauciflora
- Prostanthera ferricola
- Prostanthera petrophila
- Ptilotus beardii
- + Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94)
- Verticordia jamiesonii

Priority 4

SINOSTEEL SMC

- Dodonaea amplisemina
- Goodenia berringbinensis
- Grevillea inconspicua
- Hemigenia exilis



Species	Ρ	Preferred Habitat	Likelihood of Occurrence
Acacia burrowsiana	3	Red-brown loams with ironstone rubble on surface, calcrete soils, laterite, quartz. Flats adjacent to watercourses, crests of low rises, breakaways.	Likely. Suitable habitat present in 3a and 3b
Acacia dilloniorum	1	Foot slopes and gullies of dolerite hills and mid-slopes of the Weld Range on red-brown silty clay loam.	Likely. Suitable habitat in the upper 3b areas
Acacia speckii	4	Rocky soils over granite, basalt or dolerite. Rocky hills or rises. It has been observed to occur across the mid-sloped rocky hills and near drainage lines of Weld Range.	Present. Suitable habitat in the upper 3b areas
Beyeria lapidicola	1	Callitris-Acacia woodlands or mulga woodland in sandy loams or on banded ironstone hills.	Likely. Suitable habitat in 2a and 3b.
Calytrix verruculosa	3	Sandy clay. Plains.	Possible. Suitable habitat in 3b.
Dodonaea amplisemina	4	Open shrublands with Acacia, Eremophila and other low shrubs on red-brown sandy clay soils over basalt or banded ironstone.	Present. Suitable habitat in 3b.
Drosera eremaea	3	Heavy red loam. Seepage areas amongst granite outcrops.	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.
<i>Eremophila arachnoides</i> subsp. <i>Arachnoides</i>	3	Open shrublands or mulga woodland in shallow loams over limestone, but locally on gently undulating terrain, low in the landscape, on red-brown loamy soil with some calcrete pebbles or on calcrete outcrops.	Possible. Some small calcrete patches in the easternmost extent of 3b.
Eremophila fasciata	3	Hillside, gullies. Brown / red ironstone gravel.	Possible. Suitable habitat 3b
Eremophila rhegos	1	Skeletal stony loam over granite.	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.
Eremophila shonae subsp. Diffusa	3	Stony yellow or red sandy soils.	Possible. Suitable habitat in 3b.
<i>Eremophila simulans</i> subsp. <i>Megacalyx</i>	3	Rangeland plain. Road verge with red, sandy gravel laterite.	Possible. Suitable habitat in 3a.
Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	1	Sandstone ridges, quartzite hills, and banded ironstone with red brown shallow sandy loam soils. However, at Weld range it has been observed on flat plains.	Likely. Suitable habitat in 2a, 3a and 3b.
Goodenia berringbinensis	4	Red sandy loam along watercourses, lakes, drainage lines, dams and claypans.	Unlikely. Drainage limited to rocky gullies.
Goodenia lyrata	3	Mulga woodlands on red sandy loam often in or near claypans	Unlikely. No claypans present.
Grevillea inconspicua	4	Drainage lines and on rocky outcrops tending to favour loamy soils. It is also found to occur on moderately inclined midslopes with fragments of banded ironstone and chert.	Likely. Suitable habitat in 2a and 3b.
Hemigenia exilis	4	Laterite. Breakaways, slopes.	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.
- Hemigenia tysonii	3	Red sand, sandy clay and lateritic sand on flats, as well as on sand dunes and hills. It is also found on ridgelines with laterite, dolerite, conglomerate and chert.	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.
Hemigenia virescens	3	Hillsides, in rangelands, in low and high shrublands and on sandy banks. Soil types are commonly yellow-red sandy clay, brown ironstone gravel and brown rocky sand.	Likely. Suitable habitat in 3b.

# Table 4-1. Threatened and Priority Flora Likelihood of Occurrence

Homalocalyx echinulatus	3	Gently inclined slopes with fragments of banded ironstone. It has also been recorded to occur on stony plateaus, breakaways and rangelands.	Likely. Suitable habitat in 3b.
<i>Indigofera gilesii</i> subsp. <i>Gilesi</i>	3	Pebbly loams and hill slopes amongst boulders and outcrops, banded iron hills, granite and sandstone, creeklines and sand plains. The substrate is often ironstone gravel amongst brown/red loam.	Possible. Suitable habitat in 2a, 3a and 3b.
Lysiandra baeckeoides	3	Ironstone ridges/ breakaways with dry, orange sandy clay soils. At Weld Range it has been recorded on gently inclined lower hillslopes to flats of banded ironstone with red brown soils.	Possible. Suitable habitat in 2a and upper 3b.
Micromyrtus placoides	3	Red-orange or orange-yellow sandy clay, coarse gravel, banded ironstone, laterite, quartz and basalt. Landforms can be gently undulating plains, dry creek beds, hillcrests or ridges of brown loam, dolerite, ironstone or granite.	Likely. Broad habitat suitability. All habitats suitable.
Mirbelia stipitata	3	Plains on red sandy loam.	Possible. Plains suitable.
Petrophile pauciflora	3	Decaying and dissected granite breakaways.	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.
Prostanthera ferricola	3	Sparse <i>Acacia aneura</i> shrublands on gently inclined upper slopes and crests of banded ironstone formations. It is occasionally found in gullies or on quartz.	Possible. Suitable habitat in 2a
Prostanthera petrophila	3	Lateritic soils, ironstone slopes and foothills on red-orange sandy clay with ferrous stones and boulders.	Present. Suitable habitat in 2a and upper 3a and 3b
Ptilotus beardii	3	Red/orange/brown sandy-clayey soils, saline flats, flood plains and low breakaways.	Possible. Suitable habitat in 3a and 3b.
Ptilotus luteolus	3	Rocky hill slopes and crests, often in red sandy soils. It has also been found on low sandstone (sandy siltstone) and rises in red powdery loam.	Possible. Suitable habitat in 2a.
<i>Sauropus</i> sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94)	3	Red sand plains in open Acacia – Eremophila woodlands but has been found on moderately rocky hill crests and slopes on the Weld Range.	Likely. Suitable habitat in 2a.
Stenanthemum mediale	1	Red clayey sand.	Likely. Suitable habitat in 3 and 3b.
Stenanthemum patens	1	Rocky basalt and banded ironstone hillsides as well as on sandy loam and clay slopes	Possible. Suitable habitat in 3a and 3b.
Tecticornia cymbiformis	3	Saline areas along floodplains, creeklines, lakes or sloping areas leading to saline habitats. It can be found on red-brown sandy clays	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.
Varticardia iamiacanii	2	Quartzite or laterite breakaways, hill slopes, ridgelines, or on weathered granite within pockets of	Likely. Suitable habitat in 2a and
	3	small sandy clay in depressions	3b.

#### 4.1.2 Significant Vegetation

There are no TECs listed under the BC Act or EPBC Act known to occur within the Survey Area. The Survey Area is partially within the Weld Range P1 Ecological Community (Figure 4-2).

The Weld Range and other Banded Iron Formation Ranges are important landforms in the Murchison region. Although representing a very small proportion of the total area of the Murchison Bioregion, their unique geology, soils and relative isolation have produced distinctive vegetation communities, many of which have restricted distributions in the region. Many of the BIF ranges support threatened, and in some instances locally endemic, species. Consequently, they are considered to have very significant biodiversity values.

Vegetation types of the Weld Range have been described by Dillon and Markey (2006) and Ecologia (2009a). Community characteristics are listed in Table 4-2.





Landscape position	Code	Description	Species richness
Dillon and Markey (2006)			
Hillslopes with moderately inclined gradients, very rocky terrain and outcropping of BIF. This vegetation type occurred across the topographical profile of the range, from the lower slopes to hill tops, but was located mostly on the mid – upper slopes.	1a	Open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura, A. ramulosa</i> var <i>linophylla</i> , and / or <i>Acacia</i> sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) over a sparse shrub cover of <i>Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila</i> <i>latrobei</i> subsp. <i>Latrobei</i> and <i>Santalum spicatum</i>	All taxa 32.7±1.0 Annuals 19.3±2.7
This community occurs mostly on rocky, gentle – moderate inclines, on higher slopes than type 1a.	1b	Open shrublands and sparse shrublands of <i>Acacia aneura, Acacia</i> sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), and <i>Grevillea berryana</i> over <i>Eremophila georgei, E. latrobei</i> subsp. <i>Latrobei, E. glutinosa</i> and, <i>Thryptomene decussata. Ptilotus schwartzii, Ptilotus obovatus, Grevillea berryana, Eremophila georgei and Thysanotus manglesianus, Prostanthera petrophila</i> and <i>Cheilanthes sieberi</i> subsp. <i>Sieberi</i>	All taxa 39.2±5.9 Annuals 23.6±5.0
Outcrops and rocklands of BIF on moderate – steep hillslopes. Crevices and fissures formed in exposed outcrops of bedrock	2	Sparse to open shrublands of <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>A. incurvaneura</i> over <i>Thryptomene decussata, Philotheca brucei</i> subsp. <i>Brucei, Eremophila</i> spp. <i>Micromyrtus</i> <i>sulphurea,</i> and <i>Dodonaea pachyneura</i> over <i>Cheilanthes adiantoides, Stylidium</i> <i>longibracteatum, Ptilotus obovatus</i> subsp. <i>Obovatus</i> and <i>Harnieria kempeana</i> subsp. <i>Muelleri</i>	All taxa 43.9±6.4 Annuals 25.4±7.2
Lower hillslopes	3	Open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura</i> over isolated shrub species such as <i>Solanum ashbyae</i> and <i>Tribulus suberosus</i> and <i>Cheilanthes sieberi</i> subsp. <i>Pseudovellea</i>	All taxa 20.5±3.5 Annuals 15.0±2.8
Upper slope on steep, rocky hillslopes with relatively high levels of exposed bedrock with fractured rocky substrates	4	Scattered Acacia pruinocarpa over open shrublands of Acacia aneura with Philotheca brucei subsp. Brucei and Eremophila spp, and Abutilon oxycarpum, Dodonaea pachyneura and Enneapogon caerulescens	All taxa 32.7±7.2 Annuals 22.0±6.9

# Table 4-2. Characteristics of vegetation described for the Weld Range

Landscape position	Code	Description	Species richness	
Mostly on lower slopes and outwashes of ironstone colluvium	5a	Open tall shrublands of <i>Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia aptaneura</i> and <i>Acacia ramulosa</i> var. <i>linophylla</i> with <i>Acacia ceasaneura</i> .	All taxa 27.9±5.2 Annuals 17.2±4.5	
Moderately inclined lower hillslopes and outwash plains.	5b	Sparse open shrubland of <i>Acacia aneura, Acacia aptaneura, A. effusifolia</i> over sparse shrubs of <i>Senna glaucifolia</i> and <i>Tribulus suberosus</i> . With <i>Hibiscus sturtii, Enneapogon caerulescens</i> and <i>Sida</i> sp. Dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260).	All taxa 36.2±3.4 Annuals 21.8±5.1	
Dolerite substrates including a hillcrest of exposed volcanic rocks, mid –lower slopes, footslopes and a colluvial fan	6	Sparse to open shrubland of <i>Acacia</i> sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), <i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>Acacia speckii</i> over sparse mid-stratum of <i>Eremophila macmillaniana, Eremophila mackinlayi</i> subsp. <i>Spathulata</i> and <i>Senna glaucifolia</i> with <i>Sida</i> sp. Dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260), <i>Maireana georgei</i> and <i>Euploca ovalifolium</i>	All taxa 49.8±3.7 Annuals 30.3±4.2	
Ecologia (2009a)				
BIF mid to upper slopes and outcropping		Acacia aneura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), A. ramulosa var. linophylla and Thryptomene decussata open mid shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. Low shrubland.		
BIF upper slopes and outcropping	1b	<i>Acacia aneura</i> low open woodland over <i>Acacia cockertoniana</i> open mid shrubland over mixed mid shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> low shrubland.	14±2.89	
Ridge tops of BIF ranges	2a	Scattered <i>Acacia pruinocarpa</i> trees over <i>A. aneura</i> mid sparse shrubland / scattered shrubs over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> low shrubland with <i>Cymbopogon ambiguus</i> tussock grasses.	11±3.30	
d to upper slopes and broad ridge tops of BIF ranges and 2b ge tops of breakaways		Acacia aneura sparse shrubland over mixed sparse mid shrubland over Micromyrtus sulphurea and Ptilotus obovatus low open shrubland		

Landscape position	Code	Description	Species richness
Sandy outwash and gravelly plains and footslopes of BIF ranges	За	+/- Corymbia lenziana scattered medium trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura sparse tall shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. Open mid shrubland over scattered low shrubs of Ptilotus obovatus over mixed open tussock grassland.	16±3.42
Drainage lines and low-lying areas on sandy outwash plains	3b	+/- Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over A. aneura woodland over A. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. Closed shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus open low shrubland.	17±5.26
Sandy plains	3c	Scattered <i>Eucalyptus</i> mallees / trees over <i>Acacia ramulosa</i> var. <i>linophylla</i> open shrubland over <i>Rhagodia eremaea, Eremophila forrestii</i> subsp. <i>Forrestii</i> shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> open low shrubland.	19±1.26
Gravelly plains and low hills	3d	<i>Acacia aneura</i> and <i>A. cockertoniana</i> open moderate shrubland over <i>Eremophila simulans</i> subsp. <i>Simulans</i> and <i>Aluta aspera</i> subsp. <i>Hesperia</i> low open shrubland.	9±2.65
Undulating scree plains and mid to low slopes of granite and dolerite	4a	<i>Acacia</i> sp. Weld Range and <i>A. incurvaneura</i> open tall shrubland over <i>Eremophila macmillaniana</i> and mixed <i>Senna</i> spp. Open mid shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> open low shrubland.	15±3.75
Minor drainage areas, creek lines and midslope of low dolerite and granite hills	4b	<i>Acacia</i> sp. Weld Range and <i>Acacia speckii</i> (P4) shrubland over mixed <i>Senna</i> spp sparse shrubland over <i>Grevillea inconspicua</i> (P4) and <i>Dodonaea amplisemina</i> . (P4) open shrubland over <i>Cymbopogon ambiguus</i> sparse tussock grassland	17±5.77
Ridge tops and upper slopes of BIF ridges, low lying semi- saline flats, riparian areas and ironstone scree flat plains.	5a	<i>Acacia craspedocarpa</i> open tall shrubland over <i>Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum</i> and <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> low shrubland over mixed low tussock grassland.	16±5.56
Flat plain adjoining seasonally inundated wetland	5b	+/- Grevillea striata low isolated trees over Acacia craspedocarpa and A. aneura tall open shrubland over Scaevola spinescens sparse mid shrubland over Austrostipa elegantissima and Eriachne flaccida low open tussock grassland.	16±3.61
Mainly occurring in and around seasonally inundated areas and salt affected drainage lines	6a	Scattered <i>Acacia</i> spp. Shrubs over mixed <i>Senna</i> spp. Open mid shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> sparse shrubland over mixed <i>Maireana</i> spp. Chenopod shrubland	20±4.43

Landscape position	Code	Description	Species richness
Undulating plains with a surface layer of gypsum and calcrete	6b	Scattered mixed <i>Acacia</i> spp. Over <i>Rhagodia eremaea</i> and <i>Scaevola spinescens</i> sparse mid to low shrubland over <i>Ptilotus obovatus</i> , <i>Maireana georgei</i> and <i>Sclerolaena diacantha</i> low chenopod shrubland.	13±3.12
Seasonally inundated salt pan	6с	<i>Eremophila maculata</i> subsp. <i>Brevifolia</i> low open shrubland over <i>Sclerolaena diacantha</i> low chenopod shrubland over <i>Enneapogon cylindricus</i> low tussock grassland.	6.0±1.0
Seasonally inundated claypan	7a	<i>Melaleuca stereophloia</i> and <i>Cratystylis subspinescens</i> low shrubland over <i>Tecticornia</i> spp. low samphire shrubland over <i>Frankenia laxiflora</i> low shrubland.	18±2.08
Fringe of seasonally inundated wetland	7b	<i>Eucalyptus carnei</i> and <i>Eucalyptus trivalva</i> woodland over <i>Cratystylis subspinescens</i> and <i>Duma florulenta</i> low sparse shrubland over mixed low tussock grasses.	19±2.89

Other significant vegetation that has the potential to occur in the Survey Area is GDE.

The Bureau of Meteorology (**BoM**) GDE Atlas provides information to support the recognition and identification of GDEs in natural resource management, including water planning and environmental impact assessment. It indicates where ecosystems potentially interact with groundwater, and some of the characteristics of those ecosystems that may be useful in determining water requirements.

The GDE Atlas shows general areas where groundwater interaction may occur. It does not imply that an entire mapped ecosystem is using groundwater, but rather groundwater interaction may be occurring somewhere within the mapped ecosystem.

For WA, the Atlas contains information about two types of ecosystems:

- Aquatic ecosystems that rely on the surface expression of groundwater-this includes surface water ecosystems which may have a groundwater component, such as rivers, wetlands and springs; and
- The terrestrial GDE layer expresses the potential for groundwater and mapped vegetation communities across Australia to interact. It shows the vegetation communities that interact with groundwater from the water table or in the capillary zone.

The closest aquatic system is Lake Annean, 35 km east of the Survey Area. The Atlas identifies moderate potential terrestrial GDE intersecting the Survey Area. The feature is described as 'Gently undulating gravelly plains on greenstone, laterite and hardpan, with low stony rises and minor saline plains, supporting groved mulga and bowgada; within Sandplains and hardpan wash plains with outgoing drainage and salt lakes, broken by ridges of metamorphic rocks and granite'.

Ecologia (2009a) assessed the likelihood of GDE at Weld Range and identified vegetation types 7a and 7b as potentially groundwater dependent. Communities 7a and 7b do not occur within the Beebyn deposit area and reported that no species known to be phreatophytic have been recorded in the communities present within the Beebyn deposit area.

#### 4.1.3 Introduced Flora Species

Dandjoo returned nine introduced flora species. Six introduced flora species have been recorded locally by previous surveys. Table 4-3 lists these introduced flora species.

Species	Common Name
Cenchrus ciliaris	Buffel grass
<i>Cleretum papulosum</i> subsp. <i>papulosum</i>	-
Cucumis myriocarpus	Prickly paddy-melon
Cuscuta epithymum	Lesser dodder
Hypochaeris glabra	Smooth Cats-ear
Lysimachia arvensis	Pimpernel
<i>Pentameris airoides</i> subsp. <i>airoides</i>	False hairgrass
Rostraria pumila	Tiny bristle-grass
Sisymbrium erysimoides	Smooth mustard
Solanum nigrum	Black berry nightshade
Sonchus oleraceus	Common sowthistle

Table 4-3. Introduced Flora Records within 30 km of the Survey Area

No Declared pests under the BAM Act or WONS have been recorded within 30 km of the Survey Area.

# 4.2 FIELD SURVEY

#### 4.2.1 Flora

A total of 77 species of flora were recorded within the Survey Area, comprising all native species. Nine specimens were unable to be identified to species level due to a lack of diagnostic material.

The *Fabaceae* (pea family, 15 species), *Poaceae* (grass family, 10 species) and *Scrophulariaceae* (figwort family, 10 species) were the most species-rich families recorded. Twenty-one families represented by 40 genera were recorded across the Survey Area.

The complete list of plant species recorded within the Survey Area is presented in Appendix D. The mean species richness was 14.75 species per quadrat. The average species diversity recorded per quadrat is lower than other surveys conducted in the nearby area. Dillon and Markey (2008) recorded a floristic richness of between 20.5 and 49.8, with the proportion of annual flora ranging from 58-73% of total species richness (Section 4.1.2). Ecologia (2009a) reported 19.7% annuals and 80.4% perennials.

The number of annuals present at the time of survey was 22 or 29%, which is higher than recorded by Ecologia (2009a) but lower than recorded by Markey and Dillon (2008).

A species accumulation curve (Appendix D) was performed, returning a modelled Michaelis-Menton species richness of 100, indicating that the floristic survey was approximately 77% complete.

Floristic groups identified in the cluster analysis (Appendix D) were organised into vegetation types and are discussed in the following section.

# 4.2.2 Vegetation Types

Three vegetation types are described for the Survey Area, as summarised in Table 4-4 and detailed below.

Code	Landform	Vegetation Description	ha	%
2a	BIF outcrops	Scattered low Acacia aneura, Psydrax latifolia and Acacia pruinocarpa over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Thryptomene decussata and Philotheca brucei mid sparse shrubland with Ptilotus obovatus Dodonaea pachyneura and Dysphania rhadinostachya low sparse shrubland.	14.6	1.4
За	Gravelly plains	Acacia aneura, A. ramulosa subsp. linophylla and Acacia mulganeura tall sparse shrubland over Eremophila punicea, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii and Eremophila margarethae mid sparse shrubland with Ptilotus obovatus, Eragrostis eriopoda and ?Swainsona purpurea scattered low groundcover.		44.4
3b	Sandy outwash plains	Acacia aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia ramulosa var linophylla low open woodland over Eremophila forrestii ssp forrestii, Eremophila latrobei and Grevillea obliquistigma mid open shrubland and Ptilotus obovatus, Sida calyxhymenia and Abutilon cryptopetalum sparse low shrubs.	541.8	51.2
D	-	Disturbed – clear of vegetation	30.4	3.0

#### Table 4-4. Vegetation Types

Vegetation types are described below and are compared to those previously recorded for the Weld Range using structural comparison and common species assemblages. Where communities share a high level of similarity, the vegetation code previously applied has been used here and a discussion of similarity presented.

Disturbed areas constitute 3% of the Survey Area. These areas are composed of two types of areas, those maintained in a state that is clear of vegetation for exploration and station tracks; and drill pads for exploration activities, some of which have been rehabilitated but for which regeneration has not yet successfully established.

Distribution of vegetation types at a scale of 1:30,000 (inset 1), 1:40,000 (inset 2) and 1:60,000 (inset 3) is shown in Figure 4-3. The dendrogram resulting from the cluster analysis is shown in Appendix C, followed by the site data sheets and photos.



# Legend

Vegetation Types

- 2a
- 3a
- 3b
- Disturbed

Scale: @ A3 1: 120,000 Inset 1 scale 1:25,000 Inset 2 scale 1:40,000 Inset 3 scale 1: 60,000





5 km

2.5

Coordinate System: GDA 2020 MGA Zone 50 Projection: Transverse Mercator

Author: VM

Approved: EH



Date: 26/03/2024

# Vegetation Types







## Landform: BIF Outcrops Vegetation Type: 2a

Scattered low Acacia aneura, Psydrax latifolia and Acacia pruinocarpa over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Thryptomene decussata and Philotheca brucei mid sparse shrubland with Ptilotus obovatus Dodonaea pachyneura and Dysphania rhadinostachya low sparse shrubland.

This vegetation type occurs on outcrops and rocklands of BIF on moderate to steep hillslopes. Crevices and fissures formed in exposed outcrops of bedrock are present. Soil is a light red sandy clay loam occurring in crevices and cracks.

This vegetation type has been allocated the numeral 2 to reflect the synonymy with vegetation types described by Markey and Dillon (2008), who identified the presence of *Dodonaea pachyneura* and *Philotheca brucei* to be important indicators in determining this vegetation type and *Ptilotus obovatus* as also being common. It is also the same as Ecologia (2009a) vegetation type 2a that has *Acacia pruinocarpa* in the upper strata.

This vegetation type was not differentiated in the cluster analysis (Appendix C) but has been distinguished here in line with the previous vegetation surveys and the suitability of habitat features for specific conservation significant flora.



Plate 4-1. 2a BIF Outcrops

Detailed sites: E2 Total richness: 16 species. Introduced/exotic flora: None recorded

Condition: Good. Species richness is roughly one third of that recorded by Markey and Dillon (2008) who recorded  $43.9\pm6.4$  species per quadrat, of which  $25.4\pm7.2$  were annuals. Ecologia (2009a) recorded  $11\pm3.3$  species in this vegetation type. Evidence of moderate grazing is present (predominantly goats and euro) and frequent clearing for mining exploration activities is present. The low species count is in some part due to seasonal timing however 18% of recorded species were annuals and therefore season

is unlikely to be the sole explanation. This part of the range is low and, on the periphery of the BIF outcropping and of very narrow and limited extent.

Conservation significant flora: none recorded in current survey. *Verticordia jamiesonii* (P3) recorded within this vegetation in DBCA database, in a location that is currently disturbed.

#### Landform: Gravelly plains

#### Vegetation Type: 3a

Acacia aneura, A. ramulosa subsp. linophylla and Acacia mulganeura tall sparse shrubland over *Eremophila punicea, Eremophila forrestii* subsp. *forrestii* and *Eremophila margarethae* mid sparse shrubland with *Ptilotus obovatus, Eragrostis eriopoda* and *?Swainsona purpurea* scattered low groundcover.

Occurs on sandy outwash and gravelly plains and footslopes of BIF ranges, on gentle mid and lower slopes on soils of red to red-brown clay loam to sandy clay loam with ironstone gravel to small stones at the surface. This vegetation type is labelled 3a by Ecologia (2009a). Vegetation types 3a and 3b have similar floristic assemblages, but the density of vegetation in 3b is higher. This is a component of the vegetation type 5a described by Markey and Dillon (2008).



Plate 4-3. 3a Gravelly plains

Detailed sites: E5, E6, E7, E9, E11 and E16.

Total species richness: 34 Average species richness: 11.8

Introduced/exotic flora: None recorded

Conservation significant flora: None recorded in current survey, or in previous surveys.

Condition: Good. Species richness in community 5a described by Markey and Dillon (2008) was 27.9±5.2

for all species, of which annuals were 17.2±4.5. Ecologia (2009a) recorded an average species richness of 16±3.42 in community 3a. During the current survey species richness was lower than expected, in part due to seasonal conditions. However, there is also evidence of grazing and of historic overgrazing leading to soil compaction and sheetwash erosion and a vegetation cover lower than expected in many areas of this vegetation type.

#### Landform: Sandy outwash plains

## **Vegetation Type: 3b**

Acacia aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia ramulosa var linophylla tall sparse shrubs over Eremophila forrestii ssp forrestii, Eremophila latrobei and Grevillea obliquistigma mid open shrubland and Ptilotus obovatus, Sida calyxhymenia and Abutilon cryptopetalum sparse low shrubs.

This vegetation type occurs on the lower slopes and outwashes of ironstone colluvium. Drainage lines and low-lying areas on sandy outwash plains.

This vegetation type is the same as Ecologia (2009a) vegetation type 3b that has *Acacia pruinocarpa* in the upper strata. This is a component of the vegetation type 5a described by Markey and Dillon (2008). The species composition is similar to 3a but with a denser upper and mid shrub layer.

Quadrats E04 and E08 were separated on the cluster analysis. This is due to the similarity with 3a and the density of vegetation in these sites being somewhere midway between the 3a and 3b types. They have been included here as aerial imagery identifies them to have greater similarity to 3b. E03 was also separated however the difference is as a result of poor condition in this location.



Plate 4-2. 3b Sandy outwash plains

Detailed sites: E01, E03, E04, E08, E10, E12, E13, E14, E15.

Total richness: 58 species. Average richness: 16.5 species

Introduced/exotic taxa: none recorded

Condition: Good. Species richness is 84% of that recorded by Markey and Dillon (2008) who recorded 20.5±3.5 species per quadrat, of which 15.0±2.8 were annuals. Species richness is within the range reported by Ecologia (2009a), who reported a species richness of 17±5.26. Evidence of heavy grazing is
present (predominantly goats and euro) and frequent clearing for pastoral station and mining exploration activities is present. Evidence of soil compaction and sheet erosion is present.

Conservation significant species: A single individual was recorded that has the potential to be *Hibiscus krichauffianus* (P1), however definitive determination was not possible from the material available. *Prostanthera petrophila* (P3) and *Acacia speckii* (P3) were recorded in this vegetation type by Ecologia (2009a). *Beyeria lapidicola* (P1) was recorded in this vegetation type on the DBCA database in a location that is currently cleared.

## 4.2.3 Vegetation Condition

Vegetation condition across the Survey Area was within the categories Good and Completely Degraded, with most of the Survey Area in Good condition (Table 4-5; Figure 4-4).

·····		···· <b>·</b>
Vegetation Condition	Area (ha)	Area (%)
Good	1024.6	97.0
Completely Degraded	31.2	3.0

Table 4-5. Vegetation condition within the Survey Area

The primary sources of disturbance on-site are moderate to heavy grazing impact from goats and euro but historically heavy grazing by sheep that has degraded the land and made it compacted and susceptible to sheet erosion. A lower vegetation cover than expected is present, particularly in the groundcover. Whilst seasonal conditions were not optimal for annual and ephemeral species, the large rainfall in March should have promoted high growth and the senesced plants would still be visible. No sheep were seen to be currently stocked on Beebyn Station, however they may have been present earlier in the year, or the poor condition may be a consequence of historic grazing that has not yet recovered due to the degradation of the soil profile.

The other major disturbance is the clearing of vegetation for station tracks, exploration tracks and drill pads. Some of these areas have been rehabilitated or regrowth has occurred due to long periods without use. Regeneration is limited to a few shrubs of a few species and therefore remains in a degraded condition.



## Legend

Vegetation Condition

Good

Completely Degraded



# Vegetation Condition





## 4.2.4 Significant Flora

No species listed as T under the EPBC Act or BC Act were recorded during the survey.

One specimen that has the potential to be the P3 *Hibiscus krichauffianus* was recorded during the survey. Insufficient material was available to definitively determine the species, due to seasonal conditions.

*Hibiscus krichauffianus* is a low or ascending shrub, 0.2-0.7 m high. Flowers are purple-pink and occur in March or October. Preferred habitat is red sandy soils.

The species is common in the central parts of Australia and the Queensland mid coast. Distribution within WA is sparse (ALA 2024), with the closest record in the Tallering Subregion, and most records are from the Pilbara. The species has not previously been recorded in the Murchison Region.

Four P flora have previously been recorded in the Survey Area, and another ten are considered Likely to occur based on the location of known populations and the availability of suitable habitat. Targeted search to confirm the presence and abundance of these species was not conducted throughout the Survey Area due to the seasonal conditions. Table 4-6 lists the species known or likely to occur and the known periods of fertility.

Species	Ρ	Likelihood of Occurrence	Period of fertility
Acacia burrowsiana	3	Likely. Suitable habitat present in 3a and 3b	Flowering Oct - Nov
Acacia dilloniorum	1	Likely. Suitable habitat in the upper 3b areas	Flowers Aug.; mature pods late Oct.
Acacia speckii	4	Present. Suitable habitat in the upper 3b areas	Mature pods present on a specimen collected in September
Beyeria lapidicola	1	Likely. Suitable habitat in 2a and 3b.	Fruits present on holotype collected in August
Dodonaea amplisemina	4	Present. Suitable habitat in 3b.	Flowers recorded in August. Fruits begin to mature from late August to October.
Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	1	Likely. Suitable habitat in 2a, 3a and 3b.	Not available for WA. Fruits present on holotype collected in August in Northern Territory.
Grevillea inconspicua	4	Likely. Suitable habitat in 2a and 3b.	Flowers June to August
Hemigenia virescens	3	Likely. Suitable habitat in 3b.	Flowers recorded July and August
Hibiscus krichauffianus	3	Possible. Suitable habitat in 3b.	Flowers in March or October
Homalocalyx echinulatus	3	Likely. Suitable habitat in 3b.	Flowers June to September
Micromyrtus placoides	3	Likely. Broad habitat suitability. All habitats suitable.	Flowers recorded in August and September
Prostanthera petrophila	3	Present. Suitable habitat in 2a and upper 3a and 3b	Flowers in August

## Table 4-6. Known periods of fertility

Species	Ρ	Likelihood of Occurrence	Period of fertility
<i>Sauropus</i> sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94)	3	Likely. Suitable habitat in 2a.	Flowers in June
Stenanthemum mediale	1	Likely. Suitable habitat in 3 and 3b.	Flowers April to August
Verticordia jamiesonii	3	Likely. Suitable habitat in 2a and 3b.	Flowers September to October

## 4.2.5 Significant Vegetation

Approximately half the Survey Area is within the Weld Range PEC. Vegetation types recorded during the survey are consistent with vegetation types described previously for the Weld Range PEC by Markey and Dillon (2008) and Ecologia (2009a). Markey and Dillon (2008) did not map the extent of each vegetation type. Ecologia (2009a) mapped vegetation types across a large area, both within and outside of the PEC, but not containing the entire PEC.

The proportion of these vegetation types within the Survey Area compared to that mapped over the broader Weld Range PEC as surveyed by Ecologia (2009a) is listed in Table 4-7.

Veg Type	Survey Area in PEC (ha)	Total mapped by Ecologia (2009a) in PEC	Proportion (%)
2a	14.6	1360.0	1.1
3a	51.6	462.0	11.2
3b	135.2	666.0	20.3
Total	201.4	2488.0	

## Table 4-7. Proportion of Survey Area in PEC

The Survey Area contains less than 20% of the mapped distribution of these vegetation types within the Weld Range PEC. The Weld Range PEC is 20,073 ha and therefore the undisturbed parts of the Survey Area constitute 1.0% of the Weld Range PEC.

## 4.2.6 Introduced Flora

No introduced flora were recorded in the Survey Area.

## **5 TERRESTRIAL VERTEBRATE FAUNA RESULTS**

## 5.1 DESKTOP STUDY

## 5.1.1 Significant Fauna

The DBCA database returned nine species of significant fauna that have previously been recorded within 30 km of the Survey Area. Of these, one is Conservation Dependent (**CD**), one is listed as Endangered (**EN**), three are listed as Vulnerable (**VU**), three are considered P in WA and one as Other Specifically Protected (**OS**). This includes five species that are known only from fossil records at Wilgie Mia and the locality is no longer within the current known range of the species. Record locations of significant fauna in relation to the Survey Area are shown in Figure 5-1.

Database records for one species of P fauna occurs within the Survey Area. Ten records of *Idiosoma clypeatum* recorded in 2010 are within the pit boundary and haul road. Another 38 records of this species occur within 500 m of the Survey Area, predominantly north of the Haul Road to the Fenix Iron Ridge Project.

The PMST returned 13 additional species, six T, five MI and two that are both T and MI. These are species that do not have DBCA records within 30 km but where modelling has identified that suitable habitat is known to occur or may occur.

The literature review returned one additional conservation significant species recorded during the Ecologia (2009b) survey of the greater Weld Range area *Antechinomys longicaudata* (Long-tailed Dunnart) P4, additional locations of *Lerista eupoda* (West Coast mulga slider) P1, and a nearby long inactive malleefowl mound. These record locations are outside the Survey Area.

Database search results of T, P and MI fauna within 30 km of the Survey Area are listed in Table 5-1, with the outcome of the likelihood of occurrence assessment. The complete assessment including the preferred habitat relative to those available in the Survey Area and a summary of records in the local area is included in Appendix E. Seven T and P species are assessed as present, likely to occur or possibly occurring. These species are discussed in detail in relation to the Survey Area in section 5.2.2.

## 5.1.2 Introduced Fauna

No introduced fauna were returned from the Dandjoo database.

Seven species of introduced mammal were recorded at Weld Range by Ecologia (2009b), being:

- Dog (Canis lupus familiaris);
- European Red Fox (*Vulpes vulpes*);
- Feral Cat (*Felis catus*);
- Rabbit (Oryctolagus cuniculus);
- House Mouse (*Mus musculus*);
- Goat (*Capra hircus*); and
- Cow (*Bos taurus*).

Large numbers of feral goats were observed across the range, with high grazing pressure evident on the native vegetation.



## Legend

- Survey Area
- Threatened
- Aphelocephala leucopsis (VU)
- Leporillus conditor (VU)
- A Macroderma gigas (VU)
- Macrotis lagotis (VU)
- A Malleefowl mound (VU)
- + Petrogale lateralis lateralis (EN)
- A Pseudomys gouldii (VU)

## Priority

- Dasycercus blythi (P4)
- Idiosoma clypeatum (P3)
- Lerista eupoda (P1)
- Sminthopsis longicaudata (P4)

## Migratory and Other

Falco peregrinus (OS)



# Significant Fauna Database Records





	Species	Common Name	Cons. Code			
			BC Act	EPBC Act	Assessment of Occurrence	
-	Aphelocephala leucopsis	Southern whiteface	-	VU	Likely. All habitats are suitable.	
	Apus pacificus	Fork-tailed swift	MI	MI	Likely. All habitats are suitable.	
	Calidris acuminata	Sharp-tailed sandpiper	MI	VU, MI	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.	
	Calidris ferruginea	Curlew sandpiper	CR	CR, MI	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.	
	Calidris melanotos	Pectoral sandpiper	MI	MI	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.	
birds	Falco hypoleucos	Grey falcon	VU	VU	Possible. Suitable foraging habitat. No suitable nesting habitat.	
	Falco peregrinus	Peregrine falcon	OS	-	Possible. Foraging habitat present.	
	Leipoa ocellata	Malleefowl	VU	VU	Possible. Inactive mounds have been recorded.	
	Motacilla cinerea	Grey wagtail	MI	MI	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.	
	Motacilla flava	Yellow wagtail	MI	MI	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.	
	Pezoporus occidentalis	Night parrot	CR	EN	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.	
	Antechinomys longicaudata	Long-tailed dunnart	P4		Likely. Suitable habitat in the Banded Ironstone Formation.	
	Dasycercus blythi	Brush-tailed mulgara	P4	-	Unlikely. The local record is a fossilised specimen.	
mam	Leporillus conditor	Greater stick-nest rat	CD	VU	Unlikely. The local record is a fossilised specimen.	
nmals -	Macroderma gigas	Ghost bat	VU	VU	Unlikely. The local record is a fossilised specimen.	
	Macrotis lagotis	Bilby	VU	VU	Unlikely. The local record has a low level of certainty and was recorded in 1984.	
	Petrogale lateralis lateralis	Black-flanked rock-wallaby	EN	EN	Unlikely. The local record is a fossilised specimen.	

## Table 5-1. Significant fauna database records and likelihood of occurrence

	Species	Common Name	Cons. Code		
			BC Act	EPBC Act	Assessment of Occurrence
	Pseudomys gouldii	Gould's mouse, Shark Bay mouse	VU	VU	Unlikely. The local record is a fossilised specimen.
reptiles	Egernia stokesii badia	Western spiny-tailed skink	VU	EN	Possible. No granite outcrops are present but suitable habitat may be present in the BIF outcrops.
	Lerista eupoda	West Coast mulga slider	P1		Likely. Suitable habitat is present in the Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope habitat.
invertebrates	Idiosoma clypeatum	Northern shield- backed trapdoor spider	P3	-	Present. Suitable habitat in the Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope habitat.
	Idiosoma nigrum	Shield-backed trapdoor spider	EN	VU	Unlikely. All specimens in the Murchison region determined to be <i>I. clypeatum</i>

## 5.2 FIELD SURVEY

## 5.2.1 Fauna Habitats

Four fauna habitats are described for the Survey Area and are summarised in Table 5-2 and described below.

Table 5-2. Fauna Habitats	within the	Survey Area
Name	Area (ha)	Proportion (%)
Acacia Sand Plains	500.5	47.4
Banded Ironstone Ridge	6.1	0.6
Drainage Line	186.1	17.6
Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope	333.0	31.5
Disturbed	30.5	2.9

The distribution of fauna habitats is shown in Figure 5-2.



Banded Ironstone Ridge

SINOSTEEL MIDWEST CORPORATION LIMITED





## Legend

Fauna Habitat

- Acacia Sand Plains
- Banded Ironstone Ridge
- **Disturbed**
- Drainage Line
  - Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope



# Fauna Habitat







## 5.2.2 Conservation Significant Fauna

## 5.2.2.1 Southern whiteface

Southern whiteface occur across most of mainland Australia south of the tropics, from the north- eastern edge of the Western Australian wheatbelt, east to the Great Dividing Range (Schodde and Mason 1999). Two subspecies are recognised under the 2023 EPBC Act listing: *A. l. leucopsis* (South-east southern whiteface), the nominate subspecies found throughout south-eastern and central Australia; and *A. l. castaneiventris* (South-west southern whiteface) found in central and southern WA.

As the species is not listed as T in WA, no location records were included in the DBCA database search. Record locations shown in Figure 5-1 were extracted from the Atlas of Living Australia (**ALA** 2024), originating from the Birds Australia database. Ecologia (2009b) recorded the species at the Weld Range project, however as the species was not listed as conservation significant at the time, the specific location is not reported, and may not have been within the current Survey Area.

Southern whitefaces live in a wide range of open woodlands and shrublands where there is an understorey of grasses or shrubs, or both. These areas are usually in habitats dominated by acacias or eucalypts on ranges, foothills and lowlands, and plains (Higgins and Peter 2002). Southern whitefaces are considered sedentary; however, atlas records indicate that individuals may move into wetter areas outside of their normal range during drought years (Higgins and Peter 2002). Southern whiteface forage almost exclusively on the ground, favouring habitat with low tree densities and an herbaceous understorey litter cover. Birds mainly feed on insects, spiders, and seeds, largely gleaned from the bare ground or leaf litter (Higgins and Peter 2002). Although the species typically forages in small groups of 2–8 individuals, birds may congregate in larger flocks during the non-breeding season, with as many as 70 birds recorded in foraging parties in winter (Higgins and Peter 2002). The species often participates in mixed species feeding flocks, particularly with other whiteface and thornbill species.

Breeding takes place from July to October throughout most of the species' range, however, the timing of breeding can be affected by rainfall in arid regions (Higgins and Peter 2002). Birds may breed outside of their usual season following sufficient rainfall or may not breed at all during drought. Birds build large bulky domed nest of grass, bark and roots, usually in a hollow or crevice, although sometimes in low bushes (Higgins and Peter 2002).

Habitat critical to the survival of the Southern whiteface (DCCEEW 2023) includes areas of:

- relatively undisturbed open woodlands and shrublands with an understorey of grasses or shrubs, or both;
- habitat with low tree densities and an herbaceous understory litter cover which provides essential foraging habitat;
- living and dead trees with hollows and crevices which are essential for roosting and nesting.

The Survey Area contains some large trees that may be suitable for development of hollows, however the area is previously disturbed with grazing impacts from both the Beebyn Station and feral goats and clearing for mining exploration activity. The understory is sparse and the litter layer sparse to absent, but thicker in narrow bands around the Drainage Lines. Due to the poor condition of the understory, the Survey Area is unlikely to host habitat critical to the survival of the Southern whiteface, however, this would need to be confirmed by targeted survey for the presence of birds.

## 5.2.2.2 Grey falcon

The Grey falcon occurs in most of the drier parts of Australia (Schoenjahn 2018). Its distribution is centred on inland drainage systems where there is an average annual rainfall of less than 500 mm. Its main habitat is timbered lowland plains, particularly Acacia shrublands that are crossed by tree-lined watercourses. It generally occurs at low densities across inland Australia (BirdLife International 2019).

The Grey falcon hunts far out into tussock grassland and open woodland. It nests in old nests made by other birds, usually in the tallest trees along watercourses, particularly river red gum (TSSC 2020). Prey species include doves, pigeons, small parrots and cockatoos, and finches, but a variety of other bird prey species have been recorded, as well as mammals and lizards (TSSC 2020).

Local records are more than 50 km away. All habitats in the Survey Area are suitable foraging habitat for this species. No trees suitable for nesting are present in the Survey Area, however there may be occasional tall trees of species other than red gum present in the drainage features within foraging range of the Survey Area.

## 5.2.2.3 Malleefowl

The Survey Area is on the northernmost extent of Malleefowl distribution at this longitude in WA, and the ALA lists the closest records over 50 km to the south. Ecologia (2009b) reported the presence of old, inactive mounds within the Weld Range habitats, but noted that better, unburnt habitat was present in areas outside of their study boundaries, and conclude it was not expected to be resident at Weld Range but may persist in surrounding areas.

Malleefowl are generalist feeders consisting of the seeds, flowers and fruits of shrubs (especially legumes), herbs, invertebrates, tubers and fungi. Malleefowl diet is characteristically variable and different foods are important at different times and locations (Benshemesh 2007). A sandy substrate and abundance of leaf litter are clear requirements for the construction of the birds' incubator-nests (Benshemesh 2007). Soils in the Survey Area have a reasonably high clay content and litter was sparse to absent, except in the narrow Drainage Lines. The quality of the habitat for foraging and nest building are generally low, however there is a possibility of Malleefowl occurring in small patches of higher quality habitat in or near the larger drainage features low in the plains.

## 5.2.2.4 Long-tailed dunnart

Long-tailed dunnart is known from remote and disparate locations throughout the arid zone and in association with rocky habitats. While records of this species are few and far between, it has been found to be reasonably abundant when a known population is sampled. Due to the highly patchy nature of Long-tailed dunnart records and the distance between populations the dispersal ability of this species is potentially very poor.

Its long tail is muscular at the base and is highly mobile, allowing the dunnart to move with agility in rocky habitats utilising the long tail and striated foot-pads to assist with climbing. They feed on a variety of invertebrates.

Breeding occurs in October and November and the female can bear up to six young. Young disperse in March-April in the Murchison area (Western Australian Museum Collections 2023).

At the Weld Range the species has been recorded on exposed rock and stony soils with hummock grasses and shrubs, flat-topped hills, lateritic plateaus, sandstone ranges and breakaways, generally with a vegetation of sparse mulga over spinifex Ecologia (2009b). In the Survey Area, suitable habitat is in the Banded Ironstone Ridge habitats, and rocky Drainage Lines between ridges.

## 5.2.2.5 Western spiny-tailed skink

*Egernia stokesii badia* was widely distributed up until the 1960s through semi-arid areas of southwestern WA from Minnivale (150 km ENE of Perth) north to Mullewa and east to Perenjori and south of Yalgoo but excluding coastal areas. There are two forms of *E. stokesii badia*: a reddish-brown form in the northern and central wheatbelt; and a wholly black form in the Murchison Region (Ecologia 2010). Surveys for the black form between 2006 and 2009 identified 96 locations in the Murchison Region (Ecologia 2010) and the area of occupancy is approximately 4,000 km<sup>2</sup> in extent (Department of Environment and Conservation 2012).

The Survey Areas occur in the Murchison Region where the wholly black form is distributed. Habitat differences are apparent between the forms, where the Wheatbelt reddish-brown form inhabits hollow logs and the Murchison wholly black form inhabits crevices, predominantly in areas of granite outcropping. Whilst there is no granite outcropping in the Survey Area, habitat suitability is poorly known (Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities [**DSEWPAC**] 2011) and may be present in the BIF outcropping.

*E. stokesii badia* is one of the larger subspecies of *Egernia stokesii*, growing to 194 mm (snout to vent length). Its skin is coloured with heavily keeled scales. It has a short, flattish, distinctively spiny tail (Chapple 2003; Wilson and Swan 2023) which it uses as anchorage within crevices when defending itself (Chapple 2003).

*E. stokesii badia* live in spatially and temporally stable groups of up to 17 individuals and has a distinctive behaviour of depositing faecal droppings outside of refuges in a pile or cluster (How *et al.* 2003) referred to as a communal toilet area, scat piling, or latrine.

Whilst granite outcropping with crevices is generally the observed habitat, it is possible the Banded Ironstone Ridge contains suitable crevices.

## 5.2.2.6 West Coast mulga slider

The West Coast mulga slider is restricted to the arid southern interior between Cue and Meekatharra. Suitable habitat has been described as occurring in open mulga on red loams and sandy loams (Smith 1996).

Local records are in lower slopes/upper plain habitats, often near drainage lines.

The *Lerista* genus are burrowing species that thrive in arid conditions. More commonly, and as is the case for *L eupoda*, they are unspecialised inhabitants of leaf litter. In the case of *L eupoda*, the species appears more restricted to the open mulga areas on loamy soils (Wilson and Swan 2023).

They tend to be most easily located in groves of Acacia where they emerge from just under the surface to fossick in the leaf litter for invertebrate prey. In cooler months they are most easily located in the more exposed litter layers close to the surface, retreating deeper under the soil within thicker Acacia groves as temperatures increase and humidity decreases. They are prone to desiccation, hence their fossorial / semi-subterranean habit. In addition to leaf litter habitat, they are often found in the detrital layers of rotting logs, in abandoned termitaria and in abandoned stick-ant nests (Bush *et al.,* 2007).

Suitability of habitat within the Survey Area is limited by the sparse presence of litter. Higher litter loads are present near to and within drainage features but are of limited extent.

## 5.2.2.7 Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider

Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider has a widespread distribution in WA's inland arid zone, principally throughout the Yalgoo and Murchison Bioregions where it is the only known species in the nigrum-group (excluding a population of *I. formosum* from the southern Yalgoo). It extends from near Paynes Find, the Blue Hill Range, Kadji Kadji Nature Reserve, and Karara in the south, north and north-east to at least Coolcalalaya Homestead, Jack Hills, Albion Downs, Yakabindie, and Yeelirrie.

This distribution seems to be strongly correlated with annual rainfall of less than 250 mm (Rix *et al.* 2018).

*Idiosoma clypeatum* was for a long time misidentified as *I. nigrum*, and the 2013 threatened species assessment of *I. nigrum* prepared under the EPBC Act conflated the identification of these two species. Specimens collected at the Weld Range by Ecologia (2009b) were identified as *I. nigrum* at the time but have since been reassigned to *I. clypeatum* (Rix *et al.* 2018). Ellis (2015) summarises aspects of the biology of this species based on observations at the Weld Range where burrows are adorned with a 'moustache-like' arrangement of twig-lines. Males have been collected wandering in search of females in late autumn, winter and spring, with a peak of activity in winter.

Database records indicate the species occurs most frequently in the mid to lower slopes of the Weld Range, including within the Survey Area and immediate surrounds. Targeted searches for shield-backed trapdoor spider were conducted in 2009 and targeted search is appropriate within the Survey Area to determine the current status of species presence.

## 6 CONCLUSIONS

## 6.1 FLORA

The flora and vegetation survey recorded a total of 77 taxa within the Survey Area. The average species diversity recorded per quadrat (14.75) is less than that reported by Markey and Dillon (20.5 - 49.8) but comparable with that of Ecologia (2009a) for the same vegetation types.

Modelled species richness indicated that the floristic survey was approximately 77% complete. Season of survey and seasonal conditions are a minor constraint for the completeness of the survey, and it is expected that a higher species richness in annual/ephemeral taxa would be recorded during the recommended survey period following average or above average rainfall. This is only a minor constraint as the local area is well surveyed (Markey and Dillon 2008, Ecologia 2009a) and conditions were sufficient to describe vegetation types, which are dominated by perennial vegetation in this bioregion. Whilst occurring outside of the recommended survey period, the remotely captured NDVI index indicates that greenness in the Beebyn Station was near to the 90<sup>th</sup> percentile in November 2023, compared to long term datasets (DPIRD 2023a).

The flora and vegetation of the Survey Area is generally typical of the Weld Range, of the Land Systems present in the Survey Area and of the adjacent lands surrounding the Survey Area.

## 6.2 FLORA OF CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE

No T flora was recorded in the Survey Area. One specimen that may be a P3 species was recorded.

*Hibiscus*?*krichauffianus* was recorded at one location, quadrat E14, at 0.01% cover. Insufficient material was available to definitively determine the species, due to seasonal conditions. If confirmed, this would be a significant range extension for the species. Whilst occurring in the broadly distributed vegetation type 3b, the specific location was limited to a narrow drainage gully.

An additional four species were determined as present based upon historic survey records and ten assessed as Likely to occur based upon the proximity of known locations and the availability of suitable habitat. Targeted search for these species would be required to determine the currency and abundance of presence within the Survey Area. Periods of fertility for these species, and therefore suitable timing for targeted search is in winter and early spring.

## 6.3 INTRODUCED FLORA

No weeds Declared under the BAM Act or classed as WoNS were recorded in the Survey Area or are known to occur in the local area.

## 6.4 VEGETATION OF CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE

Approximately half the Survey Area is within the Weld Range PEC. Vegetation types recorded during the survey are consistent with vegetation types described previously for the Weld Range PEC by Markey and Dillon (2008) and Ecologia (2009a).

The amount of each vegetation type within the Survey Area as a proportion of that mapped within the Weld Range PEC by Ecologia (2009a) is 1.1% of 2a, 11.2% of 3a, and 20.3% of 3b.

Regional Vegetation Associations within the Survey Area as described by Beard (1975) have over 99% pre-European Vegetation extent remaining.

## 6.5 FAUNA OF CONSERVATION SIGNIFICANCE

The Southern whiteface has recently been determined as a T species under the EPBC Act. The species was previously widespread across temperate mainland Australia, but has suffered sharp declines in population numbers, chiefly due to habitat loss and degradation. The species is not currently listed as Threatened under the BC Act. Southern whiteface has been recorded in the Weld Range and in the surrounding landscapes. The habitats available in the Survey Area are highly likely to be part of the species historic range. The current quality of available habitat is low due to a loss of undergrowth due to heavy grazing pressure from native animals, station stocking and feral goats. Land clearing for station tracks and mining exploration has also impacted the quality of the habitat (DCCEEW 2023), however determination of current use by the species is required to unequivocally verify this. Optimal survey period is July to October during the breeding season; however, the species is sedentary (outside of drought periods) and therefore can be surveyed in any season.

Suitable foraging habitat for the Grey falcon is present within the Survey Area, however no suitable nesting habitat is present and preferred nesting habitat is not available in the surrounding local area. Occurrence records are more than 50 km away and whilst Grey falcon may occasionally visit the locality, it is unlikely to provide an important habitat for this species.

The Survey Area is likely part of the historic range of the malleefowl, as evidenced by the presence of long inactive mounds recorded during baseline surveys. Mounds may last decades after abandonment, and the presence of inactive mounds is not a reliable indication of current presence. Malleefowl males begin nest construction in autumn and breeding between September and January. Survey for active mounds, is therefore possible from late autumn through to mid-summer.

Presence of the Long-tailed dunnart was confirmed in the Weld Range by the Ecologia (2009b) baseline surveys, including within the Survey Area. Suitable habitat occurs in the Banded Ironstone Ridges and the small gullies that occur between the ridges. There are no seasonal restrictions on the survey of mammals in the Eremean climatic district (EPA 2020).

The Western spiny-tailed skink has not previously been recorded in BIF; however, the species is poorly known (DSEWPAC 2011), and crevices are present in the Banded Ironstone Ridge habitat. The species is sedentary and searching crevice habitats for skinks and their distinctive latrine piles can be conducted in any season however, animals are likely to be least active in winter and most active in spring (DSEWPA 2011).

The West Coast mulga slider has been recorded in Weld Range including locations close to the Survey Area. Whilst the Survey Area is likely to be within the species broader area of occupation, the habitats within the Survey Area are generally of poor quality. Leaf litter is scarce within the Survey Area, and soils are degraded and likely poor for burrowing. Higher quality microhabitats occur in the Drainage Line habitat however, soils may be too stony to be suitable. Survey period for reptiles in the Eremean climatic district is September to April.

The Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider is known to occur in the Weld Range including within the Survey Area. The species present in the Weld Range was previously determined to be the T species *I. nigrum*, however taxonomic revision of the group led to a reassignment to *I. clypeatum* and a reduction in conservation ranking to P. Targeted survey can occur in any season as the spiders are sedentary and the burrow entrances are detectable. Suitable habitat occurs in the Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope habitat. Geographic isolation of the Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider in the region means spiders can be assigned to a species through burrow detection and without harvesting individuals.

## 7 **REFERENCES**

ALA (2024) Atlas of Living Australia. Online database. Accessed February 2024.

Bastin G and the ACRIS Management Committee, Rangelands (2008) Taking the Pulse, published on behalf of the ACRIS Management Committee by the National Land & Water Resources Audit, Canberra.

Baynes A (1984) Native Mammal Remains from Wilgie Mia Aboriginal Ochre Mine: Evidence on the Pre-European Fauna of the Western Arid Zone. Records of the Western Australian Museum 11 (3): 297-310

Beard J (1976) *Vegetation Survey of WA, 1:1,000,000 series, Murchison Sheet and Explanatory Notes.* University of Western Australia Press.

Benshemesh J (2007) National Recovery Plan for Malleefowl. Department for Environment and Heritage, South Australia.

BirdLife International (2019) Species factsheet: *Falco hypoleucos*. Accessed July 2022 http://www.birdlife.org

Bush B, Maryan B, Browne-Cooper R and Robinson D (2007) *Reptiles and Frogs in the Bush: Southwestern Australia*. University of Western Australia Press.

BOM (2023) Climate Data Online. Available online: http://www.bom.gov.au/climate/data/

Chapple DG (2003) Ecology, Life-History, and Behaviour in the Australian Scincid Genus *Egernia*, with Comments on the Evolution of Complex Sociality in Lizards. *Herptological Monographs*. 17:145-180.

Clarke K and Gorley R (2015) PRIMER v7: User Manual/Tutorial. PRIMER-EPlymouth.

Curry PJ, Payne AL, Leighton KA, Henning P, and Blood DA (1994) An inventory and condition survey of the Murchison River catchment, Western Australia, Technical Bulletin No.84. Department of Agriculture Western Australia.

DAWE (2020) National Established Weed Priorities – Towards A National Framework – Final Draft. Prepared by Wild Matters Pty. Ltd. for the Department of Agriculture, Water and the Environment July 2020.

DBCA (2023a) Dandjoo search accessed on the 14/03/2023. Available at https://dandjoo.bio.wa.gov.au/

DBCA (2023c) List of threatened and priority flora. <u>https://www.dbca.wa.gov.au/wildlife-and-ecosystems/plants/list-threatened-and-priority-flora</u>. Accessed 12/01/2024.

DCCEEW (2023a) Approved lists under the EPBC Act. Available at: https://www.dcceew.gov.au/environment/epbc/what-is-protected/approved-lists#species

DCCEEW (2023b) Conservation Advice for *Aphelocephala leucopsis* (southern whiteface). In effect under the EPBC Act from 31 March 2023.

Department of Environment and Conservation (2012) Western Spiny-tailed Skink (*Egernia stokesii*) Recovery Plan. Department of Environment and Conservation, Perth, WA. Available

from: http://www.environment.gov.au/node/25121. In effect under the EPBC Act from 22-Mar-2013 as *Egernia stokesii badia*.

DPIRD (2022) Soil Landscape Mapping – Best Available DPIRD-027. Version 05.01. Data last updated 13-07-2022.

DPIRD (2019) Pre-European Vegetation (DPIRD-006). Available from Natural Resource Information (WA) (agric.wa.gov.au). Accessed 2 August 2021.

DPIRD (2023a) Beebyn Station - Remotely Sensed Information for December 2023: Vegetation, Ground Cover and Rainfall. Available at: <u>https://www.agric.wa.gov.au/prs/Beebyn Station.pdf</u> Accessed 30/01/24.

DPIRD (2023b) Western Australian Organism List (WAOL). Available at: https://www.agric.wa.gov.au/bam/western-australian-organism-list-waol Accessed 15/09/2023.

DSEWPAC (2011) Survey guidelines for Australia's threatened reptiles. Guidelines for detecting reptiles listed as threatened under the *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act* 1999.

DEE (2016) Collaborative Australian Protected Areas Database -Terrestrial CAPAD 2016. Australian Government

DEE (2018) Guidelines for biological survey and mapped data, Australian Government. Retrieved from https://www.awe.gov.au/environment/environmental-information-data/information-policy/guidelines-for-biological-survey-mapped-data

Duuring P, Hagemann SG, Novikova Y, Cudahy T and Laukamp C (2012) Targeting Iron Ore in Banded Iron Formations Using ASTER Data: Weld Range Greenstone Belt, Yilgarn Craton, Western Australia *Econ. Geol.* 107: 585-597.

DWER (2021) Clearing Regulations - Environmentally Sensitive Areas. Government of Western Australia (DWER-046). Last updated 09-11-2021.

Ecologia (2009a) Weld Range EIA Flora Report. Technical Appendix to Weld Range PER, Sinosteel Midwest Corporation 2010..

Ecologia (2009b) Weld Range Vertebrate Fauna Report. Technical Appendix to Weld Range PER, Sinosteel Midwest Corporation 2010.

Ecologia (2009c). SRE Survey at Weld Range. Technical Appendix to Weld Range PER, Sinosteel Midwest Corporation 2010.

Ecologia (2010) Oakajee Port and Rail Pty Ltd *Egernia stokesii badia* Summary of Results. Prepared for Oakajee Port and Rail Pty Ltd and submitted as part of EPBC 2010/5500.

Ellis RJ (2015) Some observations on the field behaviour of the vulnerable mygalomorph spider, *Idiosoma nigrum*. The Western Australian Naturalist 29: 241–246.

Environmental Protection Authority (**EPA**) (2016) *Technical Guidance - Flora and Vegetation Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment.* Available online: https://www.epa.wa.gov.au/policiesguidance/technical-guidance-flora-and-vegetation-surveys-environmental-impact-assessment Environmental Protection Authority (**EPA**) (2020) *Technical Guidance - Terrestrial vertebrate fauna surveys for environmental impact assessment.* Available online: https://www.epa.wa.gov.au/policies-guidance/technical-guidance-terrestrial-vertebrate-fauna-surveys-environmental-impact

Environmental Protection Authority (**EPA**) (2021) Instructions for the preparation of data packages for the Index of Biodiversity Surveys for Assessments (IBSA). 15 November 2021.

Executive Steering Committee for Australian Vegetation Information (**ESCAVI**) (2003) Australian Vegetation Attribute Manual National Vegetation Information System, Version 6.0 Department of the Environment and Heritage.

Higgins PJ and Peter JM (Eds) (2002) Handbook of Australian, New Zealand and Antarctic Birds. Volume 6: Pardalotes to Shrike-thrushes. Oxford University Press, Melbourne.

How RA, Dell J and Robinson DJ (2003) The Western Spiny-tailed Skink, *Egernia stokesii badia*. Declining distribution in a habitat specialist. *The Western Australian Naturalist*. 24(2):138-146.

- Main BY (2003) Demography of the shield-back trapdoor spider *Idiosoma nigrum* Main in Remnant vegetation of the Western Australian Wheatbelt. Records of the South Australian Museum. Monograph Series. 7:179–185
- Markey AS and Dillon SJ (2008) Flora and Vegetation of the banded ironstone formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Weld Range. *Conservation Science Western Australia* 7(1): 153-178

Rix, M. G., Huey, J. A., Cooper, S. J. B., Austin, A. D., & Harvey, M. S. (2018). Conservation systematics of the shield-backed trapdoor spiders of the nigrum-group (Mygalomorphae, Idiopidae, Idiosoma): integrative taxonomy reveals a diverse and threatened fauna from south-western Australia. ZooKeys 756: 1 – 121. doi: 10.3897/zookeys.756.24397

Schoenjahn J (2018) Adaptations of the rare endemic grey falcon *Falco hypoleucos* that enable its permanent residence in the arid zone of Australia. PhD Thesis. University of Queensland

Schodde R and Mason IJ (1999) The Directory of Australian Birds: Passerines. CSIRO Publishing, Melbourne.

Smith LA (1996) A new species of *Lerista* (Lacertilia: Scincidae) from Western Australia, *Lerista eupoda.* Journal of the Royal Society of Western Australia 79: 161-164

Mabbutt JA, Speck NH, Wright RL, Litchfield WH, Wilcox DG and Sofoulis J (1963) Land Systems of the Wiluna–Meekatharra area, Western Australia by. Scale 8 miles to 1 inch. CSIRO Land Research Series No. 7.

Thackway R and Cresswell I (1995) An Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia. Availableonline:https://www.environment.gov.au/system/files/resources/4263c26f-f2a7-4a07-9a29-b1a81ac85acc/files/ibra-framework-setting-priorities-nrs-cooperative-program.pdf

TSSC (2020) Conservation Advice Falco hypoleucos grey falcon. Approved from 09/07/2020.

Tille P (2006) Soil-Landscape Zones of Western Australia's Rangelands and Interior. (Resource Management Technical Report 313). Western Australia: Department of Agriculture and Food.

Trudgen M (1988) A Report on the Flora and Vegetation of the Port Kennedy Area. Unpublished report prepared for Bowman Bishaw and Associates, West Perth.

Western Australian Herbarium (1998-) Florabase. Descriptions by the Western Australian Herbarium, Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions. Text used with permission (https://florabase.dpaw.wa.gov.au/help/copyright). Accessed on 17 May 2023

Western Australian Museum (2023) Checklist of the Terrestrial Vertebrate Fauna of Western Australia. Available at <u>https://museum.wa.gov.au/research/departments/terrestrial-zoology/checklist-terrestrial-vertebrate-fauna-western-australia May 2023</u>.

WesternAustralianMuseumCollections(2023)<a href="https://museum.wa.gov.au/online-collections/names/sminthopsis-longicaudata">https://museum.wa.gov.au/online-collections/names/sminthopsis-longicaudata</a> Accessed 29 Aug 2023

Wilson S and Swan G (2023) A Complete Guide to Reptiles of Australia. Page(s) 480. Sydney: Reed New Holland.

## **APPENDICES**

**APPENDIX A: CONSERVATION AND DECLARED CATEGORIES** 

Conservation categories for threatened species and communities protected under Federal legislation are defined under the *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999* and the *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Regulations 2000* are listed in Tables A.1. and A.2.

Conservation	Definition
Category	
Extinct	Taxa with no reasonable doubt that the last member of the species has died.
Extinct in the	Taxa known to survive only in cultivation, in captivity or as a naturalised population well
wild	outside its past range; or it has not been recorded in its known and/or expected habitat,
	at appropriated seasons, anywhere in its past range, despite exhaustive surveys over a
	time frame appropriate to its life cycle and form.
Critically	Taxa facing an extremely high risk of extinction in the wild in the immediate future, as
Endangered (CR)	determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.
Endangered (E)	Taxa are not critically endangered; and are facing a very high risk of extinction in the wild
	in the near future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.
Vulnerable (V)	Taxa are not critically endangered or endangered; and are facing a high risk of extinction
	in the wild in the medium-term future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed
	criteria.
Conservation	Taxa are the focus of a specific conservation program the cessation of which would result
dependent (CD)	in the species becoming vulnerable, endangered or critically endangered; or the
	following subparagraphs are satisfied:
	i) the taxa is a species of fish;
	ii) the taxa is the focus of a management plan that provides management
	actions necessary to stop the decline of, and support the recovery of, the taxa
	so that its chances of long term survival in nature are maximized;
	iii) the management plan is in force under a law of the Commonwealth or of a
	State or Territory; and
	iv) Cessation of the management plan would adversely affect the conservation
	status of the taxa.
	Fish includes all taxa of bony fish, sharks, rays, crustaceans, molluscs and other marine

# Table A.1: Categories and definitions for threatened flora and fauna species listed under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999.

# Table A.2: Definitions for Threatened Ecological Communities under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999.

organisms, but does not include marine mammals/reptiles.

Conservation Category	Definition
Critically endangered	If, at that time, it is facing an extremely high risk of extinction in the wild in the immediate future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.
Endangered	If, at that time, it is not critically endangered and is facing a very high risk of extinction in the wild in the near future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.
Vulnerable	If, at that time, it is not critically endangered or endangered, and is facing a high risk of extinction in the wild in the medium-term future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.

For Section 182 of the EPBC Act and 179 of the EPBC Act Threatened Ecological Communities and Native species are in the Critically Endangered, Endangered or Vulnerable category if they meet any of the criteria for the category mentioned in Table A.3:

Table A.3: Criteria for listing Threatened Species and Threatened Ecological Communities under
the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Regulations 2000

	Threatened Species				
Item	Criterion	Category			
		Critically Endangered	Endangered	Vulnerable	
1	It has undergone, is suspected to have undergone, or is likely to undergo in the immediate future:	A very severe reduction in numbers	A severe reduction in numbers	A substantial reduction in numbers	
2	Its geographic distribution is precarious for the survival of the species and is:	Very restricted	Restricted	limited	
3	The estimated total number of mature individuals is: And:	Very low	Low	limited	
	<ul> <li>(a) Evidence suggests that the number will continue to decline at:</li> </ul>	A very high rate	A high rate	A substantial rate	
	(b) The number is likely to continue to decline and its geographic distribution is:	Precarious for its survival	Precarious for its survival	Precarious for its survival	
4	The estimated total number of mature individuals is:	Extremely low	Very low	low	
5	The probability of its extinction in the wild is at least:	50% in the immediate future	20% in the near future	10% in the medium term future	
	Threatened Eco	logical Communities	;		
Item	Criterion		Category		
		Critically Endangered	Endangered	Vulnerable	
1	Its decline in geographic distribution is:	Very severe	Severe	substantial	
2	Its geographic distribution is:	Very restricted	restricted	limited	
	And the nature of its distribution makes it likely that the action of a threating process could cause it to be lost in:	The immediate future	The near future	The medium term future	
3	For a population of a native species that is likely to play a major role in the community, there is a:	Very severe decline	Severe decline	Substantial decline	
	To the extent that restoration of the community is not likely to be possible in:	The immediate future	The near future	The medium term future	
4	The reduction in its integrity across most of its geographic distribution is:	Very severe	severe	substantial	
	As indicated by degradation of the community or its habitat, or disruption of important community processes, that is:	Very severe	severe	substantial	

# Conservation Categories for Flora, Fauna and Ecological Communities, and Categories for Introduced Flora - Appendix A

5	The rate of continuing detrimental change is:	Very severe	severe	substantial
	As indicated by			
	<ul> <li>(a) A rate of continuing decline in its geographic distribution, or a population of a native species that is believed to play a major role in the community, that is: or</li> </ul>	Very severe	severe	serious
	(b) Intensification, across most of its geographic distribution, in degradation, or disruption of important community processes, that is:	Very severe	severe	serious
6	A quantitative analysis shows that its probability of extinction, or extreme degradation over all its geographic distribution, is:	At least 50% in the immediate future	At least 20% in the near future	At least 10% in the medium term future

In Western Australia, the *Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016* (BC Act) provides for the statutory listing of Threatened Ecological Communities, under the categories listed in Table A.4.

# Table A.4: Definitions and criteria for Presumed Totally Destroyed, Critically Endangered,Endangered and Vulnerable Ecological Communities. Department of Environment andConservation (2013).

### PD : Presumed Totally Destroyed

An ecological community that has been adequately searched for but for which no representative occurrences have been located. The community has been found to be totally destroyed or so extensively modified throughout its range that no occurrence of it is likely to recover its species composition and/or structure in the foreseeable future.

An ecological community will be listed as presumed totally destroyed if there are no recent records of the community being extant and either of the following applies (A or B):

A) Records within the last 50 years have not been confirmed despite thorough searches of known or likely habitats **or** 

B) All occurrences recorded within the last 50 years have since been destroyed.

#### CR : Critically Endangered

An ecological community that has been adequately surveyed and found to have been subject to a major contraction in area and/or that was originally of limited distribution and is facing severe modification or destruction throughout its range in the immediate future, or is already severely degraded throughout its range but capable of being substantially restored or rehabilitated.

An ecological community will be listed as Critically Endangered when it has been adequately surveyed and is found to be facing an extremely high risk of total destruction in the immediate future. This will be determined on the basis of the best available information, by it meeting any one or more of the following criteria (A, B or C):

A) The estimated geographic range, and/or total area occupied, and/or number of discrete occurrences since European settlement have been reduced by at least 90% and either or both of the following apply (i or ii):
i) geographic range, and/or total area occupied and/or number of discrete occurrences are continuing to decline such that total destruction of the community is imminent (within approximately 10 years);

ii) modification throughout its range is continuing such that in the immediate future (within approximately 10 years) the community is unlikely to be capable of being substantially rehabilitated.

B) Current distribution is limited, and one or more of the following apply (i, ii or iii):

i) geographic range and/or number of discrete occurrences, and/or area occupied is highly restricted and the community is currently subject to known threatening processes which are likely to result in total destruction throughout its range in the immediate future (within approximately 10 years);

ii) there are very few occurrences, each of which is small and/or isolated and extremely vulnerable to known threatening processes;

iii) there may be many occurrences but total area is very small and each occurrence is small and/or isolated and extremely vulnerable to known threatening processes.

C) The ecological community exists only as highly modified occurrences that may be capable of being rehabilitated if such work begins in the immediate future (within approximately 10 years).

#### En : Endangered

An ecological community that has been adequately surveyed and found to have been subject to a major contraction in area and/or was originally of limited distribution and is in danger of significant modification throughout its range or severe modification or destruction over most of its range in the near future. An ecological community will be listed as Endangered when it has been adequately surveyed and is not Critically Endangered but is facing a very high risk of total destruction in the near future. This will be determined on the basis of the best available information by it meeting any one or more of the following criteria (A, B, or C):

A) The geographic range, and/or total area occupied, and/or number of discrete occurrences have been reduced by at least 70% since European settlement and either or both of the following apply (i or ii): i) the estimated geographic range, and/or total area occupied and/or number of discrete occurrences are continuing to decline such that total destruction of the community is likely in the short term future (within approximately 20 years);

ii) modification throughout its range is continuing such that in the short term future (within approximately

20 years) the community is unlikely to be capable of being substantially restored or rehabilitated. B) Current distribution is limited, and one or more of the following apply (i, ii or iii):

i) geographic range and/or number of discrete occurrences, and/or area occupied is highly restricted and the community is currently subject to known threatening processes which are likely to result in total destruction throughout its range in the short term future (within approximately 20 years);

ii) there are few occurrences, each of which is small and/or isolated and all or most occurrences are very vulnerable to known threatening processes;

iii) there may be many occurrences but total area is small and all or most occurrences are small and/or isolated and very vulnerable to known threatening processes.

C) The ecological community exists only as very modified occurrences that may be capable of being substantially restored or rehabilitated if such work begins in the short-term future (within approximately 20 years).

#### VU : Vulnerable

An ecological community that has been adequately surveyed and is found to be declining and/or has declined in distribution and/or condition and whose ultimate security has not yet been assured and/or a community that is still widespread but is believed likely to move into a category of higher threat in the near future if threatening processes continue or begin operating throughout its range.

An ecological community will be listed as Vulnerable when it has been adequately surveyed and is not Critically Endangered or Endangered but is facing a high risk of total destruction or significant modification in the medium to long-term future. This will be determined on the basis of the best available information by it meeting any one or more of the following criteria (A, B or C):

A) The ecological community exists largely as modified occurrences that are likely to be capable of being substantially restored or rehabilitated.

B) The ecological community may already be modified and would be vulnerable to threatening processes, is restricted in area and/or range and/or is only found at a few locations.

C) The ecological community may be still widespread but is believed likely to move into a category of higher threat in the medium to long term future because of existing or impending threatening processes.

In Western Australia, possible Threatened Ecological Communities that do not meet survey criteria or that are not adequately defined are added to the Priority Ecological Community Lists under Priorities 1, 2 and 3. Ecological communities that are adequately known, and are rare but not threatened or meet criteria for Near Threatened, or that have been recently removed from the threatened list, are placed in Priority 4. These ecological communities require regular monitoring. Conservation Dependent ecological communities are placed in Priority 5 (Table A.4).

# Table A.5: Definitions and criteria for Priority Ecological Communities Department of Environment and Conservation (2013).

#### P1: Priority One – Poorly-known ecological communities

Ecological communities that are known from very few occurrences with a very restricted distribution (generally  $\leq$ 5 occurrences or a total area of  $\leq$  100 ha). Occurrences are believed to be under threat either due to limited extent, or being on lands under immediate threat (e.g. within agricultural or pastoral lands, urban areas, active mineral leases) or for which current threats exist. May include communities with occurrences on protected lands. Communities may be included if they are comparatively well-known from one or more localities but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements, and/or are not well defined, and appear to be under immediate threat from known threatening processes across their range.

#### P2: Priority Two – Poorly-known ecological communities

Communities that are known from few occurrences with a restricted distribution (generally  $\leq$ 10 occurrences or a total area of  $\leq$ 200 ha). At least some occurrences are not believed to be under immediate threat of destruction or degradation. Communities may be included if they are comparatively well known from one or more localities but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements, and/or are not well defined, and appear to be under threat from known threatening processes.

P3: Priority Three – Poorly-known ecological communities

(i) Communities that are known from several to many occurrences, a significant number or area of which are not under threat of habitat destruction or degradation or:

(ii) communities known from a few widespread occurrences, which are either large or within significant remaining areas of habitat in which other occurrences may occur, much of it not under imminent threat, or; (iii) communities made up of large, and/or widespread occurrences, that may or not be represented in the reserve system but are under threat of modification across much of their range from processes such as grazing by domestic and/or feral stock, and inappropriate fire regimes.

Communities may be included if they are comparatively well known from several localities but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and/or are not well defined, and known threatening processes exist that could affect them.

P4: Priority Four

Ecological communities that are adequately known, rare but not threatened or meet criteria for Near Threatened, or that have been recently removed from the threatened list. These communities require regular monitoring.

(i) Rare. Ecological communities known from few occurrences that are considered to have been adequately surveyed, or for which sufficient knowledge is available, and that are considered not currently threatened or in need of special protection, but could be if present circumstances change. These communities are usually represented on conservation lands.

(ii) Near Threatened. Ecological communities that are considered to have been adequately surveyed and that do not qualify for Conservation Dependent, but that are close to qualifying for Vulnerable.

(iii) Ecological communities that have been removed from the list of threatened communities during the past five years.

P5: Priority Five – Conservation dependent ecological communities

Ecological communities that are not threatened but are subject to a specific conservation program, the cessation of which would result in the community becoming threatened within five years.

In Western Australia, the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 and the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 have been transitioned under regulations 170, 171 and 172 of the Biodiversity Conservation Regulations 2018 to be the lists of Threatened, Extinct and Specially Protected species under Part 2 of the *Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016*.

Categories of Threatened, Extinct and Specially Protected fauna and flora are listed in Table A.6.

The definition of flora includes algae, fungi and lichens. The definition of Species includes all taxa (plural of taxon - a classificatory group of any taxonomic rank, e.g. a family, genus, species or any infraspecific category i.e. subspecies or variety, or a distinct population).

# Table A.6: Conservation codes for Western Australian flora and fauna under the *Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016* (DBCA 2019).

Code	Conservation	Definition		
	Category			
Threatened species				
Listed by order of the Minister as Threatened in the category of critically endangered, endangered or				
vulnera	able under section 19(1), or i	is a rediscovered species to be regarded as threatened species under		
section 26(2) of the Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016 (BC Act).				
Threatened fauna is that subset of 'Specially Protected Fauna' listed under schedules 1 to 3 of the Wildlife				
Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for Threatened Fauna.				
Inreat	ened flora is that subset of "I	Rare Flora' listed under schedules 1 to 3 of the Wildlife Conservation		
(Rare F	lora) Notice 2018 for Inreat	rened Flora.		
according to their level of threat using IUCN Red List categories and criteria as detailed below.				
CR	Critically Endangered	Threatened species considered to be "facing an extremely high risk of		
		extinction in the wild in the immediate future, as determined in		
		accordance with criteria set out in the ministerial guidelines".		
		Listed as critically endangered under section 19(1)(a) of the BC Act in		
		accordance with the criteria set out in section 20 and the ministerial		
		(Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for critically endangered fauna		
		or the Wildlife Conservation (Bare Flora) Notice 2018 for critically		
		endangered flora.		
EN	Endangered	Threatened species considered to be "facing a very high risk of extinction		
	Linddingered	in the wild in the near future, as determined in accordance with criteria		
		set out in the ministerial guidelines".		
		Listed as endangered under section 19(1)(b) of the BC Act in accordance		
		with the criteria set out in section 21 and the ministerial guidelines.		
		Published under schedule 2 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially		
		Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for endangered fauna or the Wildlife		
		Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for endangered flora		
VU	Vulnerable	Threatened species considered to be "facing a high risk of extinction in		
		the wild in the medium-term future, as determined in accordance with		
		criteria set out in the ministerial guidelines".		
		Listed as vulnerable under section 19(1)(c) of the BC Act in accordance with the criteria cet out in cection 22 and the ministerial guidelines		
		Published under schedule 3 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially		
		Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for vulnerable fauna or the Wildlife		
		Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for vulnerable flora.		
Extinct species				
Listed	Listed by order of the Minister as extinct under section 23(1) of the BC Act as extinct or extinct in the wild.			

EX	Extinct	Species where "there is no reasonable doubt that the last member of the species has died", and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (castion 24 of the BC Act)
		ministerial guidelines (section 24 of the BC Act).
		Published as presumed extinct under schedule 4 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protocted Fauna) Notice 2018 for extinct fauna
		or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for extinct flora.
EW	Extinct in the Wild	Species that "is known only to survive in cultivation, in captivity or as a
		naturalised population well outside its past range; and it has not been
		recorded in its known habitat or expected habitat, at appropriate
		appropriate to its life cycle and form" and listing is otherwise in
		accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 25 of the BC Act).
		Currently there are no threatened fauna or threatened flora species
		listed as extinct in the wild. If listing of a species as extinct in the wild
		occurs, then a schedule will be added to the applicable notice.
Special	ly protected species	
Listed I	by order of the Minister as sp	pecially protected under section 13(1) of the BC Act. Meeting one or more
of the f	following categories: species	s of special conservation interest; migratory species; cetaceans; species
subject	to international agreement	; or species otherwise in need of special protection.
Species	s that are listed as threatene	d species (critically endangered, endangered or vulnerable) or extinct
MI	Migratory Spacing	Fauna that periodically or occasionally visit Australia or an external
1011	wigratory species	Territory or the exclusive economic zone: or the species is subject of an
		international agreement that relates to the protection of migratory
		species and that binds the Commonwealth; and listing is otherwise in
		accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 15 of the BC Act).
		Includes birds that are subject to an agreement between the government
		of Australia and the governments of Japan (JAMBA), China (CAMBA) and
		The Republic of Korea (ROKAMBA), and fauna subject to the Convention
		on the Conservation of Migratory Species of Wild Animals (Bonn
		Convention), an environmental treaty under the United Nations
		Environment Program. Migratory species listed under the BC Act are a
		Subset of the migratory animals, that are known to visit western
		Australia, protected under the international agreements of treaties,
		Published as migratory hirds protected under an international
		agreement under schedule 5 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially
		Protected Fauna) Notice 2018.
CD	Species of special	Fauna of special conservation need being species dependent on
	conservation interest	ongoing conservation intervention to prevent it becoming eligible for
	(conservation dependent	listing as threatened, and listing is otherwise in accordance with the
	fauna)	ministerial guidelines (section 14 of the BC Act).
		Published as conservation dependent fauna under schedule 6 of
		the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018.
OS	Other Specially protected	Fauna otherwise in need of special protection to ensure their
	species	conservation, and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial
		guidelines (section 18 of the BC Act).
		Published as other specially protected fauna under schedule 7 of the
		Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018.

Possibly threatened species that do not meet survey criteria, or are otherwise data deficient, are added to the Priority Fauna or Priority Flora Lists under Priorities 1, 2 or 3. These three categories are ranked in order of priority for survey and evaluation of conservation status so that consideration can be given to their declaration as threatened fauna or flora.

Species that are adequately known, are rare but not threatened, or meet criteria for near threatened, or that have been recently removed from the threatened species or other specially protected fauna lists for other than taxonomic reasons, are placed in Priority 4. These species require regular monitoring.

Assessment of Priority codes is based on the Western Australian distribution of the species, unless the distribution in WA is part of a contiguous population extending into adjacent States, as defined by the known spread of locations.

## Table A.7: Priority species under Western Australian *Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016*.

#### P1: Priority One – Poorly known taxa

Species that are known from one or a few locations (generally five or less) which are potentially at risk. All occurrences are either: very small; or on lands not managed for conservation, e.g. agricultural or pastoral lands, urban areas, road and rail reserves, gravel reserves and active mineral leases; or otherwise under threat of habitat destruction or degradation. Species may be included if they are comparatively well known from one or more locations but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and appear to be under immediate threat from known threatening processes. Such species are in urgent need of further survey.

P2: Priority Two – Poorly known taxa

Species that are known from one or a few locations (generally five or less), some of which are on lands managed primarily for nature conservation, e.g. national parks, conservation parks, nature reserves and other lands with secure tenure being managed for conservation. Species may be included if they are comparatively well known from one or more locations but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and appear to be under threat from known threatening processes. Such species are in urgent need of further survey.

#### P3: Priority Three – Poorly known taxa

Species that are known from several locations, and the species does not appear to be under imminent threat, or from few but widespread locations with either large population size or significant remaining areas of apparently suitable habitat, much of it not under imminent threat. Species may be included if they are comparatively well known from several locations but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and known threatening processes exist that could affect them. Such species are in need of further survey.

P4: Priority Four: Rare, near threatened and other taxa in need of monitoring

((a) Rare. Species that are considered to have been adequately surveyed, or for which sufficient knowledge is available, and that are considered not currently threatened or in need of special protection but could be if present circumstances change. These species are usually represented on conservation lands.

(b) Near Threatened. Species that are considered to have been adequately surveyed and that are close to qualifying for vulnerable but are not listed as Conservation Dependent.

(c) Species that have been removed from the list of threatened species during the past five years for reasons other than taxonomy.

The management of introduced species in Western Australia is regulated through the *Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Act 2007* (BAM Act). The BAM Act seeks to establish a biosecurity regulatory scheme to prevent serious animal and plant pests from entering the State and becoming established, and to minimise the spread and impact of any that are already present within the State.

The list of declared pests is provided under the BAM Act. Declared animal and plant pests fall into three categories as Gazetted under the *Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Regulations 2013*. These categories are outlined in Table A.7.

# Table A.8: Declared pests control categories as gazetted under the Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Regulations 2013.

Category	Description
C1 (Exclusion)	Pests will be assigned to this category if they are not established in Western Australia and control measures are to be taken, including border checks, in order to prevent them entering and establishing in the State.
C2 (Eradication)	Pests will be assigned to this category if they are present in Western Australia in low enough numbers or in sufficiently limited areas that their eradication is still a possibility.
C3 (Management)	Pests will be assigned to this category if they are established in Western Australia but it is feasible, or desirable, to manage them in order to limit their damage. Control measures can prevent a C3 pest from increasing in population size or density or moving from an area in which it is established into an area which currently is free of that pest.

## References

Department of Biodiversity Conservation and Attractions (2019) Conservation Codes for Western Australian Flora and Fauna. Last updated 3 January 2019. Accessed 25/04/20. <u>https://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/images/documents/plants-animals/threatened-species/Listings/Conservation%20code%20definitions.pdf</u>

Department of Environment and Conservation (2013). Definitions, categories and criteria for threatened and priority ecological communities. Accessed 25/04/20 <a href="https://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/images/plants-animals/threatened-species/definitions">https://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/images/plants-animals/threatened-species/definitions</a> categories and criteria for threatened and priority ecological communities. pdf
#### **APPENDIX B: PMST SEARCH RESULTS**



Australian Government

**Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water** 

# **EPBC** Act Protected Matters Report

This report provides general guidance on matters of national environmental significance and other matters protected by the EPBC Act in the area you have selected. Please see the caveat for interpretation of information provided here.

Report created: 24-Jan-2024

Summary Details Matters of NES Other Matters Protected by the EPBC Act Extra Information Caveat Acknowledgements

## Summary

### Matters of National Environment Significance

This part of the report summarises the matters of national environmental significance that may occur in, or may relate to, the area you nominated. Further information is available in the detail part of the report, which can be accessed by scrolling or following the links below. If you are proposing to undertake an activity that may have a significant impact on one or more matters of national environmental significance then you should consider the Administrative Guidelines on Significance.

World Heritage Properties:	None
National Heritage Places:	None
Wetlands of International Importance (Ramsar	None
Great Barrier Reef Marine Park:	None
Commonwealth Marine Area:	None
Listed Threatened Ecological Communities:	None
Listed Threatened Species:	8
Listed Migratory Species:	7

### Other Matters Protected by the EPBC Act

This part of the report summarises other matters protected under the Act that may relate to the area you nominated. Approval may be required for a proposed activity that significantly affects the environment on Commonwealth land, when the action is outside the Commonwealth land, or the environment anywhere when the action is taken on Commonwealth land. Approval may also be required for the Commonwealth or Commonwealth agencies proposing to take an action that is likely to have a significant impact on the environment anywhere.

The EPBC Act protects the environment on Commonwealth land, the environment from the actions taken on Commonwealth land, and the environment from actions taken by Commonwealth agencies. As heritage values of a place are part of the 'environment', these aspects of the EPBC Act protect the Commonwealth Heritage values of a Commonwealth Heritage place. Information on the new heritage laws can be found at <a href="https://www.dcceew.gov.au/parks-heritage/heritage">https://www.dcceew.gov.au/parks-heritage/heritage</a>

A <u>permit</u> may be required for activities in or on a Commonwealth area that may affect a member of a listed threatened species or ecological community, a member of a listed migratory species, whales and other cetaceans, or a member of a listed marine species.

Commonwealth Lands:	None
Commonwealth Heritage Places:	None
Listed Marine Species:	10
Whales and Other Cetaceans:	None
Critical Habitats:	None
Commonwealth Reserves Terrestrial:	None
Australian Marine Parks:	None
Habitat Critical to the Survival of Marine Turtles:	None

### Extra Information

This part of the report provides information that may also be relevant to the area you have

State and Territory Reserves:	None
Regional Forest Agreements:	None
Nationally Important Wetlands:	None
EPBC Act Referrals:	4
Key Ecological Features (Marine):	None
Biologically Important Areas:	None
Bioregional Assessments:	None
Geological and Bioregional Assessments:	None

## Details

## Matters of National Environmental Significance

Listed Threatened Species		[Res	source Information
Status of Conservation Dependent and E Number is the current name ID.	Extinct are not MNES unde	er the EPBC Act.	
Scientific Name	Threatened Category	Presence Text	Buffer Status
BIRD			
Aphelocephala leucopsis			
Southern Whiteface [529]	Vulnerable	Species or species habitat known to occur within area	In feature area
Calidris acuminata			
Sharp-tailed Sandpiper [874]	Vulnerable	Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
Calidris ferruginea			
Curlew Sandpiper [856]	Critically Endangered	Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
Grey Falcon [929]	Vulnerable	Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
Leinoa ocellata			
Malleefowl [934]	Vulnerable	Species or species habitat likely to occur within area	In feature area
Pozonorus occidentalis			
Night Parrot [59350]	Endangered	Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
REPTILE			
Egernia stokesii badia			
Western Spiny-tailed Skink, Baudin Island Spiny-tailed Skink [64483]	Endangered	Species or species habitat likely to occur	In buffer area only





Scientific Name	Threatened Category	Presence Text	Buffer Status
Idiosoma nigrum			
Shield-backed Trapdoor Spider, Black Rugose Trapdoor Spider [66798]	Vulnerable	Species or species habitat known to occur within area	In feature area
Listed Migratory Species		[ <u>Res</u>	source Information ]
Scientific Name	Threatened Category	Presence Text	Buffer Status
Migratory Marine Birds			
Apus pacificus			
Fork-tailed Swift [678]		Species or species habitat likely to occur within area	In buffer area only
Migratory Terrestrial Species			
Motacilla cinerea			
Grey Wagtail [642]		Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
Motacilla flava			
Yellow Wagtail [644]		Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
Migratory Wetlands Species			
Actitis hypoleucos			
Common Sandpiper [59309]		Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
Calidris acuminata			
Sharp-tailed Sandpiper [874]	Vulnerable	Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
Calidris ferruginea			
Curlew Sandpiper [856]	Critically Endangered	Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
Calidris melanotos			
Pectoral Sandpiper [858]		Species or species habitat may occur	In feature area

within area

## Other Matters Protected by the EPBC Act

Listed Marine Species			[Resource Information]
Scientific Name	Threatened Category	Presence Text	Buffer Status
Bird			

Scientific Name	Threatened Category	Presence Text	Buffer Status
Actitis hypoleucos			
Common Sandpiper [59309]		Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
Apus pacificus			
Fork-tailed Swift [678]		Species or species habitat likely to occur within area overfly marine area	In buffer area only
Calidris acuminata			
Sharp-tailed Sandpiper [874]	Vulnerable	Species or species habitat may occur within area	In feature area
Calidris ferruginea			
Curlew Sandpiper [856]	Critically Endangered	Species or species habitat may occur within area overfly marine area	In feature area
Calidris melanotos			
Pectoral Sandpiper [858]		Species or species habitat may occur within area overfly marine area	In feature area
Chalcites osculans as Chrysococcyx oscu	ulans		
Black-eared Cuckoo [83425]		Species or species habitat known to occur within area overfly marine area	In feature area
Merops ornatus			
Rainbow Bee-eater [670]		Species or species habitat may occur within area overfly marine area	In feature area
Motacilla cinerea			
Grey Wagtail [642]		Species or species habitat may occur within area overfly marine area	In feature area

Motacilla flava Yellow Wagtail [644]

### Thinornis cucullatus as Thinornis rubricollis

Hooded Plover, Hooded Dotterel [87735]

Species or species In feature area habitat may occur within area overfly marine area

Species or species habitat may occur within area overfly marine area In buffer area only

### Extra Information

EPBC Act Referrals			[Resour	ce Information ]
Title of referral	Reference	Referral Outcome	Assessment Status	Buffer Status
Controlled action				
Oakajee Rail Development	2010/5500	Controlled Action	Post-Approval	In feature area
Not controlled action				
Improving rabbit biocontrol: releasing another strain of RHDV, sthrn two thirds of Australia	2015/7522	Not Controlled Action	Completed	In feature area
Jack Hills Expansion Project	2011/5853	Not Controlled Action	Completed	In buffer area only
Weld Range Iron Ore Project	2011/6030	Not Controlled Action	Completed	In feature area

## Caveat

#### 1 PURPOSE

This report is designed to assist in identifying the location of matters of national environmental significance (MNES) and other matters protected by the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (Cth) (EPBC Act) which may be relevant in determining obligations and requirements under the EPBC Act.

The report contains the mapped locations of:

- World and National Heritage properties;
- Wetlands of International and National Importance;
- Commonwealth and State/Territory reserves;
- distribution of listed threatened, migratory and marine species;
- listed threatened ecological communities; and
- other information that may be useful as an indicator of potential habitat value.

#### 2 DISCLAIMER

This report is not intended to be exhaustive and should only be relied upon as a general guide as mapped data is not available for all species or ecological communities listed under the EPBC Act (see below). Persons seeking to use the information contained in this report to inform the referral of a proposed action under the EPBC Act should consider the limitations noted below and whether additional information is required to determine the existence and location of MNES and other protected matters.

Where data are available to inform the mapping of protected species, the presence type (e.g. known, likely or may occur) that can be determined from the data is indicated in general terms. It is the responsibility of any person using or relying on the information in this report to ensure that it is suitable for the circumstances of any proposed use. The Commonwealth cannot accept responsibility for the consequences of any use of the report or any part thereof. To the maximum extent allowed under governing law, the Commonwealth will not be liable for any loss or damage that may be occasioned directly or indirectly through the use of, or reliance

#### 3 DATA SOURCES

#### Threatened ecological communities

For threatened ecological communities where the distribution is well known, maps are generated based on information contained in recovery plans, State vegetation maps and remote sensing imagery and other sources. Where threatened ecological community distributions are less well known, existing vegetation maps and point location data are used to produce indicative distribution maps.

#### Threatened, migratory and marine species

Threatened, migratory and marine species distributions have been discerned through a variety of methods. Where distributions are well known and if time permits, distributions are inferred from either thematic spatial data (i.e. vegetation, soils, geology, elevation, aspect, terrain, etc.) together with point locations and described habitat; or modelled (MAXENT or BIOCLIM habitat modelling) using

Where little information is available for a species or large number of maps are required in a short time-frame, maps are derived either from 0.04 or 0.02 decimal degree cells; by an automated process using polygon capture techniques (static two kilometre grid cells, alpha-hull and convex hull); or captured manually or by using topographic features (national park boundaries, islands, etc.).

In the early stages of the distribution mapping process (1999-early 2000s) distributions were defined by degree blocks, 100K or 250K map sheets to rapidly create distribution maps. More detailed distribution mapping methods are used to update these distributions

#### 4 LIMITATIONS

The following species and ecological communities have not been mapped and do not appear in this report:

- threatened species listed as extinct or considered vagrants;
- some recently listed species and ecological communities;
- some listed migratory and listed marine species, which are not listed as threatened species; and
- migratory species that are very widespread, vagrant, or only occur in Australia in small numbers.

The following groups have been mapped, but may not cover the complete distribution of the species:

listed migratory and/or listed marine seabirds, which are not listed as threatened, have only been mapped for recorded
seals which have only been mapped for breeding sites near the Australian continent

The breeding sites may be important for the protection of the Commonwealth Marine environment.

Refer to the metadata for the feature group (using the Resource Information link) for the currency of the information.

## Acknowledgements

This database has been compiled from a range of data sources. The department acknowledges the following custodians who have contributed valuable data and advice:

-Office of Environment and Heritage, New South Wales -Department of Environment and Primary Industries, Victoria -Department of Primary Industries, Parks, Water and Environment, Tasmania -Department of Environment, Water and Natural Resources, South Australia -Department of Land and Resource Management, Northern Territory -Department of Environmental and Heritage Protection, Queensland -Department of Parks and Wildlife, Western Australia -Environment and Planning Directorate, ACT -Birdlife Australia -Australian Bird and Bat Banding Scheme -Australian National Wildlife Collection -Natural history museums of Australia -Museum Victoria -Australian Museum -South Australian Museum -Queensland Museum -Online Zoological Collections of Australian Museums -Queensland Herbarium -National Herbarium of NSW -Royal Botanic Gardens and National Herbarium of Victoria -Tasmanian Herbarium -State Herbarium of South Australia -Northern Territory Herbarium -Western Australian Herbarium -Australian National Herbarium, Canberra -University of New England -Ocean Biogeographic Information System -Australian Government, Department of Defence Forestry Corporation, NSW -Geoscience Australia -CSIRO -Australian Tropical Herbarium, Cairns -eBird Australia -Australian Government – Australian Antarctic Data Centre -Museum and Art Gallery of the Northern Territory -Australian Government National Environmental Science Program

-Australian Institute of Marine Science

-Reef Life Survey Australia

-American Museum of Natural History

-Queen Victoria Museum and Art Gallery, Inveresk, Tasmania

-Tasmanian Museum and Art Gallery, Hobart, Tasmania

-Other groups and individuals

The Department is extremely grateful to the many organisations and individuals who provided expert advice and information on numerous draft distributions.

Please feel free to provide feedback via the Contact us page.

© Commonwealth of Australia

Department of Climate Change, Energy, the Environment and Water GPO Box 3090 Canberra ACT 2601 Australia +61 2 6274 1111

**APPENDIX C: DETAILED FLORA AND VEGETATION SURVEY SITES** 



Figure C-1. Dendogram resulting from the cluster analysis of detailed vegetation sites



Figure C-2. Species accumulation curve. Sobs=Sample observations; MM= Michaelis Menton modelled richness

Site: E1			WP-NW-(	E) 583661 (N)	7026955	Site: E2			WP-NW-(E	) 582754 <b>(N)</b>	7027066	
Date: 15/11/202	3		WP-NE-(E	<b>:)</b> 583679 <b>(N)</b>	7026952	Date: 15/11/2023			WP-NE-(E)	582767 (N)	7027053	
Botanist: EH			WP-SE-(E)	) 583679 (N)	7026937	Botanist: EH			WP-SE-(E)	582758 <b>(N)</b>	7027036	
Site Type / Size	: Quadrat, 20 >	(20 m	WP-SW-(B	E) 583660 (N)	7026936	Site Type / Siz	<b>e:</b> Quadrat, 20 x	20 m	WP-SW-(E)	582744 <b>(N)</b>	7027050	
© 143°SE (T) © 50 S 583664 7026954 +5m ▲ 502m						W N NE E SE 330						
the Hange Animal Plant Mineral Pty Ltd 050 S 583664 7026954 ±5m ▲ 502m							d Range That Mineral	Pty Ltd				
Seasonal Condi	tions:	Ory - rain 2 da <5mm. Soil is	ys ago dry	Age Since Last Fire:	>10 years	Seasonal Cond	litions:	Dry - recent lo Dry soil	w rain	Age Since Last Fire:	>10 years	
Soil Type:		Clay loam with	gravel	Soil Colour:	Red	Soil Type:		Sandy clay loa	m	Soil Colour:	Light red	
Surface Rocks S	ize/Shape:	2-5cm		Surface Rock Cover (	<b>%):</b> 1%	Surface Rocks	Size/Shape:	40-100cm/blo	cky	Surface Rock Cover (9	<b>6):</b> 95%	
Rock Type:		Ironstone			· ·	Rock Type: Ironstone						
Landform		Plain				Landform Crest of BIF ridge						
Slope aspect		Very gentle slo	pe to sout	th, range to north		Slope aspect		Crest				
Vegetation Description         A. aneura low open woodland, E. forrestii mid open shrubland, sparse tussock grasses		en shrubland, sparse	Vegetation De	Vegetation Description Sparse tall		e tall shrubland A. aneura. Open low shrubland						
Condition		Good				Condition		Good				
<b>Disturbances</b> Grazing, cow and goat high intensity, occasional tracks and fences			Disturbances		Moderate to h	eavy goat o	grazing, frequent tracks	and clearing				
Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species	<u> </u>		Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species		5	
Overstorey	4.5	5 10	A.aneura	a, Acacia craspedocarpa		Overstorev	3.5	0.5	А.	aneura, A. pruinocarpa		
Midstorey	1.1	L 10	E. forrest	tii ssp. forrestii, Exocarpo	os aphyllus	Midstorey	2.2	5	A. aneura	, Thyrptomene decussa	ta	
Understorev	0.3	3 0.1		, ,	1 /	Understorev	0.6	20	Ptilotus o	bovatus, Dodonaea pad	hyneura	
		1					The second Flag		1	,,	,	

Site: E3			WP-NW-(E	<b>:)</b> 583087 <b>(N)</b> 702	7232	Site: E4			WP-NW-(	<b>E)</b> 583087	<b>(N)</b> 7026	640	
Date: 15/11/202	3		WP-NE-(E)	583105 (N) 702	7240	Date: 15/11/2023			WP-NE-(E	<b>)</b> 583104	<b>(N)</b> 7026	650	
Botanist: EH			WP-SE-(E)	583109 (N) 702	7221	Botanist: EH			WP-SE-(E)	583115	<b>(N)</b> 7026	630	
Site Type / Size	: Quadrat, 20 x	( 20 m	WP-SW-(E	) 583090 (N) 702	7213	Site Type / Size	: Quadrat, 20 x	20 m	WP-SW-(E	<b>583096</b>	<b>(N)</b> 7026	624	
Botanist: EH         WP-SE-(E) 583109         (N) 7027221           Site Type / Size: Quadrat, 20 x 20 m         WP-SW-(E) 583090         (N) 7027213							e Quadrat, 20 × NE ● 1 • 1 • 61 • ● 117°SI	E (T) • 50 S	583086 T	SE 1	(N) 7026 S 180 503m		
Weld	l Range lal Plant Mineral	Pty Lta		15 Nov 2023, 1	0.38:36	Weld	l Range nal Plant Mineral	Pty Ltd	- 25	15	Nov 2028, 1	E4 1.18:31	
Seasonal Condi	tions:	Dry		Age Since Last Fire:	>10 years	Seasonal Condi	tions:	Dry		Age Since Last Fi	re:	>10 years	
Soil Type:		Sandy clay loa	m	Soil Colour:	Light red	Soil Type:		Clay loam wit	h gravel	Soil Colour:		Red brown	
Surface Rocks S	ize/Shape:	20-50cm block	ky 🛛	Surface Rock Cover (%):	70%	Surface Rocks S	Size/Shape:	1-2cm		Surface Rock Cov	ver (%):	1%	
Rock Type:		Ironstone				Rock Type:		Ironstone					
Landform		Midslope				Landform		Plain					
Slope aspect		South				Slope aspect		Very gentle to	south				
Vegetation Des	cription	Tall open shru	bland, spar	se mid shrubland		Vegetation Des	cription	Isolated snake	ewood, low	woodland, A. aneur	a tall oper	n shrubland	
Condition Good				Condition		Good							
Disturbances Moderate to heavy goat grazing, exploration clearing frequent				Disturbances		Heavy grazing	g, occasiona	al tracks, many sene	sced shrub	S			
Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species			Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species				
Overstorey	2./	5	A.aneura	:/_ /_tu_h_; /_tu_h_;		Overstorey	10		Acacia pi	ruinocarpa			
Ividstorey			Liremoph	lia latrobel ssp. latrobel	rictida balathara	Indersterey	3	15	Acacia ai	neura, A SIDINa	actii		
Concervation S	U.3		iviaireana	viliosa, Ptilotus odovatus, Al	nsuua noiatnera	Conconvotion 5	⊥ ignificant Elar		Eremopr	illa lorrestil ssp. fori	1 Eremophila forrestii ssp. forrestii		
Conservation Significant Flora: none													

Beebyn 11 Weld Range -Detailed Flora and Vegetation Survey Appendix C – Detailed Flora and Vegetation Sites

Site: E5	WP-NW-(E) 575901	(N) 7021026	Site: E6	WP-NW-(E) 576962	(N) 7022100
Date: 15/11/2023	WP-NE-(E) 575856	(N) 7021028	Date: 15/11/2023	WP-NE-(E) 576977	(N) 7022085
Botanist: EH	WP-SE-(E) 575855	(N) 7021008	Botanist: EH	WP-SE-(E) 576963	(N) 7022069
Site Type / Size: Quadrat, 20 x 20 m	WP-SW-(E) 575833	<b>(N)</b> 7021009	Site Type / Size: Quadrat, 20 x 20 m	WP-SW-(E) 576948	(N) 7022082





Seasonal Condit	tions:	Dry		Age Since Last Fire:	>10 years	Seasonal Cond	itions:	Dry		Age Since Last Fire:	>10 years
Soil Type:		Clay loam with	n gravel	Soil Colour:	Red brown	Soil Type:		Clay loam with	gravel	Soil Colour:	Red brown
Surface Rocks S	ize/Shape:	2-5cm angular	r	Surface Rock Cover (%):	25%	Surface Rocks	Size/Shape:	2-5cm		Surface Rock Cover (%):	20%
Rock Type:		Ironstone				Rock Type:		Ironstone			
Landform		Plain				Landform		Plain			
Slope aspect Very gentle to south			Very gentle to south				Slope aspect Very gentle to south				
Vegetation Des	cription	Tall sparse shr	ubland, lov	w sparse shrubland, isolated tu	ussock grasses	Vegetation Des	cription	Sparse tall shru	bland, sp	arse low shrubland, isolated tu	ssock grasses
Condition		Good	od			Condition		Good			
Disturbances		Occasional tra	cks, moder	rate grazing, sheet erosion		Disturbances		Moderate to high grazing intensity, sheet erosion			
Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species			Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species		
Overstorey	2.5	5	A.aneura	A.aneura		Overstorey	2.5	2	A. aneura, A. sclerosperma, A. aneura wider leaf		vider leaf
Midstory	0.4	1	Eremopl	Eremophila punicea			0.45	0.5	Eremophila punicea		
Understorey	0.15	0.1	Aristida	holathera		Understorey	0.2	0.2	Aristida	holathera, Ptilotus schwartzii	
Conservation Significant Flora: none Conservation Significant Flora: none											

Site: E/			WP-NW-(E) 57/136 (N		/023624	Site: E8			WP-NW-	(E) 580433	<b>(N)</b> 702	5448
Date: 15/11/2023			WP-NE-(E	:) 577158 (N)	7023640	Date: 16/11/20	23		WP-NE-(I	<b>E)</b> 580452	<b>(N)</b> 702	5448
Botanist: EH			WP-SE-(E)	) 577169 (N)	7023623	Botanist: EH			WP-SE-(E	) 580448	<b>(N)</b> 702	5428
Site Type / Size	e: Quadrat, 20 x	20 m	WP-SW-(	E) 577156 (N)	7023605	Site Type / Size	<b>e:</b> Quadrat, 20 x	20 m	WP-SW-(	<b>E)</b> 580430	<b>(N)</b> 702	5433
	NE .30 0 115	E SE (T) • 50	577140 7	SE S 150 10 100 7023636 ±5m ▲ 527m	· · · · · <sup>2</sup>		60 1 • 1 • 1 • 1 ◎ 147°	•   •   • <sup>120</sup> •   •   •   SE (T)	SE •   •   580432	S 180 1 • 1 • 1 • 1 • 1 • 1 • 1 7025452 ±5m ▲ 5	SV 210 1 • 1 • 514m	V 244 1 • 1
	Weld Range Animal Plant Mine	arry La			E7 18:22:46		Weld Range Animal Plant Miner	al Pty Ltd			v 2023, 06:	
Seasonal Condi	itions:	Dry		Age Since Last Fire:	>10 years	Seasonal Cond	itions:	Dry soil		Age Since Last Fir	e:	>10 years
Soil Type:		Clay loam wit	h gravel	Soil Colour:	Red brown	Soil Type:		Clay loam with	n gravel	Soil Colour:		Red brown
Surface Rocks	Size/Shape:	2-7cm blocky		Surface Rock Cover (9	<b>%):</b> 25%	Surface Rocks	Size/Shape:	2-5cm blocky		Surface Rock Cov	er (%):	5%
Rock Type:		Ironstone				Rock Type:		Ironstone				
Landform		Plain				Landform		Plain				
Slope aspect		Very gentle to	o south			Slope aspect		Very gentle to	south			
Vegetation Des	scription	Sparse mid sh	nrubland, sp	parse low shrub		Vegetation De	scription	Tall open shru assimilis, Erem	bland A.aı Iophila for	neura, G.striata, A. silv restii, Isolated tussoc	very. Mid k grasses	shrubland A.
Condition		Good				Condition		Good				
Disturbances		Moderate to	neavy grazi	ng. Sheet erosion, occasi	ional tracks.	Disturbances		Moderate graz	zing, occas	sional tracks		
Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species			Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	%) Species			
Overstorey	0	0	Acacia a	neura Acacia mulganeur	а	Overstorey	4	10	A. aneura, G. obliquistigma			
Midstorey	1.6	1	Eremopi	hila punicea, E. latrobei s	ubsp. latrobei	Midstorey	2.2	5	5 <i>A.assimilis, E. forrestii</i>			
Understorey 0.3			0.5 <i>Ptilotus obovatus, Aristida holathera, Swainsona purpurea</i>				0.6	20	Ptilotus calostachyus, Eriachne pulchella, Eragrostis eriopoda			
Conconvotion S	ignificant Flor	a: none				Conservation Significant Flora: none						

Site: E9			WP-NW-(E) 581443         (N) 7025809           WP-NF-(E) 581463         (N) 7025806				Site: E10			WP-NW-(	<b>E)</b> 582029	<b>(N)</b> 7025	941
Date: 16/11/202	3		WP-NE-(E	<b>:)</b> 581463 (	( <b>N)</b> 70258	306	Date: 16/11/202	3		WP-NE-(E	) 582055	(N) 7025	936
Botanist: EH			WP-SE-(E	) 581463 (	( <b>N)</b> 70257	783	Botanist: EH			WP-SE-(E)	582047	(N) 7025	919
Site Type / Size:	: Quadrat, 20 x	20 m	WP-SW-(	E) 581440 (	( <b>N)</b> 70257	785	Site Type / Size	: Quadrat, 20 x	20 m	WP-SW-(I	<b>5</b> 82029	<b>(N)</b> 7025	919
1E	60   •   •   •   •   •	E <sup>90</sup> · · · · · · 1 SE (T) • 50 9	SE	S 150 1 • 1 • 1 • 1 • 1 • 1 7025809 +5m ▲ 51	S • 1 • 1 •	W • 1	1E	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	E <sup>90</sup> I · I · I · I SE (T) • 50 S	SE •   •   • 1 582027	S <sup>50</sup> •   •   •   •   •   • 7025950 ±5m ▲ 5	1 • 1 • 1 505m	SW • 1
Weld Range       E9         Animal Plant Mineral Pty Ltd       16 Nov 2023, 07 40:22								leld Range nimal Plant Miner	Pły Ltd		16 Not	v 2023, 08:1:	E10 3:28
Seasonal Condit	tions:	Dry		Age Since Last Fire	:	>10 years	Seasonal Conditions: Dry				Age Since Last Fir	e:	>10 years
Soil Type:		Clay loam		Soil Colour:		Red brown	Soil Type:	Soil Type: Clay loam			Soil Colour:		Red brown
Surface Rocks S	ize/Shape:	2-5cm blocky		Surface Rock Cover	r (%):	2%	Surface Rocks S	ize/Shape:	2-3cm		Surface Rock Cove	er (%):	1%
Rock Type:		Ironstone					Rock Type:		Ironstone				
Landform		Plain	couth				Landform		Plain	couth			
Vogetation Dec	cription	Sparso tall chi	ubland cn	area low chrubland is	olated tur	cock grasses	Vogetation Dec	rintion	Tall open chru	bland Mid	sparso shrubland Is	olated tur	sock grassos
Condition	cription	Good	ubialiu, sp		olateu tus	SOCK glasses	Condition	inplion	Good		sparse sinubianu, is		SOCK glasses
Disturbances		Moderate gra	zing, occas	ional tracks			Disturbances		Heavy grazing	occasion	al tracks		
Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species				Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species			
Overstorey	5	Species         S           5         A. aneura         C				Overstorey	3	40A. aneura, Grevillea obliquistigma, Acad linophylla			cia ramulosa var		
Midstorey	0.4	2.5	E. forest	ii subsp. forestii, E. pui	nicea		Midstory	1	10	Ptilotus	obovatus, E. forrestii,	, Rhagodia	i eremaea
Understorey	0.3	1	Ptilotus	obovatus, Marieana vi	Understorey	<b>y</b> 0.3 1 <i>Eragrostis eriopoda</i> , <i>Ptilotus calostachyus, Eriachne pulchella</i>					yus, Eriachne		
Conservation Si	gnificant Flora	a: none					<b>Conservation Si</b>	gnificant Flor	a: none				

Site: E11	WP-NW-(E) 578232	<b>(N)</b> 7024708	Site: E12	WP-NW-(E) 579038	<b>(N)</b> 7025138
Date: 16/11/2023	WP-NE-(E) 578255	<b>(N)</b> 7024714	Date: 16/11/2023	WP-NE-(E) 579051	<b>(N)</b> 7025147
Botanist: EH	WP-SE-(E) 578264	<b>(N)</b> 7024688	Botanist: EH	WP-SE-(E) 579064	<b>(N)</b> 7025136
Site Type / Size: Quadrat, 20 x 20 m	WP-SW-(E) 578248	<b>(N)</b> 7024673	Site Type / Size: Quadrat, 20 x 20 m	WP-SW-(E) 579048	<b>(N)</b> 7025125





Seasonal Condit	tions:	Dry	Age Since Last Fire:	>10 years	Seasonal Conditions:		Dry		Age Since Last Fire:	>10 years			
Soil Type:		Clay loam with	gravel Soil Colour:	Red brown	Soil Type:		Clay loam with	gravel	Soil Colour:	Red brown			
Surface Rocks S	ize/Shape:	3-10cm blocky	Surface Rock Cover (%):	5%	Surface Rocks S	Size/Shape:	2-10cm		Surface Rock Cover (%):	5%			
Rock Type:		Ironstone			Rock Type:		Ironstone						
Landform	Plain Landform Upper plain/lower slope												
Slope aspect		Very gentle so	utherly slope		Slope aspect	aspect Gentle southerly slope							
Vegetation Des	cription	Tall sparse shr	ubland, Mid sparse shrubland, Isolated t	ussock grasses	Vegetation Description Isolated low trees, tall open shrubland, mid open shrubl					land			
Condition		Good			Condition		Good						
Disturbances		Heavy grazing	occasional tracks		Disturbances		Heavy grazing	razing					
Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species		Strata	Height (m)	Cover (%)	Species					
Overstorey	3.5	6	A. aneura, A ramulosa var linop	ohylla	Overstorey	10	2	Acacia pruinocarpa					
Midstorey	0.9	0.5	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E.	Acacia ramulosa var linophylla, A. aneura									
Understorey	0.3	0.5	<i>?Swainsona atropurpurea, Eragrostis e exaltatus</i>	riopoda, Ptilotus	Understorey	1.2	15	Eremopi	hila forrestii subsp forrestii				
<b>Conservation Si</b>	gnificant Flor	a: none			Conservation S	ignificant Flor	a: none						

Site: E13			<b>WP-NW-(E)</b> 579751	(N) 7025	5768	Site: E14			WP-NW-(E)	) 581063 (N)	) 70263	43
Date: 16/11/202	3		<b>WP-NE-(E)</b> 579768	(N) 7025	5761	Date: 16/11/202	23	1	WP-NE-(E)	581076 <b>(N</b> )	) 70263	52
Botanist: EH			WP-SE-(E) 579752	(N) 7025	5741	Botanist: EH		1	WP-SE-(E)	581083 (N	) 70263	39
Site Type / Size:	: Quadrat, 20 x	20 m	WP-SW-(E) 579738	(N) 7025	5755	Site Type / Size	e: Quadrat, 20 x	20 m '	WP-SW-(E)	581076 <b>(N</b>	) 70263	30
		128°SE (T) •	SE 120 · 1 · 1 · 1 50 S 579749 7025763	S ±5m ▲ 524m			NE 60 - 1 - 1	6°SE (T) • 50 S	20 S = 15 S 581075 70	2 2 2 2 2 2 3 10 2 10 2 10 2 10 2 10 2 1	SW	
	Weld Range Animal-Plan	t Mineral Pty Ltd		16 Nov 2023, 13:1	E13 17:46		Weld Range Animal Plant Mi	neral Pty Ltd		16 Nov 2023, 1	E14 4:14:49	
Seasonal Condit	Weld Range Animal-Plan tions:	t Mineral Pty Ltd	Age Since	16 Nov 2023, 13:1 • Last Fire:	E13 17:36 >10 years	Seasonal Condi	Weld Range Animal Plant Mi	heral Pty Ltd		16 Nov 2023, 1 Age Since Last Fire:	E14 4:14:49	>10 years
Seasonal Condit Soil Type:	Weld Range Animal-Plan	(Mineral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/o loam	Age Since Clay Soil Colou	16 Nov 2023, 13:1 • Last Fire: ur:	>10 years Red brown	Seasonal Condi Soil Type:	Weld Range Animal Plant Mi	heral Piy Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/c Ioam	clay	Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour:	E14 4:14:49	>10 years Red brown
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S	Weld Range Animat Plan tions: :ize/Shape:	Mineral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/o loam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, roo granite	Age Since Clay Soil Colou Junded Surface Re	16 Nov 2023, 13:1 2 Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%):	<ul> <li>&gt;10 years</li> <li>Red brown</li> <li>30%</li> </ul>	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S	Weld Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape:	Dry Sandy gravel/c loam 5-20cm	clay	Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover (	E14 4:14:49	>10 years Red brown 30%
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type:	Weld Range Animat Plan tions: 5ize/Shape:	Mineral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/d loam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, rot granite Ironstone and	Age Since Clay Soil Colou Junded Surface Ro granite	16 Nov 2023, 13:1 2 Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%):	>10 years           Red brown           30%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type:	Weld Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape:	Dry Sandy gravel/c loam 5-20cm Ironstone	clay	Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover (	(%):	>10 years Red brown 30%
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform	Weld Range Animal-Plan tions:	Mineral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/d Ioam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, rot granite Ironstone and Ephemeral cre	Age Since Clay Soil Colou y unded Surface Ra granite ek	e Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%):	<ul> <li>&gt;10 years</li> <li>Red brown</li> <li>30%</li> </ul>	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform	Weld Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape:	Dry Sandy gravel/c loam 5-20cm Ironstone Ephemeral cree	clay classes classe	Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover (	(%):	>10 years Red brown 30%
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect	Weld Range Animat-Plan tions:	Mineral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/d Ioam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, rot granite Ironstone and Ephemeral cre Gentle slope t	Age Since clay Soil Colou unded Surface Ro granite ek po south	e Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%):	<ul> <li>&gt;10 years</li> <li>Red brown</li> <li>30%</li> </ul>	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect	Weid Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape:	Dry Sandy gravel/c loam 5-20cm Ironstone Ephemeral cre Gentle slope to	ek p south	Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover (	(%):	>10 years Red brown 30%
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Desc	Weld Range Animat-Plan Size/Shape:	Mineral Pty Etd Dry Sandy gravel/o loam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, roo granite Ironstone and Ephemeral cree Gentle slope t Low open woo	Age Since Clay Soil Colou ( unded Surface Re granite ek b south dland, mid shrubland,	a Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%):	Figure 30%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des	Weid Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape: scription	Dry Sandy gravel/c loam 5-20cm Ironstone Ephemeral cree Gentle slope to Low open woo	ek clay ek o south dland, mid s	Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover ( shrubland, isolated tus	(%):	>10 years Red brown 30% asses
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Desc Condition	Weld Range Animat Plan tions: Size/Shape: cription	Mineral Pty Etd Dry Sandy gravel/o loam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, roo granite Ironstone and Ephemeral cre Gentle slope t Low open woo Good	Age Since Clay Soil Colou / unded Surface Re granite ek o south odland, mid shrubland,	a Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%):	F10 years       >10 years       Red brown       30%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition	Weid Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape: scription	Peral Ply Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/c Ioam 5-20cm Ironstone Ephemeral cree Gentle slope to Low open woo Good	ek co south odland, mid s	Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover ( shrubland, isolated tus	(%):	>10 years Red brown 30%
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Desc Condition Disturbances	Weld Pange Animal Plan tions: Size/Shape:	Mineral Pty Etd Dry Sandy gravel/o loam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, roo granite Ironstone and Ephemeral cre Gentle slope t Low open woo Good	Age Since Clay Soil Colou / unded Surface Re granite ek o south odland, mid shrubland, eavy grazing, frequent	a Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%): isolated tussock of t clearing	F10 years Red brown 30% grassland	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition Disturbances	Weld Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape: scription	Peral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/c loam 5-20cm Ironstone Ephemeral cree Gentle slope to Low open woo Good Moderate to h	ek b south b dland, mid s	16 Nov 2023. 1 Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover ( shrubland, isolated tus g, frequent clearing	(%):	>10 years Red brown 30%
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Desc Condition Disturbances Strata	Weld Pange Animat Plan tions: iize/Shape: cription Height (m)	Mineral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/e loam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, rou granite Ironstone and Ephemeral cre Gentle slope t Low open woo Good Moderate to h <b>Cover (%)</b>	Age Since Clay Soil Colou ( unded Surface Ru granite ek co south odland, mid shrubland, eavy grazing, frequent Species	a Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%): isolated tussock of t clearing	Figure 10 years       >10 years       Red brown       30%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition Disturbances Strata	Weld Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape: scription Height (m)	Peral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/c loam 5-20cm Ironstone Ephemeral cree Gentle slope to Low open wood Good Moderate to h <b>Cover (%)</b>	ek c south odland, mid s eavy grazing Species	16 Nov 2023. 1 Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover ( shrubland, isolated tus g, frequent clearing	(%):	>10 years Red brown 30%
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Desc Condition Disturbances Strata Overstorey	Weld Range Animat Plen tions: iize/Shape: cription Height (m) 6	Mineral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/ Ioam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, rou granite Ironstone and Ephemeral cree Gentle slope t Low open woo Good Moderate to h <b>Cover (%)</b> 15	Age Since Clay Soil Colou 7 unded Surface Re granite ek o south odland, mid shrubland, eavy grazing, frequent Species A. aneura, A. ramulo	a Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%): , isolated tussock of t clearing asa var linophylla, p	Filter Stress	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition Disturbances Strata Overstorey	Weld Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape: scription Height (m) 6	Peral Pty Ltd	ek o south odland, mid seavy grazing <b>Species</b> <i>A. aneura,</i>	16 Nov 2023. 1 Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover ( shrubland, isolated tus g, frequent clearing , A. pruinocarpa, A. mu	(%):	>10 years Red brown 30% asses a
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Desc Condition Disturbances Strata Overstorey Midstorey	Weld Range Animat Plen tions: iize/Shape: cription Height (m) 6 1.5	Mineral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/e loam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, roe granite Ironstone and Ephemeral cree Gentle slope t Low open woo Good Moderate to h <b>Cover (%)</b> 15 20	Age Since Clay Soil Colou y unded Surface Re granite ek p south pdland, mid shrubland, eavy grazing, frequent Species A. aneura, A. ramulo E. forrestii ssp. forres eriocalyx	a Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%): isolated tussock of t clearing <i>isa var linophylla, a</i> <i>stii, E. latrobei ssp.</i>	17.36 >10 years Red brown 30% grassland A. pruinocarpa A. latrobei, E.	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition Disturbances Strata Overstorey Midstorey	Weld Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape: scription Height (m) 6 1.5	Peral Pty Ltd	ek o south odland, mid s eavy grazing <b>Species</b> <i>A. aneura,</i> <i>E. latrobei</i>	Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover ( shrubland, isolated tus g, frequent clearing , A. pruinocarpa, A. mu issp. latrobei, E. forrest	(%): (%): (%): (%): (%): (%): (%): (%):	>10 years Red brown 30% assses a a
Seasonal Condit Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Desc Condition Disturbances Strata Overstorey Midstorey Understorey	Weld Range Animat Plen tions: iize/Shape: cription Height (m) 6 1.5 0.4	Mineral Pty Ltd Dry Sandy gravel/e loam 5-20cm blocky ironstones, roo granite Ironstone and Ephemeral cree Gentle slope t Low open woo Good Moderate to h Cover (%) 15 20 10	Age Since Clay Soil Colou y unded Surface Re granite ek o south odland, mid shrubland, eavy grazing, frequent Species A. aneura, A. ramulo E. forrestii ssp. forres eriocalyx Aristida contorta, Cy ovalifolia	a Last Fire: ur: ock Cover (%): isolated tussock of t clearing <i>isa var linophylla, a</i> <i>stii, E. latrobei ssp.</i> <i>umbopogon ambig</i>	1738   >10 years   Red brown   30%   grassland   A. pruinocarpa   A. pruinocarpa   A. pruinocarpa	Seasonal CondiSoil Type:Surface Rocks SRock Type:LandformSlope aspectVegetation DesConditionDisturbancesStrataOverstoreyMidstoreyUnderstorey	Weld Range Animal Plant Mi itions: Size/Shape: scription Height (m) 6 1.5 0.4	heral Pty Ltd	ek o south odland, mid s eavy grazing <b>Species</b> <i>A. aneura,</i> <i>E. latrobei</i> <i>Gastrolob</i> , <i>eriopoda</i>	Age Since Last Fire: Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cover ( shrubland, isolated tus g, frequent clearing , A. pruinocarpa, A. mu issp. latrobei, E. forrest pium laytonii, Cymbopod	(%): (%): (%): ssock gra ulganeura tii ssp. fo ogon am	>10 years Red brown 30% assses a a prrestii, E. georgei bbiguus, Eragrostis

Site: E15		WP-NW-(E) 571896	(N) 7019	9071	Site: E16			WP-NW-(E	<b>)</b> 570143	<b>(N)</b> 701	8629
Date: 16/11/2023		WP-NE-(E) 571912	(N) 7019	9071	Date: 16/11/202	23		WP-NE-(E)	570169	(N) 702	8626
Botanist: EH		WP-SE-(E) 571915	(N) 7019	9052	Botanist: EH			WP-SE-(E)	570165	(N) 701	8601
Site Type / Size: Quadrat	20 x 20 m	WP-SW-(E) 571891	(N) 7019	9052	Site Type / Size	: Quadrat, 20 x	20 m	WP-SW-(E)	570150	(N) 701	8605
NE • 1 • 1 • 1				SW		NE		120 • 1 • 1 • 1	S 150 1 • 1 • 1 • 1 • 1	•   •   •	5 210 1 • 1
0	3/°SE(1) • 50 \$	5/188/ /0190/8 ±5r	m ▲ 493m			0 128	SE (1) • 50 S	57014170	018632±5m ▲	494m	
Weld Range Animal Plant	Alineral Pty Ltd		16 Nov 2023, h6:	E15 15:36		Veld Range nimal Plant Miner	al Pty Ltd		16 N	ov 2023, 16:	E16 56:19
Weld Range Animal Plant Seasonal Conditions:	Ameral Pty Ltd Dry	Age Since La	16 Nov 2023, 16: ast Fire:	E15 15:36 >10 years	Seasonal Condi	Veld Range nimal Plant Miner	al Pty Ltd		16 N Age Since Last Fi	ov 2023, 16: re:	E16 56:19 >10 years
Weld Range Animal Plant Seasonal Conditions: Soil Type:	Alineral Pty Ltd Dry Clay Ioam	Age Since La Soil Colour:	16 Nov 2023, he: ast Fire:	<pre>E15 5:36 &gt;10 years Red brown</pre>	Seasonal Condi Soil Type:	Veld Range Inimal Plant Miner	al Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam		Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour:	ov 2023, 16: re:	<ul> <li>E16 56:19</li> <li>&gt;10 years</li> <li>Red brown</li> </ul>
Weld Range Animal Plant Seasonal Conditions: Soil Type: Surface Rocks Size/Shap	Alineral Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam e: 2-10cm block	Age Since La Soil Colour: / Surface Roc	16 Nov 2023. 16: ast Fire: k Cover (%):	E15 5536 >10 years Red brown 3%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks	Veld Range Inimal Plant Miner Itions: Size/Shape:	al Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky		Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov	ov 2023, 16: re: ver (%):	E16           56:19           >10 years           Red brown           2%
Weld Range Animal Plant Seasonal Conditions: Soil Type: Surface Rocks Size/Shap Rock Type:	Ameral Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam e: 2-10cm block Ironstone	Age Since La Soil Colour: C Surface Roc	16 Nov 2023, 16 ast Fire: k Cover (%):	E15 5:36 >10 years Red brown 3%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type:	Veld Range Inimal Plant Miner Itions: Size/Shape:	al Pty Etd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky Irronstone	,	Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov	ov 2023, 16: re: ver (%):	<ul> <li>E16</li> <li>► 10 years</li> <li>Red brown</li> <li>2%</li> </ul>
Weld Range Animal Plant Seasonal Conditions: Soil Type: Surface Rocks Size/Shap Rock Type: Landform	Ameral Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam e: 2-10cm block Ironstone Drainage or p	Age Since La Soil Colour: / Surface Roc	16 Nov 2023 16 ast Fire: k Cover (%):	E15 15:36 >10 years Red brown 3%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform	Veld Range nimal Plant Miner itions: Size/Shape:	al Pty Etd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky Ironstone Plain		Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov	ov 2023, 16: re: ver (%):	<ul> <li>E16</li> <li>&gt;10 years</li> <li>Red brown</li> <li>2%</li> </ul>
Weld Range Animal Plant Seasonal Conditions: Soil Type: Surface Rocks Size/Shap Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect	Ameral Ptv/Ltd Dry Clay loam e: 2-10cm block Ironstone Drainage or p Very gently to	Age Since La Soil Colour: / Surface Roc	16 Nov 2023, 16: ast Fire: k Cover (%):	E15 15.36 >10 years Red brown 3%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect	Veld Range Joimal Plant Miner itions: Size/Shape:	al Pty Etd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky Ironstone Plain Very gently to	south	Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov	ov 2023, 16: re: ver (%):	E16 56:19 >10 years Red brown 2%
Weld Range Animal Plant Seasonal Conditions: Soil Type: Surface Rocks Size/Shap Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Description	Aneral Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam e: 2-10cm block Ironstone Drainage or p Very gently to Isolated mid to	Age Since La Soil Colour: ( Surface Roc lain south rees, tall open shrubland,	16 Nov 2023 16: ast Fire: k Cover (%):	>10 years Red brown 3%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des	Veld Range Inimal Plant Miner itions: Size/Shape:	al Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky Ironstone Plain Very gently to Sparse tall shr	y south ubland, spar	Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov rse mid shrubland,	ov 2023, 16: re: ver (%): isolated t	<pre>&gt;10 years Red brown 2% ussock grasses</pre>
Weld Range Animal Plant         Seasonal Conditions:         Soil Type:         Surface Rocks Size/Shap         Rock Type:         Landform         Slope aspect         Vegetation Description         Condition	Ameral Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam e: 2-10cm block Ironstone Drainage or p Very gently to Isolated mid to Good	Age Since La Soil Colour: y Surface Roc lain south rees, tall open shrubland,	16 Nov 2023 h6: ast Fire: k Cover (%):	>10 years Red brown 3%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition	Veld Range Inimal Plant Miner itions: Size/Shape:	al Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky Ironstone Plain Very gently to Sparse tall shri Good	y south	Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov rse mid shrubland,	ov 2023, 16: re: ver (%): isolated t	E16 56:19 > 10 years Red brown 2% ussock grasses
Weld Range Animal Plant         Seasonal Conditions:         Soil Type:         Surface Rocks Size/Shap         Rock Type:         Landform         Slope aspect         Vegetation Description         Condition         Disturbances	Ameral Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam e: 2-10cm block Ironstone Drainage or p Very gently to Isolated mid to Good Moderate gra	Age Since La Soil Colour: y Surface Roc lain south rees, tall open shrubland, zing	16 Nov 2023, 16: ast Fire: k Cover (%):	<pre>&gt;10 years &gt;10 years Red brown 3% bland</pre>	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition Disturbances	Veld Range nimal Plant Miner itions: Size/Shape: scription	al Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky Ironstone Plain Very gently to Sparse tall shrt Good	south	Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov rse mid shrubland,	ov 2023, 16: re: ver (%): isolated t	<pre>&gt;10 years Red brown 2% ussock grasses</pre>
Weld Range Animal Plant         Seasonal Conditions:         Soil Type:         Surface Rocks Size/Shap         Rock Type:         Landform         Slope aspect         Vegetation Description         Condition         Disturbances         Strata       Height	Ameral Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam e: 2-10cm block Ironstone Drainage or p Very gently to Isolated mid to Good Moderate gra	Age Since La Soil Colour: y Surface Roc lain south rees, tall open shrubland, zing Species	16 Nov 2023 16: ast Fire: k Cover (%):	>10 years       Red brown       3%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition Disturbances Strata	Veld Range nimal Plant Miner itions: Size/Shape: scription Height (m)	al Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky Ironstone Plain Very gently to Sparse tall shr Good	south ubland, span	Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov rse mid shrubland,	ov 2023, 16: re: ver (%): isolated t	<pre>&gt;10 years Red brown 2% ussock grasses</pre>
Weld Range Animal Plant         Seasonal Conditions:         Soil Type:         Surface Rocks Size/Shap         Rock Type:         Landform         Slope aspect         Vegetation Description         Condition         Disturbances         Strata       Height         Overstorey	Ameral Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam e: 2-10cm block Ironstone Drainage or p Very gently to Isolated mid to Good Moderate gra (m) Cover (%)	Age Since L Soil Colour: Y Surface Roc lain south rees, tall open shrubland, zing Species Acacia pruinocarpa	16 Nov 2023 he: ast Fire: k Cover (%):	>10 years       Red brown       3%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition Disturbances Strata Overstorey	Veld Range nimal Plant Miner itions: Size/Shape: scription Height (m) 3	al Pty Etd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky Ironstone Plain Very gently to Sparse tall shri Good <b>Cover (%)</b> 3	south ubland, span	Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov rse mid shrubland,	ov 2023, 16: re: ver (%): isolated t	<pre>&gt;10 years Red brown 2% ussock grasses</pre>
Weld Range Animal Plant         Seasonal Conditions:         Soil Type:         Surface Rocks Size/Shap         Rock Type:         Landform         Slope aspect         Vegetation Description         Condition         Disturbances         Strata       Height         Overstorey         Midstorey	Ameral Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam e: 2-10cm block Ironstone Drainage or p Very gently to Isolated mid to Good Moderate gra (m) Cover (%) 15 5 4 20	Age Since L Soil Colour: y Surface Roc lain south rees, tall open shrubland, zing Species Acacia pruinocarpa A.aneura	16 Nov 2023 h6: ast Fire: k Cover (%):	>10 years       Red brown       3%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition Disturbances Strata Overstorey Midstorey	Veld Range nimal Plant Miner itions: Size/Shape: scription Height (m) 3 0.4	al Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky Ironstone Plain Very gently to Sparse tall shri Good <b>Cover (%)</b> 3 1	south ubland, spar A.aneura E. punicea	Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov rse mid shrubland,	ov 2023, 16: re: //er (%): isolated t	<pre>&gt;10 years Red brown 2% ussock grasses</pre>
Weld Range Animal Plant         Seasonal Conditions:         Soil Type:         Surface Rocks Size/Shap         Rock Type:         Landform         Slope aspect         Vegetation Description         Condition         Disturbances         Strata       Height         Overstorey         Midstorey         Understorey	Ameral Pty Ltd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm block Ironstone Drainage or p Very gently to Isolated mid to Good Moderate gra (m) Cover (%) 15 5 4 200 1 20	Age Since L Soil Colour: V Surface Roc lain south rees, tall open shrubland, zing Species Acacia pruinocarpa A.aneura Eremophila latrobei, E. Sida calyxhymenia	16 Nov 2023 h6: ast Fire: k Cover (%): , mid open shru	>10 years       Red brown       3%	Seasonal Condi Soil Type: Surface Rocks S Rock Type: Landform Slope aspect Vegetation Des Condition Disturbances Strata Overstorey Midstorey Understorey	Veld Range nimal Plant Miner itions: Size/Shape: cription Height (m) 3 0.4 0.5	al Pty Etd Dry Clay loam 2-10cm blocky Ironstone Plain Very gently to Sparse tall shri Good <b>Cover (%)</b> 3 1 1 0.5	south ubland, span A.aneura E. punicea Eragrostis	Age Since Last Fi Soil Colour: Surface Rock Cov rse mid shrubland, a s eriopoda	ov 2023, 16: re: //er (%): isolated t	<pre>&gt;10 years Red brown 2% ussock grasses</pre>

**APPENDIX D: SPECIES BY SITE MATRIX - FLORA** 

#### Biological Survey - Beebyn 11 - Weld Range Appendix D - Flora Species by Site

Species	Status	E1	E2	E3	E4	E5	E6	E7	E8	E9	E10	E11	E12	E13	E14	E15	E16	Op Col
Acanthaceae																		
Harnieria kempeana	NT				0.1													
Amaranthaceae																		
Ptilotus roei	NT							0.01	0.1			0.1					0.05	
Ptilotus exaltatus	NT											0.5		0.1			0.1	х
Ptilotus ?calostachyus	NT					0.01												
Ptilotus obovatus	NT	1	10	0.3				0.2		1	1	0.1	1	1		2		
Ptilotus rotundifolius	NT			0.1							0.1							
Ptilotus schwartzii	NT			0.05			0.1		1	0.1	0.1				0.1			х
Apocynaceae																		
Cynanchum floribundum	NT										0.01			0.1		0.1		
Asteraceae																		
Cephalipterum drummondii	NT								0.01					0.4				x
Pluchea dentex	NT													0.1			0.1	х
Boraginaceae																		
Euploca ovalifolia	NT													2				
Brassicaceae																		
Lepidium oxytrichum	NT			0.01														
Stenopetalum filifolium	NT							0.1			0.1			1				
Chenopodiaceae																		
Dysphania rhadinostachya	NT		0.5															
Enchylaena tomentosa	NT											0.02				0.5		
Eriochiton sclerolaenoides	NT				0.01	0.1	0.1			0.05	0.01	0.1				1.1		
Maireana villosa	NT	0.1	0.01	1	0.1					0.6		0.02						х
Rhagodia eremaea	NT										8							х
Sclerolaena densiflora	NT					0.01												
Convolvulaceae																		
Duperreya commixta	NT												0.01		0.01			
Fabaceae																		
?Swainsona purpurea	NT					0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1		0.5		0.3				
Acacia aneura	NT	0.1	0.5		8	0.6	2	0.5	5	5	24	4	5.1	10	3.2	10	3	
Acacia craspedocarpa	NT	2											0.1					

Acacia mulganeura	NT							0.5					0.5		5			
Acacia pruinocarpa	NT	4	0.1		1									5	6	5		
Acacia pteraneura	NT	4																
Acacia ramulosa var linophylla	NT										5	2	6	5	0.2		0.5	х
Acacia rhodophloia	NT																	х
Acacia sclerosperma	NT						0.3											
Acacia sibina	NT				6	0.5			15									х
Acacia tetragonophylla	NT	0.1	0.1													0.2		
Gastrolobium laytonii	NT														3			
Senna artemisioides ssp helmsii	NT																0.1	
Senna artemisioides ssp sturtii	NT												1					х
Senna glutinosa ssp chatelainiar	NT		0.5										0.7					
Goodeniaceae																		
Goodenia mimuloides	NT		0.1		0.1													
Goodenia tenuiloba	NT											0.01		0.1				
Lamiaceae																		
Dicrastylis ?sessilifolia	NT		0.1															
Teucrium teucriiflorum	NT			0.01					0.01							1		
Malvaceae																		
Abutilon cryptopetalum	NT	0.1		0.1							0.1			0.1		1		
Hibiscus ?krichauffianus	P3														0.01			
Sida calyxhymenia	NT	0.11														5	0.01	х
Sida ectogama	NT				0.01							0.01						
Sida sp	NT	0.01		0.01	0.05						0.01							
Myrtaceae																		
Thryptomene decussata	NT		4.5															
Poaceae																		
Aristida contorta	NT													5				
Aristida holathera	NT			0.2		0.1	0.1	0.1		0.01		0.02						
Cymbopogon ambiguus	NT													2	0.2			
Eragrostis eriopoda	NT	0.1			0.01	0.01	0.01	0.1	1	0.1	0.1	0.5		0.1	0.2		0.3	
Eragrotis sp														0.1		0.1		
Eriachne ?mucronata	NT		0.1												0.1	0.1	0.1	

Eriachne pulchella	NT	0.01							0.1	0.01	0.1					0.1	0.1	
Monachather paradoxus	NT	0.05			0.01							0.02		0.2				
Paspalidium clementii	NT		0.01															
Thyridolepis multiculmis	NT															0.2		
Proteaceae																		
Grevillea obliquistigma	NT								5		10							
Pteridaceae																		
?Cheilanthes	NT			0.01												0.1		
Rubiaceae																		
Psydrax latifolia	NT	0.1	0.1	0.3							1		2.1	1	6	0.4		
Psydrax suaveolens	NT	0.01							0.5		0.1	0.1	0.02	0.1				
Rutaceae																		
Philotheca brucei	NT		1															
Santalaceae																		
Exocarpos aphyllus	NT	0.5																
Santalum spicatum	NT														2			
Sapindaceae																		
Dodonaea pachyneura	NT		1															
Scrophulariaceae																		
Eremophila compacta	NT										0.5							
Eremophila eriocalyx	NT													1				
Eremophila foliosissima	NT					0.1												
Eremophila forrestii ssp forrestii	NT	8							15	1		0.52	10	15	5	0.5		
Eremophila georgei	NT										0.2	0.02		0.1	0.1	5		х
Eremophila glutinosa	NT	0.3											0.2					
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latro	NT	0.2	5	0.5		0.1		0.05			0.5		0.1	1	5.1	5.5		
Eremophila margarethae	NT					0.3												
Eremophila punicea	NT					1	0.5	0.3		0.5							1	
Eremophila serrulata	NT	0.1											3	0.5				
Solanaceae																		
Solanum lasiophyllum	Mixed											0.01					0.1	х
Indet. climber																0.1		

**APPENDIX E: FAUNA LIKELIHOOD OF OCCURRENCE ASSESSMENT - FAUNA** 

Species	Common Name	Conse C BC Act	ervation ode EPBC Act	Relevant Habitat Preference	Assessment of Occurrence
Birds					
Aphelocephala leucopsis	Southern whiteface	-	VU	Most of mainland Australia south of the tropics, from the north- eastern edge of the Western Australian wheatbelt, east to the Great Dividing Range (DCCEEW 2023b). Open woodlands and shrublands where there is an understorey of grasses or shrubs, or both. These areas are usually in habitats dominated by acacias or eucalypts on ranges, foothills and lowlands, and plains (Higgins and Peter 2002).	Likely. 10 records within 15 km between 2001 and 2009. All habitats are suitable; however habitat quality is low due to lack of groundcover.
Apus pacificus	Fork-tailed Swift	MI	MI	Broadly distributed aerial species that is not specifically limited to any particular habitat type. Aerial: over open country, from semi-arid deserts to coasts, islands; sometimes over forests, cities (Pizzey and Knight, 2012). Occurs over dry or open habitats comprising of riparian woodland, low scrub, heathland, or saltmarsh, also grasslands and sandplains with spinifex (Morcombe, 2011).	Likely. Listed by the PMST as Likely to occur, but no records available within 30 km. This species is distributed across Australia. It is an aerial species that rarely comes to land. Individuals would not be specifically dependant on any habitats present in the Survey Area.
Calidris acuminata	Sharp-tailed Sandpiper	MI	VU, MI	Scarce to moderately common (much more plentiful near coasts than in interior) (Johnstone and Storr, 1998). Tidal mudflats, saltmarshes, mangroves; shallow fresh, brackish or saline inland wetlands; floodwaters, irrigated pastures and crops; sewage ponds, saltfields. Widespread summer migrant to coastal and inland Australia (Pizzey and Knight, 2012).	Unlikely. No suitable habitat. No records in the local area. PMST considers the species May occur.
Calidris ferruginea	Curlew Sandpiper	CR	CR, MI	Mainly shallows of estuaries and near-coastal saltlakes (including saltwork ponds) and drying near-coastal freshwater	Unlikely. No suitable habitat.

Species	Common Name	Cons C BC Act	ervation Code EPBC Act	Relevant Habitat Preference	Assessment of Occurrence
				lakes and swamps. Also beaches and near-coastal sewage ponds (Johnstone and Storr, 1998) Tidal mudflats; saltmarsh, saltfields; fresh, brackish or saline wetlands; sewage ponds (Pizzey and Knight, 2012).	No records in the local area. PMST considers the species May occur.
Calidris melanotos	Pectoral Sandpiper	MI	MI	Mainly fresh waters (swamps, lagoons, river pools, irrigation channels and sewage ponds); also, samphire flats around estuaries and saltlakes (Johnstone and Storr, 1998). Shallow fresh waters, often with low grass or other herbage; swamp margins, flooded pastures, sewage ponds, occasionally tidal areas, saltmarshes (Pizzey and Knight, 2012).	Unlikely. No suitable habitat. No records in the local area. PMST considers the species May occur.
Falco hypoleucos	Grey Falcon	VU	VU	Mainly lightly wooded and coastal riverine flats (Johnstone and Storr, 1998). Lightly treed and inland plains; gibber deserts, sandridges, pastoral lands, timbered watercourses; seldom in driest deserts (Pizzey and Knight, 2012).	Possible. The Survey Area contains potentially suitable foraging habitat. No suitable nesting habitat is present or nearby. Listed by EPBC as May Occur in the feature area. No records occur on the DBCA database within 30 km, the ALA lists a few records within 50 km however they are undated and of low spatial accuracy.
Falco peregrinus	Peregrine Falcon	OS	-	Mainly about cliffs along coasts, rivers and ranges, and about wooded watercourses and lakes (Johnstone and Storr, 1998). Cliffs, gorges, timbered watercourses, environs of rivers, wetlands, plains, open woodlands, pylons, spires, buildings (Pizzey and Knight, 2012).	Possible. Habitats in the Weld Range are suitable. Two local records from 1979 and 2001. Foraging habitat present.
Leipoa ocellata	Malleefowl	VU	VU	Semi-arid to arid shrublands and low woodlands, especially those dominated by mallee and/or acacias. A sandy substrate and abundance of leaf litter are required for breeding.	Possible. PMST considers likely to occur, however species records are 50 km or more to the south, and groundcover/litter is sparse with clay soils so habitat

Species	Common Name	Conse C BC Act	ervation ode EPBC Act	Relevant Habitat Preference	Assessment of Occurrence
				Densities of the birds are generally greatest in areas of higher rainfall and on more fertile soils where habitats tend to be thicker and there is an abundance of food plants (Benshemesh, 2007).	quality poor for nest construction. Ecologia (2009) reported old inactive mounds present.
<i>Motacilla cinerea</i>	Grey Wagtail	MI	MI	Mainly banks and rocks in fast-running fresh water habitats; rivers, creeks, streams and around waterfalls, both in forest and open country; but occurs almost anywhere during migration. Flits from rock to rock, and often enters water after insects (or performs flycatcher sallies after them) (Johnstone and Storr, 2004). In Australia, near running water in disused quarries; sandy, rocky streams in escarpments and rainforests; sewage ponds, ploughed fields, airfields (Pizzey and Knight, 2012).	Unlikely. No suitable habitat. No records in the local area. PMST considers the species May occur.
Motacilla flava	Yellow Wagtail	MI	MI	Damp short-grass flats: rice stubbles and edge of swamps, sewage ponds, bore overflows, grazed or mowed grass and irrigated areas (Johnstone and Storr, 2004).	Unlikely. No suitable habitat. No records in the local area. PMST considers the species May occur.
Pezoporus occidentalis	Night Parrot	CR	EN	Treeless or sparsely wooded spinifex <i>Triodia</i> spp. near water (including artesian bores) (Johnstone and Storr, 1998). Seeding spinifex on stony rises, breakaway country, sandy lowlands; shrubby glasswort, chenopods; succulents on flats around salt lakes; flooded claypans saltbush, bluebush, bassia associations (Pizzey and Knight, 2012).	Unlikely. No local records. Habitat modelling includes the Survey Area at the extremity of the species potential extent and PMST list as May occur. Foraging resources are limited, no spinifex mounds are present.
Mammals					
Antechinomys Iongicaudata	Long-tailed Dunnart	P4		A specialist rock dwelling species (Freeland <i>et al.</i> 1988). It prefers exposed rock and stony soils with hummock grasses	Present. Suitable habitat in the Banded Ironstone Ridge habitat and Drainage Lines between ridges.

Species	Common Conservation Name BC EPBC Act Act		ervation ode EPBC Act	Relevant Habitat Preference	Assessment of Occurrence	
				and shrubs, on flat-topped hills, lateritic plateaus, sandstone ranges and breakaways.		
Dasycercus blythi	Brush-tailed Mulgara	P4	-	Inhabits spinifex grasslands and burrows on the flats between low sand dunes (Van Dyck and Strahan, 2008).	Unlikely. No suitable habitat. The local record is a fossilised specimen described from Wilgie Mia (Baynes 1984).	
Leporillus conditor	greater stick- nest rat	CD	VU	The Northern Quoll will usually den in hollow tree trunks (Hill and Ward, 2010) or in small caves and crevices in rocky outcrops.	Unlikely. The species is conservation dependent in WA. The local record is a fossilised specimen described from Wilgie Mia (Baynes 1984)	
Macroderma gigas	Ghost Bat	VU	VU	Their distribution is influenced by the availability of suitable caves and mines for roost sites (Churchill 2008). They prey on large insects, frogs, birds, lizards and small mammals including other bats. They swoop on their prey killing with powerful bites, then fly to a feeding site to eat (Australian Museum 2023).	Unlikely. The database record is a fossilised bat and a scat (Baynes 1984) of unreported age. The species is not known to persist in the Murchison.	
Macrotis lagotis	Bilby	VU	VU	Occupy a variety of inland habitats including grass and stony downs country on cracking clays, desert sandplains and dune fields of laterite with hummock grassland and massive red earths with <i>Acacia</i> shrubland (Van Dyck and Strahan, 2008).	Unlikely. The local record has a low level of certainty and was recorded in 1984. Modelled current species distribution does not predict it to occur in the Survey Area (DCCEEW 2024b).	
<i>Petrogale lateralis lateralis</i>	black-flanked rock-wallaby	EN	EN	Occur where suitable shelter and food co-exist. During the daytime they shelter under deep shade in rocky areas such as caves, cliffs, screes and rockpiles, and emerge at dusk to feed on grasses, forbs, shrubs and occasionally seeds and fruits. Feeding occurs as near to shelter as possible, especially where exotic predators are present (TSSC 2016).	Unlikely. Habitat at the Weld Range is likely suitable, however modelling of the current range of the species does not include the Survey Area. The local record is a fossilised specimen described from Wilgie Mia (Baynes 1984), and presence in the region is historic only.	
Pseudomys gouldii	Gould's mouse, Shark Bay mouse	VU	VU	Current distribution restricted to offshore islands.	Unlikely. The current range of the species does not include the Survey Area. The local record is a fossilised specimen described from Wilgie Mia	

Species	Conservation Common Name BC EPBC Act Act		ervation ode EPBC Act	Relevant Habitat Preference	Assessment of Occurrence		
					(Baynes 1984), and presence in the region is historic only.		
Reptiles							
Egernia stokesii badia	Western Spiny-tailed Skink	VU	EN	In the Murchison the black form inhabits rock crevices, predominantly in granite whalebacks and outcrops (Ecologia 2010).	Possible. Modelled as likely to occur in the buffer area only. Records 40 km to the west from 2006 and 2010. No granite outcrops are present but suitable habitat may be present in the BIF outcrops.		
Lerista eupoda	West Coast mulga slider	Coast P1 a slider		Restricted to the arid southern interior between Cue and Meekatharra, in open mulga on red loams and sandy loams (Smith 1996). Local records are in lower slopes/upper plain habitats, often near drainage lines.	Likely. Multiple records from nearby and suitable habitat is present in the lower slopes/upper plains habitat.		
Invertebrates							
Idiosoma clypeatum	northern shield-backed trapdoor spider	P3	-	Widespread in the Murchison and Yalgoo regions,	Present. The distribution of the population occurs across the length of the Weld Range, with the majority of individuals being concentrated at the northern end of the range.		
Idiosoma nigrum	Shield-backed Trapdoor Spider		VU	Has a restricted distribution in the central and central-western Wheatbelt bioregion of south-western Australia (Rix et al 2018). Generally found in microhabitats associated with low-lying woodlands or bush vegetation (Main 2003).	Unlikely. The PMST considers that the species is known to occur in the feature area, however Rix et al (2018) taxonomic revision determine all specimens in the Murchison region to be <i>I. clypeatum</i>		

#### **Completed by: Animal Plant Mineral Pty Ltd**

ABN:	86 886 455 949
Tel:	(08) 6507 5175
Address:	PO Box 410 Bassendean, Western Australia 6054
Website:	www.animalplantmineral.com.au

#### For further information on this report please contact:

Dr Mitchell Ladyman

Tel: 0437 307 008

Email: mitch@animalplantmineral.com.au

#### Disclaimer

In the preparation of this document, Animal Plant Mineral Pty Ltd (APM) has relied on data, plans and other information provided by Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited. Except as otherwise stated in the Report, APM has not verified the accuracy or completeness of the information. APM will not be liable in relation to incorrect conclusions or recommendations should any data or information, be incorrect, misrepresented or otherwise not fully disclosed to APM. Within the limitations imposed by the commission, the assessment of the site and preparation of the report have been undertaken in accordance with generally accepted practices using a degree of care ordinarily exercised by professional resource and environmental consultants. No other warranty expressed or implied is made.

#### **MARCH 2020**

Providing sustainable environmental strategies, management and monitoring solutions to industry and government.



FENIX RESOURCES

This page has been left blank intentionally.

Document Status								
Rev.	Author(a)	Reviewer	Date	Approved for Issue				
	Author(s)			Name	Distributed To	Date		
0	Rob Sellers Tim McCabe Andrew Craigie	Shaun Grein	28/11/2019	S Grein	J Shepherdson R Brierley	28/11/2019		
1	Rob Sellers Alice O'Connor	Shaun Grein	20/02/2020	S Grein	J Shepherdson	20/02/2020		
2	Andrew Craigie	Shaun Grein	20/03/2020	S Grein	J Shepherdson R Brierley	20/03/2020		

*ecologia* Environment (2020). Reproduction of this report in whole or in part by electronic, mechanical or chemical means, including photocopying, recording or by any information storage and retrieval system, in any language, is strictly prohibited without the express approval of *ecologia* or Fenix Resources.

ecologia Environment 463 Scarborough Beach Rd OSBORNE PARK WA 6017 Phone: 08 6168 7200 Email: admin@ecologia.com.au



This page has been left blank intentionally.

#### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

*ecologia* Environment (*ecologia*) was engaged by Fenix Resources Ltd. (Fenix) to conduct a detailed flora and vegetation survey and a Level 1 fauna and fauna habitat assessment, including a targeted survey for the Priority 3 listed *Idiosoma clypeatum* (northern shield-backed trapdoor spider), and a stygofauna survey to support environmental approvals for the proposed Iron Ridge Project over tenement M20/118 (the 'study area') located approximately 55 km northwest of Cue in the Murchison region. The current survey was conducted between the 2<sup>nd</sup> and 6<sup>th</sup> September 2019 and expands on a reconnaissance flora and fauna habitat survey conducted by *ecologia* in July 2019.

#### Flora and Vegetation

A total of 171 vascular plant taxa (species, infraspecific taxa, and phrase names) representing 37 families and 93 genera were recorded from 24 sampling sites and additional opportunistic records within the study area. No EPBC Act (1999) or BC Act (2016) listed Threatened species were recorded, however, eight state listed Priority species were recorded, including *Acacia dilloniorum* (Priority 1), *Stenanthemum patens* (Priority 1), *Hemigenia virescens* (Priority 3), *Micromyrtus placoides* (Priority 3), *Prostanthera petrophila* (Priority 3), *Acacia speckii* (Priority 4), *Dodonaea amplisemina* (Priority 4), and *Grevillea inconspicua* (Priority 4). Of these species, *A. dilloniorum*, *S. patens*, *M. placoides*, *P. petrophila*, *A. speckii*, and *D. amplisemina* have been recorded from the proposed infrastructure development envelope. Three introduced plant species were recorded from the study area: *Cuscuta planifolia*, *Lysimachia arvensis*, and *Rostraria pumila*. No Weeds of National Significance (WONS) or Declared Pests were recorded.

Hierarchical cluster analysis was conducted using floristic data collected from 24 sampling sites surveyed within the study area. Based on this analysis, ten vegetation types were described and delineated. None of the vegetation types were assessed as corresponding to any National or State listed TEC, nor were any considered to be regionally significant based on available data. However, most vegetation types are associated with the Priority 1 PEC 'Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)', the spatial extent of which is defined by the DBCA and includes a 500 m administrative buffer. Within the study area, 263.80 ha of vegetation occurs within the DBCA defined PEC boundary, of which 78.4 ha is within the proposed project infrastructure envelope, representing 0.3% of the total extent of the PEC. Five vegetation types may also be considered locally significant on the basis of supporting populations of Priority 1 listed species, having high overall species diversity, or being locally restricted.

Vegetation condition across most of the study area was assessed as Very Good to Excellent, with no or minimal weed invasion in most areas and only minor grazing impacts.

#### Vertebrate Fauna

A Level 1 vertebrate fauna and fauna habitat assessment of the study area, including targeted searches for conservation significant fauna, was undertaken concurrently with detailed flora and vegetation survey. Fauna habitat assessments were undertaken at 12 sites to obtain representative examples of fauna habitats present. Four broad fauna habitats were identified, described and mapped within the study area. Habitats were generally assessed to be in Very Good to Excellent condition. The landforms, land systems and habitat types identified during the survey are considered locally common and the survey did not identify any restricted conservation significant vertebrate fauna habitat, or habitats that were restricted to the survey area itself.

Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and Acacia speckii dominated shrubland on mid and lower slopes provides suitable habitat for the Priority 3 (BC Act) northern shield-backed trapdoor spider (*Idiosoma clypeatum*) while mulga (*Acacia aneura*) woodland over ironstone ridge crests and slopes provides suitable habitat for the Priority 4 (BC Act) long-tailed dunnart (*Sminthopsis* 


*longicauda*). The thick leaf litter associated with the minor drainage line supporting dense shrubs habitat provides shelter for the Priority 1 (BC Act) west coast mulga slider (*Lerista eupoda*).

Fifteen vertebrate fauna species were recorded during the survey including 13 bird, one mammal and one reptile species. These represent the potential vertebrate fauna of the survey area; however, species other than those recorded are likely to occur.

Five northern shield-backed trapdoor spider (*Idiosoma clypeatum* (Priority 3 BC Act)) burrows were recorded within the *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and *Acacia speckii* shrubland on mid and lower slopes habitat type under acacias that exhibit narrow phyllodes. The Iron Ridge study area only contains a small area of suitable habitat (4.29% of the total study area) for this species. Survey effort within suitable habitat for this species was considered adequate.

Previous survey within the Weld Range have recorded the long-tailed dunnart (*Sminthopsis longicauda* (Priority 4 (BC Act)) which has been given a likelihood of occurrence rating of 'Likely (1)' within the mulga woodland over ironstone ridge crests and slopes habitat type. The peregrine falcon has also been recorded on multiple occasion within the Weld Range and has been given a likelihood of occurrence rating of 'Likely (1)'. This species may overfly all habitat types without utilising any part of the study area in particular.

Seventeen species of conservation significance were deemed unlikely to occur due to the lack of suitable habitat including four species of mammal, 12 birds and one reptile.



# TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUT	TIVE SUMMARY	III
1	INTRODUCTION	1
1.1	PROJECT BACKGROUND	1
1.2	SURVEY OBJECTIVES	1
1.3	LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY FRAMEWORK	1
2	METHODOLOGY	4
2.1	DESKTOP STUDY	4
2.2	FLORA AND VEGETATION	5
2.3	VERTEBRATE FAUNA	8
2.4	ANIMAL ETHICS	10
2.5	STUDY TEAM AND LICENCES	11
2.6	LIMITATIONS AND CONSTRAINTS	12
3	DESKTOP STUDY	14
3.1	CLIMATE	14
3.2	IBRA 7 BIOGEOGRAPHIC SUBREGIONS	14
3.3	LAND SYSTEMS, GEOLOGY, AND SOILS	15
3.4	CONSERVATION RESERVES AND NATIONALLY IMPORTANT WETLANDS	16
3.5	FLORA AND VEGETATION	21
3.6	SIGNIFICANT ECOLOGICAL COMMUNITIES	29
3.7	OTHER SIGNIFICANT ECOSYSTEMS	30
3.8	TERRESTRIAL FAUNA	32
3.9	PREVIOUS BIOLOGICAL SURVEYS NEAR THE STUDY AREA	36
4	FIELD SURVEY RESULTS	39
4.1	FLORA AND VEGETATION	39
4.2	VERTEBRATE FAUNA	55
5	DISCUSSION	64
5.1	FLORISTIC DIVERSITY	64
5.2	VEGETATION	64
5.3	VERTEBRATE FAUNA	66
6	REFERENCES	68
7	APPENDICES	71



# TABLES

Table 2.1: Databases queried for the desktop study4
Table 2.2: Criteria used to assess the likelihood of occurrence of conservation significant species and communities
Table 2.3: EPA Vegetation Condition Scale (EPA 2016c).         8
Table 2.4: Habitat Condition Assessment9
Table 2.5: Study team and licences 11
Table 2.6: Flora and vegetation survey limitations.         12
Table 2.7: Fauna survey limitations
Table 3.1: Land systems associated with the study area (Curry et al. 1994)
Table 3.2: Geomorphology and soils of land systems associated with the study area (Curry et al. 1994)
Table 3.3: Soil units associated with the study area (Northcote et al. 1960-1968)
Table 3.4: Conservation significant plant taxa recorded within 50 km of the study area and theirlikelihood of occurrence.22
Table 3.5: Introduced plant species recorded within 40 km of the study area (NatureMap)
Table 3.6: Pre-European vegetation associated with the study area         26
Table 3.7: Threatened and Priority Ecological communities recorded within 50 km of study area andtheir likelihood of occurrence within the study area.29
Table 3.8: Summary of fauna records         32
Table 3.9: Conservation significant fauna likelihood of occurrence         34
Table 3.10: Summary of significant features identified during biological surveys relevant to the studyarea37
Table 4.1: Summary of conservation significant species recorded within the study area
Table 4.2: Summary of introduced species recorded within the study area         45
Table 4.3: Summary of vegetation types within the study area         48
Table 4.4: Area of potential impact to DBCA defined PEC and vegetation occurring on Weld Range. 51
Table 4.6: Fauna habitat types within the study area55
Table 4.7: Vertebrate species recorded
Table 4.8: Locations of conservation significant fauna.       60

# **FIGURES**

Figure 1.1: S	tudy area and mining related infrastructure3
Figure 3.1: I	Rainfall data from the Beebyn BOM weather station (7001) and temperature data from Meekatharra Airport BOM weather station (7045)14
Figure 3.2:	IBRA 7 subregions (Department of Sustainability Environment Water Population and Communities 2012)



Figure 3.3: Land systems associated with the study area (Curry et al. 1994) 18
Figure 3.4: Soil units associated with the study area (Northcote et al. 1960-1968)
Figure 3.5: Conservation Reserves and Nationally Important Wetlands.
Figure 3.6: DBCA Priority Flora records within 50 km of the study area 25
Figure 3.7: Pre-European vegetation associations (Shepherd et al. 2001)
Figure 3.8: DBCA Priority Ecological Communities (50 km buffer)
Figure 3.9: Conservation significant fauna species found within 100 km of the survey area (DBCA) 35
Figure 4.1: Predicted species accumulation curves for four estimators (bootstrap, Chao, jackknife 1 and jackknife 2) and observed species richness (S) with upper and lower 95% confidence intervals
Figure 4.2: Photos of Priority Flora species recorded within the study area
Figure 4.3: Distribution of Priority Flora species recorded within the study area (ecologia 2019 and Woodman 2012 records)
Figure 4.4: UPGMA dendrogram summarising floristic relationships among quadrats and vegetation types
Figure 4.5: Vegetation types associated with the study area
Figure 4.6: Vegetation condition of the study area
Figure 4.7: Extent of the Priority 1 PEC 'Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)' and vegetation types associated with banded ironstone ranges and dolerite hills
Figure 4.8: Representative photographs of habitat types within the study area
Figure 4.9: Fauna habitat types and assessment sites
Figure 4.10: Idiosoma clypeatum habitat and burrows
Figure 4.11: Locations of conservation significant fauna recorded

# **APPENDICES**

Appendix A	Definitions	72
Appendix B	Vascular flora and Fauna Records (NatureMap) and Birdlife Birdata	83
Appendix C	EPBC protected matters search tool	84
Appendix D	Plant species Inventory	85
Appendix E	Priority Flora species recored within the study area	89
Appendix F	Species constancy within vegetation types	92
Appendix G	Quadrat site data	98
Appendix H	Survey track log	99
Appendix I	Threatened and Priority Flora Report Forms 1	00
Appendix J	Fauna Habitat Assessment Site sheets 1	01



# ACRONYMS

BAM Act	Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Act 2007		
BC Act	Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016		
BOM	Bureau of Meteorology		
CALM	Department of Conservation and Land Management (now DBCA and DWER)		
CSIRO	Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation		
DAFWA	Department of Agriculture and Food Western Australia (now DPIRD)		
DBCA	Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions (previously DPaW)		
DEC	Department of Environment and Conservation (now DBCA)		
DWER	Department of Water and Environmental Regulation		
DoEE	Department of the Environment and Energy (previously DSEWPaC)		
DPaW	Department of Parks and Wildlife (now DBCA)		
DPIRD	Department of Primary Industry and Regional Development		
DSEWPaC	Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and		
	Communities (now DoEE)		
EPA	Environment Protection Authority		
EP Act	Environment Protection Act 1986		
EPBC Act	Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999		
ESCAVI	Executive Steering Committee for Australian Vegetation Information		
IBRA	Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia		
IUCN	International Union for Conservation of Nature		
NVIS	National Vegetation Information System		
PEC	Priority Ecological Community		
SAC	Species accumulation curve		
TEC	Threatened Ecological Community		
TPFL	Threatened and Priority Flora List database		
TPFR	Threatened and Priority Flora Report form		
WA	Western Australia		
WAH	Western Australian Herbarium		
WAHERB	Western Australian Herbarium Specimen Database		
WAOL	Western Australian Organism List		
WC Act	Wildlife Conservation Act 1950		
WONS	Weeds of National Significance		



This page has been left blank intentionally.



# 1 INTRODUCTION

#### 1.1 PROJECT BACKGROUND

*ecologia* Environment (*ecologia*) was engaged by Fenix Resources Ltd. (Fenix) to conduct a detailed flora and vegetation survey, a Level 1 fauna and fauna habitat assessment including a targeted survey for the Priority 3 listed northern shield-backed trapdoor spider (*ldiosoma clypeatum*) and a stygofauna survey to support environmental approvals for the proposed Iron Ridge Project over tenement M20/118 (the 'study area'). The study area is located approximately 55 km northwest of Cue in the Murchison region (Figure 1.1). The current survey was undertaken between 2<sup>nd</sup> and 6<sup>th</sup> September 2019 which followed a reconnaissance flora, vegetation, and fauna habitat survey of the study area conducted by *ecologia* in July 2019. Biological surveys have previously been completed over an 83 ha area in the north-east of the study area (Figure 1.1) (Biologic Environmental 2009; Woodman Environmental 2009, 2012); this area was not surveyed by *ecologia*.

#### 1.2 SURVEY OBJECTIVES

The Environmental Protection Authority's (EPA) environmental objectives for the factors *Flora and Vegetation* (Environmental Protection Authority 2016a) are: "To protect flora and vegetation so that biological diversity and ecological integrity are maintained." In the context, 'ecological integrity' is the composition, structure, function and processes of ecosystems, and the natural range of variation of these elements. The primary objective of this flora and fauna assessment was to provide sufficient information for the EPA to assess the impact of any proposed development on the flora, vegetation and fauna of the study area, thereby ensuring that the EPA's objectives can be met. To this end, the following were provided as part of this assessment:

- A desktop study to evaluate biological values of the study area and surrounds, including a review of existing environmental values, threatened and priority flora, fauna and community databases, and other relevant available literature;
- A single-phase Detailed flora and vegetation survey, including a quadrat-based survey and conservation significant flora searches;
- A Level 1 vertebrate fauna and fauna habitat survey to outline vertebrate fauna present, fauna habitats, significant fauna features and conservation significant fauna;
- A plant species inventory for the study area;
- An inventory and a map of conservation significant flora and fauna species recorded within the study area, and the local and regional distribution of these species where data are available;
- An inventory and a map of Weeds of National Significance (WONS) and Declared Organisms within the study area;
- Description and mapping of vegetation types within the study area;
- Description and mapping of fauna habitat types within the study area;
- A two-phase stygofauna survey of three water bores;
- An assessment of local and regional vegetation significance; and
- Assessment and mapping of the vegetation condition within the study area.

#### 1.3 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

The survey was designed and conducted to comply with the following guidance documents:

- Environmental Factor Guideline: Flora and Vegetation (Environmental Protection Authority 2016a);
- Technical Guidance: Flora and Vegetation Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment (Environmental Protection Authority 2016c);

- Environmental Factor Guideline: Terrestrial Fauna (Environmental Protection Authority 2016b);
- Technical Guidance: Sampling methods for terrestrial vertebrate fauna (Environmental Protection Authority 2016d); and
- Technical Guidance: Terrestrial Fauna Surveys (Environmental Protection Authority 2016e).



# 2 METHODOLOGY

#### 2.1 DESKTOP STUDY

The methodology adopted for the desktop study was consistent with that recommended by Environmental Protection Authority (2016c). A review of background environmental information for the study area was undertaken, including climate (BoM), biogeography (IBRA 7) (Department of Sustainability Environment Water Population and Communities 2012a), land systems (Curry *et al.* 1994), soils (Northcote *et al.* 1960-1968; Tille 2006), and pre-European vegetation (Shepherd *et al.* 2001).

Searches of the databases listed in Table 2.1 and a review of other relevant surveys were conducted to construct a list of conservation significant species and ecological communities previously recorded within or in the vicinity of the study area. The criteria listed in Table 2.2 were then applied to determine the likelihood of occurrence of significant species and communities occurring within the study area given the likely landforms and broad habitats present.

Table 2.1: Databases	aueried for	the desktor	studv
	querieu ior	the acontop	, study

Database	Search details
EPBC Act Protected Matters database	Records of matters of national significance under the EPBC Act within a 40 km search buffer
DBCA Threatened and Priority Ecological Communities Database	All TECs and PECs within a 40 km search buffer
DBCA Threatened and Priority Flora Database (TPFL) and Western Australian Herbarium Specimen Database (WAHERB)	Conservation significant plant species within a 40 km search buffer
DBCA Threatened and Priority Fauna	Conservation significant fauna species within a 50 km search buffer
DBCA NatureMap database	All flora and fauna species records within a 40 km search buffer

# Table 2.2: Criteria used to assess the likelihood of occurrence of conservation significant species and communities

Rating	Criterion
Recorded	The species/community has been recorded within the study area previously or during the current survey.
Likely (1)	The species/community may occur within the study area as suitable habitat is known to be present and there are existing records very close to the study area (within ca. 10 km).
Possible (2)	The species/community may occur within the study area as there are existing records in the vicinity of the study area, and suitable habitat is likely to be present; OR The species/community may occur within the study area as there is insufficient information available to exclude the possibility of occurrence.
Unlikely (3)	The species/community is unlikely to occur within the study area as suitable habitat is not present or is not likely to be present; OR Suitable habitat is present within the study area, but the taxon/community has not been recorded despite reasonable survey effort.
Does not occur	The community is an existing regionally mapped vegetation association (e.g. Shepherd et al. 2011) or land system which does not occur within the study area.



#### 2.2 FLORA AND VEGETATION

#### 2.2.1 Survey Timing and Methodology

An initial reconnaissance flora and vegetation survey of the study area was undertaken over three days between July 3 and 5, 2019 by *ecologia* botanists to provide structural vegetation description mapping for the area and to determine the presence of Priority flora species or suitable habitat for these species. The reconnaissance survey focused on areas proposed for workshop facilities, offices, access roads and other mining related infrastructure to assist Fenix in identifying potential ecological risks and areas to be avoided to allow for planning of the site layout.

The detailed flora and vegetation survey was conducted over five days by *ecologia* botanists between September 2 and 6, 2019. Survey methodologies were in accordance with the *Technical Guidance* – *Flora and Vegetation Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment* (Environmental Protection Authority 2016c). The survey was conducted primarily by sampling vascular plant species within bounded quadrats (50m x 50m in dimension), supplemented by a series of traverses, along which changes in vegetation type and disturbance were periodically noted, supplemented opportunistically records. Opportunistic floristic records collected during traverses are a more time efficient approach to maximising the floristic inventory and increasing the probability of locating taxa of potential significance. However, sampling standardised quadrats allows the vegetation and floristic composition to be consistently recorded and characterised. Both methods contributed to the delineation of vegetation types and a floristic inventory of the study area.

Woodman Environmental Consulting conducted a flora and vegetation survey (Woodman Environmental 2009) and systematic targeted conservation significant flora survey (Woodman Environmental 2012) of a section of the study area (Figure 1.1). However, this area was not surveyed by *ecologia*.

#### 2.2.2 Quadrat Sampling

A total of twenty-four (24) sampling sites (17 quadrats and seven relevés) were surveyed and sampled within the study area during the detailed survey. Site locations were selected using a combination of aerial photography, topographic features, landforms, and field observations to represent the geomorphological and floristic variation found within the study area. Sites were located to avoid transition zones between plant communities and were preferentially placed in areas of intact mature vegetation and minimal disturbance. Where possible, at least three sites were sampled within each vegetation type; however, as final vegetation types are determined post-survey, this is not always feasible. Vegetation types may also have fewer than three sites if they represent relatively small continuous areas. All quadrats had a north-south orientation and were 50 m x 50 m in dimension. In instances where installation of quadrats 50 m x 50 m in dimension was not feasible (e.g. narrow creeks, steep gorges, edges of water bodies), relevés were assessed. In this context, a relevé is an unbounded area, with a size approximate to that of a 50 m x 50 m quadrat, in which floristic data are recorded.

The following parameters were recorded from each site: site number and location; photograph from the north-west corner; size and shape of quadrat, including a GPS coordinate of each corner; dominant growth form, height, cover and up to three species for the three traditional strata (upper, mid and ground) compatible with NVIS Level V (Executive Steering Committee for Australian Vegetation Information 2003); a comprehensive species list (including weeds) and the stratum and estimated percent foliage cover of each; landform and soil type; vegetation condition (Table 2.3) and description of disturbance; and additional information to assist vegetation classification, including slope, aspect, rock type and abundance, litter, and fire history.

#### 2.2.3 Conservation Significant Species

Threatened and Priority flora species identified during the desktop study were targeted during both field surveys, utilising known locations and habitat preferences. The surveys involved searches for species within potential suitable habitat made during traverses walked between sites. Where conservation significant species were observed the following parameters were recorded: recorder and date; location (for individual or localised plants) or population boundary (for more extensive populations, time permitting); number of plants (count, for individual or localised plants) or estimated number of plants for more extensive populations; reproductive state; vegetation type; and landform.

Representative voucher specimens for new populations, where discernible, were collected for submission to the Western Australian Herbarium. Copies of Threatened and Priority flora Report Forms were forwarded to the Species and Communities Branch (DBCA) and included in Appendix I.

#### 2.2.4 Specimen Identification and Vouchering

Plant specimen identification was undertaken with reference to current taxonomic literature and herbarium reference specimens. Scientific names used in this report follow the species concepts currently adopted by the Western Australian Herbarium. Specimens that were believed to differ significantly from typical material were indicated with 'affinity' (aff.). Specimens that could not be adequately identified to genus or species level due to the absence of reproductive material required for positive identification were indicated with a question mark but were not considered to be otherwise anomalous. Atypical specimens were submitted to the Western Australian Herbarium for identification or confirmation.

#### 2.2.5 Species Accumulation Curve Analysis

Sampling adequacy was assessed by extrapolating species accumulation curves (SAC). SACs display the rate at which new species are found within the study area in relation to sampling effort and can be extrapolated to provide an estimate of species richness. As sampling effort increases, the rate at which new species are recorded is reduced until ultimately the number of species recorded reaches the number present. At the point where there is a minimal increase in species richness with continued sampling effort, the sample size is considered adequate. Four incidence-based coverage estimators (Chao 2, bootstrap, jackknife 1 and jackknife 2) were used to extrapolate species richness for the study area. Analysis was performed using the *vegan* package (Oksanen *et al.* 2017) of R 3.5.2 (R Core Team 2016) on combined floristic data from both phases, using 9,999 permutations.

#### 2.2.6 Floristic Classification

Floristic classification using multivariate clustering methods provides an objective and repeatable means of delineating vegetation types within a given geographic area and provides insight into the relationship between types. This classification method is based on the complete plant community at sampled sites rather than just dominant species. It is preferred over structural classification for detailed surveys as it is repeatable, can be more readily placed into a regional context, and is more suitable for the identification of significant vegetation (Environmental Protection Authority 2016c).

All analyses were conducted using the R statistical software package (R Core Team 2016). The Bray-Curtis coefficient was used to calculate a site association matrix from transformed (square root) species percent cover data, and a dendrogram was constructed using hierarchical agglomerative clustering using unweighted arithmetic average clustering (UPGMA). Transformation is used in this case to downplay the relative influence of dominant species while increasing the signal of less abundant species. Similarity Profile Analysis (SIMPROF) was then used as a hypothesis testing-based approach for assessing multivariate group structure, which detects groups of homogenous objects (sampling sites) with respect to a set of descriptors (species). SIMPROF provides a means of stopping unwarranted over-interpretation of group substructure. When no significant group structure is



detected by the test there is no justification for further interpretation of substructure, and sites at this point may be considered homogenous (i.e. vegetation types). The *simprof* function from the *clustsig* package (Whitaker and Christman 2014) was used to determine statistically different clusters of sites ( $\alpha = 0.01$ ), with 9,999 permuted similarity profiles. Some groups identified by SIMPROF can be too fine to meaningfully interpret; in such cases group supersets may be interpreted as vegetation types.

Specimens that could not be positively identified to species level were excluded from the analysis if there was potential for confusion with other similar taxa. Conversely, taxa that could not be fully identified, but were not considered to correspond to any other taxon in the data set, were retained. Infraspecific taxa belonging to the same species were amalgamated if specimens could not be consistently identified to the same level. As all quadrats were assessed during the same survey and season, annual species were retained as they can be important for discriminating types.

### 2.2.7 Vegetation Characterisation

The vegetation types determined by SIMPROF were characterised by the constancy of shared taxa and any diagnostic species. Indicator species analysis using the *indicspecies* package (De Caceres and Legendre 2009) was used to identify diagnostic species for vegetation types. Species with high indicator values are those that occur in all (or most) sites assigned to a vegetation type, but also occur in no (or few) sites outside of that type.

Local scale vegetation types were given descriptions consistent with NVIS Level V – Association (Executive Steering Committee for Australian Vegetation Information 2003), which includes the structural features and dominant or diagnostic species of the type. Plant communities are naturally variable across wide geographic areas, and vegetation types here are delineated based on the overall floristic similarity of sites with various spatial coverage. Therefore, species used in descriptions are those that are most characteristic of the vegetation type but were not necessarily recorded at all sites. Species that are recorded as sometimes dominant in a vegetation type are indicated in the description by "+/-" (Executive Steering Committee for Australian Vegetation Information 2003). The mapping codes used correspond to the most dominant structural formation class (NVIS) present within the type (e.g. SH for shrublands, HG for hummock grasslands etc.).

#### 2.2.8 Vegetation Mapping

Preliminary vegetation mapping of study area was undertaken in the field using aerial imagery and data gathered from ground-truthed sites and other field observations. Vegetation types were determined post-survey using the floristic classification methods described above and applied to these ground-truthed areas. Vegetation type boundaries were then refined using aerial imagery in ESRI ArcMap v.10.3. Given the large size of the study area, extrapolative mapping was undertaken in areas that could not be ground-truthed. Extrapolative mapping was based on observed similarities in spectral and structural features between ground-truthed sites and unvisited areas, with consideration given to vegetation types recorded at surrounding sites.

The Floristic Community Type descriptions and mapping of Woodman Environmental (2009) were used to inform the extrapolation of the vegetation types over the north-eastern section of the study area (Figure 1.1).

### 2.2.9 Assessment of Vegetation Significance

Plant communities recorded within the study area were assessed, where relevant data were available, for national, state, regional and local significance. National significance refers to those features of the environment which are recognised under the EPBC Act as Threatened Ecological Communities (TECs). State significance refers to features of the environment which are recognised by DBCA as Threatened Ecological Communities (TECs) or Priority Ecological Communities (PECs). For this assessment, spatial data from the DBCA Threatened and Priority Ecological Communities Database were used to assess



the presence of TECs and PECs within the study area. A list of TECs and PECs for the Pilbara IBRA bioregion (Department Biodiversity Conservation and Attractions 2017) was also reviewed to assess the potential presence of communities not identified in the database search.

Regional significance addresses the representation of habitats at a biogeographic regional level. Plant communities that are restricted or uncommon in a bioregional context are considered regionally significant. Plant communities acting as a refuge for Threatened flora species may also be considered regionally significant. Regional significance was assessed using two sources of information that cover the whole of the Pilbara IBRA bioregion: the land systems of Van Vreeswyk *et al.* (2004) and vegetation mapping of Shepherd *et al.* (2001).

Locally significant vegetation may include plant communities that are locally restricted, contain comparatively high structural or species diversity, or contain DBCA listed Priority flora species that are restricted to these plant communities. The local significance of vegetation types within the study area were assessed in relation to species diversity, conservation significant species recorded within them and to their local extent in relation to existing vegetation mapping surrounding the study area (if available).

Vegetation condition	Criterion (Eremaean and Northern Botanical Provinces)		
Excellent	Pristine or nearly so, no obvious signs of damage caused by human activities since European settlement.		
Very Good	Some relatively slight signs of damage caused by human activities since European settlement. For example, some signs of damage to tree trunks caused by repeated fire, the presence of some relatively non-aggressive weeds, or occasional vehicle tracks.		
Good	More obvious signs of damage caused by human activity since European settlement, including some obvious impact on the vegetation structure such as that caused by low levels of grazing or slightly aggressive weeds.		
Poor	Still retains basic vegetation structure or ability to regenerate it after very obvious impacts of human activities since European settlement, such as grazing, partial clearing, frequent fires or aggressive weeds.		
Degraded	Severely impacted by grazing, very frequent fires, clearing or a combination of these activities. Scope for some regeneration but not to a state approaching good condition without intensive management. Usually with a number of weed species present including very aggressive species.		
Completely Degraded	Areas that are completely or almost completely without native species in the structure of their vegetation; i.e. areas that are cleared or 'parkland cleared' with their flora comprising weed or crop species with isolated native trees or shrubs.		

 Table 2.3: EPA Vegetation Condition Scale (EPA 2016c).

### 2.3 VERTEBRATE FAUNA

A Level 1 vertebrate fauna and fauna habitat assessment was undertaken concurrently with the flora and vegetation between September 2<sup>nd</sup> and 6<sup>th</sup> 2019. The survey methods adopted accorded with the Technical Guideline for sampling terrestrial vertebrate fauna for conducting a Level 1 fauna and fauna habitat assessment published by the Environmental Protection Authority (2016d). Low-intensity fauna sampling was also undertaken to detect vertebrate fauna of conservation significance within the study area.

# 2.3.1 Habitat Descriptions and Mapping

A fauna habitat type broadly describes an area of fauna habitat that is distinguishable by its vegetation, soil characteristics and land features, and is likely to host a different fauna assemblage to that found in other fauna habitats. Habitat delineation and mapping was based upon interpretation of aerial photography and landforms, habitat site assessments, soil descriptions, and the complementary detailed vegetation descriptions and mapping undertaken for this report (see Section 4.1). Particular



attention was given to the likelihood that certain species of conservation significance may be present only in particular habitat types.

Habitat assessments were conducted at 12 fauna survey site locations (HA01 – HA12) considered representative of each habitat type (Table 4.5). For each fauna survey site, the following parameters were recorded:

- broad habitat type;
- digital photographs;
- landform type;
- soil colour, type and characteristics;
- type and extent of non-vegetative surface cover;
- type of vegetation in lower, middle and upper strata;
- observable fire history and evidence of any disturbance;
- presence and extent of leaf litter and coarse woody debris;
- presence of, or distance to, water sources;
- presence of significant microhabitats such as tree hollows and rocky outcrops; and
- notes on suitability for hosting conservation significant fauna.

A habitat condition rating was assigned to each habitat delineated based upon the habitat condition criteria described in Table 2.4.

#### Table 2.4: Habitat Condition Assessment

Habitat Condition	Criteria
Excellent	Pristine or nearly so, no obvious sign of damage caused by modern humans or introduced fauna (cattle, feral cat, dog and rabbit). No signs of recent, extensive fires.
Very Good	Some relatively slight signs of damage caused by the activities of modern humans. e.g. damage to tree trunks by repeated fires, no significant signs of introduced fauna or occasional vehicle tracks.
Good	More obvious signs of damage caused by the activities of modern humans, including some obvious impact to vegetation structure such as that caused by low levels of grazing or by selective logging. Some tracks or secondary evidence of introduced fauna. Some signs of recent fires.
Poor	Still retains basic vegetation structure or ability to regenerate it after very obvious impacts of modern humans such as partial clearing or very frequent fires. Presence of introduced fauna.
Very Poor	Severely impacted by grazing, introduced fauna, fire, clearing or a combination of these activities. Scope for some regeneration but not to a state approaching good condition without intensive management.
Completely Degraded	Areas that are completely or almost completely without vegetation communities and are heavily impacted by extensive fires and/or introduced species e.g. cow paddock

#### 2.3.2 Fauna Records

At each of the 12 fauna survey sites established for the habitat assessments (HA01 – HA12) (Figure 4.9) all fauna observed were recorded. At each site the following actions were undertaken:

- fixed-time bird surveys of 10 minutes;
- targeted searches involving direct observation of animals focussing on conservation significant species, as well as detection of secondary evidence including tracks, scats, remains and other traces; and
- hand searching for cryptic species including raking leaf litter, searching beneath the bark of dead trees, breaking open old logs, stumps and dead free-standing trees, investigating burrows and over-turning logs and stones.

Opportunistic fauna observations were made at all times during the survey to provide additional data to supplement the site survey results. Tracks, diggings, scats, burrows and nests were recorded wherever where secondary evidence was available.



#### 2.3.3 Targeted Conservation Significant Fauna Surveying

Prior to undertaking the field survey, a desktop assessment of the preferred habitats of the conservation significant species potentially occurring in the study area was undertaken and used to assess the likelihood of occurrence of conservation significant species (Section 3.8). These results were ground-truthed during the field survey and, based on the actual habitats present, searches were undertaken to determine the presence of potential conservation significant species occurring.

Targeted searches were undertaken for the Priority 3 (BC Act) northern shield-backed trapdoor spider (*Idiosoma clypeatum*) within suitable habitat. A total of ten hours was spent searching for burrows within suitable habitat and adjacent to known burrow locations.

#### 2.3.4 Stygofauna

Stygofauna are small groundwater, generally invertebrate fauna that live permanently underground in a range of groundwater habitats including voids and spaces between sand grains to pools and streams in caves. *ecologia* conducted the initial phase of a two-phase stygofauna survey that conformed with the requirements of a pilot study as outlined in EPA Factor Guideline: *Subterranean Fauna* and EPA Technical Guidance: *Sampling Methods for Subterranean fauna*.

Sampling was conducted concurrently with the Level 1 survey using haul nets of appropriate diameter (depending on water bore diameter). The net is lowered slowly into the bore using a rope and reel to ensure that the net does not fall freely to the bottom of bore. A minimum of three hauls are performed with a 150µm mesh net and further three hauls are performed with a 50µm mesh net. All samples are washed in 50µm sieve and preserved in a vial with 100% ethanol. All vials are labelled with date, bore name and replicate number. Samples are kept in cool, dark place and transported back to Perth for sorting and identification.

The second phase of the survey will be conducted six months after the first phase (March 2020) and the results will be outlined in a standalone report.

#### 2.4 ANIMAL ETHICS

The fauna survey was conducted as per *ecologia*'s Animal Ethics Code of Practice, which conforms to Section 5 of the *Australian code of practice for the care and use of animals for scientific purposes* (NHMRC 2004). In all cases, fauna species were identified in the field, and not captured or collected during the survey.



#### 2.5 STUDY TEAM AND LICENCES

The flora and vegetation assessment was planned, coordinated, executed and reported by those summarised below in Table 2.5.

#### Table 2.5: Study team and licences

Project Staff			
Name	Qualification	Role	Project role
Shaun Grein	B.App. Sc (Biology); Grad. Dip. Nat. Resources; MBA	Managing Director/Principal Scientist	Project management, reporting, QA
Andrew Craigie	BSc (Hons.), PhD (Botany)	Principal Botanist	Field survey, specimen identification, data analysis, reporting
Tim McCabe	BSc EnvBiol, Dip ProjMgt, Cert III Vert Pest Mgt	Senior Zoologist	Field survey, reporting
Rob Sellers	BSc (Hons.)	Botanist	Desktop assessment
Licences - "Flora Taking (Biological Assessment) Licence"			
Andrew Craigie		Licence No: FB62000084	Valid until: 30/04/2022



#### 2.6 LIMITATIONS AND CONSTRAINTS

#### 2.6.1 Flora Survey Limitations and Constraints

An assessment of survey-specific issues and limitations (Environmental Protection Authority 2016c) is detailed in Table 2.6.

is.
•

Constraint	Constraint	Comment
Availability of contextual information at a regional and local scale	Nil	Broad scale vegetation, soil, and geology mapping data were available for the study area, in addition to Threatened and Priority Flora database records, and conservation significant vegetation community records. This information was adequate to provide appropriate contextual information for the current survey.
Competency/experience of the team carrying out the survey, including experience in the bioregion surveyed	Nil	The botanist undertaking the field work and specimen identification for the survey has extensive experience conducting flora and vegetation surveys in the Murchison region.
Proportion of flora recorded and/or collected, any identification issues	Minor	Representative specimens of all taxa identified in the field were collected for confirmation. Some of these could not be confidently identified to species level due to a lack of required reproductive material available the time of the survey. However, a small number of unidentified samples is unlikely to have had any significant impact on the classification of plant communities, and none of these specimens were considered to correspond to any conservation significant species.
Was the appropriate area fully surveyed (effort and extent)	Nil	Twenty-four sampling sites (quadrats and relevés) were surveyed and sampled across the entirety of the study area. This is considered adequate for this level of survey.
Access restrictions within the survey area	Nil	The entirety of the study area was accessible by walking from existing roads and tracks.
Survey timing, rainfall, season of survey	Nil	The survey was conducted in September 2019. Seasonal conditions were considered to be adequate for a primary season flora and vegetation survey.
Disturbance that may have affected the results of survey such as fire, flood or clearing	Nil	There were no natural or human interventions that constrained the survey of the study area.



#### 2.6.2 Fauna Survey Limitations and Constraints

According to Environmental Protection Authority (2016d), terrestrial fauna surveys may be limited by several aspects. An assessment of these aspects regarding this study is detailed in Table 2.7.

Aspect	Constraint	Comment
Competency/experience of the	Constraint	The Senior Zoologist undertaking the fauna survey has more than
consultant carrying out the survey.	Nil	12 years of experience in conducting terrestrial vertebrate fauna surveys in Western Australia.
Scope (what faunal groups were sampled and were some sampling methods not able to be employed because of constraints such as weather conditions).	Nil	The fauna survey focussed on the fauna taxa of conservation significance that may have the potential to occur in the study area. The scope was well defined. Fauna and their habitats were surveyed using standardised and well-established techniques. All relevant databases were reviewed.
Proportion of fauna identified, recorded and/or collected.	Low	A desktop study adequately gathered background information on the study area. The fauna and fauna habitat field survey verified the desktop results and characterised habitats and terrestrial fauna likely to be present. The fauna survey focussed on the fauna taxa of conservation significance that may have the potential to occur in the study area. All fauna taxa observed were identified and considered adequate for a Level 1 survey.
Sources of information (previously available information as distinct from new data).	Nil	Database records, including conservation significant species, were available for the area and considered adequate to provide appropriate contextual information for the study.
The proportion of the task achieved and further work which might be needed.	Nil	Planned survey works were conducted and completed. No further work is required to complete the survey scope.
Timing/weather/season/cycle.	Nil	The survey was conducted during an appropriate time/season.
Disturbances which affected results of the survey (e.g. fire, flood, accidental human intervention).	Nil	There were no natural or human interventions that constrained the survey of the study area.
Intensity (in retrospect was the intensity adequate).	Nil	Given the access to available information from the area, the survey intensity was considered adequate and is appropriate for a Level 1 fauna assessment.
Completeness (e.g. was relevant area fully surveyed).	Nil	The Level 1 survey was considered complete. Database searches of relevant databases was undertaken, and a large proportion of the study area was sampled on foot.
Resources (e.g. degree of expertise available in animal identification to taxon level).	Nil	Resources were adequate to carry out the survey and survey participants were competent in the identification of species and likelihood of occurrence. Database searches and literature reviews were used to prepare for the survey and used for the confirmation of any species.
Remoteness and/or access problems.	Nil	The study area was easily accessible by vehicle and on foot.
Availability of contextual (e.g. biogeographic) information on the region.	Nil	The data available was adequate for the level of survey work undertaken during this assessment.
Efficacy of sampling methods (i.e. any groups not sampled by survey methods).	Nil	A comprehensive desktop study adequately gathered background information on the study area. A Level 1 survey verified the desktop results and characterised habitats.



# **3** DESKTOP STUDY

# 3.1 CLIMATE

The Western Murchison IBRA subregion is located in the northern end of the Yilgarn Craton, which experiences an arid (desert) climate with bimodal rainfall tending to semi-desert Mediterranean in the south-west corner (Curry *et al.* 1994). Rainfall occurs either in rare widespread major falls (due to cyclones near the Pilbara coast between November and April) or as sharply isolated minor falls of highly variable intensity (due to thunderstorms occurring in the summer months driven by convectional activity). Day time temperatures range from 14 to 22°C in winter to 29 to 38°C in summer. Frosts occur occasionally in the mid-winter months throughout the region.

Rainfall data from the nearest long-term Bureau of Meteorology (BOM) weather station were obtained from Beebyn (Station No. 7001) (BOM 2018) approximately 23.9 km from the centre of the study area. The nearest long-term temperature data were obtained from Meekatharra Airport weather station (Station No. 7045) 93.5 km from the centre of the study area. Mean rainfall and 2018/2019 rainfall as well as and mean maximum and minimum temperatures are displayed in Figure 3.1.



# Figure 3.1: Rainfall data from the Beebyn BOM weather station (7001) and temperature data from Meekatharra Airport BOM weather station (7045)

### 3.2 IBRA 7 BIOGEOGRAPHIC SUBREGIONS

The Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia (IBRA) classifies the Australian continent into regions or bioregions on the basis of similar geology, landform, vegetation, fauna and climate characteristics (Department of Sustainability ENvironment Water Population and Communities 2012b). The study area is situated within the Murchison region according to IBRA 7 (Department of Sustainability ENvironment Water Population and Communities 2012b), which is further divided into two subregions: Eastern Murchison and Western Murchison. The study area is situated within the Western Murchison subregion (Figure 3.2).

The West Murchison subregion is in the northern end of the Yilgarn Craton, which experiences an arid climate with bimodal rainfall that usually falls in the winter months. The subregion is characterised by Mulga low woodlands on outcrop and fine textured Quaternary alluvial and eluvial surfaces mantling



granitic and greenstone strata (Desmond *et al.* 2001). Quaternary plains contain hummock grasslands, saltbush shrublands on calcareous soils and *Halosarcia* low shrublands on saline alluvia.

#### 3.3 LAND SYSTEMS, GEOLOGY, AND SOILS

Curry *et al.* (1994) undertook a regional inventory of the Murchison rangelands to document the land systems present and their condition. The Murchison Regional Inventory (MRI) covered 88,360 km<sup>2</sup>, bounded by Mt Magnet and Meekatharra in east and the catchments of the Greenough and Wooramel rivers in the west. The extent of each land system occurring within the Murchison Regional Inventory varies significantly, with almost half the area comprised of just eight land systems: Yanganoo, Kalli, Koonmarra, Challenge, Sherwood, Belele, Mindura and Narryer (Curry *et al.* 1994).

Four land systems occur within the study area (Violet, Jundee, Weld and Yarrameedie), of which the Yarrameedie land system accounts for over 68.93% its total area (Table 3.1, Figure 3.3). The underlying geology, geomorphology and soils of each land system associated with the study area is detailed in Table 3.2. Two soil types of the Atlas of Australia Soils (Northcote et al. 1960-1968) are associated with the study area (Table 3.3, Figure 3.4).

Land system	Land type	Description	Total extent (ha)	Extent within study area (ha)
Violet	Stony plains with acacia shrublands and halophytic shrublands	Gently undulating gravelly plains on greenstone, laterite and hardpan, with low stony rises and minor saline plains; supporting groved mulga and bowgada shrublands and patchy halophytic shrublands.	584,970	0.76
Jundee	Wash plains on hardpan with mulga shrublands	Hardpan plains with ironstone gravel mantles and occasional sandy banks supporting mulga shrublands.	661,728	39.32
Weld	Hills and ranges with acacia shrublands	Rugged ranges and ridges of banded ironstone and quartzite, supporting acacia shrublands.	37,235	126.18
Yarrameedie	Stony plains with acacia shrublands	Undulating stony interfluves, drainage floors and pediment (foothill) plains below major ranges of crystalline rocks (mainly Weld land system) supporting sparse mulga shrublands.	68,323	368.82

#### Table 3.1: Land systems associated with the study area (Curry et al. 1994)

# Table 3.2: Geomorphology and soils of land systems associated with the study area (Curry *et al.*1994)

Land system	Geomorphology	Soils
Violet	Erosional surfaces; remnants of old plateau as gravelly sand plains above gently undulating outcrops of laterite and weathered greenstones; broad, lower stony plains on greenstone or red-brown hardpan, often densely mantled by pebbles of mixed lithology and with sluggish, occasionally channelled, drainage floors; relief mostly < 10 m.	Dark red gravely loamy sands; dark red gravely clayey sands or fine loams with abundant laterite and ironstone inclusions; Shallow red earths, clay loams or fine sandy loams; red earths, reddish brown sandy clay loams or fine sandy loams.
Jundee	Depositional surfaces carrying sheet drainage; broad plains with variable, but frequently dense, mantles of gravel and pebbles and occasional small groves and sandy banks; higher marginal stony plains on weathered greenstones; drainage tracts receiving more concentrated flow and with some gutters and channels. Relief mostly < 10 m.	Soils are red earths with ironstone gravel; hardpan loams; dark red hardpan sandy clay loams or shallow red earths.



Land system	Geomorphology	Soils
Weld	Erosional surfaces; mountain ranges of strike belts and ridges with peaks 200 m or more above the new plateau plains; lower, rounded hill spurs flanking major ranges; steep hillslopes with extensive loose mantling and rock outcrop; lateritised ridges with caves; valley floors and undulating interfluves often intensely dissected by narrow rectangular drainage tracts with incised channels; sheds most colluvium and drainage to pediment Yarrameedie land system.	Soils are skeletal lithosols confined to pockets of dark red loamy or clayey sands; reddish-brown or dark red shallow earths; red earthy sands.
Yarrameedie	Erosional surfaces; piedmont slopes and plains; mainly 2 to 4 km wide, parallel with major ranges, heavily mantled by mixed pebbles and gravels; higher parts consist of spurs and stony interfluvial slopes dissected by often fairly closely spaced parallel incised drainage lines leading to narrow drainage floors, spreading into minor alluvial tracts downslope; overall relief mainly 5 to 20 m.	Soils are dark red earthy sands, shallow or red earths or occasional duplexes; dark red or reddish-brown earthy sands to hardpan clay loams.

#### Table 3.3: Soil units associated with the study area (Northcote et al. 1960-1968)

Soil unit	Description	Area (ha)
Fa7	Greenstone hills and low ranges with some slate and basalt: dominant soils are shallow stony earthy loams (Um5.51) on the steep slopes while (Um5.3) and (Uc5.21) overlying red-brown hardpan occur on the stony pediments	521.58
My50	Broad plains with a scatter of surface gravels: chief soils are shallow neutral red earths (Gn2. 12) and shallow earthy loams (Um5.3) in intimate micro-association. They are underlain by a red-brown hardpan at depths of 6-30in.	13.50

#### 3.4 CONSERVATION RESERVES AND NATIONALLY IMPORTANT WETLANDS

The Department of the Environment and Energy's (DoEE) Protected Matters Search Tool (Department of the Environment and Energy 2018) and the DBCA's managed lands and waters database were interrogated for Ramsar Wetlands, Nationally Important Wetlands, and DBCA managed waters occurring near the study area. The closest reserves to the study area include ex Lakeside former pastoral lease 51.5 km to the south (Figure 3.5). No Ramsar wetland occurs in the vicinity of study area.













Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

### 3.5 FLORA AND VEGETATION

#### 3.5.1 Floristic Diversity

A total of 281 vascular plant taxa (including species, infraspecific taxa, and phrase name taxa) have been recorded from the vicinity of the study area (NatureMap, Appendix B), representing 49 families and 134 genera. The most diverse families are the Asteraceae (44 taxa), Fabaceae (31 taxa), Chenopodiaceae (22 taxa) and Poaceae (21 taxa). The most diverse genera are *Acacia* (23), *Eremophila* (17), *Ptilotus* (11) and *Rhodanthe* (8).

#### 3.5.2 Conservation Significant Species

The TPFL and WAHERB database searches identified 30 conservation significant plant taxa within the 50 km search area, including eight Priority 1 taxa, one Priority 2 taxon, sixteen Priority 3 taxa and five Priority 4 taxa (Table 3.4). The likelihood for each taxon to occur within the study area was assessed (Table 3.4) using the criteria outlined in Table 2.2 (Section 2.1). To assist in this assessment, habitat preferences were sourced, where available, from relevant taxonomic literature, FloraBase records (Western Australian Herbarium 1998–2018), Threatened species profiles (SPRATs) (Threatened Species Scientific Committee 2016), or specimen data from the Australasian Virtual Herbarium (AVH) database (CHAH 2017). Herbarium catalogue numbers are provided if habitat information was derived from specimen data. Data from the reconnaissance level flora survey conducted by *ecologia* in July 2019 was also used.

Five conservation significant plant species were recorded from the study area by *ecologia* during a July 2019 reconnaissance survey (Figure 3.6). In addition to these, based on the proximity of previous records and the potential presence of suitable habitat, five species were considered likely to occur and 10 species possibly occur within the study area (Table 3.4). Eight taxa were considered unlikely to occur due to the probable absence of suitable habitat within the study area.

#### 3.5.3 Introduced Species

A search of the NatureMap database identified seven introduced (weed) species within 40 km of the study area (Table 3.5), none of which are classified as WONS or Declared Pests according to the Western Australian Organism List (WAOL). All species are listed on WOAL as 'Permitted s11', except for *Rumex vesicarius* which is unlisted (Table 3.5).



Taxon	Status	Habitat	Flowering	Likelihood of occurrence	Post-survey likelihood of occurrence
Acacia burrowsiana	P3	Red-brown loams with ironstone rubble on surface, calcrete soils, laterite, quartz. Flats adjacent to watercourses, crests of low rises, breakaways.	Unknown	Likely (1)	Unlikely (3)
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	Grows in red clay-loam or red-brown silty clay-loam on the middle and upper slopes and crests of low ranges mostly associated with outcropping basalt, in tall open shrubland.	August	Recorded	Recorded
Acacia speckii	P4	Rocky soils over granite, basalt or dolerite. Rocky hills or rises.	Unknown	Recorded	Recorded
Bergia auriculata	P2	Clay soils. Mud flats.	Unknown	Unlikely (3)	Unlikely (3)
Beyeria lapidicola	P1	Callitris-Acacia woodlands or mulga woodland in sandy loams or on banded ironstone hills.	July to September	Likely (1)	Unlikely (3)
Calytrix verruculosa	P3	Sandy clay.	August or October	Possible (2)	Unlikely (3)
Dicrastylis sp. Cue (A.A. Mitchell 764)	P1	Drainage area, near granite	September to October	Unlikely (3)	Unlikely (3)
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	Red-brown sandy clay on basalt and gabbro and banded ironstone or on dolerite and quartzite. Rocky hills.	August	Recorded	Recorded
Drosera eremaea	P1	Grows in shallow soils on the aprons of granite outcrops in winter, wet depressions in arid areas.	-	Unlikely (3)	Unlikely (3)
Eremophila fasciata	Р3	Hills to the south-east of Meekatharra, amongst rocks and under shrubs in Acacia shrublands.	August	Possible (2)	Unlikely (3)
Eremophila rhegos	P1	Skeletal stony loam over granite.	September	Likely (1)	Unlikely (3)
Eremophila simulans subsp. megacalyx	Р3	Unknown	August to September	Possible (2)	Unlikely (3)
Goodenia berringbinensis	P4	Red sandy loam. Along watercourses.	June to October	Possible (2)	Possible (2)
Goodenia grandiflora	P1	Sandy, gravelly soils. Rocky slopes & breakaways.	May to December	Possible (2)	Possible (2)
Grevillea inconspicua	P4	Loam, gravel. Along drainage lines on rocky outcrops, creeklines.	June to August	Recorded	Recorded
Hemigenia exilis	P4	Laterite. Breakaways, slopes.	April or September to November	Likely (1)	Unlikely (3)
Hemigenia tysonii	P3	Red sand, sandy clay, lateritic sand. Flats, sand dunes, hills.	May or July to December	Unlikely (3)	Unlikely (3)
Hemigenia virescens	Р3	Hillsides, in rangelands, in low and high shrublands and on sandy banks. Soil types are commonly yellow-red sandy clay, brown ironstone gravel and brown rocky sand.	July to August	Likely (1)	Recorded
Hibiscus krichauffianus	Р3	Red sandy soils.	March or October	Unlikely (3)	Unlikely (3)

#### Table 3.4: Conservation significant plant taxa recorded within 50 km of the study area and their likelihood of occurrence.



#### Fenix Resources Ltd Iron Ridge Biological Survey

Taxon	Status	Habitat	Flowering	Likelihood of occurrence	Post-survey likelihood of occurrence
Homalocalyx echinulatus	Р3	Laterite. Breakaways, sandstone hills.	June to September	Unlikely (3)	Unlikely (3)
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	Red-orange sandy clay, orange-yellow sandy clay to clayey loam, coarse gravel, banded ironstone, laterite, quartz, basalt. Gently undulating plains, dry creek beds, hillcrests, ridges.	July to September	Recorded	Recorded
Petrophile pauciflora	P3	Decaying & dissected granite breakaways.	September	Unlikely (3)	Unlikely (3)
Phyllanthus baeckeoides	P3	Red lateritic & sandy clay soils. Granite outcrops.	July to September	Unlikely (3)	Unlikely (3)
Prostanthera ferricola	Р3	Shallow red-brown skeletal sandy loam on banded ironstone, laterite, basalt or quartz. Gently inclined mid to upper slopes of hills, rocky crests, outcrops.	July to September	Recorded	Unlikely (3)
Prostanthera petrophila	P3	Lateritic soils, ironstone slopes and foothills on red-orange sandy clay with ferrous stones and boulders.	August	Possible (2)	Recorded
Ptilotus beardii	P3	Clayey soils. Saline flats, low breakaways.	August to October	Possible (2)	Unlikely (3)
Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94)	P3	Footslopes, plains, rocky banded ironstone outcrops.	June	Possible (2)	Unlikely (3)
Stenanthemum mediale	P1	Red clayey sand.	April to August	Possible (2)	Unlikely (3)
Stenanthemum patens	P1	Basalt and banded ironstone hillsides as well as on sandy loam and clay slopes.	August to September	Recorded	Recorded
Verticordia jamiesonii	P3	Quartzite or laterite breakaways, hill slopes, ridgelines, or on weathered granite within pockets of small sandy clay in depressions.	September to October	Possible (2)	Unlikely (3)



Taxon	Common name	WAOL category	Ecological impact	Invasiveness
Cleretum papulosum subsp. papulosum		Permitted - s11	Unrated	Unrated
Hypochaeris glabra	Smooth catsear	Permitted - s11	Low	Rapid
Lysimachia arvensis	Pimpernel	Permitted - s11	Unrated	Unrated
Pentameris airoides	False hairgrass	Permitted - s11	Unrated	Unrated
Rostraria pumila	Rough cat's tail, hairgrass	Permitted - s11	Unrated	Unrated
Rumex vesicarius	Ruby dock	Not listed	Unrated	Unrated
Sisymbrium erysimoides	Smooth mustard	Permitted - s11	Low	Unknown

# Table 3.5: Introduced plant species recorded within 40 km of the study area (NatureMap).





#### 3.5.4 Pre-European Vegetation

Shepherd et al. (2001) mapped the extent of pre-European vegetation of Western Australia with updates reflecting National Vegetation Information System (NVIS) standards. Two vegetation associations are associated with the study area: 18 and 202 (Table 3.6, Figure 3.7). The widespread vegetation association 18 is dominated by mulga (Acacia aneura and close relatives) low woodlands over Eremophila fraseri and E. foliosissima tall open shrublands and comprises the vast majority of the study area. Vegetation association 202, comprising mulga and Acacia quadrimarginea, is somewhat more restricted regionally and only makes up 0.6% of the study area. Markey and Dillon (2008) noted, however, that A. quadrimarginea has not been recorded from either the Weld Range or Jack Hills. The pre-European and current extent of each vegetation association is available from the Statewide Vegetation Statistics dataset (Government of Western Australia 2018). Vegetation associations below 30% of their pre-European extent within a bioregion are classed as 'Critical Assets' according to the National Objectives and Targets for Biodiversity Conservation 2001-2005 (Department of Environment and Heritage 2001), as this is the threshold below which species loss appears to accelerate exponentially (Environmental Protection Authority 2000). The current extent of both vegetation associations is well above the 30% threshold, and none are considered restricted from a bioregional context (Table 3.6).

Vegetation association	Description (NVIS V)	Pre- European extent (ha)	Current extent (ha)	Percent remaining	Percent current extent protected (IUCN I - IV) for conservation	Extent within study area (ha)
18	Acacia aneura low woodland over Eremophila fraseri, Eremophila foliosissima tall open shrubland	19,892,306	19,843,149	99.75	2.13	499.73 (0.003%)
202	Acacia aneura and Acacia quadrimarginea tall open shrubland	448,529	448,343	99.96	0.39	35.34 (0.008%)

Table 3.6:	Pre-European vegetation associated with the study area
------------	--

In a floristic survey of the Weld Range, primarily targeted crests, slopes and outwashes of the Weld land system, Markey and Dillon (2008) described eight floristic community type for the Weld Range. This survey:

- Community type 1a: *Acacia aneura*, *A. ramulosa* var *linophylla*, and/or *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) over a sparse shrub cover of *Eremophila* spp.
- Community type 1b: Open shrublands and sparse shrublands of *Acacia aneura* (cf. var. *microphylla*, *aneura* and *argentea*), *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), and *Grevillea berryana* over a shrub layer of various species of *Eremophila* (*E. georgei*, *E. latrobei* subsp. *latrobei* and *E. glutinosa*)
- Community type 2: Sparse open shrublands of *Acacia aneura* cf. var. *microcarpa* and / or *A. aneura* cf. var. *aneura* over the mid-stratum shrub layer which includes species such as *Thryptomene decussata, Philotheca brucei* subsp. *brucei* and numerous species of *Eremophila*
- Community type 3: Open shrubland of *Acacia aneura* over isolated shrub species such as *Solanum ashbyae* and *Tribulus suberosus*.
- Community type 4: Open shrublands of *Acacia aneura* and emergent trees of *Acacia pruinocarpa* over shrublands of *Philotheca brucei* subsp. *brucei* and *Eremophila* spp.



- Community type 5a: Isolated, emergent trees of *Acacia pruinocarpa* above *Acacia aneura*/ *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla* over an open mid-stratum of shrubs.
- Community type 5b: Sparse open Acacia shrubland (*A. aneura* cf. var. *tenuis, A. aneura* cf. var. *aneura* and/or *Acacia coolgardiensis* subsp. *effusa*) over sparse layer of shrubs of *Senna* spp. and *Tribulus suberosus*.
- Community type 6: Sparse open shrubland of *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), *Acacia aneura* and *Acacia speckii* over sparse mid-stratum of *Eremophila macmillaniana*, *Eremophila mackinlayi* subsp. *spathulata* and *Senna* spp.





#### 3.6 SIGNIFICANT ECOLOGICAL COMMUNITIES

No state (DBCA) or Commonwealth (EPBC Act) listed TECs have been recorded within the study area. Seven Priority Ecological Communities (PECs) have been recorded within 50 km of the study area. These include three Priority 1 and four Priority 3 communities (Table 3.7; Figure 3.8). Four of these represent entire land systems (Austin, Breberle, Trillbar and Yagahong) that no not occur within or in the immediate vicinity of the study area. Both the 'Lake Austin calcrete groundwater assemblage' and 'Taincrow calcrete groundwater assemblage' have been recorded within 50 km of the study area in calcrete substrate; however, these assemblages are specific to the area in which they were recorded. The Priority 1 PEC 'Weld Range Vegetation Complexes (Banded Iron Formation)' occurs over 263.80 ha (49.3%) of the study area according to the spatial extent defined by DBCA, including a 500 m administrative buffer.

Community	Status	Description	Distance from study area (km)	Likelihood of occurrence
Austin Land System	Р3	Saline stony plains with low rises and drainage foci supporting low halophytic shrublands with scattered mulga; occurs mainly adjacent to lakes Austin and Annean below greenstone hill systems.	39.88	Does not occur
Breberle Land System	Ρ3	Level saline drainage plains adjacent to ephemeral lakes, claypans and swampy drainage foci with sandy margins and occasional sand dunes; supports tall Acacia shrublands and other fringing shrublands with zonations of perennial grasses and halophytes.	15.78	Does not occur
Lake Austin calcrete groundwater assemblage type on Murchison palaeodrainage on Austin Downs Station	P1	Unique assemblages of invertebrates have been identified in the groundwater calcretes.	42.44	Does not occur
Taincrow calcrete groundwater assemblage type on Murchison palaeodrainage on Taincrow Station	P1	Unique assemblages of invertebrates have been identified in the groundwater calcretes.	34.83	Does not occur
Trillbar Land System	Р3	Gently sloping stony plains with low rises of metamorphic rocks and gilgaied drainage foci; supports more or less saline shrublands of snakewood, mulga, bluebush and samphire with patches of tussock grassland	33.75	Does not occur
Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)	P1	NA	0.00	Recorded
Yagahong Land System	Р3	Rough greenstone ridges, hills and cobble- strewn footslopes supporting mulga shrublands	23.63	Does not occur

# Table 3.7: Threatened and Priority Ecological communities recorded within 50 km of study area and their likelihood of occurrence within the study area.



#### 3.7 OTHER SIGNIFICANT ECOSYSTEMS

Twenty-seven ecosystems at risk have been identified as occurring within the Western Murchison subregion (Desmond *et al.* 2001):

- Subterranean fauna of the Murchison Basin. Calcrete formations north east of Cue;
- Mount Narryer and Jack Hills vegetation complexes;
- Stony bluebush mixed shrubland (SBMS) of the Sandstone-Yalgoo-Paynes Find area;
- Hardpan plain mulga shrubland with scattered chenopods (HMCS) of the Sandstone-Yalgoo-Paynes Find area;
- Melaleuca wetlands and spinifex areas of the Lake System on Muggon Station;
- Alluvial plain snakewood chenopod shrubland (ASWS) of the Sandstone- Yalgoo-Paynes Find area;
- Breakaway footslope chenopod low shrubland of the Sandstone-Yalgoo- Paynes Find area;
- Shrubland communities of lake frontages, Murchison area. Polelle Station good condition;
- Floodplains of the Carnarvon Basin, Wooramel and Gascoyne Rivers;
- Assemblages of the inland Granites (Murchison);
- Hardpan mulga (Acacia aneura) shrublands HPMS; Murchison River catchment;
- Bluebush (Maireana spp.) shrublands BLUS; Murchison River catchment;
- Mixed halophytic shrublands MXHS; Murchison River catchment;
- Stony mulga (Acacia aneura) mixed shrubland SMMS; Murchison River catchment;
- Saltbush (Atriplex spp.) shrublands SALS; Murchison River catchment;
- Stony snakewood (*Acacia xiphophylla*) shrublands SSWS; Murchison River catchment;
- Calcrete shrubby grasslands CSHG; Murchison River catchment;
- Non-calcareous shrubby grasslands NCSG; Murchison River catchment;
- Creekline grassy shrublands CRGS; Murchison River catchment;
- Calcrete Eucalypt woodlands of Murchison River catchment;
- Assemblages of specific lake communities e.g. Lake Austin, Lake Annean;
- *Eucalyptus camaldulensis* woodlands that are Major Mitchell nesting sites on Berringarrah and Milly Milly Stations along the Murchison River;
- Aquatic fauna assemblages of Fish Holes on Doolgunna Station. Possibly have endemic fish and turtles;
- Assemblages of the perched lake at Weld Range;
- Marloo land system Mitchell Grass floodplain, top end type Mia Mia Station;
- Merbla land system Unique treeless grassland;
- CWR Mammals. Extant species include *Dasycercus cristicauda*, Species extinct in subregion include *Macrotis lagotis*, *Pseudomys chapmanii*.




### Study area

DBCA search buffer (50 km).

### Community

Lake Austin calcrete groundwater assemblage type on Murchison palaeodrainage on Austin Downs Station (Priority 1) Taincrow calcrete groundwater assemblage type on Murchison palaeodrainage on Taincrow Station (Priority 1) AustinLS (Priority 3)

Breberle Land System (Priority 3)

Trillbar Land System (Priority 3)

Yagahong Land System (Priority 3)

Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation) (Priority 1)



Project: 1796 Date: 18 February 2019 Author: RS Coordinate System: GDA 1994 MGA Zone 50 Projection: Transverse Mercator Absolute Scale: 1:407,354 @A3

**Figure 3.8:** DBCA Priority Ecological Communities (50 km buffer).

, Kilor

10	20	$\Lambda$
Kilometers		

Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community



### 3.8 TERRESTRIAL FAUNA

### 3.8.1 Vertebrate Fauna Assemblage

A total of 199 vertebrate fauna species have been recorded from within 40 km of the study area according to NatureMap database searches (Appendix B) including 122 birds, 42 reptiles, 28 mammals, two fish and two amphibians (Table 3.8). One hundred and three bird species have been recorded within 50 km of the study area according to Birdlife Birdata (Appendix B).

Previous Level 2 vertebrate fauna surveys conducted within the immediate vicinity of the study area by *ecologia* (2009) recorded a total of 141 vertebrate species (Table 3.8).

### Table 3.8: Summary of fauna records

Database	Mammals	Birds	Reptiles	Amphibians	Fish
NatureMap (all taxa)	28	122	42	5	2
DCBA Threatened and Priority Fauna	4	13	2		
Birdlife Birdata		103			
ecologia (2009) Level 2 survey Weld Range	16	80	44	1	

### 3.8.2 Fauna of Conservation Significance

Nineteen vertebrate fauna species and one invertebrate species of conservation significance were identified from Threatened and Priority Fauna database searches within 100 km of the study area including four mammals, 13 birds and two reptiles (Table 3.8). Eight Threatened and eight migratory species were identified from the EPBC Act Protected Matters Search Tool (Appendix C) along with 12 listed marine species. Species listed as Marine or species not known to inhabit terrestrial environments have been excluded from further discussion in this report. Significant fauna locations provided in DCBA database search results in relation to the study area, are presented in Figure 3.9.

An assessment of the likelihood of occurrence for relevant conservation significant fauna species recorded based on the desktop assessment was undertaken (Table 3.9). For the relevant species, the likelihood of occurrence was determined by investigating the following:

- Fauna habitats likely to exist within the study area based on the desktop study;
- Distance of previously recorded conservation significant species based on publicly available records;
- Frequency of occurrence of conservation significant species records; and
- Time passed since conservation significant species were recorded.

Each relevant conservation or biologically significant species assessed as potentially occurring within the study area was assigned a likelihood of occurrence rating (Table 3.9) based on the four categories described in (Table 2.2).

The west coast mulga slider (*Lerista eupoda* (P1 BC Act)) has previously been recorded on two occasions within the study area.

The northern shield-backed trapdoor spider (*Idiosoma clypeatum* (P3 BC Act)) (formerly recognised as *I. nigrum*) has been recorded on multiple occasions adjacent the study area in tenement M20/118 and intensive targeted surveys for this species have been conducted within the Weld Range. Rix *et al.* (2018) conducted a conservation systematics review of the genus *Idiosoma* and concluded that the *Idiosoma* populations recorded through the Murchison bioregion and northern sections of the Yalgoo bioregion are *Idiosoma clypeatum*. Based on this classification and species distribution, it can be concluded that the species of trapdoor spider within the Weld Range is *Idiosoma clypeatum* and targeted surveys conducted in the past for *Idiosoma nigrum* are relevant for this species.



Over 1800 trapdoor spider burrows have been identified from database searches, the majority of which are from the Weld Range. Targeted surveys previously conducted by Bamford Consulting Ecologists (2009) and (Biologic 2012a) within tenement M20/118 recorded 135 burrows and 105 burrows respectively. The majority of burrows recorded were found on slopes with a southern aspect under narrow phyllode acacias in a mix of clay and rocky substrates.

Estimated population sizes within tenement M20/118 vary between the two data sets (3,059 for the Bamford data and 4,135 for the Biologic data) (Biologic 2012a). After analysing datasets within similar plant communities within and surrounding M20/118, Biologic (2012a) estimated the population size of *I. clypeatum* to be 14,907 individuals. It was estimated that 27% of this population is within tenement M20/118.

A Level 2 vertebrate fauna assessment conducted by *ecologia* (2009) in the vicinity of the study area recorded three species of conservation significance including the long-tailed dunnart (*Sminthopsis longicaudata* (P4 BC Act)), peregrine falcon (*Falco peregrinus* (OS BC Act)) and west coast mulga slider (*Lerista eupoda* (P1 BC Act)).



# Table 3.9: Conservation significant fauna likelihood of occurrence

Common name	Scientific name	EPBC status	WA status	Number of records	Latest record	Comments	Likelihood of occurrence pre-survey	Likelihood of occurrence post-survey
Mammals								
Bilby	Macrotis lagotis	VU	VU	1	1984	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Black-flanked rock-wallaby	Petrogale lateralis lateralis	EN	EN	1	?	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Ghost bat	Macroderma gigas	VU	VU	1	?	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Greater stick-nest rat	Leporillus conditor	VU	CD	2	2012	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Long-tailed dunnart	Sminthopsis longicaudata		P4		2009	Records in vicinity, suitable habitat present	Likely	Likely
Birds								
Blue-billed duck	Oxyura australis		P4	1	2000	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Caspian tern	Hydroprogne caspia	MI	IA	1	2013	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Common greenshank	Tringa nebularia	MI	IA	18	2013	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Common sandpiper	Actitis hypoleucos	МІ	IA	3	2015	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Glossy ibis	Plegadis falcinellus	МІ	IA	4	2005	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Gull-billed tern	Gelochelidon nilotica	МІ	IA	4	2001	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Hooded plover	Thinornis rubricollis		P4	2	2015	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Marsh sandpiper	Tringa stagnatilis	МІ	IA	4	2013	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Peregrine falcon	Falco peregrinus		OS	9	2017	Records in vicinity, has the potential to overfly the study area	Likely	Likely
Red-necked stint	Calidris ruficollis	MI	IA	3	2012	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Sharp-tailed sandpiper	Calidris acuminata	MI	IA	1	2007	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
White-winged black tern	Chlidonias leucopterus	МІ	IA	2	2015	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Wood sandpiper	Tringa glareola	МІ	IA	4	2005	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely	Unlikely
Reptiles								
West coast mulga slider	Lerista eupoda		P1	21	2014	Previously recorded within the study area	Recorded	Recorded
Western spiny-tailed skink	Egernia stokesii badia	EN	VU	4	2010	Records in vicinity, some suitable habitat present	Possible	Unlikely
Invertebrate								
Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider	Idiosoma clypeatum		P3	1894	2016	Recorded within the study area	Recorded	Recorded





Figure 3.9: Conservation significant fauna within 50 km of study area (DBCA).

Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

# Study area

# Common name

- ▲ Caspian tern
- 🔺 bilby
- ▲ black-flanked rock-wallaby
- ▲ blue-billed duck
- $\triangle$  common greenshank
- common sandpiper
- ghost bat
- glossy ibis
- greater stick-nest rat
- gull-billed tern
- imes hooded plover
- imes marsh sandpiper
- $\times$  peregrine falcon
- $\times$  red-necked stint
- < sharp-tailed sandpiper
- + shield-backed trapdoor spider
- ♦ west coast mulga slider
- ♦ western spiny-tailed skink
- white-winged black tern
- ◊ wood sandpiper

•

X

Kilometers

### 3.9 PREVIOUS BIOLOGICAL SURVEYS NEAR THE STUDY AREA

Several recent flora and fauna assessments have been conducted int the vicinity of the study area, the significant conservation features of which are summarised in Table 3.10:

- Flora and Vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Weld Range (Markey and Dillon 2008);
- Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range Level 1 Targeted Fauna Survey 2009 (Biologic Environmental 2009);
- Conservation significant flora from Twenty flora surveys (Level 1 and targeted) conducted by *ecologia* between 2006 and 2008 have been summarised in Sinosteel Midwest Corporation LTD: Weld Range Iron Ore Project, Rare Flora Management Plan (*ecologia* 2012);
- Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range DSO Project, Local and Regional Significant Flora Assessment 2012 (Woodman Environmental 2012);
- Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey 2012 (Biologic 2012a);
- Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range DSO Project, Flora and Vegetation Assessment 2012 (Woodman Environmental 2012);
- Weld Range Vertebrate Fauna Assessment. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel-Midwest Management (*ecologia* 2009).



Survey	Location	Conservation significant species recorded	TEC/PEC
Flora and Vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Weld Range (Markey and Dillon 2008)	Weld Range	Dodonaea amplisemina (P3) Micromyrtus placoides (P1) Phyllanthus baeckeoides (P1) Prostanthera petrophila (P1) Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94) Stenanthemum patens (P1) Acacia speckii (P3) Prostanthera ferricola (P3)	
Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range Level I Targeted Fauna Survey ( <i>ecologia</i> Environment 2009)	ca. 60 km north-east of Cue within tenement M20/118 (adjacent to north-east boundary of current study area).	Lerista eupoda (P1) Pseudantechinus woolleyae (locally significant)	None
Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd: Weld Range Iron Ore Project, Rare Flora Management Plan 2012 ( <i>ecologia</i> 2012)	ca. 60 km north-east of Cue within Sinosteel Midwest Corporation tenements E 20/457, E 20/492, E 20/635, M 20/311, M 20/419, M 51/869, E 20/457, E 20/492, E 20/635, M 20/311, M 20/419 (adjacent to north-east boundary of current study area).	Acacia sp. Wilgie Mia (D. Coultas & G. Woodman AW03-Opp 1) (P1) [now Acacia dilloniorum] Beyeria lapidicola (P1) Euphorbia sarcostemmoides (P1) Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (P1) Stenanthemum patens (P1) Acacia burrowsiana (P3) Eremophila arachnoides subsp. arachnoides (P3) Goodenia lyrata (P3) Hemigenia tysonii (P3) Homalocalyx echinulatus (P3) Indigofera gilesii subsp. gilesii (P3) Micromyrtus placoides (P3) Mirbelia stipitata (P3) Prostanthera ferricola (P3) Prostanthera ferricola (P3) Prostanthera petrophila (P3) Ptilotus beardii (P3) Ptilotus luteolus (P3) Tecticornia cymbiformis (P3) Verticordia jamiesonii (P3) Acacia speckii (P4) Dodonaea amplisemina (P4) Goodenia berringbinensis (P4)	None

# Table 3.10: Summary of significant features identified during biological surveys relevant to the study area



Survey	Location	Conservation significant species recorded	TEC/PEC
Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range DSO Project, Local and Regional Significant Flora Assessment 2012 (Woodman Environmental 2012)	ca. 60 km north-east of Cue within tenement M20/118 (overlapping with current study area).	Acacia sp. Wilgie Mia (D. Coultas & G. Woodman AW03-Opp 1) (P1) [now Acacia dilloniorum] Stenanthemum patens (P1) Micromyrtus placoides (P3) Prostanthera petrophila (P3) Acacia speckii (P4) Dodonaea amplisemina (P4) Grevillea inconspicua (P4)	None
Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range <i>Idiosoma</i> nigrum Survey 2012 (Biologic 2012a)	ca. 60 km north-east of Cue within tenement M20/118 (adjacent to north-east boundary of current study area).	Idiosoma nigrum (P3)	None
Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range DSO Project, Flora and Vegetation Assessment 2012 (Woodman Environmental 2012)	ca. 60 km north-east of Cue within tenement M20/118 (adjacent to north-east boundary of current study area).	Micromyrtus placoides (P1) Prostanthera petrophila (P1) Stenanthemum patens (P1) Acacia speckii (P3) Dodonaea amplisemina (P3) Grevillea inconspicua (P4).	Weld Range Vegetation Complexes (Banded Iron Formation)
Weld Range Vertebrate Fauna Assessment Unpublished Report for Sinosteel-Midwest Management ( <i>ecologia</i> 2009)	ca. 60 km north-east of Cue within Sinosteel's main ore bodies within the Weld Range	Long-tailed dunnart ( <i>Sminthopsis longicaudata</i> (P4 BC Act)) peregrine falcon (Falco peregrinus (OS BC Act)) West coast mulga slider ( <i>Lerista eupoda</i> (P1 BC Act))	None



# 4 FIELD SURVEY RESULTS

# 4.1 FLORA AND VEGETATION

### 4.1.1 Floristic Diversity

A total of 171 vascular plant taxa (species, infraspecific taxa, and phrase names) representing 37 families and 93 genera were recorded during the current survey (Appendix E). The most dominant families in terms of species richness were the Asteraceae (26 taxa), Fabaceae (25), Poaceae (11), Scrophulariaceae (11), Chenopodiaceae (10), and Amaranthaceae (9). At the generic level, the most dominant groups were *Acacia* (16 taxa), *Eremophila* (11), *Ptilotus* (9), *Goodenia* (6), and *Rhodanthe* (6) (Appendix E). Most genera (68) were represented by only one taxon. A large proportion (ca. 44%) of species recorded were annual or short-lived perennial species. Only a small proportion of collected specimens (ca. 1.9% of specimens) could not be confidently identified to species level due to the absence of reproductive material required for positive identification. These identifications (indicated by "?" or "indet.") are included in the species inventory for the study area but are not included in the statistics described above unless they were unlikely to be confused with any other recorded taxon.

The extrapolated species richness of the study area using the bootstrap, Chao, jackknife 1 and jackknife 2 estimators was 168, 210, 215, and 215 taxa respectively. The total number of taxa recorded from quadrats was 153 taxa, representing between 71% and 91% of the extrapolated species richness. Predicted species accumulation curves of the four estimators showed accumulation of new species not tending towards zero (asymptote) by 25 sites (Figure 4.1). Additional site-based survey effort may therefore have resulted in a larger number of species recorded within sites; however, an additional 17 taxa were recorded opportunistically. For the purposes of this survey, sampling effort was considered adequate.



Figure 4.1: Predicted species accumulation curves for four estimators (bootstrap, Chao, jackknife 1 and jackknife 2) and observed species richness (S) with upper and lower 95% confidence intervals.



# 4.1.2 Significant Flora

### **Conservation Significant Flora**

No EPBC Act or BC Act listed Threatened flora species were recorded within the study area during the current survey. Eight DBCA listed Priority Flora species were recorded: *Acacia dilloniorum* (Priority 1), *Stenanthemum patens* (Priority 1), *Hemigenia virescens* (Priority 3), *Micromyrtus placoides* (Priority 3), *Prostanthera petrophila* (Priority 3), *Acacia speckii* (Priority 4), *Dodonaea amplisemina* (Priority 4), and *Grevillea inconspicua* (Priority 4) (Table 4.1). Records from the current survey and from the targeted survey conducted by Woodman Environmental (2012) are shown in Figure 4.3 and those from the current survey are listed in Appendix E. Priority species were primarily recorded from the banded ironstone and dolerite ranges in the northern section of the study area, although several records (*Dodonaea amplisemina* and *Grevillea inconspicua*) were from a stony creek line and stony flats (*Hemigenia virescens*) to the south of the range (Figure 4.3). The results outlined below include the records from the Woodman Environmental survey (2012).

*Acacia dilloniorum* (Fabaceae) (Figure 4.2, Figure 4.3) has been recorded from 110 locations (total of 584 individuals) within the study area on lower and middle slopes of dolerite hills in *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), *Acacia speckii*, and *Acacia pteraneura* tall sparse shrubland. There are an additional 5,580 recorded individuals of this species occurring outside of the study area within the desktop study area. It is endemic to the Weld Range.

Stenanthemum patens (Rhamnaceae) (Figure 4.2, Figure 4.3) has been recorded from a 11 locations (14 individuals) within the study area on a steep rocky banded ironstone slope in *Acacia rhodophloia*, *Acacia incurvaneura*, and *Thryptomene decussata* tall sparse shrubland. There are an additional 377 recorded individuals of this species occurring outside of the study area within the desktop study area. It has a restricted distribution in the Eastern and Western Murchison IBRA subregions, primarily occurring at to highly disjunct localities at Weld Range and near Leonora.

*Hemigenia virescens* (Lamiaceae) (Figure 4.2, Figure 4.3) has been recorded from four locations (total of 37 individuals) within the study area on stony flats to the south of the banded ironstone ranges in *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla, Acacia incurvaneura,* and *Acacia incurvaneura* × *mulganeura* tall sparse shrubland. There are an additional four recorded individuals of this species occurring outside of the study area within the desktop study area. It has a relatively restricted distribution in the northern Murchison and southern Gascoyne.

*Micromyrtus placoides* (Myrtaceae) (Figure 4.2, Figure 4.3) has been recorded from 79 locations (4,625 individuals) within the study area on gentle to moderate slopes of banded ironstone ranges primarily in *Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia mulganeura,* and *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla* tall sparse shrubland. There are an additional 28 recorded individuals of this species occurring outside of the study area within the desktop study area. It has a relatively restricted distribution primarily in the western Murchison, although it has been recorded from the Yalgoo IBRA bioregion.

*Prostanthera petrophila* (Lamiaceae) (Figure 4.2, Figure 4.3) has been recorded from 20 locations (total of 119 individuals) within the study area on moderate to steep slopes of banded ironstone ranges in *Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia incurvaneura,* and *Thryptomene decussata* tall sparse shrubland, and in *Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia mulganeura,* and *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla* tall sparse shrubland. There are an additional 943 recorded individuals of this species occurring outside of the study area within the desktop study area. It has a relatively restricted distribution at a few localities primarily in the western Murchison, although it has been recorded from the Yalgoo IBRA bioregion.

*Acacia speckii* (Fabaceae) (Figure 4.2, Figure 4.3) has been recorded from 156 locations (total of 559 individuals) within the study area on middle and upper slopes of low dolerite hills in *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), *Acacia speckii*, and *Acacia pteraneura* tall sparse shrubland. There are an additional 166 recorded individuals of this species occurring outside of the study area within



the desktop study area. It has relatively widespread distribution in the western Murchison and central Yalgoo IBRA bioregions.

Dodonaea amplisemina (Sapindaceae) (Figure 4.2, Figure 4.3) has been recorded from 85 locations (total of 430 individuals) within the study area on lower and middle slopes of low dolerite hills and along stony creek lines in *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), *Acacia speckii* (P4), and *Acacia pteraneura* tall sparse shrubland, and in *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), and *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla* tall sparse shrubland. There are an additional 121 recorded individuals of this species occurring outside of the study area within the desktop study area. It has a relatively widespread distribution in the western Murchison and central Yalgoo IBRA bioregions.

*Grevillea inconspicua* (Proteaceae) (Figure 4.2, Figure 4.3) has been recorded from 15 locations (total of 35 individuals) within the study area along stony creek lines in *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla* tall sparse shrubland. There are an additional 70 recorded individuals of this species occurring outside of the study area within the desktop study area. It has a relatively widespread distribution in the western and eastern Murchison IBRA bioregion.

### **Atypical Specimens and Range Extensions**

Although several specimens were unable to be identified to species level, none of these were believed to represent Threatened or Priority flora species, nor were any considered to be anomalous (i.e. potentially new species). There were no species recorded that were considered representative of the range of the species (i.e. at the limits of their distributional range, newly recorded bioregional range extensions, or isolated outliers).





### Figure 4.2: Photos of Priority Flora species recorded within the study area

Top left to right: Acacia dilloniorum phyllodes and flower; Acacia speckii phyllodes and pods; Dodonaea amplisemina leaves and fruit; Grevillea inconspicua leaves and fruit. Bottom left to right: Hemigenia virescens leaves and flower; Micromyrtus placoides leaves and flowers; Prostanthera petrophila leaves and fruit; Stenanthemum patens leaves and flowers.



Taxon	Description and habitat	Vegetation type(s)	Number of point locations (number of individuals) within study area <sup>1</sup>	Estimate of total known local individuals <sup>1</sup>	Individuals recorded within proposed infrastructure envelope	IBRA subregion distribution
Priority 1						
Acacia dilloniorum	Intricately branched shrub with spinescent branchlets to ca. 1.8 m. Red clay loam or red- brown silty clay loam on middle and upper slopes and crests of low dolerite ranges.	SH02, SH07	110 (584)	6,164	21	Western Murchison (MUR)
Stenanthemum patens	Low rounded shrub to ca. 0.5 m. Red-brown clay loam on slopes of low hills of dolerite and banded ironstone.	SH02, SH04, SH05, SH07	11 (14)	391	1	Eastern Murchison (MUR), Western Murchison (MUR)
Priority 3						
Hemigenia virescens	Low rounded shrub to ca. 0.6 m. Red-brown clay loam on flats, sand and lateritic gravel.	SH08	4 (37)	41	0	Augustus (GAS), Western Murchison (MUR)
Micromyrtus placoides	Shrub to ca. 2.3 m. Red-orange sandy clay to clay loam, gravel, banded ironstone, laterite, quartz, dolerite; gently undulating plains, dry creek beds, hillcrests, ridges.	SH05, SH07, SH08	79 (4625)	4,653	3,864	Eastern Murchison (MUR), Tallering (YAL), Western Murchison (MUR)
Prostanthera petrophila	Low spreading shrub to ca. 1.5 m. Lateritic soils.	SH05, SH07, SH08	20 (119)	1,062	63	Eastern Murchison (MUR), Tallering (YAL), Western Murchison (MUR)
Priority 4						
Acacia speckii	Rounded shrub or tree to 3 m. Rocky soils over granite, dolerite.	SH02, SH03, SH07	156 (559)	725	21	Augustus (GAS), Eastern Murchison (MUR), Tallering (YAL), Western Murchison (MUR)
Dodonaea amplisemina	Low shrub to ca. 1 m. Red-brown sandy clay or clay loam on basalt, banded ironstone, quartzite; rocky hills and drainage lines.	SH02, SH03, SH04, SH07	85 (430)	551	10	Augustus (GAS), Avon Wheatbelt P1 (AVW), Eastern Murchison (MUR), Tallering (YAL), Western Murchison (MUR)
Grevillea inconspicua	Intricately branched spreading shrub to ca. 2 m. Loam gravel; rocky drainage lines, creeks, outcrops.	SH02, SH03, SH04	15 (35)	105	0	Eastern Murchison (MUR), Western Murchison (MUR)

### Table 4.1: Summary of conservation significant species recorded within the study area

<sup>1</sup>Records from the current survey, Woodman Environmental (2012), and current DBCA Threatened and Priority Flora database searches. Records with no abundance data were assumed to have one individual.



Coordinate System: GDA 1994 MGA Zone 50 Projection: Transverse Mercator Absolute Scale: 1:20,000 @A3

Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

# 4.1.3 Introduced Flora

Three introduced plant species (weeds) were recorded during the survey (Table 4.2): *Cuscuta planifolia* (small-seeded dodder), *Lysimachia arvensis* (pimpernel), and *Rostraria pumila* (rough cat's tail). None of these are WONS or listed as a Declared Pests on the Western Australian Organism List (Department of Agriculture and Food Western Australia 2016): all species are listed as Permitted - s11 by DAFWA. Ecological impact and invasiveness ratings (see Appendix A for definitions) have been determined for introduced species in the Midwest region (Department of Parks and Wildlife 2013), which are listed for these species in Table 4.2. Each of these species were recorded from very few locations within the study area and were in very low abundance.

Species	Common name	Family	WAOL rating	Ecological Impact	Invasiveness
Cuscuta planiflora	Small-seeded dodder	Convolvulaceae	Permitted - s11	Unknown	Rapid
Lysimachia arvensis	Pimpernel	Primulaceae	Permitted - s11	Low	Rapid
Rostraria pumila	Rough cat's tail, hairgrass	Poaceae	Permitted - s11	Unknown	Unknown

Table 4.2: Summary	of introduced	species recorded	l within the stud	v area
				,

# 4.1.4 Vegetation Types

A Similarity Profile Analysis was conducted on floristic data collected from 24 sampling sites surveyed within the study area. SIMPROF identified ten significantly different groups (Figure 4.4) within which sites may be considered homogenous with respect to overall species composition; these clusters informed the description of ten vegetation types (Table 4.3), which were mapped across the area by extrapolation from aerial imagery and ground-truthed sites (Figure 4.5). The species assemblages associated with each vegetation type are shown in a constancy table in Appendix F. The vegetation types identified tended to correlate strongly with soil types, topographic features, and landforms present within the study area.

The floristic richness of sampled sites ranged from 15 to 63 taxa per site. The least diverse sites were associated with stony plains to the south of the BIF ranges (i.e. vegetation types SH01 and SH08, mean 19.5 and 21 taxa respectively), while the most diverse sites were associated with minor creeks to the south of the range (vegetation types SH03 and SH04, mean 53 and 54.3 taxa respectively).

### Minor creeks, drainage lines, and floodplains

Four vegetation types were described from minor stony creeks and drainage lines. Two tall shrubland types (SH03 and SH04) associated with the prominent creeks were primarily dominated by *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla* tall sparse shrubland, and exhibited a comparatively high level of species diversity (Table 4.3). Two low woodland types (W01 and W02) occurring along minor drainage lines and associated floodplains are typically dominated by *Acacia pruinocarpa* low open woodland and various mulga species (*Acacia pteraneura, A. incurvaneura, A. mulganeura*) in the tall shrub layer (Table 4.3). These vegetation types account for 19.6% (104.76 ha) of the study area.

### Stony and gravely plains

Three vegetation types (SH01, SH06 and SH08) were described from stony clay-loam plains to the south of the BIF ranges. SH01 is floristically distinct from all other clusters (Figure 4.4) and restricted to small calcrete patches. It was dominated by *Acacia ramulosa* subsp. *ramulosa* and *Acacia tetragonophylla* tall sparse shrubland over *Ptilotus obovatus, Scaevola spinescens,* and *Senna artemisioides* subsp. *xartemisioides* low sparse shrubland (Table 4.3). SH06 and SH08 are more widespread occurring extensively on plains with ironstone and banded ironstone gravel, and typically dominated by mulga species (*A. incurvaneura, A. fuscaneura, A. incurvaneura × A. mulganeura*) and *A. ramulosa* subsp.



*linophylla* in the tall shrub layer over *Eremophila* low shrubs (Table 4.3). These vegetation types account for 70.3% (376.58 ha) of the study area.

### Dolerite and banded ironstone hills and outcrops

Three vegetation types (SH02, SH05, and SH07) were described from dolerite hills and BIF ranges and crests in the northern section of the study area. SH02 is restricted to the lower and middle slopes of dolerite hills in far north of the study area and is dominated by *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), *Acacia speckii* (P4), *Acacia pteraneura* tall sparse shrubland. SH05 is restricted to the study area and is dominated by *Acacia speckii* (P4), *Acacia pteraneura* tall sparse shrubland. SH05 is restricted to the study area and is dominated by *Acacia rhodophloia*, *Acacia incurvaneura*, *Thryptomene decussata* tall sparse shrubland. SH07 is restricted to the gentler lower and middle slopes surrounding vegetation type SH05 and was dominated by *Acacia incurvaneura*, *Acacia mulganeura*, *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla* tall sparse shrubland. These vegetation types accounts for 10.1% (54.22 ha) of the study area.



# Figure 4.4: UPGMA dendrogram summarising floristic relationships among quadrats and vegetation types.

Coloured branches indicate significantly different clusters based on similarity profile analysis ( $\alpha = 0.01$ ). Described vegetation types are indicated on branches.



### 4.1.5 Vegetation Condition

Vegetation condition at all sampling sites was assessed as 'Very Good' or 'Excellent' according to the EPA Vegetation Condition Scale. Excluding cleared vehicle tracks and graded grid lines, vegetation across the entire study area showed either no obvious evidence of disturbance or only minor weed invasion or grazing by cattle and goats. Vegetation condition mapping of the study area (Figure 4.6) was primarily extrapolated from site-based vegetation condition assessments. Because of this, a broader category of 'Very Good to Excellent' was used as vegetation tends to vary somewhat over larger areas with respect to the presence or absence of disturbance factors such as grazing and weeds.



### Table 4.3: Summary of vegetation types within the study area

Code	Broad floristic formation (NVIS III)	Vegetation description (NVIS V)	Landform	Soil type and surface geology	Vegetation condition	Indicator species (indicator value ≥ 0.80, p < 0.05)	Mean quadrat/relevé species richness (range)	Extent within study area (ha) (%)	Representative sites
SH01	<i>Acacia</i> sparse shrubland	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa, Acacia tetragonophylla tall sparse shrubland; Ptilotus obovatus, Scaevola spinescens, Senna artemisioides subsp. ×artemisioides low sparse shrubland.	Plains	Red-brown clay loam; calcrete, BIF pebbles	Excellent	Acacia craspedocarpa (1.000)	19.5 (19–20)	0.53 (0.1%)	IR21, IR23, V10
SH02	Acacia sparse shrubland	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii (P4), Acacia pteraneura tall sparse shrubland; Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii low sparse shrubland.	Gentle to moderate dolerite slopes	Red-brown clay loam; dolerite, BIF	Excellent	Acacia speckii (1.000), Goodenia berardiana (0.866), Eremophila macmillaniana (0.816)	40.5 (40–41)	22.96 (4.29%)	IR01, IR02, V06
SH03	Acacia open shrubland	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall open shrubland; Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Ptilotus obovatus low sparse shrubland.	Minor creeks	Red-brown clay loam; BIF pebbles	Excellent	_	63	17.97 (3.36%)	IR14, V11
SH04	<i>Acacia</i> sparse shrubland	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall sparse shrubland; Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Ptilotus obovatus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii low sparse shrubland.	Minor creeks	Red-brown clay loam; dolerite, BIF pebbles	Very Good to Excellent	Senecio sp. (1.000), Cymbopogon ambiguus (0.913), Lepidium oxytrichum (0.816), Phyllanthus maderaspatensis (0.813)	54.3 (52–57)	5.5 (1.03%)	IR09, IR10, IR11, V05
SH05	<i>Acacia</i> sparse shrubland	Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia incurvaneura, Thryptomene decussata tall sparse shrubland; Ptilotus obovatus, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low sparse shrubland.	Steep banded ironstone slopes and crests	Red-brown clay loam; BIF	Excellent	Acacia rhodophloia (1.000), Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei (0.866), Thryptomene decussata (0.820)	29 (26–32)	7.89 (1.47%)	IR03, IR05, V04
SH06	Acacia sparse shrubland	Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia fuscaneura, Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura tall sparse shrubland; Eremophila georgei, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Psydrax latifolia low sparse shrubland.	Plains	Red-brown clay loam; BIF pebbles	Excellent	-	22 (19–25)	103.17 (19.28%)	IR17, IR24, V12



Fenix Resources Ltd Iron Ridge Biological Survey

Code	Broad floristic formation (NVIS III)	Vegetation description (NVIS V)	Landform	Soil type and surface geology	Vegetation condition	Indicator species (indicator value ≥ 0.80, p < 0.05)	Mean quadrat/relevé species richness (range)	Extent within study area (ha) (%)	Representative sites
SH07	<i>Acacia</i> sparse shrubland	Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia mulganeura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall sparse shrubland; Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Micromyrtus placoides (P3) low sparse shrubland.	Gentle to moderate banded ironstone slopes	Red-brown clay loam; BIF pebbles	Excellent	Micromyrtus placoides (1.000)	27.6 (26–29)	55.94 (10.45%)	IR06, IR07, IR08, V03
SH08	<i>Acacia</i> sparse shrubland	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura tall sparse shrubland; Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Ptilotus schwartzii low sparse shrubland.	Plains	Red-brown clay loam; BIF pebbles	Excellent	_	21 (15–25)	253.16 (47.31%)	IR04, IR16, IR18, IR19, IR20, V01, V07, V09, V14
W01	<i>Acacia</i> open woodland	Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland; Acacia pteraneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall open shrubland; Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Ptilotus obovatus low sparse shrubland.	Drainage lines, floodplains	Red-brown clay loam; ironstone	Excellent	_	33	27.19 (5.08%)	IR15, V02
W02	<i>Acacia</i> open woodland	Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland; Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia fuscaneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall open shrubland; Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Ptilotus obovatus low sparse shrubland.	Drainage lines, floodplains	Red-brown clay loam; BIF pebbles	Very Good to Excellent	Euphorbia drummondii (1.000)	42.3 (38–45)	40.76 (7.62%)	IR12, IR13, IR14, IR25, V08, V13



### 4.1.6 Significant Vegetation

### **Threatened and Priority Ecological Communities**

No state (DBCA) or Commonwealth (EPBC Act) listed TECs have been recorded within or in the vicinity of the study area, and none of the vegetation types described here were assessed as corresponding to any known TEC.

The Priority 1 PEC 'Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)' includes any vegetation associated with the Weld Range and occurs over the northern part of the study area. The study area includes 263.8 ha of the PEC as defined by DBCA, including a 500 m administrative buffer, which represents ca. 1% of the total extent of the PEC. The proposed infrastructure includes 78.48 ha (0.3%) of the DBCA defined PEC (Table 4.4, Figure 4.7).

Within the study area, vegetation type SH07 is considered to approximate the southern edge of the Weld Range, south of which are primarily foot-slopes and stony plains (primarily consisting of vegetation type SH06 and SH08). Vegetation occurring within this boundary is therefore considered to correspond closely to the PEC. Six vegetation types occur within this boundary: SH02 (22.9 ha), SH03 (2.55 ha), SH04 (1.70 ha), SH05 (7.89 ha), SH07 (55.94 ha), and W01 (0.17 ha), totalling 91.22 ha, including 30.28 ha associated with the proposed infrastructure boundary (Table 4.4, Figure 4.7).

### Vegetation of potential local significance

Vegetation types SH02, SH04, SH05, and SH07 may be considered locally significant as they support the Priority 1 species *Acacia dilloniorum* and *Stenanthemum patens*. Vegetation types SH03 and SH04 may be considered locally significant as they support a comparatively high level of plant species diversity. Vegetation type SH01 is highly restricted within the study area (0.53 ha, 0.1% of study area) and may therefore be considered locally significant. The extent of each of these vegetation types within the study area potentially impacted by the proposed infrastructure is outlined in Table 4.4.



Vegetation type	Total area mapped (ha)	Local significance	Total clearing area (proposed infrastructure) (ha)	Area impact to PEC (ha) (DBCA defined, including buffer)	Percent impact to PEC (ha) (DBCA defined, including buffer)	Area impact to range vegetation (ha) (range defined)
SH01	0.53	Locally restricted	0.03	_	-	-
SH02	22.96	Supports Acacia dilloniorum (P1) and Stenanthemum patens (P1)	0.36	0.36	0.001%	0.36
SH03	17.97	High species diversity	0.62	0.03	< 0.001 %	0.02
SH04	5.50	Supports Stenanthemum patens (P1), high species diversity	_	_	_	-
SH05	7.89	Supports Stenanthemum patens (P1)	2.84	2.84	0.011%	2.84
SH06	103.17	_	5.58	_	-	-
SH07	55.94	Supports Acacia dilloniorum (P1) and Stenanthemum patens (P1)	26.89	26.89	0.102%	26.89
SH08	253.16	_	66.31	41.35	0.157%	-
W01	27.19	_	4.36	4.36	0.017%	0.17
W02	40.76	_	8.72	2.64	0.010%	_
TOTAL	535.07		115.71	78.48	0.298%	30.29







Study area Vegetation condition
Proposed infrastructure Very Good to Excellent



**Figure 4.6:** Vegetation condition\* of the study area. \*Mapping excludes minor unsealed tracks.

Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community





Priority 1 PEC 'Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)'

Study area

Proposed infrastructure

### Vegetation type associated with banded ironstone ranges and dolerite hills

SH02: Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia speckii (P4), Acacia pteraneura tall sparse shrubland; Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Senna artemisioides subsp. × sturtii low sparse shrubland. SH03: Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall open shrubland; Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Ptilotus obovatus low sparse shrubland. SH04: Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall sparse shrubland; Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Ptilotus obovatus, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii low sparse shrubland. SH05: Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia incurvaneura, Thryptomene decussata tall sparse shrubland; Ptilotus obovatus, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low sparse shrubland. SH07: Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia mulganeura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall sparse shrubland; Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Micromyrtus placoides (P3) low sparse shrubland. W01: Acacia pruinocarpa low open woodland; Acacia pteraneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall open shrubland; Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Ptilotus obovatus low sparse shrubland.

Project: 1796 Date: 19 March 2020 Author: AC Coordinate System: GDA 1994 MGA Zone 50 ecologia Projection: Transverse Mercator Absolute Scale: 1:20,000 @A3

Figure 4.7: Extent of the Priority 1 PEC 'Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)' and vegetation types associated with banded ironstone ranges and dolerite hills.

Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community



05 Kilometers



# 4.2 VERTEBRATE FAUNA

# 4.2.1 Broad Fauna Habitats

Fauna habitat assessments of the study area were undertaken to describe and map broad fauna habitat types that have the potential of supporting conservation significant fauna species. After assessing the various vegetation types, soil units, and landforms, four broad fauna habitat types were identified and described within the study area (Table 4.5). To remain consistent with previous fauna habitat assessments conducted in the study area, *ecologia* used the same habitat types described by Biologic (2012b). Habitat assessments were undertaken at 12 sites (HA01 to HA12) (Figure 4.9) to describe habitats and identify areas considered most likely to support conservation significant fauna species. Data from individual site assessments are presented in Appendix J. Representative photos of each habitat type are presented in Figure 4.8 and habitat mapping is provided in Figure 4.9.

From a local perspective, habitat features that are disjunct and provide sources of shelter, food and mesic qualities required for restricted species may be considered important. Rocky habitats associated with the Mulga Woodland over ironstone ridge crests and slopes provides habitat for the long-tailed dunnart and minor drainage line supporting dense shrubs provides habitat for the west coast mulga slider.

The threatening processes considered to potentially affect vertebrate fauna biodiversity within the study area include:

- impacts of introduced predators and grazing introduced herbivores;
- weed invasion along roadside and drainage areas; and
- clearing of native vegetation.

Table 4.5: Fauna habitat types within the stu	udy area
---	----------

Habitat type	Area (ha)	% study area	Condition
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and Acacia speckii shrubland on mid and lower slopes	22.95	4.29%	Excellent
Mulga woodland over ironstone ridge crests and slopes	58.82	10.99%	Excellent
Mixed Acacia shrublands over stony lower slopes and stony plains	407.54	76.16%	Excellent
Minor drainage line supporting dense shrubs	45.76	8.55%	Excellent
Total	433	100%	

# 4.2.1.1 *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and *Acacia speckii* shrubland on mid and lower slopes

Occurring predominantly on the lower slopes and valleys on the northern margins of the study area, this habitat type is confined to the Weld Range where it is considered widespread. Associated soils include basalt-like rocks, on stony slopes and loams on valley floors. This habitat type provides suitable substrates, vegetation and habitat to support the Priority 3 (BC Act) northern shield-backed trapdoor spider.

# 4.2.1.2 Mulga woodland over ironstone ridge crests and slopes

Widespread across the Weld Range, this habitat type is dominated by *Acacia aneura* shrublands over rocky banded ironstone ridges and slopes. Ironstone outcropping and abundant mantels of pebbles, cobbles and small boulders providing cracks and crevices provides suitable habitat for occupation by lizards and small mammals. Conservation significant fauna known to occupy this habitat type includes the long-tailed dunnart and the locally significant Woolley's pseudantichinus.



### 4.2.1.3 Mixed Acacia shrublands over stony lower slopes and stony plains

This habitat type is comprised of mixed shrublands dominated by *Acacia aneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. ramulosa* var. *linophylla* over scattered shrubs and herbs. This habitat type extends from the lower slopes of the Weld range onto adjacent ironstone gravels and clay loams plains and is considered widespread in a regional context.

### 4.2.1.4 Minor drainage line supporting dense shrubs

Minor drainage lines extending east from the Weld Range into the mixed *Acacia* shrublands support dense this habitat of fringing vegetation of *Acacia* species, *Psydrax latifolia* and *Santalum spicatum* over herbs. A stony creek bed is present in some areas with leaf litter and woody debris present under surrounding vegetation. This habitat type is considered widespread and provides potential suitable habitat for the Priority 1 listed west coast mulga slider.



Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and Acacia speckii shrubland on mid and lower slopes



Mulga woodland over ironstone ridge crests and slopes





Mixed Acacia shrublands over stony lower slopes and stony plains



Minor drainage line supporting dense shrubs

Figure 4.8: Representative photographs of habitat types within the study area.





### 4.2.2 Terrestrial Vertebrate Fauna

Fifteen vertebrate fauna species were recorded during the survey including 13 bird, one mammal and one reptile species (Table 4.6). No vertebrate species of conservation significance were recorded during the level one survey. One introduced species was recorded. Dingo/wild dog tracks were recorded in a drainage line.

Common name	Species
Mammals	
Dingo/wild dog	Canis familiaris
Birds	
Red-capped robin	Petroica goodenovii
Little crow	Corvus bennetti
Pied butcherbird	Cracticus nigrogularis
Splendid fairy wren	Malurus splendens
Chestnut-rumped thornbill	Acanthiza uropygialis
Redthroat	Pyrrholaemus brunneus
White-browed babbler	Pomatostomus superciliosus
Crested bellbird	Oreoica gutturalis
Little woodswallow	Artamus minor
Willie wagtail	Rhipidura leucophrys
Black-faced woodswallow	Artamus cinereus
Rufous whistler	Pachycephala rufiventris
Spotted nightjar	Eurostopodus argus
Reptiles	
Ring-tailed dragon	Ctenophorus caudicinctus
Total	15

Table 4.6: Vertebrate species recorded

# 4.2.3 Conservation Significant Fauna

Conservation significant fauna are species that have been adequately surveyed and are deemed to be, in the wild, either rare, at risk of extinction, or otherwise in need of special protection, and have been gazetted as such. The likelihood of occurrence assessment (Section 3.8.2) identified a number of fauna taxa of listed conservation significance which may have the potential to occur within the study area. Following the Level 1 fauna assessment, one invertebrate species of conservation significance, the northern shield-back trapdoor spider (*Idiosoma clypeatum* (P3 BC Act)), was recorded at five locations. The west coast mulga slider (*Lerista eupoda* (P1 BC Act)) has previously been recorded within the study area.

Previous fauna surveys conducted in the immediate vicinity have recorded two species of conservation significance including the long-tailed dunnart (*Sminthopsis longicaudata* (P4 BC Act)) and the peregrine falcon (*Falco peregrinus* (OS BC Act)). As a consequence, both the long-tailed dunnart and the peregrine falcon were assessed as 'Likely (1)' to occur in the study area. Four species of mammal, 12 species of bird (primarily migratory wading birds) and one reptile were deemed 'Unlikely (3)' to occur within the study area. Conservation significant vertebrate species recorded or assessed as having a



likelihood of occurrence rating of 'Likely (1)' or 'Possible (2)' within the study area, are summarised below. Species assessed as 'Unlikely (3)' are not discussed further.

Common name	Species name	Evidence	Easting	Northing
Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider	Idiosoma clypeatum	Active burrow	568395.78	7020076.6
Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider	Idiosoma clypeatum	Active burrow	568408.1	7020078.7
Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider	Idiosoma clypeatum	Active burrow	568413.43	7020072.2
Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider	Idiosoma clypeatum	Inactive burrow	568409.03	7020067.3
Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider	Idiosoma clypeatum	Inactive burrow	568810.61	7020051.7

Table 4.7: Locations of conservation significant fauna.

# 4.2.3.1 Conservation significant species recorded within the study area

# Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider (Idiosoma clypeatum) (Priority 3 BC Act)

*Idiosoma clypeatum* is one of seven highly automorphic species in the polyphyletic 'sigillate complex' and has a widespread distribution in Western Australia's arid zone, principally throughout the Yalgoo and Murchison bioregions where it is the only known species in the nigrum-group (Rix *et al.* 2018). Their range extends from near Paynes Find, to Karara in the south and north to Coolcalalaya Homestead, Jack Hills and Yeelirrie (Rix *et al.* 2018). *Idiosoma clypeatum* was historically misidentified as *Idiosoma nigrum* and is distinguished from all other species of the *nigrum*-group by the presence of well-defined lateral sclerotic strips on the male abdomen and by the very heavily sclerotised, leathery, 'shield-like' morphology of the female abdomen (Rix *et al.* 2018). Males grow to 17.3 mm (total length) while females are slightly larger with a total length of 21.8 mm and burrows are characteristically adorned with a 'moustache-like' arrangement of twig-lines (Rix *et al.* 2018). Wandering males in search of females have been collected in late autumn, winter and spring and work completed on the biology of this species by Ellis RJ (2015) was completed at the Weld range.

DBCA database search results identified 1894 records of *Idiosoma clypeatum* within 100 km of the study area (Figure 3.9). Intensive targeted surveys for this species were undertaken immediately adjacent to the study area within tenement M20/118 with 239 burrows recorded. A total of five burrows were recorded during the recent reconnaissance and Level 1 survey in the north-western corner of the study area (Figure 4.10, Figure 4.11) under narrow phyllode acacias within the *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and *Acacia speckii* shrubland on mid and lower slopes habitat type on a slope with a southern aspect.





Figure 4.10: Idiosoma clypeatum habitat and burrows

# West coast mulga slider (Lerista eupoda) (Priority 1 BC Act)

This small (85 mm snout vent length) elongated smooth fossorial lizard is known to inhabit open mulga on red loams and sandy loams (Cogger 2018). This species has a pale brown above with a broad dark brownish-black vertebral stripe from nape to base of tail and a broad dark brown upper lateral stripe from nostril to base of tail (Cogger 2018). Known from the arid interior of the Midwest of WA and endemic to the Murchison bioregion, this species has previously been recorded within Weld Range within leaf litter fringing drainage lines.



This species has previously been recorded twice within the study area according to DBCA search results with a further 19 records are found within 100 km (Figure 3.9). Although no individuals were recorded during the current survey, minor drainage lines supporting dense shrubs provides suitable habitat for this species and it is considered likely that this species persists within the study area.

# 4.2.3.2 Conservation significant species with a likelihood of occurrence rating of 'Likely (1)'

# Peregrine falcon (Falco peregrinus) (Other specially protected fauna BC Act)

The species is widespread in Australia but requires specific nesting sites. It does not build a nest but requires cliffs, rocky outcrops, or large tree hollows (Johnstone and Storr 1998). Suitable breeding habitat has the potential to occur in the study area in the form of rocky outcrops; however, due to its widespread movements, the species may also overfly all habitats of the study area intermittently. peregrine falcons feed almost entirely on birds, especially ducks, parrots and pigeons. With nine recent records in the vicinity of the study area including records from surveys in adjacent tenements (Figure 3.9), this species was given a likelihood of occurrence rating of 'Likely (1)'.

# Long-tailed dunnart (Sminthopsis longicaudata) (Priority 4 BC Act)

The long-tailed dunnart has been recorded from widely scattered localities in the arid zone where it inhabits rugged, rocky areas. It typically occurs on plateaus near breakaways and scree slopes, and on rugged boulder-strewn scree slopes (van Dyck and Strahan 2008). It was once considered rare but has recently been shown to be relatively common and widespread within rocky habitats especially banded iron formation ranges within the Midwest (van Dyck and Strahan 2008). Widely separated populations occur in the Pilbara, Murchison, Gibson Desert, southern Carnarvon Basin and in the Western MacDonnell Ranges (Northern Territory) (Burbidge *et al.* 2008).

Although DBCA database searches yielded no records of this species within 100 km of the study area, individuals have been recorded on five occasions within the Weld Range (*ecologia* 2009). Long-tailed dunnarts have been recorded in habitats consisting of BIF ridge crests, slopes and in minor drainage lines. Suitable habitat is present within the study area and the long-tailed dunnart has been assessed as having a likelihood of occurrence rating of 'Likely (1)'.







# 5 DISCUSSION

# 5.1 FLORISTIC DIVERSITY

A total of 171 vascular plant taxa (species, infraspecific taxa, and phrase names) representing 37 families and 93 genera were recorded during the survey. The most dominant families in terms of species richness were the Asteraceae (26 taxa), Fabaceae (25), Poaceae (11), Scrophulariaceae (11), Chenopodiaceae (10), and Amaranthaceae (9). At the generic level, the most dominant groups were *Acacia* (16 taxa), *Eremophila* (11), *Ptilotus* (9), *Goodenia* (6), and *Rhodanthe* (6). The composition of the flora is typical of the Weld Range more broadly (Markey and Dillon 2008) and of the landforms present within the study area, which is also generally characteristic of the Murchison IBRA region. No species records represented bioregional range extensions, no taxa were endemic to the study area, and no taxa were potentially new species or otherwise anomalous.

Although there are few plant taxa endemic to the Weld Range, it is acknowledged as a refugia for conservation significant species (Markey and Dillon 2008). No EPBC Act (1999) listed Threatened Flora species or BC Act listed Threatened Flora species were recorded within the study area during the current survey. Eight state listed Priority flora species were recorded: *Acacia dilloniorum* (Priority 1), *Stenanthemum patens* (Priority 1), *Hemigenia virescens* (Priority 3), *Micromyrtus placoides* (Priority 3), *Prostanthera petrophila* (Priority 3), *Acacia speckii* (Priority 4), *Dodonaea amplisemina* (Priority 4), and *Grevillea inconspicua* (Priority 4). Priority species were primarily recorded from rocky substrates of the banded ironstone ranges in the northern section of the study area, although several records were made from the minor stony creek (*Dodonaea amplisemina* and *Grevillea inconspicua*) and stony flats (*Hemigenia virescens*) to the south of the ranges. The expected impact of the proposed clearing on these species is minimal in most cases (< 100 individuals), but the impact is expected to be greater for *Micromyrtus placoides* (ca. 3,864 individuals).

A number of Priority species were assessed during the desktop assessment as potentially occurring within the study area based on proximity and potential presence of suitable habitat. Post-field survey, many of these were reassessed as 'unlikely' to occur as suitable habitat was not present or they were sufficiently surveyed for and not recorded. Two species (*Goodenia berringbinensis* and *Goodenia grandiflora*) that were not recorded are still considered to potentially occur within the study area as these are annual or ephemeral taxa that were difficult to detect at the time of the field survey.

Three introduced plant species (*Cuscuta planifolia, Lysimachia arvensis,* and *Rostraria pumila*) were recorded within the study area, none of which were WONS or Declared Pests (DAFWA 2016). All of these species were recorded infrequently and in very low abundance, primarily along creek banks in riparian habitats, and are not currently problematic. These species recorded are widely naturalised across the Murchison region, and their presence within the study area is not considered unusual.

# 5.2 VEGETATION

Hierarchical cluster analysis was conducted using floristic data collected from 24 sampling sites surveyed within the study area. Based on this classification, 10 vegetation types were described and mapped. The vegetation types identified tended to correlate strongly with the geological substrates and topographic features present within the study area.

Four vegetation types were described from minor stony creeks and drainage lines. Dominant vegetation in these types typically included *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla* tall sparse shrubland occurring in more prominent creek lines (SH03 and SH04), and *Acacia pruinocarpa* low open woodlands over mulga tall open shrublands along minor drainage channels and associated floodplains (W01 and W02). The dominant understorey species of these types generally included *Eremophila forrestii* subsp. *forrestii, Eremophila georgei Eremophila mackinlayi* subsp. *spathulata, Harnieria kempeana* subsp. muelleri, and *Ptilotus obovatus*.



Three vegetation types were described from stony plains to the south of the BIF ranges. Acacia ramulosa subsp. ramulosa and Acacia tetragonophylla tall sparse shrubland (SH01) was floristically distinct and restricted to small calcrete patches in the southern section of the study area. The remaining types (SH06 and SH08) were more widespread across the study area, occurring on plains with ironstone and banded ironstone gravel, and were typically dominated by mulga species (A. incurvaneura, A. fuscaneura, A. incurvaneura × A. mulganeura) and A. ramulosa subsp. linophylla in the tall shrub layer and by Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eremophila georgei, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, and Ptilotus schwartzii in the understorey.

Three vegetation types were described from dolerite slopes and BIF outcrops in the northern section of the study area. SHO2 was restricted to the lower and middle slopes of dolerite hills in far north of the study area and was dominated by *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994), *Acacia speckii* (P4), *Acacia pteraneura* tall sparse shrubland. It also a supported a significant population of the Priority 1 species *Acacia dilloniorum*. SHO5 was restricted to the steep middle and upper slopes and crests of BIF outcrops also in the far north of the study area and consisted of *Acacia rhodophloia*, *Acacia incurvaneura*, *Thryptomene decussata* tall sparse shrubland. The only record of the Priority 1 species *Stenanthemum patens* within the study area was within the vegetation type. SHO7 was restricted to the gentler lower and middle slopes surrounding vegetation type SHO5 and was dominated by *Acacia incurvaneura*, *Acacia mulganeura*, *Acacia ramulosa* var. *linophylla* tall sparse shrubland, and supported a large population of the Priority 3 species *Micromyrtus placoides*.

# 5.2.1 Listed Plant Communities

TECs listed under the EPBC Act are regarded as nationally significant. None of the vegetation types described here were assessed as corresponding to any nationally listed TEC. State listed TECs and PECs are regarded as being of State significance. None of the vegetation types described here correspond to any State listed TEC, although vegetation across part of the study area coincides with the Priority 1 PEC 'Weld Range vegetation complexes (banded ironstone formation)'.

The spatial extent of this PEC is defined by DBCA and includes a 500 m administrative buffer. Vegetation type SH01 excepted, all of the vegetation types described either partially or completely occur within the PEC boundary. Within the study area, a total of 263.8 ha of vegetation occurs within the DBCA defined PEC boundary (representing approximately 1% of the total PEC area). This includes 78.48 ha within the proposed project infrastructure footprint, which accounts for 0.3% of the total PEC area.

# 5.2.2 Vegetation of Regional Significance

Regional significance addresses the representation of habitats at a biogeographic regional level. Plant communities that are restricted or uncommon in a regional context are considered regionally significant. Plant communities acting as a refuge Threatened Flora species may also be considered regionally significant. For the purposes of this assessment, this does not include TECs or PECs as these are addressed above.

None of the vegetation associations mapped by Shepherd *et al.* (2001) within the study area are restricted within the Murchison IBRA bioregion, and are not considered to be regionally significant. Moreover, none of the land systems described and mapped by Curry *et al.* (1994) that occur within the study area are considered restricted. None of the vegetation types described here are known to support Threatened Flora species, and none of the Ecosystems at Risk described for the Western Murchison IBRA subregion (Desmond *et al.* 2001) correspond to the vegetation types described here.

# 5.2.3 Vegetation of Local Significance

Locally significant vegetation may include plant communities that are locally restricted, contain comparatively high structural or species diversity, or support Priority species that are restricted to these plant communities. Based on these criteria, vegetation types SH02, SH04, SH05 and SH07 may



be considered locally significant as they support the Priority 1 species *Acacia dilloniorum* and *Stenanthemum patens*. These species were not recorded from any other vegetation types. Vegetation types SH03 and SH04 may be also considered locally significant as they support comparatively high levels of plant species diversity. With the exception of SH07, the impact to these vegetation types is expected to be negligible. The expected impact of the proposed clearing on SH07 is 26.89 ha (48% of its total mapped area); however, this vegetation type is expected to be more widespread outside of the study area. Vegetation type SH01 is highly restricted within the study area, occurring only on low calcrete rises in the southern section of the study area, and appears to be locally uncommon based on interrogation of aerial imagery outside of the study area. The potential impact to this vegetation type is negligible (0.03 ha, 2% of its total mapped area).

# 5.3 VERTEBRATE FAUNA

# 5.3.1 Broad fauna habitats

Four broad fauna habitats were identified, described and mapped within the study area:

- Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and Acacia speckii shrubland on mid and lower slopes
- Mulga woodland over ironstone ridge crests and slopes
- Mixed Acacia shrublands over stony lower slopes and stony plains
- Minor drainage line supporting dense shrubs

Habitats were assessed to be in Very Good to Excellent condition. The landforms, land systems and habitat types identified during the survey are considered locally common and the survey did not identify any restricted conservation significant vertebrate fauna habitat, or habitats that were restricted to the survey area itself. *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and *Acacia speckii* shrubland on mid and lower slopes provides habitat for the Priority 3 (BC Act) northern shield-backed trap-door spider especially on south facing slopes. Minor drainage line supporting dense shrubs provides suitable habitat in the form of thick leaf litter for the Priority 1 (BC Act) west coast mulga slider (*Lerista eupoda*). The rocky outcrop and bouldering habitat found within the mulga woodland over ironstone ridge crests and slopes is consistent with that preferred by the Priority 4 (BC Act) long-tailed dunnart.

# 5.3.2 Fauna assemblage

Fifteen vertebrate fauna species including 13 birds, one mammal and one reptile, were recorded during the survey. Species recorded during this survey represent the potential vertebrate fauna of the survey area; however, species other than those recorded are likely to occur.

# 5.3.3 Conservation significant fauna

Nineteen vertebrate fauna species and one invertebrate species of conservation significance were identified from Threatened and Priority Fauna database searches within 100 km of the study area including four mammals, 13 birds and two reptiles.

One species of conservation significance was recorded during the survey. Five burrows belonging to the Priority 3 (BC Act) northern shield-backed trapdoor spider (*Idiosoma clypeatum*) were recorded during the survey in the north-western corner of the study area. All burrows were recorded on a southern aspect slope, in a mix of clay and rocky substrates under narrow phyllode acacias. These conditions are consistent with previous records within the Weld Range. This species favours burrowing under acacias with narrow phyllodes which are used to construct the characteristic 'moustache-like' arrangement of twigs around the trapdoor of the burrow.


Biologic Environmental (2019) conducted a status review of the trapdoor spider *Idiosoma clypeatum* and an assessment of previously undertaken targeted surveys and potential future survey works within tenement M20/118. It was concluded that Priority 3 species (BC Act) require further survey although the extent of previous survey work was regarded as adequate for impact assessment requirements (Biologic Environmental (2019). In the current survey, areas of suitable habitat were adequately traversed to identify and quantify burrows.

Previous surveys in the immediate vicinity of the study area recorded two species of conservation significance; the long-tailed dunnart (*Sminthopsis longicaudata* (P4 BC Act)) and peregrine falcon (*Falco peregrinus* (OS BC Act)). Suitable habitat for these species is present within the study area. Consequently both the long-tailed dunnart and peregrine falcon were assigned a likelihood of occurrence rating of 'Likely (1)'.

Seventeen species of conservation significance were assessed as unlikely to occur due to a lack of suitable habitat including four species of mammal, 12 birds and one reptile.



### 6 **REFERENCES**

- Bamford Consulting Ecologists, 2009. Weld Range Direct Shipping Ore Project targeted Shield-backed Trapdoor Spider, SRE Invertebrate and Vertebrate Fauna Survey.
- Biologic Environmental. 2012a. Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum survey.
- Biologic Environmental. 2012b. Weld Range, Level 1 Targeted Fauna Survey, Unpublished report for Atlas Iron Limited.
- Biologic Environmental. 2009. Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range Level 1 Targeted Fauna Survey. Unpublished report prepared for Atlas Iron Ltd by Biologic Environmental.
- Biologic Environmental. 2019. Idiosoma Reveiw. Unpublished memo report prepared for Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd.
- Burbidge, A. A., McKenzie, N. L., and Fuller, P. J. 2008. Long-tailed Dunnart, *Sminthopsis longicaudata*. pp. 148-150 *in* Van Dyck, S., and Strahan, R., eds. The Mammals of Australia. Reed New Holland, Sydney.
- CHAH. 2017. Australia's Virtual Herbarium. Available at http://avh.chah.org.au.
- Cogger, H. G. 2018. Reptiles and Amphibians of Australia. Reed New Holland, Sydney.
- Curry, P. J., Payne, A. L., Leighton, K. A., Hennig, P., and Blood, D. A. 1994. An inventory and condition survey of the Murchison River Catchment, Western Australia. Technical Bulletin No. 84 *in* Howes, K. M. W., ed. Technical Bulletin No. 84. Department of Agriculture, South Perth, Western Australia.
- De Caceres, M. and Legendre, P. 2009. Associations between species and groups of sites: indices and statistical inference. Ecology, URL <u>http://sites.google.com/site/miqueldecaceres/</u>.
- Department Biodiversity Conservation and Attractions. 2017. Priority Ecological Communities for Western Australia version 27 (30 June 2017) *in* Species and Community Branch, ed. Department Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions, Western Australia.
- Department of Agriculture and Food Western Australia. 2016. Western Australian Organism List (WAOL) - Declared pest list. Available at <u>https://www.agric.wa.gov.au/bam/western-australian-organism-list-waol</u>. Department of Agriculture and Food Western Australia. Government of Western Australia., South Perth.
- Department of Environment and Heritage. 2001. National Objectives and Targets for Biodiversity Conservation 2001–2005, Canberra.
- Department of Parks and Wildlife. 2013. Invasive Plant Prioritisation Process for DPaW. Available at: <u>http://dec.wa.gov.au/management-and-protection/plants/invasive-plants/invasive-plant-</u> <u>prioritisation-process.html</u>. Department of Parks and Wildlife. Government of Western Australia.
- Department of Sustainability Environment Water Population and Communities. 2012a. Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia (IBRA) Version 7. Australian Government, Canberra.
- Department of Sustainability ENvironment Water Population and Communities. 2012b. Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia (IBRA), Version 7. Australian Government Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities.
- Department of the Environment and Energy. 2018. Directory of Important Wetlands. Canberra: Department of the Environment and Energy. Available from: <u>http://www.environment.gov.au/cgi-bin/wetlands/search.pl?smode=DOIW</u>.

- Desmond, A., Cowan, M., and Chant, A. 2001. Murchison 2 (MUR2 Western Murchison subregion). A Biodiversity Audit of Western Australia's 53 Biogeographic Subregions in 2002. Department of Conservation and Land Management, Perth, Western Australia.
- DSEWPaC. 2012. Weeds of National Significance (WONS). Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities. Commonwealth of Australia. Available at: <u>http://www.environment.gov.au/biodiversity/invasive/weeds/weeds/lists/wons.html</u>.
- ecologia Environment. 2009. Weld Range Vertebrate Fauna Assessment. Unpublished Report for Sinosteel-Midwest Management.
- *ecologia*. 2012. Sinosteel Midwest Coporation Ltd: Weld Range Iron Ore Project, Rare Flora Management Plan. Prepared by Ecologia Environment for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd.
- ecologia Environment. 2009. Beeliar Drive Biological Assessment.
- Ellis RJ. 2015. Some observations on the field behaviour of the vulnerable mygalomorph spider, Idiosoma nigrum. The Western Australian Naturalist. 29:241–246.
- Environmental Protection Authority. 2000. Environmental Protection of Native Vegetation in Western Australia. Clearing of native vegetation, with particular reference to the agricultural area. Position Statement No. 2. December 2002 *in* Authority, E. P., ed. EPA, Western Australia.
- Environmental Protection Authority. 2016a. Environmental Factor Guideline: Flora and Vegetation, Environmental Protection Authority, Western Australia.
- Environmental Protection Authority. 2016b. Environmental Factor Guideline: Terrestrial Fauna, Environmental Protection Authority, Western Australia.
- Environmental Protection Authority. 2016c. Technical Guidance: Flora and Vegetation Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment, Environmental Protection Authority, Western Australia. December 2016.
- Environmental Protection Authority. 2016d. Technical Guidance: Sampling Methods for Terrestrial Vertebrate Fauna. EPA, Western Australia.
- Environmental Protection Authority. 2016e. Technical Guidance: Terrestrial Fauna Surveys. December 2016. . EPA, Western Australia.
- Executive Steering Committee for Australian Vegetation Information. 2003. Australian Vegetation Attribute Manual: National Vegetation Information System (NVIS), Version 6.0. Department of the Environment and Heritage, Canberra.
- Government of Western Australia. 2018. 2017 Statewide Vegetation Statistics incorporating the CAR Reserve Analysis (Full Report). Current as of December 2017. WA Department of Biodiversity Conservation and Attractions, Perth, <u>https://catalogue.data.wa.gov.au/dataset/dbcastatewide-vegetation-statistics</u>
- International Union for Conservation of Nature. 2014. Guidelines for using the IUCN Red List Categories and Criteria, Version 11. Prepared by the IUCN Standards and Petitions Subcommittee. Downladable from <u>http://www.iucnredlist.org/documents/RedListGuidelines.pdf</u>.
- Johnstone, R. E. and Storr, G. M. 1998. Handbook of Western Australian Birds, Volume I Non-Passerines (Emu to Dollarbird). Western Australian Museum, Perth.
- Markey, A. S. and Dillon, S. J. 2008. Flora and vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Weld Range. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia.
- Northcote, K. H., Beckmann, G. G., Bettenay, E., Churchward, H. M., Van Dijk, D. C., Dimmock, G. M., Hubble, G. D., Isbell, R. F., McArthur, W. M., Murtha, G. G., Nicolls, K. D., Paton, T. R.,

Thompson, C. H., Webb, A. A., and Wright, M. J. 1960-1968. Atlas of Australian Soils, Sheets 1 to 10. With explanatory data. CSIRO Australia and Melbourne University Press, Melbourne.

- Oksanen, J., Blanchet, F. G., Friendly, M., Kindt, R., Legendre, P., McGlinn, D., Minchin, P. R., O'Hara, R.
   B., Simpson, G. L., Solymos, P., Stevens, M. H. H., Szoecs, E., and Wagner, H. 2017. vegan: Community Ecology Package. R package version 2.4-5. <u>https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=vegan</u>.
- R Core Team. 2016. R: A language and environment for statistical computing. . R Foundation for Statistical Computing, Vienna, Austria. ISBN 3-900051-07-0, URL <u>http://www.R-project.org</u>.
- Rix, M. G., Huey, J. A., Cooper, S. J. B., Austin, A. D., and Harvey, M. S. 2018. Conservation systematics of the shield-backed trapdoor spiders of the nigrum-group (Mygalomorphae, Idiopidae, Idiosoma): integrative taxonomy reveals a diverse and threatened fauna from south-western Australia. Zookeys. 756:1-121.
- Shepherd, D. P., Beeston, G. R., and Hopkins, A. J. M. 2001. Native vegetation in Western Australia: Extent, type and status. Technical Report 249. Department of Agriculture, South Perth, Western Australia.
- Threatened Species Scientific Committee. 2016. Species Profile and Threats Database (retrieved from <a href="http://www.environment.gov.au/cgi-bin/sprat/public/sprat.pl">http://www.environment.gov.au/cgi-bin/sprat/public/sprat.pl</a>). Threatened Species Scientific Committee.
- Tille, P. 2006. Soil Landscapes of Western Australia's Rangelands and Arid Interior. Resource Management Technical Report 313. Department of Agriculture and Food, Western Australia.
- van Dyck, S. and Strahan, R. 2008. The Mammals of Australia. Australian Museum Trust and Queensland Museum, Sydney, New South Wales.
- Van Vreeswyk, A. M. E., Payne, A. L., Leighton, K. A., and Hennig, P. 2004. An inventory and condition survey of the Pilbara region, Western Australia. Technical Bulletin No. 92. Department of Agriculture, Western Australia.
- Western Australian Herbarium. 1998–2018. FloraBase The Western Australian Flora. Department of Parks and Wildlife. <u>http://florabase.dpaw.wa.gov.au</u>.
- Whitaker, D. and Christman, M. 2014. clustsig: Significant Cluster Analysis. R package version 1.1. <u>https://CRAN.R-project.org/package=clustsig</u>.
- Woodman Environmental. 2009. Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range DSO Project, Flora and Vegetation Assessment 2009. Prepared by Woodman Environmental Consulting for Atlas Iron Ltd.
- Woodman Environmental. 2012. Atlas Iron Ltd: Weld Range DSO Project, Local and Regional Significnt Flora Assessment 2012. Prepared by Woodman Environmental Consulting for Atlas Iron Ltd.



### 7 APPENDICES

APPENDIX A DEFINITIONS



### SIGNIFICANT FLORA

According to the *EPA Factor Guideline: Flora and Vegetation* (Environmental Protection Authority 2016a), plant taxa (or records) may be considered significant for a number of reasons including, but not restricted to, the following:

- Being listed as a 'Threatened Species' under the *Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016* (WA) or the *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999* (Cwlth);
- Being classified by the Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions (DBCA) as a 'Priority flora' species;
- Locally endemic species or those associated with a restricted habitat type (e.g. surface water or groundwater dependent ecosystems);
- New species or those having anomalous features that indicate a potential new species;
- Being representative of the range of a species (particularly, at the extremes of range, recently discovered range extensions, or isolated outliers of the main range);
- Unusual species, including restricted subspecies, varieties or naturally occurring hybrids; and
- Being representative of taxonomic groups that no longer occur widely in the broader landscape (relictual species/populations).

### Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act) (Cwlth)

At a Commonwealth level, Threatened flora species are protected under the EPBC Act, which lists species in accordance with the criteria of the International Union for Conservation of Nature (International Union for Conservation of Nature 2014), that is, 'Critically Endangered', 'Endangered', 'Vulnerable', 'Conservation Dependant', 'Extinct', or 'Extinct in the Wild' (category definitions can be seen below).

### Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016 (Western Australia)

At a State level, Threatened flora species are protected under the BC Act. These are taxa which have been adequately surveyed and are deemed to be either rare, in danger of extinction, or otherwise in need of special protection in the wild and are gazetted as Threatened (Declared Rare) Flora. Threatened flora are further categorised by the Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions (DBCA) according to their level of threat using the International Union for Conservation of Nature (IUCN) red list criteria ((International Union for Conservation of Nature 2014) (see below).

### Priority Flora (DBCA)

The DBCA maintains a list of Priority flora species, which are considered poorly known, uncommon or under threat but for which there is insufficient justification to be listed as Threatened, based on known distribution and population sizes. Priority flora species are assigned to one of four categories, described below. DBCA listed Priority flora species do not have any statutory protection.

### Significant Vegetation

According to *EPA Factor Guideline: Flora and Vegetation* (Environmental Protection Authority 2016a), vegetation may be considered significant for a number of reasons including, but not restricted to, the following:

- Being identified as a 'Threatened Ecological Community' under the *Biodiversity Conservation* (BC) *Act* 2016 (WA) or the *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation* (EPBC) *Act* 1999 (Cwlth);
- Being classified as a 'Priority Ecological Communities' by DBCA;
- Having a restricted distribution;
- The degree of historical impact from threatening processes;
- Playing a role as a refuge;



• Providing an important function required to maintain ecological integrity of a significant ecosystem.

### INTRODUCED FLORA

### Weeds of National Significance (WONS)

At a national level, there are 32 weed species listed as Weeds of National Significance (WONS). The Commonwealth National Weeds Strategy: *A Strategic Approach to Weed Problems of National Significance* (DSEWPaC 2012) describes broad goals and objectives to manage these species.

### **Declared Pests**

The purpose of the *Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Act 2007* (BAM Act) is to prevent serious animal and plant pests and diseases from entering WA and becoming established, and to minimise the spread and impact of those that are already present. The BAM Act (and associated regulations) replaces the *Agriculture and Related Resources Protection Act 1976* (and associated regulations).

The BAM regulations were enacted on 1 May 2013, placing organisms into one of five legal status categories: Declared Pest - Prohibited, Declared Pest, Permitted, Permitted – Requires Permit, and Unlisted (Appendix A). The Western Australian Organism List (WAOL) (Department of Agriculture and Food Western Australia 2016) lists organisms in each of these categories. Unlisted organisms must not be imported (unless in accordance with an import permit and regulations). The BAM Act further categorises Declared Pests in one of three control categories: C1 Exclusion, C2 Eradication, and C3 Management (see below).

### **Environmental Weeds**

At a regional level, DBCA rates weed species against four criteria based on the Weed Prioritisation Process (Department of Parks and Wildlife 2013): invasiveness, ecological impact, potential and current distribution, and feasibility of control. Currently, only species with a rating for both the ecological impact and invasiveness criteria are listed (see below).

### SIGNIFICANT FAUNA

According to *EPA Factor Guideline: Terrestrial Fauna* (Environmental Protection Authority 2016b), terrestrial fauna may be considered significant for a number of reasons including, but not restricted to:

- Being identified as a Threatened or Priority species (Appendix A);
- Species with restricted distribution;
- Degree of historical impact from threatening processes; and
- Providing an important function required to maintain the ecological integrity of a significant ecosystem.

Additionally, as described in EPA Guidance (Environmental Protection Authority 2016e) terrestrial fauna may be considered significant for the following reasons:

- Species is protected by international agreement or treaty (i.e. migratory fauna);
- Species is a short-range endemic;
- Species has declining populations or distribution;
- Species is at the extreme of its range, or is part of an outlying population; and
- Species is undescribed.

Fauna habitats may be significant if they provide habitat important to the life history of a significant species, i.e. breeding, feeding and roosting or aggregation areas, or where they are unique or isolated habitats, for example wetlands, in the landscape or region (Environmental Protection Authority 2016b).

### Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (Cwlth)



At the Commonwealth level, Threatened fauna are protected under Section 178 of the EPBC Act, which may list species as: extinct, extinct in the wild, critically endangered, endangered, vulnerable, and conservation dependent. In addition, under sections 209 and 248 of the Act, some migratory and marine species are protected under international agreements. EPBC Act conservation code definitions can be found below.

### **Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016 (WA)**

At a state level, fauna species are protected under the BC Act. Threatened, Extinct and Specially Protected fauna are species which have been adequately searched for and are deemed to be, in the wild, threatened, extinct or in need of special protection, and have been gazetted as such. BC Act conservation code definitions can be found below.

Threatened fauna is that subset of 'Specially Protected Fauna' listed under schedules 1 to 3 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for Threatened Fauna. Listed by order of the Minister as Threatened in the category of critically endangered, endangered or vulnerable under section 19(1), or is a rediscovered species to be regarded as threatened species under section 26(2) of the BC Act.

Specially protected fauna under section 13(1) of the BC Act are species that meet one or more of the following categories: species of special conservation interest; migratory species; cetaceans; species subject to international agreement; or species otherwise in need of special protection.

### Priority Fauna (DBCA)

Possibly threatened species that do not meet survey criteria, or are otherwise data deficient, are added to the Priority fauna lists under Priorities 1, 2 or 3. These three categories are ranked in order of priority for survey and evaluation of conservation status so that consideration can be given to their declaration as threatened fauna. Species that are adequately known, are rare but not threatened, or meet criteria for near threatened, or that have been recently removed from the threatened species or other specially protected fauna lists for other than taxonomic reasons, are placed in Priority 4. These species require regular monitoring. Assessment of Priority codes is based on the Western Australian distribution of the species, unless the distribution in WA is part of a contiguous population extending into adjacent States, as defined by the known spread of locations. Priority conservation code definitions can be found below.



### Threatened Flora and Fauna Categories (EPBC Act)

Code	Definition
EV	Extinct
	Taxa which at a particular time if, at that time, there is no reasonable doubt that the last member of the species has died.
	Extinct in the Wild
EW	Taxa which is known only to survive in cultivation, in captivity or as a naturalised population well outside its past range; or it has not been recorded in its known and/or expected habitat, at appropriate seasons, anywhere in its past range, despite exhaustive surveys over a time frame appropriate to its life cycle and form.
	Critically Endangered
CR	Taxa which at a particular time if, at that time, it is facing an extremely high risk of extinction in the wild in the immediate future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.
	Endangered
EN	Taxa which is not critically endangered and it is facing a very high risk of extinction in the wild in the immediate or near future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.
	Vulnerable
VU	Taxa which is not critically endangered or endangered and is facing a high risk of extinction in the wild in the medium-term future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.
	Conservation Dependent
CD	Taxa which at a particular time if, at that time, the species is the focus of a specific conservation programme, the cessation of which would result in the species becoming vulnerable, endangered or critically endangered within a period of 5 years.

### Threatened Flora and Fauna Categories (BC Act)

Category	Code	Definition	Schedule
Critically Endangered	CR	Threatened species considered to be "facing an extremely high risk of extinction in the wild in the immediate future, as determined in accordance with criteria set out in the ministerial guidelines." Listed as critically endangered under section 19(1)(a) of the BC Act in accordance with the criteria set out in section 20 and the ministerial guidelines. Published under schedule 1 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for critically endangered fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for critically endangered flora.	Schedule 1
Endangered	Endangered EN EN Threatened species considered to be "facing a very high risk of extinction in the wild in the near future, as determined in accordance with criteria set out in the ministerial guidelines". Listed as endangered under section 19(1)(b) of the BC Act in accordance with the criteria set out in section 21 and the ministerial guidelines. Published under schedule 2 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for endangered flora		Schedule 2
Vulnerable	VU	Threatened species considered to be "facing a high risk of extinction in the wild in the medium-term future, as determined in accordance with criteria set out in the ministerial guidelines". Listed as vulnerable under section 19(1)(c) of the BC Act in accordance with the criteria set out in section 22 and the ministerial guidelines. Published under schedule 3 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for vulnerable fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for vulnerable flora.	Schedule 3
Extinct species	EX	Species where "there is no reasonable doubt that the last member of the species has died", and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 24 of the BC Act). Published as presumed extinct under schedule 4 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for extinct fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for extinct flora.	Schedule 4
Extinct in the wild species	EW	Species that "is known only to survive in cultivation, in captivity or as a naturalised population well outside its past range; and it has not been recorded in its known habitat or expected habitat, at appropriate seasons, anywhere in its past range, despite surveys over a time frame appropriate to its life cycle and form", and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 25 of the BC Act).	Currently there are no threatened fauna or threatened flora species listed as extinct in the wild. If listing of a species as extinct in the wild occurs, then a schedule will be added to the applicable notice.
Migratory	MI	Fauna that periodically or occasionally visit Australia or an external Territory or the exclusive economic zone; or the species is subject of an international agreement that relates to the protection of migratory species and that binds the Commonwealth; and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 15 of the BC Act). Includes birds that are subject to an agreement between the government of Australia and the governments of Japan (JAMBA), China (CAMBA) and The Republic of Korea (ROKAMBA), and fauna subject to the Convention on the Conservation of Migratory Species of Wild Animals (Bonn Convention), an environmental treaty under the United Nations Environment Program. Migratory species listed under the BC Act are a subset of the migratory animals, that are known to visit Western Australia, protected under the international agreements or treaties, excluding species that are listed as Threatened species. Published as migratory birds protected under an international agreement under schedule 5 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018.	Schedule 5
Species of special conservation interest (conservation dependent fauna)	CD	Fauna of special conservation need being species dependent on ongoing conservation intervention to prevent it becoming eligible for listing as threatened, and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 14 of the BC Act). Published as conservation dependent fauna under schedule 6 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018.	Schedule 6
Other specially protected species	OS	Fauna otherwise in need of special protection to ensure their conservation, and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 18 of the BC Act). Published as other specially protected fauna under schedule 7 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018.	Schedule 7



### Definition of codes for Priority Flora and Fauna (BC Act)

Code	Definition
P1: Priority One	<b>Poorly-known species</b> Species that are known from one or a few locations (generally five or less) which are potentially at risk. All occurrences are either: very small; or on lands not managed for conservation, e.g. agricultural or pastoral lands, urban areas, road and rail reserves, gravel reserves and active mineral leases; or otherwise under threat of habitat destruction or degradation. Species may be included if they are comparatively well known from one or more locations but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and appear to be under immediate threat from known threatening processes. Such species are in urgent need of further survey.
P2: Priority Two	<b>Poorly-known species</b> Species that are known from one or a few locations (generally five or less), some of which are on lands managed primarily for nature conservation, e.g. national parks, conservation parks, nature reserves and other lands with secure tenure being managed for conservation. Species may be included if they are comparatively well known from one or more locations but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and appear to be under threat from known threatening processes. Such species are in urgent need of further survey.
P3: Priority Three	<b>Poorly-known species</b> Species that are known from several locations, and the species does not appear to be under imminent threat, or from few but widespread locations with either large population size or significant remaining areas of apparently suitable habitat, much of it not under imminent threat. Species may be included if they are comparatively well known from several locations but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and known threatening processes exist that could affect them. Such species are in need of further survey.
P4: Priority Four	<ul> <li>Rare, Near Threatened and other species in need of monitoring</li> <li>(a) Rare. Species that are considered to have been adequately surveyed, or for which sufficient knowledge is available, and that are considered not currently threatened or in need of special protection but could be if present circumstances change. These species are usually represented on conservation lands.</li> <li>(b) Near Threatened. Species that are considered to have been adequately surveyed and that are close to qualifying for vulnerable but are not listed as Conservation Dependent.</li> <li>(c) Species that have been removed from the list of threatened species during the past five years for reasons other than taxonomy.</li> </ul>

	· ·
Declared plant category	Description
C1 - Exclusion	Pests assigned to this category are not established in WA and control measures are to be taken, including border checks, in order to prevent them entering and establishing in the State.
C2 - Eradication	Pests assigned to this category are present in WA in low enough numbers or in sufficiently limited areas that their eradication is still a possibility.
C3 - Management	Pests assigned to this category are established in WA but it is feasible, or desirable, to manage them in order to limit their damage. Control measures can prevent a C3 pest from increasing in population size or density or moving from an area in which it is established into an area which currently is free of that pest.

### **Control categories for Declared Pests (Weeds)**

### **Categorisation of Environmental Weeds**

Field	Description	Code
Ecological Impact	Impact of species within the Region, from low impact (causes minimal disruption to ecological processes or loss of biodiversity) to high (causes acute disruption of ecological processes, dominates and/or significantly alters vegetation structure, composition and function of ecosystems). Examples of impact attributes to consider: - changed fire regime - changed nutrient conditions - changed hydrological patterns - changed soil erosion patterns - changed geomorphological processes - changed biomass distribution - changed light distribution - loss of biodiversity - substantially reduces regeneration opportunities of native plants - allelonathic effects	Low (L) Medium (M) High (H) Unknown (U)
Invasiveness	Rate of spread of a weed in native vegetation, encompassing factors of establishment, reproduction and long distance dispersal (>100m).         Examples of establishment factors include:         - ability to outcompete (light, moisture, nutrients, rapid root growth)         - sexual or asexual establishment         - need for disturbance to establish         Examples of reproduction factors include:         - time to seeding         - seed production         - vegetative reproduction         Examples of long distance dispersal mechanisms include:         - wind         - water         - flying/ground animals         - deliberate/accidental human spread         - vehicles         - produce contaminant	Slow (S) Moderate (M) Rapid (R) Unknown (U)



### **BAM Act Definitions (Declared Pests)**

Legal status	Definition
Declared Pest, Prohibited - s12	Prohibited organisms are declared pests by virtue of section 22(1), and may only be imported and kept subject to permits. Permit conditions applicable to some species may only be appropriate or available to research organisations or similarly secure institutions.
Declared Pest - s22(2)	Declared pests must satisfy any applicable import requirements when imported, and may be subject to an import permit if they are potential carriers of high-risk organisms. They may also be subject to control and keeping requirements once within Western Australia.
Permitted - s11	Permitted organisms must satisfy any applicable import requirements when imported. They may be subject to an import permit if they are potential carriers of high-risk organisms.
Permitted, Requires Permit - r73	Regulation 73 permitted organisms may only be imported subject to an import permit. These organisms may be subject to restriction under legislation other than the Biosecurity and Agriculture Management Act 2007. Permit conditions applicable to some species may only be appropriate or available to research organisations or similarly secure institutions.
Unlisted - s14	If you are considering importing an unlisted organism/s you will need to submit the name/s for assessment, as unlisted organisms are automatically prohibited entry into WA.
Control categories	Definition
C1 Exclusion	Organisms which should be excluded from part or all of Western Australia.
C2 Eradication	Organisms which should be eradicated from part or all of Western Australia.
C3 Management	Organisms that should have some form of management applied that will alleviate the harmful impact of the organism, reduce the numbers or distribution of the organism or prevent or contain the spread of the organism.
Unassigned	Unassigned: Declared pests that are recognised as having a harmful impact under certain circumstances, where their subsequent control requirements are determined by a Plan or other legislative arrangements under the Act.

### Definition of codes for Threatened Ecological Communities

Code	Definition
PD: Presumed Totally Destroyed	An ecological community that has been adequately searched for but for which no representative occurrences have been located. The community has been found to be totally destroyed or so extensively modified throughout its range that no occurrence of it is likely to recover its species composition and/or structure in the foreseeable future. An ecological community will be listed as presumed totally destroyed if there are no recent records of the community being extant and either of the following applies (A or B): A) Records within the last 50 years have not been confirmed despite thorough searches of known or likely habitats or B) All occurrences recorded within the last 50 years have since been destroyed.
CR: Critically Endangered	An ecological community that has been adequately surveyed and found to have been subject to a major contraction in area and/or that was originally of limited distribution and is facing severe modification or destruction throughout its range in the immediate future, or is already severely degraded throughout its range but capable of being substantially restored or rehabilitated. An ecological community will be listed as Critically Endangered when it has been adequately surveyed and is found to be facing an extremely high risk of total destruction in the immediate future. This will be determined on the basis of the best available information, by it meeting any one or more of the following criteria (A, B or C): A) The estimated geographic range, and/or total area occupied, and/or number of discrete occurrences since European settlement have been reduced by at least 90% and either or both of the following apply (i or ii): i) geographic range, and/or total area occupied and/or number of discrete occurrences are continuing to decline such that total destruction of the community is imminent (within approximately 10 years); ii) modification throughout its range is continuing such that in the immediate future (within approximately 10 years) the community is unlikely to be capable of being substantially rehabilitated. B) Current distribution is limited, and one or more of the following apply (i, ii or iii): i) geographic range and/or number of discrete occurrences, and/or area occupied is highly restricted and the community is currently subject to known threatening processes which are likely to result in total destruction throughout its range in the immediate future (within approximately 10 years); ii) there are very few occurrences, each of which is small and/or isolated and extremely vulnerable to known threatening processes. C) The ecological community exists only as highly modified occurrences that may be capable of being rehabilitated if such work begins in the immediate future (within approximately 10 years).
EN: Endangered	An ecological community that has been adequately surveyed and found to have been subject to a major contraction in area and/or was originally of limited distribution and is in danger of significant modification throughout its range or severe modification or destruction over most of its range in the near future. An ecological community will be listed as Endangered when it has been adequately surveyed and is not Critically Endangered but is facing a very high risk of total destruction in the near future. This will be determined on the basis of the best available information by it meeting any one or more of the following criteria (A, B, or C): A) The geographic range, and/or total area occupied, and/or number of discrete occurrences have been reduced by at least 70% since European settlement and either or both of the following apply (i or ii): i) the estimated geographic range, and/or total area occupied and/or number of discrete occurrences are continuing to decline such that total destruction of the community is likely in the short term future (within approximately 20 years); ii) modification throughout its range is continuing such that in the short term future (within approximately 20 years) the community is unlikely to be capable of being substantially restored or rehabilitated. B) Current distribution is limited, and one or more of the following apply (i, io rii): i) geographic range and/or number of discrete occurrences, and/or area occupied is highly restricted and the community is currently subject to known threatening processes which are likely to result in total destruction throughout its range in the short term future (within approximately 20 years); ii) there are few occurrences, each of which is small and/or isolated and all or most occurrences are very vulnerable to known threatening processes; iii) there may be many occurrences but total area is small and all or most occurrences are small and/or isolated and very vulnerable to known threatening processes. C) The ecological community exists only as v
VU: Vulnerable	An ecological community that has been adequately surveyed and is found to be declining and/or has declined in distribution and/or condition and whose ultimate security has not yet been assured and/or a community that is still widespread but is believed likely to move into a category of higher threat in the near future if threatening processes continue or begin operating throughout its range. An ecological community will be listed as Vulnerable when it has been adequately surveyed and is not Critically Endangered or Endangered but is facing a high risk of total destruction or significant modification in the medium (within approximately 50 years) to long- term future. This will be determined on the basis of the best available information by it meeting any one or more of the following criteria (A, B or C): A) The ecological community exists largely as modified occurrences that are likely to be capable of being substantially restored or rehabilitated. B) The ecological community may already be modified and would be vulnerable to threatening processes, is restricted in area and/or range and/or is only found at a few locations. C) The ecological community may be still widespread but is believed likely to move into a category of higher threat in the medium to long-term future because of existing or impending threatening processes.



### Definition of codes for Priority Ecological Communities

Code	Definition			
P1: Priority One	Ecological communities that are known from very few occurrences with a very restricted distribution (generally ≤5 occurrences or a total area of ≤ 100ha). Occurrences are believed to be under threat either due to limited extent, or being on lands under immediate threat (e.g. within agricultural or pastoral lands, urban areas, active mineral leases) or for which current threats exist. May include communities with occurrences on protected lands. Communities may be included if they are comparatively well-known from one or more localities but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements, and/or are not well defined, and appear to be under immediate threat from known threatening processes across their range.			
P2: Priority Two	Communities that are known from few occurrences with a restricted distribution (general occurrences or a total area of ≤200ha). At least some occurrences are not believed to be immediate threat (within approximately 10 years) of destruction or degradation. Communitie be included if they are comparatively well known from one or more localities but do not adequacy of survey requirements, and/or are not well defined, and appear to be under threat known threatening processes.			
P3: Priority Three	<ul> <li>(i) Communities that are known from several to many occurrences, a significant number or area of which are not under threat of habitat destruction or degradation or:</li> <li>(ii) communities known from a few widespread occurrences, which are either large or with significant remaining areas of habitat in which other occurrences may occur, much of it not under imminent threat (within approximately 10 years), or;</li> <li>(iii) communities made up of large, and/or widespread occurrences, that may or may not be represented in the reserve system, but are under threat of modification across much of their range from processes such as grazing by domestic and/or feral stock, inappropriate fire regimes, clearing, hydrological change etc.</li> <li>Communities may be included if they are comparatively well known from several localities but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and/or are not well defined, and known threatening processes exist that could affect them.</li> </ul>			
P4: Priority Four	<ul> <li>Ecological communities that are adequately known, rare but not threatened or meet criteria for Near Threatened, or that have been recently removed from the threatened list. These communities require regular monitoring.</li> <li>(i) Rare. Ecological communities known from few occurrences that are considered to have been adequately surveyed, or for which sufficient knowledge is available, and that are considered not currently threatened or in need of special protection, but could be if present circumstances change. These communities are usually represented on conservation lands.</li> <li>(ii) Near Threatened. Ecological communities that are considered to have been adequately surveyed and that do not qualify for Conservation Dependent, but that are close to qualifying for a higher threat category.</li> <li>(iii) Ecological communities that have been removed from the list of threatened communities during the past five years.</li> </ul>			
P5: Priority Five	Ecological communities that are not threatened but are subject to a specific conservation program, the cessation of which would result in the community becoming threatened within five years.			



# APPENDIX B VASCULAR FLORA AND FAUNA RECORDS (NATUREMAP) AND BIRDLIFE BIRDATA



# **NatureMap Species Report**

Created By Guest user on 15/08/2019

Kingdom Plantae Current Names Only Yes Core Datasets Only Yes Vouchered Status Vouchered Species Group Vascular Plants Method 'By Line' Vertices 26° 57' 60" S,117° 39' 47" E 26° 56' 22" S,117° 41' 60" E

	Name ID	Species Name	Naturalised	Conservation Code	<sup>1</sup> Endemic To Quer Area
1.	4889	Abutilon cryptopetalum			
2.	43020	Abutilon oxycarpum subsp. Prostrate (A.A. Mitchell PRP 1266)			
3.	3217	Acacia aneura (Mulga, Wanari)			
4.	16112	Acacia aulacophylla			
5.	31072	Acacia burrowsiana		P3	
6.	36417	Acacia caesaneura			
7.	23977	Acacia cockertoniana			
8.	14088	Acacia cyperophylla var. cyperophylla			
9.	44474	Acacia dilloniorum		P1	Y
10.	32118	Acacia effusifolia			
11.	3330	Acacia exocarpoides			
12.	36781	Acacia fuscaneura			
13.	3355	Acacia grasbyi (Miniritchie)			
14.	36418	Acacia incurvaneura			
15.	36416	Acacia mulganeura			
16.	3500	Acacia pruinocarpa (Gidgee)			
17.	36800	Acacia pteraneura			
18.	19483	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla			
19.	3519	Acacia rhodophloja			
20	13078	Acacia sclerosperma subsp. sclerosperma			
20.	30373	Acacia so Peak Hill (R. Gibson 0003)			
21.	30301	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2004)			
23	1/615	Acacia speckii		D4	
23.	20521	Acacia speciali		F4	
24.	25001				
25.	10001	Actinabele addiadianum			
20.	12004				
27.	10465				
20.	19405	Anuta aspera subsp. nespena			
29.	2000	Amarantinus cuspiononus			
30.	2382	Anyena nestor			
31.	/830	Anglanthus tomentosus (Camer-grass)			
32.	207	Aristida contorta (Bunched Kerosene Grass)			
33.	1266	Arthropodium dyeri			
34.	2450	Atriplex amnicola (Swamp Saltbush)			
35.	11516	Atriplex nummularia subsp. spathulata (Old Man Saltbush)			
36.	2481	Atriplex vesicaria (Bladder Saltbush)			
37.	17237	Austrostipa elegantissima			
38.	17246	Austrostipa nitida			
39.	17251	Austrostipa scabra			
40.	17255	Austrostipa trichophylla			
41.	34240	Beyeria lapidicola		P1	
42.	2770	Boerhavia coccinea (Tar Vine, Wituka)			
43.	247	Bromus arenarius (Sand Brome)			
44.	7413	Brunonia australis (Native Cornflower)			
45.	2853	Calandrinia eremaea (Twining Purslane)			
46.	2869	Calandrinia schistorhiza			
47.	31073	Calandrinia sp. The Pink Hills (F. Obbens FO 19/06)			
48.	14090	Calocephalus beardii			
49.	7891	Calocephalus francisii (Fine-leaf Beauty-heads)			
50	7893	Calocephalus knappii			
00.					

	Name ID	Species Name	Naturalised	Conservation Code	<sup>1</sup> Endemic To Query Area
52.	7903	Calotis hispidula (Bindy Eye)			
53.	7905	Calotis multicaulis (Many-stemmed Burr-daisy)			
54.	5438	Calytrix amethystina			
55.	5451	Calytrix desolata			
56.	5452	Calytrix divergens			
57.	7922	Cephalipterum drummondii (Pompom Head)			
58.	12796	Cheilenthes brownii			
59. 60	32	Cheilanthes distans (Bristly Clock Forn)			
6U.	12815	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. pseudovellea			
62	12818	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi			
63.	3756	Chorizema genistoides			
64.	7933	Chthonocephalus pseudevax (Woolly Groundheads)			
65.	12619	Chthonocephalus viscosus			
66.	20522	Cleretum papulosum subsp. papulosum	Y		
67.	17095	Corymbia lenziana			
68.	11709	Crassula colorata var. acuminata			
69.	20271	Crassula extrorsa			
70.	20268	Crassula tetramera			
71.	6663	Cuscuta epithymum (Lesser Dodder, Greater Dodder)	Y		
72.	279	Cynnoglossum sp. Inland Ranges (C.A. Cordnor 14400)			
73. 74	5506	oynogrossum sp. imanu rranges (c.A. Garuner 14499) Darwinia capitellata			
75	6218	Daucus alochidiatus (Australian Carrot)			
76.	12721	Dielitzia tysonii			
77.	2499	Dissocarpus paradoxus (Curious Saltbush)			
78.	4752	Dodonaea adenophora			
79.	31881	Dodonaea amplisemina		P4	
80.	4772	Dodonaea pachyneura			
81.	4773	Dodonaea petiolaris			
82.	31274	Duperreya commixta			
83.	2502	Dysphania kalpari (Rat's Tail, Kalpari)			
84.	33597	Dysphania melanocarpa forma melanocarpa (Black Goosefoot)			
85.	33483	Dysphania saxatilis			
86.	357	Enneapogon caerulescens (Limestone Grass)			
07. 88	309	Fragrostis dielsii (Mallee Lovegrass)			
89.	378	Eragrostis elongata (Clustered Lovegrass)			
90.	7189	Eremophila clarkei (Turpentine Bush)			
91.	7205	Eremophila exilifolia			
92.	7207	Eremophila foliosissima			
93.	15052	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii			
94.	7211	Eremophila georgei			
95.	16732	Eremophila gilesii subsp. gilesii			
96.	14191	Eremophila glabra subsp. tomentosa			
97.	7216	Eremophila glutinosa			
98.	17576	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei			
99.	7234	Eremopnila longitolia (Berrigan, Tulypurpa)			
100.	15158	Eremonhila mackiniayi subsp. spatnulata			
101.	1230	Fremophila oppositifolia subso angustifolia			
102.	7257	Eremophila punicea (Crimson Fremophila)			
104.	17166	Eremophila simulans subsp. lapidensis			
105.	17164	Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans			
106.	30347	Eremophila sp. Weld Range (M.J. Greeve & J.D. Start D7 34)			
107.	413	Eriachne mucronata (Mountain Wanderrie Grass)			
108.	16486	Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella			
109.	4335	Erodium cygnorum (Blue Heronsbill)			
110.	20300	Eucalyptus eremicola subsp. peeneri			
111.	5779	Eucalyptus striaticalyx (Cue York Gum)			
112.	35303	Euphorbia australis var. subtomentosa			
113.	4620	Euphorbia boophthona (Gascoyne Spurge)			
114.	4626	Euphorbia arummonali (Gaustić Weed, Piwi)			
115.	42869	Euprovid porcata			
110.	10977	Livearpos apriyilus (Leaness Ballari) Gilberta tenuifolia			
118	11008	Gilruthia osbornii			
119.	7989	Gnephosis brevifolia (Short-leaved Gnephosis)			
120.	8002	Gnephosis tenuissima			
121.	7495	Goodenia berardiana			
Map is a collabo	prative project of	the Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions and the Western Australian Museum.	Output of the second se	of Biodiversity, n and Attractions	

	Name ID	Species Name	Naturalised	Conservation Code	Endemic To Query
122	12527	Goodenia kingiana			
123	7531	Goodenia occidentalis			
120.	7550				
124.	. 7550				
125.	. 1963	Greviliea berryana			
126.	. 1986	Grevillea deflexa			
127.	. 13430	Grevillea hakeoides subsp. stenophylla			
128.	. 2019	Grevillea inconspicua (Cue Grevillea)		P4	
129.	. 2047	Grevillea nematophylla			
130.	. 8553	Gypsophila tubulosa			
131	2196	Hakea preissii (Needle Tree, Dandiin)			
132	17556	Hakea recurve subsp. arida			
132.	. 17550				
133.	. 6687	Halgania cyanea (Rough Halgania)			
134.	. 29840	Halgania cyanea var. Allambi Stn (B.W. Strong 676)			
135.	. 6176	Haloragis odontocarpa (Mulga Nettle)			
136.	. 6180	Haloragis trigonocarpa			
137.	. 17325	Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri			
138.	. 6713	Heliotropium ovalifolium			
139.	. 6853	Hemigenia exilis		P4	
140	17397	Hemigenia sp. Yalgoo (A.M. Ashby 2624)			
140.	33760	Homigonia viroscons		D	
141.	. 33700			P3	
142.	. 11188	HIDISCUS STUTTII VAT. TOTTESTII			
143.	. 5809	Homalocalyx echinulatus		P3	
144.	. 11546	Hydrocotyle pilifera var. glabrata			
145.	. 8086	Hypochaeris glabra (Smooth Catsear)	Y		
146.	48648	Hysterobaeckea occlusa			
147.	. 3982	Indigofera monophylla			
148.	8087	Isoetopsis graminifolia (Cushion Grass)			
149	13284	Lawrencella rosea			
150	4951				
150.	. 4951				
151.	. 12628	Lemooria burkittii			
152.	. 3033	Lepidium oxytrichum			
153.	. 7403	Lobelia heterophylla (Wing-seeded Lobelia)			
154.	. 7409	Lobelia winfridae (Little Lobelia)			
155.	. 2398	Lysiana murrayi (Mistletoe, Parka-Parka)			
156.	. 36375	Lysimachia arvensis (Pimpernel)	Y		
157.	2544	Maireana georgei (Satiny Bluebush)			
159	2551	Maireana malanocoma (Pussy Pluobush)			
150.	2551	Maireana nuramidata (Saga Buah)			
159.	. 2560				
160.	. 2568	Maireana trichoptera (Downy Bluebush)			
161.	. 2571	Maireana villosa			
162.	. 12949	Marsdenia australis			
163.	. 30411	Micromyrtus placoides		P3	
164.	. 6003	Micromyrtus sulphurea			
165.	. 8105	Millotia myosotidifolia			
166.	. 8107	Minuria cunninghamii (Bush Minuria)			
167	490	Monachather paradoxus			
168		Myriocenhalus querinae			
100.					
169.	. 14186	Myriocepnaius pygmaeus			
170.	. 8121	Myriocephalus rudallii			
171.	. 494	Neurachne minor			
172.	. 6972	Nicotiana cavicola (Talara)			
173.	. 11331	Nicotiana occidentalis subsp. obliqua			
174.	. 11734	Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata			
175.	. 12734	Olearia humilis			
176	8151	Olearia stuartii			
177	12670	Pariataria cardiosteria			
470	. 12070	Penelidium kecieledum			
178.	. 10975				
179.	. 40423	Pentameris airoides (False Hairgrass)	Y		
180.	. 18537	Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei			
181.	. 18508	Philotheca sericea			
182.	. 17626	Phyllanthus erwinii			
183.	. 19744	Pittosporum angustifolium			
184.	7299	Plantago debilis			
185	17817	Pluchea dunlopii			
196	9174	Podolenis gardneri			
100.	. 01/4	Padathaaa ananhaliaidaa (Caldan Lang baada)			
187.	. 0184	r ouomeoa ynaphanioues (Gonden Long-neaŭs)			
188.	. 8188	rogonoiepis stricta			
189.	. 41365	Polygala glaucifolia			
190.	. 12707	Prostanthera albiflora			
191.	. 15822	Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi			
			Department	of Biodiversity,	WESTERN
eMap is a co	ollaborative project of t	he Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions and the Western Australian Museum.	Conservati		AUSTRALI
			INFORMATION ADDRESS IN		

WESTERN AUSTRALIAN

# NatureMap Mapping Western Australia's biodiversity

192.       31783       Prostamhera periophia         193.       12703       Prostamhera periophia         194.       6024       Prostamhera wilkeena         195.       18154       Psydrax latfolia         196.       18155       Psydrax suaveolors         197.       18155       Psydrax suaveolors         198.       2000       Philous aernia         2001.       48002       Philous aernia         2011.       2727       Philous aelus (Tel Mulla Mulla)         2022.       2728       Philous nelperoides (Hairy Mulla Mulla)         203.       2731       Philous nelperoides (Phiny Mulla Mulla)         204.       2747       Philous nelperoides (Phiny Mulla Mulla)         205.       2757       Philous nelperoides (Phiny Mulla Mulla)         206.       2757       Philous nelperoides (Phiny Mulla Mulla)         207.       2757       Philous nelperoides (Phiny Mulla Mulla)         208.       2757       Philous nelperoides (Phiny Mulla Mulla)         208.       2757       Philous nelperoides (Phiny Mulla Mulla)         214.       1303       Rhodamhe charbeyae         215.       Nolas nelperoides (Phiny Mulla Mulla)       203         216.       13303       R	P3 P3 P3	
193.       12703       Prostamhera wilkeana         194.       6028       Prostamhera wilkeana         195.       18154       Psydrax igduka         195.       18155       Psydrax saweelens         197.       18155       Psydrax saweelens         198.       2200       Pilotas saweelens         198.       2200       Pilotas saweelens         201.       2211       Pilotas saweelens         202.       2223       Pilotas saweelens         203.       46002       Pilotas saweelens         204.       2214       Pilotas saweelens         203.       4237       Pilotas saweelens         204.       2214       Pilotas saweelens         205.       2215       Pilotas saweelens         206.       2215       Pilotas saweetens         207.       2725       Pilotas schwartzii         208.       2251       Nickanathe charsleyae         211.       1308       Rhodanthe charsleyae         212.       1324       Rhodanthe charsleyae         213.       13300       Rhodanthe charsleyae         214.       13232       Rhodanthe charsleyae         215.       1324       Rhodanthe charsl	P3 P3	
194.       6902 Processmenta wilkesana         195.       18154 Psydrax islifolia         196.       18155 Psydrax islifolia         197.       18155 Psydrax islifolia         198.       2200 Pilotas servicies         198.       2200 Pilotas servicies         198.       2200 Pilotas servicies         198.       2200 Pilotas servicies         200.       44602 Pilotas servicies         201.       2272 Pilotas solutats (Tel Mulia Mulia)         202.       2729 Pilotas solutats (Tel Mulia Mulia)         203.       2271 Pilotas solutats (Ny Mulia Mulia)         204.       2747 Pilotas solutats (Ny Mulia Mulia)         205.       2751 Pilotas solutato/pus (Prince of Wales Feather)         206.       2757 Pilotas solutato/pus (Prince of Wales Feather)         207.       7755 Pilotas solutato/pus (Prince of Wales Feather)         208.       2571 Pilotas solutato/pus (Prince of Wales Feather)         210.       13308 Rhodanthe chrosopia         211.       13308 Rhodanthe chrosopia         212.       1343 Rhodanthe chrosopia         213.       13303 Rhodanthe drasbaye         214.       13328 Rhodanthe mayouii         215.       13238 Rhodanthe mayouii         216.       13238 Rhodanthe mayou	P3	
195.         18154 Psydrax stalkola           196.         18210 Psydrax igidula           197.         18155 Psydrax susueoiens           198.         2200 Pilotas servicios           198.         2200 Pilotas servicios           201.         2271 Pilotas estatus (Tal Mulla Mulla)           202.         2272 Pilotas estatus (Tal Mulla Mulla)           203.         2273 Pilotas estatus (Tal Mulla Mulla)           204.         2274 Pilotas estatus (Tal Mulla Mulla)           205.         2751 Pilotas heliptericides (Heiry Mulla Mulla)           206.         2757 Pilotas solvats/Colton Bush)           208.         2275 Pilotas controlfolius (Royal Mulla Mulla)           208.         22757 Pilotas solvats/Colton Bush)           208.         22757 Pilotas controlfolius (Royal Mulla Mulla)           208.         22851 Rhogodid cummondi           210.         13308 Rhodenthe batti           211.         13308 Rhodenthe chras           212.         13242 Rhodenthe exis           213.         1329 Rhodenthe lavois           214.         1329 Rhodenthe lavois           215.         1329 Rhodenthe lavois           216.         1328 Rhodenthe lavois           217.         13248 Rhodenthe sopositifolis subsp. appositifolia <td>P3</td> <td></td>	P3	
196.         19210 Psydrax rigidula           197.         19155 Psydrax survaolens           198.         2000 Pilotus beardii (Low Mulla Mulla)           200.         449002 Pilotus servaitas           201.         2212 Pilotus beardii (Low Mulla Mulla)           202.         2222 Pilotus servaitas           203.         2713 Pilotus schattas (Fall Mulla Mulla)           204.         2747 Pilotus convatus (Cotton Bush)           205.         2757 Pilotus solvatus (Cotton Bush)           206.         2757 Pilotus solvatus (Cotton Bush)           208.         2757 Pilotus schwarzii           208.         2757 Pilotus schwarzii           208.         2757 Pilotus schwarzii           210.         13308 (Phodanthe chrisna           211.         13308 (Phodanthe chrisna           212.         13242 Phodanthe chrisna           213.         13308 (Phodanthe chrisna           214.         13292 Phodanthe chrisna           215.         13294 Phodanthe foressil           216.         13294 Phodanthe apositifolia           217.         13294 Phodanthe apositifolia           218.         45148 Roepera achila il aloca pa           219.         449889 Roepera achila il aloca pa           211.         11	P3	
197.         18155         Psydrax suaweelens           198.         2600         Phitotus earonidos           199.         2700         Ptitotus baardii (Low Mulla Mulla)           200.         48002         Phitotus grandiforus           201.         2721         Phitotus grandiforus           203.         2731         Phitotus prantiforus           204.         2747         Phitotus obviatus (Criton Bush)           205.         2751         Phitotus revie           206.         2757         Phitotus revie           207.         2755         Phitotus revie           208.         2257         Phitotus charlificitus (Royal Mulla Mulla)           208.         2258         Rhögodi drummondli           210.         13308         Rhodenthe batti           211.         13308         Rhodenthe charls/yee           212.         13224         Rhodenthe forms           213.         13200         Rhodenthe forms           214.         13228         Rhodenthe forms           215.         13244         Rhodenthe forms           216.         13258         Rhodenthe forms           217.         13246         Rhodenthe maryonii           21	P3	
198.         2000         Philotus serunida           199.         2070         Philotus serunida           201.         4202         Philotus serunita           202.         2721         Philotus serunita           203.         2731         Philotus deninta           204.         2747         Philotus convetus (Cotton Bush)           205.         2751         Philotus solvetus (Cotton Bush)           206.         2754         Philotus solvetus (Cotton Bush)           206.         2757         Philotus solvetus (Cotton Bush)           208.         2757         Philotus solvetus (Cotton Bush)           208.         2757         Philotus solvetus (Cotton Bush)           209.         2581         Rhodanthe charslayae           211.         13308         Phodanthe charslayae           212.         13300         Rhodanthe charslayae           213.         13300         Rhodanthe charslayae           214.         13292         Rhodanthe appositiolia subsp. oppositifolia           214.         13294         Rhodanthe appositiolia subsp. oppositifolia           214.         13294         Rhodanthe maryoni           215.         13294         Rhodanthe maryoni           216. <td>P3</td> <td></td>	P3	
199.         2700 Philots beadil (Low Mulla Mulla)           200.         48602 Philots evaluts (Tal Mulla Mulla)           201.         2721 Philots evaluts (Tal Mulla Mulla)           202.         2729 Philots evaluts (Fal Mulla Mulla)           203.         2731 Philots beigheroides (Hairy Mulla Mulla)           204.         2747 Philots oboratus (Cotton Bush)           205.         2751 Philots oboratus (Potton Bush)           206.         2754 Philots role           207.         2755 Philots schwartzii           208.         2757 Philots schwartzii           209.         2581 Philogodi drummondii           210.         13306 Rhodenthe charsleyae           211.         13308 Rhodenthe charsleyae           212.         13242 Rhodenthe charsleyae           213.         13300 Rhodenthe corestii           214.         13238 Rhodenthe expositifolia           215.         13234 Rhodenthe lexpositifolia           216.         13234 Rhodenthe lexpositifolia           217.         13249 Rhodenthe expositifolia           218.         45148 Roepera eichleri           219.         448987 Roopera eichleri           210.         448987 Roopera eichleri           221.         11151 Roestraia punila         Y	P3	
200.         44602         Polious eramita           201.         2721         Polious grandiforus           203.         2731         Polious grandiforus           203.         2737         Polious polystachyus (Prince of Wakes Feather)           206.         2754         Polious conductions (Royal Mulia Mulia)           206.         2755         Polious conductions (Royal Mulia Mulia)           207.         2755         Polious conductions (Royal Mulia Mulia)           208.         2757         Polious conductions (Royal Mulia Mulia)           209.         2581         Rhagodia drummondii           210.         13306         Rhodanthe battii           211.         13308         Rhodanthe charise           212.         13242         Rhodanthe charise           213.         13300         Rhodanthe carisia           214.         13242         Rhodanthe apopositiola subsp. oppositiola           215.         13234         Rhodanthe apopositiola subsp. oppositiola           216.         13284         Rhodanthe apopositiola subsp. oppositiola           217.         13248         Rhodanthe apopositiola subsp. oppositiola           218.         45148         Robuchy Morther and Apolyou.           221.		
201.         2721         Pullous exatelatus (Tall Mulla Mulla)           202.         2729         Pullous prindilforus           203.         2731         Pullous beipteroides (Flatry Mulla Mulla)           204.         2747         Pullous soci           205.         2751         Pullous roai           206.         2754         Pullous coni           207.         2755         Pullous soci           208.         2757         Pullous soci           209.         2581         Rhagodia drummondii           210.         13306         Rhodarthe batti           211.         13308         Rhodarthe charsieyae           212.         13322         Rhodarthe charsieyae           213.         13300         Rhodarthe charsieyae           214.         13328         Rhodarthe forestii           215.         1324         Rhodarthe forestii           216.         1338         Rhodarthe forestii           217.         1324         Rhodarthe forestii           218.         45148         Roepera ichulata           219.         48897         Roepera ichulata           221.         14151         Rostaria pumila         Y           222.<		
202.         2729         Pulous granditous           203.         2731         Pulous polystetyis (Prince of Wales Feather)           206.         2751         Pulous polystetyis (Prince of Wales Feather)           206.         2755         Pulous rotei           207.         2755         Pulous schwartzi           208.         2757         Pulous schwartzi           209.         2581         Rhagodia dummondii           210.         13306         Rhodanthe batii           211.         13308         Rhodanthe charisejae           212.         13242         Rhodanthe charisejae           213.         13300         Rhodanthe charisejae           214.         13232         Rhodanthe farvia           215.         13244         Rhodanthe farvia           216.         13238         Rhodanthe farvia           217.         13249         Rhodanthe farvia           218.         45148         Roebukella clicocarpa           219.         48897         Roepera ichleid           220.         2443         Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)         Y           221.         11151         Rostaria purulia         Y           222.         2443         Rumex		
203.       271       Pullous helpforoides (Hairy Mulla Mulla)         204.       274       Pullous polystachyus (Prince of Wales Feather)         206.       2754       Pullous contauts (Cotton Bush)         206.       2755       Pullous schwartzi         207.       2755       Pullous schwartzi         208.       2757       Pullous schwartzi         209.       2581       Rhodanthe batti         210.       13306       Rhodanthe batti         211.       13306       Rhodanthe batti         212.       13242       Rhodanthe chrasleyae         213.       13300       Rhodanthe chrasleyae         214.       13292       Rhodanthe chrasleyae         215.       13242       Rhodanthe chrasleyae         216.       13238       Rhodanthe avis         217.       13248       Rhodanthe avis         218.       48898       Roapera echilen         220.       48897       Roapera echilen         221.       11151       Rostaria gunila       Y         222.       2443       Rumar vesicarius (Ruy Dock)       Y         223.       2367       Santalum anceolatum (Northem Sandawood, Yarngui)       Z         224.		
204.         2747 Pillotus oboviats (Cotton Bush)           205.         2751 Pillotus roei           206.         2754 Pillotus roei           207.         2755 Pillotus columitolitius (Royal Mulla Mulla)           208.         2757 Pillotus columitolitius (Royal Mulla Mulla)           208.         2757 Pillotus columitolitius (Royal Mulla Mulla)           209.         2551 Rhagodia drummondii           210.         13306 Rhodanthe charsleyae           211.         13308 Rhodanthe charsleyae           212.         13242 Rhodanthe charsleyae           214.         13282 Rhodanthe interestii           215.         13238 Rhodanthe mayonii           216.         13238 Rhodanthe apostifiolia subsp. oppostifiolia           217.         13249 Rhodanthe apostifiolia subsp. oppostifiolia           218.         45148 Roebuckielia cilicocarpa           219.         48897 Roepera eichleri           220.         48897 Roepera eichleri           221.         11151 Rostaria pumila         Y           222.         2443 Rumax vesicarias (Ruhy Dock)         Y           223.         2357 Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yamguit)         Y           224.         7644 Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Marcon)         Y           225.		
205.         2751         Piliotus polystochyus (Prince of Wales Feather)           206.         2754         Piliotus rotundifoliks (Royal Mulia Mulia)           208.         2757         Pilotus schwartzi           209.         2581         Rhagodia dummondii           210.         13306         Rhodanthe battii           211.         13306         Rhodanthe chrasleyae           212.         13242         Rhodanthe chrasleyae           213.         13300         Rhodanthe chrasleyae           214.         13292         Rhodanthe devis           215.         13244         Rhodanthe devis           216.         13328         Rhodanthe mayonii           217.         13249         Rhodanthe appositifolia subsp. oppositifolia           218.         48899         Roepera lobulata         Y           220.         48897         Roepera lobulata         Y           221.         11151         Rostraria pumila         Y           222.         2443         Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)         Y           223.         2357         Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)         Z           224.         T644         Scaroe as aurotoiclase (Flufty Bindii)           22		
206.         2754         Ptilotus roli           207.         2755         Ptilotus schwartzi           208.         2757         Ptilotus schwartzi           209.         2581         Rhagodia drummondii           210.         13308         Rhodanthe charstyae           211.         13308         Rhodanthe charstyae           212.         13242         Rhodanthe charstyae           213.         13300         Rhodanthe charstyae           214.         13292         Rhodanthe charstyae           215.         13244         Rhodanthe avyonii           216.         13238         Rhodanthe appositifolia subsp. oppositifolia           218.         45148         Roepera ichileri           220.         44897         Roepera ichileri           221.         11151         Rostaria pumila         Y           222.         2443         Rumex vestarius (Ruty Dock)         Y           223.         2357         Santalum lanceolaturum (Northern Sandalwood, Yanguli)         Y           224.         7644         Scaevola spinescens (Curant Bush, Marcon)         Y           225.         10002         Schoenan anaty (Tiny Bog Rush)         Z           2261         Scholeana enfac		
207.         2755         Pilotus schwartzi           208.         2757         Pilotus schwartzi           209.         2581         Rhagoda dummondi           210.         13306         Rhodanthe charisleyae           211.         13308         Rhodanthe chrisleyae           212.         13242         Rhodanthe chrisleyae           213.         13300         Rhodanthe chrina           214.         13224         Rhodanthe chrisleyae           215.         13234         Rhodanthe laevis           216.         13238         Rhodanthe laevis           216.         13238         Rhodanthe laevis           218.         45148         Roebuckella ciliccarpa           218.         45148         Roebuckella ciliccarpa           219.         48897         Roepera okulata           220.         44887         Roeseral publita           221.         11151         Rostaria pumila         Y           222.         2443         Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)         Y           223.         2357         Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)         224.           224.         7644         Scavola spinoscens (Currant Bush, Maroo)         225.      <		
208.         2757         Pilotus schwartzi           209.         2581         Rhagodia drummondii           210.         13306         Rhodanthe charisleyae           211.         13308         Rhodanthe chirocophala subsp. splendida           213.         13300         Rhodanthe cirina           214.         13292         Rhodanthe direstii           215.         13294         Rhodanthe direstii           216.         13238         Rhodanthe isopositifolia           217.         13249         Rhodanthe isopositifolia           218.         45148         Roebuckiella ciliccarpa           219.         48897         Roepera obclata           220.         24897         Roepera obclata           221.         11151         Rostraria pumila         Y           222.         2443         Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)         Y           223.         235         Santakun lancoolatum (Northern Sandehwood, Yarnguli)         224.           224.         7644         Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Marcon)         225.           225.         1002         Schoena ana anterilio (IN)         226.           22607         Sclerolaena a eurotoides (Fluffy Bindii)         228.           <		
209.         2581         Rhagodia drummondii           210.         13306         Rhodanthe battii           211.         13308         Rhodanthe chariseyae           212.         13242         Rhodanthe chariseyae           213.         13300         Rhodanthe chriseyae           214.         13292         Rhodanthe laevis           215.         13294         Rhodanthe alevis           216.         13238         Rhodanthe anayoni           217.         13249         Rhodanthe anayoni           218.         45148         Roebuckiella cilicoarpa           219.         48897         Roepera elobulata           220.         48897         Roepera elobulata           221.         11151         Rostrata purnila         Y           222.         2443         Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)         Y           223.         2357         Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)         Y           224.         7644         Scaevola spinescons (Currant Bush, Marcon)         Y           225.         1002         Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)         Y           226.         2607         Scleroleana eurotioides (Fluffy Bindii)         Z           228.		
210.       13006       Rhodanthe charsleyae         211.       13308       Rhodanthe charsleyae         212.       13300       Rhodanthe chirina         213.       13300       Rhodanthe chirina         214.       13292       Rhodanthe chirina         215.       13294       Rhodanthe maryonii         216.       13238       Rhodanthe maryonii         217.       13294       Rhodanthe maryonii         218.       45148       Roebert elikielia         219.       48897       Roepera lobulata         220.       48897       Roepera lobulata         221.       11151       Rotarthe punila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Marcon)       Z         225.       10002       Scherolaena erizantha (Tall Bindii)       Z         225.       1002       Scherolaena erizantha (Tall Bindii)       Z         226.       Sclerolaena acurtoicides (Fulfy Bindii)       Z         230.       22625       Sclerolaena acuroicides (Subsp. Lettrissio       Z <td></td> <td></td>		
211.       13308       Rhodanthe charsleyae         212.       13242       Rhodanthe chirina         213.       13300       Rhodanthe forrestii         214.       13292       Rhodanthe forrestii         215.       13249       Rhodanthe avis         216.       13238       Rhodanthe mayonii         217.       13249       Rhodanthe oppositiolia subsp. oppositiolia         218.       45148       Roebuckiella ciliocarpa         219.       48897       Roepera eichleri         220.       48897       Roepera lobulata         221.       11151       Rostrain pumila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northerm Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Sclevolas pinescens (Currant Buch, Marcon)       Y         225.       1002       Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)       Y         226.       2607       Sclerolaena densillora       Z         227.       2611       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis       Z         228.       Sclerolaena necurvicuspis       Z       Z         231.       8207       Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)		
212.       13242       Rhodanthe chlorocephala subsp. splendida         213.       13300       Rhodanthe chlorocephala subsp. oppositifolia         214.       13292       Rhodanthe laevis         215.       13294       Rhodanthe laevis         216.       13238       Rhodanthe laevis         217.       13249       Rhodanthe oppositifolia subsp. oppositifolia         218.       45148       Roebuckiella cilicoarpa         219.       48899       Roepera eichleri         220.       48897       Roepera eichleri         221.       11151       Rostraria pumila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Maroon)       Y         225.       1002       Scherolaena erioacintha (Tall Bindli)       Y         228.       2611       Sclerolaena erioacintha (Tall Bindli)       Z         229.       2625       Sclerolaena eriocinkas (Fluffy Bindli)       Z         230.       2626       Sclerolaena eriocinkas (Fluffy Bindli)       Z         231.       8207       Senecio ginnaritholis <t< td=""><td></td><td></td></t<>		
213.       13300       Rhodanthe cirina         214.       13292       Rhodanthe laevis         215.       13294       Rhodanthe appositifulia subsp. oppositifulia         216.       13238       Rhodanthe appositifulia subsp. oppositifulia         217.       13294       Rhodanthe appositifulia subsp. oppositifulia         218.       45148       Roepera eichleri         220.       48897       Roepera eichleri         221.       11151       Rostraira jurnila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northem Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Maroon)       Y         225.       1002       Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)       Y         226.       2607       Sclerolaena edosifiora       Y         227.       2415       Sclerolaena edosificucuspis       Y         231.       8207       Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)       Z         232.       20161       Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)       Z         233.       12279       Sena artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides       Z         234.       175		
214.       13292       Rhodanthe forestii         215.       13294       Rhodanthe naryonii         216.       13238       Rhodanthe oppositifolia subsp. oppositifolia         217.       13249       Rhodanthe oppositifolia subsp. oppositifolia         218.       45148       Roebuckiella ciliocarpa         219.       48889       Roepera eichleri         220.       48897       Roepera lobulata         221.       11151       Rostraria pumila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Maroon)       Y         225.       1002       Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)       Z         226.       2607       Sclerolaena densilfora       Z         227.       2611       Sclerolaena erecurvicuspis       Z         228.       2612       Sclerolaena erecurvicuspis       Z         230.       2625       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis       Z         231.       8207       Senecio gionsanthus (Slender Groundsel)       Z         233.       12279       Senena artemisioides subsp. x atemis		
215.       13294       Rhodanthe leevis         216.       13238       Rhodanthe mayonii         217.       13249       Rhodanthe oppositifolia subsp. oppositifolia         218.       45148       Roebuckielia cilicocarpa         219.       48899       Roepera eichleri         220.       48897       Roepera eichleri         221.       11151       Rostraria pumila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       T644       Scaevola spinescers (Currant Bush, Marcon)       Y         225.       1002       Scheoneus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)       Y         226.       2607       Sclerolaena ericicultaria       Y         227.       2611       Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)       Y         228.       2525       Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)       Y         230.       2525       Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)       Y         231.       8207       Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)       Y         232.       20161       Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)       Y         233. <td></td> <td></td>		
216.       13238       Rhodanthe maryonii         217.       13249       Rhodanthe oppositifolia subsp. oppositifolia         218.       45148       Roebuckiella ciliocarpa         219.       48898       Roepera ichleri         220.       48897       Roepera lobulata         221.       11151       Rostaria pumila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lancolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Marcon)       Y         225.       1002       Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)       Y         226.       2607       Sclerolaena densitlora       Y         227.       2611       Sclerolaena densitlora       Y         228.       Sclerolaena densitlora       Y       Y         229.       2625       Sclerolaena ecurvicuspis       Y         231.       8207       Senecio ginnatificius       Y         232.       20161       Senecio ginatificius       Y         233.       12278       Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii       Y         234.       17558       Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii		
217.       13249       Rhodanthe oppositifolia subsp. oppositifolia         218.       45148       Roebuckiella cilicoarpa         219.       48898       Roepera eichleri         220.       48897       Roepera lobulata         221.       11151       Rostraria pumila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Marcon)       Y         225.       1002       Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)       Y         226.       2607       Sclerolaena densiltora       Y         227.       2611       Sclerolaena eurotoides (Fluffy Bindii)       Y         228.       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis       Y       Y         230.       2628       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis       Y         231.       8207       Senecio pinnatifolius       Y         232.       20161       Senecio pinnatifolius       Y         233.       12279       Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii       Y         234.       17558       Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii       Y         235.       12283		
218.       45148       Roebera ichileri         219.       48899       Roepera ichileri         220.       48897       Roepera ichileri         221.       111151       Rostraria pumila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Maroon)       Y         225.       1002       Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)       Z         226.       2607       Sclerolaena densiflora       Z         227.       2611       Sclerolaena densiflora       Z         228.       2612       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis       Z         230.       2628       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis       Z         231.       8207       Sencio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)       Z         232.       20161       Sencio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)       Z         233.       12279       Sena artemisioides subsp. helmsii       Z         234.       17558       Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii       Z         235.       12283       Sena sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)       Z         2		
219.       48899       Roepera eichleri         220.       48897       Roepera lobulata         221.       11151       Rostraria pumila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2537       Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Maroon)       Y         225.       1002       Scheonus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)       Y         226.       2607       Sclerolaena densiflora       Y         227.       2611       Sclerolaena eiracantha (Tall Bindii)       Y         228.       2612       Sclerolaena eurotoides (Fluffy Bindii)       Y         229.       2625       Sclerolaena eurotiodes (Fluffy Bindii)       Y         230.       2688       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis       Y         231.       8207       Sencio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)       Y         232.       20161       Sencio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)       Y         233.       12279       Senna artemisioides subsp. ktmsii       Y         234.       17558       Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii       Y         235.       12283       Senna artemisioides subsp.		
220.       48897       Roepera lobulata       Y         221.       11151       Rostrai a pumila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Maroon)       Y         225.       1002       Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)       Y         226.       2607       Sclerolaena densiflora       Y         227.       2611       Sclerolaena eurotioides (Fluffy Bindii)       Z         228.       2612       Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)       Z         230.       2628       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis       Z         231.       8207       Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)       Z         232.       20161       Senecio pinnattifolius       Z         233.       12279       Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides       Z         234.       17558       Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii       Z         235.       12283       Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii       Z         236.       18449       Senna glaucifolia       Z       Z      237.       1457		
221.       11151       Rostraria pumila       Y         222.       2443       Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)       Y         223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)       Y         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Maroon)       Y         225.       1002       Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)       Z         226.       2607       Sclerolaena densiftora       Z         227.       2611       Sclerolaena eriacantha (Tall Bindii)       Z         228.       2612       Sclerolaena eurotioides (Fluffy Bindii)       Z         229.       2652       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis (Limestone Bindii)       Z         230.       2628       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis (Limestone Bindii)       Z         231.       8207       Senecic ginnatifolius       Z         233.       12279       Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii       Z         234.       17558       Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides       Z         235.       12283       Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii       Z         236.       18449       Senna glaucifolia       Z         237.       14577       Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)         238.		
222.         2443         Rumex vesicarius (Ruby Dock)         Y           223.         2257         Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)           224.         7644         Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Maroon)           225.         1002         Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)           226.         2607         Sclerolaena densiflora           227.         2611         Sclerolaena densiflora           228.         2612         Sclerolaena eurotioides (Fluffy Bindii)           228.         2612         Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)           230.         2628         Sclerolaena recurvicuspis           231.         8207         Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)           232.         20161         Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)           233.         12279         Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii           234.         17558         Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii           236.         18449         Senna glaucifolia           237.         14577         Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)           238.         31759         Sida ectogama           239.         31854         Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)           240.         31857         Sida sp. Golden		
223.       2357       Santalum lanceolatum (Northern Sandalwood, Yarnguli)         224.       7644       Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Maroon)         225.       1002       Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)         226.       2607       Sclerolaena densiflora         227.       2611       Sclerolaena eiracantha (Tall Bindii)         228.       2612       Sclerolaena euroticides (Fluffy Bindii)         229.       2625       Sclerolaena euroticides (Fluffy Bindii)         230.       2628       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis         231.       8207       Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)         232.       20161       Senecio pinnatifolius         233.       12279       Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii         234.       17558       Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides         235.       12283       Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii         236.       18449       Senna glaucifolia         237.       14577       Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)         238.       31759       Sida ectogama         239.       31854       Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)         240.       31857       Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)         241.       19712       Si		
224.7644Scaevola spinescens (Currant Bush, Maroon)225.1002Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)226.2607Sclerolaena densiflora227.2611Sclerolaena eriacantha (Tall Bindii)228.2612Sclerolaena eurotioides (Fluffy Bindii)229.2625Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)230.2628Sclerolaena recurvicuspis231.8207Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)232.20161Senecio pinnatifolius233.12279Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii234.17558Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18449Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)241.19712Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)242.3069Solanum ashbyae244.6989Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)244.19955Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum petraeum249.16199Stenanthemum petraeum249.16199Stenanthemum petraeum		
225.       1002       Schoenus nanus (Tiny Bog Rush)         226.       2607       Sclerolaena densilfora         227.       2611       Sclerolaena eriacantha (Tall Bindii)         228.       2612       Sclerolaena eurotioides (Fluffy Bindii)         229.       2625       Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)         230.       2628       Sclerolaena recurvicuspis         231.       8207       Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)         232.       20161       Senecio pinnatifolius         233.       12279       Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii         234.       17558       Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides         235.       12283       Senna attemisioides subsp. x sturtii         236.       18449       Senna glaucifolia         237.       14577       Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)         238.       31759       Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)         240.       31854       Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)         241.       19712       Sida sp. Colden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)         241.       19712       Sida sp. dark green nuits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)         242.       3069       Sigmbrinum erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)       Y         2		
226.2607Sclerolaena densifiora227.2611Sclerolaena eriacantha (Tall Bindii)228.2612Sclerolaena eurotioides (Fluffy Bindii)230.2628Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)230.2628Sclerolaena recurvicuspis231.8207Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)232.20161Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)233.12279Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii234.17558Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18444Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna artemisioides glabsp. x sturtii238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)244.6998Solanum ashbyae244.6998Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)246.19555Steckhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum petraeum249.16199Stenanthemum petraeum249.16199Stenanthemum petraeum		
227.2611Sclerolaena eriacantha (Tall Bindii)228.2612Sclerolaena eurotioides (Fluffy Bindii)229.2625Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)230.2628Sclerolaena recurvicuspis231.8207Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)232.20161Senecio pinnatifolius233.12279Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii234.17558Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18449Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii237.14577Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)244.6989Solanum ashbyae244.6999Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)246.19555Steckhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum patens249.16199Stenanthemum patens249.16199Stenanthemum pateraeum240.3074Stenanthemum pateraeum		
228.2612Sclerolaena eurotioides (Fluffy Bindii)229.2625Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)230.2628Sclerolaena recurvicuspis231.8207Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)232.20161Senecio pinnatifolius233.12279Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii234.17558Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18449Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)242.3069Solanum ashbyae244.6999Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum ferocissimum246.19555Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum mediale248.19705Stenanthemum petrasum249.16199Stenanthemum petrasum249.16199Stenanthemum petrasum		
229.2625Sclerolaena obliquicuspis (Limestone Bindii)230.2628Sclerolaena recurvicuspis231.8207Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)232.20161Senecio pinnatifolius233.12279Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii234.17558Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18449Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)242.3069Solanum ashbyae244.6999Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum ferocissimum246.19555Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum mediale248.19705Stenanthemum petraeum249.16199Stenanthemum petraeum250.3074Stenopetalum anfractum		
230.2628Sclerolaena recurvicuspis231.8207Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)232.20161Senecio pinnatifolius233.12279Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii234.17558Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18449Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)242.3069Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)Y243.6989Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)244.6999Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum ferocissimum246.19555Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum mediale248.19705Stenanthemum petras249.16199Stenanthemum petras249.16199Stenanthemum petras249.3074Stenopetalum anfractum		
231.8207Senecio glossanthus (Slender Groundsel)232.20161Senecio pinnatifolius233.12279Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii234.17558Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18449Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)242.3069Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)Y243.6989Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)244.6999Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum ferocissimum246.19555Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum mediale248.19705Stenanthemum petraeum249.16199Stenanthemum petraeum250.3074Stenopetalum anfractum		
232.20161Senecio pinnatifolius233.12279Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii234.17558Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18449Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)242.3069Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)243.6989Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)244.6999Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum ferocissimum246.19555Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum mediale248.19705Stenanthemum petras249.16199Stenanthemum petras249.16199Stenanthemum petras249.16199Stenanthemum petras240.3074Stenonetalum anfractum		
233.12279Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii234.17558Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18449Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)242.3069Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)243.6989Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)244.6999Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum ferocissimum246.19555Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum mediale248.19705Stenanthemum petras249.16199Stenanthemum petraeum250.3074Stenopetalum anfractum		
234.17558Senna artemisioides subsp. x artemisioides235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18449Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)242.3069Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)Y243.6989Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)244.6999Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum ferocissimum246.19555Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum mediale248.19705Stenanthemum petras249.16199Stenanthemum petraeum250.3074Stenonetalum anfractum		
235.12283Senna artemisioides subsp. x sturtii236.18449Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)242.3069Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)243.6989Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)244.6999Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum ferocissimum246.19555Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum mediale248.19705Stenanthemum petras249.16199Stenanthemum petraeum250.3074Stenonetalum anfractrum		
236.18449Senna glaucifolia237.14577Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)238.31759Sida ectogama239.31854Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)240.31857Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)241.19712Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)242.3069Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)Y243.6989Solanum ashbyae244.6999Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)245.7008Solanum ferocissimum246.19555Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)247.16196Stenanthemum mediale248.19705Stenanthemum petraeum249.16199Stenanthemum petraeum250.3074Stenopetalum anfractum		
237.       14577       Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)         238.       31759       Sida ectogama         239.       31854       Sida ectogama         240.       31857       Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)         240.       31857       Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)         241.       19712       Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)         242.       3069       Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)       Y         243.       6989       Solanum ashbyae       Y         244.       6999       Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)       Y         245.       7008       Solanum ferocissimum       Y         246.       19555       Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)       Y         247.       16196       Stenanthemum mediale       Y         248.       19705       Stenanthemum petraeum       Y         249.       16199       Stenanthemum petraeum       Y		
238.       31759       Sida ectogama         239.       31854       Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)         240.       31857       Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)         241.       19712       Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)         242.       3069       Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)       Y         243.       6989       Solanum ashbyae       Y         244.       6999       Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)       Y         245.       7008       Solanum ferocissimum       Y         246.       19555       Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)       Y         247.       16196       Stenanthemum mediale       Y         248.       19705       Stenanthemum petraeum       Y         249.       16199       Stenanthemum petraeum       Y		
239.       31854       Sida sp. Excedentifolia (J.L. Egan 1925)         240.       31857       Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)         241.       19712       Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)         242.       3069       Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)       Y         243.       6989       Solanum ashbyae       Y         244.       6999       Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)       Y         245.       7008       Solanum ferocissimum       Y         246.       19555       Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)       Y         247.       16196       Stenanthemum mediale       Y         248.       19705       Stenanthemum patens       Y         249.       16199       Stenanthemum petraeum       Y         250.       3074       Stenopetalum anfractum       Y		
240.       31857       Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous (H.N. Foote 32)         241.       19712       Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)         242.       3069       Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)       Y         243.       6989       Solanum ashbyae       Y         244.       6999       Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)       Y         245.       7008       Solanum ferocissimum       Y         246.       19555       Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)       Y         247.       16196       Stenanthernum mediale       Y         248.       19705       Stenanthernum patens       Y         249.       16199       Stenanthernum petraeum       Y         250.       3074       Stenopetalum anfractum       Y		
241.       19712       Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)         242.       3069       Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)       Y         243.       6989       Solanum ashbyae       244.         244.       6999       Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)       245.         245.       7008       Solanum ferocissimum       246.         246.       19555       Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)       247.         247.       16196       Stenanthernum mediale       248.         248.       19705       Stenanthernum patens       249.         249.       16199       Stenanthernum petraeum       250.         3074.       Stenopetalum anfractum       250.       3074.		
242.       3069       Sisymbrium erysimoides (Smooth Mustard)       Y         243.       6989       Solanum ashbyae       244.         244.       6999       Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)       245.         245.       7008       Solanum ferocissimum       246.         246.       19555       Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)       247.         247.       16196       Stenanthernum mediale       248.         248.       19705       Stenanthernum patens       249.         249.       16199       Stenanthernum petraeum       250		
243.       6989       Solanum ashbyae         244.       6999       Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)         245.       7008       Solanum ferocissimum         246.       19555       Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)         247.       16196       Stenanthernum mediale         248.       19705       Stenanthernum patens         249.       16199       Stenanthernum petraeum         250       3074.       Stenopetalum anfractum		
244.       6999       Solanum coactiliferum (Western Nightshade)         245.       7008       Solanum ferocissimum         246.       19555       Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)         247.       16196       Stenanthemum mediale         248.       19705       Stenanthemum patens         249.       16199       Stenanthemum petraeum         250       3074.       Stenopetalum anfractum		
245.       7008       Solanum ferocissimum         246.       19555       Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)         247.       16196       Stenanthemum mediale         248.       19705       Stenanthemum patens         249.       16199       Stenanthemum petraeum         250       3074.       Stenopetalum anfractum		
246.       19555       Stackhousia muricata subsp. annual (W.R. Barker 2172)         247.       16196       Stenanthemum mediale         248.       19705       Stenanthemum patens         249.       16199       Stenanthemum petraeum         250       3074.       Stenonetalum anfractum		
247.       16196       Stenanthemum mediale         248.       19705       Stenanthemum patens         249.       16199       Stenanthemum petraeum         250       3074.       Stenonetalum anfractum		
248.     19705     Stenanthemum patens       249.     16199     Stenanthemum petraeum       250     3074     Stenonetalum anfractum	P1	
249.     16199     Stenanthemum petraeum       250     3074     Stenonetalum anfractum	P1	
250 3074 Stepopetalum anfractum		
200. Our otonopolarian annaolam		
251. 3076 Stenopetalum filifolium		
252. 8236 Streptoglossa cylindriceps		
253. 7740 Stylidium induratum (Desert Triggerplant)		
254. 7754 Stylidium longibracteatum (Long-bracted Trigger Plant)		
255. 12355 Swainsona affinis		
256. 13339 Synaptantha tillaeacea var. tillaeacea		
257. 2641 Tecticornia arborea (Bulli Bulli)		
258. 46513 Tecticornia doliiformis		
259. 33239 Tecticornia halocnemoides subsp. catenulata		
260. 33319 Tecticornia indica subsp. bidens		
261. 2819 Tetragonia cristata		
L <sup>建</sup> S		WESTERN

	Name ID	Species Name	Naturalised	Conservation Code	<sup>1</sup> Endemic To Query Area
262.	48603	Teucrium teucriiflorum			
263.	6054	Thryptomene decussata			
264.	675	Thyridolepis multiculmis (Soft Wanderrie Grass)			
265.	46756	Thysanotus exfimbriatus			
266.	1338	Thysanotus manglesianus (Fringed Lily)			
267.	6268	Trachymene cyanopetala			
268.	6279	Trachymene ornata (Spongefruit)			
269.	19053	Trachymene pilbarensis			
270.	18072	Tribulus suberosus			
271.	33276	Triglochin isingiana			
272.	17877	Triodia melvillei			
273.	48319	Tripogonella Ioliiformis			
274.	7660	Velleia glabrata (Pee the Bed)			
275.	7661	Velleia hispida (Hispid Velleia)			
276.	7664	Velleia rosea (Pink Velleia)			
277.	6092	Verticordia jamiesonii		P3	
278.	48986	Vincetoxicum lineare			
279.	7386	Wahlenbergia gracilenta (Annual Bluebell)			
280.	7393	Wahlenbergia tumidifructa			
281.	13331	Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata			

- Conservation Codes T Rare or likely to become extinct X Presumed extinct IA Protected under international agreement S Other specially protected fauna 1 Priority 1 2 Priority 2 3 Priority 2 4 Priority 4 5 Priority 5

<sup>1</sup> For NatureMap's purposes, species flagged as endemic are those whose records are wholely contained within the search area. Note that only those records complying with the search criterion are included in the calculation. For example, if you limit records to those from a specific datasource, only records from that datasource are used to determine if a species is restricted to the query area.





# **NatureMap Species Report**

Created By Tim McCabe on 15/10/2019

gin Native
nly Yes
nly Yes
Dup All Animals
nod 'By Circle'
ntre 117° 38' 14" E,26° 58' 02" S
ffer 40km
By Species Group

Naturalised

Conservation Code <sup>1</sup>Endemic To Query Area

Species Group	Species	Records
Amphibian Bird	5 122	31 1164
Invertebrate Mammal Reptile	2 12 28 42	2 1910 164 135
TOTAL	211	3406

Name ID Species Name

Ampł	nibian			
	1.	25376	Cyclorana platycephala (Water-holding Frog)	
	2.	25392	Litoria rubella (Little Red Tree Frog)	
	3.	25427	Neobatrachus sutor (Shoemaker Frog)	
	4.	25428	Neobatrachus wilsmorei (Plonking Frog)	
	5.	25434	Pseudophryne occidentalis (Western Toadlet)	
Bird				
Diru	6	24559	Acanthagenys rufogularis (Spiny-cheeked Honeyeater)	
	7	24260	Acanthiza anicalis (Broad-tailed Thornhill Inland Thornhill)	
	8	24261	Acanthiza chosorrhoa (Yellow-rumped Thornbill)	
	9	24264	Acanthiza robustirostris (Slatv-backed Thornbill)	
	10	24265	Acanthiza uropyaialis (Chestnut-rumped Thornhill)	
	10.	25535	Acciniter cirrocenhalus (Collared Sparrowhawk)	
	12	25536	Acciniter fasciatus (Brown Goshawk)	
	13.	25544	Aegotheles cristatus (Australian Owlet-nightiar)	
	14.	24312	Anas gracilis (Grev Teal)	
	15.	24316	Anas superciliosa (Pacific Black Duck)	
	16.	25670	Anthus australis (Australian Pipit)	
	17.	25528	Aphelocephala leucopsis (Southern Whiteface)	
	18.	24285	Aquila audax (Wedge-tailed Eagle)	
	19.	41324	Ardea modesta (great egret, white egret)	
:	20.	24341	Ardea pacifica (White-necked Heron)	
1	21.	24610	Ardeotis australis (Australian Bustard)	
1	22.	25566	Artamus cinereus (Black-faced Woodswallow)	
2	23.	24355	Artamus minor (Little Woodswallow)	
:	24.	24356	Artamus personatus (Masked Woodswallow)	
1	25.		Barnardius zonarius	
:	26.	24359	Burhinus grallarius (Bush Stone-curlew)	
2	27.	25715	Cacatua roseicapilla (Galah)	
:	28.	42307	Cacomantis pallidus (Pallid Cuckoo)	
2	29.	24269	Calamanthus campestris (Rufous Fieldwren)	
;	30.	34000	Calamanthus campestris subsp. montanellus (Rufous Fieldwren, Western Fieldwren	
			(western wheatbelt))	
;	31.	24788	Calidris ruficollis (Red-necked Stint)	IA
;	32.	24564	Certhionyx variegatus (Pied Honeyeater)	
:	33.	24377	Charadrius ruficapillus (Red-capped Plover)	
:	34.	24321	Chenonetta jubata (Australian Wood Duck, Wood Duck)	

NatureMap is a collaborative project of the Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions and the Western Australian Museum

47909 Cheramoeca leucosterna (White-backed Swallow)

24431 Chrysococcyx basalis (Horsfield's Bronze Cuckoo)



35.

36.

Nan	ne ID	Species Name	Naturalised	Conservation Code	<sup>1</sup> Endemic To Query Area
37. 2	4434	Chrysococcyx osculans (Black-eared Cuckoo)			
38. 2	25580	Cinclosoma castaneothorax (Chestnut-breasted Quail-thrush)			
39. 2	4774	Cladorhynchus leucocephalus (Banded Stilt)			
40. 2	25581	Climacteris affinis (White-browed Treecreeper)			
41. 2	25675	Colluricincla harmonica (Grey Shrike-thrush)			
42. 2	24361	Coracina maxima (Ground Cuckoo-shrike)			
43. 2	2000				
44. 2	5503	Convus permetu (Enue Crow)			
46. 2	24420	Cracticus niaroaularis (Pied Butcherbird)			
47. 2	25595	Cracticus tibicen (Australian Magpie)			
48. 2	25596	Cracticus torquatus (Grey Butcherbird)			
49. 2	4322	Cygnus atratus (Black Swan)			
50. 2	25673	Daphoenositta chrysoptera (Varied Sittella)			
51. 2	25607	Dicaeum hirundinaceum (Mistletoebird)			
52. 2	4470	Dromaius novaehollandiae (Emu)			
53.		Egretta novaehollandiae			
54. 4	7937	Elseyornis melanops (Black-fronted Dotterel)			
55.	4500	Eolophus roseicapillus			
57 2	4506	Epinianura aumons (Orange Grat)			
58 2	4379	Enthrogonys cinctus (Red-kneed Dotterel)			
59. 2	4368	Eurostopodus araus (Spotted Niahtiar)			
60. 2	25621	Falco berigora (Brown Falcon)			
61. 2	25622	Falco cenchroides (Australian Kestrel, Nankeen Kestrel)			
62. 2	25623	Falco longipennis (Australian Hobby)			
63. 2	25624	Falco peregrinus (Peregrine Falcon)		S	
64. 2	25727	Fulica atra (Eurasian Coot)			
65. 2	4401	Geopelia cuneata (Diamond Dove)			
66. 2	25530	Gerygone fusca (Western Gerygone)			
67. 2	24443	Grallina cyanoleuca (Magpie-lark)			
68. 2	4295	Haliastur sphenurus (Whistling Kite)			
70 2	95734	Himantonus himantonus (Black-winned Stilt)			
71. 2	4775	Himantopus himantopus subsp. leucocephalus (Black-winged Stilt)			
72. 2	4491	Hirundo neoxena (Welcome Swallow)			
73. 2	4367	Lalage tricolor (White-winged Triller)			
74. 2	25637	Larus novaehollandiae (Silver Gull)			
75. 2	25661	Lichmera indistincta (Brown Honeyeater)			
76. 2	4326	Malacorhynchus membranaceus (Pink-eared Duck)			
77. 2	25651	Malurus lamberti (Variegated Fairy-wren)			
78. 2	25652	Malurus leucopterus (White-winged Fairy-wren)			
79. 2	25654	Malurus splendens (Splendid Fairy-wren)			
81 4	4083	Mahonna havigula (Yellow-tinoated Miller)			
82 2	4736	Melanotiyas cuculata (Hooded Robin) Melansittacus undulatus (Budgerigar)			
83. 2	25693	Microeca fascinans (Jacky Winter)			
84. 2	4737	Neophema bourkii (Bourke's Parrot)			
85. 2	4738	Neophema elegans (Elegant Parrot)			
86.		Neopsephotus bourkii			
87. 2	25747	Ninox connivens (Barking Owl)			
88. 2	4742	Nymphicus hollandicus (Cockatiel)			
89. 2	24407	Ocyphaps lophotes (Crested Pigeon)			
90. 2	4618	Oreoica gutturalis (Crested Bellbird)			
91. 3	94011 95680	Pachycenhala rufiyentris (Rufous Whistler)			
93. 2	24648	Pelecanus conspicillatus (Australian Pelican)			
94. 4	8061	Petrochelidon nigricans (Tree Martin)			
95. 2	4659	Petroica goodenovii (Red-capped Robin)			
96. 2	4667	Phalacrocorax sulcirostris (Little Black Cormorant)			
97. 2	4409	Phaps chalcoptera (Common Bronzewing)			
98. 2	4841	Platalea flavipes (Yellow-billed Spoonbill)			
99. 2	4748	Platycercus varius (Mulga Parrot)			
100. 2	25721	Platycercus zonarius (Australian Ringneck, Ring-necked Parrot)			
101. 2	4751	Pratycercus zonarius subsp. zonarius (Port Lincoln Parrot)			
102. 2	3/03	Podargus strigoldes (Tawny Frogmouth)			
103. 2	-+079 95704	r ouargus surgoities subsp. brachypterus (Tawny Prognoutin) Podicens cristatus (Great Crested Grebe)			
105. 2	4681	Poliocephalus poliocephalus (Hoarv-headed Grebe)			
106. 2	4683	Pomatostomus superciliosus (White-browed Babbler)			



	Name ID	Species Name	Naturalised	Conservation Code	<sup>1</sup> Endemic To Query Area
107.	34013	Pomatostomus superciliosus subsp. ashbyi (White-browed Babbler (western			
108.	25706	wheatbelt)) Pomatostomus temporalis (Grey-crowned Babbler)			
109.	24390	Psophodes occidentalis (Western Wedgebill, Chiming Wedgebill)			
110.		Ptilonorhynchus guttatus			
111.	24757	Ptilonorhynchus maculatus subsp. guttatus (Western Bowerbird)			
112.	42344	Purnella albifrons (White-fronted Honeyeater)			
113.	24278	Pyrmolaemus brunneus (Reatinoat) Recunvirostra novaehollandiae (Red-necked Avocet)			
115.	48096	Rhipidura albiscapa (Grev Fantail)			
116.	25614	Rhipidura leucophrys (Willie Wagtail)			
117.	30948	Smicrornis brevirostris (Weebill)			
118.	25705	Tachybaptus novaehollandiae (Australasian Grebe, Black-throated Grebe)			
119.	24331	Tadorna tadornoides (Australian Shelduck, Mountain Duck)			
120.	30870	Taeniopygia guttata (Zebra Finch)			
121.	24845	I hreskiornis spinicollis (Straw-necked Ibis)			
122.	25549	Todiramphus sanctus (Sacrad Kingfisher)			
123.	48141	Tribonyx ventralis (Black-tailed Native-hen)			
125.	24808	Tringa nebularia (Common Greenshank, greenshank)		IA	
126.	24851	Turnix velox (Little Button-quail)			
127.	24386	Vanellus tricolor (Banded Lapwing)			
Fish					
128.		Craterocephalus cuneiceps			
129.		Leiopotherapon unicolor			
Invortobrato					
130		Anidians villasus			
131.		Cherax destructor			
132.		Cormocephalus turneri			
133.	33917	Idiosoma nigrum (Shield-backed Trapdoor Spider)		Т	
134.		Indolpium sp.			
135.		Nomindra leeuweni			
136.		Phryganoporus candidus			
137.		Scolopendra laeta			
138.		Scolopendra morsitans			
139.		Supunna funerea			
141.		Supunna picta			
Mammal					
142.	24087	Antechinomys laniger (Kultarr)			
143.	24149	Chaeropus ecaudatus (Pig-footed Bandicoot, kantjilpa)		Х	
144.	24186	Chalinolobus gouldii (Gould's Wattled Bat)			
145.	30903	Dasycercus blythi (Brush-tailed Mulgara, Ampurta)		P4	
146.	24125	Lagorchestes ninsulus subsp. ninsulus (Rulous Hare-wailaby (south-western))		X	
148.	24210	Leponinus apicans (Lesser Stick-nest Rat, Wopilkara)		s	
149.	24180	Macroderma gigas (Ghost Bat)		Т	
150.	24135	Macropus robustus subsp. erubescens (Euro, Biggada)			
151.	24136	Macropus rufus (Red Kangaroo, Marlu)			
152.	24168	Macrotis lagotis (Bilby, Dalgyte, Ninu)		Т	
153.	24224	Notomys alexis (Spinifex Hopping-mouse)			
154.	24227	Notomys longicaudatus (Long-tailed Hopping-mouse, koolawa)		Х	
155.	24194	Nyctophilus geolinoyi (Lesser Long-eared Bat)			
157.	34016	Ovis aries (Sheep)			
158.	24142	Petrogale lateralis subsp. lateralis (Black-flanked Rock-wallaby, Black-footed Rock-			
		wallaby)		Т	
159.	24106	Pseudantechinus woolleyae (Woolley's Pseudantechinus)			
160.	24236	Pseudomys fieldi (Shark Bay Mouse, Djoongari)		Т	
161.	24237	rseuuuniys nemianissuugensis (Sandy Inland Mouse)			
162.	24108	Sminthopsis dolichura (Little long-tailed Dunnart)			
164.	24116	Sminthopsis macroura (Stripe-faced Dunnart)			
165.	24207	Tachyglossus aculeatus (Short-beaked Echidna)			
166.	24175	Taphozous georgianus (Common Sheath-tailed Bat)			
167.	24176	Taphozous hilli (Hill's Sheathtail-bat)			
168.	24158	Trichosurus vulpecula subsp. vulpecula (Common Brushtail Possum)			
169.	24205	Vespadelus finlaysoni (Finlayson's Cave Bat)			



	Name ID	Species Name	Naturalised	Conservation Code	<sup>1</sup> Endemic To Query Area
Reptile					
170.	25318	Antaresia perthensis (Pygmy Python)			
171.	25339	Chelodina steindachneri (Flat-shelled Turtle)			
172.	25020	Cryptoblepharus plagiocephalus			
173.	25458	Ctenophorus caudicinctus (Ring-tailed Dragon)			
174.	24869	Ctenophorus caudicinctus subsp. mensarum (Ring-tailed Dragon)			
175.	24882	Ctenophorus nuchalis (Central Netted Dragon)			
176.	24886	Ctenophorus reticulatus (Western Netted Dragon)			
177.	24888	Ctenophorus salinarum (Salt Pan Dragon)			
178.	24889	Ctenophorus scutulatus (Lozenge-marked Dragon)			
179.	25052	Ctenotus leonhardii			
180.	25057	Ctenotus nasutus			
181.	25075	Ctenotus severus			
182.	25080	Ctenotus uber subsp. uber (Spotted Ctenotus)			
183.	24995	Delma australis			
184.	25092	Egernia depressa (Southern Pygmy Spiny-tailed Skink)			
185.	25107	Egernia stokesii subsp. badia (Western Spiny-tailed Skink, Gidgee Skink)		Т	
186.	25109	Eremiascincus richardsonii (Broad-banded Sand Swimmer)			
187.	24958	Gehyra punctata			
188.	24959	Gehyra variegata			
189.	24961	Heteronotia binoei (Bynoe's Gecko)			
190.	25125	Lerista bipes			
191.	25134	Lerista eupoda (West Coast mulga slider, Good-legged Lerista)		P1	
192.	25151	Lerista macropisthopus subsp. fusciceps			

193.	25157 Lerista nichollsi
194.	42411 Lerista timida
195.	25184 Menetia greyii
196.	24904 Moloch horridus (Thorny Devil)
197.	24971 Nephrurus vertebralis
198.	24973 Nephrurus wheeleri subsp. wheeleri
199.	24976 Oedura marmorata (Marbled Velvet Gecko)
200.	25510 Pogona minor (Dwarf Bearded Dragon)
201.	24907 Pogona minor subsp. minor (Dwarf Bearded Dragon)
202.	25261 Pseudechis australis (Mulga Snake)
203.	42416 Pseudonaja mengdeni (Western Brown Snake)
204.	25263 Pseudonaja modesta (Ringed Brown Snake)
205.	25264 Pseudonaja nuchalis (Gwardar, Northern Brown Snake)
206.	24982 Rhynchoedura ornata (Western Beaked Gecko)
207.	25266 Simoselaps bertholdi (Jan's Banded Snake)
208.	24946 Strophurus strophurus
209.	25269 Suta fasciata (Rosen's Snake)
210.	30814 Tympanocryptis cəphalus (Pebble Dragon)
211.	25524 Varanus panoptes (Yellow-spotted Monitor)

Conservation Codes T - Rare or likely to become extinct X - Presumed extinct IA - Protected under international agreement S - Other specially protected fauna 1 - Priority 1 2 - Priority 2 3 - Priority 2 4 - Priority 4 5 - Priority 5

<sup>1</sup> For NatureMap's purposes, species flagged as endemic are those whose records are wholely contained within the search area. Note that only those records complying with the search criterion are included in the calculation. For example, if you limit records to those from a specific datasource, only records from that datasource are used to determine if a species is restricted to the query area.



Common Name	Scientific Name	Count	Reporting Rate
Emu	Dromaius novaehollandiae	24	28.57%
Pink-eared Duck	Malacorhynchus membranaceus	4	4.76%
Black Swan	Cygnus atratus	1	1.19%
Australian Shelduck	Tadorna tadornoides	4	4.76%
Pacific Black Duck	Anas superciliosa	4	4.76%
Grey Teal	Anas gracilis	5	5.95%
Australian Wood Duck	Chenonetta jubata	5	5.95%
Australasian Grebe	Tachybaptus novaehollandiae	5	5.95%
Hoary-headed Grebe	Poliocephalus poliocephalus	3	3.57%
Great Crested Grebe	Podiceps cristatus	1	1.19%
Common Bronzewing	Phaps chalcoptera	13	15.48%
Crested Pigeon	Ocyphaps lophotes	30	35.71%
Diamond Dove	Geopelia cuneata	10	11.90%
Horsfield's Bronze-Cuckoo	Chalcites basalis	3	3.57%
Black-eared Cuckoo	Chalcites osculans	5	5.95%
Pallid Cuckoo	Heteroscenes pallidus	1	1.19%
Spotted Nightjar	Eurostopodus argus	3	3.57%
Australian Owlet-nightjar	Aegotheles cristatus	8	9.52%
Black-tailed Native-hen	Tribonyx ventralis	3	3.57%
Eurasian Coot	Fulica atra	2	2.38%
Bush Stone-curlew	Burhinus grallarius	3	3.57%
Black-winged Stilt	Himantopus leucocephalus	4	4.76%
Red-capped Plover	Charadrius ruficapillus	4	4.76%
Black-fronted Dotterel	Elseyornis melanops	6	7.14%
Banded Lapwing	Vanellus tricolor	3	3.57%
Red-kneed Dotterel	Erythrogonys cinctus	3	3.57%
Australian Pelican	Pelecanus conspicillatus	1	1.19%
White-necked Heron	Ardea pacifica	1	1.19%
Great Egret	Ardea alba	1	1.19%
White-faced Heron	Egretta novaehollandiae	1	1.19%
Straw-necked Ibis	Threskiornis spinicollis	3	3.57%
Yellow-billed Spoonbill	Platalea flavipes	2	2.38%
Little Pied Cormorant	Microcarbo melanoleucos	1	1.19%
Little Black Cormorant	Phalacrocorax sulcirostris	1	1.19%
Black-breasted Buzzard	Hamirostra melanosternon	3	3.57%
Wedge-tailed Eagle	Aquila audax	26	30.95%
Collared Sparrowhawk	Accipiter cirrocephalus	2	2.38%
Whistling Kite	Haliastur sphenurus	8	9.52%
Sacred Kingfisher	Todiramphus sanctus	2	2.38%
Red-backed Kingfisher	Todiramphus pyrrhopygius	2	2.38%
Nankeen Kestrel	Falco cenchroides	15	17.86%
Australian Hobby	Falco longipennis	2	2.38%
Brown Falcon	Falco berigora	10	11.90%
Peregrine Falcon	Falco peregrinus	1	1.19%
Cockatiel	Nymphicus hollandicus	2	2.38%
Galah	Eolophus roseicapilla	21	25.00%
Mulga Parrot	Psephotellus varius	35	41.67%
Australian Ringneck	Barnardius zonarius	12	14.29%
Bourke's Parrot	Neopsephotus bourkii	11	13.10%

Elegant Parrot	Neophema elegans	2	2.38%
Budgerigar	Melopsittacus undulatus	7	8.33%
Western Bowerbird	Ptilonorhynchus guttatus	21	25.00%
White-browed Treecreeper	Climacteris affinis	1	1.19%
Variegated Fairy-wren	Malurus lamberti	4	4.76%
Splendid Fairy-wren	Malurus splendens	22	26.19%
White-winged Fairy-wren	Malurus leucopterus	3	3.57%
Brown Honeyeater	Lichmera indistincta	5	5.95%
Grey Honeyeater	Conopophila whitei	2	2.38%
Crimson Chat	Epthianura tricolor	4	4.76%
Orange Chat	Epthianura aurifrons	2	2.38%
Spiny-cheeked Honeyeater	Acanthagenys rufogularis	32	38.10%
Singing Honeyeater	Gavicalis virescens	43	51.19%
White-plumed Honeyeater	Ptilotula penicillata	13	15.48%
White-fronted Honeyeater	Purnella albifrons	1	1.19%
Yellow-throated Miner	Manorina flavigula	26	30.95%
Striated Pardalote	Pardalotus striatus	1	1.19%
Western Gerygone	Gerygone fusca	1	1.19%
Weebill	Smicrornis brevirostris	1	1.19%
Redthroat	Pyrrholaemus brunneus	21	25.00%
Southern Whiteface	Aphelocephala leucopsis	20	23.81%
Yellow-rumped Thornbill	Acanthiza chrysorrhoa	26	30.95%
Inland Thornbill	Acanthiza apicalis	14	16.67%
Slaty-backed Thornbill	Acanthiza robustirostris	9	10.71%
Chestnut-rumped Thornbill	Acanthiza uropygialis	38	45.24%
Grey-crowned Babbler	Pomatostomus temporalis	27	32.14%
White-browed Babbler	Pomatostomus superciliosus	12	14.29%
Ground Cuckoo-shrike	Coracina maxima	2	2.38%
Black-faced Cuckoo-shrike	Coracina novaehollandiae	14	16.67%
Chestnut-breasted Quail-thrush	Cinclosoma castaneothorax	12	14.29%
Rufous Whistler	Pachycephala rufiventris	33	39.29%
Grey Shrike-thrush	Colluricincla harmonica	28	33.33%
Crested Bellbird	Oreoica gutturalis	33	39.29%
Australian Magpie	Gymnorhina tibicen	17	20.24%
Pied Butcherbird	Cracticus nigrogularis	15	17.86%
Grey Butcherbird	Cracticus torguatus	29	34.52%
Masked Woodswallow	Artamus personatus	4	4.76%
Black-faced Woodswallow	Artamus cinereus	24	28.57%
Little Woodswallow	Artamus minor	13	15.48%
Willie Wagtail	Rhipidura leucophrys	37	44.05%
Grev Fantail	Rhipidura fuliginosa	3	3.57%
Torresian Crow	Corvus orru	8	9.52%
Little Crow	Corvus bennetti	13	15.48%
Magnie-lark	Grallina cvanoleuca	23	27.38%
Red-capped Robin	Petroica goodenovii	20	23.81%
Hooded Robin	Melanodryas cucultata	7	8 33%
Mistletoebird	Dicaeum hirundinaceum	Δ	۵.55% ۵.76%
Zebra Finch		25	41 67%
Australasian Pinit	Anthus novaeseelandiae	16	19 05%
Brown Songlark	Cincloramphus cruralis	1	1 100/

White-backed Swallow	Cheramoeca leucosterna	2	2.38%
Tree Martin	Petrochelidon nigricans	7	8.33%
Welcome Swallow	Hirundo neoxena	18	21.43%
Crow & Raven spp		4	4.76%

### APPENDIX C EPBC PROTECTED MATTERS SEARCH TOOL

Austr

Australian Government

Department of the Environment and Energy

# **EPBC** Act Protected Matters Report

This report provides general guidance on matters of national environmental significance and other matters protected by the EPBC Act in the area you have selected.

Information on the coverage of this report and qualifications on data supporting this report are contained in the caveat at the end of the report.

Information is available about <u>Environment Assessments</u> and the EPBC Act including significance guidelines, forms and application process details.

Report created: 20/08/19 15:48:35

Summary Details Matters of NES Other Matters Protected by the EPBC Act Extra Information Caveat

<u>Acknowledgements</u>



This map may contain data which are ©Commonwealth of Australia (Geoscience Australia), ©PSMA 2010

Coordinates Buffer: 50.0Km



# Summary

# Matters of National Environmental Significance

This part of the report summarises the matters of national environmental significance that may occur in, or may relate to, the area you nominated. Further information is available in the detail part of the report, which can be accessed by scrolling or following the links below. If you are proposing to undertake an activity that may have a significant impact on one or more matters of national environmental significance then you should consider the <u>Administrative Guidelines on Significance</u>.

World Heritage Properties:	None
National Heritage Places:	None
Wetlands of International Importance:	None
Great Barrier Reef Marine Park:	None
Commonwealth Marine Area:	None
Listed Threatened Ecological Communities:	None
Listed Threatened Species:	8
Listed Migratory Species:	8

# Other Matters Protected by the EPBC Act

This part of the report summarises other matters protected under the Act that may relate to the area you nominated. Approval may be required for a proposed activity that significantly affects the environment on Commonwealth land, when the action is outside the Commonwealth land, or the environment anywhere when the action is taken on Commonwealth land. Approval may also be required for the Commonwealth or Commonwealth agencies proposing to take an action that is likely to have a significant impact on the environment anywhere.

The EPBC Act protects the environment on Commonwealth land, the environment from the actions taken on Commonwealth land, and the environment from actions taken by Commonwealth agencies. As heritage values of a place are part of the 'environment', these aspects of the EPBC Act protect the Commonwealth Heritage values of a Commonwealth Heritage place. Information on the new heritage laws can be found at http://www.environment.gov.au/heritage

A <u>permit</u> may be required for activities in or on a Commonwealth area that may affect a member of a listed threatened species or ecological community, a member of a listed migratory species, whales and other cetaceans, or a member of a listed marine species.

Commonwealth Land:	None
Commonwealth Heritage Places:	None
Listed Marine Species:	12
Whales and Other Cetaceans:	None
Critical Habitats:	None
Commonwealth Reserves Terrestrial:	None
Australian Marine Parks:	None

## **Extra Information**

This part of the report provides information that may also be relevant to the area you have nominated.

State and Territory Reserves:	None
Regional Forest Agreements:	None
Invasive Species:	10
Nationally Important Wetlands:	None
Key Ecological Features (Marine)	None

# Details

# Matters of National Environmental Significance

Listed Threatened Species		[Resource Information]
Name	Status	Type of Presence
Birds		
Calidris ferruginea		
Curlew Sandpiper [856]	Critically Endangered	Species or species habitat may occur within area
Leipoa ocellata		
Malleefowl [934]	Vulnerable	Species or species habitat likely to occur within area
Pezoporus occidentalis		
Night Parrot [59350]	Endangered	Species or species habitat may occur within area
Rostratula australis		
Australian Painted-snipe, Australian Painted Snipe [77037]	Endangered	Species or species habitat may occur within area
Mammals		
Leporillus conditor		
Wopilkara, Greater Stick-nest Rat [137]	Vulnerable	Species or species habitat may occur within area
Other		
Idiosoma nigrum		
Shield-backed Trapdoor Spider, Black Rugose Trapdoor Spider [66798]	Vulnerable	Species or species habitat known to occur within area
Plants		
Eremophila rostrata		
Beaked Eremophila [65124]	Critically Endangered	Species or species habitat may occur within area
Reptiles		
Egernia stokesii badia		
Western Spiny-tailed Skink, Baudin Island Spiny-tailed Skink [64483]	Endangered	Species or species habitat known to occur within area

# Listed Migratory Species [Resource Information] \* Species is listed under a different scientific name on the EPBC Act - Threatened Species list. Name Threatened Type of Presence

Species or species habitat likely to occur within area

Migratory Terrestrial Species

Motacilla cinerea Grey Wagtail [642]

**Migratory Marine Birds** 

Fork-tailed Swift [678]

Apus pacificus

Species or species habitat may occur within

Name	Threatened	Type of Presence
		area
Motacilla flava		<b>•</b> • • • • • • •
Yellow Wagtail [644]		Species or species habitat
		may occur within area
Migratory Wetlands Species		
Actitis hypoleucos		
Common Sandpiper [59309]		Species or species habitat
		known to occur within area
Calidris acuminata		
Sharp-tailed Sandpiper [874]		Species or species habitat
		likely to occur within area
Curlow Sondningr [956]	Critically Endongorod	Spaciae ar openioe hebitet
Cullew Sanupiper [050]	Childany Endangered	may occur within area
Calidris melanotos		
Pectoral Sandpiper [858]		Species or species habitat
		may occur within area
Tringa nebularia		
Common Greenshank, Greenshank [832]		Species or species habitat
		likely to occur within area
Other Matters Protected by the EPRC Act		
Other Matters i Tolected by the Li DO Act		
Listed Marine Species		[Resource Information]
* Species is listed under a different scientific name on t	he EPBC Act - Threatened	Species list.
Name	Threatened	Type of Presence
Birds		

Actitis hypoleucos

Common Sandpiper [59309]

Apus pacificus Fork-tailed Swift [678]

<u>Ardea alba</u> Great Egret, White Egret [59541]

Species or species habitat known to occur within area

Species or species habitat known to occur within area

Species or species habitat likely to occur within area

Calidris acuminata Sharp-tailed Sandpiper [874]

<u>Calidris ferruginea</u> Curlew Sandpiper [856]

<u>Calidris melanotos</u> Pectoral Sandpiper [858]

<u>Chrysococcyx osculans</u> Black-eared Cuckoo [705]

Merops ornatus Rainbow Bee-eater [670]

Motacilla cinerea Grey Wagtail [642] Species or species habitat likely to occur within area

Critically Endangered

Species or species habitat may occur within area

Species or species habitat may occur within area

Species or species habitat known to occur within area

Species or species habitat may occur within area

Species or species habitat may occur within

Name	Threatened	Type of Presence
		area
Motacilla flava		
Yellow Wagtail [644]		Species or species habitat may occur within area
Rostratula benghalensis (sensu lato)		
Painted Snipe [889]	Endangered*	Species or species habitat may occur within area
Tringa nebularia		
Common Greenshank, Greenshank [832]		Species or species habitat likely to occur within area

## **Extra Information**

Invasive Species	[Resource Information]
Weeds reported here are the 20 species of national significan	ce (WoNS), along with other introduced plants
that are considered by the States and Territories to pose a pa	rticularly significant threat to biodiversity. The
following feral animals are reported: Goat, Red Fox, Cat, Rab	bit, Pig, Water Buffalo and Cane Toad. Maps from
Landscape Health Project, National Land and Water Resouce	s Audit, 2001.

Name	Status	Type of Presence
Birds		
Columba livia		
Rock Pigeon, Rock Dove, Domestic Pigeon [803]		Species or species habitat likely to occur within area
Streptopelia senegalensis		
Laughing Turtle-dove, Laughing Dove [781]		Species or species habitat likely to occur within area
Mammals		
Canis lupus familiaris		
Domestic Dog [82654]		Species or species habitat likely to occur within area
Capra hircus		
Goat [2]		Species or species habitat likely to occur within area

Equus asinus

Donkey, Ass [4]

Felis catus Cat, House Cat, Domestic Cat [19]

Oryctolagus cuniculus Rabbit, European Rabbit [128]

Vulpes vulpes Red Fox, Fox [18]

### Plants

Carrichtera annua Ward's Weed [9511]

Cenchrus ciliaris Buffel-grass, Black Buffel-grass [20213] Species or species habitat likely to occur within area

Species or species habitat likely to occur within area

Species or species habitat likely to occur within area

Species or species habitat likely to occur within area

Species or species habitat may occur within area

Species or species habitat likely to occur

Name	Status	Type of Presence
		within area
# Caveat

The information presented in this report has been provided by a range of data sources as acknowledged at the end of the report.

This report is designed to assist in identifying the locations of places which may be relevant in determining obligations under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999. It holds mapped locations of World and National Heritage properties, Wetlands of International and National Importance, Commonwealth and State/Territory reserves, listed threatened, migratory and marine species and listed threatened ecological communities. Mapping of Commonwealth land is not complete at this stage. Maps have been collated from a range of sources at various resolutions.

Not all species listed under the EPBC Act have been mapped (see below) and therefore a report is a general guide only. Where available data supports mapping, the type of presence that can be determined from the data is indicated in general terms. People using this information in making a referral may need to consider the qualifications below and may need to seek and consider other information sources.

For threatened ecological communities where the distribution is well known, maps are derived from recovery plans, State vegetation maps, remote sensing imagery and other sources. Where threatened ecological community distributions are less well known, existing vegetation maps and point location data are used to produce indicative distribution maps.

Threatened, migratory and marine species distributions have been derived through a variety of methods. Where distributions are well known and if time permits, maps are derived using either thematic spatial data (i.e. vegetation, soils, geology, elevation, aspect, terrain, etc) together with point locations and described habitat; or environmental modelling (MAXENT or BIOCLIM habitat modelling) using point locations and environmental data layers.

Where very little information is available for species or large number of maps are required in a short time-frame, maps are derived either from 0.04 or 0.02 decimal degree cells; by an automated process using polygon capture techniques (static two kilometre grid cells, alpha-hull and convex hull); or captured manually or by using topographic features (national park boundaries, islands, etc). In the early stages of the distribution mapping process (1999-early 2000s) distributions were defined by degree blocks, 100K or 250K map sheets to rapidly create distribution maps. More reliable distribution mapping methods are used to update these distributions as time permits.

Only selected species covered by the following provisions of the EPBC Act have been mapped:

- migratory and
- marine

The following species and ecological communities have not been mapped and do not appear in reports produced from this database:

- threatened species listed as extinct or considered as vagrants
- some species and ecological communities that have only recently been listed
- some terrestrial species that overfly the Commonwealth marine area
- migratory species that are very widespread, vagrant, or only occur in small numbers

The following groups have been mapped, but may not cover the complete distribution of the species:

- non-threatened seabirds which have only been mapped for recorded breeding sites
- seals which have only been mapped for breeding sites near the Australian continent

Such breeding sites may be important for the protection of the Commonwealth Marine environment.

# Coordinates

-26.96667 117.66306,-26.93944 117.7

# Acknowledgements

This database has been compiled from a range of data sources. The department acknowledges the following custodians who have contributed valuable data and advice:

-Office of Environment and Heritage, New South Wales -Department of Environment and Primary Industries, Victoria -Department of Primary Industries, Parks, Water and Environment, Tasmania -Department of Environment, Water and Natural Resources, South Australia -Department of Land and Resource Management, Northern Territory -Department of Environmental and Heritage Protection, Queensland -Department of Parks and Wildlife, Western Australia -Environment and Planning Directorate, ACT -Birdlife Australia -Australian Bird and Bat Banding Scheme -Australian National Wildlife Collection -Natural history museums of Australia -Museum Victoria -Australian Museum -South Australian Museum -Queensland Museum -Online Zoological Collections of Australian Museums -Queensland Herbarium -National Herbarium of NSW -Royal Botanic Gardens and National Herbarium of Victoria -Tasmanian Herbarium -State Herbarium of South Australia -Northern Territory Herbarium -Western Australian Herbarium -Australian National Herbarium, Canberra -University of New England -Ocean Biogeographic Information System -Australian Government, Department of Defence Forestry Corporation, NSW -Geoscience Australia -CSIRO -Australian Tropical Herbarium, Cairns -eBird Australia -Australian Government – Australian Antarctic Data Centre -Museum and Art Gallery of the Northern Territory -Australian Government National Environmental Science Program

-Australian Government National Environmental Scien

-Australian Institute of Marine Science

-Reef Life Survey Australia

-American Museum of Natural History

-Queen Victoria Museum and Art Gallery, Inveresk, Tasmania

-Tasmanian Museum and Art Gallery, Hobart, Tasmania

-Other groups and individuals

The Department is extremely grateful to the many organisations and individuals who provided expert advice and information on numerous draft distributions.

Please feel free to provide feedback via the Contact Us page.

© Commonwealth of Australia Department of the Environment GPO Box 787 Canberra ACT 2601 Australia +61 2 6274 1111

#### APPENDIX D PLANT SPECIES INVENTORY

Family	Name
Acanthaceae	Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri
Aizoaceae	Trianthema glossostigmum
Amaranthaceae	Ptilotus aervoides
	Ptilotus exaltatus
	Ptilotus gaudichaudii
	Ptilotus helipteroides
	Ptilotus obovatus
	Ptilotus polystachyus
	Ptilotus roei
	Ptilotus rotundifolius
	Ptilotus schwartzii
Apiaceae	Daucus glochidiatus
Apocynaceae	Apocynaceae sp. (indet.)
	Marsdenia australis
Araliaceae	Trachymene cyanopetala
	Trachymene ornata
	Trachymene pilbarensis
Asparagaceae	Arthropodium dyeri
	Thysanotus manglesianus
Asteraceae	?Rhodanthe sp. (indet.)
	Actinobole oldfieldianum
	Angianthus tomentosus
	Brachyscome ciliaris
	Calocephalus knappii
	Calotis hispidula Calotis nasila and
	Calotis porphyrogiossa Carbelisterum davere adii
	Cephalipterum drummonali Chthanacanhalus viscosus
	Critionocephalas viscosas
	Erymophylium rumosum subsp. rumosum
	Helinterum craspediaides
	l awrencella davennortii
	Myriocenhalus oldfieldii
	Myriocephalus rudallii
	Pluchen dentex
	Podolenis aardneri
	Rhodanthe battii
	Rhodanthe charslevae
	Rhodanthe maryonii
	Rhodanthe polycephala
	Rhodanthe propingua
	Roebuckiella ciliocarpa
	Senecio sp. (indet.)
	Trichanthodium skirrophorum
	Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata
Boraginaceae	Heliotropium ovalifolium
	Trichodesma zeylanicum
Brassicaceae	Lepidium oxytrichum
	Stenopetalum filifolium
	Stenopetalum lineare var. lineare
Campanulaceae	Wahlenbergia tumidifructa
Casuarinaceae	Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis
Chenopodiaceae	Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya
	Dysphania saxatilis
	Enchylaena tomentosa var. tomentosa
	Maireana georgei
	Maireana melanocoma
	Maireana triptera
	Maireana villosa
	Rhagodia eremaea
	Saisola australis



Family	Name
	Sclerolaena densiflora
Convolvulaceae	Convolvulus clementii
	*Cuscuta planiflora
	Duperreya commixta
Euphorbiaceae	Euphorbia australis var. subtomentosa
	Euphorbia boophthona
	Euphorbia drummondii
Fabaceae	Acacia craspedocarpa
	Acacia craspedocarpa (hybrid)
	Acacia dilloniorum (P1)
	Acacia exocarpoides
	Acacia fuscaneura
	Acacia incurvaneura
	Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura
	Acacia mulganeura
	Acacia pruinocarpa
	Acacia pteraneura
	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa
	Acacia rhodophloia
	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)
	Acacia speckii (P4)
	Acacia tetragonophylla
	Chorizema genistoides
	<i>Glycine canescens</i>
	Indigofera monophylla sens. lat.
	Senna artemisioides subsp. ×artemisioides
	Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii
	Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia
	Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii
	Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)
	Swainsona kingii
Geraniaceae	Erodium crinitum
Goodeniaceae	Brunonia australis
	Goodenia berardiana
	Goodenia havilandii
	Goodenia macroplectra
	Goodenia mimuloides
	Goodenia quasilibera
	Goodenia tenuiloba
	Scaevola spinescens
Haloragaceae	Haloragis trigonocarpa
Lamiaceae	Hemigenia virescens (P3)
	Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi
	Prostanthera petrophila (P3)
	Teucrium teucriiflorum
Malvaceae	Abutilon oxycarpum
	Brachychiton gregorii
	Hibiscus burtonii
	Hibiscus sp. Gardneri (A.L. Payne PRP 1435)
	Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii
	Sida ectogama
	<i>Sida</i> sp. (indet.)
	Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)
	Calandrinia ? ptychosperma
Montiaceae	Calandrinia eremaea
	Calandrinia stagnensis
Myrtaceae	Aluta aspera subsp. hesperia
	Calytrix desolata
	Micromyrtus placoides (P3)
	Thryptomene decussata



Family	Name
Phyllanthaceae	Phyllanthus maderaspatensis
Plantaginaceae	Plantago drummondii
Poaceae	Aristida contorta
	Austrostipa trichophylla
	Cymbopogon ambiguus
	Enneapogon caerulescens
	Eragrostis eriopoda
	Eriachne helmsii
	Eriachne pulchella subsp. dominii
	Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella
	Monachather paradoxus
	Paspalidium clementii
	*Rostraria pumila
Primulaceae	*Lysimachia arvensis
Proteaceae	Grevillea berryana
	Grevillea inconspicua (P4)
	Hakea lorea subsp. lorea
Pteridaceae	Cheilanthes brownii
	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi
Rhamhaceae	Stenanthemum patens (P1)
	Stenanthemum petraeum
Dubiagaaa	Stenantnemum sp. (Indet.)
Rublaceae	Psydrax iaidula
	Psyarax rigidula
	Psyurux suuveolens
Putacaaa	Dhilathaca hrucai subsp. hrucai
Santalaceae	Santalum lanceolatum
Jantalaceae	Dodonaea amplisemina (P4)
	Dodonaea nachvneura
Scrophulariaceae	Fremonhila exilifolia
	Eremonhila foliosissima
	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii
	Eremophila fraseri
	Eremophila georgei
	Eremophila qlutinosa
	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda
	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
	Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata
	Eremophila macmillaniana
	Eremophila simulans
Solanaceae	Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata
	Solanum ashbyae
	Solanum austropiceum
	Solanum cleistogamum
	Solanum lasiophyllum
Zygophyllaceae	Roepera eichleri
	Tribulus astrocarpus
	Tribulus suberosus

\*Introduced.



#### APPENDIX E PRIORITY FLORA SPECIES RECORED WITHIN THE STUDY AREA



Name	WAConsStat	Abundance	DateObs	Fasting	Northing
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	1	3/09/2019	568556.44	7020064.3
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	1	3/09/2019	568208.36	7019805.9
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	3	3/09/2019	568548.65	7020038.1
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	4	3/09/2019	568580.66	7020046.1
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	5	3/09/2019	568309.93	7019897.6
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	20	3/09/2019	568357.89	7019974.3
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	25	3/09/2019	568341.34	7019942.2
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	25	3/09/2019	568548.65	7020038.1
Acacia speckii	P4	1	3/09/2019	568378.39	7020074
Acacia speckii	P4	1	3/09/2019	568556.44	7020064.3
Acacia speckii	P4	1	3/09/2019	568590.46	7020039.3
Acacia speckii	P4	1	3/09/2019	568664.56	7019992.3
Acacia speckii	P4	4	3/09/2019	568572.62	7020045.6
Acacia speckii	P4	5	3/09/2019	568553.45	7020025.6
Acacia speckii	P4	10	3/09/2019	568427.83	7020019.6
Acacia speckii	P4	10	3/09/2019	568660.84	7020039.2
Acacia speckii	P4	14	3/09/2019	568378.39	7020074
Acacia speckii	P4	25	3/09/2019	568611.91	7020060
Acacia speckii	P4	1	4/07/2019	568575.5	7020046.7
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	1	3/09/2019	568378.39	7020074
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	1	3/09/2019	568556.44	7020064.3
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	1	4/09/2019	568836.86	7019605.7
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	1	4/09/2019	568800.3	7019220.1
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	50	3/09/2019	568434.49	7019983.5
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	1	3/09/2019	568318.18	7019900.7
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	1	3/09/2019	568614.39	7020022
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	1	3/09/2019	568727.47	7019788.1
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	1	3/09/2019	568852.33	7019385.2
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	2	3/09/2019	568580.66	7020046.1
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	2	3/09/2019	568878.18	7019500.5
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	3	3/09/2019	568572.62	7020045.6
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	5	3/09/2019	568744.49	7019724
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	5	3/09/2019	568823.72	7019615.9
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	5	3/09/2019	568672.24	7020036.4
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	10	3/09/2019	568728.71	7019778.6
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	10	3/09/2019	568751.92	7019703.7
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	10	3/09/2019	568773.63	7019679.3
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	10	3/09/2019	568834.39	7019318.6
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	20	3/09/2019	568866.17	7019573
Grevillea inconspicua	P4	0	4/09/2019	568836.86	7019605.7
Grevillea inconspicua	P4	1	3/09/2019	567613.99	7017093
Grevillea inconspicua	P4	3	3/09/2019	568751.92	7019703.7
Grevillea inconspicua	P4	5	3/09/2019	568786.02	7019657
Grevillea inconspicua	P4	5	3/09/2019	568834.39	7019318.6
Grevillea inconspicua	P4	5	3/09/2019	568788.27	7019651.1
Hemiaenia virescens	P3	15	4/09/2019	569077.07	7019221.5
Hemiaenia virescens	P3	2	3/09/2019	569042.62	7019166.1
Hemigenia virescens	P3	10	3/09/2019	568921.6	7019165.8
Hemigenia virescens	P3	10	3/09/2019	569077.27	7019167.5
Micromyrtus placoides	P3	20	3/09/2019	568584.15	7019775.8
Micromyrtus placoides	P3	50	3/09/2019	568904.19	7019936.8
Micromyrtus placoides	P3	100	3/09/2019	569038.72	7020028.1
Micromyrtus placoides	P3	10	3/09/2019	568618.55	7019568
Micromyrtus placoides	P3	20	3/09/2019	568545.59	7019822.1



Name	WAConsStat	Abundance	DateObs	Easting	Northing
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	20	3/09/2019	568541.21	7019838.4
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	20	3/09/2019	568550.74	7019583.3
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	100	3/09/2019	569006.95	7019990.6
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	100	3/09/2019	568391.88	7019560.4
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	200	3/09/2019	568587.01	7019736.5
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	200	3/09/2019	568314.23	7019557.5
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	20	4/07/2019	568542.06	7019703.4
Prostanthera petrophila	P3	1	3/09/2019	568934.67	7020061.1
Prostanthera petrophila	P3	50	3/09/2019	568538.28	7019774.9
Stenanthemum patens	P1	2	3/09/2019	568707.68	7019908.1



APPENDIX F SPECIES CONSTANCY WITHIN VEGETATION TYPES

	Species	Vegetation type <sup>1</sup>									
Family		SH01	SH02	SH03	SH04	SH05	SH06	SH07	SH08	W01	W02
Acanthaceae	Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri			100%		100%		33%		100%	
Aizoaceae	Trianthema glossostigmum						50%				
	Ptilotus aervoides		100%		100%						
	Ptilotus exaltatus			100%							
	Ptilotus gaudichaudii			100%			50%				
Amaranthaaaaa	Ptilotus helipteroides	50%	100%	100%	100%	50%		33%			33%
Amaranthaceae	Ptilotus obovatus	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	50%	100%		100%	100%
	Ptilotus polystachyus		50%	100%	100%		50%	33%	80%	100%	100%
	Ptilotus roei		50%				100%		20%		33%
	Ptilotus schwartzii					100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	67%
Apiaceae	Daucus glochidiatus				33%						
Apocynaceae	Marsdenia australis	100%		100%	67%			33%		100%	100%
Araliaceae	Trachymene cyanopetala		50%		67%						
	Trachymene ornata		100%		100%	100%		100%			67%
Asparagaceae	Arthropodium dyeri							33%			
	Thysanotus manglesianus		50%		33%		50%	100%	80%		100%
	?Rhodanthe sp. (indet.)								20%	100%	33%
	Angianthus tomentosus			100%							
	Brachyscome ciliaris		50%		67%		50%		40%		33%
	Calocephalus knappii				67%		50%				100%
	Calotis hispidula		100%	100%	100%						67%
	Calotis porphyroglossa	50%		100%							100%
	Cephalipterum drummondii	100%	100%	100%	100%		50%				67%
	Chthonocephalus viscosus				33%		50%		20%		
	Erymophyllum ramosum subsp. ramosum					50%					
Astoração	Helipterum craspedioides		50%	100%	100%				20%		67%
Asteraceae	Lawrencella davenportii					50%		33%			33%
	Myriocephalus rudallii				33%						
	Pluchea dentex				67%						
	Podolepis gardneri	50%	100%	100%	100%						
	Rhodanthe battii			100%		50%					67%
	Rhodanthe charsleyae		50%		67%		50%				33%
	Rhodanthe maryonii		100%		100%	100%		33%			67%
	Rhodanthe polycephala			100%		100%		33%			
	Rhodanthe propinqua										67%
	Roebuckiella ciliocarpa		50%		67%			67%		100%	33%



	Species -	Vegetation type <sup>1</sup>									
Family		SH01	SH02	SH03	SH04	SH05	SH06	SH07	SH08	W01	W02
	Senecio sp. (indet.)				100%						
	Trichanthodium skirrophorum	50%									
	Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata			100%	67%	50%		67%	60%		33%
Descriteres	Heliotropium ovalifolium		100%		67%						
Boraginaceae	Trichodesma zeylanicum			100%	100%						
Brassicaceae	Lepidium oxytrichum				100%	50%					
	Stenopetalum filifolium/lineare	50%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	100%	20%	100%	100%
Campanulaceae	Wahlenbergia tumidifructa			100%	67%						
Casuarinaceae	Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis					50%					
	Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya		50%	100%	100%	100%			20%	100%	67%
	Dysphania saxatilis							33%			
	Enchylaena tomentosa var. tomentosa			100%						100%	
	Maireana georgei	100%	50%	100%						100%	
Chenopodiaceae	Maireana melanocoma	50%									
	Maireana triptera	50%									
	Maireana villosa			100%			100%		40%		100%
	Rhagodia eremaea			100%							
	Salsola australis	50%									
	Sclerolaena densiflora			100%							
	Convolvulus clementii			100%	33%						
Convolvulaceae	Cuscuta planiflora										33%
	Duperreya commixta			100%	67%						
	Euphorbia australis var. subtomentosa		50%		67%						
Euphorbiaceae	Euphorbia boophthona		100%	100%	100%					100%	67%
	Euphorbia drummondii										100%
	Acacia ? incurvaneura × mulganeura						100%	33%	100%		67%
	Acacia craspedocarpa	100%									
	Acacia dilloniorum		50%								
	Acacia exocarpoides					50%		100%	20%	100%	33%
	Acacia fuscaneura	50%			50%		50%				33%
Fabaceae	Acacia incurvaneura	50%		100%	50%	100%	50%	100%	100%		67%
	Acacia mulganeura							33%	20%		33%
	Acacia pruinocarpa			100%					20%	100%	100%
	Acacia pteraneura		50%						20%	100%	67%
	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla		50%	100%	100%	50%		100%	100%	100%	100%
	Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa	50%									



		Vegetation type <sup>1</sup>									
Family	Species	SH01	SH02	SH03	SH04	SH05	SH06	SH07	SH08	W01	W02
	Acacia rhodophloia					100%					
	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)		100%	100%	100%				20%		
	Acacia speckii		100%								
	Acacia tetragonophylla	100%					100%				33%
	Chorizema genistoides		50%								
	Glycine canescens			100%	67%						
	Indigofera monophylla sens. lat.		100%	100%	100%						
	Senna artemisioides subsp. ×artemisioides	100%		100%	100%						
	Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	100%	100%	100%	100%	50%		67%	20%	100%	67%
	Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii		50%	100%	100%					100%	33%
	Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)									100%	
	Swainsona kingii	50%		100%	33%						33%
Geraniaceae	Erodium crinitum		100%	100%	100%	100%	50%	67%	60%		100%
Goodeniaceae	Goodenia berardiana		100%		33%						
	Goodenia havilandii			100%				33%			
	Goodenia macroplectra								20%		
	Goodenia mimuloides		50%								
	Goodenia quasilibera						50%		40%		
	Goodenia tenuiloba		50%	100%	67%	100%	50%	100%	100%	100%	100%
	Scaevola spinescens	50%		100%							
Haloragaceae	Haloragis trigonocarpa		100%	100%	100%						
	Hemigenia virescens								20%		
	Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi		50%								
Lamiaceae	Prostanthera petrophila					50%		33%			
	Teucrium teucriiflorum			100%			50%		20%	100%	33%
	Abutilon oxycarpum				67%						67%
	Brachychiton gregorii		50%								
	Hibiscus burtonii			100%					20%		33%
Mahraaaaa	Hibiscus sp. Gardneri (A.L. Payne PRP 1435)									100%	33%
Maivaceae	Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii		50%	100%	67%						
	Sida ectogama			100%							
	Sida sp. (indet.)							33%			
	Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)		50%		100%					100%	100%
Montiogooo	Calandrinia ? ptychosperma				33%						
wonudcede	Calandrinia eremaea		100%	100%	100%	100%			20%		33%
Myrtaceae	Micromyrtus placoides							100%			



		Vegetation type <sup>1</sup>									
Family	Species	SH01	SH02	SH03	SH04	SH05	SH06	SH07	SH08	W01	W02
	Thryptomene decussata					100%		100%			
Phyllanthaceae	Phyllanthus maderaspatensis		50%		100%						
	Aristida contorta	50%	100%	100%	100%	50%	100%		20%		
	Austrostipa trichophylla				33%						
	Cymbopogon ambiguus			100%	100%						
	Enneapogon caerulescens	50%									
	Eragrostis eriopoda						100%		80%		33%
Poaceae	Eriachne helmsii					50%				100%	67%
	Eriachne pulchella subsp. dominii					50%					
	Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella			100%							
	Monachather paradoxus			100%					40%		33%
	Paspalidium clementii				33%	100%					33%
	Rostraria pumila				33%						
Primulaceae	Lysimachia arvensis				33%						
Proteaceae	Grevillea berryana			100%		50%		100%	40%		67%
	Grevillea inconspicua				33%						
S. 11	Cheilanthes brownii		100%		67%	50%					
Ptendaceae	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi				33%	50%		100%			67%
Dhamaaaaa	Stenanthemum patens		50%								
Rhamhaceae	Stenanthemum petraeum							33%			
	Psydrax latifolia				33%	50%	100%		60%	100%	67%
Dubiasaa	Psydrax rigidula	50%		100%	33%	50%	50%	33%	40%	100%	67%
Rublaceae	Psydrax suaveolens					50%		100%	80%	100%	100%
	Synaptantha tillaeacea var. tillaeacea				67%						
Rutaceae	Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei					100%		33%			
	Santalum lanceolatum			100%	33%	50%					33%
Santalaceae	Dodonaea amplisemina		100%		100%						
	Dodonaea pachyneura					100%		100%			
	Eremophila foliosissima						50%		40%		33%
	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii		50%	100%			50%	33%	100%	100%	100%
	Eremophila fraseri	100%					100%				
Corophylariagoa	Eremophila georgei			100%	33%		100%	67%	80%	100%	100%
Scrophulanaceae	Eremophila glutinosa		100%					100%	40%	100%	33%
	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	50%							60%		
	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei					100%		100%	60%	100%	33%
	Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata		100%	100%	100%						



Family	Species	Vegetation type <sup>1</sup>									
		SH01	SH02	SH03	SH04	SH05	SH06	SH07	SH08	W01	W02
	Eremophila macmillaniana		100%				50%				
	Eremophila simulans								20%		
	Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata		50%		100%			67%	20%		100%
Colonnacion	Solanum ashbyae				33%			67%	40%	100%	33%
SUIdIIdCede	Solanum austropiceum				33%						
	Solanum lasiophyllum	100%		100%	33%		100%		20%		33%
Zygophyllaceae	Roepera eichleri	100%	100%	100%	67%						
	Tribulus astrocarpus				33%						
	Tribulus suberosus		50%		67%						33%

<sup>1</sup>Values indicate the percentage of sampling sites in which the taxon was recorded.



#### APPENDIX G QUADRAT SITE DATA

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Footslope Red-brown Basalt; Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 03-Sep-19 50K 568378.39 mE 7020074 mN Moderate Clay Loam Continuous (> 70 %) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Brachychiton gregorii	Tree (<10 m)	< 1
Acacia pteraneura	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia speckii	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	1
Eremophila macmillaniana	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (1-2 m)	1
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Dodonaea amplisemina	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila glutinosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Heliotropium ovalifolium	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Indigofera monophylla sens. lat.	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Prostanthera althoferi subsp. althoferi	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Tribulus suberosus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Calandrinia eremaea	Herb	< 1
Calotis hispidula	Herb	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Cheilanthes brownii	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	1
Euphorbia australis var. subtomentosa	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia boophthona	Herb	< 1
Goodenia berardiana	Herb	1
Haloragis trigonocarpa	Herb	< 1
Maireana georgei	Herb	< 1

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Podolepis gardneri	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus aervoides	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus helipteroides	Herb	1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus roei	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe charsleyae	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe maryonii	Herb	< 1
Roepera eichleri	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum lineare var. lineare	Herb	1
Trachymene cyanopetala	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Midslope Red-brown Basalt; Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 03-Sep-19 50K 568556.44 mE 7020064.29 mN Moderate Clay Loam Continuous (> 70 %) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia speckii	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia dilloniorum	Shrub (0-1 m)	5
Chorizema genistoides	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Dodonaea amplisemina	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila glutinosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	5
Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Eremophila macmillaniana	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Heliotropium ovalifolium	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Indigofera monophylla sens. lat.	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Indigofera monophylla sens. lat.	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Stenanthemum sp. (indet)	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Brachyscome ciliaris	Herb	< 1
Calandrinia eremaea	Herb	< 1
Calotis hispidula	Herb	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Cheilanthes brownii	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia boophthona	Herb	< 1
Goodenia berardiana	Herb	1
Goodenia mimuloides	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	< 1
Haloragis trigonocarpa	Herb	< 1
Helipterum craspedioides	Herb	< 1
Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata	Herb	< 1
Phyllanthus maderaspatensis	Herb	< 1

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Podolepis gardneri	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus aervoides	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus helipteroides	Herb	1
Rhodanthe maryonii	Herb	1
Roebuckiella ciliocarpa	Herb	< 1
Roepera eichleri	Herb	2
Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Ridge Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 03-Sep-19 50K 568548.43 mE 7019872.26 mN Steep Clay Loam Continuous (> 70 %) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia rhodophloia	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Thryptomene decussata	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (1-2 m)	1
Grevillea berryana	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei	Shrub (1-2 m)	1
Santalum lanceolatum	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Acacia exocarpoides	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Dodonaea pachyneura	Shrub (0-1 m)	3
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	Shrub (0-1 m)	4
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax latifolia	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Paspalidium clementii	Grass	< 1
Calandrinia eremaea	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Erymophyllum ramosum subsp. ramosum	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	1
Rhodanthe maryonii	Herb	1
Rhodanthe polycephala	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 05-Sep-19 50K 566261.94 mE 7017292.06 mN Negligible Clay Loam Common (10-30%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	15
Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	15
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (1-2 m)	1
Psydrax latifolia	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila foliosissima	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Maireana villosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Eragrostis eriopoda	Grass	< 1
Monachather paradoxus	Grass	< 1
?Rhodanthe sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Calandrinia eremaea	Herb	< 1
Chthonocephalus viscosus	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Goodenia quasilibera	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	< 1
Hibiscus burtonii	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Ridge Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 03-Sep-19 50K 568934.66 mE 7020061.11 mN Steep Clay Loam Continuous (> 70 %) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia rhodophloia	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Allocasuarina acutivalvis subsp. acutivalvis	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Thryptomene decussata	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Dodonaea pachyneura	Shrub (1-2 m)	2
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	Shrub (0-1 m)	2
Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Prostanthera petrophila	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Eriachne helmsii	Grass	< 1
Eriachne pulchella subsp. dominii	Grass	< 1
Paspalidium clementii	Grass	< 1
Calandrinia eremaea	Herb	< 1
Cheilanthes brownii	Herb	< 1
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	2
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	Herb	< 1
Lawrencella davenportii	Herb	< 1
Lepidium oxytrichum	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus helipteroides	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe battii	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe maryonii	Herb	1
Rhodanthe polycephala	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1
Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Midslope Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 03-Sep-19 50K 568538.28 mE 7019774.85 mN Moderate Clay Loam Many (30-70%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Thryptomene decussata	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Acacia exocarpoides	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Dodonaea pachyneura	Shrub (0-1 m)	3
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Eremophila glutinosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Grevillea berryana	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Marsdenia australis	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Micromyrtus placoides	Shrub (0-1 m)	2
Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Prostanthera petrophila	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Stenanthemum petraeum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Arthropodium dyeri	Herb	< 1
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	Herb	< 1
Dysphania saxatilis	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Goodenia havilandii	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	1
Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Midslope Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 03-Sep-19 50K 568904.19 mE 7019936.78 mN Moderate Clay Loam Continuous (> 70 %) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia exocarpoides	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Grevillea berryana	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Thryptomene decussata	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Dodonaea pachyneura	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila glutinosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	Shrub (0-1 m)	2
Micromyrtus placoides	Shrub (0-1 m)	2
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum ashbyae	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	2
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe maryonii	Herb	< 1
Roebuckiella ciliocarpa	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1
Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Midslope Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 03-Sep-19 50K 569038.72 mE 7020028.08 mN Moderate Clay Loam Continuous (> 70 %) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia exocarpoides	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Dodonaea pachyneura	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Grevillea berryana	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Thryptomene decussata	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Eremophila glutinosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	Shrub (0-1 m)	2
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Micromyrtus placoides	Shrub (0-1 m)	3
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Solanum ashbyae	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	2
Lawrencella davenportii	Herb	< 1
Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus helipteroides	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe polycephala	Herb	< 1
Roebuckiella ciliocarpa	Herb	< 1
Sida sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1
Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Minor Creek (< 5 m) Red-brown Basalt; Banded ironstone Very Good No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 04-Sep-19 50K 568836.85 mE 7019605.73 mN Gentle Clay Loam Many (30-70%) Weeds (minor occurrences) Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia fuscaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×artemisioides	Shrub (1-2 m)	1
Dodonaea amplisemina	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata	Shrub (0-1 m)	5
Grevillea inconspicua	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Indigofera monophylla sens. lat.	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Pluchea dentex	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	2
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Cymbopogon ambiguus	Grass	5
Abutilon oxycarpum	Herb	< 1
Calandrinia eremaea	Herb	< 1
Calocephalus knappii	Herb	< 1
Calotis hispidula	Herb	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Cheilanthes brownii	Herb	< 1
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	Herb	< 1
Daucus glochidiatus	Herb	< 1
Duperreya commixta	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia boophthona	Herb	< 1
Glycine canescens	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	1
Haloragis trigonocarpa	Herb	1

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Helipterum craspedioides	Herb	< 1
Lepidium oxytrichum	Herb	< 1
Lysimachia arvensis	Herb	< 1
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata	Herb	< 1
Phyllanthus maderaspatensis	Herb	< 1
Podolepis gardneri	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus aervoides	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus helipteroides	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe maryonii	Herb	< 1
Roebuckiella ciliocarpa	Herb	< 1
Roepera eichleri	Herb	< 1
Senecio sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Synaptantha tillaeacea var. tillaeacea	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1
Trichodesma zeylanicum	Herb	< 1
Wahlenbergia tumidifructa	Herb	< 1
Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Minor Creek (< 5 m) Red-brown Basalt; Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 04-Sep-19 50K 568800.29 mE 7019220.13 mN Gentle Clay Loam Many (30-70%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Dodonaea amplisemina	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Heliotropium ovalifolium	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Indigofera monophylla sens. lat.	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Pluchea dentex	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax latifolia	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×artemisioides	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum ashbyae	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Tribulus suberosus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Cymbopogon ambiguus	Grass	5
Brachyscome ciliaris	Herb	< 1
Calandrinia ? ptychosperma	Herb	< 1
Calandrinia eremaea	Herb	< 1
Calocephalus knappii	Herb	< 1
Calotis hispidula	Herb	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Chthonocephalus viscosus	Herb	< 1
Duperreya commixta	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia australis var. subtomentosa	Herb	< 1

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Euphorbia boophthona	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	1
Haloragis trigonocarpa	Herb	< 1
Helipterum craspedioides	Herb	< 1
Lepidium oxytrichum	Herb	< 1
Myriocephalus rudallii	Herb	< 1
Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata	Herb	< 1
Phyllanthus maderaspatensis	Herb	< 1
Podolepis gardneri	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus aervoides	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus helipteroides	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe charsleyae	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe maryonii	Herb	< 1
Roebuckiella ciliocarpa	Herb	< 1
Senecio sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Swainsona kingii	Herb	< 1
Synaptantha tillaeacea var. tillaeacea	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1
Trachymene cyanopetala	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1
Tribulus astrocarpus	Herb	< 1
Trichodesma zeylanicum	Herb	< 1
Wahlenbergia tumidifructa	Herb	< 1
Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Minor Creek (< 5 m) Red-brown Basalt; Banded ironstone Very Good No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 03-Sep-19 50K 568434.49 mE 7019983.54 mN Gentle Clay Loam Many (30-70%) Weeds (minor occurrences) Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Santalum lanceolatum	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	1
Dodonaea amplisemina	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata	Shrub (0-1 m)	5
Heliotropium ovalifolium	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Indigofera monophylla sens. lat.	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×artemisioides	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Solanum austropiceum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum lasiophyllum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Tribulus suberosus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Austrostipa trichophylla	Grass	< 1
Cymbopogon ambiguus	Grass	5
Paspalidium clementii	Grass	< 1
Rostraria pumila	Grass	< 1
Abutilon oxycarpum	Herb	< 1
Brachyscome ciliaris	Herb	< 1
Calandrinia eremaea	Herb	< 1
Calotis hispidula	Herb	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Cheilanthes brownii	Herb	< 1
Convolvulus clementii	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	1

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Euphorbia australis var. subtomentosa	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia boophthona	Herb	< 1
Glycine canescens	Herb	< 1
Goodenia berardiana	Herb	1
Haloragis trigonocarpa	Herb	< 1
Helipterum craspedioides	Herb	< 1
Lepidium oxytrichum	Herb	< 1
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata	Herb	< 1
Phyllanthus maderaspatensis	Herb	< 1
Podolepis gardneri	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus aervoides	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus helipteroides	Herb	2
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe charsleyae	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe maryonii	Herb	< 1
Roepera eichleri	Herb	< 1
Senecio sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum filifolium	Herb	1
Trachymene cyanopetala	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1
Trichodesma zeylanicum	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain, drainage line Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 05-Sep-19 50K 566527.45 mE 7017704.03 mN Negligible Clay Loam Common (10-30%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia pruinocarpa	Tree (<10 m)	5
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Acacia pteraneura	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (1-2 m)	3
Eremophila foliosissima	Shrub (0-1 m)	5
Maireana villosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Psydrax latifolia	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Teucrium teucriiflorum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eragrostis eriopoda	Grass	< 1
Eriachne helmsii	Grass	< 1
?Rhodanthe sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Abutilon oxycarpum	Herb	< 1
Calocephalus knappii	Herb	< 1
Calotis hispidula	Herb	< 1
Calotis porphyroglossa	Herb	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia boophthona	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia drummondii	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	< 1
Helipterum craspedioides	Herb	< 1
Hibiscus burtonii	Herb	< 1
Lawrencella davenportii	Herb	< 1

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe battii	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe charsleyae	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe maryonii	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe propinqua	Herb	< 1
Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1
Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain, drainage line Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 05-Sep-19 50K 566867.73 mE 7017821.41 mN Negligible Clay Loam Common (10-30%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia pruinocarpa	Tree (<10 m)	5
Acacia fuscaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	15
Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Acacia pteraneura	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Grevillea berryana	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Psydrax latifolia	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Santalum lanceolatum	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	5
Maireana villosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eriachne helmsii	Grass	< 1
Brachyscome ciliaris	Herb	< 1
Calocephalus knappii	Herb	< 1
Calotis porphyroglossa	Herb	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia boophthona	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia drummondii	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	< 1
Helipterum craspedioides	Herb	< 1
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
--	---------	-------------------
Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus helipteroides	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus roei	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe propinqua	Herb	< 1
Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Minor Creek (< 5 m) Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 04-Sep-19 50K 567344.9 mE 7018661.78 mN Gentle Clay Loam Many (30-70%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia pruinocarpa	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Grevillea berryana	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Enchylaena tomentosa var. tomentosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	Shrub (0-1 m)	5
Hibiscus burtonii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Hibiscus sturtii var. forrestii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Indigofera monophylla sens. lat.	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Indigofera monophylla sens. lat.	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Rhagodia eremaea	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Santalum lanceolatum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Scaevola spinescens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×artemisioides	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Sida ectogama	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum lasiophyllum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Teucrium teucriiflorum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Cymbopogon ambiguus	Grass	1
Eriachne pulchella subsp. pulchella	Grass	< 1
Monachather paradoxus	Grass	< 1

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Angianthus tomentosus	Herb	< 1
Apocynaceae sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Calandrinia eremaea	Herb	< 1
Calotis hispidula	Herb	< 1
Calotis porphyroglossa	Herb	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Convolvulus clementii	Herb	< 1
Duperreya commixta	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia boophthona	Herb	< 1
Glycine canescens	Herb	< 1
Goodenia havilandii	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	< 1
Haloragis trigonocarpa	Herb	< 1
Helipterum craspedioides	Herb	< 1
Maireana georgei	Herb	< 1
Maireana villosa	Herb	< 1
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Podolepis gardneri	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus exaltatus	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus gaudichaudii	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus helipteroides	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe battii	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe polycephala	Herb	< 1
Roepera eichleri	Herb	< 1
Sclerolaena densiflora	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Swainsona kingii	Herb	< 1
Trichodesma zeylanicum	Herb	< 1
Wahlenbergia tumidifructa	Herb	< 1
Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	Herb	< 1

- Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire
- AC 20 m x 20 m Plain, drainage Line Red-brown Ironstone Excellent No Evidence

- Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover
- 04-Sep-19 50K 568233.22 mE 7019246.6 mN Negligible Clay Loam Many (30-70%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia pruinocarpa	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia pteraneura	Shrub (>2 m)	30
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia exocarpoides	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Eremophila glutinosa	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Enchylaena tomentosa var. tomentosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	Shrub (0-1 m)	10
Hibiscus sp. Gardneri (A.L. Payne PRP 1435)	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax latifolia	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	5
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna sp. Meekatharra (E. Bailey 1-26)	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum ashbyae	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Teucrium teucriiflorum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eriachne helmsii	Grass	< 1
?Rhodanthe sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1
Euphorbia boophthona	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	< 1
Maireana georgei	Herb	< 1
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Roebuckiella ciliocarpa	Herb	< 1

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 05-Sep-19 50K 566199.08 mE 7017623.58 mN Negligible Clay Loam Common (10-30%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Eremophila foliosissima	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Maireana villosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax latifolia	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Teucrium teucriiflorum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eragrostis eriopoda	Grass	1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	1
Helipterum craspedioides	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manalesianus	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 05-Sep-19 50K 567093.83 mE 7017506.29 mN Negligible Clay Loam Many (30-70%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia tetragonophylla	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila foliosissima	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila fraseri	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Maireana villosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax latifolia	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Teucrium teucriiflorum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Eragrostis eriopoda	Grass	< 1
Brachyscome ciliaris	Herb	< 1
Calocephalus knappii	Herb	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus roei	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe charsleyae	Herb	< 1
Solanum lasiophyllum	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover

04-Sep-19 50K 567683.61 mE 7018682.89 mN Gentle Clay Loam Many (30-70%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia pruinocarpa	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Acacia pteraneura	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	Shrub (1-2 m)	1
Eremophila simulans	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Grevillea berryana	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Brachyscome ciliaris	Herb	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Goodenia quasilibera	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	1
Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus roei	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1
Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover

04-Sep-19 50K 567954.2 mE 7019032.01 mN Gentle Clay Loam Many (30-70%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	20
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	4
Eremophila glutinosa	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum ashbyae	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum lasiophyllum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eragrostis eriopoda	Grass	< 1
Brachyscome ciliaris	Herb	< 1
Goodenia macroplectra	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	2
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1
Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	Herb	< 1

AC Botanist 04-Sep-19 Date Site Type 20 m x 20 m Northwest Corner 50K 569028.64 mE 7019225.19 mN Landform Plain Slope Gentle Soil Colour Red-brown Soil Texture Clay Loam Rock Type Banded ironstone Rock Abundance . Many (30-70%) Vegetation Condition Excellent Disturbance None evident Time since Fire No Evidence Leaf Litter Cover Low (< 10%)

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	20
Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994)	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia exocarpoides	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	2
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Grevillea berryana	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila glutinosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	Shrub (0-1 m)	5
Hemigenia virescens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax latifolia	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum ashbyae	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eragrostis eriopoda	Grass	< 1
Monachather paradoxus	Grass	< 1
Erodium crinitum	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	2
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1
Waitzia acuminata var. acuminata	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain Red-brown Calcrete; Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 04-Sep-19 50K 567602.72 mE 7017876.73 mN Negligible Clay Loam Many (30-70%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia ramulosa var. ramulosa	Shrub (>2 m)	10
Acacia craspedocarpa	Shrub (1-2 m)	1
Eremophila fraseri	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Acacia tetragonophylla	Shrub (0-1 m)	2
Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax rigidula	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Scaevola spinescens	Shrub (0-1 m)	2
Senna ? artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×artemisioides	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum lasiophyllum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Maireana georgei	Herb	< 1
Maireana melanocoma	Herb	1
Maireana triptera	Herb	< 1
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Podolepis gardneri	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus helipteroides	Herb	< 1
Roepera eichleri	Herb	2

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain Red-brown Calcrete; Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 05-Sep-19 50K 567500.12 mE 7017162.84 mN Negligible Clay Loam Many (30-70%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia craspedocarpa	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Acacia fuscaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	2
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Acacia tetragonophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Eremophila fraseri	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×artemisioides	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum lasiophyllum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Enneapogon caerulescens	Grass	< 1
Calotis porphyroglossa	Herb	< 1
Cephalipterum drummondii	Herb	< 1
Maireana georgei	Herb	< 1
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Roepera eichleri	Herb	< 1
Salsola australis	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Swainsona kingii	Herb	< 1
Trichanthodium skirrophorum	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain Red-brown Banded ironstone Excellent No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 05-Sep-19 50K 567255.2 mE 7017353.01 mN Negligible Clay Loam Common (10-30%) None evident Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia fuscaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	5
Acacia incurvaneura × mulganeura	Shrub (>2 m)	1
Acacia tetragonophylla	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila fraseri	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Eremophila macmillaniana	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Maireana villosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Psydrax latifolia	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum lasiophyllum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Aristida contorta	Grass	< 1
Eragrostis eriopoda	Grass	< 1
Chthonocephalus viscosus	Herb	< 1
Goodenia quasilibera	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus gaudichaudii	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus roei	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	< 1
Trianthema glossostigmum	Herb	< 1

Botanist Site Type Landform Soil Colour Rock Type Vegetation Condition Time since Fire AC 20 m x 20 m Plain Red-brown Banded ironstone Very Good No Evidence Date Northwest Corner Slope Soil Texture Rock Abundance Disturbance Leaf Litter Cover 05-Sep-19 50K 567699.73 mE 7019040.91 mN Gentle Clay Loam Few (< 10%) Weeds (minor occurrences), cattle Low (< 10%)



Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Acacia pruinocarpa	Tree (<10 m)	5
Acacia incurvaneura	Shrub (>2 m)	15
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Shrub (>2 m)	15
Grevillea berryana	Shrub (>2 m)	< 1
Acacia exocarpoides	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	Shrub (1-2 m)	10
Eremophila georgei	Shrub (1-2 m)	5
Eremophila glutinosa	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii	Shrub (1-2 m)	< 1
Acacia tetragonophylla	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Hibiscus sp. Gardneri (A.L. Payne PRP 1435)	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Maireana villosa	Shrub (0-1 m)	1
Psydrax suaveolens	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Ptilotus obovatus	Shrub (0-1 m)	5
Ptilotus schwartzii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum ashbyae	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Solanum lasiophyllum	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Tribulus suberosus	Shrub (0-1 m)	< 1
Monachather paradoxus	Grass	< 1
Paspalidium clementii	Grass	< 1
Abutilon oxycarpum	Herb	< 1
Calandrinia eremaea	Herb	< 1
Calocephalus knappii	Herb	< 1
Calotis hispidula	Herb	< 1
Calotis porphyroglossa	Herb	< 1
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	Herb	< 1
Cuscuta planiflora	Herb	< 1
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	Herb	< 1

Name	Stratum	Percent cover (%)
Erodium crinitum	Herb	5
Euphorbia drummondii	Herb	< 1
Goodenia tenuiloba	Herb	4
Marsdenia australis	Herb	< 1
Nicotiana rosulata subsp. rosulata	Herb	< 1
Ptilotus polystachyus	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe battii	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe battii	Herb	< 1
Rhodanthe maryonii	Herb	< 1
Roebuckiella ciliocarpa	Herb	5
Sida sp. dark green fruits (S. van Leeuwen 2260)	Herb	< 1
Stenopetalum sp. (indet.)	Herb	1
Swainsona kingii	Herb	< 1
Thysanotus manglesianus	Herb	< 1
Trachymene ornata	Herb	< 1

### APPENDIX H SURVEY TRACK LOG





### APPENDIX I THREATENED AND PRIORITY FLORA REPORT FORMS





# **Threatened and Priority**

### **Flora Report Form**

Please complete as much of the form as possible. For information on how to complete the form please refer to the Threatened & Priority Flora Report Form (TPRF) manual on the DPaW website at <u>http://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/</u>.

TAXON: Acacia dillonio	rum					TPFL F	op. No:	
OBSERVATION DATE:	3/9/2019	CONSER	VATION S	TATU	<b>S</b> : P3		New populat	ion 🖂
OBSERVER/S: Andrew	Craigie					PHONE :	6168 7200	
ROLE: Botanist		ORGAN	SATION:	Ecolo	gia Environm	nent		
DESCRIPTION OF LOCATION (Provide at least nearest town/named locality, and the distance and direction to that place):								
Weld Range, ca. 60 km nor	th-west of Cue.							
DISTRICT						Reser	ve No:	t. 🗖
	RDINATES: (If UTM)	LGA: Shi	also			L	and manager pr	esent:
required				MEIH		Differen	tial GPS 🗍	Man 🗍
GDA94 / MGA94 🗌 🛛 🛛 De				Ň		Differen		
	/ Northing: 7020	038.079		No. sa	atellites:		Map use	ed:
Unknown	Zene: 5085	48.0542		Bound	ary polygon	captured: [	Map sca	le:
	20ne: 50K							
Nature reserve	imber reserve  □	Private propertv			Rail reserv	ve 🗌	Shire road	reserve
National park	State forest	Pastoral lease		MRV	VA road reserv	ve 🗌	Other Crown	reserve
Conservation park	Water reserve	UCL	□ s	LK/Pole	eto		Specify oth	er:
AREA ASSESSMENT: Edg	e survey 🗌 🛛 Pa	artial survey 🛛	Full survey		Area obser	ved (m²):		
EFFORT: Time spent surve	eying (minutes):		No. of minu	tes spe	ent / 100 m <sup>2</sup> :			
POP'N COUNT ACCURACY:	Actual 🗌	] Extrapola	ation 🗌		Estimate 🗵	]		
Count method: (Refer to field manu	al for list)							
WHAT COUNTED: Plan	nts 🗌	Clumps	Clonal ste	ems 🗌				
TOTAL POP'N STRUCTURE:	Mature:	Juveniles:	Seedling	s:	Totals:			
Alive	84				84	Area	of pop (m <sup>2</sup> ):	
Dead						Note: perce	Pls record count as ntages) for databas	s numbers (not se.
QUADRATS PRESENT:	No	Size	Data attac	ched	] Tota	al area of qu	uadrats (m²):	
Summary Quad. Totals: Alive								
REPRODUCTIVE STATE:	Clonal 🗌	Vegetative 🖂	Flow	erbud [		Flowe	er 🛛	
Immatu	re fruit 🔲	Fruit 🔲	Dehisce	d fruit		Percentage i	n flower:	_%
CONDITION OF PLANTS: H	ealthy 🛛	Moderate		Poor [		Senesce	nt 🗌	
COMMENT:	-	-		_				
THREATS - type, agent and s	supporting inform	ation:				Current	t Potential	Potential
E.g. clearing, too frequent fire, weed, di	sease. Refer to field man	ual for list of threats & ag	ents. Specify a	agent wh	ere relevant.	impact	Impact	Threat
Rate current and potential threa	t impact: N=Nil, L=Low,	M=Medium, H=High, E=E	Extreme			(N-E)	(L-E)	(S-L)
sumate time to potential impact	a. 3=3nort (<12mtns), M	–wealam ( <byrs), l="LON&lt;/td"><td>y (əyis+)</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></byrs),>	y (əyis+)					
						╡	.	<u> </u>
•								1
•								
							·	
	Please return con	noleted form to <b>Speci</b>	es And Com	munitie	s Branch DPa	аW		



	<b>JN:</b> (Check more than one	box for combinations or wh	ere necessary)	1	1		
LANDFORM:	ROCK TYPE:	LOOSE ROCK:	SOIL TYPE:	SOIL COLOUR:	DRAINAGE:		
Crest	Granite	(on soil surface; e.g.	Sand 🗌	Red 🛛	Well drained 🛛		
Hill 🗌	Dolerite 🛛	graver, quartz heids)	Sandy loam 🔲	Brown 🛛	Seasonally		
Ridge 🗌	Laterite	0-10%	Loam 🗌	Yellow			
Outcrop	Ironstone	10-30%	Clay loam 🛛	White	inundated		
Slope 🖂	Limestone	30-50%	Light clay 🔲	Grey 🗌	Tidal 🔲		
Flat 🗌	Quartz 🗌	50-100%	Peat 🗌	Black			
Open depression							
Drainage line	Specify other:		Specify other:	Specify other:	Specify other:		
Closed depression							
Wetland 🗌							
Specific Landform Ele	ment: (Refer to field manual fo	or additional values)					
CONDITION OF SOIL:							
Dry 🛛 Moist 🗌	] Waterlogged [	Inundated	Cracked	Saline D Othe	r:		
VEGETATION	1. Acacia sp. Weld R sparse shrublanc	ange (A. Markey & S. I	Dillon 2994), Acacia	speckii (P4), Acacia p	oteraneura tall		
CLASSIFICATION:* E.g. 1. Banksia woodland (B.	2. Eremophila glutino ×sturtii low spars	sa, Eremophila macki e shrubland	inlayi subsp. spathula	ita, Senna artemisioio	les subsp.		
<ul> <li>2. Open shrubland (Hibbertia sp. Acacia spp.)</li> </ul>	3.						
<ol> <li>Isolated clumps of sedges</li> </ol>	s						
(Mesomelaena tetragona)	4.						
ASSOCIATED							
Other (non-dominant) spp							
* Please record up to four of the and Land Survey Field Handbo	e most representative vegetatior ook guidelines – refer to field ma	n layers (with up to three domin nual for further information and	ant species in each layer). Str structural formation table.	uctural Formations should follo	ow 2009 Australian Soil		
CONDITION OF HABIT	AT: Pristine	Excellent 🛛 Very g	good 🗌 🛛 Good 🗌	Degraded 🗌 Com	pletely degraded 🗌		
COMMENT:							
FIRE HISTORY: Last	Fire: Season/Month:	Year: Fi	ire Intensity: High 🗌	Medium 🗌 Low 🗌	No signs of fire 🛛		
FENCING:	Not required	Present Replace	e / repair 🗌 🛛 Req	uired 🗌 Length r	eq'd:		
ROADSIDE MARKERS:       Not required       Present       Replace / reposition       Required       Quantity req'd:							
<b>OTHER COMMENTS:</b> (Please include recommended management actions and/or implemented actions - include date. Also include details of additional data available, and how to locate it.)							
Please return completed form to <b>Species And Communities Branch</b> DPaW.							

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983



DRF PERMIT/ LICENCE No: Note if only observing plants (i.e. no specimens or plant matieral is taken) then no permit/licence is required. For further information on permit and licening requirements see the Threatened Flora and Wildlife Licensing pages on DPaW's website. Any actions carried out under licence/permit should be recorded above in the OTHER COMMENTS section.				
SPECIMEN:	Collectors No: A.I. Craigie 1796.01 WA Herb. ⊠ Regional Herb. □	District Herb. 🗌 Other:		
ATTACHED:	Map 🗌 Mudmap 🗌 Photo 🗌 GIS data 🗌	Field notes D Other:		
COPY SENT TO	Regional Office District Office	Other:		
Submitter of re-	cord: Andrew Craigie	Role: Botanist		
Signature:		Date submitted: 20/11/2019		

Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



# **Threatened and Priority**

### **Flora Report Form**

Please complete as much of the form as possible. For information on how to complete the form please refer to the Threatened & Priority Flora Report Form (TPRF) manual on the DPaW website at <u>http://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/</u>

TAXON: Acacia specki	i					TPFL F	Pop. No:	
OBSERVATION DATE:	3/9/2019	CONSER	VATION S	TATU	<b>S:</b> P3		New populat	ion 🖂
OBSERVER/S: Andrew	Craigie					PHONE :	6168 7200	
ROLE: Botanist		ORGAN	SATION:	Ecolo	gia Environm	nent		
DESCRIPTION OF LOCATION (Provide at least nearest town/named locality, and the distance and direction to that place):								
Weld Range, ca. 60 km no	rth-west of Cue.							
						Rese	rve No:	
DISTRICT:		LGA: Shi	re of Cue			l	_and manager pre	esent:
DATUM: COC requir	ed)	coords provided, <b>Zone</b> is	aiso	METH		Difference		
GDA94 / MGA94 🔲 🛛 D	ecDegrees 🗌	DegMinSec 🗌	UTMs 🛛	(	jPS 🛛	Differer	ntial GPS	мар 📋
AGD84 / AMG84 🗌 Lat	/ Northing: 7020	025.649		No. sa	atellites:		Map use	d:
WGS84 🛛 Lon	g / Easting: 5685	553.4459	<u> </u>	Bound	ary polygon	captured:	Map scal	e:
	<b>Zone</b> : 50K				51 50		_ ,	
		Drivete property			Rail reserv		Shire road r	eserve 🗖
Nature reserve	State forest	Private property Pastoral lease		MRV	VA road reserv	ve 🗌	Other Crown r	eserve
Conservation park	Water reserve	UCL	_ s	LK/Pole	eto		Specify othe	er:
AREA ASSESSMENT: Ed	ge survey 🗌 🛛 P	artial survey 🛛	Full survey		Area obser	ved (m²):		
EFFORT: Time spent sur	veying (minutes):	,	No. of minu	tes spe	ent / 100 m <sup>2</sup> :			
POP'N COUNT ACCURACY	Actual	 Extrapola	ation 🗌		Estimate 🗵	]		
Count method: (Refer to field man	ual for list)							
WHAT COUNTED: Pla	ints 🗌	Clumps	Clonal ste	ems 🗌				
TOTAL POP'N STRUCTURE:	Mature:	Juveniles:	Seedling	s:	Totals:			
Alive	73				73	Area	a of pop (m²):	
Dead						Note: perce	Pls record count as entages) for databas	numbers (not e.
QUADRATS PRESENT:	No	Size	Data attac	ched	] Tota	al area of q	uadrats (m²): _	
Summary Quad. Totals: Alive								
REPRODUCTIVE STATE:	Clonal	Vegetative 🖂	Flow	erbud [		Flow	er 🗌	
Immat	ure fruit	Fruit	Dehisce	d fruit		Percentage	in flower:	_%
CONDITION OF PLANTS:	Healthy 🛛	Moderate		Poor [		Senesce	ent 🗌	
COMMENT:	. —	_		-				
THRFATS - type agent and	supporting inform	ation:				Curren	t Potential	Potential
E.g. clearing, too frequent fire, weed, o	disease. Refer to field mai	nual for list of threats & ag	ents. Specify a	agent wh	ere relevant.	impac	t Impact	Threat
Rate current and potential thre	at impact: N=Nil, L=Low,	M=Medium, H=High, E=E	Extreme			(N-E)	(L-E)	(S-L)
Estimate time to potential impa	ict: S=Short (<12mths), N	1=Medium (<5yrs), L=Lon	g (5yrs+)					, ,
						┥	-	
•								
						1 —	-	
•								
	Diananatana	moleted form to <b>Cree</b> i			a Branch DD	-14/		

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



	<b>DN:</b> (Check more than one	box for combinations or whe	ere necessary)				
LANDFORM:	ROCK TYPE:	LOOSE ROCK:	SOIL TYPE:	SOIL COLOUR:	DRAINAGE:		
Crest 🗌	Granite 🔲	(on soil surface; e.g.	Sand 🗌	Red 🛛	Well drained 🛛		
Hill 🗌	Dolerite 🛛	gravel, quartz lielus)	Sandy loam 🔲	Brown 🛛	Seasonally		
Ridge 🗌	Laterite	0-10%	Loam 🗌	Yellow 🗌	Bormanontly		
Outcrop	Ironstone	10-30%	Clay loam 🛛	White	inundated		
Slope 🛛	Limestone	30-50%	Light clay 🔲	Grey 🗌	Tidal 🔲		
Flat 🗌	Quartz 🗌	50-100%	Peat 🗌	Black			
Open depression		_					
Drainage line	Specify other:		Specify other:	Specify other:	Specify other:		
Wetland							
Specific Landform Ele	ment: (Refer to field manual fo	or additional values)					
CONDITION OF SOIL:							
Dry 🛛 🛛 Moist 🗌	] Waterlogged	Inundated	Cracked	Saline 🗌 🛛 Othe	r:		
VEGETATION	1. Acacia sp. Weld R sparse shrubland	ange (A. Markey & S.	Dillon 2994), Acacia	speckii (P4), Acacia ı	oteraneura tall		
CLASSIFICATION:* E.g. 1. Banksia woodland (B. attenuata, B. ilicifolia):	2. Eremophila glutino ×sturtii low spars	sa, Eremophila macki e shrubland	nlayi subsp. spathula	ata, Senna artemisioio	les subsp.		
2. Open shrubland (Hibbertia sp., Acacia spp.)	. Open shrubland (Hibbertia p., Acacia spp.) 3.						
(Mesomelaena tetragona)	<sup>3</sup> 4.						
ASSOCIATED							
SPECIES: Other (non-dominant) spp							
* Please record up to four of th	e most representative vegetatior	n layers (with up to three domination	ant species in each layer). Str	uctural Formations should follo	w 2009 Australian Soil		
and Land Survey Field Handbo	ook guidelines – refer to field man	nual for further information and	structural formation table.				
CONDITION OF HABIT	AT: Pristine	Excellent 🛛 Very g	good 🗌 Good 🗌	Degraded 🗌 Com	pletely degraded		
COMMENT:							
FIRE HISTORY: Last	<b>Fire:</b> Season/Month:	Year: Fi	ire Intensity: High 🗌	Medium 🗌 Low 🗌	No signs of fire 🛛		
FENCING:	Not required  F	Present 🗌 Replace	e / repair 🔲 🛛 Req	uired 🗌 Length r	eq'd:		
ROADSIDE MARKERS:	Not required	Present Replace	e / reposition 🗌 Req	uired 🗌 Quantity	req'd:		
<b>OTHER COMMENTS:</b> (Please include recommended management actions and/or implemented actions - include date. Also include details of additional data available, and how to locate it.)							
Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW.							

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983



DRF PERMIT/ LICENCE No: Note if only observing plants (i.e. no specimens or plant matieral is taken) then no permit/licence is required. For further information on permit and licening requirements see the Threatened Flora and Wildlife Licensing pages on DPaW's website. Any actions carried out under licence/permit should be recorded above in the OTHER COMMENTS section.				
SPECIMEN:Collectors No: A.I.Craigie 1796.02WA Herb. Image: Collectors No: WA Herb. Image: Collectors No: Collectors No: Collectors No: Collectors No: Collectors No: 	District Herb. District Herb.			
ATTACHED: Map Mudmap Photo GIS data	Field notes D Other:			
COPY SENT TO:     Regional Office     District Office	Other:			
Submitter of record: Andrew Craigie	Role: Botanist			
Signature:	Date submitted: 20/11/2019			

Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



# **Threatened and Priority**

### **Flora Report Form**

Please complete as much of the form as possible. For information on how to complete the form please refer to the Threatened & Priority Flora Report Form (TPRF) manual on the DPaW website at <u>http://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/</u>

TAXON: Dodonaea am	plisemina				TPFL Pop. No:	
OBSERVATION DATE:	3/9/2019	CONSER	VATION STA	TUS: P4	New population	$\boxtimes$
OBSERVER/S: Andrew	Craigie				PHONE 6168 7200	
ROLE: Botanist		ORGANI	SATION: Eco	ologia Environn	nent	
DESCRIPTION OF LOCATION (Provide at least nearest town/named locality, and the distance and direction to that place):						
Weld Range, ca. 60 km nor	th-west of Cue.					
					Reserve No:	
DISTRICT:		LGA: Shi	re of Cue		Land manager present	
DATUM: COO require	RDINATES: (IFUTM d)	coords provided, <b>Zone</b> is	also ME	THOD USED:		_
GDA94 / MGA94 🔲 🛛 De	ecDegrees 🗌	DegMinSec 🗌	UTMs 🛛	GPS 🖂	Differential GPS 📋 Ma	ар 📋
AGD84 / AMG84 📋 🛛 Lat	/ Northing: 7019	983.543	No	. satellites:	Map used:	
WGS84 🛛 Long	g / Easting: 5684	34.4904	Bo	undarv polvoon	captured: Map scale:	
	<b>Zone:</b> 50K					
LAND TENURE:			_			
Nature reserve	Timber reserve □ State forest □	Private property		Rail reser RWA road reser	ve C Other Crown reserved	ve 🗌 ve 🗖
Conservation park	Water reserve	UCL	□ □ SLK/F	Pole to	Specify other:	
AREA ASSESSMENT: Edu		artial survey 🕅		Area obser	ved (m <sup>2</sup> ):	
FFFORT: Time spent surv	eving (minutes).		No of minutes	spent / 100 m <sup>2.</sup>	ved (m.).	
POP'N COUNT ACCURACY:	Actual	 ] Extrapola	ation $\Box$	Estimate 🕅	1	
Count method: (Refer to field man	ual for list)				2	
WHAT COUNTED: Pla	nts []	Clumps	Clonal stems			
TOTAL POP'N STRUCTURE:	Mature:	Juveniles:	Seedlings:	Totals:		
Alive	140			140	Area of pop (m <sup>2</sup> ):	
Dood					Note: Pls record count as num	bers (not
					percentages) for database.	
QUADRATS PRESENT:	No	Size	Data attached		al area of quadrats (m <sup>2</sup> ):	_
Summary Quad. Totals: Alive						
REPRODUCTIVE STATE:	Clonal	Vegetative 🖂	Flowerbu	d 🗌	Flower	
Immatu		Fruit 🖂	Denisced fru		Percentage in flower:%	
CONDITION OF PLANTS:	lealthy 🛛	Moderate	Poo	or 🗌	Senescent	
COMMENT:						
THREATS - type, agent and	supporting inform	ation:			Current Potential Po	otential
E.g. clearing, too frequent fire, weed, d	isease. Refer to field man	nual for list of threats & ag	ents. Specify agent	<b>t</b> where relevant.	(N-F) (I-F)	Threat Onset
Rate current and potential threat Estimate time to potential impa	i <b>t impact:</b> N=Nil, L=Low, c <b>t:</b> S=Short (<12mths), N	M=Medium, H=High, E=E I=Medium (<5yrs), L=Long	±xtreme q (5yrs+)			(S-L)
•	. "	· · · /				
					<u> </u>	
•						
•					┥│	

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



	<b>DN:</b> (Check more than one	box for combinations or whe	ere necessary)				
LANDFORM:	ROCK TYPE:	LOOSE ROCK:	SOIL TYPE:	SOIL COLOUR:	DRAINAGE:		
Crest 🗌	Granite 🔲	(on soil surface; e.g.	Sand 🗌	Red 🛛	Well drained 🛛		
Hill 🗌	Dolerite 🛛	gravel, quartz lielus)	Sandy loam 🔲	Brown 🛛	Seasonally		
Ridge 🗌	Laterite	0-10%	Loam 🗌	Yellow 🗌	Bormanontly		
Outcrop	Ironstone	10-30%	Clay loam 🛛	White	inundated		
Slope 🛛	Limestone	30-50%	Light clay 🔲	Grey 🗌	Tidal 🔲		
Flat 🗌	Quartz 🗌	50-100%	Peat 🗌	Black			
Open depression		_					
Drainage line	Specify other:		Specify other:	Specify other:	Specify other:		
Wetland							
Specific Landform Ele	ment: (Refer to field manual fo	or additional values)					
CONDITION OF SOIL:							
Dry 🛛 🛛 Moist 🗌	] Waterlogged	Inundated	Cracked	Saline 🗌 Othe	r:		
VEGETATION	1. Acacia sp. Weld R sparse shrubland	ange (A. Markey & S.	Dillon 2994), Acacia	speckii (P4), Acacia ı	oteraneura tall		
CLASSIFICATION:* E.g. 1. Banksia woodland (B. attenuata, B. ilicifolia):	2. Eremophila glutino ×sturtii low spars	sa, Eremophila macki e shrubland	nlayi subsp. spathula	ata, Senna artemisioio	les subsp.		
2. Open shrubland (Hibbertia sp., Acacia spp.)	. Open shrubland (Hibbertia p., Acacia spp.) 3.						
(Mesomelaena tetragona)	<sup>3</sup> 4.						
ASSOCIATED							
SPECIES: Other (non-dominant) spp							
* Please record up to four of th	e most representative vegetatior	n layers (with up to three domination	ant species in each layer). Str	uctural Formations should follo	w 2009 Australian Soil		
and Land Survey Field Handbo	ook guidelines – refer to field man	nual for further information and	structural formation table.				
CONDITION OF HABIT	AT: Pristine	Excellent 🛛 Very g	good 🗌 Good 🗌	Degraded 🗌 Com	pletely degraded		
COMMENT:							
FIRE HISTORY: Last	<b>Fire:</b> Season/Month:	Year: Fi	ire Intensity: High 🗌	Medium 🗌 Low 🗌	No signs of fire 🛛		
FENCING:	Not required  F	Present 🗌 Replace	e / repair 🔲 🛛 Req	uired 🗌 Length r	eq'd:		
ROADSIDE MARKERS:	Not required	Present Replace	e / reposition 🗌 Req	uired 🗌 Quantity	req'd:		
<b>OTHER COMMENTS:</b> (Please include recommended management actions and/or implemented actions - include date. Also include details of additional data available, and how to locate it.)							
Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW.							

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983



DRF PERMIT/ LICENCE No: Note if only observing plants (i.e. no specimens or plant matieral is taken) then no permit/licence is required. For further information on permit and licening requirements see the Threatened Flora and Wildlife Licensing pages on DPaW's website. Any actions carried out under licence/permit should be recorded above in the OTHER COMMENTS section.				
SPECIMEN:Collectors No: A.I.Craigie 1796.03WA Herb. ☑Regional Herb. □	District Herb. 🗌 Other:			
ATTACHED: Map 🗌 Mudmap 🗌 Photo 🗌 GIS data 🗌	Field notes D Other:			
COPY SENT TO:     Regional Office     District Office	Other:			
Submitter of record: Andrew Craigie	Role: Botanist			
Signature:	Date submitted: 20/11/2019			

Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



# **Threatened and Priority**

### **Flora Report Form**

Please complete as much of the form as possible. For information on how to complete the form please refer to the Threatened & Priority Flora Report Form (TPRF) manual on the DPaW website at <u>http://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/</u>.

TAXON: Grevillea incor	nspicua				TPFL Pop. No:
OBSERVATION DATE:	3/9/2019		VATION STAT	US: P4	New population 🛛
OBSERVER/S: Andrew	Craigie				PHONE 6168 7200
ROLE: Botanist		ORGANI	SATION: Ecol	ogia Environm	ent
DESCRIPTION OF LOCATIO	<b>N</b> (Provide at least neare	est town/named locality, ar	nd the distance and d	rection to that place	e):
Weld Range, ca. 60 km no	th-west of Cue.				
					Reserve No:
DISTRICT:		LGA: Shi	re of Cue		Land manager present:
DATUM: COO require	ed)	coords provided, <b>Zone</b> is	also MET		
GDA94 / MGA94 🔲 🛛 🗖	ecDegrees 🗌	DegMinSec 🗌	UTMs 🛛	GPS 🖂	Differential GPS 📋 Map 📋
AGD84 / AMG84 🗌 Lat	/ Northing: 7019	651.078	No.	satellites:	Map used:
WGS84 🛛 Long	g / Easting: 5687	88.2711	Bou	ndary polygon	captured: 🗌 Map scale:
	<b>Zone:</b> 50K			51 55	
			_	Deil record	
Nature reserve	State forest	Private property Pastoral lease		Rail reserv WA road reserv	e Other Crown reserve
Conservation park	Water reserve	UCL	SLK/Pa	le to	Specify other:
AREA ASSESSMENT: Edu		artial survey 🕅	Full survey 🗌	Area observ	red (m²).
FFFORT: Time spent surv	reving (minutes).		No. of minutes si	pent / 100 m <sup>2.</sup>	ou (iii )
POP'N COUNT ACCURACY:	Actual	 ] Extrapola	ation	Estimate 🖂	
Count method: (Refer to field man	ual for list)				
WHAT COUNTED: Pla	nts	Clumps	Clonal stems		
TOTAL POP'N STRUCTURE:	Mature:	Juveniles:	Seedlings:	Totals:	
Alive	19			19	Area of pop (m²):
Dead					Note: Pls record count as numbers (not
QUADRATS PRESENT:	No	Size	Data attached	 Total	area of quadrats (m <sup>2</sup> ).
Summary Quad. Totals: Alive					
REPRODUCTIVE STATE		Vegetative 🛛	Flowerbud		Elower 🕅
Immati	ire fruit	Fruit	Dehisced fruit		Percentage in flower:%
CONDITION OF PLANTS	lealthy 🕅	Moderate 🗖	Poor		Senescent 🗌
COMMENT:			1 001		
		- 41			Current Detential Detential
E.g. clearing, too frequent fire, weed, d	supporting information is a second	ation: nual for list of threats & ad	ents. Specify agent v	vhere relevant.	impact Impact Threat
Rate current and potential threa	at impact: N=Nil, L=Low,	M=Medium, H=High, E=E	xtreme		(N-E) (L-E) Onset
Estimate time to potential impa	ct: S=Short (<12mths), M	=Medium (<5yrs), L=Long	g (5yrs+)		
•					+
•					
					1
•					
					1
	Please return cor	mploted form to Space	And Communit	ios Branch DPa	



HABITAT INFORMATIC	<b>DN:</b> (Check more than one	box for combinations or whe	ere necessary)				
LANDFORM:	ROCK TYPE:	LOOSE ROCK:	SOIL TYPE:	SOIL COLOUR:	DRAINAGE:		
Crest	Granite 🗌	(on soil surface; e.g.	Sand 🗌	Red 🛛	Well drained 🛛		
Hill 🗖	Dolerite 🖂	gravel, qualiz lields)	Sandy loam 🔲	Brown 🛛	Seasonally		
Ridge 🗌	Laterite	0-10%	Loam 🗌	Yellow			
Outcrop	Ironstone 🛛	10-30%	Clay loam 🛛	White 🗌	inundated		
Slope	Limestone	30-50%	Light clay 🔲	Grey 🗌	Tidal 🔲		
Flat	Quartz 🗌	50-100% 🖂	Peat	Black			
Open depression							
Drainage line	Specify other:		Specify other:	Specify other:	Specify other:		
Specific Landform Elei	ment: (Refer to field manual fo	r additional values)					
CONDITION OF SOIL:							
Dry 🛛 Moist 🗌	] Waterlogged	Inundated	Cracked	Saline 🗌 Othe	r:		
VEGETATION	1. Acacia sp. Weld Ra shrubland	ange (A. Markey & S.	Dillon 2994), Acacia	ramulosa var. linophy	ılla tall sparse		
CLASSIFICATION:* E.g. 1. Banksia woodland (B. attenuata B ilicifolia):	2. Eremophila mackir low sparse shrub	ılayi subsp. spathulata land	a, Ptilotus obovatus, S	Senna artemisioides s	subsp. helmsii		
<b>2</b> . Open shrubland (Hibbertia sp., Acacia spp.)	3.						
3. Isolated clumps of sedges							
(	4.						
ASSOCIATED							
SPECIES: Other (non-dominant) spp							
I     * Please record up to four of the most representative vegetation layers (with up to three dominant species in each layer). Structural Formations should follow 2009 Australian Soil     and Land Survey Field Handbook guidelines – refer to field manual for further information and structural formation table.							
CONDITION OF HABIT	AT: Pristine	Excellent 🛛 Very g	good 🗌 🛛 Good 🗌	Degraded Com	pletely degraded 🗌		
COMMENT:							
FIRE HISTORY: Last	Fire: Season/Month:	Year: Fi	re Intensity: High 🗌	Medium 🗌 Low 🗌	No signs of fire 🛛		
FENCING:	FENCING:       Not required       Present       Replace / repair       Required       Length req'd:						
ROADSIDE MARKERS:       Not required       Present       Replace / reposition       Required       Quantity req'd:							
<b>OTHER COMMENTS:</b> (Please include recommended management actions and/or implemented actions - include date. Also include details of additional data available, and how to locate it.)							
	Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW.						

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983



DRF PERMIT/ LICENCE No: Note if only observing plants (i.e. no specimens or plant matieral is taken) then no permit/licence is required. For further information on permit and licening requirements see the Threatened Flora and Wildlife Licensing pages on DPaW's website. Any actions carried out under licence/permit should be recorded above in the OTHER COMMENTS section.				
SPECIMEN: Collectors No: A.I.Craigie 1796.03	WA Herb. 🛛 🛛 Regional Herb. 🗌	District Herb. 🗌 Other:		
ATTACHED: Map 🗌 Mudma	ap 🗌 Photo 🗌 GIS data 🗌	Field notes  Other:		
COPY SENT TO: Regional Offic	District Office	Other:		
Submitter of record: Andrew C	raigie	Role: Botanist		
Signature:		Date submitted: 20/11/2019		

Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



# **Threatened and Priority**

### **Flora Report Form**

Please complete as much of the form as possible. For information on how to complete the form please refer to the Threatened & Priority Flora Report Form (TPRF) manual on the DPaW website at <u>http://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/</u>.

TAXON: Hemigenia virese	cens					TPFL F	op. No:	
OBSERVATION DATE: 3/	9/2019	CONSER	VATION S	STATU	<b>S</b> : P3		New populat	ion 🖂
OBSERVER/S: Andrew C	raigie					PHONE :	6168 7200	
ROLE: Botanist		ORGANI	SATION:	Ecolo	gia Environm	nent		
DESCRIPTION OF LOCATION	(Provide at least neares	st town/named locality, ar	nd the distance	and dire	ection to that plac	ce):		
Weld Range, ca. 60 km north	-west of Cue.							
						Reser	ve No:	
DISTRICT:		LGA: Shi	re of Cue			L	and manager pre	esent:
DAIUM: COORL required)		coords provided, <b>Zone</b> is	also	METH		D:"		. –
GDA94 / MGA94 🔲 🛛 🛛 🔤	Degrees 🗌	DegMinSec 🗌	UTMs 🛛	(	GPS 🛛	Differen	tial GPS	Мар 📋
AGD84 / AMG84 🗌 Lat / N	Northing: 7019	165.75		No. sa	atellites:		Map use	d:
WGS84 🛛 Long /	Easting: 56892	21.6026		Bound	dary polygon	captured:	Map sca	le:
	<b>Zone</b> : 50K				51 50			
		Drivete manarte			Rail recon		Shire road u	
Nature reserve	State forest	Private property Pastoral lease		MRV	VA road reserv	ve 🗌	Other Crown r	eserve
Conservation park  W	/ater reserve  □	UCL	s	LK/Pole	eto		Specify oth	er:
AREA ASSESSMENT: Edge	survey 🗌 🛛 Pa	artial survev 🖂	Full survev		Area obser	ved (m²):		
EFFORT: Time spent survey	/ing (minutes):		No. of minu	ites spe	ent / 100 m <sup>2</sup> :			
POP'N COUNT ACCURACY:	Actual 🗌	Extrapola	ation 🗌		Estimate 🖂	]		
Count method: (Refer to field manual	for list)							
WHAT COUNTED: Plants	s 🔲	Clumps 🗌	Clonal ste	ems 🗌	]			
TOTAL POP'N STRUCTURE:	Mature:	Juveniles:	Seedling	s:	Totals:			
Alive	37				37	Area	of pop (m²):	
Dead						Note: perce	Pls record count as ntages) for databas	s numbers (not se.
QUADRATS PRESENT:	No	Size	Data atta	ched	Tota	al area of qu	uadrats (m²):	
Summary Quad. Totals: Alive								
REPRODUCTIVE STATE: CI	onal 🗌	Vegetative 🛛	Flow	erbud [		Flowe	er 🖂	
Immature	fruit	Fruit	Dehisce	d fruit [		Percentage i	n flower:	_%
CONDITION OF PLANTS: Hea	althy 🛛	Moderate		Poor [		Senesce	nt 🗌	
COMMENT:	, _			- 6			—	
THREATS - type agent and su	pporting informa	tion:				Curren	t Potential	Potential
E.g. clearing, too frequent fire, weed, disea	ase. Refer to field man	ual for list of threats & ag	ents. Specify	agent wh	ere relevant.	impact	Impact	Threat
Rate current and potential threat in	mpact: N=Nil, L=Low, M	M=Medium, H=High, E=E	Extreme			(N-E)	(L-E)	(S-L)
Estimate time to potential impact:	S=Snort (<12mths), Μ=	=weaium (<5yrs), L=Long	g (5yrs+)					. ,
-						┨	.	
•								
						┨ ───	-	
•								
							<u> </u>	
	Please return com	unleted form to <b>Sneci</b>	es And Com	munitie	s Branch DP			



HABITAT INFORMATIC	<b>DN:</b> (Check more than one	box for combinations or whe	ere necessary)				
LANDFORM:	ROCK TYPE:	LOOSE ROCK:	SOIL TYPE:	SOIL COLOUR:	DRAINAGE:		
Crest	Granite 🗌	(on soil surface; e.g.	Sand 🗌	Red 🛛	Well drained 🛛		
Hill 🗖	Dolerite 🗌	gravel, quartz lields)	Sandy loam 🔲	Brown 🖂	Seasonally		
Ridge 🗌	Laterite	0-10%	Loam 🗌	Yellow 🗌			
Outcrop	Ironstone 🛛	10-30%	Clay loam 🛛	White 🗌	inundated		
Slope	Limestone	30-50%	Light clay 🔲	Grey 🗌	Tidal 🔲		
Flat 🛛	Quartz 🗌	50-100%	Peat 🗌	Black			
Open depression							
Drainage line	Specify other:		Specify other:	Specify other:	Specify other:		
Closed depression							
Wetland							
Specific Landform Elei	<b>nent:</b> (Refer to field manual fo	or additional values)					
CONDITION OF SOIL:							
Dry 🛛 Moist 🗌	] Waterlogged	Inundated	Cracked	Saline D Othe	r:		
VEGETATION	1. Acacia ramulosa va sparse shrubland	ar. linophylla, Acacia i I	ncurvaneura, Acacia	incurvaneura × mulg	aneura tall		
CLASSIFICATION:* E.g. 1. Banksia woodland (B.	2. Eremophila forresti sparse shrubland	ii subsp. forrestii, Eren I	nophila jucunda subs	sp. jucunda, Ptilotus s	chwartzii low		
<ul><li>2. Open shrubland (Hibbertia sp., Acacia spp.)</li></ul>	3.						
3. Isolated clumps of sedges (Mesomelaena tetragona)	nps of sedges						
(mocomolaona totragona)	4.						
ASSOCIATED							
SPECIES: Other (non-dominant) spp							
Please record up to four of the most representative vegetation layers (with up to three dominant species in each layer). Structural Formations should follow 2009 Australian Soil     and Land Survey Field Handbook guidelines – refer to field manual for further information and structural formation table.							
CONDITION OF HABIT	AT: Pristine	Excellent 🛛 Very g	jood 🗌 Good 🗌	Degraded 🗌 Com	pletely degraded 🗌		
COMMENT:							
FIRE HISTORY: Last Fire: Season/Month: Year: Fire Intensity: High Medium Low No signs of fire							
FENCING:       Not required       Present       Replace / repair       Required       Length req'd:							
ROADSIDE MARKERS:       Not required       Present       Replace / reposition       Required       Quantity req'd:							
<b>OTHER COMMENTS:</b> (Please include recommended management actions and/or implemented actions - include date. Also include details of additional data available, and how to locate it.)							
Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW.							

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983



DRF PERMIT/ LICENCE No: Note if only observing plants (i.e. no specimens or plant matieral is taken) then no permit/licence is required. For further information on permit and licening requirements see the Threatened Flora and Wildlife Licensing pages on DPaW's website. Any actions carried out under licence/permit should be recorded above in the OTHER COMMENTS section.				
SPECIMEN:Collectors No: A.I.Craigie 1796.04WA Herb. Image: Mail WA Herb. Image: Mail Mail Mail Mail Mail 	Herb. 🗌 District Herb. 🗌 Other:			
ATTACHED: Map 🗌 Mudmap 🗌 Photo 🗌 GIS o	data 🗌 Field notes 🗌 Other:			
COPY SENT TO: Regional Office District Office	Other:			
Submitter of record: Andrew Craigie	Role: Botanist			
Signature:	Date submitted: 20/11/2019			

Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



# **Threatened and Priority**

### **Flora Report Form**

Please complete as much of the form as possible. For information on how to complete the form please refer to the Threatened & Priority Flora Report Form (TPRF) manual on the DPaW website at <u>http://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/</u>.

TAXON: Micromyrtus	olacoides				TPFL Pop. No:
OBSERVATION DATE:	3/9/2019	CONSER	VATION STAT	<b>US:</b> P3	New population $\boxtimes$
OBSERVER/S: Andrew	v Craigie				PHONE 6168 7200
ROLE: Botanist		ORGANI	SATION: Ecol	logia Environm	nent
DESCRIPTION OF LOCATION	<b>DN</b> (Provide at least near	est town/named locality, a	nd the distance and di	irection to that plac	ce):
Weld Range, ca. 60 km no	orth-west of Cue.				
DIOTRIOT					Reserve No:
	ORDINATES: (If UTM	coords provided Zone is			Land manager present:
requi					Differential GPS 🗍 Man 🗍
GDA94 / MGA94					
	t / Northing: $7020$	JU28.086	NO. :	satellites:	Map used:
	<b>Zone:</b> 50K	330.7234	Bou	ndary polygon	captured: 🗌 Map scale:
LAND TENURE:	<b>2011e</b> . 3010				
Nature reserve	Timber reserve	Private property		Rail reserv	ve
National park	State forest	Pastoral lease		RWA road reserv	ve  Other Crown reserve
Conservation park	Water reserve	UCL	SLK/Po	ole to	Specify other:
AREA ASSESSMENT: Ed	lge survey 🗌 🛛 P	Partial survey 🛛	Full survey 🗌	Area obser	ved (m²):
EFFORT: Time spent sur	veying (minutes):		No. of minutes s	pent / 100 m²:	
POP'N COUNT ACCURACY	: Actual	Extrapola	ation 🗌	Estimate 🗵	
Count method: (Refer to field ma	nual for list)				
WHAT COUNTED: PI	ants 🗌	Clumps	Clonal stems		
TOTAL POP'N STRUCTURE:	Mature:	Juveniles:	Seedlings:	Totals:	
Alive	860			860	Area of pop (m²):
Dead					Note: Pls record count as numbers (r percentages) for database.
QUADRATS PRESENT:	No	Size	Data attached	Tota	al area of quadrats (m²):
Summary Quad. Totals: Alive					
REPRODUCTIVE STATE:	Clonal 🔲	Vegetative 🛛	Flowerbud		Flower 🛛
Imma	ture fruit	Fruit 🛛	Dehisced fruit		Percentage in flower:%
CONDITION OF PLANTS:	Healthy 🛛	Moderate	Poor	· 🔲	Senescent
COMMENT:					
THREATS - type, agent and	supporting inform	ation:			Current Potential Potenti
E.g. clearing, too frequent fire, weed,	disease. Refer to field ma	nual for list of threats & ag	ents. Specify agent	where relevant.	impact Impact Threa
Rate current and potential three	eat impact: N=Nil, L=Low,	M=Medium, H=High, E=E	Extreme		(N-E) (L-E) (S-L)
Sumate time to potential Imp	uor. 0-011011 (>12111115), N		9 (0)10 1		
					╡━━─│━━─│━━
•					
•					
	Please return co	moleted form to <b>Sneci</b>	es And Communit	ties Branch DP	a\M



HABITAT INFORMATIC	<b>N:</b> (Check more than one	box for combinations or whe	ere necessary)				
LANDFORM:	ROCK TYPE:	LOOSE ROCK:	SOIL TYPE:	SOIL COLOUR:	DRAINAGE:		
Crest	Granite 🗌	(on soil surface; e.g.	Sand 🗌	Red 🛛	Well drained 🛛		
Hill 🗖	Dolerite 🗌	gravel, quartz lields)	Sandy loam 🔲	Brown 🛛	Seasonally		
Ridge 🗌	Laterite	0-10%	Loam 🗌	Yellow 🗌			
Outcrop	Ironstone 🛛	10-30%	Clay loam 🛛	White 🗌	inundated		
Slope 🛛	Limestone	30-50%	Light clay 🔲	Grey 🗌	Tidal 🗌		
Flat	Quartz 🗌	50-100%	Peat 🗌	Black			
Open depression							
Drainage line	Specify other:		Specify other:	Specify other:	Specify other:		
Closed depression							
Wetland							
Specific Landform Eler	nent: (Refer to field manual fo	r additional values)					
CONDITION OF SOIL:							
Dry 🛛 Moist 🗌	] Waterlogged	Inundated	Cracked	Saline D Other	r:		
VEGETATION	1. Acacia incurvaneu	ra, Acacia mulganerua	a, Acacia ramulosa va	ar. linophylla tall spars	se shrubland		
CLASSIFICATION:* E.g. 1. Banksia woodland (B. attenuata B ilicifolia):	2. Eremophila glutino shrubland	sa, Eremophila latrobe	ei subsp. latrobei, Mio	cromyrtus placoides (	P3) low sparse		
<ol> <li>Open shrubland (Hibbertia sp., Acacia spp.)</li> </ol>	<sup>a</sup> 3.						
<ol> <li>Isolated clumps of sedges (Mesomelaena tetragona)</li> </ol>	4.						
ASSOCIATED							
SPECIES: Other (non-dominant) spp							
Please record up to four of the most representative vegetation layers (with up to three dominant species in each layer). Structural Formations should follow 2009 Australian Soil and Land Survey Field Handbook guidelines – refer to field manual for further information and structural formation table.							
CONDITION OF HABITAT: Pristine Excellent Very good Good Degraded Completely degraded							
COMMENT:							
FIRE HISTORY: Last Fire: Season/Month: Year: Fire Intensity: High Medium Low No signs of fire							
FENCING:       Not required       Present       Replace / repair       Required       Length req'd:							
ROADSIDE MARKERS:       Not required       Present       Replace / reposition       Required       Quantity req'd:							
<b>OTHER COMMENTS:</b> (Please include recommended management actions and/or implemented actions - include date. Also include details of additional data available, and how to locate it.)							
Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW.							

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983



DRF PERMIT/ LICENCE No: Note if only observing plants (i.e. no specimens or plant matieral is taken) then no permit/licence is Threatened Flora and Wildlife Licensing pages on DPaW's website. Any actions carried out under li	required. For further information on permit and licening requirements see the cence/permit should be recorded above in the OTHER COMMENTS section.
SPECIMEN:Collectors No: A.I.Craigie 1796.06WA Herb. Image: Mail Collectors No: WA Herb. Image: Collectors No: MA Herb. Image: Collectors No: Collectors No: Collectors No: Collectors No: 	District Herb. District Herb.
ATTACHED: Map Mudmap Photo GIS data	Field notes D Other:
COPY SENT TO:     Regional Office     District Office	Other:
Submitter of record: Andrew Craigie	Role: Botanist
Signature:	Date submitted: 20/11/2019

Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.


# **Threatened and Priority**

# **Flora Report Form**

Please complete as much of the form as possible. For information on how to complete the form please refer to the Threatened & Priority Flora Report Form (TPRF) manual on the DPaW website at <u>http://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/</u>

TAXON: Prostanthera	petrophila					TPFL P	op. No:	
OBSERVATION DATE:	3/9/2019	CONSER	RVATION S	TATU	<b>S</b> : P3	_	New populat	ion 🖂
OBSERVER/S: Andrew	Craigie					PHONE	6168 7200	
ROLE: Botanist		ORGAN	ISATION:	Ecolo	gia Environm	ient		
DESCRIPTION OF LOCATIO	N (Provide at least near	est town/named locality	and the distance	and dire	ction to that plac	ce):		
Weld Range ca 60 km no	rth-west of Cue							
						Reserv	e No:	
DISTRICT:		LGA: Sh	ire of Cue			La	ind manager pre	esent: 🗌
DATUM: COO	RDINATES: (If UTM	coords provided, Zone is	s also	METH	IOD USED:			
	ecDegrees	DegMinSec 🗌	UTMs 🛛	(	GPS 🛛	Different	al GPS 🔲	Мар 🗌
AGD84 / AMG84 🗌 Lat	/ Northing: 7019	9774.85		No. sa	atellites:		Map use	d:
WGS84 🛛 Lon	g / Easting: 5685	538.2801		Round	tany polygon	capturod:		lo:
Unknown	<b>Zone:</b> 50K			Dound	ary porygon			IE.
LAND TENURE:						_		_
Nature reserve	Timber reserve	Private property		MDV	Rail reserv	/e 🗌	Shire road r	
Conservation park	Water reserve	UCL	⊔ ∏ si	LK/Pole	e to		Specify oth	eserve
			<b>E</b>				. ,	
	ge survey 📋 🛛 P	'artial survey 🖂	Full survey [		Area observ	ved (m²):		
	/eying (minutes):		No. of minut	les spe	Ectimato ⊠	 1		
Count method: (Pefer to field man	Actual							
	nts		Clonal ste	ms 🗆				
TOTAL POP'N STRUCTURE:	Mature:	Juveniles:	Seedlings		Totals:			
	51		ooounige		51	Area	of non (m²).	
					01	Note: F	Pls record count as	numbers (not
Dead						percen	tages) for databas	e.
QUADRATS PRESENT:	No	Size	Data attac	hed [	] Tota	l area of qu	adrats (m²): _	
Summary Quad. Totals: Alive								
REPRODUCTIVE STATE:	Clonal 🗌	Vegetative 🛛	Flowe	erbud [		Flowe	r 🗆	
Immati	ure fruit 🛛	Fruit 🔲	Dehisced	d fruit		Percentage ir	flower:	_%
CONDITION OF PLANTS:	Healthy 🛛	Moderate		Poor [		Senescen	t 🗌	
COMMENT:								
THREATS - type, agent and	supporting inform	ation:				Current	Potential	Potential
E.g. clearing, too frequent fire, weed, o	lisease. Refer to field mar	nual for list of threats & a	gents. Specify a	igent wh	ere relevant.	impact	Impact	Threat Onset
Rate current and potential three	at impact: N=Nil, L=Low,	M=Medium, H=High, E=	Extreme			(N-E)	(L-E)	(S-L)
Sumate time to potential Impa	<b>6.</b> 5–5hor (~ 12huis), M	-weatum (Syrs), L=LO	יפ (טאופי)					
						1	<u> </u>	
•								
						1		
•								
	Please return co	moleted form to <b>Snec</b>	ies And Comr	nunitie	s Branch DPa	a/W/		

RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



# **Threatened and Priority Flora Report Form**

HABITAT INFORMATIC	<b>N:</b> (Check more than one l	box for combinations or whe	ere necessary)							
LANDFORM:	ROCK TYPE:	LOOSE ROCK:	SOIL TYPE:	SOIL COLOUR:	DRAINAGE:					
Crest	Granite 🗌	(on soil surface; e.g.	Sand 🗌	Red 🛛	Well drained 🛛					
Hill 🗖	Dolerite 🗌	gravel, quartz lields)	Sandy loam 🔲	Brown 🛛	Seasonally					
Ridge 🗌	Laterite	0-10%	Loam 🗌	Yellow 🗌						
Outcrop	Ironstone 🛛	10-30%	Clay loam 🛛	White 🗌	inundated					
Slope 🛛	Limestone	30-50%	Light clay 🔲	Grey 🗌	Tidal 🗌					
Flat	Quartz 🗌	50-100%	Peat 🗌	Black						
Open depression										
Drainage line	Specify other:		Specify other:	Specify other:	Specify other:					
Closed depression										
Wetland										
Specific Landform Element: (Refer to field manual for additional values)										
CONDITION OF SOIL:										
Dry 🛛 Moist 🗌	] Waterlogged	Inundated	Cracked	Saline 🗌 Other	-:					
1. Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia mulganerua, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall sparse shrubland										
CLASSIFICATION:* E.g. 1. Banksia woodland (B. shrubland										
<ol> <li>Open shrubland (Hibbertia sp., Acacia spp.)</li> </ol>	<sup>a</sup> 3.									
<ol> <li>Isolated clumps of sedges (Mesomelaena tetragona)</li> </ol>	4.									
ASSOCIATED										
SPECIES: Other (non-dominant) spp										
* Please record up to four of the and Land Survey Field Handbo	I most representative vegetation ok guidelines – refer to field mar	n layers (with up to three domina nual for further information and	ant species in each layer). Stru structural formation table.	uctural Formations should follo	w 2009 Australian Soil					
CONDITION OF HABIT	AT: Pristine	Excellent 🛛 Very g	jood 🗌 Good 🗌	Degraded 🗌 Com	pletely degraded 🗌					
COMMENT:										
FIRE HISTORY: Last	Fire: Season/Month:	Year: <b>Fi</b>	re Intensity: High 🗌	Medium 🗌 Low 🗌	No signs of fire 🛛					
FENCING:	Not required	Present  Replace	/ repair 🗌 🛛 Req	uired 🗌 Length re	eq'd:					
ROADSIDE MARKERS:	Not required P	Present Replace	r / reposition 🗌 Req	uired D Quantity	req'd:					
OTHER COMMENTS: (I details of additional data	Please include recommen available, and how to loo	nded management action cate it.)	ns and/or implemented	actions - include date. A	Also include					
Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW.										

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983

RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



# **Threatened and Priority Flora Report Form**

<b>DRF PERMIT/ LICENCE No:</b> Note if only observing plants (i.e. no specimens or plant matieral is taken) then no permit/licer Threatened Flora and Wildlife Licensing pages on DPaW's website. Any actions carried out un	nce is required. For further information on permit and licening requirements see the ider licence/permit should be recorded above in the OTHER COMMENTS section.
SPECIMEN:Collectors No: A.I.Craigie 1796.07WA Herb. Image: Mail Collectors No: WA Herb. Image: Collectors No: MA Herb. Image: Collectors No: 	rb. 🗌 District Herb. 🗌 Other:
ATTACHED: Map 🗌 Mudmap 🗌 Photo 🗌 GIS data	Field notes Other:
COPY SENT TO:     Regional Office     District Office	Other:
Submitter of record: Andrew Craigie	Role: Botanist
Signature:	Date submitted: 20/11/2019

Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



# **Threatened and Priority**

# **Flora Report Form**

Please complete as much of the form as possible. For information on how to complete the form please refer to the Threatened & Priority Flora Report Form (TPRF) manual on the DPaW website at <u>http://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/</u>

TAXON: Stenanthemun	n patens					TPFL Po	p. No:	
OBSERVATION DATE:	3/9/2019	CONSER	VATION ST	ΓΑΤυ	<b>S:</b> P1	N	lew populati	on 🖂
OBSERVER/S: Andrew	Craigie					PHONE :	6168 7200	
ROLE: Botanist		ORGAN	SATION:	Ecolog	jia Environm	ient –		
DESCRIPTION OF LOCATION	N (Provide at least neare	est town/named locality, a	nd the distance a	and direc	ction to that plac	ce):		
Weld Range, ca. 60 km nor	th-west of Cue.							
						Reserve	No:	
DISTRICT:		LGA: Shi	re of Cue			Lan	d manager pre	esent:
DATUM: coor				METH		Differentia		Man 🗖
GDA94 / MGA94 🔲 🛛 De	cDegrees	DegMinSec 📋	UTMs 🖂	Ċ	5P5 🛛	Differentia		мар 🗋
	/ Northing: 7019	908.055	11	No. sa	tellites:		Map use	d:
WGS84 ⊠ Long	g / Easting: 5687	07.6753	E	Bound	ary polygon	captured: 🗌	Map scal	e:
	20ne: 50K							
Nature reserve	Fimber reserve	Private property			Rail reserv	/e 🗌	Shire road r	eserve 🗌
National park	State forest	Pastoral lease		MRW	/A road reserv	/e 🗌	Other Crown r	eserve
Conservation park	Water reserve	UCL	SL	.K/Pole	to		Specify othe	er:
AREA ASSESSMENT: Edg	je survey 🗌 🛛 P	artial survey 🛛	Full survey [		Area observ	ved (m²):		
EFFORT: Time spent surv	eying (minutes):		No. of minute	es spei	nt / 100 m <sup>2</sup> :			
POP'N COUNT ACCURACY:	Actual 🗌	] Extrapola	ation 🗌		Estimate 🛛	]		
Count method: (Refer to field manu	ual for list)							
WHAT COUNTED: Plan	nts 🗌	Clumps	Clonal sten	ns 🗌				
TOTAL POP'N STRUCTURE:	Mature:	Juveniles:	Seedlings:	:	Totals:			
Alive	2				2	Area o	f pop (m²):	
Dead						Note: Pls percenta	record count as ges) for databas	numbers (not e.
QUADRATS PRESENT:	No.	Size	Data attach	hed [	] Tota	l area of qua	drats (m²):	
Summary Quad. Totals: Alive							( ) _	
REPRODUCTIVE STATE:	Clonal П	Vegetative 🖂	Flower	rbud [	7	Flower		
Immatu	re fruit	Fruit	Dehisced	fruit	F	Percentage in f	lower:	_%
	lealthy 🖂	Moderate	F	Poor Γ	1	Senescent	Π	
COMMENT:			I		_ _	Consolonit		
	supporting inform	ation				Current	Potential	Potential
E.g. clearing, too frequent fire, weed, di	sease. Refer to field mar	nual for list of threats & ag	ents. Specify ag	gent whe	ere relevant.	impact	Impact	Threat
Rate current and potential threa	t impact: N=Nil, L=Low,	M=Medium, H=High, E=E	Extreme	-		(N-E)	(L-E)	(S-L)
Estimate time to potential impac	ct: S=Short (<12mths), N	I=Medium (<5yrs), L=Lon	g (5yrs+)					()
•						┥		
•								
						1		
•								

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



# **Threatened and Priority Flora Report Form**

HABITAT INFORMATIC	<b>N:</b> (Check more than one	box for combinations or whe	ere necessary)							
LANDFORM:	ROCK TYPE:	LOOSE ROCK:	SOIL TYPE:	SOIL COLOUR:	DRAINAGE:					
Crest	Granite 🗌	(on soil surface; e.g.	Sand 🗌	Red 🛛	Well drained 🛛					
Hill 🗖	Dolerite	gravel, quanz lielos)	Sandy loam 🔲	Brown 🖂	Seasonally					
Ridge 🗌	Laterite	0-10%	Loam 🗌	Yellow 🗌						
Outcrop	Ironstone 🛛	10-30%	Clay loam 🛛	White 🗌	inundated					
Slope 🛛	Limestone	30-50%	Light clay 🔲	Grey 🗌	Tidal 🗌					
Flat 🗌	Quartz 🗌	50-100%	Peat 🗌	Black 🗌	_					
Open depression										
Drainage line	Specify other:		Specify other:	Specify other:	Specify other:					
Closed depression										
Wetland										
Specific Landform Element: (Refer to field manual for additional values)										
CONDITION OF SOIL:										
Dry 🛛 Moist 🗌	] Waterlogged	Inundated	Cracked	Saline D Other	r:					
1. Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia incurvaneura, Thryptomene decussata tall sparse shrubland										
CLASSIFICATION:* 2. Ptilotus obovatus, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei low sparse shrubland										
<ol> <li>Open shrubland (Hibbertia</li> </ol>	2									
sp., Acacia spp.) 3 Isolated clumps of sedges	acia spp.) <b>3.</b>									
(Mesomelaena tetragona)	4.									
Other (non-dominant) spp										
* Please record up to four of the and Land Survey Field Handbo	e most representative vegetatior ok guidelines – refer to field ma	n layers (with up to three domina nual for further information and	ant species in each layer). Str structural formation table.	uctural Formations should follo	w 2009 Australian Soil					
CONDITION OF HABIT	AT: Pristine	Excellent 🛛 Very g	jood 🗌 Good 🗌	Degraded 🗌 Com	pletely degraded 🗌					
COMMENT:										
FIRE HISTORY: Last	Fire: Season/Month:	Year: Fi	re Intensity: High	Medium 📋 Low 📋	No signs of fire 🛛					
FENCING:	Not required	Present 🗌 Replace	e / repair 🗌 🛛 Req	uired 🗌 Length r	eq'd:					
ROADSIDE MARKERS:	Not required F	Present Replace	e / reposition 🗌 Req	uired D Quantity	req'd:					
OTHER COMMENTS: (I details of additional data	Please include recomme available, and how to lo	nded management action cate it.)	ns and/or implemented	actions - include date. /	Also include					
	Places return as	malatad form to Spacing A	nd Communities Prench							

Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW,

Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983

RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.



# **Threatened and Priority Flora Report Form**

DRF PERMIT/ LICENCE No: Note if only observing plants (i.e. no specimens or plant matieral is taken) then no permit/licence is requ Threatened Flora and Wildlife Licensing pages on DPaW's website. Any actions carried out under licence	ired. For further information on permit and licening requirements see the e/permit should be recorded above in the OTHER COMMENTS section.
SPECIMEN:Collectors No: A.I.Craigie 1796.08WA Herb. ⊠Regional Herb. □	District Herb. 🗌 Other:
ATTACHED: Map 🗌 Mudmap 🗌 Photo 🗌 GIS data 🗌	Field notes D Other:
COPY SENT TO:     Regional Office     District Office	Other:
Submitter of record: Andrew Craigie	Role: Botanist
Signature:	Date submitted: 20/11/2019

Please return completed form to Species And Communities Branch DPaW, Locked Bag 104, BENTLEY DELIVERY CENTRE WA 6983 RECORDS: Please forward to Flora Administrative Officer, Species and Communities Branch.

# APPENDIX J FAUNA HABITAT ASSESSMENT SITE SHEETS



Site	Landf	orm	c	Condition	Habitat					
HA01	Creek/Draii	nage Line	v	Very Good Open Shrubland						
Description	Mid dense shrubland bore	dering minor drainage ov	er thick leaf litter and woody debris							
	Bare Soil	30								
% Ground Cover	Litter	Moderate (10-40%)			1 Alexandre					
	Canopy Cover	30		1 DAT						
	Understorey	50	ALCA	A LONG PATRICE						
	No exposed rock	х		N KENYA	A K					
	<20% exposed rock				- 12 ° -					
Rocks	20-50% exposed rock		* 104	of the States		A CARLAN AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND A				
	>50% exposed rock					CANTER AND				
	Boulders / Rocks %									
	Surface Stones	Pebbles (0-50mm)	- Sha							
	Туре	Clay loam	- 41.4-1		Selection of the select					
Soil	Colour	Red								
	Water Impacts	Scouring				Vegetation				
	Fire Presence	> 5 Years	Stratum	Form	Height	Species				
	Woody Debris	Moderate (10-40%)	Unnor	Tree	<10m					
Habitat	Grazing		Obbei	Tree	<1011					
Features	Rock Crevices		Middlo	Shrub	<2m	Acacia pteraneura, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall open				
	Burrowing Suitability	Moderate	windule	Sinub	<b>S</b>	shrubland				
	Large trees present		Ground	Grasses	<1m	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Harnieria kempeana subsp.				
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)					muelleri, Ptilotus obovatus low sparse shrubland.				

Site	Landf	orm	c	Condition	Habitat			
HA02	Plai	'n	v	ery Good		Open Shrubland		
Description	Open woodland of Eucaly	ptus wandoo over grazed	d grasses and	woody debris.				
	Bare Soil	90				and the second second		
% Ground	Litter	Low (< 10%)	Section	-	- 18 an			
Cover	Canopy Cover			and the second state of th				
	Understorey	10		- Company				
	No exposed rock	x	States of	Se la Carlos				
	<20% exposed rock			C.S. Martin				
Rocks	20-50% exposed rock							
	>50% exposed rock							
	Boulders / Rocks %							
	Surface Stones	Pebbles (0-50mm)						
	Туре	Loam	1					
Soil	Colour	Red	1. 1.		THE A			
	Water Impacts					Vegetation		
	Fire Presence	> 5 Years	Stratum	Form	Height	Species		
	Woody Debris	Low (< 10%)		-		Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia fuscaneura, Acacia		
Habitat	Grazing		- Upper	Tree		incurvaneura × mulganeura tall sparse shrubland		
Features	Rock Crevices		N4:delle	Chauch	× 0.75 m	Eremophila georaei. Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii. Psydrax		
B Li T	Burrowing Suitability	Moderate		Shrub	>0.75m	latifolia low sparse shrubland		
	Large trees present		Ground	Grasses	0.75m			
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)			0,0505	0.7511			

Site	Landf	orm	С	ondition	Habitat			
HA03	Creek/Drai	nage Line	Ve	ery Good		Minor Drainage Line		
Description	Open woodland of Eu	ıcalyptus loxophleba	over graze	d grasses and wo	ody debris.			
	Bare Soil	70	N. A.	k.				
% Ground	Litter	Moderate (10-40%)						
Cover	Canopy Cover	10	N.	The Mary				
	Understorey	20		A Second Second				
	No exposed rock	x		and and sent the second	a starter			
	<20% exposed rock			President Contraction	and a second			
Rocks	20-50% exposed rock							
	>50% exposed rock				A BA			
	Boulders / Rocks %				Contraction of	and the second		
	Surface Stones	Cobbles (51-250mm)		and the second second				
0-11	Туре	Sandy loam		ALC PROVE	and a c			
5011	Colour	Red	Rinn					
	Water Impacts	Scouring				Vegetation		
	Fire Presence	> 5 Years	Stratum	Form	Height	Species		
	Woody Debris	Low (< 10%)	Linnen	Tues	>10m	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994),		
Habitat	Grazing		Upper	Iree	<10m	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall sparse shrubland		
Features	Rock Crevices		Middle	Chrub		Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Ptilotus		
	Burrowing Suitability	Moderate	wildule	Shiub		shrubland.		
	Large trees present			_				
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)		Ground	Grasses	<0.75m			

Site	Landfo	orm	C	ondition		Habitat			
HA04	Hil	I	E	xcellent		Ridge			
Description	Open woodland of Eu	ıcalyptus loxophleba	over graze	d grasses and wo	ody debris.				
	Bare Soil	40	-		CANE AN				
% Ground	Litter	Low (< 10%)		NY ST	- AND				
Cover	Canopy Cover	5		-	A Martine Mart				
	Understorey	10	an Alaman						
	No exposed rock		7/86	and starting the second					
	<20% exposed rock								
Rocks	20-50% exposed rock	х							
	>50% exposed rock			W					
	Boulders / Rocks %	50	a start of		72				
	Surface Stones	Boulders (>250mm)	A cher	The states					
Soil	Туре	Clay loam			Weile -				
	Colour	Red		and the second					
	Water Impacts					Vegetation			
	Fire Presence	No Evidence	Stratum	Form	Height	Species			
	Woody Debris	Low (< 10%)	Linnan	Tree	د. ۲	Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia incurvaneura,			
Habitat	Grazing		Opper	Tree	<5m	Thryptomene decussata tall sparse shrubland			
Features	Rock Crevices	Low (< 10%)	Middlo	Shruh	>2m	Ptilotus obovatus, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila			
	Burrowing Suitability	Low	windule	Siliub	~2111	latrobei subsp. latrobei low sparse shrubland.			
	Large trees present								
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)		Ground						

Site	Landf	orm	c	ondition		Habitat
HA05	Vall	ey	E	xcellent		Open Shrubland
Description	Open woodland of Euco cobbles.	alyptus wandoo over X	anthorrhoed	a preisii and Hakea	<i>preisii</i> over t	ussock grasses and herbs on granite outcropping and
	Bare Soil	70				
% Ground	Litter	Low (< 10%)	1226	A second second		and the second sec
Cover	Canopy Cover					
	Understorey	10		Frank Frank		
	No exposed rock				Strail (	AND AND ALL AND A SHORE AND
	<20% exposed rock			2 AVEILT		
Pocks	20-50% exposed rock	х			1. Jeres	
NULKS	>50% exposed rock					
	Boulders / Rocks %	40				
	Surface Stones	Cobbles (51-250mm)	and the second sec			
Coll	Туре	Sandy loam	-245		Langer West	and the second se
5011	Colour	Red				
	Water Impacts	Sheet runoff				Vegetation
	Fire Presence	No Evidence	Stratum	Form	Height	Species
	Woody Debris	Low (< 10%)	Unnor	Tree	<4m	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994),
Habitat	Grazing		opper	iree		shrubland
Features	Rock Crevices					Eremophila glutinosa, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp.
	Burrowing Suitability	Low	Middle	Shrub	>2m	spatnulata, Senna artemisioides subsp. ×sturtii low sparse shrubland.
	Large trees present					
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)		Ground			

Site	Landfo	orm	C	ondition		Habitat
HA06	Hil	I	E	xcellent		Ridge
Description	Open woodland of Euco termitaria present.	alyptus wandoo over X	anthorrhoed	<i>preisii</i> over tussoc	k grasses an	d herbs on granite outcropping and cobbles with some
	Bare Soil		And A	NW S	YV. DE	
% Ground	Litter	Low (< 10%)	1 All	KAN ANA	19/12	
Cover	Canopy Cover		Marte C		HIAN	
	Understorey	10		Suff- P	MAR AL	Contraction of the second of t
	No exposed rock			- Maria	All have a	
	<20% exposed rock					
Rocks	20-50% exposed rock			Sec.	24M	2 Section of the Contraction of the
	>50% exposed rock	Х		12-12		
	Boulders / Rocks %	90			-	
	Surface Stones	Boulders (>250mm)		×1	C C	TALLAND
Call	Туре	Clay loam		A sha	T	
5011	Colour	Red			je st	
	Water Impacts					Vegetation
	Fire Presence	No Evidence	Stratum	Form	Height	Species
	Woody Debris	Low (< 10%)	Linnen	Tree	> 10m	Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia incurvaneura,
Hahitat	Grazing		Upper	Tree	>10m	Thryptomene decussata tall sparse shrubland
Features	Rock Crevices	Moderate (10-40%)				Ptilotus obovatus, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila
	Burrowing Suitability		Middle	Shrub	>2m	latrobei subsp. latrobei low sparse shrubland.
	Large trees present					
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)		Ground			

Site	Landf	c	ondition	Habitat				
HA07	Hill		E	Excellent Ridge				
Description	Open woodland of <i>Euco</i> termitaria present.	Open woodland of <i>Eucalyptus wandoo</i> over <i>Xanthorrhoea preisii</i> over tussock grasses and herbs on granite outcropping and cobbles with some termitaria present.						
	Bare Soil			AN AN	AND PARA			
% Ground	Litter	Low (< 10%)		Lak all	CUNX T			
Cover	Canopy Cover			THE ALL	A CON			
	Understorey	11	N.		AN/	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		
	No exposed rock		12 Hillion Th		196			
	<20% exposed rock					NI MULTINE CONTRACTOR		
Rocks	20-50% exposed rock		SAN		The !!			
	>50% exposed rock	х	AH					
	Boulders / Rocks %	91		A Charles	-			
	Surface Stones	Boulders (>250mm)		A LA	5/A.			
Soil	Туре	Clay loam	Sim	5-7-1				
	Colour	Red		The second	A Dest			
	Water Impacts					Vegetation		
	Fire Presence	No Evidence	Stratum	Form	Height	Species		
	Woody Debris	Low (< 10%)	Unnan	Tree	× 10 m	Acacia rhodophloia, Acacia incurvaneura,		
Hahitat	Grazing		Upper	Tree	>10m	Thryptomene decussata tall sparse shrubland		
Features	Rock Crevices	Moderate (10-40%)		Chauch		Ptilotus obovatus, Dodonaea pachyneura, Eremophila		
	Burrowing Suitability		IVIIdale	Snrub	>2m	latrobei subsp. latrobei low sparse shrubland.		
	Large trees present							
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)		Ground					

Site	Landfo	orm	c	ondition	Habitat		
HA08	Plai	'n	E	xcellent	Open Shrubland		
Description	Open woodland of Euco termitaria present.	alyptus wandoo over X	anthorrhoed	<i>preisii</i> over tussoc	k grasses an	d herbs on granite outcropping and cobbles with some	
	Bare Soil	90		Martine.			
% Ground Cover	Litter	Low (< 10%)	No.	M. C. Walter			
	Canopy Cover			S PP /2 :			
	Understorey	10		Spall 1			
	No exposed rock	х			The sea		
	<20% exposed rock		AA		To de la		
	20-50% exposed rock				C-ply		
Rocks	>50% exposed rock			Children 1			
	Boulders / Rocks %						
	Surface Stones	Cobbles (51-250mm)				A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	
Soil	Туре	Loam	237		States a		
5011	Colour	Red	and the second		And	and the second	
	Water Impacts					Vegetation	
	Fire Presence	> 5 Years	Stratum	Form	Height	Species	
	Woody Debris	Low (< 10%)	Unnor	Troo	>10m	Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia fuscaneura, Acacia	
Hahitat	Grazing		opper	nee	>1011	incurvaneura × mulganeura tall sparse shrubland	
Features	Rock Crevices		Middle	Chruh	× ] m	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Psydrax	
	Burrowing Suitability	Moderate	ivildule	Shrub	>2111	latifolia low sparse shrubland	
	Large trees present		Care 1	Creat	0.75		
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)		Ground	Grasses	0./5m		

Site	Landf	Condition Habitat						
HA09	Creek/Drai	nage Line	Ve	ery Good	d Minor Drainage Line			
Description	Open woodland of Euco termitaria present.	alyptus wandoo over X	anthorrhoed	<i>preisii</i> over tussoc	k grasses an	d herbs on granite outcropping and cobbles with some		
	Bare Soil	70			CALL Y			
% Ground	Litter	Moderate (10-40%)		States and the states of the s	View in the	NAME AND		
Cover	Canopy Cover	10	1. A	12	Million W.			
	Understorey	20		State State TV	Rest Tot			
	No exposed rock	х	and a second	外在委员家				
Rocks	<20% exposed rock			M AND H				
	20-50% exposed rock							
	>50% exposed rock			The second	200			
	Boulders / Rocks %				Called State			
	Surface Stones	Cobbles (51-250mm)						
Coil	Туре	Clay loam		Sand Provention				
5011	Colour	Red		All Algebras and				
	Water Impacts	Minor Drainage				Vegetation		
	Fire Presence	No Evidence	Stratum	Form	Height	Species		
	Woody Debris	Low (< 10%)	Linner	Tree	Γ. ma	Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994),		
Hahitat	Grazing		Upper	Tree	<5m	tall open shrubland		
Features	Rock Crevices		Middle	Chruh	<.)	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Harnieria kempeana		
	Burrowing Suitability	Moderate	windule	5111.00	~2111	subsp. muelleri, Ptilotus obovatus low sparse shrubland.		
	Large trees present							
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)		Ground					

Site	Landf	orm	Condition Habitat				
HA10	Plai	in	E	Excellent Stony Plain			
Description	Open woodland of Euco termitaria present.	alyptus wandoo over X	anthorrhoea	<i>preisii</i> over tusso	ck grasses an	d herbs on granite outcropping and cobbles with some	
	Bare Soil	90					
% Ground	Litter	Low (< 10%)					
Cover	Canopy Cover						
	Understorey	10	4000	C.C.			
	No exposed rock	х		SEP CO			
	<20% exposed rock				a chill		
Rocks	20-50% exposed rock					A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL	
	>50% exposed rock			Street of		the state of the s	
	Boulders / Rocks %					The second se	
	Surface Stones	Cobbles (51-250mm)	Veza	New Array of Concerning	San Sanah		
Soil	Туре	Loam					
	Colour	Red					
	Water Impacts					Vegetation	
	Fire Presence	No Evidence	Stratum	Form	Height	Species	
	Woody Debris			Tues	. 6	Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia fuscaneura, Acacia	
Hahitat	Grazing		Upper	Tree	>6m	incurvaneura × mulganeura tall sparse shrubland	
Features	Rock Crevices		Middlo	Shruh	>2m	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii,	
	Burrowing Suitability	Moderate	windule	511100	~2111	Psydrax latifolia low sparse shrubland.	
	Large trees present	Yes					
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)		Ground				

Site	Landfo	orm	C	ondition	Habitat		
HA11	Plai	n	E	xcellent	Open Shrubland		
Description	Open woodland of Euco termitaria present.	alyptus wandoo over X	anthorrhoea	<i>preisii</i> over tussoo	ck grasses an	d herbs on granite outcropping and cobbles with some	
	Bare Soil	90	_				
% Ground	Litter	Low (< 10%)	_				
Cover	Canopy Cover			Real Anna State	Altre.		
	Understorey	5		nen i staat if Nik	Wall the go		
	No exposed rock	х			Carles &		
	<20% exposed rock					A SHE ALL AND A SHE	
Rocks	20-50% exposed rock			1224	WK 7		
	>50% exposed rock						
	Boulders / Rocks %				-		
	Surface Stones	Pebbles (0-50mm)					
Soil	Туре	Loam					
5011	Colour	Red	The second	and an and a second	and the second s	and the second	
	Water Impacts					Vegetation	
	Fire Presence	No Evidence	Stratum	Form	Height	Species	
	Woody Debris	Low (< 10%)		<b>T</b>	. 10	Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia fuscaneura, Acacia	
Hahitat	Grazing		Upper	Iree	>10m	incurvaneura × mulganeura tall sparse shrubland	
Features	Rock Crevices		Middlo	Shruh	>2m	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Psydrax	
	Burrowing Suitability	Moderate	windule	5111.00	~2111	latifolia low sparse shrubland	
	Large trees present			_			
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)		Ground	Grasses	0.75m		

Site	Landform		Condition		Habitat		
HA12	Plai	in	E	xcellent	Open Shrubland		
Description	open mulga woodland/ ad	cacia shrubland with A ar	ieura over sca	attered herbs and tus	sock grasses		
	Bare Soil	90	in the second				
% Ground	Litter	Low (< 10%)					
Cover	Canopy Cover		Sec.			A SAL AND THE SAL	
	Understorey	5	Mar .	Martines.			
	No exposed rock	х		A Reg	and the second		
Rocks	<20% exposed rock				St. 12	A PRESIDENT AND	
	20-50% exposed rock				T	Man and the second seco	
	>50% exposed rock				A A	A - A	
	Boulders / Rocks %						
	Surface Stones	Pebbles (0-50mm)					
<b>A</b> 11	Туре	Loam		Notes of the	THE REAL		
Soil	Colour	Red			Contraction of the		
	Water Impacts					Vegetation	
	Fire Presence	No Evidence	Stratum	Form	Height	Species	
	Woody Debris	Low (< 10%)	Unnor	Troo	>10m	Acacia incurvaneura, Acacia fuscaneura, Acacia	
Hahitat	Grazing		Obhei	nee	>10111	incurvaneura × mulganeura tall sparse shrubland	
Features	Rock Crevices		N 4: d d l a	Chruch	<b>2</b> Jan	Eremophila georgei, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Psydrax	
	Burrowing Suitability	Moderate	Middle	Shrub	>2m	latifolia low sparse shrubland	
	Large trees present				0.75m		
	Tree Hollows (>10cm)		Ground	Grasses			



Biologic Environmental Survey Pty Ltd PO Box 179 Floreat, WA, 6014

15<sup>th</sup> April 2019
Attn: Jeremy Shepherdson
Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd
3 Glenunga Way
Craigie WA 6025

## Dear Jeremy,

Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd (Ecotec) are currently undertaking approvals for Fenix Resources Ltd (Fenix) for tenement M20/118 (the Project Area) within the Murchison bioregion, Western Australia. Ecotec has commissioned Biologic Environmental Survey Pty Ltd (Biologic) to undertake a status review of the trapdoor spider *Idiosoma nigrum* Main 1952 (shield-backed trapdoor spider) and an assessment of further survey requirements for the species, taking into account the survey work undertaken by Biologic for this species at the Project Area (Biologic, 2012). This letter presents the results of that status review and assessment.

In 2012, Biologic undertook a targeted *Idiosoma nigrum* survey at tenement M20/118 for Atlas Iron Ltd. This work provided a comprehensive assessment of the *I. nigrum* population at the Project Area taking into account previous work undertaken (Bamford, 2009; Ecologia, 2009) and the greater population throughout Weld Range. This work was required at the time as *I. nigrum* was listed under Schedule 1 of the WA Wildlife Conservation Act 1950 as Vulnerable.

In 2018, a conservation systematics review was published (Rix *et al.*, 2018) that detailed the revision of the genus *Idiosoma*. One of the results of this review was that *Idiosoma nigrum* was shown to contain multiple species and *I. nigrum* was relimited to include only those populations within the central and central-western Wheatbelt bioregion (Figure 1) (Rix *et al.*, 2018). The *Idiosoma* populations recorded through the Murchison bioregion and the northern sections of the Yalgoo bioregion, which includes the Project Area, are now regarded as *Idiosoma clypeatum* Rix and Harvey, 2018 (Figure 1), and now commonly referred to as the northern shield-backed

trapdoor spider. The review included an examination of material from Weld Range and Rix *et al.* (2018) concluded that *I. clypeatum* is the only known species from this genus in the Murchison bioregion.



**Figure 1:** The known distribution of *Idiosoma nigrum* and *I. clypeatum* (from Rix *et al.* 2018). The large green circle identifies the approximate location of the Project Area.

*Idiosoma clypeatum* has a widespread distribution in Western Australia's inland arid zone, extending from near Paynes Find, the Blue Hill Range, Kadji Kadji Nature Reserve, and Karara in the south, north and north-east to at least Coolcalalaya Homestead, Jack Hills, Albion Downs, Yakabindie, and Yeelirrie (Rix *et al.*, 2018) (Figure 1). This distribution appears to correlate strongly with an annual rainfall of less than 250 mm (Rix *et al.*, 2018) making it one of the most arid adapted species of the genus *Idiosoma*.

In 2017, *Idiosoma clypeatum* was formally assessed as 'priority 3' fauna using a standard International Union for the Conservation of Nature (IUCN) approach and is currently listed as such under the Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016 (BC Act); specially protected fauna under section 13(1). Rix *et al.* (2018) concluded that while the species' extent of occurrence of over 120,000 km<sup>2</sup> excludes it from consideration as threatened under Criterion B, a 'priority 3' recommendation was made due to the occurrence of the species in areas prospective for mining and mineral resources. Rix

*et al.* (2018) also concluded that close assessment under Criteria A and B is warranted in the future.

Priority 3 fauna are regarded as "Poorly-known species" and defined as follows;

 Species that are known from several locations, and the species does not appear to be under imminent threat, or from few but widespread locations with either large population size or significant remaining areas of apparently suitable habitat, much of it not under imminent threat. Species may be included if they are comparatively well known from several locations but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and known threatening processes exist that could affect them. Such species are in need of further survey (DBCA, 2019).

Based on this assessment, it can be concluded that the species of *Idiosoma* present within the Project Area is *Idiosoma clypeatum*, which is currently regarded as 'priority 3' under the BC Act. While species under this ranking are regarded as in need of further survey, the extent of survey work previously undertaken at the Project Area can be regarded as adequate for an approval.

In conclusion, further survey work is regarded as not required; however, the previous report provided by Biologic (Biologic, 2012), which also incorporated the previous survey work (Bamford, 2009; Ecologia, 2009), could be updated to reflect the current conservation status.

If you have any queries, please do not hesitate to get in contact.

Yours sincerely,

Brad Durrant Managing Director Brad@biologicenv.com.au 0417 998 440

## References

Bamford Consulting Ecologists (2009) Weld Range Direct Shipping Ore Project. Targeted Shield-backed Trapdoor Spider, SRE Invertebrate and Vertebrate Fauna Survey: September 2009. Report to Atlas Iron Limited.

Biologic (2012) Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey. Report to Atlas Iron Limited.

- Ecologia Environment (2009b) Weld Range Iron Ore Project. The Shield-back Spider Idiosoma nigrum Targeted Survey: October 2009. Report to Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd (SMC).
- DBCA (2019) Conservation Codes for Western Australian Flora and Fauna.
- Rix MG, Huey JA, Cooper SJB, Austin AD, Harvey MS (2018) Conservation systematics of the shield-backed trapdoor spiders of the *nigrum*-group (Mygalomorphae, Idiopidae, *Idiosoma*): integrative taxonomy reveals a diverse and threatened fauna from south-western Australia. ZooKeys 756: 1– 121. <u>https://doi.org/10.3897/zookeys.756.24397</u>
- Western Australian Government Gazette (2018) Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018, 11 September 2018. <u>https://www.dpaw.wa.gov.au/plants-and-animals/threatened-species-and-communities/threatened-animals?view=categories&id=109</u> [accessed April 2019]

# biologic

Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey

**Atlas Iron Limited** 

June 2012









DOCUMENT STATUS								
Version	Author	Review / Approved for	Approved for Issue to					
No.	Addibi	Issue	Name	Date				
1	Brad Durrant	Jessica Oates	Michelle Rigo	30/11/2011				
2	Brad Durrant	Morgan O'Connell	Clare Grosser	22/06/2012				

### **IMPORTANT NOTE**

Apart from fair dealing for the purposes of private study, research, criticism, or review as permitted under the Copyright Act, no part of this report, its attachments or appendices may be reproduced by any process without the written consent of Biologic Environmental Survey Pty Ltd ("Biologic"). All enquiries should be directed to Biologic.

We have prepared this report for the sole purposes of BHP Billiton Pty Ltd ("Client") for the specific purpose only for which it is supplied. This report is strictly limited to the Purpose and the facts and matters stated in it and does not apply directly or indirectly and will not be used for any other application, purpose, use or matter.

In preparing this report we have made certain assumptions. We have assumed that all information and documents provided to us by the Client or as a result of a specific request or enquiry were complete, accurate and up-to-date. Where we have obtained information from a government register or database, we have assumed that the information is accurate. Where an assumption has been made, we have not made any independent investigations with respect to the matters the subject of that assumption. We are not aware of any reason why any of the assumptions are incorrect.

This report is presented without the assumption of a duty of care to any other person (other than the Client) ("Third Party"). The report may not contain sufficient information for the purposes of a Third Party or for other uses. Without the prior written consent of Biologic:

- a) this report may not be relied on by a Third Party; and
- b) Biologic will not be liable to a Third Party for any loss, damage, liability or claim arising out of or incidental to a Third Party publishing, using or relying on the facts, content, opinions or subject matter contained in this report.

If a Third Party uses or relies on the facts, content, opinions or subject matter contained in this report with or without the consent of Biologic, Biologic disclaims all risk and the Third Party assumes all risk and releases and indemnifies and agrees to keep indemnified Biologic from any loss, damage, claim or liability arising directly or indirectly from the use of or reliance on this report.

In this note, a reference to loss and damage includes past and prospective economic loss, loss of profits, damage to property, injury to any person (including death) costs and expenses incurred in taking measures to prevent, mitigate or rectify any harm, loss of opportunity, legal costs, compensation, interest and any other direct, indirect, consequential or financial or other loss.



biologic Weld Range *Idiosoma nigrum* Survey Report

# **Table of Contents**

1	Int	rodu	uction	7
	1.1	Ва	ckground	7
	1.	1.1	Idiosoma nigrum	7
	1.2	Sc	ope	.10
	1.3	Stu	udy Area	.10
2	Da	itaba	ase Review	.14
	2.1	As	sessment Methods of Previous Studies	.14
	2.′	1.1	Ecologia SMC Idiosoma nigrum Survey	.14
	2.′	1.2	Bamford Idiosoma nigrum Survey	.15
	2.2	Bic	blogic Assessment Methods	.17
3	Re	sult	s and Discussion	.19
	3.1	Pre	evious Survey Results	.19
	3.′	1.1	Ecologia SMC Idiosoma nigrum Survey (2009b, 2010)	.19
	3.′	1.2	Bamford Idiosoma nigrum Survey	.20
	3.2	Bic	blogic Survey Results and Discussion	.23
	3.2	2.1	Burrow Numbers and Occurrence	.23
	3.2	2.2	Population Structure and Size	.28
4	Сс	onclu	usions	.32
5	Re	fere	ences	.34



# LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1.1: Weld Range Study Area	.12
Figure 1.2: Floristic Community Types (FCT) (Woodman 2008)	.13
Figure 2.1: Ecologia (2009b; 2010) Survey Area	.16
Figure 2.2: Bamford (2009) and Biologic (2011) Study Area	.18
Figure 3.1: Ecologia (2009b) Survey Results	.22
Figure 3.2: Bamford (2009) and Biologic (2011) Survey Results.	.25
Figure 3.3: Vegetation Map of the Study Area; from Woodman (2008)	.27
Figure 3.4: Vegetation Map for the Weld Range; from Ecologia (2009c)	.29

# LIST OF TABLES

Table 1.1: Percentage mortality over several years for each life stage; after	r Main
(2003)	9
Table 1.2: Size classes for each life stage; after Main (2003)	9
Table 3.1: Location and burrow numbers in each cluster	24
Table 3.2: Extrapolated population size for Bamford (2009) and Biologic (	(2011)
data	30



# **Executive Summary**

Biologic Environmental Survey (Biologic) was commissioned by Atlas Iron Limited (Atlas) to conduct a targeted *Idiosoma nigrum* Main 1952 (shield-backed trapdoor spider) survey and prepare an impact assessment for the Weld Range Project (Weld Range). Atlas's Weld Range tenement M20/118, hereafter referred to as the *Study Area*, (Figure 1.1) forms part of the Weld Range, which lies in the Murchison Biogeographic Region in the Arid zone of Western Australia. The *Study Area* is approximately 2km long and 600m wide, running in a north-east to south-west direction.

The objective of this survey report was to detail the results of Biologic's *I. nigrum* survey, consolidate these data with previous *I. nigrum* survey data in the area, report on the distribution of the species in, and adjacent to, the *Study Area* and apply a valid extrapolation to the data to allow an accurate indication of the size of the local population.

*Idiosoma nigrum* was found throughout the Weld Range but within the *Study Area* it showed a high variation in density with the north-eastern corner containing the majority of burrows recorded by both Bamford (2009) and Biologic (2011).

All three studies found a strong association with *Acacia* vegetation, although results from Bamford (2009) and Biologic (2011) data indicated a more specific association with *Acacia* sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994). The vegetation data from Ecologia (2009c) and Woodman (2009) both show vegetation communities dominated by *A.* sp. Weld Range are widespread throughout the Weld Range. The Ecologia (2009c) vegetation data also indicates a strong likelihood that the *I. nigrum* population in the *Study Area* continues into the adjacent Weld Range area due to this association with *A.* sp. Weld Range, as it appears to form part of a population continuing to the north-east.



This connectivity with the *I. nigrum* populations adjacent to the *Study Area,* likely continues throughout much of the Weld Range, with the genetic work conducted by Ecologia (2010) indicating that gene flow in the central part of the Range (which includes the *Study Area*) appears to be continuous.

The loss of the I. nigrum population within the *Study Area* would be unlikely to affect the viability of the adjacent population, in either the short or long term, due to the size and likely connectivity with much of the central Weld Range.



# **1 INTRODUCTION**

# 1.1 Background

Biologic Environmental Survey (Biologic) was commissioned by Atlas Iron Limited (Atlas) to conduct a targeted *Idiosoma nigrum* (shield-backed trapdoor spider) survey and prepare an impact assessment for the Weld Range Project (Weld Range). Weld Range is located on Glen Station, within the Murchison Bioregion, approximately 56 kilometres (km) north north-west of the township of Cue.

This impact assessment is based on previously completed survey work:

- Ecologia Environment (Ecologia), Sinosteel Weld Range Iron Ore Project. The Shield-back Spider Idiosoma nigrum Targeted Survey (2009a);
- Bamford Consulting Ecologists (Bamford) Weld Range Direct Shipping Ore Project. Targeted Shield-backed Trapdoor Spider, SRE Invertebrate and Vertebrate Fauna Survey: (2009),

; as well as recent *I. nigrum* survey work carried out by Biologic.

The objective of this impact assessment was to determine the level of risk to *I. nigrum* associated with the Weld Range Proposal using survey and habitat data collected by Ecologia (2009), Bamford (2009) and Biologic (2011).

# 1.1.1 Idiosoma nigrum

*Idiosoma nigrum* is regarded as one of the most arid-adapted mygalomorph spiders in Australia (Main 1982). This adaptability has allowed the species to survive the aridification of Western Australia (Main 1982), particularly in the arid Murchison Region where its distribution is now restricted to some Banded Ironstone Formation (BIF) ranges and breakaways. In particular, it is the species' unique abdomen that is the greatest adaptation, a highly sclerotized "shield" that



# biologic

Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey Report

reduces water loss through evaporation and provides protection by allowing the individual to "plug" the inside of the burrow (also known as phragmosing) to stop predators entering. Other characteristics that have increased the species ability to survive in arid environments include building deep burrows, up to 32cm (DEWHA 2011), that allow greater control over temperature and humidity, "twig-lining" burrows to increase foraging capacity (DEWHA 2011) and larger eyes and longer legs which give a greater ability to capture prey.

Despite these adaptations, this species has biological characteristics that impinge on its ability to reproduce and disperse, characteristics that are common in short-range endemic (SRE) species, i.e. species that have limited distributions (Harvey 2002). These biological traits include:

- time to reach maturity: typically five to six years for both males and females, during which there is a high mortality rate (Main 2003) (Table 1.1);
- low dispersal capabilities: emergent spiderlings generally establish a burrow within several centimetres of the matriarch female (as they lack the ability to disperse aerially), forming distinct clusters (Main 1982, 2003);
- low genetic flow: gene flow is facilitated by the dispersal of males when sexual maturity is reached but appears to only occur over small distances, possibly no greater than 500m (B. Main 2010 pers. comm.); and
- limited fecundity: it is likely that mature females only reproduce every second year, and then only until they are around 20 years of age (Main 2003).

Much of the ecological and biological information for *I. nigrum* was collected as part of a study at East Yorkrakine Nature Reserve over several years (Main 2003). This also included establishing the size classes for emergent spiderlings,



juveniles and adults using trapdoor and lumen (internal diameter of a burrow) sizes (Table 1.2).

Table 1.1: Percentage	mortality over	several years	for each l	ife stage; a	after
Main (2003).					

	1989/ 1990	1990/ 1991	1991/ 1992	1992/ 1993	1993/ 1994	Average
Emergents	85%	65%	25%	57%	50%	56%
Juveniles	30%	36%	77%	39%	33%	43%
Adults	30%	36%	19%	40%	20%	29%

Table 1.2: Size classes for each life stage; after Main (2003).

	Emergents	Juveniles	Adults
Door (mm)	≤ 14	15 – 20	≥ 21
Lumen (mm)	≤ 10	11 – 14	≥ 15
Age (years)	< 1	1 – 5 or 6	> 5 or 6

*Idiosoma nigrum* is listed under Schedule 1 of the WA *Wildlife Conservation Act 1950* as Vulnerable. The species is currently known from the central and northern Wheatbelt, and the coastal and interior Midwest, extending into the north-eastern Goldfields. Within the Wheatbelt, the species is in decline largely due to land fragmentation and degradation (Main 1987, 1991; Yen 1995) primarily through cropping, grazing and salinisation. In the Midwest and Goldfields, populations rarely occur away from the ranges and breakaways,



making them highly isolated and can be confidently regarded as separate populations with little, if any, gene flow.

# 1.2 Scope

To conduct a survey for *I nigrum*, consolidate previous survey data for I nigrum and:

- ground-truth any changes to the population density of *I. nigrum* in the *Study Area*;
- provide a more robust dataset to allow a valid extrapolation of *I. nigrum* numbers; and
- complete a detailed report on the distribution of *I. nigrum* burrows within the *Study Area*.

This survey was conducted within the Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) framework guidelines relevant to fauna survey work (EPA 2002; 2004).

# 1.3 Study Area

Atlas's Weld Range tenement M20/118 (Figure 1.1) forms part of the Weld Range, which lies in the Murchison Biogeographic Region in the Arid zone of Western Australia. The *Study Area* is approximately 2km long and 600m wide, running in a north-east to south-west direction.

The *Study Area* consists of ironstone ridges, valleys, lower slopes, plains and minor drainage lines with some outcropping along the ridges. Although mostly intact, there is an excavated mine pit in the central ridge area, along with several cleared tracks and cleared pads.

In 2008, Woodman Environmental Consulting (Woodman) conducted a flora and vegetation assessment of the Study Area. Five Floristic Community Types (FCT) were identified from the Study Area (Figure 1.2):

• FCT 5: Open tall shrubland of *Acacia aneura* with emergent low trees of *Acacia pruinocarpa* over open mid shrubland of *Thryptomene decussate*,



Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey Report

*Eremophila latrobei* subsp. *latrobei* over sparse low shrubland of *Sida* sp. *excedentifolia* (J.L. Egan 1925) over open low forbland of *Goodenia tenuiloba*, *Goodenia macroplectra* and *Monachather paradoxus*. Occurs on Lower slopes, flats and outwashes, occasionally upper and mid slopes.

- FCT 6a: Open tall shrubland of Acacia aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. *linophylla* over sparse mid shrubland of *Ptilotus obovatus* over open low forbland of *Goodenia tenuiloba* and *Monachather paradoxus*. Occurs on Lower slopes, flats and outwashes, occasionally upper and mid slopes.
- FCT 6b: Open tall shrubland of Acacia aneura and Acacia ramulosa var. *linophylla* over open mid shrubland of mixed Eremophila spp. over open to sparse low shrubland of Ptilotus obovatus over open low forbland of Cheilanthes sieberi, Goodenia tenuiloba and Monachather paradoxus. Occurs on Upper and mid slopes, occasionally lower xlopes.
- FCT 7: Open tall shrubland of Acacia aneura with emergent low trees of Acacia pruinocarpa, over low shrubland of Ptilotus obovatus and Eremophila spp. over open low forbland of Goodenia tenuiloba, Lepidium oxytrichum and Enneapogon caerulescens. Occurs on Steep upper slopes, hill crests.
- FCT 8: Open tall shrubland of Acacia sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S. Dillon 2994) and Acacia speckii over open mid shrubland of Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata and mixed Senna spp. over open low shrubland of Ptilotus obovatus and Heliotropium ovalifolium over open low forbland of Goodenia tenuiloba, Velleia glabrata and Ptilotus helipteroides. Generally occurs on mid and lower slopes, occasionally upper slopes to crests, creeklines and colluvial fans.







# Figure 1.2: Floristic Community Types (FCT) (Woodman 2008)


#### 2 DATABASE REVIEW

A search of the Department of Environment and Conservation's (DEC) *Naturemap* was conducted for records of *I. nigrum* in the vicinity of Weld Range. A radius of 40km was searched, with the *Study Area* used as the centroid, which covered the entire length of Weld Range.

The search revealed 1529 records of *I. nigrum*, all confined to Weld Range and extending along the entire length (ca. 60km). All records were collected in 2007, 2009 and 2010 indicating they are likely to have been all recorded as part of Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd's (SMC) Weld Range Iron Ore Project (2009a), which is discussed in more detail in Section 2.2.

Beyond the Weld Range the closest record of *I. nigrum*, according to *Naturemap*, is Jack Hills, approximately 100km to the north.

#### 2.1 Assessment Methods of Previous Studies

Two *I. nigrum* surveys have previously taken place in the vicinity of the *Study Area*.

#### 2.1.1 Ecologia SMC *Idiosoma nigrum* Survey

The first survey was conducted by Ecologia for SMC's Weld Range Iron Ore Project (Ecologia 2009a; 2009b; 2010). *Idiosoma nigrum* was first recorded at Weld Range during SMC's baseline SRE survey (Ecologia 2009a), which prompted a targeted *I. nigrum* survey (Ecologia 2009b), followed by a population genetic study targeting the species (Ecologia 2010).

The survey was conducted across all five sections of Weld Range (Figure 2.1) and covered a total area of 76 hectares (ha). Seventy-five randomly placed 100m x 100m (1ha) quadrats were placed evenly throughout the five sections. Each quadrat was surveyed using five 100m long transects, effectively covering the entire 1ha quadrat.



Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey Report

Data were collected for each transect when burrows were recorded, including burrow measurements and activity, soil type, aspect, leaf litter cover and vegetation. This habitat preference information was then used to extrapolate areas of suitable habitat throughout Weld Range and, in turn, estimate the size of the populations of *I. nigrum* in each section.

A population genetic study was conducted using specimens taken during the previous survey, covering three different sections of Weld Range (Figure 2.1), two in the southern part of Weld Range (Madoonga and W6) and one at Weld Range North (which was further divided into two sites; Northern Ridge and Central Ridge).

For further details on the assessment methods, please refer to Ecologia (2009b and 2010).

#### 2.1.2 Bamford Idiosoma nigrum Survey

The second survey was conducted by Bamford Consulting Ecologists in September 2009. Twelve transects were chosen which covered all major vegetation types and landscape features (hill crests, upper slopes, mid slopes, lower slopes and surrounding plains). A series of 10m x 10m quadrats were surveyed intensively along each transect, at approximately 50m intervals, covering a total of 12,300m<sup>2</sup> (1.23ha) (Figure 2.2).

Burrow measurements and activity were recorded, as well as soil, vegetation and landscape data. This data was used, in conjunction with vegetation mapping by Woodman (2009) to extrapolate population size for the *Study Area*.

For further details on the assessment methods, please refer to Bamford (2009).



Drawn by GSM

GSM Reference FIG 2

Requested by



Weld Range North (North)

8



### Weld Range North

590000



Eunbury W:4 6230 griffinspatial@bigpoud.com +61 (0) 8 9725 3213

585000



#### 2.2 Biologic Assessment Methods

Targeted searches for *I. nigrum* were conducted in the *Study Area* on the 25<sup>th</sup> and 26<sup>th</sup> of September 2011. Six transects were run between the north-eastern and south-western boundaries (Figure 2.2), covering all major vegetation and habitat types in the *Study Area*. Areas of high disturbance or habitats where spiders would not be found were avoided. Altogether, approximately 11,500m of transects were surveyed to a width of two metres giving a total survey area of approximately 23,000m<sup>2</sup> (2.3ha). The numbers of trees visited were also recorded, to a total number of 1,117 across all transects.

Each transect was surveyed to a width of two metres and ran from tree to tree so as to maximise the possibility of finding burrows. When a burrow was located a radius of two metres was surveyed to record all burrows within the cluster.

Each burrow had measurements taken, internal diameter (lumen) and external diameter (trap door), twig lining type (what type of phyllodes used), activity (active, sealed or inactive) and topographical position and vegetation characteristics.

Population size was estimated using the following:

 $(A_f / A_s) \times N_s = N_f$ , where:

 $A_f$  = the area (ha) of the favourable habitat in the Study Area, based on Woodman (2008);

 $A_s$  = the area (ha) of the transects searched;

 $N_s$  = the number of burrows within the transects (search area); and

 $N_f$  = the number of estimated burrows within the favourable habitat.





#### 3 RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

#### 3.1 **Previous Survey Results**

#### 3.1.1 Ecologia SMC Idiosoma nigrum Survey (2009b, 2010)

A total of 1708 burrows of *I. nigrum* were recorded from the five sections of the Weld Range *Study Area* (Figure 3.1). This study found that all *I. nigrum* burrows were found within the boundaries of drainage lines and underneath *Acacia* vegetation (*A. aneura* var. *aneura*, *A. ramulosa* var. *imophylla* and *A.* sp. Weld Range). All burrows were found on the southern aspect of the range, except in one section (Weld Range North) which has a north-south orientation. Results show that the hilltops were the least likely habitat to have *I. nigrum* burrows, with the slopes and plains the most likely. Similarly, habitats without clayey soil or rock were least likely to have *I. nigrum* burrows, compared to those that have a combination of these two soil characteristics, although the presence of sand also appears to reduce the likelihood.

Population numbers varied amongst the sections, ranging from 658 burrows at Weld Range North to 170 burrows at Hampton Hill. Likewise the population structure varied within each section, with the populations at Weld Range North and Hampton Hill regarded as growing populations, due to the higher numbers of emergents and juveniles to adults, which compared to the deficit of juveniles at the Madoonga and Wilgie Mia sections.. It was concluded that these two latter populations are in decline because of this deficit.

The effective population sizes were smallest for Beebyn (274  $\pm$  197), Hampton Hill (439  $\pm$  126) and Madoonga (642  $\pm$  250), and it was concluded that they may be regarded as being in danger of genetic inbreeding if the population sizes decreased further. The population sizes at Weld Range North (1078  $\pm$  456) and Wilgie Mia (2387  $\pm$  436) were both considered well above the short-term and long-term requirements to maintain an effective population, although it was



cautioned that the deficit of juveniles at Wilgie Mia may impact upon that if it continues.

The genetic study conducted at Weld Range (Ecologia 2010) found significant population subdivision between the Weld Range South sites and the Weld Range North sites, no subdivision between the two Weld Range North sites and a small subdivision between the two Weld Range South sites. It was concluded that while distance does play a part in creating genetic distance, the geographical barrier (in this case a break in the range, likely created by a drainage line) separating Weld Range North and Weld Range South (indicated on Figure 3.1 as the line separating the Weld Range North and Beebyn sections) plays a very significant role. It was also suggested that as a similar geographical barrier exists at the southern end of Weld Range, separating Weld Range South and Hampton Hill (indicated on Figure 3.1 just to the east of the line separating the Hampton Hill and Madoonga sections), these populations will likely have a similar level of subdivision to that between Weld Range North and Weld Range South. Ecologia (2010) concluded that it is highly likely that there are three distinct populations at Weld Range (Hampton Hill, Weld Range South and Weld Range North) with little genetic variation within each population, likely due to the lack of geographical barriers.

#### 3.1.2 Bamford Idiosoma nigrum Survey

A total of 135 burrows (113 active) of *I. nigrum* were recorded in the *Study Area*, plus an additional ten burrows between quadrats (Figure 3.2). Of the 123 quadrats only 19 had active burrows recorded in them.

The majority of the burrows were recorded in the north-east section of the *Study Area*, largely confined to the mid and lower slopes of the adjacent valley and the valley floor within the drainage line. The majority of the burrows (90) were also found associated with *A*. sp. Weld Range and within floristic community FCT 8, described as: Open tall shrubland of *A*. sp. Weld Range (A. Markey & S.Dillon



# <u>biologic</u>

Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey Report

2994) and *A. speckii* over open mid shrubland of *Eremophila mackinlayi* subsp. *spathulata* and mixed *Senna* spp. over open low shrubland of *Ptilotus obovatus* and *Heliotropium ovalifolium* over open low forbland of *Goodenia tenuiloba*, *Velleia glabrata* and *Ptilotus heliperoides*. Thirty nine burrows were recorded associated with *A. aneura*. Burrows were





also concentrated in areas of gravelly-loam soil and were not recorded in very rocky areas (generally upper slopes and crests) and areas with a lot of clay (lower slopes and plain).

The population structure recorded in the *Study Area* showed a higher number of emergent and juveniles to adults, suggesting a growing population. The extrapolated population size was determined as being 595 spiders/ha, based on the density in occupied areas and ignoring areas where spiders were not found. A conservative estimate of the amount of suitable habitat in the *Study Area* was set at 23%, based on 23% of the quadrats searched containing spiders. These figures were used to formulate a minimum population size in the *Study Area* of 14,994 spiders.

#### 3.2 Biologic Survey Results and Discussion

#### 3.2.1 Burrow Numbers and Occurrence

A total of 105 burrows of *I. nigrum* (104 active and 17 of those sealed) were recorded in the *Study Area* (Figure 3.2). The burrows were recorded in 23 distinct clusters in the *Study Area*, with 10 of these consisting of only one burrow and the two largest clusters consisting of 18 and 33 burrows. The average number of burrows in a cluster was 4-5 burrows (Table 3.1). The Study Area was divided into four sections based on the occurrence of *A*. sp. Weld Range (Figure 3.3); three separate sections where *A*. sp. Weld Range occurs (WR1, WR2 and WR3) and the remainder of the Study Area (Non-WR). The occurrence of each cluster in relation to these sections is also in Table 3.1).



Cluster	Easting	Northing	Burrow	Vegetation
number			numbers	section
Cluster 1	568138	7019587	1	Non-WR
Cluster 2	568134	7019666	33	WR3
Cluster 3	568343	7019882	1	WR3
Cluster 4	568290	7019847	5	WR3
Cluster 5	568294	7019853	6	WR3
Cluster 6	568288	7019851	2	WR3
Cluster 7	568286	7019849	5	WR3
Cluster 8	568271	7019831	3	WR3
Cluster 9	568265	7019827	1	WR3
Cluster 10	568184	7019773	3	WR3
Cluster 11	568127	7019763	4	WR3
Cluster 12	567894	7019772	3	WR3
Cluster 13	567879	7019767	1	WR3
Cluster 14	567521	7019685	1	WR2
Cluster 15	567763	7019792	18	WR3
Cluster 16	567860	7019841	1	WR3
Cluster 17	567999	7019855	7	WR3
Cluster 18	568008	7019858	1	WR3
Cluster 19	568027	7019855	4	WR3
Cluster 20	568095	7019835	1	WR3
Cluster 21	568170	7019837	1	WR3
Cluster 22	568179	7019842	1	WR3
Cluster 23	568227	7019871	2	WR3

### Table 3.1: Location and burrow numbers in each cluster.









Only one cluster (Cluster 1; consisting of one burrow) was found outside of floristic community FCT 8 (Non-WR). This was located on the southern slope in the *A. aneura* dominated community FCT 6b. This burrow was the only one recorded that used thin phyllodes (from *A. aneura*) for the twig lines of the trapdoor, all other burrows were associated with *A.* sp. Weld Range, which has wider phyllodes.

As well, the majority of burrows were recorded on the mid and lower slopes of the valley in the north-eastern part of the *Study Area,* and within the most eastern occurrence of FCT 8 (WR3) (Figure 3.2). There were three Clusters outside of this WR3;

- Cluster 1: as mentioned above, in Non-WR;
- Cluster 2: 33 burrows recorded on the boundary of FCT 8 (WR3), but on a flat, upper slope of the *Study Area*, separated from the remainder of WR3; and
- Cluster 14: 1 burrow within the central occurrence of FCT 8 (WR2), on the outskirts of the flat drainage area.

Floristic survey work conducted by Ecologia (2009c) across Weld Range appears to show two types of *A*. sp. Weld Range communities occurring alongside the *Study Area*, community 4a and 4b (Figure 3.4). It should be noted that this study does not cover the *Study Area* but does cover 75% of the boundary, allowing reasonable assumptions to be made, in conjunction with the vegetation surveys carried out by Woodman (2008) (Figure 3.3). Vegetation community 4a (*A*. sp. Weld Range and *A. aneura* var. *macrocarpa* open tall shrubland over *Eremophila macmillianiana* and mixed *Senna* spp. open shrubland over *Ptilotus obovatus* open low shrubland) borders much of the northern and western extent of the *Study Area* and is the dominant community throughout the range, interrupted largely by the stoney ridge tops (which are dominated by *A. aneura*) and drainage lines dominated by the second *A.* sp. Weld Range community (4b).





Figure 3.3: Vegetation Map of the Study Area; from Woodman (2008).

This latter community (4b: *A.* sp. Weld Range and *A. speckii* shrubland over mixed *Senna* spp. sparse shrubland over *Grevillea inconspicua* and *Dodonaea amplisemina* open shrubland over *Cymbopogon ambiguous* sparse tussock grassland) appears to be the one most closely connected to section WR3, where the dense *I. nigrum* population of the *Study Area* occurs. Community 4b is also found throughout Weld Range, although covering smaller areas and largely discontinuous with each other, compared to community 4a. Where community 4a connects with the *Study Area*, appears to be one of the larger continuous occurrences of this community on Weld Range (Figure 3.4). This indicates it is Page 27 of 49



## <u>biologic</u>

Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Survey Report

very likely that the population of I. nigrum, in the north-eastern corner of the *Study Area*, continues for at least another two kilometres to the north-east, and that its occurrence in the *Study Area* is the edge of a large local population of at least 52ha (based on Ecologia's vegetation mapping). Using this data it appears likely that the burrows recorded in the *Study Area* constitute a maximum of 27% of this population.

#### 3.2.2 Population Structure and Size

Based on the lumen measurements of non-sealed burrows (88 burrows) there were 17 emergent burrows, 16 juvenile burrows and 55 adult burrows, giving a ratio of 1:1 for emergent and juveniles, and less than 1:1 for non-adults and adults. This deficit of emergents and juveniles may indicate a declining population, which contrasts with Bamford (2009), which appeared to show a growing population. This difference is more likely an artefact of sampling, where the Bamford (2009) survey may have managed to record more emergent and/or juveniles due to a greater amount of survey time or greater intensity survey work within quadrats. Emergent burrows are also more easily seen just after they have burrowed into the ground, so this may have been a factor.





The size of the population within the *Study Area* was extrapolated from the available data and compared to the estimated population sizes given by Bamford (2009). The Bamford data were also subjected to the same extrapolation method as the Biologic data, to allow a direct comparison.

The three occurrences of FCT 8 are dealt with separately (WR1, WR2 and WR3) (Table 3.1 and Figure 3.3), due to the differences in population densities. The rest of the *Study Area* (Non-WR) is treated as likely to have the same density of burrows throughout.

Table	3.2:	Extrapolated	population	size	for	Bamford	(2009)	and	Biologic
	(201	1) data.							

		Bamf	ord Data	a (2009)	Biologic Data (2011)				
	Total Area (ha) (A <sub>f</sub> )	Burrow Numbers (N <sub>s</sub> )	Search Area (ha) (A <sub>s</sub> )	Estimated. Burrow Numbers (N <sub>f</sub> )	Burrow Numbers (N <sub>s</sub> )	Search Area (ha) (A <sub>s</sub> )	Estimated. Burrow Numbers (N <sub>f</sub> )		
WR1	6.38	3	0.228	84	0	0.134	0		
WR2	8.2	22	0.286	631	1	0.132	62		
WR3	13.68	88	0.582	2,069	103	0.350	4,025		
Non- WR	80.74	8	2.350	275	1	1.681	48		
Total	109	121	3.446	3,059	105	2.297	4,135		

The estimated population sizes for the *Study Area* vary between the two data sets (3,059 for the Bamford data and 4,135 for the Biologic data) but are both much lower than the original Bamford estimate (14,994 spiders) (Table 3.1). This difference is largely due to the original Bamford estimate being based on a more



generalised approach, where all favourable habitat was treated as having the same density of active burrows, which both sets of survey data clearly show is not the case.

Using the Biologic population data, and the extrapolated area of vegetation community 4b adjoining the *Study Area* (as discussed in Section 3.2.1), it is estimated that the population of *I. nigrum* connected to, and occurring in, the *Study Area* is around 14,907 spiders, of which 27% occurs within the *Study Area*.

Beyond this it appears likely that the Study Area population is part of the Central Weld Range population, as identified by Ecologia (2010).



#### 4 CONCLUSIONS

The work that has been carried out in the *Study Area* shows that the majority of the *I. nigrum* population occurring within the *Study Area* is concentrated in the north-eastern corner. This area is dominated by a vegetation community of predominantly *A.* sp. Weld Range, which also occurs in two other sections in the *Study Area*. The other two occurrences of this population have much lower densities of spiders, likely owing to increased disturbance and exposure. Results from the flora survey work conducted by Ecologia (2009c) shows it is likely that these two vegetation community (4a) occurrences are a different type of *A.* sp. Weld Range community to that in the north-eastern corner (community 4b).

Vegetation community results from Ecologia (2009c) also show it is highly likely that this north-eastern occurrence of *A*. sp. Weld Range extends well beyond the *Study Area*, which also illustrates the high level of connectivity between the Study Area and the rest of Weld Range. The genetic work on *I. nigrum*, conducted by Ecologia (2010), demonstrates that gene flow within the central part of Weld Range (which includes the *Study Area*) is largely uninterrupted, indicating dispersal between individuals within this area.

The *I. nigrum* population in the *Study Area* is quite dense, compared to others in Weld Range, and is comparable to Weld Range North. The population age class structure conflicts with the Bamford (2009) data that described a growing population, while the Biologic data showed a stable, or potentially declining, population, but sampling differences between the two surveys may explain this difference. Given the lack of disturbance in the area, and the robust size and density of the population, it is more likely that it is growing rather than declining.

The *Study Area* contains approximately 4,135 burrows (extrapolated from 105 active burrows) and is part of a local *I. nigrum* population of approximately 14,907 burrows that continues to the north-east of the *Study Area*. This is largely



based on what appears to be a close association with *A.* sp. Weld Range. The vegetation survey and genetic work by Ecologia (2009c and 2010 respectively) also show that this local population is likely to be part of the greater Central Weld Range population, as identified by Ecologia (2010).

The loss of the *I. nigrum* community within the *Study Area* would be unlikely to affect the long term viability of the local *I. nigrum* population (which would be reduced by approximately 27%) due to the size and connectivity of the population outside the *Study Area*, both at a local population level and as part of the Central Weld Range population.



#### 5 **REFERENCES**

- Bamford Consulting Ecologists (2009) Weld Range Direct Shipping Ore Project.Targeted Shield-backed Trapdoor Spider, SRE Invertebrate andVertebrate Fauna Survey: September 2009. Report to Atlas Iron Limited.
- DEWHA (2011) Idiosoma nigrum, Shield-backed Trapdoor Spider, Black Rugose Trapdoor Spider. Species Bank, Department of Environment, Water, Heritage and the Arts. Accessed 19 October 2011. http://www.environment.gov.au/cgi-bin/species-bank/sbanktreatment2.pl?id=66798
- Ecologia Environment (2009a) Weld Range Iron Ore Project. Short-range Endemic Assessment; March 2009. Report to Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd (SMC).
- Ecologia Environment (2009b) Weld Range Iron Ore Project. The Shield-back Spider *Idiosoma nigrum* Targeted Survey: October 2009. Report to Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd (SMC).
- Ecologia Environment (2009c) Weld Range Vegetation and Flora Assessment; November 2009. Report to Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd (SMC).
- Ecologia Environment (2010) Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum Population Genetic Study: April 2010. Report to Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd (SMC).
- EPA (2002) Position Statement No. 3 Terrestrial Biological Surveys as an element of Biodiversity Protection. Environmental Protection Authority, Perth.
- EPA (2004) Guidance for the Assessment of Environmental Factors No. 56: Terrestrial Fauna Surveys for Environmental Impact Assessment in Western Australia. Environmental Protection Authority, Perth.



- Harvey M. S. (2002) Short-range endemism among the Australian fauna: some examples from non-marine environments. Invertebrate Systematics 16: 555-570.
- Main, B. Y. (1982) Adaptations to arid habitats by mygalomorph spiders. Pp. 273-283. In W. R. Baker and P. J. Greenslade, eds. *Evolution of the Flora and Fauna of Arid Australia*. Peacock Publications, Frewville, South Australia.
- Main, B. Y. (1987) Persistence of invertebrates in small areas. Pp. 29-39. In D.A.
  Saunders, G.W. Arnold, A.A. Burbidge and A.J.M. Hopkins eds. *Nature Conservation: The Role of Remnants of Native Vegetation*. Surrey Beatty & Sons Pty Ltd, Chipping North, NSW
- Main, B.Y. (1991) Trapdoor spiders in remnant vegetation of the Western Australian Wheatbelt. WEB (National Bulletin) 2: 8-9. Threatened Species Network.
- Main, B.Y. (2003) Demography of the Shield-back trapdoor spider *Idiosoma* nigrum Main in remnant vegetation of the Western Australian Wheatbelt.
   Records of the South Australian Museum Monograph series 7:179-185.
- Woodman Environmental Consulting (2008) Weld DSO Project. Flora and Vegetation Assessment. Report to Atlas Iron Limited.
- Yen, A.L. (1995) Australian spiders: An opportunity for conservation. Records of the Western Australian Museum. Supplement 52: 39-49.



biologic

### Appendix A: Idiosoma nigrum burrow data (Biologic 2012)

Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	eter Vegetation typ		Phyllode type		÷
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)					
Cluster 01	active	568138	7019587	25.7	17.7	Acacia aneu	ira	Thin (A	cacia anei	ura)
						Acacia sp	. Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	inactive	568134	7019666	18.9		Range		Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia sp	. Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568134	7019666	14.7	10.2	Range		Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia sp. Weld		Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568134	7019666	26	17.7	Range		Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia sp	. Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568134	7019666	12.5	11.7	Range		Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia sp	. Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568134	7019666	14.4	11.8	Range		Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia sp	. Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568134	7019666	14.1	10.4	Range		Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia sp	. Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568134	7019666	16.5	11.4	Range		Weld R	ange)	

Page 35 of 48



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	eter Vegetation ty		Internal diameter Vegetation type Phy		Phyllode type
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)					
						Acacia sp.	Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568134	7019666	23.9	17.7	Range		Weld Range)		
						Acacia sp.	Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568139	7019663	23.7	18.2	Range		Weld Range)		
						Acacia sp.	Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568139	7019663	23.8	18.6	Range		Weld Range)		
						Acacia sp. We		Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568139	7019663	12.2	7.7	Range		Weld Range)		
						<i>Acacia</i> sp.	Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568139	7019663	27.2	18.7	Range		Weld Range)		
						Acacia sp.	Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019664	21.8	16.7	Range		Weld Range)		
						Acacia sp.	Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019664	30	22.6	Range		Weld Range)		
						Acacia sp.	Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019664	15.3	9.1	Range		Weld Range)		



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	eter Vegetation ty		iameter Vegetation type Phyllo		Phyllode type
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)					
						<i>Acacia</i> sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019664	14.1	11.8	Range		Weld Range)		
						<i>Acacia</i> sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019664	10.9	8.1	Range		Weld Range)		
						<i>Acacia</i> sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	sealed	568133	7019660	8.2		Range		Weld Range)		
						<i>Acacia</i> sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	sealed	568133	7019660	6.7		Range		Weld Range)		
						<i>Acacia</i> sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019660	25.1	19.1	Range		Weld Range)		
						<i>Acacia</i> sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	sealed	568133	7019660	10		Range		Weld Range)		
						<i>Acacia</i> sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568131	7019658	12.6	7.9	Range		Weld Range)		
						<i>Acacia</i> sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.		
Cluster 02	active	568127	7019658	17.7	11.3	Range		Weld Range)		



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	Vegeta	Vegetation type Phy			ode type	•
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)						
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568127	7019658	16.6	12.3	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568127	7019658	25.2	16.8	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019657	24.8	17.2	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia sp. Weld		<i>acia</i> sp. Weld Thi		(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	sealed	568133	7019657	9.7		Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019657	16.1	13	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019657	23.6	18.3	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019657	25.9	17.4	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick (Acacia		sp.
Cluster 02	active	568133	7019657	25.2	18.4	Range			Weld R		



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	eter Vegetation ty			ation type Phyllode typ		
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)						
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	sealed	568135	7019656	7.6		Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 02	active	568135	7019656	15	9.6	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 03	active	568343	7019882	27.8	17.4	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp. Weld		Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 04	active	568290	7019847	25.6	17.9	Range		Range Weld Ran		ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 04	active	568290	7019847	16.4	12.2	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 04	active	568290	7019847	22.8	17.6	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 04	active	568290	7019847	13.6	10.5	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	l Thick ( <i>Acacia</i>		sp.
Cluster 04	active	568290	7019847	20.6	17.3	Range			Weld R		



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	Vegetatio	n type	Phyllode type
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)			
						Acacia sp	o. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.
Cluster 05	active	568294	7019853	24.4	17.9	Range		Weld Range)
						Acacia sp	o. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.
Cluster 05	active	568294	7019853	15	11.7	Range		Weld Range)
						Acacia sp	o. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.
Cluster 05	active	568294	7019853	24	19	Range		Weld Range)
						Acacia sp. We		Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.
Cluster 05	active	568294	7019853	24.9	18.8	Range		Weld Range)
						Acacia sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.
Cluster 05	active	568294	7019853	26.7	19.7	Range		Weld Range)
						Acacia sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.
Cluster 05	sealed	568294	7019853	16.8		Range		Weld Range)
						Acacia sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.
Cluster 06	active	568288	7019851	19.8	13.7	Range		Weld Range)
						Acacia sp	. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.
Cluster 06	sealed	568288	7019851	20.6		Range		Weld Range)



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	Vegeta	ation	type	Phylle	ode type	•		
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)								
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.		
Cluster 07	active	568286	7019849	23.6	18.1	Range			Weld R	ange)			
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.		
Cluster 07	active	568286	7019849	12.4	8.6	Range	ge		Weld R	ange)			
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.		
Cluster 07	sealed	568286	7019849	12.5		Range	ge		Weld R	ange)			
						Acacia sp. Weld		Acacia sp.		Thick	(Acacia	sp.	
Cluster 07	active	568286	7019849	22.6	17.4	Range	Range		Range W		Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.		
Cluster 07	active	568286	7019849	11.8	8.5	Range			Weld R	ange)			
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.		
Cluster 08	active	568271	7019831	24.1	18.1	Range			Weld R	ange)			
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.		
Cluster 08	active	568271	7019831	11.7	7.2	Range			Weld Range)				
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> s		sp.		
Cluster 08	active	568271	7019831	22.6	16.6	Range			Weld R				



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	er Vegetation typ			type Phyllode type		
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)						
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 09	sealed	568265	7019827	11.2		Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 10	sealed	568184	7019773	28.2		Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 10	sealed	568184	7019773	14.7		Range			Weld R	ange)	
						<i>Acacia</i> sp. Weld		r sp. Weld Thi		(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 10	active	568184	7019773	18.9	12.9	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 11	active	568127	7019763	25.5	18.6	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 11	sealed	568127	7019763	20.3		Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 11	active	568127	7019763	12.1	8.1	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick (Acacia		sp.
Cluster 11	active	568127	7019763	27.3	18.2	Range			Weld R		



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	Vegeta	tion t	type	Phylle	ode type	•
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)						
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 12	active	567894	7019772	20.8	16.4	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 12	active	567894	7019772	25.8	19	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 12	active	567894	7019772	26	19.6	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia sp. Weld		acia sp. Weld Thick		(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 13	active	567879	7019767	21.5	14.2	Range		Range Weld Rai		ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 14	active	567521	7019685	25.3	18.3	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	26.1	20	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	22	18.5	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick (Acacia s		sp.
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	24.3	21.1	Range			Weld R		



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	Vegetation type		Phyllode type	
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)				
						Acacia	sp. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.	
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	17.8	11.5	Range		Weld Range)	
						Acacia	sp. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.	
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	9.8	7.5	Range		Weld Range)	
						Acacia	sp. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.	
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	11	8.2	Range		Weld Range)	
						Acacia	sp. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.	
Cluster 15	sealed	567763	7019792	12.4		Range		Weld Range)	
						Acacia	sp. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.	
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	11.5	8.9	Range		Weld Range)	
						Acacia	sp. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.	
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	23.8	18.6	Range		Weld Range)	
						Acacia	sp. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.	
Cluster 15	sealed	567763	7019792	12		Range		Weld Range)	
						Acacia	sp. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.	
Cluster 15	sealed	567763	7019792	18.9		Range		Weld Range)	



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	Vegetation type		Phylle	ode type	•	
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)						
						Acacia	sp. V	Veld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 15	sealed	567763	7019792	18.5		Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp. V	Veld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	23.1	14.9	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp. V	Veld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	12.1	7.1	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp. V	Veld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	22	17.6	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp. V	Veld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	13.9	12.4	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp. V	Veld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	24.7	18.1	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp. V	Veld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 15	active	567763	7019792	25.3	23.3	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp. V	Veld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 16	active	567860	7019841	25.9	19.7	Range			Weld Range)		



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	Vegetation type		Phyll	ode type	÷	
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)						
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 17	active	567999	7019855	26.7	25.1	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 17	active	567999	7019855	25.3	19.4	Range			Weld F	lange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 17	active	567999	7019855	14.4	8.9	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 17	active	567999	7019855	28.7	25.7	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 17	active	567999	7019855	23.8	17.9	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 17	active	567999	7019855	22.9	21.9	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 17	active	568008	7019858	22.8	21.1	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 18	active	568008	7019858	22.8	17.6	Range			Weld Range)		



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter	Internal diameter	Vegetation type		Phylle	ode type	•	
				(lid) (mm)	(lumen) (mm)						
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 19	active	568027	7019855	22.5	20.5	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 19	active	568027	7019855	25.7	23.3	Range			Weld R	ange)	
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 19	active	568027	7019855	28.1	23.1	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 19	active	568027	7019855	17.8	14.5	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 20	active	568095	7019835	24.2	18.9	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 21	active	568170	7019837	24.5	18.6	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 22	active	568179	7019842	24.3	18.2	Range			Weld Range)		
						Acacia	sp.	Weld	Thick	(Acacia	sp.
Cluster 23	active	568227	7019871	22.1	16	Range			Weld Range)		



Cluster	Activity	Easting	Northing	External diameter (lid) (mm)	Internal diameter (lumen) (mm)	Vegetation type	Phyllode type
						<i>Acacia</i> sp. Weld	Thick ( <i>Acacia</i> sp.
Cluster 23	sealed	568227	7019871	25.9	18	Range	Weld Range)
# BEEBYN-W11 IRON ORE PROJECT TARGETED BIOLOGICAL SURVEY



JULY 2024

Revision 0

MANAGEMENT

Prepared by Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd for Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd Level 33, 1 Spring Street Perth WA 6000

# CONTENTS

1.0	Introdu	uction	1
2.0	Existin	g Environment	4
2.1	Clim	ate	4
2.2	Inte	rim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia	5
2.3	Flora	a and Vegetation	5
	2.3.1	Flora	5
	2.3.2	Vegetation	9
2.4	Faur	na	
	2.4.1	Fauna habitat	
3.0	Metho	dology	
3.1	Pers	onnel	
3.2	Desl	ctop review	
3.3	Field	l survey	
3.4	Limi	tations	
4.0	Results		21
4.1	Flora	Э	21
	4.1.1	<i>Beyeria lapidicola</i> – Priority 1	25
	4.1.2	Euphorbia sarcostemmoides – Priority 1	26
	4.1.3	Stenanthemum mediale – Priority 1	26
	4.1.4	Micromyrtus placoides – Priority 3	27
	4.1.5	Prostanthera petrophila – Priority 3	
	4.1.6	Verticordia jamiesonii – Priority 3	
	4.1.7	Acacia speckii – Priority 4	
	4.1.8	Other species of interest	
4.2	Veg	etation	
4.3	Faur	na and habitat	
	4.3.1	Shield-backed trapdoor spider	54
	4.3.2	Malleefowl	57
5.0	Discus	sion	
5.1	Flora	a and vegetation	
5.2	Faur	na and habitat	
6.0	Refere	nces	61

# **FIGURES**

Figure 1.1: The Beebyn W11 Project location	2
Figure 1.2: The proposed layout of the Beebyn W11 Project	3
Figure 2.1: Climatic data for the project area	4
Figure 2.2: Rainfall data for the project area during 2024	5
Figure 2.3: Previously recorded Priority flora locations within the proposed Beebyn-W11 project area.	7
Figure 2.4: Previous Priority flora records within the proposed Beebyn-W11 infrastructure area.	8
Figure 2.5: Previously recorded vegetation types associated with the project area.	11
Figure 2.6: Previously recorded vegetation types associated with the infrastructure area	12
Figure 2.7: Database search records of conservation significant fauna within 30 km of the project area	16
Figure 2.8: Fauna habitat in the project area (APM 2023)	17
Figure 4.1: Priority flora recorded during the survey - overview.	22
Figure 4.2: Priority flora recorded during the survey – mine area	23
Figure 4.3: Track logs of the survey area.	24
Figure 4.4: Vegetation mapping survey points.	38
Figure 4.5: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 1 of 14	39
Figure 4.6: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 2 of 14	40
Figure 4.7: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 3 of 14	41
Figure 4.8: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 4 of 14	42
Figure 4.9: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 5 of 14	43
Figure 4.10: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 6 of 14	44
Figure 4.11: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 7 of 14	45
Figure 4.12: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 8 of 14	46
Figure 4.13: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 9 of 14	47
Figure 4.14: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 10 of 14	48
Figure 4.15: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 11 of 14	49
Figure 4.16: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 12 of 14	50
Figure 4.17: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 13 of 14	51
Figure 4.18: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 14 of 14	52
Figure 4.19: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – vegetation descriptions.	53
Figure 4.19: Locations of Idiosoma clypeatum burrows recorded during the survey.	56
Figure 4.20: Locations of Malleefowl mounds recorded during the survey	58

# TABLES

Table 2.1: Conservation significant flora recorded and potentially occurring in the project area	6
Table 2.2: Vegetation types identified in the project area.	10
Table 2.3: Fauna habitat recorded in the study area	14
Table 2.4: Conservation significant fauna likelihood of occurrence	15
Table 3.1: Study limitations	19
Table 4.1: Priority flora recorded during the survey	21
Table 4.3: Vegetation types recorded during the survey	32

## **APPENDICES**

Appendix 1: Conservation codes for Western Australian flora and fauna

Appendix 2: Flora species recorded during the survey

Appendix 3: Vegetation site descriptions

# 1.0 INTRODUCTION

Fenix Beebyn Pty Ltd (Fenix) is proposing to develop the Beebyn-W11 Iron Ore Project (the Project), approximately 600 km north-east of Perth and 85 km south-west of Meekatharra in the Mid-West Region of Western Australia (Figure 1.1 and Figure 1.2).

Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Limited (SMC) is the registered holder of Mining Lease 51/869. In October 2023, Fenix signed a binding agreement with SMC securing the exclusive right to mine and export up to 10 million dry metric tonnes of iron ore from the high-grade Beebyn-W11 iron ore deposit in the Weld Range (Fenix 2023).

Flora and fauna surveys have been completed in and around the project area and the wider Weld Range. The project area and surrounds have been quite extensively covered by prior biological surveys. The most recent survey, undertaken by Animal Plant Mineral (APM) in November 2023, included flora and vegetation and basic terrestrial fauna survey of most of the project area (APM 2024); however, did not cover the full project area due to revisions of the proposed disturbance footprint after that survey was completed.

Prior to the APM survey, Ecologia Environment Pty Ltd (*ecologia*) conducted Level 2 flora and vegetation surveys of the project area and surrounds between 2006 and 2009 (*ecologia* 2010a); as well as a targeted conservation significant flora survey of exploration drilling in the area.

Fenix engaged Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd (Ecotec) to undertake a targeted flora, vegetation and fauna habitat survey of the project area. The purpose of the survey was to:

- undertake a targeted survey for conservation significant flora and fauna habitat within the project area
- confirm the presence and identity of Hibiscus ?krichauffianus
- refine the vegetation mapping as defined by APM (2024) and ecologia (2010a)
- undertake a targeted survey for Idiosoma clypeatum burrows within the project area
- refine the fauna habitat mapping as defined by APM (2024)
- prepare a report outlining the findings of the assessment.



Figure 1.1: The Beebyn W11 Project location.



Beebyn-W11 Targeted Biological Survey



Figure 1.2: The proposed layout of the Beebyn W11 Project.

# 2.0 EXISTING ENVIRONMENT

## 2.1 Climate

The Project is located in the arid climatic region of Western Australia, characterised by low rainfall and high evaporation. According to the Bureau of Meteorology (BoM), the mean maximum daily temperature in Meekatharra (approximately 73 km north-east of the Project area) is 36.7°C, with a mean minimum daily temperature of 22.3°C. The hottest month is January, with a mean maximum temperature of 38.4°C. The coldest month is July with a mean minimum temperature of 7.5°C and a mean maximum of 19.3°C.

The mean annual rainfall (1948 – 2023) at Meekatharra Airport (BoM weather station # 7045) is 232.2 mm. Average annual evaporation ranges from 2800 mm to 3200 mm (BoM 2024).



Figure 2.1 provides climatic data relevant to the project area (BoM 2024).

Figure 2.1: Climatic data for the project area.

Rainfall recorded during 2024 up to the time of survey is presented in Figure 2.2. A total of 196 mm of rainfall was recorded to July 2024, marginally above the long term average of 185.2 mm for the same period.

Annual rainfall had been well below the mean from 2019-2021 resulting in widespread die off of vegetation across the region. Rainfall in 2022 was above average and then marginally below average in 2023, however the rainfall patterns were not typical, with much of the rainfall occurring at different times to usual. 2024 appears to be following this atypical rainfall pattern with higher than usual rainfall during the winter months.



Figure 2.2: Rainfall data for the project area during 2024.

## 2.2 Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia

The Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia (IBRA) classifies the Australian continent into regions or bioregions on the basis of similar geology, landform, vegetation, fauna and climate characteristics. The project area is situated within the Murchison Bioregion according to IBRA 7 and is situated in the Western Murchison subregion (MUR2), close to the boundary of the Eastern Murchison subregion (MUR1).

The MUR2 subregion is described by Desmond et. al. (in DAWE 2019) as follows:

"Mulga low woodlands, often rich in ephemerals (usually with bunch grasses), on outcrop and fine textured Quaternary alluvial and eluvial surfaces (extensive hardpan wash plains that dominate and characterise the subregion) mantling granitic and greenstone strata of the northern part of the Yilgarn Craton. Surfaces associated with the occluded drainage occur throughout with hummock grasslands on Quaternary sandplains, saltbush shrublands on calcareous soils and Halosarcia low shrublands on saline alluvia. Contains the headwaters of the Murchison and Wooramel Rivers, which drain the subregion westwards to the coast. Arid climate with bimodal rainfall that usually falls in winter. The subregional area is 7,847,996 ha." (DAWE 2019b).

The West Murchison subregion is in the northern end of the Yilgarn Craton, which experiences an arid climate with bimodal rainfall that usually falls in the winter months. The Western Murchison subregion is characterised by Mulga low woodlands on outcrop and fine textured Quaternary alluvial and eluvial surfaces mantling granitic and greenstone strata (Desmond et al. 2001, in DAWE 2019). Quaternary plains contain hummock grasslands, saltbush shrublands on calcareous soils and *Halosarcia* low shrublands on saline alluvia.

## 2.3 Flora and Vegetation

### 2.3.1 Flora

Previous database searches indicate that a total of 28 conservation significant flora taxa have been recorded within a 30 km area around the project site. The database search results indicate that no Threatened flora species have been recorded in the area. Definitions of the conservation codes used in the table are included as Appendix 1.

The surveys undertaken by *ecologia* recorded 393 vascular flora taxa from 57 families and 140 genera within the Beebyn-W11 area and surrounding region; including six introduced species and 24 Priority listed flora species, as listed by the Department of Biodiversity and Conservation (DBCA).

No Threatened species were recorded (ecologia 2010a).

APM (2024) recorded 77 vascular flora taxa from 21 families and 40 genera. The reduction in taxa recorded when compared to the earlier surveys is due to timing of the survey, the region having been in drought conditions for several years and the prevalence of goats, which have had a significant impact on the vegetation.

No Threatened species were recorded; however, a single potential record of the Priority 3 listed species *Hibiscus krichauffianus* was recorded. Due to seasonal conditions, insufficient material was available to definitively determine the species. *Hibiscus krichauffianus* is common in the central parts of Australia and the Queensland mid coast. The nearest known record is approximately 250 km south west of the project area, with most records in WA from the Pilbara. The species has not previously been recorded in the Murchison Region (APM 2024).

Table 2.1 provides a summary of the conservation significant flora recorded during survey work, as well as those species considered to be possible inhabitants of the immediate project area. Species that were considered as unlikely to occur following the survey by APM (2024) are not included in this summary table.

Species	<b>Conservation Status</b>	Likelihood of occurrence		
Acacia dilloniorum	P1	Possible – suitable habitat exists in the project area, no known records in immediate vicinity.		
Beyeria lapidicola	P1	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)		
Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	P1	Possible – suitable habitat exists in the project area		
Stenanthemum mediale	P1	Possible - suitable habitat exists in the project area, no known records in immediate vicinity.		
Stenanthemum patens	P1	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)		
Acacia burrowsiana	Р3	Possible – suitable habitat exists in the project area		
Hemigenia virescens	P3	Possible - suitable habitat exists in the project area, no known records in immediate vicinity.		
Hibiscus ?krichauffianus	Р3	Tentative record (APM 2024)		
Homalocalyx echinulatus	Р3	Possible - suitable habitat exists in the project area, previous records in immediate vicinity ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)		
Micromyrtus placoides	Р3	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)		
Prostanthera petrophila	Р3	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)		
Sauropus sp. Woolgorong (M. Officer s.n. 10/8/94)	P3	Possible - suitable habitat exists in the project area, no known records in immediate vicinity		
Tribulus adelacanthus	Р3	Possible - previous records known from the Northen extent of the Weld Range		
Verticordia jamiesonii	P3	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)		
Acacia speckii	P4	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)		
Dodonaea amplisemina	P4	Recorded ( <i>ecologia</i> 2010b)		
Grevillea inconspicua	P4	Possible - suitable habitat exists in the project area, no known records in immediate vicinity.		

Table 2.1: Conservation significant flora recorded and potentially occurring in the project area.

The distribution of Priority species recorded historically and in the APM (2024) survey in relation to the proposed development infrastructure is shown on Figure 2.3 and Figure 2.4.

#### Fenix Resources Ltd

#### Beebyn-W11 Targeted Biological Survey



Figure 2.3: Previously recorded Priority flora locations within the proposed Beebyn-W11 project area.

#### Fenix Resources Ltd

#### Beebyn-W11 Targeted Biological Survey



Figure 2.4: Previous Priority flora records within the proposed Beebyn-W11 infrastructure area.

## 2.3.2 Vegetation

APM (2024) recorded three vegetation types within the project area, which generally corresponded with the floristic communities described by Markey and Dillon (2008) and *ecologia* (2009a). The vegetation types described in the APM report are listed in Table 2.2 and have been recorded over the length of the Weld Range in the DEC survey (Markey and Dillon 2008). Figure 2.5 and Figure 2.6 show the distribution of vegetation types within the project area.

No State (DBCA) or Commonwealth (EPBC Act) listed Threatened Ecological Communities (TECs) occur within the project area. The project area partly coincides with the Priority 1 Priority Ecological Community (PEC) Weld Range Vegetation Complexes (banded ironstone formation) (DBCA 2019). Figure 2.5 shows the PEC boundary and vegetation in relation to the proposed project layout. The PEC boundary defined by DBCA includes a 500 m "administrative buffer", which includes some vegetation types that do not align with the PEC description. The Weld Range PEC occupies an area of 20,073 ha, with the project area (excluding existing exploration disturbance) coinciding with less than 1.1% of this area.

*ecologia* (2009a) identified Communities 1 and 2 as being of conservation significance due to their restricted occurrence outside the area identified as a PEC, and of local significance due to the high number of taxa which were locally restricted to them. These communities predominantly occurred on BIF ridges. The APM (2024) mapped vegetation type 2a aligns with Community 2 as identified by *ecologia*.

## Table 2.2: Vegetation types identified in the project area.

Code	Landform Description		Soil type and surface geology				
2a <sup>2</sup>	BIF outcrops	Scattered low Acacia aneura, Psydrax latifolia and Acacia pruinocarpa over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei , Thryptomene decussata and Philotheca brucei mid sparse shrubland with Ptilotus obovatus, Dodonaea pachyneura and Dysphania rhadinostachya low sparse shrubland.	Light red sandy clay loam; BIF outcrops and rocklands on moderate to steep hillslopes.				
3a <sup>2</sup>	Gravelly plains	Acacia aneura, A. ramulosa subsp. linophylla and Acacia mulganeura tall sparse shrubland over Eremophila punicea, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii and Eremophila margarethae mid sparse shrubland with Ptilotus obovatus, Eragrostis eriopoda and ?Swainsona purpurea scattered low groundcover.	Red to red-brown clay loam to sandy clay loam with ironstone gravel to small stones at the surface; sandy outwash and gravelly plains and footslopes of BIF ranges, on gentle mid and lower slopes.				
3a <sup>1</sup>	Sandy outwash plains	+/- Corymbia lenziana scattered medium trees over Acacia. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura sparse tall shrubland over mixed Eremophila spp. open mid shrubland over scattered low shrubs of Ptilotus obovatus over mixed open tussock grassland.	Sandy outwash and gravelly plains and footslopes of BIF ranges.				
3b²	Sandy outwash plains	Acacia aneura, Acacia pruinocarpa and Acacia ramulosa var linophylla low open woodland over Eremophila forrestii ssp forrestii, Eremophila latrobei and Grevillea obliquistigma mid open shrubland and Ptilotus obovatus, Sida calyxhymenia and Abutilon cryptopetalum sparse low shrubs.	Lower slopes and outwashes of ironstone colluvium; drainage lines and low-lying areas on sandy outwash plains.				
3b <sup>1</sup>	Sandy outwash plains	Acacia pruinocarpa scattered trees over A. aneura woodland over A. ramulosa var. linophylla and A. aneura shrubland over mixed Eremophila closed shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus open low shrubland.	Drainage lines and low lying areas on sandy and outwash plains.				
4a <sup>1</sup>	Granite/dolerite slopes and plains	Acacia sp. Weld Range and A. aneuria var. microcarpa open tall shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana and mixed Senna spp. open mid shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus open low shrubland.	Undulating scree plains and mid to low slopes of granite and dolerite.				
5a <sup>1</sup>	Various	Acacia low woodland over Solanum ashbyae / lasiophyllum and Ptilotus obovatus var. obovatus low shrubland over mixed low tussock grassland.	Ridge tops and upper slopes of BIF ridges, low lying semi saline flats, riparian areas and ironstone scree flat plains.				
D	Disturbed – clear of vegetation						

<sup>1</sup> - *ecologia* (2010b)

<sup>2</sup> – APM (2024)



Figure 2.5: Previously recorded vegetation types associated with the project area.



Figure 2.6: Previously recorded vegetation types associated with the infrastructure area.

## 2.4 Fauna

The surveys undertaken by *ecologia* (2010a) recorded 148 vertebrate species in and around the project area, including 80 bird species, 44 reptiles, 23 mammals (17 native and six introduced) and one amphibian.

Twenty vertebrate fauna species and two invertebrate species of conservation significance were identified from database searches of a 30 km radius from the study area including seven mammals, 11 birds and two reptiles (APM 2024). Species listed as Marine or species not known to inhabit terrestrial environments are considered very unlikely to inhabit the project area and have been excluded. Table 2.4 provides a summary of those conservation significant species occurring or likely to occur within the Project area. Previously recorded locations of conservation significant fauna are presented in Figure 2.7.

At the Weld Range, the long-tailed dunnart has been recorded on exposed rock and stony soils with hummock grasses and shrubs, flat-topped hills, lateritic plateaus, sandstone ranges and breakaways, generally with a vegetation of sparse mulga over spinifex (*ecologia* 2010a). Within the project area, APM (2024) found suitable habitat exists in the Banded Ironstone and Drainage Line habitats.

Old, inactive malleefowl mounds have been recorded in the project area; however, mounds may last decades after abandonment and the presence of inactive mounds is not a reliable indication of current presence. The species is not expected to be a resident at Weld Range but may persist in surrounding areas of dense unburnt habitat (APM 2024).

The project area is on the northernmost extent of malleefowl distribution at this longitude in WA, and the closest records are over 50 km to the south. A sandy substrate and abundance of leaf litter are clear requirements for the construction of the birds' incubator-nests (Benshemesh 2007, in APM 2024). Soils in the disturbance footprint have a reasonably high clay content and litter was sparse to absent, except in the narrow Drainage Lines. The quality of the habitat for foraging and nest building are generally low, except in small patches of higher quality habitat in or near the larger drainage features low in the plains (APM 2024).

The project area contains some large trees that may be suitable for development of hollows by the Southern whiteface (a bird listed as Vulnerable); however, the area is previously disturbed with grazing impacts from both the Beebyn Station and feral goats, and historic clearing for mining exploration. The understory is sparse and the litter layer sparse to absent, but thicker in narrow bands around the drainage lines. Due to the poor condition of the understory, the area is unlikely to host habitat critical to the survival of the Southern whiteface (APM 2024).

Suitable foraging habitat for the grey falcon is present within the area, however no suitable nesting habitat is present and preferred nesting habitat is not available in the surrounding local area. Known records are more than 50 km away and whilst the grey falcon may occasionally visit the locality, it is unlikely to provide an important habitat for this species (APM 2024).

The Western spiny-tailed skink typically resides in family groups in coarse woody debris, such as fallen log piles (Bradley et. al 2022) or burrows under boulders and exfoliated sheets of granite. This species is generally easy to detect as the animals use a communal latrine which persists for many months even when the animals are concealed or absent. The species was not recorded in the project area during the fauna survey undertaken by APM (2024).

The West Coast mulga slider has previously been recorded in the Weld Range, including locations close to the project area; however, APM (2024) found the habitats within the project area were generally of poor quality. Leaf litter is scarce within the project area and soils are degraded and likely poor for burrowing. Higher quality microhabitats occur in the Drainage Line habitat however, soils may be too stony to be suitable.

*ecologia* conducted a targeted *Idiosoma nigrum* survey at Weld Range (ecologia 2010b), which included a collection of detailed data on the spider's demography, population structure and habitat preference. A total of 76 ha was surveyed for *Idiosoma nigrum*, with 1,708 burrows found, all within the boundaries of drainage lines and underneath Acacia vegetation, predominately on the southern face of hill slopes. Within the Beebyn-W11 project area, 393 burrows were recorded, with an estimated population size of 274 ± 197 individuals (*ecologia* 2010b).

Biologic Environmental Survey Pty Ltd (Biologic) undertook a status review of the species in April 2019 and confirmed that the trapdoor spider found in the Weld Range area is now regarded as *Idiosoma clypeatum*, a Priority 3 species under the WA Biodiversity Conservation Act (Biologic 2019).

Intensive targeted surveys have previously been conducted throughout the Weld Range when the northern shieldbacked trapdoor spider was regarded as *I. nigrum* and listed as a Vulnerable species under the *WA Wildlife Conservation Act 1950.* Over 1800 trapdoor burrows have been identified from database searches, the majority of which are from within the Weld Range. Biologic (2012) estimated the population size of *I. clypeatum* across the Weld Range to be more than 14,000 individuals.

## 2.4.1 Fauna habitat

APM (2024) identified four main habitat types in the project area, described in Table 2.3 and shown on Figure 2.8. The habitat types are similar to those identified at the nearby Iron Ridge project (*ecologia* 2020a).

Habitat type	APM study area (ha)	Project area (ha)
Acacia Sand Plains	500.5	28.9
Banded Ironstone Ridge	6.1	3.3
Drainage Line	186.1	7.0
Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope	333.0	91.6
Disturbed	30.5	8.7
Not mapped (portion of M51/869)	-	122.6
Total	1,056.2	262.1

[]	2 2.	Fauna	hahitat	recorded	in	tho	ctudy	area
able	z.s:	rauna	napitat	recorded	m	tne	study	area.

Acacia Sand Plains habitat occurs predominantly on the lower slopes of the study area, where the haul road is proposed to be developed. Associated soils include sandy to lightly rocky clay loam.

*Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope* habitat is dominated by *Acacia pruinocarpa* trees and *Acacia aneura* shrublands over on sandy or stony clay loam on hill slopes and is the most widespread habitat present in the area. This habitat type provides suitable substrates, vegetation and habitat to support the Priority 3 (BC Act) northern shield-backed trapdoor spider. This habitat is considered widespread in the Weld Range area.

Drainage Line habitat provides suitable habitat for the west coast mulga slider. Known from the arid interior of the Midwest of WA and endemic to the Murchison bioregion, this species has previously been recorded within Weld Range in leaf litter fringing drainage lines.

Banded Ironstone Ridge habitat occurs in a small portion in the north of the project area and is the least widespread habitat present in the area. The long-tailed dunnart has been recorded from widely scattered localities in the arid zone where it inhabits rugged, rocky areas, such as this habitat type. It typically occurs on plateaus near breakaways and scree slopes, and on rugged boulder-strewn scree slopes. Widely separated populations occur in the Pilbara, Murchison, Gibson Desert, southern Carnarvon Basin and in the Western MacDonnell Ranges (Northern Territory). The species was once considered rare but has recently been shown to be relatively common and widespread within rocky habitats, especially banded iron formation ranges within the Midwest.

Approximately 122 ha were not covered in the survey undertaken by APM; however, based on the surveyed area, this unmapped portion was expected to be *Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope* habitat.

## Table 2.4: Conservation significant fauna likelihood of occurrence.

Common name	Scientific name	EPBC status	WA status	Comments	Likelihood of occurrence
Mammals					
Bilby	Macrotis lagotis	VU	VU	The local record has a low level of certainty and was recorded in 1984.	Unlikely
Black-flanked rock-wallaby	Petrogale lateralis lateralis	EN	EN	Historical local record is a fossilised specimen	Unlikely
Brush-tailed mulgara	Dasycercus blythi		P4	Historical local record is a fossilised specimen	Unlikely
Ghost bat	Macroderma gigas	VU	VU	Historical local record is a fossilised specimen	Unlikely
Gould's mouse	Pseudomys gouldii	VU	VU	Historical local record is a fossilised specimen	Unlikely
Greater stick-nest rat	Leporillus conditor	VU	CD	Historical local record is a fossilised specimen	Unlikely
Long-tailed dunnart	Antechinomys longicaudata		P4	Suitable habitat present in the BIF	Recorded
Birds					
Curlew sandpiper	Calidris ferruginea	CR, MI	CR	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Fork-tailed swift	Apus pacificus	MI	IA	Potential to overfly the area	Possible
Grey falcon	Falco hypoleucos	VU	VU	Suitable foraging habitat present. No suitable nesting habitat.	Possible
Grey wagtail	Motacilla cinerea	MI	MI	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Malleefowl	Leipoa ocellata	VU	VU	Inactive mounds have been recorded	Possible
Night parrot	Pezoporus occidentalis	EN	CR	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Pectoral sandpiper	Calidris melanotos	MI	IA	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Peregrine falcon	Falco peregrinus		OS	Foraging habitat present	Possible
Sharp-tailed sandpiper	Calidris acuminata	VU, MI	IA	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Southern whiteface	Aphelocephala leucopsis	VU	-	All habitats suitable, project area unlikely to host habitat critical to survival.	Possible
Yellow wagtail	Motacilla flava	MI	MI	No suitable habitat present	Unlikely
Reptiles					
West coast mulga slider	Lerista eupoda		P1	Suitable habitat is present in the Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope habitat.	Possible
Western spiny-tailed skink	Egernia stokesii badia	EN	VU	Suitable habitat may be present	Possible
Invertebrate					
Northern shield-backed trapdoor spider	Idiosoma clypeatum		Р3	Recorded within the study area, then identified as I. nigrum	Recorded
Shield-backed trapdoor spider	Idiosoma nigrum	VU	EN	All specimens in the Murchison region determined to be <i>I. clypeatum</i>	Unlikely



Figure 2.7: Database search records of conservation significant fauna within 30 km of the project area.

#### Fenix Resources Ltd



Figure 2.8: Fauna habitat in the project area (APM 2023).

## 3.0 METHODOLOGY

### 3.1 Personnel

The survey work was undertaken by botanist Jenny Borger and biologist/environmental consultant Jeremy Shepherdson.

Jenny has more than 20 years' experience as a botanist and specialises in flora of the Midwest Region. She has undertaken and been involved in numerous surveys of the Weld Range and surrounding region for clients including Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd, Fenix Resources and DBCA. Jenny is very familiar with the flora of this area, including each of the conservation significant species that have been previously recorded.

Jeremy has over 25 years' experience as a biologist and environmental consultant across Western Australia. He has extensive experience in biological surveys, including targeted surveys for conservation significant species such as the malleefowl, spiny-tailed skink and shield-backed trapdoor spiders. He is competent in identification of flora, fauna and fauna habitat with considerable experience in the Midwest Region.

## 3.2 Desktop review

Prior to undertaking this survey, available information from previous surveys and database searches was reviewed, the results of which are detailed in Sections 2.3 and 2.4.

Descriptions and photos of each of the previously recorded Priority flora were printed for reference in the field if needed. Previous vegetation mapping and recorded locations of Priority flora was loaded into hand held GPS units for ground truthing.

## 3.3 Field survey

The field survey was undertaken from the 29<sup>th</sup> July to 3<sup>rd</sup> August 2024 and involved:

- a targeted survey for conservation significant flora within the project area
- confirming the presence and identity of Hibiscus ?krichauffianus
- refining and expanding the vegetation mapping as defined by APM (2024) and ecologia (2010a)
- a targeted survey for conservation significant fauna within the project area, including *Idiosoma clypeatum* burrows and malleefowl (*Leipoa ocellata*) mounds
- refining and expanding the fauna habitat mapping as defined by APM (2024)

72 survey points (20 x 20 m quadrats and relevés) were used for vegetation sampling. At each point, the following information was recorded:

- GPS location and survey date
- physical features (landform, elevation, soil type, ground surface cover, litter, rock type)
- vegetation condition as described for the Eremaean province (EPA 2016)
- dominant growth form, height, cover, and species for each strata (upper, mid and ground) compatible with NVIS Level 6 (ESCAVI 2003)
- level and nature of disturbances (e.g. weed presence, fire, and time since last fire, impacts from grazing, vegetation clearing, erosion)
- list of all species within the quadrat including weeds and listing species average height and cover.

Plants unable to be determined in the field were collected for later identification using relevant taxonomic keys and/ or compared against specimens at the WA Herbarium.

The locations of previously recorded conservation significant flora and fauna were revisited and a species search and population count (if species present) undertaken. Areas of suitable habitat (as identified in Table 2.1 and Table 2.4) were also targeted for each conservation significant species with a possible or higher likelihood (as identified in Table 2.1 and Table 2.1 and Table 2.1 and Table 2.4) of occurring in the survey area.

Fauna habitat assessments were performed at each vegetation survey point. Descriptive data was recorded including soil type, landform and disturbances.

## 3.4 Limitations

An assessment of survey-specific issues and limitations for flora (EPA 2016) and fauna (EPA 2020) is detailed in Table 3.1.

Table 3.1: Study limitations
------------------------------

Aspect	Constraint?	Comment	
Availability of contextual information at a regional and local scale (EPA 2016 and 2020)	No	Detailed surveys have been undertaken in the project area (APM 2024, <i>ecologia</i> 2010a and b, <i>ecologia</i> 2009) and surrounds ( <i>ecologia</i> 2020a and b, Biologic 2012, Bamford 2009). This information was adequate to provide appropriate contextual information for the current survey.	
Competency/experience of the team carrying out the survey, including experience in the bioregion surveyed (EPA 2016 and 2020)	No	The survey personnel have more than 20 years' experience undertaking surveys in Western Australia and have worked in the Murchison Bioregion since 2005.	
Scope of the survey, e.g. were faunal groups excluded from the survey (EPA 2020)	No	The fauna scope was to target conservation significant fauna (including <i>Idiosoma clypeatum</i> ) and verify fauna habitat mapping. This aspect was not a limitation.	
Proportion of flora recorded and/or collected, any identification issues (EPA 2016)	No	Climatic conditions prior to the survey were average, with 75 mm rainfall received in the two months prior to the survey, resulting in many species flowering and easily identifiable. A minor number of specimens were not identified to the species level due to being sterile, none of these are expected to be flora of conservation significance.	
Was the appropriate area fully surveyed (effort and extent) (EPA 2016 and 2020)	No	The area was surveyed fully.	
Access restrictions within the survey area (EPA 2016 and 2020)	No	The survey area was accessible by vehicle and foot.	
Survey timing, rainfall, season of survey (EPA 2016 and 2020)	No	The survey was undertaken in late Winter, and most perennials were flowering. The survey area is within the Eremaean botanical province. Recommended timing for flora and vegetation survey is 6-8 weeks post wet season (March – June) for primary survey, and a dry season survey (after winter rainfall if available) for supplementary survey (EPA 2016). The timing of the field survey is within the period recommended for supplementary surveys and coincides with the flowering period of many of the regions flora. Rainfall at Meekatharra during 2024 was above average	

Aspect	Constraint?	Comment
		including 75 mm in the two months prior to the survey (June and July). The overall condition of the vegetation was quite healthy.
Disturbance that may have affected the results of survey such as fire, flood or clearing (EPA 2016 and 2020)	No	Some historical disturbance was noted throughout the survey area; however, did not affect the results of the survey.
Problems with data and analysis, including sampling biases (EPA 2020)	No.	There were no data problems and this aspect was not a limitation.

## 4.0 RESULTS

## 4.1 Flora

A total of 151 species of flora were recorded within the survey area, from 35 Families and 77 Genera. One introduced (weed) species, *Oxalis ?corniculata* was recorded in one location (Site 49, Figure 4.4). The full list of species recorded is presented in Appendix 2.

Prior locations of Priority flora were investigated to determine whether the previously recorded individuals were still present. In some locations no specimens of the previously recorded Priority species could be located. On the exposed upper portions of BIF ridge there was evidence of vegetation death, likely resulting from several years of low rainfall, and it was considered likely that the previously recorded individuals had died. In other locations plant species very similar in appearance were located but the Priority species could not be. It is possible that the similar species were mistakenly identified as the Priority species if there were no flowering parts present at the time of the previous surveys.

The survey recorded seven DBCA Priority listed species in the project area, as outlined in Table 4.1 and shown in Figure 4.1 and Figure 4.2. No Threatened flora were recorded. Definitions of the conservation codes used in the table are included as Appendix 1.

Track logs of the surveyed area are presented in Figure 4.3.

Species	Conservation Code	Number of locations	Number of individuals
Beyeria lapidicola	P1	2	100
Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	P1	1	1
Stenanthemum mediale	P1	102	264
Micromyrtus placoides	P3	61	1,075
Prostanthera petrophila	P3	18	108
Verticordia jamiesonii	P3	8	147
Acacia speckii	P4	25	51

Table 4.1: Priority	/ flora recorded	during the	survev.
	11010100000000	a a m B the	

#### Fenix Resources Ltd

Beebyn-W11 Targeted Biological Survey



Figure 4.1: Priority flora recorded during the survey - overview.

#### Fenix Resources Ltd

Beebyn-W11 Targeted Biological Survey



Figure 4.2: Priority flora recorded during the survey – mine area.



Beebyn-W11 Targeted Biological Survey



Figure 4.3: Track logs of the survey area.

## 4.1.1 Beyeria lapidicola – Priority 1

*Beyeria lapidicola* is a much branched shrub growing to 1.6 m high with resinous and sticky stems and leaves. The branches are pale, yellow-green becoming grey or black and leaves are narrow oblong, have three ribs on the under surface and are hairy between the ribs (*ecologia* 2012). This species has a known range of approximately 450 km (Western Australian Herbarium 1998–) and typically occurs on sand over banded ironstone or dry creek beds with sandy clay and fine gravel.

Prior recorded locations of *B. lapidicola* were investigated and in most cases plants were found to be dead or absent. A large previously recorded population in a creek line to the north (upstream) of the proposed infrastructure area was found to be healthy with more than 100 individuals present.

Within the Beebyn-W11 project area, no individuals were recorded within the proposed disturbance footprint with more than 100 plants present outside the development envelope. It is quite likely that *Beyeria lapidicola* will be present in other larger creek lines in the surrounding area. These are avoided by the proposed development.



Photograph 4.1: Numerous dead shrubs in the vicinity of one of the previously recorded *B. lapidicola* locations.



Photograph 4.2: B. lapidicola and its preferred habitat.

#### 4.1.2 Euphorbia sarcostemmoides – Priority 1

*Euphorbia sarcostemmoides* is an erect, multi-stemmed, semi-succulent shrub growing to 2 m high. The preferred habitat for this species is sandstone ridges and quartzite hills (Western Australian Herbarium 1998–), however has been recorded on flat plains at Weld Range (*ecologia* 2012). *Euphorbia sarcostemmoides* has been recorded in both Western Australia and the Northern Territory, over a range of approximately 1,200 km.

A single individual was recorded in the W11 area during previous surveys and was found alive during this survey on the flat plain to the south of the proposed footprint (Photograph 4.3). A search of the surrounding area failed to find any additional specimens. The single individual is located close to, but outside the proposed footprint of a topsoil stockpile.



Photograph 4.3: The single *E. sarcostemmoides* plant, found growing within a dead shrub.

### 4.1.3 *Stenanthemum mediale* – Priority 1

Stenanthemum mediale is a shrub growing to 0.35 m high and has a known range of over 250 km (Western Australian Herbarium 1998–). The leaves are small, egg shaped with hairs on the under surface. This species can be confused with the more common *S. patens*, which has hairs on the upper surface, or both surfaces, of the leaf. The flowers of *S. mediale* are white, small, hairy tubular flowers primarily flowering in April – August.

Previously recoded locations of *S. patens* were investigated and found to be *S. mediale*, which was found to be abundant but quite localised along the ridge to the south-west of the proposed pit.

Within the Beebyn-W11 project area, more than 250 individuals were recorded, four of which will be impacted by the proposed development.



Photograph 4.4: *Stenanthemum mediale* growing on ridge habitat.

## 4.1.4 Micromyrtus placoides – Priority 3

*Micromyrtus placoides* is a shrub growing to 2.3 m, sometimes widely spreading with several stems or branches from the base (Western Australian Herbarium 1998–), occurring within the Murchison and Yalgoo IBRA bioregions (Eastern Murchison, Western Murchison and Tallering subregions). It has a relatively restricted distribution from near Cue (Weld Range), south-west to Tallering Peak. It occurs extensively across Weld Range in a variety of habitats including undulating plains, dry creek beds, hill slopes and ridges, on red-orange or orange-yellow sandy clay, coarse gravel, BIF, laterite, quartz and basalt (Western Australian Herbarium 1998–).

A targeted survey undertaken in 2020 estimated 33,724 individuals occur at Weld Range (*ecologia* 2020c). Over 25,000 individuals have also been recorded at Tallering Peak (*ecologia* 2020b), around 250 km south-west of the project area.

Prior locations of recorded *M. placoides* in the vicinity of the proposed W11 project were investigated and in several instances the plants were found to be dead (Photograph 4.5) or no longer present, particularly on the higher and more exposed positions on the BIF ridges. In some locations *Micromyrtus sulphurea* (Photograph 4.6) appears to have been mistakenly recorded as *M. placoides*. The two species are very similar without buds or flowers.

Several new locations of healthy and flowering *M. placoides* were recorded during the survey including patches of young plants (Photograph 4.7) and individuals having emerged in rehabilitated exploration disturbance (Photograph 4.8).

Within the Beebyn-W11 project area, over 1000 individuals were recorded, all outside the proposed disturbance footprint.



Photograph 4.5: Dead vegetation at a previously recorded *M. placoides* location on an exposed section of BIF ridge.



Photograph 4.6: *Micromyrtus sulphurea* may have been mistakenly recorded as *M. placoides* in some locations.



Photograph 4.7: One of the locations recorded during this survey with more than 90 *M. placoides* plants growing beneath an Acacia shrub.



Photograph 4.8: M. placoides growing in rehabilitated exploration disturbance.

## 4.1.5 *Prostanthera petrophila* – Priority 3

*Prostanthera petrophila* is a spreading shrub growing to 1.5 m high with densely hairy branches and white flowers usually produced in August. This species typically grows on lateritic soils and has a known distribution of approximately 350 km (Western Australian Herbarium 1998–).

In several locations previously recorded *P. petrophila* were dead or no longer present. In some locations individuals appeared to have died off and were recovering (Photograph 4.9) following rainfall in the months before the survey, and in other locations *P. petrophila* individuals were healthy, in good numbers and flowering (Photograph 4.10).

Within the Beebyn-W11 project area, 108 individuals were recorded from 18 locations, with 17 individuals located within the proposed disturbance footprint.



Photograph 4.9: Dead Prostanthera petrophila plants around a recovering plant on BIF ridge.



Photograph 4.10: Prostanthera petrophila in flower.

### 4.1.6 Verticordia jamiesonii – Priority 3

*Verticordia jamiesonii* is a shrub growing to 0.6 m high with white/pink flowers between September and October. The preferred habitat for this species is sand or clay on lateritic breakaways and it has a known range of over 350 km (Western Australian Herbarium 1998–).

The previously recorded population was located and appeared to be in good health, although not flowering at the time of this survey.

Within the Beebyn-W11 project area, all 147 individuals were recorded outside the proposed disturbance footprint.

### 4.1.7 Acacia speckii – Priority 4

Acacia speckii is a bushy, rounded shrub or tree growing up to 3 m high, on rocky soils over granite, basalt or dolerite (Western Australian Herbarium 1998–). At Weld Range, this species has been observed to occur across the mid-sloped rocky hills and near drainage lines (*ecologia* 2012). Acacia speckii has a known range of over 150 km, between Meekatharra and Cue, with disjunct populations recorded further south in Yalgoo.

Many of the previously recorded locations of *Acacia speckii* appear to have been misidentification of *Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla*, which is very similar in appearance and more common in the area. Within the Beebyn-W11 project area, 25 individuals were recorded within the proposed disturbance footprint and 26 outside.

### 4.1.8 Other species of interest

Despite searches being undertaken in the areas of previous Hibiscus ?*krichauffianus* records (as recorded by APM), this species was not found during the survey, nor were any species that are similar in appearance.

Santalum spicatum (Sandalwood) is a slow-growing, long-lived small woody tree or shrub, with a known range extending across most of Western Australia (Western Australian Herbarium 1998–). Sandalwood is economically valuable and is commercially harvested for the aromatic oils contained in the heartwood. As the heartwood extends throughout the tree, the whole tree (including roots) is removed and processed. This commercial use is considered a threat to populations and therefore, Sandalwood is listed as a Vulnerable species on the IUCN Red List (International Union for the Conservation of Nature 2024).

27 individuals of Sandalwood were recorded during the survey, two of which occur within the proposed disturbance footprint.

*Eremophila* sp. Weld Range is a dense, hairy, grey shrub growing to 1.5 m high with flattened, shortly hairy leaves to and mauve to purple flowers. This species is known from a range of approximately 150 km, including at the Weld Range on upper slopes and drainage lines of rocky hills (Brown and Buirchell, 2021). *Eremophila* sp. Weld Range is not of conservation significance, however, has a relatively restricted distribution and is only known from three lodged specimens within WA (FloraBase 1998-).

Two *Eremophila* sp. Weld Range individuals were recorded during the survey (Photograph 4.11), in a single location in a drainage depression in *Acacia pruinocarpa* and mulga forest (vegetation type 12), outside of the proposed disturbance footprint.



Photograph 4.11: *Eremophila* sp. Weld Range.

## 4.2 Vegetation

A total of 72 survey points were used for vegetation mapping and their locations are shown in Figure 4.4. Vegetation site descriptions are included in Appendix 3.

The survey refined the six vegetation types recorded by APM (2024) into 16 vegetation types, described in Table 4.2 and shown in Figure 4.5 to Figure 4.18. Vegetation condition of the survey area was considered 'Good' with historically disturbed areas (generally the western end and central survey areas) considered 'Poor' or 'Completely Degraded'.

Table 4.2: Vegetation types recorded during the survey.							
Vegetation Code	Description	Area of Development Envelope (ha)	Area of Disturbance Footprint (ha)	Photo			
1	Acacia pruinocarpa open woodland or isolated trees over Acacia aptaneura, A. caesaneura, A. craspedocarpa tall sparse shrubland over Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Acacia tetragonophylla, Rhagodia eremaea, Teucrium teucriiflorum sparse shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Menkea villosula, Goodenia tenuiloba low sparse to open shrubland; understory denser under pockets of trees. Landform: Stony plains and lower slopes CSF: Euphorbia sarcostemmoides P1 Not representative of PEC.	71.4	48.4				
2	Acacia pruinocarpa mostly absent; Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Acacia sp. Weld Range occasional Acacia incurvaneura, A. pteraneura, Acacia aptaneura, Grevillea berryana tall open shrubland over A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, E. glutinosa, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii sparse shrubland over Eragrostis eriopoda, Ptilotus aervoides, Erodium cygnorum, low sparse tussock grassland. Landform: lower to upper midslopes on south facing colluvial outwash slopes; stony and gravel mantles Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 3 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	37.1	30.0				
3	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. rhodophloia isolated tall shrubs over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous open shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, Goodenia tenuiloba Landform: Hills; mostly mid to upper slopes; south aspect Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 5 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	62.2	45.4				
Vegetation Code	Description	Area of Development Envelope (ha)	Area of Disturbance Footprint (ha)	Photo			
--------------------	---	---	--	-------			
4	Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura isolated trees over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Dodonaea pachyneura, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei, Prostanthera petrophila, Tribulus suberosus open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya, Stylidium longibracteatum, Goodenia tenuiloba, Hysterobaeckea occlusa low open shrubland/ low open forbland. Representative of PEC – aligns with Communities 1b and 2 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	8.4	5.7				
5	Acacia incurvaneura low open woodland/ tall sparse shrubland over Acacia sp. Weld Range, Eremophila macmillaniana tall sparse shrubland over Eremophila macmillaniana, Senna glaucifolia, Ptilotus rotundifolius open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. macmillaniana, Hibiscus sturtii low sparse shrubland over Maireana melanocoma, Ptilotus aervoides, Goodenia tenuiloba low sparse chenopod shrubland. Landform: Hill; BIF ridge and upper slopes, moderate to steep slopes; > 80 % rock, boulders, rock outcrops CSF: Acacia speckii P4 Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 5 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	46.3	29.5				
6	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. fuscaneura low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Psydrax latifolia tall open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Rhagodia eremaea, Senna artemisioides subsp. xsturtii, S. glutinosa subsp. xluerssenii shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, Tetragonia cristata, Isoetopsis graminifolia, Menkea villosula, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi low forbland. Landform: Drainage lines and depressions; lower to midslopes; water gaining areas Not representative of PEC.	60.1	24.3				

Vegetation Code	Description	Area of Development Envelope (ha)	Area of Disturbance Footprint (ha)	Photo
7	Acacia incurvaneura, A. sp. Weld Range, A. speckii tall sparse shrubland over Ptilotus rotundifolius, Eremophila fraseri, E. latrobei, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii sparse shrubland over Sida ectogama, Ptilotus aervoides, P. schwartzii , Erodium cygnorum low sparse shrubland. Landform: Hill; Midslopes; dolerite; very rocky, minor outcrops CSF: Acacia speckii P4 Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 6 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	37.5	3.7	
8	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa tall open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa, Eremophila latrobei, Scaevola spinescens, Senna glaucifolia, sparse shrubland over Eremophila latrobei, Stenanthemum mediale, Sida ectogama, Micromyrtus sulphurea low sparse shrubland. Landform: Low hill; minor outcrops CSF: Stenanthemum mediale P1 Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 2 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	16.7	1.8	
9	<ul> <li>a) Patches of Acacia pruinocarpa low woodland over Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla tall open shrubland over Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, E. georgei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii open shrubland over Eragrostis eriopoda, Paspalidium basicladum, Ptilotus obovatus low sparse tussock grassland.</li> <li>b) Tall open shrubland of Acacia incurvaneura and A. ramulosa var. linophylla over sparse shrubland over low sparse tussock grassland</li> <li>c) Mulga low woodlands further away from disturbance areas</li> <li>Landform: Hardpan plain lower catchment</li> <li>Not representative of PEC.</li> </ul>	231.0	66.3	

Vegetation Code	Description	Area of Development Envelope (ha)	Area of Disturbance Footprint (ha)	Photo
10	Acacia incurvaneura, A. caesaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Grevillea berryana, low open woodland/ tall open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Acacia spp. open shrubland over Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. simulans subsp. simulans, Sida ectogama, S. sp. Golden calyces glabrous, Ptilotus schwartzii, Eragrostis eriopoda low sparse shrubland. Landform: Low gravel hills Not representative of PEC.	129.5	9.1	
11	<ul> <li>a) Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura open forest over Glycine canescens, Santalum spicatum, Psydrax latifolia vineland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Glycine canescens, Psydrax latifolia, Eremophila forrestii subsp. hastieana, E. georgei open shrubland over Sida ectogama, Ptilotus obovatus, Glycine canescens, Rhagodia eremaea low shrubland</li> <li>b) Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura open forest over Psydrax suaeveolens low open woodland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. hastieana, E. georgei, Sida ectogama, Glycine canescens shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Eremophila georgei, Acacia incurvaneura low open shrubland.</li> <li>Landform: Alluvial plain; broad unincised drainage line.</li> <li>Not representative of PEC.</li> </ul>	11.3	1.6	
12	Acacia incurvaneura, A. caesaneura, A. pruinocarpa low woodland/A. tetragonophylla, A. craspedocarpa, Psydrax latifolia tall open shrubland/ Eremophila forrestii var. forrestii or var. hastieana, A. ramulosa, Eremophila georgei shrubland/ Sida ectogama, Cheilanthes sieberi low shrubland. Landform: Drainage lines lower catchment, plains; often associated with VC11 Not representative of PEC.	89.2	6.6	

Vegetation Code	Description	Area of Development Envelope (ha)	Area of Disturbance Footprint (ha)	Photo
13	Groves: Acacia pruinocarpa low isolated trees over Acacia incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla tall sparse shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. incurvaneura, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. georgei open shrubland over Eremophila georgei, E. foliosissima, Ptilotus schwartzii, Stenopetalum filifolium, Menkea villosula, Isoetopsis graminifolia low open forbland Stony plain: Acacia aptaneura tall sparse shrubland over Acacia tetragonophylla, A. ramulosa var. linophylla Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri sparse shrubland over Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda or E. compacta or E. punicea, Ptilotus schwartzii, Solanum lasiophyllum, Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus low isolated to sparse shrubs and grass tussocks. Landform: Ironstone gravel plain Not representative of PEC.	410.3	33.7	
14	Acacia aptaneura, A. grasbyi low open woodland over Eremophila pantonii, Acacia aptaneura, Senna glaucifolia sparse shrubland over Maireana thesioides, M. triptera, Senna glaucifolia low open chenopod shrubland. Not representative of PEC.	9.4	0.7	

Vegetation Code	Description	Area of Development Envelope (ha)	Area of Disturbance Footprint (ha)	Photo
15	Acacia aneura, A. sp. Weld Range tall isolated shrubs over Eremophila macmillaniana, Acacia sp. Weld Range, Acacia speckii sparse shrubland over Cephalipterum drummondii, Sida ectogama, Aristida contorta low sparse forbland. CSF: Acacia speckii P4 Representative of PEC – aligns with Community 6 identified by Markey & Dillion (2008)	43.5	3.5	
16	Acacia pteraneura, A. fuscaneura tall open shrubland over Acacia fuscaneura, Grevillea deflexa, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri sparse shrubland over Calytrix desolata, Grevillea deflexa low sparse shrubland over Calytrix desolata, Grevillea deflexa low sparse shrubland over Cymbopogon ambiguus low sparse tussock grassland. Not representative of PEC.	24.2	2.2	
CL	Cleared areas	20.9	8.8	-
	Total	1,309.2	321.4	-

#### Beebyn-W11 Targeted Biological Survey



Figure 4.4: Vegetation mapping survey points.



Figure 4.5: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 1 of 14.



Figure 4.6: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 2 of 14.



Figure 4.7: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 3 of 14.



Figure 4.8: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 4 of 14.



Figure 4.9: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 5 of 14.



Figure 4.10: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 6 of 14.



Figure 4.11: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 7 of 14.



Figure 4.12: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 8 of 14.



Figure 4.13: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 9 of 14.



Figure 4.14: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 10 of 14.



Figure 4.15: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 11 of 14.



Figure 4.16: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 12 of 14.



Figure 4.17: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 13 of 14.



Figure 4.18: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – map 14 of 14.

Veg_Code	Description	
1	Acacia pruinocarpa open woodland/isolated trees over Acacia aptaneura, A. caesaneura tall sparse shrubland/Eremophila fraseri, Acacia tetragonophylla, Rhagodia eremaea sparse shrubland/ Ptilotus obovatus on stony plains and lower slopes	
2	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pteraneura, Grevillea berryana tall open shrubland/ A. ramulosa, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Eremophila fraseri, E. glutinosa sparse shrubland/ Eragrostis eriopoda, Ptilotus aervoides sparse tussock grassland on gravelly/ stony midslopes	E Contraction of the second seco
3	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa low open woodland over Eremophila forrestii, E. latrobei, Acacia ramulosa, Harnieria kempeana, Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous open shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, Goodenia tenuiloba low open forbland; mid to upper slopes; south facing	Constant of the second s
4	Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura isolated trees/Eremophila latrobei, Dodonaea pachyneura, Philotheca brucei, Prostanthera petrophila open shrubland/ Ptilotus obovatus, Micromyrtus sulphurea, Eremophila latrobei, Dysphania rhadinostachya, Stylidium longibracteatum low open shrubland; BIF ridge and upper slopes	( the second sec
5	Acacia incurvaneura low open woodland/ Acacia sp. Weld Range, Eremophila macmillaniana tall sparse shrubland/ Eremophila macmillaniana, Senna glaucifolia, Ptilotus rotundtifolius open shrubland/ Eremophila forrestii, E. macmillaniana low sparse shrubland/ Maireana melanocoma, Ptilotus aervoides low sparse chenopod shrubland; midslopes, north facing	
6	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. fuscaneura low woodland/ Acacia ramulosa, Psydrax latifolia tall open shrubland/ Eremophila forrestii, E. georgei, Rhagodia eremaea shrubland/ Erodium cygnorum, Tetragonia cristata, Cheilanthes sieberi low forbland; drainge lines	
7	Acacia incurvaneura, A. sp. Weld Range, A. speckii tall sparse shrubland over Ptilotus rotundifolius, Eremophila fraseri, E. latrobei, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii sparse shrubland over Sida ectogama, Ptilotus aervoides, P. schwartzii , Erodium cygnorum Iow sparse shrubland; dolerite midslopes	
8	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa tall open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa, Eremophila latrobei, Scaevola spinescens, Senna glaucifolia, sparse shrubland over Eremophila latrobei, Stenanthemum mediale, Sida ectogama, Micromyrtus sulphurea low sparse shrubland; rocky hill	
9	Acacia pruinocarpa low woodland/ Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa tall open shrubland over Eremophila simulans, E. georgei, E. forrestii open shrubland patches in Tall open shrubland of Acacia incurvaneura and A. ramulosa; hardpan plains	
10	Acacia incurvaneura, A. caesaneura, A. ramulosa low open woodland/ tall open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia open shrubland/ Eremophila jucunda, E. forrestii, Sida spp., Ptilotus schwartzii low sparse shrubland; low gravelly hills	Legend
11	Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura open forest/ Glycine canescens, Santalum spicatum, Psydrax latifolia vineland/ Acacia ramulosa, Glycine canescens, Psydrax latifolia, Eremophila forrestii var. hastieana open shrubland over Sida ectogama, Ptilotus obovatus, Rhagodia eremaea low shrubland; drainage lines	Veg_Code_01
12	Acacia incurvaneura, A. caesaneura, A. pruinocarpa low woodland/ A. tetragonophylla, A. craspedocarpa, Psydrax latifolia tall open shrubland/ Eremophila forrestii var. forrestii or var. hastieana, A. ramulosa, Eremophila georgei shrubland/ Sida ectogama, Cheilanthes sieberi low shrubland; drainage lines	□ Veg_Code_04 □ Veg_Code_05
13	Acacia pruinocarpa isolated trees/ Acacia incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla tall sparse shrubland over Acacia ramulosa, A. incurvaneura, Eremophila forrestii, E. latrobei sparse shrubland over Eremophila georgei, E. foliosissima, E. jucunda, Ptilotus schwartzii low open shrubland; ironstone plains	Veg_Code_06
14	Acacia aptaneura, A. grasbyi low open woodland/ Eremophila pantonii, Acacia aptaneura, Senna glaucifolia sparse shrubland over Maireana thesioides, M. triptera, Senna glaucifolia low open chenopod shrubland; stony hill; chert, quartz	□ Veg_Code_09 □ Veg_Code_10
15	Acacia aneura, A. sp. Weld Range tall isolated shrubs over Eremophila macmillaniana, Acacia sp. Weld Range, Acacia speckii sparse shrubland over Cephalipterum drummondii, Sida ectogama, Aristida contorta low sparse forbland; stony plain; dolerite	Veg_Code_CL
16	Acacia pteraneura, A. fuscaneura tall open shrubland over Acacia fuscaneura, Grevillea deflexa, Eremophila fraseri sub sp. fraseri sparse shrubland over Calytrix desolata, Grevillea deflexa low sparse shrubland	
notes histori	al clearing	Beebyn-W11 Iron Ore Deposit Targeted Biological Survey - August 202
	Author: J. Borger, J. Shepherdson Drawn: CAD Resources	Vegetation Legend

Figure 4.19: Vegetation types mapped within the survey area – vegetation descriptions.

## 4.3 Fauna and habitat

Fauna habitat mapping aligned with that recorded by APM (2024). The approximately 122 ha of the proposed disturbance footprint not surveyed by APM was assessed in this survey and determined to align with the Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope and Acacia Sand Plain habitat as described by APM (2024) and detailed in Section 2.4.1.

### 4.3.1 Shield-backed trapdoor spider

A number of previous records of, then *Idiosoma nigrum*, now *I. clypeatum* exist within the footprint and are associated mainly with south-facing slopes. These areas were investigated and no sign of trapdoor burrows could be located at the time of the survey.

Recent experience has found that shield-back trapdoor spider burrows in this region are associated with drainage lines and denser stands of Acacia where the soil has a higher moisture content. The amount and type of leaf litter present appears to be an important factor. Typically, burrows are located beneath Acacia trees and shrubs in areas where there is evidence of surface water sheet flow (Photograph 4.12), or in denser vegetation adjacent to ephemeral drainage (Photograph 4.13).

Searches were undertaken of each of the main areas of Drainage Line habitat, which is present from the western end of the W11 infrastructure area and along the haul road route. Eleven active and five abandoned *Idiosoma clypeatum* burrows were recorded during the survey. None were located within the proposed disturbance footprint. The location of recorded burrows in relation to the proposed disturbance is presented in Figure 4.20.

Shield-back trapdoor spider burrows are very difficult to find and it is highly likely that many more burrows are present in suitable habitat across the project area. There is abundant suitable habitat in the surrounding region and *I. clypeatum* is known to be widespread across the Murchison and Yalgoo bioregions.



Photograph 4.12: Evidence of sheet flow. Trapdoor burrows were found beneath the trees in the background.



Photograph 4.13: Acacia thicket adjacent to a drainage line. Numerous trapdoor burrows were found in this area.



Photograph 4.14: An active trapdoor burrow found adjacent to the proposed haul road route.

Beebyn-W11 Targeted Biological Survey



Figure 4.20: Locations of Idiosoma clypeatum burrows recorded during the survey.

### 4.3.2 Malleefowl

Database searches have returned several records of malleefowl (*Leipoa ocellata*) mounds in the vicinity of the W11 project. Nine possible extinct (long unused and unlikely to be used again) malleefowl mounds were recorded during the survey (Figure 4.21). While it is considered reasonably likely that the structures observed are long-extinct mounds, it is possible that some are former rabbit warrens or even geologic formations. If they were constructed by malleefowl they have not been used for decades.

The W11 project area is likely to have supported malleefowl in the past but is now at the northern extent of the species' range. Suitable habitat requirements include dense vegetation with abundant leaf litter, which is used to fill the mounds to incubate the eggs as it composts. The survey area now lacks much of the understorey biomass that was once present and is therefore lacking in leaf litter, food resources and cover provided by denser vegetation. Photograph 4.15 and Photograph 4.16 show two of the possible former mounds with open vegetation and near absence of leaf litter in the surrounding area.



Photograph 4.15: A possible long-extinct malleefowl mound at the eastern end of the project area.



Photograph 4.16: A possible long-extinct malleefowl mound at the central part of the project area.



Figure 4.21: Locations of Malleefowl mounds recorded during the survey.

## 5.0 DISCUSSION

### 5.1 Flora and vegetation

Seven species of Priority flora were recorded during the survey, all of which have a known distribution of at least 150 km. Of these, three will be impacted by the proposed development:

- Stenanthemum mediale (P1)
- Prostanthera petrophila (P3)
- Acacia speckii (P4)

Impact to these species from the proposed development is expected to be minimal, with four individuals of *Stenanthemum mediale*, 17 individuals of *Prostanthera petrophila* and 25 individuals of *Acacia speckii* occurring within the proposed disturbance footprint. As discussed in Section 4.1, all three species have a wide distribution and it is likely that additional individuals also occur elsewhere across the Weld Range, including the unsurveyed areas adjacent to the development envelope.

Although rainfall for 2024 up to the time of survey was slightly above average, rainfall in the region has been below average for much of the previous eight years (BoM 2024). This has likely resulted in the loss of *Prostanthera petrophila* and *Micromyrtus placoides* individuals on the BIF ridges, with previous records not located. There were many long dead, low shrubs present in these areas that were likely *Micromyrtus placoides*, however were unable to be identified due to lack of vegetative material.

No Hibiscus ?*krichauffianus* individuals were recorded during the survey. It is likely that the individuals of this species previously recorded by APM (2024) have since senesced or were misidentified due to lack of reproductive material present at the time of the APM survey. Prior to the survey described in this report, the project area had received average rainfall for the year (refer to Section 2.1), with the flora in good condition and many species reproductive (flowering, fruiting) and therefore more easily identifiable.

The vegetation types recorded during the survey are typical of the Weld Range area and align with those described by Markey and Dillon (2008). Vegetation types 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 8 and 15 correspond to the known Priority 1 Weld Range Vegetation Complexes (banded ironstone formation) PEC, as delineated by DBCA (2019). As discussed in Section 2.3.2, the PEC boundary defined by DBCA includes a 500 m "administrative buffer", which includes some vegetation types that do not align with the PEC description. The Weld Range PEC occupies an area of 20,073 ha, with the project area (excluding existing exploration disturbance) coinciding with less than 1.1% of this area.

Vegetation condition ranged from 'Very Good' to 'Completely Degraded'. Most of the disturbance was a result of moderate to heavy grazing impact from goats and euro, and historically heavy grazing by sheep that has degraded the land and made it compacted and susceptible to sheet erosion. Historical pastoral grazing has also resulted in the loss of palatable shrubs, grasses and forbs, and a low recruitment of perennial species.

## 5.2 Fauna and habitat

Fauna habitat mapping generally aligned with that recorded by APM (2024). The approximately 122 ha of the proposed disturbance footprint not surveyed by APM was determined to align with the Mulga Woodland on Hill Slope and Acacia Sand Plain habitat as described by APM (2024) and detailed in Section 2.4.1.

Eleven active and five abandoned *Idiosoma clypeatum* burrows were recorded during the survey, all within Drainage Line habitat and outside the proposed disturbance footprint. Previous records of *I. clypeatum* (then *Idiosoma nigrum*) were investigated and no sign of trapdoor burrows could be located at the time of the survey.

As outlined in Section 4.3.1, recent experience has found that shield-back trapdoor spider burrows in this region are associated with drainage lines and denser stands of Acacia where the soil has a higher moisture content. The amount and type of leaf litter present appears to be an important factor. Typically, burrows are located beneath Acacia trees

and shrubs in areas where there is evidence of surface water sheet flow or in denser vegetation adjacent to ephemeral drainage.

Shield-back trapdoor spider burrows are very difficult to find and it is highly likely that many more burrows are present in suitable habitat across the project area. There is abundant suitable habitat in the surrounding region and *I. clypeatum* is known to be widespread across the Murchison and Yalgoo bioregions.

The malleefowl mounds recorded in the project area are extinct and unlikely to be used again. A sandy substrate and abundance of leaf litter are clear requirements for the construction of the birds' incubator-nests (Benshemesh 2007, in APM 2024). Soils in the disturbance footprint have a reasonably high clay content and litter was sparse to absent, except in the narrow Drainage Lines. The quality of the habitat for foraging and nest building are generally low, except in small patches of higher quality habitat in or near the larger drainage features low in the plains (APM 2024). No mounds were recorded in this habitat and malleefowl are unlikely to occur in the project area, given the lack of suitable understorey available for foraging and predator protection, primarily as a result of heavy grazing from goats when the pastoral station was stocked.

## 6.0 **REFERENCES**

**APM. 2024.** *Beebyn 11 Weld Range Biologic Survey Revision 1.* Unpublished report prepared for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation, February 2024.

**Bamford Consulting Ecologists. 2009.** Weld Range Direct Shipping Ore Project targeted Shield-backed Trapdoor Spider, SRE Invertebrate and Vertebrate Fauna Survey. Unpublished report prepared for Atlas Iron Ltd.

**Biologic Environmental. 2012.** Weld Range Idiosoma nigrum survey. Unpublished report prepared for Atlas Iron Ltd. Available at: <u>https://minedex.dmirs.wa.gov.au/Web/environment-registrations/details/118669</u>.

**Biologic Environmental. 2019.** *Idiosoma Review*. Unpublished memo report prepared for Ecotec (WA) Pty Ltd on behalf of Fenix Resources. Available at: <u>https://minedex.dmirs.wa.gov.au/Web/environment-registrations/details/118669</u>.

**Brown, A., and Buirchell, B. 2021.** A Field Guide to the Eremophilas of Western Australia. Revised second edition. Published by A. Brown.

**Bureau of Meteorology. 2024a**. *Climate Statistics for Australian Sites - Western Australia*. <u>http://www.bom.gov.au/climate/data/index.shtml</u>. [Accessed Feb 2024].

**Department of Agriculture, Water and Environment. 2019.** *Rangelands 2008 – Taking the Pulse; Murchison Bioregion.* <u>https://www.environment.gov.au/system/files/resources/a8015c25-4aa2-4833-ad9c-e98d09e2ab52/files/bioregion-murchison.pdf</u>.

ecologia Environment. 2020a. Iron Ridge Biological Survey 2019. Unpublished report prepared for Fenix Resources, March 2020. Available at: <u>https://minedex.dmirs.wa.gov.au/Web/environment-registrations/details/118669</u>.

ecologia Environment. 2020b. *Micromyrtus placoides (Priority 3) Impact Assessment, Iron Ridge*. Unpublished memo report prepared for Fenix Resources, April 2020. Available at: <u>https://minedex.dmirs.wa.gov.au/Web/environment-registrations/details/118669</u>.

*ecologia* Environment. 2020c. *Micromyrtus placoides Targeted Survey Findings, Fenix Iron Ridge Iron Ore Project*. Unpublished memo report prepared for Fenix Resources, August 2020. Available at: <u>https://minedex.dmirs.wa.gov.au/Web/environment-registrations/details/118669</u>.

*ecologia* Environment. 2012. *Weld Range Iron Ore Project, Rare Flora Management Plan*. Prepared by *ecologia* Environment for Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd, March 2012.

ecologiaEnvironment. 2010a.WeldRangeFloraandVegetationAssessment.UnpublishedreportpreparedforSinosteelMidwestCorporation,June2010.Availableat:https://www.epa.wa.gov.au/sites/default/files/PERdocumentation/Appendix%20G\_Weld%20Range%20Flora%20Management%20Plan00.pdf.

*ecologia* Environment. 2010b. *Weld Range Iron Ore Project Public Environmental Review*. [online]. Available at: <a href="https://www.epa.wa.gov.au/proposals/weld-range-iron-ore-project">https://www.epa.wa.gov.au/proposals/weld-range-iron-ore-project</a> [Accessed February 2024].

ecologia Environment. 2009. *The Shield-back spider Idiosoma nigrum Survey at Weld Range*. Technical Appendix to Weld Range PER, Sinosteel Midwest Corporation, June 2010.

**EPA. 2020.** *Technical Guidance - Terrestrial vertebrate fauna surveys for environmental impact assessment.* Environmental Protection Authority, Perth, Western Australia. Available at: <u>https://www.epa.wa.gov.au/sites/default/files/Policies and Guidance/2020.09.17%20-</u>%20EPA%20Technical%20Guidance%20-%20Vertebrate%20Fauna%20Surveys%20-%20Final.pdf.

EPA. 2016. Technical Guidance – Flora and vegetation surveys for environmental impact assessment. EnvironmentalProtectionAuthority,Perth,WesternAustralia.Availableat:https://www.epa.wa.gov.au/sites/default/files/Policiesand\_Guidance/EPA%20Technical%20Guidance%20-%20Flora%20and%20Vegetation%20survey\_Dec13.pdf.

**Executive Steering Committee for Australian Vegetation Information (ESCAVI). 2003.** *Australian Vegetation Attribute Manual National Vegetation Information System, Version 6.0.* Department of the Environment and Heritage.

**Fenix. 2023.** *Fenix acquires 10 million tonne right to mine over high-grade Weld Range iron ore deposit.* ASX Announcement, 3 October 2023. Available at:

https://announcements.asx.com.au/asxpdf/20231003/pdf/05vm851qsk35zb.pdf.

**International Union for Conservation of Nature (IUCN). 2024.** *Australian Sandalwood*. [online]. Available at: <u>https://www.iucnredlist.org/species/172724199/172724334</u>. [Accessed August 2024].

Markey, A. S. and Dillon, S. J. 2008. Flora and vegetation of the banded iron formations of the Yilgarn Craton: the Weld Range. Science Division: Department of Environment and Conservation, Wanneroo, Western Australia. Available at: <a href="https://library.dbca.wa.gov.au/static/Journals/080559/080559-07.012.pdf/">https://library.dbca.wa.gov.au/static/Journals/080559/080559-07.012.pdf/</a>.

**Western Australian Herbarium. 1998–**. *Florabase—the Western Australian Flora* [online]. Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions. <u>https://florabase.dbca.wa.gov.au/</u> [Accessed August 2024].

# Appendix 1

# **Conservation Codes and Definitions**

#### Conservation codes for Western Australian flora and fauna (BC Regulations 2018).

Code	Definition
	Threatened species
	Listed by order of the Minister as Threatened in the category of critically endangered, endangered or vulnerable under section 19(1), or is a rediscovered species to be regarded as threatened species under section 26(2) of the Biodiversity Conservation Act 2016 (BC Act).
т	Threatened fauna is that subset of 'Specially Protected Fauna' listed under schedules 1 to 3 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for Threatened Fauna.
	Threatened flora is that subset of 'Rare Flora' listed under schedules 1 to 3 of the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for Threatened Flora.
	The assessment of the conservation status of these species is based on their national extent and ranked according to their level of threat using IUCN Red List categories and criteria as detailed below.
	Critically endangered species
	Threatened species considered to be "facing an extremely high risk of extinction in the wild in the immediate future, as determined in accordance with criteria set out in the ministerial guidelines".
CR	Listed as critically endangered under section 19(1)(a) of the BC Act in accordance with the criteria set out in section 20 and the ministerial guidelines. Published under schedule 1 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for critically endangered fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for critically endangered fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for critically endangered fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for critically endangered fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for critically endangered fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for critically endangered flora.
	Endangered species
EN	Threatened species considered to be "facing a very high risk of extinction in the wild in the near future, as determined in accordance with criteria set out in the ministerial guidelines".
	Listed as endangered under section 19(1)(b) of the BC Act in accordance with the criteria set out in section 21 and the ministerial guidelines. Published under schedule 2 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for endangered fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for endangered flora.
	Vulnerable species
VU	Threatened species considered to be "facing a high risk of extinction in the wild in the medium-term future, as determined in accordance with criteria set out in the ministerial guidelines". Listed as vulnerable under section 19(1)(c) of the BC Act in accordance with the criteria set out in section 22 and the ministerial guidelines. Published under schedule 3 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for vulnerable fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for vulnerable flora.
	Extinct species
	Listed by order of the Minister as extinct under section 23(1) of the BC Act as extinct or extinct in the wild.
	Presumed extinct species
EX	Species where "there is no reasonable doubt that the last member of the species has died", and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 24 of the BC Act).
	Published as presumed extinct under schedule 4 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018 for extinct fauna or the Wildlife Conservation (Rare Flora) Notice 2018 for extinct flora.
	- Extinct in the wild species
EW	Species that "is known only to survive in cultivation, in captivity or as a naturalised population well outside its past range; and it has not been recorded in its known habitat or expected habitat, at appropriate seasons, anywhere in its past range, despite surveys over a time frame appropriate to its life cycle and form", and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 25 of the BC Act).

	Currently there are no threatened fauna or threatened flora species listed as extinct in the wild. If listing of a species as extinct in the wild occurs, then a schedule will be added to the applicable notice.
	Specially protected species
	Listed by order of the Minister as specially protected under section 13(1) of the BC Act. Meeting one or more of the following categories: species of special conservation interest; migratory species; cetaceans; species subject to international agreement; or species otherwise in need of special protection.
	Species that are listed as threatened species (critically endangered, endangered or vulnerable) or extinct species under the BC Act cannot also be listed as Specially Protected species.
	Migratory species
	Fauna that periodically or occasionally visit Australia or an external Territory or the exclusive economic zone; or the species is subject of an international agreement that relates to the protection of migratory species and that binds the Commonwealth; and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 15 of the BC Act).
МІ	Includes birds that are subject to an agreement between the government of Australia and the governments of Japan (JAMBA), China (CAMBA) and The Republic of Korea (ROKAMBA), and fauna subject to the Convention on the Conservation of Migratory Species of Wild Animals (Bonn Convention), an environmental treaty under the United Nations Environment Program. Migratory species listed under the BC Act are a subset of the migratory animals that are known to visit Western Australia, protected under the international agreements or treaties, excluding species that are listed as Threatened species.
	Published as migratory birds protected under an international agreement under schedule 5 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018.
	Species of special conservation interest (conservation dependent fauna)
CD	Fauna of special conservation need being species dependent on ongoing conservation intervention to prevent it becoming eligible for listing as threatened, and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 14 of the BC Act).
	Published as conservation dependent fauna under schedule 6 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018.
	Other specially protected species
OS	Fauna otherwise in need of special protection to ensure their conservation, and listing is otherwise in accordance with the ministerial guidelines (section 18 of the BC Act).
	Published as other specially protected fauna under schedule 7 of the Wildlife Conservation (Specially Protected Fauna) Notice 2018.
	Priority species
	Possibly threatened species that do not meet survey criteria, or are otherwise data deficient, are added to the Priority Fauna or Priority Flora Lists under Priorities 1, 2 or 3. These three categories are ranked in order of priority for survey and evaluation of conservation status so that consideration can be given to their declaration as threatened fauna or flora.
	Species that are adequately known, are rare but not threatened, or meet criteria for near threatened, or that have been recently removed from the threatened species or other specially protected fauna lists for other than taxonomic reasons, are placed in Priority 4. These species require regular monitoring.
	Assessment of Priority codes is based on the Western Australian distribution of the species, unless the distribution in WA is part of a contiguous population extending into adjacent States, as defined by the known spread of locations.
	Priority 1: Poorly-known species
P1	Species that are known from one or a few locations (generally five or less) which are potentially at risk. All occurrences are either: very small; or on lands not managed for conservation, e.g. agricultural or pastoral lands, urban areas, road and rail reserves, gravel reserves and active mineral leases; or otherwise under threat of habitat destruction or degradation. Species may be included if they are comparatively well known from one or more

	locations but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and appear to be under immediate threat from known threatening processes. Such species are in urgent need of further survey.
	Priority 2: Poorly-known species
P2	Species that are known from one or a few locations (generally five or less), some of which are on lands managed primarily for nature conservation, e.g. national parks, conservation parks, nature reserves and other lands with secure tenure being managed for conservation. Species may be included if they are comparatively well known from one or more locations but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and appear to be under threat from known threatening processes. Such species are in urgent need of further survey.
	Priority 3: Poorly-known species
Р3	Species that are known from several locations, and the species does not appear to be under imminent threat, or from few but widespread locations with either large population size or significant remaining areas of apparently suitable habitat, much of it not under imminent threat. Species may be included if they are comparatively well known from several locations but do not meet adequacy of survey requirements and known threatening processes exist that could affect them. Such species are in need of further survey.
	Priority 4: Rare, Near Threatened and other species in need of monitoring
Р4	(a) Rare. Species that are considered to have been adequately surveyed, or for which sufficient knowledge is available, and that are considered not currently threatened or in need of special protection but could be if present circumstances change. These species are usually represented on conservation lands.
	(b) Near Threatened. Species that are considered to have been adequately surveyed and that are close to qualifying for vulnerable but are not listed as Conservation Dependent.
	(c) Species that have been removed from the list of threatened species during the past five years for reasons other than taxonomy.

#### Conservation codes for species listed under the Environmental Protection and Biodiversity Conversation Act 1999

Status	Definition			
Extinct	There is no reasonable doubt that the last member of the species has died.			
Extinct in the wild	It is known only to survive in cultivation, in captivity or as a naturalised population well outside its past range, or			
	It has not been recorded in its known and/or expected habitat, at appropriate seasons, anywhere in its past range, despite exhaustive surveys over a time frame appropriate to its life cycle and form.			
Critically Endangered	It is facing an extremely high risk of extinction in the wild in the immediate future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.			
Endangered	It is not critically endangered; and			
	It is facing a very high risk of extinction in the wild in the near future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.			
Vulnerable	It is not critically endangered or endangered; and			
	It is facing a high risk of extinction in the wild in the medium-term future, as determined in accordance with the prescribed criteria.			
Conservation dependant	The species is the focus of a specific conservation program the cessation of which would result in the species becoming vulnerable, endangered or critically endangered; or			
	The following subparagraphs are satisfied:			
	- The species is a species of fish			
	- The species is the focus of a plan of management that provides for management actions necessary to stop the decline of, and support the recovery of, the species so that its chances of long term survival in nature are maximised			
	- The plan of management is in force under a law of the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory			
	- Cessation of the plan of management would adversely affect the conservation status of the species.			
Threatened Ecological Communities				
Critically	If, at that time, an ecological community is facing an extremely high risk of extinction in the			
Endangered	wild in the immediate future (indicative timeframe being the next 10 years).			
Endangered	If, at that time, an ecological community is not critically endangered but is facing a very high			
	risk of extinction in the wild in the near future (indicative timeframe being the next 20 years).			
Vulnerable	If, at that time, an ecological community is not critically endangered or endangered, but is			
	facing a high risk of extinction in the wild in the medium-term future (indicative timeframe			
	being the next 50 years).			

Appendix 2

Flora species list
Family	Scientific Name	Status
Acanthaceae	Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri	
Aizoaceae	Tetragonia cristata	
Amaranthaceae	Ptilotus aervoides	
	Ptilotus exaltatus	
	Ptilotus obovatus	
	Ptilotus polystachyus	
	Ptilotus rotundifolius	
	Ptilotus schwartzii	
Apocynaceae	Leichhardtia australis	
- · ·	Vincetoxicum lineare	
Asparagaceae	Arthropodium sp.	
	Thysanotus manglesianus	
Asteraceae	Brachyscome iberidifolia	
	Calotis multicaulis	
	Cephalipterum drummondii	
	Chthonocephalus pseudevax	
	Helipterum craspedioides	
	Isoetopsis graminifolia	
	Lawrencella davenportii	
	Panaetia lessonii	
	Rhodanthe ?sterilescens (in bud)	
	Rhodanthe sp.	
	Waitzia acuminata	
Brassicaceae	Lepidium oxytrichum	
	Menkea villosula	
	Stenopetalum anfractum	
	Stenopetalum filifolium	
Celastraceae	Stackhousia muricata	
Chenopodiaceae	Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya	
	Enchylaena tomentosa	
	Eriochiton sclerolaenoides	
	Maireana carnosa	
	Maireana georgei	
	Maireana melanocoma	
	Maireana sp.	
	Maireana thesioides	
	Maireana triptera	
	Rhagodia eremaea	
	Sclerolaena diacantha	
	Sclerolaena eurotioides	
	Sclerolaena fusiformis	
	Sclerolaena sp.	
Crassulaceae	Crassula colorata var. acuminata	
Euphorbiaceae	Euphorbia boophthona	
	Euphorbia sarcostemmoides	
	Beyeria lapidicola	P1

Family	Scientific Name	Status
Fabaceae	Acacia aneura	
	Acacia aptaneura	
	Acacia caesaneura	
	Acacia craspedocarpa	
	Acacia fuscaneura	
	Acacia grasbyi	
	Acacia incurvaneura	
	Acacia mulganeura	
	Acacia pruinocarpa	
	Acacia pteraneura	
	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	
	Acacia rhodophloia	
	Acacia sclerosperma subsp. sclerosperma	
	Acacia sp. Weld Range	
	Acacia speckii	P4
	Acacia tetragonophylla	
	Chorizema genistoides	
	Glycine canescens	
	Senna artemisioides subsp. artemisioides	
	Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia	
	Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii	
	Senna artemisioides subsp. xsturtii	
	Senna glaucifolia	
	Senna glutinosa subsp. chatelainiana	
	Senna glutinosa subsp. xluerssenii	
	Senna sp. Meekatharra	
	Senna symonii	
Geraniaceae	Erodium cygnorum	
Goodeniaceae	Goodenia berardiana	
	Goodenia tenuiloba	
	Scaevola spinescens	
Haloragaceae	, Haloragis odontocarpa	
Lamiaceae	Prostanthera petrophila	
	Teucrium teucriiflorum	
Malvaceae	Abutilon sp.	
	Androcalva luteiflora	
	Brachychiton gregorii	
	Hibiscus sp.	
	Hibiscus sturtii	
	Sida calyxhymenia	
	Sida ectogama	İ
	Sida sp. Golden calvces alabrous	
Marsileaceae	Marsilea hirsuta	
Montiaceae	Calandrinia sp.	
Myrtaceae	Calytrix desolata	
,	Hysterobaeckea occlusa	

Family	Scientific Name	Status
Myrtaceae	Micromyrtus placoides	P3
	Micromyrtus sulphurea	
	Thryptomene decussata	
	Verticordia jamiesonii	P3
Oxalidaceae	Oxalis ?corniculata*	Weed
Pittosporaceae	Pittosporum angustifolium	
Poaceae	Amphipogon caricinus var. caricinus	
	Aristida contorta	
	Austrostipa elegantissima	
	Cymbopogon ambiguus	
	Eragrostis dielsii	
	Eragrostis eriopoda	
	Eragrostis falcata	
	Monachather paradoxus	
	Paspalidium basicladum	
	Thyridolepis multiculmis	
Portulaceae	Portulaca oleracea	
Proteaceae	Grevillea berryana	
	Grevillea deflexa	
	Hakea lorea	
	Hakea preissii	
Pteridaceae	Cheilanthes lasiophyllum	
	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi	
	Cheilanthes sp.	
Rhamnaceae	Stenanthemum mediiale	P1
Rubiaceae	Psydrax latifolia	
	Psydrax rigidula	
	Psydrax suaveolens	
Rutaceae	Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei	
Santalaceae	Santalum spicatum	R
Sapindaceae	Dodonaea pachyneura	
Scrophulariaceae	Eremophila compacta	
	Eremophila eriocalyx	
	Eremophila exilifolia	
	Eremophila foliosissima	
	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	
	Eremophila forrestii subsp. hastieana	
	Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri	
	Eremophila georgei	
	Eremophila gilesii	
	Eremophila glutinosa	
	Eremophila granitica	
	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	
	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	
	Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata	
	Eremophila macmillaniana	

Family	Scientific Name	Status
Scrophulariaceae	Eremophila pantonii	
	Eremophila punicea	
	Eremophila serrulata	
	Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans	
	Eremophila sp. Weld Range	
	Eremophila spathulata	
Solanaceae	Nicotiana obliqua	
	Nicotiana rosulata	
	Solanum lasiophyllum	
Stylidiaceae	Stylidium longibracteatum	
Zygophyllaceae	Roepera lobulata	
	Roepera sp.	
	Tribulus suberosus	

# Appendix 3

# Vegetation site descriptions

Fenix Beebyn-W11 Haul Road, Pit, WRD and Gravel Pit site descriptions

NVIS foliage cover codes.

Cover Characteristics					
Foliage cover	70–100	30 – 70	10 – 30	< 10	~ 0 (<2)
Crown cover	>80	50 – 80	20 – 50	0.25 – 20	<0.25
% cover	>80	50 – 80	20 – 50	0.25 - <20	<0.25
Cover code	d	С	i	r	bi

Height classes defined for the NVIS.

Height		Growth Form				
Height	Height	Tree	Shrub,	Tree mallee,	Tussock	Bryophyte,
Class	Range (m)		chenopod shrub	mallee shrub	grass	lichen
8	>30	Tall	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
7	10 – 30	Mid	N/A	Tall	N/A	N/A
6	< 10	Low	N/A	Mid	N/A	N/A
5	<3	N/A	N/A	Low	N/A	N/A
4	>2	N/A	Tall	N/A	Tall	N/A
3	1 – 2	N/A	Mid	N/A	Tall	N/A
2	0.5 – 1	N/A	Low	N/A	Mid	Tall
1	< 0.5	N/A	Low	N/A	Low	Low

Summary of NVIS strata codes.

NVIS	NVIS	Description	Growth forms	Height
stratum	sub-			classes
code	stratum			
U	U1	Tallest stratum	Tree, tree mallees	8, 7, 6,
	U2	Sub-canopy layer, second tree layer	(mallee shrubs)	(5)
	U3	Sub-canopy layer, third tree layer		
М	M1	Tallest shrub layer	Shrubs, low trees,	(6), 5, 4,
	M2	Next shrub layer	mallee shrubs, low	3
	M3	Third shrub layer	shrubs, vines	
G	G1	Tallest ground species	Grasses, forbs,	(4, 3), 2,
	G2	Ground	sedges, rushes, vines,	1
			lichens, low shrubs	

# Growth Form Codes used in descriptions

Т	Tree	U	Samphire shrub	F	Forb
М	Mallee	Z	Heath shrub	Е	Fern
S	Shrub	G	Tussock grass	L	Vine
R	Rush	V	Sedge	В	Bryophyte (moss, liverwort)
С	Chenopod shrub	К	Epiphyte	Ν	Lichen

V 1 30/07/2024 WRD area					
GPS: 584216 E/ 7027089 N	Landform: Stony plain, very gentle slope aspect east				
Elevation: 499 m	Proposed WRD east end				
I shall show for a set Mall should be used a filter set.					

Land surface: Yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock (BIF, quartz 2 – 10 cm, 30 – 40 %; gravel 20 – 30 %); litter 2 – 10 %

Condition & disturbances: Poor; pastoral impacts – grazing, tracks; active erosion

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia pruinocarpa\Acacia\^tree\7\bi; U2^ Acacia aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa\Acacia\ ^tree\6\r; M1^ Acacia aptaneura, A. craspedocarpa, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri\Acacia\ ^shrub, tree\4\r; M2^ Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Senna symonii, Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Sida ectogama\Eremophila\^shrub\2\bi; G1^ Ptilotus obovatus, Enchylaena tomentosa, Goodenia tenuiloba, Erodium cygnorum, Eragrostis eriopoda\Ptilotus\^shrub, chenopod shrub, forb\1\i

Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa isolated trees over Acacia aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia aptaneura, A. craspedocarpa, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri tall sparse shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Enchylaena tomentosa, Goodenia tenuiloba low sparse shrubland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
8–12	< 2	Т	Acacia pruinocarpa
4 – 8	2–10	Т	Acacia aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa
2-4	2 – 10	S, T	Acacia aptaneura, A. craspedocarpa, Eremophila fraseri subsp.
			fraseri
0.5 – 1	< 2	S	Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Senna symonii, Eremophila
			mackinlayi subsp. spathulata, Sida ectogama
< 0.5	10 – 20	S, C,	Ptilotus obovatus, Enchylaena tomentosa, Goodenia tenuiloba,
		F	Erodium cygnorum, Eragrostis eriopoda

Other species: Acacia caesaneura, A. incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla, Euphorbia sarcostemmoides, Monachather paradoxus, Rhagodia eremaea

Acacia aptaneura Acacia caesaneura Acacia craspedocarpa Acacia incurvaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia tetragonophylla Enchylaena tomentosa Eragrostis eriopoda Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri Eremophila mackinlayi subsp. spathulata Erodium cygnorum Euphorbia sarcostemmoides P1 Goodenia tenuiloba Monachather paradoxus Ptilotus obovatus Rhagodia eremaea Senna symonii (sterile; tentative) Sida ectogama



V 2 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 WRD area						
GPS: 584227 E/ 7027159 N Landform: S				tony plain; denser patch of vegetation		
Elevation: 49	Elevation: 499 m					
Land surface	e: Yellowis	h red silt	y clay loam			
Condition &	disturband	ces: Goo	d; many germinat	ing forbs; pastoral impacts		
NVIS 6: U1+	^ Acacia p	ruinocar	pa\Acacia\^tree\6	N; M1^ Acacia tetragonophylla, A. caesaneura, A.		
aptaneura\A	cacia\^shi	rub\4\i; I	12^ Eremophila fr	aseri subsp. fraseri, Acacia tetragonophylla\		
Eremophila\	^shrub\3\ı	r; G1^ Pt	ilotus obovatus, S	ida ectogama, Rhagodia eremaea, Acacia		
tetragonoph	ylla, Eremo	ophila fra	aseri subsp. fraser	ri\Ptilotus\^shrub, chenopod shrub\1\c; G2^		
Menkea villo	osula, Cras	sula col	orata var. acumina	ata, Stenopetalum anfractum, Aristida contorta,		
Leichhardtia	australis\	Menkea	^forb, tussock gra	ass, climber\1\c		
Vegetation:	Acacia pru	inocarpa	a open woodland o	over Acacia tetragonophylla, A. caesaneura, A.		
aptaneura ta	all sparse s	hrublan	d over Eremophila	a fraseri subsp. fraseri, Acacia tetragonophylla		
sparse shrul	bland over	Ptilotus	obovatus, Sida ec	togama, Rhagodia eremaea low open shrubland		
over Menkea	a villosula,	Crassul	a colorata var. acu	iminata, Stenopetalum anfractum low forbland		
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species			
	cover %					
8–10	10 – 30	Т	Acacia pruinocai	rpa		
2-3	2–10	S	Acacia tetragono	phylla, A. caesaneura, A. aptaneura		
1 – 2	2–10	S	Eremophila frase	ri subsp. fraseri, Acacia tetragonophylla		
0.3-0.6	20 – 30	S, C	Ptilotus obovatus	s, Sida ectogama, Rhagodia eremaea, Acacia		
			tetragonophylla,	Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri		
< 0.2	40 – 60	F, G,	Menkea villosula	, Crassula colorata var. acuminata, Stenopetalum		
		L	anfractum, Aristi	da contorta, Leichhardtia australis		
Acacia aptai	neura					
Acacia caes	aneura			Se Ball		
Acacia pruin	iocarpa cononhulla					
Acacia letra	gonopnyuz torto	1				
Aristida contorta						
Crassula colorala val. acuminala						
Menkea villosula						
Ptilotus obovatus						
Rhagodia en	emaea					
Stenopetalu	m anfracti	ım				
Sida ectogai	ma					

## V3 30<sup>th</sup> July 2024 7.56 am WRD area Relevé

GPS: 584060 E/ 7027134 N Elevation: 501 m

Enchylaena tomentosa

Landform: Gently sloping stony plain; aspect east

Land surface: Yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock 10 – 30 %

Condition & disturbances: Good within patch; poor to degraded in surrounding areas

Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa, A. aptaneura low open woodland over Acacia pruinocarpa, A. aptaneura, A. tetragonophylla tall sparse shrubland over Acacia caesaneura, A. tetragonophylla, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri isolated shrubs over Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana sp., Enchylaena tomentosa, Ptilotus schwartzii low sparse shrubland

Other species: Scaevola spinescens, Acacia sclerosperma subsp. sclerosperma, Ptilotus rotundifolius



Scaevola spinescens

	V4 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 8.09 am WRD area					
GPS: 58	3884 E/ 702	7054 N		Landform: Low rise; stony, gentle slope; aspect east		
Elevatio	Elevation: 504 m					
Land su	Irface: Yellov	wish red	silty cla	ay loam; surface rock 2 – 10 cm (BIF, chert, quartz, 10 – 20 %);		
gravel (3	30 – 40 %); li	tter < 5 g	%; faller	n timber < 2 %		
Conditi	on & disturb	ances: F	Poor; la	cking understory; pastoral impacts		
NVIS 6:	U1^ Acacia	pruinoc	arpa\Ac	acia\ ^tree\6\bi; M1+^ Acacia aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa\Acacia\		
^shrub,	tree\4\i; M2	^ Acacia	a tetrago	onophylla, A. pruinocarpa, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri\		
Acacia\	^shrub\3\bi;	G1^Ac	acia pru	uinocarpa, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Acacia aptaneura,		
Ptilotus	obovatus, F	? schwa	rtzii\Aca	acia\^shrub\2\r		
Vegetat	ion: Acacia J	oruinoca	arpa iso	lated trees over Acacia aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa tall open		
shrubla	nd over Aca	cia tetra	gonoph	ylla, A. pruinocarpa, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri isolated		
shrubs	over Acacia	pruinoca	arpa, Er	emophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Acacia aptaneura low sparse		
shrubla	nd					
Height	Crown	Habit	Specie	es		
(m)	cover %					
10	< 2	T	Acacia	a pruinocarpa		
3-8	10 – 20	S, T	Acacia	a aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa		
1-2	< 2	S	Acacia	a tetragonophylla, A. pruinocarpa, Eremophila fraseri subsp.		
			fraser	i		
< 1	2–10	S	Acacia	a pruinocarpa, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Acacia		
			aptan	eura, Ptilotus obovatus, P. schwartzii		
Other s	pecies: Acad	cia crasp	pedocal	rpa		
Acacia a	aptaneura					
Acacia	craspedoca	rpa				
Acacia	pruinocarpa			in the second		
Acacia i –	tetragonoph	ylla 				
Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri						
Ptilotus obovatus						
Ptilotus schwartzii						
				the second s		
				and the second second second second second second		

V5 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 8.20 am WRD area Relevé					
GPS: 583750 E/ 7027038 N	Landform: Low hill; lower slope; colluvial outwash; aspect				
Elevation: 506 m	south				
Land surface: Yellowish red silty cla	ay loam; surface rock < 10 %				
Condition & disturbances: Good; lo	ot of pastoral disturbances; erosion active				
Vegetation: Acacia aneura tall oper	n shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low isolated				
shrubs (0.5 – 1 m) over Maireana sp	o., Enchylaena tomentosa, Eragrostis eriopoda, Erodium				
cygnorum low sparse chenopod sh	nrubland				
Acacia aneura					
Enchylaena tomentosa					
Eragrostis eriopoda					
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii	i de la companya de la				
Erodium cygnorum					
Maireana sp.					
	and the second sec				

V6 30 <sup>tt</sup>	July 2024 WR	D area 8.30 am Relevé	
GPS: 583838 E/ 7027185 N	Landform: Lower slope of outwash slope; colluvium		
Elevation:			
Land surface: Yellowish red silty cl	ay loam; surfac	e rock 2 – 10 cm 10 – 20 %, gravel 10 – 20 %; litter	
< 10 %; fallen timber < 2 %			
Condition & disturbances: Poor; m	oderate to high	pastoral impacts, old tracks; rabbits, regeneration	
very low			
Vegetation: Acacia aptaneura, A. ir	ncurvaneura, A.	caesaneura tall open shrubland over Eremophila	
fraseri subsp. fraseri, Acacia ramul	osa var. linophy	lla isolated shrubs over Helipterum	
craspedioides, Erodium cygnorum	, Eragrostis erio	poda, Acacia caesaneura low sparse forbland	
V6 & V7 species list			
Acacia aptaneura		and the second	
Acacia caesaneura		State of the second	
Acacia incurvaneura		A CONTRACT OF A	
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla			
Eragrostis eriopoda			
Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri			
Erodium cygnorum			
Helipterum craspedioides			
Ptilotus aervoides (V7)			
Ptilotus rotundifolius (V7)			

V7 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 WRD area Relevé				
GPS: 583984 E/ 7027248 N Landform: Plain; gentle slope aspect south east				
Elevation:	WRD area			
Land surface:				
Condition & disturbances: Poor; pastoral impacts; erosion moderate				
Vegetation: Acacia aptaneura, A. caesaneura tall sparse shrubland over Acacia aptaneura, A.				
ramulosa var. linophylla, Ptilotus rotundifolius sparse shrubland over Eragrostis eriopoda, Ptilotus				
aervoides low open tussock grassland				

V8 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 rehabilitation site WRD area							
GPS: 584284 E/ 7027164 N Landform: Plain; gentle slope; aspect south east							
Elevation:	500						
Land surfa	ce: Yellowi	sh red g	itty clay	/ loam; surface rock (hardpan, other) 60 – 80 %; bare ground <			
20 %							
Condition &	& disturbar	ices: Go	od; hist	coric drill location that has been rehabilitated (ripped);			
recruitmen	it and grow	th good					
NVIS 6: G1	+^ Ptilotus	obovatı	ıs, Rhag	odia eremaea, Acacia pruinocarpa, Enchylaena tomentosa,			
Cymbopog	on ambigu	us\Ptilo	tus\^sh	rub, chenopod shrub, tussock grass\2\i; G2^ Cephalipterum			
drummond	lii, Mairean	a tripter	a, Menk	ea villosula, Ptilotus obovatus\Cephalipterum\^forb,			
chenopod	chenopod shrub, shrub\1\bi						
Vegetation	Vegetation: Ptilotus obovatus, Rhagodia eremaea, Acacia pruinocarpa low open shrubland over						
Cephalipte	erum drumi	mondii, I	Mairear	a triptera, Menkea villosula isolated low forbs and chenopod			
shrubs							
Height	Crown	Habit	Specie	s			
(m)	m) cover %						
0.2-0.8	20 – 30	S, C,	, Ptilotus obovatus, Rhagodia eremaea, Acacia pruinocarpa,				
		G	Enchylaena tomentosa, Cymbopogon ambiguus				
< 0.2	< 2	F, C,	Cephalipterum drummondii, Maireana triptera, Menkea villosula,				
S Ptilotus obovatus							
Other species (outside/ edges): Acacia aneura, Cheilanthes sp., Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri,							
Psydrax latifolia, Santalum spicatum							

Acacia aneura (edge) Acacia pruinocarpa Cephalipterum drummondii Cheilanthes sp. (edge) Cymbopogon ambiguus Enchylaena tomentosa Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri (edge) Maireana triptera Menkea villosula Psydrax latifolia (edge) Ptilotus obovatus Rhagodia eremaea Santalum spicatum R (edge)

V8b 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 Relevé WRD area				
GPS: 584261 E/ 7026852 N Landform: Stony plain; south side of WRD area				
Elevation: 498 m Area searched for <i>Euphorbia sarcostemmoides</i>				
Land surface: Yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock (BIF, chert, quartz) 10 – 20 %; litter < 5 %;				
fallen timber < 2 %				
Condition & disturbances: Poor; pa	astoral impacts high; sheet erosion; rabbits; many drought deaths			
and part crown deaths; condition c	of woodland patches – good			
Vegetation: Woodland patch – Acad	cia pruinosa, Acacia aptaneura low woodland over Teucrium			
teucriiflorum, Vincetoxicum lineare	e, Senna glutinosa subsp. xluerssenii, Psydrax suaveolens			
shrubland over Maireana georgei lo	ow open chenopod shrubland over Lepidium oxytrichum,			
Erodium cygnorum, Menkea villosu	ıla, Goodenia tenuiloba, Isoetopsis graminifolia low forbland			
Vegetation: Stony plain – Acacia ap	taneura low isolated trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla,			
Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, S	enna glaucifolia sparse shrubland over Ptilotus aervoides,			
Goodenia tenuiloba, Erodium cygn	orum low sparse forbland			
Stony plain				
Acacia aptaneura				
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla				
Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri				
Erodium cygnorum	Per the second second			
Goodenia tenuiloba				
Ptilotus aervoides	the second se			
Senna glaucifolia	the second s			
	a second s			
	the second s			
	and the second			
Woodland patch	No image			
Acacia aptaneura				
Acacia pruinocarpa				
Erodium cygnorum				
Goodenia tenuiloba				
Isoetopsis graminifolia				
Lepidium oxytrichum				
Maireana georgei				
Menkea villosula				
Psydrax suaveolens				
Senna glutinosa subsp. xluerssenii				
leucrium teucriitlorum				
vinceloxicum lineare				

V9 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 WRD east area				
GPS: 583983 E/ 7027651 N	Landform: Hill; ridge, upper slope; aspect south			
Elevation: 515 m	Rocky scree slope			
Land surface: Shallow yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock (BIF, chert) 60 – 80 %				
Condition & disturbances: Very good; pastoral impacts lower; forbs – many germinating				

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia aptaneura\Acacia\^shrub\4\i; M1^ Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. glutinosa, E. spathulata, Acacia aptaneura, Ptilotus rotundifolius\Eremophila\^shrub\3\i; G1^ Helipterum craspedioides, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Nicotiana rosulata\Helipterum\^forb, fern\1\r

Vegetation: Acacia aptaneura tall open shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. glutinosa, E. spathulata open shrubland over Helipterum craspedioides, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Nicotiana rosulata low sparse forbland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
4–6	10 – 20	S	Acacia aptaneura
0.9–1.5	20 – 30	S	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. glutinosa, E. spathulata,
			Acacia aptaneura, Ptilotus rotundifolius
< 0.2	2 – 10	F, E	Helipterum craspedioides, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi,
			Nicotiana rosulata

Acacia aptaneura

Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Eremophila glutinosa Eremophila spathulata Nicotiana rosulata Ptilotus rotundifolius



V10 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 Relevé					
GPS: 583922 E/ 7027668 N	Landform: BIF Ri	lidge; massive BIF outcrops; moderate to steep			
Elevation: 524 m slopes north a		d south			
	North edge of Be	eebyn Prescribed area			
Land surface: Skeletal yellowish re	d silty clay loam; s	surface rock > 90 %; litter < 10 %			
Condition & disturbances: Very goo	d to excellent; lov	w pastoral impacts; drought impacts – several			
deaths of small shrubs; healthy ne	v growth from rece	cent rains			
Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura is	olated tall shrubs	s over Thryptomene decussata, Eremophila			
latrobei subsp. latrobei, Eremophil	a glutinosa, Dodor	naea pachyneura, Acacia incurvaneura open			
shrubland over Micromyrtus sulphi	ırea, Prostanthera	a petrophila, Hysterobaeckea occlusa,			
Thryptomene decussata low open s	hrubland over Sty	ylidium longibracteatum, Dysphania			
rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostac	hya, Cheilanthes	s lasiophyllum low open forbland			
Other species: Santalum spicatum	(low tree), Acacia	a pruinocarpa (low tree), Brachyscome			
iberidifolia, Amphipogon caricinus	/ar. caricinus				
Acacia incurvaneura					
Acacia pruinocarpa					
Amphipogon caricinus var. caricinu	S S				
Brachyscome iberidifolia		The second we have a second of			
		A. S. Maran 118-			
Dodonaea pachyneura		and the second second			
Fremonhila dutinosa		Case of the second			
Fremonhila latrobei subsp. latrobe					
Hysterobaeckea occlusa		TETA E TANK OF			
Micromyrtus sulphurea					
Prostanthera petrophila					
Santalum spicatum					
Stylidium longibracteatum		Shings Same 2			
Thrvptomene decussata		1 Frank Street S			
		and the second s			
Bottom image: Prostanthera petron	hila habitat;	NO CONTRACTOR			
massive BIF outcrop					

	V11 11.30 am 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024					
GPS: 583701 E/ 7027463 N Landform: H			Landform: H	lill; upper slope; aspect south east; colluvial		
Elevation: 523 m outwash slop			outwash slo	pe, moderate slope		
Land surface: Yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock 30 – 40 %; litter < 5 %; fallen timber < 2 %						
Condition &	disturban	ces: Poo	r to good; pastora	l Impacts; drought impacts – few deaths		
NVIS 6: U1+	^ Acacia fu	iscaneu	ra, A. pteraneura, .	A. sp. Weld Range, Thryptomene decussata\Acacia\		
^shrub\4\i;1	M1^ Acacia	a pteran	eura, Eremophila l	atrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna glaucifolia,		
Thryptomen	e decussa	ta\Acacı	a\^shrub\3\r; M2^	Eremophila glutinosa, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii,		
Ptilotus obo	vatus, Hari	nieria ke	mpeana subsp. m	uelleri\Eremophila\2\r; G1^ Erodium cygnorum,		
Helipterum	craspedioi	des, Mo	nachather parado	xus, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri\Erodium\		
^forb, tusso	ck grass, s	hrub\1\k	<i>oi</i>			
Vegetation:	Acacia fus	caneura	, A. pteraneura, A.	sp. Weld Range tall open shrubland over Acacia		
pteraneura,	Eremophil	a latrob	ei subsp. latrobei,	Senna glaucifolia sparse shrubland over		
Eremophila	glutinosa,	E. forres	tii subsp. forrestii,	Ptilotus obovatus low sparse shrubland		
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species			
	cover %					
2-6	10 – 30	S	Acacia fuscaneu	ra, A. pteraneura, A. sp. Weld Range, Thryptomene		
			decussata			
1 – 2	2 – 10	S	Acacia pteraneu	ra, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Senna		
			glaucifolia, Thryp	otomene decussata		
0.2 – 1	2 – 10	S	Eremophila gluti	nosa, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus obovatus,		
			Harnieria kempe	Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri		
< 0.2	< 2	F, G,	Erodium cygnorum, Helipterum craspedioides, Monachather			
		S	paradoxus, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri			
Other species: Grevillea berryana, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei (on minor BIF outcrop), Acacia						
tetragonophylla						
Acacia fusca						
Acacia pteraneura						
Acacia sp. V	Veld Range	•				
Acacia tetra	gonophylla	9				
Eremophila	forrestii su	bsp. for	restii			
Eremophila glutinosa				and the second sec		
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei						
Erodium cygnorum						
Grevillea berryana				a start of the second second		
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri			uelleri			
Helipterum craspedioides						
Monachather paradoxus						
Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei						
Prilotus obovatus						
Senna glaucifolia						
Thryptomene decussata						

	V12 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 WRD area north				
GPS: 58372	5 E/ 70273	55 N	Landform: H	lill; lower midslope; colluvium; aspect south	
Elevation: 5 <sup>-</sup>	Elevation: 514 m				
Land surface: Surface rock (mostly gravel, 2 – 5 % 2 – 10 cm) 10 – 20 %; cryptogams (lichen) 50 – 60					
%	%				
Condition &	disturban	ces: Poo	r; pastoral impact	s moderate to high; active erosion	
NVIS 6: U1+	^ Acacia fu	iscaneu	ra, A. pteraneura\A	Acacia\^shrub, tree\4\i; M1^ Acacia ramulosa var.	
linophylla, A	. fuscaneu	ıra\Acac	ia\^shrub\3\r; G1′	` Solanum lasiophyllum, Ptilotus obovatus,	
Eragrostis er	riopoda\So	lanum\*	`shrub, tussock gr	ass\1\bi	
Vegetation:	Acacia fus	caneura	, A. pteraneura tal	l open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var.	
linophylla, A	. fuscaneu	ıra spars	e shrubland		
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species		
	cover %				
2-6	10 – 30	S, T	Acacia fuscaneu	ra, A. pteraneura	
1 – 2	2–10	S	Acacia ramulosa	var. linophylla, A. fuscaneura	
< 0.5	< 2	S, G	Solanum lasioph	yllum, Ptilotus obovatus, Eragrostis eriopoda	
Other specie	es: Ptilotus	rotundi	folius, Eremophila	aglutinosa	
Acacia fusca	aneura				
Acacia ptera	neura				
Acacia ramu	ılosa var. li	nophylla	3		
Eragrostis er	riopoda				
Eremophila	glutinosa				
Ptilotus obo	vatus				
Ptilotus rotundifolius				The second of the second of the	
Solanum lasiophyllum					
V13				Several Harnieria kempeana, Goodenia tenuiloba,	
GPS: 58381	9 E/ 70274	84 N aarna at	arting towarda	isoetopsis graminitolia	
isolated Acacia pruinocarpa starting, towards					
V14				يهر فيتقر	
GPS: 583802	2 E/ 70275	35 N		Share and the second	
Landform: H	lill; minor E	BIF outc	op; upper slope;		
aspect south					
Condition: good; several drought deaths					
Acacia fuscaneura low isolated trees over					
Acacia fuscaneura, A. rhodophloia tall sparse			loia tall sparse		
shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp.			ropei subsp.		
latrobel, Philotheca brucel subsp. brucel, Grevilles berryans sparse shrubland over			sp. blucel, bland over	A CARLEN AL CONTRACTOR	
Brachyscome iberidifolia low sparse forbland					

	V15 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 Pit area		
GPS: 583160 E/ 7027264 N	Landform: Hill; BIF; colluvial outwash slope; aspect south east;		
Elevation: 538 m	BIF ridge to north		
Land surface: Yellowish red silty cla	ay loam; surface rock – variable (due to level of disturbance)		
Condition & disturbances: Degrade	d with good patches; significant areas disturbed through historic		
mining activities; erosion active in s	some areas		
Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa iso	lated trees over Acacia pteraneura, A. aptaneura tall open		
shrubland over Dodonaea pachyne	ura sparse shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei,		
Ptilotus obovatus, Harnieria kempe	ana subsp. muelleri, Sida sp. Golden calyces, Maireana sp. low		
sparse to open shrubland			
Other species: Eremophila forrestii	subsp. forrestii		
Acacia aptaneura			
Acacia pruinocarpa			
Acacia pteraneura			
Dodonaea pachyneura			
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii			
Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei			
Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelle	ri and a second s		
Maireana sp.			
Ptilotus obovatus			
Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous			

	V16 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 Pit area					
GPS: 583222 E/ 7027228 N Landform: H			Landform: Hill; midslope; moderate slope; aspect SE			
Elevation: 532 m						
Land surfac	e: Yellowis	h red sil	ty clay loam; surface rock 60 – 70 % (2 – 10 cm BIF, quartz, chert – 10 –			
20 %; gravel	40 – 60 %)	; litter <	10 %; fallen timber < 2 %			
Condition &	disturban	ces: Goo	od; pastoral and mining impacts; erosion active; drought impacts; low			
shrubs and	groundcov	er grass	es, forbs mainly under groups of taller shrubs or trees			
NVIS 6: <i>U1</i> ^	Acacia pru	uinocarp	a\Acacia\^tree\6\bi; M1+^ Acacia aptaneura, A. rhodophloia, A.			
pruinocarpa	NAcacia\^s	shrub\4\	i; M2^ Thryptomene decussata, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A.			
pruinocarpa	hThryptom	ene\^sh	rub\3\r; G1^ Sida sp. Golden calyces, Harnieria kempeana subsp.			
muelleri, Th	yridolepis I	multicul	mis, Eragrostis eriopoda, Goodenia tenuiloba\Sida\^shrub, tussock			
grass, forb\2	2\r					
Vegetation:	Acacia pru	inocarp	a low isolated trees over Acacia aptaneura, A. rhodophloia, A.			
pruinocarpa	i tall open s	shrublar	nd over Thryptomene decussata, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A.			
pruinocarpa	n sparse sn	rubland Sie leuve	over Sida sp. Golden calyces, Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri,			
Inyridolepis	Graves	IIS LOW S				
Height (m)		Habit	Species			
9 10		т	Appoio pruipoporpo			
3-6	10 - 30	۱ د	Acacia prumocarpa			
1-2	2 - 10	S	Thrvntomene decussata, Acacia ramulosa var Jinophylla, A			
1 2	2 10	0				
< 1	2-10	S.G.	Sida sp. Golden calvces. Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri.			
		6, 0, F	Thvridolepis multiculmis. Fragrostis eriopoda, Goodenia tenuiloba			
Other speci	es: Greville	a berrva	ana. Eremophila glutinosa			
Acacia apta	neura					
Acacia pruir	nocarpa					
Acacia ramu	ılosa var. li	nophylla				
Acacia rhod	ophloia					
Eragrostis e	riopoda		NO WAS AREAS IN			
Eremophila glutinosa						
Goodenia tenuiloba						
Grevillea berryana						
Harnieria ke	mpeana si	ubsp. m	uelleri			
Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous			ous and the second s			
Thryptomen	e decussa	ta				
Thyridolepis	multiculm	nis	and the second			

GPS: 583130	) E/ 70271	47 N	Landform: Hill; midslope; gentle slope; aspect SE			
Elevation: 52	27 m					
Land surface	e: Yellowis	h red fin	e sandy clay loam; surface rock 10 – 20 %; litter < 10 %; fallen timber			
< 5 %; bare g	ground – pa	atches o	f washed sand/ sandy loam 10 – 30 %			
Condition &	disturband	ces: Goo	d – pastoral impacts; moderate mining impacts in broader area –			
some sedim	entation fr	om eros	ion along track; grasses mostly absent; some larger cleared areas			
adjacent						
NVIS 6: U1+	NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia incurvaneura\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\i; M1^ Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A.					
rhodophloia	\Acacia\^s	hrub\4\	bi; M2^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp.			
latrobei, Hai	nieria kem	peana s	ubsp. muelleri, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Abutilon sp.			
\Eremophila	\Eremophila\^shrub\3\i; G1^ Brachyscome iberidifolia, Erodium cygnorum, Goodenia tenuiloba,					
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi						
Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. rhodophloia						
isolated tall shrubs over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, Harnieria						
kempeana subsp. muelleri open shrubland over Brachyscome iberidifolia, Erodium cygnorum,						
Goodenia tenuiloba, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi low open forbland						
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species			

V17 30<sup>th</sup> July 2024 Pit area 1.45 pm

	cover %				
6–9	25 – 30	T, S	Acacia incurvaneura		
2-4	< 2	S	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. rhodophloia		
0.5–1.5	20 – 30	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei,		
			Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri, Eremophila fraseri subsp.		
			fraseri, Abutilon sp.		
< 0.3	10–20	F, E	Brachyscome iberidifolia, Erodium cygnorum, Goodenia tenuiloba,		
			Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi		

Other species: Acacia pruinocarpa, Ptilotus rotundifolius

Abutilon sp. Acacia incurvaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Acacia rhodophloia Brachyscome iberidifolia Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Erodium cygnorum Goodenia tenuiloba Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri

Ptilotus rotundifolius

	y 2024 Pit area				
GPS: 582740 E/ 7027049 N Landform: BII				Landform: BIF	<sup>-</sup> ridge; upper slope; aspect north/ south steep sides;
Elevation: 555 m gentle to wes				gentle to west	t; very steep to east > crest
Land surface	e: Skeletal s	oils; sur	small rocks to boulders, 80 – 90 %		
Condition &	disturbance	es: Very	good; s	ome mining ac	stivities on lower slope – clearing for drill locations and
access track	ks; signs of i	rabbits in	broade	er area	
NVIS 6: M1 ^	Thryptome	ne decus	ssata, A	cacia pruinoca	arpa\Thryptomene\^shrub, tree\4\r; M2^ Acacia
aptaneura, 1		e decuss	ata\Aca	acia\^shrub\3'	r; M3^ Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus
obovatus, D	odonaea pa	chyneur	a, Tribu	lus suberosus	\Eremophila\^shrub\2\i; G1^ Dysphania rhadinostachya
subsp. rhadi	inostachya,	Erodium	cygnoi	rum, Helipteru	m craspedioides, Goodenia tenuiloba, Stenopetalum
anfractum\L	) Dysphania	forb\1\i	70		
Vegetation:	Thrvptomen	e decus	sata. Ad	cacia pruinoca	rpa tall isolated shrubs over Acacia incurvaneura.
Thryptomen	e decussata	a isolated	d shrub	s over Eremop	hila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus obovatus,
Dodonaea p	achvneura.	Tribulus	subero	sus low open s	shrubland over Dysphania rhadinostachva subsp.
rhadinostac	hva. Frodiu	m cvgnoi	rum. He	elipterum crasi	pedioides low open forbland
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Speci	es	
11016111 (111)	cover %	Trabit	opeen		
2 - 4	2 - 10	ST	Thryp	tomene decus	sata. Acacia pruinocarna
2-4 1-2	2 - 10	9,1	Acaci		Thryptomene decussata
1-2	2 - 10	5 9	From	a ilicul valleula onhilo lotroboi	subsp. Jatrahai Btilatus abayatus Dadanaaa
0.3 - 1	10-30	3	noohu	upouro Tribulu	
< 0.2	20 20	ГО	Duonk		taabya ayban rhadinaataabya. Fradiym aygnarym
< 0.3	20-30	г, э,	Dyspi	iania maunos	lachya subsp. madmoslachya, Erodium cygnorum,
		G	пецри	erum craspeu	ioldes, Goodenia lenuloba, Stenopelalum annacium,
0//			MICTO	myrtus sulpnu	rea, Monachather paradoxus
Other specie	es: Eremopi	nila glutii	nosa, Pi	nilotneca bruc	ei subsp. brucei, Senna glutinosa subsp. chatelainiana
Acacia incui	vaneura				
Acacia pruin	iocarpa				E Carrow March
Dodonaea p	acnyneura h a dia a da a				A STATE OF A
Dyspnania n	nadinostaci	nya subs	p. rnad	inostacnya	
Eremophila	glutinosa				and the second second second
Eremophila	latrobel sub	sp. latro	Dei		
Eroaium cyg	norum				The second se
Goodenia te	nuiloba 				and the second s
Helipterum	craspeaioia	es			Carden and the second second second
Micromyrtus	s sulphurea				
Monachathe	er paradoxu:	s , .			
Philotheca b	orucei subsp	o. brucei			Charles and the second
Ptilotus obo	vatus .				
Senna glutin	iosa subsp.	chatelai	niana		Image > east
Stenopetalu	m anfractui	m			
Tribulus sub	erosus				Castled
Thryptomen	e decussata	<del>J</del>			the state of the s
					A WE AND AND A REAL OF A R
					and the second sec
					And the second sec
					The state of the s
					A TAL AND AN AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND
					A Part of the Part
					Image > west: gently sloping platform

	V19 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 Pit area					
GPS: 58292	5 E/ 70272	44 N	Landform: BIF ridge; upper slope; moderate to steep slope;			
Elevation: 5	47 m		rocky scree slope; aspect north			
Land surfac	e: Shallow	yellowis	sh red silty clay loam; surface rock (BIF, quartz, chert) ^ 40 cm, > 80 %			
litter < 10 %	; fallen tim	ber < 2 %	%			
Condition &	disturband	ces: Ver	y good; historic mining activities adjacent – drill location, tunnel			
NVIS 6: U1+	^ Acacia in	curvane	eura, A. pruinocarpa\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\i; M1^ Eremophila latrobei			
subsp. latro	bei, Tribulu	is suber	osus, Psydrax latifolia, Ptilotus obovatus, Eremophila macmillaniana\			
Eremophila	^shrub\2\i	; G1 ^ Er	rodium cygnorum, Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya,			
Lepidium ox	ytrichum,	Gooden	ia tenuiloba, Paspalidium basicladum \Erodium\^forb, tussock grass			
\1\i						
Vegetation:	Acacia inc	urvaneu	ıra, A. pruinocarpa low woodland over Eremophila latrobei subsp.			
latrobei, Trik	oulus sube	rosus, P	Psydrax latifolia low open shrubland over Erodium cygnorum,			
Dysphania r	hadinostad	chya suk	bsp. rhadinostachya, Lepidium oxytrichum low open forbland			
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species			
	cover %					
5–9	20 – 30	T, S	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa			
0.5 – 1.2	10 – 30	S	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Tribulus suberosus, Psydrax			
			latifolia, Ptilotus obovatus, Eremophila macmillaniana			
< 0.3	10–15	F, G,	Erodium cygnorum, Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp.			
		S	rhadinostachya, Lepidium oxytrichum, Goodenia tenuiloba,			
			Paspalidium basicladum, Ptilotus obovatus			
Acacia incu	rvaneura		VX VX			
Acacia pruir	nocarpa					
Dysphania rh	adinostach	ya subsp	o. rhadinostachya			
Eremophila	latrobei su	bsp. lati	robei			
Eremophila	macmillan	niana				
Erodium cyg	norum					
Goodenia te	enuiloba					
Lepidium ox	ytrichum		NEAR WAR AND			
Paspalidium	n basicladu	ım				
Psydrax latif	olia					
Ptilotus obo	vatus		A CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER OWNE			
Iribulus sub	erosus					

V20 30 <sup>th</sup> July 2024 Pit area						
GPS: 582979 E/ 7027232 N	Landform: Hill, BIF ridge; outcrops; hill trends NE – SW; aspect					
Elevation: 559 m	NW, SE; steep upper slopes and narrow ridge					
Land surface: Skeletal pockets of reddish yellow silty clay loam; surface rock – outcrop and						
boulders > 90 %						

Condition & disturbances: Excellent; low impacts

NVIS 6: U1^ Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\bi; M1+^ Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Dodonaea pachyneura, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei\Eremophila\ ^shrub\3\i; G1^ Ptilotus obovatus, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Goodenia tenuiloba, Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya, Erodium cygnorum\Ptilotus\^shrub, forb\1\c

Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura low isolated trees to low open woodland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Dodonaea pachyneura, Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Goodenia tenuiloba low shrubland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species		
	cover %				
6–9	2 (– 5)	T, S	Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura		
1 – 2	10 – 30	S	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Dodonaea pachyneura,		
			Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei		
< 0.5	30 – 40	S, F,	Ptilotus obovatus, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Goodenia		
		G	tenuiloba, Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya,		
			Erodium cygnorum, Sclerolaena sp., Paspalidium basicladum,		
			Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri		
Acacia incurvaneura					

Acacia pruinocarpa Dodonaea pachyneura Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp. rhadinostachya Erodium cygnorum Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Goodenia tenuiloba Harnieria kempeana subsp. muelleri Paspalidium basicladum

Philotheca brucei subsp. brucei

Ptilotus obovatus

Sclerolaena sp.



			V21 31 <sup>st</sup> July 202	4 Gravel pit access	
GPS: 58236	6 E/ 70270	49 N	Landform: H	ill; midslope, valley; gentle slope, aspect NNE	
Elevation: 5	24 m				
Land surfac	e: Yellowis	h red sil	ty clay loam; surfa	ce rock (BIF, quartz) 2 – 5 %; litter 20 – 30 % (under	
shrubs); fall	en timber :	2–4%			
Condition &	disturban	ces: Ver	y good; historic mi	ning and recent pastoral impacts; old track,	
overgrown;	sheet erosi	ion			
NVIS 6: U1 ^	Acacia inc	curvaneu	ıra, A. caesaneura,	, A. pruinocarpa, A. craspedocarpa\Acacia\^tree,	
shrub\6\r; M	11+^ Acaci	a incurva	aneura, A. ramulos	a var. linophylla, Senna glaucifolia\Acacia\^shrub\	
4\i; M2^ Ere	mophila fo	rrestii su	ıbsp. forrestii, Tribi	ulus suberosus, Eremophila georgei\Eremophila\	
3\i; G1^ Ero	dium cygno	orum, Er	agrostis eriopoda,	Monachather paradoxus\Erodium\^forb, tussock	
grass\1\i					
Vegetation:	Acacia inc	urvaneu	ra, A. caesaneura,	A. pruinocarpa low open woodland over Acacia	
incurvaneur	a, A. ramu	losa var.	linophylla, Senna	glaucifolia tall open shrubland over Eremophila	
forrestii sub	sp. forresti	i, Tribulu	ıs suberosus, Eren	nophila georgei open shrubland over Erodium	
cygnorum, E	ragrostis e	eriopoda	, Monachather par	radoxus low open forbland	
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species		
	cover %				
4 – 7	2–10	T, S	Acacia incurvane	eura, A. caesaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A.	
			craspedocarpa		
2-4	10 – 30	S	Acacia incurvane	eura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Senna glaucifolia	
1-2	10 – 30	S	Eremophila forre:	stii subsp. forrestii, Tribulus suberosus, Eremophila	
			georgei		
< 0.3	10 – 30	F, G	Erodium cygnoru	m, Eragrostis eriopoda, Monachather paradoxus	
Acacia caes	aneura			a shake	
Acacia cras	bedocarpa			-ANTAL AND	
Acacia incui	rvaneura			A SALANA	
Acacia pruir	iocarpa Joca vor li	in a n h ul l		V - China Ch	
Acacia ramu	ilosa var. li riono do	порпуш	7	Logic M. P. N. A. MANNE	
Eragiostis el	forroctii su	uben for	rostii		
Eremophila rorrestii subsp. torrestii Fremophila reorres					
Eredium evaporum					
Monachather naradoxus					
Senna glaur	cifolia				
Tribulus sub	erosus				

#### V22 31<sup>st</sup> July 2024 Gravel pit access

GPS: 582283 E/ 7027224 N Elevation: 523 m Landform: Hill; midslope, unincised drainage line

Land surface: Yellowish red fine sandy clay loam; surface rock < 1 %; litter ^ 20 cm, 40 – 50 %; fallen timber < 1 %

Condition & disturbances: Very good; pastoral impacts; overgrown track; erosion (low) and sedimentation; rabbits

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia fuscaneura, A. pruinocarpa\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\i; M1^ Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Senna glutinosa subsp. xluerssenii, Psydrax latifolia\Acacia\^shrub, tree\4\i; M2^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Rhagodia eremaea, Eremophila gilesii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei\Eremophila\^shrub\3\c; G1^ Erodium cygnorum, Isoetopsis graminifolia, Menkea villosula, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Chthonocephalus pseudevax\Erodium\^forb\1\c Vegetation: Acacia fuscaneura, A. pruinocarpa low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla,

Senna glutinosa subsp. xluerssenii, Psydrax latifolia tall open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Rhagodia eremaea shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, Isoetopsis graminifolia, Menkea villosula low forbland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species	
	cover %			
5–8	20 – 30	T, S	Acacia fuscaneura, A. pruinocarpa	
2-4	20 – 30	S, T	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Senna glutinosa subsp. xluerssenii,	
			Psydrax latifolia	
1 – 2	30 – 40	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Rhagodia eremaea,	
			Eremophila gilesii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei	
< 0.5	50 – 60	F, E,	Erodium cygnorum, Isoetopsis graminifolia, Menkea villosula,	
		S	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Chthonocephalus pseudevax,	
			Panaetia lessonii, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei	

Acacia fuscaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi Chthonocephalus pseudevax Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila georgei Eremophila gilesii Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Erodium cygnorum Isoetopsis graminifolia Menkea villosula Panaetia lessonii Psydrax latifolia Rhagodia eremaea

Senna glutinosa subsp. xluerssenii



V23 31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 Gravel pit access 8.14 am					
GPS: 582246 E/ 7027377 N Landform: Low gravelly hill, midslope; gentle to moderate					
Elevation: 526 m slope; aspect south					
Land surface: Yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock (gravel, chert, BIF, quartz) > 90 %; litter < 5					
%; fallen timber < 1 %; bare ground < 2 %					
Condition & disturbances: Degraded to poor; pastoral impacts, rabbits					
NVIS 6: U1^ Acacia aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\r; M1^ Senna glaucifolia,					
Scaevola spinescens, Acacia aptaneura\Senna\^shrub\3\r; G1^ Maireana melanocoma,					
germinating forbs, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. compacta \Maireana\^chenopod shrub,					
forb, shrub\1\r					
Vegetation: Acacia aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa low open woodland over Senna glaucifolia, Scaevola					
spinescens, Acacia aptaneura sparse shrubland over Maireana melanocoma, germinating forbs,					
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low sparse chenopod shrubland					
Height (m) Crown Habit Species					
cover %					
4–8 2–10 T, S Acacia aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa					
1 – 1.52 – 10SSenna glaucifolia, Scaevola spinescens, Acacia aptaneura					
0.1 – 0.3 2 – 10 C, F, Maireana melanocoma, germinating forbs, Eremophila forrestii					
S subsp. forrestii, E. compacta					
Other species: Dodonaea pachyneura, Grevillea berryana, Sida ectogama, Micromyrtus sulphurea,					
Solanum lasiophyllum, Thryptomene decussata					
Acacia aptaneura					
Acacia pruinocarpa					
Dodonaea pachyneura					
Eremophila compacta					
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii					
Grevillea berryana					
Maireana melanocoma					
Micromyrtus sulphurea					
Scaevola spinescens					
Senna glaucifolia					
Sida ectogama					
Solanum lasiopnyllum					
Inryptomene aecussata					

V24 31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 Gravel pit access						
GPS: 58225	5 E/ 70275	36 N	Landform: Low hill; upper slope; gravelly hill; aspect north,			
Elevation: 5	29 m		gentle to moderate slope			
Land surfac	Land surface: Yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock (gravel) > 90 %					
Condition &	disturban	ces: Goo	od; pastoral impacts, rabbits; minor erosion			
NVIS 6: U1+	^ Acacia in	ncurvane	eura, A. pruinocarpa, A. aptaneura\Acacia\^shrub, tree\4\i; M1^			
Acacia ramu	ulosa var. li	inophylla	a, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia incurvaneura\Acacia\			
^shrub\3\r;	M2^ Eremo	ophila la	trobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia incurvaneura, Senna glaucifolia,			
Stenantherr	num patens	s, Eremc	phila compacta, Sida ectogama\Eremophila\^shrub\2\r; G1^ Ptilotus			
schwartzii, I	Eragrostis e	eriopoda	\^Ptilotus\^shrub, tussock grass\1\bi			
Vegetation:	Acacia inc	urvaneu	ra, A. pruinocarpa, A. aptaneura tall open shrubland over Acacia			
ramulosa va	ar. linophyll	la, Erem	ophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia incurvaneura sparse shrubland			
over Eremo	ohila latrob	ei subs	o. latrobei, Acacia incurvaneura, Senna glaucifolia low sparse			
shrubland						
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species			
	cover %					
4-6	10 – 30	S, T	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. aptaneura			
1 – 2	2–10	S	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei,			
			Acacia incurvaneura			
0.2 – 1	2–10	S	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia incurvaneura, Senna			
			glaucifolia, Stenanthemum patens, Eremophila compacta, Sida			
			ectogama			
< 0.2	<2	S, G	Ptilotus schwartzii, Eragrostis eriopoda			
Other speci	es: Eremop	ohila glu	tinosa (becoming dominant downslope), Grevillea berryana			
Acacia apta	neura		A THE MAN PROVIDENCE OF A SAME			
Acacia incu	rvaneura		NN AM MORE NO AND			
Acacia pruir	nocarpa		NWYX / VICE AN A MARK			
Acacia ramu	ulosa var. li	inophylla				
Eragrostis e	riopoda					
Eremophila	compacta					
Eremophila glutinosa						
Eremophila	latrobei su	ıbsp. lat	robei			
Grevillea be	rryana					
Ptilotus sch	wartzii					
Senna glaud	cifolia					
Sida ectoga	ma					
Stenanthem	num patens	s P1				

			V25 31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 Gravel pit access		
GPS: 582252 E/ 7027637 N Landform: Hill; lower slope, valley with broad drainage line					
Elevation: 520 m					
Land surface	e: Reddish	yellow (	7.5YR6/6) fine sandy clay loam; surface rock (gravel) 30 – 40	)%;	
Condition &	disturban	ces:			
NVIS 6: U1+	^ Acacia in	ncurvane	eura, A. fuscaneura, A. sp. Weld Range, Grevillea berryana\A	cacia\	
^tree, shrub	\6\ <i>i; M1^</i> E	remoph	ila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla,	Senna	
glaucifolia\ E	Eremophila	a\^shrub	o\3\i; M2^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. glutinosa, S	Sida	
ectogama, S	Solanum la	siophyll	um, Thysanotus manglesianus\Eremophila\^shrub, climber	\2\r; G1^	
Erodium cyg	norum, Era	agrostis	eriopoda\Erodium\^forb, tussock grass		
Vegetation:	Acacia inc	urvaneu	ra, A. fuscaneura, A. sp. Weld Range low woodland over Ere	mophila	
forrestii subs	sp. forresti	i, Acacia	a ramulosa var. linophylla, Senna artemisioides subsp. xstur	tii open	
shrubland o	ver Eremoj	ohila for	restii subsp. forrestii, E. glutinosa, Sida ectogama low sparse	Э	
shrubland o	ver Erodiui	m cygno	rum, Eragrostis eriopoda low open forbland		
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species		
	cover %				
4 – 8	10 – 30	T, S	Acacia incurvaneura, A. fuscaneura, A. sp. Weld Range, Gr	evillea	
			berryana		
1 – 2	10 – 30	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia ramulosa var. l	inophylla,	
			Senna artemisioides subsp. xsturtii		
0.3 – 1	2–10	S, L	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. glutinosa, Sida ecto	gama,	
			Solanum lasiophyllum, Thysanotus manglesianus		
< 0.3	10 – 20	F, G	Erodium cygnorum, Eragrostis eriopoda		
Acacia fusca	aneura		and the second sec	11 - P	
Acacia incur	vaneura		THE PARTY OF THE P	Alto Sala	
Acacia ramu	ılosa var. li	nophylla		YAN	
Acacia sp. V	Veld Range	)		NV V2	
Eragrostis ei	riopoda			Constant and	
Eremophila	forrestii su	bsp. for	restii de la constance de		
Eremophila	glutinosa				
Erodium cyg	norum				
Grevillea bei	rryana				
Senna arten	nisioides s	ubsp. xs	turtii	and the second	
Sida ectogai	та				
Solanum las	iophyllum			1	
Thysanotus	manglesia	nus			
Downslope	from desci	ription si	ite – erosion	4	
moderate w	th erosion	gullies,	sheet erosion	A State De	
and areas of	aepositio	n			
Other specie	20.		- Letter be	And the same of	
Brachyscom	ss. De iheridifo	lia			
Psvdrax latif	olia	lia		and the second second	
Psydrax sua	veolens				
				and the second	
				A House	
				6 C	

		V26	31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 8.	55 am Gravel pit access
GPS: 582314 E/ 7027752 N Landform: St				tony hill; midslope; aspect north; gentle slope
Elevation: 522 m				
Land surfac	e: Yellowis	h red sil	ty clay loam; surfa	ace rock (BIF, chert, quartz, 3 – 10 cm) 40 – 60 %;
litter < 5 %; 1	fallen timb	er < 1 %	; bare ground 20 –	30 %
Condition &	disturban	ces: Goo	od; pastoral impac	cts, rabbits, sheet erosion; drought impacts – some
deaths, and	part crowr	n deaths		
NVIS 6: <i>U1</i> +	^ Acacia in	ncurvane	eura, A. sp. Weld R	ange\Acacia\^shrub\4\r; M1^ Ptilotus rotundifolius,
Eremophila	forrestii su	bsp. for	restii, Scaevola sp	inescens, Eremophila glutinosa, Acacia ramulosa
var. linophyl	la\Ptilotus	\^shrub	3\r; G1^ Ptilotus a	aervoides, P. schwartzii , Erodium cygnorum ,
Eremophila	forrestii su	bsp. for	restii\Ptilotus\^shi	rub, forb\1\bi
Vegetation:	Acacia inc	urvaneu	ra, A. sp. Weld Ra	nge tall sparse shrubland over Ptilotus rotundifolius,
Eremophila	forrestii su	bsp. for	restii, Scaevola sp	inescens sparse shrubland over Ptilotus aervoides,
P. SChwartzh	Crown		Spacios	ubland
Tieigiit (III)	COVer %	Паріс	Species	
4-6	2 - 10	S	Acacia incurvan	eura A sn Weld Range
1-2	2 - 10	S	Ptilotus rotundife	olius Fremonhila forrestii subsp forrestii Scaevola
1 2	2 10	U	spinescens, Frei	monhila glutinosa, Acacia ramulosa var. linonhvlla
< 0.3	<2	S. F	Ptilotus aervoide	es. P. schwartzii . Erodium cygnorum . Eremophila
	_	-,.	forrestii subsp. fo	prrestii
Other specie	es: Senna a	artemisi	, oides subsp. helm	nsii, S. artemisioides subsp. xsturtii
Acacia incui	rvaneura			
Acacia ramu	ılosa var. li	inophylla	3	N. S. Carlos
Acacia sp. V	Veld Range	9		
Eremophila	forrestii su	bsp. for	restii	
Eremophila	glutinosa			
Erodium cyg	gnorum			CORNEL SECTION
Ptilotus aerv	voides			
Ptilotus rotu	Indifolius			
Ptilotus sch	wartzii			
Scaevola sp	ninescens aiaiaidaa a	ubon ba	Imaii	
Senna arten	nisioides s	ubsp.ne ubsp.xs	turtii	
Opportunist	ic cito: do	vnelono	from V26	
GPS582302	F/ 702781	5 N 520	) m	
0.0002002	2, , 02, 01	011 020		
Broad draina	age line, ur	nincised		ANY MALE AND
Acacia incurvaneura woodland over				
Eremophila georgei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii,				
Acacia ramu	ilosa var. li	nophylla	a open	
Paspalidium	ver Eroalul basicladi	un cygno um low e	<i>ulli,</i>	
Γαομαιίτιτη	า มสราบเสนไ	an tow S		

V27 31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 Gravel pit access Relevé					
GPS: 582366 E/ 7027851 N Landform: Hill, midslope; change from valley to stony sl			ll, midslope; change from valley to stony slope;		
Elevation: 524 m aspect NW			aspec	t NW	
Land surfac	e: Surface	rock 20	- 40 %		
Condition &	disturban	ces: Goo	od; pastoral	impact	s; drought impacts
Vegetation:	Acacia pru	inocarp	a, A. caesan	eura, A	. incurvaneura, A. sp. Weld Range tall open
shrubland o	ver Eremo	ohila lat	robei subsp.	latrobe	ei, Ptilotus rotundifolius, E. fraseri subsp. fraseri, E.
glutinosa, Se	enna arten	nisioides	subsp. <i>heli</i>	nsii, Ac	acia tetragonophylla, Sida ectogama sparse
shrubland o	ver Hibiscu	us sturti	low isolated	d shrub	s
Eremophila	<i>fraseri</i> sub	sp. frase	eri becoming	g more (	common as changes to stony hillslope
Acacia caes	aneura				Eremophila glutinosa
Acacia incui	rvaneura				Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
Acacia pruir	nocarpa				Hibiscus sturtii
Acacia sp. V	Veld Kange Kananbullu	)			Ptilotus rotundifolius
Eromonhilo	gonopnyua frasori sub	t en fraev	ri		Senna artemisioides subsp. neurisii
Elemophia	1143611300	Sp. 11256	31 <sup>st</sup> July 20	24 9 10	6 am Gravel nit access
GPS: 58243	2 F/ 70279	22 N	Landfo	orm· Hi	Il stony surface: gentle to moderate: aspect NW
Elevation: 5	2 L7 70270. 21 m	2211	Lanan	51111.111	
Land surface	e. Vellowis	h red sil	ty clay loam	· surfac	re rock (BIE dolerite quartz 2 – 10 cm) $40 - 60$ %:
litter < 2 %·1	fallen timb	er < 2 %	ly clay toann	, sunac	
Condition &	disturban	ces: Poo	r: nastoral i	mnacts	drought impacts – Acacia ramulosa shrub died:
natches of g	erminating	oforhs	r, publicitat ii	npuoto	
NVIS 6: U1+	^Acacia in	curvane	ura. A. sp. V	/eld Ra	nge\Acacia\^shruh\4\bi: M1^ Fremophila fraseri
subsp. frase	ri. A. speci	kii\Frem	onhila\^shri	ub\3\bi	: G1^ Goodenia tenuiloba. Ptilotus schwartzii\
Goodenia\^forb. shrub\1\r					
Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura. A. sp. Weld Range tall isolated shrubs over Fremophila fraseri					
subsp. frase	ri, A. speci	kii isolat	ed shrubs o	ver God	odenia tenuiloba, Ptilotus schwartzii low sparse
, forbland	, I				
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species		
0 ( )	cover %		·		
3-6	< 2	S	Acacia inc	urvanei	ura, A. sp. Weld Range
1 – 2	< 2	S	Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, A. speckii		
< 0.3	2–10	F, S	Goodenia tenuiloba, Ptilotus schwartzii		
Acacia incu	rvaneura	I.			
Acacia spec	kii P4				
Acacia sp. V	Veld Range	,			
Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri					
Goodenia tenuiloba					
Ptilotus schwartzii					and the second se
					and the second second
					and sentences is the
					and the second s
					the service that the service of the
					the second s

V29 31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 Gravel pit access					
GPS: 582559 E/ 7028011 N Landform: H			Landform: Hill; stony with small outcrops of dolerite; gentle		
Elevation: 519 m slope; aspec			slope; aspect NW		
Land surfac	e: Reddish	brown o	clay loam; surface rock (dolerite – boulders, outcrop; BIF, chert rocks		
2 – 20 cm) 6	0 – 80 %; li	tter < 10	9 %; fallen timber < 2 %		
Condition &	disturban	ces: Pas	toral impacts; drought impacts – deaths and part crown deaths;		
Acacia spec	<i>kii</i> with mo	oderate	to high crown death (2 deaths)		
NVIS 6: M1+	^ Acacia s	peckii, A	A. sp. Weld Range, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri\Acacia\ 4\i; M2^		
Eremophila	latrobei su	bsp. lati	robei, Ptilotus rotundifolius\Eremophila\^shrub\3\r; G1^ Eremophila		
fraseri subs	o. fraseri, E	. compa	acta, Sida ectogama\Eremophila\^shrub\2\r; G2^ Cephalipterum		
drummondi	i, Eremoph	ila frase	ri subsp. fraseri, Maireana georgei\Cephalipterum\^forb, shrub,		
chenopod s	hrub\1\bi				
Vegetation:	Acacia spe	eckii, A. s	sp. Weld Range, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri tall open shrubland		
over Eremop	ohila latrob	ei subs	p. latrobei, Ptilotus rotundifolius sparse shrubland over Eremophila		
fraseri subs	o. fraseri, E	. compa	acta, Sida ectogama		
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species		
	cover %				
2-3.5	10 – 20	S	Acacia speckii, A. sp. Weld Range, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri		
1-2	2–10	S	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Ptilotus rotundifolius		
0.2-0.8	2–10	S	Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, E. compacta, Sida ectogama		
< 0.2	< 2	F, S,	Cephalipterum drummondii, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri,		
		С	Maireana georgei		
Acacia spec	kii P4		and the second sec		
Acacia sp. V	Veld Range	;			
Cephalipter	um drumm	nondii	and the second		
Eremophila	compacta				
Eremophila	fraseri sub	sp. frase	eri		
Eremophila	latrobei su	bsp. lat	robei		
Maireana ge	orgei		and the second second		
Ptilotus rotu	ndifolius		and the second sec		
Sida ectoga	ma				
			The second s		

#### V30 31<sup>st</sup> July 2024 Gravel pit access

GPS: 582687 E/ 7028093 N Elevation: 511 m Landform: Hill; lower slope; gentle sloping stony plain with dolerite outcrops; aspect NNW

Land surface: Reddish brown clay loam; surface rock (dolerite boulders and outcrop; BIF, chert, quartz rocks) > 70 %; litter < 5%; fallen timber < 2%

Condition & disturbances: Good; pastoral impacts; rabbits; drought impacts

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. aptaneura\Acacia\^tree\6\r; M1^ Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri\Senna\^shrub\r; G1^ Sida ectogama, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Maireana georgei\Sida\^shrub, chenopod shrub\2\bi; G2^ Erodium cygnorum\ Erodium\^forb\1\bi

Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura, A. aptaneura low open woodland over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri sparse shrubland over Sida ectogama, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Maireana georgei low isolated shrubs

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
4-6	2–10	Т	Acacia incurvaneura, A. aptaneura
1 – 2	2–10	S	Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Eremophila fraseri subsp.
			fraseri
0.2-0.8	< 2	S, C	Sida ectogama, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Maireana
			georgei
< 0.2	< 2	F	Erodium cygnorum

Other species: Acacia speckii

Acacia aptaneura

Acacia incurvaneura

Acacia speckii P4

Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri

Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei

- Erodium cygnorum
- Maireana georgei

Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii Sida ectogama



Opportunistic site GPS: 582768 E/ 7028160 N 509 m Minor drainage line Acacia incurvaneura, A. craspedocarpa tall open shrubland over Eremophila georgei, E. fraseri open shrubland

## V31 Gravel pit area West

GPS: 582870 E/ 7028230 N Elevation: 510 m

Landform: Change from stony plain/ lower slope of hill to alluvium/ hardpan plain; possible water discharge point Land surface: Yellowish red fine sandy clay loam; surface rock within depression/ wet area < 10 %

Condition & disturbances: Very good; pastoral disturbances and rabbits; some drought impacts

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia incurvaneura\Acacia\^tree, shrub\7\c; M1^ Acacia craspedocarpa, Psydrax suaveolens\Acacia\^shrub, tree\4\r; M2^ Eremophila georgei, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii\Eremophila\^shrub\3\c; G1^ Maireana georgei, Erodium cygnorum\Maireana\^chenopod shrub, forb\1\bi

Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia incurvaneura woodland over Acacia craspedocarpa, Psydrax suaveolens tall isolated shrubs over Eremophila georgei, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii shrubland over Maireana georgei, Erodium cygnorum low isolated chenopod shrubs

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
8–12	30 – 40	T, S	Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia incurvaneura
3-4	2 – 10	S, T	Acacia craspedocarpa, Psydrax suaveolens
1 – 1.5	30 – 40	S	Eremophila georgei, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. forrestii subsp.
			forrestii
< 0.5	< 2	C, F	Maireana georgei, Erodium cygnorum

Acacia craspedocarpa Acacia incurvaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila georgei Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Erodium cygnorum Maireana georgei Psydrax suaveolens



## **Opportunistic site GP1**

GPS: 582884 E/ 7028230 N Hardan plain Condition: poor; pastoral impacts - moderate to

high; lacks grasses, recruitment mostly absent

Acacia incurvaneura low isolated trees over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii open shrubland over Erodium cygnorum low sparse forbland



## **Opportunistic site GP2**

GPS: 582937 E/ 7028466 N Elevation: 508 m Hardpan plain; drainage area; alluvium Condition: poor; pastoral impacts; drought impacts moderate to high; recruitment/ regrowth of *Eremophila foliosissima* following wetter conditions

Acacia pruinocarpa, Acacia incurvaneura low open woodland to low isolated trees over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii sparse shrubland over Eremophila foliosissima low sparse shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, grass tussocks low open forbland



## V32 Gravel pit area NE

GPS: 583130 E/ 7028519 N	Landform: Stony plain with ironstone gravel; very gentle slope;
Elevation: 509 m	aspect N - NE

Land surface: Yellowish red fine sandy clay loam; surface rock – Ironstone gravel 30 - 40 %; rocks (BIF, chert, quartz) 30 - 40 %; litter < 5 %; fallen timber < 1 %

Condition & disturbances: Poor; pastoral impacts – groundcover absent; little recruitment; drought impacts – several dead shrubs present

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. mulganeura\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\r; M1^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. mulganeura\Acacia\^shrub\3\bi; G1^ Chenopod sp.\Chenopod sp.\^chenopod shrub\1\bi

Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. mulganeura low open woodland over Acacia incurvaneura, A. mulganeura isolated shrubs over Chenopod sp. low isolated chenopod shrubs

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
4-7	2–10	T, S	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. mulganeura
1 – 2	< 2	S	Acacia incurvaneura, A. mulganeura
< 1	< 2	S	Chenopod sp. (sterile, nearly dead)

Acacia incurvaneura

Acacia mulganeura Acacia pruinocarpa

Chenopod sp.



#### V33 31<sup>st</sup> July 2024 10.46 am Gravel pit area East

Landform: Alluvial plain; depression/ partly incised drainage

Elevation: 509 m	line

GPS: 583213 E/ 7028420 N

Land surface: Yellowish red fine sandy clay loam

Condition & disturbances: Good; pastoral impacts – many cattle tracks through area; rabbits; erosion; drought deaths – in particular one large tree (*A. pruinocarpa*); grasses absent

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia pruinocarpa\Acacia\^tree\7\i; M1^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. fuscaneura, A. tetragonophylla\Acacia\^shrub, tree\4\i; M2^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia pruinocarpa, Ptilotus obovatus\Eremophila\^shrub\3\i; G1^ Erodium cygnorum, Tetragonia cristata, Maireana ?tomentosa, Ptilotus polystachyus, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii\Erodium\^forb, chenopod shrub, shrub\1\i

Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa woodland over Acacia incurvaneura, A. fuscaneura, A. tetragonophylla tall open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia pruinocarpa, Ptilotus obovatus open shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, Tetragonia cristata, Eriochiton sclerolaenoides, Ptilotus polystachyus low open forbland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
> 10	20 – 30	Т	Acacia pruinocarpa
2-5	10 – 30	S, T	Acacia incurvaneura, A. fuscaneura, A. tetragonophylla
1 – 1.5	20 – 30	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia pruinocarpa, Ptilotus
			obovatus
< 0.5	10 – 30	F, C,	Erodium cygnorum, Tetragonia cristata, Eriochiton sclerolaenoides
		S	, Ptilotus polystachyus, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii

- Acacia fuscaneura
- Acacia incurvaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia tetragonophylla Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eriochiton sclerolaenoides Erodium cygnorum Paspalidium basicladum
- Ptilotus obovatus Ptilotus polystachyus
- Senna sp. Meekatharra
- , Tetragonia cristata

Large *Acacia pruinocarpa* dead - ?drought impact

Regrowth under old crown extent – *Ptilotus obovatus, Eremophila forrestii* subsp. *forrestii* low open shrubland over *Erodium cygnorum, Tetragonia cristata* low forbland

Taller *Eremophila, Senna* sp. Meekatharra at edges



# **Opportunistic site GP3**

GPS: 582934 E/ 7028150 N

Alluvial plain/ hardpan GPS: 583196 E/ 7028436 N Elevation: 509 m Condition: degraded to poor; pastoral impacts (cattle) high; erosion – sheet wash and deposition

Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa, A. ramulosa var. linophylla tall shrubland patches over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii sparse shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, Paspalidium basicladum, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low open forbland



#### V34 31<sup>st</sup> July 2024 Gravel pit area SW

Landform: Stony gentle sloping plain; aspect NE

Elevation: 516 mLand surface: Yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock – ironstone gravel 20 – 40 %; larger rocks 2 –10 cm 20 – 40 %; litter < 5 %; fallen timber < 2 %</td>

Condition & disturbances: Poor; pastoral impacts, drought impacts – some deaths; sheet erosion NVIS 6: U1+^ Grevillea berryana, Acacia aptaneura\Grevillea\^tree\6\bi; M1^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila glutinosa\Acacia\^shrub\3\bi; G1^ Eragrostis eriopoda, Ptilotus aervoides\Eragrostis\^tussock grass, forb\1\bi

Vegetation: Grevillea berryana, Acacia aptaneura low isolated trees over Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila glutinosa isolated shrubs over Eragrostis eriopoda, Ptilotus aervoides low isolated tussock grasses

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
3 – 5	< 2	Т	Grevillea berryana, Acacia aptaneura
1 – 2	< 2	S	Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila
			glutinosa
< 0.2	< 2	G, F	Eragrostis eriopoda, Ptilotus aervoides

Acacia aptaneura					
Acacia incurvaneura					
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla					
Eragrostis eriopoda	Manue - Care				
Eremophila glutinosa					
Grevillea berryana					
Ptilotus aervoides					
Change to broad drainage line	Acacia pruiposa isolated trees over Acacia				
GPS: 583071 E/ 7028202 N Elevation: 514 m	incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla tall open				
	shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii open				
	shrubland				
	V35 31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 Pit area, north side				
---------------------------------------	---	----------------------	--	--	--
GPS: 583069 E/ 7027557 N Landform: Co				olluvial outwash slope below BIF ridge; lower slope	
Elevation: 5	22 m				
Land surfac	e: Surface	rock (Bl	, chert, quartz) 30	- 40 %	
Condition &	disturband	ces: Ver	y good; pastoral im	pacts moderate	
NVIS 6: U1 ^	Acacia inc	urvaneı	ıra, A. caesaneura l	Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\r; M1+^ Ptilotus	
rotundifolius	s, Senna gl	aucifolia	a, Acacia caesaneu	ra, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia	
incurvaneur	a \Ptilotus	\^shrub\	3\i; G1^ Ptilotus ae	rvoides, Stenopetalum anfractum\Ptilotus\	
^forb\1\bi	A				
vegetation:	Acacia inci	urvaneu .:	ra, A. caesaneura lo	bw open woodland over Ptilotus rotundifolius,	
Senna glaud	itolia, Aca	cia caes Lío «hoo	aneura open snrub	land över Ptilotus aervoldes, Stenopetalum	
antractum lo	ow isolated	TORDS	Cracica		
Height (m)		Habit	Species		
4 0		TO	Accesic incum conce		
4-8	2-10	1, 3	Acacia incuivane		
1-2	10-20	5		ius, Senna glauciiolia, Acacia caesaneura,	
			Eremophila lorres	ul subsp. Torresul, Acacia incurvaneura,	
< 0.2	< 0		Eremophila latrop		
< 0.3	< 2	F	Ptilotus aervoldes, Stenopetalum antractum		
Acacia caes	aneura				
Acacia incui	forrootii ou	han far	raatii		
Eremophila	lotroboi ou	bsp. ion	esui		
Eremopnila latrobel subsp. latrobel				A CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER OWNE OWNER OWNER OWNER OWNER OWNER OWNER	
Princius aervolues					
Sonna diquaifalia				March	
Stanonatali	inoua Im anfracti	Im			
Steriopetatu	in annacti	4111			

	V36 31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 Pit area, north side				
GPS: 5830	86 E/ 7027	479 N	Landform: Hi	l, colluvial outwash slope; moderate slope;	
Elevation: 527 m aspect NW					
Land surface: Yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock – fine gravel 30 – 40 %, BIF, chert rocks 5 –					
20 cm 30 –	40 %; litte	r < 5 %;	fallen timber < 1 %		
Condition	& disturbar	nces: Ve	ry good; historic min	ing activities – tracks and drill locations; lower	
pastoral in	npacts				
NVIS 6: <i>U1</i>	+^ Acacia	incurva	neura, A. pruinocarp	a, A. sp. Weld Range\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\r; M1^	
Eremophila	a macmilla	niana, S	Senna glaucifolia, Ere	mophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Ptilotus	
rotundifoliu	us\Eremop	hila\^sh	rub\3\r; M2^ Ptilotus	rotundifolius, Senna glaucifolia\Ptilotus\^shrub\	
2\bi; G1^ M	1aireana m	elanoco	oma, Ptilotus aervoid	es, Portulaca oleracea, Stenopetalum filifolium\	
Maireana\'	`chenopod	l shrub, i	forb\1\bi		
Vegetation	: Acacia in	curvane	eura, A. pruinocarpa,	A. sp. Weld Range tall open shrubland over	
Eremophila	a macmilla	niana, S	Senna glaucifolia, Ere	mophila fraseri subsp. fraseri sparse shrubland	
over Mairea	ana melan	ocoma,	Ptilotus aervoides, P	ortulaca oleracea low isolated chenopod shrubs	
Height	Crown	Habit	Species		
(m)	cover %				
3–8	10 – 20	T, S	Acacia incurvaneu	ra, A. pruinocarpa, A. sp. Weld Range	
1–2	2–10	S	Eremophila macmi	llaniana, Senna glaucifolia, Eremophila fraseri	
			subsp. fraseri, Ptilo	tus rotundifolius	
0.3–1	< 2	S	Ptilotus rotundifoliu	ıs, Senna glaucifolia	
< 0.3	< 2	C, F	Maireana melanoco	oma, Ptilotus aervoides, Portulaca oleracea,	
			Stenopetalum filifolium, Eragrostis eriopoda		
Other spec	ies: Scaev	ola spin	escens		
Acacia inc	urvaneura				
Acacia pru	inocarpa			A THE AND THE ADDRESS OF A DECEMBER OF A	
Acacia sp.	Weld Rang	e			
Eremophila	a fraseri su	bsp. fras	seri	Table Innue Saladar	
Eremophila macmillaniana					
Maireana melanocoma					
Ptilotus aervoides					
Ptilotus rotundifolius					
Portulaca oleracea					
Senna glau	icitolia				
Stenopetal	um filifoliu	m			
Scaevola s	pinescens				

	V37 31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 Gravel pit area north				
GPS: 5829	08 E/ 7027	436 N	Landform: Hill; colluvial outwash lower slope; moderate slope;		
Elevation:	524 m		aspect NW		
Land surfa	Land surface: Yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock (BIF, chert) 30 – 40 %				
Condition	& disturbaı	nces: Ve	ry good; access road (calcrete surfaced) to north, downslope		
NVIS 6: U1	+^ Acacia	incurvar	neura\Acacia\^tree\6\i; M1^ Acacia sp. Weld Range, Eremophila		
macmillan	iana\Acaci	a\^shru	b\4\r; M2^ Eremophila macmillaniana, Senna glaucifolia, Psydrax		
latifolia, Se	enna artem	isioides	subsp. helmsii\Eremophila\^shrub\3\i; M3^ Eremophila forrestii		
subsp. forr	estii, Psydı	rax latifo	lia, Hibiscus sturtii, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii\Eremophila\		
2\r; G1^ M	aireana me	lanocoi	ma, Ptilotus obovatus, Goodenia tenuiloba, Psydrax latifolia, Solanum		
lasiophyllu	ım\Mairear	na\^chei	nopod shrub, shrub, forb\1\r		
Vegetation	: Acacia in	curvane	ura low open woodland over Acacia sp. Weld Range, Eremophila		
macmillan	iana tall sp	arse sh	rubland over Eremophila macmillaniana, Senna glaucifolia, Psydrax		
latifolia op	en shrubla	nd over	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Psydrax latifolia, Hibiscus sturtii		
low sparse	shrubland	over Ma	aireana melanocoma, Ptilotus obovatus, Goodenia tenuiloba low		
sparse che	enopod shr	ubland			
Height	Crown	Habit	Species		
(m)	cover %				
5–8	10 – 30	Т	Acacia incurvaneura		
2-4	2–10	S	Acacia sp. Weld Range, Eremophila macmillaniana		
1–2	10 – 30	S	Eremophila macmillaniana, Senna glaucifolia, Psydrax latifolia, Senna		
			artemisioides subsp. helmsii		
0.3–1	2–10	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Psydrax latifolia, Hibiscus sturtii,		
			Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii		
< 0.3	2–10	C, S,	Maireana melanocoma, Ptilotus obovatus, Goodenia tenuiloba,		
		F	Psydrax latifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum, Erodium cygnorum		
Acacia inc	urvaneura				
Acacia sp.	Weld Rang	(e			
Eremophila	a forrestii s 	ubsp. fo	rrestil		
Eremophila	a macmilla	niana			
Eroaium cy	/gnorum		The second se		
Goodenia	lenuilopa		and the second se		
Dtilotus ob					
Maireana melanocoma					
Pareana metanocoma					
Senna arta	misinidee	suhen k	nelmsii		
Senna dai	icifolia	5455p. 1			
Solanum la	asionhvllur	n			
องเล่านกา เสรางทางแนกา					

V38 31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 Gravel pit area north/ outside						
GPS: 58283	38 E/ 7027	530 N	Landform: Broad dra	inage line; very gentle slope; aspect ? west		
Elevation: 520 m						
Land surfa	ce: Yellowi	ish red fir	ne sandy clay loam; surfa	nce rock < 5 %; litter 10 – 20 %; fallen timber 2 – 5 %		
Condition a	& disturba	nces: Vei	ry good; pastoral impacts	; sedimentation from erosion upslope – breach of road		
side bank						
NVIS 6: U1	+^ Acacia	incurvan	eura, A. pruinocarpa\Aca	cia\^tree\7\c; U2^ Psydrax latifolia\Psydrax\ 6\r; M1^		
Eremophila	a forrestii s	ubsp. foi	rrestii, E. georgei, Rhagoo	lia eremaea\Eremophila\^shrub, chenopod shrub\3\i;		
G1^ Erodiu	ım cygnoru	ım, Erem	ophila forrestii subsp. fo	rrestii, Psydrax latifolia, Goodenia tenuiloba, Lepidium		
oxytrichum	\Erodium\	^forb, sh	rub\2\c			
Vegetation	: Acacia in	curvaneu	ıra, A. pruinocarpa open	forest over Psydrax latifolia low open woodland over		
Eremophila	a forrestii s	subsp. foi	rrestii, E. georgei, Rhagoo	lia eremaea open shrubland over Erodium cygnorum,		
Eremophila	a forrestii s	ubsp. foi	rrestii, Psydrax latifolia lo	w forbland		
Height	Crown	Habit	Species			
(m)	cover					
	%					
8 – 12 m	30 – 40	Т	Acacia incurvaneura, A.	pruinocarpa		
4 – 7	2–10	Т	Psydrax latifolia			
1-2	20 – 30	S, C	Eremophila forrestii sub	osp. forrestii, E. georgei, Rhagodia eremaea		
<1	30 – 70	F, S,	Erodium cygnorum, Ere	mophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Psydrax latifolia,		
		C, G	Goodenia tenuiloba, Le	pidium oxytrichum, Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana		
			georgei, Crassula colora	ata var. acuminata, Monachather paradoxus, Tetragonia		
			cristata, Acacia incurva	neura		
Acacia incu	urvaneura					
Acacia pru	inocarpa					
Crassula c	olorata vai	r. acumin	ata			
Eremophila	a forrestii s	subsp. foi	rrestii			
Eremophila	a georgei					
Erodium cy	/gnorum					
Goodenia t	tenuiloba			A SAMA AND A		
Lepidium o	xytrichum					
Maireana g	eorgei					
Monachath	ner parado	xus				
Psydrax lat	ifolia					
Ptilotus ob	ovatus					
Rhagoula e	eremaea					
Opportun		D:+01				
Opportun	ISTIC SITE					
GPS: 5828	332 E/ 702	27456 N	Elevation: 522 m			
Condition	, dogeoda	d cati	a araaian (chaat			
	. uegrade		ve erosion (sneet,			
guily) Iron	i breach (					
sunace (w	mile) was	sneu uov	vilsiope			
				CARLES SALES		

### V39 31<sup>st</sup> July 2024 2.30 pm Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 581362 E/ 7025906 N Elevation: 518 m Landform: Hardpan plain; alluvium; very gentle slope; aspect south; woodland patch

Land surface: Strong brown (7.5YR6/8) fine sandy clay loam; surface rock (very fine gravel) 10 - 20 %; litter 30 - 40 %; fallen timber 10 - 20 %; bare ground 10 - 30 %

Condition & disturbances: Very good within patch; degraded to poor in surrounding plain; pastoral impacts, rabbits; drought impacts

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia pruinocarpa\Acacia\^tree\6\i; M1^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla\ Acacia\^shrub\4\r; M2^ Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, E. georgei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia tetragonophylla\^shrub\3\i; G1^ Eragrostis eriopoda, Paspalidium basicladum, Ptilotus obovatus, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Erodium cygnorum \Eragrostis\^tussock grass, shrub, forb\1\r

Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa low woodland over Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla tall sparse shrubland over Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, E. georgei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii open shrubland over Eragrostis eriopoda, Paspalidium basicladum, Ptilotus obovatus low sparse tussock grassland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
9–10	20 – 30	Т	Acacia pruinocarpa
3–4	8–10	S	Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla
1 – 2	10 – 20	S	Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans, E. georgei, E. forrestii subsp.
			forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia tetragonophylla
< 0.5	2–10	G,S,	Eragrostis eriopoda, Paspalidium basicladum, Ptilotus obovatus,
		F	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Erodium cygnorum

Other species: Maireana georgei, Psydrax latifolia, Senna glaucifolia, Helipterum craspedioides

Acacia incurvaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Acacia tetragonophylla Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila georgei Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans Eragrostis eriopoda Erodium cygnorum Helipterum craspedioides Maireana georgei Paspalidium basicladum Ptilotus obovatus

Psydrax latifolia Senna glaucifolia



Surrounding plain Condition: degraded to poor Active sheet erosion, hummocking, pedestalling

Tall open shrubland of *Acacia incurvaneura* and *A. ramulosa var. linophylla* over sparse shrubland over low sparse tussock grassland



V40 31 <sup>st</sup> July	2014 Relevé	Haul road and infrastructure
GPS: 581266 E/ 7025857 N	Landform: Har	dpan plain; minor drainage line, incised
Elevation: 517 m	Aspect south	
Land surface: Gravelly banks		
Condition & disturbances: Good;	pastoral impac	ts along banks – some erosion; narrow strip of
woodland/ tall shrubland		
Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura,	A. pruinocarpa	open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var.
linophylla, A. incurvaneura, A. ca	esaneura, A. cra	spedocarpa, Psydrax latifolia tall open shrubland
over Acacia tetragonophylla spar	se shrubland ov	er Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Liverworts,
grass tussocks low isolated ferns		
Acacia caesaneura		
Acacia craspedocarpa		
Acacia incurvaneura		
Acacia pruinocarpa		
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla		
Acacia tetragonophylla		the second s
Psydrax latifolia		
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieber	ri	
Adjagant plain, bardnan		
GPS: 581224 F/ 7025861 N		
Condition: degraded: high pastor	al impacts.	and the second
almost parkland cleared: severe	erosion (sheet)	
		CALL CONTRACTOR
Acacia incurvaneura tall isolated	shrubs to tall	A Charles and the second
sparse shrubland over Eremophil	a forrestii	
subsp. forrestii, A. ramulosa var. l	inophylla	
isolated shrubs over Eragrostis er	iopoda low	
sparse tussock grassland and Er	odium	the second se
cygnorum sparse forbs		
		F

# V41 31<sup>st</sup> July 2024 3.30 pm Haul road – ROM and stockpile area

GPS: 580755 E/ 7025775 NLandform: Outwash lower slope; drainage line; incisedElevation: 516 m

Land surface: Yellowish red fine sandy clay loam; surface rock (gravel) < 20 %; litter 30 – 40 %; fallen timber 2 – 10 %; bare ground 20 – 30 %

Condition & disturbances: Very good; good diversity, recruitment; erosion along channel low to moderate; lower pastoral impacts than plain area

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa\Acacia\^tree\7\c; M1^ Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia pruinocarpa\Acacia\^shrub, tree\4\r; M2^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. simulans subsp. simulans, Senna glaucifolia, Acacia pruinocarpa, A. ramulosa var. linophylla\Eremophila\^shrub\3\c; G1^ Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus schwartzii, Stenopetalum anfractum\Senna\^shrub, forb\2\r

Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa open forest over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia pruinocarpa tall sparse shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. simulans subsp. simulans, Senna glaucifolia shrubland over Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low sparse shrubland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
8–12	30 – 40	Т	Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa
1.8–4	2–10	S, T	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii,
			Acacia pruinocarpa
1 – 1.6	30 – 40	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. simulans subsp. simulans,
			Senna glaucifolia, Acacia pruinocarpa, A. ramulosa var. linophylla,
			Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei
< 1	2–10	S, F,	Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum,
		G	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus schwartzii,
			Stenopetalum filifolium, Waitzia acuminata, Calotis multicaulis,
			Paspalidium basicladum, Lawrencella davenportii

Acacia incurvaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Calotis multicaulis Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans Lawrencella davenportii Paspalidium basicladum Ptilotus schwartzii Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia Senna glaucifolia Solanum lasiophyllum Stenopetalum filifolium Waitzia acuminata



	V42 31 <sup>st</sup> July 2024 Haul road – ROM and stockpile area					
GPS: 580829 E/ 7025847 N Landform: Lo				ow rise between drainage lines; lower slope of		
Elevation: 519 m range						
Land surf	ace: Yellow	vish red s	ilty clay loam; surfa	ce rock (gravel) > 60 %;		
Condition	n & disturb	ances: Ve	ery good; low pastor	al impacts		
NVIS 6: U	1+^ Acacia	a incurvai	neura, A. pruinocarp	a\Acacia\^tree\6\r; M1^ Acacia incurvaneura, A.		
ramulosa	var. linopl	nylla, Gre	villea berryana\Acad	cia\^shrub, tree\4\i; M2^ Eremophila forrestii subsp.		
forrestii, S	Senna arte	misioides	s subsp. filifolia, Aca	cia ramulosa var. linophylla\Eremophila\^shrub\3\i;		
G1^ Eren	nophila for	restii sub	sp. forrestii, Ptilotus	schwartzii, Eragrostis eriopoda, Eremophila		
jucunda s	subsp. juci	ında\Erer	nophila\^shrub, fork	o, tussock grass\1\r		
Vegetatio	n: Acacia i	ncurvane	ura, A. pruinocarpa	low open woodland over Acacia incurvaneura, A.		
ramulosa	var. linopl	nylla, Gre	villea berryana tall o	pen shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp.		
forrestii, S	Senna arte	misioides	s subsp. filifolia, Aca	cia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over		
Eremoph	ila forrestii	subsp. fc	orrestii, Ptilotus schu	vartzii, Eragrostis eriopoda low sparse shrubland		
Height	Crown	Habit	Species			
(m)	cover %	_				
5-8	2–10	T	Acacia incurvaneu	ra, A. pruinocarpa		
2-4	10 – 20	S, T	Acacia incurvaneu	Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Grevillea berryana		
1-2	10–20	S	Eremophila forrest	ii subsp. forrestii, Senna artemisioides subsp.		
			filifolia, Acacia ran	nulosa var. linophylla		
< 0.5	2–10	S, F, G	Eremophila forrest	ii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus schwartzii, Eragrostis		
			eriopoda, Eremopi	hila jucunda subsp. jucunda		
Other spe	ecies: Hake	ea lorea, l	Eremophila simulan	s subsp. simulans, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei		
Acacia in	curvaneura	a				
Acacia pi	uinocarpa '			- etc. Alternet		
Acacia ra	mulosa va.	r. unopny	แล			
Eragrostis	s eriopoda ile ferreetii	auban fo	uuo otii			
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii				A CALLER AND A CALLER		
Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda						
Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans						
Crevilles herryspa						
Hakea lorea				the second se		
Ptilotus s	chwartzii					
Senna ar	temisioide	s subsn t	filifolia			

# V43 1<sup>st</sup> August 2024 11.35 am Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 580642 E/ 7026199 N Elevation: 545 m Landform: Hill; midslope; colluvium;

Land surface: Yellowish red silty clay loam; surface rock (gravel and small rocks) > 80 %; litter < 10 % (mostly concentrated under larger shrubs); fallen timber < 2 %; bare ground < 10 %

Condition & disturbances: Good to very good; historic mining activities – old drill locations and rehab; current pastoral impacts; active erosion – rills, small gullies from run-off from access track; some drought deaths

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia rhodophloia, A. incurvaneura\Acacia\^shrub, tree\4\i; M1^ Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia incurvaneura\Eremophila\^shrub\3\bi; G1^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, Goodenia tenuiloba, Erodium cygnorum, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi\Eremophila\^shrub, forb, fern\1\r

Vegetation: Acacia rhodophloia, A. incurvaneura tall open shrubland over Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia incurvaneura isolated shrubs over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, Goodenia tenuiloba low sparse shrubland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
3–6	10 – 20	S, T	Acacia rhodophloia, A. incurvaneura
1 – 2	< 2	S	Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia incurvaneura
< 0.6	2–10	S, F,	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei,
		E, G	Goodenia tenuiloba, Erodium cygnorum, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp.
			sieberi, Sida ectogama, Eragrostis eriopoda

Other species: Acacia speckii

Acacia incurvaneura

Acacia rhodophloia

Acacia speckii P4

Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi

Eragrostis eriopoda

Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii

Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei

Erodium cygnorum

Goodenia tenuiloba

Sida ectogama



### V44 1<sup>st</sup> August 2024 12.02 pm Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 580077 E/ 7025341 NLandform: Plain; alluvium; gentle slope; broad drainage line,Elevation: 529 mchannel to east; aspect SSE

Land surface: Yellowish red fine sandy clay loam; surface rock < 5 %; litter 20 – 30 %; fallen timber 10 – 20 %; bare ground < 10 %

Condition & disturbances: Good; moderate to high pastoral impacts; soil erosion in area; sheet wash and minor rills

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia fuscaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\i; M1^ Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Rhagodia eremaea, Psydrax latifolia, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans \Acacia\3\i; M2^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus obovatus\Eremophila\^shrub\2\i; G1^ Tetragonia cristata, Erodium cygnorum, Maireana georgei, Stenopetalum filifolium, Calotis multicaulis\Tetragonia\^forb, chenopod shrub\1\c

Vegetation: Acacia fuscaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Rhagodia eremaea, Psydrax latifolia open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus obovatus low open shrubland over Tetragonia cristata, Erodium cygnorum, Maireana georgei low forbland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
5–10	10 – 30	T, S	Acacia fuscaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla
1 – 2	10 – 20	S, C	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Rhagodia eremaea, Psydrax
			latifolia, Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans
0.3-0.9	10 – 20	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Ptilotus obovatus
< 0.3	40 – 50	F, C,	Tetragonia cristata, Erodium cygnorum, Maireana georgei,
		S, G,	Stenopetalum filifolium, Calotis multicaulis, Calandrinia sp., Acacia
		L	fuscaneura, Monachather paradoxus, Vincetoxicum lineare,
			Lawrencella davenportii

### Acacia fuscaneura

Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Calandrinia sp. Calotis multicaulis Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans Erodium cygnorum Lawrencella davenportii Maireana georgei Monachather paradoxus Psydrax latifolia Ptilotus obovatus Rhagodia eremaea Stenopetalum filifolium Tetragonia cristata



Vincetoxicum lineare

# V45 1<sup>st</sup> August 2024 12.15 pm Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 579967 E/ 7025320 NLandform: Low rise; gravelly, gentle slope; aspect south eastElevation: 528 m

Land surface: Reddish yellow (7.5YR6/8) fine sandy clay loam; surface rock (gravel) > 50 %; litter Condition & disturbances: Very good; lower pastoral impacts; some drought impacts

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia caesaneura, A. fuscaneura, Grevillea berryana\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\i; M1^ Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. caesaneura\Acacia\^shrub\4\r; M2^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. simulans subsp. simulans, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. jucunda subsp. jucunda\ Eremophila\^shrub\3\r; G1^ Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, E. simulans subsp. simulans, Ptilotus schwartzii, Eragrostis eriopoda, Erodium cygnorum\Eremophila\^shrub, tussock grass, forb\ 1\r

Vegetation: Acacia caesaneura, A. fuscaneura, Grevillea berryana low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. caesaneura tall sparse shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. simulans subsp. simulans, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei sparse shrubland over Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, E. simulans subsp. simulans, Ptilotus schwartzii low sparse shrubland

Height	Crown	Habit	Species
(m)	cover %		
4 – 7	20 – 30	T, S	Acacia caesaneura, A. fuscaneura, Grevillea berryana
2-3	2–10	S	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. caesaneura
0.5 – 1.2	2–10	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. simulans subsp. simulans, E.
			latrobei subsp. latrobei, E. jucunda subsp. jucunda
< 0.5	2–10	S, G,	Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, E. simulans subsp. simulans,
		F	Ptilotus schwartzii, Eragrostis eriopoda, Erodium cygnorum,
			Goodenia berardiana, Sida sp. golden calyces

Other species: Helipterum craspedioides

Acacia caesaneura Acacia fuscaneura Acacia fuscaneura Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Eragrostis eriopoda Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda

Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei

Eremophila simulans subsp. simulans

Erodium cygnorum

Goodenia berardiana

Grevillea berryana

Helipterum craspedioides

Ptilotus schwartzii

Sida sp. golden calyces glabrous



### V46 1<sup>st</sup> August 2024 2.26 pm Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 579194 E/ 7025058 NLandform: Low rise, gravelly colluvial outwash , gentle slopeElevation: 536 m

Land surface: Strong brown (7.5YR6/8) silty clay loam; surface rock (gravel) > 70 %; litter – mostly < 1 % to > 90 % under tree

Condition & disturbances: Good to very good; pastoral impacts; historic mining impacts

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia pruinocarpa\Acacia\^tree\7\r; M1^ Acacia aptaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, A. incurvaneura\Acacia\^shrub\4\i; M2^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, A. incurvaneura, A. aptaneura, Senna glaucifolia, Eremophila glutinosa\Eremophila\^shrub\3\r; G1^ Erodium cygnorum, Goodenia berardiana, Stenopetalum filifolium, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eragrostis eriopoda\Erodium\^forb, shrub, tussock grass\1\bi

Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa isolated trees over Acacia aptaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, A. incurvaneura tall open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, A. incurvaneura, A. aptaneura sparse shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, Goodenia berardiana, Stenopetalum filifolium isolated forbs

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
10–12	2–10	Т	Acacia pruinocarpa
3–6	10 – 20	S	Acacia aptaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, A. incurvaneura
1 – 2	2–10	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, A. incurvaneura, A. aptaneura,
			Senna glaucifolia, Eremophila glutinosa
< 0.5	< 2	F, S,	Erodium cygnorum, Goodenia berardiana, Stenopetalum filifolium,
		G	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Eragrostis eriopoda,
			Monachather paradoxus, Waitzia acuminata, Ptilotus schwartzii,
			Psydrax latifolia

Acacia aptaneura Acacia incurvaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Eragrostis eriopoda Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila glutinosa Erodium cygnorum Goodenia berardiana Monachather paradoxus Psydrax latifolia Ptilotus schwartzii Senna glaucifolia Stenopetalum filifolium Waitzia acuminata



# V47 1<sup>st</sup> August 2024 Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 578245 E/ 7024730 N

Elevation: 535 m

Landform: Alluvial plain; broad drainage area with groves of mulga; unincised; almost level; aspect ?west

Land surface: Yellowish red clay loam; surface rock < 1 %; litter 20 – 30 %; fallen timber 5 – 10 % Condition & disturbances: Poor, some patches good; moderate to high pastoral impacts

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia incurvaneura, Psydrax latifolia\Acacia\^tree\6\i; M1^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Brachychiton gregorii, Acacia incurvaneura\Eremophila\^shrub\3\c; G1^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Maireana georgei, Stenopetalum filifolium, Thyridolepis multiculmis\Eremophila\^shrub, chenopod shrub, forb, tussock grass\1\r

Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura, Psydrax latifolia low woodland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Brachychiton gregorii shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Maireana georgei low sparse shrubland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
4–9	10 – 30	Т	Acacia incurvaneura, Psydrax latifolia
1 – 2	30 – 40	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Brachychiton
			gregorii, Acacia incurvaneura
< 0.6	2–10	S, C,	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Maireana georgei,
		F, G	Stenopetalum filifolium, Thyridolepis multiculmis, Ptilotus
			polystachyus, Erodium cygnorum

Other species: Eremophila granitica

Acacia incurvaneura Brachychiton gregorii

Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila georgei

Eremophila granitica

Erodium cygnorum

Maireana georgei

Psydrax latifolia

Ptilotus polystachyus

Stenopetalum filifolium

Thyridolepis multiculmis



	V48	3 3.00 p	m 1 <sup>st</sup> A	ugust 2024	Haul road and infrastructure
GPS: 578249	9 E/ 70246	21 N	La	ndform: St	ony hardpan plain, alluvium; almost level; aspect
Elevation: 535 m			sc	outh	
Land surface	e: Yellowis	h red fin	e sandy	clay loam;	surface rock fine gravel 10 – 20 %, rocks 2 – 8 cm
20 – 30 %; lit	tter < 5 %; 1	fallen tir	nber < 1	%	
Condition &	disturban	ces: Poo	r; pasto	ral impacts	s; erosion – sheet, pedestalling
NVIS 6: G1+	^ Eremoph	ila jucu	nda sub	sp. jucunda	a, E. georgei, Ptilotus schwartzii, Eragrostis
eriopoda, Er	iochiton so	clerolae	noides\l	Eremophila	\^shrub, tussock grass, chenopod shrub\1\r; G2^
Erodium cyg	norum, Pt	ilotus sc	hwartzi	i\Erodium\'	^forb, shrub\1\bi
Vegetation:	Eremophila	a jucund	la subsp	o. jucunda,	E. georgei, Ptilotus schwartzii low sparse
shrubland o	ver Erodiui	n cygno	rum, Pti	lotus schw	vartzii low isolated forbs
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Specie	es	
	cover %				
0.1 – 0.6	2–10	S, G,	Eremo	phila jucur	nda subsp. jucunda, E. georgei, Ptilotus schwartzii,
		С	Eragro	stis eriopo	da, Eriochiton sclerolaenoides
< 0.1	< 2	F, S	Erodiu	m cygnoru	m, Ptilotus schwartzii
Other specie	es: Acacia	incurva	neura, A	l. tetragono	pphylla
Acacia incui	rvaneura				
Acacia tetra	gonophylla	9			
Eragrostis ei	riopoda				
Eremophila	georgei				
Eremophila	jucunda sı	ıbsp. jud	cunda		
Eriochiton s	clerolaeno	ides			
Erodium cygnorum					
Ptilotus schwartzii					

V49 1 <sup>st</sup> August 2024 3.25 pm Ha	ul road and infrastructure				
GPS: 577478 E/ 7024031 N	Landform: Alluvial plain; broad unincised drainage line,				
Elevation 528 m	depression; very gentle slope; aspect south				
Land surface: Reddish brown clay l	oam; surface rock < 5 %; litter 20 – 30 %; fallen timber variable 2				
– 20 %; bare ground < 10 %					
Condition & disturbances: Very goo	od to excellent; more impacts (pastoral) around edges and within				
low forest with sparse understorey;	vegetation variable with areas of dense vine thicket present;				
several sandalwood present, very healthy with excellent crop of fruit.					
Vine forest NVIS 6: U1+^Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura\Acacia\^tree\7\c; U2^ Glycine canescens,					
Santalum spicatum, Psydrax latifolia, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia pruinocarpa\Glycine\^vine, tree,					
shrub\4\c; M1^ Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Glycine canescens, Psydrax latifolia, Acacia incurvaneura, A.					
tetragonophylla\Acacia\^shrub, vine\3\i; G1^ Sida ectogama, Glycine canescens, Rhagodia eremaea, Acacia					
ramulosa var. linophylla, Cheilanthes s	sieberi subsp. sieberi\Sida\^shrub, vine, chenopod shrub, fern\2\c				
Vegetation vine forest area: Acacia pru	inocarpa, A. incurvaneura open forest over Glycine canescens,				
Santalum spicatum, Psydrax latifolia vineland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Glycine canescens,					
Psydrax latifolia open shrubland over S	ida ectogama, Glycine canescens, Rhagodia eremaea low shrubland				

Vine forest

Height	Crown	Habit	Species
(m)	cover %		
8-12	30 – 50	Т	Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura
3-7	30 – 40	L, T, S	Glycine canescens, Santalum spicatum, Psydrax latifolia, Acacia
			ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura
1-2	10 – 30	S, L	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Glycine canescens, Psydrax
			latifolia, Acacia incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla
< 1	30–40	S, L, C,	Sida ectogama, Glycine canescens, Rhagodia eremaea, Acacia
		E, F, G	ramulosa var. linophylla, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi,
			Nicotiana obliqua, Teucrium teucriiflorum, Thyridolepis multiculmis,
			Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Goodenia tenuiloba, Psydrax
			latifolia
Other spe	ecies: Calo	otis multica	ulis, Chorizema genistoides, Grevillea deflexa, Eremophila georgei, E.
sp. Weld Range, Eragrostis falcata, Oxalis ?corniculata* (not in flower), Ptilotus obovatus			
Acacia incurvaneura			
Acacia pruinocarpa			
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla			
Acacia te	tragonoph	ylla	
Calotis m	nulticaulis		
Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi			
Chorizem	na genistoi	des	
Eragrosti	s falcata		
Eremoph	ila forrestii	subsp. for	restii
Eremoph	ila georgei		

Eremophila sp. Weld Range

Glycine canescens

Goodenia tenuiloba Grevillea deflexa

Nicotiana obliqua

Oxalis ?corniculata\*

Psydrax latifolia

Ptilotus obovatus

Rhagodia eremaea

Santalum spicatum Sida ectogama

Teucrium teucriiflorum

Thyridolepis multiculmis



Vegetation – more open woodland areas: Acacia incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa, Psydrax latifolia low woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. incurvaneura sparse shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia incurvaneura, Eremophila sp. Weld range low sparse shrubland



# V50 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2024 7.15 am Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 577241 E/ 7023373 NLandform: Ironstone gravel plain; Very gentle slope; aspectElevation: 520 m?west

Land surface: Strong brown (7.5YR5/8) silty clay loam; surface rock (fine ironstone gravel) > 70 %; litter < 5 %; fallen timber < 1 %

# Condition & disturbances: Poor; pastoral impacts; drought impacts

NVIS 6: U1^ Acacia pruinocarpa\Acacia\^tree\6\bi; M1+^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla\ Acacia\^shrub\4\r; M2^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia tetragonophylla\Acacia\^shrub\3\r; M3^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila georgei, Acacia incurvaneura, Solanum lasiophyllum\ Eremophila\^shrub\2\bi; G1^ Stenopetalum filifolium, Menkea villosula, Isoetopsis graminifolia, Cephalipterum drummondii, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi\Stenopetalum\^forb, fern\1\i Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa low isolated trees over Acacia incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla tall

sparse shrubland over Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei sparse shrubland over Stenopetalum filifolium, Menkea villosula, Isoetopsis graminifolia low open forbland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
9–10	< 2	Т	Acacia pruinocarpa
3–6	2-5	S	Acacia incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla
1 – 2	2–10	S	Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila
			latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia tetragonophylla
0.3 – 1	< 2	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla,
			Eremophila georgei, Acacia incurvaneura, Solanum lasiophyllum,
			Ptilotus obovatus, P. schwartzii
< 0.3	10 – 20	F, E	Stenopetalum filifolium, Menkea villosula, Isoetopsis graminifolia,
			Cephalipterum drummondii, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi,
			Ptilotus aervoides

Acacia incurvaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Acacia tetragonophylla Cephalipterum drummondii Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila georgei Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Isoetopsis graminifolia Menkea villosula Ptilotus aervoides Ptilotus obovatus Ptilotus schwartzii Stenopetalum filifolium Solanum lasiophyllum



### V51 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2024 7.40 am Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 577125 E/ 7022254 NLandform: Alluvial plain within ironstone plain; water gainingElevation: 520 marea; almost level, aspect south

Land surface: Strong brown fine sandy clay loam; surface rock < 2 %; litter < 10 %; fallen timber 2 – 5 %; bare ground 40 – 60 %

Condition & disturbances: Good; structure mostly intact; historic mining activities adjacent to area – old tracks, drill locations and some rehabilitation (ripping). Pastoral impacts.

NVIS 6: U+^ Acacia pruinocarpa, A. aptaneura, A. caesaneura\Acacia\^tree, shrub\7\i; M1^ Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. caesaneura\Acacia\^shrub\4\r; M2^ Eremophila georgei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia aptaneura\Eremophila\^shrub\3\i; G1^ Eremophila georgei, E. foliosissima, Ptilotus schwartzii, Thyridolepis multiculmis, Ptilotus obovatus\Eremophila\^shrub, tussock grass\1\r

Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa, A. aptaneura, A. caesaneura open woodland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. caesaneura tall sparse shrubland over Eremophila georgei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia aptaneura open shrubland over Eremophila georgei, E. foliosissima, Ptilotus schwartzii low sparse shrubland

Height	Crown	Habit	Species
(m)	cover %		
6–14	10 – 20	T, S	Acacia pruinocarpa, A. aptaneura, A. caesaneura
2 – 5	2-10	S	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, A. caesaneura
1–2	20 – 30	S	Eremophila georgei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia aptaneura
< 0.5	2-10	S, G, E,	Eremophila georgei, E. foliosissima, Ptilotus schwartzii, Thyridolepis
		F, C	multiculmis, Ptilotus obovatus, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Erodium
			cygnorum, Eragrostis eriopoda, Maireana georgei

Other species: Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda

Acacia aptaneura

Acacia caesaneura

Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla

Acacia pruinocarpa

Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi

Eragrostis eriopoda

Eremophila foliosissima

Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii

Eremophila georgei

Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda

Erodium cygnorum

Maireana georgei

Ptilotus obovatus

Ptilotus schwartzii

*Thyridolepis multiculmis* Adjacent open ironstone plain area

Acacia aptaneura tall open to sparse shrubland over Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, Ptilotus schwartzii low isolated to sparse shrubland

APM site E6 within 200 m





### V52 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2024 8.00 am Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 576430 E/ 7020972 NLandform: Ironstone plain; almost level; drainage to south west;Elevation 509 mnarrow denser patch of vegetation within very sparse areaLand surface: Yellowish red fine same clay loam; surface rock (fine ironstone gravel) 40 – 50 %; litter

Condition & disturbances: Good; understorey mostly intact under tree canopy.

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia pruinocarpa, A. caesaneura, A. aptaneura\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\i; M1^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia tetragonophylla, Sida ectogama, Rhagodia eremaea, Hibiscus sp.\Eremophila\^shrub, chenopod shrub\3\i; M2^ Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georgei, Eremophila georgei, Sida ectogama, Enchylaena tomentosa\Ptilotus\^shrub, chenopod shrub\2\i; G1^ Erodium cygnorum, Eremophila georgei, Sida ectogama, Solanum lasiophyllum, Calandrinia sp.\Erodium\^forb, shrub\1\r

Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa, A. caesaneura, A. aptaneura low woodland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia tetragonophylla, Sida ectogama open shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georgei, Eremophila georgei low open shrubland over Erodium cygnorum, Eremophila georgei, Sida ectogama low sparse forbland

Height	Crown	Habit	Species
(m)	cover %		
6–10	10 – 30	T, S	Acacia pruinocarpa, A. caesaneura, A. aptaneura
1-2	20 – 30	S, C	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia tetragonophylla, Sida
			ectogama, Rhagodia eremaea, Hibiscus sp., Eremophila latrobei
			subsp. latrobei
0.2 – 1	10 – 30	S, C,	Ptilotus obovatus, Maireana georgei, Eremophila georgei, Sida
		G	ectogama, Enchylaena tomentosa, Hibiscus sp., Eremophila latrobei
			subsp. latrobei, Austrostipa elegantissima
< 0.2	2–10	F, S, L,	Erodium cygnorum, Eremophila georgei, Sida ectogama, Solanum
		C, E	lasiophyllum, Calandrinia sp., Leichhardtia australis, Maireana
			georgei, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Thyridolepis multiculmis

Other species: Psydrax latifolia (4 m), Teucrium teucriiflorum, Eragrostis eriopoda

Acacia aptaneura Acacia caesaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia tetragonophylla Austrostipa elegantissima Calandrinia sp. Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi Eragrostis eriopoda Enchylaena tomentosa Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila georgei Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Erodium cygnorum Hibiscus sp. Leichhardtia australis Maireana georgei Psydrax latifolia Ptilotus obovatus



Rhagodia eremaea Sida ectogama Solanum lasiophyllum Teucrium teucriiflorum Thyridolepis multiculmis

V53 2 <sup>nd</sup> August 2024	8.50 am Haul road and infrastructure
---------------------------------	--------------------------------------

GPS: 576462 E/ 7020007 NLandform: Low stony hill, minor chert outcrops; gentle slope;Elevation 514 maspect north; patches of low trees, tall shrubs within shrubland

Land surface: Strong brown (7.5YR5/6) silty clay loam; surface rock (chert, quartz, other) > 95 %, 2 – 5 cm 80%; litter < 10 %; fallen timber 2 – 3 %; bare ground < 1 %

Condition & disturbances: Very good; pastoral impacts lower than valley areas; signs of cattle in area; drought impacts – vegetation recovering

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia aptaneura, A. grasbyi\Acacia\6\r; M1^ Acacia aptaneura, Senna glaucifolia, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. pantonii\Acacia\^shrub\3\r; G1^ Maireana thesioides, M. triptera, Senna glaucifolia, Solanum lasiophyllum, Acacia aptaneura\Maireana\^chenopod shrub, shrub\2\i

Vegetation: Acacia aptaneura, A. grasbyi low open woodland over Acacia aptaneura, Senna glaucifolia, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii sparse shrubland over Maireana thesioides, M. triptera, Senna glaucifolia low open chenopod shrubland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
3 – 5	2 – 10	T, S	Acacia aptaneura, A. grasbyi
1 – 2	2-5	S	Acacia aptaneura, Senna glaucifolia, Eremophila forrestii subsp.
			forrestii, E. pantonii
< 0.9	10 – 20	C, S,	Maireana thesioides, M. triptera, Senna glaucifolia, Solanum
		F	lasiophyllum, Acacia aptaneura, Cephalipterum drummondii,
			Sclerolaena sp.

Other species: Calandrinia sp., Helipterum craspedioides, Ptilotus exaltatus, P. obovatus, Sida calyxhymenia, S. ectogama, Abutilon sp., Stenopetalum filifolium. Stackhousia muricata

Abutilon sp. Acacia aptaneura Acacia grasbyi Calandrinia sp. Cephalipterum drummondii Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila pantonii Helipterum craspedioides Maireana thesioides Maireana triptera Ptilotus exaltatus Ptilotus obovatus Sclerolaena sp. Senna glaucifolia Sida calyxhymenia Sida ectogama Stenopetalum filifolium Solanum lasiophyllum

Stackhousia muricata



# V54 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2024 9.15 am Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 576461 E/ 7020071 NLandform: Valley; broad drainage line, slight channellingElevation 512 m

Land surface: Strong brown clay loam; surface rock – gravel patches 10 - 20 %; small granitic rock outcrop at edge of vegetation; litter 10 - 20 %; fallen timber < 5 %

Condition & disturbances: Very good; pastoral impacts

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia fuscaneura, A. incurvaneura, A. aptaneura\Acacia\^tree\6\i; M1^ Acacia grasbyi, A. tetragonophylla, A. craspedocarpa, A. fuscaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla\Acacia\ ^shrub, tree\4\i; M2^ Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia fuscaneura, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia aptaneura, Sida ectogama\Acacia\^shrub\3\i; G1^ Roepera lobulata, Solanum lasiophyllum, Erodium cygnorum, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Maireana triptera\ Roepera\^forb, shrub, fern, chenopod shrub\1\i

Vegetation: Acacia fuscaneura, A. incurvaneura, A. aptaneura low woodland over Acacia grasbyi, A. tetragonophylla, A. craspedocarpa tall open shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia fuscaneura, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii open shrubland over Roepera lobulata, Solanum lasiophyllum, Erodium cygnorum low open forbland

Height	Crown	Habit	Species
(m)	cover %		
5–9	20-30 (40)	Т	Acacia fuscaneura, A. incurvaneura, A. aptaneura
2-5	20 – 30	S, T	Acacia grasbyi, A. tetragonophylla, A. craspedocarpa, A.
			fuscaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, Hakea preissii
1 – 2	10 – 30	S	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Acacia fuscaneura, Eremophila
			forrestii subsp. forrestii, Acacia aptaneura, Sida ectogama,
			Eremophila pantonii
< 0.6	10 – 30	F, S,	Roepera lobulata, Solanum lasiophyllum, Erodium cygnorum,
		E, C	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Maireana triptera, M. georgei,
			Ptilotus obovatus

Acacia aptaneura Acacia fuscaneura Acacia grasbyi Acacia incurvaneura Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Acacia tetragonophylla Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila pantonii Erodium cygnorum Hakea preissii Maireana georgei Maireana triptera Ptilotus obovatus Roepera lobulata Sida ectogama Solanum lasiophyllum





V55	2 <sup>nd</sup> August 2024 10	am Haul road and infrastructure	

GPS: 576334 E/ 7019443 N<br/>Elevation: 507 mLandform: Stony plain at lower slope of low hills; gentle slope;<br/>aspect south; patches of open shrubland in very sparse vegetationLand surface: Reddish brown clay loam; surface rock (dolerite, quartz) 30 – 50 %; litter < 5 %; fallen<br/>timber < 1 %; bare ground 30 – 40 %</td>

Condition & disturbances: Poor; pastoral impacts; drought impacts – few deaths of shrubs

NVIS 6: U1^ Acacia ?aneura, A. sp. Weld Range\Acacia\^shrub, tree\4\bi; M1+^ Eremophila macmillaniana, Acacia sp. Weld Range, Acacia speckii, A. ?aneura, Ptilotus rotundifolius\ Eremophila\^shrub\r; G1^ Cephalipterum drummondii, Sida ectogama, Aristida contorta, Eremophila macmillaniana, Maireana sp.\Cephalipterum\^forb, shrub, tussock grass, chenopod shrub\1\r

Vegetation: Acacia ?aneura, A. sp. Weld Range tall isolated shrubs over Eremophila macmillaniana, Acacia sp. Weld Range, Acacia speckii sparse shrubland over Cephalipterum drummondii, Sida ectogama, Aristida contorta low sparse forbland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
3 – 5	< 2	S, T	Acacia ?aneura, A. sp. Weld Range
1 – 2	2 – 10	S	Eremophila macmillaniana, Acacia sp. Weld Range, Acacia speckii, A.
			?aneura, Ptilotus rotundifolius
< 0.5	2 – 10	F, S,	Cephalipterum drummondii, Sida ectogama, Aristida contorta, Eremophila
		G, C,	macmillaniana, Maireana sp., Sclerolaena diacantha, Helipterum
		F	craspedioides. Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Frodium cygnorum

Other species: Brachychiton gregorii

Acacia ?aneura

Acacia speckii P4

Acacia sp. Weld Range

Aristida contorta

Brachychiton gregorii

Cephalipterum drummondii

Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi

Eremophila macmillaniana

Erodium cygnorum Helipterum craspedioides

Maireana sp.

Ptilotus rotundifolius

Sclerolaena diacantha

Sida ectogama



# V56 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2024 10.45 am Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 575645 E/ 7018931 NLandform: Gravelly low hills; gentle slope; aspect northElevation: 512 mPotential gravel source

Land surface: Reddish yellow fine sandy clay loam; surface rock (lateritic gravel) 30 – 40 %; litter 5 – 10 %; fallen timber 1 – 2 %; bare ground 30 – 40 %

Condition & disturbances: Good; low recruitment; pastoral impacts; drought impacts

NVIS 6: U1^ Acacia caesaneura\Acacia\^shrub\4\r; M1+^ Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla\Acacia\ ^shrub\3\i; G1^ Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida ectogama, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii\Ptilotus\ ^shrub\1\bi

Vegetation: Acacia caesaneura tall sparse shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla open shrubland over Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida ectogama, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low isolated shrubs

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
3-4	2-4	S	Acacia caesaneura ?
1 – 2	20 – 30	S	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
< 0.5	< 1	S, G	Ptilotus schwartzii, Sida ectogama, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii

Other species: Maireana georgei, Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia pruinocarpa (low tree, upslope)

Acacia caesaneura ? – much insect damage to new shoots and phyllodes; new shoots not resinous, phyllodes with rounded tips

Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei Maireana georgei Ptilotus schwartzii Sida ectogama



# V57 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2024 11.03 am Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 575356 E/ 7018979 NLandform: Hill; minor drainage lineElevation: 505 mTrapdoor spiders present

Land surface: Yellowish red clay loam; surface rock < 10 %; litter 10 – 30 % (mostly under larger shrubs); fallen timber < 2 %; cryptogams (lichen, liverworts) 2 – 10 %; bare ground < 10 %

Condition & disturbances: Very good; pastoral impacts – moderate – cattle tracks, grazing, ground disturbances; drought impacts - some deaths – would have been tall shrubland now tall open shrubland, part crown deaths

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla\Acacia\^shrub, tree\4\i; M1^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. hastieana, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei\Eremophila\^shrub\3\i; G1^ Waitzia acuminata, Erodium cygnorum, Panaetia lessonii, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Helipterum craspedioides\Waitzia\^forb, fern\1\c

Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla tall open shrubland over Eremophila forrestii subsp. hastieana, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei open shrubland over Waitzia acuminata, Erodium cygnorum, Panaetia lessonii low forbland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species		
	cover %				
3.5 – 5	10 – 30	S, T	Acacia incurvaneura, A. tetragonophylla		
1 – 2	20 – 30	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. hastieana, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei		
< 0.5	50 – 70	F, E,	Waitzia acuminata, Erodium cygnorum, Panaetia lessonii,		
		G	Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Helipterum craspedioides,		
			Stenopetalum filifolium, Cephalipterum drummondii, Eragrostis		
			dielsii, Euphorbia boophthona, Menkea villosula, Isoetopsis		
			graminifolia		
Acacia incu	rvaneura				
Acacia tetragonophylla					
Cephalipter	um drumm	nondii			
Cheilanthes	sieberi su	bsp. siel	beri beri		
Eragrostis di	ielsii				
Eremophila	forrestii su	bsp. has	stieana		
Eremophila	latrobei su	bsp. lati	robei		
Erodium cyg	norum				
Euphorbia b	oophthona	a			
Helipterum craspedioides					
Isoetopsis graminifolia					

Panaetia lessonii Stenopetalum filifolium

Waitzia acuminata

# V58 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2024 Haul road and infrastructure GPS: 574750 E/ 7018889 N Landform: Low hills; mid slope; gentle slope; aspect north Elevation: 511 m Land surface: Reddish yellow (7.5YR6/6) fine sandy clay loam; surface rock (lateritic gravel) 60 – 70 %; litter 5 – 10 %; fallen timber 1 – 2 %; cryptogams – negligible; bare ground 10 – 20 %; erosion – sheet wash; drought impacts – some deaths and part crown deaths, ground cover very sparse Condition & disturbances: Good; drought and pastoral impacts NVIS 6: U1^ Acacia incurvaneura, Psydrax latifolia\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\bi; M1+^ Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla\Acacia\^shrub\4\i; M2^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii\Eremophila\^shrub\3\bi; G1^ Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous, Ptilotus schwartzii, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Waitzia acuminata, Erodium cygnorum \Sida\^shrub, forb\1\r

Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura, Psydrax latifolia low isolated trees over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla tall open shrubland over Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous, Ptilotus schwartzii, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii low sparse shrubland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
4–6	< 2	T, S	Acacia incurvaneura, Psydrax latifolia
2-3.5	10 – 20	S	Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
1 – 2	< 2	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii
< 0.6	2–10	S, F,	Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous, Ptilotus schwartzii, Eremophila
		L	forrestii subsp. forrestii, Waitzia acuminata, Erodium cygnorum,
			Stenopetalum filifolium, Thysanotus manglesianus

Other species: Grevillea berryana (4 – 8m), Menkea villosula

Acacia incurvaneura

Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla

Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii

Erodium cygnorum

Grevillea berryana

Menkea villosula

Psydrax latifolia

Ptilotus schwartzii Sida sp. Golden calyces glabrous

Stenopetalum filifolium

. Thysanotus manglesianus

Waitzia acuminata

Extinct mallee fowl mound GPS: 574735 E/ 7018873 N Elevation: 510 m



V59 2 <sup>nd</sup> Aug	ust 2024 <i>*</i>	12.38 pr	n Haul road and infrastructure		
GPS: 574600 E/ 7019045 N Landform: Broad drainage line; unincised area; hardpan plain					
Elevation: 508 m Almost level; aspect north; drains into incised drainage line (V60)					
Land surfac	e: Reddish	brown o	clay loam; surface rock (gravel) < 10 %; litter 10 %; fallen timber 2 – 10		
%; bare grou	ind 2 – 20 9	%; moist			
Condition &	disturband	ces: Ver	y good to excellent; some pastoral impacts; structure appears mostly		
intact; grass	es present	: but spa	irse		
NVIS 6: U1+	^ Acacia p	ruinocai	rpa, A. incurvaneura\Acacia\^tree\7\c; U2^ Psydrax suaeveolens\		
Psydrax\^tre	el6\r; M1^	Eremo	ohila forrestii subsp. hastieana, E. georgei, Sida ectogama, Psydrax		
suaveolens,	P. latifolia	Eremop	hila\^shrub\3\c; G1^ Ptilotus obovatus, Eremophila georgei, Acacia		
incurvaneur	a, Erodium	cygnor	um, Arthropodium sp. \Ptilotus\^shrub, forb\1\i		
Vegetation:	Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura open forest over Psydrax suaeveolens low open				
woodland o	ver Eremop	ohila for	restii subsp. hastieana, E. georgei, Sida ectogama shrubland over		
Ptilotus obo	vatus, Erer	nophila	georgei, Acacia incurvaneura low open shrubland		
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species		
	cover %				
9–12	30 – 50	Т	Acacia pruinocarpa, A. incurvaneura		
3–5	2–10	Т	Psydrax suaeveolens		
1 – 1.6	30 – 40	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. hastieana, E. georgei, Sida ectogama,		
			Psydrax suaveolens, P. latifolia, Acacia incurvaneura		
< 0.6	10 – 30	S, F,	Ptilotus obovatus, Eremophila georgei, Acacia incurvaneura,		
		G, L	Erodium cygnorum, Arthropodium sp., Brachyscome iberidifolia		
Other specie	Other species: Acacia craspedocarpa, Eragrostis eriopoda, Eremophila foliosissima, Helipterum				

craspedioides, Thyridolepis multiculmis

Acacia craspedocarpa Acacia incurvaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Arthropodium sp. Brachyscome iberidifolia Eragrostis eriopoda Eremophila foliosissima Eremophila forrestii subsp. hastieana Eremophila georgei Erodium cygnorum Helipterum craspedioides Psydrax suaeveolens Psydrax latifolia Ptilotus obovatus Sida ectogama

Thyridolepis multiculmis



V60 2 <sup>nd</sup> Au	gust 2024 Relevé Haul road and infrastructure
GPS: 574618 E/ 7019128 N	Landform: Hardpan plain; incised ephemeral drainage line; drainage
Elevation 503 m	to west; pools present, sandy banks and exposed hardpan
Land surface:	

Condition & disturbances: Good to very good; pastoral impacts; erosion

Vegetation: Acacia caesaneura, A. tetragonophylla, Hakea preissii tall shrubland over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Acacia tetragonophylla, Glycine canescens shrubland over Chorizema genistoides, Hakea preissii, Grevillea deflexa, low open shrubland

Pools present to depth ~ 0.8 m; dense vegetation	Pockets of shrubland dominated by Acacia and	
on creek banks with pockets of vegetation on	Hakea spp., with understorey of Chorizema	
islands; few aquatic plants present; many	genistoides, Grevillea deflexa and Glycine	
insects	canescens (vine)	
Acacia aptaneura	Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri	
Acacia caesaneura	Eremophila georgei	
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla	Glycine canescens	
Acacia tetragonophylla	Grevillea deflexa	
Aristida contorta	Haloragis odontocarpa	
Calandrinia sp. (sterile)	Marsilea hirsuta	
Chorizema genistoides	Nicotiana obliqua	
Cymbopogon ambiguus	Rhodanthe ?sterilescens (in bud)	
Dysphania rhadinostachya subsp.	Sida ectogama	
rhadinostachya		
Eremophila forrestii subsp. hastieana		

V61 2 <sup>nd</sup> August 2024 1.27 pm Relevé Haul road and infrastructure					
GPS: 573866 E/ 7018932 N	Landform: Broad, channelled drainage line with gravel banks;				
Elevation 508 m	signs of flooding, debris; aspect SW				
Land surface: Deep gravel banks, scattered rocks					
Condition & disturbances: Good; s	igns of high flows through area – main drainage line; erosion, old				
tracks; pastoral impacts					
Vegetation: Acacia pteraneura, A. f	uscaneura tall open shrubland (3 – 5 m) over Acacia fuscaneura,				
Grevillea deflexa, Eremophila frase	ri subsp. fraseri sparse shrubland over Calytrix desolata,				
Grevillea deflexa low sparse shrubl	and				
Acacia fuscaneura					
Acacia pruinocarpa					
Acacia pteraneura (tentative)					
Acacia tetragonophylla					
Androcalva luteiflora	and a start of the				
Calandrinia sp. (sterile)					
Calytrix desolata					
Chorizema genistoides					
Cymbopogon ambiguus					
Eremophila forrestii subsp. forresti					
Eremophila forrestii subsp. hastiea	na				
Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri					
Grevillea deflexa	and the second se				
Hakea preissii					
Ptilotus exaltatus	The second second				
	A State of the second s				
	and the second				
	State 2 Marshell Marshell States				
	the state of the second s				

# V62 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2024 Relevé 1.50 pm Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 573149 E/ 7018896 NLandform: Hardpan plain wit fine ironstone gravel mantle;Elevation: 508 malmost level; aspect SW

Land surface: Yellowish red fine sandy clay loam; surface rock (fine ironstone gravel) 60 – 70 % Condition & disturbances: Degraded to poor; high pastoral impacts

Vegetation: Acacia incurvaneura isolated tall shrubs over Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla , Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii isolated shrubs over Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. latrobei subsp. latrobei, Acacia tetragonophylla, Psydrax latifolia low sparse shrubland

Acacia incurvaneura

Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Acacia tetragonophylla Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila latrobei subsp. latrobei

Monachather paradoxus

Psydrax latifolia

Ptilotus aervoides



	V63	3 2 <sup>nd</sup> Aug	ust 2024 2	2.05 pm Haul road and infrastructure
GPS: 57192	5 E/ 70190	56 N	Landfo	form: Hardpan plain, alluvium; ephemeral drainage line/
Elevation 502 m				ession: very gentle slope: aspect south
Land surfac	e: Yellowis	h red fin	e sandy clay	av loam: surface rock < 5 %: litter 10 – 30 %: fallen timber 2
– 3 %; bare g	ground 30 -	- 40 %		
Condition &	disturban	ces: Ver	/ good; dens	nser patch of woodland within sparsely vegetated ironstone
plain; grasse	es absent;	pastora	impacts mo	nore at edges; drought impacts – some deaths and part
crown death	n; trapdoor	spiders	present	
NVIS 6: U+^ A	Acacia pruin	nocarpa\A	lcacia\^tree\]	\7\i; U2^ Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, A.
tetragonophy	lla, Psydrax	suaveole	ens, Acacia aj	aptaneura\Acacia\^shrub, tree\4\c; M1^ Eremophila forrestii
subsp. forres	tii, E. george	ei, Acacia	aptaneura, P	Psydrax latifolia\Eremophila\ ^shrub\3\c; G1^ Sida ectogama,
Cheilanthes s	sieberi subs	sp. sieber	i, Erodium cy	ygnorum, Eremophila georgei\Sida\ ^shrub, fern, forb\1\i
Vegetation: A	cacia pruin	ocarpa w	oodland over	er Acacia incurvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, A.
tetragonophy	lla tall shru	bland ove	er Eremophila	la forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Acacia aptaneura
shrubland ov	er Sida ecto	ogama, C	heilanthes sie	ieberi subsp. sieberi, Erodium cygnorum low open shrubland
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species	
	cover %			
10 – 16	10 – 30	Т	Acacia pruii	inocarpa
3–10	30 – 40	S, T	Acacia incu	urvaneura, A. ramulosa var. linophylla, A. tetragonophylla,
			Psydrax sua	aveolens, Acacia aptaneura, A. craspedocarpa
1–2	30 – 40	S	Eremophila	a forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Acacia aptaneura, Psydrax
			latifolia	
< 0.5	10 – 30	S, E, F	Sida ectoga	ama, Cheilanthes sieberi subsp. sieberi, Erodium cygnorum,
			Eremophila	a georgei
Acacia aptan	eura			
Acacia crasp	eaocarpa			
Acacia incurv	aneura			
Acacia prumo	ooo vor lind	nhullo		
Acacia tatrad	osa var. und	ορηγιια		
Chailanthas	onopnyna sighari subs	en sieher	i	
Fremonhila f	nrrestii suhs	sn forres	ii	
Fremophila g	eorgei	<i></i>		
Erodium cvgr	norum			
Psydrax latifo	lia			
Psydrax suav	eolens			
, Sida ectogarr	าล			
Edge of woo	dland/tall	shruhla	nd natch – r	many
deaths of m	edium to t	all chrub	e pateri – i	Inally
			5	

# V64 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2024 Relevé Haul road and infrastructure

 GPS: 572029 E/ 7018992 N
 Landform: Plain, hardpan; alluvial; almost level; aspect south

 Elevation: 502 m
 Land surface: Yellowish red fine sandy clay loam; surface rock (fine ironstone gravel) 50 – 60 %

 Condition & disturbances: Poor; pastoral impacts high – many tracks, land surface disturbance; sheet erosion
 Vegetation: Acacia aptaneura, A. incurvaneura, A. pruinocarpa tall sparse shrubland over Acacia incurvaneura, A. craspedocarpa, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. jucunda subsp. jucunda sparse shrubland

 Other species: Eremophila georgei, Erodium cygnorum, Calandrinia sp., Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla, Grevillea berryana (4m)
 Acacia aptaneura

 Acacia incurvaneura
 Acacia incurvaneura
 Acacia incurvaneura

 Acacia pruinocarpa
 Acacia pruinocarpa

 Acacia pruinocarpa
 Acacia incurvaneura

Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla Calandrinia sp. Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila georgei

Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda

Erodium cygnorum

Grevillea berryana



# V65 2<sup>nd</sup> August 2024 Relevé Haul road and infrastructure

GPS: 571519 E/ 7019026 NLandform: Stony hardpan plain; gentle slope; aspect south – SWElevation 505 m

Land surface: Surface rock fine ironstone gravel 30 – 40 %; rocks (2 – 10 cm) 30 – 40 %; bare ground 10 %

Condition & disturbances: Degraded; high pastoral impacts; drought impacts

Vegetation: Acacia aptaneura, A. incurvaneura tall sparse shrubland to south; Ptilotus rotundifolius, Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii low isolated shrubs

Acacia aptaneura

Acacia incurvaneura

Eragrostis eriopoda

Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii

Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda

Ptilotus aervoides

Ptilotus rotundifolius



V66 2 <sup>nd</sup> August	2024 Relevé	Haul road and infra	istructure
GPS: 571243 E/ 7018975 N	Landform: Iror	nstone hardpan plai	n; almost level; aspect south
Elevation: 499 m			
Land surface: Yellowish red silty cla	ay loam; surface	e rock fine ironstone	gravel 30 – 50 %; rocks (2 – 10
cm) 20 %; bare ground 20 – 30 %			
Condition & disturbances: Poor; hig	gh pastoral impa	acts; sheet erosion,	hummocking
Vegetation: Eremophila punicea, Er	agrostis eriopo	da low open shrubla	and
Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla (iso	lated shrub)		
Eragrostis eriopoda			and the second se
Eremophila jucunda subsp. jucunda	а		
Eremophila punicea			and the second sec
Erodium cygnorum			
		all in	
		Mar and the	
		Contraction of the	

# The following are survey sites from October 2023

V67 22/10/2023 9.22 am Haul Road western end					
GPS: 57109	7 E/ 70189	46 N	Landform: Stony plain		
Elevation: 5					
Land surfac	e: Yellowis	h red cla	y loam; surface rock (ironstone gravel40 – 50 %; BIF, quartz rocks 5 –		
10 %) 40 – 6	0 %				
Condition &	disturband	ces: Poo	r; pastoral impacts, timber cutting; erosion sheet wash – hardpan		
exposed					
NVIS 6: <i>U1</i> ^	Acacia api	taneura,	A. pruinocarpa\Acacia\^shrub\4\r; M1^ Acacia aptaneura, A.		
pruinocarpa	, Eremoph	ila frase	ri subsp. fraseri, A. tetragonophylla\Acacia\^shrub\3\r; G1^ Acacia		
aptaneura, l	Fremophila	a punice	a, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Ptilotus		
schwartzii\A	cacia\^shi	rub\2\bi			
Vegetation:	Acacia apt	aneura,	A. pruinocarpa tall sparse shrubland over Acacia aptaneura, A.		
pruinocarpa	, Eremoph	ila frase	ri subsp. fraseri sparse shrubland over Acacia aptaneura, Eremophila		
punicea, Pti	lotus rotun	difolius	low isolated shrubs		
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species		
	cover %				
2-5	2–10	S	Acacia aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa		
1 – 2	2–10	S	Acacia aptaneura, A. pruinocarpa, Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri,		
			A. tetragonophylla		
< 1	< 2	S	Acacia aptaneura, Eremophila punicea, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Senna		
			artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Ptilotus schwartzii		
Other specie	es: Eremop	ohila foli	osissima		
Acacia apta	neura				
Acacia pruir	iocarpa				
Acacia tetra	gonophylla	7			
Eremophila	foliosissim	a			
Eremophila	fraseri sub	sp. frase	eri Coloria Co		
Eremophila	punicea				
Ptilotus rotundifolius					
Ptilotus schwartzii					
Senna arten	nisioides si	ubsp. he	Imsii		
	and the second se				
			a to a gradient the second		

V 68 22/10/2023 9.00 am Haul Road western end					
GPS: 570854 E/ 7018905 N Landform: Pl				lain, hardpan; low rise; aspect south to south west	
Elevation: 502 m					
Land surface: Yellowish red fine sandy clay loam;				; surface rock 0 %; litter 30 – 40 %; fallen timber < 2	
%; crypto	gams (lich	en) 5 – 10	)%		
Conditior	n & disturb	ances: Ve	ery good; pastoral in	npacts	
NVIS 6: U	1+^ Acacia	a aptaneı	ıra, A. caesaneura, I	Brachychiton gregorii, Hakea lorea\Acacia\^tree\6\i;	
M1 ^ Brac	hychiton g	regorii, A	cacia tetragonophyl	la, Psydrax latifolia, Acacia caesaneura\	
Brachych	iton\^shru	b, tree\4\	r; M2^ Eremophila f	orrestii subsp. forrestii, Psydrax suaveolens,	
Pittospor	um angust	ifolium\E	remophila\^shrub\3	3\i; G1^ Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E.	
georgei, E	ragrostis f	alcata, Pt	ilotus polystachyus	, Stenopetalum filifolium\Eremophila\^shrub,	
tussock g	rass, forb\	2\c			
Vegetatio	n: Acacia a	aptaneura	a, A. caesaneura, Br	achychiton gregorii low woodland over	
Brachych	iton gregoi	rii, Acacia	tetragonophylla, P	sydrax latifolia tall sparse shrubland over	
Eremoph	ila forrestii	subsp. fo	orrestii, Psydrax sua	veolens, Pittosporum angustifolium open shrubland	
over Eren	nophila for	restii sub	sp. forrestii, E. georg	gei, Eragrostis falcata low shrubland	
Height	Crown	Habit	Species		
(m)	cover %				
8–10	20 – 30	Т	Acacia aptaneura,	A. caesaneura, Brachychiton gregorii, Hakea lorea	
4 – 5	2–10	S, T	Brachychiton greg	orii, Acacia tetragonophylla, Psydrax latifolia, Acacia	
			caesaneura		
0.7 –	10 – 20	S	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, Psydrax suaveolens, Pittosporum		
1.5			angustifolium		
< 0.7	30–40	S, G,	Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E. georgei, Eragrostis falcata,		
		F, L	Ptilotus polystachyus, Stenopetalum filifolium, Cephalipterum		
			drummondii, dried	l off forbs, Ptilotus obovatus, Leichhardtia australis	
Other spec	cies: Thysar	notus man	glesianus, Acacia ran	nulosa var. linophylla, Eremophila glutinosa, E. serrulata,	
Rhodanthe	e sp., Roepe	era sp., Ha	kea lorea (0.5 m), Ptilo	otus exaltatus, Teucrium teucriiflorum	
Acacia cae	esaneura			A WAFF STREET AND 120	
Acacia ran	nulosa var. l	linophylla			
Rrachvehi	top gregorii	a			
Cenhalinte	erum drumr	nondii			
Eragrostis	falcata	nonan			
Eremophil	a forrestii si	ubsp. forre	stii		
Eremophila georgei					
Eremophila glutinosa					
Eremophila serrulata				A CONTRACT OF A	
Hakea lorea					
Leichhardtia australis					
Pittosporum angustifolium					
Psydrax latifolia				Rhodanthe sp.	
Psydrax suaveolens				Roepera sp.	
Ptilotus ob	ovatus			Stenopetalum filifolium	
Ptilotus no	lvstachvus			Thusanatus manglasianus	
Cephalipterum drummondii Eragrostis falcata Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila georgei Eremophila glutinosa Eremophila serrulata Hakea lorea Leichhardtia australis Pittosporum angustifolium Psydrax latifolia Psydrax suaveolens Ptilotus exaltatus Ptilotus obovatus Ptilotus polystachyus				Rhodanthe sp.Roepera sp.Stenopetalum filifoliumTeucrium teucriiflorumThysanotus manglesianus	

### V 69 22/10/2023 8.23 am Haul Road western end

GPS: 570041 E/ 7018530 N<br/>Elevation: 501 mLandform: Gravel plain with rocky patchesLand surface: Red (2.5YR4/8) clay loam; surface rock (gravel, rocks – BIF, dolerite, quartz; ironstone)

gravel) 50 – 70 %; litter < 2 %; fallen timber < 1 %; cryptogams (lichen) < 1 %; bare ground 5 – 20 % Condition & disturbances: Degraded - Poor; high pastoral impacts; hard pan exposed; sheet

erosion; rilling and back-cutting; pedestalling and hummocking

NVIS 6: U1^ Acacia aptaneura\Acacia\^shrub\4\bi; M1+^ Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla\Senna\^shrub\3\r; G1^ Eremophila compacta, Ptilotus polystachyus, Solanum lasiophyllum, Monachather paradoxus, Eragrostis eriopoda\Eremophila\ ^shrub, tussock grass\2\r

Vegetation: Acacia aptaneura isolated tall shrubs over Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla sparse shrubland over Eremophila compacta, Ptilotus polystachyus, Solanum lasiophyllum low sparse shrubland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
3–5	< 2	S	Acacia aptaneura
1 – 2	2-4	S	Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii, Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla
< 0.7	5–10	S, G	Eremophila compacta, Ptilotus polystachyus, Solanum
			lasiophyllum, Monachather paradoxus, Eragrostis eriopoda, E.
			falcata, Ptilotus obovatus

Other species: Acacia incurvaneura, Amphipogon caricinus var. caricinus, Aristida contorta, Eremophila exilifolia, Maireana triptera, Ptilotus rotundifolius, Stenopetalum filifolium, Sclerolaena diacantha

Acacia aptaneura

Acacia incurvaneura

Acacia ramulosa var. linophylla

Amphipogon caricinus var. caricinus

Aristida contorta

Eragrostis eriopoda

Eragrostis falcata

Eremophila compacta

Eremophila exilifolia

Maireana triptera Monachather paradoxus

Ptilotus obovatus

Ptilotus polystachyus

Ptilotus rotundifolius

Sclerolaena diacantha

Senna artemisioides subsp. helmsii

- Solanum lasiophyllum
- Stenopetalum filifolium


V70 22/10/2023 7.59	am Woodland patch	Haul Road western end				
GPS: 569661 E/ 7018198 N	Landform: Plain, small gr	ove of vegetation				
Elevation: 493 m	Gentle slope; aspect sou	th				
Land surface: Red fine sandy clay loam; surface rock < 1 %; litter > 80 % ^ 3 – 4 cm; fallen timber 1 –						

2 %

Condition & disturbances: Very good; pastoral impacts, rubbish; vegetation mostly intact

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia pruinocarpa\Acacia\^tree\7\i; M1^ Acacia aptaneura, Pittosporum angustifolium, Psydrax latifolia\Acacia\^tree, shrub\6\c; M2^ Sida ectogama, Pittosporum angustifolium, Eremophila georgei, Acacia tetragonophylla, Psydrax suaveolens \Sida\^shrub\3\c; G1^ Sida ectogama, Psydrax latifolia, Acacia aptaneura, Pittosporum angustifolium, Eremophila georgei \Sida\^shrub

Vegetation: Acacia pruinocarpa woodland over Acacia aptaneura, Pittosporum angustifolium, Psydrax latifolia low woodland over Sida ectogama, Pittosporum angustifolium, Eremophila georgei shrubland over Sida ectogama, Psydrax latifolia, Acacia aptaneura low open shrubland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
12	25 – 30	Т	Acacia pruinocarpa
4-6	30 – 40	T, S	Acacia aptaneura, Pittosporum angustifolium, Psydrax latifolia
1 – 2	30 – 40	S	Sida ectogama, Pittosporum angustifolium, Eremophila georgei,
			Acacia tetragonophylla, Psydrax suaveolens
0.3 – 1	10 – 15	S, C	Sida ectogama, Psydrax latifolia, Acacia aptaneura, Pittosporum
			angustifolium, Eremophila georgei, Ptilotus obovatus, Enchylaena
			tomentosa, Teucrium teucriiflorum

Other species: Maireana triptera, M. georgei, Ptilotus polystachyus, Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia, S. artemisioides subsp. artemisioides, Abutilon sp., Sclerolaena eurotioides, Leichhardtia australis, Ptilotus exaltatus

Abutilon sp.

Acacia aptaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia tetragonophylla Enchylaena tomentosa Eremophila georgei Leichhardtia australis Maireana georgei Maireana triptera Pittosporum angustifolium Psydrax latifolia Psydrax suaveolens Ptilotus exaltatus Ptilotus obovatus Ptilotus polystachyus Sclerolaena eurotioides Senna artemisioides subsp. artemisioides Senna artemisioides subsp. filifolia Sida ectogama Teucrium teucriiflorum



V 71 22/10/2023 7	.33 am Haul	Road western end
-------------------	-------------	------------------

Landform: Plain; small patch of denser vegetation

Land surface: Yellowish red (5YR5/6) fine sandy clay loam; surface rock (BIF, ironstone gravel, siltstone, quartz) 0.5 – 6 cm, 10 – 20 % with some denser patches

Condition & disturbances: Good; less disturbances than surrounding plain

NVIS 6: U1+^ Acacia aptaneura, Psydrax suaveolens, P. latifolia, Acacia tetragonophylla\Acacia \^tree, shrub\6\c; M1^ Eremophila georgei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii, Sida ectogama, Leichhardtia australis, Acacia aptaneura\Eremophila\^shrub, climber\3\c; M2^ Ptilotus obovatus, Monachather paradoxus, Psydrax rigidula, Eremophila georgei, Psydrax suaveolens\Ptilotus\^shrub, tussock grass\2\i; G1^ Dried off forbs, Solanum lasiophyllum, Psydrax latifolia, Sclerolaena sp., Sida ectogama\Forbs\^forb, shrub\1\i

Vegetation: Acacia aptaneura, Psydrax suaveolens, P. latifolia tall shrubland over Eremophila georgei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii, Sida ectogama shrubland over Ptilotus obovatus, Monachather paradoxus, Psydrax rigidula low open shrubland over Dried off forbs, Solanum lasiophyllum, Psydrax latifolia low open forbland

Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species
	cover %		
4–6	30 – 40	T, S	Acacia aptaneura, Psydrax suaveolens, P. latifolia, Acacia
			tetragonophylla
1 – 2.5	50 – 60	S, L	Eremophila georgei, E. forrestii subsp. forrestii, Sida ectogama,
			Leichhardtia australis, Acacia aptaneura, P. latifolia, Solanum
			lasiophyllum, Acacia tetragonophylla
0.2 – 1	10 – 30	S, G	Ptilotus obovatus, Monachather paradoxus, Psydrax rigidula,
			Eremophila georgei, Psydrax suaveolens
< 0.2	10–20	F, S	Dried off forbs, Solanum lasiophyllum, Psydrax latifolia, Sclerolaena
			sp., Sida ectogama

Other species: Acacia pruinocarpa low tree stand with A. caesaneura; Eremophila compacta, Senna artemisioides subsp. xsturtii, Eremophila eriocalyx, E. foliosissima, Teucrium teucriiflorum

Acacia aptaneura Acacia caesaneura Acacia pruinocarpa Acacia tetragonophylla Eremophila eriocalyx Eremophila foliosissima Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii Eremophila georgei Leichhardtia australis

GPS: 569290 E/ 7017878 N

Elevation: 494 m

Monachather paradoxus

Psydrax latifolia Psydrax rigidula

Psydrax suaveolens

Ptilotus obovatus

Sclerolaena sp.

Senna artemisioides subsp. xsturtii



Sida ectogama Solanum lasiophyllum Teucrium teucriiflorum

		V72 22	2/10/23 7.00 am	Haul Road western end				
GPS: 56894	0 E/ 70173	90 N	Landform: Sto	ny plain; almost level; aspect south				
Elevation: 4	88 m							
Land surfac	e: Yellowis	h red (5ነ	(R5/6) fine sandy cla	ay loam; surface rock (BIF, ironstone gravel,				
siltstone, qu	ıartz) 0.5 –	6 cm, 10	) – 50 %; litter < 5 %;	bare ground 40 – 50 %				
Condition &	disturband	ces: Deg	raded; tracks, roads	s, pastoral and mining impacts; erosion active –				
sheet, pede	stalling and	d humm	ocking					
NVIS 6: U1 ^	Acacia ap	taneura	Acacia\^tree\6\bi; N	11^ Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri, Acacia				
pruinocarpa	, A. tetrago	onophyll	a\Eremophila\^shru	ıb\3\bi; G1+^ Eremophila punicea, E. fraseri				
subsp. frase	eri, Ptilotus	schwar	tzii, P. obovatus, Am	phipogon caricinus\Eremophila\^shrub, tussock				
grass, forb\1	\r							
Vegetation:	Acacia apt	aneura l	ow isolated trees ov	rer Eremophila fraseri subsp. fraseri isolated				
shrubs over	Eremophil	a punice	ea, E. fraseri subsp. :	fraseri, Ptilotus schwartzii low sparse shrubland				
Height (m)	Crown	Habit	Species					
	cover %							
> 2	< 2	Т	Acacia aptaneura					
0.9–1.5	< 2	S	Eremophila fraseri	subsp. fraseri, Acacia pruinocarpa, A.				
-			tetragonophylla					
< 0.6	2–10	S, G,	Eremophila compa	acta, E. fraseri subsp. fraseri, Ptilotus schwartzii,				
		F	P. obovatus, Amph	ipogon caricinus var. caricinus, Monachather				
			paradoxus, Sclerol	aena eurotioides, S. fusiformis, Stenopetalum				
	filifolium							
Other specie	es: Acacia	craspeo	locarpa, A. fuscaneu	ıra, Eremophila forrestii subsp. forrestii, E.				
georgei, Mai	reana thes	ioides, l	M. georgei, M. carno	sa, Psydrax suaeveolens				
Acacia apta	neura							
Acacia cras	oedocarpa 							
Acacia fusca	aneura							
Acacia pruir	iocarpa cononbullu			and the second s				
Acacia lelia	gonopnyuz	i War oar	ioinuo					
Eremonhila	compacta	vai. Cai	iciiius					
Eremonhila	forrestii su	hen for	rostii	A The second				
Fremonhila	fraseri sub	sn frase	sri					
Fremonhila	reorgei	00. 11000						
Maireana ca	ornosa			The second s				
Maireana ge	orgei							
Maireana th	esioides							
Monachathe	er paradoxi	us						
Psydrax sua	eveolens							
Ptilotus obo	vatus							
Ptilotus sch	wartzii							
Sclerolaena	eurotioide	s						
Sclerolaena	fusiformis							
Stenopetalu	ım filifoliun	n						



30<sup>th</sup> August 2024 Dr Tim Moulds Director Invertebrate Solutions Pty Ltd PO Box 14 Victoria Park, WA 6979 Reference: 2024ISJ10-F01-20240830

### Review of Cethegus species limits and SRE status in Western Australia.

Attention Goran Seat General Manager Projects Fenix Resources Ltd

#### Dear Goran

In response to your request on behalf of Fenix Resources Ltd (Fenix) on 26<sup>th</sup> July 2024 to provide an assessment of the mygalomorph spider *Cethegus fugax* with regard to its status as a potential short range endemic (SRE) invertebrate in Western Australia, Invertebrate Solutions Pty Ltd (Invertebrate Solutions) makes the following response in the form of a technical memorandum.

## Technical Memorandum Scope

Invertebrate Solutions has been requested by Fenix to review the mygalomorph spider *Cethegus fugax* and specifically address the following:

- Assess the species limits for *C. fugax* based upon morphological and genetic data as contained in published and unpublished literature.
- Provide an assessment for the distribution of *C. fugax* in the Mid West region of Western Australia and determine if it is considered to be an SRE.
- Provide recommendations and any suggested requirements for further work to comply with relevant legislation.
- Provide a written report containing the above items.



## Arachnida: Mygalomoprhae: Euagridae: Cethegus

Mygalomorph spiders of the genus *Cethegus* are restricted to Australia, and have recently been transferred from the family Dipluridae to Euagridae, which was elevated from a subfamily based upon a multigene genetic analysis (Opatova et al. 2020). The genus currently contains 12 recognised species that occur from rainforest on Cape York in Queensland, through open forest to the west of the Great Dividing Range in Queensland and NSW and in desert areas of South Australia, to semi-arid habitats in inland southern Western Australia (Raven 1984).

## Cethegus fugax

*Cethegus fugax* is one of two species of *Cethegus* that occurs in Western Australia and is found in subcoastal areas along the Nullarbor Plain, in the south-western corner, and near the west coast about as far north as Geraldton, W.A. (Main 1960, Figure 1). The species is not known to occur in the mesic forests of the South West. Although Main (1960) records the species as occurring as far east as South Australia, Raven (1984) remains doubtful of these records being *C. fugax* without further detailed examination to determine their conspecificity.



Figure 1. The distribution of *Cethegus fugax* in Western Australia from ALA.org.au and the approximate position of Weld Range.



Invertebrate surveys in the Mid West as part of environmental assessments for mining projects have recorded *C. fugax* much further north than Geraldton and they are known to occur throughout the Mid West, with populations known from Weld Range and Robinson Range (Ecologia 2009a) and Jack Hills (GHD 2011).

The genetic diversity of *Cethegus fugax* records were examined by Ecologia (2009b), in order to provide additional information to compliment the morphological characters that had previously been investigated by Main (1960) and Raven (1985). Ecologia (2009b) sought to determine, using a multigene analysis of *Cethegus fugax* represented a species complex or a single widespread species. The study used three different genes, 16S, CO1 and ITS1. Thirty-eight individuals from the Midwest were sequenced (15 Weld Range, 10 Jack Hills, 12 Robinson Range, 1 Morawa), along with four specimens from the type locality at Mt Helena, in the Perth Hills and 3 individuals of *C. ischnotheloides* from the Great Victorian Desert, which is the closest geographical species to *C. fugax* and was used for comparison of results and to determine intra and interspecific variation.



0.1

Figure 2 Maximum Likelihood phylogenetic tree based on ITS1 (after Ecologia 2009b Figure 3-2). The scale bar represents 0.1 substitutions per site. JF – Jarrah Forrest; GVD – Great Victoria Desert; MUR – Murchison / Mid West.



The subsequent analysis of the genetic data showed distinctive and well supported clades of *C. ischnotheloides, C. fugax* from the Jarrah forest (type locality) and *C. fugax* from the Midwest (Ecologia 2009b, Figure 2). This high level grouping was evident in both the Maximum Likelihood and Bayesian Inference analysis techniques on multiple different genes, that provides a high degree of confidence in the results. This data would therefore support the hypothesis that the individuals of *C. fugax* from the Midwest are a different, undescribed species of *Cethegus*, and do not represent *C. fugax*.

The populations of Mid West C. 'fugax' show some genetic structuring by geographical location (Figure 2, Figure 3), however, the assertion from Ecologia (2009b) that these represents distinct subspecies is not supported by the data, as the analysis shows weak support for most of the clades and no morphological differences were evident. It is to be expected that some genetic structuring over the wide geographical distances between population in the Mid West would be present, and a similar pattern of genetic structuring was found with the widespread *Idiosoma clypeatum* (Rix et al. 2018) occurring throughout the midwest (including Weld Range and Jack Hills) when the genus was revised. *Idiosoma clypeatum* shows similar clumped distributions around Weld Range and Jack Hills with similar levels of genetic structuring to that seen in C. 'fugax – Mid west' and was ultimately described as a single widespread species due to the similar morphological characters of the populations and the genetic distances being below interspecific variation, as is shown in the Ecologia (2009b) data.

The data, both genetic and morphologic obtained by Ecologia (2009b) support the existence of an undescribed species of *Cethegus* in the Mid West, however the species is widespread, and based upon current records is not considered to be an SRE according to the definition of Harvey 2002).



Figure 3 Maximum Likelihood phylogenetic tree based on 16S (after Ecologia 2009b Figure 3-3). The scale bar represents 0.1 substitutions per site. JF – Jarrah Forrest; GVD – Great Victoria Desert; MUR – Murchison / Mid West. Support for individual structuring of Murchison clades is weak (<95) and does not support species level separation.



## **Conclusions and Recommendations**

The mygalomorph spider *C. fugax* occurs in southern and coastal Western Australia. The specimens from the Mid West that have been recorded at Weld Range, Jack Hills and Robinson Range have nominally been identified previously as C. fugax. The genetic and morphological study undertaken by Ecologia (2009b) shows the individuals from the Mid-West region are an undescribed species of Cethegus, but differ genetically from *C. fugax* and the other closest geographical representative of the genus *C. ischnotheloides* enough to warrant being classified as a distinct species in their ow right. The species *C.* "midwest" does exhibit some internal genetic structuring related to its geographical distribution, however, these differences are not large enough to justify splitting the taxa into multiple species. *Cethegus* 'midwest' is therefore a widespread species and is not considered to be a SRE according to the definition of Harvey (2002).

As *Cethegus* 'midwest' is not considered a SRE, nor a conservation significant species, no further survey work or management actions are deemed necessary.

Sincerely

1 1.000

Dr Tim Moulds Director and Principal Ecologist *Invertebrate Solutions Pty Ltd* 0429792834 <u>tim@invertebratesolutions.com</u>



## **Limitations and Exclusions**

This study was limited to the extent of information made available to Invertebrate Solutions at the time of undertaking the work. Information not made available to this study, or which subsequently becomes available may alter the conclusions made herein.

The opinions, conclusions and any recommendations in this report are based on information available, including published species distribution records and reviewed at the date of preparation of the report. Invertebrate Solutions has no responsibility or obligation to update this report to account for events or changes occurring subsequent to the date that the report was prepared. The opinions, conclusions and any recommendations in this report are based on assumptions made by Invertebrate Solutions described in this report (this section and throughout this report). Invertebrate Solutions disclaims liability arising from any of the assumptions being incorrect.



## References

Atlas of Living Australia (2024). *Cethegus fugax*. Accessed 27th August 2024. <u>https://spatial.ala.org.au/?q=lsid:https:%2F%2Fbiodiversity.org.au%2Fafd%2Ftaxa%2F49a7d9e8-c444-</u> 4788-ac38-15b9393018e9&qualityProfile=ALA

- Ecologia (2009a). Weld Range Iron Ore Project. Short Range Endemic Assessment. Unpublished report to Sinosteel Midwest Corporation, 53p.
- Ecologia (2009b). Genetic study of the curtain-web spider *Cethegus* sp. From the *C. fugas* (sic) Complex. Unpublished report to Sinosteel Midwest Corporation, 40p.
- GHD. (2012). Jack Hills Expansion Project. Short-range endemic invertebrate survey Valley and lower slope. Unpublished report to Crosslands Resources Ltd.
- Harvey, M.S. (2002). Short-range endemism in the Australian fauna: some examples from non-marine environments. Invertebrate Systematics. 16: 555–570.
- Main, B.Y. (1960). The genus *Cethegus* Thorell (Mygalomorphae: Macrothelinae). Journal of the Royal Society of Western Australia, V43(1):30-34.
- Opatova, V., Hamilton, C.A., Hedin, M., Montes De Oca, L., Kral, J. and Bond, J.E. (2020). Phylogenetic Systematics and Evolution of the Spider Infraorder Mygalomorphae Using Genomic Scale Data. Systematic Biology, 69(4):671-707. DOI:10.1093/sysbio/syz064
- Raven, R. (1984). Systematics of the Australin Curtain-web Spiders (Ischnothelinae: Dipluridae: Chelicerata). Australian Journal of Zoology, Supplementary Series no.93:1-102.
- Rix, M.G., Huey J.A., Cooper S.J.B., Austin A.D., Harvey M.S. (2018). Conservation systematics of the shieldbacked trapdoor spiders of the nigrum-group (Mygalomorphae, Idiopidae, *Idiosoma*): integrative taxonomy reveals a diverse and threatened fauna from south-western Australia. ZooKeys 756: 1–121. https://doi.org/10.3897/zookeys.756.24397



# www.invertebratesolutions.com

# Appendix 2

Iron Ridge Stygofauna Assessment - ecologia Environment 2020



2 April 2020

### Jeremy Shepherdson

c/o Fenix Resources

jeremy@ecotecwa.com.au

#### **RE: IRON RIDGE STYGOFAUNA ASSESSMENT**

Dear Jeremy,

ecologia Environment (ecologia) was engaged by Fenix Resources Ltd. (Fenix) to conduct a stygofauna survey to support environmental approvals, including a Mining Proposal, for the proposed Iron Ridge Project over tenement M20/118 (the 'study area'). The study area is located approximately 55 km northwest of Cue in the Murchison region (Figure 1). Where new bores are installed within an aquifer that has not yet been surveyed for stygofauna, baseline stygofauna sampling should be undertaken to determine the stygofauna assemblage within the aquifer, including for the presence of any stygofauna species of conservation significance.

*ecologia* conducted a stygofauna survey over two phases (six months apart) conforming to the requirements of a pilot study outlined in EPA Factor Guideline: *Subterranean Fauna* and EPA Technical Guidance: *Sampling Methods for Subterranean fauna*. The initial phase (stygofauna fauna trap establishment) was conducted in conjunction with the Level 1 fauna and fauna habitat assessment (2-4 September 2019) and the second (trap retrieval) on March 9<sup>th</sup>, 2020. Three bores were sampled for subterranean fauna, including two production bores and one monitoring bore. Bore hole drilling and water quality data is provided in Table 1.

ecologia	Bore	Coord (GDA94,	dinates , Zone 50)	Drilled Depth	Reamed Depth	Cased Depth	Slotted Interval	Static water	Electrical	Temperature	рН	Salinty (mg/L
Bore ID	iu	Easting	Northing	(m)	(m)	(m)	(m bgl)	level	conductivity	( C)		TDS)
WB01	IRPB01	567584	7019374	174	174	170	<mark>68</mark> -170	44.78	924	24.8	8.06	585
WB02	IRPB02	567775	7019516	120	122	122	14-122	65.52	967	24.9	6.81	<mark>544</mark>
WB03	IRMB- C	567802	7019436	115	115	115	54-114	55.33	1047	25.2	7.7	ND

#### Table 1: Stygofauna sample bore locations and drilling information.

#### **Desktop Assessment**

A number of bores have previously been sampled for stygofauna in the Weld Range and surrounding area. In 2009 *ecologia* (2009) conducted a baseline stygofauna survey at the Weld Range and surrounding pastoral land, which included sampling 84 drill holes (26 at Beebyn, 40 at Madoonga and 18 at the surrounding pastoral land outside the area of impact), laboratory identifications and reporting, interpretation of the potential impacts and an associated risk assessment of the various project components on stygofauna communities or species. The Beebyn and Madoonga survey areas are within close proximity to the Iron Ridge



study area and the surrounding pastoral bores provide good contextual information on a local and subregional scale.

No stygobitic species/communities were identified during the previous stygofauna surveys within the Beebyn impact area or in the regional pastoral bores, although stygophylic representatives of two crustacean orders (Ostracoda and Copepoda) and one annelid sub-class were recorded from nine pastoral wells (ecologia 2009).

One stygobitic copepod from the order Calanoida found in a troglofauna trap at Madoonga suggests that stygofauna may be present in the wider area, though this was not able to be confirmed by stygofauna sampling in nearby bores. The stygophilic copepod found in regional bores, *Mesocyclops brooksi,* is known from both surface waters and ground waters, and it is widespread in Western Australia. The ostracods, *Cypridopsis vidua* and *Sarscypridopsis oschracea* are often found in wells in arid Western Australia but are typically surface species inhabiting open freshwater bodies in southern Western Australia.

The results of this survey suggest that the groundwater habitat in and around the Beebyn impact area is depauperate of true stygofauna and therefore no risk assessment or management recommendations were conducted (ecologia 2009).

#### Methodology

#### Stygofauna haul nets

Sampling for stygofauna at Iron Ridge was conducted using haul nets of appropriate diameter (depending on water bore diameter). The net is lowered slowly into the bore using handle and rope and reel to ensure net does not fall freely to the bottom of bore. A minimum of three hauls are performed with a 150  $\mu$ m mesh net and further three hauls are performed with a 50  $\mu$ m mesh net. All samples are washed in 50 $\mu$ m sieve and preserved in a vial with 100% ethanol. All vials are labelled with date, bore name and replicate number. Samples are kept in cool, dark place and transported back to Perth for sorting and identification. Specimens were sent to Bennelongia Environmental stygofauna taxonomic specialists for identification.

#### Standing water level

Standing water level dipper is used to determine the standing water level in each water bore/ drill hole. This provides information on the local aquifers for stygofauna.

#### Water chemistry

Water parameters such as salinity and/or conductivity, pH, turbidity, temperature, dissolved oxygen and redox potential are collected *in situ* using portable water quality meter to assess stygobiotic habitat related to water quality.

#### Results

No stygobitic species were collected from the two production bores sampled (WB01 and WB02) at Iron ridge during either phase of the survey. One very juvenile stygobitic Crustacea from the Class Ostracoda was recorded at WB03 (Bore ID: IRMB-C) during phase one.



Non-stygofaunal bycatch from the order Collembola (Springtails) were recorded from both WB01 and WB02 during phase one. WB01 also recorded one non-stygofaunal bycatch from the order Acarina (mites). WB02 recorded one mite from the Order Trombidiformes during the March 2020 trap retrieval.

Sample analysis results are provided in Table 2.



### Table 2: Sample analysis results (Bennelongia)

Project	Orebody	Field Bore Code	Cleint Bore ID	Easting	Northing	Visit Date	Sample Type	Sample Notes	Kingdom	Phylum	Subphylum	Class	Subclass	Order_	Genus	Species	Lowest ID
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB02_S1	IRPB02	567775	7019516	03-Sep-19	Net	50um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB02_S1	IRPB02	567775	7019516	03-Sep-19	Net	150um	Animalia	Arthropoda	Hexapoda	Entognatha		Collembola		sp.	Collembola sp.
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB02_S2	IRPB02	567775	7019516	05-Sep-19	Net	50um	Animalia	Arthropoda	Hexapoda	Entognatha		Collembola		sp.	Collembola sp.
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB02_S2	IRPB02	567775	7019516	05-Sep-19	Net	150um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB01_S1	IRPB01	567584	7019374	03-Sep-19	Net	150um	Animalia	Arthropoda	Hexapoda	Entognatha		Collembola		sp.	Collembola sp.
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB01_S1	IRPB01	567584	7019374	03-Sep-19	Net	50um	Animalia	Arthropoda	Hexapoda	Entognatha		Collembola		sp.	Collembola sp.
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB01_S1	IRPB01	567584	7019374	03-Sep-19	Net	50um	Animalia	Arthropoda	Chelicerata	Arachnida	Acari	Acarina		sp.	Acarina sp.
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB01_S2	IRPB01	567584	7019374	05-Sep-19	Net	50um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB01_S2	IRPB01	567584	7019374	05-Sep-19	Net	150um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB03_S1	IRMB-C	567802	7019436	03-Sep-19	Net	50um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB03_S1	IRMB-C	567802	7019436	03-Sep-19	Net	150um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB03_S2	IRMB-C	567802	7019436	05-Sep-19	Net	50um	Animalia	Arthropoda	Crustacea	Ostracoda				sp. unident.	Ostracoda sp. unident.
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB03_S2	IRMB-C	567802	7019436	05-Sep-19	Net	150um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB01_S1	IRPB01	567584	7019374	9/03/2020	Net	150 um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB01_S1	IRPB01	567584	7019374	9/03/2020	Net	50um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB01_S2	IRPB01	567584	7019374	9/03/2020	Net	150 um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB01_S2	IRPB01	567584	7019374	9/03/2020	Net	50um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB02_S1	IRPB02	567775	7019516	9/03/2020	Net	150um	Animalia	Arthropoda	Chelicerata	Arachnida	Acari	Trombidiform es		sp.	Trombidiformes sp.
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB02_S1	IRPB02	567775	7019516	9/03/2020	Net	50um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB02_S2	IRPB02	567775	7019516	9/03/2020	Net	150um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB02_S2	IRPB02	567775	7019516	9/03/2020	Net	50um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB03_S1	IRMB-C	567802	7019436	9/03/2020	Net	150um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB03_S1	IRMB-C	567802	7019436	9/03/2020	Net	50um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB03_S2	IRMB-C	567802	7019436	9/03/2020	Net	150um									No Invertebrates
Iron Ridge	Weld Range	WB03_S2	IRMB-C	567802	7019436	9/03/2020	Net	50um									No Invertebrates

#### 463 SCARBOROUGH BEACH ROAD, OSBORNE PARK, WA 6004 PH: +61 (08) 6168 7200 ACN 088 821 425 • ABN 63 088 821 425 www.ecologia.com.au



#### Conclusions

The results of this survey, combined with the results of previously stygofauna surveys within and surrounding the Iron Ridge project area and the Weld Range, indicate that the groundwater habitat within the study area is depauperate in stygofauna diversity.

One juvenile ostracod was collected on one occasion from the monitoring bore (WB03). This specimen was unidentifiable to species level (due to absence of mature morphological features); however, it is potentially from the family Cyprididae which is one of the most diverse group of freshwater ostracods (Atlas of Living Australia 2020).

It is unlikely that impacts from the proposal at Iron Ridge will have any significant impacts on local stygofauna communities.

Best Regards,

fro

Shaun Grein

Managing Director/Principal Scientist <u>shaun.grein@ecologia.com.au</u> Tel: +61 8 6168 7208

Figures

#### References

Atlas of Living Australia. 2020. Atlas of Living Australia. Database Search. <u>https://bie.ala.org.au/species/urn:lsid:biodiversity.org.au:afd.taxon:c43e0e37-64ec-4a54-aaa6-</u> 704c4221f81f.

ecologia Environment. 2009. Weld Range Stygofauna Assessment, Unpublished Report for Sinosteel-Midwest Management.





# **Appendix 3**

Hydrogeology and Hydrology Assessment – Pentium 2024



# **FENIX RESOURCES W11 DEPOSIT**

## Hydrogeology and Hydrology Assessment

Rev 0 09/05/2024



## **Document Status**

Version	Purpose of document	Author	Reviewed by	Review Date
Rev A	Early draft for information	R Swift, J Hollander,R Wright, Ella Robson	R Swift, R Wright	24/04/24
Rev B	Draft for comment	R Swift, J Hollander, R Wright	R Swift, R Wight	02/05/24
Rev C	Updated bore locations, general layout	R Swift, J Hollander, R Wright	R Swift, R Wright	07/05/24
Rev 0	Final	R Swift, J Hollander, R Wright	R Swift, R Wright	09/05/24

## **Approval for Issue**

Name	Signature	Date
Rob Swift		09/05/2024

This report was prepared by Pentium Water and in direct response to a scope of services. This report is supplied for the sole and specific purpose for use by Pentium Water's client. The report does not account for any changes relating the subject matter of the report, or any legislative or regulatory changes that have occurred since the report was produced and that may affect the report. Pentium Water does not accept any responsibility or liability for loss whatsoever to any third party caused by, related to or arising out of any use or reliance on the report.

Prepared By	Prepared For
Pentium Water Pty Ltd	Fenix Resources
Level 1, 640 Murray Street	Level 33, Mia Yellagonga Tower 3,
West Perth, Western Australia 6005	1 Spring Street
	Perth, Western Australia, 6000
Phone: +61 (0) 8 6182 1790	Phone:
Email: rswift@pentiumwater.com.au	Email: goran@fenixresources.com.au
Author: Rob Swift	Contact: Goran Seat
Reviewer:	General Manager - Projects
Approved by: Rob Swift	
Version: Rev 0	
Date: 09 May 2024	



## **Table of Contents**

1.	Introduction	1
	1.1. Background	1
	1.2. Locality	1
	1.3. Land Use	1
	1.4. W11 Development	1
	1.5. Scope of Work	1
	1.6. Document structure	1
2.	Climate / rainfall	.4
	2.1. Climate	.4
	2.2. Local hydrology	. 4
3.	Geology	. 6
4.	Hydrogeology	.9
	4.1. Aquifers	. 9
	4.1.1. Overview	. 9
	4.1.2. W11 9	
	4.2. Groundwater recharge	. 9
	4.3. Groundwater throughtlow	.9
	4.4. Groundwater users	.9
	4.5. Groundwater dependent ecosystems	10
	4.6.1 Overview	. 11
	4.6.2. Previous hydraulic testing	.12
	4.6.3. Previous groundwater exploration	12
	4.6.3.1. W11	12
	4.6.3.2. Iron Ridge	12
5.	Pit progression and dewatering	17
	5.1. Pit progression	17
	5.2. Analytical model setup	17
	5.2.1. Radial flow into a circular excavation	17
	5.2.2. Volume of water within each bench	18
	5.3. Analytical model results	19
	5.4. Dewatering bores	21
_	5.5. Existing Groundwater Licence	21
6.	Water balance	22
7.	Pit closure	23
8.	Conclusions and recommendations	25
	8.1. Groundwater	25
	8.2. Further investigation recommendations	25
9.	References	28

## **Table of Appendices**

Appendix A: W11 Hydrology Assessment	29
--------------------------------------	----

## **List of Figures**

Figure 1 W11 location	2
Figure 2 W11 general layout	3
Figure 3 Meekatharra Airport summary rainfall and evaporation data (BOM station	007045)
	4



Figure 4 W11 site hydrology	5
Figure 5 Regional geology of the Weld Range iron ore mineralisation (based on SRK, 2010)	7
Figure 6 Faulting bisecting the BIF at W11 and along strike (from Jones, 1962)	8
Figure 7 Geology of W11 and surrounds (based on GSWA, 1983) – for stratigraphy codes refe Table 1.	er 8
Figure 8 Bores close to W11 - including results of a bore audit in 2008 (data from SRK, 2008 1	3) 0
Figure 9 Potential groundwater dependent ecosystems near W11 (based on BOM, 2024) <sup>•</sup>	11
Figure 10 Historical drilling locations near W11 (W11 shown in red; PFS drilling in yellow; BF drilling (2009) in orange)1	S 4
Figure 11 Analytical model geometry (left) and bench volume (right)	8
Figure 12 W11 stage curve 2	3
Figure 13 W11 - post closure water level recovery – ~5 L/s (i.e., as per late time dewatering 2	វ) 4
Figure 14 W11 post-closure salinity – increasing over time	4
Figure 15 Recommended W11 hydrogeological investigation bore locations	7

## List of Tables

Table 2 Summary of previous studies11Table 3 Packer testing results (based on SRK, 2010)12Table 4 Test production bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)15Table 5 Long term monitoring bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)15Table 6 Water quality samples near W11 (extracted from SRK, 2010)16Table 7 W11 bench progression (estimated)17Table 8 Approximate annual abstraction rates from W11 pit (L/s)19Table 9 Analytical model summary20Table 10 Annual water balance for operations near W11 pit22Table 11 Proposed hydrogeological investigation bore locations and objectives26	Table 1 Geology - W11 and surrounds (Based on GWSA, 1983)	6
Table 3 Packer testing results (based on SRK, 2010)12Table 4 Test production bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)15Table 5 Long term monitoring bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)15Table 6 Water quality samples near W11 (extracted from SRK, 2010)16Table 7 W11 bench progression (estimated)17Table 8 Approximate annual abstraction rates from W11 pit (L/s)19Table 9 Analytical model summary20Table 10 Annual water balance for operations near W11 pit22Table 11 Proposed hydrogeological investigation bore locations and objectives26	Table 2 Summary of previous studies	11
Table 4 Test production bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)15Table 5 Long term monitoring bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)15Table 6 Water quality samples near W11 (extracted from SRK, 2010)16Table 7 W11 bench progression (estimated)17Table 8 Approximate annual abstraction rates from W11 pit (L/s)19Table 9 Analytical model summary20Table 10 Annual water balance for operations near W11 pit22Table 11 Proposed hydrogeological investigation bore locations and objectives26	Table 3 Packer testing results (based on SRK, 2010)	12
Table 5 Long term monitoring bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)	Table 4 Test production bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)	15
Table 6 Water quality samples near W11 (extracted from SRK, 2010)	Table 5 Long term monitoring bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)	15
Table 7 W11 bench progression (estimated)	Table 6 Water quality samples near W11 (extracted from SRK, 2010)	16
Table 8 Approximate annual abstraction rates from W11 pit (L/s)19Table 9 Analytical model summary20Table 10 Annual water balance for operations near W11 pit22Table 11 Proposed hydrogeological investigation bore locations and objectives26	Table 7 W11 bench progression (estimated)	17
Table 9 Analytical model summary	Table 8 Approximate annual abstraction rates from W11 pit (L/s)	19
Table 10 Annual water balance for operations near W11 pit22Table 11 Proposed hydrogeological investigation bore locations and objectives	Table 9 Analytical model summary	20
Table 11 Proposed hydrogeological investigation bore locations and objectives	Table 10 Annual water balance for operations near W11 pit	22
	Table 11 Proposed hydrogeological investigation bore locations and objectives	26

## **List of Charts**

No table of figures entries found.



# **1. Introduction**

### 1.1. Background

Fenix have secured the exclusive right to mine and export up to 10 million dry metric tonnes of iron ore from the high-grade Beebyn-W11 iron ore deposit in the Weld Range. Beebyn-W11 is located approximately 20 km east of existing mining operations at Iron Ridge. Currently Fenix are looking to develop the W11 pit.

Resources WA are assisting Fenix with the development of the mine plan (MP) and closure mine plan (CMP) for the deposit. This document provides an assessment of the hydrogeology and hydrology associated with the W11 pit based on historical reports and data available for the site.

### 1.2. Locality

W11 pit is situated approximately 70 km west-southwest of Meekatharra and 50 km northnorthwest of Cue in the Shire of Meekatharra (Figure 1).

### 1.3. Land Use

The major land use in the area is sheep and cattle grazing on pastoral leases.

### **1.4. W11 Development**

The general layout of the area close to the W11 pit is shown in Figure 2. The pit is planned to progress to a depth of approximately 135 mbgl (~395 mAHD).

### **1.5.** Scope of work

Pentium Water was commissioned by Resources WA to undertake hydrogeological and hydrological assessments of the proposed W11 pit development to inform on the mine plan (MP) and closure mine plan (CMP). This included:

- Hydrogeology
  - Summarise test work / data sources relevant to the 2024 MP and MCP for W11
  - Recommendations and commentary regarding:
    - Dewatering requirements
    - Monitoring and production bore location
    - Pit lake formation post-mining
- Hydrology
  - Assessment of the impacts on site hydrology with regards the proposed mine pit, waste dump layout, including recommendations regarding appropriate management strategies.
  - Flood risk assessment for the mine
  - Surface water management assessment of the proposed miscellaneous licence path from Beeby to Iron Ridge for an access road.

### **1.6. Document structure**

This report captures the hydrogeological and hydrological aspects of the study in the following broad structure:

- Hydrogeology main body of the report
- Hydrology –Appendix A (Hydrology)





Figure 1 W11 location





Figure 2 W11 general layout



# 2. Climate / rainfall

### 2.1. Climate

The region is semi-arid, characterised by low rainfall and high evaporation. Rainfall tends to be irregular and is greatly exceeded by evaporation. Winters are cool to mild; summers are hot and temperatures regularly exceed 40 °C. Monthly average rainfall and evaporation data from the Bureau of Meteorology's weather station at Meekatharra Airport (site number 007045) is presented in Figure 3.





## 2.2. Local hydrology

W11 is situated to the east of an unnamed tributary of Jungar Creek, which drains towards the south-southeast. W11 lies at the crest close to the eastern end of the Weld Range, which rise locally to an elevation of 551 mAHD approximately 50 m above the surrounding gently sloping terrain of a broad alluvial valley.





Figure 4 W11 site hydrology



## 3. Geology

W11 is situated on the northern extent of the Yilgarn Craton within the Meekatharra – Mount Magnet greenstone belt. Basement rock underlays extensive laterite which has in places been eroded along current and historical drainage lines. In such areas, the basal rock has been overlain by colluvial and alluvial deposits of sand and clay of up to 20 m thick (Water and Rivers Commission, 2001).

W11 is one of several identified lenses of iron ore mineralisation identified in the Weld Range (Figure 5). The Weld Range comprises a series of steeply dipping jaspilite interlayered with dolerite (Jones, 1962). On a regional scale, the Weld Range is an east-northeasterly striking greenstone belt, which forms part of the Archaean supra-crustal sequences of the Murchison Domain in the Yilgarn Craton which are intruded by granitic plutons and separated by extensive areas of massive to gneissic granite. Local geology is summarised in Table 1.

The Weld Range is segmented by a well-developed fault system, which is described by Jones (1962) as having 'strongly affected the iron ore bodies'. Essentially, the BIF is offset, by upto 100 m, along its strike, leading to BIF abutting the surrounding dolerite in places.

Two main deposit areas have been named: Madoonga to the west and Beebyn to the east (Figure 7).

The Beebyn Deposit contains several steeply south-easterly dipping banded iron formations (BIFs) interlayered with dolerite.

Unit	Geology code	Description	
Alluvium	Qa	Alluvium, unconsolidated sand, silt and gravel in drainage lines and adjacent floodplains.	
Eolian sand	Czs	Eolian sand overlying laterite (Czl)	
Jaspillite, Banded iron formation	Aij	Jaspilite, banded iron formation; red, black and white banded	
Banded Iron Formation	Aiw	Banded iron formation, black and white banded	
Dolerite	Add	Dolerite, medium grained, intruded between beds of Banded Iron Formation.	
Granite	Agb	Biotite granite	
Granodiorite	Agln	Biotite adamellite and granodiorite	

#### Table 1 Geology - W11 and surrounds (Based on GWSA, 1983)

The mineralised zones are offset by up to 100 m by sub-vertical north-west striking faults.





Figure 5 Regional geology of the Weld Range iron ore mineralisation (based on SRK, 2010)





Figure 6 Faulting bisecting the BIF at W11 and along strike (from Jones, 1962)



Figure 7 Geology of W11 and surrounds (based on GSWA, 1983) – for stratigraphy codes refer Table 1.



## 4. Hydrogeology

### 4.1. Aquifers

### 4.1.1. Overview

The Weld Range is stated within the East Murchison Groundwater Management unit. Groundwater typically is found at depths of between 5 to 50 mbgl beneath the alluvial plain surrounding the Weld Range. Groundwater is also encountered in bedrock material that forms the Weld Range. Close to W11 groundwater occurs at ~490 mRL (B\_WB\_02, April 2024)

Recharge to the system is anticipated to be limited, occurring from rainfall infiltration mainly along ephemeral creeks.

#### 4.1.2. W11

At W11 mineralised Banded Iron Formation forms the most prospective aquifer and is surrounded by low permeability dolerite and saprock. Furthermore, northwesterly faults offset the BIF such that along strike it may form partially to completely isolated compartments.

Historically there has been limited drilling within the faulted compartment in which W11 sits as shown on Figure X. B\_WB2\_01 has been subject to a 72-hour constant rate test, during which time it was able to sustain a yield of 0.99 L/s. B\_WB2\_03 was unable to sustain a significant yield and was installed as a monitoring bore. Noting the potentially compartmentalised nature of the orebodies it is considered that connectivity between orebodies may be limited.

Packer test data indicates generally low permeability units are encountered in the area, again suggesting that regional connectivity may be limited and that long term yields are likely to be low in bores installed into basement rock.

### 4.2. Groundwater recharge

Recharge to the system is anticipated to be limited, occurring from rainfall infiltration mainly along ephemeral creeks and direct recharge to outcrop.

### 4.3. Groundwater throughflow

In the W11 area, groundwater throughflow is anticipated to be limited and preferentially occur along strike of the mineralised BIF. Northwesterly striking faults have offset the BIF locally, displacing it against low permeability dolerite – it is anticipated that this would reduce connectivity between the faulted units, limiting throughflow.

### 4.4. Groundwater users

Locally, groundwater is targeted by shallow wells or water supply bores for domestic and / or stock watering purposes. Existing bores are typically drilled along existing creek lines, and are anticipated to be targeting the shallow alluvial aquifer. The closest bore is Limestone Bore, approximately 1.6 km to the north-northeast of W11.

SRK undertook a bore audit during 2008, the nearby results for which are summarised in Figure 8. The regional groundwater gradient is from northwest to southeast, broadly consistent with contemporary hydrology. Groundwater elevation close to W11 has been measured at approximately 490 mAHD, consistent with regional groundwater.





Figure 8 Bores close to W11 - including results of a bore audit in 2008 (data from SRK, 2008)

### 4.5. Groundwater dependent ecosystems

Potential groundwater dependent ecosystems have been identified and mapped on a national scale by the Bureau of Meteorology (Doody, et. al, 2017). BOM's GDE database indicates that potential terrestrial GDEs have been identified on the alluvial flood plains and surrounding hard pans of the low-lying terrain near W11 (Figure 9).

- Low potential GDE (blue in Figure 9)
  - identified along the alluvial flood plain /creek line associated with minor ephemeral creeks in the area; described as: flat hardpan wash plains;
  - o supporting groved mulga shrublands and occasssional wanderrie grasses.
  - o Approximately 1.3 km east of W11
- Medium potential GDE (green on Figure 9)
  - o identified on the laterite / hardpan surfacre away from creeklines;
  - described as: gently undulating gravelley plains on greenstone, laterite and hardpan, with low stony rises and minor saline plains; supporting groved mulga and bowg
  - $\circ$  Approximately 350 m south of W11; and ~1 km north of W11.





Figure 9 Potential groundwater dependent ecosystems near W11 (based on BOM, 2024)

### 4.6. Previous Groundwater Investigations

### 4.6.1. Overview

There have been limited groundwater investigations in the immediate environs of the W11 Pit. Several studies have considered the broader Breebyn-W11 area. Relevant reports are summarised in Table 2.

#### Table 2 Summary of previous studies

Author	Title	Comment
Worley Parsons, 2008	Weld Range Iron Ore Pre- Feasibility Study – Mine Site Infrastructure Hydrology Study	Hydrology and surface water assessment of the then mine plan.
SRK, 2010	Weld Range Iron Ore Project – Bankable Feasibility Study (BFS) - Hydrogeological Investigation and Modelling	Regional scale model for Beebyn and Madoonga deposits; calibrated to single high yielding bore; indicative dewatering rates of up to ~2.7 GL/a and ~8.6 GL/a
		Reports that original (Pre-feasilibility study) predictions for dewatering at Beebyn and Madoonga were ~11 GL/a and 20 GL/a
		Packer testing indicated hydraulic conductivities of key units as:
		Dolerite ~0.001 m/d
		Orebody ~0.01 m/d
		Saprock ~0.0004 m/d
		Saprolite ~0.001 m/d
SRK, 2012	Weld Range model rerun	Update on earlier model; still based on very high volumes
Rockwater, 2019	Iron Ridge Project – Bore Completion and Hydrogeological Assessment	Recent aquifer testing and modelling for the nearby Iron Ridge deposit. Broadly comparable, if slightly larger, to the W11 deposit.




Author	Title	Comment
		Estimated dewatering rates of ~10 L/s, for a period of approximately 7 years.

Noting the very high predicted dewatering volumes predicted at the pre-feasibility study and bankable feasibility study stage it is considered that although these values related to a much larger final pit, the values are nonetheless high for the hydrogeological setting and based on available drilling data from both Iron Ridge and W11 areas. The outcomes associated with recent testing and modelling at Iron Ridge are more consistent with what would be expected based on the hydrogeological setting – i.e., narrow BIF aquifers surrounded by low permeability dolerite or saprock.

Site specific investigation of the W11 area is recommended to confirm the current conceptualisation and further inform on dewatering and water management strategies.

# 4.6.2. Previous hydraulic testing

The results of 92 packer tests from 19 geotechnical bores drilled across the Beebyn and Madoonga areas are plotted in SRK, 2008 and summarised in Table 3.

# Table 3 Packer testing results (based on SRK, 2010)

	Unit	Permeability (m/d)
Packer testing	Dolerite	0.001
	Orebody	0.01
	Saprock	0.0004
	Saprolite	0.001

# 4.6.3. Previous groundwater exploration

# 4.6.3.1. W11

Drilling of hydrogeological exploration bores in the environs of W11 are summarised in Table 4 and Figure 10. During previous studies, 5 production bores have been installed in the Beebyn area together with 6 long term monitoring bores. Available bore details are summarised in Table 4.

No hydrogeological investigation bores have successfully targeted the BIF in the environs of W11, with long term monitoring bores and the closest production bores being installed in low permeability saprock or dolerite.

B\_WB02\_03 was drilled targeting the BIF close to the planned W11 pit but did not encounter BIF until ~140 mbgl. B\_WB02\_03 was installed to ~113 mbgl, within saprolite material and yielded only 0.99 L/s during a pumping test of 72 hours duration.

Water chemistry data from the 2009/10 investigations is summarised in Table 4. The chemistries are broadly similar, and all representative of water within the dolerite surrounding W11. The water is fresh to brackish in nature, consistent with that observed during the regional monitoring undertaken in 2008 (SRK, 2008).

Overall, the available bore data indicates material surrounding W11 to be low permeability in nature.

# 4.6.3.2. Iron Ridge

The nearby Iron Ridge deposit (~20 km west south-west, along strike of W11) was investigated in 2019 (Rockwater, 2019) and included two production bores targeting the BIF. Iron Ridge targets a similar orebody (steeply dipping BIFs flanked by dolerite) to that encountered at W11 – therefore is considered a suitable proxy. Key findings from Rockwater, 2019 include:

IRPB01 (production bore)

Page 12



- drilled and installed within BIF; airlift development (post construction) yields of ~24 L/s; pumping testing at 33 L/s, results indicated that these rates were not sustainable and water levels would reach aquifer base after 180 days.
- IRPB02 (production bore)
  - Drilled and installed in BIF, air lift development (post construction) yields of ~3 L/s; pumping testing at 9 L/s was achieved.
- The site conceptualisation identifies that the BIF beds are moderately to highly permeable, whilst the surrounding dolerite is low permeability. This is consistent with the setting at W11.
- Dewatering rates of ~10 L/s are predicted over the approximately 7-year life of mine.





Figure 10 Historical drilling locations near W11 (W11 shown in red; PFS drilling in yellow; BFS drilling (2009) in orange)



# Table 4 Test production bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)

Bore ID	Easting Z50)	(MGA	Northing (MGA Z50)	Ground level (mAHD)	Collar height (magl)	Casing	Drilled depth (m)	Slotted interval (mbgl)	Geology encountered	Water level (mbtoc)	(mAHD)	рН	Salinity (mg/L TDS)	Yield (L/s)	Transmissivity (m2/d)
										2024	2024	2009	2009	2009	
Feasibility St	ıdy (2008)														
B_WB2_01	582645.79		7026807.51	517.79	0.5	50 mm	148	120-144	0-14 canga;	29.6	488.69	8.6	1400		
(W11)						UPVC			14 -103 saprolite (clay);						
									103-150 (dolerite)						
B_WB2_02	580582.96		7026433.98	541.04	0.8	50 mm	150	108-114;	0-1 canga;	49.7	492.14	7.6	950		
						uPVC		120-126;	1-124 saprolite (clay);						
								132-138;	124-150 (dolerite)						
								144-150							
B_WB2_03	582476.71		7027041.12	525.36	0.24	200	150	47-113	0-9 canga;	35.0	490.6	7.1	670	0.99	0.9 (recovery data)
						mm uPVC			9-109 saprolite (clay);					(pumping test)	
									109-142 dolerite;						
									142-150 interbedded orebody and ultramafic						
Prefeasibility	study bores														
BBWB01	580712		7026294	-	-	-	-	-	Bore log not sighted as part of this report	35.2	~490	-	-	12.4	148
									[anticipated to be targeting BIF]						
BBWB02	582288		7026916	-	-	-	-	-	Bore log not sighted as part of this report	49.7	~490	-	-	1.79	3.6
									[anticipated to be targeting BIF]						

# Table 5 Long term monitoring bores near W11 (from SRK, 2008)

Bore ID	Easting (MGA Z50)	Northing (MGA Z50)	Ground level (mAHD)	Collar height (magl)	Casing	Drilled depth (m)	Slotted interval	Geology encountered	Water level (mbgl)	(mAHD)	рН
Bores near W11									2024	2024	2009
B_LTM_02R	581686	7027118	524.3	0.59	50 mm	84	44.5-	0-4 canga;	33.2	491.86	8.4
					uPVC		80.5	4-52 saprolite (sand / silt)			
								52-84 dolerite			
B_LTM_03	582768	7027451	514.92	0.6	50 mm	90	47-83	0-1 canga;	25.9	489.62	7.8
					uPVC			1-21 saprolite			
								21-90 dolerite			
B_LTM_04	583631	7027376	508.47	0.46	50 mm	78	41-71	0-8 unconsolidated sediment	22.2	486.73	7.6
					uPVC			8-37 saprolite (clay)			
								37-78 dolerite			
Bores to the sou	theast										
B_LTM_01	580676	7026679	528.76	0.72	50 mm	108	71-101	0-28 saprolite (clay)	37.7	491.78	8.9
					uPVC			28-110 dolerite			
B_LTM_05	518282	7026100	513.7	0.6	50 mm	90	48-84	0-2 canga	22.8	491.5	
					uPVC			2-5 dolerite			
								5-20 saprolite			
								20-90 dolerite			
B_LTM_06	580335	7026038	524.69	0.6	50 mm	84	47-77	0-20 saprolite	32.8	492.49	
					uPVC			20-73 dolerite			
								73-84 no return			





# Table 6 Water quality samples near W11 (extracted from SRK, 2010)

Bore ID		B_LTM_03	B_LTM_04	B_WB2_01	B_WB2_02
Date		15/07/2009	16/07/2009	17/07/2009	18/07/2009
рН		7.8	7.6	8.6	7.6
Conductivity @ 25	uS/cm	1200	1400	2300	1600
TDS calculated	mg/L	690	830	1400	950
Hardness (as CaCO3)	mg/L	250	330	500	310
Carbonate, CO3	mg/L	<1	<1	14	<1
Bicarbonate, HCO3	mg/L	290	370	380	370
Chloride, Cl	mg/L	180	220	450	260
Sulphate, SO4	mg/L	88	130	190	160
Nitrate, NO3	mg/L	55	28	<0.2	14
Sodium, Na	mg/L	170	180	190	230
Potassium, K	mg/L	11	14	180	12
Calcium, Ca	mg/L	37	45	50	39
Magnesium, Mg	mg/L	38	54	92	52
Soluble Iron, Fe	mg/L	<0.02	<0.02	<0.02	<0.02
Fluoride, F	mg/L	0.4	0.3	0.5	0.3
Free Cyanide	mg/L	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01
Aluminium, Al	mg/L	<0.02	<0.02	<0.02	<0.02
Arsenic, As	mg/L	0.005	<0.002	0.24	<0.002
Manganese, Mn	mg/L	0.007	0.007	0.074	0.29
Lead, Pb	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005
Cadmium, Cd	mg/L	<0.001	<0.001	<0.001	<0.001
Copper, Cu	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005
Antimony, Sb	mg/L	<0.0005	<0.0005	0.05	<0.05
Mercury, Hg	mg/L	<0.05	<0.05		
Silver, Ag	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005
Boron, B	mg/L	1	0.9	0.7	1.2
Barium, Ba	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	0.02	<0.01
Beryllium, Be,	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005
Cobalt, Co	mg/L	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01
Chromium, Cr	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005
Molybdenum, Mo	mg/L	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01	<0.01
Nickel, Ni	mg/L	0.007	0.005	0.06	0.008
Phosphorous, P	mg/L	0.08	0.25	<0.05	<0.05
Selenium, Se	mg/L	0.004	0.004	0.048	0.007
Sulphur, S	mg/L	28	41	64	52
Silicon, Si	mg/L	18	19	30	26
Tin, Sn	mg/L	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05	<0.05
Strontium, Sr	mg/L	0.25	0.32	0.45	0.28
Thallium, Tl	mg/L	<0.02	<0.02	<0.02	<0.02
Titanium, Ti	mg/L	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005	<0.005
Vandium, V	mg/L	<0.02	<0.01	0.03	<0.01
Zinc, Zn	mg/L	0.043	0.03	0.42	0.68



# 5. Pit progression and dewatering

# 5.1. Pit progression

W11 is planned to progress to a depth of approximately 125 mbgl (excavation from ~520 mAHD to ~395 mAHD) over a period of 3 years (between 2025 to 2028), as approximated in Table 7.

# Table 7 W11 bench progression (estimated)

Pre-mining	Initial ground	level		Initial groundwater level			
	~520 mAHD			~490 mAHD			
Mine progression							
Year of operation	Lowest (mAHD)	bench	Approximate radius of pit (m)	Estimated volume of progression	Estimated volume of water (m3) based on Sy of 0.05		
1	500		Above water table				
1	490		167	2927310	790736		
1	480		150	2180239	633726		
1	470		134	1578906	498820		
2	460		117	1109326	375607		
2	450		87	754897	277473		
2	440		75	495161	207273		
2	430		62	301376	149333		
3	420		49	163372	98282		
3	410		33	73935	54130		
3	400		30	24792	16107		
3	395						

# 5.2. Analytical model setup

A simple analytical model was considered appropriate to provide a high-level assessment of potential dewatering volumes and associated impacts. It is recommended that site specific hydrogeological investigations are undertaken to validate the conceptualisation and associated assumptions.

Water associated with pit dewatering comprises:

- Radial inflow from surrounding aquifers
- Water stored within the pit footprint

These two sources are considered further below and summarised in Figure 11.

# 5.2.1. Radial flow into a circular excavation

Based on the Dupuit-Theim equation for unconfined aquifer conditions (below) Fetter, 1988; Powers et. al, 2007) mine inflows to maintain dry mining have been estimated based on a life of mine of 3 years.





# Figure 11 Analytical model geometry (left) and bench volume (right)

Q = abstraction volume

- K = hydraulic conductivity (m/d) (0.03 m/d, based on SRK, 2008 ('Geometric mean of orebody') )
- ho = height of SWL above base of aquifer (assumed to be ~390 mAHD (5m below base of pit))
- hw = height of water level in pit (490 mAHD, based on historical and recent measurement)
- rw = equivalent radius of pit
- ro = maximum extent of cone of drawdown (SQRT(2.25 k.ho.t/Sy)
- t = time since pumping or inflow started
- Sy = specific yield, 0.05 (5%)

The radius of influence (ro, above) is calculated based on a rearrangement of the Jacob equation (Powers et al. 2007). The most reliable means of defining this is through a pumping test which would help identify potential recharge from other aquifers and recharge boundaries, but in the absence of this it is considered to provide a reasonable initial estimation of the likely radius of influence. The results of this are summarised in Table 6.

# 5.2.2. Volume of water within each bench

To include the volume of water within the pit shell itself a calculation considering the pit as a simple truncated cone was used (see Figure 6). The estimated total volume of water within each bench progression is presented in Table 5 and summarised as an equivalent rate (assuming the whole bench is removed in one year, for simplicity) in Table 6.

r<sub>1</sub> = radius of upper surface (upper bench)

r<sub>2</sub> = radius of lower surface (lower bench)

h = difference in bench elevation

The volume is calculated based on:

$$1/3 \times Volume = \frac{1}{3} \pi r^2 \cdot H - \frac{1}{3} \pi r^2 \cdot (H - h)$$



# 5.3. Analytical model results

For simplicity the mine progression is assumed to take place at 10 m increments on an approximately quarterly basis. A summary of results are presented in Table 8, with a more detailed breakdown in Table 9.

A dewatering requirement of ~10 L/s is anticipated across the life of the pit, potentially declining over time as the pit progress into less weathered and / or fractured material.

# Table 8 Approximate annual abstraction rates from W11 pit (L/s)

	Base case	Sensitivity 1	Sensitivity 2	Within pit material
Year 1 (mainly above WT)	~10+	~10+		0.04
Year 2	~9	~10	~7	0.1
Year 3	5	7	3	0.03
Average	~7	~10	~5	
	~0.2 GL/a	~0.3 GL/a	~0.16 GL/a	~0.2 GL (over life of operation)



# Table 9 Analytical model summary

						Base case	(k =	0.02)	Sensitivity	1 (k	= 0.04)	Sensitivity 2 (	k = 0.01)	Water void	from pit
Year / quarter	Bench elevation	Step (days)	Elapsed time (days)	Hw- end of step (m)	Equivalent radius of pit (m)	Extent cone depressior (Ro, end step) (m)	of of of	Inflow end of step (k = 0.02)	Extent cone depression (Ro, end step) (m)	of of of	Inflow end of step (k=0.04)	Extent of cone of depression (Ro, end of step) (m)	Inflow end of step (k=0.01)	Water from (L/s)	removed storage
Y1 Q1	510	Above W	/T												
Y1 Q2	500	-													
Y1 Q3	490	-													
Y1 Q4	480	91.25		90	150	91		*	128		*	64	*	5	
Y2 Q1	470	91.25		80	134	128		*	181		17.4**	91	*	4	
Y2 Q2	460	91.25		70	117	157		12.8**	222		11.7**	111	*	3	
Y2 Q3	450	91.25		60	101	181		7.9	256		10	128	9.7	2.4	
Y2 Q4	440	91.25		50	87	203		6.4	287		9.1	143	5.5	1.8	
Y3 Q1	430	91.25		40	75	222		5.7	314		8.6	157	4.2	1.3	
Y3 Q2	420	91.25		30	62	240		4.9	339		7.8	170	3.3	0.9	
Y3 Q3	410	91.25		20	49	256		4.2	362		7.0	181	2.7	0.6	
Y3 Q4	400	91.25		10	33	272		3.4	384		5.9	192	2	0.3	
								5.4			8.1		4.6		

\* calculated extent of cone of depression within pit radius, model not valid

\*\* caution - radius of influence is close to pit radius, likely overestimating inflow volumes



Based on current data, indicating low prevailing permeability of material surrounding the W11 pit, inflows are anticipated to be limited. The extent of drawdown is also expected to be limited, not extending a significant distance from the pit, and focussed on fracture aquifer networks.

Note the calculated radius of influence in Table 8 assumes radial inflow (a simplification of the model assumptions) which is unlikely since the BIF is surrounded by low permeability dolerite – drawdown is expected to propagate along the BIF units. Noting also that the BIF units are faulted and offset against the dolerite, extensive drawdown along the BIF, across separate faulted units is considered unlikely.

Due to the low permeability and reducing pit dimensions with progression to depth as the radius of influence expands the volume of incoming water is anticipated to reduce over time.

During mining the cone of depression is anticipated to extend along strike of the Banded Iron Formation, with limited drawdown occurring outside the orebody due to the low permeability of the surrounding dolerite. It is unlikely that any measurable drawdowns associated with W11 would be observed at nearby receptors. Noting the proximity of potential GDEs to the north, east and south, assessment based on site specific data (e.g., drilling and test pumping to assess local groundwater response to pumping, installation of a monitoring network of bores) is recommended.

# 5.4. Dewatering bores

Noting the anticipated limited volumes of water it is considered that dewatering of the W11 pit would be managed using 2 to 3 dewatering bores together with sump pumping as required.

The Banded Iron Formation forms the main aquifer in the W11 area, dewatering bores targeting this unit along strike of the W11 pit (within the same faulted block of BIF) would be expected to manage dewatering, along with in pit sump pumping, as W11 progresses. Recommended bore locations are identified as part of further investigations to assess the hydrogeological setting of W11 (See Section 8.2).

# 5.5. Existing Groundwater Licence

GWL165387(5) is an existing groundwater licence that covers the W11 area. The purpose of the licence is for:

- Dust suppression of earthworks and construction purposes
- Exploration drilling operations
- Mining camp purposes

The groundwater licence capacity is planned to be increased to meet anticipated demand / dewatering requirements of up to 500,000 kL/a.





# 6. Water balance

A high-level water balance for the W11 deposit is summarised in Table 10 (based on Pers. Comms., L.Romero (01/05/2024)). Demand is essentially driven by dust suppression and other local operational water requirements.

# Table 10 Annual water balance for operations near W11 pit

Year	Demand	Dewatering	Comment
Construction	< 1 L/s		Local supply
Y1	~11 L/s	~10+ L/s	Surplus possible
Y2	~11 L/s	~10 L/s	Potentially balanced supply vs. demand
Y3	~11 L/s	~5 L/s	Deficit possible

Based on the analytical modelling completed to date, and consistent with the current conceptualisation and observation from the nearby Iron Ridge deposit, dewatering volumes are anticipated to be low, and decline as mining progresses. Consequently, there may be a need to obtain additional water to meet demand requirements, particularly during Year 3 of operations. Such a demand may be met by installing an additional bore(s) along strike (to the southwest) within the Banded Iron Formation (i.e., the most prospective aquifer, locally) – away from the pit footprint and area of dewatering.

Further investigation is required to quantify the dewatering volumes at W11 with a greater degree of certainty.



# 7. Pit closure

It is understood that the pit is to remain as a pit void at closure. The pit is surrounded by low permeability units, and in an area of high evaporation and low rainfall – therefore it is considered that the pit would form a terminal pit lake. Noting a key recommendation of this report is to obtain site specific data, a simple scenario is considered with regards the post-closure water balance.

The water balance for the pit was developed using GoldSim, with the pit characterised using the stage curve below (Figure 12).

Annual average rainfall was applied to the pit area, with annual average evapotranspiration applied to the pit lake area – (based on data from the nearby BOM Meekatharra weather station) – Figure 3.



# Figure 12 W11 stage curve

In the example presented (Figure 13), a nominal inflow of 5 L/s from groundwater is assumed, equivalent to the late time dewatering volumes. At such rates, recovery is incomplete reaching only ~465 mRL compared to pre-mining water levels of ~490 mRL. As water levels recover, evaporation losses increase and eventually the system equilibrates (i.e., inflows = outflows). If inflows are higher, then water levels would be expected to recover further and conversely if inflows are low (i.e., very limited inflow from the surrounding low permeability dolerite – as is likely) then the recovered water level would be lower.

Since the only outflow of water is evaporation, over time the water becomes increasingly saline – as shown in Figure 14. Under the modelled scenario concentrations of approximately 12,000 mg/L TDS are predicted after ~100 years, compared to prevailing concentrations of ~1,000 mg/L (from bores in the nearby surrounds).





Figure 13 W11 - post closure water level recovery - ~5 L/s (i.e., as per late time dewatering)



Salinity - Total dissolved solids (mg/L)

# Figure 14 W11 post-closure salinity – increasing over time



# **Conclusions and recommendations** 8.

## 8.1. Groundwater

- W11 pit is planned to progress to a depth of 130 mbgl, approximately 90 m below the prevailing water table in an area flanked by a low permeability aquifer.
- Groundwater levels in the environs of W11 are approximately 490 mRL.
- . There are no site-specific hydrogeological testing data relating to the W11 pit nearby test production bores were very low yielding. The assessment undertaken provides an indication of potential groundwater responses, but further investigation is required to obtain site specific data and test the assumptions made herein.
- Long term dewatering requirements are anticipated to be of the order of 10 L/s.
- н. Drawdown is anticipated to propagate along strike within the Banded Iron Formation.
- There are GDEs of moderate to low potential to the north (1km), east (1.3 km) and south (0.3 km) of W11.
- At closure, the pit is anticipated to become a saline pit lake, with water becoming increasingly saline over time.

## **Further investigation recommendations** 8.2.

The collection of site-specific data relating to the W11 pit is recommended with regards:

- Validating dewatering yields.
- Assessing local groundwater response to pumping e.g., connectivity within the BIF, nature of connectivity with surrounding dolerite.
- Inform post-closure groundwater recovery rates.
- Expansion of the current monitoring network to provide baseline data in the W11 area, in particular in areas between W11 and nearby potential GDEs.

To inform on the above a hydrogeological investigation, incorporating 3 production bores, is recommended, as summarised in Table 11 and Figure 15. The overarching objective of the investigation is to obtain site specific data relating to the groundwater environment at W11. The three production bore locations may, if considered appropriate, be suitable for use for dewatering of the pit.

Test pumping of the production bores is recommended to obtain site specific hydraulic parameters and inform on the conceptualisation, for example connectivity between the BIF (orebody) and the surrounding dolerite. The recommended test pumping program for each production bore comprises:

- Step testing
  - o 5 x 80-minute steps at different rates to inform on likely bore performance and to select an appropriate rate for the constant rate test (CRT)
- Constant rate test
  - o 24-to-72-hour test at a constant rate, monitoring of nearby monitoring bores to inform on connectivity within and between different hydrostratigraphic units at W11.
- Recovery test
  - Monitoring of water levels post-CRT obtain further information on the 0 hydraulic parameters and aquifer connectivity.





Label	Easting	Northing	Target depth (mbgl)	Nominal completion Diameter	Anticipated geology	Objective
Production bores						
PW_2024_PB1	583283	7027306	~130	204 mm ID (8")	Dolerite; BIF (orebody)	Potential dewatering bore; targeting main unit of Banded Iron Formation (BIF)
PW_2024_PB2	582986	7027086	~130	204 mm ID (8")	Dolerite; BIF (orebody)	Potential dewatering bore; targeting faulted and offset main unit of BIF
PW_2024_PB3	582852	7027121	~130	204 mm ID (8")	Dolerite; BIF (orebody)	Potential dewatering bore; targeting minor unit of BIF
	Monitori	ng bores				
PW_2024_MB01	582954	7026815	~130	50 mm uPVC	Dolerite	ex-pit; groundwater connectivity between orebody and dolerite to the south of the pit
PW_2024_MB02	582738	7027027	~130	50 mm uPVC	Dolerite	Monitoring bore -ex-pit; groundwater connectivity between orebody and dolerite to the south of the pit.
PW_2024_MB03	583303	7027041	~130	50 mm uPVC	Dolerite / BIF	Monitoring bore – along strike within the main unit of BIF; monitor propagation of dewatering within the BIF
PW_2024_MB04	583382	7027323	~130	50 mm uPVC	Dolerite / BIF	Monitoring bore; targeting BIF unit (same asPB1) – monitor propagation of dewatering within the BIF
PW_2024_MB05	583253	7027553	~130	50 mm uPVC	Dolerite / Fault	Monitoring bore – ex-pit; connectivity across potential fault structure and within dolerite adjacent to the pit.
PW_2024_MB06	583005	7027528	~130	50 mm uPVC	Dolerite	Monitoring – dolerite north of the pit; monitoring of propagation of dewatering to the north

# Table 11 Proposed hydrogeological investigation bore locations and objectives





Figure 15 Recommended W11 hydrogeological investigation bore locations



# 9. References

Bureau of Meteoroloy (BoM), 2024, Groundwater dependent ecosystems atlas, Available at: http://www.bom.gov.au/water/groundwater/gde/ (Accessed: 07 May 2024).

Doody, et. al, 2017, Continental mapping of groundwater dependent ecosystems : a methodological framework to integrate diverse data and expert opinion.

Geological Survey Western Australia, 1983, Belele 250k series geological map – sheet SG 50-11.

Jones, W.R., 1962, The Iron Ore Deposits of the Weld Range, Murchison Goldfield, in: Geological Survey of Western Australia, 1962, Report of the Geological Survey Branch for the Year 1962.

Rockwater, 2019, Iron Ridge Project – Bore Completion and Hydrogeological Assessment.

SRK, 2012, Weld Range Model Rerun

SRK, 2010, Weld Range Iron Ore Project – Bankable Feasibility Study – Hydrogeological Investigation and Modelling.

Waters and Rivers Commission, 2001, Meekatharra Town Water Supply – Water Resource Protection Series.

Worley Parsons, 2008, Weld Range Iron Ore Pre-Feasibility Study – Mine Site Infrastructure Hydrology Study, report for Sinosteel Midwest Management Pty Ltd, Ref. 13923-RP-0100-HY-0001.



# Appendix A: W11 Hydrology Assessment



# Memo

Date: 9 May 2024 To: Leonardo Romero From: Ella Robson Pages: 9 + 13 Figures Regarding: Fenix – W11 Hydrology Study

# Background

Fenix have secured the exclusive right to mine and export up to 10 million tonnes (Mt) of iron ore from the high-grade Beebyn-W11 Iron Ore Deposit. Beebyn-W11 is ~20km east of the existing Fenix mining operation at Iron Ridge (refer Fig. A). The initial proposal is to mine 4Mt at a rate of 1.5Mtpa over a 3 year period. The life of mine may be extended in the future.

A hydrology study is required to support the mining proposal (MP) and mine closure plan (MCP). Worley Parsons undertook a mine site infrastructure hydrology study ("Weld Range Iron Ore Pre-Feasibility Study: Mine Site Infrastructure Hydrology Study") in 2008; however as the layout has now changed, an updated review of the hydrology is required.

# Scope

The scope is as follows:

- Review of previous report
- Characterisation and description of existing drainage conditions
- Delineation of catchments that impinge on mine infrastructure and access / haul roads
- Calculation of flood flow estimates for a range of AEPs (annual exceedance probabilities), including the PMP (probable maximum flood)
- 2D flood modelling of the predevelopment, post development (operational) and closure mine site using the latest drone survey
- Recommendations of surface water management strategies (bunds, diversions, culverts etc.)

# **Climate and Topography**

# General

Rainwater falling in the area drains quickly off the Weld Range ridges through narrow channels which widen substantially as the water drains onto the flatter areas. In the flatter areas, the flow of water can become ambiguous with streams dividing, in some cases the divisions flow in quite different directions. The beds of the main channels of the water courses comprise coarse sand, rocks and cobbles; with silty sand banks which are easily eroded.

The project lies on the southern end of one major catchment (Beebyn Creek). The ephemeral watercourse draining this catchment flows south through Beebyn Gap. The Beebyn-W11 site sits near the top of a ridgeline within the Beebyn Creek catchment, with elevations ranging from ~RL495m to RL550m.

The area has a semi-arid climate with hot summers and mild to cool winters. The closest Bureau of Meteorology (BoM) gauging station is in Cue (site number 007017), about 59km south of site. The average annual rainfall at Cue is 231mm. Most rainfall typically occurs January – July, with low rainfall in September – November, but highly variable. Temperatures vary from minimum - maximum averages of 7°- 20°C in winter, and 20°- 38°C in summer. The average annual pan evaporation is ~3,500mm.

Western Australia is already experiencing the impacts of climate change. All of WA has warmed, with an average temperature rise of 1.3°C since 1910. Rainfall has increased over most of WA, other than the far west and southwest where it has declined (at a rate faster than anywhere else in Australia). Projections are that WA will continue to get hotter, drier, extreme rain events will become more intense, and the number of tropical cyclones in northwest WA will continue to decrease.

However, the projected life of mine is sufficiently short that these mooted changes will have no significant impact on the project.

# **Rainfall Intensity-Frequency-Depth**

The Bureau of Meteorology (BoM) website provides probabilistic or statistically based Intensity Frequency Duration (IFD) rainfall characteristics. IFD rainfall depths represent design rainfalls for events of frequent and infrequent occurrence, for various annual exceedance probabilities (AEP). IFD data for the site and selected durations is shown in Table 1 (BOM, 2016). Design temporal rainfall distributions are available in the Australian Rainfall and Runoff (ARR) data hub, and describe how rainfall falls over time.

Duration	Annual Exceedance Probabilities (AEP)											
(hrs)	63%	50%	20%	10%	5%	2%	1%	0.01%	PMP			
1	13	16	25	32	40	51	61	122	305			
4.5	22	26	41	52	65	83	99	198	495			
12	31	37	58	74	91	114	134	268	670			
24	38	46	73	92	113	140	162	324	810			
36	42	51	81	103	126	156	179	358	895			
72	48	59	94	119	144	177	202	404	1,010			

Table 1: Intensity-Frequency-Duration (IFD) Rainfalls (mm)

It can be noted that 63% AEP is equivalent to 1 year ARI (average recurrence interval, the (average period between exceedances); 50% AEP = 1.44 year ARI; 39% AEP = 2 year ARI, 18% AEP = 5 year ARI and so on up to 1% AEP = 100 year ARI.

# **Probable Maximum Precipitation**

In addition, closure of mines requires consideration of rare storms that could occur at an undefined time after closure. The upper limit for extreme rainfalls can reasonably be represented by the 10,000 year rainfalls, or up to the Probable Maximum Precipitation (PMP). The PMP is theoretically the greatest depth of precipitation meteorologically possible for a given duration over a defined size storm area, at that specific location – as a reasonable indication of the upper limit on rainfall that could be anticipated.

Based on statistical extrapolation, the 10,000 year rainfalls are ~2x 1% AEP rainfalls. By rule of thumb, the PMP is typically ~2-2.5x 10,000 year rainfalls i.e. ~5x 1% AEP rainfalls.

PMP estimates were also made using BOM deterministic methods, GTSMR (Generalised Tropical Storm Method, relevant for durations of 24 hours or more), and the GSDM (Generalised Short Duration Method, based on convective thunderstorms of 6 hours duration or less). The same PMP estimates are used over large areas of Australia, in more southern and inland locations, can tend to provide relatively larger rainfall intensities than statistical extrapolation suggests.

The adopted PMPs have been nominally taken as 5x 1% AEP rainfalls.

# Hydrology

# General

XP-RAFTS was used to estimated design flows from catchments external to the mine site. RAFTS is a nonlinear rainfall - runoff program, with the relevant catchments subdivided into sub-catchments with routing links between with appropriate input data (terrain slopes, roughness, rainfall data and rainfall losses). Rainfall losses were calculated using the SCS method based on sandy clay loam soils, with brush vegetation at <50% ground cover. The program then simulates design rainfall with time over a catchment, removing losses to calculate rainfall excess or runoff, and then routes this runoff through the links, to generate flood runoff hydrographs at specified nodes across the watershed.

# **Beebyn Creek**

Beebyn Creek flows south east, before turning south and along the east side of the proposed mine site. Catchment delineation was undertaken (refer Fig. B) and a catchment area of 225km<sup>2</sup> estimated. A 1% AEP peak flow of 312m<sup>3</sup>/s was calculated (critical duration 36hr). The 5% and 2% AEP flows are 150m<sup>3</sup>/s and 235m<sup>3</sup>/s.

Hydraulic modelling was carried out using the hydraulic model, HECRAS. The model simulates hydraulic flow behaviour within a 2D grid domain based on topography (i.e. based on a digital terrain model). Flow hydrographs for external peak flows were exported out of RAFTS and applied as input to the edges of the model; coupled with direct rainfall or RoG (rain-on-grid) modelling over the local area of the survey (refer Fig. B). A RoG model is a distributed model where the runoff processes are simulated by applying rainfall to each cell in the 2D grid or mesh, and the 2D hydraulic solver is used to route the water down the catchment.

The modelling shows that Beebyn Creek floods to about 1m deep, and the 1% AEP flood extents do not impact mine infrastructure (encroach to within~170m). Refer Fig. C & Fig. D.

# Mine Area – Local Flooding

The mining area generally lies near the top of a ridge and on the edge of catchment boundaries (refer Figure B). As a result, catchments impacting site infrastructure are relatively small.

RoG modelling (1% AEP 4.5hr duration) was carried out over the mining area using HECRAS, for pre-development (existing conditions) and post development (proposed infrastructure in place, blocking off flow paths). The resulting flooding is shown in Fig. E, F, G and H.

Most of the mine site flooding is shallow sheet flow <50mm (not shown on the figures) with some natural shallow waterways across the site. One flow path runs west to east towards Beebyn Creek and flows up to 1m deep.

The modelling shows minor flow paths that impact the processing area and waste dump. The pit is outside of any major flooding. Surface water flows from the north pond ~0.9m deep against the Processing Area, before flowing around to the south west. Surface water also ponds with a max depth ~1.5m at a trapped low point on the northern side of the waste dump.

# **Surface Water Management**

# **General and Sediment Control**

Objectives for water quality are outlined in "Water Quality Protection Guidelines", Department of Water and Environment, 2000. This is a series of 11 guidelines for water quality management in mining and mineral processing (those relating to water, water quality monitoring, stormwater, mechanical servicing and workshop facilities, laboratory waste, and fuelling chemical storage are relevant to this project). Various other guidelines and standards may be applicable, including for example DWER Guidelines and ANZECC Guidelines for Fresh and Marine Water Quality.

Heavy rainfall over disturbed land (due to mining and construction activities) brings the risk of erosion, particularly from waste dumps and stockpiles. Surface water management requires consideration of each drainage path to prevent sediment and other contaminants from washing into natural flow paths. Stormwater run-off from disturbed mining infrastructure can

Pentium Water Pty Ltd| ACN: 655 914 015| Level 1, 640 Murray St West Perth WAT +61 (0) 8 6182 1790|E info@pentiumwater.com.au| pentiumwater.com.au

be captured behind demarcation bunds, collected in evaporation ponds, or captured in sedimentation basins.

## Mine Area

## Pit

Based on modelling, there are no major surface water impacts on the pit, a standard pit bund will be sufficient to prevent minor surface water flows from entering the pit.

# Waste Dump

The waste dump outline blocks a natural flow path to the south (refer Fig. G), trapping runoff from a ~12ha catchment at a low point RL503m, between higher terrain and the waste dump haul road (which will form a barrier to flow). In the 1% AEP rainfall event, ponding is to ~1.5m deep (refer Fig. G). Some of the catchment could be diverted higher up, to direct some flow eastward, and reduce the impacting catchment area and subsequent ponding against the waste dump by 50%. In a short Life of Mine, this ponding is considered acceptable, noting a lower chance of a 1% AEP rainfall, and less ponding. The ponded water will dissipate by evaporation and infiltration.

Waste dumps need to be shaped to drain internally, with crest bunds to retain water on the top and reduce run-off and erosion down the batter faces. Where run-off from the dump sides can escape into the environment, then a capture bund should be installed at the toe of the dump to retain (sediment laden) dirty water runoff.

# Processing Area

The road joining the Processing Area to the mining area runs downhill to the west. Natural flow paths up to 0.2m deep (1% AEP) across the road alignment. The lowest point in the road is adjacent to the Processing Area, where drainage would be directed across the road.

The area occupies about 50ha and lies across the general fall of the site cutting off natural drainage. Minor flow paths run through the area and in a 1% AEP rainfall event, there is a buildup of water (refer Fig. G). The Processing Area needs to be raised or bunded off, and minor diversion drains installed to direct water west around or through the area.

# Closure

# General

Mining is a temporary land use and rehabilitation need to be consistent with projected future land use (such as pastoralism and heritage conservation). The objective is to ensure an effective planning process is in place over the life of mine, so closure is achieved in an environmentally sustainable manner, and without unacceptable liability to the State (refer "Mine Closure Plan Guidance", Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety, 2020).

DMIRS MCP guidance includes desirable mine closure principles, such as no adverse impact on surface and groundwater hydrological patterns, water quality, water levels and water chemistry; and no long-term reduction in base flows and availability of water to meet local environmental values.

It is not proposed to backfill the pit as part of the closure plan. The pit and waste dump landforms will therefore remain after mine closure, while the rest of the site will be decommissioned. This includes removal of infrastructure, and rehabilitation of disturbed areas (including tanks, wastes, contaminated soil, compacted surfaces such as old roadways, site compounds, etc). The area is graded to direct surface water off site, into natural drainage paths, and leaving no water trapped upstream of final landforms.

Post closure surface water modelling results are shown in Figures I, J, K & L.

# Waste Dump

Waste dumps can consist of unconsolidated, dispersive, and erodible materials, which when combined with steep and / or long slopes, result in a potential for erosion and sediment runoff. The main rehabilitation consideration is the projected land use and long-term stability of landforms - with visual amenity, erodibility, stability and dust management as the key drivers, while biophysical appearance and vegetation (endemic plant communities that approximate the natural surrounds) a secondary driver.

Outer exposed surfaces should be provided with a rocky substate to prevent erosion on slopes (gullying, loss of surface material and vegetation). The waste dump surfaces may be designed to hold water on the top, to prevent it running down the sides, or include cross slope berm cell bunds to retain water on the dump sides.

However, externally surface water run-off is trapped against the northern side of the dump, up to 4.5m deep in a PMP event, and results in a loss of run-off volume downstream. It is largely impractical to construct an open excavated drain around the ends of the dump, to the east or west. Other options at closure include filling the impacting catchment area with waste, shaped to a finished free draining surface; or changing the final alignment of the northern edge to better follow natural surface contours, and allowing free surface drainage toward the west. At closure, the waste dump will be configured to prevent ponding against the toe.

## Pit Abandonment Bund

As the pit will remain open at closure (i.e. will not be backfilled), the method generally preferred to minimise inadvertent public access involves the construction of an abandonment bund wall around the perimeter of the open pit void, 10m outside the area designated as being susceptible to wall collapse (refer "Safety Bund Walls Around Abandoned Open Pit Mines", DMIRS, Doc No: ZMA048HA, Dec. 1997). DMIRS (Figure 4) below defines pit wall stability, relating to walls excavated in unweathered or weathered rock, or both.



The bund is required to have minimum dimensions of 2m high, 5m base width. As the pit is located towards the top of a ridge line, there is no requirement for the abandonment bund to also act as a flood bund against external flooding. The bunds are subject to raindrop erosion and fresh competent rock, for example, is preferred, as this determines the long-term integrity of the structure (expected to remain functional for hundreds of years). Materials are best produced before excavation equipment is removed from the site, and final blasting provides a source of suitable unweathered material. Where oxide or weathered material only is available, a larger cross-sectional area of bund is required.

# **Road Train Haul Road**

# General

Ore is currently trucked with quad road trains 490 km from the Iron Ridge mine site to the Beringarra – Cue Road and then to Geraldton Port, via Cue and Mt Magnet. The new Beebyn-W11 mine site is 20 km east of the existing Iron Ridge mining operation, and a new bitumen (2coat) sealed haul road is to be constructed to connect to the existing road. A number of flow paths cross the proposed road route.

## Design Flows

The catchments impacting the proposed road route are shown in Fig. M. The catchment boundaries and streamlines have been approximated with digital terrain modelling using SRTM (Shuttle Radar Topography Mission) data. Design flows for each estimated catchment are shown in Appendix.

# Road Drainage

Road drainage provisions typically comprise pavement cross fall, table drains, floodways, culverts, and rock protection. The type of structure at waterway crossings is generally determined by the level of immunity from flooding that is required, and the time of closure acceptable due to over-road flooding. Floodways are level stretches of road at flood crossings, and are particularly suitable in flat or gently undulating terrain, where drainage patterns are less well defined. Due to the short life of mine, and relatively small catchments, floodways are considered suitable. Culverts may be included, particularly if required to maintain road geometry across the waterway. In sheet flow areas, upstream diversions (bunds) may be used to direct flows towards particular floodways in order to minimise the number of crossings.

The permissible trafficable depth of water through which the haul trucks may operate should be established, as a direct determinant of Average Annual Time of Closure / AATOC. The average closure times are typically small (hours) in small catchments, but may persist for longer than average, and become disruptive, in larger creeks. For a mine haul road, an acceptable "out of service time" (days per annum of road outage) can be based on internal risk analysis i.e. size of plant and port stockpiles.

Main Roads WA highways in the north are typically low formation roads, with a low level of flood immunity. The roads may be closed to traffic for some period (days) in most years, when water is deeper than 200mm (conventional vehicles) and 500mm (heavy vehicles). Subject to risk analysis, the haul road may similarly have a low level of flood design immunity.

It is noted that a single break in a long road will result in a failure of the whole system, and the true flood risk is higher than might otherwise be expected (common practice is to assess each individual waterway crossing in isolation and adopt that flood immunity as the flood immunity for the entire road).

# **Summary**

Fenix propose a new mining operation at Beebyn-W11 deposit, ~20km east of the existing Iron Ridge mining operation.

The 1% AEP 24 hour rainfall in the area is estimated as 162mm, the 24 hour PMP is about 800mm. XP-RAFTS was used to estimated design flows.

Beebyn Creek has a catchment area of 225km<sup>2</sup> and flows past the site, but does not impact mine infrastructure. The mine generally lies near the top of a ridge and catchments and surface water flows impacting site infrastructure are relatively small.

Minor flow paths run through the site and the proposed pit, waste dump and processing area boundaries, and infrastructure in this area needs to be bunded off and stormwater diverted through or around as required, to prevent ponding. Diversion channels and bunds required are all minor. A standard pit bund will be sufficient to prevent surface water flows from entering the pit. Ponding against the northern side of the waste dump may occur, depending on the development and configuration of the waste dump, and in the operational phase, will be permitted to evaporate and infiltrate in situ.

A Road Train Haul Road is to be constructed to connect to the existing haul road. A number of flow paths cross the proposed road route, the impacting catchments are based on SRTM data, and design flows have been estimated for each catchment. Fenix is currently in the process of undertaking a lidar survey to a high level of accuracy for purposes of road and waterway design. Due to the short life of mine, and relatively small catchments, floodways (with culverts if required) are considered suitable. The length of floodways may be determined by the selected design flood event and permissible water depth. Adherence to surface water protection principles and implementation of environmental control measures is required to mitigate risk of erosion and sedimentation from construction and mining activities.

Mining is a temporary land use and after closure of the mine, the area requires rehabilitation consistent with future land uses, and not adversely impact surface and groundwater hydrological patterns and water quality. Waste dumps and sloping surfaces in particular need to be stabilised against erosion as a potential source of sediment.

Extreme rainfall in Beebyn Creek and over the mine site will cause shallow flooding around remnant mine infrastructure (pit abandonment bund and waste dump). The final abandonment bund and waste dump should be configured such that surface run-off is not trapped behind these landforms, but that the site retains free draining characteristics.

Kind Regards

Ella Robson Senior Water Resource Engineer <u>erobson@pentiumwater.com.au</u> +61 8 6182 1790

 Pentium Water Pty Ltd
 | ACN: 655 914 015
 | Level 1, 640 Murray St West Perth WA

 T +61 (0) 8 6182 1790|
 E info@pentiumwater.com.au
 | pentiumwater.com.au

# **Appendix: Road Train Haul Road Surface Water**

- A new access Road Train Haul Road will connect to the Iron Ridge haul road to Geraldton
- Catchments (refer Fig. M) impacting the road route is based on SRTM topographical data
- For catchments (Ac measured in km<sup>2</sup>) less than 10km<sup>2</sup>:
  - $\circ$  1% AEP flows may be estimated as 3.5 x Ac<sup>0.9</sup>
  - <1% AEP flows may be estimated as 'K' x Ac<sup>0.9</sup>. See Table 2
  - $\circ~$  E.g. 10% AEP flow may be estimated by 1.11 x Ac^{0.9}
- Road route 20km long crosses some significant waterways
- The impacting catchments run-off from the ridgeline to the north, and total ~40km<sup>2</sup>
- There are 2 larger catchments >10 km², CS04 and CS09.

Table 2: Table of Annual Exceedance Probabilities versus Flood Flow Estimation

AEP	Fraction of 1% AEP flood flow	K (Q = K x Ac^0.9)
63.21%	0.03	0.11
50%	0.06	0.19
20%	0.18	0.64
10%	0.32	1.11
5%	0.48	1.69
2%	0.75	2.64
1%	1.00	3.50

# Table 3: Peak Flows (m³/s) using Nominal Catchments (SRTM) (Fig. M)

Catchment		Annual Exceedance Probabilities (AEP)							
ID	Ac (km²)	63.2%	50%	20%	10%	5%	2%	1%	
CS_01	0.46	0.1	0.1	0.3	0.5	0.8	1.3	1.7	
CS_02	2.33	0.2	0.4	1.4	2.4	3.6	5.6	7.5	
CS_03	0.17	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.2	0.3	0.5	0.7	
CS_04	14.29	0.9	1.5	5.2	8.9	14	21	28	
CS_05	4.09	0.4	0.7	2.3	3.9	6.0	9.4	12.5	
CS_06	2.55	0.2	0.4	1.5	2.6	3.9	6.1	8.1	
CS_07	7.26	0.6	1.1	3.8	6.6	10.0	15.7	20.9	
CS_08	0.17	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.2	0.3	0.5	0.7	
CS_09	21.42	1.2	2.2	7.3	13	19	30	40	
CS_10	1.84	0.2	0.3	1.1	1.9	2.9	4.6	6.1	
CS_11	0.80	0.1	0.2	0.5	0.9	1.4	2.2	2.9	
CS_12	0.54	0.1	0.1	0.4	0.6	1.0	1.5	2.0	
CS_13	5.45	0.5	0.9	3.0	5.1	7.8	12.1	16.2	
CS_14	4.80	0.4	0.8	2.6	4.5	6.9	10.8	14.4	
CS_15	0.30	0.0	0.1	0.2	0.4	0.6	0.9	1.2	
CS_16	1.11	0.1	0.2	0.7	1.2	1.9	2.9	3.9	
CS_17	1.17	0.1	0.2	0.7	1.3	1.9	3.0	4.0	
CS_18	0.80	0.1	0.2	0.5	0.9	1.4	2.1	2.9	

# **List of Figures**

- Figure A: Site Location
- Figure B: Catchments
- Figure C: Beebyn Creek Pre-Development Maximum Depth 1% AEP 36 hr
- Figure D: Beebyn Creek Pre-Development Maximum Velocity 1% AEP 36 hr
- Figure E: Mine Site Pre-Development Maximum Depth 1% AEP 4.5 hr
- Figure F: Mine Site Pre-Development Maximum Velocity 1% AEP 4.5 hr
- Figure G: Mine Site Post-Development Maximum Depth 1% AEP 4.5 hr
- Figure H: Mine Site Post-Development Maximum Velocity 1% AEP 4.5 hr
- Figure I: Beebyn Creek Closure Maximum Depth PMF 36 hr
- Figure J: Beebyn Creek Closure Maximum Velocity PMF 36 hr
- Figure K: Mine Site Closure Maximum Depth PMF 4.5 hr
- Figure L: Mine Site Closure Maximum Velocity PMF 4.5 hr
- Figure M: Road Train Haul Road



# Project code: Drawn by: Joost Hollander Drawn by: Joost Hollander Date: 26/04/2024 Scale: 1:15000 Page size: A3 Sources: data.gov.au, DWER, landgate GDA94 / MGA zone 50

















Legend
Mine Layout
Mine Layout (not remaining)
Model Perimeter
Maximum Depth
[m]
0.05 - 0.10
0.10 - 0.20
0.20 - 0.50
0.50 - 1.00
1.00 - 1.50
1.50 - 2.00
2.00 - 2.50
2.50 - 3.00
> 3.00



Beebyn W11 Mine - Beebyn Creek Closure Maximum Depth - PMF - 36 hr


# Figure J

Beebyn W11 Mine - Beebyn Creek Closure Maximum Velocity - PMF - 36 hr



## Legend

Mine Layout	
-------------	--

Mine Layout (not remaining)

Model Perimeter

## Maximum Depth

[m]
0.05 - 0.10
0.10 - 0.20
0.20 - 0.50
0.50 - 1.00

- 1.00 1.50
  - 1.50 2.00
- 2.00 2.50
- 2.50 3.00
  - > 3.00

Figure K

Beebyn W11 Mine - Mine Site Closure Maximum Depth - PMF - 4.5 hr



the state of the s	A STATISTICS AND
	Patro Least i anno
	1 22 Star Log in Man 14
	ALT A
Sec.	and the second of
A Cash of the second se	STER ST STORTS
EXCEPT PASA	A Sugar
13	and the second se
100	17 10 m
124	"All all and "
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	and the second s
1. Sec. 1. Sec	and there is a series of
and the state of the	there is a
A. S.	S CORTAGE STATES IN
ALCONTRACTOR AND	and a state of the
	and the second second second
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	- Martine Mar 10
the second	× 17 00 00 00 00 00
En al I and the	Charles SET Lands
	C. R. M. C. B. C. C. C.
and reader to	A DISCOUTE
A AND AND	and the second of the second
and the set of	an and the state of the second
A 10 10 10	in the second second
	the man man
and the second s	
in the second	- I ATTASK TO AT
	and the second second
	and the second se
	and the state of the state of the
A STORE STORE	The second second second
A DISTANCE OF	an and the second second
687 C	aver the The
	the state of the second second
a state of the	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
	and the second second
B 98.0 18	and the state of the
	and any he applicant
	With the Contract of the state
de .	The sal have as an and
	and a the day
	A CONTRACTOR OF BE
10.00	and the second states of the
	1 1 2 2 2 3 3 5 LA
	An and a second second second
	a the second second
	Contraction of the second
	and the state
	2. 2. 2. 2. 1. 1.
	and the second
	E.
-	and the second
	Berneth
	THE PARA
	a state
	100 A
	1000
	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
and the second sec	
·	
and the second se	
and the second	

## Legend

	Mine Layout
	Mine Layout (not remaining)
	Model Perimeter
Maxir	num Velocity
	[m/s]
	0.10 - 0.20
	0.20 - 0.30

0.30 - 0.40
0.40 - 0.50
0.50 - 1.00
1.00 - 1.50
1 50 - 2 00

1.50 - 2.00 2.00 - 2.50

2.50 - 3.00

> 3.00

# Figure L

Beebyn W11 Mine - Mine Site Closure Maximum Velocity - PMF - 4.5 hr



## Legend

Mine Layout

- Road Train Haul Road (South)

- Catchment Flowlines

**Catchment Boundaries** 

Figure M

Beebyn W11 Mine - Road Train Haul Road

This page has been left blank









# MINING TENEMENT SUMMARY REPORT

## MINING LEASE 51/869

Status: Live

### TENEMENT SUMMARY

**Area:** 6,093.50000 HA

Mark Out : 04/05/2010 11:45:00

Received : 19/05/2010 08:30:00

Term Granted : 21 Years

Death Date : Commence : 03/06/2015

**Death Reason :** 

Expiry : 02/06/2036

## **CURRENT HOLDER DETAILS**

#### Name and Address

SINOSTEEL MIDWEST CORPORATION LIMITED AUSTWIDE MINING TITLE MANAGEMENT PTY LTD, C/- AUSTWIDE MINING TITLE MANAGEMENT PTY LTD, PO BOX 1434, WANGARA, WA, 6947, xxxxxxxx@austwidemining.com.au, xxxxxxx400

#### DESCRIPTION

Locality: BEEBYN Datum: DATUM SITUATED AT 571187.46mE 7027362.57mN Boundary: THEN TO 576381.33mE 7030087.12mN 581274.88mE 7030058.31mN 583995.18mE 7029495.37mN 585097.62mE 7027396.27mN 577922.44mE 7023622.49mN 577916.49mE 7022696.22mN 575736.16mE 7022709.64mN 575750.56mE 7025310.42mN 571174.57mE 7025338.42mN BACK TO DATUM

Area :	Туре	Dealing No	Start Date	Area
	Surveyed		23/11/2015	6,093.50000 HA
	Granted		02/06/2015	6,085.00000 HA
	Applied For		04/05/2010	6,085.00000 HA

### SHIRE DETAILS

 Shire
 Shire No
 Start
 End
 Area

 CUE SHIRE
 2380
 23/11/2015
 6,093.50000 HA

#### **RENT STATUS**

Due For Year End 02/06/2025: PAID IN FULL Due For Year End 02/06/2026: \$174,288.40

#### **EXPENDITURE STATUS**

Expended Year End 02/06/2024:	EXPENDED IN FULL
Current Year Commitment :	\$0.00



Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety Minerals House 100 Plain Street East Perth WA 6004

20 March 2024

To whom it may concern,

#### LETTER OF AUTHORISATION - MINING LEASE M51/869

Pursuant to an agreement with Fenix Resources Ltd (Fenix) for mining rights over a section of Mining Lease M51/869, Sinosteel Midwest Corporation Ltd consents to Fenix applying for and operating under any approvals granted.

Should you have any questions regarding this authorisation, please contact Peter Jones by email at pjones@smcl.com.au.

Kind Regards,

Xiaoxuan Sun (David)

Xiaoxuan Sun (David) Managing Director



Source